



2005 FIVE-YEAR REVIEW REPORT

VOLUME I

FORMER FORT DEVENS DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

GSA CONTRACT NO. GS-10F-0399N

Prepared for:

Former Fort Devens Devens, Massachusetts Middlesex County, MA September 2005

Prepared by:

U.S. Army BRAC Environmental Office 30 Quebec Street, Box 100 Devens, MA 01432







2005 FIVE-YEAR REVIEW REPORT

FORMER FORT DEVENS DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

GSA CONTRACT NO. GS-10F-0399N

Prepared for:

Former Fort Devens Devens, Massachusetts Middlesex County, MA September 2005

Prepared by:

U.S. Army BRAC Environmental Office 30 Quebec Street, Box 100 Devens, MA 01432

Approved by:

• 0

Robert J. Simeone BRAC Environmental Coordinator – Devens Army Base Realignment and Closure Division



Date:

9/25/2005

Sectio	D n	Title	<u>Page No.</u>
LIST	OF ACF	RONYMS	LA-1
EXE	CUTIVE	SUMMARY	ES-1
1.0	INTR	ΟΠΙΟΤΙΟΝ	11
1.0			
	1.1	PURPOSE OF THE REVIEW	
	1.2	BACKGROUND	I-1
	1.5	COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION	1-3
2.0	BARN SITE	NUM ROAD MAINTENANCE YARDS AOCS 44 & 52 STATUTORY FIVE-YE REVIEW	AR
	21		2 1
	2.1		
	2.3	REMEDIAL ACTIONS	2-3
	2.2	2.3.1 Selected Remedy	2-3
		2.3.2 Remedy Components Specified by the ROD	
		2.3.3 Remedy Implementation	
		2.3.4 System Operations/Operation & Maintenance	
	2.4	PROGRESS SINCE THE LAST FIVE YEAR REVIEW	
	2.5	FIVE-YEAR REVIEW PROCESS	2-10
		2.5.1 Document Review	2-10
		2.5.2 Data Review	2-10
		2.5.3 Site Inspection	2-10
		2.5.4 Interviews	2-11
		2.5.5 Community Participation	2-11
	2.6	TECHNICAL ASSESSMENT	2-11
		2.6.1 Technical Assessment Summary	2-13
		2.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review	2-13
	2.7	ISSUES	2-14
	2.8	RECOMMENDATIONS AND FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS	2-14
	2.9	PROTECTIVENESS STATEMENT	2-14
	2.10	NEXT REVIEW	2-14
	2.11	References	2-14
3.0	SHEP FIVE-	LEY'S HILL LANDFILL OPERABLE UNIT (AOCS 4, 5, AND 18) STATUTOR YEAR SITE REVIEW	₹Y 3-1
	2.1	SITE CURONOLOGY	7 1
	5.1 2 7		
	3.2	DACKOROUND	
	5.5	3 3 1 Selected Remedy	
		3.3.2 Remedy Components Specified by the ROD	3-5
		3.3.3 Remedy Implementation	3_8
		3.3.4 Shepley's Hill Landfill Draft Supplemental Groundwater Investigation	3_12
		3.3.5 System Operation/Operations and Maintenance	3-14
	3.4	PROGRESS SINCE THE LAST FIVE YEAR REVIEW	3-14
	3.5	FIVE –YEAR REVIEW PROCESS	3-15
		3.5.1 Document Review	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

T<u>itle</u>

Section

Page No.

		3.5.2 Data Review	3-16
		3.5.3 Site Inspection	
		3.5.4 Interviews	
	• •	3.5.5 Community Participation	
	3.6	TECHNICAL ASSESSMENT.	3-20
		3.6.1 Summary of technical assessment	3-24
		3.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review	
	3.7	ISSUES	
	3.8	RECOMMENDATIONS AND FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS	
	3.9	PROTECTIVENESS STATEMENT	
	3.10	NEXT REVIEW	
	3.11	KEFERENCES	
4.0	AOC 5	57 FIVE-YEAR STATUTORY SITE REVIEW	4-1
	4.1	CHRONOLOGY	
	4.2	BACKGROUND	
		4.2.1 AOC 57 Area 1 Background	
		4.2.2 AOC 57 Area 2 Background	
		4.2.3 AOC 57 Area 3 Background	
	4.3	REMEDIAL ACTION	
		4.3.1 Remedial Action Objectives at AOC 57 Area 2	
		4.3.2 Remedial Action Objectives at AOC 57 Area 3	
		4.3.3 Selected Remedy	
		4.3.4 Remedy Components Specified by the ROD	4-8
		4.3.5 Remedy Implementation	4-11
		4.3.6 System Operations/Operation and Maintenance	4-16
	4.4	PROGRESS SINCE THE LAST FIVE-YEAR REVIEW	4-16
	4.5	FIVE-YEAR REVIEW PROCESS	4-17
		4.5.1 Document Review	4-17
		4.5.2 Data Review	4-17
		4.5.3 Site Inspection	4-18
		4.5.4 Interviews	4-19
		4.5.5 Community Participation	4-19
	4.6	TECHNICAL ASSESSMENT.	4-19
		4.6.1 Summary of Technical Assessment	4-22
		4.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review	
	4.7	ISSUES	4-24
	4.8	RECOMMENDATIONS AND FOLLOW UP ACTIONS	4-24
	4.9	PROTECTIVENESS STATEMENT	4-25
	4.10	NEXT REVIEW	4-25
	4.11	References	4-25
5.0	AOC 4	43G AND 43J FIVE-YEAR POLICY SITE REVIEW	
	5.1	SITE CHRONOLOGY	
	5.2	BACKGROUND	5-2
		5.2.1 AOC 43G Background	
		5.2.2 AOC 43J Background	5-3
	5.3	REMEDIAL ACTIONS	5-4

Section	n	Title	Page No.			
4		5.3.1 Remedial Action Objectives at AOC 43G	5-4			
		5.3.2 Remedial Action Objectives at AOC 43J	5-4			
		5.3.3 Selected Remedy	5-5			
		5.3.4 Remedy Components Specified by the ROD	5-6			
		5.3.5 Remedy Implementation				
		5.3.6 Remedial LTM Status Since the June 2000 Five-Year Review				
		5.3.7 System Operations/Operation and Maintenance	5-14			
	5.4	PROGRESS SINCE THE LAST FIVE YEAR REVIEW				
	5.5	FIVE-YEAR REVIEW PROCESS				
		5.5.1 Document Review				
		5.5.2 Data Review				
		5.5.3 Site Inspection	5-25			
		5.5.4 Interviews				
		5.5.5 Community Participation	5-25			
	5.6	TECHNICAL ASSESSMENT.	5-26			
		5.6.1 Summary of Technical Assessment	5-28			
		5.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review	5-29			
	5.7	ISSUES.	5-31			
	5.8	RECOMMENDATIONS AND FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS	5-30			
	5.9	PROTECTIVENESS STATEMENT	5-31			
	5.10	NEXT REVIEW	5-32			
	5.11	REFERENCES	5-32			
6.0	SOUT FIVE-	SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA, AOCS 25, 26, 27, & 41 (GROUNDWATER) STATUTORY FIVE- YEAR SITE REVIEW				
	6.1	SITE CHRONOLOGY	6-1			
	6.2	BACKGROUND				
		6.2.1 AOC 25 (the Explosive Ordinance Discharge (EOD) Range)	6-3			
		6.2.2 AOC 26 (Zulu Ranges)	6-5			
		6.2.3 AOC 27 (Hotel Range)	6-7			
		6.2.4 AOC 41 (Unauthorized Landfill)	6-8			
	6.3	REMEDIAL ACTION	6-11			
		6.3.1 Selected Remedy	6-11			
		6.3.2 Remedy Implementation	6-12			
		6.3.3 System Operations/Operation and Maintenance	6-13			
	6.4	PROGRESS SINCE THE LAST FIVE-YEAR REVIEW	6-13			
	6.5	FIVE YEAR REVIEW PROCESS	6-13			
		6.5.1 Document Review	6-13			
		6.5.2 Data Review	6-13			
		6.5.3 Site Inspection	6-15			
		6.5.4 Interviews	6-15			
		6.5.5 Community Participation	6-16			
	6.6	TECHNICAL ASSESSMENT	6-16			
		6.6.1 Summary of Technical Assessment	6-18			
		6.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review	6-19			
	6.7	Issues	6-20			
	6.8	RECOMMENDATIONS AND FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS	6-20			
	6.9	PROTECTIVENESS STATEMENT	6-20			

Section 6.10		Title	Page No.	
		NEXT REVIEW		
	6.11	References	6-21	
7.0	AOCS	32 AND 43A FIVE YEAR POLICY SITE REVIEW		
	7.1	SITE CHRONOLOGY		
	7.2	BACKGROUND		
		7.2.1 AOC 32 Background		
		7.2.2 AOC 43A Background		
		7.2.3 AOC 32 and 43A Redevelopment		
	7.3	REMEDIAL ACTIONS		
		7.3.1 Surface and Subsurface Soil Remedial Objectives		
		7.3.2 Groundwater Remedial Objectives		
		7.3.3 Selected Remedy		
		7.3.4 Remedy Implementation		
		7.3.5 Systems Operation/Operations and Maintenance		
	7.4	PROGRESS SINCE THE LAST FIVE-YEAR REVIEW		
	7.5	FIVE-YEAR REVIEW PROCESS		
		7.5.1 Document Review		
		7.5.2 Data Review		
		7.5.3 Site Inspection		
		7.5.4 Interviews		
		7.5.5 Community Participation		
	7.6	TECHNICAL ASSESSMENT.		
		7.6.1 Summary of Technical Assessment		
		7.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review	7-21	
	7.7	ISSUES	7-22	
	7.8	RECOMMENDATIONS AND FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS	7-22	
	7.9	PROTECTIVENESS STATEMENT		
	7.10	NEXTREVIEW	7-23	
	7.11	REFERENCES	7-24	
8.0	AOC	AND FRANCISCULTURY STER REVIEW	×-1	
0.0	81		Q 1	
	82			
	0.2	8.2.1 Summary of Site Geology and Hydrogeology		
		8.2.2 Soil Contemination	νν. γ γ	
		8.2.2 Soli Collianniation		
		8.2.4 Summary of Site Disk	0-4 0 5	
	82	BEMEDIAL ACTIONS		
	0.0	8.2.1 Selected Demody		
		8.3.1 Selected Kennedy	0-/ 0 7	
		8.3.2 Remedy implementation and Maintenance	0-/ 0 0	
	0 4	8.5.5 System Operation/Operation and Maintenance	ŏ-ŏ	
	0.4 0.5	PROGRESS SINCE THE LAST FIVE-YEAR KEVIEW		
	ŏ.J	FIVE- I EAK KEVIEW PROCESS		
		8.5.1 Document Kevlew	·····δ-9	
		8.5.2 Data Keview		
		8.5.4 Lide inspection		
		8.5.4 Interviews	8-11	

Section		Title		Page No.
		8.5.5	Community Participation	
	8.6	TECHNI	CAL ASSESSMENT	
		8.6.1	Summary of Technical Assessment	8-15
		8.6.2	Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review	8-15
	8.7	ISSUES.		8-16
	8.8	RECOM	MENDATIONS AND FOLLOW-UP ACTION	8-17
	8.9	PROTEC	TIVENESS STATEMENT	8-17
	8.10	NEXT R	EVIEW	8-17
	8.11	Refere	NCES	8-18
9.0	AOCS 9, 11, 40, SAS 6,12,13,41 (SOLID WASTE) FIVE-YEAR STATUTORY SITE REVIEW		ITE 9-1	
	91			9_1
	9.2	BACKG	RQUND	9-1
		9.2.1	Description and History of SA 6	9-2
		9.2.2	Description and History of AOC 9	9_3
		9.2.3	Description and History of AOC 11	9_4
		9.2.4	Description and History of SA 12	9-5
		9.2.5	Description and History of SA 13	9-5
		9.2.6	Description and History of AOC 40	9-6
		9.2.7	Description and History of AOC 41	9-7
		9.2.8	Post-Site Investigation History	
	9.3	REMED	IAL ACTIONS	
		9.3.1	Selected Remedy	
		9.3.2	Remedy Implementation	
		9.3.3	System Operations/Operation and Maintenance	
	9.4	Progre	ESS SINCE THE LAST FIVE-YEAR REVIEW	
	9.5	FIVE-YI	EAR REVIEW PROCESS	
		9.5.1	Document Review	
		9.5.2	Data Review	
		9.5.3	Site Inspection	
		9.5.4	Interviews	
		9.5.5	Community Participation	
	9.6	TECHNI	CAL ASSESSMENT	
		9.6.1	Summary of Technical Assessment	
		9.6.2	Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review	
	9.7	ISSUES.	** 1 1	
	9.8	RECOM	MENDATIONS AND FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS	
	9.9	PROTEC	TIVENESS STATEMENT	
	9.10	NEXT R	EVIEW	
	9.11	Refere	NCES	
10.0	AOC	50 FIVE	YEAR POLICY SITE REVIEW	10-1
	10.1	SITE CHRONOLOGY		
	10.2	BACKG	ROUND	10-1
		10.2.1	Fueling Systems	10-2
		10.2.2	Drywell	10-3
	·	10.2.3	PCE Drum Storage Area	10-3

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section Title Page No. 10.3 10.4 PROGRESS SINCE LAST FIVE YEAR REVIEW 10-10 10.510.6TECHNICAL ASSESSMENT...... 10-12 10.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review...... 10-15 10.710.810.9 PROTECTIVENESS STATEMENT 10-17 10.1010.11

FIGURES

FIGURE 1-1 SITE PLAN

APPENDICES

- B SHEPLEY'S HILL LANDFILL OPERABLE UNIT (AOCS 4, 5, AND 18)
- C AOC 57
- D AOCS 43G&J
- E SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA (AOCS 25, 26, 27 AND 41) (GROUNDWATER)
- F AOCS 32 AND 43
- G AOC 69W
- H AOCS 9, 11, 40, SA 6, 12, 13, 41 (SOLID WASTE)
- I AOC 50
- J CURRENT SITE STATUS
- K COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION
- L REGULATORY AND COMMUNITY COMMENTS
- M INSTALLATION MASTER PLAN (IMP) AND LEASE IN FURTHERANCE OF CONVEYANCE (LIFOC)

LIST OF ACRONYMS

<u>A</u>

AAFES	Army Air Force Exchange Services
ABB-ES	ABB Environmental Services, Inc.
AOC	Area of Contamination
ARAR	Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements
AREE	Area Requiring Environmental Evaluation
AST	Aboveground Storage Tank
AWQC	Ambient Water Quality Criteria

<u>B</u>

bgs	Below Ground Surface
BTEX	Benzene, Toluene, Ethylbenzene, Xylene
BOD ₅	Biochemical Oxygen Demand
BRAC	Defense Base Closure and Realignment Act 1990

<u>C</u>

CERCLA	Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act
¢fm	Cubic Feet per Minute
CFR	Code of Federal Regulations
CMR	Code of Massachusetts Regulations
COC	Contaminants of Concern
COPCs	Contaminants of Potential Concern
cPAH	Carcinogenic polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons
CVOC	Chlorinated Volatile Organic Compounds
су	Cubic Yards

D

DDD	2,2-bis(para-chlorophenyl)-1, 1-dichloroethane
DDE	2,2-bis(para-chlorophenyl)-1, 1-dichloroethene
DDT	2,2-bis(para-chlorophenyl)-1, 1,1-trichloroethane
DO	Dissolved Oxygen
DRMO	Defense Reutilization and Marketing Office

Ē

EBS	Environmental Baseline Survey
EOD	Explosive Ordinance Discharge
EPA	Environmental Protection Agency
EPH	Extractable Petroleum Hydrocarbons
ERD	Enhanced Reductive Dechlorination
ESD	Explanation of Significant Differences

LIST OF ACRONYMS (cont.)

<u>F</u>	
FFA	Federal Facility Agreement
FFS	Focused Feasibility Study
FORSCOM	United States Army Forces Command
FOST	Finding of Suitability to Transfer
FS	Feasibility Study
ft	Feet
<u>G</u>	
GAC	Granular Activated Carbon
gpm	Gallons per Minute
GW	Groundwater
H	
HA	Health Advisories
HASP	Health and Safety Plan
HI	Hazard Index
HLA	Harding Lawson Associates
Ī	
ICs	Institutional Controls
IDW	Investigation Derived Waste
IMP	Installation Master Plan
IRIS	Integrated Risk Information System
IRP	Installation Restoration Program
IRZ	In-Situ Reactive Zone
IWS	In-Well Stripping
L	
LIFOC	Lease in Furtherance of Conveyance
LTM	Long Term Monitoring
LTMP	Long Term Monitoring Plan
LNAPL	Light Non-Aqueous Phase Liquid
<u>M</u>	· · ·
MAAF	Moore Array Airfield
MADEP	Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection
MCLGs	Maximum Contaminant Level Goals
MCLs	Maximum Contaminant Levels
MCP	Massachusetts Contingency Plan
µg/L	Micrograms per liter
mg/L	Milligrams per liter
MEP	Master Environmental Plan
mL/min	Milliliters per Minute
MMCL	Massachusetts Maximum Contaminant Level

.

LIST OF ACRONYMS (cont.)

MNA	Monitored Natural Attenuation	
MNG	Massachusetts National Guard	
MOGAS	Motor Vehicle Gasoline	
msl	Mean Sea Level	
<u>N</u>		
NCP	National Contingency Plan	
NDIR	non-dispersive infrared spectroscopy	
Nobis	Nobis Engineering, Inc.	
NPL	National Priorities List	
<u>0</u>		
	Open Burning/Open Detonation	
OB/OD	Overburden/Bedrock	
OB/BK O&M	Overstions and Maintenance	
ORM	Operations and Maintenance	
OPD	Overage Production Potential	
ORS	Oxygen-Reduction Folentian	
UKS	Office of Research and Standards	
<u>P</u>		
РА	Preliminary Assessment	
PAH	Polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons	
PCBs	Polychlorinated biphenyl	
PCE	Tetrachloroethylene	
PID	Photoionization Detector	
POL	Petroleum Oil and Lubricants	
POTW	Publicly Owned Treatment Works	
ppb	Parts per billion	
ppmv	Parts per million by volume	
PRE	Preliminary Risk Evaluation	
PRG	Preliminary Remediation Goals	
PVC	Polyvinyl Chloride	
<u>R</u>		
RAO	Remedial Action Objectives	
RAWP	Remedial Action Work Plan	
RCRA	Resource Conservation and Recovery Act.	
RD	Remedial Design	
RfD	Reference Doses	

Reserve Forces Training Area

Remedial Goals

Remedial Investigation

Record of Decision Regional Training Site

RFTA RGs

RI ROD

RTS

LA-3

LIST OF ACRONYMS (cont.)

<u>s</u>

SA	Study Area
SAP	Sampling and Analysis Plan
SHL	Shepley's Hill Landfill
SI	Site Investigation
SOW	Statement of Work
SPIA	South Post Impact Area
SSI	Supplemental Site Investigation
SW	Surface Water
SWET	Stone and Webster Environmental Technology
SVE	Soil Vapor Extraction
SVOC	Semi-Volatile Organic Compounds

T

TAL	Target Analytes List
TBC	To be Considered
TCE	Trichloroethene
TCL	Target Compound List
TCLP	Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure
TDA	Table of Distribution and Allowances
TOC	Total Organic Compound
TPHC	Total Petroleum Hydrocarbon Compounds
TPH	Total Petroleum Hydrocarbon
TSCA	Toxic Substances Control Act

<u>U</u>

USAEC	United States Army Environmental Center
USACE	United States Army Corp. of Engineers
USACE-NAE	United States Army Corp. of Engineers - New England District
USEPA	United States Environmental Protection Agency
UST	Underground Storage Tank

$\underline{\mathbf{V}}$

VOC	Volatile Organic Compounds
VPH	Volatile Petroleum Hydrocarbons

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Nobis Engineering, Inc. (Nobis) has performed the second comprehensive Five-Year Review of remedial actions for Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA) sites at the former Fort Devens and the Devens Reserve Forces Training Area (RFTA). This review, completed in accordance with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance, dated June 2001, was performed from March 2005 through September 2005.

The purpose of Five-Year Reviews is to determine whether the remedy at a site is protective of human health and the environment. In addition, five-year review reports identify deficiencies, if any, found during the review, and identify recommendations to address them.

This review is required by statute and policy, and is being implemented consistent with CERCLA and the National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan (NCP).

Comprehensive reviews were performed for all sites where a CERCLA Record of Decision (ROD) has been executed. Five-Year Reviews should be conducted by statute if both of the following conditions are true:

- Upon completion of the remedial action, hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants will remain on site; and
- The Record of Decision (ROD) for the site was signed on or after October 17, 1986 (the effective date of the Superfund Amendment and Reauthorization Act [SARA]) and the removal action was selected under CERCLA 121.

Five-Year Reviews should be conducted as a matter of policy for the following types of actions:

- A pre- or post-SARA remedial action that, upon completion, will not leave hazardous substances, pollutants or contaminants on site above levels that allow for unlimited use and unrestricted exposure, but requires five or more years to complete;
- A pre-SARA remedial action that leaves hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants on site above levels that allow for unlimited use and unrestricted exposure;
- A removal-only site on the National Priorities Listing (NPL) where a removal action leaves hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants on site above levels that allow for unlimited use and unrestricted exposure and where no remedial action has or will take place.

Five-Year Reviews were performed for the following sites:

Policy Review Sites

- AOCs 43G & 43J.
- AOCs 32 and 43.
- AOC 50 (Area Requiring Environmental Evaluation [AREE 69]).

Statutory Review Sites

- Barnum Road Maintenance Yards (Area of Concern [AOC]s 44 and 52).
- AOC 57.
- South Post Impact Area (SPIA), (AOCs 25, 26, 27, and 41 Groundwater).
- AOC 69W.
- Consolidation Landfill (AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41; Study Areas [SAs] 6, 12, and 13).
- Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit (AOCs 4, 5 and 18).

A brief description of each site where a ROD has been executed along with a summary of findings of the Five-Year Reviews is provided below.

Barnum Road Maintenance Yards (AOCs 44 and 52). The Barnum Road Maintenance Yards are located in the northeast corner of the former Main Post, near Barnum Gate. This site consists of former vehicle maintenance yards. Contamination at the site was primarily attributed to petroleum and oil releases associated with maintenance activity. The ROD describing the selected cleanup remedy was signed in March 1995. Remedial actions consisting of soil excavation, asphalt batching of contaminated soil, repaving, and installation of a stormwater collection system were completed in April of 1996.

There were no areas of noncompliance or deficiencies noted during the review that would make the remedial actions at AOCs 44 and 52 noncompliant with the ROD. The remedy at AOCs 44 and 52 is protective of human health and the environment and exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risks are being controlled.

Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit (AOCs 4, 5, and 18). Shepley's Hill Landfill encompasses approximately 84 acres in the northeast corner of the former Main Post at Fort Devens. Landfill operations at Shepley's Hill Landfill began at least as early as 1917, and stopped as of July 1, 1992. Landfill capping was completed in May 1993. Remedial Investigation (RI) and RI Addendum investigations performed between 1991 and 1993 identified potential human exposure to arsenic in groundwater as the primary risk at the site. A Feasibility Study (FS) was performed in 1995 to evaluate alternatives to reduce potential exposure risks, and in September 1995, the ROD was signed. The selected remedy consists of landfill closure, landfill maintenance, long-term groundwater and landfill gas monitoring, and institutional controls.

Based on the data collected to date, the required incremental reduction in risk was not achieved and the Army and regulatory agencies decided to implement the contingent element of the selected remedy (Alternative SHL-9, Groundwater Extraction and Discharge to the Town of Ayer, publicly owned treatment works [POTW]). Modifications to the implementation of the contingency remedy were detailed in the Final Explanation of Significant Differences (ESD), (CH2M Hill, June 2005) and included; 1) change the POTW from Ayer to Devens, and 2) provide pretreatment to meet Devens POTW discharge limitations. The contingency extraction treatment and discharge system has been constructed and the system is discharging to the Devens POTW. Alternative discharge options for treated water are currently under evaluation by the Army and the regulatory agencies.

There continues to be ponding on the northern half of the landfill, with ponding also present in the swales located to the south and northwest of the landfill. This appears to be an ongoing issue that has been documented in Long Term Monitoring Reports. Areas of poor drainage and ponding will be addressed by a Landfill Cap Maintenance Contract to be performed during the fall 2005. Fencing, vehicle gates, and gas monitoring probes will also be installed as part of this contract.

Elevated concentrations of arsenic in groundwater continue to be detected at the Shepley's Hill Landfill. A new arsenic MCL standard of 10 μ g/L was promulgated in January 2001 and public water systems must comply with this new standard by January 2006. Although ROD clean-up goals have not changed, to date, it is anticipated that they will change to be responsive to this new standard while incorporating knowledge of the known ranges of background arsenic concentrations in groundwater at Devens. This change in the standard will be an added difficulty in achieving cleanup goals. Attainment of the proposed standard would increase the stringency of the groundwater cleanup, and would reduce the potential residual risk from exposure to groundwater.

Although numerous studies have been performed to date, data gaps may exist regarding the lateral extent, flow directions, discharge points, and nature of the arsenic plume. In order to identify these data gaps and to evaluate risk associated with the remedies in place at the landfill, a Comprehensive Site Assessment (CSA) and Corrective Action Alternatives Analysis (CAAA) will be performed for the Shepley's Hill Landfill. The CSA will include an offsite groundwater plume investigation, human health and ecological risk assessments and a landfill cap assessment. The CAAA will review all prior feasibility study alternatives, revise and/or validate the alternatives based on new data and develop any new alternatives as necessary.

Based on the noted conditions and issues, the following recommendations are planned for the Shepley's Hill Landfill:

- Start up of extraction and treatment system
- Performance monitoring of the extraction and treatment system
- Landfill Cap Maintenance
- Performance of the CSA/CAAA

A protectiveness determination of the remedy at the Shepley's Hill Landfill cannot be made at this time until further information is obtained through completion of the recommendations and follow up actions detailed above. It is expected that these actions will take approximately 2 years to complete (mostly dependent on the CSA and CAAA), at which time a protectiveness determination will be made. Pending the availability of adequate funding, the Army will implement the remedy identified by the CSA/CAAA to achieve protectiveness within a reasonable time period.

AOC 57. AOC 57 consists of three sub-areas (Area 1, Area 2, and Area 3) located south and southeast of former Building 3713 and former buildings 3756, 3757 and 3758 adjacent to Barnum Road. These sub-areas received stormwater runoff and wastes from vehicle maintenance activities conducted at the storage yards. These yards were eventually abandoned in 1998, and the pavement and fencing were removed. The former storage yards are now soil and grass-covered areas. Areas 2 and 3 are located within Lease Parcel A6a that the Army plans to transfer to the Massachusetts Development Finance Corporation (Mass Development).

A ROD was signed on September 28, 2001 for AOC 57 presenting selected remedial actions for soil and groundwater contamination at Areas 1, 2 and 3. The selected remedy for Area 1 was no further action. The selected remedy for Area 2 was excavation (for possible future use) and institutional controls. The selected remedy for Area 3 was excavation (to accelerate groundwater cleanup) and institutional controls. Excavation activities at AOC 57 were completed in 2003.

Other components of the selected remedy include wetlands protection and environmental monitoring and inspections. An ESD (USACE, 2004) was prepared in 2003 to address increased soil removal volumes and cost for Area 2, inclusion of extractable petroleum hydrocarbon (EPH) as a contaminant of concern (COC) for Area 2 soils, addition of EPH C11-C22 Aromatic Hydrocarbon (200 μ g/l cleanup goal) and addition of polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) as COCs in Area 2 groundwater.

There are no areas of non-compliance or deficiencies that have been noted during this review that would make the remedial actions at AOCs 57 Areas 1, 2, and 3 non-compliant with the ROD, or sufficient to warrant a finding of not protective. This finding is based upon a review of site reports that have been prepared since the signing of the ROD, a review of ARARs triggered by the remedial action, and the findings from the site inspection and interviews.

Long term monitoring should continue as specified the Draft Long Term Monitoring Program (LTMP), (USACE, 2004). The long-term monitoring is currently performed on a semi-annual basis (Spring and Fall time period each year). Results of the ongoing monitoring indicated that there are reducing conditions at AOC 57. It is recommended that the reducing conditions observed at AOC 57 be assessed by the Army by plotting and contouring arsenic concentrations, as well as oxygen-reduction potential (ORP) and dissolved oxygen (DO). The assessment should include a determination of the cause of the reducing conditions, by evaluating the relationship between arsenic levels and DO/ORP. Future surface water results should be compared to National Recommended Water Quality Criteria to ensure compliance and to determine if an impact to the protectiveness of the remedy has occurred. The above recommendations will be evaluated as part of the established LTMP which be updated in the spring 2006.

The remedies at AOC 57 are protective of human health and the environment. Exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risks are being controlled. Excavation activities at AOC 57 were completed in 2003.

AOCs 43G and 43J. Both AOCs 43G and 43J are former gas stations located within the Devens RFTA. AOC 43G is located on Queenstown Road in the central portion of the former Main Post. AOC 43J is located on Patton Road at the southern edge of the former Main Post. Contamination at both sites is attributed to releases from gasoline and waste underground storage tanks (USTs). Site investigations (SIs) and Supplemental Site Investigations (SSIs) were performed between 1992 and 1994 at both sites. In June 1996, CERCLA based RI/FS investigations were completed at both AOCs to address contaminated groundwater. A ROD was signed in October of 1996 documenting intrinsic remediation as the final selected cleanup remedy at both AOCs 43G and 43J. Specific components of the selected remedy for both AOCs include: intrinsic bioremediation assessment, data collection and groundwater modeling, installation of additional monitoring wells, long term groundwater monitoring, and annual data reports.

Review of the groundwater sampling data from 1999 through October 2004 indicate that groundwater concentrations of organic COCs are decreasing at source locations at AOCs 43G and 43J and that the plumes are not expanding or migrating off RFTA property. Groundwater sampling results from sentry well locations are below cleanup goals for organic COCs and most metals, with the exception of manganese at AOC 43G and AOC 43J. Concentrations of VPH aromatics C9-C10 have exceeded cleanup goals in one sentry well during the October 2004 sampling round. No further field action is warranted at either site before the next scheduled sampling round in November or December 2005. Analytical results are supportive of the intrinsic bioremediation assessment conclusion that migration of VPH concentrations in exceedances of

GW-1 standards off RFTA property is not probable. Installations of groundwater monitoring wells and groundwater modeling have been completed, as stipulated in the ROD, and groundwater monitoring is ongoing. No contingency action is required at this time at either AOC.

Current remedial action activity should continue and consists of implementing the remaining three components specified in the ROD: a long-term groundwater monitoring program, annual reporting, and Five-Year Reviews (Component Nos. 4, 5, and 6, respectively). These components enable continued assessment for compliance with performance standards and reporting of the remedial progress.

It is recommended that development of risk-based standards for manganese, utilizing current RfD factors, as supported by the EPA, be considered prior to significant modification to the long-term monitoring plans at AOCs 43G and 43J. Modifications to the sampling program, the IRA modeling, potential pathways, off-site migration and remedial duration should continue to be reviewed as part of the established LTMP. It also recommended to repair the damaged well AAFES-6 at AOC 43G.

The remedies at AOCs 43G and 43J are protective of human health and the environment, and exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risks are being controlled. Human health is not at risk at AOCs 43G and 43J because groundwater is not used as a drinking water source.

South Post Impact Area (AOCs 25, 26, 27, and 41). The South Post Impact Area (SPIA) covers approximately 1,500 acres and is located within the 4,800-acre South Post section of the former Fort Devens. The SPIA is an active weapons and ordnance discharge area used by the Army, the Massachusetts National Guard, and law enforcement agencies for training purposes. Old Turnpike Road, Firebreak Road, the southern portion of Harvard Road, Trainfire Road, and Dixie Road roughly bound the area. The SPIA includes AOCs 25, 26, 27 and 41 as well as several SAs, and a number of firing ranges along Dixie Road and Trainfire Road that are not designated as AOCs.

The portion of the SPIA covered by the ROD encompasses the 964 acres north and west of New Cranberry Pond. This area is referred to as the SPIA monitored area. CERCLA directed RIs have been conducted for the SPIA and the associated AOCs. A ROD was signed in July 1996 documenting No Action as the final selected remedy for the SPIA monitored area groundwater, surface water, soil, and sediment, and AOC 41 groundwater. The following components were included as part of the selected No Action Remedy: groundwater monitoring for potential contaminant migration out of the SPIA monitored area, groundwater monitoring at the individual AOCs, sampling of Well D-1 (classified as a transient non-community supply well), developing a LTMP (SWETS, 1997) and Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan (INRMP), restricting development of new drinking water sources within the SPIA monitored area, and submitting annual reports to document the results of monitoring. The Army is currently finalizing the updated INRMP.

RDX was detected in well 26M-92-08X at AOC 26. In general, the purpose of the South Post Monitoring (SPM) well series (those that are monitored as part of the LTMP efforts) is to serve as a network of sentinel sampling points, for determination of off-site migration. RDX was not detected in the SPM wells. These issues do not make the remedial actions at the SPIA non-compliant with the ROD, and they are not sufficient to warrant a finding of not protective. This finding is based upon a review of site reports that have been prepared since the signing of the ROD, a review of ARARs triggered by the remedial action, and the findings from the site

inspection and interviews, and continued monitoring of the situation. It is recommended that RDX at the SPIA continue to be monitored.

Long-term monitoring will be continued as outlined in the ROD and LTMP following low-flow collection procedures in accordance with USEPA Region I Low-Flow Sampling Procedures (USEPA, 1996). These procedures emphasize the need to minimize stress to the aquifer through low pumping rates (usually between 100 to 400 mL/min) in order to collect samples with minimal alterations to water chemistry.

In addition, the Army should continue to evaluate the potential for off-site migration, impact to sensitive receptors, trend analysis, and remedial duration as part of the established LTMP for SPIA. Evaluation of the LTMP will occur in spring 2006. In addition, the INRMP will be finalized in the fall 2005.

The No Action remedy at AOCs 25, 26, 27, and 41 is protective of human health and the environment and exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risk are being controlled.

AOCs 32 and 43A. AOC 32 (Defense Reutilization and Marketing Office [DRMO Yard]) was used as a materials storage facility. Operational records indicate that the facility was active from at least 1964 to 1995. A former UST site (UST #13) has also been incorporated into AOC 32. This UST was used to store waste oil and was located just northeast of the DRMO Office. At the time of base closure in 1996, AOC 43A was being used as a petroleum, oils and lubricants (POL) storage area. Located across Market Street from AOC 32, this area served as the central distribution point for all gasoline and fuel at the former Fort Devens from the 1940s to base closure. AOC 43A consists of a fenced lot within a developed industrial area. A ROD was signed in February 1998 documenting the selected remedies for AOCs 32 and 43A. Key components of the remedy at AOC 32 include excavation of contaminated soils and annual groundwater monitoring. The groundwater remedy for AOCs 32 and 43A includes establishing institutional controls, installing additional monitoring wells, collecting data to support monitored natural attenuation, groundwater modeling, performing annual long term groundwater monitoring, and providing annual reports to regulators.

The remedial actions at AOCs 32 and 43A are protective of human health and immediate threats do not exist. The Army has installed source area groundwater monitoring wells and re-initiated long-term monitoring. The 2003 annual groundwater monitoring report and the groundwater sampling data from fall and spring 2004 document that natural attenuation is effectively remediating groundwater at AOCs 32 and 43A, with the possible exception of one location (32M-01-18XBR). Groundwater sampling results from all other locations are below cleanup goals. Contamination at the bedrock source well 32M-01-18XBR is limited to some VOCs, VPH C₉-C₁₀ aromatics, and manganese. This well is located beneath pavement adjacent to the newly constructed Webvan warehouse. The warehouse and its pavements are reducing groundwater recharge from surface water infiltration, resulting in less attenuation due to recharge. The capping effect of the building and pavement is creating anaerobic conditions, but not sufficient for dechlorination of the chlorobenzene compounds. If conditions become sufficiently reducing, the potential for anaerobic de-chlorination of the chlorobenzene compounds exists, if the bacterial community can support this degradation process.

The current LTMP (SWETS, 2001a,b) and monitored natural assessment (MNA), (SWETS, 2001) were developed for the former site configuration and well network. The LTMP and MNA is currently being updated for the current site configuration. Since there are plans to expand the Webvan warehouse, the documents should take into account these proposed modifications to the

site. It is recommended that the sampling be conducted in the future with the analyte list reduced to exclude EPH, PCBs, NH₃, TOC, COD, dissolved gases, alkalinity, dissolved metals, and anions.

It is recommended that all wells at the site, especially flush-mount wells in parking lot areas, be inspected for damage, and that repairs be implemented as appropriate before the wells are subject to snow and potential intrusion of sand and/or road salt. Well 43M-01-16XBR was observed to be missing its road box. It is anticipated that these activities will occur in October 2005.

Based on current and planned site conditions, a site-specific vapor intrusion assessment is recommended, including evaluation of subslab soil gas and indoor air concentrations (if warranted) and/or site-specific mathematical modeling in accordance with the November 2002, EPA Draft Subsurface Vapor Intrusion Guidance. The vapor intrusion evaluation is planned for March 2006.

The remedy at AOC 32 and AOC 43A currently protects human health and the environment because institutional controls (ICs) are incorporated into the deed that prohibit the extraction of groundwater from the site for industrial and/or potable use and contaminants are not migrating off-site. However, in order for the remedy to be protective in the long-term, the identified recommendations and follow-up actions need to be taken to ensure long-term protectiveness.

AOC 69W. AOC 69W comprises the former Fort Devens Elementary School (Building 215) and the associated parking lot and lawn extending approximately 300 feet northwest to Willow Brook. Contamination at AOC 69W is attributed to No. 4 heating oil, which leaked from underground piping in two separate incidences: once in 1972 and again in 1978. It is estimated that approximately 7,000 to 8,000 gallons of fuel oil were released to soil from each release.

Based on the nature and distribution of contaminants, a Removal Action was undertaken in the winter of 1997 and 1998 to remove contaminated soil associated with the historic releases. Contaminated soil was removed near the school and extending to the UST. Confirmatory subsurface soil sample results from the Removal Action showed that concentrations of fuel-related contaminants still exceed Massachusetts Contingency Plan (MCP) S-I/GW-1 standards for extractable petroleum hydrocarbons (EPH) in subsurface soils immediately adjacent to the school building, but are generally low in downgradient areas (only a few concentrations in soil slightly exceeded MCP S-1/GW-1 standards). In 1999, a Limited Action ROD was signed. The Limited Action consists of long term groundwater monitoring and institutional controls to limit potential exposure to contaminated soils and groundwater under both existing and future site conditions.

There are no areas of non-compliance or deficiencies that have been noted during this review that would make the remedial action at AOC 69W non-compliant with the ROD, or sufficient to warrant a finding of not protective. This finding is based upon a review of site reports, a review of ARARs and the findings from the site inspection and interviews with personnel familiar with the site. Long-term monitoring should continue as specified in the AOC 69W LTMP (HLA, 2000). However, groundwater monitoring can be terminated if four consecutive groundwater samples are below action criteria. No reductions in sampled locations or in frequency are recommended at this time. The long term monitoring is currently performed on a semi-annual basis. The Army is responsible for implementation.

Given the present site conditions and noted analytical data, the Army should review the previously computed indoor air assessments. In addition, the Army should evaluate potential offsite sensitive receptors as part of the established LTMP for AOC 69W. The remedy at AOC 69W is protective of human health and the environment and exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risk are being controlled. Human health is currently not at risk at AOC 69W because groundwater at the AOC is not being used for potable use nor proposed for potable use and COCs exceeding cleanup goals are not migrating off-site. The proposed deed restrictions prohibiting future use of groundwater as drinking water have not yet been implemented, since the property has yet to be transferred.

AOCs 9, 11, 40, 41 (Solid Waste), SAs 6, 12, and 13. These seven sites were all small former landfills and debris disposal areas at the former Fort Devens. SAs 6 and 12, and AOC 41 are located on the South Post. AOC 9 is located on the former North Post. AOCs 11 and 40, and SA 13 are located on the former Main Post. A ROD was issued in July 1999 which presented the selected remedial action of no further action for SA 6; surface debris and hot spot removal at SA 12, and AOC 41; debris removal and consolidation or offsite transport at AOC 9, 11, 40, and SA 13; and wetlands restoration at AOCs 9, 11, and 40. An evaluation of the on-site versus off-site disposal option was conducted and the findings were presented in the Remedy Selection Report. The remedy selection process indicated that disposal of the remedial debris in an on-site landfill to be built at the former golf course driving range on Patton Road was determined to be the "best value" alternative. The approved remedial alternative (alternative 4c) documented in the ROD called for no further action at SA-6; limited removal at SA-12 and AOC-41; full excavation of AOCs 9, 11 and 40, and SA-13, with on-site consolidation or off-site disposal.

The decision to proceed with on-site consolidation was issued June 30, 2000, and a temporary (120 day) access agreement to begin construction was signed on September 15, 2000. The Consolidation Landfill was constructed at the Former Golf Course Driving Range. Debris from each of the six landfill areas was excavated, characterized, transported and disposed at either the secure on-site landfill or an off-site licensed facility if characterization results exceeded on-site disposal requirements.

At present, there are no deficiencies that would prevent planned response actions from being protective of human health and the environment, nor are any expected in the future. It is the recommendation of this review that operation and maintenance at the Consolidation Landfill be continued as outlined in the Landfill Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Plan (Shaw, 2003) and the Wetland and Upland Habitat Restorations (Shaw, 2003) at AOCs 9, 11, 40 and SAs 12 and 13 be evaluated during the first three growing seasons.

Significant soil erosion was observed in the north-northeast gabion slope drain starting at the intersection with the bench drain and deposition of the eroded materials was observed in the perimeter swale of the Consolidation Landfill. A SOW has been issued and awarded by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, for this repair of the gabion slope drain and work is planned to be completed in the fall 2005.

The remedies at AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41 and SAs 12 and 13 are protective of human health and the environment, and exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risk are being controlled. Human health is currently not at risk at AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41 and SAs 12 and 13 because contaminated soils have been excavated and placed in the Consolidation Landfill where it has been capped. All components of the ROD have been implemented. No contingency action is required at this time. Current remedial action activity consists of continued implementation of the components specified in the ROD: the long-term groundwater monitoring and maintenance program at the Consolidation Landfill, annual reporting, and Five-Year Reviews. These

components enable continued assessment for compliance with performance standards and reporting of remedial progress.

AOC 50 (AREE 69 AE). AOC 50 is located on the northeastern boundary of the former Moore Army Airfield (MAAF), within the former Fort Devens North Post in Ayer, Massachusetts. The AOC 50 Source Area comprises less than 2 acres and includes Buildings 3803 (the former parachute shop), 3840 (the former parachute shakeout tower), 3824 (a gazebo), and 3801 (the former 10th Special Forces airplane parachute simulation building). Sources of groundwater contamination within AOC 50 include two World War II fueling systems, a drywell, and the tetrachloroethylene (PCE) drum storage area; these sources are collectively referred to as the Source Area. Although these sources have been removed or taken out of commission, groundwater underlying AOC 50 contains elevated concentrations of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) most notably PCE. The Southwest Plume extends from the Source Area approximately 3,000-feet downgradient to the Nashua River.

In March 2004 a ROD was signed depicting the following remedial components: enhanced reductive dechlorination (ERD) treatment program and in-well stripping (IWS), soil vapor extraction (SVE), contingencies, long-term groundwater monitoring, institutional controls, and Five-Year Reviews. Initial results indicate that significant degradation of PCE is occurring at the site due to the implementation of the IWS and ERD treatment systems. The Army believes that the remedy is operating properly and successfully (OPS) and will request OPS certification from the USEPA in the near future.

There are no areas of non-compliance or deficiencies that have been noted during this review that would make the remedial actions at AOC 50 non-compliant with the ROD, or sufficient to warrant a finding of not protective. This finding is based upon a review of site reports that have been prepared since the signing of the ROD, a review of ARARs triggered by the remedial action, and the findings from the site inspection and interviews.

Elevated concentrations of CVOCs, continue to be detected in groundwater at AOC 50, however, a decreasing trend has been observed in some areas of the site due to the ongoing remedial efforts. A Remedial Action Work Plan (RAWP), including a Land Use Control Plan (LUCP) is currently being finalized by the Army. The remedial actions at AOC 50 are expected to allow unrestricted use and unlimited exposure upon final achievement of Remedial Goals (RGs) in groundwater. The Army has installed groundwater monitoring wells and initiated long-term monitoring. The groundwater sampling data from fall 2004 and spring 2005 document that both the ERD system and the IWS system are effective in degrading PCE and creating proper conditions for treatment. PCE and TCE contaminant concentrations in groundwater are decreasing.

Current remedial actions as specified in the ROD should continue. These components enable continued assessment for compliance with remedial goals established in the ROD and reporting of the remedial progress. Performance standards should be followed and an assessment of contaminant migration and remedial duration should continue. Evaluation of the SVE system is ongoing. The IC's should be implemented through deed restrictions in accordance with the RAWP prior to the OPS Demonstration.

The remedy at AOC 50 is expected to be protective upon completion, and in the interim, exposure pathways that could lead to unacceptable risks are being controlled. Human health is currently not at risk at AOC 50 because groundwater at the AOC is not being used for potable use nor proposed for potable use. Current remedial action activity consists of operation of the remedy,

long-term groundwater monitoring, annual reporting, and Five-Year Reviews. These components enable continued assessment for compliance with performance standards and reporting of remedial progress.

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Nobis Engineering, Inc. (Nobis) has performed the second comprehensive Five-Year Review of remedial actions for Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA) sites at the former Fort Devens, Devens Massachusetts. This review, completed in accordance with relevant U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance, was performed from March 2005 through September 2005.

<u>1.1</u> Purpose of the Review

The purpose of Five-Year Reviews is to determine whether the remedy at a site is protective of human health and the environment. The methods, findings, and conclusions of reviews are documented in Five-Year Review reports. In addition, Five-Year Review reports identify deficiencies, if any, found during the review, and identify recommendations to address them. This review is required by statute and policy, and is being implemented consistent with the CERCLA and the National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan (NCP).

Five-Year Reviews should be conducted by statute if both of the following conditions are true:

- Upon completion of the remedial action, hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants will remain on site; and
- The Record of Decision (ROD) for the site was signed on or after October 17, 1986 (the effective date of the Superfund Amendment and Reauthorization Act [SARA]) and the removal action was selected under CERCLA 121.

Five-Year Reviews should be conducted as a matter of policy for the following types of actions:

- A pre- or post-SARA remedial action that, upon completion, will not leave hazardous substances, pollutants or contaminants on site above levels that allow for unlimited use and unrestricted exposure, but requires five or more years to complete;
- A pre-SARA remedial action that leaves hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants on site above levels that allow for unlimited use and unrestricted exposure;
- A removal-only site on the National Priorities Listing (NPL) where a removal action leaves hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants on site above levels that allow for unlimited use and unrestricted exposure and where no remedial action has or will take place.

1.2 Background

Fort Devens is located approximately 35 miles west of Boston, Massachusetts. The former Fort Devens is comprised of approximately 9,280 acres divided into North, Main and South Posts. The South Post is approximately 4,800 acres, and the North and Main Post make up the remaining 4,480 acres. The facility is located in the Towns of Devens, Ayer, Shirley, Lancaster and Harvard. Massachusetts Highway 2 divides the South Post from the Main Post. The Nashua River runs though the North, Main and South Posts. The area surrounding the former Fort Devens is largely rural/residential.

In 1991, the U.S. Department of the Army and the USEPA signed a Federal Facility Agreement (FFA) under Section 120 of CERCLA for environmental investigations and remedial actions at

1-1

Fort Devens. The agreement required that Site Investigations (SIs) be undertaken at each Study Area (SA) to verify whether a release or potential release of contaminants existed, to determine the nature of the associated risk to human health and the environment, and to determine whether further investigations or response actions would be required.

In 1985, Fort Devens applied for a Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) Part B Permit for its hazardous waste storage facility. The submission included a list of Solid Waste Management Units that showed potential for the release of hazardous substances to the environment. Under the FFA between the Army and the USEPA, these potential areas of contamination are referred to as SAs.

Argonne National Laboratory's Environmental Assessment and Information Sciences Division completed an environmental assessment in November 1988, as part of the environmental restoration of Fort Devens. The objective of the assessment was to characterize on-site contamination and provide recommendations for potential response actions. Fort Devens was placed on the National Priorities List (NPL) effective December 1989.

The results of this assessment are reported in a document entitled the Master Environmental Plan (MEP) for Fort Devens, Massachusetts (Biang Ct al., 1992). The MEP summarizes preliminary assessment activities and provides an historical summary of the installation, discusses the geologic and hydrologic setting, discusses the nature and extent of contamination, and proposes response actions.

In 1991, the former Fort Devens was identified for closure by July 1997 under Public Law 101-510, the Defense Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) Act of 1990. This resulted in accelerated schedules for the environmental investigations at Fort Devens. Since 1991, the U.S. Army Environmental Center (USAEC, formerly the U.S. Army Toxic and Hazardous Materials Agency) and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) have tasked Army contractors to perform SIs, Remedial Investigations (RIs), Feasibility Studies (FSs), and other CERCLA related activities for the sites addressed in this report. To a significant extent, the Five-Year Review draws upon information collected during the previous activities performed by Army contractors. Previous reports generated by prior activities, containing information used during the Five-Year Review, are referenced in this report.

The remainder of this report describes the Five-Year Reviews performed for the CERCLA sites at the former Fort Devens and Devens Reserve Forces Training Area (RFTA) where Records of Decisions (RODs) have been executed. Some of the sites comprise more than one SA or area of concern (AOC) (See Figure 1-1). The sites consist of the following:

Policy Review Sites

- AOCs 43G & 43J.
- AOCs 32 and 43.
- AOC 50 (Area Requiring Environmental Evaluation [AREE 69]).

Statutory Review Sites

- Barnum Road Maintenance Yards (AOCs 44 and 52).
- AOC 57.
- South Post Impact Area (SPIA), (AOCs 25, 26, 27, and 41 Groundwater).
- AOC 69W.
- Consolidation Landfill (AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41; Study Areas [SAs] 6, 12, and 13).
- Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit (AOCs 4, 5 and 18).

1.3 Community Participation

In February 1992, the Army released a community relations plan that outlined a program to address community concerns and keep citizens informed about and involved in remedial activities at Fort Devens. As part of this plan, the Army established a Technical Review Committee (TRC) in early 1992. The TRC, as required by SARA Section 211 and Army Regulation 200-1, included representatives from USEPA, U.S. Army Environmental Center, Devens RFTA, Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MADEP), local officials, and the community. Until January 1994, when it was replaced by the Restoration Advisory Board (RAB), the TRC generally met quarterly to review and provide technical comments on schedules, work plans, work products, and proposed activities for the study areas (SAs) and AOCs at Devens RFTA. The RI, FS, ESDs, and Proposed Plan (PP) reports, and other related support documents have been submitted to the RAB for their review and comment.

The Army, as part of its commitment to involve the affected communities, forms a RAB when an installation closure involves transfer of property to the community. The Fort Devens RAB was formed in February 1994 to add members of the Citizen's Advisory Committee (CAC) to the TRC. The CAC had been established previously to address Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act/Environmental Assessment issues concerning the reuse of property at Devens RFTA. The RAB consists of representatives from the Army, USEPA Region I, MADEP, local governments and citizens of the local communities.

The Army has held regular and frequent informational meetings, performed presentations, issued fact sheets and press releases, and held public meetings to keep the community and other interested parties informed of activities at Devens. Currently, the RAB meets every other month or more if needed. The RAB members provide advice to the installation and regulatory agencies on the Devens RFTA cleanup programs. Specific responsibilities include: addressing cleanup issues such as land use and cleanup goals, reviewing plans and documents, identifying proposed requirements and priorities, and conducting regular meetings that are open to the public. In 2001, 2002, 2004 and 2005, the Army performed public site tours at sites where significant actions were occurring or were planned. In addition, on two occasions, the Army has sent out questionnaires to obtain feedback from citizens of the local communities.

At the March 10, 2005 RAB meeting, the USEPA announced the commencement of this Five-Year Review. On September 8, 2005, an update of the 5-Year Review, including information for each AOC was presented to the RAB by the USACE. Upon completion, another announcement will be made at a RAB meeting and formal notifications will be released. Copies of the applicable community participation information is included in Appendix K of the Five-Year Review.

2.0 BARNUM ROAD MAINTENANCE YARDS AOCs 44 & 52 FIVE-YEAR STATUTORY SITE REVIEW

2.1 Site Chronology

Table 2-1 Chronology of Site Events

Event	Date
Motor vehicle gasoline (MOGAS 20 gals) release at	April 1985
Cannibalization Yard (4 cy contaminated soil removed)	
Exploratory test pits for spill containment basin in the Table of	July 1991
Distribution and Allowances (TDA) Maintenance Yard;	
petroleum contaminated soil detected (0-12" depth)	
Contaminated soil removed from TDA Maintenance Yard	December 1991
during spill containment basin construction	
Waste oil UST removed at Cannibalization Yard	May 1992
(120 cy of contaminated soil removed)	July 1992
Site Investigation (SI) completed	April 1993
Supplemental SI (SSI) completed, SAs designated as AOCs	June 1993
Feasibility Study (FS) issued	January 1994
Record of Decision (ROD) signature and Remedial Design (RD)	March 1995
issued	
Remedial actions	August 1995 – April 1996
Groundwater Monitoring Plan issued	April 1998
Round 1 Annual Groundwater Sampling Report issued.	October 1998
Round 2 Annual Groundwater Sampling Report issued with	October 1999
recommendation to discontinue annual groundwater sampling	
First Five-Year Review	September 2000
Round 3 Groundwater Sampling Report issued	April 2004
Draft Remedial Action Report issued	May 2004
Second Five-Year Review	September 2005

2.2 Background

The Barnum Road Maintenance Yards (Area of Concern [AOCs] 44 & 52) are former Army vehicle storage and maintenance yards located within the Devens Reserve Forces Training Area (RFTA). These sites were combined administratively under one Record of Decision (ROD) because of their proximity and similar petroleum releases. The sites are situated in the northeast corner of the former Main Post on Barnum Road, approximately 1/2 mile southwest of the Barnum Road Gate. The total area of the Barnum Road Maintenance Yards is approximately 8.8 acres (Figure 3 reprinted from the Draft Remedial Action Report, Mactec 2004 is presented in Appendix A). The Maintenance Yards are bordered to the north by Massachusetts Army National Guard property, which is used for similar vehicle storage activities as the Barnum Road Maintenance Yards. Boston and Maine Railroad property and Barnum Road border the site to the west and east, respectively. Building 3713, located south of the site, is used by the Army for vehicle maintenance activities. The Maintenance Yards are fenced, paved, and presently used for military vehicle parking.

Prior to base closure, AOC 44 was known as the Cannibalization Yard. It was an area where vehicles were stored before being dismantled for usable parts. AOC 52 was a maintenance yard

where vehicles were stored while awaiting repairs. It was historically known as the Table of Distribution and Allowances (TDA) Maintenance Yard. Northwest of the Cannibalization Yard was a separately fenced vehicle storage yard known as the RTS (Regional Training Site) Yard. An area that was fenced-off southeast of the main portion of the TDA Maintenance Yard was known as the K-Yard. All four of these yards had a long and continuing history of vehicle storage; hence at the direction of the Army, they were all included as AOCs 44 & 52 and combined as one operable unit. They are referred to collectively in the ROD and this Five-Year Review as the Maintenance Yards, or the site.

The groundwater in the aquifer underlying the Maintenance Yards has been assigned to Class 1 under Commonwealth of Massachusetts regulations. Class 1 consists of groundwater that is designated as a source of potable water supply. Based on 1992 Site Investigation (SI) water level survey, inferred groundwater flow from the Maintenance Yards is northeast toward Grove Pond. The town of Ayer currently owns and operates two water supply wells within 150 feet of the south side of Grove Pond and approximately one-half mile from the yards. Currently there is no evidence that contamination found in the Maintenance Yards' soils is affecting groundwater quality.

The soils in the area of the Maintenance Yards are products of glacial meltwater deposition in lake and ice-contact environments during the final retreat of Pleistocene glaciers. The yards are located on a kame terrace. The deposits consist of stratified sands and gravelly sands possibly overlying till.

The soils of the site have been exposed to possible vehicle crankcase releases over a long duration. Gasoline, motor oil, and other automotive fluids have also likely been released during vehicle dismantling operations in the Cannibalization Yard. Individual releases were not likely to have been of significant volume, but numerous releases during the period in which the yard was used account for the soil contamination problem. The only recorded significant vehicle released was an estimated 20 gallons of motor vehicle gasoline (MOGAS) and hydraulic fluid released near the center of the Cannibalization Yard in 1985 during the cannibalization process. Approximately 4 cubic yards (cy) of visibly contaminated soils were excavated immediately and containerized by Army personnel.

In July 1991, exploratory test pits were excavated for construction of a concrete spill-containment basin in the southeast corner of the TDA Maintenance Yard. These tests pit revealed zones of petroleum-contaminated soil below the surface. In November and December 1991, the 100-foot by 160-foot proposed spill-containment basin area was excavated to begin construction. Excavation continued until field screening and visual observation indicated that contaminated soils had been removed. The contaminated layer was present from the ground surface to 12 inches below ground surface (bgs). The contaminated soil was suspected to be asphalt treated, gravel road base. Field screening of soil samples collected from the proposed basin's subgrade at the bottom of the excavation indicated total petroleum hydrocarbon compounds (TPHC) concentrations ranging from non-detect to 7 parts per million by volume (ppmv).

A 1,000-gallon underground storage tank (UST) formerly used to store waste oil was removed from the Cannibalization Yard in May 1992. Laboratory analysis of soil samples detected TPHC concentrations of 17,600 ppmv and 9,780 ppmv. After over-excavation of the tank site in July 1992, residual soil TPHC concentrations ranged up to 2,740 ppmv at the limits of excavation. An estimated 120 cy of contaminated soil was removed from the waste oil storage tank area and shipped to an off-site facility.

In 1992, the Army initiated a Site Investigation (SI) for AOCs 44 & 52. The purpose of the SI was to verify the presence or absence of environmental contamination and to determine whether further investigation or remediation was warranted. The Final SI Report was issued April 1993. In June 1993, a Supplemental SI (SSI) was performed to fill specific data gaps. The SI and SSI met the requirements of a Remedial Investigation (RI) in defining the nature and extent of contamination at the Maintenance Yards. As a result of the SI and SSI, the Maintenance Yards SAs were designated as AOCs because of contamination detected in the unsaturated soils. A Feasibility Study (FS) was completed in 1994 to evaluate remedial action alternatives for cleanup of the Maintenance Yards soils. In March 1995, the ROD was signed.

2.3 Remedial Actions

A ROD was signed in March 1995 documenting asphalt batching as the final selected remedy for cleanup of contaminated surface soils and soils associated with two known releases at AOCs 44 & 52 (USAEC, 1995). Remedial action objectives (RAOs) for the selected cleanup remedy at AOCs 44 & 52 are discussed below.

- Minimize direct contact/ingestion and inhalation with surface soils at the Maintenance Yards, which are estimated to exceed the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) Superfund target range of one in 1.0 x10⁻⁴ to one in 1.0 x 10⁻⁶ (excess cancer risks for carcinogens).
- Reduce off-site run-off of contaminants that might result in concentrations in excess of Ambient Surface Water Quality standards and background concentrations in sediments.
- Reduce or contain the source of contamination to minimize potential migration of contaminants of concern, which might result in groundwater concentrations in excess of the federal drinking water Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs).

2.3.1 Selected Remedy

The selected remedy at AOCs 44 & 52 addresses long-term worker exposure to contaminated surface soil, the principal known threat at the Maintenance Yards and two known release areas (a reported release of MOGAS and leakage from a former waste oil UST, herein referred to as the hot spot areas). The selected remedial alternative relies on cold mix asphalt batching soils to control site risks. The following are the major components of the selected remedy.

- Excavate surface soil (top two feet across the site).
- Excavate the two hot spot areas.
- Stockpile soils for sampling and analysis.
- Cold mix asphalt batch soils exceeding site cleanup levels of 7 ppmv (average) total carcinogenic polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (cPAHs) and 500 ppmv TPHC.
- Backfill excavations with uncontaminated stockpiled soil and then place the asphalt batched material.
- Apply a pavement-wearing course for a vehicle-parking surface.
- Expand the existing storm-water collection system.
- Perform groundwater monitoring.

- As a precautionary measure, institute the following Institutional Control (IC) deed restrictions;
 - 1) Prohibit residential development/use of the Maintenance Yards;
 - 2) Minimize the possibility of long term (working lifetime) exposure to subsurface soils; and
 - 3) Require management of soils resulting from construction related activities.

2.3.2 Remedy Components Specified by the ROD

The components listed above, are summarized below based on detailed description presented in the ROD. The remedial components were implemented and completed between 1995 and 1996. Groundwater monitoring was conducted between 1993 and 2003. Details of the implementation of these components are included in Section 2.3.3.

Excavate Surface Soils. The ROD specified that prior to commencement of the remedial design, predesign test pits would be excavated to better predict the typical soil characteristics (color, texture, and presence of pavement) and layers containing cPAHs that may be encountered when the top 2 feet of soil is removed during remediation. This preview enabled: planned optimization of soil excavation and handling activities during remedial action, improved estimates on the volume of soils that will require treatment and provided soil gradation data for the asphalt batching design.

It was proposed that the Maintenance Yards surface soils be excavated in 6-inch layers down to a 2-foot depth, and stockpiled and sampled in 100-cy batches. Soils were initially screened for visible and olfactory evidence of waste material or overtly contaminated soils. Soils observed to contain broken pieces of pavement were segregated as cPAH-contaminated soil in maximum 100-cy piles and kept in separate piles for analytical screening. Soils with fuel odor or evidence of petroleum contamination were also separated from soil with no evidence of contamination. All soil to a 2-foot depth was excavated, stockpiled and sampled regardless of physical evidence of contamination.

Excavate Hot Spot Areas. The ROD specified that trench explorations would first be performed to delineate hot spots near the boring 44B-93-10X area as the potential MOGAS spill area, 44B-92-06X and around the waste oil UST. Headspace and non-dispersive infrared spectroscopy (NDIR) screening was planned on sidewalls and/or bottom of trench (if staining was not evident). Hot spots were fully excavated to the approximate dimensions as determined by the trench screening and excavation continued until laboratory analysis revealed concentrations of less than 500 ppm TPHC. Any other hot spot areas observed during the excavation of the surface soils would also be excavated, segregated, stockpiled and sampled in a similar manner.

<u>Stockpiling</u>, <u>Sampling and Analysis</u>. The ROD specified that soils excavated from hot spot areas were to be placed on, and covered with a minimum 8-mil polyethylene tarp to prevent mixing of TPHC contaminated soils with clean soils. Sample collection and analysis was required (one sample for every 100 cy) to determine if soil could be reused at the site without treatment. The ROD specified that a field laboratory would analyze samples from hot spot stockpiled soils for TPHC and the following cPAHs.

- Benzo(a)anthracene.
- Benzo(b)fluoranthene.

- Benzo(k)fluoranthene.
- Benzo(a)pyrene.
- Chrysene.
- Dibenzo(a,h)anthracene.
- Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene.

All analytical samples were screened through a No. 20 sieve at the laboratory to remove any pavement particles down to the size of medium sands prior to performing the analysis.

<u>Asphalt Batch Soils Exceeding Site Cleanup Levels.</u> The ROD specified that stockpiled soils with contaminants exceeding an average total cPAH concentration of 7 ppm and 500 ppm TPHC would be cold mix asphalt batched on site. Asphalt batching site soils would immobilize the contaminants exceeding cleanup levels present in the top two feet of soil, thus minimizing direct contact/ingestion of the contaminated soils.

Backfill Excavations. The ROD specified that excavations would be backfilled with "clean" stockpiled soil and the asphalt batches. Site soil were classified as "clean" if it met the cleanup criteria of 500 ppm for TPHC and the risk-based cleanup criteria of 7 ppm (average) for total cPAHs. This soil would be used to refill a portion of the excavated areas at the Maintenance Yards. Preferably, upon receipt of analytical results, the soil would be immediately backfilled into designated areas. The asphalt-batched material would then be spread and rolled to the thickness and contours to be detailed in the final design and would serve as the sub-base or base course for the paved parking lot.

Expand the Existing Stormwater Collection System. Construction of the paved parking lot at the Maintenance Yards would increase the amount of stormwater runoff during rain events. Therefore, the selected remedy included expansion of the existing stormwater collection system including installation of additional catch basins, additional stormwater piping, and oil and grease traps as required. Additionally, potential effects on wetlands at stormwater outfalls were to be investigated and, as needed, minimized by construction of detention basins and flow reducers.

<u>Apply a Pavement Wearing Course.</u> A pavement wearing course is a topcoat of pavement that is placed over a pavement base course to provide a smooth, durable surface in high traffic areas. A pavement wearing course placed over the batched material is not a required remedial component for selected remedy. However, the Army chose to add a pavement wearing course for a vehicle parking surface over the asphalt batched material as an ancillary component.

<u>Perform Groundwater Monitoring.</u> The objective of groundwater monitoring was to provide assurance to the public and the regulatory agencies that the groundwater in the aquifer underlying the facility remains unaffected by past Maintenance Yard activities and that it has not been adversely affected by remedial activities. Sampling and analysis of groundwater from existing wells at the Maintenance Yards should be performed yearly for a period of five years upon commencement of remedial activities, which occurred in 1995.

<u>Institute Deed Restrictions.</u> The ROD stipulated that, as a precautionary measure, institutional controls in the form of deed restrictions would be implemented to prevent potential circumstances, which may result in risk of harm to health, safety, public welfare or the environment. These restrictions included the following:

- 1) No residential development/use of the Maintenance Yards would be permitted. The quantitative risk evaluation and established cleanup level assume the property should remain zoned for commercial/industrial use.
- 2) Removal of the 2-foot cover or an asphaltic barrier from the Maintenance Yards will be prohibited to prevent surface soil exposure to existing subsurface soils (2-foot to 5-foot level). This deed restriction will be implemented as a precautionary measure to minimize the possibility of long-term (working lifetime) exposure to subsurface soils. This restriction did not apply to excavations undertaken in connection with construction of buildings or other structures, utilities, infrastructures or any other construction related purpose where the cover is penetrated and/or temporarily removed and protection from long-term exposure to subsurface soil is not jeopardized. To comply with this deed restriction, the 2-foot layer of cover material (which may consist of one or combination of "clean" site soil used as backfill, asphalt batched material, off-site soils/aggregate and bituminous pavement) should remain over the subsurface soil (existing 2- to 5-foot soil level) to minimize direct contact/ingestion to the present subsurface soils. The continuity of the paved surface need not be maintained providing the cover thickness of 2 feet is provided. As an alternative, a continuous and maintained paved surface, which would prevent exposure to subsurface soils, could be substituted for the 2-foot thick cover.

This restriction would not apply to excavation and use that is within the scope of any authorized response action. The deed restriction may be nullified, as approved by the regulatory agencies, should there be future evidence showing that contaminant concentrations within the 2- to 5-foot soil zone are below site surface soil cleanup levels.

3) Excavation below 2 feet at the Maintenance Yards, subsequent to completion of the remedial action established in the ROD, would require:

a) Development and implementation of a Health and Safety Plan for the work area; and b) Development and implementation of a Sampling and Analysis Plan for management of the excavated soils in accordance with the following:

Where reuse of soil within the Maintenance Yards is intended, sampling and analysis of stockpiled soils excavated below 2 feet would follow criteria detailed in this ROD for hot spot area soils. Soils with contaminants exceeding the 500 ppm cleanup level for TPHC will be treated in a manner consistent with this ROD. Soils with contaminants below the established cleanup level may be returned to the excavation. Soil excavated from below 2 feet that would be replaced to less than 2 feet (as surface soil) must also be sampled, analyzed and, if required, treated for cPAH contaminants as detailed in the ROD.

Where reuse of soil outside the Maintenance Yards is intended, sampling/analysis and action levels for stockpiled soils excavated below 2 feet will follow criteria governed by the regulations or policies in effect for the final disposal area.

If property transfer occurs in the future, institutional controls will be incorporated into the property deed or other instrument of property transfer. Until that time, the Installation Master Plan (R & K Engineering, 1999) would cover institutional control restrictions.

2.3.3 Remedy Implementation

Remedy implementation consisted of completion of a remedial design and the remedial action, performing groundwater monitoring, and enforcing institutional controls as general accordance with the criteria specified in the ROD. Remedial construction was completed by April 1996. The Remedial Action Completion Report was issued on June 1996 (Weston, 1996). The remedial components, specified in the ROD, are summarized below:

2,3,3,1 Design

The design was performed by ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES), presently MACTEC Engineering and Consulting, under contract with the U.S Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), and was documented through submission of several interim deliverables. Predesign field activities commenced July 1994 in anticipation that the ROD would be signed prior to completion of the remedial design. Predesign field activities consisted of excavating test pits, evaluating the existing stormwater system and performing a site topographic survey. Details of these investigation results were submitted in the Predesign Investigation Report (ABB-ES, 1994a) that was followed by the Conceptual Design (ABB-ES, 1994b) and are summarized above.

Following approval of the Conceptual Design, ABB-ES submitted an In-Progress Review Design Submission (65 percent) (ABB-ES, 1994c) in December 1994 followed by the Final Design (ABB-ES, 1995) in March 1995 for regulatory review. Portions of the specifications and drawings were revised and issued final in August 1995. Details of the design consisted of the construction components listed in the ROD.

2.3.3.2 Remedial Actions

The USACE contracted Roy F. Weston, Inc. to construct the selected remedy. Construction commenced on August 1995 and entailed excavating and sampling of over 30,000 cy of surface soils from the top 2 feet of the site to segregate and treat soils exceeding the cleanup level of 7 ppm for cPAH and 500 ppm for TPH. During the excavation, a total of three hot spots were excavated below the 2-foot surface soil depth to delineate and batch contaminated soil at the UST over-excavated area and the MOGAS spill area. Sampling of soils from in-situ and stockpiles from these areas revealed that TPH concentrations were below the site cleanup level of 500 ppm.

Treatment was performed by cold mix asphalt batching 11,800 cy of contaminated soils and then backfilling/compacting both the uncontaminated excavated soils and the asphalt batched material as a sub-base material in the excavation. The top 9 inches of backfilled material consisted of batched material and the bottom 15 inches consisted of uncontaminated backfilled soil. Four inches of bituminous pavement was place over this sub-base material to complete a pavement wearing course for Army vehicle parking.

In addition to the excavation and soil treatment, a drainage system was installed throughout the Maintenance Yards to collect surface stormwater from the newly paved surface. A detention pond was constructed to store accumulated rainfall and minimize flow at the outfall at Cold Spring Brook during heavy storm events. In addition, an oil/water separator was installed within the storm drain system. The detention pond was constructed in the area of a suspected acid leaching pit, associated with the TDA Building, SA 38D; however, the leaching pit was not located during construction activities. Remedial construction was completed by April 1996.

Figure 3 (Area of Soil/Excavation, AOC 44 & 52) and Figure 4 (Monitoring Well Locations, AOC 44 & 52) from the Final Remedial Action Completion Report are included in Appendix A.

2.3.3.3 Groundwater Sampling

The objective of the groundwater monitoring required by the Record of Decision was to provide assurance to the public and regulatory agencies that the groundwater in the aquifer underlying the facility remains unaffected by past Maintenance Yard activities and that it has not been adversely affected by remedial activities.

The need to investigate groundwater directly downgradient of the former waste oil tank and MOGAS spill was discussed during a draft FS review meeting held at Fort Devens on May 5, 1993 (*Record of Decision, Barnum Road Maintenance Yards*, ABB-ES, March, 1995a). During the meeting it was suggested that the existing monitoring wells located in and around AOCs 44 and 52 might not be positioned to readily detect the full impact of the UST and spill contamination sources on groundwater. In response, the Army installed two monitoring wells positioned to readily detect the full impact of the tank and spill contamination sources on the groundwater. The two monitoring wells, G3M-93-10X and G3M-93-11X, were installed at the edge of the Cannibalization Yard. G3M-93-10x is located approximately 50 feet downgradient of the MOGAS Spill area.

Two rounds of samples were collected from wells G3M-93-10X and G3M-93-11X and analyzed for volatile organic compounds (VOCs), semi volatile organic compounds (SVOCs), TPH, and inorganics. Results from Round 1 (June 1993) showed no detectable concentrations of TPH (quantitation limit of 178 μ g/L) or VOCs. In Round 2 (September 1993), trace concentrations of toluene (2.6 μ g/L and 1.25 μ g/L in G3M-93-10X and -11X, respectively) and tetrachloroethene (2.6 μ g/L in G3M-93-10X) were detected in the groundwater. Concentrations for these analytes were below state and federal drinking water MCLs and below MCP GW1 standards. The only detected SVOC was bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate, a suspected laboratory contaminant, at 22 μ g/L in the Round 1 sample from G3M-93-10X. The fact that no significant contamination was detected supported the conclusion that surface soil contaminants at the Cannibalization Yard did not affect the aquifer and indicated that the waste oil UST and the MOGAS spill were not significant contributors to groundwater contamination. Based on these results, the Record of Decision did not require installation of additional monitoring wells.

The Sampling and Analysis Plan for long-term groundwater monitoring required by the Record of Decision was issued in April 1998 (Weston, 1998a) and specified that annual sampling would be performed at three existing monitoring wells G3M-92-04X, G3M-92-05X, and MNG-1, for two years. These wells are located within the maintenance yard fence at the downgradient edge of the maintenance yards (G3M-92-04X), downgradient and outside the maintenance yard fence (MNG-1), and cross-gradient of the maintenance yards (G3M-92-05X). Monitoring well MNG-1, located on Massachusetts Army National Guard property north of the Maintenance Yards, could not be located during the sampling rounds and may have been destroyed or buried during new construction near the well location.

The first annual round of samples was collected at monitoring wells G3M-92-04X and G3M-92-05X in May 1998, and no concentrations of EPH, VPH or lead were detected above MCP Method 1 GW-1 Standards. The analytical results were presented in the 1998 Annual Groundwater Sampling Report along with a recommendation to discontinue monitoring if the 1999 sampling showed similar results (Weston, 1998b). The second annual round of sampling was completed in

June 1999 with no reported exceedances of MCP Method 1 GW-1 Standards. Because two years of monitoring had been completed as planned and there were no exceedances of the standards, the 1999 Annual Groundwater Sampling Report recommended that groundwater monitoring be discontinued (Weston, 1999).

In response to the recommendations of the sampling reports, USEPA provided a letter of concurrence to the Army agreeing that groundwater monitoring was no longer needed at the site. USEPA stated that one more round of sampling would satisfy the Record of Decision requirement that sampling be performed "...for a period of five years upon commencement of remedial activities" (USEPA, 1999). MADEP questioned the recommendation to discontinue sampling, and the matter was discussed at a BCT meeting in April 2000. Meeting minutes indicate brief discussion with the outcome that discontinuance of sampling was left to the discretion of the Army. The decision for termination of sampling was documented in the First Five Year Review (HLA, 2000).

Subsequently, a third round of groundwater monitoring was performed in December 2003 to verify that the aquifer remained unaffected. Results of the 2003 round yielded limited PAH detections; however, all detections were below Method 1 GW-1 Standards. This final round was completed more than five years after issuance of the Groundwater Sampling and Analysis Plan and more than eight years after the commencement of remedial activities. The requirements of both the Sampling and Analysis Plan and the Record of Decision for the duration of groundwater monitoring are thereby satisfied.

Analytical summary tables are provided in Appendix A of this report.

2.3.3.4 Institutional Controls

There are no current or future plans for transfer of AOC 44 and 52 from the RFTA at this time. If property transfer occurs in the future, institutional controls will be incorporated into the property deed or other instrument of property transfer. Until that time, the Installation Master Plan IMP (R&K Engineering, Inc., June 1999) will cover institutional control restrictions. The IMP identifies known environmental conditions, restrictions and required actions that are in place for AOC 44 and 52. The Army is currently updating the IMP, which will be finalized in spring 2006.

2.3.4 System Operations/Operation & Maintenance

Other than the standard operation and maintenance (O&M) requirements of the drainage system and oil/water separator, as detailed in Appendix Q of the Remedial Action Completion Report (Weston, 1996), there are no long term O&M needs to maintain the integrity of the remedial action. O&M of the drainage system, including responsibilities, will be described in the Draft Storm Water Management Plan to be updated by the Army in the spring of 2006. O&M costs were not available at the time of this five-year review.

2.4 Progress Since the Last Five Year Review

This is the second Five-Year site Review for AOCs 44 & 52. The first Five-Year Review (completed in September 2000) concluded that the remedies at AOCs 44 and 52 were protective of human health and the environment.

2.5 Five-Year Review Process

2.5.1 Document Review

The following documents were reviewed for this five-year review:

- Final Site Investigation prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc., April 1993.
- Record of Decision prepared by U.S. Army Environmental Center, March 8, 1995.
- First Five-Year Review prepared by Harding Lawson Associates, September 2000.
- 2003 Groundwater Monitoring Report prepared by U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, May 2004
- Draft Remedial Action Report prepared by Mactec Engineering and Consulting, Inc., May 2004

2.5.2 Data Review

The Round 3 groundwater data collected in December 2003 was reviewed for this Five-Year Review and compared to the Round 1 and 2 groundwater data collected in May 1998 and June 1999, respectively. The data was consistent with the Round 1 and 2 data. No contaminants of concern were detected above their respective MCP GW-1 standards.

Tables C-1, C-2, and C-3 reprinted from the 2003 Groundwater Monitoring Report are presented in Appendix A. These tables show analytical results for wells G3M-92-04x and G3M-92-05x for sampling performed in 1998, 1999, and 2003.

2.5.3 Site Inspection

On April 21, 2005, a Nobis representative performed site inspections at AOCs 44 & 52. Conditions during the inspection were favorable with no precipitation and temperatures in the 50s.

AOC 44 and 52 are situated in the northeast corner of the former Main Post on Barnum Road, approximately 1/2 mile southwest of the Barnum Road Gate. The total area of the Barnum Road Maintenance Yards is approximately 8.8 acres. The Maintenance Yards are bordered to the north by Massachusetts Army National Guard property, which is used for similar vehicle storage activities as the Barnum Road Maintenance Yards. Boston and Maine Railroad property and Barnum Road border the site to the west and east, respectively. Building 3713, located south of the site, is used by the Army for vehicle maintenance activities. The Maintenance Yards are fenced, paved, and presently used for military vehicle parking.

Use of the yard remained consistent with the restrictions outlined in the ROD. The inspection did not reveal any signs of disturbed pavement or excavation within or near the maintenance yard. Based on a visual inspection, no evidence was observed that suggested that the storm water collection system was not operating properly. Protective casings and monitoring wells were intact and secure.

2.5.4 Interviews

The following individuals were interviewed as part of the five-year review:

- Ms. Ellen Iorio, USACE, New England District
- Mr. Dave Salvador, MADEP
- Mr. Takashi Tada, Contractor, Devens RFTA

All personnel were interviewed on April 21, 2005 while performing the site visit. Institutional controls are in effect for AOC 44 & 52 (as discussed in other sections of this report).

With the exception of monitoring well MNG-1, which was not located during the site inspection and may have been damaged or buried, personnel interviewed were not aware of outstanding problems or issues regarding implementation of the selected remedy or the site in general. Ellen lorio stated that the Draft Remedial Action Report (USACE, 2005) is in the process of being finalized.

2.5.5 Community Participation

The Army has held regular and frequent informational meetings, issued fact sheets and press releases, and held public meetings to keep the community and other interested parties informed of activities at AOC 44 and 52.

In 1994, the Army presented the Proposed Plan (PP) for AOC 44 and 52. In accordance with the PP, the Army published public notices and held a public information meeting on June 15, 1994. The PP and FS were also made available for review at local libraries and a formal 30-day public comment period was conducted from May 25 through June 24, 1994.

Currently the Restoration Advisory Board (RAB) meets every other month and provides advice to the installation and regulatory agencies on the Devens RFTA cleanup programs. Specific responsibilities include: addressing cleanup issues such as land use and cleanup goals, reviewing plans and documents, identifying proposed requirements and priorities, and conducting regular meetings that are open to the public.

2.6 Technical Assessment

Question A: Is the Remedy Functioning as Intended by the Decision Documents?

Remedial Action Performance: Remedial action and groundwater monitoring at AOCs 44 & 52 are complete and no longer being implemented at this site. The asphalt batching of contaminated soils has been effective at immobilizing the petroleum related contaminants and has met the objectives of the remedial action (minimizing contact/ingestion and inhalation of contaminated surface soils by human receptors; reducing the probability of surface run-off of contaminants; and minimizing the potential migration of contaminants to groundwater). Groundwater monitoring has confirmed that migration of surface soil contaminants to the aquifer following the historic releases at the site or because of remedial activities has not occurred.

Annual groundwater monitoring has been completed and a supplemental sampling round was performed in December 2003 by the USACE. The data indicate no exceedances of MCP Method 1 GW-1 standards. The Remedial Action Closure Report is being reviewed by Regulatory agencies at this time.
System Operations/Operation and Maintenance: Other than five-year site reviews and basic maintenance of the stormwater system, there is no current system O&M required or being performed.

Opportunities for Optimization: Remedial action activities have been completed at this site. Therefore, there are no proposed opportunities for optimization.

Early Indicators of Potential Remedy Failure: No early indicators of potential remedy failure were noted during the review. Groundwater monitoring results were consistent with expectations. No infractions of the IC requirements were noted during the site inspection.

Implementation of Institutional Controls and Other Measures: The Maintenance Yards may be transferred from the RFTA to Mass Development if the property is no longer required for military purposes. Until the time of property transfer, the IMP will cover institutional control restrictions.

Question B: Are the exposure assumptions, toxicity data, cleanup levels, and remedial objectives used at the time of remedy selection still valid?

Changes in Standards and To Be Considered: As part of this Five-Year Review, Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements (ARARs) and To Be Considered (TBC) guidance for the Site presented in the ROD were reviewed, and a review of current ARARs was conducted. A few changes have been promulgated since the ROD was signed in 1995. See Section 2.6.2, ARARs.

Excavation activities and asphalt batching of contaminated soils at AOC 44 & 52 were completed by April 1996. The RAOs for soil specified in the ROD have been permanently achieved. There are no current ARARs for the soil contaminants at the Site. Because the remedy included excavation and asphalt batching of contaminated surface soils and minimizing contact with deeper soils, changes to soil TBCs do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Changes in Exposure Pathways: No changes in the site conditions that affect exposure pathways were identified as part of the Five-Year Review. The ROD identified unacceptable risks from the following exposure pathways: direct contact with and ingestion of contaminated surface soils by long-term site workers. Based on indications from analytical results of confirmatory soil samples collected from excavated areas, the excavation and removal of contaminated soil have eliminated the direct contact with and ingestion of contaminated soils exposure pathways. The planned industrial land use is not expected to change in the future. Current use complies with the ICs on residential land-use and excavation below 2 feet for AOC 44 & 52. No new contaminants, sources, or routes of exposure were identified.

Changes in Exposure Assumptions: The risk assessments supporting the ROD for AOC 44 & 52 used exposure assumptions consistent with standard practice at the time. Since that time, USEPA has updated some of the recommended dermal contact exposure assumptions. New guidance for evaluating dermal contact exposures was finalized in July 2004 (*Risk Assessment Guidance for Superfund, Volume I – Human Health Evaluation Manual – Part E, Supplemental Guidance for Dermal Risk Assessment – Final*). Because the remedy includes excavation and asphalt batching of contaminated surface soils and minimizing contact with deeper soils, changes to the exposure parameters do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Changes in Toxicity and Other Contaminant Characteristics: The toxicity of individual cPAHs is now better understood than it was at the time of the risk assessment, which supported the ROD. At that time, all cPAHs were evaluated using the toxicity values for the most toxic of the PAHs, benzo(a)pyrene. It is now standard practice to evaluate each cPAH using the benzo(a)pyrene cancer slope factor in conjunction with a relative potency factor. Thus, the original risk assessment likely overestimated risk from cPAHs. The ROD imposed institutional controls prohibiting contact with soils deeper than 2 feet below ground surface. Post excavation sampling of excavated soils indicates that the majority of contamination was limited to the top 6-12 inches of soil. For these reasons, the institutional controls placed on the site because of the risk assessment are sufficient to assume that risks to human health will be minimized.

Changes in Risk Assessment Methodologies: There have been several changes in risk assessment guidance since the risk assessment for AOC 44 & 52 was performed. As noted above, guidance now recommends the use of relative potency factors in evaluating risks from cPAHs. Guidance also now directs that the 95 percent upper confidence level of the mean be used as the reasonable maximum exposure point concentration rather than the maximum concentration. The methods for evaluating dermal contact exposures also have changed since the time of the risk assessment supporting the ROD for AOC 44 & 52, based on USEPA's <u>Risk Assessment Guidance for Superfund, Volume I – Human Health Evaluation Manual – Part E. Supplemental Guidance for Dermal Risk Assessment – Final</u>, July 2004. The exposures associated with the human health and ecological risks discussed in the ROD have been eliminated by the excavation and asphalt batching of soils and the institutional controls. Therefore, while the methods for evaluating exposures have changed since the time of the risk assessment supporting the ROD for AOC 44 & 52, these risk assessment methodology changes do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

Question C: Has any other information come to light that could call into question the protectiveness of the remedy?

Additional information, other than noted above, that would call into question the protectiveness of the remedy was not noted. No natural disaster impacts occurred at AOC 44/52 during this review period.

2.6.1 Summary of Technical Assessment

Excavation activities and asphalt batching of contaminated soils at AOC 44 & 52 were completed by April 1996. The RAOs for soil specified in the ROD have been permanently achieved.

Annual groundwater monitoring has been completed; however, a supplemental sampling round was performed in December 2003 by the USACE and the data indicate no exceedences of MCP Method 1GW-1 standards. The Remedial Action Closure Report is being reviewed by Regulatory agencies at this time.

2.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review

The ARARs presented in Table 19 of the ROD are reprinted and appended in Appendix A. These standards and regulations, current at the signing of the ROD and for the first five-year site review, have been reviewed for changes that could affect protectiveness.

Several regulations were updated since the ROD, and may only have been applicable had they been in effect during actual construction activities, but no longer apply given that remedial action is complete. These updated regulations include the following:

- Appendix A of 310 CMR 7.00 Massachusetts Air Pollution Regulations, updated in 2002 and revisions pertained to emission offsets and non-attainment review.
- 310 CMR 7.18 "Volatile and Halogenated Organic Compounds" was in effect May 1, 1998 and updated in 2002; applicable to facilities that emit volatile organic compounds (VOCs), but not to the completed remedy.
- 310 CMR 30.000 Hazardous Waste was in effect May 1, 1998 and was superseded on February 27, 2004.

In addition, a search was performed for any newly promulgated standards, which could affect protectiveness at the site. No new ARARs were identified that would affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

2.7 Issues

The remedial action is complete and annual groundwater monitoring has been completed.

2.8 Recommendations and Follow-up Actions

The remedial action is complete. Based on the noted conditions and finding of this review, the Army will be describing the O&M of the drainage system in the Draft Storm Water Management Plan, which will be updated in spring 2006. In addition, the Army is currently updating the IMP, which will be finalized in spring 2006.

2.9 Protectiveness Statement

The remedy at AOCs 44 & 52 is protective of human health and the environment and exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risks are being controlled.

Human health is protected at AOCs 44 & 52 because surface soils that were found to contain contaminants exceeding site cleanup levels were asphalt batched. The remedy effectively prevents direct human contact with these contaminants and minimizes the probability of contaminant migration.

Although ICs are specified in the ROD, noted changes in risk assessment methodology and updated analytical data would suggest that these ICs are more than sufficient at protecting human health and the environment.

2.10 Next Review

This is the second Five-Year Review that has been performed for AOC 44 & 52. The next review will be performed in 2010.

2.11 References

ABB Environmental Services, Inc., 1994a. "Predesign Investigation Report, Barnum Road Maintenance Yards, AOCs 44 & 52, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; Contract DACA33-91-D-0006, Delivery Order No. 36; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England Division, Waltham, Massachusetts; prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc., Wakefield, Massachusetts; August 1994.

- ABB Environmental Services, Inc., 1994b. "Concept Design, Remediation of Barnum Road Maintenance Yards, AOCs 44 & 52, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; Contract DACA33-91-D-0006, Delivery Order No. 36; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England Division, Waltham, Massachusetts; prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc., Wakefield, Massachusetts; August 1994.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc., 1994c. "In-Progress Review (IPR) Submission (65% Design), AOCs 44 & 52, Barnum Road Maintenance Yards, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; Contract DACA33-91-D-0006, Delivery Order No. 36; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England Division, Waltham, Massachusetts; prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc., Wakefield, Massachusetts; December 1994.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc., 1995. "Final Contract Design Plans and Specifications, Remediation of Barnum Road Maintenance Yards, AOCs 44 & 52, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; Contract DACA33-91-D-0006, Delivery Order No. 36; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England Division, Waltham, Massachusetts; prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc., Wakefield, Massachusetts; March 1995. (Revised Final Design Submission on August 4, 1995).
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc., 1993. "Final Site Investigation, Groups 3, 5, & 6, Fort Devens Massachusetts."
- Harding Lawson Associates (HLA), 2000. "Final First Five Year Review Report". Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; September 2000.
- MACTEC Engineering and Consulting, Inc. (MACTEC), 2004. "Draft Remedial Action Report Areas of Contamination 44 and 52, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; May 2004.
- Roy F. Weston (Weston) 1996. "Remedial Action Operable Unit Completion Report for the Remediation of Barnum Road Maintenance Yards AOCs 44 & 52, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; Contract/Purchase Order No. DACW33-95-D-0004, Delivery Order No.001, DCN: BRMY-062596-AAKX; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England Division, Waltham, Massachusetts; June 1996.
- Roy F. Weston (Weston) 1998a. "Areas of Contamination 44 & 52, Devens, Massachusetts, Work Plan and Filed Sampling and Analysis Plan Groundwater Monitoring"; Contract No. DACW33-95-D-0004, Delivery Order No.0004, DCN: VRA-042398-AAKR; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; April 1998.
- Roy F. Weston (Weston) 1998b. "Contaminated Soil Removal Phase II, Areas of Contamination (AOCs) 44 & 52, Devens, Massachusetts, Annual Groundwater Sampling Report 1998"; Contract/Purchase Order No. DACW33-95-D-0004, Delivery Order No.0004, DCN: VRA-102898-AALU; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; October 1998.
- Roy F. Weston (Weston) 1999. "Contaminated Soil Removal Phase II, Areas of Contamination (AOCs) 44 & 52, Devens, Massachusetts, Annual Groundwater Sampling Report 19998"; Contract/Purchase Order No. DACW33-95-D-0004, Delivery Order No.0004, DCN:

VRA-100999 AANJ; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; October 1998.

- R&K Engineering, Inc. 1999. "Real Property Master Plan, Long Range Component, for Devens Reserve Forces Training Area"; June 1999
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA), 1999. "A Guide to Preparing Superfund Proposed Plans, Records of Decision, and Other Remedy Selection Decision Documents". USEPA 540-R-98-03 1, OSWER 9200.1 -23P July 1999.
- U.S. Army Environmental Center (USAEC), 1995. "Record of Decision, Barnum Road Maintenance Yards, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; March 1995.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2004. "Draft 2003 Groundwater Monitoring Report, Barnum Road Maintenance Yards AOCs 44 & 52, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; April.2004.

3.0 SHEPLEY'S HILL LANDFILL OPERABLE UNIT (AOCs 4, 5, AND 18) STATUTORY FIVE-YEAR SITE REVIEW

3.1 Site Chronology

Table 3-1 Chronology of Site Events

Event	Date
Ft. Devens placed on NPL	December 1989
Waste disposal at Shepley's Hill Landfill ends	July 1992
Landfill capping complete	May 1993
Remedial Investigation (RI) complete	1993
Supplemental RI complete	1993
Feasibility Study (FS) complete	February 1995
Record of Decision (ROD) signature	September 1995
Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan complete	May 1996
Long term monitoring begins	November 1996
Final Capping Closure Report	1996
60% Extraction design complete	November 1997
First Shepley's Hill Landfill Five-year Review complete	August 1998
Second Five-Year Statutory Review	September 2000*
Supplemental Groundwater Investigation complete	May 2003
Draft Explanation of Significant Differences (ESD)	February 2004
Draft Final 60% and Draft 100% Extraction design	September 2004
complete	
Performance Work Statement for the Comprehensive Site	March 2005
Assessment (CSA) and Corrective Action Alternatives	
Analysis (CAAA)	
RD/RA Work Plan Final 100% Submittal for the SHL	May 2005
Groundwater Extraction, Treatment and Discharge	
Contingency Remedy	
Final ESD	June 2005
Request for Proposal (RFP) for Cap Maintenance Contract	June 2005
Issued	
Start-up of Treatment System	August 2005
Performance Monitoring Plan for SHL Groundwater	August 2005
Extraction, Treatment and Discharge Contingency	
Remedy	
Third Five-Year Review	September 2005

* In 2000, 5-Year Reviews were required for all sites at the Former Fort Devens undergoing investigations or remediation.

3.2 Background

Shepley's Hill Landfill encompasses approximately 84 acres in the northeast corner of the former Main Post at Fort Devens (Figure 1-1). It is situated between the bedrock outcrop of Shepley's Hill on the west and Plow Shop Pond on the east. Nonacoicus Brook, which drains Plow Shop Pond, flows through a low-lying wooded area at the north end of the landfill. The southern end of the landfill borders the formerly occupied Defense Reutilization and Marketing Office (DRMO) yard, motor repair shops, and a warehouse. In addition, there was formerly an exposed bedrock

knob southwest of the landfill, just north of Market Street and a second exposed bedrock knob further to the south, just north of the intersection of Antietam and Carey Streets.

As part of Devens redevelopment efforts, the southern bedrock knob and a portion of the northern knob were removed to facilitate building construction. In 2001, a 35,000 square foot building and associated paved areas were constructed in this area. An area east of the landfill and south of Plow Shop Pond is the site of a former railroad roundhouse which was investigated as Study Area 71. Shepley's Hill Landfill includes three Area of Concerns (AOCs): AOC 4, the sanitary incinerator; AOC 5, sanitary landfill No. 1; and AOC 18, the asbestos cell. AOCs 4, 5, and 18 are all located within the capped area at Shepley's Hill Landfill. The three AOCs are collectively referred to as Shepley's Hill Landfill.

Landfill operations at Shepley's Hill Landfill began at least as early as 1917, and stopped as of July 1, 1992. During its last few years of use, the landfill received about 6,500 tons per year of household refuse and construction debris, and operated using the modified trench method. A portion of the waste was buried below the water table.

In an effort to mitigate the potential for off-site contaminant migration, Fort Devens initiated the Fort Devens Sanitary Landfill Closure Plan in 1984 in accordance with Massachusetts regulations entitled "The Disposal of Solid Wastes by Sanitary Landfill" (310 CMR 19.00, April 21, 1971). The Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MADEP) (then the Department of Environmental Quality Engineering) approved the plan in 1985. Closure plan approval was consistent with 310 CMR 19.00 and contained the following requirements:

- Grading the landfill surface to a minimum 2 percent slope in non-operational areas of the landfill and 3 percent in operational areas.
- Removing waste from selected areas within 100 feet of the 100-year floodplain.
- Installing a gas venting system.
- Installing a low permeability cap and covering the cap with sand, gravel, loam, and seeding to provide cover vegetation and prevent erosion.
- Implementing a groundwater monitoring program based on sampling five existing monitoring wells every four months.

The capping was completed in four phases as shown in Figure 1-2 reprinted from the revised draft Shepley's Hill Landfill Supplemental Groundwater Investigation Report prepared by Harding, ESE (2003) included in Appendix B. In Phase I, 50 acres were capped in October 1986; in Phase II, 15 acres were capped in November 1987; and in Phase III, 9.2 acres were capped in March 1989. The Phase IV closure of the last 10 acres was accomplished in two steps: Phase IV-A was closed in 1991, and Phase IV-B was closed as of July 1, 1992, although the geomembrane cap was not installed over Phase IV-B until May 1993.

Because of the large area and shallow surface slope of the existing landfill, early phases of the landfill closure were completed with a 2 or 3 percent surface slope. Slopes were increased to 5 percent in Phase IV-B. Phases I through IV-A were capped with a 30-mil polyvinyl chloride (PVC) geomembrane overlain with a 12-inch drainage layer and 6-inch topsoil layer. At the request of MADEP, the Phase IV-B cap design was modified to include a 40-mil PVC geomembrane, a 6-inch drainage layer, and a 12-inch topsoil layer. A landfill-gas collection system consisting of 3-inch diameter gas-collection pipes placed in a minimum 6-inch thick gas-venting layer was installed beneath the PVC geomembrane in all closure phases. Gas vents were

installed through the PVC geomembrane at 400-foot centers. A minimum 6-inch cushion/protection layer was maintained between the geomembrane and underlying waste. As requested by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and MADEP, four additional groundwater monitoring wells were installed in 1986, two in 1993 and three in 1996 to supplement the five wells in the original groundwater program. Fourteen wells, in total are sampled as part of the LTMP. The Army submitted a draft closure plan to MADEP on July 21, 1995, pursuant to 310 CMR 19.000, to document that Shepley's Hill Landfill was closed in accordance with plans and applicable MADEP requirements. The MADEP issued a Landfill Capping Compliance Letter approving the closure as of February 8, 1996, per the requirement of the 1995 ROD for the Landfill.

AOC 4, the sanitary landfill incinerator, was located in former Building 38 near the end of Cook Street and within the area included in Phase I of the sanitary landfill closure. The incinerator, constructed in 1941, burned household refuse, and operated until the late 1940s. Ash from the incinerator was buried in the landfill. The incinerator was demolished and buried in the landfill in September 1967. The building foundation was removed and buried on-site in 1976.

AOC 18, the asbestos cell, is located in the section of the landfill closed during Phase IV. Between March 1982 and November 1985, an estimated 6.6 tons of asbestos construction debris were placed in the section of the landfill closed during Phase IV-A. In 1990, a new asbestos cell was opened in the section closed during Phase IV-B, and was used until July 1992 for disposal of small volumes of asbestos-containing material.

The Army performed a Remedial Investigation (RI) (E&E, 1993) and supplemental RI (ABB-ES, 1993) at Shepley's Hill Landfill in accordance with the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA), between 1991 and 1993. The RI and RI Addendum reports identified potential human exposure to arsenic in groundwater as the primary risk at Shepley's Hill Landfill. The RI Addendum Report also identified potential ecological risks to aquatic and semi-aquatic receptors from exposure to Plow Shop Pond surface water and sediments.

A feasibility study (FS) was performed in 1995 to evaluate alternatives to reduce potential exposure risks associated with human exposure to Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit groundwater, and in September 1995, a Record of Decision (ROD) was finalized (ABB-ES, 1995a; ABB-ES, 1995b). The Plow Shop Pond Operable Unit was established to evaluate actions to manage risk from exposure to Plow Shop Pond surface water and sediment. In 1995, the Army designated Plow Shop Pond as AOC 72.

A more complete description of the Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit can be found in the RI Addendum report, (ABB-ES, 1993), and the FS report, (ABB-ES, 1995a).

3.3 Remedial Actions

Based on types of contaminants, environmental media of concern, and potential exposure pathways, remedial action objectives were developed in the FS to aid in the development and screening of alternatives (ABB-ES, 1995a). These remedial action objectives were developed to mitigate existing and future potential threats to public health and the environment. The remedial objectives for the Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit are:

- Protect potential residential receptors from exposure to contaminated groundwater migrating from the landfill having chemicals in excess of Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs).
- Prevent contaminated groundwater from contributing to the contamination of Plow Shop Pond sediments in excess of human-health and ecological risk-based concentrations.

In addition, the ROD did not identify remedial objectives for surface soil, landfill gas, or leachate. The risk assessments did not identify potential risks from exposure to surface soil, and ambient air monitoring during the RI did not identify airborne contaminants. Leachate was not identified during either RI or supplemental RI activities. The Plow Shop Pond Operable Unit was established to evaluate additional actions that may be necessary to manage risks from exposure to Plow Shop Pond surface water and sediment because it was believed that capping the Landfill had eliminated discharge of leachate to Plow Shop Pond. The Army performed surface water and sediment chemical characterization as well as sediment toxicity characterization in Plow Shop Pond and Grove Pond from 1992 through 1995. Results of these studies were reported in the Remedial Investigation Addendum Report (ABB-ES, 1993) and in the Draft Plow Shop Pond and Grove Pond Sediment Evaluation (ABB-ES, 1995c).

To address groundwater contamination at Shepley's Hill Landfill, Alternative SHL-2 (Limited Action) was selected with Alternative SHL-9 (Groundwater Extraction and Discharge to the Ayer publicly owned treatment works [POTW]) as the contingency remedy if Alternative SHL-2 proved not to be protective. Each component contained provisions for the containment of landfill waste and management of contaminant migration. Groundwater cleanup levels were developed using appropriate USEPA guidance at the time the ROD and are listed in Table 3-2.

Chemical of Concern (1)	Cleanup Level, µg/L	Selection Basis
Arsenic	50	MCL
Chromium	100	MCL
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	MCL
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5	MMCL
1,2-Dichloroethane	5	MCL
Lead	15	Action Level
Manganese (2)	291	Background
Nickel	100	MCL
Sodium	20,000	Health Advisory
Aluminum	6,870	Background
Iron	9,100	Background

Table 3-2	Groundwater	Cleanup	Levels Established in ROD
-----------	-------------	---------	---------------------------

Notes:

- 1) The Long Term Monitoring Program (SWET, 1996c) established arsenic, 1,2dichlorobenzene, 1,4-dichlorobenzene, 1,2-dichloroethane as trigger chemicals because of the carcinogenic risk associated with each of these compounds.
- 2) The current cleanup level for manganese was updated in the Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan to 1,715 μ g/L based on risk-based concentrations derived from the updated RfD value (4.7 x 10⁻² milligrams/kilogram/day) and has been used as the remedial goal since 1996. Based on this RfD, a hazard quotient of 1 is associated with the concentration of 1,715 μ g/L based on USEPA default exposure assumptions.

However, this RfD value does not account for other dietary intake of Manganese and will be revised based on the updated RfD value for water intake of $(2.4 \times 10^{-2} \text{ milligrams/kilogram/day})$ supported by USEPA.

The ROD indicated that the residual human health risk from residential exposure for groundwater, after attainment of cleanup levels, is estimated to be approximately 1×10^{-3} and 1×10^{-4} if modified to account for the uncertainty associated with exposure to arsenic. This uncertainty, relates to toxicological data that suggests the dose response curve for skin cancer may be sub-linear and, consequently, the cancer slope factor used to generate risk estimates may be overestimated.

3.3.1 Selected Remedy

Alternative SHL-2 contained components to maintain and potentially improve the effectiveness of the existing landfill cover system and to satisfy the Landfill Post-Closure Requirements of 310 CMR 19.142 to reduce potential future exposure to contaminated groundwater. Key components of this alternative included:

- Landfill closure in accordance with applicable requirements of 310 CMR 19.000.
- Survey of Shepley's Hill Landfill.
- Evaluation/improvement of stormwater diversion and drainage.
- Landfill cover maintenance.
- Landfill gas collection system maintenance.
- Long term groundwater monitoring.
- Long term landfill gas monitoring.
- Institutional controls.
- Educational programs.
- 60 percent design of a groundwater extraction system.
- Annual reporting to MADEP and USEPA.
- Five-year site reviews.

3.3.2 Remedy Components Specified by the ROD

The components listed above, are summarized below based on detailed descriptions presented in the ROD.

Landfill Closure in Accordance with Applicable Requirements of 310 CMR 19.000. The ROD required closure of Shepley's Hill Landfill in accordance with Commonwealth of Massachusetts regulations at 310 CMR 19.000. These regulations contain requirements for the submittal to, and approval by, MADEP of plans and supporting materials to document that landfill closure occurs according to approved plans and applicable MADEP requirements.

<u>Survey of Shepley's Hill Landfill.</u> The ROD required an accurate topographic survey of the ground surface at Shepley's Hill Landfill.

<u>Evaluation/Improvement of Stormwater Diversion and Drainage</u>. The ROD required an evaluation of stormwater diversion and drainage systems at and adjacent to Shepley's Hill Landfill. The focus of the evaluation was to include the following items of concern:

• Landfill cap runoff patterns and drainage ditch flow capacities.

- Potential run-under along the western edge of the landfill, particularly where the existing geomembrane cap may not have a good seal with the underlying bedrock.
- The effectiveness of stormwater drainage systems upgradient of the landfill (i.e., at the transfer station, tire recycling station, DRMO yards, and along Market Street) in diverting run-off from potential infiltration areas upgradient of the landfill.

Landfill Cover Maintenance. The ROD required that a small area of ponded water in the northwestern section of the landfill be drained and regraded to minimize stress on the cover system and prevent future ponding and potential for leakage through the PVC geomembrane. The area was approximately 100 feet in diameter and was estimated to be about 1 foot deep. The water would be pumped out and the ponded area backfilled with common borrow to bring the area up to the desired grade. A new section of the PVC geomembrane would be installed on top of the fill and seamed to the existing geomembrane cap to provide low permeability surface in this area.

At the northern end of the landfill, erosion of cover soil in sections of the drainage swales had occurred in the past, exposing PVC geomembrane. That erosion was repaired, however it was noted that additional repair may be needed in the future.

Annual inspections were proposed to monitor the condition of the landfill cover, including monitoring wells, cover surface, and drainage swales to decide if maintenance would be needed. Landfill maintenance and mowing was scheduled to minimize potential adverse effects to the Grasshopper Sparrow, a state-listed species of special concern that may nest on the cover.

Landfill Gas Collection System Maintenance. The ROD required annual inspections to monitor the Shepley's Hill Landfill gas collection system and perform any necessary repairs.

Long Term Groundwater Monitoring. The ROD required development of a long term groundwater monitoring plan at Shepley's Hill Landfill to evaluate remedy performance and assess future environmental effects. The ROD called for semi-annual groundwater monitoring for a minimum of 30 years.

Long Term Landfill Gas Monitoring. The ROD required development of plans for monitoring landfill gas at landfill gas vents.

<u>Institutional Controls.</u> The ROD required implementation of institutional controls in the form of zoning and deed restrictions for any property released by the Army at Shepley's Hill Landfill during Fort Devens base-closure activities. The Fort Devens Preliminary Reuse Plan, Main and North Posts proposed that Army land bordering Plow Shop Pond be zoned for open space and rail-related uses. By pre-empting residential use, these controls helped limit human exposure. In addition, the Army would place deed restrictions on landfill area property to prohibit installation of drinking water wells. This, in combination with landfill capping and long term groundwater monitoring, would protect potential human receptors from risks resulting from exposure to contaminated groundwater. The ROD indicated that there were no current human receptors for groundwater exposure and that institutional controls (ICs) would be drafted, implemented, and enforced in cooperation with state and local governments as necessary.

<u>Educational Programs.</u> The ROD required conduct of periodic public meetings and presentations to increase public awareness. This would help keep the public informed of the site status, including both its general condition and remaining contaminant concentrations. This could be accomplished by holding public meetings every five years coincident with the five-year site

reviews for Shepley's Hill Landfill. The presentation would summarize site activities and the results of monitoring programs.

<u>60 Percent Design of a Groundwater Extraction System.</u> The ROD required the Army to perform predesign hydrogeologic studies and prepare a 60 percent complete engineering design for groundwater extraction and discharge to the Town of Ayer POTW. The 60 percent complete engineering design was to be completed before the Shepley's Hill Landfill five-year review, scheduled for 1998.

<u>Annual Reporting to MADEP and USEPA</u>. The ROD required annual reports to MADEP and USEPA to describe site activities and summarize results of environmental monitoring. This reporting was stipulated to satisfy the requirements of 310 CMR 19.132 and 19.142.

<u>Five-year Site Reviews.</u> The ROD required the Army to perform five-year reviews to assess whether the implemented remedy is protective of human health and the environment and whether the implementation of additional remedial action is appropriate. The ROD stipulates that the five-year reviews for Alternative SHL-2 will evaluate the alternative's effectiveness at reducing potential human health risk from exposure to groundwater and preventing groundwater from contributing to Plow Shop Pond sediment contamination in excess of human health and ecological risk-based values. Five-year reviews were scheduled for 1998, 2003, and 2008, based on the elapsed time following supplemental RI sampling. However, five-year reviews were performed in 2000 for all sites at Devens, including Shepley's Hill Landfill, where remediation or investigations were occurring.

The ROD identified cleanup levels for 13 chemicals historically detected in monitoring wells at Shepley's Hill Landfill. Chemicals with MCLs (i.e., 1, 2-dichlorobenzene, 1,4-dichlorobenzene, 1,2-dichloroethane, arsenic, chromium, lead, and nickel) and manganese were identified as chemicals of concern, exceedances of which would justify implementation of contingency remedial action. The Long Term Monitoring Program (SWET, 1996c) established arsenic, 1,2-dichlorobenzene, 1,4-dichlorobenzene, 1,2-dichloroethane as trigger chemicals because of the carcinogenic risk associated with each of these compounds.

Incremental reduction of risk rather than incremental reduction in concentration of individual contaminants was specified as a measure of progress toward attainment of cleanup levels to focus on the cleanup of arsenic, which was the primary contributor to risk. This approach prevents a situation in which failure to attain a concentration reduction goal for a minor contributor to risk (e.g., 1, 2-dichloroethane) overshadows the achievement of 50 percent or greater reduction in the concentration of arsenic.

The ROD stipulated the following specific criteria for evaluating the effectiveness of the selected remedial action (Alternative SHL-2) at Shepley's Hill Landfill. Based on the data collected to date, the required incremental reduction in risk was not achieved and the Army and regulatory agencies decided to implement the contingent element of the selected remedy (Alternative SHL-9, Groundwater Extraction and Discharge).

<u>Group 1 Wells</u>. For Group 1 wells where analyte concentrations have historically attained cleanup levels, Alternative SHL-2 will be considered effective if concentrations of individual chemicals within individual wells do not show statistically significant cleanup level exceedances. To determine statistical significance, the Army will apply methods consistent with the regulations at 40 CFR 264.97, 40 CFR 258.53, and 310 CMR 3 0.663.

<u>Group 2 Wells.</u> For Group 2 wells where chemical concentrations have exceeded cleanup levels in the past, Alternative SHL-2 will be considered effective if a 50 percent reduction in the increment of risk between cleanup levels and baseline concentrations for the contaminants of concern (COCs) within individual wells is achieved by January 1998, if an additional 25 percent (75 percent cumulative) is achieved by January 2003, and if cleanup levels are attained by January 2008.

The ROD indicated that a contingency remedy will be implemented if the above criteria are not met for any chemical for which cleanup levels were based on MCLs and for manganese. An MCL for manganese has not been established. The cleanup level for manganese was based on background concentrations because background concentrations exceeded the risk-based concentration derived from the available RfD value $(5x10^{-3} \text{ milligrams/kilogram/day})$. The current cleanup level for manganese was updated in the Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan to 1,715 µg/L based on risk-based concentrations derived from the updated RfD value (4.7 x $10^{-2} \text{ milligrams/kilogram/day})$. However, this value does not account for other dietary intake of Manganese based on the updated RfD value for water intake of (2.4 x $10^{-2} \text{ milligrams/kilogram/day})$ supported by USEPA. The 2005 Annual Report will utilize a revised cleanup level, based on the updated RfD value.

For aluminum and iron, additional remedial actions would not be needed if cleanup levels are not achieved because these were based on background concentrations since dose/response values were not available. For sodium, additional remedial actions would not be implemented if the cleanup level is not attained since the cleanup level for sodium was based on the health advisory for individuals on a reduced sodium diet.

The following table lists monitoring wells listed in the Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan (SWET, 1996). The Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan considered all these monitoring wells to be Group 2 wells.

SHL-3	SHL-11	SHM-93-22C
SHL-4	SHL-19	SHM-96-22B
SHL-5	SHL-20	SHM-96-05B
SHL-9	SHL-22	SHM-96-05C
SHL-10	SHM-93-10C	

 Table 3-3 Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan Monitoring Wells

3.3.3 Remedy Implementation

This subsection compares completed and ongoing activities at the Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit with the requirements of the ROD.

Landfill Closure in Accordance with Applicable Requirements of 310 CMR 19.000. The Army submitted a draft closure report for Shepley's Hill Landfill to MADEP in July 1995, and the MADEP issued a Landfill Capping Compliance Letter approving the closure as of February 8, 1996 with review comments and specific recommendations to address issues of concern. Following review of the MADEP comments, the Army submitted the final closure report in March 1996 pursuant to 310 CMR 19.000 (SWET, 1996b) and the Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan in May 1996 (SWET, 1996c).

<u>Survey of Shepley's Hill Landfill.</u> The landfill surface was surveyed as part of post-closure activities (SWET, 1996a) and was resurveyed in 2002 to monitor subsidence.

<u>Evaluation/Improvement of Stormwater Diversion and Drainage.</u> As part of long term maintenance activities, the Army has performed routine maintenance on stormwater ditches at the landfill. Significant portions of drainage ditch have been regraded and seeded or lined with riprap stone to reduce erosion. Additional maintenance activities to the drainage swales are planned as part of cap maintenance activities scheduled for fall 2005.

Potential run-under along the western edge of the landfill was evaluated as part of the Shepley's Hill Landfill Supplemental Groundwater Investigation. Although test pits indicated that run under could occur, soils are sandy and the geomembrane cap did not fit the underlying bedrock surface tightly, the Shepley's Hill Landfill Supplemental Groundwater Report concluded that the effect of potential run under on groundwater elevation and direction of flow was small. There was not consensus with the Base Closure Team (BCT) regarding the impact of potential the run under this item will be re-evaluated in a Comprehensive Site Assessment/Corrective Action Alternatives Analysis (CSA/CAAA).

Significant changes to stormwater drainage have been made in the area south of Shepley's Hill Landfill as part of Mass Development Devens redevelopment activities. Reconfiguration of runoff and drainage patterns that divert storm runoff away from SHL to settling ponds that in turn discharge predominantly away from the area upgradient of the landfill.

Landfill Cover Maintenance. A Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan was prepared for the Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit in 1995 to outline proposed monitoring, maintenance, and reporting activities (SWET, 1996c). Since that time, the Army has performed maintenance on the landfill cap. These activities have been documented in annual reports (SWET, 1997a; SWET, 1997b; SWET, 1998; USACE, 1999; USACE, 2000; USACE, 2001; USACE 2002; USACE, 2003; USACE, 2004; and USACE 2005) and have included the following activities as recommended in the annual reports and in the past Five Year Reviews:

- Performing annual inspections of the landfill surface.
- Draining a small area of ponded water in the northwestern section of the landfill to minimize stress on the cover system and regrading to prevent further ponding.
- Regrading and rip-rapping substantial portions of drainage ditches at the landfill.
- Filling animal burrows.
- Repairing roads.
- Mowing the landfill vegetative cover.

The 2004 Annual Report (USACE, 2005) is in the process of being finalized and has not been submitted to the MADEP and USEPA. The following recommendations were made in the 2004 Annual report and remain outstanding:

 The number of wells where semi-annual water levels are collected be increased fro one year, so that updated water level contours for the landfill can be determined, confirming or re-evaluating the historically found contours.

- Repair and regrade around the catch basins on the south side of the landfill.
- Repair the hasps on the casings of groundwater monitoring wells SHL-4 and SHL-9.

All wells sampled in 2004 continue to be part of the sampling plan for 2005 to evaluate the effects of the new groundwater remediation system.

Landfill Gas Collection System Maintenance. The above ground portion of the landfill-gas collection system is inspected annually as part of landfill monitoring activities. During the most recent inspection in 2004 by the USACE, the gas vents are reported in good condition, and no repairs have been required.

Long Term Groundwater Monitoring. The Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan (SWET, 1996c) outlined the groundwater monitoring program at the landfill. Groundwater monitoring is performed semi-annually at 14 monitoring wells, including SHM-96-05B, SHM-96-05C, and SHM-96-22B which were installed after signature of the ROD. Analytical data have been summarized and submitted to USEPA and MADEP annually (SWET, 1997a; SWET, 1997b; SWET, 1998; USACE, 1999; USACE, 2000; USACE, 2001; USACE 2002; USACE, 2003; USACE, 2004; and USACE 2005). The 2004 Annual Report (USACE 2005) is being finalized and has not been submitted to the MADEP and USEPA. Long term groundwater monitoring data reprinted from the Annual Reports prepared by the USACE are appended in Appendix B.

<u>Long-Term Landfill Gas Monitoring</u>. As part of scheduled monitoring activities, landfill gas samples have been collected annually from each of 18 gas vents at the landfill and analyzed in the field by direct-reading instruments. Monitored parameters are listed below.

- Total VOCs (parts per million [ppm]).
- Percent oxygen.
- Hydrogen sulfide (ppm).
- Percent of lower explosive limit.
- Carbon monoxide (ppm).
- Percent carbon dioxide.
- Percent methane.

Landfill gas monitoring results have been submitted annually by the Army to USEPA and MADEP (SWET, 1997a; SWET, 1997b; SWET, 1998; USACE, 1999; USACE, 2000; USACE, 2001; USACE 2002; USACE, 2003; USACE, 2004; and USACE 2005). Appendix B contains landfill gas monitoring data summary tables reprinted from the Annual Reports prepared by the USACE.

The purpose of the landfill gas monitoring program was to establish long term trends with regard to landfill gas production and venting in a safe manner. The Draft 2004 Annual Report (USACE, July 2005) showed that no VOCs were detected above 0.0 ppm based on field screening. The oxygen levels ranged from 0% to 21.3%. No gas vent probes tested positive for hydrogen sulfide. Lower explosive limits ranged from 0% to over 100% in several vents and the percentage of oxygen was greater than 5% at several of these vents. When this condition is observed (LEL nearing 100% and high oxygen readings indicating a potentially explosive condition) notification to the MADEP is required. Carbon monoxide registered from 0 ppm to 13 ppm. Carbon dioxide ranged from 0 ppm to 27.6 ppm. Methane ranged from 0 ppm to 37.5 ppm. These readings were within the parameters of a mature landfill (USACE, 2004). The available data suggested that no significant off-site migration was occurring, however slight increases in LEL, carbon monoxide, carbon dioxide and methane readings have been observed in several monitoring points.

Significant increases or decreases of remaining parameters have not been observed and were consistent with the data collected since 2001.

In response to recommendations, and concerns for landfill gas migration to nearby residences in the 2000 Five-Year Review, four (4) gas probes were installed in 2001 in the vicinity of Scully Road along the northern end of the landfill. Additional gas monitoring probes will be installed along the southern boundary of the landfill, part of the Cap Maintenance Contract currently planned for the fall of 2005. Figure C-1 included in Appendix B depicts location of monitoring wells, gas vents and gas probes.

<u>Institutional Controls.</u> The ROD proposed ICs in the form of zoning and deed restrictions for any property released by the Army at Shepley's Hill Landfill. No property has been released, and therefore administrative ICs have not been fully implemented.

Although not under the Army's control, the Town of Ayer Board of Health regulates the construction of private wells as a source of potable water for drinking, culinary and domestic purposes. Requirements include, driller registration with MADEP, minimum setbacks from a landfill or hazardous waste spill site, approval from the MADEP and local zoning ordinances. Other measures currently in place at the landfill consist of the fencing, gates and the landfill cap itself which prevents exposure. Based on the current condition of these other measures (as discussed in other sections of this report), repair to the fencing, gates and cap are planned as part of a Cap Maintenance Contract to be awarded in the fall of 2005.

<u>Educational Programs</u>. No public meetings or presentations have been held solely for Shepley's Hill Landfill since the public meeting on the Proposed Plan. However, Shepley's Hill Landfill is often discussed at the Restoration Advisory Board meetings, currently held on a bi-monthly schedule. Therefore, interested members of the community are kept informed of activities at the landfill. Please note that the Army, in conjunction with the Ayer Board of Health, held a Shepley's Hill Landfill community forum on January 5, 2002.

<u>60 Percent Design of a Groundwater Extraction System.</u> The Army issued a 60 percent complete engineering design for groundwater extraction and discharge to the Town of Ayer POTW in 1997 (USACE, 1997). A Draft Final 60% and Draft 100% design was developed in September 2004. The Army developed a Final 100% Remedial Design and Remedial Action Work Plan (CH2MHill, 2005) that was finalized in May 2005, with the objective to implement the contingent remedy (SHL-9 Groundwater Extraction with the Town of Ayer POTW discharge) identified in the 1995 ROD. However, it was determined that the Ayer POTW infrastructure capacity was inadequate to receive and convey this discharge.

The current objective of the project is groundwater pump, treatment, and discharge to the Devens POTW using a permanent treatment system. An explanation of significant differences (ESD) specifying the changes for the discharge to the Devens POTW from the ROD was finalized in June 2005 and approved by USEPA in July 2005. The goal of implementing the contingency remedy is to maintain groundwater quality below cleanup levels at Group I wells, and to attain cleanup levels at Group II wells.

Annual Reporting to MADEP and USEPA. Annual reports which include a description of site activities and a summary of results of environmental monitoring have been submitted annually to MADEP and USEPA (SWET, 1997a; SWET, 1997b; SWET, 1998; USACE, 1999; USACE, 2000; USACE 2001; USACE 2002; USACE 2003; USACE, 2004; and USACE 2005). The 2004 Annual Report (USACE, 2005) has not been submitted to the USEPA and MADEP. This

reporting satisfies the requirements of 310 CMR 19.132 and 19.142. In addition, the Army submits semi-annual groundwater analytical reports that summarize analytical data.

<u>Five-year Site Reviews.</u> In accordance with the schedule set forth in the ROD, the Army completed the first Five-Year review for Shepley's Hill Landfill in 1998 (SWET, 1998). In 2000, a Five-Year Review was performed for all Devens sites, therefore the Five-Year Review schedule was revised accordingly. The 2000 Five-Year review (HLA, 2000) concluded that the remedy at Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit was protective to human health and the environment. However, little or no reduction in arsenic concentrations occurred in monitoring wells SHL-11, SHL-20, and SHM-96-05B. An increase in arsenic concentrations was noted in SHL-11, SHL-96-05B and SHM-96-22B. The data collected up to that point suggested that the 2003 incremental goals would be difficult to meet in monitoring wells SHL-11, SHL-20, SHM-96-05B and SHM-96-22B. In 2003 this was realized and is discussed in the 2003 Draft Annual Summary Report (USACE, 2003).

The 2000 Five-Year review recommended that:

- annual landfill inspections continue.
- landfill gas and semi-annual groundwater sampling should continue with annual reporting.
- review of the long term sampling program should be performed to eliminate monitoring parameters.
- landfill maintenance should continue as presented in the Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan.
- Additional assessment and evaluation of groundwater and landfill gasses be conducted, and
- the contingency remedy (groundwater extraction and discharge) be re-evaluated.

3.3.4 Shepley's Hill Landfill Draft Supplemental Groundwater Investigation

A draft version of this report (Harding ESE, 2000) was issued in July 2000 to present supplemental data available at that time. Given that additional investigations were needed to address regulatory review comments on the draft report, this additional data was included in a revised draft report in February 2002. As of April 2003, no additional comments were provided and the revised draft report was issued. The purpose of the Draft Supplemental Groundwater Investigation was to present and interpret data collected during supplemental investigations in 1999, 2000, and 2001 to assess the effect of Shepley's Hill Landfill on groundwater. The investigative activities at Shepley's Hill Landfill. It was neither a baseline risk assessment nor an assessment of the protectiveness of the selected remedial action at Shepley's Hill Landfill. The Shepley's Hill Landfill Revised Draft Supplemental Groundwater Report presented and discussed the results of those studies (Harding ESE, 2003).

The Army performed the following activities to further investigate the interaction of groundwater and Shepley's Hill Landfill:

- Assessing the effects of precipitation runoff on groundwater levels within the landfill.
- Collecting hydrogeologic data to assess groundwater flow north of Shepley's Hill Landfill.

- Collecting analytical data to characterize contaminant concentrations moving away from the landfill and physical-chemical factors affecting contaminant migration.
- Refining the Shepley's Hill Landfill groundwater model to further assess groundwater flow and potential contaminant transport north of the landfill.
- Re-evaluating potential human-health risks in light of new analytical data.
- Preliminary evaluation of various remedial alternatives, utilizing the groundwater flow model.

The Army also contacted several local and regional public health agencies in an effort to confirm the availability and use of a public water supply in the area downgradient of Shepley's Hill Landfill and to find out whether and to what extent private wells may exist in the area north of the landfill to supplement the public water supply. There were no public records of private wells downgradient of the landfill, but the presence of undocumented wells was possible.

The supplemental data indicated a well-defined plume with elevated arsenic concentrations migrating southeast to northwest away from Shepley's Hill Landfill and towards the wetland north of West Main Street in Ayer. In addition to high arsenic concentrations, groundwater in the center of the plume had a very low redox potential, high concentrations of dissolved (i.e., reduced) iron and manganese, very low to no dissolved oxygen, and a chemical oxygen demand of 30 to 40 milligrams per liter (mg/L). These conditions were conducive to the continued migration of the arsenic toward the wetland. The preferred migration pathway was in sandy overburden materials above deeper till and bedrock.

The groundwater flow model suggested that most of the groundwater associated with Shepley's Hill Landfill flows north, discharging mainly to a section of Nonacoicus Brook in the wetland north of West Main Street. The pathway indicated by the model corresponds to distributions of contaminants seen in monitoring locations along Molumco Road. The Army collected surface water samples to confirm the location of groundwater discharge to the wetland.

Based on available data there is no known current use of, or exposure to, groundwater migrating away from Shepley's Hill Landfill, and no current human health risk. However, to assess the potential for adverse effects if groundwater were hypothetically to be used, the Army performed a limited risk analysis to evaluate potential risks to hypothetical residential users. Adult residential use of groundwater with arsenic at the concentrations found at Molumco Road, if it were to occur, would result in potential cancer risks of 6E-03 and non-cancer risks corresponding to a Hazard Index (HI) of 36. For a child resident, the corresponding cancer risk is 4E-03, and the HI is 110. The total resident cancer risk (child plus adult) is 1E-02. These risk levels exceed the USEPA target cancer risk range of 1E-06 to 1E-04 and target HI of 1.

High concentrations of arsenic in groundwater within the footprint of the landfill and at its downgradient edge suggest that arsenic concentrations in groundwater moving away from the landfill may become higher than present concentrations. It is likely that the landfill will continue to cause reducing conditions for 100 years or more if the capping system is not re-engineered. During that period arsenic concentrations within the landfill footprint are expected to continue to exceed drinking water MCLs. It should be noted that background groundwater concentration of arsenic at Shepley's Hill Landfill and in its vicinity may exceed the MCL of 10 μ g/L (E&E, 1993).

An ecological risk assessment to evaluate potential ecological risks from exposure to surface water and sediments in the Nonacoicus Brook wetland north of West Main Street was performed to determine whether sediment and surface water levels of arsenic, iron, and manganese were adversely affecting the benthic macro invertebrate community in Nonacoicus Brook (Normandeau Associates, 2001). Benthic habitat quality at all sampling stations were comparable and, in general, habitat quality was considered good which suggested that there is no significant risk of harm to benthic macro invertebrates from exposure to site related contaminants in Nonacoicus Brook.

A Comprehensive Site Assessment and Corrective Action Alternatives Assessment will be conducted to determine what final corrective action is necessary to further protect human health and the environment at Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit. The Army intends to implement the final corrective action within the requirements of the FFA.

3.3.5 Systems Operation/Operations and Maintenance

Operation and maintenance (O&M) is being performed in accordance with the Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan (SWET, 1996c). Yearly O&M costs for implementation of the remedy are not readily available for review.

3.4 Progress Since the Last Five Year Review

The protectiveness statement in the second Five-Year review (HLA, 2000) stated that the remedy at the Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit was protective of human health and the environment. There were no known users of groundwater along the modeled downgradient path of the groundwater leaving the landfill, although the presence of undocumented wells was possible. Further, the remedy directs groundwater flow away from Plow Shop Pond. A health and safety plan (HASP) and investigation derived waste (IDW) handling procedures were in place in 2000 and were deemed sufficient to control risk to on-site workers and the public, and were properly implemented during groundwater sampling. Human health was deemed to be not at risk at the Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit because groundwater was not used for potable use nor proposed for potable use.

The second Five-Year site review recommended that the list of parameters monitored as part of the long-term sampling program should be reviewed with the intent of eliminating parameters that have no significant site history and that do not contribute to site risks or to the understanding of groundwater chemistry (cadmium, chromium, copper, lead, mercury, nickel, selenium, silver, biological oxygen demand [BOD₅], and cyanide). Analysis of total organic carbon (TOC) in lieu of BOD₅, would provide insight on the concentration of organic material in groundwater, which is not currently available. None of the parameters originally monitored have been removed from the long-term sampling program. TOC analysis was added to the program in 2001.

A second recommendation of the second Five-Year review was that the Army assess whether subsurface migration of landfill gas is occurring due to high landfill gas measurements during routine sampling. Annual Reports have stated that additional landfill gas monitoring probes should be installed along the commercial property at the south side of the landfill. The installation of these wells is included in the Cap Maintenance Contract to be issued in late summer of 2005.

A third recommendation of the second Five-Year review was that the contingency remedy of groundwater extraction with subsequent discharge to the Town of Ayer POTW be re-evaluated by the Army. The Army has developed a Final 100% Remedial Design and Remedial Action Work Plan, with the objective to implement the contingent remedy (SHL-9 Groundwater Extraction

with the Town Ayer POTW discharge) identified in the 1995 ROD. However, the Ayer POTW was inadequate to receive the discharge, therefore, and an onsite location or the Devens POTW will be the discharge location. The current objective of the project is groundwater pump, treatment, and discharge to the Devens POTW using a pretreatment system. An ESD specifying the changes from the ROD was finalized in June 2005. As a result of the contingency remedy implementation, a Performance Monitoring Plan (CH2M Hill, 2005) was developed which presents the planned monitoring and sampling activities, which will be conducted to assess the effects of extracting groundwater on the aquifer. Monitoring to be performed to evaluate system performance and effects on the aquifer include:

- Step and Extraction Testing
- Hydraulic Monitoring
- Geochemical Sentinel Monitoring (Field Parameters)
- Geochemical Sentinel Monitoring (Laboratory Analytical)
- Influent/Effluent Monitoring

System sampling shall be performed at the sample locations/frequencies for selected analytes in accordance with the discharge permit requirements established with Mass Development (July, 2003).

3.5 Five – Year Review Process

3.5.1 Document Review

The following documents were reviewed for this Five-Year review:

- Record of Decision prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc., September 1995.
- 2000 Annual Report, Long-Term Monitoring and Maintenance prepared by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, May 2001.
- Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical report prepared by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, spring 2001.
- Benthic Community Survey of Nonacoicus Brook prepared by Normandeau Associates, Inc., November 2001.
- 2001 Annual Report, Long-Term Monitoring and Maintenance prepared by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, April 2002.
- Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical report prepared by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, spring 2002.
- Revised Draft Supplemental Groundwater Investigation, Volume I and II prepared by Harding-ESE, February 2002.
- 2002 Annual Report, Long-Term Monitoring and Maintenance prepared by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, March 2003.
- Draft 2003 Annual Report, Long-Term Monitoring and Maintenance prepared by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, June 2004.

- Draft 2004 Annual Report, Long -Term Monitoring and Maintenance prepared by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, July 2005.
- Revised Draft Supplemental Groundwater Investigation prepared by Harding-ESE, May 2003.
- Project Management Plan Extraction, Discharge, and Treatment System prepared by CH2MHill, October 2003.
- Groundwater Extraction, Treatment, and Discharge Contingency Remedy prepared by CH2MHill, April 2005.
- Remedial Design & Remedial Action Work Plan Final 100% submittal Groundwater Extraction, Treatment, and Discharge Contingency remedy prepared by CH2MHill, May 2005.
- Various applicable BCT meeting minutes.

3.5.2 Data Review

Based on available data there was no current use of, or exposure to, groundwater migrating away from Shepley's Hill Landfill, and no current human-health risk. Analytical data from 2000 through 2004 summarized in the Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Annual Reports prepared by the USACE was reviewed for Shepley's Hill Landfill. Refer to section 3.6 of this report for further discussion of the data reviewed. Analytical results, depicting historical results, and reprinted from the Annual Reports are included in Appendix B.

A summary of the data from the Draft 2004 Annual Report is presented in the following table:

Landfill Compliance Point	Arsenic (µg/L)									
Monitoring Well ID	May-00	Nov00	May-01	Oct-01	May-02	Oct02	May-03	Nov03	May-04	Nov04
SHL-3	<2.5	17.4	<4.1	<1.5	2.6B	<3.2	<4.7	<4.1	2.6U	5.8U
SHL-4	11B	91.5	50.6	88.0	47.8B	56.1	26.6	13.4	27.2	19.5
SHL-5	<2.5	13.8	13.6	14.8	11.9B	<3.2	73	4.7	7.4B	6.8B
SHM-96-5B	5,110	2,500	3,800	1,850	3,800	1,970	3,820	3,380	3,950	2,110
SHM-96-5C	52.2	40.3	80.5	41.1	50.4B	41.3	55.1	48.3	47.1	49.5
SHL-9	15.0	31.4	15.1	28.1	144	29.0	13.4	30.6	19.8	32.2
SHL-10	<2.5	<4.2	<4.1	<1.5	4.0B	<3.2	<4.7	<4.1	2.6U	5.80
SHM-93-10C	5.8J	8.8	6.9	10.1	11.0B	7.1	98	<5.2	7.2B	10.6
SHL-11	404	52.3	487	573	469	648	49B	638	502	617
SHL-19	41.4	154	129	183	68.9	164	36.1	83.6	75.0	121
SHL-20	216	172	166	165	154	175	197	194	136	156
SHL-22	14.6	45.0	47.6	44.2	55.9B	77.1	101	76.4	88.1	65.4
SHM-96-22B	1,360	1,180	1,540	1,570	2,040	159	2,070	2,500	1,690	2,360
SHM-93-22C	34.4	47.6	19.7	31.8	30.5B	30.1	21.0	29.8	27.8	34.9

Table 3-4 Summary of Arsenic Results

Molumco Road Monitoring		Arsenic (µg/L)								
Well ID	May-00	Nov00	May-01	Oct01	May-02	Oct02	May-03	Nov03	May-04	
SHM-99-31A	8.1J	21.3	14.2	9.6	16.6B	11.6	NS	12.3	NS	
SHM-99-31B	44.3	65.5	57.9	66.8	75.1	71.1	69.6	80.1	65.0	
SHM-99-31C	332	318	321	317	345	332	347	312	292	
SHM-99-32X	188	198	181	187	176	NS	NS	NS	NS	

Notes:

J: estimated value.

B: value within five times of the greater amount detected in the equipment or preparation blank samples. NS: not sampled.

*: Molumco Road monitoring wells are not compliance point wells, data is provided for comparison purposes.

Bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedances (MCL cleanup level is 50 µg/L).

U = Analyte or compound was analyzed but not detected at a concentration above the reporting limit.

Review of the Long Term Maintenance and Monitoring Annual Reports for Shepley's Hill Landfill indicated that other chemicals that are not designated as trigger chemicals were detected at concentrations above cleanup levels. These include iron and sodium.

3.5.3 Site Inspection

On April 21, 2005, a Nobis representative performed site inspections at the Shepley's Hill Landfill which includes three AOCs: AOC 4, the sanitary incinerator; AOC 5, sanitary landfill No. 1; and AOC 18, the asbestos cell. Shepley's Hill Landfill encompasses approximately 84 acres in the northeast corner of the former Main Post at Fort Devens (Figure 1-1). It is situated between the bedrock outcrop of Shepley's Hill on the west and Plow Shop Pond on the east. Nonacoicus Brook, which drains Plow Shop Pond, flows through a low-lying wooded area at the north end of the landfill. The southern end of the landfill borders the formerly occupied Defense Reutilization and Marketing Office (DRMO) AOC 32 yard, motor repair shops, and a warehouse. An area east of the landfill and south of Plow Shop Pond is the site of a former railroad roundhouse which was investigated as Study Area 71. The pump and treat facility, which is not operational at the current time, is located on the northern end of the landfill. A berm runs along the top of the landfill, from the south to the north, which contains utilities for the treatment facility.

Conditions during the inspection were favorable with no precipitation and temperatures in the 50s. It should be noted that the Army performs detailed annual inspections of the landfill as part of the Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan. The results of the inspections along with recommendations for follow-up maintenance action and documentation of maintenance activities performed during the previous year are reported to USEPA and MADEP.

Operation and maintenance of the landfill remained consistent with the specifications and restrictions outlined in the ROD. The inspection did not reveal signs of disturbance on or near the landfill cap which is covered with grass. Vehicular access to the landfill was controlled by a gate at the former DRMO yard at the southwestern corner of the landfill. The gate was closed at the time of the inspection. Several restriction deficiencies were noted during the site visit including in the vicinity of the main gate, one area on the southern portion of the landfill and two areas along the western side of the landfill. It is the intention of the USACE to install additional fencing and vehicle swing gates as part of the Landfill Cap Maintenance Contract to be awarded late summer or early fall of 2005.

There was stormwater pooling throughout the western and northern side of the landfill. Significant growth of brush, small trees and wetland species were noted in the southern and western drainage swales. Standing water was noted in the southern drainage swale. Areas of poor drainage and ponding will be addressed as part of the Landfill Cap Maintenance Contract to be awarded late summer or early fall of 2005. Mr. Salvadore indicated that the site visit to the Landfill was cursory and did not include a detailed survey of the site but dark red staining was noted in the western swale.

3.5.4 Interviews

The following individuals were interviewed as part of the Five-Year review:

- Ms. Ellen Iorio, USACE, New England District
- Mr. Dave Salvador, MADEP
- Mr. Takashi Tada, Devens Reserve Forces Training Area (RFTA)
- Mr. Peter Kaselis, Devens RFTA
- Mr. Robert Simeone, Devens RFTA

Ms. Iorio, Mr. Salvador and Mr. Tada were interviewed on April 21, 2005 while performing the site visit.

Ms. Iorio indicated that a CSA and CAAA are currently being planned for the fall of 2005. The CSA and CAAA will be conducted in accordance with the March 25, 2005 Performance Work Statement (PWS), prepared by the Army. The general goals of the Army and other project stakeholders described in the PWS included:

- 1) Evaluation of the plume to determine whether the plume is impacting the wetlands and the potential magnitude of that impact, if any.
- 2) Evaluation to determine if there is any impact to the McPherson water supply well and the magnitude of such impact, if any.
- 3) Evaluating landfill cap integrity and effectiveness at minimizing surface/groundwater intrusion and leachate generation.
- 4) Assessing Red Cove as an area of historic and possibly current leachate discharge.
- 5) Assessing landfill gas issues and the non-vegetated cap areas along the southeast portion of the Landfill.
- 6) Completion and closure of all CERCLA related investigations/reporting for Shepley's Hill Landfill.

Ms. Iorio also indicated that the USACE is intending to award a Landfill Cap Maintenance Contract to correct the drainage deficiencies noted at the landfill, the limited access restrictions to the landfill and to monitor gas migration to the south of the landfill in the vicinity of the commercial development area. This work is planned for fall of 2005.

Mr. Simeone indicated that ICs are included in the Lease In Furtherance of Conveyance (LIFOC) currently in affect for the Shepley's Hill Landfill. The LIFOC agreement identifies general restrictions and required actions that are in place to protect the remedy for Shepley's Hill Landfill. Administrative ICs would be developed and detailed in the FOST and included with the Deed prior to transfer of the land parcels associated with the Shepley's Hill landfill property.

Mr. Kaselis indicated that the 35,000 square foot Webvan warehouse building, located to the south of the landfill, was constructed circa 2001. Roof drains from this building and runoff from paved areas were diverted into infiltration basins to the west of the building (and south of the landfill). In addition, Mr. Kaselis indicated that the detention basins, located adjacent to the southern limit of the landfill were constructed with a clay liner bottom and are considered to be low permeability basins. Overflow from these basins is directed to Plow Shop Pond via a rip-rap lined swale.

3.5.5 Community Participation

The Army has held regular and frequent informational meetings, issued fact sheets and press releases, and held public meetings to keep the community and other interested parties informed of activities at Shepley's Hill Landfill.

The Army presented the Proposed Plan for Shepley's at the May 4, 1995, Restoration Advisory Board (RAB) Meeting. In May 1995, the Army, published public notices announcing the proposed plan and held a public information meeting on June 30, 1995. The feasibility study was also made available for review at local libraries and a formal 30-day public comment period was conducted from June 1 through June 30, 1995.

Currently the RAB meets every other month and provides advice to the installation and regulatory agencies on the Devens RFTA cleanup programs. Specific responsibilities include: addressing

cleanup issues such as land use and cleanup goals, reviewing plans and documents, identifying proposed requirements and priorities, and conducting regular meetings that are open to the public.

The contingency remedy design was provided to the People of Ayer Concerned about the Environment (PACE) consultant for technical review and meetings were held with the Town Administrator and Engineer regarding sewer connection. On October 30, 2003 and on August 12, 2004, CH2MHill presented the Shepley's Hill Landfill Extraction, Treatment, and Discharge System to the RAB. In conjunction with the August 12, 2004 presentation, a site tour of the Shepley's Hill Landfill was also performed. A copy of the August 12, 2004 presentation is included in Appendix B.

The ESD was provided for public review in the spring 2005 and comments were received. The Final ESD dated June 2005 was signed by USEPA in July 2005.

3.6 Technical Assessment

Question A: Is the remedy functioning as intended by the decision documents?

Remedial Action Performance: The first Five-Year review for Shepley's Hill Landfill was performed in 1998 (SWET, 1998). The review summarized site activities and monitoring activities and compared achieved risk reductions to risk-reduction goals. Data presented in the review showed that reductions in arsenic concentrations and corresponding risk satisfied the evaluation criteria at nine of eleven historical groundwater monitoring wells; only monitoring wells SHL-10 and SHL-11 did not achieve risk-reduction goals. It was concluded, however, that substantial progress had been made toward achieving cleanup levels and, in light of the fact that there was no exposure to groundwater, implementation of contingency remedial action was not justified at that time.

The 2000 Five-Year review (HLA, 2000) concluded that little or no reduction in arsenic concentrations occurred in monitoring wells SHL-11, SHL-20, SHM-96-05B. An increase in arsenic concentrations was noted in SHL-11, SHM-96-05B and SHM-96-22B.

The 2003 Draft Annual Report (USACE, 2003) indicted that three of the Group 1 wells SHL-9, SHL-22 and SHL-93-22C exceeded cleanup levels for arsenic at least once since the first fiveyear review. Of those wells, SHL-22 continued to exceed the arsenic level in 2003. Arsenic was the only trigger chemical detected above the cleanup level during the 2003 sampling events. Most wells indicated no change over historic arsenic values, including SHM-96-5B (north of landfill), which historically contains the highest arsenic levels. Wells SHL-22 and SHM-96-22B (east of landfill), showed trends that arsenic levels may continue to rise. Well SHL-9 returned to its characteristic arsenic level after a spike in May of 2002. The arsenic levels in well SHL-20 were leveling instead of declining.

The 2004 Draft Annual Summary Report (USACE, 2005) indicated that arsenic was the only trigger chemical detected above the cleanup level during the 2004 sampling events. Most results indicated no significant changes from previous arsenic levels. The sampling results for fall 2004 showed that, for the first time since monitoring began, northern well SHM-96-5B was not the sample location with the highest concentration of arsenic. However, may be attributed to seasonal fluctuations. Northern well, SHM-96-22B, located in the vicinity of and screened at a similar depth to SHM-96-5B, exhibited a slightly higher arsenic concentration. SHM-96-22B shows a trend of generally increasing arsenic concentrations. Eight of the fourteen compliance point wells were below the arsenic cleanup level for the fall 2004 round of sampling. Northern

well, SHL-22 was the only Group 1 well having an arsenic concentration exceeding the cleanup level. Concentrations measured at Group 2 wells, SHL-4, and SHM-96-5C met the cleanup level for arsenic, a trend that continues to be observed.

System Operations/Operation and Maintenance (Long Term Groundwater Monitoring): Post closure monitoring and maintenance was performed in accordance with the Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan (SWET, 1996c). Yearly O&M costs for implementation of the remedy at each AOC were not available for review.

Opportunities for Optimization: As recommended in the Five Year review completed in September, 2000 (HLA, 2000), the list of parameters monitored as part of the long term groundwater sampling program have been reviewed with the intent of eliminating parameters that have no significant site history and that do not contribute to site risks or to the understanding of groundwater chemistry. These include copper, lead, nickel, selenium, silver, BOD₅, and cyanide. Optimization opportunities should be considered upon implementation of the contingency remedy and as part of the CSA and CAAA.

Early Indicators of Potential Remedy Failure: The ROD and Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan established incremental reduction of risk as a measure of progress toward attainment of clean levels to focus on the cleanup of arsenic, which was the primary contributor to risk. The 2000 Five-Year Review (HLA, 2000) concluded the following observations and recommendations regarding the effectiveness of the initial remedy:

Review of the available data suggests that the remedy may have difficulty meeting 2003 interim groundwater cleanup goals. Because of this, the Army should re-evaluate the contingency remedy of groundwater extraction with subsequent discharge to the Town of Ayer publicly owned treatment works (POTW). Although groundwater extraction has the potential to contain groundwater contaminants, it will not prevent the release of arsenic from aquifer materials and would need to be performed for an indeterminate length of time. Also, it appears that the POTW would no longer be suitable for receipt of extracted groundwater. These studies should be completed prior to the 2003 assessment of risk at the Shepley's Hill Landfill.

The Supplemental Groundwater Investigation (Harding ESE, 2003) further supported this by indicating that little or no reduction in arsenic concentration was occurring at monitoring wells SHL-11, SHL-19, SHL-20, SHL-22, SHM-96-5B, SHM-96-5C and SHM-96-22B.

Based on the data collected to date, the required incremental reduction in risk was not achieved. The Army and regulatory agencies decided to implement the contingent element of the selected remedy as specified in the ROD (Alternative SHL-9, Groundwater Extraction and Discharge to the Town of Ayer POTW).

The contingency extraction treatment and discharge system has recently been constructed and initiation of operations depended on final selection and approval of the location for the system effluent discharge. Modifications to the implementation of the contingency remedy were detailed in the ESD, (CH2M Hill, 2004a) and included; 1) change the POTW from Ayer to Devens, and 2) provide pretreatment to meet Town of Devens POTW discharge limitations. The current objective of the project is groundwater pump, treatment, and discharge to the Devens POTW using a pretreatment system. An ESD specifying the changes for discharge to the Devens POTW from the ROD was finalized in June 2005.

Implementation of Institutional Controls and Other Measures: The ROD proposed ICs in the form of zoning and deed restrictions for any property released by the Army at Shepley's Hill Landfill. No property has been released, and therefore administrative ICs have not been fully implemented. Lease terms are in force restricting groundwater use, soil excavation, and development of sensitive land uses. Although not under the Army's control, the Town of Ayer Board of Health regulates the construction of private wells as a source of potable water for drinking, culinary and domestic purposes. Requirements include, driller registration with MADEP, minimum setbacks from a landfill or hazardous waste spill site, approval from the MADEP and local zoning ordinances.

ICs are included in the LIFOC currently in affect for all leased parcels including Shepley's Hill Landfill. The LIFOC agreement identifies the general restrictions and required actions that are in place to protect the remedy. Administrative ICs would be developed and detailed in the finding of suitability to transfer (FOST) and included with the Deed prior to transfer of the land parcels associated with the Shepley's Hill Landfill property.

Other ICs currently in place at the landfill consist of the fencing, gates and the landfill cap itself which prevents exposure. Based on the current condition of these ICs (as discussed in other sections of this report), repair to the fencing, gates and cap are planned as part of a Cap Maintenance Contract to be awarded in late summer or early fall of 2005.

Question B: Are the exposure assumptions, toxicity data, cleanup levels, and remedial objectives used at the time of remedy selection still valid?

Changes in Standards and To Be Considered: As part of this Five-Year review, Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements (ARARs) and To Be Considered (TBC) guidance for the Site presented in the ROD were reviewed, and a review of current ARARs was conducted. Several changes have been promulgated since the ROD was signed (See Section 3.6.2, ARARs).

MCLs are health-based guidelines established by the USEPA for use by public water supply operators. The MCL for arsenic in effect at the time of the ROD (50 μ g/L), was selected as a cleanup goal for groundwater. Arsenic was present on site at concentrations greater than its MCL (50 μ g/L) during the remedial investigation and was a primary risk driver for the ingestion of groundwater exposure pathway at Shepley's Hill Landfill. The MCL for arsenic has been updated since the 1995 ROD. The MCL for arsenic was lowered to 10 μ g/L, effective January 2006. Because the remedy includes prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water, changes to groundwater standards do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

In the spring of 2005, MADEP published new draft groundwater standards for RDX and HMX, which are military explosives. The proposed Method 1, GW-1, Groundwater Standards are 0.8 μ g/L and 200 μ g/L for RDX and HMX, respectively. Explosive concentrations were noted in the ROD for monitoring well SHL-24. Based on the emerging concern for these mission-related constituents as reflected in the development of the draft standards, it is recommended that this well be re-sampled for these constituents.

Changes in Exposure Pathways: No excessive or unacceptable risks currently exist at the Site because the potential for exposure to contaminated media is restricted and is thus unlikely to be occurring. The ROD identified unacceptable risks from the following hypothetical exposure pathway: ingestion of groundwater as the primary drinking water source by future residents. Groundwater at the site and downgradient from the site is not used as a drinking water source.

Land use at the site has not changed since the ROD. Current land use complies with the proposed deed restrictions on groundwater extraction. No new contaminants, sources or routes of exposure at the landfill were identified at the time this report was prepared, and none appear to be planned. However, new contaminant pathways were identified in the Draft Supplemental Groundwater Investigation (Harding-ESE, 2003). Further characterization associated with implementation of the contingency remedy has not led to significant changes in the conceptual model for the SHL hydrologic/hydrogeologic system. Characterization is ongoing, and the overall adequacy is yet to be determined. An off-site investigation including an evaluation of the surface water/groundwater interface will be performed as part of the upcoming CSA/CAAA.

Based on the observed LEL readings (up to 100% LEL) noted during the most recent landfill gas monitoring, performed in November 2004, and due to potential trespassers at the landfill, this exposure pathway should be evaluated during the risk assessment portion of the CSA, planned for fall 2005. In addition to evaluating the risk, LEL no greater than 25% and percent oxygen no greater than 5% at the landfill vents trigger requirements under 310 CMR 19.117 requiring proper operation of the gas collection system as indicated by the New Source Performance Standards in 40 CFR 60.753(c).

Changes in Exposure Assumptions: The risk assessments supporting the ROD for Shepley's Hill Landfill used exposure assumptions that are consistent with standard practices at the time. Because the remedy includes prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water, any more recent conventional changes to the exposure parameters would not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Changes in Toxicity and Other Contaminant Characteristics: Since the groundwater cleanup goals are based on drinking water standards and not on risk-based calculated concentrations, changes to the toxicity values do not directly impact the protectiveness of the groundwater cleanup goals.

USEPA issued a Lifetime Health Advisory of 0.3 mg/L for manganese in January, 2004. This Health Advisory is protective of formula-fed infants younger than 6 months for exposures of up to 10 days. The manganese cleanup level was updated in the Long Term Monitoring Program (May 1996) to 1,715 μ g/L based on a risk-based concentration derived from the updated RfD value (0.047 mg/kg/day). However, this value does not account for other dietary sources of manganese. USEPA Region I currently supports an oral RfD for manganese that does account for these additional sources, of 0.07 mg/kg/day for ingestion of soil, sediments or food, and an oral RfD of 0.024 mg/kg/day for manganese in drinking water. A revised cleanup goal for Shepley's Landfill will be developed based on the updated RfD value for water intake of (0.024 mg/kg/day). The revised risk-based cleanup level is 876 μ g/L for adults and 375 μ g/L for children. Until the revised cleanup level are approved, the more stringent background value of 291 μ g/L would be utilized as the cleanup level for manganese in groundwater.

USEPA's Integrated Risk Information System (IRIS) database currently lists a slightly lower oral cancer slope factor for arsenic (1.5) than the oral cancer slope factor used for arsenic in the risk assessments (1.75). Therefore, the oral cancer risks from exposure to arsenic as reported in the risk assessment may be only slightly underestimated.

USEPA's IRIS database currently lists a range of oral cancer slope factor for benzene $(1.5 \times 10^{-2} \text{ to } 5.5 \times 10^{-2})$. Since the risk assessment used a cancer slope factor that falls within that range (2.9×10^{-2}) , cancer risks from exposure to benzene may be over or under estimated. The USEPA's

IRIS database currently lists an oral RfD for benzene $(4x10^{-3})$. No RfD was used for benzene in the risk assessment. Although non-cancer health effects from exposure to benzene were not estimated, the cancer risks are the more sensitive health endpoint.

Because the remedy includes prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water, changes to the toxicity of groundwater contaminants do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy since exposures are not occurring.

Changes in Risk Assessment Methodologies: The methods for evaluating groundwater ingestion exposures have not changed since the time of the risk assessments supporting the ROD. The hypothetical human health risks discussed in the ROD have been eliminated by institutional controls, including the proposed deed restriction prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water and residential use of the property. Therefore, any risk assessment methodology changes would not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

Question C: Has any other information come to light that could call into question the protectiveness of the remedy?

Additional information, other than noted above, that would call into question the protectiveness of the remedy was not noted. No natural disaster impacts occurred at the Shepley's Hill Landfill during this review period. An Ecological Risk Assessment (ERA) and a Human Health Risk Assessment (HHRA) will be performed in accordance with CERCLA, off-site plume investigation, and a landfill cap assessment are planned for fall 2005 as part of the CSA.

3.6.1 Summary of Technical Assessment

Based on the data collected to date, the required incremental reduction in risk was not achieved and the Army and regulatory agencies decided to implement the contingent element of the selected remedy (Alternative SHL-9, Groundwater Extraction and Discharge to the Town Ayer POTW).

The MCL for arsenic (50 μ g/L at the time of the ROD) was selected as a cleanup goal for groundwater. Arsenic was present on site at concentrations greater than its MCL (50 μ g/L) during the remedial investigation and was a primary risk driver for the ingestion of groundwater exposure pathway at Shepley's Hill Landfill. The MCL for arsenic has been updated since the 1995 ROD. The MCL for arsenic was lowered to 10 μ g/L, effective January 2006. Based on the fact that the remedy includes prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water, changes to groundwater standards do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Toxicity characteristics, reference doses and cancer slope factors have been updated for manganese, arsenic and benzene; however, since the remedy includes prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water, changes to the evaluation of the toxicity of the groundwater contaminants do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

3.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review

ARARs are applicable or relevant and appropriate requirements under federal or state environmental or facility sitting laws that address hazardous substances, pollutants, remedial actions, locations, or other circumstances at a CERCLA site. Location-specific ARARS "set restrictions upon the concentration of hazardous substances or the conduct of activities solely because they are in special locations." Chemical-specific ARARs are usually health- or riskbased standards that limit the concentration of a chemical found in or discharged to the environment. Action-specific ARARs set controls or restrictions on activities related to the management of hazardous waste. Identified ARARs for the Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit are listed below. ARARs are presented in Table 9 of the ROD and are reprinted in Appendix B.

Action-specific ARARs for landfill post-closure requirements would be met by Alternatives SHL-2 and SHL-9. Alternative SHL-9, if implemented, would be required to meet the federal Clean Water Act General Pretreatment Requirements to discharge to the Devens POTW. Federal and state air quality regulations would be met by Alternatives SHL-2 and SHL-9. Dust suppression techniques would be used, when necessary, to meet air quality regulations.

The following ARARs, listed in Appendix B, have been modified since signing of the ROD and the first Five-Year review and that may affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedial action:

- 40 CFR 141.11 Subpart B Maximum Contaminant Levels was updated July 1, 2001. Section 141.11 (a) and (b) was amended at 66 FR 7061 on January 22, 2001 to state the following:
 - a) ***The analyses and determination of compliance with 50 µg/L MCL for arsenic use the requirements of 141.23.
 - b) The MCL for arsenic is 50 μg/L for community water systems until January 23, 2006.

On January 22, 2001 USEPA adopted a new standard for arsenic in drinking water at 10 μ g/L, replacing the old standard of 50 μ g/L (66FR6976). The rule became effective on February 22, 2002. The date by which systems must comply with the new 10 μ g/L standard is January 23, 2006.

- 310 CMR 22.0 Drinking Water was updated on May 24, 2004. The arsenic MCL, 10 µg/L, listed in Section 22.06 is effective for the purpose of compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations (outlined above) on January 23, 2006.
- 310 CMR 30.00 "Hazardous Waste" was updated February 27, 2004. There are no revisions 310 CMR 30.660-30.679 "Groundwater Protection" that affect the protectiveness of the remedy.
- USEPA RfD and Health Advisories (HA) are requirements designated as TBC. These requirements were updated in the USEPA 2004 Edition of the Drinking Water Standards and Health Advisories, dated Winter 2004.
- 310 CMR 10.00 Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act.
- 314 CMR 4.00 Massachusetts Surface Water Quality Standards.
- 310 CMR 19.00 Massachusetts Solid Waste Management Regulations.

<u>3.7 Issues</u>

There continues to be ponding on the northern half of the landfill, with ponding also present in the swales located to the south and northwest of the landfill. This appears to be an issue that is ongoing and has been documented in Long Term Monitoring Reports. A Draft Cap Drainage Report was issued in January 2003 detailing corrective actions for the landfill. Areas of poor

drainage and ponding will be addressed by a Landfill Cap Maintenance Contract during fall 2005. Fencing, vehicle gates, and gas monitoring probes will also be installed as part of this contract.

Elevated concentrations of arsenic in groundwater continue to be detected at the Shepley's Hill Landfill. A new arsenic MCL standard of 10 μ g/L was promulgated in January 2001 and public water systems must comply with this new standard by January 2006. Although ROD clean-up goals have not changed, to date, it is anticipated that they will change to be responsive to this new standard while incorporating knowledge of the known ranges of background arsenic concentrations in groundwater at Devens. This change in the standard will be an added difficulty in achieving cleanup goals. Attainment of the proposed standard would increase the stringency of the groundwater cleanup, and would reduce the potential residual risk from exposure to groundwater.

Based on the most recent landfill gas monitoring, performed in November 2004, lower explosive limits ranged from 0% to over 100% in several vents and the percentage of oxygen was greater than 5% at several of these vents. When this condition is observed (LEL nearing 100% and high oxygen readings indicating a potentially explosive condition) there is an immediate reporting and action requirement in accordance with MADEP regulations. The potential explosive conditions should also be noted in the LTMP and the site specific HASP.

Based on the data collected to date, the required incremental reduction in risk was not achieved and the Army and regulatory agencies decided to implement the contingent element of the selected remedy (Alternative SHL-9, Groundwater Extraction and Discharge to the Town of Ayer POTW). The contingency extraction treatment and discharge system has been constructed and operation depends on final selection and approval of system effluent discharge location. Modifications to the implementation of the contingency remedy were detailed in the ESD, (CH2M Hill, 2004a) and included; 1) change the POTW from Ayer to Devens, and 2) provide pretreatment to meet Devens POTW discharge limitations. The current objective of the project is groundwater pump, treatment, and discharge to the Devens POTW using a pretreatment system. An ESD specifying the changes for discharge to the Devens POTW from the ROD was finalized in June 2005.

Although numerous studies have been performed to date, data gaps may exist regarding the lateral extent, flow directions, discharge points, importance of potential run-under, and nature of the arsenic plume. In order to identify these data gaps and to evaluate risk associated with the remedies in place at the landfill, a CSA and CAAA will be performed for the Shepley's Hill Landfill. The CSA will include an offsite groundwater plume investigation, human health and ecological risk assessments and a landfill cap assessment. The CAAA will review all prior feasibility study alternatives, revise and/or validate the alternatives based on new data and develop any new alternatives as necessary. Additionally, the CAAA will address recommend action for a final closure strategy for Shepley's Hill Landfill and remedial approaches for areas that may have been adversely effected by its contamination.

On August 23, 2004, the MADEP drafted a letter to USEPA Region 1 requesting that the ROD be amended based on the data generated as part of the long term monitoring program and observations made during a MADEP inspection in August 2004. The MADEP concluded that the selected remedy, SHL-2, has proven to be ineffective in controlling risk and the contingency remedy, SHL-9, should not be considered the final remedy for the site because it would not satisfy the requirements of the applicable Massachusetts Solid Waste Laws.

BCT meeting minutes, dated July 14, 2005, indicated that the USEPA will be conducting an arsenic study at Red Cove of Plow Shop Pond with a focus on arsenic in groundwater and sediment. This study is planned to begin in September 2005.

Issues	Affects Protectiveness (Y/N)			
	Current	Future		
Areas of poor drainage and ponding on the northern, half of the landfill, also present in the swales located to the south and northwest of the landfill.	Y	Y		
Achieving cleanup goals with continued elevated concentrations of arsenic in groundwater and complying with new arsenic MCL standard of $10 \mu g/L$, January 2006.	Y	Y		
Evaluate discharge options for treated water from the extraction treatment and discharge system, operation depending on final selection and approval of system effluent discharge location.	Ŷ	Y		
Evaluate risk associated with the remedies in place at the landfill, conduct a Comprehensive Site Assessment (CSA) and Corrective Action Alternative Analysis (CAAA) for the Shepley's Hill Landfill.	Ŷ	Y		

3.8 Recommendations and Follow-up Actions

Annual landfill inspections and landfill gas sampling, and semi-annual groundwater sampling with annual reporting should continue. Landfill maintenance should continue as recommended in the Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan and in annual reports.

The list of parameters monitored as part of the long term sampling program should be reviewed as recommended in the 2000 Five-Year review with the intent of eliminating parameters that have no significant site history and that do not contribute to site risks or to the understanding of groundwater chemistry. These include copper, lead, nickel, selenium, silver, BOD₅, and cyanide. Since the interaction of groundwater beneath the Shepley's Hill Landfill with the Plow Shop Pond continues to be evaluated, the significance of these chemicals should be considered before revision of the long term monitoring analyte list (especially cadmium, chromium and mercury as they relate to sediment adjacent to Plow Shop Pond).

The manganese cleanup level was updated in the LTMP (SWET, 1996c) to 1,715 μ g/L, based on risk-based concentrations. This value has been used since 1996 as the cleanup level. New risk-based values have been calculated for adults and children as explained above in Section 3.6 based on the recently updated RfD. Until these risk-based values are approved, the more stringent background value of 291 μ g/L should be utilized as a cleanup goal for manganese.

The groundwater extraction, treatment, and discharge system shall continue to sampled in accordance with the Performance Monitoring Plan. Monitoring to be performed to evaluate system performance shall include hydraulic and geochemical monitoring and influent/effluent monitoring.

In the spring of 2005, MADEP published new draft groundwater standards for RDX and HMX which are military explosives. Explosive concentrations were noted in the ROD for monitoring well SHL-24. Based on the emerging concern for these mission-related constituents as reflected

in the development of the draft standards, it is recommended that this well be re-sampled for these constituents.

Areas of poor drainage and ponding will be addressed during the landfill cap maintenance work in the fall of 2005.

Although landfill-gas readings are within the parameters of a mature landfill and landfill-gas vents do not appear to be damaged, because of high landfill-gas measurements during routine sampling, the Army should continue to assess whether subsurface migration of landfill gas is occurring. The CSA/CAAA will include an assessment of landfill gas migration. Additional gas probes will be installed on the southern portion of the landfill as part of the cap maintenance work scheduled for the fall of 2005.

Based on the noted conditions and issues, the following actions are planned for the Shepley's Hill Landfill:

Recommendations/Follow Up Actions	Party Responsible	Oversight Agency	Milestone Date	Do Follow-Up Actions: Affect Protectiveness (Y/N)		
				Current	Future	
Start up of extraction and	Army,	USEPA	September	Y	Y	
treatment system	BRAC	Region 1	2005			
Performance monitoring of	Army,	USEPA,	September	Y	Y	
the extraction and	BRAC	Region 1	2005			
treatment system						
Complete Landfill Cap	Army,	USEPA,	Spring	Y	Y	
Maintenance	BRAC	Region 1	2006	c		
Complete CSA/CAAA	Army,	USEPA,	Fall 2007	Y	Y	
	BRAC	Region 1				

3.9 Protectiveness Statement

A protectiveness determination of the remedy at the Shepley's Hill Landfill cannot be made at this time until further information is obtained through completion of the recommendations and follow up actions detailed in Section 3.8. It is expected that these actions will take approximately 2 years to complete (mostly dependant on the CSA and CAAA), at which time a protectiveness determination will be made. Pending the availability of adequate funding, the Army will implement the remedy identified by the CSA/CAAA to achieve protectiveness within a reasonable time period.

3.10 Next Review

The Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit is a statutory site that requires ongoing Five-Year reviews. This is the third five-year review that has been performed at this operable unit. The first was performed in 1998 according to the schedule in the ROD. The 2000 Five-Year Review was performed to have a completed review for all Devens sites at one time. The next review will be performed within five years of the completion of this third Five-Year review report. The completion date is the date on which USEPA issues its letter to the Army either concurring with report's findings or documenting reasons for non-concurrence.

3.11 References

- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES), 1993. Final Remedial Investigation Addendum Report, Fort Devens Feasibility Study for Group IA Sites. Prepared for U.S. Army Environmental Center, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland. Portland, Maine, December 1993.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES), 1995a. Final Feasibility Study, Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit, Fort Devens Feasibility Study for Group 14 Sites. Prepared for U.S. Army Environmental Center, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland. Portland, Maine, September 1995.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES), 1995b. Record of Decision, Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit, Fort Devens Massachusetts. Prepared for U.S. Army Environmental Center, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland. Portland, Maine. September 1995.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES), 1995c. Draft Plow Shop Pond and Grove Pond Sediment Evaluation, Fort Devens Feasibility Study for Group IA Sites. Prepared for U.S. Army Environmental Center, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland. Portland, Maine, October 1995.
- CH2MHill, 2003. Project Management Plan Extraction, Discharge, and Treatment System. Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts. October 2003.
- CH2MHill, 2004a. Explanation of Significant Differences Groundwater Extraction, Treatment, and Discharge Contingency Remedy Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts. February 2004.
- CH2MHill, 2004b. Remedial Design & Remedial Action Work Plan Draft Final 60% & Draft 100% submittal Groundwater Extraction, Treatment, and Discharge Contingency.
 Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts. September 2004.
- CH2MHill, 2005. Groundwater Extraction, Treatment, and Discharge Contingency Remedy. Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts. August 2005.
- Ecology & Environment, Inc. (E&E), 1993. Final Remedial Investigations Report for Areas of Contamination 4, 5, 18, and 40, Fort Devens, Massachusetts. Prepared for U.S. Army Toxic and Hazardous Material Agency, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland. Arlington, Virginia, April 1993.
- Harding-ESE, 2000. Draft Shepley's Hill Landfill Supplemental Groundwater Report. Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts. Portland, Maine, July 2000.

- Harding Lawson Associates, Inc. (HLA), 1999. Final Work Plan Supplemental Groundwater Investigation at Shepley's Hill Landfill. Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts. Portland, Maine, February 1999.
- Harding Lawson Associates, Inc. (HLA), 2000.First Five –Year Review Report. Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts. Portland, Maine, September 2000.
- Harding-ESE, 2002. Revised Draft Shepley's Hill Landfill Supplemental Groundwater Report, Volume I and II. Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts. Portland, Maine, February 2002.
- Harding-ESE, 2003. Revised Draft Shepley's Hill Landfill Supplemental Groundwater Report. Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts. Portland, Maine, May 2003.
- IEM Sealand Corporation (IEM), 1997. Landfill Cap Improvements Shepley Hill Fort Devens, Massachusetts. Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England Division, Waltham, Massachusetts. Concord, Massachusetts, October 1997.
- Normandeau Associates, Inc., 2001. Benthic Community Survey of Nonacoicus Brook. Prepared for Harding, ESE, Inc., Portland, Maine, November 2001.
- Stone & Webster Environmental Technology & Services (SWET), 1996a. Final Landfill Cap Improvement Design. Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England Division, Waltham, Massachusetts. Boston, Massachusetts, January 1996.
- Stone & Webster Environmental Technology & Services (SWET), 1996b. Final Closeout Report, Areas of Contamination (AOCs) 4, 5, and 18, Shepley's Hill Landfill, Fort Devens Massachusetts. Prepared for U.S. Army, Corps of Engineers, New England Division, Waltham, Massachusetts. Boston, Massachusetts, March 1996.
- Stone & Webster Environmental Technology & Services (SWET), 1996c. Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan Shepley's Hill Landfill, Fort Devens, Massachusetts; Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England Division, Waltham, Massachusetts. Boston, Massachusetts, May 1996.
- Stone & Webster Environmental Technology & Services (SWET), 1997a. Shepley's Hill Landfill Annual Report - 1996 Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England Division, Waltham, Massachusetts. Boston, Massachusetts, January 1997.
- Stone & Webster Environmental Technology & Services (SWET), 1997b. Addendum to Shepley's Hill Landfill Annual Report - 1996. Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England Division, Waltham, Massachusetts. Boston, Massachusetts. April 1997.
- Stone & Webster Environmental Technology & Services (SWET), 1998. Final Five Year Review. Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts. Boston, Massachusetts. August 1998.

- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 1997. 60% Design Extraction/Discharge System, Shepley's Hill Landfill. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Waltham, Massachusetts. November 1997.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 1999. Shepley's Hill Landfill 1998 Annual Report. Department of the Army, New England District, Corps of Engineers, Concord, Massachusetts. March 1999.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2000. Shepley's Hill Landfill 1999 Annual Report. Department of the Army, New England District, Corps of Engineers, Concord, Massachusetts, March 2000.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2001. Shepley's Hill Landfill 2000 Annual Report. Department of the Army, New England District, Corps of Engineers, Concord, Massachusetts. May 2001.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2002. Shepley's Hill Landfill 2001 Annual Report. Department of the Army, New England District, Corps of Engineers, Concord, Massachusetts. April 2002.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2003. Shepley's Hill Landfill 2002 Annual Report. Department of the Army, New England District, Corps of Engineers, Concord, Massachusetts. March 2003.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2004. Shepley's Hill Landfill Draft 2003 Annual Report. Department of the Army, New England District, Corps of Engineers, Concord, Massachusetts. June 2004.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2005. Shepley's Hill Landfill Draft 2004 Annual Report. Department of the Army, New England District, Corps of Engineers, Concord, Massachusetts. July 2005.
4.0 AOC 57 FIVE-YEAR STATUTORY SITE REVIEW

,

4.1 Chronology

The following tables outline the chronology of site events at Areas 1, 2, and 3:

Table 4-1 Chronology of Site Events – Area 1

EVENT	DATE
Initial discovery of problem and contamination	February 13, 1977
Site Inspection (SI), Preliminary Risk Evaluation (PRE)	1992
Area Requiring Environmental Evaluation (AREE)	1994
Soil Removal Action	1997
Remedial Investigation (RI) completed	2000
Record of Decision (ROD) Signed	September 28, 2001
First Five-Year Review	September 2005

Table 4-2 Chronology of Site Events – Area 2

EVENT	DATE
Drainage ditch investigated as part of SI for Group 2 and 7	1992
Historic gas stations.	
Soil removal action in response to new MCP standards.	1994
Soil removal action discontinued due to contamination	1994
extending beyond original estimates, 1,300 cy soil	
removed.	
RIs conducted, identified most significant soil	1995-1998
contaminants to be petroleum hydrocarbons,	
polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), and lead.	
USACE conducted additional soil/ground water	2000
investigations.	
Completed a Feasibility Study (FS)	2000
ROD signed for AOC 57 Areas 1, 2, and 3.	September 28, 2001
USACE completed additional soil removal actions.	January-February 2003
Remedial Action Work Plan Start	January-February 2003
Additional Remediation and Work Plan Amendment	2003
Site Restoration Completed	October 2003
Transportation and Disposal/Stockpiles	December 2003
Remedial Action Report Completed	September 2004
Explanation of Significant Differences (ESD) issued	March 10, 2004
Long Term Monitoring Plan (LTMP)	2003/2004
First Five-Year Review	September 2005

EVENT	DATE
Four test-pits excavated east of Area 2, results indicated	1995
petroleum hydrocarbons and chlorinated volatile organic	
compounds (VOCs), area designated Area 3.	
RIs conducted, identified most significant soil	1996-1998
contaminants to be petroleum hydrocarbons,	
polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), some semi-volatile	
organic compounds (SVOCs) and arsenic, lower	
concentrations of VOCs.	
USACE conducted soil removal actions, 1,860 cubic yards	1999
of TPH and PCB contaminated soil removed.	
USACE performed additional Soil Sampling.	2000
Feasibility Study (FS) completed	2000
Groundwater monitoring points installed	2000
USEPA and MADEP collected groundwater samples.	April 3, 2001
Record of Decision (ROD) Signature	September 28, 2001
Additional Soil Removal Action Completed	2002
Remedial Action Report/Remedial work completed	2002-2003
ROD Amendments of Explanation of Significant	March 2004
Differences (ESDs)	
Long Term Monitoring Plan (LTMP)	2003/2004
First Five-Year Statutory Review	September 2005

Table 4.3: Chronology of Site Events - Area 3

4.2 Background

Area of Concern (AOC) 57 is part of the Bowers-Nonacoicus Brook Sub-basin, Nashua River Watershed, located south of former Building 3713, between Barnum Road and Cold Spring Road on the northeastern side of the former Main Post of the Devens Reserve Forces Training Area (RFTA) in the Town of Harvard, Massachusetts (Figure 1-1). Refer to the Introduction in Section 1.0 for general enforcement activities at Devens RFTA (i.e., initiation of a MEP, placement on the NPL, and signing of the FFA).

AOC 57 consists of three sub-areas (Area 1, Area 2, and Area 3) located south and southeast of former Building 3713 and former buildings 3756, 3757 and 3758 (Figure 2 reprinted from the ROD and presented in Appendix C). These sub-areas received stormwater runoff and wastes from vehicle maintenance activities conducted at the storage yards. These yards were eventually abandoned in 1998, and the pavement and fencing were removed. The former storage yards are now soil and grass-covered areas. Areas 2 and 3 are located within Lease Parcel A6a that the Army plans to transfer to the Massachusetts Government Land Bank. Area 1 is not part of the Long Term Monitoring (LTM) program, as discussed later in this section.

Areas 1, 2, and 3 include an upland area (elevations between 228 feet and 240 feet mean sea level [msl]) that slopes downward to a delineated wetland area (elevations lower than 228 feet msl) which is part of the wetland system and feeder stream know as Lower Cold Spring Brook. At Area 2 the wetland boundary is located approximately 250 feet from Cold Spring Brook, and at Area 3 the wetland boundary is located approximately 500 feet from Cold Spring Brook. The upland area is forested with trees and scrub brush. The wetland area is densely vegetated with brush and contains small areas of standing water.

The AOC 57 ROD, dated September 2001, determined that Area 1 required No Further Action and remedies were selected for Area 2 and Area 3 to protect human health and the environment under current and future land use scenarios. "Alternative II-3, Excavation (For Possible Future Use) and Institutional Controls" was the selected remedy for Area 2 and "Alternative III-2a, Excavation (To Accelerate Groundwater Cleanup) and Institutional Controls" was the selected remedy for Area 3. Public access to Area 2 and Area 3 is not restricted, but the presence of floodplain/wetlands conditions and existing zoning currently prevents residential use/exposure.

Data obtained and observations made at Area 2 during both the January 2002 soil removal work and subsequent investigations between 2002 and 2003 for petroleum waste recovery efforts, resulted in discovery of site conditions at AOC 57 Area 2 that are different than conditions upon which the September 2001 ROD were based. Therefore, an Explanation of Significant Differences (ESD), dated March 2004, expanded the ROD recommendations to include LTM of Extractable Petroleum Hydrocarbons (EPH) C11-C12 aromatics and PCBs for Area 2.

4.2.1 AOC 57 Area 1 Background

Area 1 consists of a former storm water outfall and drainage area for runoff from paved areas proximal to former Building 3713. Drainage from Area 1 meanders and eventually flows into Cold Spring Brook. An estimated 50 to 100-gallon spill of No. 4 fuel oil was discharged through the Area 1 outfall in 1977. Approximately 3,000 gallons of mixed oil and water were recovered through use of containment dikes and absorbent booms in 1977, and approximately 25 cy of petroleum contaminated soil were removed in 1997. Available data indicates that the contamination associated with the fuel oil spill has been removed, and a risk assessment indicates that there are no unacceptable risks for unrestricted use (Final Remedial Investigation Report, Harding Lawson Associates, 2000). On September 28, 2001, a ROD was signed for AOC 57 Areas 1, 2, and 3 determining Area 1 requires No Further Action or remedies as part of the LTM program.

4.2.2 AOC 57 Area 2 Background

Area 2 is located approximately 700 feet north of Area 1 and adjacent to a former vehicle storage yard associated with the motor repair shops located in former Buildings 3757 and 3758. Area 2 grades down towards the wetlands associated with Cold Spring Brook and formerly consisted of an eroded drainage ditch created by rainfall runoff from vehicle storage yards associated with former Buildings 3757 and 3758. Initially, it was believed that contamination in Area 2 was the result of a fuel oil release in Area 1; however, subsequent investigations determined that Area 2 was separate from Area 1. Following a soil removal action in 1994, Area 2 was regraded and a permanent drainage swale was installed. Runoff drains into the swale and discharges east into Cold Spring Brook. Subsequent activities included subsurface investigations with soil sampling and monitoring well installations, removals of contaminated soil, construction of an interceptor trench, and operation of a petroleum product recovery system.

In 1992, the drainage ditch located at Area 2 was investigated as part of the Site Investigation (SI) (ABB, 1995) for Groups 2 and 7 Historic Gas Stations. Naphthalene and TPH were detected in soil samples. Fingerprint analysis of soil samples collected from the drainage ditch area indicated soil contamination was most likely derived from lubricating oil or vehicle crankcase oil, and not the 1977 release of No. 4 fuel oil.

During 1994, the Army performed a soil removal action at Area 2 in response to newly promulgated MCP standards. The 1994 soil removal action was discontinued due to the soil contamination extending below the water table and well beyond the area limits originally estimated. A total of 1,300 cubic yards of contaminated soil was removed during this 1994 removal action.

During 1995 through 1998, the Army conducted site Remedial Investigations (RIs) at AOC 57 Areas 2 and 3. The most significant soil contaminants identified at Area 2 included petroleum hydrocarbons, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), and lead. The Army performed additional soil and groundwater investigations in 2000, and completed a Feasibility Study (FS) for selection of final remedies at AOC 57 Areas 2 and 3. On September 28, 2001 a ROD was signed for AOC 57 Areas 1, 2, and 3.

Soil excavation conducted (in Area 2) as a ROD remedy was initiated in January 2002 and discontinued in February 2003 due to contamination extending beyond the limits identified in the ROD. The Army conducted further sampling to delineate the extent of contamination and completed site restoration in October 2003. An ESD dated March 2004 expanded the ROD Contaminants of Concern (COC) to include long term monitoring of EPH C11-C12 aromatics and PCBs for Area 2.

4.2.3 AOC 57 Area 3 Background

It should be noted that portions of Areas 2 and 3 are located within the 100-year floodplain of Cold Spring Brook. A portion of Area 1 is located outside the lease parcel A6a and outside of the 100-yr floodplain, (i.e. at an elevation > 228' msl.). The selected remedy for Area 1 is no further action.

During investigation activities completed in 1995, four test-pits were excavated east of Area 2 where historical photos indicated soil staining. Sample analysis showed the presence of petroleum hydrocarbons and chlorinated volatile organic compounds (VOCs). The area was designated AOC 57 Area 3. Area 3 is located approximately 600 ft. to the northeast of Area 2, south of former vehicle maintenance motor pools.

During 1996 through 1998, RI field investigations were performed to better characterize the nature and extent of contamination at Area 3. The most significant soil contaminants identified at Area 3 included petroleum hydrocarbons, PCBs, some semi-volatile organic compounds (SVOCs), and arsenic. Lower concentrations of VOCs were detected at some locations.

The Army conducted a soil removal action in 1999, which targeted soils with TPH and PCB concentrations exceeding soil standards published under the MCP. A total of 1,860 cubic yards of material was removed for off-site disposal.

During 2000, the Army performed additional soil and groundwater investigations, and completed a FS for selection of final remedies at AOC 57 Areas 2 and 3. On September 28, 2001, a ROD was signed for AOC 57 Areas 1, 2 and 3.

Soil excavation conducted as a ROD remedy was initiated in January 2002 and completed in February 2003. Area 3 was excavated to the target limits, and the planned volume of soil was removed within these limits to depths ranging between 2 to 4 feet. All confirmatory samples met the ROD cleanup criterion for EPH, and Area 3 was backfilled and the extent of removal was documented.

4.3 Remedial Action

A ROD was signed on September 28, 2001 for AOC 57 presenting selected remedial actions for soil and groundwater contamination at Areas 1, 2 and 3. The selected remedy for Area 1 is No Further Action. The selected remedy for Area 2 is "Alternative II-3, Excavation (For Possible Future Use), Groundwater Monitoring, Surface Water Monitoring and Institutional Controls". The selected remedy for Area 3 is "Alternative III-2a, Excavation (To Accelerate Groundwater Cleanup), Groundwater Monitoring, Surface Water Monitoring and Institutional Controls". Key components of the selected remedies are summarized in the sections 4.3.3 and 4.3.4.

4.3.1 Remedial Action Objectives at AOC 57 Area 2

The remedial action objectives at AOC 57 Area 2 were developed in the FS for those exposure scenarios where human health risks exceed the USEPA points of departure. Based on the results of the risk assessment, the following Remedial Action Outcomes (RAOs) were developed for AOC 57:

Area 2 - Possible Future Use Scenario (Construction Worker)

 Protect potential construction workers that might work within future recreational (wetland) areas at Area 2 from ingesting soils containing Aroclor-1260 and lead in excess of preliminary remediation goal (PRG) concentrations considered protective of human health (3.5 and 600 milligrams per kilograms (mg/kg), respectively).

Area 2 - Unrestricted Land Use Scenario (Residential)

- Prevent potential residential receptors from coming in dermal contact with and ingesting Area 2 wetland soils containing Aroclor-1260, arsenic, chromium, lead, and the extractable petroleum hydrocarbons (EPH) C11-C22 aromatic carbon range in excess of PRG concentrations considered protective of human health (0.5, 21, 550, 400, and 930 mg/kg, respectively).
- Prevent residential potable use of Area 2 wetland groundwater containing arsenic and tetrachloroethylene (PCE) in concentrations that exceed federal Maximum contaminant level (MCL)/Massachusetts maximum contaminant level (MMCL) drinking water standards (50 and 5 micrograms per liter (µg/L), respectively).

4.3.2 Remedial Action Objectives at AOC 57 Area 3

The remedial action objectives at AOC 57 Area 3 were developed in the FS for those exposure scenarios where human health risks exceed the USEPA points of departure. Based on the results of the risk assessment, the following RAOs were developed for AOC 57:

Area 3 - Possible Future Use Scenario (Commercial/Industrial Worker)

 Protect potential future commercial/industrial receptors from ingesting upland Area 3 groundwater that contains arsenic, cadmium, and 1,4-dichlorobenzene (1,4-DCB) at concentrations that exceed MCLs and MMCLs for drinking water.

Area 3 - Unrestricted Land Use Scenario (Residential)

- Prevent unrestricted residential potable use of Area 3 groundwater containing arsenic, cadmium, and 1,4-DCB at concentrations that exceed MCLs and MMCLs for drinking water.
- Prevent unrestricted residential dermal contact and ingestion of surface soils containing the EPH C11-C22 aromatic carbon range at concentrations in excess of PRGs considered protective of human health.
- Prevent unrestricted residential potable use of Area 3 floodplain groundwater containing arsenic and PCE at concentrations that exceed MCLs and MMCLs for drinking water.

4.3.3 Selected Remedy

The selected remedies at AOC 57 Areas 1, 2, and 3 addressed long term commercial/industrial exposure to contaminated groundwater, the principal known threat at Areas 1, 2 and 3. The selected remedy at Area 1 is No Further Action. The selected remedial alternative for both Areas 2 and 3 included excavation and treatment/disposal, wetland protection, institutional controls (ICs), and long term groundwater monitoring to evaluate the effectiveness of the alternative at controlling groundwater contamination and site risk. The remedy is to mitigate existing groundwater contamination through natural attenuation and remediation and reduce the potential risk of future commercial/industrial exposure to contaminated groundwater. The major components of the selected remedy for both Areas 2 and 3 are as follows:

- Soil excavation and treatment/disposal.
- Wetlands protection: Inclusion of these wetlands as part of the Lower Cold Spring Brook wetland habitat.
- Institutional controls.
- Long term groundwater and surface water monitoring.
- Institutional control inspections.
- Five-year site reviews.

In March 2004, the USEPA published an ESD for AOC 57. The ESD was required because data obtained and observations made during the contaminated soil removal action initiated in January 2002 by Conti Environmental, Inc. (Conti) resulted in discovery of site conditions at AOC 57 Area 2 that were different than conditions upon which the September 2001 ROD were based. These differences are listed below.

- Increased volume and cost of contaminated soil requiring removal to attain cleanup levels at Area 2.
- Inclusion of EPH as a contaminant of concern for soil at Area 2, in the September 2001 AOC 57 ROD, to monitor the presence of petroleum was encountered during contaminated soil removal.
- Inclusion of EPH and PCBs as contaminants of concern for Area 2 groundwater in the September 2001 AOC 57 ROD for groundwater at Area 2.

The original ROD established risk-based cleanup levels for Area 2 at AOC 57 for the PCBs, Aroclor-1260, and lead. Concerns about the persistent separate phase petroleum waste observed

during removal and investigation work in 2002-2003 resulted in the addition of C11-C22 aromatic hydrocarbons quantified by EPH (MADEP EPH Method) as a COC. As a result of the addition of C11-C22 as a COC, the ROD adopted the more stringent S3/GW-1 cleanup level of 200 mg/kg EPH C11-C22 aromatic fraction for Area 2 soils. Subsequently, PCBs were added as a COC because of their association with the petroleum waste oil. Final cleanup levels for Area 2 at AOC 57 are presented in the table below.

Contaminant of Concern	Final Cleanup Levels
PCB (Aroclor-1260)	3.5 mg/kg dry weight by USEPA Method 3540C/8082
Lead	600 mg/kg dry weight by USEPA Method 3050B/6010B
C11-C22 Aromatic Hydrocarbons	200 mg/kg dry weight for EPH using MADEP method

Table 4-4 Area 2 COC: Cleanup Levels in Soil

Table 4–5 Area 2 COC: Cleanup Levels in Groundwater

Contaminant of Concern	Final Cleanup Levels
Arsenic	50 μg/L
Cadmium	5 μg/L
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5 μg/L
Tetrachloroethylene	5 μg/L
EPH C11-C22 Aromatics	200 μg/L
PCB (total of all Aroclors)	0.5 μg/L

The Area 3 soil cleanup objective was to remove organic material impacted by storm water runoff and wastes from vehicle maintenance at storage yards. The cleanup goal of 930 mg/kg EPH was selected as a target goal to help evaluate the removal of a sufficient quantity of organic material. The ROD established cleanup levels for one COC in soil, EPH C11-C22 Aromatic Hydrocarbons, at AOC 57 Area 3, as presented in the table below.

Table 4-6 Area 3 COC: Cleanup Levels in Soil

Contaminant of Concern	Final Cleanup Levels
C11-C22 Aromatic Hydrocarbons	930 mg/kg dry weight for EPH using MADEP
	method

The ROD identifies groundwater COCs at Area 3 as arsenic, cadmium, 1,4 dichlorobenzene, and PCE, with the following cleanup goals. The MCL for arsenic (50 μ g/L), in effect at the time of the ROD, was selected as a cleanup goal for groundwater. The MCL for arsenic has been updated since the 2001 ROD. The MCL for arsenic was lowered to 10 μ g/L, effective February 2002.

Contaminant of Concern	Final Cleanup Levels
Arsenic	50 μg/L
Cadmium	5 μg/L
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5 µg/L
Tetrachloroethylene	5 µg/L

Table 4-7 Area 3 COC: Cleanup Levels in Groundwater

4.3.4 Remedy Components Specified by the ROD

The selected remedy for AOC 57 Area 2 Alternative II-3 contains components to reduce potential human-health risks associated with contaminated soil and groundwater at the Area 2 floodplain. A detailed description of Area 2 Alternative II-3 is presented in Section 12.1.2 of the ROD; the key components of the ROD are summarized below.

4.3.4.1 Area 2 Selected Key Components

Soil Excavation and Treatment/Disposal at an Off-site Treatment, Storage, or Disposal Facility. As presented in Section 12.1.2 of the ROD, Alternative II-3 included excavation of soil with Aroclor-1260 and lead concentrations in excess of PRGs protective for construction workers. The actual extent of excavation and volume of soil removed was to be determined by field screening methods. The ROD estimated an average excavation depth of 4 ft and approximately 640 cubic yards of soil would be removed and treated/disposed of at an approved off-site treatment, storage, or disposal facility. Implementation of the soil removal action is discussed in Section 4.3.5 of this report

<u>Wetland Protection</u>. As presented in the ROD Section 12.1.2, soil excavated within the 100-yr floodplain (220 ft. msl) and within delineated bordering vegetated wetlands (based on a 1993 wetlands delineation), would likely require wetland protection in accordance with the Massachusetts Wetland Protection Act and Regulations at 310 CMR 10.55.

Prior to any excavation activities, a new wetland delineation would be performed at Area 2 to define the construction area limits located within the delineated vegetated wetlands. A preconstruction mitigation study would be performed to determine the impact to the affected area and the compensatory mitigation required as a result of the excavation activities. Once the extent of anticipated impacts was known, a mitigation/restoration plan would be prepared for regulatory agency review and concurrence.

Compensatory mitigation and monitoring would be implemented according to the mitigation plan. A wetland scientist would monitor wetland restoration for a period of five years, beginning the

year after the wetland creation. Implementation of the wetland monitoring plan is discussed in Section 4.3.5 of this report.

Institutional Controls. As presented in the ROD Section 12.1.2, in the event of future property transfer, the Army would include deed covenants to prohibit potable use of Area 2 groundwater and unrestricted use of floodplain property. All ICs would be stated in full or by reference within deeds, easements, mortgages, leases, or other instruments of property transfer. These controls would be drafted, implemented and enforced in cooperation with federal, state, and local governments. These covenants would be maintained as long as soil and groundwater contaminants remained at concentrations above cleanup levels. If future land use at AOC 57 is inconsistent with these ICs, then the site exposure scenarios for human health and the environment would be reevaluated to assess whether this response action remains appropriate.

Institutional Control Inspections. As presented in the ROD Section 12.1.2, the Army would prepare and submit an Institutional Control Monitoring Plan for regulatory agency review and concurrence as part of the site Draft Long Term Monitoring Plan (LTMP) (USACE, 2004), to detail the ICs to be incorporated/referenced within instruments of property transfer and ensure that the institutional control requirements were met. The plan would include a checklist of elements to be assessed during regularly scheduled on-site inspections and interviews with the site property owner, manager, or designee. If future land use at AOC 57 is inconsistent with these ICs, then the site exposure scenarios for human health and the environment would be re-evaluated to assess whether this response action is appropriate.

<u>Environmental Monitoring</u>. As presented in the ROD Section 12.1.2, environmental monitoring includes performing long-term groundwater and surface water sampling. Long-term groundwater sampling would assess for groundwater COCs (arsenic, cadmium, 1, 4-dichlorobenzene, PCE, EPH C11-C12 aromatics and PCBs) migration and monitor for the decrease of the groundwater COCs to concentrations that are protective of residential receptors.

Surface water sampling would be a component of environmental sampling to assess for off-site migration of human-health COCs in excess of PRGs via the groundwater to surface water pathway. The purpose of the surface water sampling would not be to collect additional ecological risk assessment data.

Sampling frequency, location, analytes, sampling procedures, and action levels for environmental monitoring would be detailed in the Draft LTMP and submitted to USEPA and MADEP for review and concurrence prior to implementing the environmental monitoring component of this alternative. Following attainment of groundwater cleanup levels, monitoring would be discontinued in accordance with the time frame specified in the Draft LTMP.

<u>Five-Year Site Reviews.</u> As presented in the ROD Section 12.1.2, since Alternative II-3 would result in contaminants remaining on site above concentrations allowing unrestricted use and to the extent required by law, the Army would review the site at least once every five years to ensure that the remedial action remains protective of human health and the environment. Five-year reviews would be performed as long as hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants remain onsite above concentrations that allow for unrestricted exposure and unlimited use.

4.3.4.2 Area 3 Selected Remedy Specific Components

The selected remedy for AOC 57 Area 3 Alternative III-2a contains components to reduce potential human-health risks associated with exposure to contaminated soil (floodplain) and

groundwater (upland and floodplain) at the Area 3. A detailed description of Area 3 Alternative III-2a is presented in Section 12.2.2 of the ROD; the key components are summarized below.

Soil Excavation and Treatment/Disposal at an Off-site Treatment, Storage, or Disposal Facility. As presented in Section 12.2.2 of the ROD, Alternative III-2a included excavation of floodplain soil with elevated concentrations of organics that were believed to contribute to reducing (i.e., anaerobic) conditions and the release of naturally occurring arsenic to groundwater. In lieu of other site-specific data that related concentrations of soil organics to arsenic in groundwater, the ROD assumed that EPH C11-C22 aromatic range concentrations would be used as an indicator of organic concentrations. Because this alternative relies on ICs to achieve protection of human health under anticipated future land use scenarios, the ROD did not identify PRGs or cleanup criteria for the soil removal. The criteria would be developed during the design phase of the remedy.

It was anticipated that the excavation would occur in the floodplain around the southern edge of the 1999 soil excavation where concentrations of organics were believed to be greatest. The ROD estimated an average excavation depth of 3 ft and approximately 640 cubic yards of soil would be removed to be treated/disposed of at an approved off-site treatment, storage, or disposal facility. Implementation of the soil removal action are discussed in Section 4.3.5 of this report.

<u>Wetlands Protection</u>. As presented in the ROD Section 12.2.2, soil excavated within the 100-yr floodplain (220 ft. msl) and within delineated bordering vegetated wetlands would likely require wetland protection in accordance with the Massachusetts Wetland Protection Act and Regulations at 310 CMR 10.55. Wetland Protection activities would be performed as described for Alternative II-3, Section 4.3.4.1.

Prior to any excavation activities, wetlands delineation would be performed at Area 3. If the proposed construction area was confirmed to be within delineated vegetated wetlands, a preconstruction mitigation study would be performed to determine the impact to the affected area and the compensatory mitigation required as a result of the excavation activities. Once the extent of anticipated impacts was known, a mitigation/restoration plan would be prepared for regulatory agency review and concurrence. The primary goal of wetland restoration activities would be to restore affected fresh-water wetlands within the excavation area and disturbed during remedial activities.

<u>Institutional Controls</u>. As presented in Section 12.2.2 of the ROD, to protect possible future commercial workers and unrestricted use residents from exposure to groundwater and future unrestricted use residents from exposure to contaminated flood-plain soil in the event of future property transfer, the Army would include deed covenants to prohibit potable use of Area 3 groundwater and residential use of floodplain property.

Institutional Control Inspections. As presented in Section 12.2.2 of the ROD, the Army would prepare and submit an Institutional Control Monitoring Plan for regulatory agency review and concurrence as part of the site Draft LTMP to detail the ICs to be incorporated/referenced within instruments of property transfer and ensure that the institutional control requirements were met. The plan would include a checklist of elements to be assessed during regularly scheduled on-site inspections and interviews with the site property owner, manager, or designee. If future land use at AOC 57 is inconsistent with these ICs, then the site exposure scenarios for human health and the environment would be re-evaluated to assess whether this response action is appropriate.

<u>Environmental Monitoring.</u> As presented in Section 12.2.2 of the ROD, environmental monitoring would consist of performing long term groundwater and surface water sampling. Long term groundwater sampling would be performed to assess for decreases in arsenic; maintenance of PCE, cadmium, and 1, 4-DCB concentrations (upland and flood-plain COCs) at or below cleanup levels; and for the need for continued groundwater ICs to protect human receptors.

Surface water sampling would also be a component of environmental sampling to assess for offsite migration of human-health COCs in excess of PRGs via the groundwater to surface water pathway. The purpose of the surface water sampling would not be to collect additional ecological risk assessment data.

Sampling frequency, location, analytes, sampling procedures, and action levels for environmental monitoring would be detailed in the Draft LTMP and submitted to USEPA and MADEP for review and concurrence prior to implementing the environmental monitoring component of this alternative. Following attainment of groundwater cleanup levels, monitoring will be discontinued in accordance with the time frame specified in the Draft LTMP.

<u>Five-Year Site Reviews.</u> As presented in Section 12.2.2 of the ROD, Alternative III-2a would result in contaminants remaining on site above concentrations allowing unrestricted use and to the extent required by law, the Army would review the site at least once every five years to ensure that the remedial action remains protective of human health and the environment. Five-Year Reviews would be performed as long as hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants remain onsite above concentrations that allow for unrestricted exposure and unlimited use.

4.3.5 Remedy Implementation

Soil Excavation and Treatment/Disposal at an Off-site Treatment, Storage, or Disposal Facility Contaminated soil removal was initiated in January 2002 based on the selected remedy in the ROD for Areas 2 and 3. The Army completed soil removal in January-February 2003 at A0C 57 Areas 2 and 3 under a Remedial Action Work Plan prepared to address the final ROD remedy for contaminated soils.

Area 3 was excavated to the target limits, and the planned volume of soil was removed within these limits to depths ranging between 2 to 4 feet. All confirmatory samples met the ROD cleanup criterion for EPH, and Area 3 was backfilled and the extent of removal was documented.

Soil removal actions were discontinued at Area 2 in February 2003 due to contamination apparently extending beyond the limits identified in the ROD and observed persistent seepage of petroleum waste into the open excavation after the removal work. The excavation was left partially open to observe and remove the oil sheen and globules using absorbent pads and a belt-skimmer product recovery system.

During 2003, the Army continued operation of the petroleum product recovery system at Area 2 following a winter shutdown. The Army conducted additional soil sampling to further delineate the extent of the contaminated soils, and to identify the source of the petroleum waste seepage. The additional soil sampling was conducted by the Army at the request of USEPA and MADEP, and a Work Plan Amendment was developed to complete remediation of the remaining contaminated soils. The Army executed the Work Plan Amendment, which included contaminated soil removal and removal of excavation water to allow access to contaminated soils beneath the groundwater table. The Army installed and operated a petroleum product recovery

system in the remaining open excavation and installed four collection sumps at Area 2 within a groundwater interception trench installed between the soil excavation area and the wetlands. Site restoration activities at AOC 57 Areas 2 and 3 were performed in October 2003. Transportation and disposal of remaining stockpiled contaminated soils were completed by the end of December 2003.

A Final Interim Remedial Action Completion Report was prepared by Conti in September 2004. The report summarizes the work performed to complete remediation of contaminated soils at AOC 57 during 2002 and 2003. The following is a summary of the materials removed during the remedial activities:

- 4,361 tons of contaminated material was excavated from Area 2 and approximately 197 tons were removed from Area 3. All contaminated soils were transported off-site for treatment/recycling in a thermal desorption process at Environmental Soils Management, Inc. (ESMI) in Loudon, NH.
- Twenty four (24), 55-gallon drums containing contaminated absorbent materials and personal protective equipment (PPE). These drums were transported to Onyx facility, TX for thermal destruction.
- Two (2), 55-gallon drums (an estimated 80-gallons) containing petroleum-contaminated liquids from skimming operations.
- One (1), 20 cubic-yard container of plastic liner co-mingled with contaminated soils.
- Two(2), 30 cubic-yard trash containers of construction wastes and decontaminated liner/cover materials
- 94,000-gallons of contaminated water from the excavations discharged to the Devens sewer system under a temporary discharge permit.

Current action consists of implementing the remaining components specified in the ROD: a long term groundwater monitoring program, surface water monitoring, wetlands protection, ICs, IC inspections, annual reporting, and Five-Year site Reviews. These components enable continued assessment for compliance with established performance standards and reporting of the remedial progress. Performance standards were established in the Final Work Plan and consist of contaminant migration and remedial duration assessments. The performance standards are being used during long term groundwater monitoring to ensure that the effectiveness criteria set forth in the ROD continue to be met and remedial objectives are ultimately achieved.

Wetlands Protection

The removal contractor, Conti, restored delineated wetlands that were damaged during the excavation activities in Areas 2 and 3. The remediation and restoration were completed in October 2003. Final restoration activities were performed in October 2003 following completion of the soil remedial actions.

A wetland monitoring plan was outlined in the Draft Long-Term Monitoring Plan prepared by the USACE in March of 2004. The objectives of the wetlands restoration and monitoring plan are to evaluate the restoration measures implemented during the first two growing seasons to ensure success and to identify and take corrective actions, if any, based on the periodic monitoring. The key components of the Wetlands Monitoring Plan included monitoring during construction and

long-term monitoring and compliance with performance standards presented in the Draft LTMP. Wetlands within AOC 57 are part of the Lower Cold Spring Brook drainage and must be considered with any plans to restore Lower Cold Spring, Bowers and Nonacoicus Brooks.

The USACE inspected the wetland in June 2004 to monitor the habitat restoration sites. The results of that inspection indicated that Area 2, a seeded upland, was observed to be 75% well covered with grass/herbs, 20% with spotty cover and 5% bare/eroded. Vegetation of the Area 2 wetland exceeded the 75% indigenous wetland cover criterion. The Area 3 wetland showed mild erosion and that oaks planted on the upland slope had leafed out and reseeded. The inspection of Area 3 showed a successful wetland migration with greater than 75% of the cover established by native wetland plants.

Area 2 consists of an upland site that slopes downward to the restored wetland. Based on the 2004 inspections, it was concluded that the upland site met the Performance Standards. Seven red maples are at the base of the slope where the upland grades into the wetland. Thirty-four red maples have survived on the upland slope. Ground cover on the slope consisted of rabbit's foot clover, cow thistle and other grasses and herbs. Wanderers and colonizers seeding from off site, such as tree species like red maple and black birch with colonizing shrubs such as sweet fern are growing into the site. During the June-August observations, there was a small amount of erosion limited to the rock-lined drainage swale at the east side of the restoration. A silt barrier was present at the top of the slope. During the 2004 observations, silt from the adjacent upgradient un-vegetated upland area from construction activities related to the storm water detention pond being constructed for MassDevelopment had started to top the silt barrier and flow down the restored slope. This uncontrolled erosion and sedimentation resulted in additional erosion within the drainage swale and deposition of fine silt within the wetland and covering of vegetation.

Based on the above findings it was concluded that wetland restoration exceeded the Performance Standards. Soft rush, broad-leaved cattail, burr reed, cotton grass, tussock sedge, silky dogwood and alder are a partial list of species identified during the several monitoring visits. One small patch of phragmites was treated and no additional growth was noticed at the October site visit. Amphibian and/or reptile activities were evident such as turtle egg-nesting sites on the upland slope, and green/bull frogs in the small pools at the edge of the wetland. The silt fence was removed from the periphery of the wetland restoration prior to winter.

Based on the findings of the inspections it was recommended to divert uncontrolled drainage and resulting erosion and sedimentation from the upland area (up gradient of AOC 57) from construction activities related to the storm water detention pond from flowing onto AOC 57 Area 2. In May 2005, at a Restoration Advisory Board (RAB) on-site meeting, after the effects of drainage and erosion during the winter 2004-2005, the silt had directly impacted the restored wetland. There was a layer of silt covering the base of the wetland vegetation. The conclusions were that if this continues, the wetland will eventually be filled with the fine silt, negatively impacting the vegetation along with compromising restored wetland values and functions.

The red oaks growing on the upland slope and red maples at the wetland/upland interface are demonstrating the negative effects of deer browsing and vole damage. It was suggested wire cages be constructed and installed to prevent deer browse damage and plastic vole shields be installed to prevent girdling at the base of the tree. The wire cages can remain for several years and be removed when the trees can survive the browsing. The vole protectors are made of degradable plastic. It was concluded that Area 3, consisting of upland slope and wetland restoration, more than exceeded the Performance Standards. The upland plant cover, ground and tree cover, is similar to AOC 57 Area 2. The wetland restoration also contains similar wetland vegetation as Area 2. As of October 2004, there was no evidence of erosion from the adjacent upland onto Area 2. Silt fence was removed October 2004 in order not to impact the migration of animals from the upland into the wetland for winter habitat. The installation of deer browse and vole protectors on the red maples and red oaks was recommended for Area 3.

Institutional Controls

In accordance with the ROD, ICs that prohibit the use of groundwater as a potable source and residential use of floodplain property are currently in effect at AOC 57. ICs are included in the Lease In Furtherance of Conveyance (LIFOC) currently in affect for all leased parcels including the AOC 57. The LIFOC agreement identifies the general restrictions and required actions that are in place to protect the remedy for AOC 57. Administrative ICs would be developed and detailed in the finding of suitability to transfer (FOST) and included with the Deed prior to transfer of the land parcels associated with AOC 57.

Institutional Controls Inspections

IC inspections were developed as part of Draft LTMP (USACE, 2004). The plan includes a checklist of elements to be assessed during regularly scheduled on-site inspections and interviews with the site property owner, manager, or designee. If future land use at AOC 57 is inconsistent with the ICs, then the site exposure scenarios for human health and the environment will be re-evaluated to assess whether this response action is appropriate. As part of the inspections, information about whether any excavations that would involve soil or groundwater are planned, and any proposed plans for sale or development of the property, will be gathered from personnel knowledgeable of the site and the ICs in place. The ICs in place are in effect and public access to both Areas 2 and 3 is unrestricted.

Environmental Monitoring

Long term monitoring is being performed by the USACE, New England District (NAE), Concord, Massachusetts. The first long term groundwater monitoring round was performed in December 2003 and the second groundwater monitoring round was completed in November 2004. Work is being performed in accordance with the Draft LTMP (USACE, 2004). Subsection 4.3.5.1 describes the performance standards for evaluation of alternatives that have been established for the long-term groundwater monitoring program. Subsection 4.3.5.2 summarizes the long-term groundwater monitoring program for Areas 2 and 3 and the wetland. These performance standards were developed as part of the Draft LTMP prepared by the USACE in March 2004. The Draft LTMP is currently under review and approval is pending.

Five-Year Site Reviews

Since the selected remedies for Area 2 and 3 result in contaminants remaining on site above concentrations allowing unrestricted use and to the extent required by law, review of the site is required every five years to ensure that the remedial action remains protective of human health and the environment. This is the first Five-Year Review for AOC 57. Five-Year Reviews will be performed as long as hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants remain on site above concentrations that allow for unrestricted exposure and unlimited use.

4.3.5.1 Evaluation of Alternative Performance

If there is indication that contaminants are migrating downgradient from the former source area, the Army, in conjunction with MADEP and USEPA representatives, will evaluate the need for

additional action. Contaminants will be deemed to be migrating downgradient if any COCs are detected above their respective action levels in designated sentry wells. The groundwater and brook elevation data will be reviewed to determine if flow direction remains constant and if the monitoring locations continue to be strategically located for detecting off-site migration of COCs. The Draft LTMP will be revised if groundwater flow direction appears to differ from RI interpretations. Similarly, if the future proposed land use at AOC 57 is inconsistent with implemented ICs, then the site exposure scenarios to human health and the environment will be reviewed to ensure that the response action at AOC 57 is appropriate. More frequent reviews will be performed if site conditions change significantly.

Monitoring will continue until all monitored wells are below action levels for two consecutive sampling rounds and the Army, MADEP, and USEPA agree that the site can be administratively closed out. At this time it is too early in the LTMP to predict when groundwater contamination will all be below their cleanup goals.

Assessment of Monitoring and Site Inspection Data

Groundwater and surface water monitoring, wetland inspection and ICs inspection data will continue to be reported in the Annual Reports. Data will continue to be evaluated for detection of COCs concentrations that exceed action levels at the downgradient sentry wells. Data at source area wells will also be evaluated through time to observe trends in contaminant concentrations. It is expected that, once sufficient data are available, the data will be tracked using a linear regression or other useful approach. As data accumulate, it may become apparent that other regression analyses or statistical tests may become more appropriate for analysis of the distribution of the data. Proposal for the modification of assessment of the data will be presented in the annual report for review and approval by the regulatory agencies prior to implementing a change. The results of the IC checks will continue to be assessed and reported in the Annual Reports.

4.3.5.2 Draft Long Term Monitoring Plan Summary

Draft Long Term Monitoring Plan Summary

In 2005, a Draft LTMP was submitted to the USEPA. The Draft LTMP stipulated the monitoring wells and surface water locations to be sampled, in addition to wetland restoration and IC inspections. Salient points of these plans for each area are summarized for convenience in the following paragraphs.

Groundwater samples are collected from eight monitoring wells, three surface water locations and 4 sump locations. Water levels are measured at nine monitoring wells and five piezometers to determine groundwater flow directions. Two of the surface water locations are located in Area 2 at the fringe of the marsh very close to the edge of the remedial action excavation limit. One surface water location is located at Area 3 downstream of the remedial action excavation. Groundwater flow direction at Areas 2 and 3 is to the southeast, toward the Cold Spring Brook wetland.

<u>Area 2</u> As part of the Draft LTMP, six monitoring wells and two surface water locations, (located within the site boundaries) will be sampled for VOCs, EPH, PCBs, target analyte list (TAL) metals, general inorganics, and general water quality parameters. The COCs are arsenic, tetrachloroethylene, EPH C11-C22 aromatics, and PCBs. Water level measurements will be collected from remaining wells and piezometers (USACE-NAD, 2004).

Recently installed monitoring wells include 57M-03-01X, 57M-03-02X, 57M-03-03X, 57M-03-04X, 57M-03-05X and 57M-03-06X. Refer to Figure 3 presented in Appendix C for monitoring well locations.

Existing monitoring wells include 57M-95-05X, 57M-95-06X and 57M-95-07X (water levels only).

Recently installed piezometers include 57Z-03-02X, 57Z-03-03X, 57Z-03-04X, 57Z-03-05X and 57Z-03-06X.

Surface water locations SW-1 and SW-2 will be monitored for decrease in COC concentration and decrease in the potential for off-site migration.

The four sumps located within the groundwater interception trench installed by the remediation contractor between the soil excavation area and the wetlands are checked semi-annually and serviced as needed.

<u>Area 3.</u> As part of the Draft LTMP two existing monitoring wells and one surface water location (located within the site boundaries) will be sampled for VOCs, EPH, PCBs, target analyte list (TAL) metals, general inorganics, and general water quality parameters. The COCs are arsenic, cadmium, 1,4-dichloroethylene, tetrachloroethylene, EPH C11-C22 aromatics, and PCBs (USACE-NAE, 2004).

Existing monitoring wells include 57M-95-03X, 57M-96-11X and 57M-96-12X and 57M-96-13X (water levels only). Refer to Figure 3 presented in Appendix C for monitoring well locations.

The surface water location SW-1 will be monitored for decrease in COC concentration and decrease in the potential for off-site migration.

Long term monitoring is being performed by the USACE, NAE, Concord, Massachusetts. The first long term groundwater monitoring round since completion of the remedial action completion report was performed in May 2004 and a second round was completed in November 2004. The Annual Report summarizes the data from the May 2004 round. Sampling was performed using low-flow collection procedures in accordance with USEPA Region I Low-Flow Sampling Procedures (USEPA, 1996) on a semi-annual basis in spring and fall. The number of monitoring wells sampled and parameters to be analyzed will be assessed for each round and any changes will be recommended in the Annual Report or at the five-year site reviews.

4.3.6 System Operations/Operation and Maintenance

Groundwater monitoring is being performed in accordance with the Draft LTMP (USACE, 2004) for AOC 57. Estimated O&M costs for groundwater monitoring at AOC 57 Areas 2 and 3 based on actual costs for 2004 are estimated as \$100,000 per year for groundwater monitoring, wetland monitoring, IC inspections, and reporting.

4.4 Progress Since The Last Five-Year Review

This is the first Five-Year Review for AOC 57. Therefore, there are no follow-up actions to be assessed to achieve or to continue to ensure the protectiveness of human health.

4.5 Five-Year Review Process

4.5.1 Document Review

The following documents were reviewed for this five-year review:

- AOC 57 Record of Decision (ROD) prepared by Environmental Protection Agency, 2001.
- Explanation of Significant Differences (ESD) prepared by USACE-NAE, March 2004
- Draft Long Term Monitoring Plan (LTMP) prepared by USACE-NAE, March 2004.
- Remedial Action AOC 57 prepared by Conti Environmental, September 2004.
- 2003 Annual Report AOC 57 prepared by USACE-NAE, October 2004.

4.5.2 Data Review

The 2003 Annual Report (USACE, October 2004) presented data from the November 2002 and December 2003 monitoring rounds. The Annual Report (USACE, December 2004) presented data from the May 2004 monitoring round. A report summarizing the data from November 2004 monitoring round was not yet issued at the time that this Five-Year Site Review Report was prepared. However, preliminary results from the November 2004 round were available for review. Exceedances of target parameters detected during these monitoring rounds are summarized below. Complete summary tables from the applicable documents are presented in Appendix C.

Historic trends indicate that arsenic concentrations are increasing at Area 2 well 57M-03-04X and Area 3 well 57M-95-03X. Arsenic concentrations decreased steadily at Area 3 well 57M-96-11X with concentrations of 270 μ g/l, 210 μ g/l and 120 μ g/l in December 2003, May 2004 and November 2004, respectively. Trichloroethene has increased steadily at Area 2 well 57M-03-02X with concentrations of 3.9 μ g/l, 4.3 μ g/l and 5.3 μ g/l in December 2003, May 2004, and November 2004, respectively. Spring 2004 (May) results showed an exceedance of arsenic in Area 2 Sump 1, while results for Fall 2004 (November) showed an exceedance of arsenic in Area 2 Sump 4.

A review of the data also indicates that the elevated arsenic levels appear to be associated with locations where there are reducing conditions (negative ORP values). Reducing conditions can cause naturally occurring arsenic in the native soils to be mobilized, by converting it to the more soluble form. Reducing conditions may be related to the anaerobic wetland environment.

Sampling	November 2002	December 2003	May 2004	November 2004 (1)
Location				
57M-95-03X	1,4-Dichlorobenzene	No Exceedances	No Exceedances	1,4-Dichlorobenzene
Area 3	(6.8 μg/L)			$(13 \mu\text{g/L} - \text{estimated})$
	Arsenic (180 µg/L)			Arsenic (230 µg/L)
57M-96-11X				
Area 3	Arsenic (160 µg/L)	Arsenic $(270 \mu g/L)$	Arsenic (210 µg/L)	Arsenic (120 µg/L)
57-Area2-SW3				
Surface Water	Arsenic (71µg/L)	No Exceedances	No Exceedances	No Exceedances
Sump 1				
Area 2	No Exceedances	No Exceedances	Arsenic (55 µg/L)	No Exceedances
57M-03-04X				
	No Exceedances	No Exceedances	No Exceedances	Arsenic (50 µg/L)
Sump 4				
Area 2	No Exceedances	No Exceedances	No Exceedances	Arsenic (62 µg/L)

 Table 4-8.
 Summary of Exceedances for AOC 57

Note (1): Data from November 2004 monitoring was obtained from available summary tables. A report, validating this data, was not reviewed.

4.5.3 Site Inspection

On April 21, 2005, a Nobis representative performed site inspections at AOC 57. Conditions during the inspection were favorable with no precipitation and temperatures in the 50s (degrees Fahrenheit).

AOC 57, consists of three sub-areas (Area 1, Area 2, and Area 3) located south and southeast of former Building 3713 and former Buildings 3756, 3757 and 3758 (Figure 2 reprinted from the ROD and presented in Appendix C). Area 1 consists of a former storm water outfall and drainage area for runoff from paved areas proximal to former Building 3713. Drainage from Area 1 meanders and eventually flows into Cold Spring Brook. Area 2 is located approximately 700 feet north of Area 1 and Area 3 is located approximately 600 feet to the northeast of Area 2.

Areas 1, 2, and 3 include an upland area that slopes downward to a delineated wetland area. At Area 2 the wetland boundary is located approximately 250 feet from Cold Spring Brook, and at Area 3 the wetland boundary is located approximately 500 feet from Cold Spring Brook. The upland area is forested with trees and scrub brush. The wetland area is densely vegetated with brush and contains small areas of standing water. Cold Spring Brook is described as a 4 to 6 foot wide meandering stream channel surrounded by 40 to 60 feet of scrub and emergent cattail marsh.

A major stormwater management structure was constructed immediately southwest of AOC 57 and was completed in 2004. The potential hydrologic impacts on the AOC 57 were considered in the design of the retention basin associated with this system.

Observed monitoring well protective casings were intact and secured. No evidence of excavation was noted at the site. MADEP noted that soil erosion, caused by surface water runoff, had entered the site from a rip-rap swale. Silt was observed in the swale due to the erosion of an upgradient source. In addition, orange staining was observed at groundwater breakouts at the toe of the slope near the Cold Spring Brook wetland at AOC 57.

4.5.4 Interviews

The following individuals were interviewed as part of the five-year review:

- Ms. Ellen Iorio, USACE, New England District
- Mr. Dave Salvador, MADEP
- Mr. Takashi Tada, Contractor, Devens RFTA

All personnel were interviewed on April 21, 2005 while performing the site visit. None of the personnel interviewed were aware of any reported problems with the selected remedy.

Mr. Tada indicated that the stormwater detention basin, located to the southwest of the AOC was lined and outfalls were constructed in a manner that would avoid potential impact to AOC 57 and the previously completed excavation areas.

4.5.5 Community Participation

The Army has held regular and frequent informational meetings, issued fact sheets and press releases, and held public meetings to keep the community and other interested parties informed of activities at AOC 57.

On February 23, 2001, the Army issued the Proposed Plan (PP) for AOC 57. In accordance with the PP, the Army, published public notices and held a public information meeting on March 8, 2001. The PP was also made available for review at local libraries and a formal 30-day public comment period was conducted from February 23 through April 25, 2001.

Currently, the RAB meets every other month and provides advice to the installation and regulatory agencies on the Devens RFTA cleanup programs. Specific responsibilities include: addressing cleanup issues such as land use and cleanup goals; reviewing plans and documents; identifying proposed requirements and priorities; and conducting regular meetings that are open to the public.

Prior to finalization of the ESD in 2004, notifications were released to local newspapers for review and comment. Public site tours of AOC 57 were performed in June 2002, August 2004, and May 2005.

4.6 Technical Assessment

Question A: Is the remedy functioning as intended by the decision documents?

Remedial Action Performance: The initial rounds of groundwater monitoring have been performed following the Draft LTMP (USACE, 2004) as an interim measure, pending revision and approval. The Draft LTMP details the site monitoring that will be performed in order to meet the remedial goals for the site. Long term monitoring commenced December 2003 and the second round was collected in November 2004. Long term monitoring will continue to be performed until remedial goals are obtained to observe that remedial effectiveness criteria and objectives are achieved.

The Draft LTMP also details the assessment and reporting of the site inspections and monitoring to be completed at AOC 57. Data will be evaluated for detection of COC concentrations that

exceed action levels at the downgradient sentry wells. Data at source area wells will also be evaluated twice per year to observe trends in contaminant concentrations and off-site migration. Proposed modifications to the assessments will be presented in the Annual Reports for review and approval by the regulatory agencies prior to implementation. The Army will prepare an Operating Properly and Successfully (OPS) demonstration for AOC 57 during fall 2005.

System Operations/Operation and Maintenance (Long Term Groundwater Monitoring): Groundwater monitoring is being performed in accordance with the Draft LTMP for both Areas 2 and 3. Estimated O&M costs for groundwater monitoring, reporting, and wetlands inspections at AOC 57 Areas 2 and 3 are \$100,000 per year.

Opportunities for Optimization: No reduction in sampled locations or sampling frequency, (currently performed in the spring and fall of each year), is recommended at this time.

Early Indicators of Potential Remedy Failure: No early indicators of potential remedy failure were noted during the review. Groundwater monitoring results have been generally consistent with expectations. Recommendation for further assessment/remedial action will be provided in the Annual Report should analyses indicate that cleanup criteria will require greater than 30 years. Results of the Annual Report (USACE 2004) reports will be reviewed in the next five-year review.

Implementation of Institutional Controls and Other Measures: In accordance with the ROD, ICs prohibiting the potable use of groundwater and residential use of floodplain property are currently in effect at AOC 57. ICs are included in the Lease in Furtherance of Conveyance (LIFOC) currently in effect for all leased parcels, including the AOC 57. The LIFOC agreement identifies the general restrictions and required actions that are in place to protect the remedy for AOC 57. Administrative ICs would be developed and detailed in the Finding of Suitability to Transfer (FOST) and included with the Deed prior to transfer of the land parcels associated with AOC 57. There are no current or future plans for installation of potable water wells at either Area 2 or 3.

Question B: Are the exposure assumptions, toxicity data, cleanup levels, and remedial objectives, used at the time of remedy selection still valid?

Changes in Standards and To Be Considered: As part of this five-year review, ARARs and TBC guidance for the Site presented in the ROD were reviewed, and a review of current ARARs was conducted. A few changes have been promulgated since the ROD was signed. See Section 4.6.2, ARARs.

Excavation activities at AOC 57 were completed in October 2003. The RAOs for soil specified in the ROD have been permanently achieved. There are no current ARARs that apply to soil contaminants at the site. Following 2002 removal work and 2003 additional investigation work, the Army prepared an ESD adding EPH and PCBs as COCs in soil. These cleanup goals also have been met. Because the cleanup goals for soil at AOC 57 were based on human health risk assessment levels determined specifically for the site and the contaminated soils were removed, changes to soil TBCs do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

The MCLs are health-based guidelines established by the USEPA. The MCL for arsenic (50 μ g/L) in effect at the time of the ROD was selected as a cleanup goal for groundwater. Arsenic was present on site at concentrations greater than its MCL (50 μ g/L) during the remedial investigation and was a primary risk driver for the ingestion of groundwater exposure pathway at

AOC 57. The MCL for arsenic has been updated since the 2001 ROD; it was lowered to 10 μ g/L, effective February 2002. Because the remedy prohibits the use of groundwater as drinking water, changes to groundwater standards do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Since the MADEP Surface Water Standards are taken from the USEPA National Recommended Water Quality Criteria (Office of Water, Office of Science and Technology – 4304T, 2004) this document is considered applicable to AOC 57. This document establishes Criteria Maximum Concentrations (CMCs) and Criteria Continuous Concentrations (CCCs). CMCs are an estimate of the highest concentration of a material in surface water to which an aquatic community can be exposed briefly without resulting in an unacceptable effect. The CCCs are an estimate of the highest concentration of material to which an aquatic community can be exposed indefinitely without resulting in an unacceptable effect.

Review of the available data from December 2003 indicates that cadmium was estimated in Area2/SW-2 (0.33J μ g/L) and Area3/SW-1 (0.75J μ g/L) at concentrations slightly above the respective CCC of 0.25 μ g/L. Lead was detected in Area3/SW-1 at a concentration of 34 μ g/L and at an estimated concentrations of 2.6J μ g/L in Area2/SW-3. The lead concentrations exceed the CCC for lead of 2.5 μ g/L. No exceedances of CMCs were observed during the December 2003 sampling round and no exceedance of CMCs or CCCs were observed during the November 2004 sampling round. The surface water samples submitted for analysis of metals were analyzed for total metals. The elevated concentrations may be the result of particulates present in the surface water sample. In future sampling rounds, the surface water samples should be analyzed for dissolved metals. These criteria should continue to be evaluated during future monitoring events to ensure compliance.

Changes in Exposure Pathways: No current risks exist at the Site because there are no exposures. The ROD identified unacceptable risks from the following exposure pathways in Area 2 Wetland Area: ingestion, dermal contact, and inhalation of dust from subsurface soils by future construction workers and from surface and subsurface soils by future residents, and ingestion of groundwater as the primary drinking water source by future residents. The ROD identified unacceptable risks from the following exposure pathways in Area 3 Industrial Area: ingestion of groundwater as the primary drinking water source by future commercial/industrial workers and future residents. The ROD identified unacceptable risks from the following exposure pathways in Area 3 Wetland Area: ingestion, dermal contact, and inhalation of dust from subsurface soils and ingestion of groundwater as the primary drinking water source by future residents. Based on indications from analytical results of confirmatory soil samples collected from excavated areas, the excavation and removal of contaminated soil from AOC 57 have eliminated the potential soil exposure pathways. ICs prohibiting the use of site groundwater as drinking water at AOC 57 have eliminated the potential groundwater exposure pathways. Zoning restrictions prohibit residential use of the wetland areas of AOC 57. Land use at the Site has not changed since the ROD. Potential future uses remain consistent with potential future uses evaluated in the risk assessment supporting the ROD. Current land use is in compliance with proposed deed restrictions. No new contaminants, sources, or routes of exposure were identified. There is no indication that hydrologic/hydrogeologic conditions are not adequately characterized.

Changes in Exposure Assumptions: The risk assessments supporting the RODs for AOC 57 used exposure assumptions that were conventional at the time. Since that time, USEPA has updated some of the recommended dermal contact exposure assumptions. The 1998 draft guidance for evaluating dermal contact exposures used in the RI was finalized in July 2004 (*Risk Assessment Guidance for Superfund, Volume I – Human Health Evaluation Manual – Part E*,

<u>Supplemental Guidance for Dermal Risk Assessment – Final</u>). The final guidance includes slight changes in some dermal exposure assumptions. Because the remedy includes prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water and excavation of contaminated soils has been performed, changes to the exposure parameters do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Changes in Toxicity and Other Contaminant Characteristics: Since the groundwater cleanup goals are based on drinking water standards and not on risk-based calculated concentrations, changes to the toxicity values do not impact the protectiveness of the groundwater cleanup goals. In addition, because the remedy includes prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water, changes to the toxicity values for groundwater contaminants do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy. Because the cleanup goals for soil at AOC 57 were based on human health risk assessment levels determined specifically for the site, changes in the toxicity values for soil contaminants could impact soil cleanup goals; however, since contaminated soil has been removed, changes to soil contaminant toxicity do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Changes in Risk Assessment Methodologies: The human health and ecological risks discussed in the ROD have been prevented by the excavation and removal of soils and the ICs, including the proposed deed restriction prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water and residential use of floodplain property. Therefore, any risk assessment methodology changes would not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

Question C: Has any other information come to light that could call into question the protectiveness of the remedy?

Additional information, other than noted above, that would call into question the protectiveness of the remedy was not noted. No natural disaster impacts occurred at AOC 57 during this review period.

4.6.1 Summary of Technical Assessment

No early indicators of potential remedy failure were noted during the review. Groundwater monitoring results have been generally consistent with expectations. Excavation activities at AOC 57 were completed in October 2003. The RAOs for soil specified in the ROD have been permanently achieved.

While the methods for evaluating dermal contact exposures have changed since the time of the risk assessments supporting the RODs for AOC 57, these risk assessment methodology changes do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy, since the use of groundwater as drinking water has been prohibited.

Future surface water results should be compared to National Recommended Water Quality Criteria to ensure compliance and to determine if an impact to the protectiveness of the remedy has occurred.

4.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review

The ARARs presented in Tables 14 through 19 of the ROD are reprinted and appended in Appendix C. These standards and regulations were current at the signing of the ROD, and for the five-year site review, have been reviewed for changes that could affect protectiveness. Separate

ARARs were selected for Area 2 and Area 3 of AOC 57. Since the remedy selected for Area 1 was No Further Action, no ARARs were specified for this remedy in the ROD.

The ARARs identified in the ROD for Areas 2 and 3 are identical, with the exception of Action-Specific ARARs pertaining to Area 2, which also include management of PCB-contaminated soil in accordance with 40 CFR Part 761 Subparts D and G [Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA)].

Based upon available data, remedial actions completed at Areas 2 and 3 including soil and wetland excavation, excavation dewatering, soil disposal, wetland restoration, and continued long term monitoring were completed in accordance with the ROD-cited ARARs. It should be noted that no soil chemical-specific ARARs were cited in the ROD and all soil samples collected after excavation exhibited COC concentrations below their respective PRGs.

Changes and modifications to ARARs and TBCs other than those associated with the excavation activities are cited below:

- 40 CFR 141.11 Subpart B Maximum Contaminant Levels was updated July 1, 2001. Section 141.11 (a) and (b) was amended at 66 FR 7061 on January 22, 2001 to state the following:
 - a) The analyses and determination of compliance with 50 μ g/L MCL for arsenic use the requirements of 141.23.
 - b) The MCL for arsenic is 50 μg/L for community water systems until January 23, 2006.

On January 22, 2001, USEPA adopted a new standard for arsenic in drinking water at 10 μ g/L, replacing the old standard of 50 μ g/L (66 FR 6976). The rule became effective on February 22, 2002. The date by which systems must comply with the new 10 μ g/L standard is January 23, 2006.

- 40 CFR 141.15 and 141.16 Subpart B Maximum Contaminant Levels were updated July 1, 2003. An effective date note (65 FR 76745) removed the sections from the Code of Federal Regulations effective December 8, 2003. Sections 141.15 and 141.16 do not appear in 40 CFR 141 updated on July 1, 2004. These two sections addressed MCLs for radium-226, radium-228, gross alpha particle radioactivity, and beta and photon radioactivity, which do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.
- 40 CFR 141.51 Subpart F Maximum Contaminant Level Goals and Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goals was updated July 1, 2001. The table was amended in Section 141.51 by adding arsenic with a MCLG of zero effective January 23, 2006 (66 FR 7063). Until then, there is no MCLG.
- 310 CMR 22.0 Drinking Water was updated on May 24, 2004. The arsenic MCL, 10 µg\L, listed in Section 22.06 is effective for the purpose of compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations (outlined above) on January 23, 2006.
- 310 CMR 30.00 "Hazardous Waste" was updated February 27, 2004. There are no revisions to 310 CMR 30.660-30.679 "Groundwater Protection" that affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

• 310 CMR 10.00 "Massachusetts Wetland Protection Regulations" were revised in February/March 2005. As part of this review, the March 2004 Draft LTMP for AOC 57 was examined for compliance with the revised regulations. The revisions to the regulations do not appear to impact the protectiveness of the remedy, as the Draft LTMP requires wetland restoration monitoring that is in accordance with the current Massachusetts regulations. It should be noted that according to the Draft LTMP, the delineated wetland boundary in Area 3 was outside of the area of excavation, and did not require replication activities.

4.7 Issues

Based on the findings of this review, the remedial actions performed at AOC 57 are compliant with the ROD and are considered to be protective to human health and the environment. This finding is based upon a review of site reports that have been prepared since the signing of the ROD, a review of ARARs triggered by the remedial action, and the findings from the site inspection and interviews.

Existing land use and site conditions will be assessed during the regularly scheduled on-site inspections to ensure that the IC requirements are still being met. If the future proposed land use at AOC 57 is inconsistent with these ICs, then the site exposure scenarios to human health and the environment will be re-evaluated to ensure that this response action is appropriate.

4.8 Recommendations And Follow Up Actions

Continue current remedial action activity, which consists of implementing the remaining components specified in the ROD: a long term groundwater monitoring program, surface water monitoring, wetlands protection, ICs, IC inspections, annual reporting, and Five-Year site Reviews. These components enable continued assessment for compliance with performance standards and reporting of the remedial progress. Follow performance standards established in the Draft LTMP (USACE-NAE, 2004) and continue to assess for contaminant migration and remedial duration.

Long term monitoring should continue as specified in the AOC 57 Areas 2, and 3, Draft LTMP. The long-term monitoring is currently performed on a semi-annual basis (Spring and Fall each year). It is recommended that the reducing conditions observed at AOC 57 be assessed by the Army by plotting and contouring arsenic concentrations, as well as ORP and DO. The assessment would evaluate the relationship between arsenic levels and DO/ORP. Given the low and sparse detection of EPH at Area 3, and the fact that EPH is not a COC for this Area, it is recommended that no further analysis of EPH be conducted for Area 3 samples. It is recommended that piezometer 57P-98-04X be repaired and re-surveyed prior to the spring 2006 sampling event. It is also recommended that piezometer 57P-98-03X be re-surveyed, as there is no existing elevation data for the location.

Future surface water samples should be analyzed for dissolved metals (instead of total metals), and results should continue to be compared to National Recommended Water Quality Criteria to ensure compliance and to determine if an impact to the protectiveness of the remedy has occurred.

Based on the noted conditions and issues, the following follow up actions are planned for the AOC 57:

Recommendations/Follow Up Actions	Party Responsible	Oversight Agency	Milestone Date	Do Foll Actions: Protecti (Y/	ow-Up Affect iveness N)
				Current	Future
Update Long-Term Monitoring Plan	Army, BRAC	USEPA	Spring 2006	Y	Y
Repair and Re-survey piezometer 57P-98-04X	Army Corps of Engineers	USEPA, Region 1	Prior to Spring 2006	N	N
Re-survey piezometer 57P- 98-03X	Army Corps of Engineers	USEPA, Region 1	Prior to Spring 2006	N	N

4.9 Protectiveness Statement

The remedies at AOC 57 are protective of human health and the environment. Exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risks are being controlled. Excavation activities at AOC 57 were completed in 2003.

A Health and Safety Plan (HASP) and Investigative Derived Waste (IDW) handling procedures are in place and are being properly implemented during groundwater and surface water sampling. The HASP and IDW procedures are sufficient to control risk to on-site workers and the public. Human health is currently not at risk at AOC 57 because groundwater at the AOC is not being used for potable use nor proposed for potable use and contaminated surface soils at AOC 57 have been excavated and removed from the site.

4.10 Next Review

This is the first Five-Year Review that has been performed at AOC 57. The next review will be performed within five years of the completion of this five-year review report. The completion date is the date on which USEPA issues its letter to the Army either concurring with report's findings or documenting reasons for non-concurrence.

4.11 References

- ABB Environmental Services, Inc., 1995a. "Revised Final Site Investigation Report Groups 2, 7, and Historic Gas Stations, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; prepared for Commander, U.S. Army Environmental Center; prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc., Portland, Maine; October 1995.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc., 1995b. "Lower Cold Spring Brook Site Investigation Report, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; prepared for Commander, U.S. Army Environmental Center; prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc., Portland, Maine; December 1995.
- Arthur D. Little, Inc. (ADL), 1994. Final Storm Sewer System Evaluation (AREE 70) Report. Base Realignment and Closure Environmental Evaluation. Fort Devens, Massachusetts. prepared for the U.S. Army Environmental Center (AEC); prepared by Arthur D. Little, Inc., Cambridge, Massachusetts; June 1994.

- Biang, C.A., R.W. Peters, R.H. Pearl, and S.Y. Tsai, 1992. "Master Environmental Plan for Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; prepared for U.S. Army Toxic and Hazardous Materials Agency; prepared by Argonne National Laboratory, Environmental Assessment and Information Sciences Division; Argonne, Illinois; April 1992.
- Conti Environmental, Inc., 2002. "Draft Work Plan Amendment Supplemental Soil Sampling and Source Delineation, AOC 57, Area 2, Devens, MA," August 2002.
- Conti Environmental, Inc., 2002. "Technical Memorandum Supplemental Soil Sampling and Source Delineation, AOC 57, Area 2, Devens, MA," October 2002.
- Conti Environmental, Inc., 2003. "Final Work Plan Amendment Monitoring Well Installation and Soil Sampling at Area 2, Devens, MA," January 2003.
- Conti Environmental, Inc., 2003. "Technical Memorandum Summary of Soil Sampling and Testing Data, and Recommendations for Further Removal Action, AOC 57, Devens, MA," April 2003.
- Conti Environmental, Inc., 2003. "Draft Work Plan Amendment Remedial Action AOC 57, Additional Soil Removal, Devens, MA," September 2003.
- Conti Environmental, Inc., 2004. "Final Interim RAC Report Remedial Action AOC 57, Devens, MA," September 2004.
- Directorate of Facilities and Engineering (DFAE), 1977. "Oil Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure Plan", Fort Devens, Massachusetts; June 1977.
- Harding ESE, 2000. "Final Focused Feasibility Study Report, Area of Contamination 57 Devens, Massachusetts"; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; Portland, Maine; November 2000.
- Harding ESE, 2001. "Devens AOC 57 Area 2, Supplemental Soil Sampling Letter Report"; letter to David Margolis, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Concord, Massachusetts, from Rod R. Rustad, Harding ESE, Portland, Maine; January 12, 2001.
- Harding Lawson Associates (HLA), 1999. "Action Memorandum Area of Contamination (AOC)
 57 Devens, Massachusetts"; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; Portland, Maine; February 1999.
- Harding Lawson Associates (HLA), 2000a. "Final Remedial Investigation Report, AOC 57"; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; Portland, Maine; June 2000.
- Harding Lawson Associates (HLA), 2000b. "Final RI/FS Letter Work Plan for AOC 57 Area 3"; letter to David Margolis, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Concord, Massachusetts, from Rod R. Rustad, Harding Lawson Associates, Portland, Maine; June 1, 2000.
- Harding Lawson Associates (HLA), 2000c. "Final First Five Year Review Report". Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; September 2000.

- OHM Remediation Services Corp. (OHM), 1996. "Final Removal Action Report, Study Area 57 Area 2, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; prepared by OHM Remediation Services Corp.; Hopkinton, Massachusetts; February 1996.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, (USEPA), 1991a. "Risk Assessment Guidance for Superfund: Volume 1 – Human Health Evaluation Manual (Part B, Development of Riskbased Preliminary Remediation Goals). Publication 9298.7-013. December 1991 and Revision October 1992.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, (USEPA), 1991b. "Baseline Risk Assessment in Superfund Remedy Selection Decisions., 1991.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, (USEPA), 1994. "Revised Interim Soil Lead Guidance for CERCLA Sites and RCRA Corrective Action Facilities"; Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, OSWER Directive 9355.4-12, July 1994.
- U.S. Army Environmental Center (USAEC), 2001. "Record of Decision, Area of Contamination 57, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; September 2001.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District (USACE-NAE), 2004. "Draft Long Term Monitoring Plan, AOC 57, Long term Groundwater Monitoring," March 2004.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District (USACE-NAE), 2004. "2003 Annual Report for AOC 57, Long term Groundwater Monitoring," October 2004.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District (USACE-NAE), 2004. "2004 Semi-Annual Report for AOC 57, Long term Groundwater Monitoring, Spring 2004 Sampling Event," December 2004.
- Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc., 1994a. "Zoning District Parcel Maps." Prepared for the Boards of Selectmen of the Towns of Ayer, Harvard, Lancaster, and Shirley and the Massachusetts Government Land Bank; November 11, 1994.
- Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc., 1994b. "Devens Reuse Plan." Prepared for the Boards of Selectmen of the Towns of Ayer, Harvard, Lancaster, and Shirley and the Massachusetts Government Land Bank; November 1994.
- Weston, Roy F., Inc., 1998. "Contaminated Soil Removal Phase II, Study Area 57, Area 1, Storm Drain System No. 6 Outfall, Removal Action Report"; July 1998.

5.0 AOC 43G AND 43J FIVE-YEAR POLICY SITE REVIEW

5.1 Site Chronology

The following tables outline the chronology of site events at Areas of Concern (AOCs) 43G and 43J:

Event	Date	
Five gasoline Underground Storage Tanks (USTs) removed	October 1990	
at Area 2		
One Waste oil UST removed at Area 3	May 1992	
Site Investigation (SI) Report issued	August 1992	
Supplemental Site Investigation (SSI) completed - No	January 1994	
further action for Area 1, Study Area (SA) 43G designated		
as an AOC		
Remedial Investigation (RI)/ Feasibility Study (FS)	June 1996	
completed for Areas 2 and 3		
Three replacement USTs (Area 2) and a sand and gas trap	August 1996	
(Area 3) removed		
Record Of Decision (ROD) signature	October 1996	
Devens Public Water Supply Zone II and III were finalized	September 1997	
Intrinsic Remedial Assessment completed	November 1999	
Long term groundwater monitoring	December 1999 to Present	
First Five-Year Review	September 2000	
Second Five-Year Review	September 2005	

Table 5-1 Chronology of Site Events for AOC 43G

Table 5-2 Chronology of Site Events for AOC 43J

Event	Date	
Abandoned gasoline Underground Storage Tank (UST)	May 1992	
discovered		
Waste oil UST removed	May 1992	
Gasoline UST removed	August 1992	
Site Investigation (SI) Report complete	May 1993	
Supplemental Site Investigation (SSI) completed -SA 43J	January 1994	
designated as an AOC		
Remedial Investigation and Feasibility Study (RI/FS)	June 1996	
completed		
Three replacement USTs (Area 2) and a sand and gas trap	August 1996	
(Area 3) removed		
ROD signature	October 1996	
Devens Public Water Supply Zone II and III were finalized	September 1997	
Intrinsic Remedial Assessment completed	November 1999	
Long term groundwater monitoring	December 1999 to Present	
First Five-Year Review	September 2000	
Second Five-Year Review	September 2005	

5.2 Background

Both Areas of Concern (AOCs) 43G and 43J are historic gas stations located within the Devens Reserve Forces Training Area (RFTA) in the Town of Harvard, Massachusetts (refer to Figure 1-1). AOC 43G is located on Queenstown Road in the central portion of the former Main Post. AOC 43J is located on Patton Road in the southern portion of the former Main Post.

These sites were combined administratively under one Record of Decision (ROD), but are described separately in the following subsections for clarity. Subsections 5.2.1 and 5.2.2 provide the site description and history for AOCs 43G and 43J, respectively. Refer to the introduction for general enforcement activities at Devens RFTA (i.e., initiation of a Master Environmental Plan (MEP), placement on the National Priority List (NPL), and signing of the Federal Facility Agreement (FFA).

5.2.1 AOC 43G Background

AOC 43G consists of an inactive Army Air Force Exchange Service (AAFES) gas station and historic gas station G. For purpose of field investigations, AOC 43G was divided into three areas (Figure 1-2 reprinted from the 2003 Annual Report and presented in Appendix D). Area 1 is the former location of historic gas station G. Areas 2 and 3 are associated with the AAFES gas station and are at the locations of former gasoline underground storage tanks (USTs) and the former waste oil UST/sand and gas trap, respectively.

The original study area (SA 43G [Area 1]) was the historic gas station G, which was used as a motor vehicle pool to support military operations during World War II. Operations concerning the motor pool were halted during the late 1940's or early 1950's. The reported location of the historic gas station was to the southwest of the AAFES gasoline station (Building 2008) and to the southwest of Building 2009 (Figure 1-2). Based on the results of the 1992 Site Investigation (SI) and 1993 Supplemental Site Investigation (SSI), no further action was recommended for Area 1. Therefore, all further discussions in this Five-Year Review pertain only to Areas 2 and 3.

The location of the former AAFES gasoline station is approximately 120 feet northeast of the site of historic gas station G. At the time of the 1992 SI and 1993 SSI, it consisted of a service station (Building 2008), which housed three vehicle service bays and the AAFES store. It also included three 10,000-gallon USTs (installed as replacement USTs in 1990 within Area 2), associated pump islands, and a sand and gas trap (Area 3).

SA 43G was expanded to include the former AAFES gas station (Areas 2 and 3) as part of the 1993 SSI. The AAFES gas station was added to further define the distribution of contamination detected during the removal of three former 9,000-gallon and two former 10,000-gallon gasoline USTs (removed in 1990 within Area 2). Contaminants had also been detected during the removal of a 500-gallon waste oil UST (completed in 1992 within Area 3). The excavation for the UST removals was extended only 20 feet downward, because of the limited reach of the excavator. Although soil samples were collected from the walls of the excavation, no samples were collected from the base of the excavation. The waste oil UST removal was stopped prior to the removal of all contaminated soil because of concerns that Building 2008 would be undermined.

The 1993 SSI detected fuel related compounds, principally benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, xylenes (BTEX), in site soil and groundwater because of leaking USTs and the sand and gas trap within Area 2 and 3. Due to the presence of soil and groundwater contamination, a Remedial Investigation (RI) and subsequent Feasibility Study (FS) were recommended for Areas 2 and 3.

The human-health risk assessment performed during the RI revealed that the estimated humanhealth risk from exposure to soils did not exceed the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) carcinogenic target risk range or non-carcinogenic target level. However, the RI Report concluded that an FS should be prUSEPAred to analyze potential remedial alternatives to reduce human-health risks associated with potential future commercial/industrial exposure to groundwater. In 1996, the Army completed a FS to analyzed potential remedial alternatives that addressed the groundwater contamination at AOC 43G.

All identified USTs at Areas 2 and 3 have been removed. The replacement 10,000-gallon gasoline USTs, and associated piping, were removed by United States Army Corps of Engineers – New England District (USACE-NAE) in July/August 1996. In addition, the sand and gas trap and residual soil contamination in Area 3 were removed during this removal action. In October 1996, the ROD was signed.

AAFES management of the station has been discontinued but the property has continued to be used for Army Reserve operations.

5.2.2 AOC 43J Background

At the time of base closure in 1996, the area around the location of AOC 43J was used as a vehicle storage yard and maintenance facility (former Building T-2446) for a Special Forces Unit of the U.S. Army. The former maintenance facility used a 1,000-gallon UST for storage of maintenance wastes. This UST was located just south of former Building T-2446. The yard and maintenance facility is paved with asphalt and surrounded by a chain-link fence with a locked gate located at the northern side of the yard (Figure 1-3 reprinted from the 2003 Annual Report and presented in Appendix D). AOC 43 J is within the Shebokin Supply Well Zone III.

Prior to construction of the Special Forces Unit vehicle maintenance facility, this area was historically used as a gas station/motor pool (historic gas station J) during the 1940's and 1950's. The structures of this historic gas station at AOC 43J consisted of a pump island and a small gasoline pump house. This gas station was reported to be a Type A station which had one 5,000-gallon (or possibly 5,140-gallon) UST located between the gasoline pump house and pump island. The station was used during World War II as a vehicle motor pool to support military operations. The motor pool operations were discontinued during the late 1940's or early 1950's. No records were available on the decommissioning of this motor pool or the removal of the associated UST.

During the 1992 SI, an abandoned 5,000-gallon UST was detected at historic gas station J. This UST was added to the Fort Devens UST removal program and removed in 1992. The former waste oil UST was also removed during the same year. During both UST removals, contaminated soil was removed and disposed of by the Army. Based on the collected soil data and the findings of the 1992 SI within the vicinity of the former USTs, additional investigations were recommended for historic gas station 43J.

In 1993, a SSI was performed, to further define the soil contamination detected during the SI and to install groundwater monitoring wells. The 1993 SSI investigations detected fuel related compounds, principally BTEX, in site soil and groundwater as a result of leaking USTs. Because of the presence of soil and groundwater contamination, a RI and subsequent FS were recommended. The site designation for SA 43J was administratively changed to AOC 43J at that time. The human health risk assessment performed during the RI revealed that the estimated human-health risk from exposure to soils did not exceed the USEPA carcinogenic target risk

range or non-carcinogenic target level. However, the RI Report concluded that an FS should be prepared to analyze potential remedial alternatives to reduce human-health risks associated with potential future commercial/industrial exposure to groundwater. In 1996, the Army completed a FS to analyze potential remedial alternatives that addressed the groundwater contamination at AOC 43J. In October 1996, the ROD was signed.

The property has continued to be used for Army Reserve operations.

5.3 Remedial Actions

A ROD was signed in October 1996 documenting intrinsic remediation as the final selected cleanup remedy at both AOCs 43G and 43J (United States Army Environmental Center (USAEC), 1996). Remedial action objectives for the selected cleanup remedy at AOCs 43G and 43J are discussed in Subsections 5.3.1 and 5.3.2, respectively. Although Remedial Goals (RGs) are provided for both organic and inorganic Contaminants of Concern (COCs), groundwater remediation at both sites focuses on organic contamination. This is based on the premise that the naturally occurring inorganic chemicals within the groundwater have become more soluble because of microbial induced oxidation-reduction processes. Removal of the organics will return the groundwater quality (oxygen content, oxidation-reduction potential (ORP) pH to upgradient conditions resulting in less soluble inorganic fractions.

If manganese concentrations continue to exceed the Devens RFTA background concentration of 291 micrograms per liter (μ g/L, and organic COCs are reduced to RGs at the site, the Army will consider establishing a new RG for manganese, based on current Reference Doses (RfD). This will be considered during the evaluation of the Long Term Monitoring Plan (LTMP) in the spring of 2006

5.3.1 Remedial Action Objectives at AOC 43G

The remedial action objectives pertaining to groundwater at AOC 43G are to:

- Protect potential commercial/industrial receptors located on the Army Reserves Forces Tranining Area (RFTA) property from exposure to groundwater having chemicals in excess of the following RGs: iron (9,100 µg/L), manganese (291 µg/L, nickel (100 µg/L), benzene (5 µg/L, ethylbenzene (700 µg/L, and xylenes (10,000 µg/L).
- Protect potential commercial/industrial receptors located off the Army RFTA property from exposure to groundwater having chemicals in excess of the above RGs.

The RGs for benzene, ethylbenzene, xylenes, and nickel are the Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs) and Massachusetts Maximum Contaminant Levels (MMCLs). The RGs for iron and manganese are Devens RFTA inorganic background concentrations, because background concentrations exceeded the risk-based concentrations derived from available RfD values at the time of the RI/FS.

5.3.2 Remedial Action Objectives at AOC 43J

The remedial action objectives pertaining to groundwater at AOC 43J are to:

 Protect potential commercial/industrial receptors located on the RFTA property from exposure to groundwater having chemicals in excess of the following RGs: arsenic (50) μ g/L, iron (9,100 μ g/L), manganese (291 μ g/L), benzene (5 μ g/L), ethylbenzene (700 μ g/L), toluene (1,000 μ g/L), and carbon tetrachloride (5 μ g/L).

 Protect potential commercial/industrial receptors located off the Army Reserve Enclave property from exposure to groundwater having chemicals in excess of the above RGs.

The RGs for benzene, carbon tetrachloride, ethylbenzene, toluene, and arsenic are the MCLs and MMCLs. The RGs for iron and manganese are Devens RFTA inorganic background concentrations because background concentrations exceeded the risk-based concentrations derived from available RfD values.

5.3.3 Selected Remedy

The selected remedy at each site addresses long-term commercial/industrial exposure to contaminated groundwater, the principal known threat at both AOC 43G and 43J. Both of these sites are upgradient or within Zone IIIs that directly connect to Zone IIs of public water supplies. AOC 43J is situated within the Shebokin Supply Well Zone III. The selected remedial alternative for both AOC 43G and 43J relies on intrinsic remediation, groundwater and contaminant modeling, and long-term groundwater monitoring to evaluate the effectiveness of the alternative at controlling groundwater contamination and site risk. The remedy will mitigate existing groundwater contamination through natural attenuation and remediation and reduce the potential risk of future commercial/industrial exposure to contaminated groundwater. The major components of the selected remedy for both AOC 43G and 43J include:

- 1) Intrinsic bioremediation.
- 2) Intrinsic bioremediation assessment data collection and groundwater modeling.
- 3) Installing additional groundwater monitoring wells.
- 4) Long-term groundwater monitoring.
- 5) Annual data reports to USEPA and MADEP.
- 6) Five-Year Reviews.

The ROD states that if the intrinsic bioremediation assessment results at AOC 43G and 43J indicate that: 1) the groundwater contaminant plume may increase in size on Army property and/or, 2) the groundwater contaminant plume remains the same size, but cannot be remediated within 30, years then a soil vapor extraction (SVE) system will be installed at the existing AOC 43G source area and an additional cleanup action will be implemented at AOC 43J. Furthermore, if at any time during this remedy there is an indication that contaminants are migrating off Army property at either AOC above drinking water standards (MCLs/MMCL or risk-based concentration [i.e., groundwater cleanup levels]) and/or if the Five-Year Review indicates that the intrinsic remediation alternative is not protective of human health, the Army will implement an additional cleanup action to protect human health and the environment as required under Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA).

Should the Army change the use of either AOC, additional assessment and/or possible remedial action may be needed. In addition, if the Army transfers either AOC by lease or deed, an Environmental Baseline Survey (EBS) will be performed, and a determination will be made by the Army and USEPA whether the remedy remains protective of human health and the environment.

The general description of the alternative, Intrinsic Remediation, that is presented below applies to both AOCs 43G and 43J.

5.3.4 Remedy Components Specified by the ROD

The following text describes the remedial components as presented in the ROD for comparison with the activities completed at the site that are described in sub-section 5.3.5. The remedial action addresses long-term commercial/industrial exposure to contaminated groundwater, the principle known threat at both AOC 43G and 43J. The selected remedial alternative for both AOC 43G and 43J will mitigate existing groundwater contamination through natural attenuation and bioremediation and reduce the potential risks of future commercial/industrial exposure to contaminated groundwater. The major components of the selected remedy include:

- Intrinsic Bioremediation
- Intrinsic Bioremediation Assessment Data Collection and Groundwater Modeling.
- Installing Additional Groundwater Monitoring Wells
- Long-Term Groundwater Monitoring
- Annual Data Reports
- Five-Year Reviews

Intrinsic Bioremediation. As presented in the ROD Section 10.B.1, Intrinsic bioremediation was listed as the principal component in the selected remedy to meet the cleanup criteria specified in the ROD (Component No. 1). Based upon organic and inorganic speciation in the aquifer, it appears that biological degradation of the petroleum hydrocarbons is naturally occurring at both AOCs. Alternatives 2A (AOC 43G) and 2 (AOC 43J) allow the natural biological degradation (intrinsic remediation) of the COCs to continue at the site without interruption. To assess the effectiveness of biological degradation at the site, groundwater monitoring would be performed on a scheduled basis.

Intrinsic bioremediation would continue at both AOCs until the remedial action objectives are achieved. FS solute transport calculations, based upon degradation rates from literature, indicated that contaminants would not migrate off Army property.

Intrinsic Bioremediation Assessment (IRA) Data Collection and Groundwater Modeling. As presented in the ROD Section 10.B.1, prior to installation of additional groundwater monitoring wells and refinement of a LTMP (LTMP), additional data collection and modeling was required. A work plan would be perpared detailing the proposed activities of the intrinsic remediation assessment and would be submitted to the USEPA and Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MADEP) for review prior to implementation. The additional data collection would consist of supplemental soil sampling and free product assessment in bedrock below the former gasoline USTs (at AOCs 43G), and installation of additional bedrock groundwater monitoring wells (at AOC 43J). Additional rounds of groundwater sampling and analysis to refine estimates of intrinsic remediation effectiveness in protecting downgradient receptors would be performed at both AOCs. Collected data would include groundwater elevation, intrinsic remediation indicators, and COC concentrations. Groundwater elevation data would supplement the existing Devens RFTA water level data base for both sites and would be used to refine groundwater flow direction. Intrinsic remediation indicator data (e.g., electron acceptor concentrations, nutrient concentrations, and ORP) would be used to verify occurring intrinsic remediation and determine future intrinsic remediation potential. COC concentration data would assist directly in estimating site-specific degradation rates and the effectiveness of intrinsic remediation in achieving groundwater cleanup levels. Criteria for contaminant evaluations will use risk-based concentrations, MCLs and/or MMCLs.

Data collected from the intrinsic remediation assessment groundwater sampling would be incorporated into fate and transport modeling. This modeling would assess the degradation and migration of the organic COCs and refine current estimates of intrinsic remediation effectiveness. Initial intrinsic remediation modeling would be performed as part of the alternative long term monitoring. The existing and the new groundwater information would be examined to determine the best location for additional groundwater monitoring wells and to finalize site-specific indicator data as required for the long term monitoring program. As additional monitoring data are collected during long term monitoring (see Long-Term Groundwater Monitoring in this subsection), the fate and transport modeling would be updated to allow the most accurate depiction of current and future groundwater conditions. The fate and transport model used for monitoring intrinsic remediation (such as Bioplume II or III) would be selected based upon the type of groundwater monitoring information gathered and market availability. Details of the model would proposed as part of the intrinsic remediation assessment work plan.

<u>Installing Additional Groundwater Monitoring Wells.</u> As presented in the ROD Section 10.B.1, additional groundwater monitoring wells would be required to improve data collection coverage in the overburden and bedrock within and downgradient of the AOCs. The ultimate number and location of additional groundwater monitoring wells for monitoring intrinsic remediation at the site would depend upon the fate and transport modeling results. These monitoring wells would be used to monitor contaminant plume location and concentration on Army property in the overburden and bedrock and to collect intrinsic biodegradation indicators. Final monitoring well locations and details would submitted for regulatory review and concurrence.

Long Term Groundwater Monitoring. As presented in the ROD Section 10.B.1, long term groundwater monitoring was proposed to enable assessment of the intrinsic remediation progress and permit detection of any potential migration of contaminants that exceed groundwater cleanup levels beyond Army property. Dependent upon the results of the fate and transport modeling, groundwater monitoring would be performed on an annual basis until three consecutive sampling rounds indicate that cleanup objectives have been met. The last two years of monitoring (confirmation) would be for only the COCs.

<u>Annual Data Reports.</u> As presented in the ROD Section 10.B.1, annual reports would be submitted to USEPA and MADEP which would include a description of site activities, a summary of the long term groundwater monitoring program results, and any modeling updates. The final detailed LTMP shall include performance standard that would determine the effectiveness of the remedial action. The final detailed LTMP would be developed in conjunction with regulatory agency review and comment.

<u>Five-year Reviews.</u> As presented in the ROD Section 10.B.1, under CERCLA, any remedial action that results in contaminants remaining on site in excess of levels that allow for unrestricted reuse must be reviewed at least every five years. During the Five-Year Reviews, an assessment is made of whether the implemented remedy continues to be protective of human health and the environment or whether the implementation of additional remedial action is appropriate.

The Five-Year Review will evaluate the alternative's effectiveness at reducing potential humanhealth risk from exposure to groundwater on-site and downgradient considering current and potential future receptors. This evaluation will be based on how successful the alternative is at attaining groundwater cleanup levels at the long term monitoring wells. Specific criteria for evaluating the alternative's progress and effectiveness will be established upon completion of the intrinsic remediation assessment data collection and groundwater modeling to permit refinement of contaminant transport and biodegradation estimates.

If the data generated from the modeling or the long term groundwater monitoring efforts indicate that groundwater cleanup cannot be met within 30 years, a more aggressive remedial action will take place to enhance the intrinsic remediation alternative.

5.3.5 Remedy Implementation

Remedial Component 2 (the IRA and groundwater modeling) and Component 3 (installation of additional groundwater monitoring wells) were completed by Stone & Webster Environmental Technology & Services (SWETS) and HLA between 1998 and 1999 under contract with the USACE. The results of the intrinsic remediation assessment and associated field efforts are detailed in a Final Intrinsic Remediation Assessment (IRA) Report for each site (SWETS, 1999a, 1999b). These reports were the culmination of field efforts and numerous interim deliverables documenting that intrinsic remediation will effectively remediate the groundwater at AOCs 43G and 43J.

The IRA performed at both sites demonstrated that intrinsic remediation is working and the Army does not need to conduct additional cleanup actions. Based on modeling and statistical predictions, COCs will be less than the groundwater cleanup levels in less than 30 years and COCs will not migrate off the Army property. It should be noted that although modeling of data trend, performed for the MNA assessment indicated that the target cleanup timeframe would be met, there were some ambiguities noted during this assessment. The conditions noted included the apparent recalcitrance of heavier hydrocarbon fractions and an uncertain timeframe for the evolution of redox conditions (and consequently, inorganic concentrations). The IRA methodology and results are presented below.

5.3.5.1 IRA Lines of Evidence

The IRA utilized two lines of evidence to evaluate the effectiveness of intrinsic remediation as recommended by the protocol published by the U.S. Air Force Center for Environmental Excellence (AFCEE) including:

- Statistically significant historical trends in contaminant concentrations to show that a reduction in the total mass of concentrations is occurring at the site.
- Chemical analytical data in mass balance concentrations to show that electron acceptor concentrations in groundwater (oxygen, nitrate, sulfate, or iron) are sufficient to facilitate degradation of dissolved contaminants.
- A solute fate and transport model to predict future migration of contaminants and estimate concentrations at potential receptor locations.

5.3.5.2 IRA Field Activities

<u>AOC 43G.</u> Field work commenced in March 1997, and entailed soil sampling and assessment of free product on the groundwater below the former USTs that were removed in 1990. Field activities included advancement of three soil borings and sampling of soil and one groundwater monitoring well.

Sampling results from the March 1997 fieldwork identified several contaminants exceeding Massachusetts Contingency Plan (MCP) Method 1 S-3/GW-1 standards. However, statistical and modeling assessments performed as part of the intrinsic remediation assessment suggested that source groundwater contamination had been substantially reduced by UST and soil removal activities in this area. The Army installed a monitoring well in the area of the former gasoline USTs for monitoring and sampling during intrinsic remediation.

Eight rounds of groundwater sampling were conducted quarterly during 1997 and 1998 for the months of March, June, September, and December. Results of the eight rounds of groundwater sampling indicated a decrease in BTEX concentrations over time since the early SI/RI rounds.

<u>AOC 43J.</u> Field work commenced in March 1997 and entailed installation of one bedrock monitoring well at the source area and two bedrock monitoring wells at downgradient locations. The objective was to measure the hydraulic gradient between the overburden and bedrock aquifer to determine whether a vertical gradient exists. Additionally the data would provide information on whether volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and chlorinated solvents were present in bedrock groundwater at these three locations. Results of the vertical gradient monitoring suggested that seasonal downward/upward gradients may occur.

Eight rounds of groundwater sampling were conducted quarterly during 1997 and 1998 for the months of March, June, September, December. Results of the eight rounds groundwater sampling indicated a decrease in BTEX concentrations over time since the early SI/RI rounds.

5.3.5.3 Statistical Analysis

The Mann-Kendall test for trends was used as the first line of evidence to assess statistically, at the 95 percent confidence level, whether contaminant concentrations at AOC 43G and AOC 43J have been decreasing throughout the Groundwater Sampling Program. Data used in the statistical analyses were collected from the seven quarterly IRA groundwater sampling rounds (June 1997 through December 1998), the IRA groundwater sampling round (March 1997) and from up to four rounds of historical data (SSI/RI September 1993, January 1994, December 1994, and March 1995 rounds).

Input parameters, variables, and the statistical approach considered during the Mann-Kendall test are included in the Final IRA Report (SWETS, 1999a, 1999b).

<u>AOC 43G.</u> The statistical results for BTEX showed that all but four well/contaminant pairs evaluated (or 28 of 32 combinations) exhibit a statistically significant downward trend at the 95 percent confidence level. The four well/parameter pairs that do not meet this confidence level exhibit a decreasing trend in concentration, but at the 80 to 90 percent confidence level. Only two of these four pairs have had MCL exceedances in 1997 though 1998 (AAFES 6/benzene and XGM-97-12X/benzene). Using the most conservative data set, the regression models predict that benzene concentrations in all selected wells will be at or below the MCL by October 2011, which follows the signing of the ROD by only 15 years. This duration is within the 30-year remedial duration (year 2026) specified in the ROD. It was noted that uncertainties involved in predicting the course of contaminant reduction exist and the estimates are dependent upon the assumption that concentrations will continue to decline at rates consistent with the historical data. As a result, long term monitoring was proposed to evaluate the predicted decline in contaminant concentrations.
Statistical trends within VPH data were not as evident as with the BTEX data. Three of the eight wells evaluated exhibited a statistically significant downward trend at the 95 percent confidence level for only one of the three VPH carbon chain groups. However, VPH performance standards were being met at the time of the analysis. The Army will develop risk-based VPH values if MCP Method 1 GW-1 concentrations for VPH are exceeded at the boundary or other compliance point. Groundwater sampling during intrinsic remediation assessment revealed that there is not an imminent possibility of VPH concentrations that exceed MCP criteria reaching the RFTA boundary. Long-term groundwater monitoring for VPH was recommended to continue assessment of VPH trends. These trends were not used to assess progress towards meeting onsite remediation goals. Rather, the data was used in assessing the potential for off-site migration of VPH concentrations that exceed boundarys.

<u>AOC 43J.</u> The Mann-Kendall test results for BTEX trends reveal that the source area overburden groundwater monitoring wells at AOC 43J exhibit a statistically downward trend at the 95 percent confidence level for almost all the well/contaminant pairs that historically have exceeded MCLs. The only exception in the source area occurred in XJM-97-05X for ethylbenzene and toluene. Although a statistically downward trend at the 95 percent confidence level is achieved for benzene in XJM-97-05X, a downward trend is distinguishable at a slightly lower (92 to 94 percent) confidence level for ethylbenzene and toluene. However, consideration of seasonal effects (i.e. changes in groundwater elevation) resulted in the finding that the ethylbenzene concentrations in XJM-94-05X have been significantly decreasing since 1994, a result not identified in the less powerful, non-parametric Mann-Kendall trend analysis.

With the exception of monitoring well 2446-02, the regression model predicted that the MCLs would be achieved by the end of 2004. This is only 8 years following the signing of ROD and within the 30-year monitoring period defined by the ROD. The regression analysis for well 2446-02 predicted that all MCLs would be achieved by the year 2001. However, because of the relatively weak correlation coefficients for the three regression models for well 2446-02 (and the large unexplained variance terms; i.e., mean square errors), no meaningful conservative upper bound estimate of cleanup duration could be derived at the time of the IRA for well 2446-02. The COC concentrations detected in well 2446-02 during the December 1998 sampling event deviated greatly from the generally decreasing trend observed in during the previous six years, contributing to the weak correlation in the regression analysis. It was premature to determine whether the recent analytical results were factual or not. Additional sampling of this well was required as part of the long-term monitoring program to refine cleanup duration estimated and to enable continued assessment and reporting of the remedial process.

The bedrock well XJM-97-12X, within the source area, did not show a decreasing statistical trend for benzene and ethylbenzene using the Mann-Kendall test, primarily because of elevated concentrations detected in the previous three groundwater sampling rounds (performed in 1998). These concentrations are expected to decrease with degradation of the overburden plume. Further sampling should improve statistical analysis of variability in vertical gradients and flow direction. Consideration of seasonal effects (i.e., changes in groundwater elevation) resulted in the finding that the ethylbenzene concentrations in XJM-97-12X have been significantly decreasing since 1997, a result not identified in the less powerful non-parametric Mann-Kendall trend analysis.

Statistical trends of the VPH data were not as evident as the BTEX data, but VPH performance standards were being met at the time of the IRA. As detailed in the IRA Work Plan (SWETS, 1997a), the Army will develop risk-based VPH values if MCP Method 1 GW-1 concentrations are exceeded at the boundary or other compliance point. Groundwater sampling during the IRA revealed that VPH concentrations exceeding MCP criteria at the RFTA boundary were unlikely.

Long-term groundwater monitoring for VPH was recommended to continue assessment of VPH trends.

Overall, the trend and regression analysis for BTEX in the source area wells strongly supported the finding that degradation is occurring, and that concentrations above groundwater cleanup levels, MCLs, or MMCLs were not likely to expand or migrate to established compliance points. Furthermore, subject to refinement of the cleanup period for well 2446-02, MCLs were believed to be achievable with the 30-year period specified in the ROD. It should be noted, however, that uncertainties in predicting the contaminant reduction were dependent upon the assumption that concentrations will continue to decline at historical rates. Long term groundwater monitoring will be performed to verify these statistical predictions.

5.3.5.4 Assimilative Capacity Calculations

The second line of evidence to document the occurrence of intrinsic remediation is assimilative capacity (mass balance) calculations using collected chemical analytical field data. The calculations verified that electron acceptor concentrations in groundwater (i.e., primarily sulfate, manganese, iron and oxygen at AOC 43G and sulfate and oxygen at AOC 43J) are sufficient to facilitate degradation of dissolved contaminants. BIOSCREEN modeling further supports the conclusions of the adequacy of intrinsic remediation. It suggests that even with possibly continuing residual sources (both sites have undergone substantial removal actions) the extent of the plume as defined by the remediation goal would be limited to about 25 feet from one of the source area wells at AOC 43G and to about 90 feet from the assumed source centriod at AOC 43J. These distances put the furthest extent of the plumes (above RGs) well with the existing Devens RFTA boundary. This modeling was supportive of the third evaluation criteria as set forth in the ROD: that plumes with concentrations exceeding MCLs would not increase in size and migrate off the Army property.

5.3.5.5 Fate and Transport Modeling

Solute fate and transport modeling was used as part of the second line of evidence, in conjunction with assimilative capacity calculations, to support the viability of intrinsic remediation as an acceptable remedial alternative. Results from the BIOPLUME II modeling were used to estimate remedial duration and plume migration potential. Modeling demonstrated an unlikely potential for benzene plume migration off Army property and general agreement with regression analysis results. The modeling also considered added demands from other competitors (non-BTEX petroleum hydrocarbons). It revealed that this additional demand added only about 2 years to the time to reach remedial goals at each site. The benzene criterion at AOC 43G was estimated to be achieved approximately in the years 2007 to 2009, or between 11 to 13 years total following signing of the ROD, which is compliant with the 30-year criterions in the ROD. Benzene criterion at AOC 43J is predicted to be achieved between 7 and 9 years total (from the baseline event in 1997), or about in the years 2004 to 2006 which is compliant with the 30-year criterion was the overriding process at these sites.

5.3.6 Remedial LTM Status Since the June 2000 Five-Year Review

This is the second Five-Year Review for AOCs 43G and 43J. The IRA Report (SWETS, 1999a, 1999b), the final deliverable of the intrinsic remediation assessment, supports the conclusion that the selected remedy will effectively remediate groundwater at AOCs 43G & 43J. Through

submission and approval of the IRA Report, Components 2 and 3 of the selected remedy were achieved. No contingency action was required at the time of the IRA at either AOC.

Current action consists of implementing the remaining components specified in the ROD: a long term groundwater monitoring program, annual reporting, and Five-Year site Reviews (Components No. 4, 5 and 6 respectively). These Components enable continued assessment for compliance with established performance standards and reporting of the remedial progress. Performance standards were established in the intrinsic remediation assessment, consisting of contaminant migration and remedial duration assessments. The performance standards are being used during long-term groundwater monitoring to ensure that the effectiveness criteria set forth in the ROD continue to be met and remedial objectives are ultimately achieved.

Long term monitoring is being performed by the USACE-NAE, Concord, Massachusetts. The first long term groundwater monitoring round since completion of the intrinsic remediation assessment was performed in December 1999. Annual sampling rounds have been performed by the USACE each year since 1999 to 2004. The next sampling round is scheduled for November or December 2005.

5.3.6.1 Groundwater Performance Standards

Groundwater performance standards, regression analysis are used to ensure that the effectiveness criteria set forth in the ROD and presented in the LTMP (SWETS, 1999a,b) continue to be met and remedial objectives are ultimately achieved. Both the statistical analysis and modeling suggest that organic COCs will likely be reduced to cleanup levels within the duration criteria specified in the ROD. The modeling further supports the position that the groundwater plume with concentrations exceeding MCLs will not increase in size and migrate off Army property. Two sets of performance standards are presented below for use in the long-term monitoring program:

<u>Contaminant Migration Assessment</u>. Intrinsic remediation at AOCs 43G and 43J will continue to be considered effective if the groundwater plume with concentrations exceeding MCLs will not increase in size and migrate off Army property.

<u>Performance Standard:</u> Additional field actions will be implemented if: MCL exceedances are detected in the sentry wells. Sentry wells are identified in the LTMP (SWETS, 1999a, b). Refer to Subsection 5.3.6.3 for a summary of this plan.

The additional field actions will depend upon the degree of exceedance (i.e., how elevated the exceedance is, how many wells have exceedances, characteristic of the exceedance in comparison with historical data, proximity of the exceedance to the Army boundary). The time frame for implementing the field action will be commensurate with the severity of the degree of exceedance. If the exceedance is out of characteristic with historical data (i.e., no previous exceedances), likely field actions (in order of increasing severity of the exceedance) are:

- 1) Resample the affected well for the COC prior to the next sampling round.
- 2) Immediately sample adjacent downgradient/crossgradient wells for the COC if not already included in the long term groundwater-sampling event.
- Sample all wells prior to the next scheduled sampling round for intrinsic remediation assessment parameters and COCs for comparison with intrinsic remediation assessment sampling results.

4) Immediately install additional groundwater monitoring wells downgradient/ crossgradient of the affected well(s) and sample.

Recommendations for the field action will be made within the Annual Report for review and approval. Following approval, the Annual Report will be followed up with an Interim Field Action Memorandum detailing the results of the approved field actions and, if needed, recommendations for revised remedial action (i.e. - increased sampling frequency, modeling refinement, initiate additional cleanup actions).

<u>Remedial Duration Assessment.</u> Intrinsic remediation at AOCs 43G and 43J will continue to be considered effective if COCs will be reduced to cleanup levels within the duration criteria specified in the ROD.

<u>Performance Standard:</u> The need for additional assessment/remedial action will be evaluated if source area well data indicate that COCs will not be reduced within 30 years. Source area wells to be sampled are included in the LTMP (SWETS, 1999a, b). Refer to Subsection 5.3.6.3 for a summary of this plan.

Data evaluation will be performed for source area well/COC pairs that currently exceed cleanup concentrations and results will be included in the Annual Report. The need for updating the fate and transport model will also be evaluated based on the sampling results. Recommendation for further assessment/remedial action will be provided in the Report should analyses indicate that cleanup criteria would require greater than 30 years.

5.3.6.2 VPH Boundary Standard.

The Army also uses the MCP Method 1 GW-l concentrations for VPH boundary performance standards. RGs within the plume are not established for VPH. However, if Method 1 GW-l concentrations are exceeded at the boundary or compliance point, the Army will develop risk-based VPH concentrations. As concluded in the IRA, migration of VPH concentrations in exceedance of Method 1 GW-l standards is not probable, and no risk-based concentrations are required at this time.

5.3.6.3 LTMP Summary

The LTMPs for each AOC are detailed in Appendix D of the Final Intrinsic Remediation Assessment Reports (SWETS, 1999a, b). Figures 1-2 and 1-3 from the LTMP, identifying the long-term monitoring (LTM) well network, are included in Appendix D. Sampling will be performed using low-flow collection procedures in accordance with USEPA Region I Low-Flow Sampling Procedures (USEPA, 1996) on an annual basis in November or December. The number of monitoring wells sampled and parameters to be analyzed will be assessed for each round and any changes will be recommended in the Annual Report or at the Five-Year Reviews. Salient points of these plans for each AOC are summarized for convenience in the following paragraphs.

<u>AOC 43G</u>

As part of the LTMP, nine existing monitoring wells (four source wells and five sentry wells located on the site perimeter) will be sampled for BTEX, VPH, iron, nickel and manganese.

Source wells include AAFES-2, AAFES-6, XGM-93-02X, and XGM-97-12X. Source well AAFES-6 was damaged and subsequently not sampled in the fall of 2002, November 2003 or October 2004. The damage to Source Well AAFES-6 has not compromised the overall effectiveness of the remedy; however, it is recommended that this source well be repaired or replaced.

Sentry wells include AAFES-5, XGM-94-04X, XGM-94-07X, XGM-94-08X and XGM-94-10X. Sentry wells XGM-94-07X, XGM-94-08X and XGM-94-10X are considered downgradient wells.

<u>AOC 43J</u>

Twelve existing monitoring wells (four source wells and eight sentry wells located on the site perimeter) will be sampled for BTEX, VPH, arsenic, iron, and manganese.

Source wells include 2446-02, 2446-03, XJM-94-05X, and XJM-97-12X.

Sentry wells include 2446-04, XJM-93-02X, XJM-93-03X, XJM-94-06X, XJM-94-08X, XJM-94-10X, XJM-97-11X, and XJM-97-13X. Sentry wells XJM-94-08X, XJM-94-10X, XJM-97-11X, and XJM-97-13X are considered downgradient perimeter wells.

LTM is performed by the USACE-NAE, Concord, Massachusetts. The first long-term groundwater monitoring round was performed in December 1999. Work is performed in accordance with the approved LTMP (SWETS, 1999 a, b).

5.3.7 System Operations/Operation and Maintenance

Groundwater monitoring is performed in accordance with the LTMP (SWETS 1999a, b) for AOCs 43G and 43J. Yearly Operation & Maintenance (O&M) costs for implementation of the remedy are not readily available for review.

5.4 Progress Since the Last Five-Year Review

This is the second Five-Year Review for AOCs 43G and 43J. The first Five-Year Review recommended the continuation of long-term groundwater monitoring, annual reporting, and Five-Year Reviews as specified in the ROD. It was recommended that the LTM continue in accordance with the LTMP (SWETS, 1999a, b), with the exception of the need to analyze for iron and nickel as COCs. This recommendation was not implemented, and the analysis of iron and nickel as COCs continues to be performed as part of the LTM since the last Five-Year Review. Otherwise, long-term monitoring is being performed as specified in the LTMP.

The 2000 Five-Year Review concluded that the remedies for AOC 43G and 43J were expected to protective to human health and the environment upon completion, and that immediate threats were addressed.

5.5 Five-Year Review Process

5.5.1 Document Review

The following documents were reviewed for this Five-Year Review:

- Final Remedial Investigation AOC 43G prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc., February 1996.
- Final Remedial Investigation AOC 43J prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc., February 1996.
- Final Record of Decision prepared by U.S. Army Environmental Center, October 17, 1996.
- First Five-Year Review prepared by Harding Lawson Associates, September 2000.
- 2003 Annual Report prepared by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, April 2004.

5.5.2 Data Review

The Annual Report summarizing the data from the October 2004 long-term groundwater monitoring round was not yet issued at the time this second Five-Year Review Report was prepared. However, preliminary results for AOCs 43G and 43J are presented in Appendix D as Tables 4-2 and 4-3 provided by the USACE. The 2003 and historical groundwater data are presented in Appendix D as Tables 4-2 through 4-6 reprinted from the 2003 Annual Report.

5.5.2.1 AOC 43G Data Review

Exceedance results for AOC 43G are summarized in the following tables. The following notes apply to these tables:

- = Results not available in reviewed data reports.
- J = Estimated value detected below the practical quantitation limit (PQL).
- U = Analyte is undetected at the laboratory PQL.
- B = Analyte was detected in the associated laboratory blank.
- NA = Not Applicable.
- NS = Not Sampled.

Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwise noted).

Well Number	<u>1999</u>	2000	<u>2001</u>	2002	2003	2004
Source Wells						
AAFES-2	62	36	43	26	9	6.6
XGM-93-02X	81	32	12	140	24	39
XGM-97-12X	270	550	700	780	290	260

Table 5-3 Benzene - 5 µg/L Cleanup Goal

 Benzene has continually exceeded the cleanup goal in three source wells AAFES-2, XGM-93-02X and XGM-97-12X throughout the long-term monitoring program.

Well Number	<u>1999</u>	<u>2000</u>	<u>2001</u>	<u>2002</u>	<u>2003</u>	<u>2004</u>
Source Wells						
XGM-97-12X	970	1,100	870	1,000	610	460

- Toluene was detected in source well XGM-97-12X at or above the cleanup goal in November 2000 and 2002. Concentrations of toluene were below the cleanup goal in 1999, 2001, 2003 and October 2004. There are no exceedances of toluene in any other wells.
- Toluene remains below the goal in all the sentry wells.

Well Number	<u>1999</u>	2000	2001	2002	2003	2004
Source Wells			-			
AAFES-2	ND	1,400	ND	1,200	1,200	1,100U
AAFES-6	370	420	290	ND	NS	NS
XGM-93-02X	ND	570	270	790	410	570U
XGM-97-12X	970	1,300	1,100	1,100	1,100	1,100U
Sentry Wells						
XGM-94-04X	ND	420	140	ND	ND	100U

Table 5-5 C5-C8 Aliphatics 400 µg/L Cleanup Goal *

Note: * C5 - C8 Aliphatic cleanup goal based on MCP Method 1 GW-1 Standards.

- Aliphatic concentrations have exceeded the cleanup goal in source wells AAFES-2, XGM-93-02X and XGM-97-12X throughout the long-term monitoring program.
- Aliphatic concentrations in all the sentry wells remain below the cleanup goal, with the exception of the results of 420 µg/L in XGM-94-04X detected in 2000.
- It should be noted that the C5-C8 Aliphatic detection limit for the 2004 source well samples was higher than the cleanup goal. Therefore, it is not known if the C5-C8 Aliphatics concentration in these exceed the cleanup goal.

Well Number	<u>1999</u>	<u>2000</u>	2001	<u>2002</u>	<u>2003</u>	<u>2004</u>
Source Wells						
AAFES-2	9,400	7,200	5,300	13,000	6,600	6,700
XGM-93-02X	510	2,300	1,100	3,600	1,600	3,700
XGM-97-12X	4,500	5,500	5,400	7,500	8,700	7,400
Sentry Wells						
XGM-94-04X	200	570	170	28	ND	25U

Table 5-6 C9-C10 Aromatics 200 µg/L Cleanup Goal *

Note: * C9-C10 Aromatic cleanup goal based on MCP Method 1 GW-1 Standards.

 Aromatic concentrations in source well AAFES-2, XGM-93-02X and XGM-97-12X have exceeded the cleanup goal throughout the long-term monitoring program. Aromatic concentrations in sentry wells XGM-94-08X exceeded the cleanup goal in the 2000 round only.

Well Number	<u>1999</u>	<u>2000</u>	<u>2001</u>	<u>2002</u>	<u>2003</u>	<u>2004</u>
Source Wells						
AAFES-2	24,000	20,000	27,000	26,000	14,000	20,000
AAFES-6	11,000	9,200	13,000	9,400	NS	NS
XGM-93-02X	30,000	18,000	11,000	24,000	15,000	28,000
XGM-97-12X	32,000	26,000	33,000	46,000	33,000	32,000
Sentry Wells						
XGM-94-08X	4800	13,000	4,500	4,600	3,200	2,500

Table 5-7 Iron 9,100 µg/L Cleanup Goal

- Iron has continually exceeded the cleanup goal in three source wells AAFES-2, XGM-93-02X and XGM-97-12X throughout the long-term monitoring program. Concentrations of iron above the cleanup goal were historically detected in source well AAFES-6 before it was damaged.
- Iron concentrations in sentry well XGM-94-08X exceeded the cleanup goal in the October 2004 round. XGM-94-08X is considered a downgradient well.

Well Number	<u>1999</u>	2000	2001	2002	2003	2004
Source Wells			·			
AAFES-2	4,600	3,900	4,800	3,700	3,100	4,000
AAFES-6	2,900	9,200	3,400	3,000	NS	NS
XGM-93-02X	3,900	2,500	1,900	2,500	1,900	2,600
XGM-97-12X	6,300	4,100	4,200	3,900	4,100	3,000
Sentry Wells						
AAFES-5	710	180	190	27	21	89
XGM-94-04X	2,900	2,200	3,400	2,000	1,400	790
XGM-94-07X	5,700	3,700	6,100	4,500	3,600	1,000
XGM-94-08X	4,500	4,600	4,900	3,600	3,600	3,800
XGM-94-10X	830	2,000	2,600	31	120	960

Table 5-8 Manganese 291 µg/L Cleanup Goal

- Manganese has continually exceeded the cleanup goal in three source wells (AAFES-2, XGM-93-02X and XGM-97-12X) and three sentry wells (XGM-94-04X, XGM-94-07X, and XGM-94-08X) throughout the long-term monitoring program. Concentrations of manganese above the cleanup goal were historically detected in source well AAFES-6 before it was damaged.
- Concentrations of manganese in sentry well XGM-94-10X were detected below the cleanup goal in November of 2002 and 2003. The concentration of manganese was detected above the cleanup goal again in October 2004.
- Sentry wells XGM-94-08X and XGM-94-10X are considered downgradient wells.

AOC 43G Regression Analysis

Regression analyses were conducted for source well/COC combinations for AOC 43G wells AAFES-2 and XGM-93-02X (USACE, 2004). These analyses provided an assessment tool to predict anticipated cleanup duration.

In the logarithmic model for AOC 43G, benzene concentrations were regressed against time for a period of 124 months beginning in September 1993. The trend shows that the concentrations have decreased by two orders of magnitude in AAFES-2 and XGM-93-02X. The model shows that the ideal dilution curve already reached the cleanup goal of 5 μ g/L. The field results suggested that benzene concentrations are likely to persist for some time slightly above the cleanup goal. It should be noted that the analysis was only performed for benzene and other COCs do not show the same demonstrable decline. A more thorough review of remedial duration estimates will be performed as part of the LTMP update.

Nickel, ethylbenzene, and xylenes have historically been and continue to be below the cleanup goals of $100 \mu g/L$, $700 \mu g/L$ and $10,000 \mu g/L$ respectively in all wells.

5.5.2.2 AOC 43J Data Review

Exceedances for AOC 43J are summarized in the following tables. The following notes apply to these tables:

- = Results not available in reviewed data reports.
- J = Estimated value detected below the PQL.
- U = Analyte is undetected at the laboratory PQL.
- B = Analyte was detected in the associated laboratory blank.
- NA = Not Applicable.
- NS = Not Sampled.

Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwise noted).

Well Number	<u>1999</u>	<u>2000</u>	2001	2002	2003	2004
Source Wells						
2446-02	34	20	40	21	6.3	14
2446-03	ND	1.2	5.8	0.8	1.0	2.2
XJM-94-05X	16	ND	13	ND	ND	2.0U
XJM-97-12X	27	24	31	25	21	19
Sentry Wells						
XJM-93-02X	22	0.59	ND	ND	1.3	3.8
XJM-97-11X	ND	ND	13	3.5	ND	2.0U

Table 5-9 Benzene – 5 µg/L Cleanup Goal

Benzene continually exceeded the cleanup goal in source wells 2446-02 and XJM-97-12X throughout the LTM program.

- Benzene concentrations decreased below the cleanup goal in source wells 2446-03 and XJM-94-05X in November 2002 and have remained there through October 2004.
- Benzene decreased in sentry well XJM-97-11X to below the cleanup goal in November 2002 and has remained there through October 2004.

Well Number	<u>1999</u>	<u>2000</u>	<u>2001</u>	2002	2003	<u>2004</u>
Source Wells						
2446-02	2,400	2,600	1,900	1,200	430	700

Table 5-10 Toluene – 1,000 µg/L Cleanup Goal

- Toluene was detected in source well 2446-02 above the cleanup goal through November 2002. Concentrations of toluene were below the cleanup goal in November 2003 and October 2004. In the October 2004 toluene was detected in source wells XJM-94-12X, XJM-94-05X, and 2446-03 below the cleanup goal. There are no exceedances in any other source wells.
- Toluene remains below the cleanup goal in all the sentry wells.

Well Number	<u>1999</u>	2000	2001	2002	2003	2004
Source Wells						
2446-02	2,600	3,100	2,600	2,700	1,200	2,500
2446-03	780	0.50	1,100	160	210	410
XJM-94-05X	110	150	1,300	7.3	58	6
XJM-97-12X	620	720	1,800	840	1,000	1,500
Sentry Wells						
2446-04	7.7	720	0.88	ND	ND	2.0U

Table 5-11 Ethylbenzene 700 µg/L Cleanup Goal

 Ethylbenzene has continually been detected above the cleanup goal in source well 2446-02

- Ethylbenzene was continually detected above the cleanup goal in source well XJM-97-12X from 2000 through 2004
- Ethylbenzene decreased in sentry well 2446-04 to below cleanup goal in November 2001 and has remained below the cleanup goal through October 2004.

Well Number	<u>1999</u>	2000	2001	2002	2003	2004
Source Wells						
2446-02	2,800	5,400	ND	2,100	2,700	4,600
2446-03	ND	360	ND	1,200	950	1,900
XJM-97-12X	2,100	5,100	6,700	5,700	6,900	8,500
XJM-94-05X	240	<1000	2800U	100U	100U	480
Sentry Wells						
2446-04	ND	1,900	ND	240	110	320
XJM-97-11X	110	290	ND	1,100	ND	100U

Table 5-12 C5-C8 Aliphatics 400 µg/L Cleanup Goal *

Note: * C5 - C8 Aliphatic cleanup goal based on MCP Method 1 GW-1 Standards.

- Aliphatics concentrations have exceeded the cleanup goal in source wells 2446-02, 2446-03, and XJM-97-12X throughout the LTM program. Source well XJM-94-05X had an exceedance for the first time in October 2004.
- Aliphatics concentrations in sentry well XJM-97-11X dropped below the cleanup goal in November 2003 and remains below the goal in the remaining sentry wells.

Well Number	<u>1999</u>	2000	<u>2001</u>	2002	2003	2004
Source Wells				·		
2446-02	7,100	9,400	4,300	6,400	4,500	8,100
2446-03	3,600	330	3,300	1,500	1,300	2,900
XJM-94-05X	1,200	330	3,900	38	240	1,800
XJM-97-12X	4,400	6,300	4,000	4,700	5,000	6,500
Sentry Wells						
2446-04	430	4,600	350	170	170	310
XJM-97-11X	33	260	590	380	ND	25U

Table 5-13 C9-C10 Aromatics 200 µg/L Cleanup Goal *

Note: * C9--C10 Aromatic cleanup goal based on MCP Method 1 GW-1 Standards.

- Aromatic concentrations in source wells 2446-02, 2446-03, XJM-94-05X, and XJM-97-12X continue to exceed the cleanup goal throughout the LTM program.
- Aromatic concentrations in sentry well 2446-04 dropped below the cleanup goal in November 2002 and were again above the cleanup goal in October 2004. In November 2003, concentrations in sentry well XJM-97-11X dropped below the cleanup goal and remained below the clean up goal in October 2004.

The concentrations remain below the cleanup goal in the remaining sentry wells.

Well Number	<u>1999</u>	2000	2001	2002	2003	2004
Source Wells						
2446-02	33,000	30,000	26,000	31,000	35,000	34,000
2446-03	33,000	10,000	21,000	16,000	26,000	38,000
XJM-94-05X	13,000	14,000	31,000	550	36,000	15,000
XJM-97-12X	18,000	17,000	12,000	16,000	15,000	15,000
Sentry Wells						
2446-04	7,600	32,000	19,000	10,000	13,000	25,000

Table 5-14 Iron 9,100 µg/L Cleanup Goal

- Iron has continually exceeded the cleanup goal in three source wells 2446-02, 2446-03, and XJM-97-12X throughout the LTM program. Iron decreased to below the cleanup goal in XJM-94-05X in November 2002, but has increased to above the cleanup goal in October 2004.
- Iron continues to exceed the cleanup goal in sentry well 2446-04.

Well Number	<u>1999</u>	2000	2001	2002	2003	2004
Source Wells						
2446-02	17,000	16,000	11,000	13,000	7,700	12,000
2446-03	11,000	4,800	6,600	4,500	7,400	10,000
XJM-94-05X	5,400	6,600	5,800	340	2,100	6,400
XJM-97-12X	6,400	6,300	5,800	5,500	5,000	5,100
Sentry Wells				-		
2446-04	6,400	11,000	4,900	4,000	5,400	4,300
XJM-93-02X	3,100	61	630	200	330	12,000
XJM-93-03X	110	45	1,200	23	67	660
XJM-94-08X	540	780	3,400	1,000	1,200	640
XJM-94-10X	330	58	3,400	240	120	33
XJM-97-11X	390	1,300	2,800	2,800	690	640

Table 5-15 Manganese 291 µg/L Cleanup Goal

- Manganese continues to exceed the cleanup goal in the four source wells.
- Manganese continues to exceed the cleanup goal in three sentry wells and has fluctuated in sentry wells XJM-93-02X and XJM-93-03X.
- XJM-93-08X, XJM-93-10X, and XJM-97-11X are considered downgradient wells.

Well Number	<u>1999</u>	2000	2001	2002	2003	2004
Source Wells						
2446-02	80	150	110	110	150	93
2446-03	69	48	110	31	46	78
XJM-94-05X	32	73	130	4.5	13	40
XJM-97-12X	54	130	94	87	72	78
Sentry Wells						
2446-04	17	110	70	24	30	100
XJM-93-02X	ND	54	ND	4.7	ND	5.0U
XJM-94-08X	25U	49	5.0U	16	5.0U	5.8
XJM-97-11X	25U	35	5.2	3.9J	5.0U	2.7J

Table 5-16 Arsenic 50 µg/L Cleanup Goal

- Arsenic has continually exceeded the cleanup goal in source wells 2446-02 and XJM-97-12X, and fell below the cleanup goal in source well XJM-94-05X. Concentrations increased from below the cleanup goal in source well 2446-03 in October 2004.
- Arsenic decreased below the cleanup goal in sentry well 2446-04 in November 2002, but has increased to above the goal in October 2004. The concentrations in the remaining sentry wells are below the cleanup goal.
- XJM-93-08X is considered a downgradient well.

AOC 43J Regression Analysis

The regression analysis for AOC 43J covers a period of 124 months beginning in September 1993 (USACE, 2004). In the regression model, the dependent variables were benzene and ethylbenzene concentrations regressed against the independent variable of time.

The trend for benzene in well 2446-02 shows that the concentrations have decreased by two orders of magnitude in the period through November 2003. The model shows that the ideal dilution curve already reached the cleanup goal of 5 μ g/L. The field results suggest that benzene concentrations are likely to persist for some time slightly above the cleanup goal.

The trend for ethylbenzene in well 2446-02 shows that the concentrations are undulating from below the cleanup goals of 700 μ g/L in the months of March 1997 and March through September 1998, but overall is above the cleanup goal. The present dataset is too variable to predict a future contaminant trend at the source. However, concentrations are likely to remain above the cleanup goal for some time. A more thorough evaluation of remedial duration estimates will be preformed as part of the LTMP update.

Seasonal fluctuations in groundwater elevations may be contributing to the observed variation in well chemistry and potentially mask the identification of a contaminant trend over time.

Exceedances of carbon tetrachloride were not reported at AOC 43J since sampling began in 1993.

5.5.2.3 VPH Boundary Standards

The analytical data from December 1999 through October 2004 was reviewed with respect to the VPH Boundary Standard described in the intrinsic remediation assessment and summarized in

Subsection 5.3.5.3. RGs within the plume are not established for VPH. However, if Method 1 GW-I concentrations are exceeded at the boundary or compliance point, the Army will develop risk-based VPH concentrations.

At AOC 43G, there were exceedances of VPH Method 1 GW-1 concentrations in sentry well XGM-94-04X, the C5-C8 aliphatic (420 μ g/L) and C9-Cl0 aromatic (570 μ g/L), in November 2000. Sentry well XGM-94-04X has not had an exceedance since that time. There have been no exceedances of the VPH Method 1 GW-1 concentrations in the other four sentry wells from December 1999 to October 2004. Sentry well XGM-94-04X is downgradient of the source are but is not located at the site perimeter. As summarized in Section 5.3.6.3, of the five sentry wells at AOC 43G, three are downgradient wells located at the site perimeter (XGM-94-07X, XGM-94-08X, and XGM-94-10X).

At AOC 43J, the only exceedance of VPH Method 1 GW-l concentrations within the sentry wells occurred for C9-C10 aromatic hydrocarbons in October 2004 at monitoring well 2446-04. The detected concentrations are consistent with historical observations. As shown in Figure 5-3, sentry well 2446-04 is located approximately 50 feet to the southeast of the former waste oil UST. Well 2446-04 is downgradient of the former waste oil UST, but is not located on the perimeter of AOC 43J.

A review of historical data for this well reveals that the Method 1 GW-1 standards have been exceeded in eight of thirteen groundwater-sampling rounds for C5-C8 aliphatics, and nine of thirteen groundwater sampling rounds for C9-C10 aromatics. VPH concentrations were below detection limits in XJM-94-06X, located approximately 100 feet farther downgradient, as well as in sentry wells XJM-93-02X, XJM-93-03X, XJM-94-08X, XJM-94-10X, and XJM-97-13X (in bedrock). Sentry well XJM-97-11X had VPH detections from November 2000 through November 2002 in exceedance of the Method 1 GW-1 standards. There have been no detections of VPH in this well in November 2003 and October 2004.

5.5.2.4 Remedial Duration Assessment

The 2003 Annual Report (USACE, 2004) concluded that benzene concentrations have decreased by two orders of magnitude since at both AOCs. However, analytical results suggest that benzene concentrations are likely to persist for some time, slightly above the cleanup goal. A more thorough evaluation of remedial duration estimates will be preformed as part of the LTMP update.

5.5.2.5 Contaminant Migration Assessment

The analytical data from December 1999 through October 2004 was reviewed with respect to the Contaminant Migration Assessment Performance Standard described in the intrinsic remediation assessment and summarized in Subsection 5.3.6.1. This standard states that additional field actions will be implemented if MCL exceedances are detected in the sentry wells and if concentrations are out of characteristic with historical data.

<u>AOC 43G</u>

An overall decreasing trend in benzene and toluene concentrations has been observed since 1999 in source area wells. The highest benzene concentration was 780 μ g/L in source well XGM-97-12X in 2002. The benzene concentration detected in this well in the 2004 round was 260 μ g/L. The highest toluene concentration was 1,100 μ g/L in source well XGM-97-12X in 2002. The

toluene concentration detected in this well in the 2004 round was 460 μ g/L. Benzene and toluene have not been detected above their respective cleanup goals in sentry wells at AOC 43G.

Remaining COC concentrations have been fluctuating, but consistent with historical results in source and sentry wells. VPH compounds were detected in sentry wells above their respective cleanup goals, but have not been detected in downgradient wells above cleanup goals since 2000. Iron has been detected in source wells at concentrations above its cleanup goal. Iron has not been detected above its cleanup goal in a sentry well since 2000.

Since 1999, exceedances of manganese were observed in several sentry wells at AOC 43G. Two of the wells (XGM-94-08X and XGM-94-10X) are considered downgradient wells. Other than manganese, no other exceedances of COCs were observed in sentry wells over the past two years at AOC 43G; Area 3 is located approximately 600 ft. to the northeast of Area 2, south of former vehicle maintenance motor pools; however, fluctuations in contaminant results do exist.

<u>AOC 43J</u>

COC concentrations observed in AOC 43J have been fluctuating, but are consistent with historical results in source and sentry wells. Benzene has not been detected above its cleanup goal in sentry wells since 2001 (13 μ g/L in 2001 to 3.8 μ g/L in 2004). Ethylbenzene has not been detected above its cleanup goal in sentry wells since 2000 (720 μ g/L to ND in 2004). The highest toluene concentration was 2,600 μ g/L in well 2446-02 in 2000. The observed concentration in this well in 2004 was 700 μ g/L, which is below the toluene cleanup goal.

The last exceedance of VPH compounds in sentry wells was observed in 2002 in well XJM-97-11X. VPH compounds were not observed above the detection limit in this well in 2003 and 2004.

Iron has routinely been detected in one sentry well (which is not a downgradient/perimeter well) above its cleanup goal. Arsenic was detected in one sentry well, above its cleanup goal in 2004. This well is considered a downgradient well, but it is not located on the perimeter of AOC 43J.

Since 1999, exceedances of manganese were observed in several sentry wells at AOC 43J. Three of the wells (XJM-94-08X, XJM-94-10X and XJM-97-11X) are considered downgradient wells. Manganese concentrations have been fluctuating in source area wells, but have been decreasing over the past several sampling rounds in the downgradient wells. The highest concentrations of manganese in the sentry wells were observed in 2002 (2,800 μ g/L to 3,400 μ g/L). The observed concentrations in these wells in 2004 ranged from 33 μ g/L to 640 μ g/L. Other than manganese, no other exceedances of COCs were observed in downgradient wells over the past two years at AOC 43J.

Arsenic has been detected above the cleanup goal in source area wells. The concentrations observed in 2004 were lower than the maximum concentrations detected in previous rounds in each respective well. Arsenic was detected in well 2446-04 at a concentration of 100 μ g/L in 2004. The two previous results in this well were 30 μ g/L in 2003 and 24 μ g/L in 2002. This well is not considered a perimeter well. All arsenic concentrations in sentry wells have been less than 10 μ g/L since 2002.

Overall, the analytical results indicated that intrinsic bioremediation is occurring; however, some COC concentrations have been fluctuating over the past several sampling rounds. Based on the most recent analytical results, it appears that manganese (above the cleanup goal of 291 μ g/L may be migrating off AOC 43G and AOC 43J. The highest concentration of manganese in a

downgradient well at AOC 43G was 3,800 (13 times the cleanup goal). The highest concentration of manganese in a downgradient well at AOC 43J was 640 (2.2 times the cleanup goal).

5.5.3 Site Inspection

On April 21, 2005, a Nobis representative performed site inspections at AOCs 43G and 43J. Conditions during the inspection were favorable with no precipitation and temperatures in the 50s. AOC 43G consists of an inactive gas station and car wash, with paved and wooded areas. AOC 43J consists of two, one-story wood buildings with paved, landscaped and wooded areas.

No major changes to the site were noted during the site inspection at AOC 43G. The gas station remains inoperative, but the building is used by janitorial staff as office/storage space. Chemicals used for cleaning purposes are stored in metal cabinets located outside the building on the easterly side. Monitoring wells XGM-97-11X and XGM-97-12X are full of bricks and debris. However, XGM-97-12X was sampled in November 2004. Monitoring well AAFES-6 was damaged and has not been sampled for the past two groundwater sampling rounds (2003 and 2004). The remaining well protective casings and flush mounts were intact and secured. No evidence of excavation was noted at the site.

There were no signs of excavation within or near the pavement at AOC 43J. The fence surrounding the yard was intact and locked at both gates. All monitoring well casings and flush mounts were intact and secured.

5.5.4 Interviews

The following individuals were interviewed as part of the Five-Year Review:

- Ms. Ellen Iorio, USACE, New England District
- Mr. Dave Salvador, MADEP
- Mr. Takashi Tada, Contractor, Devens RFTA

All personnel were interviewed on April 21, 2005 while performing the site visit. None of the personnel interviewed were aware of any reported problems with the monitored natural attenuation remedy.

5.5.5 Community Participation

The Army has held regular and frequent informational meetings, issued fact sheets and press releases, and held public meetings to keep the community and other interested parties informed of activities at AOC 43G and 43J.

In 1996, the Army issued the Proposed Plan (PP) for AOC 43G and 43J. In accordance with the PP, the Army published public notices and held a public information meeting on September 5, 1996. The PP was also made available for review at local libraries and a formal 30-day public comment period was conducted from August 25 through September 26, 1996.

Currently the RAB meets every other month and provides advice to the installation and regulatory agencies on the Devens RFTA cleanup programs. Specific responsibilities include addressing cleanup issues such as land use and cleanup goals, reviewing plans and documents, identifying proposed requirements and priorities, and conducting regular meetings that are open to the public.

5.6 Technical Assessment

Question A: Is the Remedy Functioning as Intended by the Decision Documents?

Remedial Action Performance: Long-term groundwater monitoring is performed on an annual basis to determine if contaminants are migrating off the site and to ensure that the intrinsic remediation remains protective of human health and the environment. Groundwater monitoring results are elevated in some sentry wells; this is an indication that contaminants might be migrating off-site. Issues associated with off-site migration are potential impacts to a public water supply Zone III for AOC 43G and potential wetlands/surface water impacts for AOC 43G.

System Operations/Operation and Maintenance (Long-term Groundwater Monitoring): Groundwater monitoring is being performed in accordance with the approved LTMP (SWETS, 1999a,b) for AOCs 43G and 43J. Yearly O&M costs for implementation of the remedy at each AOC are not yet available for review. Since iron exceedances have been noted in source area wells, above its respective cleanup goal, sampling for iron should continue.

Opportunities for Optimization: Based on review of historical data, the removal of nickel and carbon tetrachloride from the sampling program should be considered. Exceedances of nickel have not been observed since 1998 in AOC 43G and no exceedances of carbon tetrachloride were reported at AOC 43J since sampling began in 1993.

Early Indicators of Potential Remedy Failure: Manganese was detected in downgradient wells in both AOCs. No other COCs were detected above cleanup goals in downgradient wells. Overall, groundwater monitoring results have been generally consistent with expectations. The Army should develop more accurate projections of cleanup durations and re-evaluate the LTM network to assure that off-site contaminant migration is not taking place.

Implementation of Institutional Controls and Other Measures: There are no current or future plans for installation of potable water wells at AOCs 43G and 43J. There are no current or future plans for transfer of AOCs 43G and 43J from the RFTA at this time. If property transfer occurs in the future, ICs will be incorporated into the property deed or other instrument of property transfer. Until that time, the Installation Master Plan (IMP) (R&K Engineering, Inc., June 1999) will cover IC restrictions. The IMP identifies known environmental conditions, restrictions and required actions that are in place for AOCs 43G and 43J. The Army is currently updating the IMP, which will be finalized in spring 2006.

Question B: Are the exposure assumptions, toxicity data, cleanup levels, and remedial objectives used at the time of remedy selection still valid?

Changes in Standards and To Be Considered: As part of this Five-Year Review, ARARs and TBC guidance for the Site presented in the ROD were reviewed, and a review of current ARARs was conducted. A few changes have been promulgated since the ROD was signed. See Section 5.6.2, ARARs.

The MCLs are health-based guidelines established by the Environmental Protection Agency. The MCL for arsenic (50 μ g/L, in effect at the time of the ROD, was selected as a cleanup goal for groundwater. Arsenic was present on site at concentrations greater than 50 μ g/L during the remedial investigation and as such was a primary risk driver for the ingestion of groundwater

exposure pathway at AOC 43G and 43J. The MCL for arsenic has been updated since the 1997 ROD. In February 2002, the MCL for arsenic was lowered to $10 \mu g/L$ effective January 2006.

In September of 1997, MassDEP finalized the Zone II and III protection areas for Devens Public Supply wells. These were not available when the ROD was signed in 1996. AOC 43J is within the Shebokin Well Zone III. Zone III areas include the upgradient extent of the sand aquifer contributing to a Zone II.

Changes in Exposure Pathways: The ROD identified unacceptable risks from the following exposure pathway: ingestion of groundwater as the primary drinking water source for commercial/industrial workers at both AOC 43G and AOC 43J. Groundwater at the Site is not currently used as drinking water at either AOC 43G and AOC 43J. Thus, the ingestion of groundwater exposure pathway is of concern to future Site workers only. Land use at the Site has not changed from the industrial use evaluated prior to the ROD and is not expected to change. No new contaminants, sources, or routes of exposure were identified. There is no indication that hydrologic/hydrogeologic conditions are not adequately characterized. Groundwater monitoring data at each AOC suggest that organic COC concentrations are decreasing at source wells, but likely will remain above cleanup goals for some time. Groundwater data from sentry wells support the position that the BTEX groundwater plume with concentrations exceeding MCLs is not expanding or migrating off RFTA property.

Changes in Exposure Assumptions: The risk assessments supporting the RODs for AOC 43G and AOC 43J used exposure assumptions consistent with standard practice at the time. Those assumptions remain consistent with current risk assessment guidance.

Changes in Toxicity and Other Contaminant Characteristics: Iron was identified as a COC in the ROD because non-cancer health hazards from exposures to iron in groundwater exceeded a HI of 1. USEPA Region I has since indicated that the agency does not support evaluations of risk from exposures to iron because the RfD developed for iron is based on concentrations needed to protect against a nutritional deficiency (USEPA Region I Risk Updates, November 1996). Based on this guidance, non-cancer health risks would not be calculated for iron. Consequently, iron would not be considered a COC and total Site hazard indices would be lower.

USEPA issued a Lifetime Health Advisory of 0.3 mg/L for manganese in January 2004. This Health Advisory is protective of formula-fed infants younger than 6 months for exposures of up to 10 days. The advisory is To Be Considered (TBC). USEPA Region I currently supports an oral RfD for manganese of 0.07 mg/kg/day for ingestion of soil, sediments or food. USEPA Region 1 supports an oral RfD of 0.024 mg/Kg/day for manganese in drinking water. A revised cleanup goal is being considered based on the updated RfD value for water intake of (0.024 mg/kg/day). The revised risk-based cleanup goal is 876 μ g/L for adults and 375 μ g/L for children. Until the revised cleanup goals are approved, the more stringent background value of 291 μ g/L should be utilized as the cleanup goal for manganese in groundwater.

USEPA's IRIS database currently lists a slightly lower oral cancer slope factor for arsenic (1.5) than the oral cancer slope factor used for arsenic in the risk assessments (1.75). Therefore, risks from exposure to arsenic may be overestimated.

USEPA's IRIS database currently lists a range of oral cancer slope factor for benzene $(1.5x10^{-2} \text{ to } 5.5x10^{-2})$. Since the risk assessment used a cancer slope factor within the current range $(2.9x10^{-2})$, risks from exposure to benzene would be higher if the cancer slope factor from the high end of the range was used and lower if the cancer slope factor from the low end of the range was used.

Therefore, cancer risks from exposure to benzene may be over or under estimated. The USEPA's IRIS database currently lists a higher oral RfD for benzene $(4x10^{-3})$ than the oral RfD used for benzene in the risk assessments $(3x10^{-4})$. Therefore, non-cancer health risks from exposure to benzene may be overestimated.

Since the cleanup goals are based on drinking water standards and not on risk-based calculated concentrations, changes to the toxicity values do not impact the protectiveness of the cleanup goals.

Changes in Risk Assessment Methodologies: The methods for evaluating groundwater ingestion exposures have not substantially changed since the time of the risk assessments supporting the RODs for AOC 43G and AOC 43J. Therefore, risk assessment methodology changes do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

Question C: Has any other information come to light that could call into question the protectiveness of the remedy?

Groundwater monitoring results are elevated in some sentry wells; this is an indication that contaminants might be migrating off-site. Issues associated with off-site migration are potential impacts to a public water supply Zone III for AOC 43G and potential wetlands/surface water impacts for AOC 43G.

Additional information, other than noted above, that would call into question the protectiveness of the remedy was not noted. No natural disaster impacts occurred at AOC 43G/43J during this review period.

5.6.1 Summary of Technical Assessment

Manganese was detected in downgradient wells in both AOCs. No other COCs were detected above cleanup goals in downgradient wells. Overall, groundwater monitoring results have been generally consistent with expectations.

USEPA Region I currently supports an oral RfD for manganese of 0.07 mg/kg/day for ingestion of soil, sediments or food. USEPA Region 1 supports an oral RfD of 0.024 mg/Kg/day for manganese in drinking water. USEPA issued a Lifetime Health Advisory of 0.3 mg/L for manganese in January 2004.

The MCL for arsenic (50 μ g/L at the time of the ROD) was selected as a cleanup goal for groundwater. Arsenic was present at AOC 43J at concentrations greater than its MCL (50 μ g/L. The MCL for arsenic has been updated since the 1995 ROD. The MCL for arsenic was lowered to 10 μ g/L in February 2002, and is effective January 2006. The remedial goal for arsenic should be updated to reflect the MCL change.

There are no current or future plans for installation of potable water wells at AOCs 43G and 43J. Until the time of property transfer, institutional control restrictions will be covered by the Installation Master Plan.

5.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review

The ARARs presented in Tables 10, 11 and 12 of the ROD are reprinted and appended in Appendix D. The standards and regulations, current at the signing of the ROD and for the first Five-Year Review, have been reviewed for changes that could affect protectiveness.

The following ARARs been modified since signing of the ROD that may affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedial action:

- 40 CFR 141.11 Subpart B Maximum Contaminant Levels was updated July 1, 2001. Section 141.11 (a) and (b) was amended at 66 FR 7061 on January 22, 2001 to state the following:
 - a) *** The analyses and determination of compliance with 50 µg/L MCL for arsenic use the requirements of 141.23.
 - b) The MCL for arsenic is 50 μg/L for community water systems until January 23, 2006.

On January 22, 2001 USEPA adopted a new standard for arsenic in drinking water at 10 μ g/L replacing the old standard of 50 μ g/L (66 FR 6976). The rule became effective on February 22, 2002. The date by which systems must comply with the new 10 μ g/L standard is January 23, 2006.

- 40 CFR 141.15 and 141.16 Subpart B Maximum Contaminant Levels were updated July 1, 2003. An effective date note (65 FR 76745) removed the sections from the Code of Federal Regulations effective December 8, 2003. Sections 141.15 and 141.16 do not appear in 40 CFR 141 updated on July 1, 2004. These two sections addressed MCLs for radium-226, radium-228, gross alpha particle radioactivity, and beta and photon radioactivity, which do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.
- 40 CFR 141.51 Subpart F Maximum Contaminant Level Goals and Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goals were updated July 1, 2001. The table was amended in Section 141.51 by adding arsenic with a MCLG of zero effective January 23, 2006 (66 FR 7063). Until then, there is no MCLG.
- 310 CMR 22.0 Drinking Water was updated on May 24, 2004. The arsenic MCL, 10 µg\L, listed in Section 22.06 is effective for the purpose of compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations (outlined above) on January 23, 2006.
- USEPA RfD and HAs are requirements designated as TBC. These requirements were updated in the USEPA 2004 Edition of the Drinking Water Standards and Health Advisories, dated Winter 2004.
- 310 CMR 10.00 Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act.
- 314 CMR 4.00 Massachusetts Surface Water Quality Standards

In February 1995, USEPA and the Nickel Development Institute (a nickel trade association) filed a joint motion for a voluntary remand of the nickel MCL. In the same month, the court granted the motion, and vacated and remanded the MCL for nickel (0.1 mg/L). The updated USEPA

Office of Water Drinking Water Regulations and Health Advisories, dated October 1996, now lists the MCL for nickel as "being remanded". This means that while many water suppliers continue to monitor nickel concentrations in their drinking water, there is currently no USEPA legal limit on the amount of nickel in drinking water. USEPA is reconsidering the limit on nickel. The Commonwealth of Massachusetts followed similar action. Drinking Water Standards and Guidelines for Chemicals in Massachusetts Drinking Water issued by the MADEP Office of Research and Standards (ORS) and dated Spring 2000 and 2004, lists 0.1 mg/L as a guideline with a footnote that "the MCL for Nickel has been remanded and is no longer in effect". However, the current USEPA IRIS chronic oral reference dose for soluble salts of nickel support the value of 0.1 mg/L and this also is the currently listed USEPA Lifetime HA value.

Several other regulations were updated since the ROD and/or the first Five-Year Review, but do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy. These updated regulations include:

- Appendix A of 310 CMR 7.00 Massachusetts Air Pollution Regulations was updated in 2002. These revisions do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy and only pertain should an SVE system be required as a contingency measure at AOC 43G.
- 310 CMR 7.18 "Volatile and Halogenated Organic Compounds" was in effect May 1, 1998 (updated 2002) and applicable to facilities that emit VOCs. These revisions do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy and only pertain should an SVE system be required as a contingency measure at AOC 43G.
- 310 CMR 30.00 "Hazardous Waste" was updated February 27, 2004. There are no revisions 310 CMR 30.660-30.679 "Groundwater Protection" that affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

In addition, a search was performed for any newly promulgated standards, which could affect protectiveness at the site. No new ARARs were identified that would affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

5.7 Issues

Although manganese has been detected in downgradient wells at AOC 43G and 43J, a decreasing trend for other COCs has been observed and COC concentrations of other COCs in sentry wells have not been increasing. It is suspected that the source of the manganese in the downgradient wells is due to potential redox conditions at the site. These conditions should be evaluated as part of the LTMP update. No other COCs have been detected above cleanup goals in downgradient locations.

It is believed that these issues would not make the remedial actions at AOCs 43G and 43J noncompliant with the ROD, or sufficient to warrant a finding of not protective. However, the models used, as part of the IRA, to assess off-site migration and remedial duration did not take into account all factors that could impact the results of those studies. Currently, the downgradient areas from AOC 43G and 43J include undeveloped land and commercial properties and groundwater is not used for drinking water purposes in these locations. Since municipal water is available in these areas, it is unlikely that future properties would utilize groundwater as a potable water source.

5.8 Recommendations and Follow-up Actions

Continue current remedial action activity, which consists of implementing the remaining three components specified in the ROD: a long-term groundwater monitoring program, annual reporting, and Five-Year Reviews (Component Nos. 4, 5, and 6, respectively). These components enable continued assessment for compliance with performance standards and reporting of the remedial progress. Follow performance standards established in the intrinsic bioremediation assessment and continue to assess for contaminant migration and remedial duration. Based on the findings of this review, it is recommended that a reassessment of the LTMP be made. As part of the LTMP reassessment the following recommendations should be considered:

- Development of the risk-based remedial goal for manganese be updated utilizing recently updated reference doses from the USEPA. However, until those updated risk-based values are approved, the more stringent background value of 291 μ g/L should be utilized as a remedial goal for manganese (as discussed in Section 5.3).
- Removal of nickel and carbon tetrachloride from the sampling program should be considered.
- The damaged wells observed at AOC 43G should be prepared for future monitoring.
- The long-term monitoring frequency should be evaluated as part of the reassessment of the LTMP.
- Re-evaluate, the IRA modeling assumptions and predictions, Zone II and III pathways, potential off-site migration of manganese, redox conditions and remedial duration estimates.

Recommendations/ Follow Up Actions	Party Responsible	Oversight Agency	Milestone Date	Do Follow- Affect Pro (Y/	Up Actions: tectiveness /N)
				Current	Future
Update Long Term	U.S. Army,	USEPA,	Spring	Y	Y
Monitoring Plan.	BRAC	Region 1	2006		
Replace damaged well	U.S. Army,	USEPA,	Spring	Y	Y
AAFES-6 at AOC 43G	BRAC	Region 1	2006		
Incorporate ICs in	U.S. Army,	Army,	Spring	Y	Y
revised IMP	BRAC	BRAC	2006		

5.9 Protectiveness Statement

The remedies at AOCs 43G and 43J are protective of human health and the environment, and exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risks are being controlled. Human health is not currently at risk at AOCs 43G and 43J because groundwater is not used as a drinking water source.

A health and safety plan (HASP) and investigative derived waste (IDW) handling procedures are in place and are sufficient to control risk to on-site workers and the public, and are being properly implemented during groundwater sampling. Human health is currently not at risk at AOCs 43G and 43J because groundwater at the AOCs is not being used for potable use, and organic COCs exceeding drinking water standards are not migrating off RFTA property. Review of the groundwater sampling data from 1999 through October 2004 indicate that groundwater concentrations of organic COCs are decreasing at source locations at AOCs 43G and 43J and that the plumes are not expanding or migrating off RFTA property. Groundwater sampling results from sentry well locations are below cleanup goals for organic COCs and most metals, with the exception of manganese at AOC 43G and arsenic, manganese, and iron at AOC 43J. Concentrations of VPH aromatics C9-C10 have exceeded cleanup goals in one sentry well during the October 2004 sampling round. No further field action is warranted at either site before the next scheduled sampling round in November or December 2005.

Analytical results are supportive of the intrinsic remediation assessment conclusion that migration of VPH concentrations in exceedances of GW-1 standards off RFTA property is not probable. Installation of groundwater monitoring wells and groundwater modeling has been completed, as stipulated in the ROD, and groundwater monitoring is ongoing.

5.10 Next Review

This is the second Five-Year Review that has been performed at either AOC. The next review will be performed within five years of the completion of this Five-Year Review report. The completion date is the date on which USEPA issues its letter to the Army either concurring with report's findings or documenting reasons for nonconcurrence.

5.11 References

- Air Force Center for Environmental Excellence (AFCEE), Wiedemeyer, T., et. al., 1995. "Technical Protocol for Implementing Intrinsic Remediation with Long term Monitoring for Natural Attenuation of Fuel Contamination Dissolved in Groundwater". Brooks Air Force Base, San Antonio, TX; Rev. 0, November 11, 1995.
- Harding Lawson Associates (HLA), 2000. "Final First Five Year Review Report". Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; September 2000.
- R&K Engineering, Inc. 1999. "Real Property Master Plan, Long Range Component, for Devens Reserve Forces Training Area"; June 1999
- Stone and Webster Environmental Technology & Services (SWETS), and ABB Environmental Services, Inc., 1997a. "Final Work Plan Intrinsic Remediation Assessment, AOCs 43G and 43J, Historic Gas Stations, Devens, Massachusetts. Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England Division, Waltham, Massachusetts; April 1997.
- Stone and Webster Environmental Technology & Services (SWETS), and Harding Lawson Associates (HLA), 1999a. "Final Intrinsic Remediation Assessment Report Area of Contamination 43G, Historic Gas Station Devens, Massachusetts' (Volumes I and II); and Appendix D - "Long Term Monitoring Plan" (Volume III). Contract DACA33-94-D-0007, Delivery Order No. 0027; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; November 1999.
- Stone and Webster Environmental Technology & Services (SWETS), and Harding Lawson Associates (HLA), 1999b. "Final Intrinsic Remediation Assessment Report Area of Contamination 43J, Historic Gas Station Devens, Massachusetts" (Volumes I and II); and

Appendix D - "Long Term Monitoring Plan" (Volume III); Contract DACA33-94-D-0007, Delivery Order No. 0027; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. New England District, Concord. Massachusetts; November 1999.

- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2004. "2003 Annual Report", AOC 43G and 43J Long Term Groundwater Monitoring, Devens, Massachusetts; April 2004.
- U.S. Army Environmental Center (USAEC), 1996. "Record of Decision, Areas of Contamination, Devens, Massachusetts"; October 1996.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 1, 1996. "Low Stress (Low Flow) Purging and Sampling Procedure for the Collection of Ground Water Samples from Monitoring Wells". SOP # GW 0001; Revision Number: 2; July 30, 1996.

6.0 SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA, AOCs 25, 26, 27, & 41 (GROUNDWATER) STATUTORY FIVE-YEAR SITE REVIEW

6.1 Site Chronology

The following tables outline the chronology of site events at Area of Concern (AOCs) 25, 26, 27, and 41:

Event	Date	
1,200 pounds per year (lbs/yr) disposal of explosives and	From 1979 to 1992	
ammunition by open burn or open detonation.		
Groundwater Measurements	1992 - 1998	
Groundwater Sampling	1992 – Present	
Monitoring well installation	1992 – 1997	
Remedial Investigation (RI)	1996	
Record of Decision (ROD) signed	1996	
Long Term Monitoring Plan (LTMP) issued	May 1997	
First Five-Year Review	September 2000	
Second Five-Year Review	September 2005	

Table 6-1 Chronology of Site Events for AOC 25

Table 6-2 Chronology of Site Events for AOC 26

Event	Date
Open burn and open detonation of waste explosives	Prior to 1979
Demolition training	Ongoing
Groundwater Measurements	1992 1998
Groundwater Sampling	1992 – Present
Monitoring well installation	1992 – 1997
Remedial Investigation (RI)	1996
Record of Decision (ROD) signed	1996
Long Term Monitoring Plan (LTMP) issued	May 1997
First Five-Year Review	September 2000
Second Five-Year Review	September 2005

Table 6-3 Chronology of Site Events for AOC 27

Event	Date
Open burn and open detonation of grenades and pyrotechnics.	Prior to 1979
Firing of small-caliber automatic weapons	Ongoing
Groundwater Measurements	1992 – 1998
Groundwater Sampling	1992 – Present
Monitoring well installation	1992 – 1997
Remedial Investigation (RI)	1996
Record of Decision (ROD) signed	1996
Long Term Monitoring Plan (LTMP) issued	May 1997
First Five-Year Review	September 2000
Second Five-Year Review	September 2005

Table 6-4 Chronology of Site Events for AOC 41

Event	Date		
Groundwater Measurements	1992 – 1998		
Groundwater Sampling	1992 – Present		
Monitoring well installation	1992 – 1997		
Remedial Investigation (RI)	1996		
Record of Decision (ROD) signed	1996		
Long Term Monitoring Plan (LTMP) issued	May 1997		
Groundwater Measurements	1992 – 1998		
First Five-Year Review	September 2000		
Waste debris removed to Devens Consolidated Landfill	2002		
Second Five-Year Review	September 2005		

6.2 Background

The South Post Impact Area (SPIA) covers approximately 1,500 acres and is located within the 4,800-acre South Post section of the former Fort Devens (Figure 1-1). The SPIA is an active weapons and ordnance discharge area used by the Army, the Massachusetts National Guard, and law enforcement agencies for training purposes. The area is roughly bounded by Old Turnpike Road, Firebreak Road, southern portion of Harvard Road, Trainfire Road, and Dixie Road. The SPIA covers four Area of Concerns (AOCs) 25, 26, 27, and 41 (Figures 1-3, 2-1, 4-5, 4-6, 4-7 and 4-8 are reprinted from the 2004 Annual Report and presented in Appendix E) as well as several Study Areas (SAs), and a number of other firing ranges along Dixie Road and Trainfire Road that are not designated as AOCs. The portion of the SPIA covered by the Record of Decision (ROD) encompasses the 964 acres north and west of New Cranberry Pond. This area is referred to as the SPIA monitored area. AOC 25, the Explosive Ordinance Discharge (EOD) Range, is currently operating under a Resource Conversation and Recovery Act (RCRA) emergency permit, and is, used once or twice a year for disposal of waste ordnances.

The groundwater at Devens Reserve Facility Training Area (RFTA) occurs primarily in the permeable glacial-deltaic outwash deposits of sand and gravel. In the area of the South Post, groundwater is found at depths of 0 to 60 feet. A number of springs can be found throughout the

boundary of the SPIA. Groundwater in the region of the ranges discharges to surface water before it leaves the South Post. More than 50 percent of the SPIA overlies a medium yield aquifer that is a potential source of drinking water. Measurements of hydraulic head in the groundwater and in streams and ponds within the South Post show that the streams around SPIA are gaining streams (i.e., groundwater discharges into the streams). Groundwater flow direction can be locally complex. At the EOD Range (AOC 25), overall groundwater flow discharge is to the east from the north end of the disposal area. At the Zulu Ranges (AOC 26), groundwater moves north toward a wetland and Slate Rock Brook. At the Hotel Range (AOC 27), groundwater flow is east to Cranberry Pond. Groundwater flow near the dumping site at AOC 41 is the most complex of the AOCs, with the controlled water level of New Cranberry Pond being a significant factor, although the majority of groundwater flow is north-northeast toward the Nashua River. The SPIA is drained primarily by two streams, Slate Rock Brook north and west of the SPIA, and an unnamed stream in the southeast portion of the site.

The predominant soil in the South Post, including areas covered by the ROD, is the Hinkley Merrimac-Windsor Association. This soil consists of barns or sandy barns, loamy fine sands, and other sands over sand or sand and gravel. Natural soils are disturbed within the ranges. A soil mapping of the SPIA found that, almost without exception, the soils are sandy and well drained. The exceptions are within wetland areas located outside of the ranges.

The physical setting and a brief history of each AOC is provided below. Refer to Section 1.0 for general enforcement activities at Fort Devens (i.e., initiation of a Master Environmental Plan (MEP), placement on the National Priority List (NPL), and signing of the Federal Facility Agreement (FFA). Remedial Investigations (RIs) were performed for the EOD, Zulu, Hotel Ranges, and AOC 41 to characterize the nature and extent of site-related contamination. Samples from groundwater, surface water, sediments, and soil were collected as part of these efforts. Results of the previous investigations are summarized in the following subsections.

6.2.1 AOC 25 EOD Range

The EOD Range is located east of Firebreak Road, approximately two miles south of the main entrance to the South Post. The site is rectangular and measures approximately 600 feet by 1,500 feet. From 1979 to 1992, approximately 1,200 pounds per year of explosives and munitions were disposed of in the disposal area by open burning/open detonation. The range was closed as part of the 1996 ROD. Refer to Figure 4-5, reprinted from the 2004 Annual Report and presented in Appendix E.

6.2.1.1 Groundwater

Results of the developed groundwater model from groundwater elevation results collected during the RI, performed in 1994, depict the hydraulic gradient moving to the north-northeast away from Slate Rock Brook. The topographic depression at the impact area could potentially influence possible contaminants that are located in the EOD Range. Unfiltered samples collected from the EOD Range during the RI indicated concentrations of iron, aluminum, and other metals above established background concentrations. Filtered samples showed concentrations several orders of magnitude lower than in the unfiltered samples. Four explosives or explosive-related organic compounds were also detected in the samples. Only the RDX exceeded the screening value. It should be noted that screening values are not available for all explosive-related compounds.

6.2.1.2 Surface Water

Surface water runoff within the EOD Range is limited to seasonal events such as snowmelts, frozen ground, or during exceptional storms. Under such circumstances, accumulation of surface water is reported to enter the groundwater. Evidence of surface water has not been reported to be present within or adjacent to the EOD Range.

6.2.1.3 Sediment

Analytical results from the RI indicated numerous metals in the EOD Range sample exceeded established background concentrations.

6.2.1.4 Soil

Surface and subsurface soil samples collected during the RI at the EOD Range in November 1993 were analyzed for Target Analytes List (TAL) metals, explosives, and total petroleum hydrocarbon compounds (TPHCs). Several metals were detected at concentrations above background in at least one sample. Copper and zinc exceeded the background concentration in three surface samples. Two explosives were also detected in EOD Range surface soil samples: nitrocellulose (detected in two samples) and nitroglycerine (detected in one sample). Low concentrations of TPHC were detected (maximum concentration of $45.2 \mu g/g$). None of the substances detected exceeded the health-based soil screening criteria established for the RI.

6.2.1.5 Investigative Conclusions and Recommendations

Soils at the EOD Range ordnance detonation area significantly exceeded background in beryllium, cobalt, copper, iron, manganese, mercury, nickel, selenium, and zinc, although only zinc and copper exceeded background three times, and only beryllium, manganese, and selenium exceeded background twice. The remaining four metals exceeded background in only one sample, which was significantly higher in silt and clay than other samples from the site. Nitrocellulose, nitroglycerine, and TPHC were also found in surface soils. TPHC and a trace of Tetrachloroethylene (PCE) were noted in subsurface soils. The two Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure (TCLP) soil samples showed no concentrations exceeding soil toxicity characteristics. Metals in filtered groundwater samples showed increased concentrations and increased frequency of detection in downgradient wells when compared to a local background well, but only manganese exceeded its site health based screening value as presented in the ROD. Manganese concentrations are probably natural because they cannot be correlated to site activities, and manganese is above the cleanup goal in many Devens RFTA wells. Several explosives were noted in groundwater within the AOC, but only Cyclonite exceeded its screening value. This occurred only in one well.

The EOD Range will continue to be part of the SPIA under Army control. Groundwater will not be available to the public for human consumption and will not be a completed pathway of exposure. As such, the risk of groundwater consumption was not estimated. Other pathways of exposure examined gave reasonable maximum exposures resulting in the assessed risks being below those deemed acceptable by the U.S Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) under current Superfund policy.

The completed ecological risk assessment concluded that there were potential risks to small mammals and to plants in the ordnance detonation area, under reasonable maximum exposures, but not under average exposures. Based on the marginal exceedances of toxicity reference

values, the potential for adverse ecological toxicological effects are minimal. The EOD range has not adversely affected the ecosystems in the general vicinity of the site, and the analytes detected are not ecologically significant. The ecological risk assessment concluded that no further action is necessary at the EOD range to further investigate or mitigate ecological risks from soil or other media in which analytes were detected.

From the extensive environmental investigations and ecological and human-health risk assessments performed on the EOD range, it was concluded that no further investigation or remediation is warranted at AOC 25, due to the continued use of this land by the military.

6.2.2 AOC 26 (Zulu Ranges)

These ranges are located 2,000 feet north of the EOD Range, approximately 1.6 miles southwest of the main entrance to the South Post. The Zulu Ranges cover approximately 16 acres and consist of two adjacent land tracts, Zulu 1 and Zulu 2. Prior to 1979, the range was used for Open Burn/Open Detonation (OB/OD) of waste explosives and associated waste items. From 1979 to the present, Zulu 1 has been primarily used for demolition training. The demolition training area is located in the center of Zulu 1. Zulu 2 has been historically used as a practice range for hand grenade training. The grenade training area is located on eastern end of Zulu 2 and consists of two concrete bunkers, which are used for cover and protection, and two sand pits that are used for receiving grenades. Refer to Figure 4-6, reprinted from the 2004 Annual Report and presented in Appendix E.

6.2.2.1 Groundwater

Based on groundwater elevation data, the general groundwater movement in the Zulu range is south to north towards a wetland area and Slate Rock Brook. Consistently higher recorded water level readings have been observed in well 26M-92-04X suggesting a continual groundwater flow in a northern direction. Similar to EOD, metals concentrations at the Zulu ranges wells have exceeded established background concentrations. Filtered samples showed much lower concentrations. The explosive and explosive related compounds RDX, HMX, and TNT were detected in Zulu Range samples. Only RDX was detected above its health-based screening value. Monitoring wells located where grenade throwing and demolition were practiced continually show the most significant concentrations of explosive-related substances.

6.2.2.2 Surface Water

Thirteen surface water samples were collected during the RI. Analytes detected above Ambient Water Quality Criteria (AWQC) included the metals arsenic and lead and the pesticide 2,2-bis(para-chlorophenyl)-l, l-dichloroethane (DDD). In addition, the explosives RDX and HMX, as well as several organic compounds were detected in Zulu Range surface water samples.

6.2.2.3 Sediment

Most metals in the Zulu Range samples collected during the RI were detected above background concentrations in at least one sample. Explosives, pesticides, volatile organic compounds (VOCs), and TPHC were also detected.

6.2.2.4 Soil

Results of data collected during the RI suggest that soils in AOC 26 are very well drained. It was suggested that, due to the permeability of soils in AOC 26, contaminants could be leached to groundwater. Surface and subsurface soil samples were collected at the Zulu Ranges as part of the SI and RI. These samples were analyzed for Target Compound list (TCL) organics, TAL metals, explosives, and TPHC. Results indicated several metals exceeded background concentrations in at least one surface and subsurface sample, none of the metals detected exceeded the health-based screening values. Polynuclear Aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs) were detected in up to three surface and subsurface samples. One of the PAHs, benzo(b)fluoranthene (0.81 μ g/g), exceeded the screening concentration (0.7 μ g/g). RDX and TPHC were also detected. The maximum concentration of RDX in subsurface soil (38 μ g/g) exceeded the health-based screening level (26 μ g/g).

6.2.2.5 Investigative Conclusions and Recommendations

Results of the RI indicated soils at AOC 26 were found to be contaminated with several chemicals, the most important of which were explosives, primarily Cyclonite; pesticides, primarily 2,2.bis(para-chlorophenyl)-1,1,1 -trichioroethane (DDT); some PAHs; and traces of PCBs and volatiles. TCLP testing for surface soils showed only barium and chloroform present, both below RCRA toxicity characteristic concentrations. Lead, zinc, antimony, arsenic, beryllium, and cadmium exceed background, but only lead and zinc could be related to possible site activities. Groundwater was contaminated with explosives, mainly Cyclonite (exceeding a Drinking Water Health Advisory level used as a screening value) and HMX, and by bis(2ethylhexyl)phthalate, also at concentrations exceeding a screening value. Groundwater discharges to surface water and sediment in the wetland north of the ranges and probably to Slate Rock Brook north of the ranges. Unfiltered groundwater showed several elevated metals, but filtered groundwater only showed exceedances of site specific health-based screening values for manganese. Surface water showed explosives, mainly Cyclonite, and methylphenol and traces of VOCs. Contaminants of Potential Concern (COPCs) were found in the wetlands both south and north of the ranges. Sediments in the wetlands showed explosives, pesticides, and traces of volatiles. Many metals exceeded background and were selected as COPCs. Because the ranges will remain active as a training facility and under Department of Defense jurisdiction for the foreseeable future, risk from groundwater consumption was not assessed although there is a drinking water well, D-1, in the SPIA. Estimated human-health risks of exposure under any probable scenario do not exceed the upper boundary of acceptable risks use by the USEPA under current Superfund guidance. The upper limit is a one in 1,000,000 excess lifetime risk of cancer, and a noncancer hazard index (HI) of one.

The ecological risk assessment found that some soils data exceed reference values for plants, small mammals, and songbirds, but those exceedances are of such limited extent and the habitat is so disturbed at those locations from ongoing military training activities as to be ecologically insignificant. Concentrations of lead in surface water exceed water quality criteria, but site-specific toxicity testing indicated no toxicity attributed to lead for an aquatic invertebrate and a fish that was tested. Substantial uncertainty exists in extrapolating from avian toxicity to reptilian toxicity, but the site-specific toxicity test indicates that toxicity is unlikely for turtles. The ecosystems at AOC 26 do not appear to be adversely affected, as indicated by the thriving communities of benthic invertebrates and wildlife observed during the field surveys.

6.2.3 AOC 27 (Hotel Range)

Hotel Range is located adjacent to Cranberry Pond and is located approximately one mile south of the main entrance to the South Post. The Hotel Range covers approximately 23 acres and is currently used exclusively for firing small caliber weapons. The area of concern is located exclusively south of Old Turnpike Road. Before 1979, the Hotel Range was used for OB/OD of small arms, smoke grenades, and pyrotechnics. After 1979, the Hotel Range was modified and extended to the north side of the Old Turnpike Road and used for M16s and small caliber weapons. Prior to 1989, the range was used as an M-70 range but after 1989 the range was modified to an M60-SAW range. Refer to Figure 4-7, reprinted from the 2004 Annual Report and presented in Appendix E.

6.2.3.1 Groundwater

RI results indicate general groundwater flow is heading north and west away from Cranberry Pond towards the wetland (north of Old Turnpike Road). Metals concentrations were similar to AOCs 25 and 26. All wells in this area indicated some level of explosives contamination. RDX and 1,3-dinitrobenzene exceeded their screening values.

6.2.3.2 Surface Water

The 2004 Annual Report describes the center of AOC 27 as generally flat but slopes up gently to the south and is surrounded on the east, south, and west by natural ridges that are steeply graded in the general shape of an amphitheater. AOC 27 and the surrounding area south of Old Turnpike Road lack surface streams, which reflects the nature of well-drained soils. Generally, any surface water in the area enters the groundwater. Nine surface water samples were collected for the RI within Cranberry Pond, adjacent to Hotel Range. Several metals were detected in the samples, but only lead exceeded the AWQC. Trace concentrations of explosives were detected in these samples.

6.2.3.3 Sediment

The majority of samples collected in Cranberry Pond contained some metal concentrations in excess of those naturally occurring in the sediment. However, the data indicated that only one sample is obviously contaminated with metals. The explosive 4-amino 2, 6- dinitro toluene was detected in one third of the samples. VOCs, pesticides, TPHC and two PAHs were also detected. Complete analytical results are presented in the RI report.

6.2.3.4 Soil

Subsurface soil samples were collected from boreholes at the Hotel Range and analyzed for TPHC, TAL metals, explosives, and TCL organics. Analytical results indicated that no metals exceeded the screening values. Low concentrations of TPHC (maximum concentration of 75.6 μ g/g), below the screening level of 5,000 μ g/g, were detected in some samples. VOCs and pesticides were also detected at concentrations just above the detection limit. These concentrations were well below screening values.

6.2.3.5 Investigative Conclusions and Recommendations

Soil and groundwater at AOC 27 are affected by military training activities, shown primarily by the presence of explosives, pesticides, and TPHC in soil, groundwater, surface water, and sediment. Previous investigation results have indicated that lead concentrations were elevated in subsurface soil and in surface water. The pesticides, mostly DDT and its derivatives DDD and 2,2-bis(para-chlorophenyl)-1, 1-dichloroethene (DDE) are below background in soils and were not present in groundwater which only showed low concentrations of delta-BHC (0.045 μ g/L in the one confirmed result). Pesticide residues are likely to be a result of pest control rather than training activities at the site. Explosives in the groundwater are by far the most conclusive evidence of effects from site operations. All wells showed at least some concentrations of explosives related compounds, with Cyclonite, HMX, and 1,3-dinitrobenzene the most frequently observed compounds. The groundwater affected by the site flows north across Old Turnpike Road to a wetland within the northern part of Hotel Range, or possibly continuing towards Slate Rock Pond.

The risk to human health at AOC 27 has been calculated for users, site workers, and trespassers. Given the lack of exposure to the groundwater, all estimated potential risks for carcinogens and non-carcinogens are below current USEPA Superfund policy lower limits for lifetime risks. The occurrence of carcinogenic effects is below one in 1,000,000 excess risks per lifetime, and non-carcinogenic health effects are highly unlikely.

No evidence of site related chemical stress to plants or wildlife was observed during the field surveys. The toxicity testing done at Zulu Ranges (AOC 26) imply that the level of lead in Cranberry Pond water does not pose a hazard to aquatic biota. The mean concentrations of contaminants of potential concern are unlikely to pose a risk to the selected receptors, mallards and raccoons, with the possible exception of the affect of copper on mallards. Potential risks to benthic invertebrates from several metals in sediments (antimony, copper, lead, mercury, and nickel), and also from 4-amino- 2,6-dinitrotoluene, were noted. These risks have high levels of uncertainty and do not apply to average concentrations but only to reasonable maximum exposure concentrations. In general, this risk assessment is more likely to overestimate risks than to underestimate them.

As the Army continues to use the site, efforts should be made to ensure that no activities further contribute to contamination of Cranberry Pond. Periodic review of the risk assessment in light of increased toxicological information of the effects of the existing levels of contamination should be used to improve the assessment of risk to the environment. Based on the results of the environmental investigations and the human-health and ecological risk assessments, no contamination is present at concentrations that pose unacceptable risks to human health or the environment. AOC 27 will continue to be used as a firing range by the Army, and no further investigation or remedial action is recommended at the Hotel Range.

6.2.4 AOC 41 (Unauthorized Dumping Site)

AOC 41 is located immediately north of New Cranberry Pond (separate from Cranberry Pond), east of Delta Range, and west of Harvard Road, approximately two miles southeast of the main entrance to South Post. AOC 41 is approximately 6 acres in size. The dumping site occupies an area approximately 75 feet square in the central portion of the site. It appears to have been associated with a historic brick making kiln that was operated in this area in the 1800s. The AOC is overgrown with trees and swampy vegetation and no records are available detailing when the site was used or what type of material was disposed of in this area. It is believed that this AOC

was used until the 1950s for disposal of non-explosive military and household debris. Miscellaneous debris was scattered over a small hill located approximately 75 feet north of New Cranberry Pond. Refer to Figure 4-8, reprinted from the 2004 Annual Report and presented in Appendix E.

The geologic setting at AOC 41 includes an upper sand layer underlain by a discontinuous clayey silt layer, a lower silty sand layer, and lower sand layer. Bedrock was not encountered in any of the investigative borings completed at AOC 41.

The aquifer below AOC 41 can be classified as an unconfined overburden groundwater aquifer. The aquifer is reportedly recharged by surface water infiltration, percolation, and recharge from surface water from New Cranberry Pond. Hydraulic conditions at the AOC 41 are influenced by a road culvert located at the eastern end of the pond that artificially raises the surface water elevation in the pond, causing the surface water to recharge groundwater below AOC 41. The predominant local groundwater flow at AOC 41 is to the north-northeast, eventually discharging into the Nashua River.

6.2.4.1 Groundwater

According to the RI, groundwater flow near AOC 41 is more complex. The majority of flow enters the general groundwater flow pattern north-northeast toward the Nashua River. This general movement, away from New Cranberry Pond, is based upon RI analysis where long- term water level monitoring was performed at the pond and at wells 41M-92-01X and 41X-93-03X. Groundwater models developed in conjunction with the RIs indicate that there are several groundwater divides in the area and that most groundwater discharges to surface water before leaving the SPIA.

The water level of New Cranberry Pond is significant in defining the direction of the groundwater flow in the lower sand. The water level in the pond has been controlled by a culvert located on the eastern shore, impeding flow and maintaining a higher water level. The pond recharges the aquifer and helps direct the local groundwater flow toward the north and east.

Results of RI groundwater sampling and field analysis indicated that the existing groundwater contaminant plume appears to be confined to the upper portion (water table) of the aquifer and it is oriented in a northeast-southwest direction. The groundwater was shown to contain several VOCs, PCE, trichloroethene (TCE), and 1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane. Results also indicated several metals were present above established background concentrations in the unfiltered samples. Significantly lower metals concentrations were observed in the filtered samples, coupled with elevated total suspended solids, measurements suggest that elevated concentrations in unfiltered samples are likely the result of suspended solids and not dissolved site-related contaminants. Based on the chemical properties of the contaminants, the slow rate of groundwater flow in the clayey silt, and the existing downgradient groundwater results (41M-94-09A and B), it appears that the distribution of the groundwater contamination has been determined, and that the likelihood of contaminant migration to any exposure point (i.e., Well D-l) is minimal.

6.2.4.2 Soil

In March 1995, a soil gas survey was performed in the shallow soils around monitoring wells 41M-93-03X and 41M-94-03B in an attempt to find the source area for the chlorinated solvent contamination detected in the groundwater. The soil gas survey identified two detectable concentrations of TCE around the two wells. Soil samples collected from the same TerraProbe points used in the soil gas survey indicated TCE to be present in soils adjacent to the two wells at the 30 to 37 foot level.

Soil samples collected from five test pits in the area did not indicate the presence of any target analytes. Soil samples collected from the monitoring well borings during their emplacement in October 1994 indicated the presence of TCE below the 30' below ground surface (bgs) level. The distribution of the TCE contamination coincides with the depth of the water in the boring. Therefore, it appears that the TCE contamination results from adsorption of TCE from groundwater to soil particles within the zone of the water table fluctuation. The area around 41M-93-03X and 41M-94-03B does not appear to be the source of the groundwater contamination.

6.2.4.3 Investigative Conclusions and Recommendations

The following conclusions are based on interpretation of data collected from each of the previous investigations (Site Inspection [SI], Supplemental Site Investigation [SSI], and RI) completed at AOC 41.

Results of RI groundwater sampling and field analysis completed during the RI, indicate that the existing groundwater contaminant plume appears to be confined to the upper portion (water table) of the aquifer and it is oriented in a northeast-southwest direction. Based on the chemical properties of the contaminants, the slow rate of groundwater flow in the clayey silt, and the existing downgradient groundwater results (41M-94-09A and B), it appears that the distribution of the groundwater contamination has been determined, and that the likelihood of contaminant migration to any exposure point (i.e., Well D-l) is minimal.

Surface water and sediment from New Cranberry Pond were sampled during previous investigations. However, data collected during the SSI and the RI; demonstrate that New Cranberry Pond surface water recharges groundwater below AOC 41. An assessment of the potential surface soil migration pathways showed that no migration pathway (i.e., overland transport of surface soil via surface water) exists between the contaminants detected in the surface soil on the waste material and New Cranberry Pond surface water and sediment. Because of these reasons, the previous surface water and sediment data was not evaluated in the RI.

The baseline human-health risk assessment was limited to an evaluation of the exposure potential to groundwater at AOC 41, and a summary of quantitative risk evaluation for groundwater from transient non-community supply Well D-1. The risk assessment concluded that there are no unacceptable risks to human health from the groundwater at Well D-1 for troops that consume the water for approximately 14 days per year, and that no further action would be required under the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA).

Based on the results and interpretation of the physical and chemical data, and taking into account that the future land and groundwater use of this AOC will be similar to the present use, it was recommended that the Army complete a Proposed Plan and monitoring ROD for the groundwater at AOC 41 and to include the AOC 41-related contaminants in the analysis of the groundwater samples from Well D-1.

6.3 Remedial Action

A ROD was signed in July 1996 documenting No Action as the final selected remedy for the SPIA monitored-area groundwater, surface water, soil, and sediment and AOC 41 groundwater. Because No Action was selected and approved as the remedy, a FS was not performed and RAOs were not developed.

6.3.1 Selected Remedy

As part of the selected remedy of No Action for the SPIA monitored-area groundwater, surface water, soil, and sediment and AOC 41, Devens RFTA will ensure the following, excerpted from the 1996 Final Record of Decision for the SPIA and AOC 41 groundwater. Remedial components that have been undertaken are presented in Subsection 6.3.1. The current status of the remedy is discussed in Subsection 6.3.2.

- Groundwater monitoring for potential contaminant migration out of the SPIA monitored area; 1) Monitoring Wells will be used to monitor the groundwater from the EOD Range, Zulu Ranges, Hotel Range and AOC 41; 2) Monitoring Wells will be used to monitor the north, northeast, southeast, and east sides of the SPIA monitored-area.
- Monitoring wells will be sampled for explosives, TCL, and TAL metals.
- A Groundwater Monitoring Plan for the South Post will be developed that will include detailed groundwater monitoring at discharge points. The plan may include installation of additional monitoring wells to monitor for off-site groundwater flow.
- Well D-1 will be sampled and analyzed for explosives and Massachusetts and federal drinking water requirements (Massachusetts Maximum Contaminant Levels [MMCLs] / Maximum Contaminant Levels [MCLs]).
- The Army will not develop new drinking water sources within the SPIA monitoredarea.
- An Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan will be developed and implemented to monitor adverse affects on the ecosystem in the SPIA monitored-area.
- Monitoring Reports will include a description of site activities and a summary of analytical results. The Army will submit these reports annually. If there is an indication of contamination emanating from the SPIA monitored-area, the Army will evaluate the need for additional assessment.
- As required by CERCLA, the site will be subject to five-year reviews to assess if the No Action remedy remains protective of human health and the environment.
- Should the Army close, transfer or change the use of this property, an Environmental Baseline Survey (EBS) will be performed, and the "no action" decision of this ROD will be re-examined in light of the changed use and risk factors resulting from this closure/transfer.

6.3.2 Remedy Implementation

The following remedial components have been undertaken as outlined in the ROD.

Long-term Groundwater Monitoring Plan

The Final Long Term Monitoring Plan (LTMP) for the SPIA was issued in May 1997. The plan details the individual wells to be sampled on an annual basis. The plan also provides sampling methodology and analytical requirements. Additional monitoring wells were installed at AOC 26 and within SPIA to act as sentinel wells.

Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan

An Ecological Sampling Work Plan was developed and implemented in 1998 to characterize surface water and sediment quality within the SPIA. Since 1998, the Army has completed various assessments including sensitive area characterizations, review of wetland complexes, benthic and mollusk studies and a review of impacted species. These studies have been submitted to the appropriate Fish and Wildlife Agencies.

Given that the use of the SPIA was to remain in military use, the ROD required the development of an Integrated Natural Resource Management Plan (INRMP), to further assess if there are threats posed from SPIA ongoing or residual activities. The Army is currently finalizing the INRMP, which guides implementation of the natural resources program on RFTA from 2005 through 2009. The objectives of the INRMP is to ensure land remains available for missions, land is maintained in the best natural conditions to preserve ecosystems and to minimize landrelated restrictions on training. The INRMP is expected to be completed in the Fall 2005.

Groundwater Sampling

Annual groundwater monitoring has been performed in 1997, 1998, 1999, 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003, and 2004 as outlined in the Long-Term Monitoring Plan. Annual reports have been provided for the 1997 (CENAE, 1998), 1998 (CENAE, 1999) and 1999 (CENAE, 2000), 2000 (CENAE, 2001), 2001 (CENAE, 2002), 2002 (CENAE, 2003), 2003 (CENAE, 2004), and 2004 (CENAE, 2005) sampling events. The 1998 Annual Report also includes results of the ecological surface water and sediment sampling. Transient non-community water supply Well D-1 was sampled during each sampling event. The Army also sampled the transient non-community well, D-1 for perchlorate in November 2004. The perchlorate concentration detected during this sampling round was $0.24 \mu g/L$.

Current action consists of continued implementation of the components specified in the ROD: a long-term groundwater monitoring program, annual reporting, and five-year site reviews. These components enable continued assessment for compliance with established performance standards and reporting of performance standards.

Other Control Measures

The Army will not develop new drinking water sources within the SPIA monitored-area. Should the Army close or transfer or change the use of this property, an Environmental EBS will be performed, and the "no action" decision of this ROD will be re-examined in light of the changed use and risk factors resulting from this closure/transfer.

Five-Year Reviews

As required by CERCLA, the site will be subject to five-year reviews to assess if the No Action remedy remains protective of human health and the environment.
6.3.3 System Operations/Operation and Maintenance

Groundwater monitoring is performed in accordance with the LTMP (SWETS 1997) for the SPIA. Yearly Operation and Maintenance (O&M) costs for implementation of the remedy are not readily available for review.

6.4 Progress Since the Last Five-Year Review

This is the second five year site review for the SPIA. The first review completed in 2000 recommended that long-term groundwater monitoring should continue as outlined in the ROD and LTMP. The 2000 review indicated that the remedy at the SPIA and associated AOCs was expected to be protective to human health and the environment.

Groundwater monitoring has been performed at the SPIA since the ROD was issued and the Army is currently updating the INRMP for submittal in the Fall 2005. The INRMP guides the implementation of the natural resources program from 2005 through 2009.

6.5 Five Year Review Process

6.5.1 Document Review

The following documents were reviewed for this five-year review:

- Remedial Investigations for AOCs 25, 26, and 27 prepared by EEP, March 1994.
- Final Remedial Investigation Report, Area of Contamination (AOC) 41 prepared by ABB-ES, February 1996.
- Record of Decision prepared by USEPA, July 5, 1996.
- 2002 Annual Report for SPIA Long Term Monitoring prepared by the USACE, March 2003
- 2003 Annual Report for SPIA Long Term Monitoring prepared by USACE, March 2004.
- Draft 2004 Annual Report for SPIA Long Term Monitoring prepared by USACE, August 2005.

6.5.2 Data Review

AOC 25 Groundwater

Annual groundwater sampling results for 2003 indicated that no concentrations of metals were detected above applicable cleanup standards. Comparison of inorganic concentrations between the 1997 through 2004 LTMP rounds showed that although there was variability among concentrations of metals, the variability was not significant. Groundwater analytical results for 2004 indicated that the concentration of potassium, 2,530 μ g/L (micrograms per liter), in well 25M-97-11X exceeded the background level of 2,370 μ g/L.

AOC 26 Groundwater

Exceedances for groundwater in AOC 26 are summarized in the following table:

<u>Well Number,</u> <u>Parameter and</u> <u>Standard (µg/L)</u>	<u>1999</u>	<u>2000</u>	<u>2001</u>	<u>2002</u>	<u>2003</u>	<u>2004</u>
26M-92-02X	<2	<2	2.2	<2	2.2	<2
Thallium (2 μg/L)						
26M-92-02X	<10	<10	<10	12.4	<10	<10
Arsenic (10 µg/L)						
26M-92-03X	97	12	62	260	6.7	18
RDX (2 μg/L)						
26M-92-04X	240	260	200	180	210	260
RDX (2 μg/L)						
26M-97-08X	46	30	57	63	37	46
RDX (2 µg/L)						

 Table 6.5
 AOC 26 Data Summary of Exceedances

RDX concentrations have been fluctuating in AOC 26 wells since 1999. Well 26M-92-08X is considered a downgradient well and therefore, RDX, may be migrating off the AOC 26 site. The area downgradient of AOC 26 is considered part of SPIA and is owned by the Army. Results observed for the South Post Monitoring (SPM), perimeter wells, show that RDX is not migrating off SPIA.

AOC 27 Groundwater

Low levels of RDX, below the background level of 2.0 μ g/L, have been detected in AOC 27 wells since 2002. Since 1999, the highest RDX concentration was detected in 29M-92-01X (3.0 μ g/L in 1999). There have been no metal concentrations above Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs) in AOC 27 since low-flow sampling procedures were implemented in 1997.

AOC 41 Groundwater

Reportedly, the VOC plumes of trichloroethene and 1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane appears to be stable based upon continued lack of contamination in downgradient monitoring wells 41M-94-09A, 41M-94-09B, 41M-94-1 1X, 41M-94-12X and 41M- 9413X. These five wells plus wells 41M-93-04X, and 41M-94-14X were sampled in 2003 and 2004. No VOCs were detected in any wells associated with AOC 41 in 2003 or 2004.

South Post Monitoring Wells

Arsenic was detected in SPM-93-06X during the last two sampling rounds at concentrations above the 10 μ g/L MCL (11.7 μ g/L in 2003 and 10.9 μ g/L in 2004). Calcium and potassium have been detected above their respective background concentrations in SPM-93-06X since 1999. Explosive residuals have not been detected above background concentrations in the SPM wells since 1999.

Data Review Summary

Generally, annual groundwater sampling results are consistent to slightly lower. Metal concentrations from 1997 to 2004 rounds were generally lower than concentrations reported in the RIs. This decrease may largely reflect decreased sample turbidity resulting from implementation of low-flow sampling methodology.

RDX was detected above the proposed MMCL in five wells located in AOCs 26 and 27. Well 26M-92-04X has been sampled annually since 1998 to determine if contaminant levels are declining in this known contaminated area. RDX concentrations in wells 26M-92-04X and 26M-97-08X remain steady, indicating that the contamination levels are not declining. The RDX concentration in well 26M-92-03X (in 2003 and 2004) has remained consistent with historical data, after an unusually high level found in 2002. This well is downgradient of 26M-92-04X.

Groundwater samples were analyzed for perchlorate (an explosive residual) during the 2004 sampling round. The highest concentration was 3.1 μ g/L detected in well 26M-92-04X. All other perchlorate results were less than 1.0 μ g/L (the proposed Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection groundwater standard for drinking water).

Samples from the water supply well, D-1 were collected in 2002, 2003, and 2004 for explosive-related compounds and for perchlorate during the 2004 sampling event. No explosive related compounds were reported above analytical detection limits during the three events. Perchlorate was detected at a concentration of $0.24 \mu g/L$ during the 2004 monitoring round.

Results from the 1997 through 2004 groundwater sampling and historical data are provided in Appendix E.

6.5.3 Site Inspection

On April 21, 2005, a Nobis representative performed site inspections at the South Post Impact Area (AOCs 25, 26, 27, and 41). Conditions during the inspection were favorable with no precipitation and temperatures in the 50 degree range.

Other than normal range use, there was no evidence of excavation at any of the sites. A brush fire occurred throughout the South Post the weekend prior to the site visit. All the AOCs were impacted by the fire. AOC 41 was significantly burned. Two monitoring wells in AOC 41 that are not sampled as part of the LTMP appeared to have been partially encompassed by the fire. Monitoring well SPM-97-23X in AOC 27 (Hotel Range) is recessed causing water to pool above the well cap. Otherwise, monitoring well protective casings were locked and secured.

6.5.4 Interviews

The following individuals were interviewed as part of the five-year review:

- Ms. Ellen Iorio, USACE, New England District
- Mr. Dave Salvador, MADEP
- Mr. Takashi Tada, Contractor, Devens RFTA
- Mr. Robert Simeone, Devens RFTA

All personnel were interviewed on April 21, 2005 while performing the site visit.

Mr. Simeone indicated that the Army is currently updating the Natural Resources Management Plan for the South Post Impact Area. Once finalized, the plan will be submitted to State and Federal Departments of Fish and Wildlife. This plan will be in place for a period of 5 years (2005 through 2009). Although there may be follow up documentation in relation to this plan, there are no annual reporting requirements.

Mr. Simeone also indicated that the drinking water well (D-1) is still used by soldiers, on a limited basis, during training exercises. This is consistent with historical uses of the well and risk assessment assumptions.

6.5.5 Community Participation

The Army has held regular and frequent informational meetings, issued fact sheets and press releases, and held public meetings to keep the community and other interested parties informed of activities at the South Post Impact Area.

In January 1996, the Army issued the proposed plan to citizens and organizations to provide the public with a brief explanation of the Army's preferred remedy for the South Post Impact Area. The proposed plan and other pertinent documents for the South Post Impact Area were made available for review at local libraries and a formal 30-day public comment period was conducted from February 1 through March 1, 1996. On February 21, 1996, the Army held a public information meeting at Devens to present the proposed plan to the public, and to accept verbal or written comments from the public.

Currently the Restoration Advisory Board (RAB) meets every other month and provides advice to the installation and regulatory agencies on the Devens RFTA cleanup programs. Specific responsibilities include addressing cleanup issues such as land use and cleanup goals, reviewing plans and documents, identifying proposed requirements and priorities, and conducting regular meetings that are open to the public.

6.6 Technical Assessment

Question A: Is the Remedy Functioning as Intended by the Decision Documents?

Remedial Action Performance: Long-term groundwater monitoring is performed on an annual basis to determine if contaminants are migrating off the SPIA monitored-area and to ensure that the no-action alternative remains protective of human health and the environment.

System Operations/Operation and Maintenance (Long-Term Groundwater Monitoring): Groundwater monitoring is performed in accordance with the approved LTMP (SWETS, 1997) for the SPIA. Yearly O&M costs for implementation of the remedy at each AOC are not yet available for review.

Opportunities for Optimization: No reduction in sample locations or in frequency is recommended at this time.

Early Indicators of Potential Remedy Failure: No early indicators of potential remedy failure were noted during the review. Groundwater monitoring results have been generally consistent with expectations. Based on the observed RDX results in 26M-92-08X at AOC 26, there is a potential for RDX to migrate off the AOC 26 boundary. In general, the purpose of the SPM well

series (those that are monitored as part of the LTMP efforts) is to serve as a network of sentinel sampling points, for determination of off-site migration. RDX has not been detected in the SPM wells.

Implementation of Institutional Controls and Other Measures: There are no current or future plans for installation of potable water wells within the SPIA. The Army proposes to maintain possession of the SPIA for Army use. If property transfers in the future, institutional controls will be incorporated into the property deed or other instrument of property transfer. Currently the Installation Management Plan (IMP) (R&K Engineering, Inc., June 1999) will cover institutional control restrictions. The Army is currently updating the IMP, which will be finalized in Spring 2006.

Question B: Are the exposure assumptions, toxicity data, cleanup levels, and remedial objectives used at the time of remedy selection still valid?

Changes in Standards and To Be Considered: Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review (ARARs) and To be Considered (TBC) guidance for the Site presented in the ROD were reviewed, and a review of current ARARs was conducted. A few changes have been promulgated since the ROD was signed. See Section 6.6.2, ARARs.

The MCLs are health-based guidelines established by the USEPA. The MCL for arsenic (50 μ g/L) in effect at the time of the ROD was selected as a standard for comparison during long term groundwater monitoring. The MCL for arsenic has been updated since the 1996 ROD. The MCL for arsenic was lowered to 10 μ g/L effective February 2002.

In spring 2005, the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MADEP) published new draft groundwater standards for RDX and HMX which are military explosives. The proposed Method 1, GW-1, Groundwater Standards are 0.8 μ g/L and 200 μ g/L for RDX and HMX, respectively. This same proposal also includes a recommended standard of 1.0 μ g/L for perchlorate. These standards, though currently in a proposed status, have been adopted for comparison to LTM data beginning with the 2004 Annual Report. RDX has been detected in AOC 26 wells above this proposed standard, perchlorate has been detected in one of those wells above this standard, and marginal exceedances of the RDX standard have been found at AOC 27 recently.

In January 2003, the USEPA Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response (OSWER) issued an Interim Status Guidance for Perchlorate. This document cited a range of 4 parts per billion (ppb) to 18 ppb, that was intended to be used as a screening tool to see if site specific risk assessment is needed. The USEPA is currently evaluating if regulation of perchlorate is needed, and will determine action levels for perchlorate as necessary.

MADEP Surface Water Standards are taken from the USEPA National Recommended Water Quality Criteria (Office of Water, Office of Science and Technology – 4304T, 2004). This document establishes Criteria Maximum Concentrations (CMCs) and Criteria Continuous Concentrations (CCCs). CMCs are an estimate of the highest concentration of a material in surface water to which an aquatic community can be exposed briefly without resulting in an unacceptable effect. The CCCs are an estimate of the highest concentration of material to which an aquatic community can be exposed indefinitely without resulting in an unacceptable effect. If surface water samples are collected in the future, they should be filtered, analyzed for dissolved metals and compared to this document. **Changes in Exposure Pathways:** The ROD did not identify any unacceptable risks from exposure to site contaminants in groundwater (i.e., limited to 2 weeks during a year) or soils under current use conditions. Because the remedy includes limiting the use of groundwater as drinking water (specifically the transient, non-community supply well, D-1), changes to groundwater standards do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Future use is expected to remain unchanged. If land use does change, risks would need to be reevaluated to determine if the potential for exposure had increased. No new contaminants, sources, or routes of exposure were identified. There is no indication that hydrologic/hydrogeologic conditions are not adequately characterized.

Changes in Exposure Assumptions: The risk assessments supporting the ROD for AOCs 25, 26, 27, and 41 used exposure assumptions based on actual site frequency of use and standard recommended assumptions for other contact rates. Since that time, USEPA has updated some of the recommended dermal contact exposure assumptions. New guidance for evaluating dermal contact exposures was finalized in July 2004 (*Risk Assessment Guidance for Superfund, Volume I* – *Human Health Evaluation Manual* – *Part E, Supplemental Guidance for Dermal Risk Assessment – Final*). Because the remedy presumes continued site use on an infrequent basis and prohibiting more extensive use of groundwater as drinking water, changes to the exposure parameters do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy. If site land uses changes, changes to dermal exposure parameters should be considered.

Changes in Toxicity and Other Contaminant Characteristics: There have been no changes in toxicity or other contaminant characteristics that affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Changes in Risk Assessment Methodologies: The methods for evaluating dermal contact exposures have changed since the time of the risk assessments supporting the ROD for AOCs 25, 26, 27, and 41, based on USEPA's <u>Risk Assessment Guidance for Superfund, Volume I – Human Health Evaluation Manual – Part E, Supplemental Guidance for Dermal Risk Assessment – Final</u>, July 2004. As discussed in the ROD no human health risks were found under current site conditions and uses. Because the remedy presumes that the site will continue to be used on an infrequent basis and prohibits use of groundwater as a primary source of drinking water, these risk assessment methodology changes do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

Question C: Has any other information come to light that could call into question the protectiveness of the remedy?

Additional information, other than noted above, that would call into question the protectiveness of the remedy was not noted. No natural disaster impacts occurred at the SPIA during this review period.

6.6.1 Summary of Technical Assessment

In the spring of 2005, MADEP published new draft groundwater standards for RDX and HMX, which are military explosives. The proposed Method 1, GW-1, Groundwater Standards are 0.8 μ g/L and 200 μ g/L for RDX and HMX, respectively. These standards, though currently in a proposed status, have been adopted for comparison to LTM data beginning with the 2004 Annual Report. RDX has been detected in AOC 26 wells above these proposed standards.

The methods for evaluating dermal contact exposures have changed since the time of the risk assessments supporting the ROD for AOCs 25, 26, 27, and 41. Because the remedy presumes continued site use on an infrequent basis and prohibiting more extensive use of groundwater as drinking water, these risk assessment methodology changes do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

6.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review

ARARs were not specifically identified in the ROD. However, the ROD does state that Well D-1 will be sampled and analyzed for explosives and MMCLs/MCLs. There was a change to portions of the National Primary Drinking Water Standards 40 CFR Parts 141.11 - 141.16 and 141.50 - 141.52 and the Massachusetts Drinking Water Standards and Guidelines 310 CMR 22.0 outlined below.

- 40 CFR 141.11Subpart B Maximum Contaminant Levels was updated July 1, 2001. Section 141.11 (a) and (b) was amended at 66 FR 7061 on January 22, 2001 to state the following:
 - a) *** The analyses and determination of compliance with 50 µg/L MCL for arsenic use the requirements of 141.23.
 - b) The MCL for arsenic is 50 μ g/L for community water systems until January 23, 2006.

On January 22, 2001 USEPA adopted a new standard for arsenic in drinking water at 10 μ g/L, replacing the old standard of 50 μ g/L (66FR6976). The rule became effective on February 22, 2002. The date by which systems must comply with the new 10 μ g/L standard is January 23, 2006.

- 40 CFR 141.15 and 141.16 Subpart B Maximum Contaminant Levels were updated July 1, 2003. An effective date note (65 FR 76745) removed the sections from the Code of Federal Regulations effective December 8, 2003. Sections 141.15 and 141.16 do not appear in 40 CFR 141 updated on July 1, 2004. These two sections addressed MCLs for radium-226, radium-228, gross alpha particle radioactivity, and beta and photon radioactivity, which do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.
- 40 CFR 141.51 Subpart F Maximum Contaminant Level Goals and Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goals was updated July 1, 2001. The table was amended in Section 141.51 by adding arsenic with a MCLG of zero effective January 23, 2006 (66 FR 7063). Until then, there is no MCLG.
- 310 CMR 22.0 Drinking Water was updated on May 24, 2004. The arsenic MCL, 10 µg\L, listed in Section 22.06 is effective for the purpose of compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations (outlined above) on January 23, 2006.
- USEPA National Recommended Water Quality Criteria (Office of Water, Office of Science and Technology – 4304T, 2004)

USEPA RfD and HA are requirements designated as TBC. These requirements were updated in the USEPA 2004 Edition of the Drinking Water Standards and Health Advisories, dated winter 2004.

6.7 Issues

Although RDX was detected in AOC 26, there is no evidence of off-site migration based on the results observed in the SPM wells. The purpose of the SPM well series (those that are monitored as part of the LTMP efforts) is to serve as a network of sentinel sampling points, for determination of off-site migration.

Although RDX was detected in AOC 26 wells, it is believed that these issues do not make the remedial actions at the SPIA non-compliant with the ROD, or sufficient to warrant a finding of not protective. This finding is based upon a review of site reports that have been prepared since the signing of the ROD, a review of ARARs triggered by the remedial action, and the findings from the site inspection and interviews, and continued monitoring of the situation.

6.8 Recommendations and Follow-up Actions

The recommendations and follow up actions of this second Five-Year Review are as follows:

Recommendations/Follow Up Actions	Party Responsible	Oversight Agency	Milestone Date	Do Follow-Up Actions: Affect Protectiveness (Y/N)	
				Current	Future
Finalize the Integrated Natural Resource Plan	U.S. Army	U.S. Fish and Wildlife	Fall 2005	Ŷ	Y

In addition, the Army should continue to evaluate the potential for off-site migration, impact to sensitive receptors, trend analysis, and remedial duration as part of the established LTMP for SPIA. Evaluation of the LTMP will occur in spring 2006.

6.9 Protectiveness Statement

The No Action remedy at AOCs 25, 26, 27, and 41 is protective of human health and the environment and exposure pathways that could results in unacceptable risks are being controlled.

Human health risk is currently limited at AOCs 25, 26, 27, and 41 because groundwater at the AOCs is being used for potable use on a limited basis by a small, healthy population (by soldiers, during short-term military training exercises). Current conditions at the South Post Impact area (including eliminating the use of D-1) are consistent with the assumptions made during the risk assessment portion of the Remedial Investigation (ABB-ES, 1996).

The Army has installed groundwater monitoring wells and initiated long-term monitoring. The 2003 annual groundwater monitoring report and the groundwater sampling data from fall 2004, document that groundwater concentrations of VOCs and metals, at AOCs 25, 26, 27, and 41, are generally below drinking water standards.

Current remedial action activity consists of continued long-term groundwater monitoring, annual reporting, and five-year site reviews. These components enable continued assessment for compliance with performance standards and reporting of remedial progress.

6.10 Next Review

This is the second Five-Year Review that has been performed for the SPIA. The next review will be performed within five years of the completion of this Five-Year Review report. The completion date is the date on which USEPA issues its letter to the Army either concurring with report's findings or documenting reasons for nonconcurrence.

6.11 References

- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES, b), 1995. "Project Operations Plan, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; Contract No. DACA3I-94-D-0061; prepared for U.S. Army Environmental Center; May 1995.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES), 1996. "Final Remedial Investigation Report, Area of Contamination (AOC) 41, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; prepared for U.S. Army Environmental Center; February 1996.
- Biang, C.A., R.W. Peters, R. H. Pearl, and S. Y. Tsai, 1992. "Master Environmental Plan for Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; prepared for U.S. Army Toxic and Hazardous Materials Agency; prepared by Argonne National Laboratory, Environmental Assessment and Information Sciences Division; Argonne Illinois; April 1992.
- Harding Lawson Associates (HLA), 2000. "Final First Five Year Review Report". Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; September 2000.
- Horne Engineering Services, 1996. "Final Record of Decision for the South Post Impact Area and AOC 41 Groundwater and AOCs 25, 26, and 27"; prepared for U.S. Army Environmental Center, BRAC Division; July 1996.
- Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MADEP), 1996. "Massachusetts Contingency Plan" Office of Environmental Affairs, Boston, Massachusetts, September 9, 1996.
- Stone and Webster Environmental Technology and Services (SWETS), 1997. "Final Long term Monitoring Plan, South Post Impact Area"; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England Division; Waltham, Massachusetts; May 1997.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District (USACE-NAE), 1999. "1998 Annual Report for Long term Groundwater Monitoring and Ecological, Surface Water/Sediment Sampling, SPIA"; September 1999.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District (USACE-NAE), 2000. "1999 Annual Report for South Post Impact Area, Long term Groundwater Monitoring", March 2000.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District (USACE-NAE), 2001. "2000 Annual Report for South Post Impact Area, Long term Groundwater Monitoring", March 2001.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District (USACE-NAE), 2002. "2001 Annual Report for South Post Impact Area, Long term Groundwater Monitoring", March 2002.

- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District (USACE-NAE), 2003. "2002 Annual Report for South Post Impact Area, Long term Groundwater Monitoring", March 2003.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District (USACE-NAE), 2004. "Draft 2003 Annual Report South Post Impact Area, Long term Groundwater Monitoring", March 2004.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District (USACE-NAE), 2005. "Draft 2004 Annual Report South Post Impact Area, Long term Groundwater Monitoring", August 2005.

7.0 AOCs 32 AND 43A FIVE YEAR POLICY SITE REVIEW

7.1 Site Chronology

Table 7-1 Chronology of Site Events for AOC 32

Event	Date
Site Inspection (SI) initiated	1991
Remedial Investigation (RI) completed	1994
Feasibility Study (FS) completed	1997
Record of Decision (ROD) signature	1998
First Five-Year Statutory Review	September 2000
Monitored Natural Attenuation Assessment (MNAA)	2000
Replacement monitoring well and piezometer installation	2001
Long term groundwater monitoring	2002 to present
Second Five Year Review	2005

Table 7-2 Chronology of Site Events for AOC 43A

Event	Date	
Site Inspection (SI) initiated	1991	
Remedial Investigation (RI) completed	1994	
Feasibility Study(FS) completed	1997	
Record of Decision (ROD) signature	1998	
First Five-Year Statutory Review	September 2000	
Monitored Natural Attenuation Assessment (MNAA)	2000	
Replacement monitoring well and piezometer installation	2001	
Long term groundwater monitoring	2002 to present	
Second Five Year Review	September 2005	

7.2 Background

Both AOCs 32 and 43A are historically contaminated locations within the former Fort Devens property. AOC 32, the Defense Reutilization and Marketing Office (DRMO) Yard, is located on the west side of Cook Street (West Yard) in the northeast portion of the former Main Post. AOC 43A is located to the south of AOC 32, across Market Street (see Figures 1 and 2 as reprinted from the 2003 Annual Report and presented in Appendix F).

The two sites were combined administratively under one ROD, but are described separately in the following subsections for clarity. Subsections 7.2.1 and 7.2.2 provide the site description and history for AOCs 32 and 43A, respectively.

7.2.1 AOC 32 Background

AOC 32 (DRMO Yard) was used as a materials storage facility. Operational records indicate that the facility was active from at least 1964 to 1995. The nature of the materials that were processed and the activities performed in this yard varied significantly. AOC 32 consisted of three fenced areas. The DRMO Yard on the west side of Cook Street (West Yard) contained used equipment, including lead-acid batteries, telecommunications equipment, and administrative equipment. The yard on the east side of Cook Street (East Yard) was used for disassembling vehicles for reusable

parts and previously contained scrap metal, tires, stored items ready for sale, and used photographic solutions. The only unpaved, fenced area was located just north of the East Yard and was used to store and recycle tires. A former underground storage tank (UST) site (UST #13) was incorporated into AOC 32. This UST was used to store waste oil and was located just northeast of the DRMO Office.

In 1991, the Army performed a Site Inspection (SI) at AOC 32 and reported contamination exceeding screening concentrations for soil and groundwater. A Remedial Investigation (RI) was initiated to determine the nature and distribution of contamination at AOC 32, assess the risk to human health, and provide a basis for performing a Feasibility Study (FS). The final RI report, issued in 1994, concluded that soil contamination and groundwater contamination required a remedial action evaluation.

A FS designed to develop and analyze potential remedial alternatives for cleanup at AOC 32 was issued in January 1997. Following submission of the Army's Proposed Plan (PP) and receipt of public comments on the preferred remedial alternatives, the Army issued a Record of Decision (ROD), documenting the final choice of a remedy for cleanup of soils by excavation with off-site disposal and cleanup of groundwater by monitored natural attenuation. The ROD was signed in February 1998.

A separate evaluation of monitored natural attenuation as the selected remedy at AOC 32 was performed. The Monitored Natural Attenuation Assessment (MNAA) Report (SWETS, 2000b) summarized the data collected from MNAA field activities that began in January 1999, and presented the final assessment and recommendations concerning natural attenuation effectiveness based on ROD criteria. The report concluded that natural attenuation, supplemented with long-term groundwater monitoring and establishment of institutional controls, would be an effective remedial action at AOC 32.

7.2.2 AOC 43A Background

At the time of base closure in 1996, the area around the location of AOC 43A was used as a petroleum, oils and lubricants storage area (POL). Located across Market Street from AOC 32, this area served as the central distribution point for all gasoline and fuel at Fort Devens during the 1940s and 1950s. AOC 43A consisted of a fenced lot within a developed industrial area.

The distribution facility formerly consisted of a main gasoline station building (T250), a pump house, four 12,000-gallon USTs, one 10,000-gallon UST, two 12,000-gallon above ground storage tank (ASTs), and two 8,000-gallon ASTs. Gasoline was delivered to the facility via railroad, and was transferred to the tanks. AOC 43A consists of a fenced lot located within a developed industrial area of buildings, roads, and grass lots, with the exception of the east side of the site, which was bounded by a wooded area on a rock outcrop. A set of railroad tracks, formerly used to transport fuels to the site, formed the site's northern boundary. The UST area was fenced. An asphalt driveway led into the POL storage area from Antietam Street. The driveway was bermed to contain potential spills. A pump station was located in the center of the fenced area, and the new USTs were located on the eastern side.

During the 1992 SI on the POL storage area, field screening and confirmation sampling indicated that a low level of xylene and an elevated level of petroleum hydrocarbons existed within the subsurface soils. An RI was performed, and the final report concluded that groundwater contamination required a remedial action evaluation.

A FS, performed to develop and assess potential remedial alternatives for cleanup at AOC 43A, was issued in January 1997. Following submission of the Army's PP and receipt of public comments on the preferred remedial alternatives, the Army issued a ROD to document the final choice of a remedy for cleanup of groundwater by monitored natural attenuation. The ROD was signed in February 1998.

A separate evaluation of monitored natural attenuation as the selected remedy at AOC 43A was performed. The Monitored Natural Attenuation Assessment (MNAA) Report (SWETS, 2000c) summarized the data collected from MNAA field activities that began in January 1999, and presented the final assessment and recommendations concerning natural attenuation effectiveness based on ROD criteria. The report concluded that natural attenuation, supplemented with long-term groundwater monitoring and establishment of institutional controls, would be an effective remedial action at AOC 43A.

7.2.3 AOC 32 and 43A Redevelopment

AOC 32 and 43A underwent significant redevelopment in 2000. The two AOCs, now Lot 10 (Figure 3 reprinted from the 2003 Annual Report as presented in Appendix F), were modified by the construction of a large warehouse that was completed in 2001. As a result, major demolition, regrading, and building/paving construction has altered the site's physical setting and hydrogeologic conditions. Twenty one (21) monitoring locations were destroyed or decommissioned as part of the construction activities. Thirteen (13) new monitoring wells and nine (9) piezometers were installed to replace those destroyed during construction in November 2001 to January 2002 (HAS, 2002).

- Installed wells included: 32M-01-13XBR, 32M-01-14XOB, 32M-01-14XBR, 32M-01-15XBR, 32M-01-16XBR, 32M-01-17XBR, 32M-01-18XBR, 43M-01-016XOB, 43M-01-16XBR, 43M-01-17XOB, 43M-01-17XBR, 43M-01-20XOB, and 43M-01-20XBR. Installed piezometers included: 32M-01-04XBR, 32M-01-05XOB, 32 M-01-06XBR, 32M-01-07XOB, 32M-01-08XOB, 32M-01-09XOB, 32M-01-10XBR, 32M-01-11XBR, and 32M-01-12XBR.
- Destroyed monitoring points included: 32M-92-03X, 32M-92-04X, 32M-92-05X, 32M-92-06X, 32M-92-07X, 32M-99-08X, 32M-99-09X, 32M-99-11X, 43MA-93-04X, 43MA-93-05X, 43MA-93-06X, 43MA-93-07X, 43MA-93-08X, 43MA-93-10X, 43MA-99-11X, 43MA-99-12X, 43MA-99-13X, 43MA-99-14X, 43MA-99-15X, POL-1, POL-2, and POL-3.

7.3 Remedial Actions

Remedial response objectives were defined to aid in developing and screening alternatives. The objectives aim to mitigate existing and future potential threats to human health and the environment. The Remedial Action Objectives (RAOs) for AOCs 32 and 43A are discussed in the following subsections.

The groundwater cleanup goals were developed from several sources and were presented in the ROD. Groundwater cleanup goals for contaminants of concern (COCs) are shown in the following Table. If no cleanup goal was developed for a specific analyte as part of the ROD, the Massachusetts Contingency Plan (MCP) Method 1 GW-1 standard was used as the cleanup goal for COCs.

Contaminant of Concern	Cleanup Goals (µg/L)		
VOCs			
Vinyl Chloride	2		
1,2-dichloroethene (trans)	55		
1,2-dichloroethene (cis)	55		
1,1,1-trichloroethane	5		
Trichloroethene	5		
1,1,2-trichloroethane	5		
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600		
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600		
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	75		
VPH			
Benzene	5		
Ethylbenzene	500		
m,p-xylene			
o-xylene			
Toluene			
C5-C8 Aliphatics (1,2)	400		
C9-C12 Aliphatics (1,3)	4,000		
C9-C10 Aromatics (1)	200		
ЕРН			
C9-C18 Aliphatics	4,000		
C19-C36 Aliphatics	5,000		
C11-C22 Aromatics	200		
PCBs			
PCB-1016	0.5		
PCB-1221	0.5		
PCB-1232	0.5		
PCB-1242	0.5		
PCB-1248	0.5		
PCB-1254	0.5		
PCB-1260	0.5		
INORGANICS			
Arsenic – Total	50		
Lead – Total	15		
Manganese – Total	3,500		
Arsenic - Dissolved	50		
Lead – Dissolved	15		
Manganese – Dissolved	3,500		

Table 7-3 Area 32 and 43A COC: Cleanup Level in Groundwater

7.3.1 Surface and Subsurface Soil Remedial Objectives

The RAOs for site-related surface and subsurface soils were as follows:

- Prevent direct and indirect contact, ingestion, and inhalation of the soil contaminated with chemical of potential concern (COPCs) by human and ecological receptors at levels that could pose risks.
- Prevent erosion and migration of soil contaminated with COPCs to storm sewers and surface water bodies.
- Prevent COPC migration to the groundwater at levels that could adversely affect human health and the environment

Cleanup goals for soils were calculated from the risk assessment as candidate goals for all contaminants except polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs). The PCB cleanup goal is an Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirement (ARAR) that existed from the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA). Other contaminants, not addressed by these two sources, used the lower value of the USEPA Region III risk-based concentration or the RCRA corrective action level was selected. If these values were below the background concentration, the background value was used as the cleanup goal. Because cleanup goals were not established in the ROD for extractable petroleum hydrocarbons (EPH) / volatile petroleum hydrocarbons (VPH), the MCP S-2 standard was used as the cleanup goal.

7.3.2 Groundwater Remedial Objectives

The RAOs for site-related groundwater included the following:

- Prevent off-site migration of COPCs at levels that could adversely affect flora and fauna.
- Prevent lateral and vertical migration of COPCs at levels that could adversely affect potential and existing drinking water supply aquifers.
- Prevent seepage of groundwater from AOC 32/43A that could result in surface water concentrations in excess of ambient water quality standards.

The main post groundwater cleanup goals were developed from numerous sources and were presented in the ROD. These cleanup levels were used to screen groundwater data from both AOC 32 (UST #13) and DRMO/POL (AOC 32/43A). Groundwater cleanup goals for COCs are shown in Table 1-1 in Appendix F. Table 1-1 is reprinted from (SWETS, 2000c). When available, the most stringent of the ARARs was selected as a potential candidate cleanup goal. If no risk values were established, then the most stringent of the USEPA Office of Drinking Water Health Advisories, USEPA Region III tap water criteria, or the MADEP Office of Research and Standards Guidance, for chemicals for which Massachusetts Maximum Contaminant Levels (MMCLs) have not been promulgated, was selected. If measurable concentrations were below background values, the background concentrations were established in the ROD for EPH/VPH, the MCP Method 1 GW-l standard was used as the cleanup goal. The cleanup goal for lead is related to the groundwater associated with AOC 43A, not AOC 32.

7.3.3 Selected Remedy

7.3.3.1 Area 32 (Soils Operable Unit) Selected Remedial Components

The selected remedy for AOC 32 (Soils Operable Unit) is Alternative A6. This alternative would not treat or destroy the soil contamination, but completely remove it from the site. Therefore, this alternative would provide complete protection of human health and the environment. A detailed description of key components of alternative A6 is presented in Section 10.C.1 of the ROD; the key components are summarized below.

- Excavating contaminated soil (approximately 1,300 cubic yards [yd³], confirmatory sampling to be performed prior to backfilling).
- Immediately transporting soils to an off-site, non-hazardous landfill for disposal.
- Backfilling the excavated area with clean material, and revegetating the area.
- Monitoring groundwater on an annual basis and reviewing the site at five-year intervals for 30 years or until contamination is reduced to acceptable concentrations.

Excavate Contaminated Soil. As presented in the ROD Section 10.C.1, contaminated soil was found in four areas: the southern portion of the tire storage area, adjacent to the northern border of the DRMO Yard; the center of the East Yard; the drainage swale along the western edge of the yard; and the drainage swale along the eastern edge of the yard. Based on sampling data collected during the RI, an estimated 1,300 yd³ of soil needed to be excavated.

Confirmatory sampling was required to verify that cleanup goals were achieved. If sampling results exceed cleanup goals, addition excavation would be required. If results of confirmation sampling were acceptable, excavations would be considered complete and prepared for backfilling.

<u>Transporting Soil Off-Site</u>. As presented in the ROD Section 10.C.1, toxicity characteristic leaching procedure (TCLP) analysis for lead and cadmium would be run on excavated soil. Material would be transported to an off-site, RCRA-regulated landfill if material failed the TCLP. If material passed the TCLP, it would be transported off-site to a non-hazardous industrial landfill.

<u>Backfilling and Revegetation</u>. As presented in the ROD Section 10.C.1, once acceptable sample results were verified, the excavation for the area would be considered completed. Excavated areas would then be regraded or backfilled to grade with clean soils and revegetated for stabilization.

<u>Groundwater Monitoring.</u> As presented in the ROD Section 10.C.1, source contamination would be removed; no long-term monitoring would be required. A review of site conditions, including groundwater monitoring, would be conducted in five years to ensure no contaminants continued to migrate from unidentified sources. Appropriate action would be considered at that time.

7.3.3.2 Area 32 (Groundwater Operable Unit) Selected Remedial Components

The selected remedy for AOC 32 (Groundwater Operable Unit) is Alternative B3. This alternative relies on natural attenuation to remediate groundwater contaminants in the subsurface. The Army would follow the <u>Technical Protocol for Implementing Intrinsic Remediation with</u>

Long-Term Monitoring for Natural Attenuation of Fuel Contamination Dissolved in Groundwater (USEPA/Air Force Center for Environmental Excellence, November, 1995). During the period of restoration, access to the site for some uses, such as water supply, would be restricted, since the groundwater contaminant levels exceed ARARs. Monitored natural attenuation is differentiated from institutional action by the degree of site characterization, modeling of the groundwater flow and contaminant migration, and the long-term monitoring effort to ensure that natural attenuation is working. A detailed description of key components of alternative B3 is presented in Section 10.C.2 of the ROD; the key components are summarized below.

- Establishing institutional controls.
- Installing additional groundwater monitoring wells.
- Providing for monitored natural attenuation.
- Collecting data on monitored natural attenuation, assessing the data, and performing groundwater modeling.
- Performing long term groundwater monitoring on a semi-annual basis.
- Reviewing the site at 5-year intervals for 30 years or until contamination is reduced to acceptable concentrations.
- Providing annual data reports to USEPA and MADEP.
- Incorporate collected data into groundwater flow and transport models. Field data and model predictions were to be reviewed as part of the Five-Year Review.

Establish Institutional Controls. As presented in the ROD Section 10.C.2, the land would be limited to restricted development, including a ban on drinking water well installation. The land is currently slated for industrial use by the Massachusetts Government Land Bank (November 1996 Devens Reuse Plan), which will control development upon the Army's release of the property. Therefore, no further zoning alterations would be required.

<u>Install Additional Groundwater Monitoring Wells.</u> As presented in the ROD Section 10.C.2, additional groundwater monitoring wells would be required to improve data collection coverage within the source area, as well as downgradient of the site. The ultimate number and location of additional wells selected for long-term groundwater monitoring would depend on the results of the fate and transport modeling. A long-term monitoring plan would be developed as part of the monitored natural attenuation remediation assessment and would undergo regulatory review. These wells would be used to monitor contaminant plume location and concentration in relation to the AOC boundary and to collect intrinsic degradation indicators. To estimate costs for this alternative, it was estimated that three additional shallow wells would be necessary.

<u>Allow for Monitored Natural Attenuation</u>. As presented in the ROD Section 10.C.2, naturally occurring bioremediation is expected to reduce the compounds present in the bedrock beneath the site to protoplasm, carbon dioxide, water, and chlorides by a combination of physical, chemical, and biological processes that act without human intervention to reduce the mass, toxicity, mobility, volume, or concentration of contaminants in soil or groundwater in a reasonable timeframe (maximum 30-years). These in-situ processes include biodegradation, dispersion, dilution, adsorption, volatilization, and biological and chemical stabilization or destruction of contaminants.

<u>Collect and Incorporate Additional Field Data into Groundwater Models.</u> As presented in the ROD Section 10.C.2, prior to refining a long-term groundwater monitoring plan, additional data

collection and modeling may be required. Data collection would consist of installing additional monitoring wells and performing additional rounds of groundwater sampling and analysis to refine estimates of monitored natural attenuation effectiveness in protecting downgradient receptors. A monitored natural attenuation assessment work plan would be developed and provided for regulatory review. Data collected would include groundwater elevation, monitored natural attenuation indicators, and relevant COPCs, including TPHC by MADEP method for EPH and VPH. Monitored natural attenuation indicator data would be used to provide additional evidence that monitored natural attenuation is occurring and to determine future intrinsic bioremediation potential. Relevant COPC concentration data, including VPH/EPH via MADEP methods would directly assist in estimating site-specific degradation rates and the effectiveness of monitored natural attenuation in achieving groundwater cleanup goals.

Monitor Groundwater Over the Long-term and Annually Report on Groundwater Quality. As presented in the ROD Section 10.C.2, long-term groundwater monitoring is proposed to assess the monitored natural attenuation progress and detect any potential migration of contaminants that exceed groundwater cleanup levels. Groundwater monitoring would be conducted annually for 30 years or until groundwater contamination has been reduced to acceptable levels.

The Army may request a reduction in the frequency of groundwater monitoring if warranted by site conditions. Annual monitoring would be required unless USEPA and MADEP agree to a reduced frequency. A long term groundwater monitoring plan would be developed by the Army and provided for regulatory review. Annual reports would be submitted to USEPA and MADEP and would include a description of site activities, a summary of the long-term groundwater monitoring program results, and any modeling updates.

Review Field Data, Modeling Predictions, and Compliance with ARARs at 5-Year Intervals. As presented in the ROD Section 10.C.2, under CERCLA 121(c) (42 USC 9621), any remedial action that results in contaminants remaining on-site must be reviewed at least every 5 years. During 5-year reviews, the existing data, monitoring program, and model predictions are evaluated and modified, as necessary. Whether the implemented remedy continues to be protective of human health and the environment or if the implementation of additional remedial action is appropriate are assessed.

The 5-year review would evaluate the alternative's effectiveness (compliance with ARAR at reducing potential human health risk from exposure to groundwater on-site and downgradient, considering current and potential future receptors. This evaluation would be based on how successful the alternative is at attaining groundwater cleanup levels at the long-term monitoring wells.

<u>Review the Need for Continued Monitoring and Additional Action at 5-year Intervals.</u> As presented in the ROD Section 10.C.2, details were provided in the previous subsection and will not be repeated here.

7.3.4 Remedy Implementation

Soil Remedial Action

Excavation and disposal activities were completed between October and December 1998, as summarized within the USACE Final Soils Remedial Action Operable Unit Completion Report: Soil, Asphalt, And Debris Removal, (Weston, 2000) and as outlined below:

- Removal and disposal of approximately 50 yd³ of metal debris.
- Removal and disposal of approximately 1,200 yd³ of petroleum-contaminated soil.

- Removal and disposal of approximately 800 yd³ of non-hazardous soil with shredded tire scrap.
- Removal and disposal of approximately 400 yd³ of soil contaminated with lead and containing shredded tire scrap.
- Removal and disposal of approximately 600 yd³ of soil and asphalt contaminated with low levels of PCBs and pesticides.

The Removal Action for AOC 32, performed by the Army in October and November 1998, appeared to have permanently achieved the RAOs specified in the ROD as discussed in the Operating Properly and Successfully (OPS) Report (SWETS, 2000a). The final confirmation data results indicated that not only were cleanup levels met, sample concentrations were actually lower than the more conservative MCP Method 1 S-1 criteria.

An evaluation of the remedial actions was performed. The OPS Report (SWETS, 2000a) demonstrated that the selected remedial actions for AOC 43A were operating properly and successfully in accordance with applicable USEPA guidance. This OPS report was prepared prior to construction of the warehouse building in 2001 and should be revaluated based on current and proposed site conditions.

Building Construction/Well Replacement

AOC 32 and 43A underwent significant redevelopment in 2000. The two AOCs, now Lot 10, were modified by the construction of a large warehouse that was completed in 2001. As a result, major demolition, regrading, and building/paving construction has altered the site's physical setting and hydrogeologic conditions. The groundwater monitoring wells sampled as part of the MNA were destroyed. Thirteen (13) new monitoring wells and nine (9) piezometers were installed, to replace those destroyed during construction, in November 2001 to January 2002 (HAS, 2002).

The new warehouse and associated paved areas have significantly altered the ground surface and its capacity for recharge. Bedrock contour maps were developed by Shaw (USACE, 2005) for the areas beneath the site building that showed how bedrock can influence groundwater flow directions and affect contaminant transport related to the former source area that are now encompassed by the warehouse footprint. The warehouse slab foundation is likely founded directly on bedrock along its eastern side. The bedrock slopes downward to the west, east and north away from the rock mounds under the warehouse, separating groundwater flow directions in the area. The Draft 2003 Annual Summary Report (USACE, 2004) concluded that there is likely little or no groundwater in the thin overburden under the warehouse, thus preventing the transport and attenuation of some residual volatile organic compound (VOC) contamination in the overburden.

Monitored Natural Attenuation Assessment (MNAA)

A separate evaluation of monitored natural attenuation as the selected remedy at AOC 32 and 43A was performed. The Monitored Natural Attenuation Assessment (MNAA) Report (SWETS, 2000b & 2000c) summarized the data collected from MNAA field activities that began in January 1999, and presented the final assessment and recommendations concerning natural attenuation effectiveness based on ROD criteria. The report concluded that natural attenuation, supplemented with long-term groundwater monitoring and establishment of institutional controls, would be an effective remedial action at AOC 32 and 43A.

Four rounds of quarterly groundwater sampling were performed in January, April, July, and

October 1999. During each of the four sampling rounds, organic and inorganic compounds were detected in monitoring wells associated with AOC 43A at concentrations exceeding cleanup goals. There were two monitoring wells (43MA-93-10X and POL-3) which exhibited concentrations of organic compounds in excess of cleanup goals. The organic compounds detected, included EPH, VPH and trichloroethene. Two monitoring wells (43-MA-93-10X and POL2) exhibited concentrations of inorganics in excess of cleanup goals. Inorganics detected included arsenic, lead and manganese. Biodegradation of organic compounds was believed to be occurring at AOC 43A, based on the 1999 data, as evidenced by observed concentration decreases of organic compounds in groundwater over time, and by geochemical indicator parameters.

Four microwells (43MA-99-12X, 43MA-99-13X, 43MA-99-14X, and 43MA-99-15X) were installed in AOC 43A between March 29 and March 31, 1999 to investigate the presence or absence of chlorinated VOCs. One monitoring well (43MA-99-1IX) was installed on April 8, 1999 to provide an additional point of groundwater quality and confirm water table elevation and groundwater flow direction.

Long-term groundwater monitoring has been performed semi annually from 2002 through 2004. The USACE currently performs long-term monitoring at AOCs 32 and 43A. The long-term monitoring field activities performed at AOC 32 and 43A are summarized below:

- Thirteen monitoring wells (32M-01-13XBR, 32M-01-14XOB, 32M-01-14XBR, 32M-01-15XBR, 32M-01-16XBR, 32M-01-17XBR, 32M-01-18XBR, 43M-01-016XOB, 43M-01-16XBR, 43M-01-17XOB, 43M-01-17XBR, 43M-01-20XOB, and 43M-01-20XBR) and nine piezometers (32M-01-04XBR, 32M-01-05XOB, 32M-01-06XBR, 32M-01-07XOB, 32M-01-08XOB, 32M-01-09XOB, 32M-01-10XBR, 32M-01-11XBR, and 32M-01-12XBR) were installed between November 13, 2001 and January 2, 2002 to replace damaged groundwater monitoring points, to allow for continued groundwater elevation measurements and to collect groundwater quality samples to evaluate the effectiveness of the MNA remedial solution (HAS, 2002).
- Existing monitoring wells/piezometers remaining in the Long-Term Monitoring Plan (LTMP) include 32M-92-01X, 32Z-99-02X, 32M-92-03X, SHL-15, and SHL-25. Monitoring wells 43MA-93-05X, 63-BD-99-01, 63BD-99-02, 63BD-99-03, and 63BD-99-04, located on an adjoining site directly to the southeast, were incorporated into the LTMP for groundwater elevation information.
- The five wells in the neighboring property have not been included in groundwater elevation monitoring rounds in 2002-2005. A decision should be made about how these wells should be utilized in future sampling rounds, and the imminent 2005 revisions to the LTMP will provide that opportunity. For evaluation of volatiles at 32M-01-18XBR, it should be noted that 32M-01-04XBR, which is closer to the contaminated well, is recommended to be phased out for sampling but retained for water level monitoring: therefore sampling in the active parking lot area farther to the south would not provide useful chemical data, although water level data would be useful for a wider regional perspective.
- Two rounds of semi-annual groundwater sampling were performed at four (4) preexisting monitoring wells and thirteen (13) replacement monitoring wells each year during 2002, 2003, and 2004. Groundwater levels and light non-aqueous phase liquid (LNAPL) thickness measurements were recorded at twenty-six (26) monitoring wells and

one piezometer during January 2002, April 2002, July 2002, October 2002, March 2003, June 2003, September 2003, December 2003, May 2004, and October 2004.

Results of the quarterly sampling performed in 1999, prior to construction of the warehouse, indicated that MNA was viable. After development of the site, Shaw performed post-construction groundwater sampling between January 2002 and December 2003 (Shaw, 2004). Four pre-existing and 14 replacement wells were sampled for VOCs, VPH, EPH, PCBs, and some inorganic MNA parameters. Results obtained in 2003, for AOC 32, showed concentrations exceeding cleanup goals only in bedrock source well 32M-01-18XBR for 1,4-dichlorobenzene, 1,2- dichlorobenzene, VPH C9-C10 aromatics and manganese (total and dissolved). Results obtained in 2003, for AOC 43, did not show any exceedances. Shaw concluded that results from the three sampling rounds performed in 2003 showed overall progressive attenuation of COCs (Shaw, 2004). Results obtained in 2004 show a steady or fluctuating trend at 32M-01-18XBR (USACE, 2005b), indicating that site contaminants may not be attenuating as anticipated. Additional details on analytical results are discussed in Section 7.5.2.

Institutional Controls

The ROD stipulated that Institutional Controls (ICs) should be imposed on the properties to limit potential exposure to groundwater under both existing and future site conditions. ICs would ensure that exposure to and extraction of groundwater from the site for industrial and/or potable water supply would not be permitted. The ICs for AOCs 32 and 43A were specified in the FOST, dated May 2000 and were incorporated into the deed prior to property transfer. The deed restriction on parcel A-3 (the subject site), preventing groundwater extraction, was recorded in June 2000. A copy of the a deed is included in Appendix F. Based on information collected during this review, this IC is effective in ensuring the protectiveness of the remedy.

7.3.5 Systems Operation/Operations and Maintenance

Groundwater monitoring is being performed in accordance with the LTMP (SWETS 2001a, b) for AOC 32 and 43A. Since the LTMP was developed for the former site configuration and available well network, it should serve as a rough guide to the current program. Additional discussions are ongoing to develop an updated LTMP appropriate to current site conditions. If further development of the site occurs as proposed, then additional adjustments to the LTMP will be necessary.

7.4 Progress Since the Last Five-Year Review

This is the second Five-Year Review for AOCs 32 and 43A. The Protectiveness Statement from the first Five-Year Review indicated that the remedies at AOC 32 and 43A were expected to be protective of human health and the environment upon completion and immediate threats were addressed.

Findings and recommendations of the first Five-Year Review included the following:

- Surface and subsurface soil remedial actions were successfully completed at AOC 32 and no additional actions were necessary.
- Institutional controls, established in the ROD and described in further detail in the OPS (SWETs, 2000a), should be imposed on the properties to limit potential exposure to groundwater under both existing and future site conditions. ICs would ensure that exposure to and extraction of groundwater from the site, for industrial and/or potable

water supply, would not be permitted. The ICs for AOCs 32 and 43A would need to be incorporated either in full or by reference into deeds, easement, mortgages, or other instruments of property transfer. The ICs were specified in the FOST, dated May 2000, and were incorporated into the deed prior to property transfer.

AOC 43A underwent significant redevelopment in 2000. As a result, major demolition, regrading, including the removal of bedrock outcrops that may have provided recharge to the source areas, and building/paving construction has altered the site's physical setting and hydrology. All of the groundwater monitoring wells sampled as part of the MNAA were destroyed during these activities. At the time, the Army intended to install source area monitoring wells and re-initiate long-term monitoring in late Fall of 2000. In addition, piezometers were to be installed and monitored to characterize the newly-altered flow field. Sentinel wells were to be installed in appropriate locations to complete the monitoring locations. Thirteen (13) new monitoring wells and nine (9) new piezometers were installed between 2001 and 2002.

7.5 Five-Year Review Process

7.5.1 Document Review

The following documents were reviewed for this Five-Year Review:

- Remedial Investigation Volume II and III prepared by Ecology and Environmental, Inc., August 1994.
- Record of Decision prepared by Horne Engineering Services, Inc., February 1998.
- Final MNA Assessment Report AOCs 32/43A, Vol. I & II prepared by Stone and Webster Environmental Technology & Services, December 2000.
- Final MNA Assessment Report AOCs 32/43A, Vol. II, Appendix E Long Term Monitoring Plan prepared by Stone and Webster Environmental Technology & Services, April 2001.
- Draft Final Data Report, Replacement GW Monitoring Wells and Piezometers, AOC 32/43A prepared by Haley & Aldrich, Inc., May 2002.
- Draft 2003 Annual Report prepared by U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, July 2004.
- Spring 2004 Semi-Annual Report prepared by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, February 2005.
- Draft 2004 Annual Report prepared by U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, July 2005.

7.5.2 Data Review

Since 2001, eleven (11) monitoring wells (32M-92-01X, 32M-92-03X, 32M-01-04XBR, 32M-01-13XBR, 32M-01-15XBR, 32M-01-16XBR, 32M-01-17XBR, 43M-01-16XBR, 43M-01-17XBR, 43M-01-20XOB, and 43M-01-20XBR) continue to have no exceedances throughout the post-construction long-term monitoring period. There have been no exceedances of PCBs or EPH cleanup goals for the site detected to date in these 11 wells. The one exceedance of a Massachusetts EPH standard remained below the cleanup goal for the site.

Seven monitoring wells have exhibited at least one exceedance of a COC since 2001. AOC 32 wells exhibited sporadic exceedances of arsenic, manganese, and lead in overburden/bedrock well pair 32M-01-14X, and lead in 32Z-99-02X. AOC 43A wells exhibited sporadic exceedances of some VPH and arsenic in 43M-01-17XOB, and manganese only in 43M-01-20XBR. There were no exceedances in the AOC 43A wells in the 2003 sampling period.

Bedrock source well 32M-01-18XBR continues to be the only location exhibiting exceedances (VOCs, VPH, and manganese). A fluctuation in VOC concentrations has been observed suggesting that site contaminants are not attenuating as anticipated. Nearby bedrock wells continue to exhibit no exceedances. A summary of the wells with exceedances is included in the following table:

WELL	APRIL 2002 and OCTOBER 2002	JUNE/SEPT 2003 DECEMBER 2003	MAY 2004	OCTOBER 2004
	AOC 32	WELLS - EXCEED	ANCES	
32M-01-18XBR	VOCs; VPH; Mn	VOCs; VPH; Mn	VOCs; VPH;	VOCs; VPH; Mn
	VOCs; VPH; Mn	VOCs; VPH; Mn	Mn	
32M-01-14XBR	No exceedances	Arsenic and Lead	No	No exceedances
		No exceedances	exceedances	
32M-01-14XOB	No exceedances	Manganese only	No	Manganese only
		Manganese only	exceedances	
32Z-99-02X	Lead only	No exceedances	No	No exceedances
			exceedances	
SHL-15	Arsenic and	No exceedances	No	Arsenic only
	Manganese		exceedances	
	No exceedances			
	AOC	43A – EXCEEDANG	CES	
43M-01-17XOB	VPH and Arsenic	No exceedances	No	Methane only;
	Arsenic only		exceedances	(exceeded MCP limit
				but not site-specific
				cleanup goal)
43M-01-20XBR	Manganese only	No exceedances	No	No exceedances
	Manganese only		exceedances	

The following tables are included in Appendix F: Analytical results presented in Tables D-1 and D-2 were reprinted from the 2003 Annual Report, Table 2 is reprinted from the Spring 2004 Semi-Annual Report, and Table 6-3 which was provided by the USACE.

In the Draft 2004 Annual Report (USACE 2005b) the USACE has suggested that several wells be removed from the list of sampled wells since contaminant concentrations in these wells have been below cleanup goals for two years. If implemented, these changes would reduce the number of sampled locations by seven wells to the west of the warehouse and by one well at the south-east entrance to the property. These recommendations are supported by USEPA/USACE guidance in Roadmap to Long-Term Monitoring Optimization (USEPA/USACE 2005), which in Tables 2.4.1 and 2.4.2 cite contaminant concentrations consistently below cleanup levels or detection limits and distance from a source area as valid justifications to remove a well from a monitoring network. The changes and reasons why, including an analysis of the date, will be detailed in the updated LTMP.

The Draft 2004 Annual Report (USACE 2005b) further proposes that the analyte list be reduced. Analyses no longer required would be EPH, PCBs, and dissolved metals. The recommendations are based on a history of non-detects, or of detections below cleanup goals, or for filtered metals on the essential duplication with the unfiltered samples being taken for metals analysis.

7.5.2.1 Natural Attenuation

Natural attenuation parameters (dissolved oxygen [DO] and oxidation reduction potential $[ORP]/E_h$) are only useful from bedrock source well 32M-01-18XBR, as it is the only well that continues to show exceedances of organic parameters. Low values of DO and ORP/E_h are well into the ranges indicating anaerobic conditions. Both have decreased markedly since 2002. This well is located beneath pavement adjacent to the warehouse and the lack of groundwater recharge is reflected in the DO values.

Score sheets were developed for this well, indicating that the evidence for bioremediation of the chlorinated VOCs to be occurring at the well is likely inadequate, and at best limited (USACE 2005b).

The Draft Annual Report (USACE 2005b) recommends that the analyte be further reduced (See section 7.5.2 above) to exclude NH₃, TOC, COD, dissolved gases, alkalinity and anions, the recommendation is based on the assessment that bioremediation of chlorinated organics is not occurring in Well 32M-01-18XBR, which is the most contaminated well, and one of the few listed in Table 7-4 as having had any exceedances of contaminant goals. Since the compounds would be monitored to develop a score for bioremediation, which is not likely, the tests would not be returning useful data, and field monitoring of DO and ORP/E_h could be used instead.

The changes, if adopted, will need to be incorporated into the revisions of the LTMP.

7.5.2.2 New Bedrock Topography

The warehouse was completed in 2001. The new warehouse and its associated pavements have significantly altered the ground surface and its capacity for recharge. Shaw Environmental, Inc. developed a more accurate contour map for bedrock under the warehouse that shows how the bedrock can influence groundwater flow directions and affect contaminant transport related to the former source areas that are now encompassed by the warehouse footprint (Figure 4 reprinted from the 2003 Annual Report and presented in Appendix F). The warehouse slab foundation is likely founded directly on the bedrock along its eastern side and overlies two topographic mounds. Test pits dug in these areas showed shallow bedrock as high as El. 270 feet. The finish floor is at El. 263.5 feet, and it is likely that excavation for the slab foundation extended several feet below this level. Therefore, rock was probably removed to at least El. 260 feet in places (USACE, 2004).

7.5.2.3 Groundwater Flow in Bedrock

The contours show the rock surface slopes east and west away from the two bedrock mounds under the warehouse, separating groundwater flow directions in the area. Flow in bedrock (Figure 5 reprinted from the 2003 Annual Report and presented in Appendix F) is likely to follow fractures and topographic gradients toward these depressions to the east and west. However, the actual presence of groundwater and flow paths in the bedrock is unknown under the building. The warehouse and its surrounding pavements significantly prevent recharge to the bedrock from infiltration through the overburden. Actual pathways for groundwater flow through fractures are not known.

The groundwater flow gradient in bedrock is interpreted from wells surrounding the building. Actual flow paths across the site are unknown because of few data points and the complexity of flow systems in fractured bedrock. The wells on the east side related to AOC 32 and the former UST are:

- Three bedrock source wells (32M-01-03XBR, 32M-01-15XBR, and 32M-01-18XBR).
- Two bedrock sentry wells (32M-01-16XBR AND 32M-01-17XBR).
- One overburden/bedrock (OB/BR) sentry well pair (32M-01-14).
- Distant sentry well SHL-25.

The wells on the west side related to the AOC 43A POL storage area include:

- OB/BR source well pairs 43M-01-17 and 43M-01-16.
- OB/BR sentry well pair 43M-01-20.
- Distant sentry well 32M-92-03X.

The validity of several bedrock wells has been called into question with the observation that water levels in bedrock wells in the depressions on the east and west side of the building were above the bedrock surface, which might indicate upwelling. The water levels recorded in the overburden and bedrock in the paired well sets were reviewed, and the following variations were noted (USACE, 2005b):

- OB/BR well pair 32M-01-14 shows, consistently, levels in the bedrock clearly above the bedrock surface and slightly above the corresponding levels in overburden.
- OB/BR well pairs 43M-01-16, 43M-01-17, and 43M-01-20 show levels in overburden and bedrock to be above the bedrock surface, but nearly identical to each other.
- The remaining bedrock wells have no overburden companion wells to compare to and show levels both above and below the bedrock surface.

The coincidence of water levels in the overburden and bedrock suggests that the bedrock in the screened interval is not isolated from the overburden or the well seals are inadequate. Since there are few reliable data points to determine flow directions in bedrock, drilling and well construction logs, water recovery rates during sampling, and other physical features were reviewed for the 2004 Annual Report (USACE 2005b) to evaluate the validity of the readings from the assumed bedrock aquifer.

The AOC 43A well-pair sampling in October 2004 was reviewed in light of the hypothesis that the deep wells were being influenced by the overburden water table. In all three cases, the hydraulic behavior and equilibration parameters were different enough (overburden versus bedrock) to refute the assumption of leaking between the two (overburden and bedrock) wells (USACE 2005b).

7.5.2.4 Groundwater Flow in Overburden

The new bedrock contour map shows overburden under the warehouse is absent to thin along the east side (less then 10 feet thick between the mounds), and thickens to about 45 feet at well 43M-

01-17XOB along the building's west margin. Hydraulic gradients in the overburden follow those contours (Figures 6 reprinted from the 2003 Annual Report and presented in Appendix F). The residual contamination in the source areas appears to be encapsulated under the warehouse structure with little to no groundwater in the thin overburden, thus preventing the transport and attenuation of some residual VOC contamination in the overburden. The warehouse and its surrounding pavements also significantly limit direct recharge to the overburden from surface infiltration.

7.5.3 Site Inspection

On April 21, 2005, a Nobis representative performed site inspections at AOCs 32 and 43A. Conditions during the inspection were favorable with no precipitation and temperatures in the 50s.

AOC 32/43A is located in the northeast corner of the main post at Devens. The majority of the site is comprised of a 45,000 square foot warehouse building that is currently partially occupied. Other features located at these AOCs included paved and landscaped areas and a fence along the northern boundary of the property. The site is bound by Shepley's Hill Landfill to the north, Cook Street to the west, Antietam Street to the south and west and undeveloped areas to the east.

All of the buildings associated with or near AOCs 32 and 43A have been removed and were replaced with a large warchouse that covers both AOCs. New monitoring wells were installed after the completion of the warehouse. However, the new monitoring network did not include groundwater monitoring in the former source areas that now lie under the building. Nobis observed that monitoring well 43M-01-16XBR was missing its road box. A road cone was covering the PVC stickup of the well.

7.5.4 Interviews

The following individuals were interviewed as part of the Five-Year review:

- Ms. Ellen Iorio, USACE, New England District
- Mr. Dave Salvador, MADEP
- Mr. Takashi Tada, Contractor, Devens Reserve Forces Training Area (RFTA)
- Mr. Ron Ostrowski, Mass Development
- Mr. Robert Simeone, Devens RFTA

All personnel were interviewed on April 21, 2005, while performing the site visit, with select follow-up conversations or correspondence. Ms. Iorio and Mr. Tada referred Nobis to the MNA Assessment Report completed by Stone and Webster in 2000/2001 for an evaluation of remedy performance.

Ms. Iorio indicated that since construction of the warehouse building, a fluctuation in VOC concentrations has been observed in well 32M-01-18XBR suggesting that site contaminants are not attenuating as anticipated. In addition, the LTMP is in the process of being updated since it was prepared prior to redevelopment of the site in 2001. Ms. Iorio also indicated there are plans to expand the warehouse building in the Spring of 2006.

7.5.5 Community Participation

The Army has held regular and frequent informational meetings, issued fact sheets and press releases, and held public meetings to keep the community and other interested parties informed of activities at AOC 32/43A.

On June 18, 1997, the Army issued the proposed plan to citizens and organizations to provide the public with a brief explanation of the Army's preferred remedy for cleanup at both AOC 32 and AOC 43A. The feasibility study and proposed plan for AOC 32/43A were made available for review at local libraries and a formal 30-day public comment period was conducted from June 18 through July 18, 1997. On July 17, 1997, the Army held a public information meeting at Devens to present the proposed plan to the public, accept verbal or written comments from the public, and discuss the cleanup alternatives evaluated in the FS.

Currently the RAB meets every other month and provides advice to the installation and regulatory agencies on the Devens RFTA cleanup programs. Specific responsibilities include: addressing cleanup issues such as land use and cleanup goals, reviewing plans and documents, identifying proposed requirements and priorities, and conducting regular meetings that are open to the public. At various times throughout the review period significant events for AOC 32/43A were discussed at the RAB meetings. As appropriate, pertinent documents were distributed to and reviewed by the RAB members. Items discussed, included, but not limited to, development of a LTMP, property transfer, construction at the site and replacement of monitoring wells.

7.6 Technical Assessment

Question A: Is the Remedy Functioning as Intended by the Decision Documents?

Remedial Action Performance: The excavation and off-site disposal of contaminated soils have been effective at immobilizing the petroleum related contaminants and has met the objectives of the remedial actions.

Groundwater data has indicated that off-site migration is not occurring; however, a fluctuation in VOC concentrations has been observed in well 32M-01-18XBR, suggesting that site contaminants are not attenuating as anticipated. The LTMP is currently being updated and will address the off-site migration, trend analysis, and an evaluation of remedial durations.

System Operations/Operation and Maintenance (Long-Term Groundwater Monitoring): Groundwater monitoring is performed in accordance with the LTMP (SWETS 2001a, b) for AOC 32/43A. The LTMP was developed prior to construction activities that occurred at the site circa 2001. Yearly O&M costs for implementation of the remedy are not readily available for review.

Opportunities for Optimization: Groundwater sampling has been conducted in broad accordance with the LTMP. However, performing low flow sampling at a lower purge rate as outlined in the EPA Low Stress (Low Flow) Purging and Sampling Procedure for the Collection of Ground Water Samples from Monitoring Wells (0.1 - 0.4 L/minute) (EPA Region I, Revision 2, June 30, 1996) and maintaining a consistent purge rate throughout sampling may provide more representative results. Shaw and the Corps of Engineers implemented this recommendation and have sampled according to the EPA Low Flow method since 2002.

Early Indicators of Potential Remedy Failure: Little or no reduction in VOC concentrations is occurring at monitoring well 32M-01-18XBR. This indicator should be reevaluated after the LTMP is revised.

Implementation of Institutional Controls and Other Measures: There are no current or future plans for development of sensitive land uses or installation of potable drinking water wells at AOCs 32 and 43A. A copy of the deed which contains the institutional controls is included in Appendix F. Based on information collected during this review, this IC is effective in ensuring the remedy's protectiveness since exposures to contaminants are not allowed to occur.

Question B: Are the exposure assumptions, toxicity data, cleanup levels, and remedial objectives used at the time of remedy selection still valid?

Changes in Standards and To Be Considered: As part of this Five-Year Review, ARARs and to be considered (TBC) guidance for the Site presented in the ROD were reviewed, and a review of current ARARs was conducted. A few changes have been promulgated since the ROD was signed. See Section 7.6.2, ARARs.

Excavation activities at AOC 32 were completed in 1998. The RAOs for soil specified in the ROD have been permanently achieved. There are no current ARARs that apply to soil contaminants at the Site. Because the cleanup goals for soil at AOC 32 were based on human health risk assessment levels determined specifically for the site or on RCRA action levels and contaminated soils were removed, changes to soil TBCs do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

The Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs) are health-based guidelines established by the U.S. EPA. The MCL for arsenic (50 μ g/L), in effect at the time of the ROD, was selected as a cleanup goal for groundwater. Arsenic was present on site at concentrations greater than its MCL (50 μ g/L) during the remedial investigation and was identified as a primary risk driver for the ingestion of groundwater exposure pathway at AOC 32. The MCL for arsenic has been updated since the 1998 ROD. The MCL for arsenic was lowered to 10 μ g/L, effective February 2002. Because the remedy prohibits the use of groundwater as drinking water, changes to groundwater standards do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy since exposures are effectively prevented.

Changes in Exposure Pathways: The ROD identified unacceptable risks from the following exposure pathways: ingestion of groundwater as the primary drinking water source at both AOCs 32 and 43A; and direct contact with and ingestion of contaminated soils by current and future site workers and future construction workers at AOC 32. Based on indications from analytical results of confirmatory soil samples collected from excavated areas, the excavation and removal of contaminated soil from AOC 32 have eliminated the direct contact exposures to contaminated soils.

Institutional controls prohibiting the use of site groundwater as drinking water at both AOCs 32 and 43A have effectively eliminated exposures via ingestion of groundwater. The construction of a large warehouse was completed in 2001. The warehouse and associated pavements now cover much of both AOCs 32 and 43A. Land use at the Site has not changed from the presumed future industrial use evaluated prior to the ROD and is not expected to change; expansion of the commercial warehouse is currently a near-term possibility. Current use is in compliance with deed restrictions on groundwater extraction recorded in November 1997 for parcel A-3, which is AOCs 32 and 43A.

The recent construction of the warehouse results in a potential exposure pathway if inhalation of vapors diffused from groundwater via soil gas into indoor air is occurring. This potential pathway was anticipated and evaluated in the RI for AOC 32 prior to the ROD for future on-site workers. No unacceptable risks were found based on modeled indoor air concentrations developed from site groundwater and soil concentrations at the time of the RI preparation (circa 1994).

As groundwater concentrations of VOCs in well 32M-01-18XBR are a potential concern for humans working within on-site buildings now or in the future, the vapor intrusion pathway should be evaluated in accordance with the *Draft Guidance for Evaluating the Vapor Intrusion to Indoor Air Pathway from Groundwater and Soils (Subsurface Vapor Intrusion Guidance) EPA530-F-02-052*, dated November 2002. A site-specific assessment is recommended to determine whether the pathway is complete, including evaluation of subslab soil gas and (if warranted) indoor air concentrations and/or site-specific mathematical modeling. The cleanup goals established in the ROD meet the target concentrations identified in the noted guidance. Therefore, the cleanup goals remain protective, while existing concentrations exceed the target concentrations. The schedule for finalizing the EPA Draft Guidance is not known, but the most up-to-date guidance should be used in the evaluation.

The MCP defines a potential source of vapors to indoor air when groundwater is less than 15 feet below the ground surface and within 30 feet of a structure. The observed VOC concentrations do not exceed their respective current Method 1 GW-2 vapor intrusion standards, with the exception of C9-C10 aromatics (estimated at 5,600 parts per billion [ppb] in the May 2004 sampling round, compared to a GW-2 value of 5,000 ppb). MADEP has proposed revisions to the Method 1 GW-2 standards (September 2004), but they are not yet promulgated. The most up-to-date standards will be used in the evaluation. Given the measured depths to groundwater (greater than 15 feet) in the vicinity of the warehouse, indoor air exposure associated with potential vapor intrusion is not anticipated.

Changes in Exposure Assumptions: The risk assessments supporting the RODs for AOCs 32 and 43A used exposure assumptions that were conventional at the time. Since that time, EPA has updated some of the recommended dermal contact exposure assumptions. New guidance for evaluating dermal contact exposures was finalized in July 2004 (*Risk Assessment Guidance for Superfund, Volume 1 -- Human Health Evaluation Manual - Part E, Supplemental Guidance for Dermal Risk Assessment - Final*). Because the remedy includes prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water and excavation of contaminated soils, changes to the exposure parameters do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Changes in Toxicity and Other Contaminant Characteristics: The carcinogenic toxicity of trichloroethylene (TCE) is currently under review. Preliminary suggestions are that TCE is more toxic than previously thought; however, revised toxicity factors have not yet been finalized. Because the remedy includes prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water, changes to the toxicity of groundwater contaminants do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Changes in Risk Assessment Methodologies: The methods for evaluating dermal contact exposures have changed since the time of the risk assessments supporting the RODs for AOCs 32 and 43A, based on EPA's <u>Risk Assessment Guidance for Superfund, Volume I – Human Health</u> <u>Evaluation Manual – Part E, Supplemental Guidance for Dermal Risk Assessment – Final</u>, July 2004. The human health and ecological risks discussed in the ROD have been eliminated by the

excavation and removal of soils and the institutional controls, including the deed restriction prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water. Therefore, while the methods for evaluating dermal contact exposures have changed since the time of the risk assessments supporting the RODs for AOCs 32 and 43A, these risk assessment methodology changes do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

Question C: Has any other information come to light that could call into question the protectiveness of the remedy?

Additional information, other than noted above, that would call into question the protectiveness of the remedy was not noted. No natural disaster impacts occurred at AOC 32/43A during this review period.

7.6.1 Summary of Technical Assessment

The excavation and off-site disposal of contaminated soils have been effective at immobilizing the petroleum related contaminants and has met the objectives of the remedial actions.

Groundwater data has indicated that off-site migration is not occurring, however a fluctuation in VOCs concentrations has been observed in well 32M-01-18XBR suggesting that site contaminants are not attenuating as anticipated. Low-flow sampling, as outlined in the EPA Low Stress (Low Flow) Method (add reference) was implemented in 2002, and sampling since this time has continued to follow this methodology. Therefore, the lack of consistency in results cannot be attributed to the sampling method.

Vapor intrusion is a recently emerging exposure pathway that is undergoing increased scrutiny by regulatory agencies. EPA has recently provided widely used guidance in the November 2002 Draft Guidance for Evaluating the Vapor Intrusion to Indoor Air Pathway from Groundwater and Soils (Subsurface Vapor Intrusion Guidance) EPA530-F-02-052. Comparison of groundwater concentrations to existing MADEP standards for protection of indoor air indicates that indoor air risks are not likely to be problematic (i.e., the current standards are not exceeded) at AOC 32/43A. However, because those MADEP standards are in the process of being revised, vapor intrusion should be further evaluated as existing groundwater concentrations of VOCs in well 32M-01-18XBR are elevated, and may be a potential concern for humans working within on-site buildings now or in the future. A site-specific assessment is recommended using a tiered approach that begins with simple comparisons of measured groundwater contaminant concentrations to published concentrations that are protective of indoor air. If warranted, sitespecific mathematical modeling, or measurement of sub-slab soil gas and indoor air concentrations also could be included at the higher potential investigative tiers. The cleanup goals established in the ROD meet the target concentrations identified in the EPA guidance and are therefore protective; however, the existing concentrations in groundwater exceed the ROD target concentrations. If updated versions of guidance or newly promulgated standards become available, they will be considered during the vapor intrusion evaluation.

While the methods for evaluating dermal contact exposures have changed since the time of the risk assessments supporting the RODs for AOCs 32 and 43A, these risk assessment methodology changes do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy, since the use of groundwater as drinking water has been prohibited.

7.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review

ARARs presented in Table 24, reprinted from the ROD, are appended in Appendix F. The standards and regulations, current at the signing of the ROD and for the first Five-Year site review, have been reviewed for changes that could affect protectiveness.

ARARs presented in Table 25 of the ROD pertain to excavation and off-site disposal of soil and subsurface soil. Excavation activities were completed in 1998 and the RAOs specified in the ROD have been permanently achieved. Therefore, the ARARs in Table 25 were not reviewed for this Five-Year review.

The following ARARs listed in Appendix E have been modified since signing of the ROD and the first Five-Year review that may affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedial action:

- 40 CFR 141.11 Subpart B Maximum Contaminant Levels was updated July 1, 2001. Section 141.11 (a) and (b) was amended at 66 FR 7061 on January 22, 2001 to state the following:
 - a) *** The analyses and determination of compliance with 50 μ g/L MCL for arsenic use the requirements of 141.23.
 - b) The MCL for arsenic is 50 μ g/L for community water systems until January 23, 2006.

On January 22, 2001, EPA adopted a new standard for arsenic in drinking water at 10 μ g/L, replacing the old standard of 50 μ g/L (66FR6976). The rule became effective on February 22, 2002. The date by which systems must comply with the new 10 μ g/L standard is January 23, 2006.

- 40 CFR 141.15 and 141.16 Subpart B Maximum Contaminant Levels were updated July 1, 2003. An effective date note (65 FR 76745) removed the sections from the Code of Federal Regulations effective December 8, 2003. Sections 141.15 and 141.16 do not appear in 40 CFR 141 updated on July 1, 2004. These two sections addressed MCLs for radium-226, radium-228, gross alpha particle radioactivity, and beta and photon radioactivity, which do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.
- 40 CFR 141.51 Subpart F Maximum Contaminant Level Goals and Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goals was updated July 1, 2001. The table was amended in Section 141.51 by adding arsenic with a MCLG of zero effective January 23, 2006 (66 FR 7063). Until then, there is no MCLG.
- 310 CMR 22.0 Drinking Water was updated on May 24, 2004. The arsenic MCL, 10 μg/L, listed in Section 22.06 is effective for the purpose of compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations (outlined above) on January 23, 2006.
- 310 CMR 30.00 "Hazardous Waste" was updated February 27, 2004. There are no revisions 310 CMR 30.660-30.679 "Groundwater Protection" that affect the protectiveness of the remedy.
- USEPA reference dose (RfD) and health advisories (HA) are requirements designated as TBC. These requirements were updated in the USEPA 2004 Edition of the Drinking Water Standards and Health Advisories, dated Winter 2004.

In addition, a search was performed for any newly promulgated standards, which could affect protectiveness at the site. No new pertinent ARARs were identified.

7.7 Issues

The Army has installed source area groundwater monitoring wells and re-initiated long-term monitoring. After construction of the building, additional wells were installed to replace destroyed wells in conjunction with regulatory approval. The 2003 annual groundwater monitoring report and the groundwater sampling data from fall and spring 2004 document that natural attenuation is effectively remediating groundwater at AOCs 32 and 43A, with the possible exception of one location (32M-01-18XBR). Groundwater sampling results from all other locations are below cleanup goals. Contamination at the bedrock source well 32M-01-18XBR is limited to some VOCs, VPH C₉-C₁₀ aromatics, and manganese. However, groundwater may not be recharging AOC 32 and 43A source areas (the warehouse and its pavements are reducing groundwater recharge from surface water infiltration) resulting in less attenuation due to recharge. The capping effect of the building and pavement is creating anaerobic conditions, but not sufficient for dechlorination of the chlorobenzene compounds. If conditions become sufficiently reducing, the potential for anaerobic de-chlorination of the chlorobenzene compounds exists, if the bacterial community can support this degradation process.

The LTMP was developed for the former site configuration and well network. The LTMP is currently being updated for the current site configuration. Since there are plans to expand the warehouse, the LTMP should take into account these proposed modifications to the site.

Issues	Affects Protectiveness (Y/N)		
	Current	Future	
Long Term Monitoring Plan (LTMP) was developed based on previous site configuration.	Y	Y	
Potential expansion to site building in Spring 2006	Y	Y	
Evaluation of vapor intrusion potential in accordance with Draft Vapor Intrusion Guidance, November 2002	Y	Y	

A summary of the issues is as follows:

7.8 Recommendations and Follow-up Actions

Regional groundwater flows should be evaluated to include: Shepley's Hill Landfill, the Stormwater Detention system for the West Rail Area, and AOC 32/43A during the update of LTMP to reflect the post construction conditions at the warehouse. The long-term monitoring is currently performed on a semi-annual basis, and no reduction in sampling frequency is recommended at this time. Specific modifications to the sampling program will be presented in the updated LTMP.

Based on current and planned site conditions, a tiered approach to a site-specific vapor intrusion assessment is recommended. The assessment should include evaluation of subslab soil gas and indoor air concentrations (if warranted) and/or site-specific mathematical modeling in accordance with the November 2002, EPA Draft Subsurface Vapor Intrusion Guidance. The cleanup goals established in the ROD meet the target concentrations identified in the noted 2002 guidance, although the existing concentrations in groundwater exceed the target concentrations. The

existing remedy is considered to be protective because the cleanup goals remain protective and the concentrations in groundwater do not exceed the current MADEP Method 1 GW-2 standards (these are protective of indoor vapor intrusion and may soon be revised). Updates or revisions to the guidance and standards also should be considered at the time of the evaluation.

Recommendations/ Follow Up Actions	Party Responsible	Oversight Agency	Milestone Date	Do Follow-Up Actions: Affect Protectiveness (Y/N)	
				Current	Future
Submit updated Long Term Monitoring Plan.	Army, BRAC	U.S. EPA, Region 1	November 2005	Y	Y
Repair damaged monitoring wells	Army, BRAC	U.S. EPA, Region 1	December 2005	Y	Y
Vapor Intrusion Evaluation	Army, BRAC	U.S. EPA, Region 1	March 2006	Y	Y

Based on the noted conditions and issues, the following follow-up actions are planned for AOC 32/43A:

7.9 Protectiveness Statement

The remedy at AOC 32 and AOC 43A currently protects human health and the environment because ICs are incorporated into the deed that prohibit the extraction of groundwater from the site for industrial and/or potable use and contaminants are not migrating off-site. However, in order for the remedy to be protective in the long-term, the recommendations and follow-up actions detailed in Section 7.8 need to be taken to ensure long-term protectiveness.

Current remedial action activity consists of implementing the remaining components specified in the ROD: the long term groundwater monitoring program, utilizing ICs, modeling, annual reporting, evaluation of the MNA performance and Five-Year site reviews. These components enable continued assessment for compliance with performance standards and reporting of remedial progress.

7.10 Next Review

This is the second Five-Year review that has been performed at either AOC. The next review will be performed within five years of the completion of this five-year review report. The completion date is the date on which USEPA issues its letter to the Army either concurring with report's findings or documenting reasons for non-concurrence.

7.11 References

Ecology and Environment, Inc., 1994. Remedial Investigation Volume II and III; August 1994.

 Haley & Aldrich, Inc. (HAS), 2002. "Final Data Report on Replacement Groundwater Monitoring Wells and Piezometers", AOC 43A/AOC 32 DRMO, Devens, Massachusetts. Prepared for the BRAC Environmental Office, Devens, Massachusetts; May 2002.

- Harding Lawson Associates (HLA), 2000. "Final First Five Year Review Report". Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; September 2000.
- Horne Engineering Services, Inc., 1998. "Final Record of Decision", Defense Reutilization and Marketing Office Yard (AOC 32) and Petroleum, Oils, and Lubricants Storage Area (AOC 43A), Devens, Massachusetts. Prepared for the U.S. Army Environmental Center, Restoration, Program Management & Oversight Division, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland; February 1998.
- Roy F. Weston, Inc., 2000, "Final Soils Remedial Action Operable Unit Completion Report: Soil, Asphalt, And Debris Removal, AOC 32". Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; January 2000
- Shaw Environmental, Inc. (Shaw), 2004. "Draft Work in Progress, Groundwater Sampling Summary Report-January 2002 to December 2003". Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; February 2004.
- Stone and Webster Environmental Technology & Services (SWETS), 2000a. "Final Demonstration of Remedial Actions Operating Properly and Successfully", AOCs 32 and 43A, DRMO and POL, Devens, Massachusetts. Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; February 2000.
- Stone and Webster Environmental Technology & Services (SWETS), 2000b. "Monitored Natural Attenuation Assessment Report", Volumes I and II, AOC 32 DRMO, Devens, Massachusetts. Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; May 2000.
- Stone and Webster Environmental Technology & Services (SWETS), 2000c. "Monitored Natural Attenuation Assessment Report', Volumes I and II, AOC 43A POL, Devens, Massachusetts. Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; May 2000.
- Stone and Webster Environmental Technology & Services (SWETS), 2001a. "Monitored Natural Attenuation Assessment Report', Volume II and II – Appendix E, Long Term Monitoring Plan, AOC 32 DRMO, Devens, Massachusetts. Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; April 2001.
- Stone and Webster Environmental Technology & Services (SWETS), 2001b. "Monitored Natural Attenuation Assessment Report', Volume II and II – Appendix E, Long Term Monitoring Plan, AOC 43A POL, Devens, Massachusetts. Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; April 2001.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2004. "Draft 2003 Annual Report", AOC 32 and 43A Long Term Groundwater Monitoring, Devens, Massachusetts; July 2004.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2005a. "Spring 2004 Semi-Annual Report", AOC 32 and 43A Long Term Groundwater Monitoring, Devens, Massachusetts; February 2005.

- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2005b. "Draft 2005 2004 Annual Report", AOC 32 and 43A Long Term Groundwater Monitoring, Devens, Massachusetts; July 2005.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 1 (USEPA), 1996. "Low Stress (Low Flow) Purging and Sampling Procedure for the Collection of Ground Water Samples from Monitoring Wells". SOP # GW 0001; Revision Number: 2; July 30, 1996.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA), 2002. "Draft for Evaluating the Vapor Intrusion to Indoor Air Pathway From Groundwater and Soils (Subsurface Vapor Intrusion), EPA530-F-02-052; November 2002.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) with US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2005. "Roadmap to Long-Term Monitoring Optimization", EPA 542-R-05-003; May 2005.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and U.S. Air Force (USAF) Center for Environmental Excellence, 1995. <u>Technical Protocol for Implementing Intrinsic</u> <u>Remediation with Long-Term Monitoring for Natural Attenuation of Fuel Contamination</u> <u>Dissolved in Groundwater</u>; November 1995

8.0 AOC 69W FIVE-YEAR STATUTORY SITE REVIEW

8.1 Site Chronology

Event	Date
Fuel line crimp during underground storage tank (UST) installation leaked approximately 7,000 to 8,000-gallons of No. 2 fuel oil was released to the ground	1972
Oil recovery system installed	1972-1973
Underground fuel line failed at a pipe joint and approximately 7,000 to 8,000-gallons of No. 2 fuel oil was released to the ground	1978
Site Investigation (SI) performed	1994
Removal action of contaminated soil from 1972 leak and oil recovery system	1997-1998
Remedial Investigation (RI) completed	1998
Limited Action Record Of Decision (ROD) signed	1999
First Five-Year Review	September 2000
Long term monitoring	2000 to present
Draft Operating Properly and Successfully (OPS) Document Submitted	June 2005
Second Five-Year Review	September 2005

Table 8-1 Chronology of Site Events

8.2 Background

Area of Concern (AOC) 69W is located at the northeast corner of the intersection of MacArthur Avenue and Antietam Street on the northern portion of what was formerly the Main Post at Fort Devens (Figure 1-1). AOC 69W is comprised of the former Fort Devens Elementary School (Building 215) and the associated parking lot and adjacent lawn extending approximately 300 feet northwest to Willow Brook. All contamination at AOC 69W is attributed to No. 2 heating oil, which leaked from underground piping in two separate incidences; once in 1972 and again in 1978. Approximately 7,000 to 8,000 gallons of fuel oil were released to soil from each release (Figure 2-1 is reprinted from the Long Term Monitoring Plan (LTMP) and presented in Appendix G).

The following items summarize the history for AOC 69W. Refer to Section 1.0 for general enforcement activities at Fort Devens (i.e., initiation of a Master Environmental Plan (MEP), placement on the National Priority List (NPL) on December 21, 1989, and signing of the Federal Facility Agreement (FFA) that was finalized on November 15, 1991.

1951. The Fort Devens Elementary School was built and was comprised of the east/southeast half of the present school. The school was heated by an oil-fired boiler, and the heating oil was stored in a 10,000-gallon underground storage tank (UST) located in what is currently the school courtyard. The school was operated and maintained by the Ayer School Department.
- 1972. An addition to the school was built which formed the current school structure. Although a new boiler room was constructed, the old boiler room remained operational. The original 10,000-gallon UST was removed and a new 10,000-gallon UST was installed north of the school in the middle of the current parking lot. During the UST installation, the underground fuel line leading to the new boiler room was accidentally crimped, causing the pipe to split and leak approximately 7,000 to 8,000 gallons of No. 2 fuel oil to the ground.
- 1972-1973. As a result of the fuel release, an oil recovery system was installed in the vicinity of the 10,000-gallon UST. The system consisted of underground piping connected to a buried 250-gallon concrete vault that acted as an oil/water separator. The vault collected oily water and was pumped out approximately every three months.
- 1978. Underground fuel piping near the original boiler room failed at a pipe joint. Approximately 7,000 to 8,000 gallons of oil were released into the soil during the incident. Soil was excavated to locate the source of the release. The excavation was used to collect the residual oil for one month before the damaged piping was found and replaced. A minimum of 2,600 gallons of residual oil was pumped from the oil recovery system.
- 1993. The Ayer School Department closed the school because the facility was excess to its needs. As part of the Base Closure process, the Army performed a base wide evaluation of past spill sites and designated the elementary school spill site as an Area Requiring Environmental Evaluation (AREE) 69W. Based on document reviews and site visits, the evaluation concluded that residual fuel contamination might have been present in the soil and groundwater at the site.
- 1994. The Army performed a Site Investigation (SI), which revealed the presence of fuel-related contaminants in both soil and groundwater between the school and the existing fuel UST, and in an area extending northwest from the existing fuel UST to near Willow Brook. The Army re-designated the site as AOC 69W and proposed that a Remedial Investigation (RI) be performed.
- 1995-1998. An RI was performed to define the distribution of contaminants, previously detected in the soil and groundwater during the AREE SI, and to determine whether remediation was warranted. Investigation activities included an historical record search and personnel interviews, a geophysical survey and test pitting, sediment and toxicity sampling in Willow Brook, surface and subsurface soil sampling, groundwater monitoring well installation, groundwater sampling and groundwater level measurements, aquifer testing, ecological survey and wetland delineation, air quality sampling within the elementary school, and human-health and ecological risk assessments. The RI data showed that fuel-related compounds, primarily total petroleum hydrocarbons compounds (TPHC) and semi-volatile organic compounds (SVOCs) were present in soils extending from the new (1972) boiler room to approximately 300 feet northwest. Fuel-related volatile organic compounds (VOCs), SVOCs, TPHC, and inorganics comprised the observed groundwater contaminants. Soil and groundwater contamination appeared to be largely a result of the 1972 fuel oil release. The underground oil recovery system apparently acted as a conduit for contaminant migration in soil and groundwater. Observed contamination from the 1978 release did not appear to be migrating

downgradient and further migration was considered unlikely considering the age of the release and the paved parking lot which inhibited precipitation infiltration.

- 1996. Fort Devens officially closed. AOC 69W was slated for future transfer to the Massachusetts Government Land Bank (now Mass Development). The existing school building was expected to be re-opened.
- 1997-1998. Based on a review of the soil and groundwater contaminant data, the Army performed a removal action and excavated approximately 3,500 cubic yards (cy) of petroleum-contaminated soil associated with the 1972 fuel oil leak. The 10,000 gallon fuel oil UST and the oil recovery system's 250-gallon vault and associated piping were also removed. The 10,000-gallon fuel oil UST was confirmed to be intact (i.e., no holes or leaks were observed). Confirmatory soil sampling in excavated areas indicated that extractable petroleum hydrocarbon (EPH) and volatile petroleum hydrocarbon (VPH) concentrations immediately adjacent to the school still exceeded the Massachusetts Contingency Plan (MCP) Method 1 S-1/GW-1 soil standards after the removal action. Because of the proximity of the school, this soil could not be excavated without potential building structural damage.
- 1999. Limited Action Record of Decision (ROD) signed. The Limited Action consists of long-term groundwater monitoring and Institutional Controls (ICs) to limit the potential exposure to contaminated soils and groundwater under both existing and future site conditions. Since groundwater in this site's recharge area is not planned for (nor is it suitable) as a drinking water source and Devens has a municipal water supply, the Army's position has been that residual contamination of groundwater in this area does not pose an unacceptable risk. The Limited Action ROD has been in effect since 1999.
- 2000. The former Fort Devens Elementary School was reopened in September 2000 as the Parker Charter School and currently occupies the site. The current property owner, Mass Development, is abiding by the ICs imposed on the property, semi-annual groundwater sampling continues as recommended in the LTMP.

8.2.1 Summary of Site Geology and Hydrogeology

The predominant soil type at AOC 69W consists of dark yellowish-brown fine to coarse sands, gravely sands, and silty sands. Explorations in the vicinity of Willow Brook and its associated wetlands revealed a four- to five-foot layer of dark grayish-brown, sandy silt overlying the sands. Organic material was found in the area north of the school at a maximum depth of 4 feet bgs. Near surface soils beneath the school and parking lot consist of reworked native soils. Bedrock was not encountered at AOC 69W. The water table aquifer at AOC 69W occurs in the overburden at depths ranging from 4 feet to 6 feet below ground surface (bgs) on the north side of the school building to approximately 1-foot bgs adjacent to Willow Brook. Groundwater flow direction is predominately from the south-southeast to north-northwest. Groundwater discharges to Willow Brook at times of high groundwater levels. Vertical gradients were not calculated as there are no deep overburden wells; however, the intermittent discharge to Willow Brook indicates locally upward gradients. Calculated groundwater flow velocities are consistent with the observed sandy soils with a maximum calculated flow velocity of 2 feet/day and a mean flow velocity of 0.7 feet/day. AOC 69W is located within the delineated Zone II for the MacPherson production well located approximately 3,000 feet to the north, and downgradient of AOC 69W.

8.2.2 Soil Contamination

A review of the field and off-site analytical data from the 1995 and 1996 RI field investigations (HLA, 1998) indicated that there were two areas of fuel-related soil contamination at AOC 69W. The larger area extended from the new boiler room to the 250-gallon UST in the wooded area approximately 300 feet northwest of the school. The contamination was attributed to the 1972 release of fuel oil from piping between the 10,000-gallon UST and the new boiler room. Analytical data and visual evidence suggested that the release may have been inside or near the new boiler room. Because of the release, an oil recovery system was installed in 1972 to remove oil from the source area and presumably from near surface soils in the grassy area north of the school. Contaminant distributions established by the RI indicated that the trench for the underground piping associated with this system may have acted as a conduit for contaminant migration. Detected contaminants were primarily TPHC, polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs), and EPH/VPH at approximately 6 feet to 10 feet bgs adjacent to the school and 0 to 4 feet bgs downgradient in the grassy area and in the vicinity of the 250-gallon UST. Detected subsurface contaminants were located primarily at or near the water table. Surficial contamination downgradient of the school (near Willow Brook) is attributed to sorption during times of high groundwater levels.

Based on the nature and distribution of contaminants, a Removal Action (RA) (Weston, 1998) was undertaken in the winter of 1997 and 1998 to remove contaminated soil associated with the 1972 release. Soil was excavated to a maximum depth of 13 feet bgs near the school, and 8 feet bgs near the 250-gallon UST. Confirmatory subsurface soil sample results from the RA showed that concentrations of fuel-related contaminants still exceed MCP Method 1 S-1/GW-1 standards for EPH in subsurface soils immediately adjacent to the school building, but are generally low in downgradient areas (Weston, 1998).

The other identified area of soil contamination is located adjacent to the school building outside of the original boiler room. This contamination is attributed to the 1978 fuel oil release from ruptured piping. An excavation at the time of the release showed visible fuel oil contamination emanating from underneath the school. Analytical data indicated that the contaminants were primarily TPHC at depths of 4 feet to 7 feet (bgs) beneath the paved parking lot. Contaminants appeared to be localized in the area immediately adjacent to the school. Site related contaminants were absent from leaching downgradient soils (e.g., ZWR-95-27X, ZWR-95-54X, and ZWR-95-55X). Future leaching is not likely as the area is paved, thereby inhibiting leaching of soils via precipitation infiltration.

8.2.3 Groundwater Contamination

Fuel-related VOCs, SVOCs, TPHC, and inorganics comprise the observed groundwater contaminants at AOC 69W. Varying degrees of groundwater contamination, as identified by field and off-site analysis, were observed to extend from the new boiler room towards the 250-gallon UST located approximately 300 feet to the northwest. The area of groundwater contamination was coincident with the underground pipe associated with the oil recovery system installed in response to the 1972 fuel oil release. Contaminant concentrations were highest between the new boiler room and monitoring well 69W-94-13, which was also the area of highest observed soil concentrations. The soil around monitoring wells 69W-94-10 and 69W-94-13 exhibited the highest contaminant and inorganic concentrations and were removed during the soil RA (Weston, 1998).

Dissolved arsenic, calcium, iron, manganese, potassium, and sodium were detected in filtered groundwater samples at concentrations in excess of calculated Devens Reserve Forces Training (RFTA) background concentrations and in some cases exceeding cleanup values identified in the ROD using MCP Method 1 GW-1/GW-2 groundwater standards. The greatest number of background exceedances and the only recorded Federal Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL)/Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards 310 CMR 6.0 exceedances in Rounds 1 through 4 were observed in monitoring wells 69W-94-10 and 69W-94-13. Analytes that exceeded MCLs in these wells included arsenic, naphthalene, and the EPH and VPH aromatic fractions. Contaminated soils surrounding these wells were removed during the soil RA (Weston, 1998).

The RI (HLA, 1998) did not reveal significant groundwater contamination associated with the 1978 fuel oil release in the vicinity of the old boiler room. Low concentrations of chlorinated VOCs were detected during the 1995 field analysis and the first round of groundwater sampling; however, there were no chlorinated VOCs detected during the next three subsequent rounds of groundwater sampling efforts.

8.2.4 Summary of Site Risks

The RI report (HLA, 1998) completed a Human-health risk assessment following a four-step process: (1) contaminant identification; (2) exposure assessment; (3) toxicity assessment; and (4) risk characterization. Detailed discussion of the human-health risk assessment approach and results is presented in the RI report.

As presented in the RI report (HLA, 1998), under the current land use conditions the estimated excess carcinogenic risks for exposure of a child, trespasser and site maintenance worker to soil, sediment, and groundwater were within the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) acceptable risk range of 1×10^{-4} to 1×10^{-6} . Similarly, potential non-cancer risks did not exceed the USEPA Hazard Index (HI) threshold value of 1. Excess carcinogenic risks under future land use were estimated for a pupil (exposure to surface soil, sediment, groundwater, and indoor air) and utility worker (exposure to surface soil and subsurface soil). The excess carcinogenic risk for a pupil is within the USEPA acceptable risk range while the utility worker risk was below 1×10^{-6} . Again, potential non-cancer risks did not exceed the USEPA upper threshold limit of HI = 1 (HLA, 1998).

At the time of the RI, there was no use of (or known exposure to) groundwater at AOC 69W; therefore, the RI report presented a risk assessment evaluating the potential risks associated with hypothetical residential use of the water. Estimated cancer and non-cancer risks associated with this hypothetical future exposure exceeded levels generally considered acceptable by the USEPA. These risks resulted primarily from the presence of arsenic in groundwater. The arsenic concentrations noted at the time of the RI, at monitoring wells 69W-94-10 and 69W-94-13 may represent a worst-case scenario since the Army subsequently performed a nearby soil removal action (Weston, 1998).

Potential risks for ecological receptors were evaluated during the RI report for chemicals detected in surface soil, sediment, and groundwater at AOC 69W. The RI report concluded that there are no risks to ecological receptors, except in few cases where negligible risks were estimated.

Based on the conclusions of the RI report of the ecological risk assessment, unacceptable risks are not associated with site-related fuel oil contamination at AOC 69W.

In June 1999, a Limited Action ROD was signed. The Limited Action consists of long-term groundwater monitoring and ICs to limit the potential exposure to contaminated soils and groundwater under both existing and future site conditions.

8.3 Remedial Actions

The Remedial Action Objectives (RAOs), as stipulated in the ROD, for the site are:

- Restore the aquifer to drinking water standards within a reasonable period.
- Monitor potential future migration of ground water contamination.
- Eliminate risk from potential consumption of groundwater.
- Reduce or eliminate the direct contact threat of contaminated soils.

The basis of the RAOs is to reduce or eliminate the potential health risks to individuals based on current and future use scenarios (i.e., maintenance worker, and elementary school children scenario) at the site. The risk assessment results estimated cancer and non-cancer risks associated with the possible current and future exposures to surface soil, subsurface soil, sediment, groundwater discharge to non-potable surface water and indoor air were all within acceptable levels (HLA, 1998).

The groundwater cleanup goals were developed from several sources and were presented in the ROD. Groundwater cleanup goals for contaminants of concern (COCs) are shown in the following Table. If no cleanup goal was developed for a specific analyte as part of the ROD, the MCP Method 1 GW-1 standard was used as the COC cleanup goal. The COCs and associated cleanup goals are presented in the table below:

Contaminant of Concern	Cleanup Goals (µg/L)		
VPH/EPH			
VPH C9-C10 Aromatics	200		
EPH C11-C22 Aromatics	200		
INORGANICS			
Arsenic	50		
Manganese	375		

 Table 8-2
 Area 69W COC Groundwater Cleanup Goals

Groundwater used as source of potable water does exceed risk levels generally considered acceptable by the USEPA. The risk has been primarily attributed to arsenic in groundwater used as a potable water source. However, the analysis of samples performed using the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MADEP) VPH and EPH methods did not require the reporting of all target analytes associated with these methods; the regulating agencies requested only aliphatic and aromatic hydrocarbon ranges. For this reason, seven VPH target analytes and seventeen PAH target analytes were not compared to the MCP Method 1 GW-1 Standards. This would be an important data gap if the groundwater were actually or reasonably likely to be used as a potable water source, which is not the case. Since RAOs include restoring the aquifer to drinking water standards, it should be noted that PAHs associated with No. 2 fuel oil (naphthalene at 22 μ g/l and 2-methylnapthalene at 35 μ g/l) have exceeded the MCP Method 1 GW-1 Standards of 10 μ g/l and 20 μ g/l, respectively, in past sampling events at ZWM-99-22X. Also, it should be noted that the MADEP EPH method reporting limits used by the analytical

laboratory do not meet the MCP Method 1 GW-1 Standards for benzo(a)anthracene at 1 μ g/l, chrysene at 2 μ g/l, benzo(b)fluoranthene at 1 μ g/l, benzo(k)fluoranthene at 1 μ g/l, benzo(a)pyrene at 0.2 μ g/l, indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene at 0.5 μ g/l, dibenzo(a,h)anthracene at 0.5 μ g/l. Further evaluation of the PAH constituents by mass spectroscopy indicated that 1-methylnaphthalene is a primary constituent of the C11-C22 aromatic hydrocarbons.

The rationale for implementing the limited action alternative is two-fold:

- 1) The groundwater will not be used as a drinking water source. The town of Devens has a municipal water supply. Therefore, the groundwater poses no excessive risk to human health or the environment.
- 2) The Army will monitor arsenic and EPH/VPH levels in groundwater and place ICs on the property to ensure protectiveness with regard to current and future land use.

For the purpose of assessing the VPH/EPH monitoring results, the Army has compared the results to the MCP Method 1 groundwater standards for a GW-1/GW-2 aquifer. A GW-1 aquifer is defined as either a current or potential drinking water source area. A GW-2 aquifer is defined as any groundwater monitoring point that is located within 30 feet of an existing occupied structure and the average annual groundwater level is within 15 feet of the ground surface.

8.3.1 Selected Remedy

The ROD for AOC 69W was signed in June 1999 identifying Limited Action as the selected remedy. A Feasibility Study (FS) was not performed prior to the ROD as previous source removal activities had been performed.

The Limited Action alternative for AOC 69W included the following key components:

- ICs, including deed and/or use restrictions, would be established and enforced to restrict or prevent potential human exposure to site soil and groundwater contaminants left in place.
- A LTMP would be developed to monitor for any potential off-site migration of contaminants and to verify that elevated concentrations decrease overtime. The LTMP details the installation of additional water table groundwater monitoring wells to replace source area wells and downgradient sentry wells to monitor for off-site migration. Eight wells will be monitored semi-annually for EPH, VPH, iron, manganese, arsenic, and bis (2-ethylhexyl) phthalate.
- Five-year reviews would be performed to review the data collected and assess the effectiveness of the remedy.

The LTMP states that if there is indication that contaminants are migrating downgradient from the former source area, the Army, in conjunction with MADEP and USEPA representatives, will evaluate the need for additional action. Under the LTMP, downgradient migration is defined by the presence of a COC concentration in any of the designated sentry wells (ZWM-95-15X, ZWM-95-18X, ZWM-99-23X, and ZWM-99-24X) above their respective action levels.

8.3.2 Remedy Implementation

The Final LTMP for AOC 69W was issued in March 2000. The plan detailed the individual wells to be sampled on a semi-annual basis. The plan also provides sampling methodology and

analytical requirements. Monitoring well ZWM-99-23X exhibited contamination beginning at the inception of monitoring in 2000, and was then supplemented in 2001 with two additional sentry wells located cross gradient and downgradient of monitoring well ZWM-99-23X.

The 2002 Draft Interim Remedial Action Report indicated that, based upon evaluation of previous analytical data, bis (2-ethylhexyl) phthalate was dropped from the long-term monitoring program because it was found to be a common laboratory contaminant. Iron was also eliminated as a COC, but was retained in the monitoring program as an indicator of remedial progress.

Current action consists of continued implementation of the components specified in the ROD: ICs; a long-term groundwater monitoring program; annual reporting; and five-year site reviews. These components enable continued assessment for compliance with established performance standards and reporting of performance standards.

Long-term monitoring is performed by the United States Army Corp. of Engineers – New England District (USACE-NAE), Concord, Massachusetts. The first round of long-term groundwater monitoring was performed in the spring of 2000 with subsequent rounds in 2001, 2002, 2003, and 2004. Mass Development currently supplies potable water to the school. Excavated Soil Management Area (ESMA) is monitored during sampling events for broken ground or excavations. Work is being performed in accordance with the approved LTMP (HLA, 2000).

8.3.3 System Operation/Operation and Maintenance

Groundwater monitoring is performed in accordance with the LTMP (HLA, 2000) for AOC 69W. Yearly Operation & Maintenance (O&M) costs for implementation of the remedy are not readily available for review.

8.4 Progress Since the Last Five-Year Review

This is the second Five-Year Review for AOC 69W. In the first Five-Year Review, it was recommended to remove iron as a COC and as a sampled analyte in the LTMP. Iron is no longer considered a COC at AOC 69W. However, iron has not been removed as a sampled analyte because it is being used as an indicator of remediation efficacy.

The second recommendation was to terminate groundwater monitoring if four consecutive groundwater sample concentrations for a COC fall below action criteria. The source wells have not displayed a decrease below the action criteria for four consecutive rounds. Therefore, there is no reduction in sample locations and/or frequency recommended at this time.

The remedy was considered protective of human health and the environment in the first Five-Year Review and remains protective at this time.

8.5 Five-Year Review Process

8.5.1 Document Review

The following documents were reviewed for this Five-Year Review:

- Final Remedial Investigation AOC 69W prepared by HLA, August 1998.
- Record of Decision prepared by HLA, June 30, 1999.
- 2000 Annual Report prepared by USACE, April 2001.
- 2001 Annual Report prepared by USACE, April 2002.
- Interim Remedial Action Report prepared by USACE, June 2002.
- 2002 Annual Report prepared by USACE, April 2003.
- 2003 Annual Report prepared by USACE, March 2004.
- 2004 Semi-Annual Report prepared by USACE, January 2005.

8.5.2 Data Review

In reviewing the analytical results of the first three rounds of long-term monitoring data, it was determined by USACE that sentry well ZWM-99-23X could no longer be considered a sentry well as contaminants had been detected in the well. As a response, two additional sentry wells were installed in 2001, ZWM-01-25X and ZWM-01-26X, located down and cross gradient of ZWM-99-23X.

The 2003 Annual Report (USACE, 2004) presented data from the May 2000 through October 2003 monitoring rounds. A report summarizing the data from April and October 2004 monitoring rounds was not available for this Five-Year Site Review Report. However, preliminary results from the April and October 2004 round were available for review. Analytical results of wells with exceedances of target parameters, since 2000, are depicted in the tables below. Complete summary tables from the applicable documents are presented in Appendix G.

Sampling Location	2000* May/Nov.	2001* May/Nov.	2002* May/Nov.	2003 May/Oct.	2004 April/Oct.
69W-94-13	120/270	160/320	150/200	62/140	*2,500/230
ZWM-99-22X	(5.3)/150	550/83	88/150	840/450	*650/600
ZWM-99-23X	46/62	40/34	(25)/(25)	53/59	*(100)/(100)
ZWM-95-15X	(25)/(25)	(25)/(25)	(25)/(25)	(25)/(25)	*(100)/(100)

Table 8-3 Summary of Groundwater Analytical Data

C9-C10 Aromatics – 200 µg/L Cleanup Goal

From May 2000 – May 2003, 1,000 micrograms C9-C10 Aromatics per liter water (μg/L) was applied as the point of comparison as provided in Table 2-3 of the Final LTMP. The appropriate MADEP Groundwater Standard for C9-C10 Aromatics is more conservative at 200 μg/L. Historical VPH data previously not exceeding 1,000 μg/L for C9-C10 Aromatics may have exceeded the 200 μg/L GW-1 standard without being flagged appropriately. After the May 2003 groundwater sampling round, the point of comparison for C9-C10 Aromatics was lowered to 200 μg/L to reflect the correct groundwater standard.

It should be noted that C9-C10 aromatic hydrocarbon range concentrations did not exceed the less stringent criterion of 1,000 μ g/L used for all wells monitored May 2000 through May 2003. With the exception of the April 2004 round, the detected concentrations are within the range of

historical observations. Exceedances of the more stringent 200 μ g/L standard were noted in 69W-94-13 and ZWM-99-22X during the April and October 2004 round; similar exceedance may have occurred during the earlier sampling rounds.

Sampling Location	2000 May/Nov.	2001 May/Nov.	2002 May/Nov.	2003 May/Oct.	2004 April/Oct.
69W-94-13	690/1400	720/790	1,900/290	ND/(160)	ND/110
ZWM-99-22X	2,500/1,400	2,100/370	620/210	380/330	270/400
ZWM-99-23X	(170)/520	200/(140)	(140)/ND	ND/ND	ND/ND
ZWM-95-15X	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND

C11-C22 Aromatics - 200 µg/L Cleanup Goal

Analytical results from May 2000 to October 2004, exhibit an overall decrease in the C11-C22 aromatic hydrocarbon range concentrations.

Sampling	2000	2001	2002*	2003	2004
Location	May/Nov.	May/Nov.	May/Nov.	May/Oct.	April/Oct.
69W-94-13	54/110	85/150	52/130	(35)/69	(27)/88
ZWM-99-22X	* 150/130	230/140	86/140	150/160	140/140
ZWM-99-23X	(23)/70	67/55	15/ND	(27)/ND	(44)/61

Arsenic - 50 µg/L Cleanup Goal

The April 2004 sampling round resulted in only one monitoring well (ZWM-99-22X) with concentrations exceeding the arsenic cleanup standard of 50 μ g/L. However, results from the October 2004 sampling round detected concentrations that exceed the cleanup standard of 50 μ g/L in well 69W-94-13, ZWM-99-22X and ZWM-99-23X.

Sampling	2000	2001	2002	2003	2004
Location	May/Nov.	May/Nov.	May/Nov.	May/Oct.	April/Oct.
69W-94-13	2,300/1,700	1,500/1,600	2,100/2,400	2,800/4,100	2,500/1,300
ZWM-99-22X	2,000/1,800	2,300/2,400	2,000/1,500	2,700/2,300	3,100/1,900
ZWM-99-23X	4,200/3,600	5,800/1,500	550/1,700	5,300/4,300	2,500/2,300
ZWM-95-15X	(28)/1,300	(25)/(100)	1,500/2,200	1,600/970	4,600/980

Manganese - 375 µg/L Cleanup Goal

Notes:

ND = Not detected at or above the reporting limit indicated.

(#) = Reported value is below Cleanup Goal.

 $\mu g/L = micrograms per liter.$

Analytical results for manganese have exhibited fluctuating concentrations which exceed the cleanup standard of 375 μ g/L.

Based on review of the available data (for sentry wells ZWM-01-25X, ZWM-01-26X, and ZWM-95-18X) COCs exceeding cleanup goals are not migrating off-site. Therefore, a draft Operating Properly and Successfully (OPS) demonstration document was submitted to USEPA in June 2005. The OPS conclusion was based on the following lines of evidence:

• The remedy for AOC 69W has been implemented as designed

- The remedy will achieve the RAOs delineated in the ROD
- The remedy is functioning in such a manner that it is expected to adequately protect human health and the environment when completed
- Intuitional controls have been enacted to provide further protection to human health

As part of the final OPS, the Army will be conducting statistical trend analyses, including a Mann-Kendall test to support the above conclusions.

The 2004 Annual Report recommended that the sampling frequency be reduced to once per year and that three monitoring wells (ZWM-95-17X, ZWM-01-26X and ZWM-95-18X) be removed from the sampling program. The rational for the removal of each well was as follows:

ZWM-95-17X

- Upgradient well used as background
- Historically manganese detected at very low concentrations (less than 3.6 µg/L)
- Arsenic only detected twice (2.0 μg/L)
- No other COCs detected
- VPH/EPH not detected during five year of semi-annual sampling

<u>ZWM-95-26X</u>

- Cross-gradient well to northeast of source area
- Historically, groundwater flow has been in northwesterly direction
- Manganese has been only COC detected. Concentrations have been less than 85 µg/L (below goal of 375 µg/L)

<u>ZWM-95-18X</u>

- Most northerly well and is downgradient of ZWM-95-15X
- Contaminants migrating in this direction would be intercepted by ZWM-95-15X
- Manganese has been only COC detected. Concentrations have been less than 15 µg/L (below goal of 375 µg/L)

Analytical results from the 2000 through 2004 groundwater sampling rounds have been reprinted from their respective Annual Reports as provided in Appendix G.

8.5.3 Site Inspection

On April 21, 2005, a representative from Nobis Engineering performed site inspections at AOC 69W. Conditions during the inspection were favorable with no precipitation and temperatures in the 50s.

The Parker Charter School, formerly known as Fort Devens Elementary School (Building 215), currently occupies the site. The site consists of one building, paved parking areas and landscaped areas that extend northwest to Willow Brook. There were no observed excavations or other violations of proposed ICs anywhere at the site. All wells were intact and secured.

8.5.4 Interviews

The following individuals were interviewed as part of the Five-Year Review:

- Ms. Ellen Iorio, USACE, New England District
- Mr. Dave Salvador, MADEP

- Mr. Takashi Tada, Contractor, Devens RFTA
- Mr. Robert Simeone, Devens RFTA

All personnel were interviewed on April 21, 2005 while performing the site visit. ICs are presented in the ROD and are included in the Lease in Furtherance of Conveyance (LIFOC) currently in place for AOC 69W; however, none are currently recorded with the deed. Personnel were not aware of any violations of the ICs.

Ellen Iorio stated that the USACE is anticipating that the 2004 Semi-Annual Report for AOC 69W, will state that the remedy is operating properly and successfully as demonstrated by the available data collected to date. Based on this conclusion the Army submitted a draft OPS demonstration document for certification from the USEPA.

Mr. Simeone indicated that AOC 69W will likely be transferred to Mass Development by January 2006. ICs will be incorporated either in full or by reference into all deeds, easements, mortgages, leases or any other instruments of transfer prior to the transfer of the property. Administrative ICs would be developed and detailed in the finding of suitability to transfer (FOST) and included with the Deed prior to transfer of the land parcels associated with AOC 69W.

8.5.5 Community Participation

The Army has held regular and frequent informational meetings, issued fact sheets and press releases, and held public meetings to keep the community and other interested parties informed of activities at AOC 69W.

In 1999, the Army issued the Proposed Plan (PP) for AOC 69W. In accordance with the PP, the Army, published public notices and held a public information meeting on May 5, 1999. The PP was also made available for review at local libraries and a formal 30-day public comment period was conducted from April 8 through May 10, 1999.

Currently, the RAB meets every other month and provides advice to the installation and regulatory agencies on the Devens RFTA cleanup programs. Specific responsibilities include: addressing cleanup issues such as land use and cleanup goals; reviewing plans and documents; identifying proposed requirements and priorities; and conducting regular meetings that are open to the public.

8.6 Technical Assessment

Question A: Is the remedy functioning as intended by the decision documents?

Remedial Action Performance: Five-years of groundwater monitoring have been performed following the LTMP (HLA, 2000). The LTMP details the site monitoring that will be performed in order to meet the remedial goals for the site. These goals include the restoration of the aquifer to drinking water standards within a reasonable period, to monitor potential future migration of ground water contamination, to eliminate risk from potential consumption of groundwater, to reduce or eliminate the direct contact threat of contaminated soils.

Based on review of the available data (for sentry wells ZWM-01-25X, ZWM-01-26X, and ZWM-95-18X) COCs exceeding cleanup goals are not migrating off-site. Therefore, a draft Operating Properly and Successfully (OPS) demonstration document was submitted to USEPA in June

2005. As part of the OPS statistical trends analyses using the Mann-Kendall Test will be conducted to support the conclusions of the OPS.

System Operations/Operation and Maintenance: Groundwater monitoring is being performed in accordance with the approved LTMP for AOC 69W (HLA, 2000). Yearly O&M costs for implementation of the remedy at AOC 69W are not yet available for review.

Opportunities for Optimization: Based on historical results, the 2004 Annual Report recommended that the sampling frequency be reduced to once per year and that three monitoring wells (ZWM-95-17X, ZWM-01-26X and ZWM-95-18X). The rational for this recommendation is detailed in Section 8.5.2 of this Review.

Early Indicators of Potential Remedy Failure: No early indicators of potential remedy failure were noted during the review. Groundwater monitoring results have been generally consistent with expectations. Recommendation for further assessment/remedial action will also be provided in the Annual Report should analyses indicate that attainment of cleanup criteria is not occurring. The Army should continue to evaluate the potential for off-site migration, impact to sensitive receptors, trend analysis and remedial duration as part of the established LTMP for AOC 69W.

Implementation of ICs and Other Measures: There are no current or future plans for installation of potable water wells at AOC 69W. ICs (i.e., land use restrictions) as outlined in the ROD (prohibiting installation of drinking water wells at the site and restricting execution within the soils management area), are covered by the LIFOC until the time of property transfer. The LIFOC agreement identifies the general restrictions and required actions that are in place to protect the remedy for AOC 69W. Administrative ICs would be developed and detailed in the FOST and included with the Deed prior to transfer of the land parcels associated with AOC 69W.

Question B: Are the exposure assumptions, toxicity data, cleanup levels, and remedial objectives, used at the time of remedy selection still valid?

Changes in Standards and To Be Considered: As part of this Five-Year Review, Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements (ARARs) and to be considered (TBC) guidance for the site presented in the ROD were reviewed, and a review of current ARARs was conducted. A few changes have been promulgated since the ROD was signed. See Section 8.7.1, ARARs.

The MCLs are legally enforceable standards intended to protect public water supplies, and are established by the USEPA. The MCL for arsenic (50 μ g/L) in effect at the time of the ROD was selected as a cleanup goal for groundwater. Arsenic at concentrations greater than its MCL (50 μ g/L) was a primary risk driver for the ingestion of groundwater at AOC 69W. The MCL for arsenic has been updated since the 1999 ROD. The MCL for arsenic was decreased to 10 μ g/L, effective February 2002.

MA DEP Method 1 standards are used as comparison values as an alternative to complex sitespecific risk assessments. The lower of MADEP GW-1 and GW-2 standards were used as clean up goals for petroleum hydrocarbon fractions. GW-1 standards are protective of groundwater used as drinking water; GW-2 standards are protective of groundwater with the potential to volatilize into indoor air spaces. Correction of the GW-1 standard for the VPH C9-C10 aromatic fraction in June 2003 resulted in a decrease in the point of comparison from 1,000 μ g/L to 200 μ g/L. Since the cleanup goals are based on drinking water standards, changes to the MCLs and MADEP GW-1 standards influence the protectiveness of the cleanup goals. However, because the remedy includes prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water, changes to groundwater standards do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

The Army should review the previously completed indoor air assessments performed as part of the RI (HLA, 1998). The review should confirm that prior assessments are consistent with the *Draft Guidance for Evaluating the Vapor Intrusion to Indoor Air Pathway from Groundwater* and Soils (Subsurface Vapor Intrusion Guidance) EPA530-F-02-052, dated 2002 and to verify that the assumptions of the previous assessments are consistent with the current site use.

Changes in Exposure Pathways: The ROD identified unacceptable risks from the following exposure pathway: potential ingestion of groundwater as the primary drinking water source at AOC 69W.

Groundwater at the site is not currently used as drinking water. The contaminants appear to be increasing in some of the monitoring wells. The groundwater discharges to Willow Brook, near the site. Willow Brook contributes to McPherson Well. As part of the established LTMP, the Army should conduct a review of McPherson Wells, Zone II be ensure that plume monitoring is sufficient. Results of the review will be reported in the Annual Reports as applicable.

The exposure to groundwater through drinking water and household water use is of concern to future receptors on a hypothetical basis only. ICs prohibiting the use of site groundwater as drinking water at AOC 69W will eliminate the potential drinking water and household water exposure pathway. Land use at the site has not changed and is not expected to change, and current land use complies with planned deed restrictions for AOC 69W. No new contaminants, sources, or other routes of exposure were identified. There is no indication that hydrogeologic conditions are not adequately characterized.

No evaluation of inhalation while showering or dermal contact with groundwater used for household use was provided in the RI supporting the ROD. Lack of consideration of these pathways may yield an underestimate of risks from future (hypothetical) household water use.

Response to Comments, included in Appendix C of the ROD, indicated that in October 1997 indoor air sampling was performed at AOC 69W. Three analytes (ethylbenzene, 2-methylheptane, and xylene) were detected at concentrations that fall below applicable standards. Additional air sampling was performed by the USEPA, with samples showing no unacceptable levels of risk (HLA, 1999). Review of referenced documents listed in the ROD indicated that air sampling was performed by ABB Environmental Services, Inc. in 1996 and the additional sampling was performed in 1997/1998 by the USEPA.

Changes in Exposure Assumptions: The risk assessment, supporting the ROD for AOC 69W, used exposure assumptions for the ingestion of groundwater pathway that are consistent with standard practice at the time. Since that time, USEPA has updated recommended dermal contact exposure assumptions. The 1998 draft guidance for evaluating dermal contact exposures used in the RI was finalized in July 2004 (*Risk Assessment Guidance for Superfund, Volume I – Human Health Evaluation Manual – Part E, Supplemental Guidance for Dermal Risk Assessment – Final*). The final guidance includes slight changes in some dermal exposure assumptions. Because the remedy includes prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water and excavation of contaminated soils, changes to the exposure parameters do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Changes in Toxicity and Other Contaminant Characteristics: Since the groundwater cleanup goals are based on drinking water standards and not on risk-based calculated concentrations, changes to the toxicity values do not influence the protectiveness of the groundwater cleanup goals. In addition, because the remedy includes prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water, changes to the toxicity of groundwater contaminants do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy. Because the cleanup goals for soil at AOC 69W were based on site-specific human health risk assessment, changes in the toxicity values for soil contaminants could affect the soil cleanup goals; however, since contaminated soil has been removed, changes to soil contaminant toxicity do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Changes in Risk Assessment Methodologies: The methods for evaluating groundwater ingestion exposures have not changed since the time the risk assessment was conducted supporting the ROD for AOC 69W. The potential human health risks discussed in the ROD will be eliminated by ICs, including the proposed deed restriction prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water. There are no changes to risk assessment methodology that appear to affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

Question C: Has any other information come to light that could call into question the protectiveness of the remedy?

No additional information other than that noted above has come to light to call into question the protectiveness of the remedy. No natural disaster impacts occurred at AOC 69W during this review period.

8.6.1 Summary of Technical Assessment

No early indicators of potential remedy failure were noted during the review. Groundwater monitoring results consistently fluctuate with each sampling round. The GW-1 standard for the VPH C9-C10 aromatic fraction was decreased from 1,000 μ g/L to 200 μ g/L in June 2003.

While the methods for evaluating dermal contact exposures have changed since the time the risk assessments supporting the ROD for AOC 69W were conducted, these risk assessment methodology changes do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy since the use of groundwater as drinking water has been prohibited.

8.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review

The ARARs are presented in Table 8-1 in Appendix E as reprinted from the ROD. The standards and regulations, current at the signing of the ROD and for the first Five-Year Review, have been reviewed for changes that could affect protectiveness.

The following ARARs, listed in Appendix E, have been modified since signing of the ROD and the first Five-Year Review that may affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedial action:

- 40 CFR 141.11 Subpart B Maximum Contaminant Levels was updated July 1, 2001. Section 141.11 (a) and (b) was amended at 66 FR 7061 on January 22, 2001 to state the following:
 - a) The analyses and determination of compliance with 50 μ g/L MCL for arsenic use the requirements of 141.23.

- b) The MCL for arsenic is 50 μg/L for community water systems until January 23, 2006.
- On January 22, 2001, USEPA adopted a new standard for arsenic in drinking water at 10 µg/L, replacing the old standard of 50 µg/L (66 FR 6976). The rule became effective on February 22, 2002. The date by which systems must comply with the new 10 µg/L standard is January 23, 2006.
- 40 CFR 141.15 and 141.16 Subpart B Maximum Contaminant Levels were updated July 1, 2003. An effective date note (65 FR 76745) removed the sections from the Code of Federal Regulations effective December 8, 2003. Sections 141.15 and 141.16 do not appear in 40 CFR 141 updated on July 1, 2004. These two sections addressed MCLs for radium-226, radium-228, gross alpha particle radioactivity, and beta and photon radioactivity, which do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.
- 40 CFR 141.51 Subpart F, Maximum Contaminant Level Goals and Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goals was updated July 1, 2001. The table was amended in Section 141.51 by adding arsenic with a MCLG of zero effective January 23, 2006 (66 FR 7063). There currently is no MCLG for arsenic.
- 310 CMR 22.0 Drinking Water was updated on May 24, 2004. The arsenic MCL 10 µg\L listed in Section 22.06 is effective for the purpose of compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations (outlined above) on January 23, 2006.
- 310 CMR 30.300 "Hazardous Waste" was updated February 27, 2004. These revisions do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

In addition, a search was performed for any newly promulgated standards, which could affect protectiveness at the site. Although not an ARAR, the MCP is utilized by the Army in order to compare VPH/EPH data to "drinking water standards" for ROD compliance. The MCP has been revised several times since 2000. In addition, MADEP has issued policies regarding VPH/EPH sample collection and analyses. The most-recent revision of this policy was issued in June 2003. Neither the MCP revisions nor the VPH/EPH policy revisions have influenced the protectiveness of the remedy. There also were recent revisions made to the MADEP VPH and EPH Methods. Analytical laboratories should be performing these methods by the revisions dated, May 2004.

It should be noted that in October 2004, MADEP proposed revisions to the MCP Method 1 GW-1 standards, which would adopt the Federal MCLs, and a methodology for determination of substances for which an MCL has not been promulgated. The proposed changes would not affect the petroleum hydrocarbon range GW-1 standards for those substances monitored (the proposed GW-2 concentrations would be elevated over the current standards). However, the arsenic standard would follow the Federal MCL revision, and be lowered from 50 ppb to 10 ppb. These proposed revisions do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

8.7 Issues

There are no areas of non-compliance or deficiencies that have been noted during this review that would make the remedial action at AOC 69W non-compliant with the ROD, or sufficient to warrant a finding of not protective. This finding is based upon a review of site reports, a review

of ARARs and the findings from the site inspection and interviews with personnel familiar with the site.

8.8 Recommendations and Follow-up Action

Long-term monitoring should continue as specified in the AOC 69W LTMP (HLA, 2000). However, groundwater monitoring can be terminated if four consecutive groundwater samples are below action criteria.

As transfer of AOC 69W is pending the ICs in the LIFOC are to be incorporated either in full or by reference into all deeds, easements, mortgages, leases or any other instruments of transfer prior to the transfer of the property.

Based on the noted conditions and issues, the following follow-up actions are planned for AOC 69W:

Recommendations/ Follow Up Actions	Party Responsible	Oversight Agency	Milestone Date	Do Follow-Up Actions: Affect Protectiveness (Y/N)	
				Current	Future
Evaluate previous indoor air assessments	Army, BRAC	U.S. EPA, Region 1	Spring 2006	Y	Y
Reduce sampling frequency and remove three wells from sampling program	Army, BRAC	U.S. EPA, Region 1	Spring 20056	N	N

The Army should continue to evaluate the potential for off-site migration, impact to sensitive receptors, trend analysis and remedial duration as part of the established LTMP for AOC 69W.

8.9 Protectiveness Statement

The remedy at AOC 69W is protective of human health and the environment and exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risk are being controlled. The Army believes that the remedy is operating properly and successfully and submitted a draft OPS demonstration document for certification from the USEPA.

A Health and Safety Plan (HASP) and Investigation Derived Waste (IDW) handling procedures are in place, are sufficient to control risk to on-site workers and the public, and are being properly implemented during groundwater sampling. Human health is currently not at risk at AOC 69W because groundwater at the AOC is not being used for potable use nor proposed for potable use and COCs exceeding cleanup goals are not migrating off-site.

Current remedial action activity consists of long-term groundwater monitoring, semi-annual reporting, and five-year site reviews. These components enable continued assessment for compliance with performance standards and reporting of remedial progress.

8.10 Next Review

AOC 69W is a statutory site that requires ongoing Five-Year Reviews. This is the second Five-

Year Review that has been performed at AOC 69W. The next review will be performed within five years of the completion of this Five-Year Review report. The completion date is the date on which USEPA issues its letter to the Army either concurring with report's findings or documenting reasons for nonconcurrence.

8.11 References

- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES), 1995. "Project Operations Plan, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; Contract No. DACA3 1-94-D-0061; prepared for U.S. Army Environmental Center; May 1995.
- Biang, C.A., R.W. Peters, R. H. Pearl, and S. Y. Tsai, 1992. "Master Environmental Plan for Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; prepared for U.S. Army Toxic and Hazardous Materials Agency; prepared by Argonne National Laboratory, Environmental Assessment and Information Sciences Division; Argonne Illinois; April 1992.
- Harding Lawson Associates. (HLA), 1998. Final Remedial Investigation Report, Area of Contamination (AOC) 69W, Devens, Massachusetts; Contract No. DACA-31-94-D-0061; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; August 1998.
- Harding Lawson Associates. (HLA), 1999. Record of Decision, Area of Contamination (AOC) 69W, Devens, Massachusetts; Contract No. DACA-31-94-D-0061; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; June 1999.
- Harding Lawson Associates. (HLA), 2000. Final Long Term Monitoring Plan, Area of Contamination (AOC) 69W, Devens Elementary School, Devens, Massachusetts; Contract No. DACA-31-94-D-0061; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; March 2000.
- Harding Lawson Associates (HLA), 2000. "Final First Five-Year Review Report". Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; September 2000.
- Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MADEP), 1996. "Massachusetts Contingency Plan" Executive Office of Environmental Affairs, Boston, Massachusetts, September 9, 1996 (revised in June 2003).
- Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MADEP), 2002. "Characterizing Risks Posed by Petroleum Contaminated Sites: *Implementation of the MADEP VPH/EPH Approach – Final Policy*" Executive Office of Environmental Affairs, Boston, Massachusetts, October 2002.
- Roy F. Weston. (Weston), 1998. Removal Action Report, Contaminated Soil Removal-Phase II, Area of Contamination 69W, Devens Elementary School, Devens, MA, June 26, 1998.
- U.S. Army Corp of Engineers (USACE), 2001. "2000 Annual Report", AOC 69W Long Term Groundwater Monitoring, Devens, Massachusetts; April 2001.
- U.S. Army Corp of Engineers (USACE), 2002a. "2001 Annual Report", AOC 69W Long Term Groundwater Monitoring, Devens, Massachusetts; April 2002.

- U.S. Army Corp of Engineers (USACE), 2002b. "Interim Remedial Action Report", AOC 69W, Devens, Massachusetts; June 2002.
- U.S. Army Corp of Engineers (USACE), 2003. "2002 Annual Report", AOC 69W Long Term Groundwater Monitoring, Devens, Massachusetts; April 2003.
- U.S. Army Corp of Engineers (USACE), 2004. "2003 Annual Report", AOC 69W Long Term Groundwater Monitoring, Devens, Massachusetts; March 2004.
- U.S. Army Corp of Engineers (USACE), 2005. "2004 Semi-Annual Report", AOC 69W Long Term Groundwater Monitoring, Devens, Massachusetts; January 2005.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 1 (USEPA), 1996. "Low Stress (Low Flow) Purging and Sampling Procedure for the Collection of Ground Water Samples from Monitoring Wells". SOP # GW 0001; Revision Number: 2; July 30, 1996.

9.0 AOCs 9, 11, 40, 41 AND SAs 6, 12, 13 (SOLID WASTE) FIVE-YEAR STATUTORY SITE REVIEW

9.1 Site Chronology

Table 9-1 Chronology of Site Events

Event	Date
Landfill Consolidation Feasibility Study (FS) Report	September 1995
Proposed Plan (PP) issued describing the Army's preferred	December 1997
remedy.	
Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study Report	January 1997
Off site disposal evaluated	Spring/Summer 1998
Expanded on site landfill site search	Spring/Summer 1998
Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study Addendum Report	November 1998
Second Proposed Plan (PP) issued describing the Army's	December 1998
Alternative 4c as the preferred option.	
Record of Decision (ROD) Signed	July 1999
First Five-Year Statutory Review	September 2000
Commenced Landfill Construction	September 25, 2000
Mobilized at Area of Concerns (AOCs) 11, 12, 13, and 40	October 2000
Mobilized at AOC 9	January 2001
Work Completed at AOCs 11 and 13	May 2002
Mobilized at AOC 41	July 2002
Work Completed at AOC 41	September 2002
Landfill Cap Construction Completed; Work Completed at	November 2002
AOC 40	
Work Completed at AOC 9	December 2002
Work Completed at Site Area (SA) 12	January 2003
Landfill Site Restoration	Spring 2003
O&M Activities at Landfill and Remedial Sites	July/August 2003
Remedial Action Complete	October 2003
Second Five-Year Statutory Review	September 2005

9.2 Background

This subsection describes the debris disposal sites, including a summary of contaminant characterization. A summary of post-investigation, Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA)-related site history is also presented. Descriptions of the landfill sites, including contamination assessments and risk evaluations, where applicable, can be found in the following data packages, Site Investigation (SI) reports, and Remedial Investigation (RI) reports:

Site	Investigation Report Reference
SA 6	Landfill Study Data Package (ABB-ES, 1994b)
SA 12, SA 13	Supplemental Site Investigation Data Packages (ABB- ES, 1994a) SI Report (ABB-ES, 1995b)
AOC 9	SI Report (ABB-ES, 1996a)
AOC 11	SI Report (Arthur D. Little, 1994) RI Report (Arthur D. Little, 1995)
AOC 40	RI Report (E&E, 1993) Supplemental RI Report (ABB-ES, 1993)
AOC 41	SI Report (ABB-ES, 1995b) SI Report (ABB-ES, 1996c)

Table 9-2 Summary of Reports

Study Areas (SAs) 6 and 12, and Area of Concern (AOC) 41 are located on the South Post (Figure 1-1). AOC 9 is located on the former North Post of Fort Devens. AOCs 11 and 40, and SA 13 are located on the former Main Post of Fort Devens.

SIs were performed at SAs 12 and 13 and AOCs 9, 40, and 41 to verify the presence or absence of environmental contamination and to determine whether further investigation or remediation was warranted. Supplemental SI activities were performed at SAs 12 and 13, and AOC 41 to address data gaps identified in the SI reports. RIs were completed at AOCs 11, 40, and 41 to further assess contaminant distribution and baseline human-health and ecological risk assessments.

Predesign investigations were performed at SA 6, 12, and 13, and AOC 9 (ABB-ES, 1994b) to define depth, extent, type of waste, composition of waste, and site conditions to help identify appropriate remedial alternatives.

Descriptions of the landfill sites, including contamination assessments and risk evaluations, where applicable, are available in the data packages, SI reports, and RI reports. Detailed summary tables of analytical results for each of the SAs and AOCs discussed below are included in Appendices F.1 and F.2 of the Record of Decision (ROD). The information provided below is a summary (taken from the ROD) of the available historical information.

9.2.1 Description and History of SA 6

SA 6 is located on the eastern side of Shirley Road on the South Post (Figure 1-1). The South Post is to be retained by the Army for continued military training. SA 6 was used between 1850 and 1920, prior to Army ownership, for disposal of household debris. Debris was deposited in a low area, less than one-quarter acre in size, south of the access road. SA 6 is moderately forested with hardwood trees. The disposal area has not been covered, and debris is visible on the ground surface.

Previous investigations at SA 6 determined that the disposal area contains household debris, primarily metal and glass. The volume of debris in the landfill is approximately 500 cubic yards

(cy). Archaeologists have determined that SA 6 may be valuable in researching the socioeconomic status and trash disposal behavior of 19th Century northern Lancaster residents.

9.2.2 Description and History of AOC 9

AOC 9 is located on the former North Post, north of Walker Road and west of the wastewater treatment plant (Figure 1-1). The landfill was operated from the late 1950s until 1978 and was used by the Army, National Guard, site contractors, and off-post personnel. Landfill material at AOC 9 was generally demolition debris, including wood, concrete, asphalt, metal, brick, glass, and tree stumps. Debris volume was estimated to be approximately 112,000 cy.

A geophysical survey was performed during the SI to supplement information derived from evaluation of aerial photographs and to help delineate the actual limits of the landfill. The results of the survey assisted in the placement of test pits and groundwater monitoring wells, and provided insight into the distribution of landfill debris. Results of the geophysical survey indicated that the landfill consisted of five areas: a larger northern pod containing the majority of landfill materials; and four smaller southern pods adjacent to the wetlands containing mostly near-surface debris (Figure C-3 reprinted from the Remedial Action Closure Report prepared by Shaw Environmental, 2003 is included in Appendix H).

<u>Surface Water Contamination</u>. During the SI at AOC 9, surface water samples were collected from the Nashua River and the swampy area south of the debris landfill. Concentrations of some inorganics, including aluminum, iron, and lead were measured above ecological benchmark concentrations. The SI report suggested that inorganic concentrations in the river likely represented typical Nashua River water quality in the general area. The SI report concluded that contaminant effects on surface water from AOC 9 debris were likely not significant.

<u>Sediment Contamination</u>. Relatively low concentrations of total petroleum hydrocarbons compounds (TPHC) and some inorganics were present in sediment samples collected from the swampy area south of the debris landfill. Relatively low concentrations of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and semi-volatile organic compounds (SVOCs) were measured in sediment samples collected from the Nashua River. Concentrations of inorganics in Nashua River sediment samples were relatively consistent upstream and downstream of AOC 9, and likely represent typical present-day Nashua River sediment quality in the area. The SI report concluded that contaminant effects on sediment from AOC 9 debris were likely typical of other contaminated reaches along the Nashua.

<u>Surface Soil Contamination.</u> Organic contaminants were not detected in surface soil samples collected at AOC 9. The inorganics copper, lead, and nickel were detected at concentrations of above background concentrations for Devens, but below residential standards set by United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). Arsenic was detected at a concentration above USEPA residential standards, but below Devens background concentrations.

Subsurface Soil Contamination. Organic compounds detected in AOC 9 subsurface soil consist mostly of polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs) and TPHC. Because of their consistent colocation in samples collected from AOC 9, PAHs and TPHC are believed to be present as a result of charred lumber and ashes mixed with the demolition debris. Except for arsenic and beryllium, maximum concentrations of inorganics detected in subsurface soil were below screening standards established by USEPA for protection of a commercial/industrial worker. The maximum concentration of beryllium (1.0 μ g/g) was higher than the commercial/industrial standard (0.67 μ g/g). <u>Groundwater Contamination.</u> Two rounds of groundwater samples were collected from monitoring wells at the site during the SI. Two organic compounds, chloroform and TPHC, were detected in AOC 9 groundwater. Chloroform was detected in one of ten samples collected during Round 1. The chloroform concentration was below the Massachusetts drinking water standard. TPHC was detected in three of ten samples, once in Round 1 and twice in Round 2. No drinking water standards or guidelines existed for TPHC at the time this work was performed.

Inorganics were detected, above background concentrations in nearly all groundwater samples collected from AOC 9 monitoring wells. Several organics were detected in upgradient, downgradient, and crossgradient wells. Eight of the eighteen inorganics detected in unfiltered Round 1 samples exceeded their respective drinking water standard or guideline. The eight inorganics were aluminum, arsenic, chromium, cobalt, iron, lead, manganese, and nickel. Filtered samples collected during Round 2 showed reductions in concentrations of these inorganics, suggesting that the elevated concentrations detected in Round 1 are the result of suspended solids present in the samples. During Round 2, reported concentrations of chromium, lead, and nickel were below their respective drinking water standards or guidelines.

9.2.3 Description and History of AOC 11

AOC 11 is located east of Lovell Road on the Main Post, adjacent to the Nashua River (Figure 1-1). The two-acre landfill received wood-frame hospital demolition debris from 1975 to 1980. Debris volume was estimated to be approximately 35,000 cy. The landfill was within a wetlands area that runs along the western side of the Nashua River (Figure C-8 reprinted from the Remedial Action Closure Report prepared by Shaw Environmental, 2003 is included in Appendix H). East of the landfill, a 40-foot wide soil berm separates the landfill from the Nashua River. Low concentrations of PAHs, chromium, mercury, cadmium, arsenic, and antimony were identified as possible contaminants in soil and sediments.

The RI report for AOC 11 concluded the primary mode of contaminant transport from the debris landfill is by surface water runoff into the wetland areas adjacent to the landfill, where a significant portion of contaminants sorb to sediments. Surface water in the wetlands contained metals and PAHs. However, the Nashua River contains metals and PAHs in surface water both adjacent to and upstream of AOC 11. Contamination in wetland surface water could be attributed to Nashua River contamination, and may not have been be related to AOC 11 debris.

<u>Sediment Contamination</u>. Sediments in the Nashua River and in wetland areas adjacent to the debris landfill contained pesticides, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), PAHs, and metals. Pesticides concentrations were below Devens Reserve Forces Training Area (RFTA) background concentrations. It is not clear whether PCBs, detected at relatively low concentrations in sediment, were from the debris area or from the Nashua River during periodic flooding. PAHs could be attributable to the Nashua River, and may not be related to AOC 11 debris. Some metals were detected in sediment samples at concentrations exceeding Devens RFTA background concentrations in place when the ROD was finalized.

<u>Surface Soil Contamination</u>. Pesticide concentrations measured in surface soil samples were, with the exception of one sample, below Devens RFTA background concentrations. Higher concentrations of PAHs were measured in surface soil samples collected within the debris area, compared to those collected outside the area. Metals were detected at concentrations exceeding Devens RFTA background values at sample locations throughout the site.

<u>Groundwater Contamination.</u> Two rounds of groundwater samples were collected for analysis during the RI. Relatively low concentrations of the pesticides DDD and DDT were detected in a sample collected from one monitoring well during the first round. Several metals were detected in groundwater during both sampling rounds. The highest metal concentrations were found in the northernmost groundwater monitoring well (11M-94-OSX). Higher concentrations and more metals were detected in the shallower wells screened near the water table, while lower metal concentrations were detected in the deep well screened just above bedrock. Sampling results indicated that assorted metals at concentrations above and below respective drinking water standards and guidelines are being transported from the debris landfill to the Nashua River via groundwater flow.

9.2.4 Description and History of SA 12

SA 12 is located on a steep, wooded slope adjacent to the Nashua River floodplain and partially encroaching on wetlands on the South Post. The landfill is located across Dixie Road from B and P Ranges (Figure C-22 reprinted from the Remedial Action Closure Report prepared by Shaw Environmental, 2003 is included in Appendix H). SA 12 was used by the Army beginning in 1960, was still in use in 1982, and appeared in 1988 to have been inactive for several years. The debris came from construction and range operations.

Debris at SA 12 consisted mostly of lumber, sheet metal, concrete, and leaves mixed with soil. Debris volume was estimated to be approximately 8,700 cy.

<u>Surface Water Contamination.</u> Inorganics were detected in surface water samples collected between the SA 12 debris area and the Nashua River. These detections could be attributable to Nashua River contamination, and may not have been related to SA 12 debris.

<u>Sediment Contamination</u>. Sediments between the SA 12 debris area and the Nashua River contained PAHs, TPHC, pesticides, and inorganics. Concentrations of similar contaminants in Nashua River sediment were higher than those in sediment at the foot of the debris area. This suggests that the river itself contributed to sediment contamination at the foot of the debris area.

<u>Surface Soil Contamination</u>. The highest concentrations of PAHs, TPHC, pesticides, and inorganics measured in surface soil at SA 12 were associated with samples collected from the soil directly above the debris landfill. Evaluation of samples collected at SA 12 indicated that the majority of potential human-health and ecological risk from surface soil results from stained soil directly above the debris area.

<u>Groundwater Contamination.</u> Organic compounds were not detected in groundwater samples collected at SA 12. Inorganic compounds were detected in unfiltered groundwater samples collected from shallow sumps downgradient from the debris landfill. It is believed that concentrations of inorganics detected in groundwater at SA 12 were largely the result of suspended solids in the samples.

9.2.5 Description and History of SA 13

SA 13 was used between 1965 and 1990 for disposal of construction debris, stumps, and brush. Debris volume was estimated to be approximately 10,000 cy. The landfill is less than one acre in size and is located on the west side of Lake George Street near Hattonsville Road on the former Main Post (Figure C-13 reprinted from the Remedial Action Closure Report prepared by Shaw Environmental, 2003 is included in Appendix H). SA 13 is surrounded by large trees, but no

trees are growing on the landfill itself. Tree stumps, limbs, and trunks were deposited on the surface of the landfill and down the steep lower slope. A wetland is located at the base of this slope.

In 1989, disposed stumps, branches, steel fencing, plumbing fixtures and pipes were removed from the site.

<u>Surface Water Contamination</u>. Organic and inorganic compounds were detected in surface water samples collected from the wet area at the toe of the debris area. Nitroglycerine was detected in one of four surface water samples, at a concentration above its drinking water standard. Inorganic compounds in surface water, particularly mercury, presented potential risks to sensitive aquatic ecological receptors.

<u>Sediment Contamination.</u> Sediments at SA 13 contained PAHs, TPHC, pesticides, and inorganics. Pesticides in sediment presented potential risk to sensitive aquatic ecological receptors.

<u>Surface Soil Contamination.</u> Soil samples collected from stained areas directly over the debris area contained PAHs, TPHC, pesticides, and inorganics. Surface soil samples collected directly from the debris area contained higher concentrations of contaminants than those collected downgradient from the landfill.

<u>Groundwater Contamination</u>. Contaminants detected in groundwater at SA 13 were primarily inorganics. It is believed that concentrations of inorganics detected in groundwater at SA 13 were attributed to suspended solids present in the unfiltered samples.

9.2.6 Description and History of AOC 40

AOC 40 is located along the edge of Patton Road, in the southeastern portion of the Main Post. This area was used for the disposal of construction debris (masonry, asphalt, wire and metal), ash, stumps, and logs.

AOC 40 covers an area of approximately four acres and was estimated to contain 110,000 cy of debris, requiring removal. Portions of the landfill area were situated in a wetland, and were subsequently submerged under Cold Spring Brook Pond (Figure C-16 reprinted from the Remedial Action Closure Report prepared by Shaw Environmental, 2003 is included in Appendix H). The area was densely populated with trees and other vegetative cover. The northern edge of the landfill area dropped off abruptly to the wetland or to the pond with a difference in elevation ranging between 10 and 20 feet. The area is also within a recharge zone for the Patton water supply well.

<u>Surface Water Contamination</u>. Inorganic compounds were detected in surface water samples collected from Cold Spring Brook Pond. Surface water contamination did not pose a risk to ecological receptors at the debris disposal area according to ecological benchmarks developed to be protective of aquatic organisms.

<u>Sediment Contamination</u>. Sediments in Cold Spring Brook Pond contained PAHs, pesticides, and inorganics. Risk to ecological receptors at two locations in the pond were attributed to arsenic and the pesticide DDD.

Surface Soil Contamination. Samples collected from the debris landfill soil cover contained

PAHs, pesticides, and inorganics. The relatively low concentrations of surface soil contaminants posed neither human-health nor ecological risks.

<u>Groundwater Contamination.</u> Groundwater quality at AOC 40 was characterized during two rounds of sampling during the RI, and during two rounds of sampling during the supplemental RI. Contaminants detected in groundwater were primarily inorganics. At that point in time, under existing conditions, the Army had concluded that AOC 40 is not a source of inorganic groundwater contamination.

9.2.7 Description and History of AOC 41

AOC 41 is located on the former South Post of Fort Devens, approximately one-half mile west of the Still River Gate, on the north shore of New Cranberry Pond (Figure C-24 reprinted from the Remedial Action Closure Report prepared by Shaw Environmental, 2003 is included in Appendix H). The landfill, less than one-quarter acre in size, was used up to the 1950s for disposal of non-explosive military and household debris.

Debris at AOC 41 included beverage cans, bottles, and motor vehicle parts. Debris volume was estimated to be approximately 1,500 cy. The site was heavily overgrown with trees and brush.

<u>Surface Water Contamination.</u> Organic and inorganic contaminants were detected in surface water samples collected from New Cranberry Pond, near AOC 41. The concentrations were not considered significant.

<u>Sediment Contamination</u>. Pesticides and inorganics were detected in sediment samples collected from New Cranberry Pond near AOC 41. It is unlikely that the contaminants posed a risk to ecological receptors.

<u>Surface Soil Contamination.</u> TPHC, PAHs, pesticides, and inorganics were detected in surface soil samples collected at the landfill. Some contaminant concentrations exceeded screening standards established by USEPA for protection of potential residents living at the site. There are no residents occupying the site. Surface soil contaminants were found to pose no risk to ecological receptors.

<u>Groundwater Contamination</u>. During the RI performed at AOC 41, it was determined that the source of groundwater contamination was not the landfill debris. In the 1996 South Post Impact Area (SPIA) ROD, the Army selected No Action with long-term groundwater monitoring as the remedy for groundwater.

9.2.8 Post-Site Investigation History

A history of post-site investigation activities related to Fort Devens landfill remediation is presented in this subsection.

The Landfill Consolidation Feasibility Study (FS) Report (ABB-ES, 1995 a) contained an evaluation of options to consolidate debris from the seven landfills into a single waste disposal site. After reviewing the FS report, the U.S. Army Forces Command (FORSCOM) requested evaluation of non-consolidation, containment options such as capping landfills in-place. In response to FORSCOM comments, the Debris Disposal Area Technical Memorandum (ABB-ES, 1996 b,) was issued in February 1996. The memorandum evaluated a cap-in-place and a consolidation option for each of the seven landfills.

To further respond to FORSCOM comments, the Landfill Remediation FS Report was prepared (ABB-ES, 1997). This FS report evaluated nine debris management alternatives, including various combinations of no further action, capping in-place, and debris removal and consolidation.

In the December 1997 Proposed Plan, the Army proposed an alternative that consisted of debris removal at three of the debris disposal areas (AOCs 9 and 40, and SA 13), with consolidation at a new landfill to be constructed in the area near the existing Shepley's Hill Landfill. Public comment on the Plan indicated a community preference for debris disposal either in an off-site landfill, or in a new on-site landfill in an alternate location. Because of the site's proximity to the Nashua River floodplain, the community also indicated a preference for full excavation and removal of debris from AOC 11.

In response to public comment, the Army issued a second Proposed Plan in November 1998. The proposed alternative included full debris removal at AOCs 9, 11, and 40, and SA 13, with disposal either at an off-site landfill, or at a new on-site landfill to be constructed at the former Golf Course Driving Range. The proposed alternative was evaluated in detail in the Landfill Remediation FS Addendum Report (HLA, 1998).

A ROD was issued in July 1999 (HLA, 1999). The ROD presented the selected remedial actions for the seven debris disposal areas. In accordance with the ROD, the option of either on-site consolidation or off-site disposal of the debris would be based on a "best value" evaluation of proposals to be solicited upon completion of the design for both options. Methods and practices for construction and operation and closure of the Consolidation Landfill were documented in the Final Design Technical Specifications and Drawings for Consolidation Landfill (USACE, October 1999). An evaluation of the on-site versus off-site disposal option was conducted and the findings were presented in the Remedy Selection Report (S&W, March 2000). The remedy selection process indicated that disposal of the remedial debris in an on-site landfill to be built at the former golf course driving range on Patton Road was the "best value" alternative. The approved remedial alternative (alternative 4c) documented in the ROD called for no further action at SA-6; limited removal at SA-12 and AOC-41; full excavation of AOCs 9, 11 and 40, and SA-13, with on-site consolidation or off-site disposal.

9.3 Remedial Actions

Remedial response objectives were defined during the FS to aid in developing and screening alternatives. The objectives aim to mitigate existing and future potential threats to human health and the environment. The response objectives are:

- Prevent human exposure to groundwater contaminants released from Fort Devens landfills that exceed acceptable risk thresholds.
- Protect human and ecological receptors from exposure to landfill soils having concentrations of contaminants exceeding acceptable risk thresholds.
- Prevent landfill contaminant releases to surface water that result in exceedance of Ambient Water Quality Criteria (AWQC) or acceptable ecological risk-based thresholds.
- Prevent exposure by ecological receptors to landfill-contaminated sediments exceeding acceptable risk-based thresholds.

- Reduce adverse effects from contaminated landfill media to the environment, which would reduce the amount of land area available for natural resources use.
- Support the civilian redevelopment effort at Devens.

9.3.1 Selected Remedy

Key components of the selected remedy presented in the ROD include:

$\underline{SA6}$ - No further action

SA 12, AOC 41

- Mobilization/demobilization.
- Site preparation.
- Surface debris removal.
- Known hot-spot removal.
- Backfilling/regrading/revegetation.
- Site monitoring.

AOC 9, AOC 11, SA 13, AOC 40

- Mobilization/demobilization.
- Site preparation.
- AOC 40 sediment removal with disposal either in the Consolidation Landfill or in an offsite landfill.
- AOC 40 drum removal with disposal either in the Consolidation Landfill or in an off-site landfill. (It should be noted that this remedy was included in the ROD, but no drums were encountered during removal and consolidation construction operations.)
- Debris excavation, backfill, and regrading.
- Wetlands restoration at AOC 9, AOC 11, and AOC 40.
- Consolidation of excavated debris the site Consolidation Landfill, or to an off-site landfill.
- If required, cover system monitoring and maintenance at the Consolidation Landfill.
- Institutional Controls (ICs) and Five-Year site Reviews at those sites where unrestricted future use is not achievable or economical.

9.3.2 Remedy Implementation

The decision to proceed with on-site consolidation was issued June 30, 2000, and a temporary (120 day) access agreement to begin construction was signed on September 15, 2000. The United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) contracted Stone & Webster, Inc. to construct the selected remedy. The Consolidation Landfill was constructed at the Former Golf Course Driving Range. Debris from each of the six landfill areas was excavated, characterized, transported and disposed at either the secure on-site landfill or an off-site licensed facility if characterization results exceeded on-site disposal requirements. Soils disposed of at the Consolidation Landfill included those contaminated with petroleum, pesticides, PCBs, PAHs, and asbestos, for a total waste volume of approximately 365,000 cubic yards. Debris excavations were then backfilled and/or re-graded to restore the site to pre-construction conditions. After completing the removal actions, the Consolidation Landfill was graded and permanently capped.

9.3.2.1 Remedial Action AOC 9

Debris was excavated from the 8.9-acre disposal area and transported to staging areas, which were used for material holding during sampling and waste characterization activities. Excavation activities began in January 2001 and were completed in June 2002. Excavated debris was analyzed for waste disposal characteristics designated in the Sampling and Analysis Plan (SAP) (S&W, 2000). Characterized debris material was transported to the Consolidation Landfill for disposal. A total of 161,477 tons of debris materials from AOC 9 were disposed in the Consolidation Landfill.

During the excavation process, larger debris (i.e. wood, scrap steel, concrete debris and tires) was segregated from the stockpiled material and stored separately in an effort to recycle and reduce the volume of material to be disposed in the landfill. Material that resulted from these efforts was disposed of off-site at a licensed facility. Concrete debris was processed through a crushing plant for possible reuse as backfill in other areas if analytical results indicated the material met the preliminary remediation goals (PRGs).

A total of 156,000 cy of debris were removed from AOC 9, which is 44,000 cy yards more than the original estimated volume of 112,000 cy. The 44,000 cy of additional debris was attributed to greater excavation depths over extended debris limits. The actual debris limits extended to the south of the proposed landfill limits, which accounted for an additional 0.7 acres resulting in a total disposal area of 9.6 acres. Debris materials primarily consisted of concrete, scrap steel, tires, soil and miscellaneous demolition debris.

Following verification that confirmatory sampling results met the PRGs and the excavation limits had been reached, restoration activities commenced. The majority of the site was restored as upland areas. Upland areas were seeded with a restoration seed mixture that contained native grasses. The wetland area was restored by backfilling with clean fill and manufactured wetland soil. The restored wetland was stabilized with a custom wetland seed mix. The wetland and upland habitat restorations will be evaluated during the first three or more growing seasons (2003-2006). Restoration activities were completed in accordance with the Habitat Restoration Work Plan (S&W, 2002).

9.3.2.2 Remedial Action AOC 11

Debris was excavated from the 2.7-acre disposal area and transported to the staging area, which was used for material holding during sampling and waste characterization activities. Excavation activities started on November 14, 2000 and were completed on September 28, 2001. Excavated debris was analyzed for waste disposal characteristics designated in the SAP (S&W, 2000). Characterized debris material was transported to the Consolidation Landfill for disposal. A total of 38,096 tons of debris materials from AOC 11 were disposed in the Consolidation Landfill.

During the excavation process, larger debris (i.e. wood, scrap steel, concrete debris and tires) was segregated from the waste soil in an effort to recycle and reduce the volume of material to be disposed in the Consolidation Landfill. Material that resulted from these efforts was disposed of offsite at a licensed disposal facility. Although the concrete was segregated and processed, the end product did not meet the requirements for reuse as backfill or road base material. Processed concrete was mixed with the debris stockpile and was disposed at the Consolidation Landfill.

A total of 32,000 cy of debris was removed from AOC 11, which is 3,000 cy less than the original estimated volume of 35,000 cy. The actual debris limits extended to the west of the proposed

landfill limits, which accounted for an additional 0.6 acres resulting in a disposal area of 3.3 acres. Debris materials primarily consisted of concrete, scrap steel, soil and miscellaneous demolition debris.

Following verification that confirmatory results met the PRGs, restoration activities commenced. The first phase of restoration was to restore the berm adjacent to the Nashua River. A portion of the berm was disturbed during the excavation process. The top surface of the berm was stabilized with an upland seed mixture and the lower slope was overseeded with wetland seed mix. The northern slope was stabilized with a native warm season grass mixture. The restorations will be evaluated during the first three or more growing seasons. Restoration activities were completed in accordance with the Habitat Restoration Work Plan (S&W, 2002).

9.3.2.3 Remedial Action AOC 40

Debris was excavated from the 3.9-acre disposal area and transported to the staging areas, which were used for material holding during sampling and waste characterization activities. Excavation activities began in November 2000 and were completed in September 2002. Excavated debris was analyzed for waste disposal characteristics. Characterized debris material was transported to the Consolidation Landfill for disposal. A total of 166,799 tons of debris materials from AOC 40 were disposed in the Consolidation Landfill.

A total of 148,450 cy of debris were removed from AOC 40, which is 38,450 cy more than the original estimated volume of 110,000 cy. The 38,450 cy of additional debris was attributed to greater excavation depths. The increased depths accounted for an additional 0.2 acres resulting in a total disposal area of 4.1 acres. Debris materials primarily consisted of concrete, scrap steel, stumps, soil and miscellaneous demolition debris. Excavation limits to remediate the extent of debris encroached the existing roadway (Patton Road) adjacent to the disposal site. A road realignment was designed and constructed that detoured traffic during the remedial activities at the site.

Following verification that confirmatory results met the PRGs and the excavation limits had been reached, restoration activities began in September 2002 and were completed in October 2002. Due to the steep gradient, the side slopes adjacent to Patton road were stabilized and protected by rip rap. Rip rap was placed from the base of the slope to approximately ten feet above the waterline. Remainder of the slope was stabilized with six inches of loam and seeded with a native grass seed mixture. The Restoration activities were completed in accordance with the Habitat Restoration Work Plan (S&W, 2002). It should be noted that although drum removal was included in the selected remedy, no drums were encountered during these remedial actions.

9.3.2.4 Remedial Action AOC 41

Debris was removed from the 0.25-acre disposal area and transported to the SA 12 material staging area, which was used for material holding during characterization activities. Characterized debris material was transported to the Consolidation Landfill for disposal. A total of 200 cy of debris was removed from AOC 41, 1,300 cy less than the original estimated volume of 1,500 cy.

Following verification that confirmatory results met the PRGs and the excavation limits had been reached, restoration activities commenced. Restoration included regrading the area to adjacent elevations and stabilization with the placement of loam and a native grass seed mixture. Site restoration activities began on September 11, 2002 and were completed on September 23, 2002.

9.3.2.5 Remedial Action SA 12

Debris was excavated from the 0.54-acre disposal area and transported to a staging area, which was used for material holding during sampling and waste characterization activities. Excavation activities began on May 1, 2002 and were completed on July 25, 2002. Excavated debris was analyzed for waste disposal characteristics. Characterized debris material was transported to the Consolidation Landfill for disposal. A total of 16,706 tons of debris materials from SA 12 were disposed in the Consolidation Landfill.

A total of 14,300 cy of debris were removed from SA 12, which is 5,600 cy more than the original estimated volume of 8,700 cy. The 5,600 cy of excess debris was attributed to deeper excavation over extended debris limits. The actual debris limits extended beyond the original scoped disposal area limits, which accounted for an additional 0.48 acres resulting in a total disposal area of 1.02 acres. The actual excavation depths ranged, on average, from 4 to 6 feet deeper than proposed excavation grades throughout the excavation area. Debris materials primarily consisted of concrete, scrap steel, soil and miscellaneous demolition debris.

Following verification that confirmatory results met the PRGs and the excavation limits had been reached, restoration activities commenced. Reconstruction and restoration activities were required due to the extended debris limits and hence deeper excavations to remove the debris. The slope was reconstructed to maintain long-term stability. Restoration activities began on July 29, 2002 and were completed on September 13, 2002. Extensive slope reconstruction occurred at the site during the restoration activities. The base of the slope was stabilized with riprap to approximately five feet above the waterline. The remainder of the slope was stabilized with six inches of loam and seeded with a native grass seed mixture. Restoration activities were completed in accordance with the Habitat Restoration Work Plan (S&W, 2002).

9.3.2.6 Remedial Action SA 13

Debris was excavated from the 0.8-acre disposal area and transported to the staging area, which was used for material holding during sampling and waste characterization activities. Characterized debris material was transported to the Consolidation Landfill for disposal. A total of 13,715 tons of debris materials from SA 13 were disposed in the Consolidation Landfill.

During the excavation process, larger debris (i.e. wood, scrap steel and concrete debris) was segregated from the waste soil in an effort to recycle and reduce the volume of material to be disposed in the Consolidation Landfill. Material that resulted from these efforts was disposed of offsite at a licensed disposal facility. Although the concrete was segregated and processed, the end product did not meet the requirements for reuse as backfill or road base material. Processed concrete was mixed with the debris stockpile and was disposed at the Consolidation Landfill.

A total of 13,900 cy of debris were removed from SA 13, which is 3,900 cy more than the original estimated volume of 10,000 cy. The 3,900 cy of excess debris was attributed to deeper excavation over extended debris limits. The actual debris limits extended to the north of the original disposal area limits, which accounted for an additional 0.3 acres resulting in a disposal area of 1.1 acres. The excavation depths ranged from 4 feet to 8 feet deeper than proposed excavation grades throughout the center of the excavation area.

In addition to the added debris quantities and excavation area, the constituents of the excavated disposal material varied from the anticipated stumps and trees originally thought to make up the

"stump dump." Debris materials primarily consisted of concrete, scrap steel, soil and miscellaneous demolition debris (glass, wood, etc.) along with some stumps and brush.

Following verification that confirmatory results met the PRGs and the excavation limits had been reached, restoration activities commenced in October 2001. Minimal restoration operations took place at SA 13. Slopes were graded as necessary to provide a safe area and to promote drainage to feed the small wetland area to the south. Topsoil was placed over the disturbed areas that were then seeded to stabilize and recestablish vegetation of the wetland and upland areas. Restoration activities were completed in accordance with the Habitat Restoration Work Plan (S&W, 2002).

9.3.2.7 Current Status

This is the second Five-Year Review for AOC 9, 11, 40, 41 and SAs 6, 12, and 13. All components of the ROD have been implemented. No contingency action is required at this time at the SAs, AOCs or the Consolidation Landfill.

Current action consists of continued implementation of the components specified in the ROD: a groundwater monitoring and maintenance program for the consolidation landfill, annual reporting, and Five-Year Reviews. These components enable continued assessment for compliance with established performance standards and reporting of performance standards.

Post-closure groundwater and maintenance activities are performed by the USACE-NAE, Concord, Massachusetts. The first groundwater monitoring and landfill inspection was performed in November 2003. Work is being performed in accordance with the approved Landfill Operation and Maintenance Plan (O&M) (Shaw Environmental, Inc., 2003).

The Habitat Restoration Work Plan (S&W, 2002) addressed the restoration, maintenance, and monitoring of wetland and upland habitats that were restored after excavation of the six disposal sites. The wetland and upland habitat restorations will be evaluated during the first three or more growing seasons. Long-term monitoring began in Spring 2004.

The first post-closure inspection of the Consolidation Landfill was conducted in November 2003. The features that were inspected included signs of erosion and settlement, vegetative cover, vegetation types, and other general conditions. The physical features of the cap were in good condition and there were no significant deficiencies. During a subsequent inspection/site visit, some washout/slippage was observed in certain areas.

9.3.3 System Operations/Operation and Maintenance

O&M is performed in accordance with the approved Landfill O&M (S&W, 2003). Leachate monitoring takes place on a quarterly basis; groundwater monitoring wells are sampled semiannually; and the passive gas vents are monitored semi-annually for potential explosive hazards.

In addition, settlement and cover system monitoring is conducted on a visual basis during the scheduled semi-annual inspections. The leachate collection system is also inspected and maintained to ensure the collection system is in good working order. Order of magnitude costs for yearly O&M for implementation of the remedy are \$150,000. The O&M of the Pump Station is now being maintained by Mill City Environmental of Lowell, Mass.

9.4 Progress Since the Last Five-Year Review

This is the second Five-Year Review for AOCs 9, 11, 40, 41; SAs 6, 12, and 13; and the first Five-Year Review for the Consolidation Landfill. Since there were no site operations ongoing at the debris disposal areas and planned remediation had not been implemented at the time of the first Five-Year Review, there were no recommendations for improvement.

The first Five-Year Review recommended that the Army 1) submit a permit application for new landfill construction to the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MADEP), if on-site disposal was selected as the most desirable option and 2) proposed setbacks to the setback requirements should be evaluated for potential reduction of the area currently considered suitable for landfill construction.

The first Five-Year Review concluded that, when completed, the planned remedy was expected to meet remedial action objectives, and be protective of human health and the environment.

9.5 Five-Year Review Process

9.5.1 Document Review

The following documents were reviewed for this Five-Year Review:

- Final Design Technical Specifications for Consolidation Landfill prepared by EA Engineering, Science, and Technology (EA), October 1999.
- Landfill Technical Guidance Manual prepared by Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection, May 1997.
- Contractor Quality Control Plan prepared by Stone & Webster, Inc., January 2000.
- Sampling and Analysis Plan (SAP) prepared by Stone & Webster, Inc., February 2000.
- Environmental Protection Plan prepared by Stone & Webster, Inc., February 2000.
- Site Safety and Health Plan prepared by Stone & Webster, Inc., September 2000.
- Excavation and Handling Plan prepared by Stone & Webster, Inc., December 2000.
- Materials Management Plan prepared by Stone & Webster, Inc., February 2001.
- Dewatering Work Plan prepared by Stone & Webster, Inc., August 2001.
- Wetland and Upland Habitat Restoration Plan prepared by Stone & Webster, Inc., January 2002.
- Remedial Action Closure Report prepared by Shaw Environmental, September 2003.
- Operation and Maintenance Plan prepared by Shaw Environmental, Inc., 2003.
- Annual Report, Post-Closure, Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance, May 2004.

9.5.2 Data Review

9.5.2.1 AOC 9

Samples were collected and analyzed for excavated debris material stockpiles, confirming the limits of excavation, documenting the attainment of PRGs. Field sampling activities and analysis were conducted in accordance with the USACE's Construction Specifications (USACE, 1999) and the guidelines specified in the SAP (S&W, 2000).

Stockpile Samples. Samples were collected from the excavated material for waste characterization prior to transport and disposal. A total of 255 composite samples were collected and analyzed from the material that was excavated and stockpiled during the remedial activities at the site. These analytical results were compared against the Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure (TCLP) based action limits identified in the Construction Specifications (USACE, 1999). Of the excavation samples collected and analyzed, 139 exceeded the TCLP based action limit of 100 milligrams/kilogram (mg/kg) for the analyte lead. TCLP analysis was performed on these samples to determine if leaching at regulatory levels would occur. Thirteen (13) samples analyzed for TCLP lead exceeded the TCLP limit of 5.0 mg/L. The remaining TCLP results indicated that the concentration of lead detected was below the regulatory level needed for the waste to be characterized as hazardous and was acceptable for transport and disposal at the Consolidation Landfill. The material that exceeded the TCLP limits was segregated and stockpiled in the lined material staging area and transported off site to an approved disposal facility.

<u>Confirmatory Samples</u>. Confirmatory samples were collected after the debris material had been excavated from within the disposal area at the site. Confirmatory grab samples were taken at a depth of 6 inches from the exposed face of the excavation. A total of 37 confirmatory samples were collected and analyzed to document the chemical concentrations within the excavated area and verify the attainment of PRGs. Out of the 37 samples collected, three samples did not meet the PRGs. The areas represented by these failing samples received additional remedial efforts and another round of collected confirmatory samples until the PRGs were reached or exceeded. All results presented in the Closure Report by Shaw 2003, indicated that the removal goals had been met.

<u>Other Samples.</u> Concrete samples were collected from the processed concrete debris to determine if the product would meet the requirements for reuse as backfill material. The material that met all requirements of the PRGs was segregated and used as road base material during the construction of access roads, as needed. The remainder of the concrete that did not meet the requirements for reuse as backfill or road base material was disposed of at the Consolidation Landfill.

9.5.2.2 AOC 11

Samples were collected and analyzed for excavated debris material stockpiles, confirming the limits of excavation, documenting the attainment of PRGs. Field sampling activities and analysis were conducted in accordance with the USACE's Construction Specifications (USACE, 1999) and the guidelines specified in the SAP (S&W, 2000).

<u>Stockpile Samples.</u> Samples were collected from the excavated material for waste characterization prior to transport and disposal. A total of 61 composite samples were collected and analyzed from the material that was excavated and stockpiled during the remedial activities at

the site. The analytical results were compared against the TCLP based action limits identified in the Construction Specifications (USACE, 1999). All of the samples collected and analyzed exceeded the TCLP based action limit of 100 mg/kg for the analyte lead. TCLP analysis was performed on these samples to determine if leaching at regulatory levels would occur. Only two samples analyzed for TCLP lead exceeded the TCLP limit of 5.0 mg/L. The remaining TCLP results indicated that the detected concentration of lead was below the regulatory level needed for the waste to be characterized as a hazardous. The exceedances of two samples were considered minimal at 5.1 mg/l and 5.2 mg/l respectively. S&W and the USACE agreed to segregate the material from the debris stockpile and collect 4 additional samples to be analyzed for TCLP lead. All results indicated that the material excavated from the site was acceptable for transport and disposal at the Consolidation Landfill.

<u>Confirmatory Samples.</u> Confirmatory samples were collected after the debris material had been excavated from within the disposal area at the site. Samples were collected in a phased manner as areas were completed. Confirmatory grab samples were taken at a depth of 6 inches from the exposed face of the excavation. A total of 8 confirmatory samples were collected and analyzed to document the chemical concentrations within the excavated area and verify the attainment of PRGs. Out of the 8 samples collected, two samples did not meet the PRGs. The areas represented by the samples received additional remediation efforts and another round of confirmatory samples were collected until the PRGs were reached or exceeded. All results indicated that the removal goals had been met.

<u>Other Samples.</u> One concrete sample was collected from the initial concrete debris that was removed during the remedial activities to determine if the product would meet the requirements for reuse as backfill material. The analytical results indicated that the end product did not meet the requirements of the PRGs, therefore the material was disposed at the DCL.

9.5.2,3 AOC 40

Samples were collected and analyzed for excavated debris material stockpiles, confirming the limits of excavation and documenting the attainment of PRGs. Field sampling activities and analysis were conducted in accordance with the USACE's Construction Specifications (USACE, 1999) and the guidelines specified in the SAP (S&W, 2000).

<u>Stockpile Samples.</u> A total of 286 composite samples were collected and analyzed from the material that was excavated and stockpiled during the remedial activities at the site. These analytical results were compared against the TCLP based action limits. Of the excavation samples collected and analyzed, 2 samples exceeded the TCLP based action limit of 100 mg/kg for the analyte lead. TCLP analysis was performed on the samples to determine if leaching at regulatory levels would occur. The TCLP results indicated that the concentration of lead detected was below the regulatory level needed for the waste to be characterized as hazardous. All results indicated that the material excavated from the site was acceptable for transport and disposal at the Consolidation Landfill.

<u>Confirmatory Samples.</u> Samples were collected in a phased manner as appropriate areas were completed. Confirmatory grab samples were taken at a depth of 6 inches from the exposed face of the excavation. A total of 34 confirmatory samples were collected and analyzed to document the chemical concentrations within the excavated area and verify the attainment of PRGs. Out of the 34 samples collected, 8 samples did not meet the PRGs. The areas represented by these failing samples received additional remedial efforts and another round of confirmatory samples

were collected until the PRGs were reached or exceeded. All results indicated that the removal goals had been met.

<u>Other Samples.</u> Water samples were collected and analyzed to obtain a dewatering permit so that construction dewatering could be discharged to Cold Spring Brook, a body of water adjacent to the remediation site, in order to facilitate soil excavation at the AOC 40. Water collected and discharged into Cold Spring Brook during the excavation and dewatering activities at AOC 40 was sampled in accordance with a general permit for construction dewatering issued by the MADEP. Discharge water into Cold Spring Brook was monitored on a weekly basis for turbidity and pH using field-testing equipment. All results indicated that discharge parameters were not exceeded.

9.5,2.4 AOC 41

Samples were collected and analyzed for excavated debris material stockpiles, confirming the limits of excavation and documenting the attainment of PRGs. Field sampling activities and analyses were conducted in accordance with the USACE's Construction Specifications (USACE, 1999) and the guidelines specified in the SAP (S&W, 2000).

<u>Stockpile Samples</u>. Samples were collected from the excavated material for waste characterization prior to transport and disposal. One composite sample was collected and analyzed from the material that was excavated and stockpiled during the remedial activities at the site. These analytical results were compared against the TCLP based action limits identified in the Construction Specifications (USACE, 1999). The one sample collected and analyzed exceeded the TCLP based action limits for excavation samples for the analyte lead. TCLP analysis was performed on the sample to determine if leaching at regulatory levels would occur. The TCLP results indicated that the concentration of lead detected was less than 5 mg/l (the regulatory level needed for the waste to be characterized as hazardous waste). The result indicated that the material excavated from the site was acceptable for transport and disposal at the Consolidation Landfill.

<u>Confirmatory Samples.</u> Confirmatory samples were collected after the debris material had been removed from within the disposal area at the site. Confirmatory grab samples were taken at a depth of 6 inches from the exposed face of the excavation. A total of 2 confirmatory composite samples were collected and analyzed to document the chemical concentrations within the excavated area and verify the attainment of PRGs. The results indicated that the removal goals had been met.

9.5.2.5 SA 12

Samples were collected and analyzed for excavated debris material stockpiles, confirming the limits of excavation, documenting the attainment of PRGs. Field sampling activities and analyses were conducted in accordance with the USACE's Construction Specifications (USACE, 1999) and the guidelines specified in the SAP (S&W, 2000).

<u>Stockpile Samples.</u> Samples were collected from the excavated material for waste characterization prior to transport and disposal. A total of 29 composite samples were collected and analyzed from the material that was excavated and stockpiled during the remedial activities at the site. The analytical results were compared against the TCLP based action limits identified in the Construction Specifications (USACE, 1999). Eleven (11) samples were analyzed for the TCLP based action limits for excavation samples for the analyte lead. TCLP analysis was

performed on these samples to determine if leaching at regulatory levels would occur. The TCLP results indicated that the concentration of lead detected was below the regulatory level necessary for the waste to be characterized as a hazardous material. All results indicated that the material excavated from the site was acceptable for transport and disposal at the Consolidation Landfill.

<u>Confirmatory Samples.</u> Confirmatory samples were collected after the debris material had been excavated from within the disposal area at the site. Samples were collected in a phased manner as appropriate areas were completed. Confirmatory grab samples were taken at a depth of 6 inches from the exposed face of the excavation. A total of 3 confirmatory composite samples were collected and analyzed to document the chemical concentrations within the excavated area and verify the attainment of PRGs. All results indicated that the removal goals had been met.

9.5.2.6 SA 13

Samples were collected and analyzed for excavated debris material stockpiles, confirming the limits of excavation, documenting the attainment of PRGs. Field sampling activities and analysis were conducted in accordance with the USACE's Construction Specifications (USACE, 1999) and the guidelines specified in the SAP (S&W, 2000).

<u>Stockpile Samples.</u> Material was excavated and stockpiled in the material staging area and samples were collected for waste characterization prior to transport and disposal. Twenty-four composite samples were collected and analyzed from the material that was excavated and stockpiled during the remedial activities at the site. The analytical results were compared against the TCLP based action limits identified in the Construction Specifications (USACE, 1999). Twenty-two (22) of the samples analyzed exceeded the TCLP based action limits for excavation samples for the analyte lead. TCLP analysis was performed on these samples to determine if leaching at regulatory levels would occur. The TCLP results indicated that the concentration of lead detected was below the regulatory level needed for the waste to be characterized as a hazardous. All results indicated that the material excavated from the site was acceptable for transport and disposal at the Consolidation Landfill.

<u>Confirmatory Samples</u>. Confirmatory samples were collected after the debris material had been excavated from within the disposal area at the site. Samples were collected in a phased manner as appropriate areas were completed. Confirmatory grab samples were taken at a depth of 6 inches from the exposed face of the excavation. A total of 3 confirmatory samples were collected and analyzed to document the chemical concentrations within the excavated area and verify the attainment of PRGs. All results indicated that the removal goals had been met.

9.5.2.7 Construction of Consolidation Landfill

Construction of the Devens Consolidation Landfill was performed between September 2000 and November 2002. Construction oversight was performed by Stone and Webster Construction, Inc. The landfill was constructed in accordance with MADEP Landfill Technical Guidance Manual (May 1997) and the Final Design Technical Specifications prepared by EA Engineering, Science and Technology (October 1999).

Over the course of construction, approximately 591,804 tons of materials were placed at the landfill. Materials disposed of at the landfill included a variety of debris, which was excavated from the above-identified AOCs and SAs. The approved landfill easement occupies 16.88 acres with approximately 8.0 acres utilized for debris disposal. The landfill construction consisted of several components, performed in three phases. The first phase involved construction of the
landfill liner system, leachate collection system, and sedimentation pond. The second phase primarily consisted of transportation and disposal of excavated debris, debris placement, and compaction and grading. The final phase involved capping of the landfill which included installation of gas vents and a gas venting layer, a dual geocomposite and 40-mil flexible polyethylene (VFPE) liner, a sand drainage layer, and vegetation support layers.

9.5.2.8 Long Term Monitoring

O&M is performed in accordance with the approved Landfill Operation and Maintenance Plan (S&W, 2003). As part of the O&M Plan, the wetland and upland habitat restorations at AOCs 9, 11, 40 and SAs 12 and 13 were evaluated during the first three growing seasons. Semi-annual wetland restoration inspections are to be conducted in accordance with the ROD. Leachate monitoring takes place on a quarterly basis in accordance with a permit issued to Mass Development; groundwater monitoring wells are sampled semi-annually; and the passive gas vents are monitored semi-annually. In addition, settlement and cover system monitoring is conducted on a visual basis during the scheduled semi-annual inspections. The leachate collection system is also inspected and maintained to ensure the collection system is in good working order.

Leachate monitoring results were reported in January 2002, April 2002, July 2002, April 2003, June 2003, October 2003, January 2004, and March 2004. All results were below local effluent limitations as specified by the industrial wastewater discharge permit.

Three monitoring wells were sampled in June and November 2003. The lead concentration in one well was the only Contaminant of Concern (COC) that exceeded a Massachusetts Contingency Plan (MCP) Method 1 Standards. The concentration of lead increased from 13 μ g/L in June to 17 μ g/L in November. The RCGW-1 reportable concentration is 15 μ g/L (USACE, May 2004). Lead was not detected in the sampling round performed in October 2004.

9.5.3 Site Inspection

On April 21, 2005, a Nobis representative performed site inspections at AOCs 9, 11, 40, 41, and SAs 6, 12, and 13. Conditions during the inspection were favorable, with no precipitation and temperatures in the 50° to 60° F range. The Devens Consolidation Landfill consists of an 8-acre, grass-covered, capped landfill that is constructed with a leachate collection system, gabion drains, perimeter drainage swales, and sedimentation pond. Other than a small pump house that handles the collected leachate and the concrete pad for the weight scale, no other structures are located at the site.

Significant soil erosion was observed in the north-northeast gabion slope drain starting at the intersection with the bench drain, and deposition of the eroded materials was observed in the perimeter swale of the consolidation landfill. Ellen Iorio (USACE) stated that the intersection of the slope and bench drain did not appear to be built in full compliance with the specifications and is probably a construction deficiency. A scope of work (SOW) was issued and awarded for the repair of the gabion slope drain and appurtenant work. Ms. Iorio anticipates that the work will be completed in the Fall 2005.

There was no evidence of excavation or disturbance at any of the landfill sites. Inspected monitoring well casings were intact and secured.

9.5.4 Interviews

The following individuals were interviewed as part of the Five-Year Review:

- Ms. Ellen Iorio, USACE, New England District
- Mr. Dave Salvador, MADEP
- Mr. Takashi Tada, Contractor, Devens RFTA
- Mr. Robert Simeone, Devens, RFTA

All personnel were interviewed on April 21, 2005 while performing the site visit. Other than the noted eroded gabion slope drain, none of the personnel were aware of any reported problems with any of the sites. Evaluation of future land use has indicated that commercial and open space are acceptable. ICs are presented in the ROD for AOCs 9, 11, 40, 41, and SAs 6, 12, and 13, however, none are currently recorded with the deed. At the present time, the Installation Master Plan (IMP) covers institutional control restrictions. Property transfer for AOCs 9 and 40, and SAs 13 is scheduled to be completed by January 2006, at which time the ICs will be incorporated into the deed.

9.5.5 Community Participation

The Army has held regular and frequent informational meetings, issued fact sheets and press releases, and held public meetings to keep the community and other interested parties informed of activities at the Devens Consolidation Landfill.

In December 1997, the Army issued the first of two Proposed Plans (PP) to interested citizens and organizations. In response to public comment, the Army issued the revised Proposed Plan in November 1998. In both cases, numerous public notices were published, several public meetings were held, and a public review and comment period for the PP and FS was implemented.

Currently, the RAB meets every other month and provides advice to the installation and regulatory agencies on the Devens RFTA cleanup programs. Specific responsibilities include: addressing cleanup issues such as land use and cleanup goals; reviewing plans and documents; identifying proposed requirements and priorities; and conducting regular meetings that are open to the public.

At various times throughout the review period significant events for the Devens Consolidation Landfill were discussed at the RAB meetings. As appropriate, pertinent documents were distributed for review by the RAB members. In addition, the Army performed public site tours for the landfill sites in June 2001, June 2002 and May 2005.

9.6 Technical Assessment

Question A: Is the Remedy Functioning as Intended by the Decision Documents?

Remedial Action Performance: Based on indications from analytical results of confirmatory samples collected from the areas that were excavated, and disposal of excavated materials into the Consolidation Landfill or off-site as applicable, site cleanup goals and remedial action objectives established in the ROD have been satisfied.

System Operations/Operation and Maintenance (Consolidation Landfill): O & M is performed in accordance with the approved Landfill Operation and Maintenance Plan (Shaw Environmental, Inc., 2003).

Opportunities for Optimization: Remedial action and construction activities have been completed at this site, and therefore, there are no proposed opportunities for optimization.

Early Indicators of Potential Remedy Failure: No early indicators of potential remedy failure were noted during the review.

Implementation of ICs and Other Measures: ICs are presented in the ROD for AOCs 9, 11, 40, 41, and SAs 6, 12, and 13. If property transfer occurs in the future, ICs will be incorporated into the property deed or other instrument of property transfer. Until that time, the Installation Master Plan (R&K Engineering, Inc., June, 1999) will cover institutional control restrictions. The Master Plan identifies known environmental conditions, restrictions, and required actions that are in place for the properties. The Army is currently updating the Master Plan, which will be finalized in Spring 2006. Transfer of AOCs 9, 40 and SA 13 is expected to occur by January 2006. ICs for these sites are included in the Finding of Suitability to Transfer (FOST) and will be incorporated into the deeds once finalized.

Question B: Are the Exposure Assumptions, Toxicity Data, Cleanup Levels, and Remedial Action Objectives Used at the Time of Remedy Selection Still Valid?

Changes in Standards and To Be Considered: As part of this Five-Year Review, Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements (ARARs) and To be Considered (TBC) guidance for the Site presented in the ROD were reviewed, and a review of current ARARs was conducted. A few changes have been promulgated since the ROD was signed in 1999. See Section 9.6.2, ARARs.

Excavation activities at AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41 and SAs 12 and 13 were completed in 2003. Cleanup goals for the disposal areas were established by using USEPA Region 9 PRGs for residential soil and/or MCP S-1 soil standards, whichever was more stringent. PRGs were attained and verified through confirmatory sampling. The Remedial Action Objectives (RAOs) for soil specified in the ROD have been achieved. Contaminated soils were removed and placed in the Consolidation Landfill; therefore, changes to soil TBCs do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Changes in Exposure Pathways: The ROD identified unacceptable risks from the following exposure pathways: direct contact with and ingestion of contaminated soils by future residents at AOC 9, 11, 40, and 41 and SA 12 and 13. Based on analytical results of confirmatory soil samples collected from excavated areas, and implementation of ICs prohibiting residential site use, the direct contact with and ingestion of contaminated soil exposure pathways have been eliminated. Land use at the site has not changed and is not expected to change. The sites have been restored to wetland and upland habitats.

Changes in Exposure Assumptions: Human health risk assessments were performed for AOCs 11 and 40. Preliminary risk evaluations (screening risk evaluations) were performed for AOCs 9 and 41 and SAs 12 and 13. The risk assessments supporting the RODs for AOC 11 and AOC 40 used exposure assumptions consistent with standard practice at the time. Since that time, USEPA has updated some of the recommended dermal contact exposure assumptions. New guidance for evaluating dermal contact exposures was finalized in July 2004 (*Risk Assessment Guidance for*)

<u>Superfund</u>, <u>Volume I – Human Health Evaluation Manual – Part E</u>, <u>Supplemental Guidance for</u> <u>Dermal Risk Assessment – Final</u>). Because the remedy includes excavation of contaminated soils, changes to the exposure parameters do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Changes in Toxicity and Other Contaminant Characteristics: Because the remedy includes excavation of contaminated soils, changes to the toxicity of groundwater contaminants do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy.

Changes in Risk Assessment Methodologies: The methods for evaluating dermal contact exposures have changed since the time of the risk assessments supporting the RODs for AOC 11 and AOC 40, based on USEPA's <u>Risk Assessment Guidance for Superfund, Volume I – Human Health Evaluation Manual – Part E, Supplemental Guidance for Dermal Risk Assessment – Final</u>, July 2004. The human health and ecological risks discussed in the ROD have been eliminated by the excavation and removal of soils and the ICs. Therefore, while the methods for evaluating dermal contact exposures have changed since the time of the risk assessments supporting the RODs for AOC 11 and AOC 40, these risk assessment methodology changes do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

Question C: Has any other information come to light that could call into question the protectiveness of the remedy?

Additional information, other than noted above, that would call into question the protectiveness of the remedy was not noted. No natural disaster impacts occurred at the Devens Consolidation Landfill during this review period.

9.6.1 Summary of Technical Assessment

O & M is performed in accordance with the approved Landfill Operation and Maintenance Plan (Shaw Environmental, Inc., 2003). Excavation activities at AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41 and SAs 12 and 13 were completed in 2003. The RAOs for soil specified in the ROD have been permanently achieved.

Because the remedy included excavation of contaminated soils, changes to the exposure parameters do not affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedy. The human health and ecological risks discussed in the ROD have been eliminated by the excavation and removal of soils and the ICs. Therefore, while the methods for evaluating dermal contact exposures have changed since the time of the risk assessments supporting the RODs for AOC 11 and AOC 40, these risk assessment methodology changes do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

9.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review

Standards identified as ARARs appeared in the ROD (see Tables B.I, B.2, and B.3 reprinted from the ROD in Appendix H). These were reviewed for changes that could affect protectiveness.

Some standards relative to landfill remediation and construction determined to be applicable, relevant and appropriate, or to be considered, have been updated since the signing of the ROD in 1999. Changes in these standards do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy. In addition, no new standards promulgated since the ROD signing were identified.

The following are changes in the standards concerning groundwater and surface water:

- 40 CFR 141.11 Subpart B MCLs was updated July 1, 2001. Section 141.11 (a) and
 (b) was amended at 66 FR 7061 on January 22, 2001 to state the following:
 - a) *** The analyses and determination of compliance with 50 μ g/L MCL for arsenic use the requirements of Section 141.23.
 - b) The MCL for arsenic is 50 μ g/L for community water systems until January 23, 2006.

On January 22, 2001, USEPA adopted a new standard for arsenic in drinking water at 10 μ g/L, replacing the old standard of 50 μ g/L (66FR6976). The rule became effective on February 22, 2002. The date by which systems must comply with the new 10 μ g/L standard is January 23, 2006.

- 40 CFR 141.15 and 141.16 Subpart B Maximum Contaminant Levels were updated July 1, 2003. An effective date note (65 FR 76745) removed the sections from the Code of Federal Regulations effective December 8, 2003. Sections 141.15 and 141.16 do not appear in 40 CFR 141 updated on July 1, 2004. These two sections addressed MCLs for radium-226, radium-228, gross alpha particle radioactivity, and beta and photon radioactivity, which do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.
- 40 CFR 141.51 Subpart F Maximum Contaminant Level Goals and Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goals was updated July 1, 2001. The table was amended in Section 141.51 by adding arsenic with a MCLG of zero effective January 23, 2006 (66 FR 7063). Until then, there is no MCLG.
- 310 CMR 22.0 Drinking Water was updated on May 24, 2004. The arsenic MCL, 10 μg/L, listed in Section 22.06 is effective for the purpose of compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations (outlined above) on January 23, 2006.

Ambient water quality criteria (40 CFR 131) were updated since the signing of the ROD and the last Five-Year Review. However, the updates applied to different states, not including Massachusetts, and do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

9.7 Issues

At present, there are no deficiencies that would prevent planned response actions from being protective of human health and the environment, nor are any expected in the future.

Significant soil erosion was observed in the north-northeast gabion slope drain starting at the intersection with the bench drain and deposition of the eroded materials was observed in the perimeter swale of the consolidation landfill.

9.8 Recommendations and Follow-up Actions

It is the recommendation of this review that operation and maintenance at the Devens Consolidation Landfill be continued as outlined in the Landfill Operation and Maintenance Plan (2003) and the wetland and upland habitat restorations at AOCs 9, 11, 40 and SAs 12 and 13 be evaluated during the first three growing seasons (2004 – 2006). It is recommended that quarterly leachate sampling be continued per the Mass Development permit, semi-annual Consolidation

Landfill Long Term Maintenance (LTM) inspections are continued, and that the recommendations highlighted in 2004-2005 Annual LTM Reports are implemented.

It is also recommended that the Consolidation Landfill site undergo continued visual inspection to look for settling areas on the cap surface and along the edge (swales).

Recommendations/ Follow Up Actions	Party Responsible	Oversight Agency	Milestone Date	Do Follow-Up Actions: Affect Protectiveness (Y/N)	
				Current	Future
Incorporate ICs into the revised IMP	U.S. Army, BRAC	U.S. Army, BRAC	Spring 2006	Y	Y
The north-northeast gabion slope drain of the landfill should be repaired to correct the erosion and probable construction deficiencies.	U.S. Army, BRAC	U.S. Army, BRAC	Fall 2005	Y	Y

9.9 Protectiveness Statement

The remedies at AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41 and SAs 6, 12 and 13 are protective of human health and the environment, and exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risk are being controlled.

A health and safety plan (HASP) and investigation derived waste (IDW) handling procedures are in place, are sufficient to control risk to on-site workers and the public, and are being properly implemented during groundwater sampling. Human health is currently not at risk at AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41 and SAs 6, 12 and 13 because contaminated soils have been excavated and placed in the Consolidation Landfill where it has been capped.

All components of the ROD have been implemented. No contingency action is required at this time. Current remedial action activity consists of continued implementation of the components specified in the ROD: the long-term groundwater monitoring and maintenance program at the Consolidation Landfill, annual reporting, and Five-Year Reviews. These components enable continued assessment for compliance with performance standards and reporting of remedial progress.

9.10 Next Review

This is the second Five-Year Review that has been performed for AOCs associated with the Devens Consolidation Landfill. The next review will be performed within five years of the completion of this Five-Year Review report. The completion date is the date on which USEPA issues its letter to the Army either concurring with report's findings or documenting reasons for nonoccurrence.

9.11 References

- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES) 1993. "Final Remedial Investigation Addendum Report". Prepared for the U.S. Army Environmental Center, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland. Portland, Maine: ABB-ES, December 1993.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES), 1994a. "Supplemental Site Investigations Data Packages - Groups 2 & 7, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; Data Item A009; prepared for the U.S. Army Environmental Center; prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc.; January 1994.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES), 1994b. "Landfill Study Data Package, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; prepared for the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers; prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc., Wakefield, MA; December 1994.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES), 1995a. "Draft Consolidation Landfill Feasibility Study Report", Fort Devens, Massachusetts; prepared for the U.S. Army Environmental Center; prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc., Portland, ME, September 1995.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc., 1995b. "Revised Final Groups 2 & 7 Site Investigation Report, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; prepared for Commander, U.S. Army Environmental Center; prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc., Wakefield, MA, October 1995.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES), 1996a. "Revised Final Site Investigation Report -Groups 3, 5, & 6, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; Data Item A009; prepared for the U.S. Army Environmental Center by ABB Environmental Services, Inc., Wakefield, MA, January 1996.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES) 1996b. "Debris Disposal Area Technical Memorandum", Fort Devens, Massachusetts; prepared for the U.S. Army Environmental Center; prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc., Portland, ME, February 1996.
- ABB Environmental Services, Tue. (ABB-ES) 1996c. "Final Remedial Investigation Report", Area of Contamination (AOC) 41, Fort Devens, Massachusetts; prepared for the U.S. Army Environmental Center; prepared by ABE Environmental Services, Inc., Portland, ME, February 1996.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. (ABB-ES) 1997. "Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study Report;" prepared for the U. S. Army Environmental Center, prepared by ABB Environmental Services, Inc, Portland, ME; January 1997.
- Arthur D. Little, Inc., 1994. "Final Site Investigation Report, Main Post Site Investigation"; prepared for the U.S. Army Environmental Center by Arthur D. little, Inc., Cambridge, Massachusetts, December 1994.
- Arthur D. Little, Inc., 1995. "Draft Remedial Investigation Report AOC 11, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; prepared for the U.S. Army Environmental Center by Arthur D. Little, Inc., Cambridge, Massachusetts, April 1995.

- EA Engineering, Science, and Technology (EA), 1999. "Final Design Technical Specifications for Consolidation Landfill"; prepared for the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers; prepared by EA Engineering, Science, and Technology., Bedford, MA; October 1999.
- Ecology and Environment, Inc. (E&E), 1993. "Final Remedial Investigations Report for Areas of Contamination 4, 5, 18, 40, Fort Devens, Massachusetts". Prepared for the U.S. Army Toxic and Hazardous Materials Agency, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland. Arlington, Virginia: E&E. April 1993.
- Harding Lawson Associates (HLA) 1998. "Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study Addendum Report"; Devens, Massachusetts; prepared for the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers; prepared by Harding Lawson Associates, Portland, ME; November 1998.
- Harding Lawson Associates (HLA), 1999. "Final Record of Decision, Landfill Remediation, Study Areas 6, 12, and 13, and Areas of Contamination 9, 11, 40, and 41, U.S. Army Reserve Forces Training Area, Devens, Massachusetts". Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District; prepared by Harding Lawson Associates, Portland, ME; July 1999.
- Harding Lawson Associates (HLA), 2000. "Final First Five Year Review Report". Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; September 2000.
- Horne Engineering Services, Inc., 1996. "Draft Final Record of Decision"; South Post Impact Area and Area of Contamination 41 Groundwater and Areas of Contamination 25, 26, and 27, Fort Devens, Massachusetts; prepared for the U.S. Army Environmental Center; prepared by Horne Engineering Services, Inc., Alexandria, VA., April 1996.
- Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MADEP), Division of Solid Waste Management, 1997. "Landfill Technical Guidance Manual"; May 1997.
- Shaw Environmental, Inc./Stone & Webster Construction, Inc. (S&W) 2003. "Remedial Action Closure Report"; prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; prepared by Shaw Environmental, Inc./Stone & Webster Construction, Inc., Stoughton, MA, September 2003.
- Stone & Webster, Inc. (S&W) 2000a. "Contractor Quality Control Plan"; prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; prepared by Stone & Webster, Inc., Boston, MA, January 2000.
- Stone & Webster, Inc. (S&W) 2000b. "Sampling and Analysis Plan"; prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; prepared by Stone & Webster, Inc., Boston, MA, February 2000.
- Stone & Webster, Inc. (S&W) 2000c. "Environmental Protection Plan"; prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; prepared by Stone & Webster, Inc., Boston, MA, February 2000.
- Stone & Webster, Inc. (S&W) 2000d. "Site Safety and Health Plan"; prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; prepared by Stone & Webster, Inc., Boston, MA, September 2000.

- Stone & Webster, Inc. (S&W) 2000e. "Excavation and Handling Work Plan"; prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; prepared by Stone & Webster, Inc., Boston, MA, December 2000.
- Stone & Webster, Inc. (S&W) 2001a. "Materials Management Plan"; prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; prepared by Stone & Webster, Inc., Boston, MA, February 2001.
- Stone & Webster, Inc. (S&W) 2001b. "Dewatering Work Plan"; prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; prepared by Stone & Webster, Inc., Boston, MA, August 2001.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2004. "2003 Annual Report: Devens Consolidation Landfill: Post-Closure: Long-Term Monitoring and Maintenance." prepared by Department of Army, New England District, Corps of Engineers, Concord, MA, May 2004.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2004. "Spring 2004 Semi- Annual Report"; prepared by Department of Army, New England District, Corps of Engineers, Concord, MA, February 2005.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA), 1988. "Guidance for Conducting Remedial Investigations and Feasibility Studies under CERCLA"; USEPA/540/G-89/004; October 1988.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA), 2001. "Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance"; USEPA 540R-01-007; June 2001.

10.0 AOC 50 FIVE YEAR POLICY SITE REVIEW

10.1 Site Chronology

Event	Date		
National Priority List (NPL) Listing	December 1989		
Remedial Actions, Pre-Record of Decision (ROD)	1996 (SVE); 2001 (Pilot ERD)		
Remedial Investigation (RI) Initiated	1996		
Remedial Investigation Complete	January 2000		
Feasibility Study (FS) Complete	December 2002		
Proposed Plan (PP)	January 2003		
RODSignature	March 2004		
Actual Remedial Action Start (Post ROD)	May 2004		
Five-Year Review	September 2005		

Table 10-1: Chronology of Site Events

10.2 Background

AOC 50 is located on the northeastern boundary of the former Moore Array Airfield (MAAF), within the former North Post portion of Devens RFTA, Ayer, Massachusetts. The AOC 50 Source Area (Figure 2, reprinted from Record of Decision (ROD) and included in Appendix I) comprises less than 2 acres and includes Buildings 3803 (the former parachute shop), 3840 (the former parachute shakeout tower), 3824 (a gazebo), and 3801 (the former 10th Special Forces airplane parachute simulation building). Sources of groundwater contamination within AOC 50 include two World War II fueling systems, a drywell, and the tetrachloroethylene (PCE) drum storage area. These sources are collectively referred to as the Source Area. Other potential sources of contamination may include a former cesspool and floor drain associated with Building 3840. Although these sources have been removed or taken out of commission, groundwater underlying AOC 50 contains elevated concentrations of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) most notably PCE. The primary area of groundwater contamination at AOC 50 is referred to as the Southwest Plume, which extends from the Source Area approximately 3,000-feet downgradient to the Nashua River.

AOC 50 is currently defined by three distinct areas; the Source Area, Southwest Plume, and North Plume. These areas are shown on Figure 6 of the December 2004 Operations & Maintenance and Groundwater Sampling Report. The Army currently leases the area designated as the Source Area to Mass Development. The buildings on this property are included in the lease but are generally inactive. The Army intends to convey this property to Mass Development once a determination is made that the remedy is Operating Properly and Successfully (OPS) and a Finding of Suitability to Transfer (FOST) is issued by the Army. Appropriate Land Use Controls (LUCs) and CERCLA Right of Access will be incorporated into the conveyance. The Army, Mass Development, and the Fish and Wildlife Service own portions of the area overlying the Southwest Plume. The Army retained approximately 9.1 acres of the former airfield for vehicle storage and maintenance and 4.3 acres including the AOC 50 source area, but transferred approximately 14 acres of the property to Mass Development in 1996 for reuse. The Fish and Wildlife Refuge, located adjacent to the Nashua River, is generally forested and heavily vegetated with steep terrain and limited access. The Refuge abuts the Nashua River and there are currently no known plans to develop this area. The area owned by Mass Development has several buildings and a former airfield. Currently, the airfield is closed to aircraft traffic and is used by the Massachusetts State Police for training and vehicle storage. Under the Devens Reuse Plan (November 14, 1994), the area is zoned for Special Use II and Innovation and Technology Business, which includes a broad range of industrial, light industrial, office, and research and development uses. There are currently no plans for development of the MAAF, although the area can be developed if interested parties are identified. Zoning of the MAAF property could change when the Towns of Ayer, Harvard and Shirley vote on the ultimate disposition of the Devens property in 2006.

The Merrimack Warehouse Realty Co., Inc. owns the area overlying the North Plume. The property is zoned commercial and is developed with a building used for the manufacture of windshield washer fluid and as a storage facility. A fire pond is also located on the property and would be used for fire suppression should it be necessary. The North Plume also affects the abutting GFI Ayer, LLC property.

Groundwater beneath AOC 50 (Source Area, Southwest Plume, and North Plume) is not used as a drinking water or industrial water source and the entire area is on publicly supplied water and sewer. Future residential use of land at AOC 50 is not likely based on zoning restrictions and the Army will not use the land for residential use. The Devens Reuse Plan does not include residential development of land in the vicinity of AOC 50, and the privately owned land (North Plume) is not zoned for residential use. Since the aquifer underlying portions of the AOC 50 site are classified as high and medium yielding aquifers, there is the potential to use this resource in the future.

10.2.1 Fueling Systems

During World War II, two fueling systems were used in the area subsequently designated AOC 50; one system was used for fueling aircraft and trucks (System A), and the other for fueling trucks only (System B). These systems were not used for refueling operations after the late 1940s (Biang, et al., 1992). The two separate fueling systems were filled by gasoline shipments on a Boston & Maine Railroad spur (which no longer exists) located adjacent to Fueling System B (Figure 2). Releases of fuel associated with incidental spills at the former aircraft fuel pits, truckfill stands, and railroad fuel-delivery points were considered possible sources of contamination. Because the systems were approximately 50 years old, underground storage tanks (USTs) were also considered possible continuing sources of releases. The potential for migration of contaminated groundwater to the Nashua River was a concern. At the time of the initial Site Inspection (SI) in 1992 (ABB, 1993), several fueling-system components were still visible in their original locations. Fort Devens removed all of these components in 1992. In addition, approximately 450 tons of contaminated soil was removed from under the water-separator, watercontrol pits, and three 25,000-gallon USTs. The excavation extended to a depth of approximately 18 feet below ground surface (bgs) due to the presence of water in the excavation. All excavations were backfilled to grade. Field screening results and post-excavation sample analyses are presented in the RI prepared by HLA (HLA, 2000a).

10.2.2 Drywell

In 1969, Building 3840 was constructed and attached, via an enclosed walkway, to Building 3803. In addition, two large sinks and a janitors' room were added to Building 3803. The design drawings for Building 3840 indicated that a floor drain was constructed in the center of the concrete floor. This floor drain, the additional sinks in Building 3803, and the roof drains for Building 3840 were piped to a drywell located approximately 20 feet northeast of Building 3840 (Figure 2). This drywell received wash water, rainwater, and PCE waste associated with parachute cleaning activities. The drywell near Building 3840 and associated piping were removed for the Army by Roy F. Weston Corporation between November and December 1996 (Weston, 1997). The resulting excavation was approximately 9.5-feet deep and covered an area approximately 21 feet by 30 feet, equating to approximately 225 cubic yards (cy) of soil (inplace). Details regarding the removal activities are documented in the Remedial Action Report (Weston, 1997). In addition to the removal of the drywell, a 750-gallon fuel storage UST associated with the Building 3840 heating system, was also removed. In connection with the tank removal, approximately 787 gallons of oil, water, and residual sludge were recovered from the tank and approximately 25 cy of contaminated soil were excavated. Solid and liquid wastes generated during removal of the drywell and fuel storage UST were taken off site for proper treatment and disposal.

10.2.3 PCE Drum Storage Area

A PCE drum storage area, east of Building 3801, was identified during field investigation activities completed in 1992. Historical records and interviews with former Fort Devens personnel indicated that this area was used to store single drum quantities of PCE (HLA, 2000a). The PCE was used by Army personnel in Buildings 3803 and 3840 for spot cleaning of parachutes. Parachute cleaning was performed only as needed to maintain the integrity of the parachute material. Unused PCE was either reused or may have been washed down into the drywell system associated with Buildings 3803 and 3840. This information was supported by a review of the historic hazardous waste manifests, which did not include the removal of waste chlorinated solvents from AOC 50 (Molt, 1997). The use of this area for drum storage was discontinued in 1992. The length of time or total number of drums stored in this area of AOC 50 is unknown. Based on the results of various field investigations, PCE was detected in vadose zone soils beneath the former drum storage area and was likely contributing to PCE impacts in groundwater. An interim removal action for PCE-contaminated soil at the former drum storage area was planned and implemented as a source-control measure while additional investigation activities were conducted across the site.

10.2.4 In-Situ Soil Vapor Extraction (SVE)

An in-situ SVE system was installed adjacent to the former drum storage area in December 1993 and January 1994. Five soil vapor extraction wells (SVE-1 through SVE-5) were installed, one in the center of the presumed PCE source and four on the periphery (Figure 2). Details regarding the installation, operation, and performance of the SVE system between February 1994 and July 1996 are documented in a November 1996 report titled *Summary Report, SVE Monitoring, AOC 50* (ABB, 1996a). The SVE system was operated again for brief periods in December 1998, May and June 1999, and October and November 1999. The brief periods of SVE system operation, after the 1996 shut down were conducted to evaluate the concentration of PCE in the soil vapor, under equilibrium conditions. In general, recovered vapor concentrations were either below the detection limits of a photoionization detector (PID), or after a brief peak, observed when the system was restarted, and quickly attenuated within minutes. Data collected between 1994 and 1996 indicate that approximately 240 pounds of PCE were recovered and treated. No appreciable

mass of PCE was recovered during operation in 1998 and 1999. The SVE system was reactivated in September 2004; however, the system was recently shut down due to poor recovery/treatment of the PCE.

10.2.5 Cesspool

A cesspool associated with the bathroom in Building 3803 was identified on the site drawing and it appears to be the only septic system structure for either building. The drywell and cesspool were investigated as potential contaminant sources for the various volatile contaminants, including PCE detected in soil and groundwater during previous investigations. The cesspool was removed concurrent with the drywell and UST associated with Building 3840. During the cesspool removal activities, a total of 25 cy of soil, sludge, and concrete were excavated and taken off site for treatment and disposal.

10.2.6 Basis for Response Action

The baseline human health risk assessment revealed that workers and residents potentially exposed to contaminants of concern (COCs) in groundwater via potable water ingestion and vapor inhalation may present unacceptable human health risks (i.e., cancer risks greater than 1×10^{-4} and noncancer hazard indices greater than 1). In addition, the screening-level ecological risk assessment indicated significant but low ecological risks (hazard quotients for benthic organisms greater than 1 indicating low potential risk). Therefore, actual or threatened releases of hazardous substances from this site, if not addressed by implementing the response action selected in the ROD, may present an imminent and substantial endangerment to public health, welfare, or the environment. Groundwater will continue to be the focus of remedial actions.

10.2.7 Enhanced Reductive Dechlorination (ERD)

Between December 2001 and June 2002, an ERD pilot test was performed in the Southwest Plume Area and operation of the pilot ERD has been continuous since 2001. The ERD system utilizes a molasses-water solution as the treatment reagent. The active area of the pilot ERD system is located approximately 800 feet upgradient of the Nashua River. Prior to 2001, a pilot test was performed in the same area, by MACTEC, using hydrogen release compound (HRC). Based on the results of the pilot test, full-scale implementation was started in May 2004. The ERD system operation consists of making reagent injections into 40 injection wells located in the Source Area and Southwest Plume Area to maintain the In-situ Reactive Zone (IRZ) and promote microbial activity.

A Feasibility Study (FS), performed to develop and assess potential remedial alternatives for cleanup at AOC 50, was issued in December 2002. Following submission of the Army's Proposed Plan (PP) and receipt of public comments on the preferred remedial alternatives, the Army issued a ROD to document the final choice of a remedy for cleanup of groundwater by SVE, ERD, in-well stripping (IWS) bioremediation, control of solubilized inorganics, long term monitoring and institutional controls. The ROD was signed in March 2004.

10.3 Remedial Actions

The groundwater cleanup goals were developed from several sources and were presented in the ROD. Groundwater cleanup goals for COCs are shown in the following Table. If no cleanup goal was developed for a specific analyte as part of the ROD, the MCP Method 1 GW-1 standard was used as the cleanup goal for COCs.

Contaminant of Concern	Cleanup Goals (µg/L)		
VOCs			
Arsenic	10		
Benzene	5		
1,2-dichloroethane	5		
Lead	15		
Methylene Chloride	5		
Tetrachloroethylene	5		
Trichloroethylene	5		
Vinyl Chloride	2		
1,1-Dichloroethylene	7		
1,2-Dichloropropane	5		
cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene	70		
Iron	3,129		
Manganese	1,460		
Nitrate	10,000		

Table 10-2 Area 50 COC: Cleanup Level in Groundwater

MCL of 10 μ g/L for arsenic is not effective until January 26, 2006; however, USEPA has indicated in the ROD, dated 2004, that this is the maximum interim cleanup level likely to be accepted for arsenic.

There are three main areas of contamination identified for AOC 50; the Source Area, the Southwest Plume and the North Plume. The remedial objectives for each of these areas are as follows:

Source Area

- Protect potential residential and commercial/industrial receptors from ingesting contaminated groundwater.
- Protect commercial/industrial workers from inhaling vapors released from groundwater used as "open" process water.
- Prevent potential construction/occupation of residential dwellings and inhalation of vapors released from contaminated groundwater to indoor air.
- Restrict groundwater pumping and stormwater discharge/recharge to avoid drawing the contaminated groundwater from the source area.
- Limit construction in specified area over the contaminated groundwater that would interfere with the operation of the remedy.
- Reserve access to the site for monitoring and remediation.

Southwest Plume

- Protect potential residential and commercial/industrial receptors from ingesting contaminated groundwater.
- Restrict groundwater pumping and stormwater discharge/recharge to avoid drawing the contaminated groundwater from the source area.

- Limit construction in specified area over the contaminated groundwater that would interfere with the operation of the remedy.
- Reserve access to the site for monitoring and remediation.

North Plume

- Protect potential residential receptors from ingesting contaminated groundwater.
- Restrict groundwater pumping to avoid drawing the contaminated groundwater from the source area.
- Limit construction in specified area over the contaminated groundwater that would interfere with the operation of the remedy.
- Provide access to the site for monitoring and remediation.

10.3.1 Remedy Selection

The selected remedial technologies for AOC 50 are SVE, ERD, IWS/Aerobic Bioremediation, Monitoring and Institutional Controls. In addition, geochemical additives and In-Situ Chemical Oxidation (ISCO) were included as contingencies to address inorganics and VOCs, respectively, in the event that monitoring data indicate that implementation of these contingencies was warranted. The remedy was a comprehensive approach that addresses all current and potential future risks caused by groundwater contamination and mitigates residual soil contamination in the Source Area.

The components of remedy selected for AOC 50 were chosen to reduce potential human-health and ecological risks associated with contaminated groundwater under current and anticipated future land use scenarios. The remedial system for AOC 50 is also protective to the environment, attains ARARs, offers long term and short-term effectiveness, and is readily implementable at a reasonable cost. The principal components of the remedial systems for AOC 50 consist of the following:

- SVE in the Source Area.
- ERD throughout the site with solubilized inorganic controls.
- IWS along the downgradient portion of the Southwest Plume.
- ISCO in the North Plume (contingency).
- Iron injection downgradient of the ERD transect (contingency).
- Long term monitoring.
- Institutional Controls.
- Five-Year Site Reviews.

A description of the components of the selected remedy (Remedial Alternative 6) and other related activities is provided below.

<u>Pre-Design Investigation Activities.</u> Since 2003, the Army has performed additional field investigations at AOC 50 to further assess the nature and extent of PCE impacts at AOC 50. A pilot test of the ERD technology was completed between December 2001 and July 2002, the results of which were documented in a report incorporated into the Final FS. Additional investigation activities were conducted to support the Final Remedial Design (RD), (ARCADIS, 2004). This included collection and analysis of groundwater and soil samples, installation and

testing of IWS, and the installation of additional permanent SVE and monitoring wells, as necessary. Work plans would be submitted for review prior to initiating additional investigation activities.

<u>Application of SVE in the Source Area.</u> Based on the results of pre-design investigation to be performed, the existing SVE system, formerly operated in the Source Area at AOC 50, would be refurbished for use in the preferred alternative. The system would apply a vacuum to wells completed within the unsaturated soils, capturing VOC mass in the vapor phase as soil gases are withdrawn. The soil gases extracted from the subsurface would be treated, as needed with activated carbon prior to being discharged to the atmosphere. Operation of the SVE system in the Source Area will provide indirect remediation of groundwater impacts, if recoverable chlorinated volatile organic compounds (CVOC) mass is present. Specifically, the capture of adsorbed phase mass potentially present in the vadose zone soils will be removed as a continuing source for groundwater contamination. Additional SVE wells would be installed if necessary, in the Source Area, to supplement the existing SVE well network.

ERD Implementation. This technology is implemented *in-situ* by stimulating microbial activity and significantly increasing rates of CVOC degradation. The microbial activity is stimulated through the injection of an organic carbon substrate. The areas in which this substrate is delivered become anaerobic and reducing due to the uptake of available electron acceptors to support respiration of the microbes, providing the environment required for the ERD process to take place. The preferred remedy would involve the installation of multiple injection wells in a series of transects oriented perpendicular to the direction of groundwater flow. A dilute solution of potable water and the organic carbon substrate (molasses or other) will be periodically injected into the formation through these wells to drive the groundwater environment to anaerobic and reducing conditions. The exact locations, spacing, and completion details of the injection wells/transects would be specified in the RD. In order to optimize the design and further reduce the remedy duration, the design will reflect the most up to date groundwater quality data and flow modeling.

Solubilized Inorganics Controls. As outlined in the Final FS (ARCADIS, 2002a) and confirmed during the ERD pilot test, inorganics including iron, manganese and arsenic are solubilized within the reducing zones created by ERD technology. Inorganics solubilized within the reducing in-situ reactive zones (IRZs) are not expected to migrate beyond the boundary of reducing conditions, and are not expected to persist once the prevailing aerobic groundwater environment is restored. Outside of the zone of reducing conditions (i.e., under the naturally aerobic conditions present in the groundwater at AOC 50), the inorganic constituents will be oxidized and subsequently immobilized through precipitation and/or adsorption. However, it is recognized that a subsequent phase of remediation will be implemented should groundwater monitoring indicate that the inorganics have not attained remediation goals. After the ERD remedy is completed within sections of the plume and injection transects are phased out (which is expected to be approximately 10 to 15 years, based on the groundwater modeling prepared in the FS), the inorganic data collected during the long term monitoring will be evaluated to assess that adequate restoration of natural aerobic conditions and re-precipitation of inorganics have been achieved. If warranted, the re-precipitation of inorganics will be expedited through manipulation of aquifer chemistry or application of more effective treatment technologies along the length of the plume utilizing existing ERD injection wells as transects are phased out following the treatment of VOCs.

<u>IWS/Circulation Well Transect.</u> Alternative 6 would involve the installation of groundwater circulation/IWS wells in the downgradient portion of the Southwest Plume and upgradient of the

Nashua River. The inlet (lower) screen interval of the circulation well(s) would be positioned to intercept the zone of highest chlorinated CVOC concentrations, with the recharge (upper) screen interval positioned at the upper limit of the impacted zone (to prevent cross-contamination of unimpacted zones). The lower screen would also intercept the zone of highest potential solubilized inorganics should this condition present itself. The IWS would create aerobic conditions conducive to the precipitation of solubilized inorganics. As with the new monitoring wells, the exact location, spacing, and completion details of the circulation wells would be specified in the RD.

Sentinel Groundwater Monitoring Wells. Monitoring wells would be placed in strategic locations between the Nashua River and the most downgradient ERD injection transect to serve as sentinel wells. The sentinel well network would consist of a series of wells installed approximately 400 feet from the most downgradient ERD injection transect. These wells would be located laterally and vertically across the plume to monitor the possible presence of solubilized inorganics beyond the expected extent of the reducing conditions created by the ERD application and trigger the inorganics contingency for the treatment of solubilized inorganics as discussed below. The number of wells required to adequately monitor the residual plume and solubilized inorganics would be determined in the RD.

<u>Monitoring.</u> Long term monitoring would be performed to evaluate performance of the remedy and to confirm that COC concentrations are reduced to remediation goals. During the initial phases of implementation, monitoring would be conducted more frequently. As the progress of the remedy was established, monitoring frequency would be reduced. Samples will primarily be analyzed for VOCs, with additional analyses including dissolved metals (arsenic, iron, and manganese), nitrate, redox couples (sulfate/sulfide, and carbon dioxide/methane), and dissolved gases (e.g. oxygen, ethane, and ethene). Field parameters (e.g., ORP, pH, conductivity, turbidity, and temperature) would also be collected. Details of the monitoring will be outlined in a long term monitoring plan (LTMP).

<u>Institutional Controls.</u> Institutional controls (ICs) would be implemented in each area of the plumes (i.e. North, Source Area, and Southwest) through formal negotiations with the different entities that own the properties overlying these areas. ICs are necessary to restrict land and groundwater use at the site to prevent unacceptable risk for the duration of the remedy. Risks include risks to human health (identified earlier as ingestion, inhalation) as well as the conceptual risk to the remedy (plume exacerbation). ICs would also regulate ground extraction for industrial purposes that may affect the plume configuration, groundwater injection and storm drain retention/detention ponds that could influence groundwater flows and affect the remedy. Within 90-days of the ROD signature, the Army would prepare and submit to the USEPA for review and approval, Remedial Action Work Plan (RAWP), which would contain implementation and maintenance actions including periodic inspections.

10.3.2 Remedy Implementation

10.3.2.1 Enhanced Reductive Dechlorination (ERD)

During system operation between April and June 2004, approximately 170 to 180 gallons of reagent were made during each of the five separate injection wells on three occasions. Reagent injections were made by mixing molasses and water in a holding tank and transferring the contents of the tanks through the wellhead assembly at the injection well.

During system operation between September 2004 and July 2005, reagent injections were made in 40 injections wells on a monthly basis. During each injection event prior to June 2005, approximately 80 gallons of reagent were injected in each well in the Source Area and approximately 170-180 gallons were injected into each well in the Southwest Plume Area. During injection events in June and July 2005, approximately 100-110 gallons of reagent were injected in each well in the Source Area; approximately 450-500 gallons were injected into each well in Areas 2, 3, and 4 in the Southwest Plume Area; and approximately 200 gallons were injected into each well in Area 5. These enhancements were made, along with addition of ferrous sulfate, to accelerate the establishment of reducing zones and limit the migration of arsenic. During these events, injections were made using a trailer mounted manifold system with 5,000 gallon tank trucks with pre-mixed reagent.

During the ERD system operation, no significant operational problems were encountered and only minor maintenance was performed in the system.

10.3.2.2 In-Well stripping (IWS)

The IWS system was also started in May 2004, which consists of two recirculation wells located on the downgradient portion of AOC 50. The IWS system is located on the U.S. Fish & Wildlife property at the southern most portion of the plume. The IWS system consisted of 2 recirculation wells (IWS-1 and IWS-2) that are positioned to intercept the zone of highest CVOC impact in groundwater and treat volatile compounds in-situ. The IWS system also creates aerobic conditions in the event that reducing conditions extend beyond the area of the ERD treatment.

The final mechanical testing and start up of the IWS system was completed in May 2004. During system operation between May through December 2004, the groundwater recirculation rate ranged from 10 gallons per minute (gpm) to 16 gpm, and air flow ranged from 85 to 100 cubic feet per minute (cfm). Monitoring of influent and effluent PCE concentrations indicated that removal efficiencies of the IWS system ranged from 88 to 90 percent. As of December 2004, it was estimated that approximately 6.1 pounds of PCE have been removed from the groundwater by the IWS system.

During this period of operation, all equipment operated properly and only minor maintenance activities were conducted.

<u>Institutional Controls.</u> ICs will be implemented in each area of the plume (i.e. North, Source Area, and Southwest) through formal negotiations with the different entities that own the properties overlying these areas. The LUCs are detailed in the RAWP. The RAWP is currently being finalized by the regulatory agencies. The purpose of the LUCs is to restrict or prevent potential human exposure to groundwater contaminants at the site until the property can be used for unrestricted use. In addition, the plan protects the integrity and effectiveness of the selected remedy and provide access to maintain the remedy. As detailed in the RAWP, the LUCs, in the form of ICs, will be implemented in each area of the plume (North Plume, Source Area Plume and Southwest Plume) through formal negotiations following regulatory approval.

10.3.3 System Operations/Operations and Maintenance (O&M)

The full-scale start-up of the ERD and IWS treatment systems began in May-September 2004. Routine operations and maintenance of those systems were conducted throughout 2004. No significant maintenance activities were conducted in 2004. Annual estimates provided in the ROD indicated that annual O&M costs would be approximately \$240,000; however, this estimate included full-scale implementation of all treatment systems.

10.4 Progress Since Last Five Year Review

This is the first Five -Year Policy Site Review for AOCs 50. Therefore, there are no follow-up actions to be assessed from a previous Five -Year Review.

10.5 Five Year Review Process

10.5.1 Document Review

The following documents were reviewed for this five-year review:

- Remedial Investigation, prepared by Harding Lawson Associates, January 2000.
- Feasibility Study, prepared by Arcadis, December 2002.
- Record of Decision, prepared by Arcadis, March 31, 2004.
- Operation and Maintenance and Groundwater Monitoring Report, prepared by Arcadis, July 2004.
- Operation and Maintenance and Groundwater Monitoring Report, prepared by Arcadis, September 2004.
- Operation and Maintenance and Groundwater Monitoring Report, prepared by Arcadis, December 2004.
- Operation and Maintenance and Groundwater Monitoring Report, prepared by Arcadis, August 2005.
- Remedial Action Work Plan (RAWP), prepared by Arcadis, June 2005.

10.5.2 Data Review

Analytical data from the July, September, December 2004 and June 2005 Operation and Maintenance and Groundwater Monitoring Reports were reviewed for this Five-year review (ARCADIS July 2004, December 2004, February 2005, and August 2005). Elevated concentrations of CVOCs were detected in groundwater at AOC 50, although a decreasing trend has been observed in some areas of the site due to the on going remedial efforts. Figures 2 and 6, and analytical trend charts from the July and December 2004 Maintenance and Groundwater Monitoring Reports (ARCADIS, 2005) and Table 6 from June 2005 Report are presented in Appendix I.

During the remedial investigation phase of AOC 50, (completed in 2000), the maximum concentrations of tetrachloroethylene (PCE) observed were: 10,000 μ g/L in the Source Area Plume, 900 μ g/L in the Southwest Plume and 100 μ g/L in the North Plume Area. Review of the data collected in June 2005 indicated that the maximum concentrations for PCE were 2,800 μ g/L in the Source Area, 1,500 μ g/L in the Southwest Plume and 7.6 μ g/L in the North Plume Area.

10.5.3 Site Inspection

On April 21, 2005, a Nobis representative performed site inspections at AOC 50. Conditions during the inspection were favorable with no precipitation and temperatures in the 50s. AOC 50 is located on the northeastern boundary of the former MAAF, within the former North Post portion of Devens RFTA, Ayer, Massachusetts. The AOC 50 Source Area comprises less than 2 acres and includes Buildings 3803 (the former parachute shop), 3840 (the former parachute shakeout tower), 3824 (a gazebo), and 3801 (the former 10th Special Forces airplane parachute simulation building). The buildings in the source area are not occupied.

Building 3813 (former hanger building) is used for vehicle maintenance and is occupied during the day by workers. It should be noted that Building 3813 is located, outside of the source area and is on top of the Kane Terrace present at AOC 50. The remaining portions of AOC 50 consist of paved areas, landscaped area and a portion of the former airfield. Currently the airfield is closed to aircraft traffic and is used for vehicle storage and training by the Massachusetts State Police.

A water pump in the IWS shed was being replaced by ARCADIS during the site inspection. This is regular O&M of the system and does not indicate any sort of problem or deficiency.

10.5.4 Interviews

The following individuals were interviewed as part of the five-year review:

- Ms. Ellen Iorio, USACE, New England District
- Mr. Dave Salvador, MADEP
- Mr. Takashi Tada, Contractor, Devens RFTA
- Mr. Peter Kaselis, Devens RFTA

Personnel were interviewed on April 21, 2005 while performing the site visit and during subsequent meetings and phone calls. None of the personnel interviewed were aware of any significant problems with the ERD, or the IWS systems. Mr. Kaselis indicated that the depth to the groundwater contamination beneath the Kane Terrace is more than 70 feet below the ground surface.

According to Mr. Salvador, the SVE system is not operational running due to the high water table inhibiting cost effective PCE extraction. Discussions pertaining to the long term plan for the SVE system are ongoing.

A RAWP (ARCADIS, 2005), including a land use control plan (LUCP) and long-term groundwater plan (LTMP) is currently being reviewed and finalized by the Army and the regulatory agencies. In addition, an optimization plan for the ERD treatment system is currently being evaluated.

10.5.5 Community Participation

The Army has held regular and frequent informational meetings, issued fact sheets and press releases, and held public meetings to keep the community and other interested parties informed of activities at AOC 50.

Currently, the Restoration Advisory Board (RAB) meets every other month and provides advice to the installation and regulatory agencies on the Devens RFTA cleanup programs. Specific responsibilities include: addressing cleanup issues such as land use and cleanup goals; reviewing plans and documents; identifying proposed requirements and priorities; and conducting regular meetings that are open to the public.

On January 20, 2003, the Army issued the PP, to provide the public with an explanation of the Army's proposal for remedial actions at AOC 50. The PP also described the opportunities for community participation and provided details on the upcoming public comment period and public meeting.

On January 22, 2003, the Army published a public notice information meeting, the date for a public information meeting and the start and end dates of a 30-day public comment period in the Harvard Post and papers of the Nashoba Publishing Company (Groton Landmark, Harvard Hillside, Pepperell Free Press, The Public Spirit, Shirley Oracle, and Townsend Times). The Army also made the PP available to the public at the public information repositories at the Ayer Public Library, the Hazen Memorial Library in Shirley, the Harvard Public Library, or by request from the Devens BRAC Environmental Office.

From January 23 through February 20, 2003, the Army held a 30-day public comment period to accept public comments on the PP. On January 30, 2003, the Army held an informal public information meeting at Devens RFTA to present the Army Proposed Plan to the public and to provide the opportunity for open discussion concerning the PP.

On February 7, 2003, the Army published a public notice announcing the PP the date for a public hearing in the Harvard Post and papers of the Nashoba Publishing Company (Groton Landmark, Harvard Hillside, Pepperell Free Press, The Public Spirit, Shirley Oracle, and Townsend Times). On February 19, 2003, the Army held a Public Hearing to present the PP and accept formal verbal or written comments from the public. A written request to extend the comment period for the PP from February 20, 2003 to March 7, 2003 was accepted by the BRAC office on February 20, 2003.

In August 2004, a public site tour was held for AOC 50 and in December 2004 an AOC 50, status update was presented to the RAB. A copy of the December presentation is included in Appendix I.

All supporting documentation for the decision regarding AOC 50 is contained in the Administrative Record for review. The Administrative Record is a collection of all the documents considered by the Army in choosing the plan of action for AOC 50. The Administrative Record is available for public review at the Devens BRAC Environmental Office and at the Town Repositories. An index to the Administrative Record is available at the BRAC Environmental Office.

10.6 Technical Assessment

Question A: Is the remedy functioning as intended by the decision documents?

Remedial Action Performance: Initial results of the ERD and IWS treatment systems have been favorable. These systems have been in place since May 2004. Dechlorination has been demonstrated by the pilot ERD transect. More time is needed to determine long term

effectiveness. Efforts are currently underway to accelerate the establishment of the IRZs through the implementation of the Army's optimization plan. The optimization plan was outlined in a memorandum prepared by ARCADIS G&M, Inc. in March 2005.

System Operations/Operation and Maintenance (Long Term Groundwater Monitoring): Groundwater monitoring is being performed in conjunction with the remedial implementation of the ERD and IWS treatment systems. Annual estimates provided in the ROD indicated that annual O&M costs would be approximately \$240,000; however, this estimate included full-scale implementation of all treatment systems.

Opportunities for Optimization: The Army's optimization plan for ERD injections has been implemented as of June 2005. (ARCADIS, 2005). The optimization plan focused on enhancing the degradation of CVOCs within the IRZ and increasing the control of arsenic solubility. The SVE system is operated seasonally when soil conditions permit and was reactivated in July 2005. PCE mass recovery will be documented by O&M reports and decisions will be made whether to continue operations.

Early Indicators of Potential Remedy Failure: No indicators of potential remedy failure were noted during this review.

Implementation of Institutional Controls and Other Measures: In accordance with the ROD, ICs that prohibit the use of groundwater as a potable source, restrict groundwater pumping and stormwater recharge, limit construction in specific areas, provide access, protect workers from inhaling vapors from process water and restriction of residential/educational uses in the source area are currently in effect at AOC 50.

As detailed in the RAWP, the LUCs, in the form of ICs, will be implemented in each are of the plume (North Plume, Source Area Plume and Southwest Plume) through formal negotiations following regulatory approval. It is anticipated that the RAWP will be approved by the end of 2005 and that negotiations of the LUCs will subsequently be performed. In the event of future property transfer, ICs will be stated in full or by reference within deeds, easements, mortgages, leases, or other instruments of property transfer. These controls will be drafted, implemented and enforced in cooperation with federal, state, and local governments. These covenants will be maintained as long as soil and groundwater contaminants remain at concentrations above cleanup levels.

Question B: Are the exposure assumptions, toxicity data, cleanup levels, and remedial objectives, used at the time of remedy selection still valid?

Changes in Standards and To Be Considered: As part of this five-year review, ARARs and To Be Considered (TBC) guidance for the Site presented in the ROD were reviewed, and a review of current ARARs was conducted. See Section 10.6.2, ARARs.

The Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs) are health-based standards established by the Environmental Protection Agency. Since most of the cleanup goals are based on these drinking water standards, changes to the MCLs impact the protectiveness of these cleanup goals. However, because the remedy includes prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water, changes to groundwater standards do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

Changes in Exposure Pathways: The ROD identified unacceptable risks from the following exposure pathways: potential ingestion of groundwater as the primary drinking water source;

inhalation of VOCs from groundwater through vapor intrusion; use of groundwater as process water by future commercial/industrial workers; potential ingestion of groundwater as the primary drinking water source; and inhalation of volatiles from household groundwater used by future residents at AOC 50. No evaluation of dermal contact with groundwater used for household use was provided in the RI supporting the ROD. Lack of consideration of this pathway may yield to an underestimate of risks from future residential household water use.

There are no current complete exposure pathways. The depth to the groundwater contamination in the vicinity of the occupied building (Building 3813) is more than 70 below the ground surface and does not pose a risk to vapor intrusion. Groundwater at the site is not currently used as drinking water or process water. Thus, the exposure to groundwater through drinking water, process water, and household water use is of concern to future receptors only.

A site specific risk assessment was conducted to evaluate risks associated with exposure to vapors migrating to indoor air. Excess risk was identified for residential use in the Source Area only. An IC restricting new building construction and residential/ educational uses in the Source Area will eliminate this pathway.

ICs prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water at AOC 50 will eliminate the potential drinking water and household water exposure pathway. Current use is in compliance with existing zoning that prohibits residential use and planned land-use restrictions for AOC 50. Land use at the site has not changed. No new contaminants, sources, or other routes of exposure were identified. There is no indication that hydrogeologic conditions are not adequately characterized.

Changes in Exposure Assumptions: The risk assessment supporting the ROD for AOC 50 used exposure assumptions for the ingestion of groundwater pathway consistent with standard practice at the time. Those assumptions remain consistent with current risk assessment guidance.

Changes in Toxicity and Other Contaminant Characteristics: Iron was identified as a COC in the ROD because non-cancer health hazards from exposures to iron in groundwater exceeded a hazard index (HI) of 1. United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) Region I has since indicated that they do not support evaluations of risk from exposures to iron because the reference dose (RfD) developed for iron is based on concentrations needed to protect against a nutritional deficiency (USEPA Region I Risk Updates, November 1996). Based on this guidance, non-cancer health risks would not be calculated for iron. Consequently, iron would not be considered a COC and total site hazard indices would be lower.

The toxicities of PCE and TCE are currently under review. Preliminary suggestions are that PCE and TCE are more toxic than previously thought; however, revised toxicity factors have not yet been finalized.

USEPA has withdrawn the cancer slope factor for 1,1-DCE used in the risk assessment. The RfD for 1,1-DCE has been revised to a less stringent value than that used in the risk assessment. Therefore, both cancer and non-cancer risks from exposure to 1,1-DCE may be overestimated.

USEPA Region I currently supports an oral RfD for manganese of 0.07 mg/kg/day for ingestion of soil, sediments or food. EPA Region 1 supports an oral RfD of 0.024 mg/kg/day for manganese in drinking water. EPA issued a Lifetime Health Advisory of 0.3 mg/L for manganese in January, 2004. This value should be used for infants younger than 6 months even for an acute exposure of 10 days. The advisory is a TBC.

USEPA's IRIS database revised the oral cancer slope factor for vinyl chloride in 2000 to a less stringent oral cancer slope factor than that used for vinyl chloride in the risk assessment. Therefore risks from exposure to vinyl chloride may be overestimated.

USEPA's IRIS database currently lists a range of oral cancer slope factor values for benzene $(1.5 \times 10^{-2} \text{ to } 5.5 \times 10^{-2})$. Since the risk assessment used a cancer slope factor within the current range (2.9×10^{-2}) , risks from exposure to benzene would be higher if the cancer slope factor from the high end of the range was used and lower if the cancer slope factor from the low end of the range was used. Therefore, cancer risks from exposure to benzene may be over- or underestimated. The USEPA's IRIS database currently lists a higher oral RfD for benzene (4×10^{-3}) than the oral RfD used for arsenic in the risk assessments (3×10^{-3}) . Therefore, non-cancer health risks from exposure to benzene may be overestimated.

Since the cleanup goals are based on drinking water standards and not on risk-based calculated concentrations, changes to the toxicity values do not impact the protectiveness of the cleanup goals. In addition, because the remedy includes prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water, changes to the toxicity of groundwater contaminants do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

Changes in Risk Assessment Methodologies: The methods for evaluating groundwater exposures have not changed since the time of the risk assessment supporting the ROD for AOC 50. The potential human health risks discussed in the ROD will be eliminated by ICs, including the proposed deed restriction prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water. Therefore, there are no risk assessment methodology changes that affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

Question C: Has any other information come to light that could call into question the protectiveness of the remedy?

No information that would call into question the protectiveness of the remedy was noted. No natural disaster impacts occurred at AOC 50 during this review period.

10.6.1 Summary of Technical Assessment

Modifications to optimize the ERD treatment system have been implemented.

While the methods for evaluating dermal contact exposures have changed since the time of the risk assessments supporting the RODs for AOC 50, these risk assessment methodology changes do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy, since the use of groundwater as drinking water has been prohibited.

10.6.2 Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements Review

ARARs, presented in Table 6, reprinted from the ROD, are appended in Appendix I. The standards and regulations, current at the signing of the ROD have been reviewed for changes that could affect protectiveness.

The following ARARs, listed in Appendix I, have been modified since signing of the ROD that may affect the protectiveness of the implemented remedial action:

- 40 CFR 141.11 Subpart B Maximum Contaminant Levels was updated July 1, 2001. Section 141.11 (a) and (b) was amended at 66 FR 7061 on January 22, 2001 to state the following:
 - a) *** The analyses and determination of compliance with 50 μ g/L MCL for arsenic use the requirements of 141.23.
 - b) The MCL for arsenic is 50 μg/L for community water systems until January 23, 2006.

On January 22, 2001 USEPA adopted a new standard for arsenic in drinking water at 10 μ g/L, replacing the old standard of 50 μ g/L (66FR6976). The rule became effective on February 22, 2002. The date by which systems must comply with the new 10 μ g/L standard is January 23, 2006.

- 40 CFR 141.15 and 141.16 Subpart B Maximum Contaminant Levels were updated July 1, 2003. An effective date note (65 FR 76745) removed the sections from the Code of Federal Regulations effective December 8, 2003. Sections 141.15 and 141.16 do not appear in 40 CFR 141 updated on July 1, 2004. These two sections addressed MCLs for radium-226, radium-228, gross alpha particle radioactivity, and beta and photon radioactivity, which do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy.
- 40 CFR 141.51 Subpart F Maximum Contaminant Level Goals and Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goals was updated July 1, 2001. The table was amended in Section 141.51 by adding arsenic with a MCLG of zero effective January 23, 2006 (66 FR 7063). Until then, there is no MCLG.
- 310 CMR 22.0 Drinking Water was updated on May 24, 2004. The arsenic MCL, 10 µg/L, listed in Section 22.06 is effective for the purpose of compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations (outlined above) on January 23, 2006.
- USEPA RfD and Health Advisories (HA) are requirements designated as TBC. These
 requirements were updated in the USEPA 2004 Edition of the Drinking Water
 Standards and Health Advisories, dated Winter 2004.

Several other regulations were updated since the ROD, but do not affect the protectiveness of the remedy. These updated regulations include:

- 40 CFR 262.34 Hazardous Waste Generators, "Accumulation Time" was updated April 22, 2004. There were no revisions that affect the protectiveness of the remedy for AOC 50.
- 310 CMR 10.00 "Wetlands Protection" was updated February 11, 2005. There were no revisions that affect the protectiveness of the remedy for AOC 50.

In addition, a search was performed for any newly promulgated standards, which could affect protectiveness at the site. No new ARARs were identified that would affect the protectiveness of the remedy.

10.7 Issues

There are no areas of non-compliance or deficiencies that have been noted during this review that would make the remedial actions at AOC 50 non-compliant with the ROD, or sufficient to

warrant a finding of not protective. This finding is based upon a review of site reports that have been prepared since the signing of the ROD, a review of ARARs triggered by the remedial action, and the findings from the site inspection and interviews.

Although elevated concentrations of CVOCs continue to be detected in groundwater at AOC 50, a decreasing trend has been observed in some areas of the site due, to the on going remedial efforts. A RAWP, including a LUCP is in the process of being finalized.

10.8 Recommendations and Follow-up Actions

Continue current remedial actions as specified in the ROD. These components enable continued assessment for compliance with remedial goals established in the ROD and reporting of the remedial progress. Follow performance standards and continue to assess for contaminant migration and remedial duration. Evaluation of the SVE system is ongoing. The IC's should be implemented through deed restrictions in accordance with the RAWP prior to the OPS Demonstration.

<u>10.9 Protectiveness Statement</u>

The remedy at AOC 50 is expected to be protective upon completion, and in the interim, exposure pathways that could lead to unacceptable risks are being controlled.

A health and safety plan (HASP) and investigation derived waste (IDW) handling procedures are in place, are sufficient to control risk to on-site workers and the public, and are being properly implemented during groundwater sampling. Human health is currently not at risk at AOC 50 because groundwater at the AOC is not being used for potable use nor proposed for potable use.

The remedial actions at AOC 50 are expected to allow unrestricted use and unlimited exposure upon final achievement of Remedial Goals (RGs) in groundwater. The Army has installed groundwater monitoring wells and initiated long term monitoring. The groundwater sampling data from fall 2004 and spring 2005 document that both the ERD system and the IWS system are effective in degrading PCE and creating proper conditions for treatment. PCE and TCE contaminant concentrations in groundwater are decreasing.

Current remedial action activity consists of operation of the remedy, long term groundwater monitoring, annual reporting, and five-year site reviews. These components enable continued assessment for compliance with performance standards and reporting of remedial progress.

10.10 Next Review

AOC 50 is a policy site that requires ongoing Five-Year Reviews. The next review will be performed in 2010.

10.11 References

- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. 1993. Final Site Investigation Report, Fort Devens, Groups 3, 5, and 6. Prepared for U.S. Army Environmental Center, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland. ABU Environmental Services, Inc., Wakefield, MA. April.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc., 1996a. "Summary Report, SVE Monitoring, AOC 50", November 1996.
- ABB Environmental Services, Inc. 1996b. "Revised Final Groups 3, 5, and 6 Site Investigation Report, Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; prepared for U.S. Army Environmental Center, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland; January 1996.
- ARCADIS, 2002b. 2001 Groundwater Sampling Report, AOC 50, Devens Reserve Forces Training Area, Devens, Massachusetts, 2002.
- ARCADIS G&M, Inc., 2002. "Final Feasibility Study, AOC 50, Devens Reserve Forces Training Area". Prepared for the U.S. Army Forces Command, dated December 16, 2002.
- ARCADIS, January 2004 "Final Record of Decision, AOC 50, Devens, Massachusetts". Prepared for USEPA, signed by U.S. EPA on March 31, 2004.
- ARCADIS G&M, Inc., June 2004. "Operations & Maintenance and Groundwater Monitoring Report". Prepared for G/FPR Remediation of AOC 50, dated July 2004.
- ARCADIS G&M, Inc., December 2004. "Operations & Maintenance and Groundwater Monitoring Report". Prepared for G/FPR Remediation of AOC 50, dated February 2005.
- Biang, C.A., R.W. Peters, R.I-I. Pearl, and S.Y. Tsai, 1992. "Master Environmental Plan for Fort Devens, Massachusetts"; prepared for U.S. Army Toxic and Hazardous Materials Agency; prepared by Argonne National Laboratory, Environmental Assessment and Information Sciences Division, Argonne, Illinois, April 1992.
- Harding Lawson Associates, 2000. "Final Remedial Investigation Report Area of Contamination (AOC) 50". Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts; January 2000.
- HLA, 2000b. Draft Findings Report Benzene and Ethylene Oibromide Assessments, Area if Contamination 50, Former Moore Army Airfield, Devens Reserve Forces Training Area, Devens, Massachusetts"; prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Concord, Massachusetts, March.
- Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection, 1997. "The Massachusetts Contingency Plan"; 310 CMR4O.0000, May 1997.
- MDEQ. 2002. Rule .57 Water Quality Values. Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, Surface Water Quality Assessment Section. <u>www.deq.state.mi.us/documents/deq-swq-gleas-r57inter.xls</u>.

Mott, M., 1997. Memorandum of Findings-Historical Research of AOC 50, August.

- Suter and Tsao, 1996. Toxicological Benchmarks for Screening Potential Contaminants of Concern for Effects on Aquatic Biota: 1996 Revision. Risk Assessment Program, Health Sciences Research Division, Oak Ridge, TN. ES/ER/TM-96/R2.
- Suter, G.W. 1996. Toxicological benchmarks for screening contaminants of potential concern for effects on freshwater biota. Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry 15(7):1232-1241.
- Suthersan, Suthan, 1997. Remediation Engineering Design Concepts. Lewis Publishers/CRC Press, Boca Raton, 362 pp.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. 1998. Final Five Year Review, Shepley's Hill Landfill Long Term Monitoring, Devens, Massachusetts. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers New England District and Stone & Webster Environmental Technology & Services. August 1998.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, (USEPA), 1988, "Guidance for Conducting Remedial Investigations and Feasibility Studies Under CERCLA", Office of Emergency and Remedial Response, EPAI5401G-8 91004, OSWER Directive 9355.3-01, Washington, D.C., October 1988.
- USEPA, 1991. "In the Matter of: The US Department of the Army, Fort Devens Army Installation, Fort Devens, Massachusetts, Federal Facilities Agreement Under CERCLA Section 120", May 1991.
- USEPA, 1999. National Recommended Water Quality Criteria Correction. EPA 822-Z-99-001, Office of Water. Washington, D.C., April 1999.
- USEPA, 2000. Drinking Water Standards and Health Advisories. Office of Water. EPA822-B-00-00 1. Washington, D.C., Summer 2000.
- USEPA, 2002. National Recommended Water Quality Criteria: 2002. United States Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Water, Washington, DC. EPA 822-R-02-047. November 2002.
- Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc., 1994a. "Zoning District Parcel Maps." Prepared for the Boards of Selectmen of the Towns of Ayer, Harvard, Lancaster, and Shirley and the Massachusetts Government Land Bank; November 11, 1994.
- Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc., 1994b. "Devens Reuse Plan." Prepared for the Boards of Selectmen of the Towns of Ayer, Harvard, Lancaster, and Shirley and the Massachusetts Government Land Bank; November 1994.
- Weston, Roy, F., 1997. "Removal Action Report. Dry Well, Cesspool, and Fuel Oil Underground Storage F Tank Area of Contamination (AOC) 50 Moore Army Air Field Devens, MA; Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, New England District, Waltham, Massachusetts, September 1997.





2005 FIVE-YEAR REVIEW REPORT

VOLUME II

FORMER FORT DEVENS DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

GSA CONTRACT NO. GS-10F-0399N

Prepared for:

Former Fort Devens Devens, Massachusetts Middlesex County, MA September 2005

Prepared by:

U.S. Army BRAC Environmental Office 30 Quebec Street, Box 100 Devens, MA 01432



FIGURE 1-1

FIGURE 1-1

SITE PLAN LOCATION OF STUDY AREAS AND AREAS OF CONTAMINATION



APPENDIX A

BARNUM ROAD MAINTENANCE YARDS AOCS 44 AND 52

P:\Projects\CADD-PDRT\Projects\3618048014\3618048014F05.dwg Wed, 31 Aug 2005 - 3:20pm bgfurey







MACTEC-

Table C-1Ground Water Analytical Results 1998Relative to Massachusetts Contingency Plan Standards

Samala IB	G2M 02 04Y	C2M 02 05V	C2M 02 05VD	MCP GW-1
Sample to	G2M-92-04A	G2MI-92-02X	G3WI-92-05AD	Standards
Date Sampled	5/21/98	5/21/98	5/21/98	
Units	ppb	ppb	ppb	ppb
EPH Aliphatics/Aromatics				
C9-C18 Aliphatics	<61	<62	<61	4,000
C19-C36 Aliphatics	<61	<62	150	5,000
C10-C22 Aromatics	<160	<160	<160	200
PAH				
Acenaphthene	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	20
Acenaphthylene	<0.2	< 0.2	<0.2	300
Anthracene	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	2,000
Benzo (a) anthracene	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	1
Benzo (b) fluoranthene	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	1
Benzo (k) fluoranthene	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	1
Benzo (a) pyrene	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	0.2
Benzo (g,h,i) perylene	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	0.5
Chrysene	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	2
Dibenzo (a,h) anthracene	<0.2	< 0.2	<0.2	0.5
Fluoranthene	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	300
Flourene	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	300
Indeno (1,2,3-cd) pyrene	<0.2	< 0.2	<0.2	0.5
2-Methylnaphthalene	<0.2	< 0.2	<0.2	10
Naphthalene	<0.2	< 0.2	<0.2	20
Phenanthrene	<0.2	< 0.2	<0.2	300
Pyrene	<0.2	< 0.2	<0.2	200
VPH Aliphatics/Aromatics				
C5-C8 Aliphatics	<40	<40	<40	400
C9-C12 Aliphatics	<10	<10	<10	4,000
C9-C10 Aromatics	<10	<10	<10	200
VPH Analytes				
Benzene	<5	<5	<5	5
Toluene	<15	<15	<15	500
Ethylbenzene	<5	<5	<5	700
p/m-Xylenes	<20	<20	<20	500
o-Xylene	<10	<10	<10	500
Naphthalene	<10	<10	<10	20
Methyl-tert-Butyl Ether	<15	<15	<15	70
Metals				
Lead	<5	<5	<5	15
Table C-2Ground Water Analytical Results 1999Relative to Massachusetts Contingency Plan Standards

Sample ID	G3M-92-04X	G3M-92-05X	G3M-92-05XD	MCP GW-1
				Standards
Date Sampled	6/8/99	6/8/99	6/8/99	_
Units	ppb	ppb	ррб	ppb
EPH Aliphatics/Aromatics				
C9-C18 Aliphatics	<100	<110	<100	4,000
C19-C36 Aliphatics	<100	<110	<100	5,000
C10-C22 Aromatics	<100	<110	<100	200
PAH				
Acenaphthene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	20
Acenaphthylene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	300
Anthracene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	2,000
Benzo (a) anthracene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	1
Benzo (b) fluoranthene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	1
Benzo (k) fluoranthene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	1
Benzo (a) pyrene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	0.2
Benzo (g,h,i) perylene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	0.5
Chrysene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	2
Dibenzo (a,h) anthracene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	0.5
Fluoranthene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	300
Flourene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	300
Indeno (1,2,3-cd) pyrene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	0.5
2-Methylnaphthalene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	10
Naphthalene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	20
Phenanthrene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	300
Pyrene	<0.1	<0.11	<0.1	200
VPH Aliphatics/Aromatics				
C5-C8 Aliphatics	<100	<100	<100	400
C9-C12 Aliphatics	<25	<25	<25	4.000
C9-C10 Aromatics	<25	<25	<25	200
VPH Analytes				
Benzene	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	5
Toluene	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	500
Ethylbenzene	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	700
p/m-Xylenes	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	500
o-Xylene	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	500
Naphthalene	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	20
Methyl-tert-Butyl Ether	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	70
Metals				
Lead	<5	<5	<5	15

Table C-3Ground Water Analytical Results 2003Relative to Massachusetts Contingency Plan Standards

Comple ID	C2M 02 04Y	C2M 02 05Y	G3M-92-05X	MCP GW-1
Sample ID	G3W-92-04X	G3M-92-05X	Duplicate	Standards
Date Sampled	12/23/03	12/23/03	12/23/03	
Units	µg/L	րց/Լ	μg/L	μg/L
EPH Aliphatics/Aromatics				
C9-C18 Aliphatics	0.062 U	0.061 U	0.062 U	4,000
C19-C36 Aliphatics	0.083 U	0.082 U	0.082 U	5,000
C11-C22 Aromatics	0.18 U	0.17 U	0.17 U	200
PAH				
Acenaphthene	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	20
Acenaphthylene	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	300
Anthracene	0.016 J	0.020 U	0.020 U	2,000
Benzo (a) anthracene	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	1
Benzo (b) fluoranthene	0.018 J	0.020 U	0.020 U	1
Benzo (k) fluoranthene	0.015 J	0.020 U	0.020 U	1
Benzo (a) pyrene	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.2
Benzo (g,h,i) perylene	0.014 J	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.5
Chrysene	0.016 J	0.020 U	0.020 U	2
Dibenzo (a,h) anthracene	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.5
Fluoranthene	0.024	0.020 U	0.020 U	300
Flourene	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	300
Indeno (1,2,3-cd) pyrene	0.013 J	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.5
2-Methylnaphthalene	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	10
Naphthalene	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	20
Phenanthrene	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	300
Pyrene	0.021	0.020 U	0.020 U	200
VPH Aliphatics/Aromatics		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
C5-C8 Aliphatics	40 U	40 U	40 U	400
C9-C12 Aliphatics	10 U	10 U	10 U	4,000
C9-C10 Aromatics	10 U	10 U	10 U	200
VPH Analytes				
Benzene	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5
Toluene	15 U	15 U	15 U	500
Ethvlbenzene	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	700
p/m-Xvlenes	20 U	20 U	20 U	500
o-Xylene	10 U	10 U	10 U	500
Naphthalene	10 U	10 U	10 U	20
Methyl-tert-Butyl Ether	15 U	15 U	15 U	70
Metals				
Lead	1.6 U	1.6 U	1.6 U	15

Notes:

۰.

U: not detected above method detection limit

J: estimated value

TABLE 19 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS ALTERNATIVE 5: ASPHALT BATCHING SITE/ASPHALT BATCHING HOT SPOT AREAS

AOCS 44 AND 52 SOILS FORT DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

AUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC AND ARAR TYPE	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN ARAR
Federal Regulatory Authority	Wetland Location-Specific	National Environmental Policy Act; [40 CFR Part 6]	Applicable	Requires that Federal agencies minimize the degradation, loss, or destruction of wetlands, and preserve and enhance natural and beneficial values of wetlands under Executive Orders 11990 and 11988.	Wetlands adjacent to AOCs 44 and 52 may currently be impacted by surface water runoff via the storm water system. This alternative covers the site with pavement, thus reducing potential off-site runoff of contaminants in surface water from AOCs 44 and 52 soils to the wetlands. The remedy will also be designed and constructed to manage the increased flow from the paved surface in a manner that will minimize impact to adjacent wetlands.
State Regulatory Requirements	Air Action-Specific	Massachusetts Air Pollution Control Regulations; (310 CMR 6.00 - 7.00)	Applicable	Establishes the standards and requirements for air pollution control in the Commonwealth. Specifically, Section 6.04 provides ambient air quality criteria such as particulate matter standards which is pertinent to AOCs 44 and 52 activity. As a minimum, respirable particulate matter (PM_{10}) for treatment and excavation activities must be maintained at an annual mean arithmetic concentration of $50 \mu g/m^2$ and a maximum 24-hour concentration of $150 \mu g/m^2$. Section 7.02 provides emissions limitations from facilities and operations and requires BACT. Additionally, the Massachusetts toxic air pollutant (TAP) control program requirements will be considered in limiting fugitive emissions (VOCs) and total suspended particulates during treatment and excavation activities.	The emissions limits for particulate matter and fugitive emissions will be managed through engineering controls during excavation and treatment activities.
	Soll Action-Specific	Massachusetts Hazardous Waste Management Rules (MHWMR) Identification and Listing of Hazardous Wastes [310 CMR 30.100]	Applicable	Waste oil is a listed as a hazardous waste under this rule and is therefore subject to 310 CMR 30.000 (i.e., the Massachusetts Hazardous Waste Management Rules).	The wastes found at this site were determined <u>not</u> to be characteristic hazardous wastes; however, waste oil is a listed hazardous waste under this rule.

TABLE 6-8 (continued) SYNOPSIS OF LOCATION-SPECIFIC FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS ALTERNATIVE 5: ASPHALT BATCHING SITE/ASPHALT BATCHING HOT SPOT AREAS

AOCS 44 AND 52 SOILS FORT DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

AUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC AND ARAR TYPE	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN ARAR
State Regulatory Requirements	Soil Action-Specific	MHWMR Provisions for Recyclable Materials and for Waste Oil [310 CMR 30.200]	Applicable -	This regulation contains procedural and substantive requirements for handling regulated recyclable materials. The substantive requirements include preventing and reporting releases to the environment, proper maintenance of treatment and control systems, and handling of regulated recyclable materials.	Asphalt batching of soil on site will comply with the substantive requirements of this regulation.
	Soil Action-Specific	MHWMR - Waste Piles; [310 CMR 30.640 - 30.649]	Applicable	A waste pile facility must install a liner, provide a teachate collection system, provide a run-on/run-off control system, comply with the groundwater monitoring requirements, perform inspections, and close the facility properly:	These requirements will be addressed in the design of an area for stockpiling of wastes for on-site treatment.
	Ground- water Action-Specific	MHWMR Groundwater Protection; [310 CMR 30.660 - 30.679]	Relevant and Appropriate	Groundwater monitoring should be conducted during and following remedial actions. Concentration limits for the hazardous constituents are specified in 310 CMR 30.667.	Although cleanup of groundwater, if required, will be handled as a separate operable unit, groundwater monitoring will be conducted as a component of the remedy.
	All Chemical-Specific	Standards for Analytical Data for Remedial Response Action [WSC-300-89]	To Be Considered	This policy describes the minimum standards for analytical data submitted to the Department.	All sampling plans will be designed with consideration of the analytical methods provided in this policy.

00000

రా లా

APPENDIX B

SHEPLEY'S HILL LANDFILL OPERABLE UNIT (AOCS 4, 5, AND 18)



.

Shepley's Hill Landfill





TABLE 7-5 Comparison of Historic Arsenic Results Shepley's Hill Landfill and Molumco Road Groundwater Monitoring

Landfill Compliance Point		Arsenic (vg/L)																			
Monitoring Well ID	Aug-91	Dec-91	Mar-93	Jun-93	Nov-96	May-97	Oct-97	May-98	Nov-98	May-99	Nov-99	May-00	Nov-00	May-01	Oct-01	May-02	Oct-02	May-03	Nov-03	May-04	Nov-04
SHL-3	35	120	6.5	NS	NS	<10	<10	<5	<5.4	2.7 B	<1.9	<2.5	17.4	<4.1	<1.5	2.8 B	<3.2	<4.7	<4.1	<2.6	<5.8
SHL-4	260	140	2.54	NS	48.8	73.6 J	180	37.4	89,1	78.2	61.3	116	91.5	50,8	66,0	47.8 B	5 6,1	26.6	13.4	27.2	19.5
SHL-5	23	38	11.4	NS	12	<10	<10	4	11.5	5.0 B	6.5	<2.5	13.8	13.8	14.8	11.9 B	<3.2	7.3	4.7	7.4 B	6.8 B
SHM-96-5B	NS	NS	NS	NS	1,440	3,300 J	2,040	4,300	3,080	3,490	2,700	5,110	2,500	3,800	1,850	3,800	1,970	3,920	3,380	3,950	2,110
SHM-96-5C	NS	NS	NS	NS	71	43.2	43.1	49.5	46.8	57.0	44.8	52.2	40.3	80.5	41.1	50.4 B	41.3	55.1	48.3	47.1	49.5
SHL-9	37	67	42.4	NS	46.9	16.1 J	25.2	15	27.2	71.3	28.5	15.0	31.4	15,1	28,1	144	29,0	13.4	30.6	19.8	32.2
SHL-10	67	120	280	NS	3.4 B	<10	209	ৰ	<5.4	2.7 B	<1.9	<2.5	<4.2	<4.1	<1.5	4.0 B	<3.2	<4.7	<4.1	<2.6	<5.8
SHM-93-10C	NS	NS	21.3	18,1	12.4	<10	10.5	7.5	10.2	10.8 B	8.7	5.9 J	8.8	6.9	10.1	11.0 B	7.1	9.8	<5.2	7.2 B	10.6
SHL-11	320	320	340	ŅS	332	252 J	366	346	376	431	492	404	523	487	573	469	648	498	639	502	617
SHL-19	340	710	390	NS	138	<10	298	77.5	145	156	176	41.4	154	129	183	66.9	164	36.1	83.6	75.0	121
SHL-20	98	89	330	NS	244	<10	227	238	218	216	215	216	172	186	165	154	175	197	194	136	156
SHL-22	27	25	32.9	NS	24.8	<10	34.8	10.6	<5.4	12.2 B	7.3	14.6	45.0	47.6	44.2	55.9 B	77.1	101	76.4	88.1	65.4
SHM-96-22B	NS	NS	NS	NS	324	318 J	352	365	406	707	1,440	1,360	1,180	1,540	1,670	2,040	159	2,070	2,500	1,690	2,360
SHM-93-22C	NS	NS	68.9	49.8	44.6	40.4	<10	31.6	51.1	42.8	33,2	34.4	47.8	19.7	31.6	30.5 B	30.1	21.0	29.8	27.8	34.9

Molumco Road	Arsenic (ug/L)																				
Monitoring Well ID	Aug-91	Dec-91	Mar-93	Jun-93	Nov-96	May-97	Oct-97	May-98	Nov-98	Jun-99	Nov-99	May-00	Nov-00	May-01	Oct-01	May-02	Oct-02	May-03	Nov-03	May-04	Nov-04
													,								
SHM-99-31A*	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	<5.2	14.5	8.1 J	21.3	14.2	9.6	16.6 B	11.6	NS	12.3	NS	NS
SHM-99-31B*	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	57.9	63.7	44.3	65.5	57.9	66,8	75.1	71.1	69.6	80.1	65.0	NS
SHM-99-31C*	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	345	311	332	316	321	317	345	332	347	312	292	NS
SHM-99-32X*	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS	186	185	188	198	181	187	176	NS	NS	NS	NS	NS

Notes:

J: estimated value B: value within five times of the greater amount detected in the equipment or preparation blank samples

b. Yado water in the anter so are greater anternational anternationanternational anternational anternationanternational anternati

SHEPLEY'S HILL LANDFILL GROUNDWATER MONITORING HISTORIC ARSENIC CONCENTRATION CHARTS CLEANUP LEVEL = 50 µg/L

(Sheet 1 of 3)



NOTES:

NS: Not Sampled ND: Not Detected

Charts are displayed in order of decreasing historical maximum arsenic concentrations

SHEPLEY'S HILL LANDFILL GROUNDWATER MONITORING HISTORIC ARSENIC CONCENTRATION CHARTS CLEANUP LEVEL = 50 µg/L

(Sheet 2 of 3)











NOTES:

NS: Not Sampled

ND: Not Detected

Charts are displayed in order of decreasing historical maximum arsenic concentrations

.

SHEPLEY'S HILL LANDFILL GROUNDWATER MONITORING HISTORIC ARSENIC CONCENTRATION CHARTS CLEANUP LEVEL = 50 µg/L

(Sheet 3 of 3)









NOTES:

NS: Not Sampled

ND: Not Detected

Charts are displayed in order of decreasing historical maximum arsenic concentrations

Groundwater Analytical Results - May 2nd, 3rd and 4th, 2004 Sampling Event Shepley's Hill Landfill Compliance Point Wells Devens, Massachusetts (Sheet 1 of 1)

	Well No.	SHL-3	SHL-4	SHL-5	SHM-96-5B	SHM-96-5B DUP	SHM-96-5C	SHL-9	SHL-10	SHM-93-10C	SHL-11	SHL-19	SHL-20	8HU-22	SHM-96-22B	SHM-93-22C
PARAMETERS	GLEANUP	µg/L	uq/L	µg/L	µg/L	μα/ζ	µg/L	ug/L	ug/L	µg/L	µq/L	μα/L	uq/L	ug/L	ua/L	ua/L
	LEVELID										<u>'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''</u>				<i>`</i>	<u></u>
	ud/L	· · ·					·									
VOLATILES (8260B)	1									*******						
Xvienes	10,000 (2)	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.00
Acetone	3,000 (4)	5.0 U	7.4	4.4 J	2.9 J	5.0 U	3.4 J	4.9 J	5.0 Ų	5.0 U	4.4 J	5.0 U	4.8 J	3,9 J	4.0 J	4.3 J
2-Butanone		5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 V	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
4-Methyl-2-Pentanone	· · · ·	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 ∪	5,0 Ų	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
Benzene	5 (2)	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	1.2 J	<u> </u>	5.0 U	5.0 U	1.5 J	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
Methyl-t-Butyl Ether	70 (4)	5.0 U	<u>5.0 U</u>	5.0 U	5.0 U	<u>5,0 Ų</u>	1.0 J	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
1,1-Dichloroethane	70 (4)	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	1.2 J	1,2 J	<u>1.1 J</u>	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	1.4 J	1.0 J	5.0 U
1,2-Dichloroethene (totai)	70 (2)	5.0 U	<u>5,0 U</u>	<u>5,0 U</u>	2.3 J	2.3 J	2.1 J	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	<u>5,0 U</u>	1,0	2.0 J	1.8 J	5.0 U
1,2-Dichloroethane	5	5.0 U	5.0 U	<u>5.0 U</u>		5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	<u>5.0 U</u>	<u>5,0 U</u>	<u>5.0 U</u>	<u>5.0 U</u>
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600 (2)	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	6.0 U1	<u>5.0 U</u>	<u>5.0 U</u>	5.0 U	_5.0 Ų	. 5.0 U	5.0 U	6.0 U	5.0 U	<u>5.0.U</u>
1.4-Dichlorobenzene	5	5.0 U	5.0 U	<u>5.0 U</u>	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0.0	5.0 U	5.0 U	<u>5.0 U</u>	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	<u>5.0 U</u>	<u>50U</u>	5.0 U
METALS (6010B or as noted)																
Aluminum	6,870	31.4.8	17.6 U	252	17.6 U	17.6 U	35.4.8	55.5 8	17.6 U	20.4 B	19,0 B	<u>17.6 U</u>	17.6 U	17.6 U	<u>17.6 U</u>	33.0 8
Arsenic	50	2.6 U	27.2	7,4 8	3,950	3,890	4/.1	19.8	2.6 0	7.2 8	502	/50	135	88.1	1,890	27.8
Barium	2,000 (2)	1.20	27.3 B	6.4 B	565B	<u>55,5 B</u>	<u> </u>	ទុនម	4. <u>2 B</u>	6.5 B	78,9 B	12.2 B	92.2 8	<u>11.9 B</u>	61.5.B	<u>/2.5 B</u>
Cadmium	5(2)	0.30 U	0.30 U	0.30 U	0.30 U	0.30 U	0.32 B	0.30 U	0.30 U	0.30 U	0,30 ∪	0.30 U	0.30 U	0.36 B	0.36 B	0.30 U
Chromium	100	2.2.8	1.3 B	1.5 B	2.0 B	2.5 B	2.8 B	1.2.8	1.4 8	1.9 B	1.2 B	<u>1.2 B</u>	2.0 B	2.0 B	<u>1.6 B</u>	2.5 B
Cooper	1,300 (3)	0.84 8	2.0 B	0.99 B	2.0 8	2.4 B	3.0 B	<u>1.1 B</u>	118	2.8 8	2.2 B	0.87 B	4.7 B	2.4 8	3.3 B	2.1 B
Iron	9,100	30.0 B	4,330	1,900	59,000	38,500	<u></u>	5,060	19.20	3 68	00,500	13,400	5,640	541	59,500	1010
Lead	15	1.80	<u>1.8 U</u>	2.4 8	3.2	2.6 8	4,7	2.0 B	2.18	1.8 U	2.0 B	1.80	1.80	2.3 B	1.8 U	<u> </u>
Manganese	1,715		850	332		8,50	0.40	338	1.90	29.8	2,540	1,510		1,960	/98	308
Mercury (7470A)		<u>. 0,10 0 .</u>	0.10.0		0.10 0	0.10 0	0.10 0	0.10.0	0.100	0.10 0	<u></u>	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	
Nickel	100	<u>4:4 B</u>	0.3 B	1,0 0	<u>14,4 B</u>	13.0 8	4.5 5	<u>1.4 U</u>	1.40	3.0 8	3.5 8	0,4 B	9,6 B	10.8 5	8.9 6	2.6 8
Selenium	50 (2)	3.60	<u>3.0 U</u>	3.00	3.0 U	3.60	101	3.00		3.00	3.00	3.60	3.60	3.00	3.6.0	<u>30U</u>
Silver	20,000	1 060 9	6 200	2.040.8	1.0.0	1.0 0	30,000	1.0.0	1.020.0	8,850	22 500	2 300 B	32.300	40,000	1.0 0	16 100
Zine	20,000	1,000 0	420	570	85D	720	450	4.6.1	10200	730	340	2,000 0	2600	40,300	470	350
GENERAL CHEMISTRY	2,000 (47	4.0 0	4.3.0	0,10	0,00	1.2 0	4.00	1.0 0	<u>3.0 B</u>			4.4 0	2,50	24.0	4./ 0	<u>, ,,,,,</u>
Alkelinity as CaCO		8.500	46.100	33,400	314.000	313.000	326,000	67.700	15.000	190.000	194.000	34,100	300.000	425.000	294.000	193.000
Biochemical Oxygen Demands		1.400 UJ	1.400 UJ	1.600 JH	1.400 UJH	1.400 UJH	1,400 UJ	1,400 UJ	1.400 UJ	1.400 UJ	1.400 UJ	1,400 UJ	1.400 UJ	1,400 JH	1.800 JH	1.400 UJ
Chloride		1.600	8.800	2,600	28,400	27,300	52,100	1,800	1,900	25,200	23.100	1.700	43.500	41.400	34,100	25.600
Chemical Oxygen Demand		20.000 U	20.000 U	23,500	29,900	27,700	32,000	34.100	20.000 U	20, 000 U	29.900	20.000 U	34,100	20.000 U	23,500	25 600
Cvanide (Total)	200 (2)	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10,0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U
Hardness as CaCO3		8,900	39,000	27,100	257,000	252,000	261,000	61,200	15,200	222,000	130,000	33,500	271,000	392,000	165,000	199,000
Nitrate as Nitrogen	10,000 (2)	270	200 UJ	200 UJ	200 UJ	200 UJ	200 UJ	270	410	200 UJ	200 UJ	230 J	290	200 UJ	810	200 UJ
Sulfate	500,000 (2)	2,500	4,600	1,400	5,600	5.500	2,000	6,400	2,800	22,400	860	11,900	14,700	6,400	3,700	12,700
Total Dissolved Solids	-	15,000	78,000	59,000 H	408,000 H	415,000 H	445,000	87,000	22,000	300,000	268,000	64,000	420,000	519,000 H	393,000 H	268,000
Total Suspended Solids	-	25,200	4,900	2,000	59,500	56,400	91,100	5,900	600	2,300	65,500	18,900	9,200	2,300	117,000	2,600
Total Organic Carbon		1,000 J	2,500 J	8,700	5,500	5,300 J	8,000	8,300	1,000 UJ	1,500 J	3,900 J	1,400 J	4,900 J	5,600	6,900	5,600

FIELD READINGS (units as noted below)

					the state of the s											
Dissolved Oxygen (mg/L)		10.4	0.3	0.3	0.4	0.4	0.7	0.2	11.1	1.1	4.6	1.4	0.6	0.5	0.6	0.9
Oxidation Reduction Potential (mv)		196	118	193	-143	-143	-85	-36	378	306	-34	23	-21	133	-103	-44
pH		6.7	6.2	5.4	6.4	6.4	6.6	6.6	6.5	7.0	6.3	6.4	6.6	8.5	6.9	7.1
Specific Conductivity (µS/cm)	-	26	138	74	769	769	946	146	38	473	582	144	703	885	813	416

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance -

U = analyte analyzed for, but not directed above the reporting limit

B = (Inorganics) The result reported is less than the reporting limit, but greater than the instrument detection limit J = estimated value

25 👋

N = Matrix Spike sample recovery outside acceptance limits

* = duplicate analysis Relative Percent Difference outside acceptance limits

H = holding time exceeded

= value circumspect due to potential field equipment failure

NS = not sampled

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

(2) No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used

(3) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Maximum Contamination Level was used (4) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Contingency Plan GW-1 standard was used

TABLE 7-5 Groundwater Analytical Results - May 6th, 2004 Sampling Event Molumco Road Wells (RE: Shepley's Hill Landfill) Ayer, Massachusetts (Sheet 1 of 1)

	Well No.	SHM-99-31A	SHM-99-31B	SHM-99-31C	SHM-99-32X
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	µg/L	μg/L	µg/L	µg/L
	LEVEL (1)				
	µg/L				
VOLATILES (8260B)					
Xylenes	10,000 (2)	NS	5.0 U	5.0 U	NS
Acetone	3,000 (4)	NS	2.7 J	2.5 J	NS
2-Butanone	-	NS	5.0 U	5.0 U	NS
4-Methyl-2-Pentanone	- 1	NS	5.0 U	5.0 U	NS
Benzene	5(2)	NS	1.4 J	5.0 U	NS
Methyl-t-Butyl Ether	70 (4)	NS	5.0 U	1,1 J	NS
1,1-Dichtoroethane	70 (4)	NS	5.0 U	1.4 J	NS
1,2-Dichloroethene (total)	70 (2)	NS	5.0 U	2.2 J	NS
1,2-Dichloroethane	5	NS	5.0 U	5.0 U	NS
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600 (2)	NS	5.0 U	5.0 U	NS
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5	NS	5.0 U	5.0 U	NS
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	NS NS	5.0 U	5.0 U	NS
METALS (6010B or as noted)					
Aluminum	6,870	NS	32.2 B	24.2 B	NS
Arsenic	50	NS	65.0	292	NS
Barium	2,000 (2)	NS	90.5 B	100 B	NS
Cadmium	5 (2)	NS	0.30 U	0.46 B	NS
Chromium	100	NS	1.7 B	1.8 B	NS
Copper	1,300 (3)	NS	1.9 B	2.4 B	NS
Iron	9,100	NS	27,200	46,400	NS
Lead	15	NS	2.2 B	1.9 B	NS
Manganese	1,715	NS	1,990	6,390	NS
Mercury (7470A)	2 (2)	NS	0.10 U	0.10 U	NS
Nickel	100	NS	1.9 B	16.7 B	NS
Selenium	50 (2)	NS	3.6 U	3.6 U	NS
Silver	40 (4)	NS	1.0 U	1.0 U	NS
Sodium	20,000	NS	15,200	45,100	NS
Zinc	2,000 (4)	NS	7.7 B	5.1 B	NS
GENERAL CHEMISTRY					
Alkalinity as CaCO3	-	NS	186,000	416,000	NS
Biochemical Oxygen Demand ₅	-	NS	1,500 J	1,400 UJ	NS
Chloride	-	NS	20,300	56,700	NS
Chemical Oxygen Demand	-	NS	25,600	42,600	NS
Cyanide (Total)	200 (2)	NS	10.0 U	10.0 U	NS
Hardness as CaCO ₃	-	NS	131,000	361,000	NS
Nitrate as Nitrogen	10,000 (2)	NS	200 UJ	200 UJ	NS
Sulfate	500,000 (2)	NS	4,300	1,800	NS
Total Dissolved Solids	-	NS	233,000	547,000	NS
Total Suspended Solids	-	NS	18,800	58,000	NS
Total Organic Carbon	-	NS	6.400	8,700	NS

FIELD READINGS (units as noted below)

	····· ,				
Dissolved Oxygen (mg/L)	_	NS	0.4	0.2	NS
Oxidation Reduction Potential (mv)	-	NS	-22	-117	NS
рH	-	NS	6.3	6.0	NS
Specific Conductivity (µS/cm)	-	NS	426	1,004	NS

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance -

U = Analyte or compound was analyzed but not detected at a concentration above the reporting limit.

25

- ${\bf B}$ = value within 5 times of the greater amount detected in the equipment or preparation blank samples
- J = estimated value
- N= Matrix Spike sample recovery outside acceptance limits
- * = duplicate analysis Relative Percent Difference outside acceptance limits
- H = holding time exceeded
- NS = not sampled
- NA = not analyzed

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

- (2) No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used
- (3) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Maximum Contamination Level was used

Groundwater Analytical Results - November 15 th, 16th, and 17th, 2004 Sampling Event Shepley's Hill Landfill Compliance Point Wells Devens, Massachusetts (Sheet 1 of 1)

							0.000 00 00 1	CULL 0		auto 400 1						0000000000
DAO AMEZODO	Well No.	SHL-3	SHL-4	571L-5	SHM-96-3B	SHM-96-5B UUP	8HM-96-50	5HL-9	3812-30	SHM-93-100	5HL-11	SHL-19	SHL-20	SHL-22	SHW-96-22B	9HM-93-22G
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	ug/L		L	1. µ9/L		- <u> </u>	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	<u>µg/L</u>	hâvr	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u>, µg/⊾</u>	
	LEVEL (1)		<u> </u>												L	
	Hg/L															
VOLATILES (8260B)				[<u></u>												
Xylenes	10,000 (2)	6.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 Ú	5.0 U		5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
Acetone	3,000 (4)	5.0 U	5.0 U	4.4 J	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	4,9 J	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
2-Butanone		5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 Ü	5.0 U	5.0 U
4-Methyl-2-Pentanone	-	. 5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
Benzene	5 (2)	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	1.0 J	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	1.6 J	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
Methyl-t-Butyl Ether	70 (4)	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5,0 Ų	1.1 J	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
1.1-Dichloroethane	70 (4)	5.0 U	5.0U	5.0 U	1.1 J	1.0 J	1.7 J	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	1.2 J	1.0 J	5.0 U
1.2-Dichloroethene (total)	70 (2)	5.0 U	1.2 J	5.0 U	2.2 J	2.2 J	2.1 J	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	1.0 J	1.8 J	1.8 J	5.0 U
1.2-Dichloroethane	5	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
1.3-Dichioropenzene	600 (2)	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
1.4-Dichlorobenzene	5	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0U	5.0 U
1.2-Dichiorobenzene	600	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 ∪	5.0 U	5.0 U
METALS (6010B or as noted)													[
Aluminum	6.870	70.4 B	35.4 U	218	35.4 U	35.4 U .	35.4 U	75.1 B	45.1 B	36.4 B	35.4 U	35.4 U	35.4 U	35.4	35.4 U	48.0 8
Arsenic	50	5.8 U	19.5	6.8 B	2,110	2,240	49,5	32.2	5.8 U	10.6	617	121	156	65.4	2,360	34.9
Barlum	2,000 (2)	12.1 U	90,4 B	12.1 U	43.7 B	45.8 B	60.7 B	12.7 B	12.1 U	12.1 U	72.2 B	23.0 B	85.4 B	12.1 U	85.1 B	84.3 B
Cadmium	5(2)	0.50 U	0.50 U	0.50 U	0.84 B	1.1 B	2.8 B	0.83 8	0.50 U	0.50 U	3.0 B	0.83 B	0.56 B	0.50 U	4.7 B	0.50 U
Chromium	100	1.2 B	0.90 U	3.6.8	0.90 U	0.90 U	0.90 U	3.0 B	6.3 B	2.2.8	0.90 U	0.90 U	0.90 U	0.90 U	0.90 U	1.2 B
Copper	1 300 (3)	2.3 U	2.3 U	2.3 U	2.3 U	2.3 U	2.3 U	2.3 U	2.3 U	2.3 U	2.3 U	2.3 U	2.3 U	2.3 U	2.3 U	231/
liron	9,100	35.5 U	6.690	2.740	21.600	22,400	55,400	8.580	39.1 B	47.8 B	63.000	20,000	6.630	469	82.900	1.340
Lead	15	1.2.0	1.2 U	1.2 U	1.2 U	1.9 B	1.3.8	1.2 U	1.2 U	1.2 U	1.5 B	1.2 U	1.20	1.2 U	3.2	1.2 U
Manganese	1.715	1.2 B	1.240	439	10.800	11,100	3 970	373	1.3 B	47.5	2 570	2 950	6.630	2.460	1.690	385
Mercury (7470A)	2(2)	0.10.0	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 LI	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	0 10 1/	0.10 U
Nickel	100	3.0 U	15.8 B	3.0 U	788	8.0 B	3.0 U	3.0 U	3.0 U	3.0 U	300	71B	8.4 B	10.2 B	308	360
Selenium	50 (2)	3.1 U	4.3 U	3.1 U	3.1 U	3.1 U	3.1 U	3.1 U	3.1 U	3.1 U	3.1 U	3.1 U	3.1 U	3.1 U	3.1 U	310
Silver	40 (4)	0.90 U	0.90 U	0.90 U	0.90 U	0.90 U	0.90 B	1.1 8	0.90 U	0.90 U	0.90 U	0.90 U	0.90 U	0.90 U	0.90 U	0.90 U
Sodium	20.000	684 B	4.060	1.870 B	32.200	33.100	32.200	1.550 B	845 B	8.190	22.800	2.280 B	31.900	41.900	34.300	16,100
Zinc	2 000 (4)	5.5 B	688	42B	668	5.4 B	57B	2.8.8	1.911	1.9.0	1911	8.8 B	87B	317	50 B	34 B
GENERAL CHEMISTRY	mg/L	ma/L	mg/L	mg/L	ma/L	ma/L	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	ma/L	ma/L	ma/L	ma/L	ma/L
Alkalinity as CaCO _a		13.1 B	113	37,1	344	339	341	74.2	24.1 B	190	213	90.5	296	417	304	200
Biochemical Oxygen Demands		1.4 UB	2.0 B	1.4 UB	1.4 UB	1.4 UB	1.4 UB	1,4 B	1.4 U8	1.4 UB	1.4 UB	1.4 UB	1.4 UB	1.4 UB	1.8 B	1.4 UB
Chlorida		1.1	18.0	9.5	27.3	26.9	41.8	1.7	11	25.8	23.1	25	34.5	36.6	32.0	26.8
Chemical Orvgen Demand		20.0 U	20.0 U	20.0 U	39.9*	27.9	37.9	25.9	20.0 U	37.9	23.8	20.0 U	20.011	25.9	25.9	20.011
Cvanide (Total)-	20/21	0.010.0	0.010 U	0.010 U	0.010 U	0.010 U	0.010 U	0.010 U	0.010 U	0.010 U	0.010 U	0.010.0	0.01011	0.01011	0.010	0.01011
Hardness as CaCO ₃		14.1	127	39.9	290	298	271	71.2	23.5	237	140	727	286	418	235	235
Nitrate as Nitrogen	10 (2)	0.43	0.45 H	0.20 U	0.26	0.27	0.20 U	0.20 U	0.52	0.20 U	0.20 LI	0.20 UH	0.32	0.2017	0.33	0.20 U
Sulfate	500 (2)	3.5	3.7	6.2	7.5	7.3	4.4	4,0	2.4	20.2	3.4	15.6	13.3	6.1	3.6	12.9
Total Dissolved Solida		31.0 B	165 B	292 B	151*B	105 B	103 B	105 B	30.0 B	282 B	267 B	126 B	388 B	492 B	365 B	264.8
Total Suspended Solids		0.70	1.4	14.4	25.6	27.3	56.5	2.4	1.9	0.90	49.7	8.5	9.8	1.0	96.4	3.3
Total Organic Carbon	- 1	1.0 UB	2.1 B	6.6 B	3.8* B	4.7 B	6.2 B	7.4 B	1.0 UB	1.0 UB	3.3 B	1.0 UB	2.9 B	5.6 B	4.7 B	5.8 B

FIELD READINGS (units as noted below)

Dissolved Oxygen (mg/L)			1			1	1	[1	1	1	
Oxidation Reduction Potential (mv)	-			 								
pH	•											
Specific Conductivity (µS/cm)		[
Mateau				 								

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance - 25

U = analyte analyzed for, but not directed above the reporting limit

B = (metals) The result reported is less than the reporting limit, but greater than the instrument detection limit

B = (General Chemistry) The target analyte was also detected in the associated method blank or equipment blank.

J ≃ estimated value

N = Matrix Spike sample recovery outside acceptance limits

* = duplicate analysis Relative Percent Difference outside acceptance limits OF 20% rpd.

H = holding time exceeded

= value circumspect due to potential field equipment failure

NS = not sampled

No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used
 No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Maximum Contamination Level was used

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

(4) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Contingency Plan GW-1 standard was used

Table 7-2
Groundwater Analytical Results - May 12-14, 2003 Sampling Event
Shepley's Hill Landfill Compliance Point Wells
Devens, Massachusetts
(Sheet 1 of 1)

	Well No.	SHL-3	SHL-4	SHLIS	SHM-96-6B	SHM-96-5B DUP	SHM-96-5C	SHL-9	SHL-10	SHM-93-10C	SHL-11	SHL-19	SHL-20	SHL-22	SHM-95-228	5HM-93-22C
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	hð/r	µg/L	μց/ե	µg/L	μg/L	µg/L	μg/L	µg/L	μg/L	μg/L	µg/L	ug/L	µg/L	µg/L	µg/L
	LEVEL (1)		1			1		1	T	1			1	1	1	
	μg/L		1					1		1				1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
VOLATILES (8260B)			1						1							
Xvienes	10,000 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
Acetone	3.000 (4)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	≺5.0
2-8utanone	-	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5,0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5,0	< 6.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
4-Methyl-2-Pentanone	-	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
Bénzene	5 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	1.4 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	1.8 J	<5,0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
Methyl-t-Butyl Ether	70 (4)	<5.0	<5.0	<\$.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
1,1-Dichloroelhane	70 (4)	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	1.4 J	1.4 J	<5,0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5,0	<5,0	<5.0	1.7 J	1,4 J	< 5.0
1.2-Dichloroethene (total)	70 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	2.3 J	2.4 J	2.3 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	1.4 J	2.4 J	2.1 J	<5.0
1,2-Dichloroethane	5	<6.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<6.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
1.4-Dichlorobenzene	5	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5,0	2,4 J	<5.0	2.7 J	1,4 J	<5.0	<5.0
1.2-Dichlorobenzene	.600	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<6.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
METALS (6010B or as noted)					·····											
Aluminum	6,870	33.3	71.0	280	<27.7	48.9	<27.7	87.9	<27.7	36,3	42.3	<27.7	32.7	<27.7	<27.7	40.3
Arsenic	50	<4.7	26,6	7,3	3,920 9	A: 3,900	55,1200	13.4	<4,7	9.8	1 A498	36,1	19708	1.46.3101和高。	2 070	21.0
Barium	2,000 (2)	<13,5	21.7	<13,5	57.2	57.6	66,9	<13.5	<13,5	<13.5	105	<13.5	107	<13.5	92.2	70,2
Cadmium	5 (2)	<0.40	<0,40	<0.40	<0.40	<0.40	0.46	<0.40	<0.40	<0,40	<0.40	<0.40	<0.40	<0.40	<0.40	<0.40
Chromium	100	3.1	<0.90	1.0	<0.90	<0.90	<0.90	1.4	5.1	1.3	1.0	1.6	<0.90	1.3	<0.90	1.4
Copper	1,300 (3)	<2.4	<2.4	<2.4	<2.4	<2.4	<2.4	<2.4	<2.4	< <u>Z.4</u>	<2.4	<2.4	<2.4	<2.4	<2.4	<2.4
iron	9,100	56.4	2,790	1,140	37/400	5 37,300	6678,90 <u>0%</u>	3,280	45.6	40.6	D 62 200 81	6,740	7,720	626	600	885
Lead	15	1.5	<1,4	<1.4	4.1	2.7	1.5	1,9	1.5	<1.4	2.0	1.4	<1.4	3.4	3.5	<1.4
Manganese	1,715	1,6	843	273	9,500	5.470应量	合。41230运输	364	0.98	37.4	2,180	1,200	97 7 260 S	1,660	1,340	324
Mercury (7470A)	2 (2)	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0,10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0,10	<0.10	<0,10	<0,10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10
Nickel	100	<2.6	<2.6	<2.6	10,5	10.0	<2.6	<2.6	<2.6	<2.6	4.4	<2.6	6.9	7.0	5,4	2.6
Selenium	50 (2)	4.3	<3.9	<3,9	<3.9	<3.9	<3,9	4.0	<3.9	<3.9	<3,9	<3.9	<3.9	< 3.9	<3.9	<3,9
Silver	40 (4)	<1.7	<1.7	<1.7	< 1.7	<1.7	<1.7 Non-energy (1.7	<1.7	<1.7	<1.7	<1.7	<1.7	<1.7	<1.7	< 1.7	< 1.7
Sodium	20,000	1,220	2,380	2,340	32,600	33,000	32,000	2,080	950	8,990	-M324100.5	1,600	\$536;800(A-	7.43,400	201/37;300	14,200
Zinc	2,000 (4)	<2.5	3.1	<2.5	6.5	6.5	8.4	2,6	<2.5	<2.5	8.8	<2.5	<2.5	16.9	9.6	3.8
GENERAL CHEMISTRY		<u></u>	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-								·····	·····			
Alkalinity as CaCO3	-	11,600	41,900	33,900	341,000	339,000	352,000	71,500	15,300	202,000	303,000	28,500	322,000	452,000	338,000	187,000
Biochemical Oxygen Demand 5		<1,500	<1,500	<1,600	<1,400	<u><1,400</u>	<1,400	<1,500	<1,500	<1,500	3,400	<1,500	<1,500	<1,500	1,400	1,600
Chloride .		470	1,700	570	36,600	33,200	47,500	900	420	26,000	30,100	440	44,600	44,600	37,600	21,700
Chemical Oxygen Demand		<20,000	<20,000	31,300	46400	27000	50,700	<20,000	<20,000	<20,000	27,000	39,900	37,800	<20,000	24,800	<20,000
Cyanide (Total)	200 (2)	<10,0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10,0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0
Hardness as CaCO ₃		7,800	37,000	25,000	275,000	274,000	274,000	62,100	13,200	245,000	189,000	21,200	299,000	413,000	232,000	180,000
Nitrate as Nitrogen	10,000 (2)	<200	400	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	240	<200	<200	300	<200	<200	<200	<200
Sulfate	500,000 (2)	2,300	6,400	2,200	5,000	4,900	3,400	6,900	2,800	20,500	690	7,700	10,300	12,400	2,800	9,700
Total Dissolved Solids		32000 H	64000 H	395000 H	416000 H	399000 H	394000 H	96000 H	31000 H	299000 H	322000 H	51000 H	406000 H	539000 H	59000 H	400000 H
Total Suspended Solids	•	2,000	5,500	1,400	50,500	51,000	95,600	3,900	<500	1,300	34,600	2,000	10,600	1,300	80,500	5,400
Total Organic Carbon		<1,000	1,500	7,400	5,100	5,400	7,300	7,100	<1,000	<1,000	4,300	<1,000	3,200	4.500	6,800	4.400

FIELD READINGS (units as noted below)

		the second	ALL DESIGNATION OF A DESIGNATIONO OF A DESIGNATIONO OF A DESIGNATIONO OF A DESIGNATIONO OF		the second se	a second s	the second s	the second second second second	the second se		A REAL PROPERTY AND ADDRESS OF TAXABLE PROPERTY.				A CONTRACT OF A CONTRACT OF	· · ·
Dissolved Oxygen (mg/L)		10,93	2.57	0.18	5.84	5.84	0.93	2.7	11.14	1.08	0.30	1.74	0.17	4.9	2.3	0.49
Oxidation Reduction Potential (my)		279	170	262.6	52.2	52.2	70.2	23.5	273.2	299,9	-15.2	54.5	-3.9	17,3	-97.1	41.7
рН .	-	6,48	5,99	5.45	6.06	6,06	6.47	6.44	6.45	7.44	6,12	6,40	6,59	6.64	6,79	7,37
Specific Conductivity (pS/cm)	-	16	74	68	7.47	7.47	866	96	32	329	496	55	506	582	539	380
			a second s		and the second se		and the second se		And and the same of the sub-sub-		the second s	the second se			and a second sec	

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance -

oxceedance - 25

 Θ = value within 5 times of the greater amount detected in the equipment or preparation blank samples $J\approx$ settimated value

* # duplicate analysis Relative Percent Difference outside acceptance limits

H ≈ holding time exceeded

NS = not sampled

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

(2) No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used

(3) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Maximum Contamination Level was used

(4) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Contingency Plan GW-1 standard was used

NA = not analyzed

Table 7-3 Groundwater Analytical Results - May 14, 2003 Sampling Event Molumco Road Wells (RE: Shepley's Hill Landfill) Ayer, Massachusetts (Sheet 1 of 1)

	Well No.	SHM-99-31A	SHM-99-31B	SHM-99-31C	SHM-99-32X
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	µgÆ	μg/L	µg/L	μg/L
	LEVEL (1)				
	µg/L				
VOLATILES (8260B)	· · · · · · · ·				
Xylenes	10,000 (2)	NS	<5.0	<5.0	NS
Acetone	3,000 (4)	NS	<5.0	<5.0	NS
2-Butanone		NS	<5.0	<5.0	NS
4-Methyl-2-Pentanone	-	NS	<5.0	<5.0	NS
Benzene	5 (2)	NS	1.4 J	1.6 J	NS
Methyl-t-Butyl Ether	70 (4)	NS	<5.0	1.2 J	NS
1,1-Dichloroethane	70 (4)	NS	<5.0	1.6 J	NS
1,2-Dichloroethene (total)	70 (2)	NS	<5.0	2.5 J	NS
1,2-Dichloroethane	5	NS	<5.0	<5.0	NS
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600 (2)	NS	<5.0	<5.0	NS
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5	NS	<5.0	<5.0	NS
1.2-Dichlerobenzene	600	NS	<5.0	<5.0	NS
METALS (6010B or as noted)					
Aluminum	6,870	NS	36.2	47.2	NS
Arsenic	50	NS	69.6	347	NS
Barium	2,000 (2)	NS	79.2	113	NS
Cadmium	5 (2)	NS	<0.40	<0.40	NS
Chromium	100	NS	<0.90	0.97	NS
Copper	1,300 (3)	NS	<2.4	<2.4	NS
Iron	9,100	NS	24,600	54,300	NS
Lead	15	NS	<1.4	<1_4	NS
Manganese	1,715	NS	2,420	× 7,260 ×	NS
Mercury (7470A)	2 (2)	NS	<0.10	<0.10	NS
Nickel	100	NS	<2.6	15.8	NS
Selenium	50 (2)	NS	<3.9	<3.9	NS
Silver	40 (4)	NS	<1.7	<1.7	NS
Sodium	20,000	NS	14,800	48,800 \$	NS
Zinc	2,000 (4)	NS	5.9	7.4	NS .
GENERAL CHEMISTRY	ļ	1	ļ	ļ	
Aikalinity as CaCO ₃	-	NS	189,000	478,000	NS
Biochemical Oxygen Demands	-	NS	1,800	<1,400	NS
Chloride	-	NS	22,200	61,600	NS_
Chemical Oxygen Demand	-	NS	24,800	48,600	NS
Cyanide (Total)	200 (2)	NS	<10.0	<10.0	NS
Hardness as CaCO ₃	-	NS	136,000	397,000	NS
Nitrate as Nitrogen	10,000 (2)	NS	<200	<200	NS
Sulfate	500,000 (2)	NS	2,500	2,000	NS
Total Dissolved Solids	-	NS	228000 H	548000 H	NS
Total Suspended Solids	-	NS	12,100	58,200	NS
Total Organic Carbon	-	NS	6,100	8,700	NS

FIELD READINGS (units as noted below)

Dissolved Oxygen (mg/L)	-	NS	0.49	6.58	NS
Oxidation Reduction Potential (mv)	-	NS	-9.9	116.1	NS
pН	-	NS	6.19	6.03	NS
Specific Conductivity (µS/cm)	-	NS	409	1038	NS

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance -



B = value within 5 times of the greater amount detected in the equipment or preparation blank samples

J = estimated value

N= Matrix Spike sample recovery outside acceptance limits

* = duplicate analysis Relative Percent Difference outside acceptance limits

H = holding time exceeded

NS = not sampled

NA = not analyzed

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

(2) No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used

(3) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Maximum Contamination Level was used

Table 7-4
Groundwater Analytical Results - November 17-19, 2003 Sampling Event
Shepley's Hill Landfill Compliance Point Wells
Devens, Massachusetts
(Sheet 1 of 1)

<u>.</u>	Well No.	SHL-3	SHL-4	SHL-5	SHM-96-5B	SHM-96-58 DUP	SHM-96-5C	SHL-9	SHL-10	\$HM-93-10C	SHL-11	SHL-19	SHL-20	\$HL-22	SHM-96-22B	SHM-93-22C
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	μg/L	µg/L	µg/L	ին/ր	µg/L	μg/L	µg/L	μg/L	μg/L	µg/L	µg/L	µg/L	µg/L		µg/L
	LEVEL (1)	[T									1				
	μα/L			·····					1			1	1			
VOLATILES (8260B)															1	
Xvienes	10.000 (2)	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	1,1 J	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 Ų	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
Acetone	3.000 (4)	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
2-Butanone		5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
4-Methyl-2-Pentanone		5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5,0 U	5,0 Ų	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
Berizene	5 (2)	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	1.2 J	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	1,8 J	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	1.2 J	5,0 Ų
Methyl-t-Butyl Ether	70 (4)	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 Ų	1.0 J	5,0 U	5,0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	6.0 U	0.91 J	5.0 U	5.0 U
1.1-Dichloroethane	70(4)	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	1,4 J	1.4 J	1.2 J	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5,0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	1.6 J	1.4 J	1.0 J
1,2-Dichloroethene (total)	70 (2)	5.0 U	2.4 J	5.0 U	2.5 J	2.5 J	2.3 J	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	1.2 J	2.3 J	2.5 J	5.0 U
1.2-Dichloroethane	5	U	5,0 U	5,0 Ų	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600 (2)	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 ∪	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5	5.0 U .	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	2.5 J	5,0 U	2.2 J	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	6.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
METALS (6010B or as noted)																
Aluminum	6,870	153 B	22,1 U	233	22,1 Ų	22.1 U	22.1 U	39.0 B	22.1 U	42.2 8	22,1 U	22.1 U	22.1 U	22.1 U	22.1 U	22.1 U
Arsenic	50	4.1 U	13,4	4.7 B	3,380	3,280	48.3	30.6	4.1 U	5.2 U	9.00 639 .2014	83.6	38% /194 2%	76.4	2,500	29.8
Barium	2,000 (2)	11.5 U	53,4 B	11.5 U	54,88	53,3 B	64,6 B	13.7 B	11.5 U	11.5 U	93.7 B	23.1 B	102 B	12.2 8	95.0 B	82.2 B
Cadmium	5(2)	0.50 U	0.50 U	0.50 U	0,50 U	0.50 U	1.0 8	0.50 U	0,50 U	0.50 U	<u>. 1.1 B.</u>	0.60 U	0,50 U	0.50 Ų	1.6 B	0.50 U
Chromium	100	47.1	2,3 U	2,3 U	4,9 B	4.BB	2.4 B	2,3 U	2.3 U	2.3 U	2.3 U	2.3 U	4,58	2.3 U	2.23 U	2.3 U
Copper	1,300 (3)	2.2 U	2.2 U	2.2 U	2.2 U	2.2 U	2,2 U	2.2 U	2.2 U	2.2 U	2.2 U	2.2 U	2.2.8	2.2 U	2.2 U	2.2 U
Iron	9,100	540	1,840	1,720	32,000	30,600	AF63,20053	7,820	45.5 U	45,5 U	× 68 700*	15,400	8,190	444		904
Lead	15	1.4 U	1.4 V	1.4 U	1.4 U	1,4 U	2,4 B	1.4 U	1,4 U	1.4 U	2.4 B	1,4 U	1.4 U	1.4 U	2.4 B	1.4 U
Manganese	1,715	19.7	324	340	· 1/171.0.0sf 编	10,600	公 》4,260.46。	412	1.6 U	46.3	1.03:030:0	作:2,100 行	19月27月60月1	2,110	1,950	425
Mercury (7470A)	2(2)	0,10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	0,10 Ų	0.10 U	0.10 V	0,10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U
Nicke	100	33, 7 B	6.8 B	4.5 U	12.9 8	12.8 8	4.5 U	4.5 U	4.5 U	4.5 U	4.5 U	<u>13.4 B</u>	10.4 B	9,6 B	7.3 B	4,5 U
Selenium	<u> </u>	3.6 U	3.6 U	3.6 U	3.6 U	3.6 U	3.6 U	3,6 U	3,6 U	3.6 U	3.6 U	<u>3.6 U</u>	3.6 U	3.6 U	3.6 U	3.6 U
Silver	40 (4)	1.6 U	1.6 U	1.6 U	1,6 U	1,6 U	1.6 U	1.6 U	1.6 U	1.6 U	1.6 U	1.6 U	1.6 U	1.6 U	1.6 U	1.6 U
Sodium	20,000	1360 B	13,400	2030 B	33 500 K	r:	\$34,800	2,310 B	1280 B	8,370	27,000	2,670 B	35 800 4	42,700	36,300	17,400
Zinc	2,000 (4)	4.3 B	7.9 B	9.0 B	<u>11.5 B</u>	11.1 B	9.3 B	13.8.8	3.3 B	<u>1,9 U</u>	8.3 B	7.4 B	13.2 B22.1 U	24.8	14.3 B	2.7 B
GENERAL CHEMISTRY					,	<u> </u>	·····	······						· ·····		
Alkalinity as CaCO ₃	-	13,100	81,900	32,900	332,000	334,000	332,000	71,200	22,100	192,000	258,000	70,400	319,000	422,000	339,000	205,000
Blochemical Oxygen Demands		670 U	670 U	1,300	780 U	780 U	670 U	670 U	670 U	670 U	1,100	670 U	670 U	670 U	670 U	910
Chloride		620	17,100	1,500	35,700	36,900	54,300	1,400	790	31,300	31,500	1,600	48,400	51,900	46,000	32,800
Chemical Oxygen Demand	•	20,000 U	20,000 Ų	20,000 U	23,800	21,700	20,000 Ŭ	30,100	20,000 U	20, 000 U	21,700	20,000 U	20,000 U	20,000 U	36,400	42,700
Cyanide (Total)	200 (2)	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10,0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U
Hardness as CaCO ₃	-	13,500	77,500	30,100	289,000	281,000	272,000	70,700	22,700	227,000	161,000	57,800	310,000	415,000	265,000	242,000
Nitrate as Nitrogen	10,000 (2)	530	200 U	200 U	200 U	200 U	200 U	200 U	590	200 U	200 U	200 U	200 U	200 U	200 U	200 U
Sulfate	500,000 (2)	2,900	13,900	2,100	5,400	6,200	2,500	7,400	2,100	19,100	550	16,300	10,700	5,100	3,400	12,800
Total Dissolved Solids		39,000	138,000	72,000	453,000	483,000	432,000	119,000	53,000	282,000	335,000	124,000	452,000	493,000	505,000	293,000
Total Suspended Solids	-	4,600	1,000	1,600	23,500	19,000	39,700	500 U	500	900	30,500	1,600	7,700	1,200	67,400	1,500
Total Organic Carbon		1,900	3,700]	7,700	5,400 [6,200	1,000 U	7,700	1,000 U	1,900	4,300	_1,000 U[4,000	4,800	8,400	4,300

FIELD READINGS (units as noted below)

Dissolved Oxygen (mg/l,)		9,77	1.22	0,36	0.41	0.41	0.53	0.39	10,47	0,39	0.26	0.31	0.39	0.55	0.42	0.54
OxIdation Reduction Potential (mv)	•	210,4	36,1	39	-89.4	-89.4	-147	-62.8	176.9	148,1	-94,6	-6.8	-62.8	4.0	-159	-205
pН	-	6,54	5.96	5.68	6.70	6,70	6.47	6.65	6.71	7.41	6.47	6,08	6,62	6,77	6,75	7,65
Specific Conductivity (µS/cm)	-	36	231	64	762	752	653	171	52	340	530	193	710	656	659	341

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance -

U = analyte analyzed for, but not directed above the reporting limit

B = value within 5 times of the greater amount detected in the equipment or preparation blank samples

25

J = estimated value

N = Matrix Spike sample recovery outside acceptance limits

* = duplicate analysis Relative Percent Difference outside acceptance limits

H = holding time exceeded

= value circomspect due to potential field equipment faiture

NS = not sampled

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used
 No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Maximum Contamination Level was used

(4) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Contingency Plan GW-1 standard was used

per per per per per la compacta de l

TABLE 7-5

Groundwater Analytical Results - November 19, 2003 Sampling Event Molumco Road Wells (RE: Shepley's Hill Landfill) Ayer, Massachusetts

(Sheet 1 of 1)

	Well No.	SHM-99-31A	SHM-99-31B	SHM-99-31C	SHM-99-32X
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	µg/L_	μg/L	μg/L	µg/L
	LEVEL (1)]
	µg/L				
VOLATILES (8260B)					
Xylenes	10,000 (2)	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	NS
Acetone	3,000 (4)	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	NS
2-Butanone		5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	NS
4-Methyl-2-Pentanone		5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	NS
Benzene	5 (2)	5.0 U	1.5 J	5.0 U	NS
Methyl-t-Butyl Ether	70 (4)	5.0 U	5.0 U	1.3 J	NS
1,1-Dichloroethane	70 (4)	5.0 U	5.0 U	1.7 J	NS
1,2-Dichloroethene (total)	70 (2)	5.0 U	5.0 U	2,5 J	NS
1,2-Dichloroethane	5	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	NS
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600 (2)	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	NS
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5	5.0 U	<u>5.0 U</u>	5.0 U	NS
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	<u>5.0 U</u>	5.0 U	5.0 U	NS
METALS (6010B or as noted)		ļ	L		
Aluminum	6,870	72.4 B	31.5	30.7 U	NS
Arsenic	50	12.3	80.1	2-7312	NS
Barium	2,000 (2)	11.7 U	89.4 B	128 B	NS
Cadmium	5 (2)	0.70 U	0.70 U	0.70 U	NS
Chromium	100	1.3 U	1.30	<u>1.3 U</u>	NS
Copper	1,300 (3)	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	NS
Iron	9,100	3940	27,800	54,300	NS
Lead	15	2,8 U	3.2	2.8 U	NS
Manganese	1,715	454	2,540	6,1602	NS
Mercury (7470A)	2 (2)	0.10 U	0.10 U	0.10 U	NS
Nickel	100	2.8U	2.80	14.1 B	NS
Selenium	50 (2)	3.6 U	3.0 U	3.1 B	NS
Silver	40 (4)	1.9 B	1.68	<u>1.5 U</u>	NS
Sodium	20,000	8660	17,900	46,800	NS
Zinc	2,000 (4)	2.4 B	<u>5.4</u> B	2.9 B	NS
GENERAL CHEMISTRY			1		
Alkalinity as CaCO3		49,000	192,000	406,000	NS
Biochemical Oxygen Demand 5	-	1,100 U,H	1,800 H	1,100 U H	NS
Chloride		6,900	20,400	57,000	NS
Chemical Oxygen Demand	-	20,000 U	25,900	38,500	NS
Cyanide (Total)	200 (2)	10,000 U	10,000 U	10,000 U	NS
Hardness as CaCO,	-	49,000	155,000	350,000	NS
Nitrate as Nitrogen	10,000 (2)	200 U	200 U	200 U	NS
Sulfate	500,000 (2)	9,200	3,400	2,400	NS
Total Dissolved Solids		88,000 H	223,000 H	490,000 H	NS
Total Suspended Solids	-	3,000	16,200	64,400	NS
Total Organic Carbon		3,600	8,000	8,400	NS

FIELD READINGS (units as noted below)

Dissolved Oxygen (mg/L)	-	0.26	0.43	0.26	NS
Oxidation Reduction Potential (mv)	-	28.6	-26.2	-95	NS
pH	-	5.92	6.24	6.60	NS
Specific Cenductivity (µS/cm)	-	139	323	752	NS

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance -

25

U = Analyte or compound was analyzed but not detected at a concentration above the reporting limit.

 \mathbf{B} = value within 5 times of the greater amount detected in the equipment or preparation blank samples

J = estimated value

N= Matrix Spike sample recovery outside acceptance limits

* = duplicate analysis Relative Percent Difference outside acceptance limits

H = holding time exceeded

NS = not sampled

NA = not analyzed

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

(2) No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used

(3) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Maximum Contamination Level was used

Table 7-2
Groundwater Analytical Results • May 20 & 21, 2002 Sampling Even
Shepley's Hill Landfill Compliance Point Wells
Devens, Massachuselts
(Sheet 1 of 1)

	Well No.	9HL-3	SHL-4	SHL-6	SHM-96-5B	SHM-96-5B DUP	SHM-96-5C	SHL-9	\$HL-10	SHM-93-10C	\$HL-11	SHL-19	9HL-20	5HL+22	SHM-96-22B	6HM-93-22C
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	µg/L	µg/L	_µg/⊾	μ <u>ρ/</u> μ	µg/L	µg/L	µg/⊾	hâ\r	<u>μg/L</u>	μġ/L	μ <u>ρ/L</u>	µg/L	<u>µg/L</u>	HB/F	µg/L
	LEVÉL (1)	1	1	1												
	ug/L	4												1		
VOLATILES (8260B)			1													
Xvienes	10,000 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	< 5.0	<5.0
Acetone	3,000 (4)	< 5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<6.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<u><5.0</u>	<5.0	<5.0
2-Butanone	-	<5.0	<5,0	< 5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<6.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
4-Methyl-2-Pentanone	·	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<6.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	
Benzene	5 (2)	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<u>1.0 J</u>	1.1 J	1.4 _	< 5.0	<5.0	<5,0	2.1 J	< 6.0	1.4 J	5.0	1.6 J	<5.0
Methyl-t-Butyl Ether	70 (4)	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	1.0 J	1.1 J	1.6 J	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5,0		1.5	1.1 J	1.2 J
1.1-Dichloroethane	70 (4)	< 5.0	<5.0		<u>18</u>	1.8 J	1.8 J	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	2.2 J	2.3 J	<u>1.6</u>
1.2-Dichloroethene (total)	70 (2)	< 5.0	<5.0	<5,0	2.7 J	2./	2.8 J	<5.0	<5.0	< 5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<u>1.0 J</u>	2.7 J	3.2 J	1.2 J
1,2-Dichloroethane	6	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<u></u>	< 5.0	0.6>	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<0.0	<5.0	< <u>5.0</u>
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600 (2)	<5,0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5,0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5	< 5,0	<5.0	45.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	< 5,0	<0,U	50,0	< 6.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	<5.0	<6,0	<5.0	<5,0	< 5.0	<5.0	<6.0	<9,0	<6.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0
METALS (6010B or as noted)																
Aluminum	6,870	<u><19.8</u>	<19.8	248	<19.8	<19,5	<19,8 F# 4 D <	229	<19.8	21.2	<19.8	<19,8	<19,8	<19,6	<19.8	<19.8
Arsenic	50	2,8 8	47.8 B	<u>11.9 B</u>	North Contraction	1.2364 334 3963	2 00 9 15 20	56871 AA :058	4.0 B	11.0 8	469	68,9		00 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	. 2,040	30.5 8
Barlum	2,000 (2)	8.8	23.2	10.0	60.1	60.9	50,9	17.5	5,3	<u> </u>	101	15.6	94.7	15.8	100	68.8
Cadmlum	5 (2)	<u>12B</u>	<u>1.1 B</u>	1.3.8	1.18.	0.94 8	1.3 8	1.4 8	<u>1.4 B</u>	<u>1.4 B</u>	<u>1.4 B</u>	1.3 8	<u>1,4 B</u>	1.6 B	<u>1.3 B</u>	<u>1.2 B</u>
Chromium	100	<u>5,1 B</u>	3.18	2.9 B	3.2 8		<u> </u>	2.5 8	3,18	2.9 8	2,3 B	2.1 8	3.0 B	4.0.8	1.8 8	4.7 B
Copper	1300(3)	4,2 5	2.4 8	3.8 B	2.98	4.4 0	4,3 5	2.5 8	<u>2.7 B</u>	Z.4 B	2,0 8	1.9 5	3.4 B	4.0 8	3.0 8	<u>238</u>
iron	9,100	30.4	1,520	1,110	40,100	38,800	49,200	<u>ຼາອ,ສນດ</u>	<17,0	(1.1	55,400	13,000	7,010	808	92,000	916
Lead	15	1.8 8	2.2.8	2.0 B	<0.80	1,8 8	2.0.8	4.2 8	2.8 B	1.8 8	<u>1,1 B</u>	1.1.8	<u>1.6 B</u>	1.1 8	<0.80	<u>1.2 B</u>
Manganese	1,/10	14.3 8	573	269	11,000		4/110	445	1.3 B	45.4 B	2,010	2,280	5,950	1,370	1,680	425
Mercury (7470A)	2 (2)	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<u><0.10</u>	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10
NICKE	100	<u> </u>	4.3	3.3	15.2	14,9	<u> </u>	<2.8	52.8	3./	4,9	8.8	11./	12.6	9.1	3,5
Selenium	00 (2)	<u></u>	4.0.5	3.0 0	4.4 B	<u>4.4 P</u>		- 3.0 0		<u> </u>	4.2 8	3.2 5	<u>6.3 B</u>	2.88	8.78	4.5.8
Sagram	20,000	1 940 8	6.370	2 240 0	20 400	37 000	34 000	2 380 5	1 380 8	8.920	37 600	2 5 7 9	21 000	49 700	26 000	
1000i011	20,000	5 1 9	190	2,0400	1 en b	6 9 D	20.3	2,000 0	200	0,020	4/ JUUU	2010 0	540	34 0 0	33,900	
CENEDAL OUCHIPTOY	2,000,4/		4.50	·····	0.00	0.00		<u></u>	<u> </u>	3.0 0	0.30	5.8 5	0,4 0	<u></u>	12.0 0	<u>4.4 D</u>
		5 000	20.000	22 000	049.000	226 (100	220.000	68.000	4.000	188.000	000.000		000 000	440.000		
Nathania States		8,000	39,000	33,000	346,000	330,000	320,000	00,000	4,000	168,000	228,000	38,000	280,000	440,000	312,000	232,000
Biochemical Oxygen Damanos		41,300 M	<1,300 H	<1,300	<1,300	\$1,300	<1,300	<1,300	\$1,300 H	<1,300 H	1,200 H	<1,300 M	<1,300 H	<1,300	<1,300	2,200
Chioride		(20	4,700	1,100	41,200	39,600	49,000	1,500	800	32,800	31,000	1,300	42,000	52,600	45,700	36,800
Chemical Oxygen Demand		<5,000	<5,000	37,500	43,600	148,000	53,400	53,400	<5,000	8,100	14,100	<5,000	16,100	87,200	53,400	33,600
Cyanide (1otal)	200 (2)	<10.U	<u>\$10,0</u>	<10.0	<10.0 001.00	51U.U	<10.0	<10,0	<10.0	<10.0	<10,0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0
margness as CaCO3		9,500	31,000	28,200	304,000	301,000	268,000	68,400	18,400	237,000	162,000	37,400	250,000	433,000	249,000	238,000
Nitrate as Nitrogen	10,000 (2)	400	. 220	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	1,900	<200	210	220	380	<200	220	<200
Suifale	500,000 (2)	2,700	8,700	2,900	5,400	5,400	3,700	9,700	2,100	19,800	530	12,600	8,800	4,900	1,800	12,400
Total Dissolved Solids		23,000	65,000	81,000	438,000	452,000	398,000	91,000	43,000	326,000	314,000	76,000	371,000	547,000	412,000	320,000
Total Suspended Solids		2,300	11,100	1,200	59,500	61,700	53,400	35,500	<500	1,700	37,400	7,200	9,000	1,900	104,000	2,400
Total Orgánic Carbon	· ·	<1,000	2,300	6,500	5,100	5,600	6,300	6,700	<1,000	<1,000	4,200	<1,000	3,500	4,300	5,800	3,400

FIELD READINGS (units as noted below)

Dissolved Oxygen (mg/L)		11.0	0.3	0.2	0.4	0.4	0,3	0.3	10.4	0.8	0.4	1.9	0.2	6.8	0.4	0.4
Oxidation Reduction Potential (mv)		232.2	6,5	93.5	-40.8	-40.8	-53,9	19.4	255.6	65.6	-54.7	53.2	29.2	63.1	.75.8	-111.3
RH	<u> </u>	6,6	6.5	5.2	6,6	6.6	6.5	6.5	0.8	7.1	6,5	5,9	6.4	6.6	6,6	7.6
Specific Conductivity (µ5/cm)	•	26	114	67	816	816	832	151	47	479	659	154	627	921	848	548

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance -

 $B \circ value within S times of the groater amount detected in the equipment or proparation blank samples <math display="inline">J$ = estimated value

N = Matrix Spike sample recovery outside acceptance Units

* = duplicate analysis Relative Percent Difference outside acceptance limits

H = holding time exceeded

NA = not analyzed

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

(2) No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used

(3) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Maximum Contamination Level was used

TABLE 7-3 Groundwater Analytical Results - May 22, 2002 Sampling Event Molumco Road Wefls (RE: Shepley's Hiff Landfill) Ayer, Massachusetts (Sheet 1 of 1)

	Well No.	SHM-99-31A	SHM-99-318	SHM-99-31C	SHM-99-32X
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	µg/L	µg/L	µg/L	µg/L
	LEVEL (1)				
	μq/L				
VOLATILES (8260B)					
Xylenes	10,000 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
Acetone	3,000 (4)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
2-Butanone		<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
4-Methyl-2-Pentanone	- 1	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
Benzene	5 (2)	<5.0	2.1 J	1.5 J	<5.0
Methyl-t-Butyl Ether	70 (4)	<5.0	<5.0	1,7 J	2.0 J
1,1-Dichtoroethane	70 (4)	<5.0	<5.0	2.0 J	2.0 J
1.2-Dichloroethene (total)	70 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	2.5 J	2.8 J
1.2-Dichloroethane	5	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	<u><5.0</u>	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
METALS (6010B or as noted)					
Alumiaum	6,870	80.7	<19.8	<19.8	21.4
Arsenic	50	16.6 B	75.1	345	176
Barium	2,000 (2)	9.0	71.3	103	55.5
Cadmium	5 (2)	0.73 B	0.77 B	1.18	1.2 B
Chromium	100	2.0 B	1.8 B	2.3 B	1.8 B
Copper	1,300 (3)	<u>1.7 B</u>	1.78	3.28	3.18
Iron	9,100	4,670	25,400	54,100	51,900
Lead	. 15	1.3 B	1.9 B		1.5 B
Manganese	1,715	386	2,780	7,720	3,960
Mercury (7470A)	2 (2)	0.40	<0.10	<0_10	<0.10
Nickel	100	<2.8	<2.8	17.5	8.8
Selenium	50 (2)	<2.0	<2.0	9.3 B	<u>4.7 B</u>
Silver	40 (4)	1.4	1.4	2.4	1.4
Sodium	20,000	9,130	14,200	47,600	40,600
Zinc	2,000 (4)	4.8 B	8.5 B	12.2 B	7.6 B
GENERAL CHEMISTRY	·		ļ		
Alkalinity as CaCO ₃	-	196,000	4,000	432,000	388,000
Biochemical Oxygen Demands		<1,300 H	2,000 H	<1,300	<1,300 H
Chloride	-	6,300	19,800	60,100	60,000
Chemical Oxygen Demand		14,100	22,200	36,300	28,200
Cyanide (Total)	200 (2)	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0
Hardness as CaCO ₃	-	26,100	145,000	391,000	334,000
Nitrate as Nitrogen	10,000 (2)	<200	<200	<200	<200
Sulfate	500,000 (2)	8,000	2,800	2,100	2,300
Total Dissolved Solids	-	72,000	243,000	584,000	507,000
Total Suspended Solids	<u> </u>	1,200	8,900	60,000	36,900
Total Organic Carbon		4,200	5,800	7.100	5,300

FIELD READINGS (units as noted below)

Dissolved Oxygen (mg/L)	-	0.2	0.4	0.4	0.3
Oxidation Reduction Potential (mv)	-	51.7	32.6	-72.1	-62.8
рH	-	5.8	5.3	6.6	6.5
Specific Conductivity (µS/cm)	-	103	407	1,053	939

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance -

25

B = value within 5 times of the greater amount detected in the equipment or preparation blank samples

J = estimated value

N= Matrix Spike sample recovery outside acceptance limits

* = dupticate analysis Relative Percent Difference outside acceptance limits

H = holding time exceeded

NA = not analyzed

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

(2) No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used

(3) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Maximum Contamination Level was used

TABLE 7-4 Groundwater Analytical Results - October 20-30, 2002 Sampling Event Shepley's Hill Landfill Compliance Point Wells Devens, Massachusetts (Sheet 1 of 1)

	Well No.	SHL-3	SHL-1	5HL-5	SHM-96-5B	SHM-96-5B DUP	SHM-96-5C	SHL-9	SHL-10	SHM-93-10C	SHL-11	SHL-19	3HL-20	SHL-22	\$HM-96-22B	SHM-93-22C
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	µց/Լ	µg/L	μg/L	µg/⊾	µg/L	μg/L	ug/L	µg/L	<u> µg/L</u>	ի հեր	են/բ	μg/L	µ₿/L	µg/L	µg/L
	LEVEL (1)				2,5 m	i			1							
	μα/ί								1							
VOLATILES (8260B)			1		1				1						1	
Yvlenes	10 000 (2)	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<6,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 6,0	<5,0	<5.0
Acetons	3,000 (4)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5,0	<5.0	<5,0	< 5.0
2-Butanone		<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<6.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<6,0	<5.0	< 5.0
4-Methvi-2-Pentanone		<6.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<6.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5,0	<5.0	<5,0	<5,0	<6.0	< 5.0	<5.0
Benzene	5 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	= 5 ,0	<8,0	0.92 J	<6.0	<5,0	<5.0	2.0 J	. <5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
Methyl-t-Butyl Ether	70 (4)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	1.0 J	0.98 J	1,2 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	1.2 J	<5.0	1.0 J
1,1-Dichloroethane	70 (4)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	1.6 J	1.6 J	1.9 J	<5.0	<5.0	<6.0	<5,0	<5,0	<5.0	<u>1.9 J</u>	<5.0	1.3 J
1,2-Dichloroethene (total)	70 (2)	< 6.0	<5,0	<5.0	2.6 J	2.6 J	<u>2.7 J</u>	<5.0	<5.0	<6.0	<5.0	<5.0	1.4 J	2.4 J	<5.0	1.2 J
1,2-Dichloroelhane	5	<6.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<6.0	<5.0	<u><5,0</u>	<5.0	<5.0
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<u>-5.0</u>	<6.0	<5.0
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	6	<5.0	<5.0	1. <5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<6.0	2.0 J	<6,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	<5.0		<5,0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5,0	<5.0	<5.0
METALS (6010B or as noted)										<u> </u>						
Aluminum	6,870	<16.1	<16.1	199	20.0	19.0	<16.1	60.0	<16,1	38.3	<16.1	<16.1	<16.1	<16.1	18,4	21.1
Arsenic	50	<3,2	30.86.3	<3.2	36.41 .9 70	1.20 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	41.3	29.0	<3.2	<u>(1</u>	648	164 😳	175	<u>260777188</u>	<u> 166</u> 159	30.1
Barlum	2,000 (2)	<9.2	46,0	15,9	45.6	45,6	56,4		<9.2	< 9.2	112	25.0	105	12.7	<9.2	72.7
Cadmium	5 (2)	<0.30	<0.30	<0.30	<0.30	<0.30	<0.30	<0.30	<0,30	<0,30	0.46	<0.30	<0.30	<0.30	<0,30	< 0.30
Chromium	100	<4,6	<4.6	<4,8	<4,6	<4,6	<4.6	<4.6	<4.6	<4.6	<4,6		<4.6	<4.6	<4.6	<4.6
Copper	1,300 (3)	1.9	<1.8	<1.8	5,8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	11.3	<1.8	<1.8	19.6	<1.6	<1.8	<u>51.8</u>
iron	9,100	<22.6	4,360	1,120	18/100.00	CARA BANNO CARA	44,800.80	8,430	<22.6	52,8	64,500	27,600	9,100	707	446	778
Lego	15	<u> </u>	<1.1	<u></u>	<1.1	< <u>1.1</u>	<1.1 ************	<1,1	<1.1	<1,1	<1,1	<1.1	<1,1	<1.1	<1.1	<1.1
Manganese	1,(15	<2.5	436	259	2/21 3.000 P	CHARTER BUUGHL	20.471U.22	464	<2.5	46.9	2014990 <u>2</u>	<u></u>	7,200	1,780	11,9	407
Mercury (7470A)	2 (2)	<0,10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0,10	=0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0,10	<0.10
Nicke	100	<13.5	<13.5	<13.5	<13.5	<13.0	<13.6	<13.5	<13.6	<13.5	<13.5	<13.5	<13,5	<13.5	<13.5	<13.6
Selanium	50 (2)	<3.9	<3.9	<3.9	6.3	6,0	6.8	<3.9	<3.9	<3.9	4.4	4.5	8.9	<3,9	4.2	<3.9
Silver	40 (4)	<u> </u>	\$1.4	<u> </u>	<1.4 V 4 6 6 6 6 7 7	51.9	51.4	51.4	51.4	51,4	<1.4	<1.4	<1.4	<1.4	<1.4	<1.4
scolum	20,000	1,5/0	2,040	2,100	3. 30 Z U U Z L	20030,000	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	2,000	1,520	0,100	Secology and	4,240	333,600	X AD, SUU	714,000	19,500
CENERAL CHEMISTRY	2,000 (4)	<u><0,9</u>	40.9		0,9	<u> </u>	<u>~0.9</u>	<u> </u>	-0'a	20,8			<0.9	16,4	<u><</u> 2'A	<8.9
Alkalialki an ChCO		04.000	88.400	20,800	227.000	200.000	207.000	E4 000	51000	000.000	040.000	75.000		070 000	100.000	
Alkalinity as Callog		24,900	86,700	32,600	367,000	365,000	307,000	54,000	27,300	200,000	218,000	75,800	263,000	378,000	193,000	121,000
Biochemical Oxygen Demande	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<1,500	<1,500	<1,500	<1,500	<1,500	<1,500	<1,500	<1,500	<1,500	<1,500	<1,500	<1,500	<1,600	<1,500	1,500
Chloride		1,200	<200	2,100	42,200	41.200	45,600	1,800	<200	31,700	28,900	3,100	44,000	48,000	45,500	36,100
Chemical Oxygen Demand		27,500	19,600	35,200	87,900	13,700	41,000	25,500	11,800	23,500	37,300	29,400	21,600	17,800	39,200	17.600
Cyanide (Total)	200 (2)	<10,0	<10.0	<10.0	<10_0	<10.0		<10.0	<10,0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10,0	<10.0	<10,0	<10.0
Hardness as CaCO ₃	•	29,700	90,600	38,900	315,000	314,000	246,000	74,500	29,400	228,000	183,000	62,600	264,000	437,000	28,000	246,000
Nitrate as Nitrogen	10,000 (2)	400	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200
Sulfate	500,000 (2)	7.500	11,400	13,000	6,300	6,300	6,600	10,700	2,600	18,700	390	13,600	11,600	5,600	2,900	13,500
Total Dissolved Solids		53,000 H	123,000 H	99,000 H	467,000 H	475,000 H	382,000 H	148,000 H	48,000 H	312,000 H	336,000 HI	130,000 H	462,000 H	565,000 H	395,000 H	350,000 H
Total Suspended Solids		<500	1,100	7,000	26,900	25,600	44,400	<500	900	1,600	58,700	9,900	11,000	1,600	700	4,100
Total Organic Carbon		<1,000	2,200	8,100	5,400 *	4,200	6,400	8,300	<1,000	<1,000	4,000	1,200	2,100	4,100	4,000	3,400

FIELD READINGS (units as noted below)

Dissolved Oxygen (mg/L)	•	7.9	0,3	0,6	0.3	0.3	0.3	0.1	9.4	0.5	0.6	0.3	0.3	0.8	0.4	0.6
Oxidation Reduction Potential (mv).		209,9	26,0	27.5	-62,7	-62.7	-55,8	-46.9	219.4	-5.3	-46,3	-6,9	-31,1	7.4	14.4 #	-135.1
рН	-	6.3	6,1	5.7	6,6	6.6	6.5	6,6	6,9	7.5	6,6	8,5	6.5	6,6	8,7	7.6
Specific Conductivity (µS/cm)		67	221	94	846	846	822	182	66	491	766	264	751	927	824	649

Notes;

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance -

B = value within 6 times of the greater amount detected in the equipment or preparation blank samples ψ = estimated value

N = Matrix Spike sample recovery outside acceptance limits

* « duplicate analysis Relative Percent Difference outside acceptance limits

H = holding time exceeded

= value circumspact due to potential field equipment failure

N9 = not sampled

NA = not analyzed

Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

(2) No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used

(a) No classicp value was developed to the Massachusette Maximum Conterningtion Level was used

TABLE 7-5 Groundwater Analytical Results - October 31, 2002 Sampling Event Molumco Road Wells (RE: Shepley's Hill Landfill) Ayer, Massachusetts (Sheet 1 of 1)

	Well No.	SHM-99-31A	SHM-99-31B	SHM-99-31C	SHM-99-32X
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	µq/L	µq/L	µg/L	ua/L
	LEVEL (1)			<u> </u>	{
• • • • • • • • • • • •	110/1				
VOI ATILES (8260B)					[
Xidenes	10 000 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	NA	NS
Acetone	3 000 (4)	50	<5.0	NA	NS
2-Butanone	0,000 (1)	<50	<5.0	NA	NS
4-Methyl-2-Pentanone	<u> </u>	<50	<5.0	NA	NS
Beszene	5(2)	<5.0	17.1	NA	NS
Methyl-t-Butyl Ether	70 (4)	<5.0	<5.0	NA	NS
1.1-Dichloroethane	70 (4)	<5.0	<5.0	NA	NS
1.2-Dichloroethene (total)	70 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	NA	NS
1.2-Dichloroethane	5	<5.0	<5.0	NA	NS
1.3-Dichlorobenzene	600 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	NA	NS
1.4-Dichlorobenzene	5	<5.0	<5.0	NA	NS
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	<5.0	<5.0	NA	NS
METALS (6010B or as noted)					
Aluminum	6,870	54.1	22.7	<16.1	NS
Arsenic	50	11.6	711	332	NS
Barium	2,000 (2)	<9.2	63.4	98.0	NS
Cadmium	5(2)	< 0.30	<0.30	<0.30	NS
Chromium	100	<4.6	<4.6	<4.6	NS
Copper	1,300 (3)	3.5	<1.8	<1.8	NS
Iron	9,100	3,760	- 19,500 -	45,500	NS
Lead	15	1.2	<1.1	<1.1	NS
Manganese	1,715	655	2,270	6,740	NS
Mercury (7470A)	2 (2)	<0.10	<0.10	NA	NS
Nickel	100	<13.5	<13.5	13.5	NS
Selenium	50 (2)	<3.9	<3.9	<3.9	NS
Silver	40 (4)	<1.4	<1.4	<1.4	NS
Sodium	20,000	8,200	11,600	47,200	NS
Zinc	2,000 (4)	<6.9	<6.9	<6.9	NS
GENERAL CHEMISTRY		<u> </u>			
Alkalinity as CaCO ₃	-	23,800	155,000	448,000	NS
Biochemical Oxygen Demands	-	<1,500	1,900	<1,500	NS
Chloride	-	8,400	16,200	61,800	NS
Chemical Oxygen Demand	<u> </u>	11,800	37,300	51,000	NS
Cyanide (Total)	200 (2)	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	NS
Hardness as CaCO ₃	-	26.000	123,000	382,000	NS
Nitrate as Nitrogen	10,000 (2)	<200	<200	<200	NS
Sulfate	500,000 (2	14,200	3,500	2,500	NS
Total Dissolved Solids		45,000 H	208,000 H	575,000 H	NS
Total Suspended Solids	-	1,500	2,200	49,300	NS
Total Organic Carbon	-	3,800	5,900	NA	NS

FIELD READINGS (units as noted below)

Dissolved Oxygen (mg/L)	-	0.2	0.5	0.3	NS
Oxidation Reduction Potential (mv)	-	-15.2	-4.8	-94.8	NS
pH	-	5.9	6.1	6.7	NS
Specific Conductivity (µS/cm)	-	104	362	1,059	NS

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance -



B = value within 5 times of the greater amount detected in the equipment or preparation blank samples

J = estimated value

N= Matrix Spike sample recovery outside acceptance limits

* = duplicate analysis Relative Percent Difference outside acceptance limits

H = holding time exceeded

NS = not sampled

NA = not analyzed

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

(2) No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used

(3) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Maximum Contamination Level was used

TABLE 7-2 Groundwater Analytical Results - May 14 & 15, 2001 Sampling Event Shepley's Hill Landfill Devens, Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 1)

	Well No.	SHL-3	SHL4	SHL-5	SHM-98-5B	SHM-98-58 DUP	SHM-98-5C	SH19	SHLAD	SHM-93-10C	SHL-11	SHL-19	5HL-20	SHL-22	5HM-96-228	5HM-93-22C
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	ug/L	uq/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L
	GOAL (1)		1										1			
}	ug/L										[
VOLATILES (8260)														}		
Xvienes	10,000 (2)	< 5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	/ <5.0	< 5.0	<5,0	< 5.0	<5,0	<5.0
Acetone	3,000 (4)	< 5,0	<5,0	<5.0	<5,0	< 5.0	2.9 J	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	2.3 J	<5.0	4.1 J	<5.0
2-Butanone	-	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<50	< 5.0	< 5.0
4-Methyl-2-Pentanone		< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	j <5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0
Benzene	5 (2)	(<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	1,1,J	1.1 J	1.6 J	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	2.0 J	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<u>1.7 J</u>	<5.0
Methyl-t-Butyl Ether	70 (4)	< 5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	1.5 J	< 5,0	<5.0
1,1-Dichloroethane	70 (4)	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	1.8 J	1.8 J	< 5.0	<\$.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	2.1 J	2.1 J	<5.0
1,2-Dichloroethene (total)	70 (2)	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	2.6.1	2.6 J	2,7 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	2.0 J	<5.0	1.6 J	2.6 J	2.9 J	<5.0
1,2-Dichloroethane	5	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600 (2)	\$5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5,0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0
1,4-Dichiorobenzene	5	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5,0	<6.0	<5.0	241	<5.0	3.1 J	< 5.0	<u><5.0 i</u>	<5.0
1,2-Dichiorobenzene	600	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0
METALS (8010)																
Aluminum	6,870	<98.5	<98.5	344	<98.5	<98.5	<98.5	<98.5	<98.5	<98,5	<98,5	<98.5	<98.5	<98.5	<u><98.5</u>	<98.5
Arsenic	50	<4.1	386 50 (8)	13.8	3,800	3,900	807578	15.1	<4.1	6,9	296年1487 1866	20 /1 2 9 - 50	186.186	47.6	1,540	19.7
Barium	2,000 (2)	<3.6	61.5	9.6	57.8	59,0	62,8	15.6	4.3	7.2	102	8.3	99.5	13.4	96,8	70.0
Cadmium	5.(2)	0.32	0.81	0.40	0,80	0.79	1,5	0.71	0.42	0.23	1.4	0.44	0,43	0.67	1.5	0,46
Chromlum	100	2.0	2.2	1.6	6.2	-5.9	3.6	1.6	<1.4	<1.4	2.0	. 1.7	3.6	1.5	1.4 /	2,5
Copper	1,300 (3)	<11.0	<11.0	<11.0	<11.0 J	42.8 J	19.3	<11.0	<11.0	<11.0	13.4	<11.0	<11.0	<11.0	16.5	<11.0
Iron	9,100	<61.8	5,960	2,640	36-(38)7,00	37,600	77:600	4,630	<51.8	<61,8	73,600	<u></u>	9,600	612	92/700	430
Lead	15	<1.3	<1.3	<1.3	2,1	1.5	<1.3	<1.3	<1.3	<1.3	<1.3	<1.3	<1.3	1.3	1.6	<u> </u>
Manganese	1,715	<3.9	1,680	400	sx10;800	1224101000 AC	4,700	444	<3.9	41.1	2,460%	1,590	37,840	1,040	27.80	376
Mercury (7470A)	2 (2)	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10
Nicket	100	<7.5	8.8	<7.5	16,7	15.2	<7.5	<7.5	<7.5	<7.5	<7.5	<7.5	11.8	<7.5	<7.5	<7.5
Selenium	50 (2)	<3.9	<3.9	<3.9	<3,9	<3.9	<3.9	<3.9	<3.9	<3.9	<3.9	<3.9	<3.9	< 3.9	<3.9	<3.9
Silver	40 (4)	<2,4	<2.4	<2.4	2.6	2.4	3.9	<2.4	<2.4	<2.4	\$2,4	<2.4	<2.4	<2.4	<2.4	<2.4
Sodium	20,000	1.540	5,300	2,280		23439,800 251	34,100 6	2,310	<1540	8,530	实 35 ,300百.	<1540	42;700;33	A\$ 200 %	43,200	18,200
Zing	2,000 (4)	<3.4	8.0	4.9	10.7	12.9	15.3	6,6	<3.4	<3,4	<3,5	7.3	4.8	16.1	18.0	5.8
GENERAL CHEMISTRY					1				[]	······		······			h	
Alkalinity as CaCO ₂	-	20,000	52,000	30,000	360,000	376,000	376,000	65,000	21,000	15,000	256,000 [83,000	380,000	460,000	404,000	188,000
Blochemical Oxygen Demand		<2,000 J	<2,000 J	<2,000	<2,000	<2,000	<2,000	<2,000	<2,000 J	<2,000 J	<2.000 J	<2,000 J	<2,000 J	<2,000	<2,000	<2,000
Chloride	•	800	8,100	1,900	49,000	45,600	48,000	2,500	1,100	29,800	41,700	1,200	52,600	59,000	53,100	25,200
Chemical Oxygen Demand		16,000 N	8,000 N	16,000 N	<5,000 N	20,000 N	22,000 N	12,000 N	18,000 N	10,000 N	83,000 N	<5,000 N	30,000 N	10,000 N	30,000 N	10,000 N
Cyanide (Total)	200 (2)	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	510.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10,0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N
Hardness às CaCO3		18,000	82,000 1	34,000 *	90,000	144,000 *	300,000 *	76,000 *	20,000	232,000 *	184,000 ·	28,000	20,000	472,000	150,000	196,000
Nitrate as Nitrogen	10,000 (2)	210	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	200	<200	<200	<200	<200
Sulfate	500,000 (2)	3,100	8,200	2,100	4,600	4,700	3,100	8,400	2,600	19,500	620	9,400	D.400	4.200	2,600	12,700
Total Dissolved Solids		23,000 B	116,000	60,000	457,000	466,000	434,000	107.000	23,000 B	305,000	401,000	39,000	485,000	551,000	470,000	255,000
Total Suspended Solids	l	500	8,300	112,000 *	44,100	40,400	15,500	16,300	500	800 1	39,400	17,500	19,100	3,200	116,000	1,900
Total Organic Carbon	<u> </u>	<1,000	<u>1,700 </u>	8,200	6,700	7,200	8,900	6,500	<u> <1,000 </u>	<1,000	5,400	<1,000	3,700	4,900	7,800	4,900

FIELD PARAMETERS

	مخبيد منافقي فيبججها			<u> </u>	ment Million Children Children	Cipital States			COLUMN STREET, STRE		States and the second se	Contractor of the second		
Dissolved Oxygen (mg/L)	11.79	0.18 0.19	0.43	NA	1,12	0.21	11.22	1.29	0.24	0.45	0.23	0.55	0.63	0.39
Oxidation Reduction Potential (mV)	215.5	74.1 69.4	-92,5	NĄ	-64.3	7.2	227.0	143.3	-76.4	-20.6	-18.8	-37.3	+132.0	130.2
			فكري بالتجاذ بالسية ستعد			فتصحب عادتها البطن		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	and the start of the	the second second second	and the second state of th	Contraction of the second second		and the second s

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

(2) No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used

ويشتحه فحم

Notes:

Shaded aleas with bold numbers indicate cloanup goal exceedance.

25

 \vec{a} = Value within 5 times of the amount detected in the equipment blank sample

J ⊨ Estimated Value

N= Matrix Spike sample recovery outside acceptance limits

* • Duplicate analysis Relative Percent Difference outside acceptance limits

NA = Not enalyzed

(3) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Maximum Contamination Level was used (4) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Contingency Plan GW-1 standard was used

entersectation of a

Sandra Seconda Seconda New Alternation and

Table 7-3 Groundwatet Analytical Results - October 29 & 30, 2001 Sampling Event Shepley's Hiji Landfill Devens, Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 1)

	Well No	SHL-3	SHL-4	SHL-5	5HM-96-5B	SHM-96-58 DUP	SHM-98-5C	SHL 9	SHL-10	SHM-93-10C	SHL-11	SHL-19	SH1-20	SHL-22	SHM-96-228	SMM-93-22C
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	uo/L	ug/L	սց/Լ	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	Ug/L	ug/L) ug/L	uq/L	ug/L	սց/և	ug/L	uo/L
	LEVEL (1)					1	1	1		1.			1			······
	ua/L	1		1		1 .		1						1		
VOLATILES (82608)		1				1	1		1		1					
Xvienes	10,000 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5,0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
Acetone	3,000 (4)	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5,0	<5.0	1.8 JN	<5.0
2-Butanone	•	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
4-Methyl-2-Pentanone	-	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
Benzene	5 (2)	<5.0	1.3 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	1.2 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	1.9 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<u>1.1 J</u>	<5.0
Methyl-t-Butyl Ether	70 (4)	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<\$.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	1.2 J	< 5.0	<5.0
1,1-Dichloroethane	70 (4)	<5,0	<5.0	< 5.0	1.8 J	1,8 J	1.7 J	< 6,0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	2.0 J	1.4 J	<u>1.4 J</u>
1,2-Dichloroethene (lotal)	70 (2)	<5.0	1.6 J	< 5.0	2.6 J	2.4 J	2.6 J	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	131	<u><5,0</u>	1.5 J	2.4 J	2.0 J	1.0 J
1.2-Dichloroethane	5	<6.0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
1.3-Dichlorobenzene	600 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5,0	55.0	<u><5.0</u>	< 5.0	<u> <5,0</u>	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0
1.4-Dichlorobenzene		<5,0	1 55.U	50.V 	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100		ND.U		<u> </u>	50,0	1 <u>50.0</u>	50.0	50.U	<u> </u>
1.2-Dichlorobenzene	600	< <u>5.</u> U	<5.U	< <u>5,0</u>	<u>55,0</u>	<u>1 59.0</u>	<u></u>	1 10.0	<u></u>		<u></u>	<u> </u>	<u>40,0</u>	53.0	<u>. 59.0</u>	<5.0
METALS (BUIUS of as noted)			60.0	207	47.2		~ * *	10.0		100	~~ 7 7					
Aluminum	0,870	<u><!--./</u--></u>	52.0	307	57.7 Maria 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1	HARRING TO THE	11 1	1 18.0	<u>~/.(</u>	10.1	10000 7 2 200	2 120224 0 2522	57.7 1839 A 6 6 (189)	<u> </u>	57.7	
Arsenic	2 000 (2)	<u></u>	01.0	10.0	1/28/015000/202	A 6 1	507	44.1	< 9.0	10,1	104	22.2	102	44.6	No. 6	
Banum	2,000 (2)	<u> </u>	91.0	-0.00	44,0	40.10 	0.61	14.0	~9.0	-0.20	104	<u> </u>	-0.00	1.7	90.5	
Cadmium	5(2)	<0.20	<u><0.20</u>	<0.20	<0.20	2.0.1	<u> </u>	<0.20	<0.20	20		0.35	40.20	<0.20	1.3	<0.20
Chromium	100			210	<1.0	4.21	1 12	<1.0	<u></u>	<u> </u>		1.6	<u></u>			
Gopper	9 100	111	1.00 M 00 M	4 570	3:018/000009	100017/800-000	43(900)	8 1 2 0	<15.7	161	278 400	1923122000	8710	618	1	753
Lord	15	0 72	1 2	<0.60	3 1	21	2.4	<0.60	<0.80	1.4	2 1	20	10	20	3.4	1.5
Leao	1 715	<u> </u>	824	349	6-50.54900682	10000000000000000000000000000000000000	A320 35	412	1.5	397	2.2.880	S.4 100 S	Sec. 720 8	1 220	5.51 9602-	444
Manganese	2 (2)		<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	40.10
Nickel	100	= 2 0	122	3.0	13.0	13.5	44	<2.0	<20	49	<2.0	90	12.4	8.6	77	\$2.0
Selectum	50 (2)	<12	<1.2	<1.2	\$1.2	<1.2	<1.2	1.7	<1.2	<1.2	<1.2	<1.2	<1.2	<12	<12	<12
Silver	40 (4)	<1.5	<1.6	<1.5	3.3	2,4 *	<1.5	<1.5	<1.5	<1.5	<1.5	<1.5	2.7	<1.5	<15	<1.5
Sodium	20.000	1,960	17,200	2,660	38:800	38,200.	34,300.40	2,550	1,520	8,880	33,500	3,680	41,000	9645:600 at	40.300	20 700
Zinc	2,000 (4)	<0,90	4.1	3.2	2.7	2,8	1,3	<0,90	<0.90	<0.90	<0.90	4.7	0.94	13,4	5.6	<0.90
GENERAL CHEMISTRY										1						
Alkalinity as CaCO3		21,000	144,000	42,000	372,000	376,000	312,000	72,000	26,000	192,000	276,000	100,000	364,000	452,000	320,000	228,000
Blochemical Oxygen Demands		<1,300 H	<1,300 H	1,600	<1,300	<1,300	<1,300	<1,300	<1,300 H	<1,300 H	<1,300 H	<1,300 H	<1,300	<1,300	<1,300	1,900
Chloride	-	1,000	29,000	1,700	50,000	49,800	53,100	2,200	1,200	32,100	<200	3,100	50,700	58,000	48,400	34,300
Chemical Oxygen Demano		19,800 B	17,800 B	40,000 B	24,000 B	30,000 B	34,000 B	72,000 8	9,900 B	11900 B	33,600 B	15,800 B	18,000 B	22,000 B	43,500 B	30,000 B
Cyanide (Total)	200 (2)	<10.0	<10,0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0	<10.0
Hardness as CaCO ₃		25,900	142,000	37,000	330,000	329,000	252,000	72,100	26,400	235,000	183,000	63,100	340,000	429,000	249,000	259,000
Nitrate as Nitrogen	10,000 (2)	420	590	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	240	<200	200	<200	<200	<200	220	<200
Sulfate	500,000 (2)	7,200	9,800	2,500	6,200	6,300	5,500	8,200	2,500	20,200	<200	15,800	10,100	4,700	2,200	14,300
Total Dissolved Solids	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	47,000	216,000	70.000	480,000	490,000	367,000	105,000	34,000 8	295,000	360,000	131,000	487,000	550,000	412,000	319,000
Total Suspended Solids	· · ·	500 B	7,700	4.100	34,400	34,600	46,800	800 8	<500	5,000	57,800	NA I	13,200	1,800 B	110,000	2,300 B
Total Organic Carbon		<1,000	2,800 B	10,100	6,900 B	5.000 B*	6,400 B	8,200	<1,000	1,400 B	4,500 8	1,500 B	5,600 8	5,000 8	8,300 1	4,100 B

FIELD PARAMETERS

						and an experimental second sec			<u> </u>							
Dissolved Öxygen (mg/L)	•	8.13	0.36	0.25	0.14	0.14	0,15	1.18	8.71	1.25	0.26	0.51	0.19	0.86	0.83	1.09
Oxidation Reduction Potential (mv)		323.7	28.6	18,1	-73,2	-73.2	-49,8	-91.8	344.7	57.1	-92.5	-31.9	-36.9	-51.4	+189.9	-173.2
Notes														فشاعها فتباعدا والبارية بالبرود التلي	ز ينه بنهم و شمير است.	in the second

NOtes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance, +

B ≠ Value within 5 times of the amount delected in the equipment blank sample J = Estimated Value

N = Matrix Spike sample recovery outside acceptance limits

* = Dupilcate analysis Relative Percent Difference outside acceptance limits

H = Holding time exceeded

NA = Not Ahalyzed

SVC ASTREMENTATION OF A STREET
1232273277 1 - 5782727
C 2552 Z 1 1 2 8 3 4 4
AGE 255 A 175 A 256 A 256 A 100

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

(2) No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used

(3) No cleanup value was developed so the Messachusetts Maximum Contamination Level was used

Table 7-5 Groundwater Analytical Results - October 30, 2001 Well SHM-96-22B, Varying Depth Shepley's Hill Landfill Devens, Massachusetts

	Well No.	SHM-96-228	SHM-96-22B
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	mid-screen sample	near-bottom sample
	LEVEL (1)	at 142.3-ft NGVD	at 128.6-ft NGVD
	uq/L	ual	ua/L
VOLATILES (8260B)			
Xvlenes	10,000 (2)	<5.0	<5.0
Acetone	3,000 (4)	1.8 JN	<5.0
2-Butanone		<5.0	<5.0
4-Methyl-2-Pentanone	-	<5.0	<5.0
Benzene	5(2)	1.1 J	1.2 J
Methyl-t-Butyl Ether	70 (4)	<5.0	<5.0
1,1-Dichloroethane	70 (4)	1.4 J	1.9 J
1,2-Dichloroethene (lotal)	70 (2)	2.0 J	2.7 J
1,2-Dichloroethane	5	<5.0	<5.0
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600 (2)	<5.0	<5.0
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5	<5.0	<5.0
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	<5.0	<5.0
METALS (6010B or as noted)			
Aluminum	6,870	<7.7	<1.7
Arsenic	50	1,670	1,240
Barium	2,000 (2)	96.5	91.0
Cadmium	5 (2)	1.3	0.91
Chromium	100	<0.70	<0.70
Copper	1,300 (3)	2.2	2.1
Iron	9,100	82,200	70,600
Lead	15	3.1	3.0
Manganese	1,715	1,960	3,730
Mercury (7470A)	2 (2)	<0.10	<0.10
Nickel	100	7.7	7.2
Selenium	50 (2)	<1.2	<1.2
Silver	40 (4)	<1.5	<1.5
Sodium	20,000	40,300	40,900
Zinc	2,000 (4)	5.6	6.4
GENERAL CHEMISTRY			[
Alkalinity as CaCO3	-	320.000	348.000
Biochemical Oxygen Demand ₅		<1,300	<1,300
Chloride	1	48,400	51,100
Chemical Oxygen Demand	-	43,500 B	83,000 B
Cyanide (Total)	200 (2)	<10.0	<10.0
Hardness as CaCO ₃	-	249,000	285,000
Nitrate as Nitrogen	10,000 (2)	220	<200
Sulfate	500,000 (2)	2,200	2,400
Total Dissolved Solids	-	412,000	449,000
Total Suspended Solids	-	110,000	93,200
Total Organic Carbon	-	8,300	8,900

FIELD PARAMETERS

Dissolved Oxygen (mg/L)	-	0.83	0.66
Oxidation Reduction Potential (mv)	-	-189_9	-176.6
pH	-	6.96	6.90
Specific Conductivity (uS/cm)	-	901	935
Temperature (° C)	-	10.4	10.5
Turbidity (NTU)	-	23.4	9.0

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance. -

1



B = Value within 5 times of the amount detected in the equipment blank sample

J = Estimated Value

N = Matrix Spike sample recovery outside acceptance limits

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

{2} No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used

(3) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Maximum Contamination Level was used

TABLE 7-3 Groundwater Analytical Results + Oct 30, Nov 1-2, 2000 Sampling Event Shepley's Hill Landfill Devens, Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 1)

	Well No.	5HL-3		SHL-5	\$HM-96-5B	SHM-96-58 DUP	SHM-98-5C	SHL 9	SHL-10	SHM-93-10C	SHL-11	SHL-18	SHL-20	SHL-22	SHM-96-228	SHM-93-22C
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	Ua/L	ua/L	ua/L	ua/L	ug/L	ua/L	ug/L	uq/L	ua/L	ua/L	ud/L	ua/L	ug/L	ua/L	ua/L
	LEVEL (1)			and the state of the	and the second											
	10/					. <u> </u>							······································			
VOLATILES (8260)																
Yunnar	10.000 (2)	<5.0	<5.0	<50	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
Acelona	3 000 (4)	3.2 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	2.2 J	2.9 J	< 5.0	<5.0	<50	2.5 J	< 5.0	2.3 J	<5.0	5.4	<5.0
2-Butanona		<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5,0	< 5.0
4-Methyl-2-Penlanone	· · ·	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5,0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5,0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0
Benzene	5(2)	<5.0	1.7 J	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	1.4 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	1.9 J	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	1.5 J	~5.0
Methyl-t-Bulyl Ether	70 (4)	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	1.4 J	1.3 J	1.3 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	1.7 J	1.3 J	1.2 J
1.1-Dichloroethane	70 (4)	< 5,0	< 5.0	< 5.0	2.3 J	2.2 J	1,8 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5,0	2.3 J	2.4 J	1.9 J
1.2.Dichloroethene (total)	70 (2)	<5.0	2,9 J	<5.0	3.0 J	2.8 J	3.0 J	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	1.9 J	<5.0	1.8 J	2,4 J	2.9 J	1.4 J
1.2-Dichloroethane	5	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0
1.3-Dichlorobenzene	600(2)	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
1.4.Dichlorobenzene	5	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	1,3 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	2,3 J	<5.0	2.9 J	1.4 J	1.7 J	<5.0
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	<5.Q	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5,0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0
METALS (6010)																
Arsenic	50	17.4 N	91.5 N	13.8 N	2,500 N	2,610 N	40.3 N	31.4 N	<4.2 N	8.8 N	523 N	154 N	172 N	45.0 N	1,180 N	47.8 N
Barlum	2,000 (2)	10.5	107	9.7	48.9	51.0	58,7	16.8	5.0	6.6	112	23.6	109	13_2	80.4	80.9
Cadmium	5 (2)	<0.30	< 0.30	<0.30	<0.30	<0.30	<0.30	<0.30	< 0.30	< 0.30	<0.30	<0,30	<0.30	<0.30	< 0.30	< 0.30
Chromium	100	1.3	1.0	1.3	<1.0	< 1.0	<1.0	4.3	1.5	1.6	< 1.0	<1.0	< 1.0	1,1	<1.0	<1.0
Copper	1,300 (3)	5,4	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	4.2	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	< 1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8
iron	9,100	5,250	14,800	5,100	25,100	25,300	65,100	10,600	50.3	98.3	88,000	29,300	10,600	905	71,600	870
Lead	15	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8	<1.8
Manganese	1,715	530	1 1 1 0	720	12,800	12,900	5,520	564	< 1.5	37.4	3,120	4,090	8,390	1,300	1,970	505
Mercury (7470A)	2 (2)	<0,10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10
Nickel	100	<3.4	16.2	4,9	15.6	16.4	6.6	3.7	3.8	6.4	4.4	8.8	15.8	9.5	8.0	<3.4
Selenium	50 (2)	< 3.7 N	<3.7 N	<3.7 N	8.6 N	<3.7 N	<3.7 N	< <u>3.7 N</u>	<3.7 N	<3.7 N	4.5 N	3,8 N	4.0 N	<u><3,7 N</u>	3.8 N	<3.7 N
Silver	40 (4)	<1.6	<1.6	<1.6	<1.6	<1.6	<1.6	<1,6	<1.6	<1.6	<1.6	<1.6	< 1.6	< 1.6	<1.6	<1.6
Zinc	2,000 (4)	<3.5	9.2	<u> <3,5</u>	<3.5	<3,5	<3.5	<3.5	<35	<3.5	<3.5	4,9	<3.5	119	<3,5	<3.5
Aluminum	6,870	196	229	279	12.4 J	21.2 J	34.1	130	14.7	28.4	/6,8	20.8	49.4	40.8	32.9	24.6
Sodium	20,000	16,300	20,600	3,690	40,200	42,400	31,600	2,380	974	8,250	36,300	3,350	43,600	48,000	58,100	23,800
GENERAL CHEMISTRY																
Alkalinity as CaCO		25,000	168.000	57.000	392,000	380.000	320.000	84,000	25.000	184,000	252.000	84.000	424 000	22 000	344 000	28.000
Biochemical Oxynen Deman	· · ·	<2.000	<2 000	<2.000	3,500	<2.000	<2.000	3,500	<2.000	<2.000	<2.000	<2 000	<2 000	<2 000	<2 000	<2 000
Chloride	°	1,400	31,600	1.400	55,700	52,700	57.200	4,000	1.200	31,700	49,000	3,200	57 600	69,000	55 700	48 700
Chemical Oxygen Demand		<5.000	35.000	14.000	8,000 J	20,000 J	86,000	14.000	<5	<5	20.000	<5	6.000	8.000	22.000	58 000
Cvanida (Tolal)	200 (2)	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10.0 N	<10 0 N
Hardness as CaCO3	· · · · ·	28,000	145,000	70,000	410,000	350,000	220,000	70,000	24,000	230,000	190,000	60,000	380,000	430,000	230,000	300.000
Nitrate as Nitrogen	10,000 (2)	600	300	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	400	<200	<200	<200	<200	<200	200	<200
Sulfate	500,000 (2)	10,000	8,000	4,100	5,300	5,200	4,900	11,800	3,600	20,800	<0.2	15,800	9,100	3,900	3,400	15,700
Total Dissolved Solids		62,000	241,000	100,000	494,000	490,000	391,000	126,000	39,000	297,000	386,000	142,000	535,000	586,000	447,000	368.000
Total Suspended Solids		3,100	17,800	1,600 B	44,200	39,500	49,600	1,100 B	2,000 B	2,100 B	63,200	6,400	13,400	2,200 B	112,000	4,100

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance. -

B * Value within 6 times of the amount detected in the equipment blank sample

25

J = Estimated Value

N= Mairix Spike sample recovery outside acceptance limits

* = Duplicate analysis Relative Percent Difference outside acceptance limits

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

المذاه فكالكار مناجر وكالكافر مراديه إعمارها وإكارت

(2) No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used

(3) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Maximum Contamination Level was used

(4) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Contingency Plan GW-1 standard was used

2

TABLE 7-2 Groundwater Analytical Results + May 8, 9 & 11, 2000 Sampling Event Sheptey's Hill Landfill Devens, Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 1)

DARAMETERS Curkhover Optic Uptic Uptic Uptic Uptic Optic Optic Uptic		Well No.	SHL-3	5HL-4	SHL-S	SHM-96-5B	SHM-96-5B DUP	SHM-98-5C	SHL-9	SHL-10	SHM-93-10C	SHL-11	SHL-19	SHL-20	SHL-22	SHM-96-22B	SHM-93-22C
UPUR LI UPUR LI <t< td=""><td>PARAMETERS</td><td>CLEANUP</td><td>Ug/L</td><td>ug/L</td><td>սց/և</td><td>ug/L</td><td>ug/L</td><td>ug/L</td><td>ug/L</td><td>ug/L</td><td>uġ/Ļ</td><td>ug/L</td><td>ug/L</td><td>L ug/L</td><td>ug/L</td><td>սց/Լ</td><td>ug/L</td></t<>	PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	Ug/L	ug/L	սց/և	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	uġ/Ļ	ug/L	ug/L	L ug/L	ug/L	սց/Լ	ug/L
Volatilities (psec) volatilities (psec) <thvolatilititities (psec)<="" th=""> volatitities (psec)<td></td><td>LEVEL (1)</td><td><u>}</u></td><td></td><td>tarran Streem</td><td></td><td></td><td>**************************************</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td> </td></thvolatilititities>		LEVEL (1)	<u>}</u>		tarran Streem			**************************************							-		
Valuation Valuation <t< td=""><td></td><td>ug/l</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·</td><td></td><td>1</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>		ug/l							· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		1						
Systems Constraint Constraint <	VOLATU ES (8260)									· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							·
Same 1 Same 1 Same 2 Same 2<	Yulanar	10 000 (2)	55.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<50
230/2007 0<	Acelone	3 000 (4)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	5.6	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	4.1.1	<5.0	<5.0	55.0
Augustus -<	2-Bulanone	0,000 (+/	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
Entrem 1 <td>4.Melbyl.2.Pentanone</td> <td></td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td>< 5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td>< 5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td>	4.Melbyl.2.Pentanone		<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
Mathylubeline 70 (4) <	Renzene	5(2)	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	1.3 J	1.4 J	1.4 J	< 5.0	<5,0	<5.0	1.9 J	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	1.8 J	<5.0
1:1:Dichlosophage 72 (4) 4:5:0 <td>Methyl-1-Butyl Ether</td> <td>70 (4)</td> <td><5.0</td> <td>< 5,0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td>1.2 J</td> <td>1.2 J</td> <td>1.5 J</td> <td>< 5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td>< 5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td>< 5.0</td> <td>< 5.0</td> <td>1.7 J</td> <td>1.3 J</td> <td>1.0 J</td>	Methyl-1-Butyl Ether	70 (4)	<5.0	< 5,0	<5.0	1.2 J	1.2 J	1.5 J	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0	1.7 J	1.3 J	1.0 J
12/2014000000000000000000000000000000000	1.1-Dichloroethane	70 (4)	< 5.0	< 5,0	<5.0	2.4 J	2.3 J	2.4 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	2.6 J	2.7 J	2.0 J
12-DECENDENTABLE 50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50	1.2-Dichloroethene (total)	70(2)	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	3.3 J	3.3 J	2,7 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	1.5 J	<5.0	1,6 J	2.9 J	3,3 J	1.4 J
13-25/EDUDDenZene 650 (1.2-Dichloroelhane	5	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5,0	<5.0	< 5,0	<5,0	< 5.0	<5.0
14-Difference 5 50 <th< td=""><td>1.3-Dichlorobenzene</td><td>600 (2)</td><td>< 5.0</td><td>< 5.0</td><td><5,0</td><td><5.0</td><td><5.0</td><td><5.0</td><td><5.0</td><td><5.0</td><td><5.0</td><td><5.0</td><td><5.0</td><td><5.0</td><td><5.0</td><td>< 5.0</td><td><5.0</td></th<>	1.3-Dichlorobenzene	600 (2)	< 5.0	< 5.0	<5,0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0
12-Dichlorobenzene 600 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 </td <td>1.4-Dichlorobenzene</td> <td>5</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td>1.6 J</td> <td>1.6 J</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td>1.8 J</td> <td>< 5,0</td> <td>3.9 J</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td> <td><5.0</td>	1.4-Dichlorobenzene	5	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	1.6 J	1.6 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	1.8 J	< 5,0	3.9 J	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0
METALS (6010) Control	1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	<5.0	<5.0	< 5.0	< 5.0
METALS (0010)																	
Arcsenic 50 <2.5 6.110 .0.400 62.2 16.0 <2.5 5.9.J 404 41.4 218 14.6 1,360 33.4.4 Barhum .0.00 (2)	METALS (8010)					-						 		ĺ	l		
Barbum 2.000 (2) <10 7 N 34.7 JN <10.7 N 615.2 IN 65.6 JN (2.9 JN <10.7 N 111 JN 12.2 JN 67.9 JN 76.1 JN Cadmium 5121 <0.30	Arsenic	50	<2,5	116	<2.5	5,110	5,040	52.2	15.0	<2.5	59J	404	41.4	216	14.6	1,360	34.4
Cadmium 5 (2) < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < <	Barlum	2,000 (2)	<10.7 N	34,7 JN	<10.7 N	67.5 JN	65.2 JN	55.8 JN	12.9 JN	<10.7 N	<10.7 N	116 JN	<10.7 N	<u>111 JN</u>	12,2 JN	97.9 JN	76.1 JN
Chromium 100 102 2.8.J 3.6.J 4.2.J 3.6.J 6.7.J 4.0.J 3.3.J 2.6.J 4.0.J 3.3.J 2.6.J 4.0.J 3.3.J 2.6.J 4.0.J 3.3.J 3.1.J 4.2.J Conder 1.30013 27.7N 2.8.J N.5.JN 9.5.JN 9.7.N 9.1.J 71.300 6.110 10.600 39.6 96.800 437 Lead 1.5 2.4.J 2.8.J 4.4 2.7.J 3.1 <2.3	Cadmium	5 (2)	<0.30	< 0.30	<0,30	<0.30	< 0.30	<0,30	0,33 J	<0.30	0.35 J	<0.30	<0.30	< 0.30	0.33 J	< 0.30	0,34 J
Copper 1.300-13. 27.7 N 2.9 JN 4.7 JN 12.8 JN 5.8 JN 9.5 JN 4.4 JN 17.2 N 4.4 JN 17.2 JN 4.6 JN 12.1 JN 4.9 JN 7.1 JN 9.0 JN tran 9.100 648 9.400 2.8 JV 4.4 * 2.7 J' 3.3 * 3.1 * <2.3 *	Chromium	100	10.2	2.6 J	3,6 J	4.0 J	2.5 J	4.2 J	3,5 J	6.7 J	4,0 J	<u>3.3 J</u>	2.6 .	4.0 J	<u>3.3 J</u>	3.1.1	4.2 J
Iron 9,100 548 6,400 2,130 46,000 44,400 67,000 3,520 176 91,1 J 77,300 5,110 10,203 35 84,20 437 Laad 15 2,4 J' 2,8 J' 44 2,7 J' 3,3 3,11 52,3'	Copper	1,300 (3)	27.7 N	2.9 JN	4.7 JN	12.8 JN	5.8 JN	9.5 JN	4,4 JN	17.2 JN	4,4 JN	4,6 JN	12.1 JN	4.6 JN	<u>4.9 JN</u>	7.1 JN	9,0 JN
Lead 15 2.4.3' 2.8.3' 4.4' 2.7.3' 3.3' 3.1' 42.3' 42.	Iron	9,100	648	9,400	2,130	45,000	44,400	67,000	3,620	176	91.1 J	71,300	6,110	10,500	396	96,800	437
Manganese 1.715 17.4 826 506 11,200 11,100 4,480 482 7.1 J 40.6 3,220 925 6,640 630 2,250 566 Mercury (7470A) 2 (2) <0.10	Lead	15	2.4 J	2.8 J*	4.4	2.7 J	3.3	3.1 '	<2.3	<2.3	<2.3	<2.3	<2.3	<2,3 *	<2.3	3.4 '	2.7 J'
Mercury (7470A) 2 (2) 40.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10 <0.10	Manganese	1,715	17,4	826	506	11,200	11,100	4,460	482	7.1 J	40.6	3,220	925	8,640	830	2,290	586
Nicket 100 4.8.J <2.9 <2.9 17.5.J 16.2.J 4.5.J <2.9 <2.9 17.7.J <2.9 17.7.J <2.9 17.7.J 7.4.J 6.7.J <2.9 Selenium 50 (2) <4.0	Mercury (7470A)	2 (2)	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0,10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10
Selenium 50 (2) <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 <4.0 < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < <	Nickel	100	4.8 J	<2.9	<2,9	17.5 J	16.2 J	4.6 /	<2.9	<2.9	<2.9	11.7 J	<2.9	14.7 J	7.4 J	6.7 J	<2.9
Silver 40 (4) 3.8 J 4.8 J 5.1 J 6.4 J 4.7 J 7.6 J 5.2 J 5.0 J 6.8 J 4.2 J 5.0 J 4.6 J 5.0 J 5.0 J 4.6 J 5.0 J 4.6 J 5.0 J 4.6 J 5.0 J 4.6 J 5.0 J 5.0 J 4.6 J 3.0 J 2.0 J 15.0 J 4.6 J 4.7 J 7.6 J 5.2 J 5.0 J 6.3 J 1.7 J 3.0 J 2.0 J 16.0 J 16.0 J	Selenium	50 (2)	<4.0	<4.0	<4.0	<4.0	4.8 J	<4.0	<4.0	<4.0	<4,0	<4.0	<4.0	<4.0	<4.0	<4.0	<4.0
Zinc 2,000 (4) 15,2 J 3,2 J 6,9 J 3,6 J 2,6 J 2,3 J 4,5 J 2,1 J 2,8 J 1,7 J 3,0 J 2,9 J 15,4 J 3,2 J 7 4 J Aturninum 6,870 535 49,9 J 400 73,3 J 49,4 J 63,7 J 119 J 231 142 J 48,8 J 54,2 J 60,4 J 41,3 J 33,9 J 69,1 J Sodium 20,000 692 J 3,460 J 1950 J 45,700 44,500 31,300 J 617 J 6,040 49,400 981 J 48,400 61,700 45,000 23,700 GENERAL CHEMISTRY	Silver	40 (4)	3.8 J	4.6 J	<u>5.1 J</u>	<u>6.4 J</u>	4.7 J	7.6 J	<u>5.2 J</u>	<u>5.0 J</u>	6.3 J	<u>5.8 J</u>	4.2 J	5.0 J	4.6 J	5.6 J	4.8 3
Aluminum 6,870 535 49.9.J 400 73.3.J 49.4.J 63.7.J 119.J 231 142.J 48.8.J 54.2.J 50.4.J 41.3.J 33.9.J 69.1.J Sodium 20.000 692.J 3,460.J 1.960.J 45,700 44,500 36,300 1,300.J 617.J 8,040 40,400 51,700 45,000 23,700 GENERAL CHEMISTRY	Zinc	2,000 (4)	<u>15.2 J</u>	<u>3.2 J</u>	6.9 J	3,6 J	2.6 J	2.3 J	4.5 J	2.1 J	<u>2.8</u> J	<u>1.7 J</u>	3.0 J	2.9 J	15.4 J	3.2 J	74J
Sodium 20,000 692 J 3,460 J 1,950 J 45,700 44,800 35,300 1,300 J 617 J 8,040 40,405 981 J 48,400 51,700 45,000 23,700 GENERAL CHEMISTRY - <td>Aluminum</td> <td>6,870</td> <td>535</td> <td>49.9 /</td> <td>400</td> <td>73.3 3</td> <td>49,4 J</td> <td>63.7.3</td> <td>119 J</td> <td>231</td> <td>142 J</td> <td>48.6 J</td> <td>54.2 J</td> <td>50.4 J</td> <td>41.3 J</td> <td>33.9 /</td> <td>69.1 J</td>	Aluminum	6,870	535	49.9 /	400	73.3 3	49,4 J	63.7.3	119 J	231	142 J	48.6 J	54.2 J	50.4 J	41.3 J	33.9 /	69.1 J
GENERAL CHEMISTRY General	Sodium	20,000	<u>692 J</u>	3,460 J	1,950 J	45,700	44,500	35,300	1,300 J	617 J	8,040	40,400	981 J	48,400	<u>51,700</u>	45,000	23,700
GENERAL CHEMISTRY					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					L							
Alkalinity - 3,000* 4/,000* 330,000* 400,000* 319,000* 42,000* 49,000* 122,000* 232,000* 21,000* 344,000* 436,000* 252,000* 252,000* 252,000* 22,000 20,000	GENERAL CHEMISTRY					100.000.1											
Blochemical Oxygen Demand -<	Alkalinity		3,000	47,000	33,000	400,000 *	316,000	296,000 -	48,000	9,000	1 195,000 .	232,000	21,000	344,000 *	436,000	340,000	252,000
Chloride 1,200* 6,900 1,00* 52,500 53,500 50,500 30,500 50,100* 21,00* 53,300* 67,800* 51,100* 44,500* Chemical Oxygen Demand <50,000	Blochemical Oxygen Demand	[<2,000	<2,000	<2,000	<2,000	<2,000	50,000	52,000	<2,000	\$2,000	<2,000	<2,000	<2,000	<2,000	<2,000	2,200
Chamiltar Cxygen Demand -			1,200	6,900	00.000	22,500	53,500	24,000	4,200	1,600 	30,500		2,100	59,300	67,800	61,100	44,600
Lyange (10ta) 200 (2) < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 < 10.0 <th< td=""><td>Chemical Oxygen Demand</td><td></td><td><5,000</td><td><6,000</td><td>20,000</td><td>20,000</td><td>18,000</td><td>24,000</td><td>12,000</td><td><0,000</td><td>6,000</td><td>24,000</td><td><5,000</td><td><5,000</td><td>6,000</td><td>36,000</td><td><5,000</td></th<>	Chemical Oxygen Demand		<5,000	<6,000	20,000	20,000	18,000	24,000	12,000	<0,000	6,000	24,000	<5,000	<5,000	6,000	36,000	<5,000
Harcness 6,000 94,000 32,000 330,000 530,000 52,000 13,000 226,000 192,000 24,000 72,000 24,000 72,000 24,000 72,000 24,000 72,000 24,000 72,000 24,000 72,000 24,000 72,000 24,000 72,000 24,000 72,000 2000 2000 300,000 2000 300,000 220,000 13,000 220,000 12,000 72,000 72,000 440,000 2000 300,000 300,000 2000 300,000 2000 300,000 2000 300,000 2000 300,000 2000 300,000 2000 300,000 2000 300,000 200,000 300,000 200,000 300,000<	Cyanide (Total)	200 (Z)	<10.0	<u> </u>	20,000	510.0	120,000	230.000	en 000	49,000	<u>\$10.0</u>	<10.0	<10.0	10.0	410.0	<10,0	<10.0
Nitrate as Nitrogen 10.000 (2) 3400 500 52,000 52,000	Haroness	10,000 (0)	8,000	24,000	- 32,000	330,000	330,000		<2000	13,000	226,000	192,000	24,000	72,000	440,000	270,000	300,000
Solitate 500,000 (2) 5,500 (N 2,000 (N 2,000 (N 2,000 (N 2,000 (N 1,000 (N 1,000 N 3,000 N 3,000 N 1,000 N 1,0	Nitrate as Nitrogen	600 000 (2)	2 (00 N	0 000 N	2 000 N	5 200 N	5 200 N	4 400 M	10 600 M	2 000 M	32 200 M	< 400 N	2 200 8	<200 8 600 M	<200	<200 4 400 bi	300
1 trait presented genus - 2 200 11,000 90,000 30,00000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,	Talol Dissolved Solida	200,000 (2)	32 000	21 000	68 000	473 000	474.000	401.000	78,000	59.00N	200 000	N1 000 64F	26.000	607 000	677.000	4,400 N	18,000 19
10001500000000000000000000000000000000	Total Suspended Solida		3 100	4 900	2 000 8	54 200	52 700	67.800	3 400	19,800	12 000	36 700	7 800	13 200	2 200 D	400,000	6 100

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance.

B = Value within 5 times of the amount detocted in the equipment blank sample $\overline{}$

25

J = Value below the Contract Required Detection Limit or Practical Quantitation Limit

N = Matrix spike sample recovery outside acceptance limits

* + Ouplicate analysis Relative Percent Difference outside acceptance limits

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwised noted)

(2) No cleanup value was developed so the Federal Maximum Contamination Level was used

(3) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Maximum Contamination Level was used

(4) No cleanup value was developed so the Massachusetts Contingency Plan GW-1 standard was used

والمتابعة المتعادية وتحترب المتعرفين والمتعادة والمتحافظ فمتعاه المتحد ومحمد والمتعادي والمتعادي والمتعاد

20

INSPECTOR: Kullberg TITLE: Civil Engineer

ORGANIZATION: <u>CENAE-EP</u> WEATHER: <u>Sunny, 45 d F</u>

BAROMETER: 30.0 in Hg TIME: 1020

BAROMETER: 30.0 in Hg TIME: 1345

DATE: <u>11/16/04</u>

Vent	VOC	02	H ₂ S	LEL	СО	CO ₂	CH4	Remarks
No.	ppm	%	ppm	%	ppm	%	%	
	PID	GA-90	CGI	CGI	CGI	GA-90	GA-90	
V-1	0	16.9	0	0	0	3.1	0	<u>CGI 02 – 16.9</u>
V-2	0	2,9	0	>100	0	15.4	11.0	CGI 02 – 3.9
V-3	0	8.9	0	>100	0	10.3	7.6	CGI O2 – 10.8
V-4	0	8.0	0	>100	0	9.5	3.0	CGI O2 – 9.2
¥-5	0	11.7	0	33	0	7.0	0.7	CGI 02 – 12.7
V-6	0	11.6	0	78	0	6.8	2.2	CGI O2 – 12.5
V-7	0	7.9	0	19	0	8.2	1.3	CGI O2 – 9.4
V-8	0	7.5	0	31	0	9.6	0.9	CGI O2 – 8.7
V-9	0	4.1	0	>100	0	18.6	23.9	CGI O2 – 5.0
V-10	0	0.3	0	>100	4	17.6	6.5	CGI 02 – 2.2
V-11	0	8.4	0	>100	0	7.4	4.2	CGI 02 – 7.7
V-12	0	20.6	0	46	0	0.8	0.5	CGI O2 – 19.4
V-13	0	21.2	0	75	0	0.1	0.2	CGI O2 – 18.4
V-14	0	4.4	0	>100	13	19.9	33.5	CGI 02 - 4,8
V-15	0	0	0	>100	11	26.1	32.4	CGI O2 – 2.8
V-16	0	0.1	0	>100	10	24.6	22.6	CGI O2 – 2.6
V-17	0	0	0	>100	10	27.6	37.5	CGI 02 – 2.4
V-18	0	21.2	0	0	0	0	0	CGI O2 – 20.9
PGP-1	0	20.6	0	0	0	0.4	0	CGI O2 – 20.5
PGP-2	0	20.0	0	0	0	1.7	0	CGI O2 - 19.8
PGP-3	0	21.3	0	0	0	0	0	CGI 02 – 20.9
PGP-4	0	21.3	0	0	0	0	0	CGI O2 – 20.9

CALIBRATION INFORMATION: Instrument: <u>PID, 10.6 eV lamp</u> Results: <u>0.0/100 ppm isobutylene</u>

Calibrated by: US Environmental

Instrument: Industrial Scientific MG 140 CGI Results: 25% LEL Methane/Pentane, 20.9% O₂, 25 ppm H₂S, 100 ppm CO

Calibrated by: US Environmental Co

Instrument: Landtech GA-90 Results: 20.9% O2, 15% CO2, 15% CH4

INSPECTOR: Kullberg TITLE: Civil Engineer DATE: <u>11/17/03</u>

WEATHER: Cloudy, 45 d F ORGANIZATION: <u>CENAE-EP</u>

BAROMETER: 30.0 in Hg TIME: 1020 BAROMETER: 30.2 in Hg TIME: 1400

Vent	VOC	02	H ₂ S	LEL	CO	CO ₂	CH4	Remarks
No,	ppm	%	ppm	%	ppm	%	%	
	PID	GA-90	CGI	CGI	CGI	GA-90	GA-90	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
V-1	0.0	21.0	0	0	0	0	0	<u>CGI O2 – 20.9</u>
V-2	0.0	<u>20.8</u>	0	75	0	0	0	CGI 02 – 21.0
V-3	0.0	20.6	0	0	0	0	0	CGI O2 – 21.0
V-4	0.0	20.7	0	0	0	0	0	CGI O2 – 20.9
V-5	0.0	20.8	0	0	0	0	0	CGI O2 – 20.9
V-6	0.0	20.4	0	1	0	0	0	CGI O2 – 20.9
V-7	0.0	20.4	0	1	0	0	0	CGI O2 – 20.9
V-8	0.0	19.7	0	0	0	0.2	0	CGI O2 – 20.5
V-9	0.0	11.5	0	>100	1	9,9	15.0	CGI O2 – 13.5
V-10	0.4	20.3	0	2	0	0	0	CGI O2 – 20.7
V-11	0.0	19.0	0	5	0	0.5	0	CGI O2 – 19.8
V-12	0.0	19.8	0	0	0	0	0	CGI O2 – 20.9
V-13	0.0	19.2	0	2	0	0.3	0	CGI O2 – 20.2
V-14	0.0	5.8	0	57	0	7.8	3.8	CGI 02 – 7.4
V-15	0.0	8.2	0	74	0	7.4	5.1	CGI O2 – 10.3
V-16	0.0	15.0	0	29	0	2.3	1.0	CGI 02 – 16.2
V-17	0.4	14.8	0	7	0	2.1	0.4	CGI O2 – 19.3
V-18	0.0	19.5	0	2	0	0.4	0.3	CGI O2 - 20.9
PGV-1	0.8	20.0	0	0	0	0.3	0	CGI O2 – 20.8
PGV-2	0.9	18.8	0	0	0	1.7	0	CGI O2 – 20.1
PGV-3	0.9	19.6	0	0	0	0.8	0	CGI O2 – 20.7
PGV-4	0.9	19.9	0	0	0	0.4	0	CGI O2 – 20.7

CALIBRATION INFORMATION: Instrument: PID, 10.6 eV lamp Results: 0.0/100 ppm isobutylene

Calibrated by: US Environmental

Instrument: Industrial Scientific MG 140 CGI Results: 25% LEL Methane/Pentane, 20,9% O2, 25 ppm H2S, 100 ppm CO

Instrument: Landtech GA-90 Results: 20.9% O2, 15% CO2, 15% CH4

Calibrated by: US Environmental Co

INSPECTOR: Kullberg/Michalak TI	E: Civil Engineer DATE: <u>11/05/02</u>
---------------------------------	---

ORGANIZATION: <u>CENAE-EP</u> WEATHER: <u>Sunny, 50 d F</u>,

BAROMETER: 29.92 in Hg TIME: 1050 BAROMETER: 29.86 in Hg TIME: 1330

Vent	VOC	02	H ₂ S	LEL	CO	CO ₂	CH4	Remarks
No.	ppm	%	ppm	%	ppm	%	%	
	PIÐ	GA-90	CGI	CGI	CGI	GA-90	GA-90	
V-1	0.0	18.3	0	0	0	1.2	0	CGI O2 - 18.9
V-2	0.0	18.1	0	75	0	1.3	1.4	CGI O2 – 18,1
V-3	0.0	10.7	0	>100	0	5.7	3.4	CGI O2 – 10.7
V-4	0.0	14.1	0	>100	0	4	0.9	CGI O2 – 14.0
V-5	0.0	18.8	0	0	0	0.8	0	CGI O2 - 19.0
V-6	0.0	15.4	0	>100	0	3.4	2.8	CGI O2 – 15.9
V-7	0.0	18.0	0	16	0	0.8	0.2	CGI O2 – 18.3
V-8	0.0	16.1	0	40	0	2.4	0.6	CGI O2 – 16.3
V-9	0.0	7.2	0	>100	0	14.7	19.8	CGI 02 – 9.3
V-10	0.0	17.8	0	9	0	0.6	0	CGI O2 – 17.7
V-11	0.0	16.3	0	62	0	1.5	1	CGI O2 – 16.5
V-12	0.0	20.5	0	0	0	0	0	CGI 02 – 20.7
V-13	0.0	9.3	0	>100	0	6.3	4.9	CGI O2 – 9.0
V-14	0.0	2.2	0	>100	0	15.7	18.6	CGI 02 – 2.0
V-15	0.0	4.2	0	>100	0	12.2	10.6	CGI O2 – 4.4
V-16	0.0	20.7	0	0	0	0	0	CGI O2 – 20.9
V-17	0.0	14.9	0	17	0	3	0.5	CGI 02 – 19.2
V-18	0.0	3.2	0	>100	0	19	23.5	CGI O2 – 3.4
PGV-1	0.0	20.2	0	0	0	0.2	0	CGI O2 – 21.7
PGV-2	0.0	19.3	0	0	0	1.4	0	CGI O2 19.5
PGV-3	0.0	20.2	0	0	0	0.6	0	CGI O2 – 20.3
PGV-4	0.0	20.2	0	0	0	0.2	0	CGI 02 – 21.7

CALIBRATION INFORMATION: Instrument: <u>PID, 10.6 eV lamp</u>

Results: 0.0/248 ppm isobutylene

Calibrated by: Michalak

Instrument: Industrial Scientific TMX 412 CGI Results: 53% LEL Methane/Pentane, 14%, 20.9% O₂, 26 ppm H₂S, 54 ppm CO Calibrated by: US Environmental Co

Instrument: Landtech Gem 500 GA-90 Results: 20.9% O2, 15% CO2, 15% CH4

INSPECTOR: Kullberg/Michalak	TITLE: Civil Engineer	DATE: <u>12/05/01</u>
------------------------------	-----------------------	-----------------------

ORGANIZATION: CENAE-EP WEATHER: Sunny, 60's.

BAROMETER: 29.9 in Hg TIME: 0900

BAROMETER: 29.8 in Hg TIME: 1200

Vent	VOC	O ₂	H ₂ S	LEL	CO	CO ₂	CH4	Remarks
No.	ppm PID	% GA-90	ppm CCI	CGI	ppm CGI	- % - CA-90	% GA-90	
V-1	0.0	20.8	0	0	0	0	04-20	CGLO2 = 21.0
V-2	0.0	15.2	0	03	0	47	24	CGLO2 - 15.0
V-3	0.0	10.3	0	>100	0	83	63	CGLO2 = 10.9
V-4	0.0	14.5	0	61	0	4.4	1 2	CGI O2 - 10.9
V-5	0.0	15.2	0	5	0	26	1.5	CCI O2 = 15.0
V-6	0.0	13.3	0	27	0	2.0	0.1	CGLO2 = 10.3
¥:0 ¥:3	0.0	14.0	0	3/	0	3.9	0.7	COLO2 = 15.1
V-/	0.0	10.4	0	51	0	2.4	0.7	C0102 - 16.5
V-8	0.0	14.8	0	<u> </u>	U	4.2	1.3	CGI 02 - 15.2
V-9	0.0	6.7	0	>100	0	10.2	9.2	CGI 02 - 10.2
V-10	0.0	13.8	0	55	0	4.1	1.4	CGI 02 – 14.4
V-11	0.0	14.7	0	69	0	3.4	2.5	CGI 02 – 15.1
V-12	0.0	1.2	0	>100	4	13.6	8.0	CGI 02 – 2.5
V-13	0.0	4.3	0	>100	1	10.1	11,3	CGI O2 – 7.0
V-14	0.0	1.6	0	>100	2	22.2	33.1	CGI O2 – 3.6
V-15	0.0	0.3	0	>100	0	22.9	23.4	CGI O2 – 2.1
V-16	0.0	0.4	0	68	1	19.7	12.5	CGI 02 – 2.3
V-17	0.0	2.2	0	>100	3	19.6	17.1	CGI 02 - 4.5
V-18	0.0	3.7	0	>100	0	21.7	29.1	CGI O2 – 6.1
PGV-1	0.0	20.9	0	0	0	0	0	CGI O2 – 20.9
PGV-2	0.0	20.3	0	0	0	0.8	0	CGI O2 – 20.6
PGV-3	0.0	20.7	0	0	0	0.3	0	CGI O2 – 20.8
PGV-4	0.0	20.8	0	0	0	0.1	0	CGI 02 – 20.9

CALIBRATION INFORMATION:

Instrument: PID, 10.6 eV lamp

Results: 0.0/248 ppm isobutylene

Calibrated by: Michalak

Instrument: Industrial Scientific TMX 412 CGI Results: 0.7% Pentane, 50% LEL, 14%/21% O₂, 29ppm H₂S, 50 ppm CO

Calibrated by: US Environmental Co

Instrument: Landtech Gem 500 GA-90 Results: 4% 02, 15% CO2, 15% CH4

Form to be completed in indelible ink	Monitoring is	Monitoring is to be performed annually				
INSPECTOR <u>: Kullberg/Michalak</u>	TITLE <u>: Civil Engineer</u>	DATE: <u>10/30-11/1/00</u>				
ORGANIZATION: CENAE-EP	WEATHER: 10/30 - Rainy.	<u>40's 11/1 – Sunny 50's</u>				

BAROMETER: 10/30 <u>754 mm Hg</u> TIME: 0900 BAROMETER: 11/1 759 mm Hg TIME: <u>0900</u> 757 mm Hg TIME: 1500 754 mm Hg TIME: 1200

Vent	VOC	O _z	H ₂ S	LEL	CO	CO ₂	CH4	Remarks
No.	ppm	%	ppm	%	Ppm	%	%	
	PID	GA-90	CGI	CGI	CGI	<u>GA-90</u>	GA-90	
V-1	0.0	8.3	0	0	0	9.5	1.0	10/30/00
V-2	0.0	21.0	0	0	0	2.6	1.3	<u>دد</u>
V-3	0.0	11.5	0	7	0	7.9	5.8	66
V-4	0.0	17.4	0	0	0	1.7	0.5	22
V-5	0.0	16.3	0	0	0	2.4	0	cc
V-6	0.4	11.6	0	4	0	7.2	3.1	EC
V-7	0.0	18.1	0	0	0	1.0	0	68
V-8	0.0	19.3	0	0	0	0.1	0	66
V-9	0.0	19.0	0	0	0	0.2	0	٢٢
V-10	0.0	19.1	0	0	0	0.2	0	c¢.
V-11	0.0	19.3	0	0	0	0.1	0	46
V-12	0.0	4.9	0	20	0	8.2	2.7	۰ <i>۵</i>
V-13	0.0	0.1	0	>100	0	14.5	19.1	11/1/00 Odor
V-14	0.0	0	0	>100	0	26.6	41.0	11/1/00 Odor
V-15	0.0	0.1	0	>100	0	26.6	27.7	11/1/00 Odor
V-16	30	0.5	0	68	0	21.8	14.6	11/1/00 Odor
V-17	40	0.1	0	>100	0	29.2	32.0	11/1/00 Odor
V-18	0.0	0.2	0	>100	0	30_	39.5	11/1/00 Odor

CALIBATION INFORMATION:

Instrument: PID, 10.6 eV lamp

Results: 0.0/248 ppm isobutylene Calibrated by: Kullberg

Instrument: Industrial Scientific TMX 412 CGI

Results: 0.7% Pentane, 50% LEL, 14%/ 21% O2, 29ppm H2S, 50 ppm CO

Calibrated by: US Environmental Co

Instrument: Landtech Gem 500 GA-90

Results: 4% O2, 15% CO2, 15% CH4

ţ

			TABLE 9		
Synopsis of I	FEDERAL	AND STATE	ARARS FOR	ALTERNATIVE SHL-2:	LIMITED ACTION

RECORD OF DECISION SHEPLEY'S HILL LANDFILL OPERABLE UNIT FORT DEVENS, MA

AUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	Action to be Taken to Attain Requirement
Federal Regulatory Authority	Floodplains	Floodplain Management Executive Order No. 11988, [40 CFR Part 6, App. A]	Applicable	Requires federal agencies to evaluate the potential adverse effects associated with direct and indirect development of a floodplain. Alternatives that involve modification/construction within a floodplain may not be selected unless a determination is made that no practicable alternative exists. If no practicable alternative exists, potential harm must be minimized and action taken to restore and preserve the natural and beneficial values of the floodplain.	To the extent that any activity associated with this alternative takes place in the floodplain, the activity will be altered to comply with the law.
	Wetlands	Protection of Wetlands Executive Order No. 11990	Applicable	Under this Order, federal agencies are required to minimize the destruction, loss, or degradation of wetlands, and preserve and enhance natural and beneficial values of wetlands. If remediation is required within wetland areas, and no practical alternative exists, potential harm must be minimized and action taken to restore natural and beneficial values.	To the extent that any activity associated with this alternative takes place in wetlands, the activity will be altered to comply with the law.
	<u> </u>		I		La

W0099518T/1

Page 1 of 9

(continued)

TABLE 9 Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Alternative SHL-2: Limited Action

Record of Decision Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit Fort Devens, MA

AUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC	REQUIREMENT	Stâtuŝ	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
	Surface Waters Endangered Species	Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act [16 USC 661 et seq.; 40 CFR Part 302]	Applicable	Actions which affect species/habitat require consultation with U.S. Department of the interior, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, and National Marine Fisherles Service, and/or state agencies, as appropriate, to ensure that proposed actions do not jeopardize the continued existence of the species or adversely modify or destroy critical habitat. The effects of water-related projects on fish and wildlife resources must be considered. Action must be taken to prevent, mitigate, or compensate for project-related damages or losses to fish and wildlife resources. Consultation with the responsible agency is also strongly recommended for on-site actions. Under 40 CFR Part 300.38, these requirements apply to all response activities under the NCP.	No off-site remedial actions performed for this alternative. On-site actions would be minimal and would include agency consultation prior to implementation.
	Endangered Species	Endangered Species Act [16 USC 1531 et seq.; 50 CFR Part 402]	Applicable	This act requires action to avoid Jeopardizing the continued existence of listed endangered or threatened species or modification of their habitat.	To minimize impact, landfill cover maintenance would be performed after nesting areas of the Grasshopper Sparrow have been identified.

W0099518T/2

(continued)

Table 9 Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Alternative SHL-2: Limited Action

RECORD OF DECISION SHEPLEY'S HILL LANDFILL OPERABLE UNIT FORT DEVENS, MA

"AUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC	REQUIREMENT	Status	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
State Regulatory Authority	Floodplains Wetlands	Massachusetts Wetland Protection Act and Regulations [MGL c. 131 s. 40; 310 CMR 10.00]	Applicable	Wetlands and land subject to flooding are protected under this Act and these regulations. Activities that will remove, dredge, fill, or alter protected areas (defined as areas within the 100-year floodplain) are subject to regulation and must file a Notice of Intent with the municipal conservation commission and obtain a Final Order of Conditions before proceeding with the activity. A Determination of Applicability or Notice of Intent must be filed for activities such as excavation within a 100 foot buffer zone. The regulations specifically prohibit loss of over 5,000 square feet of bordering vegetated wetland. Loss may be permitted with replication of any lost area within two growing seasons.	If remedial activities alter more than 5,000 square feet of protected area, the affected area will be restored within two growing seasons.
	Endangered Species	Massachusetts Endangered Species Act and implementing regulations [MGL c. 131A, s. 1 et seq.; 321 CMR 8.00]	Applicable	Actions must be conducted in a manner which minimizes the impact to Massachusetts listed endangered species and species listed by the Massachusetts Natural Heritage Program.	To minimize impacts, landfill cover maintenance would be performed after nesting areas of the Grasshopper Sparrow have been identified.

W0099518T/3
TABLE 9 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE SHL-2: LIMITED ACTION

RECORD OF DECISION SHEPLEY'S HILL LANDFILL OPERABLE UNIT FORT DEVENS, MA

.

1

ÂUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC	REQUIREMENT	STĂTUŠ	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
	Area of Critical Environmental Concern	Areas of Critical Environmental Concern [301 CMR 12.00]	Relevant and Appropriate	An Area of Critical Environmental Concern Is of regional, state, or national importance or contains significant ecological systems with critical inter-relationships among a number-of- components. An eligible area must contain features from four or more of the following groups: (1) fishery habitats; (2) coastal feature; (3) estuarine wetland; (4) inland wetland; (5) inland surface water; (6) water supply area (i.e., aquifer recharge area); (7) natural hazard area (i.e., floodplain); (8) agricultural area; (9) historical/archeo- logical resources; (10) habitat resource (i.e., for endangered wildlife; or (11) special use areas.	Activities must be controlled to minimize impacts to nesting areas of the Grasshopper Sparrow.
ـ					
Wo	099518T/4		Page 4 c	of 9	
)))

TABLE 9 Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Alternative SHL-2: Limited Action

RECORD OF DECISION SHEPLEY'S HILL LANDFILL OPERABLE UNIT FORT DEVENS, MA

AUTHORITY	CHEMICAL, MEDIUM	REQUIREMENT	ŠTATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN RECUIREMENT
Federal Regulatory Authority	Groundwater	Safe Drinking Water Act, National Primary Drinking Water Standards, MCLs [40 CFR Parts 141.11 - 141.16 and 141.50- 191.51]	Relevant and Appropriate	The National Primary Drinking Water Regulation establishes MCLs and non- zero Maximum Contaminant Level Goals for several common organic and inorganic contaminants. These MCLs specify the maximum permissible concentrations of contaminants in public drinking water supplies. MCLs are federally enforceable standards based in part on the availability and cost of treatment techniques.	MCLs will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative. If MCLs are exceeded, the remedy will be re-evaluated.
State Regulatory Authority	Surface water	Massachusetts Surface Water Quality Standards [314 CMR 4.00]	Applicable	Massachusetts Surface Water Quality Standards designate the most sensitive uses for which surface waters of the Commonwealth are to be enhanced, maintained and protected and designate minimum water quality criteria for sustaining the designated uses. Surface waters at Fort Devens are classified as Class B. Surface waters assigned to this class are designated as habitat for fish, other aquatic life and wildlife, and for primary and secondary contact recreation.	Discharges associated with remedial actions will be controlled/monitored to ensure that surface waters meet standards.

W0099518T/5

Page 5 of 9

• •

TABLE 9 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE SHL-2: LIMITED ACTION

. . .

Record of Decision Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit Fort Devens, MA

ÁUTHORITY.	CHEMICAL MEDIUM	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
	Groundwater	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards [314 CMR 6.00]	Applicable	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards designate and assign uses for which groundwaters of the Commonwealth shall be maintained and protected and set forth water quality criteria necessary to maintain the designated uses. Groundwater at Fort Devens is classified as Class I. Groundwaters assigned to this class are fresh groundwaters designated as a source of potable water supply.	MCLs will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative. If MCLs are exceeded, the remedy will be re-evaluated.
	Groundwater	Massachusetts Drinking Water Standards and Guidelines [310 CMR 22.00]	Relevant and Appropriate	The Massachusetts Drinking Water Standards and Guldelines list MMCLs which apply to water delivered to any user of a public water supply system as defined in 310 CMR 22.00. Private residential wells are not subject to the requirements of 310 CMR 22.00; however, the standards are often used to evaluate private residential contamination especially in CERCLA activities.	MMCLs will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative. If MMCLs are exceeded, the remedy will be re-evaluated.

W0099518T/6

Page 6 of 9

TABLE 9 Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Alternative SHL-2: Limited Action

RECORD OF DECISION SHEPLEY'S HILL LANDFILL OPERABLE UNIT FORT DEVENS, MA

AUTHORITY	Chemicál Medium	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
	Air	Massachusetts Ambient Air Quality Standards [310 CMR 6.00]	Relevant and Appropriate	Regulations specify primary and secondary ambient air quality standards to protect public health and welfare for certain pollutants	Amblent Air Quality Standards will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative. If standards are exceeded, the remedy will be re- evaluated.
	Air	Massachusetts Air Pollution Control Regulations [310 CMR 7.00]	Relevant and Appropriate	Regulations pertain to the prevention of emissions in excess of Massachusetts or national ambient air quality standards or in excess of emission limitations in those regulations.	Ambient Air Quality Standards will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative. If standards are exceeded, the remedy will be re- evaluated.

W0099518T/7

Page 7 of 9

Table 9 Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Alternative SHL-2: Limited Action

RECORD OF DECISION SHEPLEY'S HILL LANDFILL OPERABLE UNIT FORT DEVENS, MA

.

AUTHORITY	ACTION	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	Action to be Taken to Attain Requirement
Federal Regulatory Authority	Solid waste landfill construc- tion, operation, closure, and post-closure	Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) [Subtitle D, 40 CFR 258]	Relevant and Appropriate	RCRA Subtitle D regulates the generation, transport, storage, treatment, and disposal of solid wastes. Regulations at 40 CFR 258 govern preparedness and prevention, closure, and post-closure at municipal solid waste landfills.	Performance of this alternative will be evaluated to determine compliance with the substantive regulations. If the substantive regulations. If the substantive regulations are not met at the appropriate time, the remedy will be re-evaluated.
	Hazardous waste landfill construction, operation, closure, and post-closure	Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) [Subtitle C, 40 CFR 260,264]	Relevant and Appropriate	RCRA Subtitle C regulates the generation, transport, storage, treatment, and disposal of hazardous wastes. Regulations at 40 CFR 264 govern preparedness and prevention, closure, and post-closure at landfilis.	Performance of this alternative will be evaluated to determine compliance with the substantive requirements of federal hazardous waste regulations. If the substantive requirements are not met at the appropriate time, the remedy will be re-evaluated.
State Regulatory Authority	Solid waste landfill construction, operation, closure, and post-closure.	Massachusetts Solid Waste Management Regulations [310 CMR 19.000]	Applicable	These regulations outline the requirements for construction, operation, closure, and post-closure at solid waste management facilities in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.	This alternative includes components to meet closure and post-closure requirements at Shepley's Hill Landfill.

W0099518T/8

Page 8 of 9

TABLE 9 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE SHL-2: LIMITED ACTION

Record of Decision Shepley's Hill Landfill Operable Unit Fort Devens, MA

AUTHORITY	Action	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
	Hazardous waste landfill construction, operation, closure, and post-closure	Massachusetts Hazardous Waste Regulations [310 CMR 30.00]	Relevant and Appropriate	Regulates handling, storage, treatment, disposal, and record keeping at hazardous waste facilities.	Performance of this alternative will be evaluated to determine compliance with the substantive requirements of Massachusetts hazardous waste regulations. If the substantive requirements are not met at the appropriate time, the remedy will be re-evaluated.
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
	••• • **				
·					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
w	0099518T/9		P	age 9 of 9	

APPENDIX C

AOC 57



11.10194-1042107







D:\Devens\AOC57\45001009.dwg 06/11/02 08:35:44 AM

Table 3
Groundwater Analytical Results - December 22, 2003
AOC 57
Devens Massachusetts
(Sheet 1 of 3)

· · · ·

۳۹۹۹ کې د استان کې د

pr: . Nana, i ≥ . .

,

,

r () r 2007∓β, β 'γ s ⊾ Ezel k antongh kagarr⊶l u

ا د ا ریکی لارد

naa s Nexeti a J ·

i b

.

,

۲ د

.

Ì

PARAMETERS	Well No.	57M-03-01X	57M-03-02X	57M-03-03X	57M-DUP	57M-03-04X	57M-03-05X	57M-03-06X	57M-95-03X	57M-96-11X	57-AREA 2-SW2	57-AREA 2-SW3	57-AREA 3-SW1
(Analytical Method)	GW	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	µg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L
	STANDARD (1)												
VOLATILES (8260B)	ug/L												
Dichlorodifluoromethane	NS	50	5U	50	5U	5U	50	50	5U	50	5U	5U	50
Chloromethane	NS	50	5U	50	50	5U	50	50	50	50	5U	5U	50
Vinyl chloride	2	20	2U	20	20	2U	20	20	2Ū	20	2U	1.3 J	20
Chloroethane	NS	5U	5U	5U	50	5U	5U	5U	50	5U	5U	5U	50
Bromomethane	10	20	20	2U	20	20	2U	20	20	20	20	2U	2Ú
Trichlorofluoromethane	NS	20	20	2U	2U	20	2U	3	20	20	20	20	2U
Diethyl ether	NS	5U	<u>5U</u>	5Ų	5U	50	50	5U	<u>5</u> Ú	5U	5U	5U	50
Acetone	3,000	<u>10U</u>	10U	10U	100	100	10U	10U	<u>10</u> U	100	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ
1,1-Dichloroethene	7	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	<u>1</u> U	1U	10	10	10
Carbon disulfide	NS	<u>2U</u>	20	20	20	20	2U	2U	2U	20	20	20	20
Methylene chloride	5	5Ú	0.77 JB	0.69 JB	0.59 JB	0.56 JB	0.83 JB	0.84 JB	0.66 JB	0.81 JB	0.56 JB	0.71 JB	1.4 JB
Methyl tert-butyl ether	70	20	20	2U	2U	20	20	20	20	2U	20	2U	2U
trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	100	<u>2U</u>	20	2U	2U	20	20	20	20	20	20	20	20
1,1-Dichloroethane	70	20	20	2U	20	20	20	20	20	2U	2Ų	20	20
2-Butanone	350	10U	10U	10U	10U	100	100	10U	100	7.3 J	100	100	10U
2,2-Dichloropropane	NS	20	20	20	20	20	20	20	20	20	20	20	2U
cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	70	20	3.2	20	20	1.7 J	9,8	2U	20	0.85 J	2U	2.3	2U
Chloroform	NS	20	20	2U	20	20	2U	20	2U	20	20	2Ų	2U
Tetrahydrofuran	NS	<u>10U</u>	100	10U	10U	10U	100	100	100	10U	100	10U	10U
Bromochloromethane	NS	2U	20	2U	20	2U	2U	20	<u>2</u> U	20	20	20	2U
1,1,1-Trichloroethane	200	2U	20	20	2U	2U	20	2U	<u>2</u> U	20	2U	20	20
1,1-Dichloropropene	NS	20	20	20	2U	20	2U	20	2U	20	20	2U	20
Carbon tetrachlorice	5	20	2U	20	20	2U	20	2U	<u>2U</u>	2U	20	20	20
1,2-Dichloroethane	5	20	2U	20	20	20	2U	20	2U	20		20	20
Benzene	5	10	10	10	10	10	1	1ປ	<u>1U</u>	10	10	10	10
Trichloroethene	5	21	3.9	20	20	0.71 J	20	20	20	2U	20	0.56 J	20
1,2-Dichloropropane	5	2U	2U	20	20	2U	2U	20	20	2U	<u>2U</u>	20	20
Bromodichloromethane	5	20	20	<u>2U</u>	20	20	20	2U	20	20	20	20	20
Dibromomethane	NS	20	20	20	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	20	<u>2U</u>	20	20
4-Methyl-2-pentanone	350	<u> 10U </u>	<u> </u>	100	10U	100	100	100	10U	<u>10U</u>	100	<u>10U</u>	100
cis-1,3-Dichloropropene	11	10	10	10	10	1Ų	10	10	1U	<u> </u>	10	10	10

.

(1) - MCP Method 1 GW-1 Groundwater Standards

i de e e e file de la constante La constante de la constante de

U - Below laboratory reporting limit

J - Estimated concentration below laboratory reporting limit but above the MDL

UJ - Estimated reporting limit values due to low matrix spike recovery

B - Compound is detected in the sample and the associated method blank and equipment blank

Table 3
Groundwater Analytical Results - December 22, 2003
AOC 57
Devens Massachusetts
(Sheet 2 of 3)

l.

;

ا د د ۱۳۵۵ ۲۳۵ - د د ۹۵ ۱۳۵۹ ۲۶۵ و د ۲ ال از د مشاطط الورون د د د ۱۳۵۹ د ۱۳۵۰ د ۱۳۵۰ الورون د د د ۱۳۵۹

PARAMETERS	Welt No.	57M-03-01X	57M-03-02X	57M-03-03X	57M-DUP	57M-03-04X	57M-03-05X	57M-03-06X	57M-95-03X	57M-96-11X	57-AREA 2-SW2	57-AREA 2-SW3	57-AREA 3-SW1
(Analytical Method)	ĠŴ	μġ/L	μg/L	µg/L	μg/L	µg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L
	STANDARD (1)											
VOLATILES (8260B) cont'd	ug/L												
Toluene	1,000	20	0.64 J	20	2U	20	20	2U	0.73 J	4.5	20	2U	20
trans-1,3-Dichloropropene	1	1U	10	10	1U	10	10	1U	10	10	10	10	10
1,1,2-Trichloroethane	5	2U	2U	20	2Ų	20	20	20	2U	20	20	20	20
1,2-Dibromoethane	NS	2Ų	2U	20	2U	20	20	20	20	20	20	2U	20
2-Hexanone	NS	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	<u>10</u> UJ
1,3-Dichloropropane	NS	20	20	20	20		20	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20
Tetrachloroethene	5	20	4.1	2U	20	4.1	20	20	20	20	20	2U	20
Dibromochloromethane	5	20	2Ų	2U	2U	20	20	20	2U	20	2Ų	2U	2U
Chlorobenzene	100	2U	20	2U	20	20	1.8 J	20	20	2.8	20	0.5 J	<u>2</u> U
1,1,1,2-Tetrachicroethane	5	20	2U	2U	20	20	20	2U	20	20	2U	20	<u>2</u> U
Ethylbenzene	700	2U	20	20	20	20	26	20	3.6	2	20	2⊎	2U
m,p-Xylene	10,000	20	20	20	20	20	20	20	11	5	20	20	2Ư
o-Xylene	10,000	20	20	20	2U	2U	1.6 J	20	7.4	2.6	20	20	2U
Styrene	100	2U	20	20	2U	2U	20	2U	20	20	2U	20	2U
Bromoform	5	2U	20	20	2U	20	20	20	20	20	20	20	20
Isopropylbenzene	NS	2U	20	20	20	2U	0.85 J	20	1.4 J	0.66 J	20	20	2U
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane	2	2U	20	20	2U	25	20	2U	20	20	20	20	20
1,2,3-Trichloropropane	NS	20	20	20	2U	20	2U	20	2U	20	20	2U	20
Bromobenzene	NS	2U	20	20	2U	2U	2U	20	20	20	20	2U	2U
n-Propylbenzene	NS	2U	2U	20	20	20	1.3 J	20	2.6	1.5 J	20	2U	2U
2-Chlorotoluene	NS	20	20	2U	20	2U	20	20	2U	20	20	20	<u>2</u> U
4-Chlorotoluene	NS	20	20	20	20	2U	20	20	2U	20	2U	20	<u>2U</u>
1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene	NS	2Ư	20	20	20	20	20	20	14	4.3	20	2U	2U
tert-Butylbenzene	NS	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	20	2U	20	20	20	2U	20
1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene	N\$	20	20	2U	20	1.1 J	6.8	20	35	16	2U	2U	20
sec-Butylbenzene	NŞ	20	20	2Ų	20	0.73 J	1.1 J	2Ų	0.75 J	0.52 J	20	2U	20
4-Isopropyltoluene	NS	20	20	20	20	2U	20	2Ų	1.3 J	0.51 J	2U	2U	1.9 J
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600	20	20	20	20	2U	20	2ປ	2U	2Ų	2U	2U	_20
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5	2U	20	2U	20	2U	0.55 J	20	1,4 J	3.4	20	2U	20
n-Butylbenzene	NS	20	20	2U	20	2U	0.86 J	2ປ	2U	20	20	2U	20
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	0.52 J	20	2	8.8	2U	2U	20
1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane	NS	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	50	5U	5U	50	5U	50
1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene	70	2U	20	2U	2U	20	20	2U	2U	20	20	20	20
Hexachlorobutadiene	0.6	2U	2U	2U	20	<u>2U</u>	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U
Naphthalene	20	5U	1.1 J	5U	5U	50	1.5	5U	3.1 J	2.9 J	5U	5U	50
1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene	NS	2U	20	2U	2Ų	2U	20	ZU	2U	2U	20	2U	2U

(1) - MCP Method 1 GW-1 Groundwater Standards

U - Below laboratory reporting limit

J - Estimated concentration below laboratory reporting limit but above the MDL

UJ - Estimated reporting limit values due to low matrix spike recovery

e Pleas pe Gelera

:

.

pan y Igente a la

;

. 4. ı D

. .

•

Table 3 Groundwater Analytical Results - December 22, 2003 AQC 57 **Devens Massachusetts** (Sheet 3 of 3)

د ۲۳۵۹۹۹۹۹۲۹ ۲۰ ۱۰ ۱۰ ⊑ در چه ده پوروی استقلاب د با د کا د

د ۱ مرا م

PARAMETERS	Well No.	57M-03-01X	57M-03-02X	57M-03-03X	57M-DUP	57M-03-04X	57M-03-05X	57M-03-06X	57M-95-03X	57M-96-11X	57-AREA 2-SW2	57-AREA 2-SW3	57-AREA 3-SW1
(Analytical Method)	GW	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L
	STANDARD (1	<u>)</u>											
PCBs (8082)	ug/L												
Aroclor 1016	0.5	0.21 U	0.2 U	0.2 U	0.21 U	0.2 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.22 U
Aroclor 1221	0.5	0.21 U	0.2 U	0.2 U	0.21 U	0.2 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.22 U
Aroclor 1232	0.5	0.21 U	0.2 U	0.2 U	0.21 U	0.2 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.22 U
Aroclor 1242	0.5	0.21 U	0.2 U	0.2 U	0.21 U	0.2 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.22 U
Aroclor 1248	0.5	0.21 U	0.2 U	0.2 U	0.21 U	0.2 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.22 U
Aroclor 1254	0.5	0.21 U	0.2 U	0.2 U	0,21 U	0.2 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.22 U
Aroctor 1260	0.5	0.21 U	0.2 U	0.2 U	0.21 U	0.2 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.22 U

Metals (206.2, 213.2, 239.2)													
Arsenic	50	5U	4.2 J	5U	5U	41	22	5U	36	270	3.3 J	14	35
Cadmium	5	2U	0.31 J	2U	0.5 J	0.33 J	2U	0.28 J	1.1 J	20	0.33 J	2U	0.75 J
Lead	15	5U	50	5U	50	50	50	5U	5U	5U	5U	2.6 J	19. 124.1 1944-1

EPH (MADEP-EPH)													
C11-C22 Aromatics	200	87 U	86 U	88 U	88 U	88 U	- 88 U	88 U	87 U	91 U	88 U	88 U	92 U

(1) - MCP Method 1 GW-1 Groundwater Standards

U - Below laboratory reporting limit

.

.

2

can Guilte

.

J - Estimated concentration below laboratory reporting limit but above the MDL

Table 4-2a Groundwater and Surface WaterAnalytical Results May 19, 2004 AOC 57 Devens Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 3)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	57M-03-01X	57M-03-02X	57M-03-03X	57M-DUP	57M-03-04X	57M-03-05X	57M-03-06X	57M-95-03X	57M-96-11X	57-AREA 2-SW2	57-AREA 2-SW3	57-AREA 3-SW1
	GW STANDARD (1)	µg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	µg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L
VOLATILES (8260B)	ug/L												
Dichlorodifluoromethane	NS	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5ŲJ	5ŲJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ
Chloromethane	NS	2.7J	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ
Vinyl chloride	2	2U	20	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U
Chloroethane	NS	5U	5U	5U	5Ų	5U	5Ų	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U
Bromomethane	10	2U	2U	20	2Ų	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	2U
Trichlorofluoromethane	NS	2U	20	2J	20	20	2U	3.7	2U	20	2U	2U	2U
Diethyl ether	NŚ	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U
Acetone	3,000	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	4 J	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ
1,1-Dichloroethene	7	1U	1U	1U	1U	10	1U	1U	10	1U	10	1U	1U
Carbon disulfide	NS	20	2U	20	2U	20	20	20	20	20	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ
Methylene chloride	5	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U
Methyl tert-butyl ether	70	2U	2U	2U	20	20	2U	20	20	20	2U	2U	2U
trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	100	20	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	20	2U	20	2U	2U	2U
1,1-Dichloroethane	70	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	20	2U	2U
2-Butanone	350	10U	10U	10U	7.4 J	10U	10U	10U	100	7.3 J	100	10U	10U
2,2-Dichloropropane	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	2U
cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	70	0.71J	7.1	2U	1.5 J	7.3	4.3	2U	2U -	1.6 J	2U	2U	2U
Chloroform	NS	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	20	20	2U	2U	2U
Tetrahydrofuran	NS	10U	10U	10U	10U	10U	10U	10U	10U	10U	10U	10U	10U
Bromochloromethane	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U
1,1,1-Trichloroethane	200	2U	20	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	20
1,1-Dichloropropene	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	2U
Carbon tetrachloride	5	2U	20	2U	2U	20	2U	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	2U
1,2-Dichloroethane	5	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	20	, 2U	20	2U	20
Benzene	5	10	10	1U	10	10	1U	10	10	10	10	10	10
Trichloroethene	5	0.75J	4.3	20	20	2.2	20	20	20	0.52 J	20	2U	2U
1,2-Dichloropropane	5	2U	2U	20	20	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	<u> 2U</u>	2U	2U
Bromodichloromethane	5	2U	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	2UJ	2UJ	201
Dibromomethane	NS	2U	20	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	2U
4-Methyl-2-pentanone	350	100	10U	100	10U	100	10U	100	100	10U	10U	10U	10Ü
cis-1,3-Dichloropropene	1	10	10	1U	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	1U	10

(1) - MCP Method 1 GW-1 Groundwater Standards

U - Below laboratory reporting limit

J - Estimated concentration below laboratory reporting limit but above the MDL

Source wells: 57M-95-03X Sentry wells: 57M-96-11X

Table 4-2a Groundwater and Surface Water Analytical Results May 19, 2004 AOC 57 Devens Massachusetts (SHEET 2 of 3)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	57M-03-01X	57M-03-02X	57M-03-03X	57M-DUP	57M-03-04X	57M-03-05X	57M-03-06X	57M-95-03X	57M-96-11X	57-AREA 2-SW2	57-AREA 2-SW3	57-AREA 3-SW1
	GW												
	STANDARD (1)	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L
VOLATILES (8260B) cont'd	ug/L												
Toluene	1,000	2U	1.2 J	2U	8.9	2U	16	20	1.6 J	8.5	20	0.88 J	2U
trans-1,3-Dichloropropene	1	1U	10	10	1U	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10
1,1,2-Trichloroethane	5	20	20	20	20	2U	20	2U	20	2U	2U	20	20
1,2-Dibromoethane	NS	2U	2U	2U	20	20	2Ų	2Ų	2U	2U	20	20	2U
2-Hexanone	NS	100	100	10U	10U	10U	100	10U	100	10U	10U	100	10U
1,3-Dichloropropane	NS	2U	2U	2U	20	20	20	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U
Tetrachioroethene	5	20	2.3	2J	2U	3.4	20	20	0.82 J	20	20	2U	20
Dibromochloromethane	5	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	20	2U	2U	20	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ
Chlorobenzene	100	20	20	20	2.9	20	0.72 J	20	20	2.6	2U	20	2U
1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane	5	2U	2U	20	20	20	20	20	20	2U	20	20	2U
Ethylbenzene	700	2U	20	2U	3.6	20	26	20	7.5	3.4	2U	20	2U
m,p-Xylene	10,000	20	2U	2U.	5.3	2U	20	20	21	4.7	2U	20	2U
o-Xylene	10,000	2U	20	2U	3.1	2U	0.56 J	2Ų	15	2.8	20	2U	2U
Styrene	100	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	2Ų	2U	2U	20	20	2U
Bromoform	5	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ
Isopropylbenzene	NS	2U	2U	2U	1.2 J	2U	0.7 <mark>6 J</mark>	2U	2.6	1 J	2U	2U	2U
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane	2	20	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	20	20	2U	2U
1,2,3-Trichloropropane	NS	2Ų	2U	20	20	20	<u>2</u> U	2U	20	2U	20	20	20
Bromobenzene	NS	2U	2U	2U	20	1 20	20	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	20
n-Propylbenzene	NS	20	20	2U	2.3	20	1.5 J	2U	4	2.2	20	2U	2U
2-Chlorotoluene	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	20	20	20	2U	2U	2U
4-Chlorotoluene	NS	2U	20	2U	2U	20	20	20	20	20	20	2U	2U
1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene	NS	2U	2U	20	5.2	20	20	20	14	4.5	2U	2U	20
tert-Butylbenzene	NS	20	2U	20	2U	20	<u>2</u> U	20	2U	20	20	2U	2U
1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene	NS	2U	2U	2U	18	203	7.4	20	49	17	20	2U	20
sec-Butylbenzene	NS	2U	20	2U	0.7 J	20	1.1 J	20	1.1 J	0.59 J	20	2U	20
4-Isopropyitoluene	NS	2U	20	2U	0.64 J	20	1 J	20	1.1 J	0.61 J	20	2U	20
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600	20	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	j2U	20	20	2U
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5	2Ų	20	20	4.2	20	5U	2U	2.2	3.8	20	20	2U
n-Butylbenzene	NS	2U	20	2U	2U	20	1 J	2U	20	2U	20	2U	2U
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	20	2U	2U	10	0.6 J	0.89 J	20	3.3	9.9	2U	2U	20
1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane	NS	5U	5U	5U	5U	50	5U	5U	5U	5U	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ
1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene	70	2U	2Ų	2U	2U	20	2U	2U	20	20	2U	2U	20/
Hexachlorobutadiene	0.6	2U	20	2U	20	20	20	20	20	2Ų	2Ų	2U	2U
Naphthalene	20	5U	5U	50	5.3	50	2.6 J	50	5.5	5.3	5U	5U	5U
1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene	NS	2U	20	20	20	20	20	20	20	20	2U	20	2U

(1) - MCP Method 1 GW-1 Groundwater Standards

U - Below laboratory reporting limit

J - Estimated concentration below laboratory reporting limit but above the MDL

Source wells: 57M-95-03X Sentry wells: 57M-96-11X

Table 4-2a Groundwater and Surface Water Analytical Results May 19, 2004 AOC 57 Devens Massachusetts (SHEET 3 of 3)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	57M-03-01X	57M-03-02X	57M-03-03X	57M-DUP	57M-03-04X	57M-03-05X	57M-03-06X	57M-95-03X	57M-96-11X	57-AREA 2-SW2	57-AREA 2-SW3	57-AREA 3-SW1
	GW												
	STANDARD (1)	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L
PCBs (8082)	ug/L											l	
Aroclor 1016	0.5	0.24 U	0.24 U	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.22U	0.22U	0.21 U	0.22U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22UJ
Aroclor 1221	0.5	0.24 U	0.24 U	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.22U	0.22U	0.21 U	0.22U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22UJ
Aroclor 1232	0.5	0.24 U	0.24 U	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.22U	0.220	0.21 U	0.22U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22UJ
Aroclor 1242	0.5	0.24 U	0.24 U	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.22U	0.22U	0.21 U	0.22U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22UJ
Aroclor 1248	0.5	0.24 U	0.24 U	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.22U	0.22U	0.21 U	0.22U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22UJ
Aroclor 1254	0.5	0.24 U	0.24 U	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.22U	0.22U	0.21 U	0.22U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22UJ
Aroclor 1260	0.5	0.24 U	0.24 U	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.22U	0.22Ų	0.21 U	0.22U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22UJ
													·
Metals (206.2, 213.2, 239.2)		μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	µg/L	μg/L	µg/L	µg/L	µg/L	μg/L.	µg/L	µg/L	μg/L
Arsenic	50	5U	6.4 J	5U	240	30 J	21 J	50	44	210	4.4 J	8.1	3.1 J
Cadmium	5	0.3 J	0.65 J	0.55 J	0.5 J	0.31 J	0.47 J	0.5 J	0.6 J	0.32 J	0.42 J	0.51 J	0.59 J
lead	15	51.	0.88 J	50	5U	50	50	50	511	5U	50	50	50

EPH (MADEP-EPH)		µg/L	µg/L	μg/L	μg/L	µg/L	µg/L	µg/L	μg/L	µg/L	µg/L	µg/L	µg/L
C ₁₁ -C ₂₂ Aromatics	200	120U	120U	100U	1100	100U	110U	110U	110U	120U	110U	110U	110U

(1) - MCP Method 1 GW-1 Groundwater Standards

U - Below laboratory reporting limit

J - Estimated concentration below laboratory reporting limit but above the MDL

Exceeds MCP GW-1 Groundwater Standard

Table 4-2b Sump Water Analytical Results June 2, 2004 AOC 57 Devens Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 3)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	SUMP 1	SUMP 2	SUMP 3	SUMP 4
	GW STANDARD (1)	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L
VOLATILES (8260B)	ug/L	, -		, .	
Dichlorodifluoromethane	NS	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ
Chloromethane	NS	5U	5U	5U	50
Vinyl chloride	2	2U	2U	2U	2U
Chloroethane	NS	5U	5U	5U	5U
Bromomethane	10	2U	2U	2U	2U
Trichlorofluoromethane	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
Diethyl ether	NS	50	5U	5U	5U
Acetone	3,000	10U	10U	10U	10U
1,1-Dichloroethene	7	1U	1U	1U	1U
Carbon disulfide	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
Methylene chloride	5	5U	5U	5U	5U
Methyl tert-butyl ether	70	2U	2U	2U	2U
trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	100	2U	2U	2Ų	2U
1,1-Dichloroethane	70	2U	2U	2U	2U
2-Butanone	350	10U	10U	10U	10U
2,2-Dichloropropane	NŞ	2U	2U	2U	2U
cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	70	0.84 J	0.86 J	20	2U
Chloroform	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
Tetrahydrofuran	NS	10U	10U	10U	10U
Bromochloromethane	NS	2U	2U	2U	20
1,1,1-Trichloroethane	200	2U	2U	2U	2U
1,1-Dichloropropene	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
Carbon tetrachloride	5	2U	2U	2U	2U
1,2-Dichloroethane	5	2U	2U	2U	2U
Benzene	5	10	1U		1U
Trichloroethene	5	2U	2U	2U	2U
1,2-Dichloropropane	5	2U	2U	2U	2U
Bromodichloromethane	5	2U	2U	2U	2U
Dibromomethane	NS	2U	2U	2Ŭ	2U
4-Methyl-2-pentanone	350	10U	10U	10U	10U
cis-1,3-Dichloropropene	1	10	1U	1U	10

(1) - MCP Method 1 GW-1 Groundwater Standards

U - Below laboratory reporting limit

J - Estimated concentration below laboratory reporting limit but above the MDL

Table 4-2b Sump Water Analytical Results June 2, 2004 AOC 57 Devens Massachusetts (SHEET 2 of 3)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	SUMP 1	SUMP 2	SUMP 3	SUMP 4
	GW				
	STANDARD (1)	μg/L	ug/L	μα/L	μg/L
VOLATILES (8260B) cont'd	ug/L			10	
Toluene	1,000	2U	2U	2U	2U
trans-1,3-Dichloropropene	1	1U	1U	1U	1U
1,1,2-Trichloroethane	5	2U	2U	2U	2U
1,2-Dibromoethane	NS	2U	2U	20	2U
2-Hexanone	NS	10U	10U	10U	10U
1,3-Dichloropropane	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
Tetrachloroethene	5	0.57 J	0.58 J	2U	0.98 J
Dibromochloromethane	5	20	2U	2U	2U
Chlorobenzene	100	20	2U	2U	2U
1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane	5	2U	2U	2U	2U
Ethylbenzene	700	2U	2Ų	2U	2U
m,p-Xylene	10,000	2U	20	20	2U
o-Xylene	10,000	2U	2U	2U	2U
Styrene	100	20	2U	2U	2U
Bromoform	5	20	2U	2U	2Ų
Isopropylbenzene	NS	2U	2Ų	20	2U
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane	2	20	2U	2U	2U
1,2,3-Trichloropropane	NS	20	2U	2U	2U
Bromobenzene	NS	2U	2U	20	2U
n-Propylbenzene	NS	20	2U	2U	20
2-Chlorotoluene	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
4-Chlorotoluene	NS	20	2U	20	2U
1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene	NS	2∪	2U	2U	2U
tert-Butylbenzene	NS	2∪	2U	20	2U
1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
sec-Butylbenzene	NS	20	2U	20	2U
4-Isopropyltoluene	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600	20	2U	20	2U
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5	0.62 J	0.53 J	2U	2U
n-Butylbenzene	NS	20	2U	2U	2U
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	2U	2U	2U	2U
1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane	NS	5U	5U	5U	5U
1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene	70	20	2U	2U	2U
Hexachlorobutadiene	0.6	20	2Ų	2U	20
Naphthalene	20	5U	5U	5U	5U
1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U

(1) - MCP Method 1 GW-1 Groundwater Standards

U - Below laboratory reporting limit

J - Estimated concentration below laboratory reporting limit but above the MDL

Table 4-2b Sump Water Analytical Results June 2, 2004 AOC 57 Devens Massachusetts (SHEET 3 of 3)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	SUMP 1	SUMP 2	SUMP 3	SUMP 4
	GW				
	STANDARD (1)	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L
PCBs (8082)	ug/L	_			
Aroclor 1016	0.5	0.23 U	0.23 U	0.22U	0.23 U
Aroclor 1221	0.5	0.23 U	0.23 U	0.22U	0.23 U
Aroclor 1232	0.5	0.23 U	0.23 U	0.22U	0.23 U
Aroclor 1242	0.5	0.23 U	0.23 U	0.22U	0.23 U
Aroclor 1248	0.5	0.23 U	0.23 U	0.22U	0.23 U
Aroclor 1254	0.5	0.23 U	0.23 U	0.22U	0.23 U
Aroclor 1260	0.5	0.23 U	0.34	0.22U	0.23 U

Metals (206.2, 213.2, 239.2)		µg/L	µg/L	µg/L	µg/L
Arsenic	50	55	28	22	21
Cadmium	5	0.37 J	0.47 J	20	0.28 J
Lead	15	1.3 J	1.1 J	1.2 J	U.8 J

EPH (MADEP-EPH)		µg/L	μg/L	μg/L	µg/L
C ₁₁ -C ₂₂ Aromatics	200	120U	120U	110U	120U

(1) - MCP Method 1 GW-1 Groundwater Standards

U - Below laboratory reporting limit

J - Estimated concentration below laboratory reporting limit but above the MDL

25 Exceeds MCP GW-1 Groundwater Standard

Table 4-2 Groundwater Analytical Results - November 2004 AOC 57 Devens Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 6)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	57M-03-01X	57M-03-02X	57M-03-03X	57M-03-04X	57M-03-05X	57M-DUP	57M-03-06X	57M-95-03X	57M-96-11X	57-AREA 2-SW2	57-AREA 2-SW3	57-AREA 3-SW1
	GW	ua/L	ua/L	μα/L	μα/L	ua/L	ua/L	ua/L	uo/L	uo/L		ua/L	μα/L
	STANDARD (1)		<u> </u>		10			P.g. ··	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	
VOLATILES (8260B)		Í											1
Dichlorodifluoromethane	NS NS	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	50	5U	50U	5U	5U	50	5U
Chloromethane	NS	50	5U	5U	5U	5U	5Ú	50	50U	50	50	5U	50
Vinvi chloride	2	2U	0.62J	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	20U	2U	20	20	20
Chloroethane	NS	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	50U	5U	5U	5Ú	50
Bromomethane	10	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	20U	2U	20	2U	2U
Trichlorofluoromethane	NS	0.67J	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	0.8J	20U	2U	20	2U	20
Diethyl ether	NS	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	5U	50U	5U	5U	5U	50
Acetone	3,000	3.7J	4.5J	10U	10U	10U	10U	10U	100U	10U	10U	10Ú	10U
1,1-Dichloroethene	7	1U	1U	1Ų	1U	10	1U	1U	10U	10	10	1U	10
Carbon disulfide	NS	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20U	20	2U	2U	20
Methylene chloride	5	5U	5U	5U	5U	5Ų	5U	5U	50U	5U	5U	50	50
Methyl tert-butyl ether	70	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	20	20	20U	2U	2Ų	2U	20
trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	100	2U	2U	2U	20	20	20	2U	20U	20	2U	2Ų	2U
1,1-Dichloroethane	70	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	20U	20	2U	2U	2U
2-Butanone	350	100	10U	10U	10U	10U	10U	10U	100U	10U	10U	10U	10U
2,2-Dichloropropane	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	20	200	2U	2U	2U	2U
cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	70	2U	7.3	8,3	2.6	0.57J	0.57 J	2U	20U	1.3J	2U	2.3	2U
Chloroform	NS	2U	20	2Ų	2U	2U	20	2U	20U	2U	2Ų	2U	20
Tetrahydrofuran	NS	10U	10U	10U	100	10U	100	10U	100U	10U	10Ų	10Ų	10U
Bromochloromethane	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20U	2U	20	2U	2U
1,1,1-Trichloroethane	200	20	2U	2U	20	2U	20	2U	20U	2U	20	20	2U
1,1-Dichloropropene	NS	20	20	2U	2U	20	20	2U	20U	2U	20	2U	2U
Carbon tetrachloride	5	20	20	20	2Ų	2U	20	2U	20U	2U	20	2U	2U
1,2-Dichloroethane	5	20	20	2U	2Ų	20	20	20	20U	2U	20	20	2U
Benzene	5	10	10	10	10	10	1U	1Ų	10Ų	10	10	1U	1U
Trichloroethene	5	20	5.3	2.7	1,5J	2U	20	20	20U	2U	20	1.3 J	2U
1,2-Dichloropropane	5	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	20U	2U	2U	2U	2U
Bromodichloromethane	5	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	<u>2U</u>	2U	20U	2U	2U	2U	2U
Dibromomethane	NS	20	2U	2U	20	20	2Ų	2U	20U	2∪	2U	2U	2U
4-Methyl-2-pentanone	350	10U	10U	100	10U	10U	10U	10U	100U	10U	10U	10U	10U
cis-1,3-Dichloropropene	1	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10U	1U	10	10	1U

(1) MCP Method 1 GW-1 Groundwater Standards

U = Not detected at or above the Reporting Limit indicated.

J = Estimated concentration below laboratory reporting limit but above the MDL

Source wells: 57M-95-03X Sentry wells: 57M-96-11X

Table 4-2 Groundwater Analytical Results - November 2004 AOC 57 Devens Massachusetts (SHEET 2 of 6)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	57M-03-01X	57M-03-02X	57M-03-03X	57M-03-04X	57M-03-05X	57M-DUP	57M-03-06X	57M-95-03X	57M-96-11X	57-AREA 2-SW2	57-AREA 2-SW3	57-AREA 3-SW1
	GW	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μ g /L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L.	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L
	STANDARD (1)											
VOLATILES (8260B) cont'd	ug/L												
Toluene	1,000	2U	2U	2Ų	2U	2U	2U	2U	30	2.0J	2U	20	2U
trans-1,3-Dichloropropene	1	1U	10	10	1U	10	1U	1U	10U	1U	10	10	10
1,1,2-Trichloroethane	5	2U	2U	2U	2Ų	2U	2U	2U	20U	2U	20	2U	2U
1,2-Dibromoethane	NS	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20U	2U	21	2U	2Ų
2-Hexanone	NS	10ŪĴ	<u>10UJ</u>	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10ŲJ	100U	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ
1,3-Dichloropropane	N\$	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	20U	20	20	2Ų	20
Tetrachloroethene	5	20	2.7	2U	1.4J	2U	2Ų	20	20U	2U	2U	1.1 J	2U
Dibromochloromethane	5	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	20U	2U	2U	2U	2Ų
Chlorobenzene	100	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20U	2.6	2U	2U	20
1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane	5	20	20	2U	20	2U	2Ų	2U	200	2U	20	20	20
Ethylbenzene	700	2U	20	2U	20	0.55J	2U	20	140	2.1	2U	2U	2U
m,p-Xylene	10,000	2Ü	20	20	2U	2U	20	2U	200	1.4J	20	20	20
o-Xylene	10,000	2Ú	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	250	1.4J	2U	20	2U
Styrene	100	20	2U	2U	2U	20	20	20	20U	2U	2Ų	2U	20
Bromoform	5	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	20U	2ŲJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ
Isopropylbenzene	NS	2U	20	0.69J	1.1J	2U	2U	2U	27	0.86J	20	2U	2Ų
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane	2	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	20U	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ
1,2,3-Trichloropropane	NS	20	2U	20	2U	2Ų	2U	20	20U	2U	2U	20	2U
Bromobenzene	NS	20	20	2U	2U	20	2U	20	200	20	20	2U	20
n-Propylbenzene	NS	2U	20	0.59J	2U	2U	2U	20	55	<u>1.7J</u>	20	2U	20
2-Chlorotoluene	NS	20	20	2U	2U	20	2U	20	20U	20	20	2U	20
4-Chlorotoluene	NS	20	2U	20	2U	20	2U	20	20U	<u>2U</u>	20	20	20
1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene	NS	2Ų	20	2U	2Ų	20	2U	2U	140	0.75J	20	20	20
tert-Butylbenzene	NS	2U	20	2U	1.1J	2U	2U	20	<u>5.1J</u>	20	2U	20	20
1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene	NS	2U	2U	13	2U	2U	2U	20	640	6.6	20	20	20
sec-Butylbenzene	NŞ	20	20	2U	2.6	2U	2U	2U	<u>14</u> J	0.68J	20	20	2U
4-Isopropyltoluene	NS	2U	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	20	20	2U	2Ų
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600	2U	2U	<u>2U</u>	2U	2U	2Ų	20	20U	20	20	2U	2U
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5	2U	2Ų	2U	20	20	2U	2U	13J	2.4	2U	20	2U
n-Butylbenzene	NS	20	20	20	2U	20	20	2U	20U	20	2U	2U	2U
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	<u>2</u> U	2U	2U	2.4	2U	20	2U	27	4,8	2U	2U	2U
1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane	NS	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5U	50U	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ
1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene	70	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	20U	2U	2U	2U	2U
Hexachlorobutadiene	0.6	20	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	20U	20	2U	2U	2Ų
Naphthalene	20	5U	5U	5Ų	5U	5U	5U	5Ų	96	1.8J	5U	5Ų	5U
1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	2U	20U	2Ų	2U	2U	2U

(1) MCP Method 1 GW-1 Groundwater Standards

U = Not detected at or above the Reporting Limit indicated.

J = Estimated concentration below laboratory reporting limit but above the MDL

Source wells: 57M-95-03X Sentry wells: 57M-96-11X

PARAMETERS	Well No.	SUMP 1	SUMP 2	SUMP 3	SUMP 4
	GW	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L
	STANDARD (1)			
VOLATILES (8260B)	ug/L				
Dichlorodifluoromethane	NS	5U	50	5U	5U
Chloromethane	NS	5U	5U	5U	5U
Vinyl chloride	2	20	20	2U	0.55J
Chloroethane	NS	5U	5U	5U	5U
Bromomethane	10	2U	2U	2U	2U
Trichlorofluoromethane	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
Diethyl ether	NS	5U	5U	5U	5U
Acetone	3,000	2.8J	3.4J	3.6J	3J
1,1-Dichloroethene	7	1U	10	1U	1U
Carbon disulfide	NS	20	20	2U	2U
Methylene chloride	5	5U	5U	5U	5U
Methyl tert-butyl ether	70	2U	20	2U	2U
trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	100	2U	2U	2U	2U
1,1-Dichloroethane	70	2U	20	20	2U
2-Butanone	350	10U	10U	10U	10U
2,2-Dichloropropane	NS	20	2U	2U	2U
cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	70	0.63J	1.6J	1.1J	2.9J
Chloroform	NS	2U	20	2U	2U
Tetrahydrofuran	NS	10U	10U	10U	10U
Bromochloromethane	NS	20	20	2U	2U
1,1,1-Trichloroethane	200	2∪	20	2U	2U
1,1-Dichloropropene	NS	2U	20	2U	2U
Carbon tetrachloride	5	20	20	2U	2U
1,2-Dichloroethane	5	2U	20	2U	2U
Benzene	5	1U	10	1U	1U
Trichloroethene	5	2U	0.79J	0.76J	1.7J
1,2-Dichloropropane	5	2U	2U	2U	2U
Bromodichloromethane	5	2U	2U	2U	2U
Dibromomethane	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
4-Methyl-2-pentanone	350	10U	10U	10U	10U
cis-1,3-Dichloropropene	1	10	10	10	1U

(1) MCP Method 1 GW-1 Groundwater Standards

U = Not detected at or above the Reporting Limit indicated.

J = Estimated concentration below laboratory reporting limit but above the MDL

Table 4-2 SUMP Analytical Results - November 2004 AOC 57 Devens Massachusetts (SHEET 4 of 6)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	SUMP 1	SUMP 2	SUMP 3	SUMP 4
	GW	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L
	STANDARD (1))			
VOLATILES (8260B) cont'd	ug/L				
Toluene	1,000	2U	2U	2Ų	2U
trans-1,3-Dichloropropene	1	1U	1U	1U	10
1,1,2-Trichloroethane	5	2U	2U	20	2U
1,2-Dibromoethane	NS	20	2U	2U	20
2-Hexanone	NS	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ	10UJ
1,3-Dichloropropane	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
Tetrachloroethene	5	20	2U	2U	0.75J
Dibromochloromethane	5	20	2U	2Ų	2U
Chlorobenzene	100	20	2U	2U	2U
1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane	5	2U	2U	2U	2U
Ethylbenzene	700	2Ų	2U	2U	2U
m,p-Xylene	10,000	2U	2U	2U	2U
o-Xylene	10,000	2U	2U	2U	2U
Styrene	100	2U	2U	2U	20
Bromoform	5	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ
Isopropylbenzene	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane	2	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ	2UJ
1,2,3-Trichloropropane	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
Bromobenzene	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
n-Propylbenzene	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
2-Chlorotoluene	NS	20	2U	2U	2U
4-Chlorotoluene	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
tert-Butylbenzene	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene	NS	2U	2U	0.56J	20
sec-Butylbenzene	NS	2U =	2U	2U	2U
4-Isopropyltoluene	NS	2U	2U	2U	2U
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600	20	2U	2U	2U
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5	2U	20	20	20
n-Butylbenzene	NS	20	2U	2U	20
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	2U	2U	2U	20
1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane	NS	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ	5UJ
1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene	70	2U	2U	2U	2U
Hexachlorobutadiene	0.6	2U	2U	2U	2U
Naphthalene	20	5U	5U	5U	5U
1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene	NS	2U	2U	20	20

(1) MCP Method 1 GW-1 Groundwater Standards

U = Not detected at or above the Reporting Limit indicated.

J = Estimated concentration below laboratory reporting limit but above the MDL

Table 4-2 Groundwater Analytical Results - November 2004 AOC 57 Devens Massachusetts (SHEET 5 of 6)

Well No.	57M-03-01X	57M-03-02X	57M-03-03X	57M-03-04X	57M-03-05X	57M-DUP	57M-03-06X	57M-95-03X	57M-96-11X	57-AREA 2-SW2	57-AREA 2-SW3	57-AREA 3-SW1
GW	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L
STANDARD (1)											
ug/L				1			-					
0.5	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.22 U
0.5	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.22 U
0.5	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.22 U
0.5	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0,22 U	0,21 U	0.21 U	0,22 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.22 U
0.5	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.22 U
0.5	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.23 U	0.22 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.22 U
0.5	0,22 U	0,23 Ų	0.22 U	0.23 Ų	0,22 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.21 U	0.22 U	0.22 U	0.21 U	0.22 U
	GW GW 5TANDARD (1 ug/L 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5	weil No. 97/143-01A GW µg/L 0.5 0.22 U 0.5 0.22 U	weil No. Strindsduzk Strindsduzk GW µg/L µg/L µg/L 0.5 0.22 U 0.23 U 0.23 U 0.5 0.22 U 0.23 U 0.23 U	Weil No. By model VX By model VX	Wein No. Symedsatic Symedsate Symedsatis Symedsatic Symedsatis Symedsatic Symedsatis Symedsa	Weil No. Strikes-usx Strikes-usx	Weil No. STMP03-01X STMP03-02X STMP03-02	Wein No. STMP43-01X STMP43-02X STMP43-02	Wein No. STMPC3-01X STMPC3-02X STMPC3-02	Weight Symeosock S	Weight Symeosock S	Weight Symeostics Symmostics Symmostics<

Arsenic	50	5U	8,9	5U	50	19	17	5U	230	120	5U	46	4.9J
Cadmium	5	1J	2U	20	i 2U	20	2U	2U	2U	2U	20	2U	2Ų
Lead	15	5U	5U	50	50	5U	50	5U	<u>5</u> U	5U	5U	5U	0.81J

EPH (MADEP-EPH)													
C11-C22 Aromatics	200	110U	120Ų	110U ·	1200	100U	110U	110U	110U	100U	110U	110U	100U
FIELD PARAMETERS													
ORP (mv)		183,4	156,4	246,8	103.7	20,4	NA	348.1	-249.7	-93.4	NA	NA	NA
DO (mg/L)		8.19	2.87	0.32	1.62	0.26	NA	5.06	0.45	0.10	NA	NA	NA

(1) MCP Method 1 GW-1 Groundwater Standards

U = Not detected at or above the Reporting Limit Indicated.

J = Estimated concentration below laboratory reporting limit but above the MDL

ug/L = Micrograms per Liter

Table 4-2 SUMP Analytical Results - November 2004 AOC 57 Devens Massachusetts (SHEET 6 of 6)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	SUMP 1	SUMP 2	SUMP 3	SUMP 4
	GW	μg/L	μ g/L	μg/L	μg/L
	STANDARD (1)			
PCBs (8082)	ug/L				
Aroclor 1016	0.5	0.20 U	0.21 U	0.20 U	0.21 U
Aroclor 1221	0.5	0.20 U	0.21 U	0,20 U	0.21 U
Aroclor 1232	0.5	0.20 U	0.21 U	0.20 U	0.21 U
Aroclor 1242	0.5	0.20 U	0.21 U	0.20 U	0.21 U
Aroclor 1248	0.5	0.20 U	0.21 U	0,20 U	0.21 U
Aroclor 1254	0.5	0.20 U	0.21 U	0.20 U	0.21 U
Aroclor 1260	0.5	0.20 U	0,21 U	0.20 U	0.21 U

Metals (206.2, 213.2, 239.2)					
Arsenic	50	7.8	24	25	62
Cadmium	5	2U	20	0.36J	20
Lead	15	5U	5U	5U	1.4J

EPH (MADEP-EPH)					
C ₁₁ -C ₂₂ Aromatics	200	100U	100U	100Ų	110U

.

(1) MCP Method 1 GW-1 Groundwater Standards

U = Not detected at or above the Reporting Limit indicated.

J = Estimated concentration below laboratory reporting limit but above the MDL

ug/L = Micrograms per Liter

TABLE 14 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE LOCATION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE II-3

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Federal	Floodplains	Floodplain Management Executive Order 11988 [40 CFR Part 6, Appendix A]	Applicable	Requires federal agencies to evaluate the potential adverse effects associated with direct and indirect development of a floodplain. Alternatives that involve modification/construction within a floodplain may not be selected unless a determination is made that no practicable alternative exists. If no practicable alternative exists, potential harm must be minimized and action taken to restore and preserve the natural and beneficial values of the floodplain.	Contaminated soil removal will be designed to minimize alternation/destruction of the floodplain area. If this alternative is chosen, floodplains affected by Remedial Investigation will be restored to original elevations.
	Wetlands	Protection of Wetlands Executive Order 11990 [40 CFR Part 6, Appendix A]	Applicable	Under this Order, federal agencies are required to minimize the destruction, loss, or degradation of wetlands, and preserve and enhance natural and beneficial values of wetlands. If remediation is required within wetland areas, and no practical alternative exists, potential harm must be minimized and action taken to restore natural and beneficial values.	Contaminated soil removal will be designed to minimize alternative/destruction of the wetlands. If this alternative is chosen, the wetlands will be restored.
	Wetlands, Aquatic Ecosystem	Clean Water Act, Dredge or Fill Requirements Section 404 [40 CFR Part 230]	Relevant and Appropriate	Section 404 of the CWA regulates the discharge of dredged or fill materials to U.S. waters, including wetlands. Filling wetlands would be considered a	The removal of soil will be designed for eventual restoration. A Massachusetts PGP (granted by USACE) is typically required prior to excavating/restoring

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

TABLE 14 (continued) SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE LOCATION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE II-3

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	Location Characteristic	REQUIREMENT	Status	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	Action To Be Taken To Attain Requirement
				discharge of fill materials. Guidelines for Specification of Disposal Sites for Dredged or Fill material at 40 CFR Part 230, promulgated under CWA Section 404(b)(1), maintain that no discharge of dredged or fill material will be permitted if there is a practical alternative that would have less effect on the aquatic ecosystem. If adverse impacts are unavoidable, action must be taken to restore, or create alternative wetlands.	any sediment. The substantive portions of the permit would potentially be required.
	Surface Waters, Endangered Species, Migratory Species	Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act [16 USC 661 <u>et seq</u> .]	Relevant and Appropriate	Actions that affect species/habitat require consultation with USDOI, USFWS, NMFS, and/or state agencies, as appropriate, to ensure that proposed actions do not jeopardize the continued existence of the species or adversely modify or destroy critical habitat. The effects of water-related projects on fish and wildlife resources must be considered. Action must be taken to prevent, mitigate, or compensate for project-related damages or losses to fish and wildlife resources. Consultation with the responsible agency is also strongly recommended for on-site actions. Under 40 CFR Part 300.38, these	To the extent necessary, actions will be taken to develop measures to prevent, mitigate, or compensate for project related impacts to habitat and wildlife. The USFWS, will be kept informed of proposed Remedial Investigations.

and a second state of the second state of the

alan baratan karatan dari dari baratan karat

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

TABLE 14 (continued) SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE LOCATION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE II-3

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC	REQUIREMENT	Status	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
				requirements apply to all response activities under the NCP.	
	Endangered Species	Endangered Species Endangered Species Act R [50 CFR Parts 17.11-17.12] A		This act requires action to avoid jeopardizing the continued existence of listed endangered or threatened species or modification of their habitat.	According to the RI report, no endangered federally- listed species have been identified within one mile of the AOC 57. However, protection of endangered species and their habitat will be considered as part of the design and excavation activities.
	Atlantic Flyway, Wetlands, Surface Waters	Migratory Bird Treaty Act [16 USC 703 <u>et seq</u> .]	Relevant and Appropriate	The Migratory Bird Treaty Act protects migratory birds, their nests, and eggs. A depredation permit is required to take, possess, or transport migratory birds or disturb their nests, eggs, or young.	Remedial Investigations will be performed to protect migratory birds, their nests, and eggs.
State	Floodplains, Wetlands, Surface Waters	Massachusetts Wetland Protection Regulations [310 CMR 10.00]	Applicable	These regulations include standards on dredging, filling, altering, or polluting inland wetlands and protected areas (defined as areas within the 100-year floodplain). A NOI must be filed with the municipal conservation commission and a Final Order of Conditions obtained before proceeding with the activity. A Determination of Applicability or NOI must be filed for activities such as excavation within a 100 foot buffer zone. The regulations specifically prohibit loss of over 5,000	All work to be performed within wetlands and the 100 foot buffer zone will be in accordance with the substantive requirements of these regulations.

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Detailed_ARAR_tables.doc

TABLE 14 (continued) SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE LOCATION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE II-3

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC	REQUIREMENT	Status	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	Action To Be Taken To Attain Requirement
				square feet of bordering vegetated wetland. Loss may be permitted with replication of any lost area within two growing seasons.	
	Endangered Species	Massachusetts Endangered Species Regulations [321 CMR 8.00]	Applicable	Actions must be conducted in a manner that minimizes the impact to Massachusetts-listed rare, threatened, or endangered species, and species listed by the Massachusetts Natural Hearing Program.	The RI report identified several state-listed rare, threatened, or endangered species occurring within one mile of AOC 57. The protection of state listed endangered species will be considered during the design and implementation of this alternative.

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes:

- AOC = Area of contamination
- ARAR = Area of Contamination
- CFR = Code of Federal Regulations
- CMR = Code of Massachusetts Regulations
- CWA = Clean Water Act
- USDOI = U.S. Department of the Interior
- USFWS = U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
- NCP = National Contingency Plan
- NMFS = National Maine Fisheries Service
- NOI = Notice of Intent
- PGP = Programatic General Permit
- RI = Remedial Investigation
- USACE = U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
- USEPA = U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
- USC = United Sees Code

TABLE 15 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE CHEMICAL-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE II-3

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	CHEMICAL MEDIUM	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Federal	Groundwater	Safe Drinking Water Act, National Primary Drinking Water Regulations, MCLs and MCLGs [40 CFR Parts 141.60 - 141.63 and 141.50 - 141.52]	Relevant and Appropriate	The National Primary Drinking Water Regulations establish MCLs and MCLGs for several common organic and inorganic contaminants. MCLs specify the maximum permissible concentrations of contaminants in public drinking water supplies. MCLs are federally enforceable standards based in part on the availability and cost of treatment techniques. MCLGs specify the maximum concentration at which no known or anticipated adverse effect on humans will occur. MCLGs are non-enforceable health based goals set equal to or lower than MCLs.	The MCLs for arsenic and PCE will likely be met through natural attenuation processes. Monitoring would be performed to measure changes in contaminant concentrations or migration; therefore attainment of groundwater ARARs would eventually be confirmed at the two locations (57M-95-04A and 57P-98-02X), where MCL exceedances were detected.
State	Groundwater	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards [314 CMR 6.00]	Relevant and Appropriate	These standards designate and assign uses for which groundwaters of the Commonwealth shall be maintained and protected, and set forth water quality criteria necessary to maintain the designated uses. Groundwater at Fort Devens is classified as Class I, fresh groundwaters designated as a source of potable water supply.	314 CMR 6.00 would be met by achieving MMCLs for arsenic and PCE. The MMCLs for arsenic and PCE will likely be met through natural attenuation processes. Monitoring would be performed to measure changes in contaminant concentrations or migration; therefore attainment of groundwater MMCLs would eventually be confirmed at the two locations (57M-95-04A and 57P-98-02X).
	Groundwater	Massachusetts Drinking	Relevant and	These regulations list MMCLs which	As previously stated, Devens

والزي وزود كالعدادة مكان متعاقبات فالأخاذ والمتحد والمحادث والمحاصر والمحا

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

TABLE 15 (continued) SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE CHEMICAL-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE II-3

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	CHEMICAL MEDIUM	REQUIREMENT	Status	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
		Water Regulations [310 CMR 22.00]	Appropriate	apply to drinking water distributed through a public water system.	Groundwater is classified as Class I, and designated as a source of potable water supply. AOC 57 is currently not within a Zone I or II/Interim Wellhead Protection Area. An AUL would be established at Area 2 until the environmental monitoring program indicates that MMCLs have been achieved for at least three years.

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes:

- AOC = Area of contamination
- ARARs = Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements
- CFR = Code of Federal Regulations
- CMR = Code of Massachusetts Rules
- MCL = Maximum Contaminant Level
- MCLG = Maximum Contaminant Level Goal
- MMCL = Massachusetts Maximum Contaminant Level
- PCE = Tetrachloroethylene

TABLE 16 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ACTION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE II-3

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	ACTION	REQUIREMENT	Status	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Federal	Control of surface water runoff, Direct discharge to surface water	Clean Water Act NPDES Permit Program [40 CFR 122, 125]	Relevant and Appropriate	The NPDES permit program specifies the permissible concentration or level of contaminants in the discharge from any point source, including surface runoff, to water of the United States.	Construction activities will be controlled to meet USEPA discharge requirements. Water collected from dewatering and stockpile activities will be collected and treated offsite or discharged to the Devens WWTP. Any on-site runoff discharges (though none expected) will meet the substantive requirements of these regulations.
	Discharge to Devens Treatment Plant	CWA, General Pretreatment Program (40 CFR Part 403)	Applicable	Discharge of nondomestic wastewater to WWTP must comply with the general prohibitions of this regulation, as well as categorical standards, and local pretreatment standards.	Discharge to Devens WWTP would be sampled to evaluate compliance with pre-treatment standards.
	Groundwater	USEPA OWSER Publication 9345.3-03FS, January 1992	To Be Considered	Management of IDW must ensure protection of human health and the environment.	IDW produced from well sampling will comply with ARARs.
	RCRA- Identification and Listing of Hazardous Wastes	Toxicity Characteristics (40 CFR 261.24)	Applicable	Defines those wastes that are subject to regulations as hazardous wastes under 40 CFR Parts 124 and 264.	Soil/sediment analytical results will be evaluated against the criteria and definitions of hazardous waste. The criteria and definition of hazardous waste will be referred to and utilized in development of the Remedial

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

TABLE 16 (continued) SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ACTION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE II-3

REGULATORY					ACTION TO BE TAKEN
AUTHORITY	ACTION	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
	Disposal of soil that contains hazardous waste	RCRA, Land Disposal Restrictions (40 CFR 268)	Applicable	Land disposal of RCRA hazardous wastes without specified treatment is restricted. LDRs require that such wastes must be treated either by a treatment technology or to a specific concentration prior to disposal in a RCRA Subtitle C permitted facility.	Investigation. Waste materials from Area 2 will be evaluated to determine whether the waste is subject to LDRs. If so, the materials will be treated in accordance with LDRs prior to disposal at an off- base facility.
	Management of PCB- contaminated soil	TSCA (40 CFR Part 761 Subpart G) PCB Spill Cleanup Policy	To be considered	This policy governs the cleanup of PCB spills occurring after May 4, 1987. Because this policy is not a regulation and only applies to recent spills (reported within 24 hours of occurrence), these requirements arc not applicable, but will be considered.	This policy would only be considered during the development of Remedial Investigation for areas with expected detected PCBs at concentrations greater than or equal to 50 ppm. The highest concentration of PCBs in soil was detected during the RI at 12 ppm.
	Management of PCB- contaminated soil	TSCA (40 CFR Part 761 Subpart D) Storage and Disposal	Relevant and Appropriate	This regulation governs the storage and final disposal of PCBs. The regulation also specifies procedures to be followed in decontaminating containers and moveable equipment used in storage areas. Section 761.61 pertains to PCB remediation wastes and provides self-implementing on- site cleanup and disposal requirements. Per Section 761.61, the self-implementing cleanup provisions are not binding for cleanups	Section 761.61 cleanup levels for low and high occupancy areas are [] 1 ppm, respectively. RI calculated RBCs for Aroclor – 1260 are more conservative and will be used as PRGs at AOC 57. Off-site storage, disposal and decontamination requirements specified in this regulation will be applied for soil or sediment containing PCBs.

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Detailed_ARAR_tables.doc

TABLE 16 (continued) SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ACTION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE II-3

REGULATORY					ACTION TO BE TAKEN
AUTHORITY	ACTION	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
				conducted under CERCLA.	
State	Hazardous Waste	Hazardous Waste Management Systems; (RCRA 40 CFR 260)	Relevant and Appropriate	USEPA procedures for making information available to the public; rules for claims of business confidentially.	Does not address cleanup requirements. However, these procedures will be followed when dealing with hazardous waste.
	Hazardous Waste	Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Treatment, Storage and Disposal Facilities (RCRA 40 CFR 264)	Relevant and Appropriate	Define requirements for RCRA facility operations and management including impoundments, waste piles, land treatment, landfills, incinerators, storage, closure and post closure.	Operations, management and safety requirements in effect for all portions of remedial process, if hazardous waste is being handled.
	Hazardous Waste	RCRA 40 CFR Part 262, Standards Applicable to Generators of Hazardous Waste	Relevant and Appropriate	These regulations establish standards for generators of hazardous waste. RCRA Subtitle C established standards applicable to treatment, storage, and disposal of hazardous waste and closure of hazardous waste facilities.	Sediments will be tested to determine whether they contain characteristic hazardous waste. If so, management of the hazardous waste would comply with substantive requirements of these regulations.
	Hazardous Waste	Massachusetts Hazardous Waste Management Rules; 310 CMR 30.000	Relevant and Appropriate	These rules set forth Massachusetts definitions and criteria for establishing whether waste materials are hazardous and subject to associated hazardous waste regulations.	These regulations supplement RCRA requirements. Those criteria and definitions more stringent than RCRA take precedence over federal requirements.
	Activities that potentially affect surface water quality	Massachusetts Water Quality Certification and Certification for Dredging [314 CMR 9.00]	Relevant and Appropriate	A Massachusetts Division of Water Pollution Control Water Quality Certification is required pursuant to 314 CMR 9.00 for dredging-related	Excavation and filling activities will meet the substantive criteria and standards of these regulations. Remedial activities will be designed to

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Detailed_ARAR_tables.doc

TABLE 16 (continued) SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ACTION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE II-3

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	ACTION	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
				activities in waters (including wetlands) within the Commonwealth which require federal licenses or permits and which are subject to state water quality certification.	attain and maintain Massachusetts Water Quality Standards in affected waters.
	Activities that affect ambient air quality	Massachusetts Air Pollution Control Regulations [310 CMR 7.00]	Applicable	These regulations pertain to the prevention of emissions in excess of Massachusetts ambient air quality standards.	Remedial activities will be conducted to meet the standards for Visible Emissions (310 CMR 7.06); Dust, Odor, Construction and Demolition (310 CMR 7.09); Noise (310 CMR 7.10); and Volatile Organic Compounds (310 CMR 7.18).

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes:

- ARARs = Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements
- CFR = Code of Federal Regulations
- CMR = Code of Massachusetts Regulations
- CWA = Clean Water Act
- IDW = Investigation derived waste
- LDR = Land Disposal Restrictions
- NPDES = National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
- RCBs = Risk-based concentrations
- RCRA = Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
- RI = Remedial Investigation
- TSCA = Toxic Substances Control Act
- PCB = Polychlorinated biphenyls
- PRGs = preliminary remediation goals
- USEPA = U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
- WWTP = Wastewater Treatment Plant
TABLE 17 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE LOCATION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE III-2A

REGULATORY					ACTION TO BE TAKEN
AUTHORITY	ACTION	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Federal	Floodplains	Floodplain Management Executive Order 11988 [40 CFR Part 6, Appendix A]	Applicable	Requires federal agencies to evaluate the potential adverse effects associated with direct and indirect development of a floodplain. Alternatives that involve modification/construction within a floodplain may not be selected unless a determination is made that no practicable alternative exists. If no practicable alternative exists, potential harm must be minimized and action taken to restore and preserve the natural and beneficial values of the floodplain.	Contaminated soil removal will be designed to minimize alteration/destruction of the floodplain area. If this alternative is chosen, floodplains affected by Remedial Investigation will be restored to original elevations.
	Wetlands Executive Order 11990 [40 CFR Part 6, Appendix A]		Applicable	Under this Order, federal agencies are required to minimize the destruction, loss, or degradation of wetlands, and preserve and enhance natural and beneficial values of wetlands. If remediation is required within wetland areas, and no practical alternative exists, potential harm must be minimized and action taken to restore natural and beneficial values.	Contaminated soil removal will be designed to minimize alteration/destruction of the wetlands. If this alternative is chosen, the wetlands will be restored.
	Wetlands, Aquatic Ecosystem	Clean Water Act, Dredge or Fill Requirements Section 404	Relevant and Appropriate	Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (CWA) regulates the discharge of dredged or fill materials to U.S.	The removal of soil will be designed for eventual restoration. A Massachusetts PGP (granted by USACE) is typically

ار و این از این در این در این **کار ک**رد در این در این در این می میرود در این میرود در این در این در این در این ا

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Detailed_ARAR_tables.doc

REGULATORY					ACTION TO BE TAKEN
AUTHORITY	ACTION	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
		[40 CFR Part 230]		waters, including wetlands. Filling wetlands would be considered a discharge of fill materials. Guidelines for Specification of Disposal Sites for Dredged or Fill material at 40 CFR Part 230, promulgated under CWA Section 404(b)(1), maintain that no discharge of dredged or fill material will be permitted if there is a practical alternative that would have less effect on the aquatic ecosystem. If adverse impacts are unavoidable, action must be taken to restore, or create alternative wetlands.	required prior to excavating/ restoring any sediment. The substantive portions of the permit would potentially be required.
	Surface Waters, Endangered Species, Migratory Species	Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act [16 USC 661 <u>et seq</u> .]	Relevant and Appropriate	Actions that affect species/habitat require consultation with USDOI, USFWS, NMFS, and/or state agencies, as appropriate, to ensure that proposed actions do not jcopardize the continued existence of the species or adversely modify or destroy critical habitat. The effects of water-related projects on fish and wildlife resources must be considered. Action must be taken to prevent, mitigate, or compensate for project-related damages or losses to fish and wildlife resources.	To the extent necessary, actions will be taken to develop measures to prevent, mitigate, or compensate for project related impacts to habitat and wildlife. The USFWS, acting as a review agency for the USEPA, will be kept informed of proposed Remedial Investigations.

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Detailed_ARAR_tables.doc

09/07/01

REGULATORY					ACTION TO BE TAKEN
AUTHORITY	ACTION	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
				Consultation with the responsible agency is also strongly recommended for on-site actions. Under 40 CFR Part 300.38, these requirements apply to all response activities under the NCP.	
	Endangered Species	Endangered Species Act [50 CFR Parts 17.11- 17.12]	Relevant and Appropriate	This act requires action to avoid jeopardizing the continued existence of listed endangered or threatened species or modification of their habitat.	According to the RI report, no endangered federally-listed species have been identified within one mile of the AOC 57. However, protection of endangered species and their habitat will be considered as part of the design and excavation activities.
	Atlantic Flyway, Wetlands, Surface Waters	Migratory Bird Treaty Act [16 USC 703 <u>et seq</u> .]	Relevant and Appropriate	The Migratory Bird Treaty Act protects migratory birds, their nests, and eggs. A depredation permit is required to take, possess, or transport migratory birds or disturb their nests, eggs, or young.	Remedial Investigations will be performed to protect migratory birds, their nests, and eggs.
State	Floodplains, Wetlands, Surface Waters	Massachusetts Wetland Protection Regulations [310 CMR 10.00]	Applicable	These regulations include standards on dredging, filling, altering, or polluting inland wetlands and protected areas (defined as areas within the 100-year flood plain). A NOI must be filed with the municipal conservation commission and a Final Order of	All work to be performed within wetlands and the 100-foot buffer zone will be in accordance with the substantive requirements of these regulations.

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	ACTION	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	Requirement Synopsis	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
				Conditions obtained before proceeding with the activity. A Determination of Applicability or NOI must be filed for activities such as excavation within a 100-foot buffer zone. The regulations specifically prohibit loss of over 5,000 square feet of bordering vegetated wetland. Loss may be permitted with replication of any lost area within two growing seasons.	
	Endangered Species	Massachusetts Endangered Species Regulations [321 CMR 8.00]	Applicable	Actions must be conducted in a manner that minimizes the impact to Massachusetts-listed rare, threatened, or endangered species, and species listed by the Massachusetts Natural Heritage Program.	The RI report identified several state- listed rare, threatened, or endangered species occurring within one mile of AOC 57. The protection of state listed endangered species will be considered during the design and implementation of this alternative.

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes:

- AOC = Area of contamination
- ARAR = Area of Contamination
- CFR = Code of Federal Regulations
- CMR = Code of Massachusetts Regulations
- CWA = Clean Water Act
- USDOI = U.S. Department of the Interior
- USFWS = U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
- NCP = National Contingency Plan
- NMFS = National Maine Fisheries Service

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

NOI = Notice of Intent

PGP = Programatic General Permit

RI = Remedial Investigation

USACE = U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

USEPA = U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

USC = United States Code

TABLE 18 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE CHEMICAL-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVES III-2A

REGULATORY	CHEMICAL				ACTION TO BE TAKEN
AUTHORITY	Medium	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Federal	Groundwater	Safe Drinking Water Act, National Primary Drinking Water Regulations, MCLs and MCLGs [40 CFR Parts 141.60 - 141.63 and 141.50 - 141.52]	Relevant and Appropriate	The National Primary Drinking Water Regulations establish Maximum Containment Levels (MCLs) and Maximum Containment Level Goals (MCLGs) for several common organic and inorganic contaminants. MCLs specify the maximum permissible concentrations of contaminants in public drinking water supplies. MCLs are federally enforceable standards based in part on the availability and cost of treatment techniques. MCLGs specify the maximum concentration at which no known or anticipated adverse effect on humans will occur. MCLGs are non-enforceable health based goals set equal to or lower than MCLs.	The MCLs for arsenic, cadmium, tetrachloroethene (PCE), and 1,4- dichlorobenzene will likely be met through natural attenuation processes. Monitoring would be performed to measure changes in contaminant concentrations or migration; therefore attainment of groundwater ARARs would eventually be confirmed at the two locations (57M-95-03X and 57M- 96-11X), where MCL exceedances were detected.
State	Groundwater	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards [314 CMR 6.00]	Relevant and Appropriate	These standards designate and assign uses for which groundwaters of the commonwealth shall be maintained and protected, and set forth water quality criteria necessary to maintain the designated users. Groundwater at Fort Devens is classified as Class I, fresh groundwaters designated as a	314 CMR 6.00 would be met by achieving MMCLs for arsenic, cadmium, PCE, and 1,4- dichlorobenzene. The MMCLs will likely be met through natural attenuation processes. Monitoring would be performed to measure changes in contaminant concentrations or

en sen en se

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	CHEMICAL MEDIUM	REQUIREMENT	Status	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
				source of potable water supply.	migration; therefore attainment of groundwater MMCLs would eventually be confirmed at the two locations (57M-95-03X and 57M-96- 11X).
	Groundwater	Massachusetts Drinking Water Regulations [310 CMR 22.00]	Relevant and Appropriate	These regulations list Massachusetts MCLs applicable to drinking water distributed through a public water system.	As previously stated, Devens groundwater is classified as Class 1, and designated as a source of potable water supply. AOC 57 is currently not within a Zone I or II/Interim Wellhead Protection Area. An AUL would be established at Area 3 until the environmental monitoring program indicates that MMCLs have been achieved for at least three years.

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes:

- AOCs = Area of Contamination
- ARARs = Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements
- CFR = Code of Federal Regulations
- CMR = Code of Massachusetts Rules
- MCL = Maximum Contaminant Level
- MCLG = Maximum Contaminant Level Goal
- MMCL = Massachusetts Maximum Contaminant Level

TABLE 19 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ACTION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVES III-2A

REGULATORY					ACTION TO BE TAKEN		
AUTHORITY	ACTION	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT		
Federal	Control of surface water runoff, Direct discharge to surface water	Clean Water Act NPDES Permit Program [40 CFR 122,125]	Relevant and Appropriate	The National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit program specifies the permissible concentration or level of contaminants in the discharge from any point source, including surface runoff, to waters of the United States.	Construction activities will be controlled to meet USEPA discharge requirements. Water collected from dewatering and stockpile activities will be collected and treated offsite or discharged to Devens WWTP. Any on- site runoff discharges (through none expected) will meet the substantive requirements of these regulations.		
	Discharge to Devens Treatment Plant	CWA, General Pretreatment Program (40 CFR Part 403)	Applicable	Discharge of nondomestic wastewater to WWTP must comply with the general prohibitions of this regulation, as well as categorical standards, and local pretreatment standards.	Discharge to Devens WWTP would be sampled to evaluate compliance with pre-treatment standards.		
	Groundwater	USEPA OSWER Publication 9345.3-03FS, January 1992	To Be Considered	Management of IDW must ensure protection of human health and the environment.	IDW produced from well sampling will comply with ARARs.		
	RCRA – Identification and Listing of Hazardous Wastes	Toxicity Characteristics (40 CFR 261.24)	Applicable	Defines those wastes that are subject to regulations as hazardous wastes under 40 CFR Parts 124 and 264.	Soil/sediment analytical results will be evaluated against the criteria and definitions of hazardous waste. The criteria and definition of hazardous waste will be referred to and utilized in development of the remedial action.		
	Disposal of soil	RCRA, Land Disposal	Applicable	Land disposal of RCRA hazardous	Waste materials from Area 3 will be		

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

REGULATORY		DECUTORIATION		Decouverage Suscence	ACTION TO BE TAKEN		
	that contains hazardous waste	Restrictions (40 CFR 268)		wastes without specified treatment is restricted. LDRs require that such wastes must be treated either by a treatment technology or to a specific concentration prior to disposal in a RCRA Subtitle C permitted facility.	evaluated to determine whether the waste is subject to LDRs. If so, the materials will not be disposed of on base but will be treated in accordance with LDRs prior to disposal at an off- base facility.		
	Hazardous Waste	Hazardous Waste Management Systems; (RCRA 40 CFR 260)	Relevant and Appropriate	USEPA procedures for making information available to the public; rules for claims of business confidentially.	Does not address cleanup requirements. However, these procedures will be followed when dealing with hazardous waste.		
	Hazardous Waste	Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Treatment, Storage and Disposal Facilities (RCRA 40 CFR 264)	Relevant and Appropriate	Define requirements for RCRA facility operations and management including impoundments, wastepiles, land treatment, landfills, incinerators, storage, closure and post closure.	Operation, management and safety requirements in effect for all portions of remedial process, if hazardous waste is being handled.		
	Hazardous Waste	RCRA 40 CFR Part 262, Standards Applicable to Generators of Hazardous Waste	Relevant and Appropriate	RCRA Subtitle C established standards applicable to treatment, storage and disposal of hazardous waste and closure of hazardous waste facilities.	Sediments will be tested to determine whether they contain characteristic hazardous waste. If so, treatment on- site would comply with substantive requirements of these regulations.		
State	Hazardous Waste	Massachusetts Hazardous Waste Management Rules; 310 CMR 30.000	Relevant and Appropriate	These rules set forth Massachusetts definitions and criteria for establishing whether waste materials are hazardous and subject to associated hazardous waste regulations.	These regulations supplement RCRA requirements. Those criteria and definitions more stringent than RCRA take precedence over federal requirements.		

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

TABLE 19 (continued) SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ACTION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVES III-2A

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	ACTION	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	Action To Be Taken To Attain Requirement		
	Activities that potentially affect surface water quality	Activities that potentially affect surface water quality		A Massachusetts Division of Water Pollution Control Water Quality Certification is required pursuant to 314 CMR 9.00 for dredging-related activities in waters (including wetlands) within the Commonwealth which require federal licenses or permits and which are subject to state water quality certification.	Excavation and filling activities will meet the substantive criteria and standards of these regulations. Remedial activities will be designed to attain and maintain Massachusetts Water Quality Standards in affected waters.		
	Activities that affect ambient air qualityMassachusetts Air Pollution Control Regulations[310 CMR 7.00]		Applicable	These regulation pertain to the prevention of emissions in excess of Massachusetts ambient air quality standards.	Remedial activities will be conducted to meet the standards for Visible Emissions (310 CMR 7.06); Dust, Odor, Construction and Demolition (310 CMR 7.09); Noise (310 CMR 7.10); and Volatile Organic Compounds (310 CMR 7.18).		

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes:

- ARARs = Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements
- CFR = Code of Federal Regulations
- CMR = Code of Massachusetts Regulations
- CWA = Clean Water Act
- IDW = Investigation-derived waste
- LDR = Land Disposal Restrictions
- NPDES = National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
- PCB = Polychlorinated biphenyls
- PRGs = preliminary remediation goals

TABLE 19 (continued) SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ACTION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVES III-2A

AOC 57 RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS RFTA, DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

- RBCs = Risk-based concentrations
- RCRA = Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
- RI = Remedial Investigation
- TSCA = Toxic Substances Control Act
- USEPA = U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
- WWTP = Wastewater Treatment Plant

APPENDIX D

AOC 43G & J





li and the second s		l .					NCEN	ITRATI	ON (ug/L)						1					<u> </u>
1	-						SAMP	LING F	ROUND											
MONITORING	ANALYTE		Ś	SI/RI		1				IRA				_			LTM			
WELL		3 (9/93)	4 (1/94)	5 (12/94)	6 (3/95)	BL (3/97)		1 (6/97)	2 (9/97)	3 (12/97)	4 (3/98)	5 (6/98)	6 (9/98)	7 (12/98)	1 (12/99)	2 (11/00)	3 (11/01)	4 (11/02)	5 (11/03)	6 (10/04)
SOURCE	AREA	[<u></u>							
2446-02	ARSENIC	l .				121		- 86	85	147	111	NA	NA	NA	80	150	110	110	150	93
<u></u>	IRON		-	-	-	51000		23000	22000	49800	46200	34600	20800	13400	33000	30000	26000	31000	35000	34000
	MANGANESE	.	-			11200		16700	13800	12300	8540	4520	8730	16200	17000	16000	11000	13000	7700	12000
	BENZENE	200	200	200	40	J 4	<	140	J 33	J 19	J 2.3	< 5	J 39	< 80	34	20	40	21	6.3	14
	ETHYLBENZENE	3000	4000	3000	1000	120	J	2200	1100	1300	87	37	600	2300	2600	3100	2600	2700	1200	2500
	TOLUENE	6000	8000	7000	2000	86	J	3500	2200	1400	35	31	97	3000	2400	2600	1900	1200	430	700
	XYLENE	9000	9000	8000	3000	230	J	6100	3400	4000	100	52	410	7000	7500	7400	6400	5600	2380	4850
	CARBON TET.	< 60	< 60	< 60	< 10	< 0.5	<	0.5	< 0.5	< 0.5	< 5	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	TOTAL BTEX	18200	21200	18200	6040	440	<	11940	J 6733	J 6719	J 224	< 125	J 1146	12380	12534	13120	10940	9521	4016.3	8064
2446-03	ARSENIC	-	•		•	59		79	107	43.2	66.4	NÁ	NA	NA	69	48	110	31	46	78
	IRON	-	•	-	•	28000		27000	25000	22900	34000	28600	24200	20200	33000	10000	21000	16000	26000	38000
	MANGANESE	-	-	-	-	13800		11900	9500	12500	14100	13200	9460	9880	11000	4800	6600	4500	7400	10000
	BENZENE	70	50	< 60	< 50	< 38	<	50	< 44	J 3,8	< 23	< 22	< 18	< 23	< 20	1.2	J 5.8	J 0.8	1.0	2.2
	ETHYLBENZENE	3000	2000	3000	2000	880		1000	1000	730	J 940	820	600	750	780	J 0.50	1100	160	210	410
1	TOLUENE	900	1000	2000	800	140	۲	180	210	130	100	100	97	110	91	2.9	100	9.9	13	15
1	XYLENE	3000	2000	5000	2000	600		660	830	550	J 690	500	410	550	500	J 5.0	630	87	113	195
1	CARBON JET.	< 60	< 10	< 80	60	< 0.5	<	0.5	< 0.5	< 0.5	< 0.5	< 0.5			NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
0446.04	TOTAL BIEX	6970	0000	< 10060	< 4850	< 1658		1890	< 2084	J 1414	J 1/53	< 1442	< 1125	< 1433	< 1391	19.6	J 1835.8	J 257.7	33/	622.2
<u> 2440-04</u>	ARSENIC	· ·	•	-	-	U 10		11.8	0.10	66,6	10.9	NA	NA	NA	J 17	110	70	24	30	100
	SKON	-	-	-	-	5900		7500	2500	20200	4040	10800	2900	10300	7600	32000	19000	10000	13000	25000
	RENZENE	50	70	70	60	5100	(2, 3)	14	9100	1 12	4010	1 28	4030	400	400	260	4900	4000	10.88	1120
	ETHYLBENZENE	300	1000	1000	1000	52		59	< 5	< 6	110	130	13	1 12	7.7	720	1 0.88	U 2.0	11 2.0	U 2.0
	TOLLENE	200	500	500	400	< 4		18	< 5	< 5	26	9.9	12	6.6	16	56	24	112.0	020	1120
	XYLENE	500	1000	1000	2000	10		36	< 5.5	< 5	71	43	28	10	42	400	JU 1.5	U 2.0	U 2.0	3.6
	CARBON TET.	< 3	< 10	< 10	20	< 0.5	<	0.5	< 0,5	< 5	< 5	< 0.5	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	TOTAL BTEX	1050	2570	2570	3460	< 75		127	< 24.2	< 16	J 211	J 186	J 65	J 22	69.9	< 1181	JU 8.88	J 0.74	J 0.88	3.6
XJM-93-03	ARSENIC	-			-	U 10		U 10	U 10	B 4.8	U 3.6	NA	NA	NA	< 25	J 20	J 4.9	U 5.0	U 5.0	6.4
ſ	IRÓN	-	-	-	-	69		2100	670	187	1920	648	968	503	B 670	540	1100	300	630	1400
	MANGANESE		-	-	-	20		2300	1380	98.8	76.7	102	1420	505	110	45	1200	23	67	660
	SENZENE	200	100	60	20	< 6		10	< 5	< 5	< 5	J< 5	5.2	< 1	< 2.0	< 0.50	1.1	U 1.0	U 1.0	U 2.0
	ETHYLBENZENE	500	100	200	200	< 5	<	30	< 5	< 5	< 5	J< 5	J 2.6	< 1	< 2.0	< 2.0	J 1.3	U 2.0	U 2.0	U 2.0
	TOLUENE	600	100	400	300	< 5	<	5	< 5	< 5	< 5	J< 5	< 2.9	J 0.42	< 2.0	< 2.0	J 0.61	U 2.0	U 2.0	U 2,0
	XYLENE	800	40	300	300	< 5	<	5	< 5	< 5	< 5	J< 5	< 2.9	2.1	< 2.0	< 2.0	J 3.5	U 2.0	U 2.0	U 2.0
	CARBON TET.	< 6 2100	< 3 340	< 3 960	< 1 820	< 0.5	<	5	< 0.5	< 5	< 5	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA L641	NA	NA	NA
X IM-94-05	ADSENIC					41		72	77	50 Q	43	NA	MA	NA	32	73	420	14.5	12	40
1010 0 1 00	IRON		-		-	14500		22000	2300	30100	17900	15500	23100	31200	13000	14000	31000	550	3600	15000
	MANGANESE	-		-	-	5200		7700	8500	17000	5650	5380	6740	14200	5400	6600	5600	340	2100	6400
	BENZENE	NA	NA	300	300	J 39.		48	J. 49	J 18	31	J 35	J 33	J 16	16	< 5.0	13	Ū 1.0	U 1.0	U 2.0
	ETHYLBENZENE	NA	NA	2000	2000	690	· .	930	1800	920	530	650	1300	900	150	110	1300	7.3	58	620
	TOLUENE	NA	NA	3000	2000	330	<	470	530	100	350	430	490	130	66	< 2.0	200	Ų 2.0	J 1.5	6
	XYLENE	NA	NA	5000	4000	1400		1800	3800	2300	1100	1200	2300	1600	580	218	2130	14	82.8	764
	CARBON TET.	NA	NA	< 30	100	< 0.5	<	0.5	< 0.5	< 0.5	< 0.5	< 0.5	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	TOTAL BTEX			10300	8300	2459	<u></u>	3248	J 6179	J 3338	2011	J 2315	J 4123	J 2646	812	< 335	3643	21.3	142.3	1390
XJM-97-12	ARSENIC	-	•	-	•	39		71	77	B 7.9	32.2	NA	NA	NA	54	130	94	87	72	78
1	IRON	•	-	•	•	14300		16600	15000	3460	14900	17100	12400	14300	18000	17000	12000	16000	15000	15000
1	MANGANESE	-	-		-	- 5400		6100	6200	3760	5500	6330	5640	6020	6400	6300	5800	5500	5000	5100
	BENZENE	NA	NA	NA	NA	27		55	42	41	20	37	J 24	J 34	27	24	31	25	21	19
	ETHYLBENZENE	NA	NA	NA	NA	390		630	670	740	300	720	890	1100	620	720	1800	840	1000	1500
1	TOLUENE	NA	NA	NA	NA	220	<	380	260	250	150	440	320	230	180	190	260	200	200	220
1	AYLENE GARDON TET	NA	NA	NA	NA NA	< 800		1100	890	1000	570	1400	/20	1100	971	996	1482	1045	1049	1470
	TOTAL BTEX	- NA	81A -	- NA	NA -	< 1438	Ś	2165	- 0.5 1862	2031	1040	2597	J 1954	J 2464	1798	1930	3573	2110	2270	3209

TABLE 4-6	
AOC 43J HISTORICAL GROUNDWATER ANALYTICAL DATA (1993 - 200	04
DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS	

Table 4-2 Groundwater Analytical Results - October 26, 2004 AOC 43 G Devens, Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 1)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	AAFES-2	AAFES-5	AAFES-6	XGM-93-02X	XGM-94-04X	XGM-94-07X	XGM-94-08X	XGM-94-10X	XGM-97-12X	43G - Dup
	CLEANUP	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L
	GOAL (1)										
VOLATILES (MADEP-VPH	ug/L										
Benzene	5	6.6	2.0 U	N/S	39	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	260	250
Toluene	1,000	2.0 U	2.0 U	N/S	2.0 U	460	480				
Ethylbenzene	700	130	2.0 U	N/S	160	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	240	240
m,p-Xylene		160	2.0 U	N/S	79	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	3000	29 00
o-Xylene		19	2.0 U	N/S	7.3	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	1100	1100
Total Xylenes	10,000	179	2.0 U	N/S	86	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	4100	4000
VPH (MADEP)											
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons											
C5 - C8	400	1100 U	100 U	N/S	570 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	1100 U	1200 U
C9 - C12	4,000	57	25 U	N/S	34	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	90	94
Aromatic Hydrocarbons											
C9 - C10	200	6700	25 U	N/S	3700	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	7400	8100
METAL\$ (6010B)											
Iron	9,100	20000	170	N/S	28000	350	300	2500	120	32000	31000
Manganese	291	4000	89	N/S	2600	790	1000	3800	960	3000	2900
Nickel	100	40 U	17	N/S	40 U	4.1 J	6.0 J	9.5 J	6.8 J	40 U	40 U
FIELD PARAMETERS											
ORP/Eh (mv)	NA	-269.2	247.7	N/S	-106.4	260.2	-238.0	-11.1	232.8	-80.1	NA
DO (mg/L)	NA	0.33	5.07	N/S	0.60	0.81	2.34	1.61	2.50	0.83	NA

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance.

J = Estimated value detected below the PQL

B = Analyte is within 5 times of the amount detected in the equipment blank sample

U = Analyte is undetected at the laboratorys' PQL

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwise noted)

NA = Not Applicable

N/S = Not Sampled

ORP (mv) = Oxidation Reduction Potential in millivolts

DO (mg/L) = Dissolved Oxygen in milligrams per Liter

43G - Dup is a duplicate of XGM-97-12X

Source wells: AAFES-2, AAFES-6, XGM-93-02X and XGM-97-12X Sentry wells: AAFES-5, XGM-94-04X, XGM-94-07X, XGM-94-08X and XGM-94-10X

TABLE 4-3 Groundwater Analytical Results - October 27 & 28, 2004 Sampling Event AQC 43 J Devens, Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 1)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	2446-02	43J - Dup	2446-03	2446-04	XJM-93-02X	XJM-93-03X	XJM-94-05X	XJM-94-06X	XJM-94-08X	XJM-94-10X	XJM-97-11X	XJM-97-12X	XJM-97-13X
	CLEANUP	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L
	GOAL (1)													
	ug/L													
VOLATILES (MA-VPH)														
Benzene	5	14	19	2.2	2.0 U	3.8	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 Ų	2.0 Ų	2.0 U	19	2.0 U
Toluene	1000	700	210	15	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	6.0	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	220	2.0 U
Ethylbenzene	700	2500	1500	410	2.0 U	2.0 U	2,0 U	620	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	1500	2.0 U
m,p-Xylene		4000	1300	130	3.6	2.0 U	2.0 U	670	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	1400	2.0 U
o-Xylene		850	67	65	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	94	2.0 U	<u>2.0 U</u>	2.0 U	2.0 U	70	2.0 U
Total Xylenes	10,000	4850	1367	195	3.6	2.0 U	2.0 U	764	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	1470	2.0 U
VPH														
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons														
C5 - C8	400	4600	8800 J	1900	320	100 U	100 U	480	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	8600	100 U
C9 - C12	4,000	62	37 J	30	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	40	25 U
Aromatic Hydrocarbons														
C9 - C10	200	8100	5500 J	2900	310	58	25 U	1800	25 U	50	25 U	25 U	6500	25 U
METALS (6010)					-								-	
Arsenic	50	93	76	78	100	5.0 U	6.4	40	5.0 U	5.8	2.5 J	2.7 J	78	2.3 J
liron	9,100	34000	14000	38000	25000	1100	1900	15000	140	510	310	43 J	15000	19 J
Manganese	291	12000	5100	10000	4300	12000	660	6400	38	640	33	640	5100	20
FIELD PARAMETERS														
ORP/Eh (mv)	NA													
DO (mg/L)	NA													

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance. -

J = Estimated value detected below the PQL

B = Analyte is within 5 times of the amount detected in the equipment blank sample

U = Analyte is undetected at the laboratorys' PQL

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwise noted)

NA = Not Applicable

ORP (mv) = Oxidation Reduction Potential in millivolts

DO (mg/L) = Dissolved Oxygen in milligrams per Liter

43J - Dup is a duplicate of 2446-02



Source wells: 2446-02, 2446-03, XJM-94-05X, XJM-97-12X

Sentry wells: 2446-04, XJM-93-02X, XJM-93-03X, XJM-94-06X, XJM-94-08X, XJM-94-10X, XJM-97-11X, XJM-97-13X

.

TABLE 4-2 AOC 43G GROUNDWATER ANALYTICAL RESULTS - NOVEMBER 12, 2003 DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS (Sheet 1 of 1)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	AAFES-2	AAFES-5	AAFES-6	XGM-93-02X	XGM-94-04X	XGM-94-07X	XGM-94-08X	XGM-94-10X	XGM-97-12X	43G - Dup
	CLEANUP	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L
	GOAL (1)							· · · ·			
VOLATILES (8260B)	ug/L]				
Benzene	5	9.0 J	1.0 U	N/S	24	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	290.	310
Toluene	1,000	20 U	2.0 U	N/S	20 U	2.0 U	2.0 Ú	2.0 U	2.0 U	610	650
Ethylbenzene	700	180	2.0 U	N/S	87	2.0 Ú	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	440	460
m,p-Xylene		280	2.0 U	N/S	30	2.0 Ú	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	4,400	4,600
o-Xylene		32	2.0 U	N/S	16 J	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	1,600	1,600
Total Xylenes	10,000	312	2.0 U	N/S	46	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	6,000	6,200
VPH (MADEP)											
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons											
C5 - C8	400	1,200	100 U	N/S	410	100 U	100 U	120	100 U	1,100	1,300
C9 - C12	4,000	250 U	25 U	N/S	33	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	250 U	250 U
Aromatic Hydrocarbons											
C9 - C10	200	6,600	25 U	N/S	1,600	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	8,700	8,800
METALS (6010B)		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·									
Iron	9,100	14,000	660	N/S	15,000	210	1,000	3,200	250	33,000	32,000
Manganese	291	3,100	21	N/S	1,900	1.400	3,600	8,600	120	4,100	4,300
Nickel	100	5.4 J	18 J	N/S	4,8 J	9.3 J	66	6.8 J	8.7 J	3.3 J	2.7 J
FIELD PARAMETERS											
ORP/Eh (mv)	NA	-133,0	202.1	N/S	-112.8	22.9	33.0	-56.8	237.8	-102.1	NA
DO (mg/L)	NA	0.54	5.58	N/S	0.39	0.50	1.80	0.78	7.84	0.33	NA

Notes:

!

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance. -

J = Estimated value detected below the PQL

B = Analyte is within 5 times of the amount detected in the equipment blank sample

U = Analyte is undetected at the laboratorys' PQL

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwise noted)

NA = Not Applicable

N/S = Not Sampled

ORP (mv) = Oxidation Reduction Potential in Millivolts

DO (mg/L) = Dissolved Oxygen in milligrams per Liter

43G - Dup is a duplicate of XGM-97-12X

Source wells: AAFES-2, AAFES-6, XGM-93-02X and XGM-97-12X Sentry wells: AAFES-5, XGM-94-04X, XGM-94-07X, XGM-94-08X and XGM-94-10X

TABLE 4-3 AOC 43J GROUNDWATER ANALYTICAL RESULTS - NOVEMBER 13, 14, 2003 DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS (Sheet 1 of 1)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	2448-02	43J · Dup	2446-03	2446-04	XJM-93-02X	XJM-93-03X	XJM-94-05X	XJM-94-06X	XJM-94-08X	XJM-94-10X	XJM-97-11X	XJM-97-12X	XJM-97-13X
	CLEANUP	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L
	GOAL (1)		ŗ											
	ug/L										[
VOLATILES (8260B)														
Benzene	5	6:3	5.8 J	1.0	0.88 J	1.3	1.0 U	21	1.0 U					
Toluene	1000	430	410	13	0.71 J	2.0 U	2.0 U	1.6 J	2.0 Ü	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	200	2.0 U
Ethylbenzene	700	1,200	1,100	210	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	58	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	0.72 J	1,000	2.0 U
m,p-Xylene		2,000	1,800	72	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	73	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	0.9 J	1,000	2.0 U
o-Xylene		380	380	41	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	9.8	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	49	2.0 U
Total Xylenes	10,000	2,380	2,180	113	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	82.8	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	0.9 J	1,049	2.0 U
VPH														
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons														
C5 - C8	400	2,700	2,700	950	110	100 Ú	100 U	6,900,	100 U					
C9 - C12	4,000	53	51	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	52	25 U
Aromatic Hydrocarbons														
C9 - C10	200	4,500	4,400	1,300	170	25 U	25 U	240	25 U	50	25 U	25 U	5,000	25 U
METALS (6010)														
Arsenic	50	150	201750	46	30	5.0 U	5.0 U	13	5.0 U	5.0 U	4.8 J	5.0 U	72	5.0 U
Iron	9,100	35,000	35,000	26,000	13,000	84 J	630	3600	68 J	260	480	51 J	15,000	21 J
Manganese	291	7,700	7,600	7,400	5,400	330	67	2,100	7.5 J	1,200	120	690	5,000	25
FIELD PARAMETERS														
ORP/Eh (mv)	NA	122.7	NA	-71.9	-21.9	197.0	143.6	48.0	235.6	-52.8	-38.6	88,1	+86.5	154.7
DO (mg/L)	NA	0.60	NA	2.77	2,66	1.78	3,94	1.10	6.79	0.86	4,90	2.19	1.06	0.31

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup level exceedance. -

J = Estimated value detected below the PQL

B = Analyte is within 5 times of the amount detected in the equipment blank sample

U = Analyte is undetected at the laboratorys' PQL

(1) Cleanup values as developed in the ROD (unless otherwise noted)

NA = Not Applicable

ORP (mv) = Oxidation Reduction Potential in millivoits

DO (mg/L) = Dissolved Oxygen in milligrams per Liter

43J - Dup is a duplicate of 2448-02

25

Source wells: 2445-02, 2446-03, XJM-94-05X, XJM-97-12X

Sentry wells: 2446-04, XJM-93-02X, XJM-93-03X, XJM-94-06X, XJM-94-08X, XJM-94-10X, XJM-97-11X, XJM-97-13X

Table 1-1

CLEANUP GOAL EXCEEDANCES OVER TIME AOC 43G 1999 to 2003

Well Number	1999	2000	2001	2002	2003
		Benzene – 5 u	e/I. Cleanup Goal		
AAFES-2	62	<u>26</u>	43	26	9
XGM-93-02X	81	32	12	140	24
XGM-97-12X	270	550	700	780	290
		<u>Toluene –1000</u>	ug/L Cleanup Goal		
XGM-97-12X	(390)	1100	(870)	1000	(610)
	c	5-C8 Aliphatics -	400 ug/L Cleanup	Goal	
AAFES-2	ND -	1400*	ND	1200	1200
AAFES-6	(370)	420*	(290)	ND	N/S
XGM93-02X	ND	570*	(270)	790	410
XGM-94-04X	ND	420*	(140)	ND	ND
XGM-97-12X	970	1300*	1100	1100	1100
	C	9-C10 Aromatics -	200 ug/L Cleanun	Goal	
AAFES-2	9400	7200	5300	13000	6600
XGM-93-02X	510	2300	1100	3600	1600
XGM-94-04X	200	570	(170)	(28)	ND
XGM-97-12X	4500	5500	5400	7500	8700
		Iron – 9100 u	g/L Cleanup Goal		
AAFES-2	24000	20000	27000	26000	14000
AAFES-6	11000	9200	13000	9400	N/S
XGM-93-02X	30000	18000	11000	24000	15000
XGM-94-08X	(4800)	13000	(4500)	(4600)	(3200)
XGM-97-12X	32000	26000	33000	46000	33000
		Manganese – 29	1 ug/L Cleanun Go	al	
AAFES-2	4600	3900	4800	3700	3100
AAFES-5	710	180*	(190)	(27)	(21)
AAFES-6	2900	9200	3400	3000	N/S
XGM-93-02X	3900	2500	1900	2500	1900
XGM-94-04X	2900	2200	3400	2000	1400
XGM-94-07X	5700	3700	6100	4500	3600
XGM-94-08X	4500	4600	4900	3600	3600
XGM-94-10X	830	2000	2600	(31)	(120)
XGM-97-12X	6300	4100	4200	3900	4100

Notes:

ND = Non detect

N/S = Not sampled

(#) = Less than Cleanup Goal * = Analyte detected within 5 times of the amount detected in the equipment blank sample

Table 1-2

CLEANUP GOAL EXCEEDANCES OVER TIME AOC 43J 1999 to 2003

Well Number	1999	2000	2001	2002	2003
		Rangana 5	off Cleanus Coal		
2446.02	24	<u>Denzene – j u</u> 20	AD Cleanup Goal	21	63
2440-02		(12)	40	(0.8)	(1.0)
2440-03 YIM 02.07Y	22	(1.2)	J.O NTD		(1.0)
VIM 04 05V	44	(0.59) ND	12	ND	(1.5) ND
XIM 07 11V	ND	ND	13	(2.5)	ND
NJM-77-11A VIM 07 19V	27	24	21	(3.3)	21
AJWI-97-12A	21	24	51	25	21
		<u>Toluene -1000</u>	ug/L Cleanup Goal		
2446-02	2400	2600	1900	1200	(430)
		Ethylbenzene - 70	0 ug/L Cleanup G	bal	
2446-02	2600	3100	2600	2700	1200
2446-03	780	(0.50)	1100	(160)	(210)
2446-04	(7.7)	720	(0.88)	ND	ND
XJM-94-05X	(110)	(150)	1300	(7.3)	(58)
XJM-97-12X	(620)	720	1800	840	1000
	c	5-C8 Aliphatics -	400 ug/L. Cleanup	Goal	
2446-02	2800	5400	ND	2100	2700
2446-03	ND	(360)	ND	1200	950
2446-04	ND	1900	ND	(240)	(110)
XIM-97-11X	(110)	(290)	ND	1100	ND
XJM-97-12X	2100	5100	6700	5700	6900
	C	9-C10 Aromatics -	200 ug/L Cleanun	Goal	
2446-02	7100	9400	4300	6400	4500
2446-03	3600	330	3300	1500	1300
2446-04	430	4600	350	(170)	(170)
XIM-94-05X	1200	330	3900	(38)	240
XIM-97-11X	(33)	260	590	380	ND
XJM-94-12X	4400	6300	4000	4700	5000
		Arsenic – 50 u	w/L Cleanun Goal		
2446-02	80	150	110	110	150
2446-03	69	(48)	110	(31)	(46)
2446-04	(17)	110	70	(24)	(30)
XIM-93-02X	ND	54	ND	(4.7)	ND
XIM-94-05X	(32)	73	130	(4.5)	(13)
XIM-97-12X	54	130	94	87	72
2446.02	32000	<u>Iron – 9100 u</u> 30000	g/L Cleanup Goal	31000	35000
2446-02	22000	10000	20000	16000	33000
2440-03	33000	10000	21000	10000	20000
2440-04 XINA 04 0737	(7000)	32000	19000	10000	13000
AJM-94-05X	13000	14000	51000	(330)	(3000)
AJM-97-12X	18000	17000	12000	10000	15000

Table 1-2 (cont.)

CLEANUP GOAL EXCEEDANCES OVER TIME AOC 43J 1999 to 2003

•

		Manganese - 29	l ug/L Cleanup Go:	al	
2446-02	17000	16000	11000	13000	7700
2446-03	11000	4800	6600	4500	7400
2446-04	6400	11000	4900	4000	5400
XJM-93-02X	3100	(61)	630	(200)	330
XJM-93-03X	(110)	(45)	1200	(23)	(67)
XJM-94-05X	5400	6600	5800	340	2100
XJM-94-08X	540	780	3400	1000	1200
XJM-94-10X	330	(58)	3400	(240)	(120)
XJM-97-11X	390	1300	2800	2800	690
XJM-97-12X	6400	6300	5800	5500	5000

Notes:

ND = Non detect

(#) = Less than Cleanup Goal

TABLE 10 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2A: INTRINSIC BIOREMEDIATION AOC 43G - HISTORIC GAS STATION G/AAFES GAS STATION

> RECORD OF DECISION FORT DEVENS, MA

AUTHORITY Federal Regulatory Authority LOCATION SPECIFIC REQUIREMENT No location-specific ARARs will be triggered.

STATUS

REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS

ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT

State Regulatory Authority No location-specific ARARs will be triggered.

TABLE 10 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE, 2A: INTRINSIC BIOREMEDIATION AOC 43G - HISTORIC GAS STATION G/AAFES GAS STATION

	CHEMICAL				ACTION TO BE TAKEN	
AUTHORITY	SPECIFIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT	
Federal Regulatory Authority	Groundwater (Also applicable as an Action Specific ARAR)	SDWA, National Primary Drinking Water Standards, MCLs [40 CFR Parts 141.11 - 141.16 and 141.50 - 141.52]	Relevant and Appropriate	The NPDWR establishes MCLs for several common organic and inorganic contaminants. MCLs specify the maximum permissible concentrations of contaminants in public drinking water supplies. MCLs are federally enforceable standards based in part on the availability and cost of treatment techniques.	Biodegradation of organic contaminants exceeding MCLs is believed to be occurring under existing conditions. MCLs will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative through implementation of a long- term groundwater monitoring program will achieve MCL at completion of remedy.	
Federal Regulatory Authority	Groundwater	USEPA Reference Dose	TEC			
Federal Regulatory Authority	Groundwater	USEPA HAS	TBC			

TABLE 10 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2A: INTRINSIC BIOREMEDIATION AOC 43G - HISTORIC GAS STATION G/AAFES GAS STATION

	CHEMICAL				ACTION TO BE TAKEN
AUTHORITY	SPECIFIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
	Groundwater (Also applicable as an Action Specific ARAR)	Massachusetts Drinking Water Standards and Guidelines (310 CMR 22.01).	Relevant and Appropriate	The Massachusetts Drinking Water Standards and Guidelines list MMCLs which apply to water delivered to any user of a public water supply system as defined in 310 CMR 22.00. Private residential wells are not subject to the requirements of 310 CMR 22.00; however, the standards are often used to evaluate private residential contamination especially in CERCLA activities.	Biodegradation of organic contaminants exceeding MMCLs is believed to be occurring under existing conditions. MMCLs will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative through implementation of a long- term groundwater monitoring program.

TABLE 10 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2A: INTRINSIC BLOREMEDIATION ACC 43G - HISTORIC GAS STATION G/AAFES GAS STATION

	ACTION				ACTION	TO BE TAKEN
AUTHORITY	SPECIFIC	REQUIREMENTS	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	TO ATT	AIN REQUIREMENT
Federal Regulatory Authority		RCRA Subtitle C Subpart F	Relevant and Appropriate	Groundwater protection standard.		
StateGroundwater Regulatory Authority	Groundwater	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards [314 CMR 6.00]	Applicable	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards designate and assign uses for which groundwater of the Commonwealth shall be maintained and protected and set forth water quality criteria necessary to maintain the designated uses. Groundwater at Fort Devens is classified as Cl: 1. Groundwater assigned to this class are fresh groundwater designated as source of potable water supply.	2 7 195	Biodegradation of organic contaminants exceeding MMCL-s is believed to be occurring under existing conditions. MMCLs will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative through implementation of a long-term groundwater monitoring program.

TABLE 10 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2A: INTRINSIC BIOREMEDIATION AOC 43G - HISTORIC GAS STATION G/AAFES GAS STATION

RECORD OF DECISION FORT DEVENS, MA

	ACTION				ACTION TO BE TAKEN
AUTHORITY	SPECIFIC	REQUIREMENTS	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
State Regulatory Authority	Groundwater Monitoring	Massachusetts Hazardous Waste Management Rules (MHWMR) Groundwater Protection;[310 CMR 30.660- 30.679]	Relevant and Appropriate	Groundwater monitoring is required during and following remedial actions.	A long-term groundwater monitoring program is to be implemented to monitor the progress of remediation.
Notes:					

CERCLA = Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act MCLs = Maximum Contaminant Levels MHWMR = Massachusetts Hazardous Waste Management Rules

MMCLs = Massachusetts Maximum Contaminant Levels NPDWR - National Primary Drinking Water Standards SDWA = Safe Drinking Water Act

TABLE 11 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2B: INTRINSIC BIOREMEDIATION ACC 43G - HISTORIC GAS STATION G/AAFES GAS STATION

RECORD OF DECISION FORT DEVENS, MA

AUTHORITY LOCATION ACTION TO BE TAKEN SPECIFIC REQUIREMENT STATUS REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT No location-specific Federal ARARs will be Regulatory triggered. Authority No location-specific State Regulatory Authority ARARs will be triggered.

TABLE 11 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2B: INTRINSIC BIOREMEDIATION ACC 43G - HISTORIC GAS STATION G/AAFES GAS STATION

AUTHORITY	CHEMICAL SPECIFIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Federal Regulatory Authority	Groundwater (Also applicable as an Action Sp- ecific ARAR)	SDWA, National Primary Drinking Water Standards, MCLs {40 CFR Parts 141.11 - 141.16 and 141.50 - 141.521	Relevant and Appropriate	The NPDWR establishes MCLs for several common organic and inorganic contaminants. MCLs specify the maximum permissible concentrations of contaminants in public drinking water supplies. MCLs are federally enforceable standards based in part on the availability and cost of treatment techniques.	Biodegradation of organic contaminants exceeding MCLs is believed to be occurring under existing conditions. MCLs will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative through implementation of a long- term groundwater monitoring program will achieve MCLs at completion of remedy.
Federal Regulatory Authority	Groundwater	USEPA Reference Dose	TBC		
Federal Regulatory Authority	Groundwater	USEPA HAS	TBC		

TABLE 11 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2B: INTRINSIC BIOREMEDIATION ACC 43G - HISTORIC GAS STATION G/AAFES GAS STATION

.

AUTHORITY	CHEMICAL SPECIFIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Continued	Groundwater (Also applicable as an Action Specific ARAR)	Massachusetts Drinking Water Standards and Guidelines (310 CMR 22.0].	Relevant and Appropriate	The Massachusetts Drinking Water Standards and Guidelines list MMCLs which apply to water delivered to any user of a public water supply system as defined in 310 CMR 22.00. Private residential wells are not subject to the requirements of 310 CMR 22.00; however, the standards are often used to evaluate private residential contamination especially in CERCLA activities.	Biodegradation of organic contaminants exceeding MMCLs is believed to be occurring under existing conditions. MMCLs will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative through implementation of a long- term groundwater monitoring program.

TABLE 11 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2B: INTRINSIC BIOREMEDIATION AOC 43G - HISTORIC GAS STATION G/AAFES GAS STATION

AUTHORITY	ACTION SPECIFIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
	Disposal of treatment residues	RCRA, Land Disposal Restrictions [40 CFR 268]	Applicable	Land disposal of RCRA hazardous wastes without specified treatment is restricted. LDRs require that wastes must be treated either by a treatment technology or to a specific concentration prior to disposal in a RCRA Subtitle C permitted facility.	SVE carbon would be tested to evaluate characteristics for proper disposal/reactivation.

TABLE 11 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2B: INTRINSIC BIOREMEDIATION AOC 43G - HISTORIC GAS STATION G/AAFES GAS STATION

AUTHORITY	ACTION SPECIFIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
	Groundwater	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards [314 CMR 6.00]	Applicable	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards designate and assign uses for which groundwater of the Commonwealth shall be maintained and protected and set forth water quality criteria necessary to maintain the designated uses. Groundwater at Fort Devens is classified as Class 1. Groundwater assigned to this class are fresh groundwater designated as a source of potable water supply.	Biodegradation of organic contaminants exceeding MMCLs is believed to be occurring under existing conditions. MMCLs will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative through implementation of a long-term groundwater monitoring program.
State Regulatory Authority	Groundwater Monitoring	Massachusetts Hazardous Waste Management Rules (MHMMR) Groundwater Protection; [310 CMR 30.660- 30.679]	Relevant and Appropriate	Groundwater monitoring is required during and following remedial actions.	A long-term groundwater monitoring program is to be implemented to monitor the progress of remediation.

TABLE 11 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2B: INTRINSIC BIOREMEDIATION AOC 43G - HISTORIC GAS STATION G/AAFES GAS STATION

RECORD OF DECISION FORT DEVENS, MA

	ACTION				ACTION TO BE TAKEN
AUTHORITY	SPECIFIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Continued	SVE	Massachusetts Air	Applicable	SVE system must reduce	Emissions will be managed
	Treatment	Pollution Control		VOCs in air effluent stream	through engineering controls.
		Regulations [310		by at least 95% by weight.	
		CMR 6.00-7.00]			

Notes:

CERCLA =Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act

MCLs = Maximum Contaminant Levels

MHWMR = Massachusetts Hazardous Waste Management Rules

MMCLs = Massachusetts Maximum Contaminant Levels

NPDWR = National Primary Drinking Water Standards

SDWA = Safe Drinking Water Act

TABLE 12 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2: INTRINSIC BIOREMEDIATION AOC 43J - HISTORIC GAS STATION J

AUTHORITY	LOCATION SPECIFIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Federal Regulatory Authority		No location-specific ARARs will be triggered.		-	
State Regulatory Authority		No location-specific ARARs will be triggered.			

TABLE 12 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2: INTRINSIC BIOREMEDIATION AOC 43J - HISTORIC GAS STATION J

AUTHORIT	CHEMICAL V SPECIFIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Federal Regulato Authorit	Groundwater cy (Also applicable as an Action Specific ARAR)	SDWA, National Primary Drinking Water Standards, MCLs [40 CFR Parts 141.11 - 141.16 and 141.50 -141.52]	Relevant and Appropriate	The NPDWR establishes MCLs for several common organic and inorganic contaminants. MCLs specify the maximum permissible concentrations of contaminants in public drinking water supplies. MCLs are federally enforceable standards based in part on the availability and cost of treatment techniques.	Biodegradation of organic contaminants exceeding MCLs is believed to be occurring under existing conditions. MCLs will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative through implementation of a long-term groundwater monitoring program will achieve MCLs at completion of remedy.
Federal Regulato Authorit	Groundwater CY 2	USEPA Reference Dose	твс		
Federal Regulato Authorit	Groundwater FY 7	USEPA HAS/TEC	TBC		

TABLE 12 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2: INTRINSIC BIOREMEDIATION AOC 43J - HISTORIC GAS STATION J

AUTHORITY	CHEMICAL SPECIFIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
State Regulatory Authority	Groundwater (Also applicable as an Action Specific ARAR)	Massachusetts Drinking Water Standards and Guidelines [310 CMR 22.0].	Relevant and Appropriate	The Massachusetts Drinking Water Standards and Guidelines list MMCLs which apply to water delivered to any user of a public water supply system as-defined in 310 CMR 22.00. Private residential wells are not subject to the requirements of 310 CMR 22.00; however, the standards are often used to evaluate private residential contamination especially in CERCLA activities.	Biodegradation of organic contaminants exceeding MMCLs is believed to be occurring under existing conditions. MMCLs will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative through implementation of a long-term groundwater monitoring program.
TABLE 12 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2: INTRINSIC BIOREMEDIATION AOC 43J - HISTORIC GAS STATION J

RECORD OF DECISION FORT DEVENS, MA

AUTHORITY	ACTION SPECIFIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Federal Regulatory Authority		RCRA Subtitle C Subpart F	Relevant and Appropriate	Groundwater protection standards.	
	Groundwater	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards [314 CMR 6.00]	Applicable	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards designate and assign uses for which groundwater of the Commonwealth shall be maintained and protected and set forth water quality criteria necessary to maintain the designated uses. Groundwater at Fort Devens is classified as Class 1. Groundwater assigned to this class are fresh groundwater designated as a source of potable water supply.	Biodegradation of organic contaminants exceeding MMCLs is believed to be occurring under existing conditions. MMCLs will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative through implementation of a long- term groundwater monitoring program.

TABLE 12 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 2: INTRINSIC BIOREMEDIATION AOC 43J - HISTORIC GAS STATION J

RECORD OF DECISION FORT DEVENS, MA

AUTHORITY	ACTION SPECIFIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
State Regulatory Authority	Groundwater Monitoring (MEWMR) Groundwater Protection; [310 CMR 30.660-30.679]	Massachusetts Hazardous Waste Management Rules	Relevant and Appropriate	Groundwater monitoring is required during and following remedial actions. progress of remediation.	A long-term groundwater monitoring program is to be implemented to monitor the
Notes:					

 $\texttt{CERCLA} \ = \ \texttt{Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act}$

MCLs = Maximum Contaminant Levels

MHWMR = Massachusetts Hazardous Waste Management Rules

MMCLs = Massachusetts Maximum Contaminant Levels NPDWR = National Primary Drinking Water Standards SDWA = Safe Drinking Water Act APPENDIX E

APPENDIX E

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA (AOCS 25, 26, 27, AND 41) GROUNDWATER

Nobis Engineering, Inc.













TABLE 4-2

GROUNDWATER ANALYTICAL RESULTS - November 1-3, 2004

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELLS (Sheet 1 of 3)

Devens, Massachusetts (concentrations in ug/l)

				4									
			DATE	MAIN	MIND	11/10	11 ¹¹¹⁰	11/1 ¹⁰	11/10	11/10	11110	ALLIN	11310
		Ĩ	Well No.	25M-92-06X	25M-97-11X	26M-92-02X	26M-92-03X	26M-92-03XD	26M-92-04X	26M-92-04XD	26M-97-08X	26M-97-08XD	27M-92-01X
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND	1 ľ		LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW
	LEVELS	MA	Federal										
METALS		M	CLs (uall)		a.u								
Silver, Total Ag	4.6	na	na	<1.5	<1.5	<1.5	<1.5	na	<1.5	<1.5	<1.5	กล	2.9 B
Aluminum, Total Al	6870	na	na	120 B	51.1 B	244	53.8 B	na	56.7 B	35.7 B	54 6 B	กล	187 B
Arsenic, Total As	10.5	10	10	<3.1	<3.1	<3.1	<3.1	na	<4.2	<3.1	<3.1	na	<3.1
Barium, Total Ba	39.6	2000	2000	<11.0	<11.0	<11.0	<11.0	na	<11.0	<11.0	<11.0	na	<11.0
Bervilium, Total, Be	5	4	4	<0.30	0.30 B	< 0.30	< 0.30	na	<0.30	<0.30	<0.30	na	0.31 B
Calcium, Tota; Ca	14700	na	na	2400 B	2430 B	2670 B	3470 B	na	7630	7150	3540 B	na	6970
Cadmium, Total Cd	4.01	5	5	<0.50	< 0.50	< 0.50	0.72 B	na	<0.50	<0.50	<0.50	na	<0.50
Cobait, Total Co	25	па	 na	<3.1	<3.1	<3.1	<3.1	па	<3.1	<3.1	<3.1	na	<3.1
Chromium, Total Cr	14.7	100	100	6.7 B	1.4 B	2.0 B	<1.1	na	<1.1	<1.1	<1.1	na	3.6 B
Copper, Total Cu	8.09	1300	1300	3.7 B	2.6 B	2.8 B	<2.6	na	<2.6	<2.6	<2.6	na	3.0 B
Iron. Total Fe	9100	na	na	141	<35.5	293	<35.5	na	<35.5	<35.5	<35.5	па	219
Mercury, Total Ho	0.243	2	2	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	па	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	na	<0.10
Potassium, Total K	2370	na	na	2130 B	2530 B	2190 B	2750 B	na	2530 B	1910 B	2030 B	na	1750 B
Magnesium, Total Mg	3480	na	na	663 B	894 B	1030 B	348 B	ла	762 B	707 B	469 B	na	657 B
Manganese, Total Mn	291	na	na	6.6 B	<1.0	7.1 B	5.6 B	na	13.0 B	11.9 B	2.7 B	na	.11.7 B
Sodium, Total Na	10800	20,000	na	2200 B	2800 B	3130 B	2010 B	na	2620 B	3060 B	2540 B	na	5830
Nickel, Total Ni	34.3	100	ла	4.3 B	3.6 B	3.3 B	<2.9	na	<2.9	<2.9	<2.9	na	4.8 B
Lead, Total Pb	4.25	15	15	1.2 B	<1.2	3.4	<1.2	na	1.7 B	<1.2	<1.2	na	2.3 B.
Antimony, Total Sb	3.03	6	6	<4.2	<4.2	<4.2	<4.2	na	<4.2	<4.2	<4.2	na	<4.2
Selenium, Total Se	3.02	50	50	<3.1	<3.0	<3.1	<3.1	na	<3.1	<3.1	<3.1	па	<3.1
Thallium, Total TI	6.99	2	2	<7.9	<7.9	<7.9	<7.9	na	<7.9	<7.9	<7.9	na	<4.0
Vanadium, Total V	11	па	па	<3.0	<3.0	<3.0	<3.0	na	<3.0	<3.0	<3.0	na	<3.0
Zinc, Total Zn	21.1	na	na	<1.9	<1.9	5.3 B	<1.9	na	<1.9	2.6 B	<1.9	na	2.2 B
EXPLOSIVES													
1,3,5-Trinitrobenzene	na	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
1,3-Dinitrobenzene	1	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2,4,6-Trinitrotoluene	2	па	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2,4-Dinitrotoluene	30	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2,6-Dinitrotoluene	na	па	па	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	2.4	2.3	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2-Amino-4,6-Dinitrotoluene	na	na	na	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2-Nitrotoluene	na	па	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
3-Nitrotoluene	па	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25
4-Amino-2,6-Dinitrotoluene	na	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	0.54 UJ	0.50 UJ	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Nitrotoluene	na	па	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
HMX	400	na	па	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	4.1 J+	4.0 J+	34 J+	34 J+	12 J+	12 J+	0.43 UJ
Tetryl	na	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Nitrobenzene	na	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	< 0.25
RDX	2	na	ла	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	18 J+	18 J+	260 J+	270 J+	45 J+	46 J+	1.3 J+
PERCHLORATE				0.054 J	0.52	0.044 J	0.12 J	0.086 J	3.1	2.8	0.17 J	0.17 J	0.48

	LEGEND	
Shaded areas - metal values are abo	ve Maximum Contaminant Levels -	1
Shaded areas - explosive values are	above background levels	25
J = Estimated value		
UJ = Analyte tentatively not detected a	at the reported concentration due to spike recovery values above QC limits	
J+ = Value may be blased high based	t on high spike recoveries in the matrix spike samples	
B = The result is less than the reporti	ng limit but greater than the instrument detection limit	
na = not analyzed.	= Parameter not measured	

Notes: Background levels for Explosives are from Functional Area I RI. Background levels for metals are from AOC 57 RI.

TABLE 4-2

GROUNDWATER ANALYTICAL RESULTS - November 1-3, 2004

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELLS (Sheet 2 of 3)

Devens, Massachusetts (concentration in ug/l)

1

			DATE	1/3/04	113/04	11304	112104	11204	11204	INTIDA	112104	112104	120
		ĩ	Well No.	27M-93-05X	27M-93-06X	27M-93-08X	SPM-92-06X	SPM-93-08X	SPM-93-10X	SPM-93-12X	SPM.92.16X	SPM-97-23X	SPM-97-24X
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND	ז ר		LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW		LOWFLOW	LOW-FLOW	LOWFLOW		LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOWELOW
			Endoral		Lonneon			Retricton					
METALC	LEVELS	MA I					· · · ·				·		
Silver Total Ag		net.	SCS (Ugin)	200	169		-15	<4 B	<1 E	216	<1 E	~1.5	21 B
Aluminum Tatol Al	4.0	18	na	3,0 0	1.0 0	2.0 0	<1.0		NI.3		<u> </u>	445.0	
Amenia Tatal Ar	10.5	na			<34.1	<u></u> 	870	<u>~34.1</u>	90.7 B	<u>/9.0 D</u>	02.7 B		<u></u>
Arsenic, Iotal As	10.5	10	10			414.0	10.9 50.4 D	< 3.1	3.2 8	<u>~0.1</u>	<0.1	<3.1	<u></u>
Barium, Iotal Ba	39.0	2000	2000	<11.0	10.00	<u> </u>	59.1 B	<11.0	411.0	<11.0	<u>silu</u>	511.0	
Delvium, sotal De	0	4	4	<0.30	<0.30	<u><0.30</u>	<0.30	<0.30	<0.30	<0.30	<0.30	<0.30	<0.30
	14700	l na	na	4670 B	3580 B	6960	39,400	2550 B	3140 B	6640	2580.8	4/30 B	9050
	4.01	5	5	<0.50	<0.50	<0.50	<0.50	<0.50	<0.50	<0.50	0.54 B	<0.50	<0.50
Gobart, Total Go	25	na	<u>na</u>	<3.1	<3.1	<u></u>	<3.1	<3.1	<3.1	<3.1	<u> <3.1</u>	<3.1	
Chromium, Total Cr	14./	100	100	2.2 B	2.3 B	2.7 B	<1.1	<1.1	3.4 8	2.7 B	<u>1.5 B</u>	<1.1	<u>1,9 B</u>
Copper, Total Cu	8.09	1300	1300	<2.6	<2.6	<2.6	<2.6	<2.6	<2.6	<2.6	3.0 B	<2.6	<2.6
Iron, Lotal Fe	9100	па	na	102	45.9 B	<35.5	<35.5	<35.5	78.1 B	<35.5	45.7 B	608	37.7 B
Mercury, Total Hg	0.243	2	2	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10
Potassium, Total K	2370	na	па	839 B	848 B	<u>1680 B</u>	7880	1700 B	1980 B	2480 B	2160 B	1930 B	2730 B
Magnesium, <u>Total Mg</u>	3480	na	na	<u>1570 B</u>	859 B	1560 B	<242	317.8	854 B	2200 B	664 B	983 B	<u>3630 B</u>
Manganese, Total Mn	291	na	na	<u> </u>	2.9 B	<u>7.4 B</u>	<u>1.5 B</u>	<1.0	2.2 B	12.7 B	<u>1.3 B</u>	229	<1.0
Sodium, Total Na		20,000	па	4070 B	2030 B	4650 B	7340	2710 B	3480 B	6580	3160 B	2950 B	<u>3490 B</u>
Nickel, Total Ni	34.3	100	na	<2.9	<2.9	<2.9	<2.9	<2.9	<2.9	<2.9	<2.9	<2.9	<2.9
Lead, Total Po	4.25	15	15	<1.2	4.5	<1.2	<1.2	<1.2	<1.2	2.9 B	<1.2	<1.2	<1.2
Antimony, Total Sb	3.03	6	6	<4.2	<4.2	<4.2	<4.2	<4.2	<4.2	<4.2	<4.2	<4.2	<4.2
Selenium, Total Se	3.02	50	50	<3.1	4.1 B	<3.1	<3.1	<3.1	<3.1	<3.1	<3.1	<3.1	<3.1
Thallium, Total Ti	6,99	2	2	<4.0	<4.0	<4.0	<7.9	<7.9	<7.9	<7.9	<7.9	<7.9	<7.9
Vanadium, Total V	11	па	па	<3.0	<3.0	<3.0	<3.0	<3.0	<3.0	<3.0	<3.0	<3.0	<3.0
Zinc, Total Zn	21.1	na	na	<1.9	<1.9	<1.9	4.4 B	<1.9	<1.9	2.4 B	<1.9	<1.9	<1.9
EXPLOSIVES													
1,3,5-Trinitrobenzene	na	na	па	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
1.3-Dinitrobenzene	1	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2.4.6-Trinitrotoluene	2	na	па	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2.4-Dinitrotoluene	30	na		<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2.6-Dinitrotoluene	na	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25
2-Amino-4.6-Dinitrotoluene	па	na		<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2-Nitrotoluene	na	па	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25	<0.25
3-Nitrotoluene	па	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Amino-2.6-Dinitrotoluene	na		па	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Nitrotoluene		 	Da	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
HMX	400	na		<0.25	0.35111	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Tetry				<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Nitrobenzene	na		na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.20	<0.25	<0.25
RDY	2			0.52111	0.01111	<0.25	<0.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.20	<0.25	<0.20
	<u>_</u>			0.18	0.12 1	0.11.1	<0.20	0.030 1	0.081	0.20	0.20	0.087 1	0.005 1

LEGEND

Shaded areas - metal values are above Maximum Contaminant Levels -			25
Shaded areas - explosive values are above background levels			25
J = Estimated value			
UJ = Analyte tentatively not detected at the reported concentration base	d on spike recover	values above QC I	imite
B = The result is less than the reporting limit but greater than the instru	ment detection lim	it	

Notes: Background levels for Explosives are from Functional Area I RI.

Background levels for metals are from AOC 57 RI.

TABLE 4-2

GROUNDWATER ANALYTICAL RESULTS - November 1-3, 2004

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELLS (Sheet 3 of 3)

Devens, Massachusetts (concentrations in ug/l)

				12/04	13/04	13/04	3104	3104	3104	3104	13104	304
			DATE	_ 1 ¹¹¹	/ ^ ^N				<u> </u>	<u></u>		
		_	Well No.	D-1	41M-93-04X	41M-94-09A	41M-94-09B	41M-94-11X	41M-94-12X	41M-94-13X	41M-94-14X	41M-94-14XD
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND				LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW
	LEVELS	MA	Federal									:
EXPLOSIVES		MCLs	(ug/l)									
1,3,5-Trinitrobenzene	na	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0,25	па
1,3-Dinitrobenzene	11	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	na
2,4,6-Trinitrotoluene	2	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0,25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	na
2,4-Dinitrotoluene	30	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	na
2,6-Dinitrotoluene	na	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0,25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	na
2-Amine-4,8-Dinitrotoluene	na	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	na
2-Nitrotoluene	na	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	na
3-Nitrotoluene	na	па	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25	na
4-Amino-2,6-Dinitrotoluene	na	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	na
4-Nitrotoluene	na	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	na
нмх	400	na	па	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	na
Tetryi	na	na	na	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	na
Nitrobenzene	na	na	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0,25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	па
RDX	2	па	na	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	na
PERCHLORATE	na			0.24	<0.20	0.15 J	0.49	<0.20	<0.20	0.051 J	0.088 J	na
VOLATILES												
1,1,2-Trichloroethane	na	5	5	na	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0
cis-1,2-Dichlorgethene	na	70	70	na	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0
Carbon tetrachloride	na	5	5	na	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0
Carbon disulfide	па	na	na	na	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0
Tetrachloroethene	na	5	5	na	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0
trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	na	100	100	na	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0
Trichloroethene	na	5	5	na	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0
Toluene	na	1000	1000	na	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0
Vinyl chloride	na	2	2	na	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0

Note: Background levels for explosives taken from Functional Area I Ri.

LEGEND	
Shaded areas - metal values are above Maximum Contaminant Levels -	25
Shaded areas • explosive values a = Parameter not measured	25
J = Estimated value	
B = The result is less than the reporting limit but greater than the instrument detection limit	
na = not analyzed.	

 a^{1}

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELL 25M-92-06X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 1 of 2) (Concentrations in ug/i)

				/ .	/ .	1.8	. / .	3 / 1	/ /	. / .*	/ .*	/ #	. /	/ *
			DATE	SAL SAL	A MARY	Star.		1018t	1010	ARE.	soft.	1 5 ⁶	Safe.	
	Well No.		26M-92-08X											
PARAMETERS	BACKOROUND		FLTERED?	YES	NO I	NO	NO	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOWFLOW	LOWFLOW	LOWFLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW
		MA.	Foderal											
METALS		M	CLs (ug/i)											
silver, Totel Ag	4.6		h	<2	4	<4.6	<4.6	<16	<3.0	<1.0	<0.8	<0.60	<1.8	<1,5
uminum, Totel Al	6870		h	<25	8710	1640	16000	<100	350	321	23.4	51,3	181	34.1 B
rsenic, Total An	10.5	10	10	<2	<2.64	<2.54	4.94		<ð.0	<1.0	<2.1	<1.5	<3.2	<3.5
arium, Tolal Ba	39.6	2000	2000	<10	35.4	9,35	36.6	<8	<10.0	3.2	<2.05	<4.0	49.2	<15,7
eryllium, Total Be	5			<5	<5	<5	<5	<5	<3.0	<0.1	<0,1	0.31	<0.20	<0.30
alcium, Total Ca	14700	110	Ге	2090	1 3390	3200	3990	2440	2760	2460	2430	2260	2680	2260 B
edmum, Total Co	4.01	3	5	<5	<4.01	44.01	<6	1 <10	<3.0	\$0.2	<0.65	<0.20	<0.30	<1.3
obali. Total Co	25	Die 1	na	<10	<25	<26	33.5	30	<6.0	1 <1.0	<1.35	1.7	<2.2	<1.1
hronsium, Total Cr	14.7	100	100	<10	24.1	<6.02	41.9	<15	9.4	1 21	2.2	59	44.8	<1.3
opper Total Cu	6.09	1300	1300	410	<25	<26	33.6	<28	<5.0	0,90	2.3	4.7	<1,6	<2.5
on Tolal Fe	9100	04	69	\$25	33660	5230	56000	1 141	644	654	38.5	154	375	<30.0
ercury, Tolal He	0.243	2	2					-0 200	<0.2	40.1	<0.1	<0.10	<0.1G	<0.10
diassium. Total K	2370	n e 1		1190	2490	2020	2480	<1000	877	624	420	444	674	537 B
etresium Total Mo	3480		De .	711	\$370	033	2800	686	778	726	880	\$00	722	627 8
annanese. Total Mn	291		00	17.6	161	59.7	890	55	13.6	10.3	18	- 33	1 1	<10
odium Total Na	10600	20000		<2000	1040	2400	< <u>2000</u>	1840	9100	1040	1490	1070	2040	1760 B
lake Total N				210		201.0	41.2	240	- 2198	1 300	4.0	1 22	- 41.5	200
and Total Ph	4.75		16	25	472	41.28	11.6		-20	A.V	400	×0.60	1 11	28
olimany Tatel Sh		- <u>*</u>		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	42.02	41.62	11.0	1	250				1	28
elanium Total Se	3,00	<u>⊢ ⊹</u>		- 23	(3.03	#1.00	2	- 75	250		-1.85		1 200-	-15
Follow Telel TI		<u> </u>	~~~~	~~	~3.04	-3.02	¥	205		<u></u>	-1.00			
namon, rola si	0.00	┝─╧─┤					38.0	475			4.20		20	29.0
anscron, rotar v				<10 <10	10.5		424		50.V		1.0			20
		┉┉┉	0	*2U	04.2		141	- *49		<u></u>	1,0			. 22.0
2 6 Tantrahamana								10.446				10.00	c0.05	<0.06 ····
2 Distance areas	·····				+			0.120					1 20.25	40.43
A R.T. doitioluine	·	- <u>n</u>			-0.875	40 F36		0,125	1 2 2 2	20.20		40.25	40.20	-0.20
4. On brate ware		<u></u>				-0.030	h			-0.43		40,23	-0.20	10,20
& Distratelyarun	····		118		-			20,120	24.20			20.25	1 20 28	1 20.20
Amino 4 6 Dializatelumna	<u> </u>	<u>+-</u> ®			+		<u> </u>	20128			-0.20	40.20	20.05	40.23
All Poloius a					<u> </u>	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		1-312-		-0.20 		40.25		-0.20
hitehologia	ne	1-22-1					<u> </u>	1 20 128	1 2000		40.20		-0.26	20.43
Angles 2 S. Disilizatel unas		<u> </u>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>		**		1 20 20		34		-0.20	20.20
Nilestational		1 m Pill m	14						1 2000	40.65			10.25	-0.23
		<u>⊢</u> ≞-	na	<u> </u>				49.120			10.67	59,60	40.25111	10.20
and	400	<u>– 64</u> –	<u></u>	-	1,21		<u> </u>	+	1 22			<u> </u>		20.40
	<u></u>	<u> 0</u> ,,	100					1	1 7 50	20.20	225	1 <u>3</u> 2	-0.25	
	<u></u>	<u> </u>	<u>N¥</u>					4		1 50.25	40.25			50.43
		<u> </u>	<u>n</u>			1,1/	×13	~0.5	7.60	-0.20		~0.20	0,20	-0.23
<u>~= 10</u>	na	1 118	10		<20	~20	L	<u></u>	<u> </u>	<u>_</u>	-			

FIELD PARAMETERS	 											
Discolved Oxygen mg/L	1	-		-		10.75	1,67	11.08	10.74	10.21	12.58	10.24
Oxidation Reduction Potential my			-	-		209.6	161.6	183.9	251.2	333.2	197,3	368.9
pH		1				6.05	4.74	6.24	5.62	6.68	6.08	5.96
Specific Conductance		-	-			0,091	33.0	27.0	26.0	26.0	31.0	26
Turbidity NTU		-			- 1	4,92	27	31	3.00	9.00	9.30	2.79

Notes: Background levels for Explosives are teten from Functional Area I RJ. Background levels for metals are jaken from AQC 57 RJ.

LÉGEND	
Vélue la above Meximum Conteminant jurvel	28
Explosive value la above backgroung level	25
J # Estimated value	
B * The regult is less than the reporting timit but greater than 0	he instrument priection limit
CB 7 not enelyzed.	•• = Parameter not mensured i

SOUTH POST IPACT AREA WELL 25M-97-11X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 2 of 2) (Concentrations in ug/l)

				/ ^	1	/	/ .*	/	/ *	1 2	1 .
			DATE	101907	1987 P	102110	18771D	107210	10150	INTIN	191391
		Well	No. 268-97-11X								
PARAMETERS	BACKOROUND			LOW FLOW	LOWFLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOWFLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW
	LEVELS	MA	Federal		1		1				
IETALS		MC	Le (ug/l)		-		1		[
ilver, Total, Ag	4,6	. 0)	ni	<15	<3.0	-	<1.0	<0.8	<0.60	<1.4	<1.5
luminum, Total A	6870	nl	nl	<100	<200		27.5	113	84.2	49	50,4 B
rsenic, Total As	10.5	10	10	<8	<5.0	-	<1,0	<2.5	<1.5	<3.2	<3.6
anium, Total Ba	39.6	2000	2000	<5	<10.0		<2.8	<2.05	<4,0	<9.2	<11,7
arylium, Total Be	\$	4	4	<5	<3.0		<0.1	<0,1	0.37	<0.20	0.39 B
alcium Total Ca	14700	กย	na	2610	2670		2440	2460	2330	2400	2330 B
admium, Total Co	4.01	5	5	<10	<3.0	-7	<0.2	<0.65	<0.20	<0.30	<0.70
obait. Total Co	26	na	na	<30	<5.0		4.5	<1.35	<1.4	<2.2	<3.1
nomium, Total Cr	14.7	100	100	<15	<5.0	- 1	<0.5	1.0	4.0	<4.5	2.6 B
poper, Total Cu	8.09	1300	1300	<25	<5.0		<0.9	2.0	1.9	<1.8	<2.0
on, Total Fe	9100	ná	na	31	<100	-	30.4	22.0	124	41.7	<30.0
ercury, Totat Ho	0,243	2	2	<0.200	<0.2	-	<0.1	1 <0.1	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10
tasalum, Total K	2370	08	na	<1000	749		814	656	555	683	649 B
agnesium, Totel Mo	3480	da l	08	980	971		979	091	859	857	851 0
encenese. Total Mn	291	18	ria .	<5	<5.0		1.3	1 1 3	20	<2.6	108
vilue Total Na	10800	20 000		1880	2760		2597	2420	2410	2330	2270.0
eket Totel NI	94.9	100		2000	2100		4.4	1 11	2410	<12.5	
and Total Ph	A 25	15	16		62.0				20.60	21.1	
nimoru Total Sh	3 / 3		A						c2.2		22.0
alenium Totel Se	2.03	50	50		×0.0	<u>i</u>		41.05	a10		220
adflum Total TI	4 00	····· ¥Q!.		215					210	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	21.8
pendings Total V	41	·····	<u>-</u>	<15 c25	×.v		20.9	<10	621		-28
an Total Za	21.1	0.0	54	-25	124		21	3.2	40	26.0	~20
	R 13 f								100		
3 S.Tdnimbenzene	09	- 10	49	<0.126.L	41.20	<1.00	<0.25	<0.95	<0.25	<0.25	20.26
2 Distroberrade		190		~V.1260	41.20	41.00			-0.25	CD 25	20.25
6 S. Trinkminiuene		114	100	<0.1265	41.20	21.00	<0.25	40.25	-0.25	<0.24 c0.25	20.25
L Diated black	30	000	08	40.1251	21.00	<1.90	40.95	20.05	20.05	40.25	20.25
P. Diotroialuone			00	<0.1250	<1.20	<1 20	1 40.25		40.76	1 20.25	40.25
Amino 4 8-Dioimin/uene	00				4.20	<1.69	10.20	<0.95	40.05	× -0.40	20.25
Nitminiuede	03	12	09	<0.1253	CAV	<1.40 <2.80	<0.75		<0.25	=0.25	×0.25
Nitrofoliane	02	na 19	 	<0.1250	22.60	<22.80	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25 CO 25	<0.25	<0.25
Amino-2.8-Dinitrotoluana	09	10	<u></u>		21.20	<1 20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.20	c0.25
Nitrololuene	<u>112</u>	ng.	<u></u>	<0.1257	22.60	<7.80	40.40	20.25	c0.25	<0.25	¢0.20
AY	400	03	na	<10L	-2,00			1 25	0.14	<0.20	10.25
int				(0.51	-2 80	~2.00	40.25	20.25	c0.25	<0.25	<0.05
mhenzede	03			-0.00	~4.0V	21.00		1 20.25	<0.05	<0.25	-0.25
NY NY	2			<u></u>	<1.20	22.60		20.25	c0.26	-0.20	<0.25
(<u>0</u>		- 110		~0.00	~6.00		+ <u></u>	<u> </u>		-0.20	
					<u> </u>	<u> </u>	·	1		·	L
FIELD PARAMETERS				10.10	0.76	476		48.20	0.45		10.00
Distriction Reduction Referition			·	10.10	042.0	9,12	9.87	007.4	9,47	<u> </u>	10.00
ANDROLL MEODCIDIT - DREIKISI MV -				191.0	216.8	216.8	189.8	22/.4	803.0	247.8	222.4
Section Conductors		· · . =		0,12	0,14	0.14	0.18	0.04	<u></u>	6.45	+ <u>0,0/</u>
CONDICION CONCICUINCE		l		0.301	38,0	38.0	្រ សាស	1 31.9	1 33.4	34.0	1 61

Notes: Background levels for Explosives ere taken from Functional Area i Ri. Background levels for metals are taken LEGEND

Value is above Maximum Contembre	nt Level			25
Explosive value is above backgrown	d level			25
J = Estimated value				
B = The result is less than the report	ing fimit but greater th	en the instrument del	ection limit	
na p not analyzed.			manaured	

from AQC 57 RI.

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELL 26M-92-02X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 1 of 4) (Concentrations in ug/l)

				52419	3	*		2 NER			NISION	NATION		
			DATE	64	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u></u> xa.	<u> </u>	<u></u>	<u> </u>	/ N ^{SS}	<u></u>
DADAMETEDA	Well No.		26M-92-02X				- 4 -							
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND		FILTERED7	TES	NO	. NQ	NO	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW
	LEVELS	MA	receral											
METALS	4.0	MG	LS (ug/l)						-0.0		-0.00	2.0	-1.4	-4.5
Aliminity Tatal Al	4.0	03	na		44001	10201	749 (470	<3.0	256	247	2.0	\$1.4	51.0
Aluministi, Total Al	10.6	<u></u>	10	5 A7	41900	10500	1400	170	219	200	247	202	23/0	399 4 0 D
Parlim Total Ro	20.6	2000	2000	5.07	2.34	×2.34 0.25	4,34 96.6		<10.0	-2.9	<2.05	0.0	10.7	0.0 B
Bendlium Total Be	5	2000	2500		30.4	8.30	00.0		<10.0	<0.1	0.08	<0.0	<0.20	<0.30
Calcium Total Ca	14700		4	2540	3100	2920	2520	2700	2600	2460	2820	2650	2070	2910.0
Cadmium Total Cd	4.01	R	- 11a 	_6474V		2020	2320	<10	2030	<0.2	<0.15	0.24	<0.30	<0.70
Cobalt Total Co	25			<10	<25	<25	<10	<30	< <u>50</u>	<10	<0.80	20	<2.2	<31
Chromium Total Cr	14.7	100	100	<10	678	<6.02	<10	25	<5.0	<0.5	32	28	4.6	338
Copper Total Cu	8.09	1300	1300	<10	114	<8.00	<10	24	<5.0 <5.0	<0.9	16	18	8.0	218
izon Total Fe	9100	1300	.300	<25	62901	1130.1	1200.1	300	239	317	315	418	2900	488
Mercury Total Ho	0.243	2	2					<0.200	1 <0.2	0.12	<01	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10
Potassium Total K	2370	-		<1000	1610	1820	<1000	<1000	<500	469	524	434	978	565 B
Magnesium Total Mg	3480	na		929	1910	1090	1080	1090	1050	1030	1110	1040	1490	1120 B
Manganese, Total Mn	291	na		<5	89.2.1	20.9	17.8	55	<5.0	3.8	45	57	35.3	13 B
Sodium, Total Na	10800	20,000	na	3370	3280	3410	2920	3470	3490	3220	3390	3500	3520	3120 B
Nickel, Total, Ní	343	20,000	ла Па	<10	<34.3	<34.3	<10	<40	<5.0	<0.9	30	3.6	<13.5	388
Lead Total Ph	4 25	15	16	<5	4 99	3 15	<5	<5	<3.0	<0.5	<0.90	<0.60	29	<14
Antimony Total Sh	3.03	6	6		4.00			<8	<5.0	<14	<2.30	<2.2	<3.5	<2.6
Selenium Total Se	3.02	50	50	<2	<3.02	<3.02	<2	<10	<5.0	1.4	<1.85	<1.2	<3.9	<30
Thailium, Total TI	6.99	2	2					<15	<2.0	<1.4	<2.25	2.2	<3.0	2.2 B
Vanadium, Total V	51	708	na	<10	<10	<11	<11	<25	<5.0	<0.8	<1.0	<2.1	<2.8	<3.8
Zinc. Total Zn	21.1	na	na	76.7	59.2	95.3	99.3	27.6	14.3	4.3	4.8	4.5	14.8	8.0 B
EXPLOSIVES					1									
1.3.5-Trinitrobenzene	па	na	na			-		< 0.125	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25
1,3-Dinitrobenzene	1	na	na	~		-		<0.125	<1.20	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25
2,4,6-Trinitroto uene	2	ńa	na					< 0.125	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	< 0.25
2,4-Dinitrotoluene	30	na	na				-	<0.125	<1,20	<0,25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25
2,6-Dinitrotoluene	na	nə .	Á8		<0.074	<0.074	<1	<0.125	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25
2-Amino-4,6-Dinitrotoluene	na	na	na	_		-		<0.125	<1.20	<0,25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25
2-Nitrotoluene	na	na	na	~	-		<1	<0.125	<2.60	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25
3-Nitrotoluene	ha	oa.	na i	-			1,86	<0.125	<2.60	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25
4-Amino-2,6-Dinitrotoluene	na	na	na	-		-	<1	<0.125	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Nitrotoluene	па	na	na			-		<0.125	<2.60	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25
нмх	400	na	na		<1.21	<1.21	<1.21	<1.0	<2.60	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25 UJ	<0.25 UJ	<0.25
Tetry	па	ná	ла		~	-		<0.5	<2.60	< 0.25	< 0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25
Nitrobenzene	па	na	กล					<0.125	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
ROX	2	па	กล		<1.17	<1.17	<1	<0.5	<2.60	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25
PETN	na	na	04		24.8	<20	<20					-	-	
Nitroglycerine	па	ла	na	**	68.3	<10	<10		-			-	-	-

FIELD PARAMETERS

		 and the second se									
Dissolved Oxygen mg/L				 	7.30	4.71	6.91	6.99	6.99	7.73	6.46
Oxidation Reduction Potential my			-	 -	172.0	166.5	230.1	236,5	295.0	160.4	133.0
pH		 	1	 +	5.83	6.10	6,02	5.67	6.08	5.88	6.02
Specific Conductance			-	 -	0.110	44.0	35.0	36.0	38.0	43.0	36
Turbidity NTU					4.50	2.3	14	4.1	15	57.3	65

Notas: Background levels for Explosives are from Functional

Area i Ri.

Background levels for metals are from AOC 57 RI.

<u>LEGEND</u>	
---------------	--

Value is above Maximum Contaminant Level					25 - 25
Explosive value is above background level					FOR 25 25
J = Estimated value					
B = The result is less than the reporting limit bu	t greater than the	instrument detec	tion limit		
na = not analyzed.		= Paramete	r not measured		

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELL 26M-92-03X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 2 of 4) (Concentrations in ug/l)

·			DATE	SSI AND	2 141819	6 SUBLIS	A DEFENS	NOTES OF	TOLENS	192119	A TRICOLOGY	10/2015	NUT SIN	, uneit	INTER	192110	L TOLET	193916	1015010
	Well No.	26M	-92-03X							-03XD		-03XD			-03XO		-03XD		-03XD
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND		FILTERED?	YES	NO	NO	NO	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW
	LEVELS	MA	Federal																
METALS		SC	Ls (Irg/l)																
Silver, Total Ag	4,6	63	ne i	-	-			<15	<3.0	<3.0	<1.0	<1.0	<0.80	<0.60	1	<1.4	-	<1.5	na
Aluminum, Total A	6870	na	na	<25	1050	323J	6700J	<100	<200	<200	13.6	16.6	38.6	8.1	1	28.9	-	<30.7	na
Arsenic, Total As	10.5	10	10	<2	2.88	<2.54	5,60	<8	<5,0	<5.0	~1.0	<1.0	<2.1	<1.5		<3.2	-	<3.5	na
Barjum, Total Ba	39.6	2000	2000	16.4	23.3	19.8	24.0	13.5	12.5	11.8	13.4	13.4	11,9	16.0		36.1		<11.7	na
Beryllium, Total Be	5	4	4		-			<5	<3.0	<3.0	<0.1	<0.1	0.08	0.39		<0.20		< 0.30	па
Calcium, Total Ca	14700	па	па	5650	6030	5920	5870	4400	4020	3810	4660	4580	4320	4750		10500	-	3440 B	па
Cadmium, Total Cc	4.01	5						<10	<3.0	<3.0	<0.2	<0.2	<0.15	<0.20		<0.30	-	<0.70	na
Coball, Total Co	25	ηa	ηa	<10	<25	<25	<10	<30	<5.0	<5.0	<1.0	<1.0	<0.80	<1.4	-	<2.2		<3.1	na
Chromium, Total Ci	14.7	100	100	<10	<6.02	<6.02	<10	28	<5.0	<5.0	<0.5	<0.5	1.6	2.0		<4.6		<1.3	na
Copper, Tolai Cu	8.09	1300	1300	<10	<8.09	<8.09	<10	<25	<5.0	<5.0	1.2	1.1	2.0	5.2		<1.8		<2.0	na
iron, Tolai Fe	9100	na	<u>na</u>	<25	1310	419J	2300J	210	<100	<100	<12.7	<12.7	29,9	16,5	-	26.2	-	<30.0	na
Mercury, Total Hg	0.243	2	2					<0.200	<0.2	<0.2	1.1J	0.133	<0.1	<0.10	-	<0.10		<0.10	na
Polassium, Total K	2370	па	na	1010	2200	2610	1510	<1000	1060	1030	1180	1100	1210	1040	-	1770		1040 B	ла
Magnesium, Total Mg	3480	na	na	589	697	651	936	610	<500	<500	427	421	458	388		695		335 B	na
Manganese, Total Mn	291	, na j	na	15.8	62.7	34.8	76.2	11.1	<5.0	<5.0	3.4	3.5	4.1	8.3		40.3	-	8.1 B	na
Sodium, Total Na	10800	20.000	na	2070	1900	2210	<2000	1740	1780	1750	1390	1560	1700	1720	-	2330	-	1490 B	na
Nickel, Total Ni	34.3	100	па	<10	<34.3	<34.3	<10	<40	<5.0	<5.0	<0.9	<0.9	<1.05	<2.1		<13.6		<2.8	. na
Lead, Total Pb	4.25	16	15	<u> </u>	1.41	<1.26	<5	<5	<3.0	<3.0	<0,5	<0.5	<0.90	<0.60		1.1	-	<2.8	na
Antimony, Total Sb	3.03	6	6		~			<8	<5.0	<5.0	<1.4	<1.4	<2.3	<2.2		<3.5	-	<2.6	na
Selenium, Total Se	3.02	50	50	~~	<3.02	<3.02	<2	<10	<5.0	<5.0	2	<1.2	<1.85	<1.2		<3.9		<3.0	na
Thallom, Total T	6.99	. 2						<15	<2.0	<2.0	<1.4	<1.4	<2.25	<1.8		<3.0			na
Vanadium, Total V	11	па	na	<10	<11	<11	<11	<26	<5.0	<5.0	<0.8	<0.8	<1.0	<2.1	-	2,8		<3.8	na
Zinc, Iolal Zh	21.1	na	na	<20	<21.1	<21.1	24.4		12,4	87.3	0.83	1	1.8	<0,90	-	<6.9		<2.0	na
EXPLOSIVES													0.00	0.05	-0.05				
1.3,5-1 rinitropenzene	na	na	. na .					<0.126J	<1.20	<1.20	<0.25	-	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
1,3-Dingrobenzene	·····	na	na.	-	-			<0.125J	<1.20	<1.20	<0.25		<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2,4,0-1 militalaidene	20	. na	na					 - 0.125J - 0.125J 	<1.20	×1.20	40.25		-0.25	~0.25	<0.20	<0.20	<u></u>		<0.20
2,4-Dintrotoluene	30	na	na		<0.074	<0.074		<0.125J	<1.20	<1.20	20.25	-	<0.25	<0.25	~0.25	10.25	<0.25	-0.25	<0.25
2. Amino. 4 E. Dipitratoluces	112	na			SQ.074	NU.074		<0.120J	<1.20	<1.20	<0.25		<0.25	<0.20	<0.25	<0.25	c0.25	<0.20	<0.20
2 Nitrolotuone	118	113	1.8						<7.50	~1.20	<u>0.23</u>	-	<0.23	<0.25	<0.25	20.20	<0.25	<0.20	<0.20
2-Nitratoluene	114	112	10				2	<0.1202	<2.00	<2.00	<0.25		<0.20	<0.20	<0.25	<0.20	<0.25	<0.20 <0.25	<0.25
4-Amina-2 6-Dinitrololuene	116.	118			- <u>-</u>			-0.1202		~2.00	<0.20	_	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Nitrololuean	161	- fid	FIG					<0,1202	<2.60	<2.60	<0.20	-	<0.22	<0.25	<0.25	<0.23	<0.25	<0.25	<0.20
	400	- 118 			11.2	0.42	8.03	9.01202	2.00	~2.00	17		2.2	12.1	12 1	931	34	11	10
Talod	400	60	118		11.2	5.42	0.83	2.6J	c2.60	-2.60	<0.25	-	< <u> 4.4</u>	10.25	<0.25	20.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Nilmbenzene	112	112						<0.00	<1 20	<1.00	<0.25	-	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
OBY	710		01		2007 CONTRACTOR		1000006893940	-0.1233 Secondary	-1.20 GAGESBOAGE	<2.80	-0.20 2022007.vivatek		-0.20 200001958/000	20.20	10.00	02.01	253502702480	-0.4v	
PETN	<u>2</u>	110	110		<20	<20	<10	CROZAND COSCO	20000000000000000000000000000000000000	~2.00	0000000000000000		CONSTRUCTION OF STRUCTURE	ACCOUNT AND ADDRESS	COMPANY OF COMPANY	The second s	nearer er en state fan sta	an a	
Nitroolycerine	114	138		-	<10	<10	<10												
THE OWN OF CHILD	1165	1 110	110		1 10	- 14		- 3			ليستحسب				_	-)		-	_

FIELD PARAMETERS

Dissolved Oxygen mg/L		- :	 -	 -	9,99 (10.27	10.27	6.91	6,91	11.88	51.44	11.44	9.48	9.48	11.14	11.14
Oxidation Reduction Potential mv			 -	 -	223.0	208.0	208.0	230.1	230.1	283.7	359.7	359.7	267.0	267.0	154.2	154.2
pН		- :	 -	 1	5.38	5.84	5,84	6.02	6,02	5,19	5.60	5.60	5.51	5.51	5.65	5.65
Specific Conductance				 -	0.119	44,0	44.0	35.0	35.0	39.0	48.0	48.0	87.0	87.0	35	35
Turbidity NTU				 -	2.00	0.45	0.45	0.70	0.70	0.90	0.32	0.32	1.69	1.69	0.7	0.7

Notes: Background levels for Explosives are from Functional Area I RL

Area I KL Background levels for metals are from ACC 57 RL

LEGEND

Value is above Maximum Contaminant Lovel					25
Explosive value is above background level					 38 3 -25 3 3 4
J = Estimated value					
B = The result is less than the reporting limit	but greater than	letoction limit	 		
ne = not enelyzed	_	= Daramet	ar not measured	 	

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELL 26M-92-04X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 3 of 4) (Concentrations in ug/l)

				1.0	1.3	1.	1.0	1.8	1.8	1.8	1.00	1.5	1.0	1.0	1.0	/	/ .
			DATE	UT HE	11118	-1250170		, unt	1979	19719	NOT THE	, sorte	, ione	Not the	NOT THE	NO.20	.1979
	Well No.	261	A-92-04X							-04XD			-04XD		-04XD		-04XD
PARAMETERS	BACKOROUND		FILTERED?	YES	NO	NO	NO	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW
	LEVELS	MA	Federal														
METALS		MC	Ls (ag/l)														
Silver, Total Ag	4.6	па	na	-	-		-	<3.0	<1.0	-	<0.80	<0.60	<0.60	<1.4	<1.4	<1.5	<1.5
Aluminum, Total, Al	6670	na	ŋâ	<25	24200	2560	6400	<200	21,8	-	8.5	<7.7	<7.7	<16.1	<16.1	35.2 B	31.8 B
Arsenic, Total As	10.5	10	10	<2	. 100	7.46	6.61	<5.0	1.5	_	<2.1	<1.5	<1.5	<3.2	<3.2	<3.5	<3.5
Barlum, Total Ba	39.6	2000	2000	<10	86.5	21.9	11	10.0	9.7	-	10.3	7.6	7.7	<9.2	<9.2	<11.7	<11.7
Baryllium, Tolal Be	5	4	4	-	-	-	-	<3.0	<0.1	~	<0.10	0.48	0.46	<0.20	<0.20	<0.30	<0.30
Calcium, Tolal Ca	14700	na i	ná	7920	15200	18100	8780	10300	12100	-	11300	8340	8270	9070	8790	8020	8150
Cadmium, Tolal Cd	4.01	5	5	-			-	<3,0	<0.2	-	< 0.55	<0.20	<0.20	<0.30	<0.30	<0.70	<0.70
Cobalt, Total, Co	25	na.	na	<10	44.8	<25	<10	<5.0	1.7	-	1.35	<1.4	<1.4	<2.2	<2.2	<3,1	<3,1
Chromium, Total Gr	14.7	100	100	<10	26,6	8.14	<10	<5.0	<0.5		0,55	0.93	1.9	<4.6	<4.6	<1,3	<1.3
Copper, Total Cu	8.09	1300	1300	<10	32	<8.09	<10	<5.0	<0.9		0.97	2.5	1.9	8.0 J	2.4 3	<2.0	<2.0
ron, Total Fe	9100	па	na	<25	31300	3060	2000	<100	<12.7	- 1	10.6	15.7	22.0	<22.6	<22.6	<30.0	<30.0
Marcury, Total Hg	0.243	2	2	-	-	-	_	<0.2	0.11	-	<0.1	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10
Potassium, Total K	2370	na	na	<1000	5470	2260	<1000	790	985		870	765	764	873	860	689 B	940 B
Magnesium, Total Mg	3480	na	па	1080	4830	2410	1390	1250	1380	-	1190	871	864	912	864	873 B	968 B
Manganese, Total Mn	291	na	na	19.7	67.6	<34.3	<10	19.8	15.4		18,7	10,8	10,6	11.2	11.2	11.1 B	11.1 B
Sodium, Total Na	10800	20.000	na	3690	5810	6010	3390	4100	3880		3270	2920	3050	2980	2910	2630 B	2660 B
lickel, Total, Ni	34.3	100	na	<10	57.6	<34.3	<10	<5.0	10.7		1.05	<2.1	<2.1	<13.5	<13.5	<2.8	<2.8
ead, Total Pb	4.25	15	15	<5	27	6.4	<	<3.0	<0.5	_	<0.90	<0.60	<0.60	<1.1	<1.1	<2.8	<2.8
atimony. Total Sh	3.03		6		-		-	<5.0	\$1.4	_	\$2.3	<2.2	<2.2	<3.5	<3.5	<2.6	<2.6
selenium, Total Se	3.02	50	50	3.56	<3.02	<3.02	<2.0	<5.0	<1.2	-	1.85	<1.2	<1.2	<3.9	<3.9	<3.0	<3.0
hallium Total TI	6.99	2	2					<20	<14	_	<2.25	<1.8	<1.8	<30	<30	<1.8	<1.8
anadium Total V	11	-	-	<10	24.9	<11	<10	<5.0	<0.8		<1.0	21	\$2.1	<2.8	<2.8	<3.8	<3.8
inc. Total Zo	21.1	na	D-2	<20	59.5	<21.1	27.8	12.9	4.6	-	1.2	<0.90	<0.90	<6.9	<6.9	2.7 8	<2.0
XPI OSIVES		- 10	10		5010		5114	1210									
3.5-Trinitrohenzene	na				~	-	-	≤1.20	s0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<3.8	<3.8
3-Dinitrobenzene		 	00				-	<1.20	\$0.25	<0.25	<0.25	\$0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<3.8	<3.8
4.6-Trinitrololuene	2	00	na		-	-	-	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<3.8	<3.8
4-Dinitrotoluene	30	na	na	-			-	2.3	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	\$0.25	<0.25	<3.6	<3.8
6-Dipitrololuene	na	08	112	-	5.42	2.05	478	<1.20	<0.26	<0.25	3.6	3.0	2.8	3.1	3.4	\$3.6	<3.8
Amino-4.6-Dinitrotoluene	na l	na	D 2	_				<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<3.6	<3.8
-Nitrotokuene	08	na	na					<2.60	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<3.6	<3.8
-Nitrotoluene	na	ne	ns	-	- 1			<2.60	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<3.8	<3.8
-Amino-2.6-Dinitrotoluene	na	па	па	-	- 1	-	-	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	0.71	0.50	0,42	0.46	0.45	<3.8	<3.8
-Nitrotoluene	na	na	63	-			-	<2.60	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<3.8	<3.8
IMX	400	na	na	-	22.4	23	15.7	32.9	38	39	41	24 J	24 J	25 J	26 J	25	23
etry	na	na	08		_		-	<2.60	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<3.8	<3.8
litrobenzene	па	na	na	-	-	~	-	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<3.8	<3.8
DX	2	na -	na	-	SSC 270 SSS	3393390.7-33	59/25/3 198 /96/96	227.45%	·2013月240日 ·2014	·秋季和250 第783	260 4 3	200	200 38	@###180%%##	89392003686	SE210 ST	See 190 5
ETN	na	né	ne	-	<20	<20	<10			-	-	-		-	-	-	
ilrogivcarine	па	08	ná	-	<10	<10	<10					_		-	-	-	-
					*						•	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
FIELD PARAMETERS	1																
Dissolved Oxygen, mg/l) I	1		_		_	_	11.00	7.04	7.04	11 20	8.58	8.58	7 13	7 13	9 16	9.16
Oxidation Reduction Potential ray				_			_	198.7	230.3	230.3	227.4	375.0	375.0	253.3	253.3	368.1	386.1
nH								5.89	5.63	5.63	6.64	5.60	5.60	5.76	5.76	5 54	5 54
Provide Condustance	-			_		_	_	w.ua	v.v.	0.00	N.Y.T						
apecing Conductinge				-	-	-	-	107.0	101.0	101.0	31.0	86.0	86.0	86.0	86.0	69	69

Noles: Background levels for Explosives are from Functional Area I Ri. Background levels for matals are from AOC 57 Ri.

LEGEND						
Value is above Maximum Contaminant Level					ļ	25
Explosive value is above background level						常结常25%回家
J = Estimated value						
B = The result is less than the reporting limit bu	greater than the	ion limit	1			
na = not analyzed.		= Paramete	not measured			

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELL 26M-97-08X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 4 of 4) (Concentrations in ug/l)

			DATE	¥**	<u></u>	191	4017	1911	101	_ 49 ·	<u></u>	<u></u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>
	Wall No.	26M-97	-08X	08X	£6X	¢8X	08XD	08X	08X	Oaxd	08X	08XD	08X	-06XD
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND		FILTERED?	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW
	LEVELS	MA	Faderal											
IETALS		N	ICLs (ugii)											
Silver, Total Ag	4.6	58	72	<15	<3.0	<1.0	-	<0.80	<0.60		<1.4	-	<1.5	na
uminum, Total Al	6870	pa.	ns	110J	<200	23.9		28.8	11.7	-	43.3		30,7	na
rsenic, Total As	10.5	10	10	<8	<5.0	<1.0		<2.1	<1.5	-	<3.2		<3.5	na
anium, Total Ba	39.6	2000	2000	9.1J	10.0			9.3	11.0	-	13.1		<11.7	<u>na</u>
eryllium, Total Be	5	4	4	<5	<3.0	<0.1	-	0,06	<0,20		<0.20		Q.34 B	i na
alcium, Total Ca	14700	na	na	4330	3760	3710		3320	4090	-	5130		3580 B	[ла
admium, Total Cd	4.01	5	6	<10	<3.0	<0.2		<0.15	<0.20		<0.30	-	<0.70	na
obalt, Total Co	25	na	na	<30	8.5	2.6	-	<0.80	<1.4		<2.2		<3.1	na
hremium, Total Cr	14.7	100	100	<15	5.2	0.74		1.2	1.1	-	<4.6		<1.3	na
opper, Total Cu	8.09	1300	1300	<25	<5.0	<0.9	-	4.8	1.7	-	<1.8	-	<2.0	na
an, Total Fe	9100	nat	ла	260	<100	22.9		41.2	<15.7	-	42.4		<30.0	na
ercury, Total Hg	0.243	2	2	<0.2	<0.2	<0,1		0.28	<0.10	*1	<0.10	-	<0.10	na
otassium, Total K	2370	ла	na	<1000	793	774		926	772	-	676	-	671 B	na
agnesium, Total Mg	3460	na	Ra	534	<500	455	-	470	504	-	576	-	478 B	na
anganese, Total Mn	291	na	na	17.1	6.1	3.5		4.0	2.9	-	4.4		2.7 B	na
odium, Total Na	10800	20,005	na	2040	1950	1780	~	1980	2260		2230		1930 8	l na
ckel. Total Ni	34.3	100	na	<40	<5.0	1.5	-	<1.05	<2.1		<13.5	-	<2.8	na
ad. Total Pb	4.25	15	15	<5	<3.0	<0.5		<0.90	<0.60	-	1.6	-	<2.8	na
ntimony, Total Sb	3.03	6	6	<8	<5.0	<1.4	_	<2.3	<2.2		<3.5		<2.6	08
elenium. Total Se	3.02	50	50	<10	<5.0	1.7	-	<1.85	<1.2		<3.9		<3.0	63
hallium, Total, TI	6.99	2	2	<15	<2.0	<1.4	-	<2.26	<1.8		<3.0		<1.8	na
anadium, Total V	11	68	43	<25	<5.0	<0.8		<1.0	<2.1		<2.8	_	<3.8	na
inc. Total Zn	21.1	па	na	32.2.1	21.5	1.8		<1.75	<0.90	-	<6.9		<2.0	na
XPLOSIVES														
3.5-Trinitrobenzene	na	па	na	<0.125J	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.75	<0.75
3-Dintrobenzene	1	nà	na	<0.125J	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.75	<0.75
4.6-Trinitrotoluene	2	na	na	<0.125J	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.75	<0.75
4-Dinitrotoluene	30	na	nà	<0,125J	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.75	<0.75
6-Dinitrololuene	na	па	na	<0.125J	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.75	<0.75
Amino-4,6-Dinitrotoluene	na	па	na	<0.125J	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.75	<0.75
Nitrotoluene	na .	na	na	<0,125J	<2.60	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.75	<0.75
Nitrotoluene	na	па	na	<0.125J	<2.50	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.75	<0.75
Amino-2,6-Dinitrotoluene	ла	na	na	<0.1253	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.75	<0.75
Nitrotoluene	na	na	na	<0.125J	<2.60	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.75	<0.75
MX	400	na	na	4.9J	6.3	8.2	7.7	4,5	8î	9.3 J	9.2 J	9.6 J	4.5	4.3
etryi	па	na	na	<0.5J	<2.60	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.75	<0.75
trobenzene	na	na	na	<0.125J	<1.20	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.75	<0.75
DX	2	na	na	293 293 2850	336828:5%	34 Les 48	33,5567 42 broses	20380-30 56-570	32857-858	59 59 Store	\$355 63 (58)	23-265sta	0380374 005	122.332

Dissolved Oxygen mg/L		10.21	2.30	9.15	9.15	7.30	8.46	8.46	10,02	10.02	9.35	9.35
Oxidation Reduction Potential my		188.0	232.2	233,3	233.3	241.7	343.2	343.2	251.1	251.1	171.3	171.3
pH		5.65	5.64	5.67	5.67	5.77	5.65	5.65	5,43	5.43	6.67	5.67
Specific Conductance		0.112	40	35	35	33	41	41	51	51	36	36
Turbidity NTU		4.85	2,30	0,90	0.90	2.0	0.70	0.70	1.55	1.55	1.36	1.36

Notes: Background levels for Explosives	LEGEND	
are from Functional Area 1 Rf.	Value is above Maximum Contaminant Lovel	
Background levels for metals are	Explosive value is above background level	
from AOC 57 Rf.	J = Estimated value	
	8 = The result is less than the reporting limit but greater than	the instrument detection limit
	na = not analyzed.	= Parameter not measured

. .

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA - WELL 27M-92-01X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 1 of 4) (Concentrations in ug/l)

			0475	SST ST	SULT IN	, WART	101998	101858	NOTABO	1018101	WERE	Jorgi
	Well No.	2781-	92-01X	·	f	- <u>-</u>	f	f	f	ŕ	<u> </u>	ŕ
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND		FILTERED?	NÓ	NÖ	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW
	LEVILL	MA	Federal		1		· · · · ·					
ETALS		MCL	ະ ໃນໜີໃ									
ever, Total Ag	4.6	na	na	<4.5	<4.6	<15	<3	<0.6	\$0.8	<0.60	<1.4	<1.5
uminum, Tatel Al	6870	CHB	ла	<3,03	<3.03	1660	747	1300	1930	940	2650	256
senic, Total As	10.5	10	10	25.3	25.9	<8	<10	<1.0	8.5	4,5	<3.2	<3.5
irium, Total Be	39.6	2000	2000	121	101	13.4	<10	10,1	14,3	10.8	18.6	<11.7
eryilium, Tolai Be	5	4	4	<5	<5	<5	<3	0.1	<0.1	0.45	<0.20	0.36 B
icium, Total Ca	14700	ń£.	08	11400	9740	5680	8800	8700	5840	5470	9230	\$5700
admium, Totel Cd	4.01	5	5	<4.01	<4.01	<10	<3	<0.2	<0.55	<0.20	<0.30	<0,70
obalt Total Co	25	<u>na</u>	68	<26	<25	<30	<5	<1.3	<1.35	<1.4	<2.2	<3.1
nomium, Total Cr	14.7	100	100	48.4	35.5	78.8	<5	4.1	4.2	4.6	<4.6	1.6 B
opper, Total Cu	8,09	1300	1300	29.4	25.9	<25	<5	3	4.0	4.0	4.1	6.5 B
on, Tolal Fe	9100	na	03	41500	32700	2530	815	1140	1830	969	2400	153
ercury, Total Ho	0.243	2	2	<0.243	<0.240	<0.200	<0.2	<0.1	<0.1	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10
tassium, Totat K	2370	na	па	8660	7950	1500	1850	2310	1760	1390	2580	2250 B
aonesium. Total Mo	3460	na	ńa	9610	7740	\$120	820	1110	952	804	1380	851 B
anganasa. Total Mo	291	na l	na	820	585	83.7	11.1	28.3	29.1	21.6	37.0	7.68
dum Total Na	10800	20.000	59	4560	4690	3880	4970	4880	4550	4850	3580	4040 B
ckel. Total Ni	34.3	100		52.1	<34.3	88.5	4676	22	32	<2.1	<13.5	<2A
ad Total Ph	4 25	15		17.4	15.9		43		97		22	£2.8
otimony Total Sh	3.03	- 14. ma	- 15	c1 /3	A103	<u> </u>		62.5	01	62.2	<35	<2A
alanium Total Se	3.02	- šn	50	-0.00		<10	26	16	£1.85	212	<10.0	
naikum. Totat Ti	6.02	2				<15		<1A	€2.25	<1 R	30	<19
anadium Total V	11	19		44.9	610	675	25	10	34	9.4	42	<3.9
no Total Zo	211		19	125	110	25 R	97.6	53	86	46	7.0	21B
(PLOSIVES						80.0			, V.V ,		1.02	
9 S.Tdaitabaarena					<u> </u>	-0.125	c1.2	20.25	20.28	20.26	<0.25	(0.98
3-Dinitrohenzene		0.0		<0.611	0 81 1	#D 125	<12 <12	<0.20 <0.25	\$0.25	<0.25	<0.25	×0.25
é 6.7 doitectolucion		ne ne	00		~~	20 125	c12	<0.20 c0.25		ef 25	<0.25	
4-Diniminiueae	<u></u>	na		<0.084	20.082	<0.125	<12	<0.25	<0.25	40.25	<0.25	<0.25
8-Dintrooluege	1 10			-0.004		<0.126	612	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25
Amino d 6.Dintiminuone		00				<0.125	412	40.25	<0.25	c0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Nitrotoluane		nundi ¹² iumur	112		1	<0 125	<2B	<0.25 <0.25	\$0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Nitrotoluane		08		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<0.125	#2.6	<0.25	<0.25	60.25	<0.25	20.25
Amino-2.6 Dimtrotoluene		<u>80</u>	 na		<u>}</u>	CO 125	<1.2	61.25	\$0.25	60.25	\$0.26	<0.25
Nitolouene		na			1	c0 125	¢2.8	60.25	c0 25	60.95	<0.25	<0.25
MX	400	06		2 77	3 73	1 1 1	42.8	1 1	0.90	0.78	9.82.1	=
tevi		ng 1		-	0.15	<0.5	42.8	<0.26	<0.25	€0.25	<0.26	<0.25
imhenzene		10			<u> </u>	c0 125	212	en 26	<0.25	en 26	<0.25	×0.25
DY				42.4	40.5	44	28	-0.60	28	20	9.6	

FIELD FARAMETERS	·						•		
Dissolved Oxygen mg/L		 	6.75	6.88	5.25	7.13	5.46	6,35	8.48
Oxidation Reduction Potential my		 	170.9	187.7	204.8	235.2	315.1	232.3	408.1
piH		 -	5.93	6,14	5.99	6.08	5.96	8.35	6,38
Specific Conductance		 	0.149	71	72	52	55	86	100
Turbidity NTU		 м	35.6	18.2	23	41.0	35.2	84.7	7,19

Notes: Beckground levels for		LEGEND				
Explosives are taken from	Value is above Maximum C	conteminant Level				
Functional Area I (I),	Explosive value is above b	eologround level				
Background levels for metals are	J = Eatimated value					 .
taken from AOC 57 RI.	B= The result is less then	the reporting timit bu	grader than the im	irument detection li	nit	
	IT B GOT COSINTED.			f maistured		

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA - WELL 27M-93-05X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 2 of 4) (Concentrations in ug/i)

						783	1083				1000		2002	
			DATE	<u></u>				191	1.81	<u></u>	194	<u></u>	- Kar	
	Weil No.	27M	1-93-05X											
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND	MA	SILTERED?	YES	YES	<u>NO</u>	NQ	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOWFLOW
METALS		MC	La (ualt)			•••••••		t		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		· · · · ·		1
Silver, Total A9	4.8	na	na	~	<2	<2	<2	<15	<3	<0.8	<0.8	0.91	<1.4	<1.5
Aluminum, Tolai Al	6870	na	na	72.3	115J	2000	254./	2360	<200	1950	383	116	68.2	133 B
Arsenic, Total As	10.5	10	10	4,96	6.22	10.8	6.64	- 4	<10	3.3	6.6	4.1	<3.2	<3.5
Barlum, Total Ba	39.6	2000	2000	<10	<10	15	<10	27.4	<10	19.5	4,0	<4.0	<9.2	<11.7
Beryllium, Total Be	5	4	4	0.113J	<5	0.123J	<5	<5	<3	0.13	<0,1	0.45	<0.20	<0.30
Calcium, Total Ca	14700	na	na	11400	6730	11500	4640J	16700	4600	9260	7970	6290	5380	5190
Cadmium, Total Cd	4.01	5	5	<5	<5	<5	<5	<10	<3	0.21	<0.55	<0.20	<0.30	< 0.70
Cobalt Total Co	28	па	na	<10	<10	<10	<10	<30	<5	5.2	<1.35	<1.4	4.5	<3.1
Chromium, Total Cr	14.7	100	100	<10	3.69J	7.38J	<10	30.4	<5	17.1	3.1	3.4	<4.6	3.5 D
Copper, Total Cu	8,09	1300	1300	<10	<10	5.92J	<10	<25	<\$	24.9	2.5	3,7	<1.8	<2.0
Iron, Total Fe	9100	пà	na	22.6J	14.5	3000J	395J	2690	<100	2270	365	137	95.8	62.6 B
Mercury, Total Hg	0.243	2	2	<0,200	<0.200	<0.200	<0.200	<0.200	<0.2	<0.1	<0.1	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10
Potassium, Tolal K	2370	na	па	1120	<1000	1580	549J	4500	706	3520	1580	1170	1240	1370 B
Magnesium, Total Mig	3480	na	03	1800	1790	2400	1200	2280	1190	2110	1970	1680	1590	1630 B
Manganese, Total Mr.	291	na	na	1.46.	4.45.1	102	32.1	107	<6	88.2	22.2	9.5	6.6	7.0 E
Sodium Total Na	10800	20.000		6300	3320	5370	2120	9260	2250	3520	5500	4740	4600	4210.8
Nickel, Total, Ni	34.3	100	110	<10	<10	RQAI	<10	<40	<5	10.7	18	<2.1	<13.5	28
lead Total Ph	4.26	15	16	- 10		26	1 191		e3	65	<0.9	c0.60	<11 <11	<2.8
Antimony Total Sh	3.03	A	A A	~			< <u>5</u>		<6		23	62.2	<15	<2.8
Selenium Totel Se	3.02	50	50					<10	<5	<14	<1.85	<12	<39	30
Thailium Total Ti	6 99	2	2			41	11	<15	õ	414	<2.25	<1.8	<3.0	<1.8
Vanadium, Total V	11	 	na	<10	<10	<10	<10	<25	6	2.9	16	<2.1	<2.8	<3.8
Zinc Total Zo	21.1	na	10	9.651	5.051	34.6	57.81	76.1	<10	67.2	3.7	3.6	i <8.9	2.7 8
EXPLOSIVES	<u> </u>				0.000									
1.3.5-Trinimpenzene					·······	_	-	c0 126	c1 2	₹7.25	¢0.25	<0.25	¢0.25	<0.25
1 3-Dintimbenzene		00	 			0.288.1	1.03	<0.125	<12	ch 25	AT 25	<0.25	<0.25	₹0.25
2.4.6-Trinërrioluene	2	- 100				0.5000		c0 125	<12	<0.20	<0.25	cn 25	<0.25	<0.26
2 4-Dinitminiuene	30	02	03	_		<10	0 2811	<0.125	<12	<0.25	×0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2.8-Dinifrotoluane	na	na	03				44	<0.125	<12	<0.25	<0.25	\$0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2-Amino-4.8-Dicitrotoluene	08	na	08					<0.125	<12	<0.25	<0.25	₹0.25	<0.26	<0.25
2-Nitrololuene	114	na				<1.0	<1.0	<0.125	<2.8	<0.25	<0.25	\$0.26	<0.25	<0.25
3-Nitrotoluene	08	ná	56			0.802	<1.0	<0.128	\$7.6	<0.25	<0.25		<0.25	<0.25
4-Amino-2.6-Dinitrotoluane		na	na			<1.0	<1.0	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26
4-Nitrotoluene	02	na	na					<0 125	<2.8	<0.25	<0.25	\$0.25	<0.25	<0.25
HMX	400	na	na	<u> </u>		<1.0	<1.0	<10	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25111	<0.25 [].	<0.25
Tetrvi	0.0	03	08	-	-			<05	<2.8	<0.25	<0.25	\$0.25	40.25	\$0.25
Nitrobenzene	na	na	na			-+	<u></u>	40 125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
RDX	2	na	na			1.02	0.788J	<0.5	<2.8	<0.25	0.50	0.43	0.48	0.43
			·	<u> </u>					<u> </u>		- <u></u>			1
FIELD PARAMETERS	1													<u>}</u>
Dissolved Owners and	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					1	····	4.00	0.70	0.02	0.74	0.10	6 50	A 74
Ovidation Reduction Setection and			<u> </u>				<u> </u>	1,09		400.0		0.23	(4.0	0.79
APA APART AP	<u> </u>		·				+		-104,3	7 05	*107.1	232.0	7.20	<u>233</u>
Specific Conductores	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		 					6 9,03	a.03		445.0	7.9/	1 1.30	6.69
Tuskeen ker		<u> </u>	1					0.200	193.0	<u> </u>	115,0	/0.0	<u>00.0</u>	80
	I				L	-	<u> </u>	L58.7	<u>j. 38.1</u>	1 61.6	12,5	<u> </u>	3.59	1 9.6

	LEGEND			
Notes: Background levels for Explosives are taken from.	Value is above Maximum Contaminant Level			25
Functional Area I RL	Explosive value is above beokground level			25
Background levels for metals aretaken from AOC 57 Rf.	J = Estimated value	- = Peremeter not measured		
	B = The result is less than the reporting limit but greater th	an the instrument delection (imit		
	rse = not analyzed.		- Parameter not measured	

- 2

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELL 27M-93-06X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 3 of 4) (Concentrations in ug/l)

			DATE	88 ¹⁸⁸⁵	11/10153	591993	1111000	IN THE NEW YORK	191888	tora PS	Southers	INTERN	NUT DUR	1959102
	Well No.	27M-	43-05X	·····			[í	f	1	ŕ		[
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND		FILTERED?	YES	YES	NO	NO	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW
	LEVEL B	HA	Federal						L					
METALS		MCL	a (ug/l)						<u> </u>	ļ				
Sliver, Totat Ag	4.6	0	10	<2	<2	1.48J	<2	<15	<	1.1	<0.80	<0.60	<1.4	<1.5
Aluminum, total Al	6870	na.	กล	28.1	75.8J	356	366J	<100	<200	237	49,5	25.1	92.3	73.98
Arsenic, Total As	10.5	10	10		<2	<2	1.03J	<u> «8</u>	<10	<1.0	<2.1	2.2	<3.2	<3.5
Banum, Tola: Ba	39.6	2000	2000	<10	<10	3.883	3.99.	<5	<10	2.9	<2.05	<4.0	<9.2	<11.7
		4	4	0.315	<5	0.204J	<5	<5	<3	<0.1	<0.1	0.39	<0.20	<0.30
Calcium, Iotal Ca	14700	na	ná	5190	4370	5370	4360	4920	4600	4900	3810	3800	3990	3890 B
Cadmium, Iotal Cd	4.01	5	5	<5	2.79		<5	<10	<3	40.2	<0.65	<0.20	<0.30	<0.70
Cobalt, Total Co	25	na	na	<10	<10	<10	<10	<30	<5	1.3	<1.35	<1.4	<2.2	<3.1
	14.7	100	100	<10	<10	<10	<10	<15	<5	3.4	2.0	2.8	<4.6	<1.3
Copper, Tala Cu	5.09	1300	1300	<10	<u><10</u>	1,62J	<10	<25	<5	2.8	1.3	1.3	<1.8	<2.0
IOR, IORAL PE	9100	<u> </u>		21.6J	24.4J	609J	<u>514</u> J	189	<100	302	50.8	52.7	66.6	<30.0
Mercury, Iolai Hg	0.243		Z	<0.200	<0.200		<0.200	<0.200	40.2	<0.1	40.1	<u>40.10</u>	<0.10	<0.10
Potassium, Icial K	2370	<u> </u>	na	<1000	432.3	1500	787.	1000	706	1820	896	748	1000	1180.8
Magnesium, Total Mg	3480	га	Бâ	1170	1130	1280	1270	1310	1190	1010	1040	948	1020	AS0 B
Manganasa, Lotal Mr.	291	ra ,	r.a	40,5	13.2J	54.6	35,4	6,1	<5	9.9	4.0	2.7	3.8	2.7 B
Sodium, Total Ne	10800	20,000	na	32\$0	818J	3110	3340	2460	2260	1860	2110	2210	2240	2180 B
Nickel, Total Ni	34.3	100	68	<10	<10	<10	<10	<40		1.3	1.2	<2.1	<13.5	<2.8
Lead, Total PTo	4.25	15	15	<5	0.9.1		0.93J	<5	<3	6.1	2.5	2,1	1.6 J	1.5 B
Antimony, Total Sb	3,03	6	5	<5	<5	<6	1.78J	<8	<5	<2.5	<2.3	<2.2	<3.5	<2.6
selenium, lotal se	3.02	50	50				-	<10	<5	<1.4	<1.85	<1.2	<3.9	<3.0
	6,99	2	2					<15	<2	<1.4	<2.25	<1.8	<3.0	<1.8
Vanadium, Total V	11	<u>na</u>	na –	<10	<10	<10	<10	<25	<5	<0.8	<1.0	<2.1	<2.8	<3,8
Zinc, Total Zn	21.1	na	na	15.1J	232J	<u>15,1J</u>	232J	<25	<10	3.1	1.9	1.2	<6.9	2.5 B
EXPLOSIVES														
1,3,5-Trinitrobanzene	na	na	па	-	-			<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0. <u>25</u>	<0.25	<0.25
1,3-Dinitrobenzene	1	กล	na	-		<1	1.09J	<0.125	<1.2	<u> <0.25</u>	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2.4,5-1 milliolokuene	2	0a	па				-	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2,4 Dmitrotoluene	30	08	na		-	<1	<1	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2.6-Dinitrololuena	na	្រាង	<u>na</u>		**	-		<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2-Amino-4,8-Dinitrotoluene	na	na	па		-		**	<0.126	<1.2	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2-Nitotoluana	60	na	па	**		<u><1</u>	<1	<0.125	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
3-Nitrotoluene	<u></u>	ла	_08			<u> </u>	<1	<0.125	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Amino-2,6-Dinimoluene	<u>na</u>	па	. 118		~ ~	<1	<1	<0,125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0,25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Nitrolouene	na	na	na				-	<0.125	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
HMX	400	na	na			0,699J	0.894J	<1.0	<2.6	0.63	0.54	0.34 J	0.43 J	0.28
Tetry	na	na	na		••		-	<0.5	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26
Naropenzene	na	na	na	-				<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	40.25	<0.25	50,20
KUA	2	na 📃	na			1.56	1.11	22	220	1.3	0.96	0.91	0.95	0./5
FIELD PARAMETERS	1													
Dissolved Oxygen mo/L			l					10.95	8 12	9.93	11.37	10.66	9.41	9.94
Oxidation Reduction Potential my	1		i			44		94.3	139.2	194.5	234.9	305.9	252.8	144.0
CH	1		i				_	8.30	6.62	6.43	6.32	6.34	6.51	6.19
Specific Conductance		·						0 132	38.0	42.0	38.0	42.0	44.0	39
Turbiolty NTU				-				4.85	2.5	8.9	3.8	2.21	5.61	3.20

Notes : Background levels for Explosives are

۰.

taken from Functional Area | Ri, Background levels for metals are taken from AGC 57 RL

	LEGEND			
Value la above Maximum Contaminant	Level			25
Explosive value is above background	(evel			25
J = Estimated value	- Parameter not measured			
B . The result is less than the reportion	g limit but greater then the instrument a	letection limit		
na = nat analyzed.		··· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	troest-stated	

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELL 27M-93-06X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 4 of 4) (Concentrations in ug/l)

			DATE	BUTT NO	11/10/23	BATTER .	1118080	11000	181998	191809	1075000	19'BE	1852/87	1973083
	Wall No.	27N	-93-08X	f		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		f	ſ	í	(1	
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND		FILTERED?	YES	YES	NÖ	NO	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOWFLOW	LOW FLOW
	LEVELS	MA	Federal				1							
METALS		MC	.a (ug/l)				1							
Silver, Total Ag	4.6	na	na	<2	<2	<2	<2	<15	<3	<0.8	<0.80	<0.60	<1.4	<1.5
Atuminum, Total Al	6570	na	na	<25	66.3J	279	168J	<100	<200	18	60.9	12.2	40.3	54.5 B
Ansenic, Tolal As	10.5	10	10	<2	1.36./	<2	~2	. <8	<10	<1.0	<2.1	<1.5	5.2	<3.5
Barium, Total Sa	39.6	2000	2000	6.19.1	4,30,1	8.02J	5.94J	<5	<10	4.3	4.1	<4.0	<9.2	<11.7
Beryllium, Total Be	5	4	4	0.087J	4	0.164J	<5	<5	<3	<0.1	<0.1	0.35	<0.20	<0.30
Calcium, Total Ca	14700	na	па	10200	4910	10800	5360J	7040	6370	8310	7270	7030	8520	7900
Cadmium, Total Cd	4.01	5	5	<5	<5	<5		<10	3	<0.2	<0.55	<0.20	<0.30	<0.70
Cobalt, Total Co	25	na	na	<10	<10	<10	<10	<30	<5	<1.3	<1.36	<1.4	2.2	<3.1
Chromium, Total Cr	14.7	100	100	<10	<10	<10	<10	<15	<5	1.2	2.0	1.5	<4,6	1.9 B
Copper, Total Cu	8.09	1300	1300	<10	<10	2.68J	4.94J	<25	<6	0.96	4,5	<1.0	<1.8	<2.0
Iron, Total Fe	9100	na -	rta -	<25	<25	384J	218J	42	141	12.1	45.9	16.9	42.3	<30.0
Mercury, Total Hg	0.243	2	2	<0.200	<0.200	<0.200	<0.200	<0.200	<0.2	<0.1	<0.1	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10
Potassium, Total K	2370	na 🕹	Ba	2330	1470	2570	2640	1800	1710	1870	1730	1600	1980	2030 B
Magnestum, Total Mg	3480	ла	na	2580	812	2660	899	1690	1970	2050	1630	1640	2010	1670 B
Manganese, Total Mn	291	ла	ne	74.1	35.9J	85.8	41.9	<5	10.8	5.9	17.0	8.4	2.8	3.4 B
Sodium Total Na	10800	20,000	08	10900	9580	11100	11800	6680	6480	6900	5720	5340	6040	5720
Nickei, Total Ni	34.3	100	na	<10	<10	<10	<10	<40	<5	<0.9	<1.05	<2.1	<13.6	52.8
Lead, Total Pb	4.25	15	15	≤5	<5	2.95.	<6		<3	<0.5	<0.9	<0.80	<1.1	<2.8
Antimony, Total Sb	3.03	6	6	<5	<5	<5	Ś	<8	<5	<2.5	\$2.3	22	<3.5	<2.6
Selenium, Total Se	3.02	50	50					<10	<5	<1.4	<1.85	<12	<3.9	3.0
Thalkum, Totel TI	6.89	2	2				_	<15	~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~	<14	42.25	<1.8	<3.0	<1.9
Vanadium, Total V	11	na	na	<10	\$10	<10	s10	<25		<0.8	<1.0	2.1	<2.8	<3.6
Zine, Total, Zn	21.1	0.9	<u></u>	102	124	122	1181	<26	<10	13	15	<0.90	<6.9	\$2.0
EXPLOSIVES			175			i				·····				
135-Trinitobenzace		na	na –				-	s0 125	- c1 2 -	<0.26	\$1.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
1.3-Digitrobenzene	1		60			1.82	1.03	<0.125	<12	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	50.25
2 4.6-Trindmtoluena	2	08	19		-			sī) 125	<12	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2.4-Dinitrojojuene	30	TR.	19			<1	<1	≤0.125	<12	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2.6-Dintrotoluane	09	08	na in					<0.125	=12	<0.25	40.25	50.25	\$0.25	50.25
2-Amino-4.6-Dinilipitoluena	ne	08						<0.125	c12	<0.25	≼0.25	<0.25	<0.25	\$0.25
2-Nitrololuene	60	na	ла			<1	<1	<0.125	\$2.8	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	50.25
3.Nitrololuene	па	na	09			2.78	<1	<0 125	\$2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Amipo-2.6-Dinitratoluana	63		08			<1	<1	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Nitrotoluane	na	na	08	-			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<0.125	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
HMX	400	na	па	_		0.11.J	< <u> </u>	<1.0	<2.6	<0.25	<0.26	0.34 J	<0.26 UJ	<0.25
Telim	na	na	ПА	**				<0.5	<2.8	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Nitrobanzene	na	na	na	**	-		-	<0.126	<1.2	<0.26	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
ROX	2	na	па			<1	<1	<0.5	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.26
	·	•					······							
Dissolved Owners mail								0.00	0.00	7.00	0.00	7.07	0.60	0.50
Cuidallas Cadudias Dalastial	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	8.56	8.88	1.46	9.02	1.01	5.08	8.03
		···· · ·						100.0	208.1	2184	208.0	044.0	215.0	400./
Specific Coordustors								5,82	0.00	0.96	0.30	3.00	2,66	3.00
Tuesday NT24				~				0.190	85.0	<u>87.0</u>	10.0	62.M	92.0	
TOROUTY NTO				. №				2.05	1 3.01	1 1,79	1 0.90	1.00	0.31	0.47

LEGEND

Value is above Maximum Conteminent	t Level			25
Explosive value is above background	level			25
3 = Estimated value	- Parameter not measured			
B = The result is tess than the reporting	glimit but greater than the instrume	nt detection limit		
ne = not ensiyted.		++ = Perameter not	meanured	

Notes : Background levels for Explosives are taken from Functional Area I Ri. Background levels for metals are taken from AOC 57 Ri.

.

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELL 41M-93-04X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 1 of 7) (Concentrations in ug/l)

			DATE	25710	BH135	WS110	1973112	ADCOND.	1929th	ALL	- SALEAN	SHIP	North P	1517APR	North Street	/
	Well No.	4164	93-04X				-04XD		-94XD				-04XD			1
PARAMETERS	BYOKPRONIA				1	LOWFLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOWFLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	1
	LEVEL	MA	Federal													1
·	1	MGL	a fuorili													1
EXPLOSIVES	1															1
1.3.5-Trinitrobenzene	i na	па	na	-		<0.125	<0.126	<1.2	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25		<0.25	<0.25	1
1,3-Dinitrobenzene	. 1	08	na	-		<0.125	<0.125	<1.2	<1.2	<0.25	40.25	<0.25		<0.25	<0,25	
2,4,6-Trinkrotoluena	2	na	ne i	<0,63	<0.63	<0.125	<0.125	<1.2	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25		<0.25	<0,25	1
2,4-Dinitrotoluene	30	TIS .	l na	-		<0.125	<0.126	<1,2	<1.2	<0.25	~0.25	<0.25		\$0.25	<0.25	
2.6-Cinitrotoluene	t na	па	(Aa	-		<0.125	<0.125	<1,2	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25		<0 <u>,25</u>	<0,25	
2-Amina-4,6-Dintrolaluene	na		[A8		-	<0.125	<0.125	<1.2	<1.2	<0.25	-0.26	<0.25		<q.25< td=""><td><0,25</td><td></td></q.25<>	<0,25	
2-Nilrojoluene	din .	08	Ra .			<0,125	=0,125	<2.6	<2.6	<0.25	-0.25	<0.25	-	<0.25	<0,25	
8-Narojoluana	na	na	f Da	-		<0,125	=0.125	<2.6	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.28		<0.25	<0.25	
4-Amino-2,6-Diaitosoluene	рâ	na i	na .	-	**	<0,125	<0.125	<1.2	<1.2	<0.26	<0.25	<0.26	••	<0.25	<0.25]
4-Nitrojojugne	na.	na	na -	-		<0.125	<0.125	<2,6	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25		<0,25	<0,25	
HMX	400	na	rta -			<1.0	51.0	<2.6	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25 UJ	-	<0.25	<0.25 J	F
Telry	na	0.9	Ca	-		<0.5	<0.6	<2.6	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25		<0.25	<0,25	ł
Niirobenzene	na	na	Da			<0.125	<0.126	<1.2	<1.2	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25		<0,25	<0,25	
RDX	2	18	па	_		<0,5	<0.5	<2.6	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25		<0.25	<0.25	1
VOLATILES							1									1
1,1,2-Trichloroethane	60	5	5	-		<5	<§	d	4	<1	<1,0	<1.0	<1.0	. <1.0	<5.0	
cis-1,2-Dichloroethane	па	70	70	<0,5	<0,5	<5	<5	ব	<1	<1	<1.0	<1.0	۹.0	<1.0	<5.0	1
Carbon tetrachloride	па	5	5	<0.5	<0.5	<5	<5	<u> </u>	<1		<1.0	<1.0	<1,0	<1.0	<5,0	1
Carbon dieulide	i da	្កាត	Ra	<0,6	<0.5	<5	4	ব	4		<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<6.0	
Telrachiorosthane	na	5	5	<1.8	<1.6	<5	30	<1	<1	<	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5,0	I
trans-1.2-Dichloroethene		100	100	<0,5	<0.5	<5	<5	<1	<1	्रें र	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1,0	<5.0	
Trichloroelhene	na	- 5	5	1.3	<0.5	<5	<6	13	11	41	<1,0	0.24,1	0.28/	<1.0	<5,0	
Toluene	.na	1000	1000	0.63	<0.5	<\$	<	<1	4	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0	
Vinyl chloride	D6		2	1			<5	<1	41	3.6J	<1.0	<1.0	<1,0	<1.0	<5,0	
	_															
FIELD PARAMETERS	·									-						_
Dissolved Oxygen mg/L		{		-		2,63	2.63	-		0.28	0.12	2.07	2.07	0.66	4,26	
Oxidation Reduction Potential mv						132.2	132.2		-	154.8	\$4.1	263.0	263.0	193,8	236.3	1
H		r —		_		5.46	5,46	**	**	6.43	5.81	5,47	5.47	5,49	5.25	1
Specific Conductorice				-		0.000	0.099			34,0	56.0	30.0	30.0	37.0	31	1
Turbidity NTU		-		-	_	0.80	0.80			0.89	090	0.60	(0.80	129	1.01	I

/	- ISTRA	/	11325th	/	arcs inst	/	Stat.	/		/	-53 ⁸⁵	/	19858	. /	105800	/	-MIR!	/		/	. White	/		/
DATE /	5 ⁵⁰	/	ø,	/	19 J	/	9	/	NOL .	/	A DALLA	/	18 C .		, GI		19 ¹	/	19 C	/	- A	/	101	/

LEGEND				
Value is show Maximum Conteminent Level	1			26
Explasive velue is above background level				25
J = Estimated volue				
B = The result is less than the reporting limit but greater the	n the instrument deter	i San (jmi)		
ne = not anatyzed. HS z Not sample	d	Parameter no	t manauted	

Note: Background levels for Explosives are taken from the Functional Ares (Al.

·. ·

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELLS 41M-94-09A

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 2 of 7) (Concentrations in ug/l)

			DATE	12105194	Sali Supp	19/5/191	1975/58	Tattaga	Northing	Tentier	1072ANS2	1078HD
	Well No.	418	-94-09A	ĺ .		L						
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUNO					LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW					
	LEVELS	MA	Federal									
		MCLs (ug/	B									
EXPLOSIVES												
1,3,5-Trinitrobenzene	na	<u>ne</u>	na		-	NS	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
1,3-Dinitrobenzene	1 1	ាង	па	1		NS	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2,4,6-Trinitrololuene	2	na	na	<0.63	<0.63	NS	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2,4-Dinitrololuene	30	na	na	_	-	NŚ	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2.6-Dinitrotoluene	กล	na	na		-	NS	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2-Amino-4,6-Dinitrotoluene	ົດສ	na	DBI	-		NS	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2-Nitrotoluene	na	na	na	-		NS	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
3-Nitrotoluene	па	na	па	-		NS	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Amino-2,6-Dinitrololuene	ná	na	na	-		NS	NS	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Nitrotoluene	na	na	na			NS	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
HMX	400	na	na		-	NS	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25 UJ	<0.25 UJ	<0.25 J
Tetryl	na	na	ne .			NS	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26
Nitrobenzene	na	1 na	na			NS	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
RDX	2	l na l	na			NS	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
VOLATILES			-								· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
1.1.2-Trichiorosthane	na	5	5		-	NS	ŃS	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
cis-1.2-Dichloroethene	na	70	70	<0.5	<0.5	NS	NS	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
Carbon tetrachloride	na	5	5	<0.5	<0.5	NS	NS	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
Carbon disulfide	na	na	na	<0.5	<0.5	NS	NS	শ	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
Tetrachloroathene	na	5	5	<1.6	<1.6	NS	NS	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	na	100	100	<0.5	<0.5	NS	NS	া ব	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
Trichlorcethene	na	5	5	<0.5	<0.5	NS	NS	ं	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
Toluene	na	1000	1000	<0.5	<0.5	NS	NS	ব	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
Vinvi chloride	na	2	2		-	NS	NŠ	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0

FIELD PARAMETERS										
Dissolved Oxygen mg/L						11.15	9.84	11.26	11.01	11.23
Oxidation Reduction Potential mv						226.2	242.1	340.0	119.6	264.8
рН		-	**	-		6.87	5.93	5.97	5.93	5.78
Specific Conductance			-	-	-	35.000	37.0	40.0	44.0	42
Turbidliv NTU		-	÷	1		0.95	0.50	0.40	1.39	1.51

e: Background lavels for Explosives taken

from Functional Area I Ri.

LEGEND

Value le above Maximum Contaminant	Levei				25
Explosive value is above background k	NS = Not sampled				25
J = Estimated value					
B = The result is less then the reporting	limit but greater that	the instrument deb	ection timit		
na = not analyzed,		Parameter not mea	sured	 	

TABLE 4-6 AOC41-GROUNDWATER TRENDS

.

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELL 41M-94-09B

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 3 of 7) (Concentrations in ug/l)

				155 PC	IN SHE	OUP	1998	Haffe	1150	-	12402	1
	Well No.	418	DATE	<u></u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u></u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND	<u> </u>	-04480			LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLO
	LEVELS	MA	Federal									
	-	MC	Ls (ug/i)			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·]
PLOSIVES					i — — —					1		
3.5-Trinitrobenzene	Πâ	na	na			<0.125	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
3-Dinitrobenzene	1	na	na		-	<0.125	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
.8-Trinitratoluene	2	na	na	<0.63	<0.63	<0.125	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
-Dinitrotoluene		па	na	-		<0.125	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
5-Dinitrotoluene	na	na	na.			<0.125	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Amino-4,6-Dinitrotoluane	na	na	na		-	<0.125	NS	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
litrotoluene	na	na	na .		-	<0.125	NS	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0,25
litrotoluene	na		na			<0.125	NS	<0.27	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Amino-2,6-Dinitrototuene	па	na i	na	-	-	<0.125	NS	<0.28	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
vitrotoluene	na	па	na			<0.125	NS	<0.29	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
AX	400	hâ 🔤	ດa			<1.0	NS	<0.30	<0.25	<0.25 UJ	<0.25 UJ	<0.25
tryl	na	na	na	-		<0.5	NS	< 0.31	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
tropenzene	na	na	na			<0.125	NS	<0.32	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25
XX	2	n8	na		-	<0.5	N\$	<0.33	<0.25	<0.25	-0.25	<0.25
DLATILES										1		
2-Trichloroethane	na	5	5		-	<5	NS	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
-1.2-Dichloroethene	<u>па</u>	70	70	<0.5	<0.5	ব	NS	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
rbon tetrachioride	na	5	5	<0.5	<0.5	\$	NS	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
rbon disulfide	na	กอ	na	<0.5	<0.5	<5	NS	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
trachloroethene	na	5	5	<1.6	<1.6	<5	NS	্ প	<1.0	<1.0 UJ	<1.0	<5.0
ns-1,2-Dichloroethene	na	100	100	<0.5	<0.5	<5	NS	4	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
chloroethene	ກອ	5	5	<0.5	<0.5	<5	NS	ব	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
luene	60	1000	1000	<0.65	<0.65	<5	NS	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
ny! chloride	na -	2	2	**	-	<5	NS	<1.)	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0

Dissolved Oxygen_mg/L			_	10.78	-	11.29	10,63	10.20	10.77	10.66
Oxidation Reduction Potential my			1	190.1	-	229.3	260.4	378.0	207.6	171.0
pH				5.81	1	8,11	6.07	6.04	6.27	6.05
Specific Conductance		-	-	0.101	-	31.0	31.0	34.0	36,0	38
Turbidity NTU			-	0.60	-	0.40	0.50	0,75	0.56	0.55

te: Background levels for Explosives taker

from Functional Area | RI.

LEGEND

				the second se	
Value is above Maximum Conteminant Level					25
Explosive value is above background is NS	Not earnpled				25
3 = Estimated value					
B = The result is less than the reporting limit b	ut greater than the instrument	detection limit			
na = not ensiyzed.		= Perameter not mea	sured		

..

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELLS 41M-94-11X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 4 of 7) (Concentrations in ug/l)

				1 2	/ *	/ *	/ .	1 0	/ .	/ *	1 2	/ *
			DATE	TUNGT	D3TMTEO	NOTSTIT	NOTON'	101 ⁹¹²	Not the	10HTIN	TOLEN	INTERIC
	Well No.	411	1-94-11X				í		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND	r –				LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOWFLOW
	LEVELS	MA	Federal		·							
···		M	Le fuell		·····							
EXPLOSIVES		<u> </u>						·				
1.3.5-Trinitroberzene	08	na	រាន			<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	50.25	≤0.25
1.3-Dinitrobenzene	1	na	na	-		<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2,4,6-Trinitrotoluene	2	na	ពង	<0.63	<0.63	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2.4-Distratoluene	30	u 8	na	-	-	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2,6-Dinitratoluene	ла	ла	na	-		<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26
2-Amino-4,6-Dinitrotaluese	na	na	na	**		<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2-Nitrotoluene	na	na	na	-	~	<0.125	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
3-Nilrotoluene	па	na	na i			<0.125	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Amino-2,6-Dinitrololuene	na	na	กล	_		<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Nitrotoluene	08	na	na			<0.125	<2.6	<0.25	≪0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
HMX	400	na	na		-	<1.0	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25 UJ	<0.25 UJ	<0.25 J
Tetryl	na	na	na	-	-	<0.5	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Nitrobenzene	na	na	na	••		<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
ROX	2	na	na	<u> </u>	-	<0.5	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
VOLATILES												
1,1,2-Trichloroethane	na	5	5		47	<5	<1	<1	<u><1.0</u>	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	ភឧ	70	70	<0.5	<0.5	<5	<1	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
Carbon leirachloride	na	5	5	<0.5	<0.5	<5	<1	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<6.0
Cerbon disuffide	กล	nə	na	<0.5	<0.5	<5	<1	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
Tetrachlorcethene	na	5	5	<1.6	<1.6	<5	<1	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
trans-1,2-Dichleroethene	na	100	100	<0.5	<0.5	<5	<1	<1	<1,0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
Trichloroethene	na	5	5	<0.5	<0.5	<5		<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5,0
Toluene	na	1000	1000	0.86		<5	<1	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
Vinyl chloride	na	2	2	-	~	<5	<u> </u>	<1J	<1.0	<1,0	<1.0	<5.0

FIELD PARAMETERS											
Discolved Oxygen mg/L				-	3.14	2.06	3.21	3.11	1.56	4.32	4.89
Oxidation Reduction Potential mv			-	-	181.1	86.3	132.6	235.7	197.0	213.3	135.1
pH			**		6.60	6.88	6.63	6.64	6.91	6.95	6.92
Specific Conductance			-	-	0.143	62.0	44.0	47.0	54.0	49.0	50
Turbidity NTU	 	_	-	-	0.80	8.20	3.50	5.10	4.20	4.42	10.28

Note: Background levels for	LEGEND	
explosives taken from	Value is above Maximum Conteminant Level	25
Functional Area I Ri.	Explosive value is above background level	
	J = Estimated value	
	B . The result is less than the reporting limit but greater than the instrument detection limit	
	de = pot entivati.	Parameter not measured

TABLE 4-6 AOC41 -GROUNDWATER TRENDS

.

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELL 41M-94-12X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 5 of 7) (Concentrations in ug/l)

						,	-			,		
				TUNNA	WISSS	- STATE	MARR		- STATE	SHITING .	MD4902	- MARTIN
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Well No.	415	1-94-12X	<u>~~~~</u> ``	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u>~~~</u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>
PARAMETERS	SACKGROUND	T		LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW
	LEVELS	MA	Federal									
		MC	Le (ug/l)									
EXPLOSIVES										1		
1,3,5-Trinkrobenzene	na	na	ne			<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
1,3-Olnhrobenzene	1	(กอ	na.			<0.125	<1.2	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2,4,6-Trinitrotoluene	2	na	na	<0.63	<0.63	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2.4-Oinitroloiuene	30	na	08	. <u> </u>		<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2,6-Dinitrojoluene	00	na	na	-	-	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
-Amino-4,6-Dinitrotoluene	08	na	กล		м	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0,25	<0.25	<0.25
-Nitrotoluene	na	na	an			<0.125	<2.8	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
-Nitrotojuene	na	na	na	-		<0.125	<2.8	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
-Amino-2,6-Dinitrotoluana	na	08	na		~	<0.125	<1,2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Nitrotoluene	na	na	па	-	-	<0.125	<2.8	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25
IMX	400	na	na			<1.0	<2.6	<0.25	<0,25	<0.25 UJ	<0.25 UJ	<0.25 J
etry	na	na.	па	-		<0.5	<2.6	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Kobenzene	81	na	na	-		<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
RDX	2	fi na l	na			<0.5	<2.6	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
OLATILES												
.1,2-Trichloroethane	กส	5	5		-	<6	<1	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
s-1,2-Dichloroethane	na	70	70	<0.5	<0.5	<5	<1	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
Carbon tetrachioride	ла	5	5	<0.5	<0.5	<5	<1	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
Cerbon disulfide	na	na	na	<0.5	<0.5	<6	<1	<1	<1.0	0.31J	<1.0	<5.0
eirachioroethene	ла	5	5	<1.8	<1.8	<5	<1	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
rens-1.2-Dichlorcethene	វាង	100	100	<0.6	<0.5	<8	<1	<	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
richloroethene	09	5	5	<0.5	<0.5	<5	<1	0.61	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
ciuene	ла	1000	1000	<0.6	<0.5	<5	<1	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
Vinvi chloride	08	2	2			<5		<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0

PIELD PARAMETERS										
Dissolved Oxygen mg/l.				2,91	3.01	8,10	3.38	3.28	1.01	2,13
Oxidation Reduction Potential my		 	m	149.1	179,8	178.9	184.7	320.0	130.1	277.2
pH		*		6.64	6.80	6,89	6.54	6.59	6.53	6.37
Specific Conductance			-	0.282	158.0	155,0	108.0	101.0	107.0	95
Turbidity NTU		 		1.62	3,68	3.60	1.90	1.44	1.98	2.27

.

Note: Background levels for			LÉGE	ND			
explosives taken from	Value la aboye Maximum Conteminant La	vol			_		25
Functional Area I RJ.	Explosive value is above background lev						25
	J = Eslimated value						
	B = The result is less than the reporting it	imit but greater than the	instrument detec	tion limit			
	ne = not enebyzed.				- B Paremater Do	f mensued	

TABLE 4-6 ACC 41 - GROUNDWATER TRENDS

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA WELL 41M-94-13X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 6 of 7) (Concentrations in ug/l)

	_		DATE	12005004	Date Market	Tention	INTANO	10TBIOS
	Wall No.		41M-94-13X					
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND				1	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW
	LEVELS	MA	Federal					
			MCLs (ug/l)					
XPLOSIVES								
3,5-Trightobenzene	na	na	กล			<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
3-Dinitrobenzene	1	na	na			<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
,4,6-Trinitrotoiuene	2	na	na	<0.63	<0.63	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Dinitrololuene	30	na	na	-	-	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
,8-Dinitrotoluene	na	na	na			<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
-Amino-4,6-Dinitrototuene	na	N8	na		-	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
-Nitrotoluene	L na	na	na	-	-	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25_
-Nitrotoluene	na	ກອ	na			<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Amino-2.6-Dinitrototuene	na	na	ná		-	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Nitrotoluene	па	na	18		-	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
IMX	400	na	ne	-		<0.25 UJ	40.25	<0.25 J
etryl	ກສ	na	na		_	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
litrobenzene	na	na	Пâ		-	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
DX	2	пв	na			<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
OLATILES								
1,2-Trichloroethane	па	5	5			<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
Is-1,2-Dichloroelhene	па	70	70			<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
arbon tetrachloride	na	5	. 6	<0.58	<0.58	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
arbon disulfide	na	па	R	<0.5	<0.5	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
etrachicrosthene	па	5	5	<1.6	<1.8	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
ans-1,2-Dichloroethene	ла	100	100	<0.6	<0.5	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
richlorpethene	na	5	5	<0.5	0.9	<1.0	<1.0	<6.0
oluene	na	1000	1000	-	-	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0
nyl chloride	na	2	2	-		<1.0	<1.0	<5.0

FIELD PARAMETERS

Dissolved Oxygen mg/L		-	6.14	1.01	6.64
Oxidation Reduction Potential mv		· · ·	303.0	130.1	239.0
pH		-	6.21	6.53	6.09
Specific Conductance		-	66.0	107.0	67
Turbidity NTU			3.0	2.0	2.04

Note: Background levels for

explosives taken from

Functional Area I RI.

LEGE	ND		
Value is above Maximum Contaminant Level	1 1		26
Explosive value is above background level			25
J = Estimated value			
B = The result is less than the reporting limit but greater than the	he instrument detection limit		
na = not analyzed.	- Parameter not measured	_	

Table 4-6 AOC 41 -Groundwater Trends

۰.

.

South Post Impact Area Well 41M-94-14X

Chemical Summary Report (sheet 7 of 7) (Concentrations in ug/l)

			DATE			5516	15 Martin			3 598	Ser TR	STATE	- AND		Salar .
	WALMA	416-	141	(<u> </u>	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		1400	<u> </u>	
PAPANETERS	BACKGRO MIC					TAWEIAW	LOW FLOW	TOWERDW	120010200	TOWELOW	1 OW BOW	LOWELOW	OWEIOW	1 OW CLOW	TOWELOW
	LEVELA		Federal											Real Provide	
		HO.	a (1/200)						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						
EXPLOSIVES			LY BY				/					t			
1.3.5-Tristrobanzene	na .	D:B	68	~		<0.128	<1.2	40.25	\$0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25		<0.25	ne -
1.3-DiaBtobenzenP	1	08	Na	-	-	<0.125	\$1.2	40.26	40.25	<0.26	40.25	<0.25	-	<0.25	64
2,4,5-Trinitrotoluene	2	hē	0.0	\$0.63		40.125	<1.2	<0.25	\$0.25	<0.25	40.25	<0.25		40.25	M
2.4-Dinkrotoluene	30	hà		-	-	<0.123	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26	40.25	<0.25	-	-0.25	14
2.6-Dinitrotoluane	ria	r.a	ne	-	_	<0,126	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	-	<0.25	na l
2-Amino-4,6-Dinilroibluene	na.	D.B.	00	-	-	<0.126	41.3	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	40.25		<0.25	D4
2-Nitrotoluene	40	n.e	DB	-		<0.125	2.4	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26	<3.26	<0.25	-	<0.25	ne ne
3-Migotoluene	£1.#			-	-	=0.125	2.8	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	0.28		⊈0.25	D.B.
4-Amino-2.6-Dintrotoluene	na	C.M.	ne	1	-	<0.125	4.2	-0.25	40,25	<0.25	40.28	40.25	1	40.25	CHI I
4-Nirotowane	na 🛛	na	D#	~	-	¢0.125	42.8	=0.26	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	+	0.25	ne i
Них	400	08	.00	-	-	<1.0	<2.6	40.25	40.25	49.25	<0.26 UJ	<0.28	-	<0,25 J	
Tetryi	nø	na -	176	-	-	<0,5	<2.6	<0.25	<0.26	<0,25	<0.26	4.25		40.23	DI DI
Nirobenzene	ne	R B	ne i	-	~	<0,126	43	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26	40.25	-	<0,25	DR .
ROX	2	n.n	ne –	_	-	<0.6	<2.6	<0,25	<9.26	40.25	<0.26	<0.25		¢0.25	N9
VOLATILES					1	(L				f	1		{	
1,1,2-Trichlaraelhene	na		Б	-		<5	4	<1	<1	<1.0	<1.0	<1,0	<1.0	<5.0	<5.0
cis-1,2-Dichlorositiens	114	1 70	70	10.5	<0,8	×5	4	41	<1	া বা ও	F 1,0	<1.0	_ বঞ	<8,0	4 .0
Carbon teirachioride	n	6	8	40,5	<0.8	-45	ধ	<1	<1	41, 0	<u>۲ <1,0</u>	<1.0	<1.0	<5.0	<6,0
Carbon disufice	na	na	. DA.	40.5	<0.6	<5	<1	<1 <1	<	<1.0	0,3[J	<1.0	<1.0	<6.0	<3,0
Teirschlorestheite	_ 04	5	5	<1,6	41,8	-<5	<1	<1	<u> </u>	<1.0	<1.0	<1,0	<1.0	<5,0	45.0
irans-1,2-Dichlorosinens	na	100	100		<0,5	<6	শ	<1		<1.0		<1.0	<1.0	<6.0	<5.0
Trohorosihene	na	5	5	1,2	< 0.5	<5	12	5,2	1.4	<1.0	0,434	0.54J	0,461	<6.0	<5.0
Teluene	na 👘	1000	1000	<0.6	40,5	<5	<1	i <1	<	<1.0	<u> <10</u>	<1.0	<1,0		45.0
Vinyl chloride	<u>na</u>	2	2		· · ·	- 46	*	i «I)	<u><</u>	<1,0	<1.0) ≼ 1.0	<1.0	≤6.0	\$.9
FIELD PARAMETERS.															
Oleselved Orivnen mail						e //	647	4.94	4.75	4.83	7 4 60	1 1/0	4 44		4.40
Outration Designition Selectial mu			<u> </u>				274.1	2070	245.4	720.0	347.4	7,70	0284	184.4	481.4
VANDOWS AND AND A CONTRACT OF			·····	-		6.10	4 47	402.0	202.0	444	8.40		K 98	494	4.14
Breelle Conducteore			·	-		0.004	0.01	- 7.00 - 58 A	000	340	12.0	48.4	49.0		
Turblity NTU						0.080	126	0.40	040	3.00	6.57	0.04	0.04	24	0.63
															. 7 672
Note: Background levels for explosive					LEGEND										
ure takes from Functional Area I Al.	1	Yahao is at	bove Maska em	Conteminent Level	1	Γ	<u> </u>		25	1					
		Explosive	value la above	beckground level			T	r	25	1					
] = Extima	ted value		1	Г				1					
		A = The co	oult le less the	the reporting limit b	ut greater then the (r	introment detection t	FR.								
		ne 4 not 4n	byred.		- = Parameter ne	k measured		1							

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA - WELL SPM-93-06X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 1 of 7) (Concentrations in ug/l)

			DATE	DB ¹⁶⁸³	THEFT	SHIRE ST	AND	1978/BT	IN SHEE	IN THE R.	ISTAND	131651	1872182	IN SAL
	Well No.	SPM-	93-06X											
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND		FILTERED?	YES	YES	NO	NC	LOW FLOW	LOW SLOW	1 OW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW
	(6)(5) +		Endanal											
METAL S	CEVELS	NICI e /	u da fili		· · ·		·				~~~			
Styler Total An	148	100-01	02	e2		-2		c15	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	<0.8	<0.80	<0.60	<1.4	<15
Akuminum Tobal Al	4,0		00	212	107/1	1500	2000	7910	2070	2400	1120	1480	1400	078
Accepto Total As	10.5	10	10	12.8	24.7	99.3	10.0	2010		2480	16.4	74	- 0.0	417
Portum Total Ro	20.6	2000	2000	417	400	50	467	154	144	475	112	422	117	99.1 12
Can/Furn Tetot So	58.0	2000	2000	41.7		0.142	131				42.4	0.29	<0.00	0.42 12
Celebra Telel Ce	14700			14400	000000	44000		74600	00000	40000	40000	U.30		<u> 0.42 0</u>
Codmium Total Cd	4.01	<u></u>	A	14400	<u></u>	14200	34300	/4000	00000	69000	40.65	0.20	<0.20	1 00 70
Coholt Total Co	4,01	5			50			<u></u>	·····		~U.00	4.64		t
Charature Total Cr	- 25	100	100	-10	- 10	6.041	3 60			~1.3	0.05			
Capper Tetal Cu	14.7	100	100	<10	2.663	0.64	3,090	10			<u>u.65</u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	
Copper, local Cu	8.09	1300	1300	510	<10 	3.463	<10	525	6.9	3	1.3	0.0	61.8	52.0
HOR, IUGR P8		na		\$25	21.8	2000	139	32	\$100	30.9	18.3	202	*22.6	
Mercury, rotal Hg	0.243	4	2					<0.200	\$0.2	<u> </u>	<0.1	<0.10	U11	<0.10
Potessium, Totel K	2370	<u> </u>	<u>ra</u>	16600	13630	17700	12500	44700	25200	45400	12860	22600	20900	8560
Magnesium, 1 otal Mg	3480	na	na	989	<500	1620	47.3	60	<500	<99.6	140	<195	<218	<30/
Manganésé, Total Mn	291	na	па	17.8	1.08J	324	19.1	<5	-5	40,2	3.7	0,70	<2.5	1,1 B
Sodium, Total Na	10800	20,000	na	12300	10400	11900	11500	21200	14600	25300	10000	14200	12200	7360
Nickel, Total NI	34.3	100	<u> 18</u>	<10	<10	6.89J	<10	<40	<5	<0.9	<1.05	<2.1	<13.5	<2.8
Leed, Total Pb	4.25	15	15	<5	<5	<5	<5	<5	<3	<0.5	<0.9	0.64	<1.1	<2.8
Antimony, Total Sb	3.03	6	6	<5	<u> </u>	<5	<5	<8	<6	<2.5	<2.3	2.2	<3.5	<2.6
Selenium, Total Se	3.02	50	50	P1				<10	<5	<1.4	<1.85	<1.2	<3.9	<3.0
Thallium, Total Ti	6.99	2	2	<2	-2	~2	<2	<15	2	<1.4	<2.25	<1.8	<3.0	<1.8
Vanadium, Total V	11	na .	па	<10	<10	<10	<10	<26	<5	3.3	1.6	2,6	<2,8	<3.8
Zinc, Total Zn	21.1	na	па	<20	3.06	21.9	16.6	<25	10.1	3.1	2.2	<0.90	<6,9	<2.0
EXPLOSIVES								-					L	
1,3,5-Trinitrobenzene	na	na	па	••				<0.125J	<1.2	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
1,3-Dinitrobenzene	1	na	na	-		<1	<1	<0.125J	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2,4,6-Trinitrotoluene	2	na i	na	-	-			<0.125J	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2,4-Dinitrololuene	30	នោ	rið	**	н			<0.125J	<1.2	<0.26	<0.25	< 0.25	< 0.25	<0.25
2,6-Dinitrololuene	na.	na	na			**		<0.125J	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2-Amino-4.6-Dinitrotoluane		na	па			н	_	<0.125J	<1,2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2-Nitrotoluene	na	na	na 🛛			ণ	<1	<0.125J	<2.6	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
3-Nilrotoluena	na	ла	na		~	<1	<1	<0.125J	<2.6	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Amino-2,6-Dinitrotoluene	na	ПÂ	na			<1	<1	<0.125J	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Nitrotoluena	na	na	na	-		-		<0.125J	<2.6	<0.25	<0,25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
MMX	400	na -	na	-4		м	_	<1.0.1	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	0.34 J	<0.25 UJ	<0.25
Tetryl	l na	ne i	na.	-	~		-	<0.5.)	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Nitrobenzene	na	na	na	-	-	-	-	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
RDX	2	ńa I	na			<1	<1	<0.52	<28	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25

Dissolved Oxygan mg/L			-	-	4	-	0.49	0.53	0.63	0.14	0.27	0.82	0.26
Oxidation Reduction Potential mu	/		-	-			53.0	-192.0	1.3	13.3	183.2	-66.6	55.6
pH					1		11.84	12.14	12.16	11.79	11.69	11.67	11.58
Specific Conductance					-		2.4	715.0	1323.0	69.2	852.0	1097.0	729
Turbidity NTU					-		1.70	0.85	2.4	0.50	1.75	1.26	0.71

• .

Notes: Background levels for Explosives are taken from Functional Area i Ri. Background levels for metale are taken from AOC 57 Ri.

LEGEND

Value le above Maximum Contaminant	I Level				25	
Explosive value is above background	lavel			•	25	
J = Estimated value					_	
B = The result is less then the reporter	og limit but greater ti	an the instrument de	cection timit			_
ha = not analyzed.		+ # Personeter no	tenessured			

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA - WELL SPM-03-08X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 2 of 7) (Concentrations in ug/I)

			DATE	BHINS S	1-11-BIRS	SHIPPS STATES	5-11-DEP	IN THE REAL PROPERTY OF	TRADIS.	10/1075	North North	TORTION .	1972192	1975P
	Well No.	SPM	93-08X	Í		· · · · ·	í · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<u>f-</u>	í	1	í	ſ		ſ
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND		FILTERED?	YES	YES	NO	NO	LOW FLOW	LOW-FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW-FLOW	LOW-FLOW	LOW-FLOW	LOW-FLOW
	LEVELS	МА	Federal	1						1		1		T
TALS		MCL	6 (0.9/1)						[1				· · · · · ·
ver, Total Ag	4.6	na	na	<2	~2	<2	<2	<15	<3	<0.8	<0.80	<0.69	<1.4	<1.5
minum, Tatel Al	6870	148	na	<25	42.3	109	190	<100	<200	<7.2	<6.2	<7.7	<16,1	<21.7
enic, Total As	10.5	10	10	1.82J	1,26J	1.64J	~2	<8	<10	<1.0	<2.1	<1.5	<3.2	<3.5
um, Tola: Ba	39.6	2000	2000	4.19J	<10	4,07J	3.14.1	<5	<10	<2.8	<2.05	<4.0	<9.2	<11.7
ydium, Total Be	5	4	4	0.248.	4	0,175	<5	<5	<3	<9.1	<0,1	0.22	<0.20	<0.30
cium, Total Ca	14700	- 249	na	3960	2640	3960	2830	2740	2750	2560	2490	2370	2430	2460 U
imium, Total Cd	4.05	Б	6	<5	1,56	<5	<5	<10	<3	<0.2	<0.65	<0.20	<0.30	<0,70
alt, Total Co	25	08	na	<10	<10	<10	<10	<30	5.5	<1.3	<1.35	<1.4	<2.2	<3.1
omlum, Total Cr	14,7	100	100	<10	3.78J	<10	3.18J	23.9	<5	1	2.0	1.9	<4.6	<1,3
per, Total Cu	8.09	1300	1300	1.47J	<10	1.09J	<10	<25	<5	0.89	1.3	3.0	22.1	<2.0
, Total Fe	9160	ria -	ná	<25	<25	220	165	155	<100	8.8	18.9	26.4	<22.6	<46.5
rcury, Total Hg	0.243	2	2	-			-	<0.200	<0.2	<0.1	<0.1	<0.10	<0.10	\$0.10
assium, Tolal K	2370	ra .	na	144G	<1000	2390	513	<1000	690	410	422	304	420	<838
nesium, Total Mg	3460	811	na	320J	283J	380.1	358J	350	<600	346	340	281	298	336 8
Panese, Tota' Mn	291	48	na	23.1	8.56	31.4	13.1	<5	4	0.27	0.83	0.63	<2.5	<1.0
ium, Totat Na	10800	20.000	na	3200	539	4600	2480	2290	2260	2070	2170	2080	2110	2310 B
el Total Ni	34.3	100	na	<10	<10	<10	<10	<40	<5	<0.9	1.1	<2.1	<15.5	18,5 B
d. Total Pb	4.25	15	15	<5	G	7.18	<5	<5	3	\$0.5	<0.9	15	<1.1	<2.8
mony, Tolal Sb	3.03	6	6	<6	2.44	5	<5	<8	<5	₹.5	<2.3	<2.2	<3.5	<8.2
enium, Tolel Sa	3.02	50	50	_			_	<10		<14	<1.85	\$1.2	<3.9	<3.0
lium. Tolal Tl	6.99	2	2	<2	- 2	2	0	<15	<2	314	<2.25	<1.6	<3.0	<1.8
adium, Totel V	11	na	60	<10	<10	<10	<10	<25	<5	<0.8	<1.0	<2.1	<2.8	<3.8
. Total Zo	21.1	na	69	37.7	110	43.1	455	35.7	<10	3.2	1.3	0.99	<6.9	3.0 6
LOSIVES										· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
5-Trintrobenzene	ກອ	na	ra.	-				<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Dinitrobenzene	1	na	92	-	**	ব	3.84	<0.125	<1,2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
6-Trinitrololuene	2	na	112	-				<0.125	रा.२	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Dinitrotoluena	30	na	na		-		·-	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Dinitrotoluena	ne ne	na	00	-	-	-		<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
mino-4.6-Dinitrotoluene	na	na	7.9	-			-	<0,125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
incloluene	na	na	າລ	-		<1	0.835J	<0.125	<2.6	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
irctoluene	na i	na	98	-		<1	1.45	<0.125	<2.8	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
nino-2.6-Dinitrololuene	na	па	na	_		ব	<1	<0.125	रा.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
ircioluane	na	na	na	-			-	<0.125	<2.5	<0.26	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26
<u>.</u>	400	na	na	-	-	0.295	<1	<1.0	<2.6	<0.26	<0.25	0.34 J	<0.25 [J]	<0.25 J
VI) na	na	na	- 1				<0.5	<2.6	<0.25	\$0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
benzene	DB DB	na	68					<0.125	\$1.2	<0.26	s0.25	s0.25	<0.25	<0.25
¥	2		1 12					0.6	06	CO 25	c0.25	#0.25	10.25	<0.25

-		
	FIELD PARAMETERS	

Dissolved Oxygen mg/L		-		-	-	11.13	10.27	12,13	12.84	11.07	11.96	11.60
Oxidation Reduction Potential mv		 -		-	-	158.6	192.6	230.6	240.0	333.0	175.0	327.2
pH		 -	1		-	6.20	6.59	6.35	6,74	6.25	7.66	6.35
Specific Conductance	 	 -	41	-	1	0.090	35.0	26.0	24.0	26.0	29,0	26
Turbidity NTU		-		-	-	2.00	0.10	0.50	0.20	0.85	c10	0.28

Notes: Background levels for Explosives are taken	LEGEND	2	
from Functional Area I Ri.	Value is above Maximum Contaminant Level		25
Background levels for metals are taken from AQC 57 RI.	Explosive value is above background level		25
	J = Estimated value		
	B = The result is see than the reporting limit but gree	ter then the instrument detection limit	
	ne = not ensiyzed.	- = Parameter not measured	

.

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA - WELL SPM-93-10X

.

.

.

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 3 of 7) (Concentrations in ug/)

.

.

.

	Well No.	S90.	0A16 93-107		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	ſ <u></u>	<u></u>	<u> </u>
PAPAMETERS	PACKODOLINO	<u> </u>	FR TENENA	VEQ	VEQ	NO.	NO	1.040 51.044			104451044	LOW SLOW	LOW ELOW	LOW FLOW
Consultiens	LINE	114	Picturator .	120	169			SOM PLON	LOWFLOW	LOW PLOW	LOW FLOW	conreon	LONTLOW	Lentron
ETAL S	PEVELO	MACE.	700000		<u> </u>					·				
ther Total An	4.8			20	1.611	0	2 34	-115	<1 ×1	<i>e</i> 10	<0.80	<0.60	e1.4	<1.5
umioum Total Al	8970	12		94.8	52.1	2/9	628	140	200	100	20.00	179	104	89.8.8
Panic. Total As	10.6	10	10	<5	<5	<8	<5	48	<10	84	5.5	5.8	37	7.80
atium Total 89	39.6	2000	2000	2.88.0	<10	7.93.1	6421	45	<10	08	<2.05	40	<0.7	<11.7
Indium Total Be	6	4	4	0.1641		65	<5 s5	45		= = 0 i	0.11	60 20	41.20	<130
alcum Total Ca	14700		79	4360	1300	3740	3920	2080	3560	2080	2890	3160	3040	3020 8
dmium, Total Co	4.01	5	5	<5	<5	<6	<5	<10	3	<0.2	<0.15	<0.20	<0.30	<0.70
abalt. Total Co	25	na	03	<10	2.48	<10	<10	<20	11.4	<1.0	<0.80	1.4	47.2	3.1
romum. Totel Cr	14.7	100	100	<10	<10	7.58	6.03.1	<15	13.5	1.2	3.2	20.7	<4.6	3.3 3
opper. Total Cu	8.09	1300	1300	<10	<10	3.09.	<10	<25	<5	<0.9	1.7	1.6	\$1.8	<2.0
n. Total Fe	9100	na	na.	51.5	124	679	811	235	203	243	59.4	311	141	<30.0
ercury, Total Ho	0.243	2	2					<0.200	<0.2	<0.1	50.1	<0.10	\$0.10	<0.10
tassium, Total K	2370	na	03	1630	2190	1600	1930	<1000	1060	1070	1540	996	1010	973 B
agnesium, Total Mg	3480	na	08	842	708	906	839	750	899	817	788	860	801	808 B
anganese. Total Mri	291	na	na	11.7	13.3	21.5	28.1	5.5	6.6	4.4	1.8	B.t	2.8	1.7 B
dium Total Na	10800	20.000	n9	3640	4210	3760	4240	2840	3270	2960	2840	2710	2640	2680 D
rkal Talal Ni	34.3	100	<u></u>	<10	<10	¢10	<10	<10	81	40.0	<1.05	11.0	<13.5	<2.8
ad Total Pb	4.25	15	15	<5	1 91.1	<6	1.621		3	<0.5	<0.90	0.61	<1.1	\$2.8
ilmony Total Sh	3.03	6	Ŕ	6	<5	<5	<5	<8	<5	< 4	\$7.3	\$2.2	<3.5	<2.6
lenium, Total Se	3.02	60	50					<10	<6	2.5	<1.85	<1.2	<3.8	<3.0
allum, Total Ti	6.99	2	2	2	0.91	<2	<2	<15	<2	<1.4	<2.26	<1.8	<3.0	<1.8
inedium, Totel V		na	69	<10	<10	<10	<10	<26	<5	<0.8	1.2	<2.1	<2.8	<3.8
no, Totel Zn	25.1	ne j	RØ	37.1	23.7	49	36.1	<26	21.7	2,5	2.6	2.6	<8.9	2.4 🗉
PLOSIVES		1					[
3,5-Trinitrobenzene	60	ne i	na .				**	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0,25	<0.25	<0.25
3-Dinitrobenzene	1	na	ng .	••		3.25	<1	<0.125	<1.2	<0,25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4.6-Trinitrololuene	2	98	na					<0.125	<1,2	<0.25	<0.25	<0,25	<0.25	<0.25
Dinitrotoluene	30	R9	ЛВ	-	14			<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25
3-Dininotoluene	na 👘	ាន		14	-			<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26
Amino-4.6-Oinitrolo uene	па	່ອຍ	118				(<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Virciolusne	08	L_na				<1	<1	<0.125	<2,8	<0.25	<0.25	<0,28	-0.25	<0,26
Vilroloiuene	B/T	0#	na		-	1.58	1 41	<0.125	<2.6	<0.25	<0.26	<0.26	Q.25	<0.26
mino-2.6-Dinfrotoluene	na	ດຂ	<u>na</u>			<1	<1	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.26	<0.26
litratoluene	<u>na</u>	ne	<u>^8</u>					<0.125	42.8	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25
IX	400	na 🛛						<1.0	<2.6	< 0.25	<0.25 UJ	(<u>≺0,2</u> 8 UJ	<0.25 U <u>3</u>	<0.25
nyl	na	ne	na		~			<0.5	<2.5	<0,25	<0.25	<0.25	\$0.25	<0.25
robanzene		na	<u>6n</u>	м	••			<0.125	<12	<0.26	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25
X	2) กล (Π Θ	-	(-	0.334	(0.782	<0.5	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25

PIELO PARAMETERO		 										
Dissolved Oxygen mg/L	 		-	2		9.47	8,60	10.40	8.11	9,91	9.50	10.59
Oxidation Reduction Potential my		*			j	137.6	208.7	209.7	218.8	302.6	219.4	374.1
pH		-		1	- 1	7.01	7.07	8.90	7,11	7.32	7,65	7.00
Specific Conductance	-	 	-	щ		0.109	47.0	32.0	33.0	37.0	37.0	34
Turbidity NTLL	 1	 		_	_	4.25	3 74	4.45	0.60	A 90	9 4 9	2.80

Notes: Beckground levels for Explosives are from Functions: Ares 1 Ri. Seokground levels for metals are from ADC 57 Ri.

LEGEND

Value la above Maximum Contaminant Level			25
Explosive value is above background jevel			24
J = Estimated value			
B = The result is less than the reporting limit but greater	than the instrument d	riection (imit	
ná = pel állályiðd,	Paremeter no	d measured	

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA - WELL SPM-93-12X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 4 of 7) (Concentrations in ug/l)

			DATE	681883	INDER'S	08 ¹⁸ 83	11083	1971BI	1002188	NUT DEP	IN CHAR	TUISON	1971PD	193165
	Well No.	SPM	93-121	·····	í	í	·	<u></u> _	i	f		(+ • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	<u></u>	í
PARAMETERS	ALCY COOLDED		ra tracca	YES	VES	NO	NO	LOW FLOW	1 OW ELOW	1 OW CLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOWFLOW
	000000000		Piter Piter	100					control		201112011	LOTTEON		conteon
METALS	Lavelo	me Met	- Auntil		-									
Sibrar Total A0	4.6	- MGL	a (uga)	0	£2		r7				c0.90	e0.00		e16
Abuminum Total Al	6970	610	0.1	425	40.0	105	952	c100	<200	56.0	12.5	15.6	<18.1	99.1 13
Americ Total As	10.5	40	10		5 471		1.401	4100	<10	1 1		16	63.7	416
Parfum Total Ba	20.6	2000	2000	2 371	4 33 1	5.671	5.51.1		<10	0.00	72	40	20.2	<11.7
Bablium Total Ba	55.5	4	1	0.307		0.2341	<5				201	0.60	an 20	<0.30
Calcium Total Co	14700			8080	7870	0080	7160	8480	6420	\$120	6100	8100	6600	6520
Cadmium, Tolal, Cd	4 01	5	5	<5	2 28	<5	<6	<10	<3	<0.2	<0.55	<0.20	<0.30	<0.70
Cohalt Total Co	25	- <u>v</u>	0.0	<10	2 3 3 1	¢10	3 74 1	41.2		613	-135	20	e2.2	e3.1
Chromium Total Cr	14.7	100	100	<10	<10	<10	3 14.1	633	02	45	47	6.0	<4.6	70B
Comer Total Cu	A no	1300	1300	<10	¢10	243	<10	<25		23	4.2	42	c1.8	<20
Imo Tolal Fa	9100		000	30.9	44.9	639	521	821	<100	105	31.0	54.2	34.0	<30.0
Marcury Total Bo	0.243	2	2				<u></u>	1 200	<0.2	<0.1	<0.1	\$0.50	\$0.10	<0.10
Potassium Total K	2370			2300	2030	2410	1890	1200	1210	1150	1040	984	1200	1220 B
Matnesium, Total Mr.	3480	#9	0.9	2400	2320	2610	2250	2150	2080	2100	2050	1950	2160	2090 8
Manganasa Total Mg	201	7.9		920	287	199	243	32	10.6	49.4	41	5.8	2100	338
Sodium Total Na	10800	20,000	0e	7530	5010	8490	5960	5220	6230	4740	4000	5020	5040	4960 R
Nickel Total Ni	10000	100	110	<10	2010	c10		81	5.6	1.0	45	23	c12.6	438
i and Total Dh	4.95	46	14	45	1 221		0 700 1		49	1.4		0.60		
Aslimony Total Sh	9.60	<u>_</u>			1.230		45		~~~	40.0		(1)		2.0
Selectron Total So	3.03	50	50		1.700			<10		18	C1.85	<12	5 63.0	<3.0
Theilum Total Ti	6.09	2		0	192	62	1.05	<15 <15	62	61.4	-2.25	<1 B	2 63.0	<18
Vanadium Total V	11			c10	*10	<u>~~</u>	<10	< 10			<10	26	<2.8	<1.0 <1.0
Zine Total Zo	211	700	09	1 281	20.6	19.81	35.2	18.1	33.0	21	25	18	< 6.9	298
EXPLOSIVES		110		1.2.04	80.4	10.00	00.6		444				-4.0	
135.Triotrobenzena	74							c0 125	et 2	×0.95	c0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
1.3-Dintenbenzene	1/10		60		<u> </u>	<1	<1	<0.1250 ≪0.1251	e1 2	<d 25<="" td=""><td><0.25</td><td><0.25</td><td><0.25</td><td><0.25</td></d>	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2.4 A-Trinkminture	2	09						en 1251	<12	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25
2.4-Diniminiuene	30	00	04		_		-	<0.1250	\$1.2	60.25	c0.26	<0.25	40.25	\$0.25
2.6-Dipitrolpluane	08	7.9	09					<0.1251	<1.2	60.25	40.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2-Amino-4 8-Diateotoluana	08	03	09	-			_	<0.126	<1.2	<0.25	\$0.25	\$0.25	<0.25	<0.25
2-Nitrotoluene	na	па	08			<1	<1	<0.125.1	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
3-Nikotokiene	na i	na.	na l		-	<1	<1	<0.125J	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Amino-2.6-Dinitroloiuene	ne l	na	na			<1	0.251J	<0.125.	<12	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Nilrotoluene	DB	na	n <i>a</i> l	41	49			<0.125J	<2.6	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
HMX	400	na	na		_	-		<1.0J	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25 UJ	<0.25	<0.25
Telrvi	6 0	na	na	_	-	-		<0.53	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Nitrobenzene	RB	na	nø.	-		-		<0.125J	<1.2	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.26
RDX	2	na	па			<1	0.251	<0.5J	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
FIELD PARAMETERS	1					<u></u>								
Dissolved Oxygen ma/L			[]			_		6.72	6.79	5,69	6.51	5,64	6.37	5,16
Oxidation Reduction Potential m								253.0	181.0	183.1	221.8	294.0	236.4	453.2
PH	i l			-	_			6.69	6,44	6.75	9,97	6.82	6.99	6.37
Specific Conductance			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	_		_	_ `	0.172	86.0	68.0	69.0	73.0	77.0	63
Turbidity NTU		-						3.60	0.87	1.38	0.40	0.60	0.96	2.47

.

Notes: Background levels for Explosives		LEGEND		
are from Functional Area I Ri.	Value is above Maximum Contaminant Level			28
Sackground levels for metals are from AOC 57 Ri.	Explosive value is above background level			. 25
	J = Estimated value			
	B # The result is less than the separting limit but grea	ler than the instrument de	teotion Cimil	
	ne = not analyzed.	- = Parameter not	measured	

.

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA - WELL SPM-93-16X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 5 of 7) (Concentrations in ug/l)

			DATE	STARS -		· super	°	JUR IN	. State		. Safe	, offer	ANA ANA	str.
	Bolf He	SPI	M-93-16Y	<u> </u>		/ ×	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		<u> </u>		<u> </u>
PARAMETERS	BACKOROUXE		PILTERED?	YES	YES	NG	NO	LOWFLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLO
	LEVELS	A!A	Federal											
METALS		M	GLs (ug/i)			1	1							
Silver, Total Ag	4.6	<u>ne</u>	na	2	<2	<2	2	<15	¢	<1.0	<0.60	<0.60	<1A	<1.5
Jumioum, Total Al	6870	n#	ne -	34	<25	349	121	<100	<200	13.6	14.0	\$7.7	<\$5.1	<30.7
rsenic, Total As	10.5	10	10	<2	~?	2	0.720J	\$	<10	<1.0	2.6	1.6	<3.2	<3.5
arium, Total Se	39.6	2000	2000	9.24J	<10	13	<10	5	<10	<2.6	<2.05	<4.0	<9.2	<11.7
teryllium, Tolal Be	5	- 4	4	<5	<5	<	<5	\$	<3	<0.1	0.18	0.36	<0.20	<0.30
alcium, Total Ca	14700	DAL	N	6\$70	2700	7080	2950	2800	2850	2550	2670	2590	2640	2550 B
admium, Total Cd	4.01	5	5	<6	<5	<5	<5	<10	4	-0.2	<0.15	<0.20	<0,30	<0.70
obalt, Total Co	25	D4L	na	<10	2.72	<10	<10	<30	<5	<1.0	<0.50	<1.4	<2.2	<3.1
Atromium, Tetal Cr	14.7	100	100	<10	<10	<10	40	21	4	<0.6	<0.55	0.75	<4.6	<1.3
opper, Total Cu	8.09	1300	1300	<10	<10	1.68.	<10	<25	8	<0.9	2.0	4.1	<1.8	<2.0
on, Total Fe	9100	D.B.	0.9	<25	<25	521	159	190	<100	<12,7	20.0	<15.7	<22.8	<30.0
leroury, Tolal Hg	0.243	2	2			i		<0.200	<0.2	<0.1	<u><</u> 0.1	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10
oteasium, Tolal K	2370	ruh 🛛	D.O.	1140	9913	1160	647	<1000	527	558	472	439	469	<522
agnesium, Total Mg	3460	na i	04 ·	764	654	890	707	714	743	652	762	688	647	646 1
anganesa, Total Mn	295	ne i	14	5,92	3,513	16.4	6,16	\$.6	<5	0.47	0.65	<0,60	<2.5	<1.0
odium. Total Na	10800	20,000	P#	2930	3430	2690	3140	2560	2580	2360	2590	2400	2720	2160 B
ickel Totel Ni	34.3	100	rite .	<10	<10	<10	<10	<40	<5	<0.9	<1.05	<2,1	<13.5	<2.8
ead, Total Po	4.25	15	15	<5	<5	< 5 C	1.05J	<5	<3	<0.5	<0.90	0.60		<2.8
ntimony, Total Sb	3.03	6	8	<5	<5	2.46J	<5	<8	<5	<1.4	<2.3	<2.2	<3,5	<2.6
elenium, Total Se	3.02	50	60			{ _	-	<10	<5	<1.2	<1.85	<1.2	<3.9	<3.0
hallium, Totel TI	6.99	2	2	<2	O.85	2	0.77	<15	<2	<1,4	<2.25	<1.8	<3.0	<1.6
anadium, Total V	11	ńs.	60	<10	<10	<10	<10	<25	<5	<0.8	<1.0	<2.1	<2.8	<3.8
ino, Total Zn	21.3	na	ne	22.3	36.3	79.3	44.7	<25	<10	1.5	<1.75	<0.90	<6.9	<2.0
XPLÓSIVES														
3.5-Trinitrobenzena	26	n0	76.					<0.126	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
3-Dinikobenzene	1	nə	M	-	-	4.37	2.08	<0.125	<1,2	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4,6-Tripitrojoluana	2	ne	176	н	-	-		<0.125	12	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Dinitrotoluene	30	nø.	ne	-		-		<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	40.25	40.25
6-Dinitrotoluene	na 👘	n#		-			-	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
-Amino-4,6-Dinitrololuene	na	ne	710	-	-	-		<0.125	<12	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
-Niirotokrana	na 👘	na 🛛	ne .	L		0.995J	्व	<0.125	<2.8	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
-Nilrolaluene	49	na 🛛	na	-	-	2.773	2,66	<0.125	2.6	<0.25	<0.26	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25
Amino-2,6-Din trololuene	па	D.B	M .			<1	<1	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.28	<0.25
Nitralatuene	na	na			-	-		<0,125	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
MX	400	Dê i	. (%)				-	<1.0	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25 UJ	<0.25 UJ	<0.25
ekyi	na	TMB -	D:0	-				<0.5	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	40.25	<0.25
trobenzene	na	68	na	-		-		<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	-0.25	<0.25
DX	2	ne i	04			<1	<u> </u>	<0.5	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0,25	<0.25
	-													
TILLO PARAME (CN3	_	_												

Dissolved Oxygen mg/L		f.	+-	_		11.00	9.12	11,85	11.63	10.64	12.98	10.83
Oxidation Reduction Potential my		 -		-	1	207.5	233.0	207.3	244,1	375.0	231.1	174.1
pH		 -	-	-		6.34	6,49	6.38	6.44	8.45	6.34	6.24
Specific Conductance	 	 	-	_	-	0.097	36.0	30.0	30.0	33.0	36.0	27
Turblety NTU		-		-	-	1,70	0,15	1.30	0.10	0,50	0.46	0.27

Notes; Beckground levels for Espicelves are from Function Area | Ri. Background levels for making are from ADC 57 Ri.

LEGEND	
Value is above Maximum Contentinent Level	26
Explosive value is above background level	25
J = Estimated value	
B = The stauk is less than the reporting BMH but greater than the shalfsment detection limit	
ne = not enelyzed = Parameter not measured	

Table 4-7 SPM WELLS - GROUNDWATER TRENDS

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA - WELLS SPM-97-23X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 6 of 7) (Concentrations in ug/l)

			DATE	IST STATE	TOT DE	IST STATE	107500	Interest	1972/92	107303
Well No.	SPM-97-23X			23X	23X	23X	23X	23X	23X	23X
PARAMETERS	BACKGROUND		FILTERIOT	LOW FLOW	LOWFLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW
	LEVELS	MA	Faceral	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
METALS	1	N N	(CLs (us/l)	1					1	
Silver, Total Ag	4.6	12	PA	<15	<3	<0.8	<0.60	<0.80	ল্য	<1.5
Juminum, Total Al	6870	ne		<100	<200	21.9	16.0	<7.7	<18.1	212
vsenic, Total As	10.5	50	10	<8	<10	<1.0	<2.1	<1,5	<3.2	<3.5
larium, Tolal Ba	39,6	2000	2900	<6	<10	<2.8	<2.05	<4.0	<8.2	<11,7
erylium, Total Be	1 5	1	4	<5	<3	<0.1	0.08	0.31	<0.20	<0.30
elcium, Total Ca	14700	60	N	5720	6170	5160	4800	4520	4920	8000
admium, Total Cd	4.01	5	5			<0.2	<0.15	<0.20	<0.30	<0.70
obat, Tolal Co	26	na I	na	<30	<6	<1.3	<0.60	<1.4	<2.2	3.1 8
hromium, Total Cr	14.7	100	100	<15	<\$	0.92	<0.55	<0.70	<4.6	<1.3
opper, Total Cu	8.09	1300	1300	<26	<5	1.4	1.0	S.1	2.5	8.8 B
on, Total Fe	9100	66	14	90.1	<100	36.7	34.7	<15.7	51.6	696
lercury, Total Hg	0.243	2	2	<0.200	<0.2	<0.1	<0.1	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10
otassium, Total X	2370	- FA	nə en	<1000	735	\$19	641	666	792	1080 B
lagnesium, Total Mg	3480	24	ne	1270	1290	1110	1080	951	990	1070 B
langanese, Totel Mn	291	5.6		6.3	<5	4.2	2.4	<0.60	23.6	393
odium, Tolal Na	10500	20,000	né	3370	3530	2900	3220	2680	2940	\$180 B
lickel, Tolal Ni	34.3	100	14	<40	<5	40.9	<1.05	<2.1	<13.5	<2.8
ead, Total Pb	4.25	15	15	<5	3	<0.5	<0.90	<0,80	<1.1	<2.6
untimony, Total Sb	3,03	6	6	<8	<5	<2.5	<2.3	<2.2	<3.5	<2.6
elenium, Total Se	3.02	50	50	<10	<5	<1.4	<1.85	<1.2	<3.9	<3.0
hallum, Total T	6.99	2	2	<15	<2	<1A	<2.25	<1.8	Q.0	<1.8
anadium, Total V	11	na	69	25	<5	<0.8	<1.0	<2.1	<2.8	<3.8
linc, Total Żn	21.1	14	M	<25	24.6	14.3	4.9	1.4	< <u>9</u>	14.0 B
KPLOSIVES	1									
,3,5-Trinitrobenzene	na	- 18	M2	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
3-Dininobenzene	1	08	<u>19</u>	<0.126	<1.2	<0,25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26	<0.26
4.6-Trinil/otoluane	2	ne .		<0.125	- 41.2	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
4-Dinitrotatuene	30	ne	<u></u>	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
6-Dintrotoluene	75	nat	01	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26	<0.26	<0.25
Amino-4,8-Dinitrolotuane	ns	N#	08	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.26
-Nitratoluana	DB	nø_	na	<0.125	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25
Nitrotokiene	08	In I	- All	<0.125	<2,6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26	<0.26
Amino-2,6-Dinitrotokuana	D8			<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
Nitrotokiene	da .	nø 🛛	62	<0.125	2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0,25	<0.25	<0.25
IMX	400	Π¢	na	<1.0	<2.5	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25 UJ	<0.25 (U)	<0,26
etryl	na	. 101	CIB.	<0,5	<2.8	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
eneznedonii	T.A	ne	na	<0.125	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.28	<0.25	<0.26
RDX	2	60	<i>n</i> a	<0.5	<2.6	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	< 0.25	<0.25

FIELD PARAMETERS							
Dissolved Oxygen mg/L	10.7	8 \$5.36	10.37	7.75	10.07	10.31	8.40
Oxidation Reduction Potential my	242.	4 217.5	257,5	270.2	385.0	260.7	223.3
pH	5.81	6,46	6.15	6.29	5.84	8.35	5.87
Specific Conductance	0.16	0 61.0	46.0	45,0	47,0	48.0	60
Turbidity AT(1	1 0.94	0.49	0.45	0.50	0.60	0.44	2.44

Notes: Background levels for Explosives are from Function Area I Ri Background levels for metals are from AOG 57 Ri.

LEGEND

FIL			

LEGEND Visible is above Maximum Context famil Level EBitedre value is allows background level J = Estimated value B = The created leves the reporting limit builgreater than the instrument dest rel = not created leves the reporting limit builgreater than the instrument dest ction timit + = Perameter not measured Table 4-7 SPM WELLS - GROUNDWATER TRENDS

SOUTH POST IMPACT AREA - WELLS SPM-97-24X

CHEMICAL SUMMARY REPORT (Sheet 7 of 7) (Concentrations in ug/i)

				1 .	1 .	/ .	/ .	1 .	1 .	1 .
			DATE	1929au	, SECON	1919th	INTERN .	10 ¹⁵²	1987 AR	197 ⁴⁰⁰
Well No.	SPM-07-24X			24X	24X	24X	24X	24%	24X	24X
PARAMETERS	SACHBROLMO	T	PL 754 507	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOWFLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW	LOW FLOW
	LEVEL	MA	Federal							
ETALS		- Without	CLa (vol)							
Ver. Total An	4.6		100	<15	<3	ed A	<9.80	<0.60	<1.4	<1.5
minum, Total Al	6870		64	<100	<200	107	34.2	132	45.9	<21.7
senic. Totel As	10.5	10	10	<8	<10	3.7	6,3	5.5	<3.2	3.7
rium, Tota; Be	39.6	2000	2060	9.4	<10	2.9	<2.05	<4.0	<9.2	<11.7
milium, Total Be	5	4	4	<5	<3	<0.1	<0.1	0.31	<0.20	<0.30
olum, Tolal Ca	14700	ne i	Dall.	9450	8790	9270	8120	8500	8750	6010
dmium, Total Gd	4.01	5	5	<10	3	<0.2	<0.65	<0.20	<0.30	<0.70
balt, Total Co	25	Dial I	Fail 1	<30	<5	<1.3	<1.35	< ,4	<2.2	<3.1
romkim, Tetal Cr	14.7	100	500	<15	<6	3	2.0	3.3	<4.6	<1.3
pper, Total Cu	8.09	1300	t300	<25	<5	1.4	<0.9	8 .7	<1.8	<2.0
n, Total Fo	8100	M	148	180	260	101	34.5	102	29.3	445.ð
rcury, Tolal Hg	0.243	2	2	<0.200	<0.2	<0.1	<0.1	<0,10	<0.10	<0.10
assium, Total K	2370	i na	64	2200	1730	1640	1470	1205	1490	1050 8
gherium, Yolel Mg	3460	ne i		3840	3300	3760	3270	3350	3400	3310 8
ngenese, Total Mn	291	Fea	<u>,04</u> ,	17.4	4	85	. 17	2.8	<2,5	<1.0
lum, Tolal Ne	10830	20,000	ne -	3750	3310	2900	2980	3070	3210	3110 8
kel, Total Ni	34.3	100	ne	c40	≪6	<0.9	1.1	<2.1	<13.5	<4.5
d. Total Pb	4.25	15	15	<6	\$	<0.6	<0.9	2.8	< 5.5	<2.8
Imony, Total Sb	3.03	6	6	4	4	<2.5	<23	<22	<3.6	<6.2
enium, Total Se	3.02	50	60	{ <10	<6	<1.4	<1.85	<1.2	<3.0	3.4
illum, Totel Tl	6.99	2	2	<15	4	C1.4	<2.24	<1.8	⊲.0	<1,8
sedium, Total V	11	∩₽;	64	<26	<6	<0.6	<1.0	iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii	<2.6	<3.8
c. Tolal Zn	21.1	04	64	- 25	17.5	3.9	2.2	1,2	45.9	<2.0
PLOSWES										
6-Trinkrobenzene	08	N8	148	<0.125	<1.2	<0,25	<0.25	<0.28	<0.25	<0.26 ·
Oinirobenzene	1	Dail 1	14	<0.125	<1,2	<0.28	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25
6-Trinitotolusna	1 2	DH I	<u>F4</u>	<0.126	<12) <0.25	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	<0.25
Dinirololuene	30	M	nê	<0.125	<1.2	40.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0,25
-Dinirololuene	ាត	Na	64	<0.125	41.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	<0.25	40.25
mino-4,8-Diniroloiuene	R .0		rai -	<0,126	<1.2	<0.25	<0.25	<0.26	<0.25	40.26
RIOKNUBINE	<u> </u>	1 14	raj	<0.125	< <u>2.6</u>	<0.25	40.25	40.25	40.25	40.25
RIOKAUŚŚĘ	na na	1. 14	M	<0.126	42.8	<0.25	40.25	<0.25	40.25	40.20
mino-2,0-Linkfololuene		0.0		<u.125< td=""><td>\$1.2</td><td>49.25</td><td>20.25</td><td><<u>40.25</u></td><td>40.25</td><td>40.20</td></u.125<>	\$1.2	49.25	20.25	< <u>40.25</u>	40.25	40.20
	100	<u>+</u> +		SU(120	54.0	\$9,20	<0.20	<9.20 -0.05111	49.25	
<u>. </u>	400	<u> </u>		↓ <u></u>		40.20	40.20	×0.25 UJ	40.25 00	-0.207
y			<u>64</u>	50.5	52.0	40.20	50.28	40.25	0,25	40.20
JOHNZENE	1 12	- 14		<0.120	51.2	40.25	40.04	<0,20 40.0E	40,20	<u.20< td=""></u.20<>
^	<u> </u>		-na	40.0	s4.0	47.20	1 40.20	~U.25	40,28	1.0
FIELD PARAMETERS	1									
Dissolved Oxygen molt	1	1		4.33	6.11	3.76	5,16	4.45	5.68	5.51
idation Reduction Potential ra	4			167.2	126.2	134.2	184.9	232.0	274,7	132.9
pł	1			7.42	7.30	7.30	7.43	7.51	7.67	7.62
Specific Conductance				0.224	108.0	\$3.0	76.0	91.0	66.0	80
Turbidity NTU	T	1		4.70	0.76	2.40	3.00	3.00	2.27	1.10

Hotes: Background levels for Explasives are from Function Area I RL

Betkground levels for metals are from AOC \$7 RI.

LEGEND
Vetue Is above Maxtimum Conternitions (synt)
Emploative value is done bentground level
25
3 * Extended value
8 * This regulation like reporting limit but graster case the instrument detection limit
ne text and is a point of the second level
- = Permeter not measured
APPENDIX F

.

AOCS 32 AND 43A















...Mag3 Iot10May64.dwg 06/15/2004 07:28:01 AM















	Cleanup Goal
Analytes	μ g/l
Volatile Organic Compounds	
1,2-Dichloroethene (total)	55
1,1,1 Trichloroethane	5.
Trichlorothene (TCE)	5
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	600
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	75
Volatile Petroleum Hydrocarbons	
Benzene	5
C5-C8 Aliphatics*	400
C9-C12 Aliphatics*	4,000
C9-C10 Aromatics*	200
Extractable Petroleum Hydrocarbon	\$
C9-C18 Aliphatics*	4,000
C19-C36 Aliphatics*	5,000
C11-C22 Aromatics*	200
Polychlorinated Biphenyls	
PCB-1260	0.5
Inorganics	
Arsenic	50
Lead	15
Manganese	3,500

 TABLE 1-1

 Cleanup Goals for Chemicals of Concern in Groundwater

Note: * No cleanup goal was established for this analyte in the Record of Decision. The Massachusetts Contingency Plan GW-1, standard is being used in lieu of a cleanup goal.

Well (D	Cleanup							37M.07	.01 ¥				
Road Sambad	Cost (ugft)		1 2		1 1	1 10 1	1 1	1 2	1 1	a		, ,	1 1
Sample Date	(right) moo	aim	c1/930	(3/93)	(6(93)	(6/93)	(1/94)	(4199)	(7/99)	(10/99)	(4/02)	(ไม้กวา	<i>(68</i> 37)
Semple ID		(,,,,,,)	101101	(0/20)	(41.5)	daunda .	1754.97.01 11	3385.92.0181	1314 07-0133	1704-07-0194	37/1.42.412	3266.02.012	12M-92-01X
Parameter/Method							Jane Januari	JENTINE	32111-32-44745	AP111-24-41-244	**********		
VOC115836B/R021B/R760R0 Hollower in Cartely Ac	1	A NUMBER OF STREET	Sec. 133.22	N 42000	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	S. Marga	IL CONTRACTOR	10141-001-001-00-	CHENT SCHOOL	TOTAL CONTRACTOR	DE SER Shishdure	6.900 COLOR	10045568456826266855
Vinvi chloride	2.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	NIA	2 15	211	211	211	211	2Ú	2U
2-dichlamethene ((mns)	55.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	10	10	10	10	ĩũ	10	10
2-dishamethene (cis)	55.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	ŤŤ	10	10	10	10	1U	iu
.1.1-techloroethane	5.0	<0.500	<0.500	N/A	N/A	N/A	Î Û	10	10	ĨŬ	iU	10	10
Trichloroethene	5.0	<0.500	<0.500	N/A	N/A	NVA	iv	10	រាប់	<u>טו</u>	ĩU	າບ	ຳ້ນ
.1.2-trichloreethane	5.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	10	10	ΤŬ	10	ΰ	IU	10
.3-dichlorobenzene	600.0	<1.70	<1.70	N/A	N/A	N/A	10-	(Ŭ	iù	10	10	10	10
.4-dichlorobenzene	75.0	<1.70	<1.70	N/A	N/A	N/A	10	10	10	10	10	JU	10
,2-dichlorobenzene	600.0	<1.70	<1,70	N/A	N/A	N/A	្រប	110	10	10	10	10	טו
VPH (MADEP-VPH-98-1) upArable and a secondar	(x_1, y_2, \dots, y_n)	, T- 100 P	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	See. 274. 1		وفرت وعاد از و. ا	第一日期期的日本目的	法自己的财产的保护的	行的研究的最高级	和历史代表的历史	1444-1477-17-1	statistic of the	证 代表的法式分为1-45-7,645
Jenzene	5.0	<0.500	<0.500	N/A	N/A	N/A	5 ป	SU	5U	5U	ទប	50	ŠU
Ethylbenzene	500,0	<0.500	<0.500	N/A	N/A	N/A	5 U	5 U	50	5 U	50	50	50
n.g-xyleno		<0.840	<0.840	N/A	N/A	N/A	20 U	20 U	20 ป	20 U	200	200	200
-Xyiene		<0.840	<0.840	N/A	N/A	N/A	<u>10 U</u>	10-0	100	10 U	100	1017	100
folgeng	L	<0.500	<0.500	N/A	N/A	N/A	IS U	15 U	15 (150	150	150	15U
C5-C8 Allphnic (1.2)	400.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	40 U	40-U	40 U	40 U	40U	400	400
29-C12 Aliphotic(1,3)	4,600.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	NIA	10 U	1010	10 U	10 U	100	Ton	101
9-CI0 Aromatics(1)	200,0	N/A	N/A	<u>N/A</u>	N/A	N/A	10 U	10 0	100	10 U	100	េប	IOU
EFH (MADEP-EPH-98-1) IL/1 (CPPA) A CPA	San Ingen Telev	1.1		-1 - <u>1</u> 0,170.	11.2	ter in state R	214 12 3 12 2 2	3.11月3月2日世纪的时代	(1)[22.0645.954	2. 100040011	Stringhters	State of the second second	22,542,500,7554,575, A.C.
C9-C18 Aliphotics	4,000,0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	67 UJ	62 (1	60UJ	<u>60U</u>	60U	6013	630
C19-C36 Alighatics	5,000,0	N/A	N/A	N/A	<u>N/A</u>	N/A	<u>67 UI</u>	62 01	601	600	60U		600
11-C22 Aromatics	200.0	N/A	N/A	L N/A	<u>N/A</u>	N/A	180 11	160 U	16012	160 U	LINCU	INPL	LISOLJ
CB3 (35105/35202/6054) (40)			1 104	104	<u>- 10 - 134 - 5</u> 	na se	1 - 3 - 7 - 4 - 7 - 4 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5	7-2-1952-0026-5	1000-560-655-558	7.04 S.0472 (E.S. 644	1010,0700,000,000	P DHURYCOSE N	<u>73/7783957676586</u>
20.1018	<u>, v.ə</u>	8/0	2003	NVA NVA	N/A	NVA NVA	1 11	0.300	0.50 0	0.500	0.50	0.00	0.513
CD-1221		NIA	NUA	504	NIA	N/A		0.5011	0.30 0	0.500	0.00	0.50	
08.4747	0.5	N/A	SVA	NUA	<u>WO</u>	M/A	0.5 0	0.500	0.50 0	0.500	0.50	0.50	0.50
CR.1748	0.5	NIA	N/A	NVA NVA	N/A	N/A	0511	0.500	0.5013	0.501/	0.40	0.50	0.51
208.1255	0.5	N/A	5//4	N/A	NIA	N/A	0.50	0.501	0.50 0	0.5017	0.50	6.50	0.50
CB-1260	0.5	<0.190	<0.150	N/a	N/A	N/A	0.5 U	0.501	0.50 U	0.5017	0.517	0.5U	0,51
Bortanics (200:17/200.7/6010B) mg/1: ()			le le		÷ 0.	e - C'e Oli II	In the second second	1. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	144 Bellever	finition of the	4.20 State 1 - 1 - 1 - 1	196145199 5 4 1	11 38425 MARP (*)
Aracaic - Total	50.0	3.94	23.6	N/A	6.12	3.42	1.85 U	2.07 U	12	39.3	2.150	7.3	1.8U
.cod - Total	13.0	2.71	2.49	N/A	<5.0	<5.0	3.1 U	2.9 U	7.90	19.7	1.80	5.7U	1.56U
Manganese - Total	3,500.0	6450	7930	N/A	7100	7001	113	232 J	920	2430	52.9	448	74.6
Amenic - Dissolved	50,0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	2.150	20	1.8U
end - Dissolved	15.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	2.88	1.50	1.560
Manganese - Dissolved	3_500.0	N/A	N/A	Ň/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	4.8U	0.70
RA Personaters (mg/l)			: <u>i</u>	1. N	·		4. A 19 A 14	in a line for the second	基金的消费等等	\$135 A. S. A.	****************	22	States of Second
Vitrate Nitrogen (353.2)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.9	0,69	0.76	0.87	0.61	0.82	0.83
Värite Nitrogen (353.2)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	<0.050	<0,050	<0.050	<0.050	0.05U	.05U	0.05()
Adamonia Nilrogen (E350.2)		N/A	<u>N/A</u>	N/A	N/A	N/A	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	0, IU	0.10	
hosphate (365.2)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	<0.(8	<0.10	0.16	0.19	0.10	0.2	0.10
SUITUR (373.4)		N/A	N/A	N/A	NA	N/A	37	26	29	23	22	27	43
Sumat (970.1)		N/A	N/A	1 N/A	N/A	N/A	<u> <1,0</u>	<2.0	5.6	3.7	10	4.5	
			N/A	<u>N/A</u>	N/A	N/A	31	43	<u> 40</u>	48	30	40	40
200 415 1/SM52201		N/A	NIA	N/A		NIA	2.3		1,0	4.4	100	- 14	
dethane (DEK 175) und		197/A	NUA.	N/A N/A	N/A	N/A	511	521	NC	N/2	100	130	100
Thome (BSY 175) not		N/A	N/A	- WA	N/A	N/A		960			NC	NC	
Schene (BSX-175) us/		N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A	9.00	9.04	- <u>NC</u>	NC	NC	NC NC	
Field Collected Date		<u>1847</u>	<u>, ea</u>	<u>, 180</u>	1 1993		240	200 0	111.11.11.11.11.11.11.1	N	1.1.1		
Distalized Orseen (no/1.)		N/A	17 N/A	1 803	N/A	N/A	1.11	749	2 47	6.60	10.40	711	8.28
ORP/Fh (my)		N/A	N/A	N/A	NA	N/4	160.90	187.33	151 17	242 50	149.91	195 17	193.97
Specific Conductivity (#S/cm)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	169.67	165.31	121.47	60.33	71.30	TLA.40	110.67
EI	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	6.19	6.10	5.16	5.56	6.33	6.21	5.95
Carbon Dioxide (mg/L)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	NA	13 -	20	30	23	NC	71.25	51.25
ran (mr/L)		NIA	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0	8	0	<u> </u>	NC	0.00	1 0

Notes:

2

÷

B - Attributable to field or laboratory contamination.

R - Rejected value J - Estimated Value.

3 - contraster varies U - The compound was not detected. 'The associated numerical value is the compound quantitation limit. US - The compound was not detected. The compound quantitation limit is on estimated value. NC = Not Collected due to limited water volumes in wells. N/A - Not Aralyzed.

;

Page 1 of 7

Well (D	Cleanun							\$287.924	AN INC.				
Round Number	Gool (ttp/)	1 1		28	1	1 38		1 +	1 1	ا اد ا	i (, 1	
Semale Date	Contraction (Market V)	(11/02)	(2,02)	/1/035	(6/01)	(601)	(1990)	(4/00)	(1090)	/10/001	(10))	(1003)	660131
Semula ID		1917267	(0,20)	101000	(0.22)	(0000)	7724 02 02 02	100.01.01.01.01	1114 01 01121	1111 01 0114	4944 00 017	3714 01 0714	3384 03 018
Compression/Mathead							3601172-037.1	34(1)"74"03A6	35.04-71-03763	3201-72-0374	3201-32-03A	36969693	3600-76-037
THE REPORT OF TH	a tha dire i shalla	C. Trease . Sec.			12.5578.6788	N	A more than the	Contain and Solver States	Alexandra the second	Contract Constanting	General and solutions	STATISATION OF A	10700.00.0146570.01
Vinel shlarida	70	NZA	NZA	N/A	31/4	NI/A	111	111	2.11	211	1111	242	111
12-Caliman Grant Grant	55.0	NZA	NG	NUA	374	51/4	<u>4 U</u>			<u>†</u> ¥	1211	- 40	
1.2 distantion (and)	55.0	NVA	- NICA	NUA	NVA	N/A M/A	<u></u>		10		101	10	
1.1.1. tricklemethers	53.0	590	- IVA	MIA	N/A	NIA			11	10	107		
Table and the	5,0	10 6 60	<0.500	N/A	NA	31/4			11	10	112	117	
112 bichlomethese	5.0	N/A	N/A	NA	N/A M/A	N/A		<u></u>			103	10	
1.1.4 dishlambanana	3.0	SWA	 <1.70	N/A	N/A N/A	NIA		111				10	
	71.0	<1.70	<1.70	NZA	N/A				10	111			
1.2 dichlombergene	400.0	CI 20	<1.70	N/A	N/A	N/A	117		11	10	107	10	
STORE THE AVAILABLE OF LAND	0000	~	41.70	104		10A	n ann an the second	CAREND INCOME	And DONE WAR AND	RATE OF ALL AND ADDRESS OF A DAMA	NOTEMEDIATIS OF	THE PAGE ANTAL 'A	10 Sector Manual Conversions
Denvera	50	-0.500		N/A	N/A	N/A	A DESCRIPTION OF THE	411	5 W 1 W 1 W 1 W 1 W 1 W 1 W 1 W 1 W 1 W	11 B 11	5777	51	ALL REPORTS
Ethnibentane	5.0	<0.500	<0.500	N/A	NZA	N/A			611	410	8111	50	118
to providence	,00,0	<0.000	<0.540	N/A		- WA	10.11	2011	20 11	1011	20115	2011	2011
a.Yylana		<0.040	<0.840	N/A	N/A	N/A	10 11	101	1017	1017	10135	1013	1011
Taluene		198	07	N/A	N/A	N/A	15 12	1511	1517	1511	15171	1513	100
C5-C8 Aliohatio (1.2)	450.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	40 1	4011	4017	4011	40[1]	4011	4011
C9-C12 Alighttic(1.3)	4 080 0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	10 17	101	1017	10.17	1000	101	1017
C9-Ci0 Aromatics(1)	200.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	10 U	10 Ŭ	101	10 1	1003	LIDE	100
EPH (MADEP EPH 98-1) 11. The Description	11.4 7 1 1 200	1. 2. 1 . (C	(N. 19		110-1-14	ALC: NO.	WHINE DEC DEC	ARCONORPORT	89 A 6 8 8 8 10	BOTH COMMENTS		Same Barrister	201125540454
C9-C18 Alimantics	4,000.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	60 U	6110	60(1)	6017	601	60U	601
C19-C36 Alighedics	5,000.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	60 U	610	600	501	60U	60U	600
CI I-C22 Areatistics ***	200.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	160 LU	160 U	160 U	160 LI	16000	1601	16011
PCBS (3510B/3520B/8082).02/			9.7			4.1.5	1.5.3	CO. FACTOR STREET AND	Med Research Men	PERSONAL PROPERTY AND	31	·	an (16 / 16 / 16 / 16 / 16 / 16 / 16 / 16
PCB-Id16	0.5	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.5 U	0.51	0.501/	0.50 11	0.5U	0.51)	0.50
PCB-1221	0.5	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	10	LU	0.50 U	0.50 17	0.50	0.50	0.50
PCB-1232	0.5	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.5 U	0.5 U	0.50 U	0.50 U	0.50	0.50	0.50
PCB-1242	0.5	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.5 U	0.5 U	0.50 U	0.50 ()	0.5U	0.50	0.50
PCB-1248	0.5	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0,5 U	0.5 U	0.50 U	0.50 U	0.5U	0.50	0.5U
PCB-1254	0.5	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0,5 V	0.50	0.50 U	U 02.0	0.5U	0.50	0.50
PCB-1269	0.5	<1.90	<1,90	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.5 U	0.5 U	0.50 U	0.50 U	0.5U	0.50	0.50
Inergialize (200:117/200.7/60108) ugA	والعربي والمراجع				1.1.1	1	Star Start Base in st	No al Mar Haussian	大学的 医二角间 化	P. 49975436:34	CHARLE MEANING	States and Street	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1
Anseniç - Tolat		26.9	48.6	2.98	9.64	<2.0	1.85 U	2.07 U	2.07U	2.07 U	2.15U	21,5	1.8U
Lond - Totai	15.0	21,3	20.4	<1.26	5.37	>5.0	2.6 1	130	4.4U	141	2.00	2.2U	1.560
Manganese - Total	3,500.0	1310	2470	1880	1100	899	16.3	34.3 J	126	20.7	11.6	61	29.6
Antenie - Diszowad	50.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	2.150	20	1,\$U
Lead - Dissolved	15,0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	NIA	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	1.6J	1.30	1.560
Manganese - Dissolved	3.500.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	NIA	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	7.4	7.9	22.1
IRA Paranietori (mg/)			4	11.1	£1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	2	Sec. Sec.	(14)等。异日子(1)。	1. A.	机器机机 计算		
Nitrate Nitrogen (353.2)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.47	0.47	0.48	0.57	0.87	0.7	0,5
Nitrite Nitrogen (353.2)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	<0.050	<0.050	<0,050	<0.050	0.050	0.050	0,050
Ammonio Nitrogen (6350.2)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	<0,10	<0.0	<0.10	<0,10	0.1	0.10	0.10
Phosphate (365.2)		N/A	N/A	N/A	<u>N/A</u>	N/A	<0.10	<0.10	<0.10	0.13	0.10	0.10	0.10
Sulfate (375.4)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	32	24	30	21	20	19	16
Sulfide (376.1)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	1.6	<2.0	<4.0	2,5	4	6.5	ນ
Alkaliaily		N/A	N/A	N/A	<u>N/A</u>	NIA	<20	<10	<20	<20	200	200	100
TOC (415.1/5M5226)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	<1.0	<1.0	<1,0	<1.0		E5	10
COD 415.1/SM5220)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	<15	<15	<15	<15	150	150	150
Meinano (RSK. 175) µg/l		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	5.2 U	5.20	NC	NC	100	NC	100
Elizane (RSK, 175) µg/l		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	9.6 U	9.6 U	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC
Ellens (KSK, 175) July		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	9,0 U	9.0 U	NC	NC	NC	NC.	NC
Field Collected Data							فالمساميني ومساحده			<u> </u>	·		
Uissoivea Uxygen (mg/L)		NA	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	7.67	9,37	7,41	7,56	7.52	8.12	0.86
OKOVAN (INV)	l	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	277.50	Z13,70	167.03	280,53	261,97	204.60	227,83
specific Conductivity ((rS/ent)	[N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	<u>N/A</u>	108.67	172.67	140.00	95.00	B6.33	83.00	97
		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	<u>N/A</u>	5.34	3,48	5.05	5.00	5,77	5.71	5,31
Comon Dioudia (mg/L)	<u> </u>	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	10	10	15	50	NC	60.00	NC
Iron (mg/L)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	I NVA	1 D	0	0	0	NÇ	0.QÇ	I NC

Notes: Notes: B - Attributable to field or laboratory contamination. R - Rejected value J - Estimated Value.

2 - communes value. U - The compound was not detected. The associated numerical value i UJ - The compound was not detected. The compound quantitation lim NC - Not Collected due to Emilied water volumes in wells, N/A - Not Analyzed.

For groundwater sampling rounds conducted in 1992 and 1993, only select data for relevant parameters is shown and was taken from the ROD paparad by Horne Engineering Services, inc., February 1998.
 *** - C11-C22 Aramater exclude the contentration of target PAH analytes.

IRA Data was not validated.
 IRA Data was not validated.
 Clean-up goals from previous rounds (listed in the ROD) were used.
 Bolded values exceed the clean-up goals.

Page 2 of 7

Well ID	Cleanup		37Z-99-01X		Г	32M-01-04XBR			32M-01-14XOB			32M-01-14XBR	
Round Number	Coal (tag/)	1	2	3	1 1	2	3	1	2	3	1	2	3
Sample Date		(4/02)	(10/02)	(6/03)	(4/02)	(10/02)	(6/03)	(4/02)	((0/02)	(6/03)	(4/02)	(10/02)	(6/43)
Sumple ID		32Z-99-02X	327-99-02X	32Z-99-02X	3201-01-04XBR	32M-01-04XBR	32M-01-04XBR	32M-01-14XOB	32M-01-14XOB	32M-41-14XOB	32M-01-14X8R	32M-01-14XBR	32M-01-14XBR
Parameter/Method													
YOC1(5030B/8021B/8160B):027	的现在分词是 是是	1000 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	and a state with the	合于这些的法律的	析2350年的名称	建筑的建筑和新建筑	Mar State And State	F#321596-8-1265	BADESARS B	学生的第一分, 这句:	19 m - 19 m - 19 m
Vînyl ehloride	2.0	NC	20	20	201	2U	20	203	213	ZŬ	20	2Ų	20J
.2-dichloreethene (trans)	55.0	NC	10	IU	ាយ	10	10	យ	ιu	UI VI	iu	וט	្រាវរ
1.2-dichloroethene (cis)	55.0	NC	IU	iu ii	ເບ	טו	IU	ເພ	0.5J	រប	0.73	1U	ាហ
1, 1, 1-trichlocotthane	5.0	NC	IU	10	ល	ហ	10	ເມ	IU	10	າບ	ເບ	ាយ
Trichloroethene	5.0	NC	10	10	ហេ	טו	เข	າເມ	10	117	JU	រេប	ាហ
1,1,24richloroethane	5.0	NĆ	10	10	IUI	י יער	טו	យ	າມ	10	10		101
1.3-dichlorobenzene	650.0	NC	10	IU	UI I	υ	10	N	2U	0.73	0.9J	0,60	10,0
.4-dichlorobenzene	75,0	NC	10	10	101	10	וט	IJ	0.80	0.33	0.91	0.2U	100
.2-dichlorobenzene	680.0	NC	IU	เข	ເບາ	10	CI.	ស	8		3	0.6U	11
VPH (MADEP-VPH-98-1) (igh the instruction		д. · · · ·	and a second for	1994 - 1995 - 19 ¹ - 1997 - 1997	المرعق ورواقع والموارك والمعاطرات	and selection	が正ちに見るないのか	のないないないないで、	学生学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学学	要法派は改革法学が	ALL REAL PROPERTY IN THE	ポンジをがあるす。	1
Benzene	5.0	NC	5U	ŚŰ	SUJ	រប	50	5ŲJ	ទប	50	SU	ŚÜ	503
Entylbenzene	560.0	NÇ	50	5U	SUJ	SU	50	500	5U	5U	50	SU	500
n.p-xylene		NC	2017	280	20U3	2017	2017	2003	200	20U	201/	20U	2013
-Xylene		NC	1017	100	1000	100	ເວນ	1003	160	100	iou	100	1003
Isivene		NC	ISU	150	1503	150	150	1501	150	150	150	150	1503
C5-C8 Aliphatic (1.2)	400,0	NC	40U	40U	4000	401.0	4003	4001	400	40U	400	400	4000
C9-C12 Aliphatic(1.3)	4,000,0	NC	100	10[7	ເດເມ	100	1003	1001	IOU	100	160	100	1001
LY-C10 Aromstics(1)	200.0	<u>NC</u>	1 100	100	1003	10U	1003	1011	LOU	10U	100	100	L4J
REH (MADLE KEH SET) HET STAR STAR	N-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-	ewellender witten is	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	115 - 15 /15 - 18 ⁻ 71	1 - 1 - 1 - C	2020202040035448	SARAHER TRANSPORT	NACH INTERNET	WARDARD SHE FOR	47.86°	STREET, SOUTH SA	1244, 1267, 278, 278, 278, 278	2014 TY 21 Y 10
L9-C18 Aliphatics	4.000.0	NC	6001	600	600	600	600	600	60R	600	600	600	610
C19-C36 Anomatics	5,000.0	NC	6001	000	600		¢uu	<u>600</u>	OCH.	000	600	000	010
CTT-C22 Atomptics ***	200.0	NU	10000	1600	L6UUJ	1600	IGUU	10003	IOVK	pecu)	10000	1000	1000
CBS (35100/35/00/3004/ Hgt 34 24 Production		, NC	0.61	0.611	6.4U	A 61	0.61	10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-1	A (11	0.617	NAR 1000000000000000000000000000000000000	0.017	600
PCB-1010	0.5	NC	0.60	4.50	0.00	0.50	0.00	0,30	0.00	0.50	0.390	0,50	0.507
PPR-1237	0.5	NC	0.00	6.50	<u> 000</u>	0.50	0.00	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.390	0.50	0.505
PCB-1742	4	NC	0.91	0.50	0.00	0.50	0.512	0.50	0.50	0.517	0.590	0.50	0.507
PC 8-1242	0.5	NC	0.90	0,10	112.6	0.50	0.70	190	0,00	0.517	0.570	0.50	0,505
PCB-1254	0.5	NC	0.50	0.5U	0.51	0.50	0.50	0.96	0.50	0.51/	0.590	0.511	0.513
PCB-1260	0.5	NC	0.50	0.517	0.51	0.5U	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.51/	0.570	0.51	0.511
Inervanica (200:117200.7/6010B) (Le/L			1.7.			and the second	Ver Star Auritan	190315-117556125-2-5	SPEC COLLECTORY OF	- 21.0 A 200 Later 14-160	ويراجع والمراجع	A DL LETTIC	
Arsenic - Total	50.0	NC	20.1	2.13U	2,151/	20	1.60	9.8	8.9	19	8.43	164	172
Lead . Total	15.0	NC	35.3	3.ZJ	1,370	1,260	0.91U	5.40	4.30	24	7.SU	9.8	43
Manganese - Total	3,500.0	NC	679.0	38,4	215.0	158,0	99.6	2490	2680	6110	187	356	1240
Arsenic - Dissolved	50.0	NC	20	2.130	2.15U	2U	I.BU	2.150	20	19.1	4,71	20	2.130
Lead - Dissolved	15.0	NC	UR.I	1.560	1.370	1,260	0.910	1.370	1.70	L.\$6U	1.61	1.30	1.6J
Manganese - Dissolved	3,500.0	NC	5.3	13.80	163.0	LS2.0	86.8	2260	3180	6670	149	138	148
RA: Parameters (mgl)		:			والمراجعة والمعرب والمراجع		二十 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、	YUTU A MARY STA	これでもないであっていていいう	· 14: 11: 44: 14: 14: 14: 14: 14: 14: 14:	and the second states and	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Niltate Nitrogen (353.2)		NC	1.2	2	3,2	2.5	1.2	2.5	2.7	0.76	1.6	5.3	0.3
Nitrite Nitrogen (353.2)		NC	0.06	0.05U	0.05U	0.10	0.05U	0.05U	0.06	0.050	0.96	0.05U	0.05U
Ammoda Niteogen (E350,2)		NC	0.10	0,10	0.10	0.10	D.1U	ຄ.ເບ	0.10	IEO		0,10	0.10
Phosphale (365.2)		NC	. 12 .	0.10	0,10	<u></u>	0,10	0.2	0.2	0.1	0.1	0.39	1.4
Sulfare (375.4)		NC	53	53	- 41	54	55	. 33	32	28	37	21	32
Sulfide (376.1)		NC	10	10		4,4		20	7.8	10	7	4U	10
Alkolinity		NC	40		120	200	170		220	200	280	280	320
TOC (415.1/SM5220)		NC	9.9	7.1	19	69	2	22	85	1	19	65	2
COD 415, 1/3MS220}	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	NC	150	150	150	150	150	150	150	150	130	150	150
Micinane (KaK. 175) µg/l		NC	NC	100	100	11		270	23	740	18	NC NC	70
Ginage (Kaw 172) BWI		AU MU	NC	20	NC NC	NL	NC	NC	NC	NC			NL NC
Cincret (KSK 175) (jg/)		NC	NC	NC	NC	NE	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC NC	NC	NC
Clean Longerta Data		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				·			<u></u>	h <u>h</u> hh	· ·		
Chissolved Cayler (mg/L)		NC	NC	NC NC	4.0/	1.22	3.4	NC	7.18	V.33		1.01	U.09
Courte ((())		NL NC	NL	NL. 110	147,80	495 (7	14.5	54.00	205.90	98.07	217.60	188.79	541
abecate example (ratera)		NC		NC	10.61	953,07	41	384,00	391700	501	440,00	228,00	203
per Carbas Disuida (mgili)		NL.		NC.	19.3H	120	4.0 104	2.11	0.11	04.05	0.97	0.70	0,0/
Caroon Drocate (mg/L)	·····		NG	NC NC		130	<u>ده</u> ا	NC	1/2	7.6		107	87.J 0.2
		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , 	1 NO 1		U U	0.0	v	- AL	. 0.0	6.4			

Notes:

)

)

Notes: B - Autributble to field or laboratory constantiation. R - Reflected value J - Estimated Value. U - The compound was not detected. The associated numerical value j UJ - The compound was not detected. The compound quantization Um NC - Not Callected due to limited water volumes in wells, N/A - Nat Analyzed.

For groundwater simpling rounds conducted in 1992 and 1993, only select data for relevant pommeters is shown and was taken from the ROD prepared by Horac Engineering Services. Rec., February 1998, 2. **** C11-C22 Aromatics exclude the concentration of target PAH analytes.

RA Data was not validated.
 RA Data was not validated.
 Clean-up goals from previous rounds (listed in the KOD) were used.
 Bolied values exceed the clean-up goals.

Page 3 of 7

...

.

warin	Cleanup		32M-01-13XPR			32M-01-15X89			32M-01-16XRP			32M-01-17X88	1
Round Nomber	Goal (ugh)	1 1	2	3	3 1	2	3	1	2	3	1	2	3
Somola Date		(4/02)	(10/02)	(6/03)	(4/92)	(10/02)	(6/03)	(4/02)	(10/02)	(6/03)	(4/02)	(10/02)	(6/03)
Samnie 1D		32M-01-13XBR	3251-01-13XBR	32M1-01-13XBR	3201-01-15XBR	32M-01-15X8R	32M-01-15XBR	3256-01-16888	3201-01-16388	32M-01-16XBR	32M-01-17X0R	3287-01-17XBR	32M-01-17XBR
Parameter/Method													
VOC1(5030B/8021B/8260B) upd (C1/2B-86-586)	2014 182 202 - 40	فالمعرفة التراجع والالالا	Aug - 81.35 18 80.00	S. 199	AT STREET, STREET	的合适为有效的不可	S. MY LOUGH CHANNEL	CREASE STREET,	EN HARDENE STREET	AN DECK STORE	1045 A. T. T. A. 185	5.1072200804	Secondary Conta
Vinvi chloride	2.0	21/1	211	IU	2117	21	21	2111	2U	21/	211/	20	21
1.2-dichloroethrun (trans)	\$5.0	ເບັ	10	ÎŬ	103	<u>1</u>	10	1 <u>Ш</u>	10	ĨŨ	101	10	ເບ
1.2-dichloroethens (cis)	55.0		10	10	101	10	iu i	100	10	ιΰ	0.63	10	ល
1.1.1-trichloroethane	\$,0	ເພ	IU I	iŪ	101	10	ĪŬ	យ	<u> </u>	ល	ប្រ	10	เข
Trichloroethene	5.0	ເຫ	10	ານ	101	บ	IU	U	เช	10	iui	0.81	ΙÜ
1,1,2-trichloroenhane	5.0	ហេ	າບ	ίŪ	មោ	າປ	10	IUI	10	បេ	0	10	เป
1,3-dichlorobezzene	500.0	73	0,75	7	25	4	0.71	យ	10	ប្រ	0.93	10	ເບ
1,4-dichlorabenzene	75.0	31	0.2U	3	ເບ	<u> </u>	111	tm	10	ប្រ	(1)		បែ
1_2-dicblorobenzene	600,0	36/	0.91	24	41	13	10	យេ	0.20	បេ	10)	0.70	បេ
VTH (MADEP-VPH-96-1) (Inflation Address States	يرمه دور المحمد المحمد ال		1996 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	19 M - 19 M	もいで、一部の人がのな	うているのなどの	943年前4日日本1243年	新加速的 的新加速的	四方の日本(167,47)を言	化学 法法法 学家	an she an	×
Benzena	5.0	របរ	5U	5U	ទបរ	50	SU	503	51	30	503	5U	รบ
Eshylbenzene	500.0	របរ	5U	5U	503	50	50	5111	51	<u>5U</u>	501	<u>50</u>	5U
m,p-xylene		2003	200	201	201/J	280	201	201.0	20U	2017	20UJ	200	200
o-Xylene		1001	100	101	101/1	101	100	1003	100	100	1003	100	100
Toluenc	-	1501	150	150	1501	150	150	1503	1.50	150	ISUJ	150	15U
C3-C8 Aliphalie (1,2)	400,0	4000	49U	40U	4003	400	4000	48UJ	400	40U	40(1)	400	400
C9-C12 Aliphatec(1,3)	4,008,0	1000	100	143	IOUJ	100	001	1003	100		1003	100	100
CV-CIU Aromatics(1)	200,0	360	241	<u>Z4J</u>	LOUJ	[5] De la set de la set d	1007	201	10U	10U	1009	100	100
DEBQMARE-EPH-94-11 HER. OK. SUSSEW (4):	2 2 Yo * 19801	1921A.0472-623.111	2011 (011) (011) (011)	201 Jan 1990	10 10 12 18 18 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19	2011 ST 25 CONT	SANDSHIT IN STATE	AND	520000000000000000000000000000000000000	270221/2012/2012	or check water and the	2011 CONTRACT (11)	4.4441
CIO CIO Allintarias	4,000.0	BUU	6010		600	000	000	000	600	500	600	6012	04(/)
CID COD Ampunics	1000	140111		14031	14011	LKOU I	1600	1441	1400	600	14067	14011	11070
PERSONAL PRODUCTS	200.0		1000	1000	1000	Toria Territoria	TOUL .	1000	1000 March 1000	Anterna con rand	1000 100 - 11 - 14 - 14 - 14 - 14 - 14 - 14 -	THE RESIDENCES	N N 7 (115) 11 21
PCB-1016	04	0.517	0.511	0.5(1	A511	0.577	0.91	0.50	0511	0.5211	0.513	0.90	0.91
PCB-1221	0.5	0.51	0.50	0.50	0511	0.50	0.51	0.511	0.51	0.5211	0.50	0.50	0.50
PCB-1232	0.5	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.51	0.51/	0.517	0.512	0.51	0.52U	0.50	0.5U	0.50
PCB-1242	0.5	0.50	0.5U	0.5U	0.50	0.5U	0.51	0.50	0.5U	0.52U	0.50	D.SU	0.50
PCB-1248	0.5	0.5U	0.5U	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.5U	0.50	0.50	0.\$20	0.5U	0.50	0.\$U
PCB-1254	0.5	0.513	0.50	0,50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.SU	0.SU	0.521/	0.513	p.5V	0.5U
PCB-1260	0.5	0.50	0.50	0.5U	0,50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.\$20	D.3LJ	0.50	0.50
Inorganics (200:17/208.7/6010B) ug/						Server (Proversity)	11 - 4. 19 Ker in the	品。 二、 集 生 二、 作	2	Pre-service - >1	a Santara and	1949 - Ling - C. K.	
Arsenic - Total	50.0	2.190	<u></u>	1,8U	2.150	20	1.8U	2.15U	20	L.8U	2.150	20	1.81
Lead Total	15.0	1.371	1.260	1.8U	3.90	4.8U	3.2	1.370	2.20	0.910	2.SU	1.90	0.910
Manganese - Total	3,500.0	1230	202	97.9	1400	936	230	160	71,5	5.7	65	<u> 11.8</u>	3
Arsenie - Dissolved	50.0	2.150	20	1.8U	2.15U	20	1,8U	2.15U	20	1.80	2,15U	2U	1,80
Leas - Dissolved	15.0	1.51	1.70	0.910	1.6J	1.260	0.910	1.370	1,260	0.910	1.370	1.60	0.9[U
Maagonese - Dissolvõõ	3,500.0	1310	272	38.5	1260	502	43,6	144	77.7	6	41.7	13.8	2.7
LICA-FRANCESIA (1997) 30-17-1							1 74 S.	1221 PARTING 129	Auris Harris Barris				
Number Minimeers (151.2)		<u>3.</u>	2.0	2.9	2,0	1,9	1.4	5.1	3.7	2.9	2.5	34	2.0
Ammonia Nilmann (F350.7)		0.030	0.030	1110	0.00	0.1/3	0.050		0.000	0.03	0.07	0.050	0.050
Phoenhote (365-2)		0.10	0.10	111 6	0.00	0.13	01	0.1			0.10	0.10	0110
Sulface (375.4)		30	27	23	28	40		34	45	56	17	2.9	23
Sullide (376.1)		215	13	10		40	iii -	2	4.2	<u> </u>	217	4(1	
Alkalínity		120	120	100	200	230	160	100	120	48	130	140	180
TOC (415.1/SM5220)		2	63	1	4	53	1	3	35	1	2	24	2
COD 415.1/SM5120)		150	150	150	150	ISU	เริ่ม	150	150	150	1921	150	150
Methane (RSK 175) µg/l		LDU	NC	UQJ	IQU	NC	1013	100	NC	10U	100	NC	EDU
Etbone (RSK 175) µg/l		NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC
Ethene (RSX 175) µg/l		NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NÇ	NC	NC	NC
Field Collected Data							13. 3- A	1.22.9 . 24 . 27 . 27 .		1 1 1			
Dissolved Oxygen (mg/L)		1.13	4.88	3.2	7.14	2.49	4,48	4.77	2.44	6.38	NC	1.31	\$.26
ORP/Eb (mv)		124.83	151.87	217,67	111.07	76.53	165.17	148.97	160.37	307.A3	66.90	156.01	240,63
Specific Conductivity (pS/cm)		616.33	434,67	254	668.00	723.00	427	286.00	424.00	291,67	399.67	335.33	310.67
pH		6.33	6.53	6.02	6,81	6.94	7.1	6,49	6.27	6.09	7.05	7_28	7,47
Caroan Dioxide (mg/L)		NC	172.5	83.5	NC	108.75	8).25	NC	72.5	105	NC	4(1	125
lron (mp/l.)		I NC	1 6	0	I NC	0			1 61	0.7		0 D	i n 1

Liron (mgpL) Notes: B - Attributable to field or laboratory contamination. R - Rejected value J - Estimated Value.

J - Examples value: J - The compound was not detected. The associated numerical value i UJ - The compound was not detected. The compound quantitation lim NC = Not Collected due to familed water volumes in wells. N/A - Not Analyzed.

For groundwater sampling rounds conducted in 1992 and 1993, only select data for relevant parameters is shown and was taken from the ROD prepared by Home Engineering Services, Inc., February 1998.
 *** C11-C22 Automatics uselude the concentration of larget PAH analytes.
 iRA Data was not wildoted.
 Clean-up pools from previous rounds (listed in the ROD) were used.
 Bolded values exceed the clean-up goals.

Page 4 of 7

Reund Number Sample Date Coal (Sample Date Sample Date Sample Date VOC47(S3308/2011/R2508) jpg1.300008282800 Sample Date 1.2-dicklorothene (isns) I.2-dicklorothene (isns) 1.2-dicklorothene (isns) Isns) 2-dicklorothene (isns) Isns) 2-dickloroth	1447) 2008 250 550 550 500 500 500,0	I (4/02) 32/M-01-18XBR 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 200	2 (19/02) 32At-01-18X6R 40U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 2	3 (6/03) 32/01-01-18X.BR 1.00U 50U 50U 50U 50U 50U 50U 50U 50U 1.00U 460 310	1 (4/02) 43hf-01-16XBR 2017 2017 1015 1015 1015 1015 1011 1011 1011	2 (10/02) 43M-03-16XBR 20 20 10 10 10	3 (6/03) 43M-01-16XBR (K-9A25662 (6/22) 2U 1U 1U	1 (4/02) 4334-01-16XOB 4335-005-6-005-49 203 203 103	2 (10/02) 4383-01-16XOB 20 20 10	3 (603) 43M-01-16XOB 478-93-96-95-96-95 20 20 10	1 (4102) 43M-01-17XBR 85-8867-0-12624 2U 1U	2 (1002) 43M-01-17XBR 20 10	3 (6/03) 43M-01-17XBR Sec. 40/05/02/07/68 20 10
Sample Dale Sample Dale Sample ID Parameter/Method VOC4(SU398/30118/3508)) 10/1.5/000000000000000000000000000000000	200 55.0 55.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0	(4/02) 32M-01-18KBR 2007 2007 28J 28J 29 29 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	(19/02) 32At-01-18X6R 	(6/03) 32/44-01-18XBR 1000U 50U 50U 50U 50U 50U 50U 50U 50U 50U	(4/02) 43Af-01-16XBR 20日本初時8次()4 20日 10月 10月 10月 10月 10月 10月 10月 10月 10月 10月	(10/02) 43M-03-16XBR 20 10 10 10	(6/03) 43M-01-16XBR (X=5A2562-242) 21/ 1U 1U	(4/02) 4334-01-16XOB 435554057-305-468 2013 1013	(10/02) 4383-01-16XOB 20 20 10	(603) 43M-01-16XOB 75592-5553-4553 2U 1U	(4102) 43NI-01-17XBR 85-886 307-01-1882A 2U 	(10/02) 43M-01-17XBR 2%就成前時前年(10/2) 2U 1U	(6/03) 43M-01-17XBR ***: <i></i>
Sample ID Parameter/Method Sample ID WOC4(\$3030#307119/32608) (pg).5%:50:5%:5235:6% (sg)*15/5 Sg)*15/5 Vinyl chorids L3.dichlaroethene (rans) L3.dichlaroethene (rans) Sg) L3.dichlaroethene (rans) Sg) L3.dichlaroethene (rans) Sg) L3.dichlaroethene Sg) L3.dichlaroethene Sg) L3.dichlaroethenzee L3.dichlaroethenzee L3.dichlaroethenzee Sg) L4.dichlaroethenzee Sg) L4.dichlaroethenzee Sg) L4.dichlaroethenzee Sg) VBB (MADEP-VFB-98-1) (pf).455: Sgn %often (char)	200 550 55.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0	32M-01-18X8R 2UJ 2UJ 2UJ 2UJ 2UJ 2UJ 2UJ 2UJ	32ht-bl-18XBR 40U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 2	32M-01-IBXBR 100U 50U 50U 50U 50U 50U 50U 460 310	43ht-01-16XBR 2007 2007 1001 1001 1000 1001 1001 1001	43M-01-16XBR 2U IU IU IU	43M-01-16XBR (X-7AS562-4-552) 21/ 1U 1U	43M-01-(6XOB <u>600256006-00949</u> 203 103	4333-01-16XOB	43M-01-16XOB 700-00-00-00-00 2U 1U	43M-01-17XBR 20 10	43M-01-17XBR 2000000000000000000000000000000000000	43M-01-17XBR
Permeter/Method WOC4(S3308/8011B/8260B) Jg/L-2000000000000000000000000000000000000	200 550 55.0 55.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.	200 200 100 280 20 197 100 100 6603 4504 59003 4504 59003 23007	40U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 200 200	1000 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 460 310	2005/2008/2005/200 200 100 100 100 100 100 100	20 10 10 10	21/ 1U 1U	203 203 103	2U 1U	20 10	85386535736588A 2U IU	20 10	899: 101:00000000000000000000000000000000
VOCAT(SUDDR/SOTTRATCOR) INFI CONTRATCOR)	200 55.0 55.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0	2UJ 1UJ 28J 21 19J 19J 19J 19J 19J 19J 19J 1950 1950 1950 1950 1950 1950 1950 1950	40U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 2	1000 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 460 310	2078#gite#c:->2 207 103 103 103 103 103 103	20 10 10 10	21/ 1U 1U	203 103	20 10	20 10 10	2U 1U	20 10	1990: 11:19:00:00:00:00 2U 111
Virye chloride L.2-dichlorechner (rans) L.2-dichlorechner (cis) L.1_dichlorechner (cis) L.1_dichlorechnere I.1_dichlorechnere I.1_dichlorechnere I.2-dichlorechnere I.3-dichlorechnere I.4-dichlorechnere I.4-dichlorechnere I.4-dichlorechnere VPBE (GRADEP=VPEI-98-1) (gA v Scient (orthogone) Remover	2,0 55,0 55,0 5,0 5,0 5,0 5,0 5,0 600,0 75,0 600,0 75,0 600,0 75,0 5,0 5,0 5,0 5,0 75,0 5,0 75,0 5,0 5,0 5,0 5,0 5,0 5,0 5,0 5,0 5,0	2(J) 1(J) 28J 21 19J 10J 660J 450J 5500J 250UJ 250UJ	40U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 36QI 200 2500	1000 500 500 500 500 500 500 460 310	203 103 103 103 103 103 103 100	20 10 10 10	2U 1U 1U	203 103	20	20 IU	2U 3U	2U 1U	20
1.2-dichlaroethene (risrs) 1.2-dichlaroethene (riss) 1.2-dichlaroethene (riss) 1.1-tyrschloroethane 11.3-trichloroethane 1.3-dichloroethane 1.3-dichloroethane 1.3-dichloroethane 1.4-dichloroetheraee 1.4-dichloroetheraee 1.2-dichloroetheraee 1.2-dichloroetheraee 1.2-dichloroetheraee 1.2-dichloroetheraee 1.2-dichloroetheraee 1.2-dichloroetheraee	55.0 55.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 600.0 75.0 600.0 75.0 600.0 75.0 500.0 500.0	1UJ 28J 21 19J 1UJ 6603 4504 59003 4381 1 1 4 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 20U 360J 20D 20D 2500	50U 50U 50U 50U 50U 460 310	103 103 103 103 103 104 104	<u>เบ</u> เบ เป	10 10	103	10	<u>[U</u>	JU JU	IV	
I.2-dichlorosthane (cis) I.1.2-tichlorosthane I.1.3-tichlorosthane I.3-dichlorosthane I.3-dichlorosthane I.3-dichlorostenzare VER (MADEP-YFR-98-1) (MA-43- (38- %20.4) - (3-2)) Demo	55.0 5.0 5.0 600.0 75.0 600.0 75.0 600.0 75.0 500.0 500.0	28J 21 19J 10J 660J 450J 5900J 81A: 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	20U 20U 20U 20U 360J 200 2500	50U 50U 50U 50U 460 310	101 103 101 101 101	10 10	10	11/1	147				
I.L.I. Jurichlosoethane Trichlosoethane I.J. Jurichlosoethane I.J. dichlosobenzene I.4-dichlosobenzene I.4-dichlosobenzene VBH (GAADEP-VYH-98-1) 14/1-555 (5055 (6750)); VBH (GAADEP-VYH-98-1) 14/1-555 (5055 (6750)); Dammen	5.0 5.0 600.0 75.0 600,0 7425.2 5.0 500.0	2) 19,J 10,J 660,J 450,J 5900,J 10,2 5900,J 23	10U 20U 20U 360J 200 2500	50U 50U 50U 460 310	100 100 100	<u>10</u>			10	10	1Ū	10	10
Trichtogehene 1.3-dichtorethane 1.3-dichtorethane 1.4-dichtorethane 2.4-dichtorethane WBB (MADEP-YFH-98-1) (MANSS: 5055 (2010): Damae	5.0 5.0 600.0 75.0 600,0 742542, 4 5.0 500,0	19,J 10,3 660,J 450,J 5900,4 11,2: 1,0:0:0:0:0:0:0:0 2500,J	20U 20U 360J 200 2510	50U 50U 460 310	ື້ພ		10	101	<u>, 10</u>	10	<u> </u>	10	U.
1.1.2-highlorochano 1.3-dichlorochano 1.3-dichlorochanzen 1.3-dichlorobenzene VBE (MADEP-VYB-98-1) (MA Sam South Sam Souther VBE (MADEP-VYB-98-1) (MA Sam Souther) (Sam Souther)	5.0 600.0 75.0 600.0 7.525.2 5.0 5.0 500.0	103 6603 4503 59003 0311 240 (54-55-5-5) 25003	200 360J 200 2510	50U 460	IUI		បេ	101	0.73	<u> </u>	10		10
1.3-dichlorobenzene 1.4-dichlorobenzene 1.2-dichlorobenzene VER (MADER-VFEI-91-1) (MAUSEI OSER Gordovel d. 1-1-1-1) Dennen	500.0 75.0 600,0 742542, 4 5.0 500,0	4503 4503 59004 03: 1 (1.0 (50-1)) 25003	300J 200 2500	460		10	10	107	10	<u> </u>	10	10	
1.3-dichlorobenzene 1.2-dichlorobenzene VFB (MADEP-VPB-98-1) (MAUSSI (1987) (1990) (1990)	5.0 600,0 7 425,2, 4 5.0 500,0	4503 59003 02: 1 JUN (Karaya Ray 230UJ	2500	310	100	. 10	10	101		10	10	<u></u>	
VPB (MADEP-VPE/98-1) (MASSA STATISTICS)	5.0 5.0 500.0	250UJ 250UJ	4310	1000	- 100						10		10
Parate (Distance of Parate 1) and a second state of the second sta	5.0 500.0	2300/		3800	لان الله الله الله الله الله الله الله ا	IU	R CONTRACT OF A	11.1	10	IU N-COMMENT STREET	U	Net factor all free free free	LU C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C
	500.0	1	1001	411	5 2 90 - 200 - 200 500	511	S11 1	##20##################################	101010-000-000-000-000-000-000-000-000-	5) (DC 5712) (C 12) (C	A11	500-242 5 517	411
Rindhenzenn		250111	1000	<u></u>	500	- <u> </u>	50	511				517	<u> </u>
mostylete		100000	4060	201.0	2017	2011	2011	2016	701	701	2017	2011	201
g-Xylene		50011	2001	100	1007	100	HUL	1011	100	100	1017	100	100
Telucne		75000	300U	150	1503	150	150	1903 1	150	150	150	15U	150
C5-C8 Aliphotic (1.2)	400.0	2000133	800U	1705	40UJ	40U	401	40UJ	40U	40U	40U	40LI	40Ú
C9-C12 Aliphatic(1.3)	1,000.0	50000	200U	3501	1001	100	100	1007	100	100	IOU	100	100
C9-C10 Aromatics(1)	200.0	9100J	2900	1700J	1003	100	100	101/1	10U	100	100	100	IOU
EPH (MADEP-EPH-98-1) (101 + 4) Horses Statute Fellerst	195812-61	net of financial in	المجارية ويكويهما الأرادي	South Strokers	TT GALLESTER	555-00020-000	THE RUNDER	的资源和优势化化学资源	218 M	和 为1430年1月20日,并注意	10.000 - 20.000 - 20.000	10 C. 10 C	ala Salahan Bara
C9-C18 Alipharies 4	1,000.0	920	240	620	6015	60U	600	60 U	600	60U	60Li	60U	60U
C19-C36 Aliphatics	5.000.0	60U	620	<u>61U</u>	601	60U	600	68U	600	601	601	60U	600
C11-C22 Aromatics	200.0	1600	160U	1600	16010	1600	1600	1600	16003	1601.	1601,11	161U1	160U
PCBS (35108/3520B/8082) µg/1 4 144 1 4 14 14 14					1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1. 1. S.	出当な国際がある諸語	C.C. SERVICE	的合适要的形式的	<u>我不过在39年,1945</u>	517.5 M 1970. A	2.47 - 19 1 - 1.4	29 1 . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
PCB-1016	0.5	0.SU	0,620	0.50	0.50	0.50	<u>0.5U</u>	0,5U	0.50	0.90	0.5U	0.50	0.50
PC8-(22)	0.5	0.50	0.620	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50
PCB-1232	0.5	050	0.620	0.50	0.00	0.50	0.50	0.50	0,50	0.50	0.00	0.50	0.30
PCB-1242	0.5	0.50	0.620	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0,50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0,50
PCB 1246	<u></u>	0.50	0.020	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0,30	0.50	0.50	0,50
PCB-1260	- 0.5	0.50	0.020	0.50	0.50	0.00	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.JU	0.50	0.50	0.50
Reinweilen (200:17/200.7/6D10B):00/			0.010		24.1		1011 - 101 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100	WT-2264 Stations on	12.50 Sec. 50.75.55	43. 5000 11723	1		1
Arsenic - Total	50.0	2.150	20	3,51	2.150	20	1.80	12.4	2Ŭ	11.2	2.150	2U	I_BU
Lend - Totol	15.0	3U -	2.10	1.8U	2.10	1.260	8.3	10.7J	1.260	9.3	2.80	1,60	0,910
Manganese - Total	3.500.0	7730	9260	14100	187	77.2	35.A	320	12,8	258	244	48,2	21.1
Arsepic - Dissolved	50.0	2.150	20	3.03	2.15U	2U	1.8U	2.150	21/	1.80	2.150	2U	1. <u>BU</u>
Leas - Dissolved	15.0	2.BJ	1,80	L.9U	I_BJ	1.80	0.910	3.33	2.20	1.20	1.370	1.70	0.910
Manganese - Dissolved	1.500.0	7500	8960	14200	174	69.2	19.2	119	9.8	19.7	216	28.7	25.3
IRA Persmaters (mg/l)			1.1.1.1.1		Second Action (Second)	1.1 M 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1.	#	中的问题是不可以认为	A CONTRACTOR OF	Balls Inter State	S. F. 2		
Nimie Nirogen (353_2)		3,4	0.79		1.1	0,67	0.54		1,3	1	0.93	1.4	1.3
Nitrite Nitrogea (353,2)	_+	0,3	0.06	0.05U	0.050	0.050	0.05U	0,05U	0.050	0.050	0.050	<u>0.0</u> 5U	0.05U
Antistonie Nitrogen (E330.2)		0.10	0.10	6,10	1.0	0.10	6,10	0.10	0.10	0,10	6.10	0.10	0.10
Глорные (305.2) Собрания (375.4)		10	0.10	0.10	0.1U	4.10		0,4	<u></u>		<u>v.1</u>	40	47
Suffice (375.1)			411	18	8,	40	4		35	32	10		1
Alkalinity	+	140	210	240	10	140	100	30	<u>بري</u> nt		120	140	150
TOC (415 1/SM5220)	-+	52	7.9	47	<u> </u>	30					111	28	2
COD 415.1/5M52201		150		151	150	1511	1511	- ISU	150	15	150	151	150
Methane (RSK, 175) ug/l	-+	40	33	140	100	NC	100	1012	NC		180	NC	100
Ethane (RSK 75) µg/l		NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC
Ethene (RSK 175) pp/1		NC	NC	NC	NC	NÇ	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC
Field Collected Data							S		97.7	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			(*************************************
Dissolved Oxygen (mg/L)		NC	1.09	0.85	3.13	15.26	8.36	8.02	7,31	8.41	3.00	1.59	1.59
ORP/Eh (mv)		120,37	216.33	111,9	41.5D	116.13	189	166,87	188.27	226.8	66.90	275,90	275.9
Specific Conductivity (µS/cm)		3-14.33	453.00	494	379.33	169.67	21	144.00	142.67	123	399.67	415.00	415,33
pH		6.39	6.13	5.35	7.27	7.01	6.15	6.32	5.74	5.61	7,05	7,52	7.52
Carbon Dioxide (mg/L)		אכ	122.5	96	NC	87,5	NC	NC	93.75	NC	NC	58	58
iros (mg/L)		NC	0	0.8	D	0	0	0	0	0	NC	0	0
veres: B - Autobatable to field or laboratory contamination. R - Rejected value J - Estimated Value. U - The compound was not detacted. The associated numerical UJ - The compound was not detacted. The compound quantized NC = Not Collected due to limited water volumes in wells. NA - Not Analyzed.	L value i Hon Him				 For groundwater: shown and was t *** - Ci J-C22 A: IRA Data was op Clean-up goals free Bolded values axe 	sampling rounds con alten from the ROD constitutes exclude the a volidated, an previous rounds (cod the clean-up goo	ducted in 1992 and 1 prepared by Harne E concentration of targ listed in the ROD) wi ls.	893, only select data i inginetting Services, el PAH analytes. tre used.	ior relevant parameter Inc., February 1998.	s is			

.....

ť

1

:

--

. . _--_-

-------- --

Well ID	Cleanup		41M-01-17XOB			43M-01-20XBR			43M-01-20XOB	
Round Number	Gost (ma/it	1	2	3	1	1 2	3	1	2	3
Sample Date		(4/02)	(10/02)	(6/03)	(4/02)	(10/02)	(6/03)	(4/02)	(10/02)	(6/03)
Samete ID		4355-01-17XOB	43M-01-17XOB	43M-01-17XOB	4351-01-20X8R	43M-01-20X BR	43M-01-20XBR	4351-01-20XOB	4344-01-20208	43M-01-20XOB
Parameter/Method	l i							10111 01 201000	10.00	
VOC5750308/80218/826081/m/1	د ويربه بريو د	1 June Nill Ma	N A 98 () # 28 3	STATE OF BELLEVILLE	120.26-259/17352	AND STATISTICS	are to be because	1248.44	SPECTRO BRANCH	284305355555228
Vinvl chloride	2.0	21	231	7	2111	711	213	711	21	28
1.2-dichloroethene (troot)	55.0	10	<u> </u>	10	III	iu —	IU IU	101	10	JR
1.2-dichlomethene (cia)	55.0	111	10	10 10 -	nu	IU III	in in	100	iù	JR JR
1.1.1.1-trichloroethane	5.0	10	IU II	10	101	iU	ÎŬ	107	พี่	IR
Trichlosoethene	5.0	10	10	10	13.0	1U	iŬ	រយ	10	İR
1,1,2-trichioroethang	5.0	iÜ	Ū	iū	FUI	10	JU	103	JU I	IR
1,3-dichlorobenzene	600.0	IU	ťŰ	IU	IUI	10	TŲ.	ເບເ	พ	IR
1.4-dichlorobenzene	75.0	เบ	10	U	ານ	020	IU	າມ	10	IR
1,2-dichlorobenzene	600,0	10	เม	ΤŲ	ເພ	10	U	נטו	NU NU	IŔ
VPR (MADEP-VPH 98-1) µgA <		20 (10 A) (10 A)		14 Mar 199	的现在是我们的	法法律规律规则	7月20月15月2月4月	的国际和新闻和自己的行行	2011年1月1月1日(H	S. 197 Mar 20 - X
Benzene	5.0	SU	50	50	SŲJ	SU	5Ú	5UJ	50	5UJ
Ethylbenzene		50	5U	50	SUI	50	5U	501	50	501
m.p-xviene		201	2010	200	2007	205	260	2003	2017	10131
o-Xylene		101	100	100	1001	100	100	1003	LCU	HOUJ
Toluçae		150	ISU	150	1301	150	150	1503	150	151/1
C5-C8 Aliphatic (1,2)	400.0	400	400	400	4003	400	4000	4DUJ	49U	401.0
C9-C12 Aliphotic(1,3)	4,000.0	150	100	100	1000	100	1800	1001	140	NOLU
C9-C10 Aromatics(1)	200.0	101	43	100	1001	100	100	IRJJ	100	117
EPH (MADEP-EPH-98-1) µg1	1. Sec. 3. 1.	and the second second	5个 沿電印刷台出	1. 42.000	Eroway, Barry Braz	14-2-2-2-2-2-2-2-2-2-2-2-2-2-2-2-2-2-2-2	STATISTICS CONT	Amaria 1996-1997	Alexand Street	1.56 0.0000000000000000000000000000000000
C9-C18 Aliphaties	4.000.0	110	600	601/	601.	60U	60U	6010	<u> </u>	<u>60U</u>
C19-C36 Alighetics	5.000.0	600	60U	600	601	601/		601	610	60U
C11-C22 Aromotics	200.0	290	1600	1600	1690	1600	16017	160R	1 <u>60</u> U	1601
PCBS (3519B/3520B/8082) Hg/l	<u> </u>			··· ··· ·	10-11-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-1	Se Distances	1219-111-12-20-014	あるなななないであった。	10 - 17 - FRI - 10 - 11 - 1	2010/07/2011
PCB-1016	0.5	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50
PCB-1221	0.5	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50
PCB-1232	20	0.00	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0,50	0.30	0.50	
DCD 1242	0.5	0.50	0.50	0,50	0.00	0,00	430	0.50	0.50	0.50
100-1248	0,5	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.30	0.50	0.50	0.50
PCB-1260	0.5	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50	6.00	0.50	0.50	0.50
Teorgenics (200-17/200-2/60108) tte/		0.00	1	VIDU	Lange with the second	1942 - 1944 - 1945	Sec. 8. 5. 4-56. 18	1.15 (1.15)	2 - 200 C	
Arsenic - Total	50.0	271	103	2.8	5.21	3.11	2.71	2.15U	20	1.81
Lead - Total	15.0	1.50	1.260	0.911	1.370	3.10	0.911	2.21	2.40	IU
Manganese - Total	3.500.0	650	923	197	3750	3690	1370	4_3U	1.90	1.41
Arsenic - Dissolved	50.0	269	105	1.80	4.8B	20	1.91	2.150	210	1.80
Lead - Dissolved	15.0	1,8J	1.80	0.915	1.370	1.40	LIU	1.37U	2.6U	0.91U
Manganese - Dissolved	3,500.0	635	906	183	3710	1450	1320	3B	1.7	1.30
IRA Parameters (mg/l)	•			in the second	the state of the	ins a literation of the	er Call Single	2. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1.	5 - 15 sec - 11	AD 17 L
Nitrate Nitrogen (353.2)		0.2	0.1	0.93	0.1	0.0SU	0.050	2	2.3	1.9
Nitrite Nitrogen (353.2)		0.051/	0.050	0.051	0.05U	0.05U	0.05U	0.05U	0.03U	0,05U
Ammonia Nitrogen (E350.2)		0.2	0.10	0.10	0.13	0.1U	0,10	0.10	0,10	0.10
Phosphate (365.2)		0.1U	0.10	0,10	0.10	0.10	0,10	0.1U	U	0.10
Sulfate (375.4)		20	10	20		28	4	35	40	28
Sullide (376,)		\$	9	<u> </u>	3.31	<u> </u>	4.1		4	2
Alkalinšty		70	100	201/	90	80	75	30	200	20
10C (415.1/5M5220)		11	69	10	18	22		4	18	
COD 415.1/SM5220)		150	20	150	150	150	150	150	150	150
Meinane (KSK 175) µg/l		36	2800	100	14	NC	100		NC	100
EINDR (R5K, 175) (19/		NC NC	NC NC	NC	NC NC	NC NC	NC NC		<u>NC</u>	NC NC
zinene (KoK 175) µg/l		NC	NC	NC	NC NC	NC NC	NC	NC	NC NC	NC
Picki Concella Dilla		····				<u></u>				·····
Consider Cargon (mg/L)		(14.47)	0.39	2.29		8.1/	1.4	NL	174 10	10.11
CARLED (IIIV)		(34.45)	444	233,3	(31.03)	(35.37)	1523.733	231.03	1/8.90	203.5
-H		616 	419	5-5 E 49	1382.07	1007.00	1861.33	6 7 1	 	£ 47
Carbon Dinvide (mail)	<u> </u>	0.30	0.22	2.40		/.39	1.1		10215	
Caston Internet (mg/L)			190,23	15	NC		98.73		93.73	<u>N</u>
(TOR (IBB-T)		U U	(4 .1	L 1.4	NL		(U,O		V	

Notes: R - Attributable to Gold or laboratory concumination. R - Rejected value J - Estimated Value.

3 - Issumate value: U - The compound was not detected. The associated numerical value i UJ - The compound was not detected. The compound quantitation lim NC = Not Collected due to limited water volumes in wells. N/A - Not Analyzed.

For geoundwater sampling rounds conducted in 1991 and 1993, only select data for relevant parameters is shown and was taken from the ROD prepared by Home Engineering Services, Inc., February 1998, 2, *** - C11-C22 Assomatics exclude the concernation of target PAH analytes.
 IRA Data was not validated.
 Clean-up posits from previous rounds (listed in the ROD) were used.
 Bolded values exceed the clean-up geats.

1

;

Page 6 of 7

Well ID	Cleanus							· · · ·		-					
Baund Sumbas	Casimon			9 P						1 25	· ۲۰	1 /6 1	•	• •	
Samala Dett	C1002 (1421)	1	(2001)	25		3 6	1.00	4.00			9	14	44700	(10)000	((101)
Semple Diffe		(11/34)	(3/92)	(2682)	(mast	10(30)	(1199)		(////	(1/37)	(10/39)	(1002a)	(4/02)	(10/04)	(0/03) FIG 17
aumpie ID.			1 1		} }		341-13-1	SH1-19-1	9411-13-3	386-15-3	SHL-15-4	5HL-15-18	anizia	SHT-12	3816-15
Content of the second se	and any information	er et en tradis	1 200	(700.00 W 517	N 11 N - 4 17 72	7.475-3 h	na Charobal Asaran	CONTRACTOR OF A DATA	EN SHAMPING	SALE OF LOOK STATE	2042 5 1425 5 10 100	Structure and state	State basic field a file and doubt	and a first of the set	All of the second states of
V CREE (SUSCIDUALITY IZOUS) MEASURE SUSCIDUALITY IN CONTRACTOR	200		- 0. (0. 76)	1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.		17-12-17.24	3.24 6258800	30,935,902,9	Sector Sold	NA PROPERTY AND	Manager and	222000-34%W	211 CONTRACTOR	0544-4133-962-963	10.000 States
1 2 dishloweth	2.0	NUA MUA	DVA NUA	- JUA	N/A	PI/A Mia	- 4 0	40			. 20	NC			<u></u>
1.2-Ochorosthene (initia)	55.0	N/A	3024	N/A	N/A	<u>ANA</u>		-		N/A		NC	10		
L L arithmethana	0.00	ING.	1970	NIA	29075	2010	<u> </u>		10	N/A N/A		NC	111		
T-shimmerberg		N/A M/A	-0.500	- NIA	NUA MA	NIA	1 11			N/A	<u> </u>	NC			
1 1 2 trichlornatione		NIA	344	NIA	N/A	NA	1 1					NC	10		
1.1.disblorobenzene	600.0	N/A	<1.20	NIA	NIA	N/A				N/A	111				
1 d.dichtorohenrene	75 0	NI/A	<1.70	NUA	NIA	NUA	-10-			N/A		NC			111
1.2.dichloubenzene	603.0	NA	<1.70	NUA	NIA	N/A	111	- :	iu	N/A		NC		111	111
VPHYMANER.VPH.OR.11 Holdsets with the	× 2011 + Galate	26.7	1000 B. 1004		1. (1000000-0	7.4000000000	40,000,000,000,000	Ast Storers	1210 338800	SCHEROLOGI	6-356 1930 19 A 19	Read The State State	200 100-000 10
Benzeite	5.0	N/A	<0.500	N/4	N/A	N/A	511	51	511	N/A	511	NC	51	51 <i>1</i>	SU SU
Ethylbenzene	503.0	N/A	<0.500	N/A	N/A	N/A	30	- SU	50	N/A	516	NC		รบ	<u>su</u>
m.u-xvlege		N/A	<0.840	N/A	N/A	NIA	20 U	20 U	201	N/A	2011	NC	201/	2017	201/
a-Xylene		N/A	<0.840	N/A	N/A	N/A	là U	100	100	N/A	lóŭ	NC	LOU	LOU	iou
Toluent		N/A	<0.500	N/A	N/A	N(A	15 U	150	150	N/A	15 U	NC	15U	150	150
CS-C8 Aliphatic (1.2)	400.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	40 U	40 U	40 U	N/A	40 U	NC	40U	40U	400
C9-C12 Aliphotic(1,1)	4,000.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	10 11	י ומע	10 U	N/A	10 U	NC	100	100	1000
C9-C10 Aromatics(1)	200,0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	10 U	10 0	10 U	N/A	100	NČ	100	10U	100
EPH (MADEP-EPH-98-1) [Light statistics of the second	- 1. 1. Solo (19	4.4.4	والمحجرة المحجرة والمحج	32 34 -	29.422.5 5 0	116.00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-	*****	社会的地区中心	1111111111111	10000000000	101字标为671	1423年1月2日日代	1999年1月19月1日	有当ななる。言語	4242-CASA
C9-C18 Aliphatics	4,000.01	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	60 UJ	61 UJ	6001	N/A	60U	NC	60UJ	6010	60U
C19-C36 Aliphanics		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	60 UI	6LU	600,0	N/A	600	NC	6003	60U	60U
C11-C22 Aromatics ***	200.0	N/A.	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	160 (J)	160 U	160 U	N/A	160 ()	NÇ	16001	LEGUI	1600
PCBS (3510B/3520B/8082) [46/1				ميا خارادي	6 610 hz, 14	129994	1.18.2.5	での日本である	477-142-15	教法 》和科学	South the second	の行うななない	HIP TOUGHT THE	にたってため、	1.29.4
PCB-1016	0.5	N/A	N/A	N/A	. N∕A	N/A	0.5 U	0.50 U	0.50 UJ	N/A	0.50 U	NC	0.503	0.50	0,50
PCB-1221	0.5	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	10	1.0 U	0.50 U	N/A	0.50 U	NC	0.5(7)	0.5U	0.50
PC8-1232	0.5	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	Q.5 (J	0.50 U	0.50 W	N/A	0.50 U	NC	0.51/3	0.5U	0,50
PCB-1242	0.5	N/A	N/A	N/A	NA	N/A	0.S U	0.5012	0,50 UJ	<u>N/A</u>	0.50 U	NC	0.503	0.SU	0.50
PCB-1248	05	<u></u>	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.5 U	0.50 U	0.50 UI	N/A	0,50 U	NC	0,SUI	0.50	0.50
PC8-1254	0.5	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	<u>N/A</u>	0.5 U	<u>0.50 U</u>	0.5010	N/A	0.50 U	NC	0.503	0.50	0.50
PCB-1260	0.5	N/A	<u>< 6.190</u>	N/A	N/A	NIA	0.5 U	0.50 U	0.50 UI	N/A	0.500	NC	0,51/1	0.5U	0.50
Inorgenses (200:11/200.7/60108) juga								计中间代 计	42.69.62	2142 (PA)	10-1-04-5-9	14433		1	·····
Arsenic · Total		N/A	91	<u>N/A</u>	16.6	2.21	16.2	104	63,9	60.8	327	287	116	44.2	.35
1.614 - 10141	15.0	N/A	10,7	N/A	0.36	<5.0	3.2 U	1.3 0	2.60	1.90	3.7 U	1.50	5,50	1.80	1,260
Manganese - I biai	3,300.0	N/A_		N/A	7400	7700	1060	22001	848	790	0100	6010	4190	1000	231
Ansenic - Dissolved	50.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	NIA	AVA_	NIA	NVA	N/A	N/A	N/A	<u>N/A</u>	111	12617	19
Lesa - Dissolvea	2 (07.0	- ENFA	NVA NVA	<u>N/A</u>	CUA	NIA	N/A	<u>NA</u>		N/A	NVA	N/A	4.4D	1.200	<u>1.360</u>
Manganese - Olisoliveo	3,308.0	SVA.			OUB (NIA	N/A	N/A	N/A NOVERNA	NIA Siderineirth	NYA Ricidaeta Sta	OVE In All Sciences A	4498	1030	247
Minesta Nitroman (152.7)		3124	NIA	Mik	<u></u>	NO A	0.63	0.053	0.94	41340453962 10	0.90	NC NC	11	0.117	0.22
Mitche Nitebern (353.2)			N/A	NIA	NIA	N/A	-0.05 -0.050		20.050	NIA	<0.050	NC	<u> </u>	0.0502	0.0517
Ammoja Nimpen (E350.2)		N/A	NA	N/A	N/A	N/A	<0.10	0.57	0.2	N/A	0.49	NC	0.IU	0.10	0.2
Phomhate (365.2)		N/A	NVA	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.27	0.14	0.24	N/A	0.66	NC	0.4	0.2	0.11
Sulfate (375.4)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	NA	24	12	20	N/A	11	NC	39	25	21
Sulfide (376.1)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	<1.6	-20	7.0	N/A	<4.0	NC	5	11	10
Alkalinity		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	50	82	60	N/A	170	NC	120	83	50
TOC (415.1/SM5220)	_	NIA	NA	NA	NA	NA	3.2	to	1.2	N/A	8.1	NC	SL	71	2
COD 415.1/SM5220)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	<15	33	<15	N/A	40	NC	82	150	150
Methane (RSK 175) µg/1		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	62	5.2 U	NC	N/A	NC	NC	700	1500	38
Ethane (RSK 175) µg/l		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	9.6 U	9.60	NC	N/A	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC
Ethene (RSK 175) µg/1		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	9.0 U	900	NC	N/A	NC	NC	NC	NC	NC
Field Collected Data							1	1 34.200		- 11 10 10 10 10	1. 1994	18 11			
Dissnived Oxygen (mg/L)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0.60	12.95	0.48	N/A	0.59	N/A	0.50	0.27	1,61
ORP/Eh (mv)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	266.20	(72.23)	(78,00)	N/A	(97.60)	N/A	(15.57)	(23.33)	(44.20)
Specific Conductivity (uS/cm)		NIA	N(A	NIA	N/A	N/A	159,00	222.67	188.00	N/A	349.33	N/A	186,00	217.00	\$9.67
pH		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	5.64	5.68	5.68	N/A	6.73	N/A	5.71	5.90	5.55
Carbon Dioxide (mg/L)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	25	90	40	N/A	45	N/A	NC	268.75	NC
Iron (rog/L)		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	1.6	6.2	4,4	N/A	3.2	N/A	NC	2.1	NC

(_____

ť

Carbon Dioxide (mpf.) linen (mpf.) Notes: B - Antibutable to field or laboratory contamination. R - Rejected volue J - Estimated Volue. U - The compound was not detected. The associated numerical value i UJ - The compound was not detected. The compound quantitation line NC = Not Collected due to limited water volumes in wells. NA - Not Analyzed.

For groundwater sampling rounds conducted in 1992 and 1993, only select data for relevant parameters is shown and was taken from the ROD prepared by Home Engineering Services, Inc., February 1998.
 *** - C11-C22 Aromatics exclude the concentration of target PAH analytes.
 IRA-Onta, was not validated.
 Clean-up goals from previous sounds (listed in the ROD) were used.
 Bolded values exceed the clean-up goals.

. .

Tabla D-2 Graundwaler-Analytical Results - Decamber 3-d, 2003 Sampling Event Devens Analytical Results - Decamber 3-d, 2003 Sampling Event (SHEET 1 of 2)

.....

. .

> . .

			Reparking Limit	\$86.45	tis-m-eux	0104074030	27643-038	1216-61-007.0R	200-01-12088	10-01-1-0.00	Miner-Market	1041-1520	1210-01-1020-0	201-01-17738	23441-41204	536-81-1006R- OCP	4041-01-002.08	130-01-00000	4334-01-177800	000-01-17300	618-01-2000B	CHARGE IN	12416-01
	NCP	Site-Specific	់ទំព័រ	P01.	P91	191.	PGI.	Polt.	pgf	µ9/1	JgL	Jig/L	μgή.	HD/L	1 Mayr	(rgi)	Pg/L	ygyl.	hôr	_µ9/1	14gell		97
PARAMETER (NETHOD)	ACOW-1	Gleanup Goal a																_		· · · · · · ·			
VOC (SWIME B250E)	P.P.a													<u> </u>	[
Vinit citionide (citionellisine)	2	2	1.0	100		140	1.0 U	100	5.6 U	100	101	<u></u>	100	1.04	1100	96 U	100	100	1.00	100			1,010
cis-1,2-Dichloroschane	70	ŝ	1.0	100	1.00	1.40	100	100	เจ้ม	1.00	100		100	0.27 1	160	<u>es</u> v	100	1.90	1.00	140	1.00	HS	1.50
1,1 1-Trictionovana	210	5	- 18-	100	<u>- 100</u>		1.00	188	100	1.00	<u>- 100</u>		1.00	1.00	1100	MAD NO	10U 00020	14	1.00	140		HS HS	1.00
1.1.2-Trichloroothane	ŝ	5	. 1.0	1.0.0	1.0 ป	1.00	iõu	1.00	100	100	101	<u></u>	1.00	1.00	liqu	N U	120	1.00	1.00	1.0 1	u li li	WS	1.90
14-Dichlorobetteng	600	<u> 690</u>		1,00	100	1.00	1.00	100	1.0	0451	0.43.4		100	24	430	400	100	180	1.50	100	120	<u>NS</u>	1.00
12-Dictularobolizane	610	800	1.0	1.0 U	1.90	1.00	1.50	1.60	39	0.021.0	_0.78 J, B	300	0.34 J, B	0.62 J. B	3,900	3,600	140	100	1,50	1.00	1.00	NS	0.56 J
Clicklorodifupromethane (Freen 12)	1000	<u> </u>		100	100	100	1.00	140	100	142.j	100	110	1.00	1.00	100	96U 46U	1.00	100		- 1410	1.01	- NS NE	100
Station Albert	2	<u> </u>	10	1.0 U	100	1.00	100	1.0 U	100	100	100	110	100	1.04	1100	96 U	140	1.00	1.00	1AU		NS	U
Chidron theme	1,000	<u>+</u>		1.00	1,00	100	100	100	1.00	100	1 <u>00</u> 100	1110	100	1.00	1100	340	100	1.00	100	100	1.01		100
Azofaln	100		5.D	5.0 D	600	0.52 1	500	<u>6.0 Ú</u>	5.00	500	600	65 U	6.9.0	<u>101</u>	550 U	480 U	8.0U	600	5.CU	50U	600	NO	200
Fason TF 1,3-Dictuorantherps	1		1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	100	100	1.00	1.90	- 110	1.00	1.00	110U	- 193U 193U	1.00		120	100	120	<u>NS</u>	
Applone	199		5.0	341	6,0 L	5.00	500	- <u>810 U</u>	463	12	P 3	690	6.C U	500	540 ()	-440 U	5.00	\$00	5.00	BOU .	500	248	1.4 U
Carbon disulfate	1,000		1.0	100	1,00	1.00	1.00	1.0 0	1.00	<u>100</u>	100	110	1.0 U	1.00	1100	160	1.00	100	1,00	1.00	1.50	NG	0.26 J
Ally chicride	5,000		1.0	1.0.0	1.01	100	100		1.01	100	180	110	100	1.0 U	110 U	951	1.0.0	1.00	100	199	1.00	75	100
Apploable	1,000		1.0	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	140	<u></u>	100	100	100	13 0	100	1.0 U	1100	96U	1.00	100	1.00	100	1.00	65	100
1,2-DidNerselBene (ISLD)	700		1.0	100	100	130	140		1.00	100	100	111	1.00	027 J	910 U	950	140	100	1.01	104	120	23	100
1.1-Dichiorophane	70		1,0	100	1.01	1.00	1.00	100	110	100	1,00	110	1.00	1.00	110Ŭ	16U	1.0 4	1.0 U	ารัฐบั	100	150	143	1.00
Veryl acctage	1000		10		1.00	100	100	100	1,00	<u>18U</u>	104	112	100	1.00	<u> 9000</u>	960	<u>. 1.0 u</u>	104	100				100
2-Belanong	400		50	5.01	50U	<u>50Ŭ</u>	60U	5.0U	500	SOU	3.00	55 0	102	3,011	\$60 U	4000	_50 u	5.01	លើប័	\$00	530	NE	500
Presioniulio Mathecrytoriulio	500			4,00 1.00	4.0U 1.0U	100	40U 10U	1,00	110	1.00	400	440) 4.0 µ (1.0 l)	1.00	450 U	34600	<u> 40U</u> 10U	400	100	100	150	NS	1.00
Bromechoromothans		-	1.0	1.00	1.0 U	100	1.0 U	1.50	100	1.00	1.0 U	114	1.00	1.00	1150	- 9 8 U	1.0 µ	1.00	100	1.00	140	NS	100
Chicology	5,000	<u>-</u>	10	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	10U	1.0 0	100	100	100	110	1.00	1,00	110 0	1300 D	1.00	100	140	1.00	- 00	NS	1410
Carbon toirethionde			1.0	1.00	1.61	100	1.00	120	1.0 U	100	ró u	114	1.00	1,50	110.0	Pau	1.01	160	600	1.00	130	<u></u>	1.00
Benzene	5		1.0	1.00	1.0 U		100	120	100	-ñŭ.	1.010	114	100	100	1100	96.0	100	1.00	100	100	1.00	NS NS	
1,2-Dichionethane			10	100	100		1.00	1.01	101	100	1.00		1,00		110.0	<u>96 U</u>	100	1.00	100			NS I	
Marings Moltanizyla in	5.000	<u> </u>	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	<u>10ŭ</u>	100	<u>100</u>	1.0 0	1.00	110	1.00	<u>_120</u>	11010	- <u>60 U</u>	100	140	100	100	100	NS	1.0 0
Dissection 1.4-Dissante	5,000		-18	5017	1,0 U 64 U	1.00	1.00	1.0 U 50 U	<u>10U</u>		1.00	<u>110</u> 550 u	100	1.0 U	11018 5600 U	86 U -	10U MU	<u>1.0 U</u> 6011	100	1.00 500	150		
Bromacischieren militane	5		1.0	110	1.00	1.01	150	KAU	100	1.00	1.00	11 U	1,00	1.0 U	1100	98 Ų	ÎÂŬ	1.00	100	1.01	100	NS	
2-Siterbelly/ Vinyl Ether			10	1008	1.008		1.008		10UR 10U	100	1.50R 1.50R	1108	1.000	<u>1.00 R</u>	110.0.0	96UR 98U	10UR 10U	1.008	1.0UR	1.0 JR	1.0UR 1.9U	NS NS	UQU
4 mellini 2-pertinnana			5.0	500	6.0 U	E.OU	5.0.0	500	30U	5.50	5.00	55 U	8.0 U	540	55015	490 U	6.0 1	500	58U	<u>54</u> U	50 U	NS	101
avena aven-1.3-Ochisroprocene	<u>. 1,000</u> S ⁺⁺	<u> </u>	1.0 1.0	1.0 U	10.44-2,10 1.00	1.0.0	140	100120B	1.00	1.20	100	- 90	1.00	1010	1990	96U 96U	1.0.0	191	1.00	100	1,00	115	1.44
Ethyl melhacrybele	600		10	100	100	100	100		160	1.00	149	<u>NU</u>	1.00	-194	1100	980	130	1.00	1.00	100	1,01	N5	100
2-Hearing	1,000		5.0	500	6.00	100	54U	600	600	500	5.00	660	6.0U	504	560 U	្តរសិបី	330	500	500	59.4	60U		100
Distances in the second s	5		1.0	100	1.00	100	100	191	1.00	100	100	<u>510</u>	1.5.0	101	110U	2012	1.00	<u>100</u>	1.01	100	1.00	<u>NS</u>	1.00
1,1,1,2-Tetrachiomethene	3		1.0	1.00	1.00	140	1,6 0	10.0	100	1.6 μ	1.417	110	1.00	1.00	31011	160	100	1000	100	100	1.0 U	NS	100
ESyberzene m-Xvieze & p-Kvieze	700 6.000 **	<u> </u>	1.0	10U 10U	1,0,0	1.00	100	100	1.00	100	1.00	110		1.04	5100	95.0	100	1.00	1.00	100	144	NB	100
Xylama (initri)			12	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	1.00	110	140	100	110U	60	100	100	1.01	100	110	N5	100
Symne	100	<u> </u>	1.0	100	1.00	100		1.00	1,610	190	1.0U 1.QU		1.01	100	1100	1610	100		1.00	100	1,0 U	MS NS	100
	10.000		10	100	1.00	100	100	100	1.0-0	<u> </u>	1.0 U	150	130	1.00	_1100	16U	580	1.00	1.0-0	300	100	MS	100
dia 1.4-Dichtere-2-balane	1000**		iõ.	100	1.00	1.0.0		100	1.0 U	<u></u>	100	110	100	100		960	790 100	1.00	100	100	1.00	NS NS	
1,1,2,2-Terrechlorodolane	2		1.0	100	1.00		100	101	1,0 U	100	100	110	100	1.00	1100	NU	100	1.60	100		180	25	
Winte 1,4-Dethiors 2 by large	10061	-	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	<u> 180</u>	100	1.04	ÎÂŬ.	100	110	100	1.00	1100-	340	1.0.0	1.00	120		1.0 U	TNS.	100
(),2-O/brome-C-chioropropana (OBCP)	100]	20	1.00	1.6.13	1.00) .ou	เลย	1.0 U	עמו	งอน	11.0	100	1.00	1101	່ສມ	ם בי	1.00	1.00	้ เธย	101	NS	1.04
12/4Trichlandrenzone	70		1.0	1.00	. 1.00	1.0 U	LOU	100	1.0 μ	100	LOU	11 0	1.00	1.00	(110 U	98 U	100	1.00	100	1.60	10 U	NS	1.00
Naphthology	20		1,0	1.00	1.0 U 1.0 U	100	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	110-	1.00	1.00	1180	96U	1.00	1.00	100	1.00	0313,0	- NS	1.00
7,2-Ochianapropana	3		10	1,00	<u>1.0 U</u>	500	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	100	1.0 U	110	1,0 U	1.00	1100	98.4	1.01	1.00	100	1.00	<u>iou</u>	NS	1,6 U
1.3-Oichioropheane	5000			1,00	1.0 U	100		100	1.01	100	1.911	110	1.00	1.00	1100	96.0	1.00	1.00	100	1-180-	100		1.00 1.00
Branobenzene	1,000	<u> </u>		100	1.0.0	100	1.00	100	1.00	3.00	100		1.0 U	1.04	1100	951	1.00	1.60	1017	120	<u>10U</u>	NS .	100
2-Chkrotakiene				100	1.0.0	100	1.90	1 tot	្រំល័ម	140	1.00	<u>- 110</u>	100	100	1101	950	1.00	1.00	tau	120	100	NS.	100
4-Ghiarotakusna			1.0	1.0 U	LÓU	100	1.00	100	1.01	1.8.0	1.00	110	101	1.00	1:00	960	1.00	1.0 4	104	1.00	101	NS.	1.01
Int-BulyDenzeno			1.0	100	1.0.0	100	1.00	180	1.08	1.00	140	10	1.00	100	1100	80	1.0 U	100	00	100	1.00	NS	100
1.2.4-TampingSpenzeng			1.0	1.00	100	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	100	100	118	1.00	1.00	1100	960	1.00	100	100	100	1.00	NS	1.00
p-lageropytekueng			1.0	100	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	160	1,00	1.00	100	110	100	140	1100	950	1.0 0	1.0 U	100	0.03	100	NK5	101
n-ButyDenzena		<u> </u>	1.0	100	1,00		1.0 U	140	1.0.4	1.0 U	1.00	110	100	100	1101	9513	1.0 U	1.0 U	100	1.50	1/10	NS NS	1.01
BUCK CARRY AND									1.0 0	1.00	1.12.40			1	1 110.0		1.00			the second s	4400 a, d		

Bold minister bullicits a standards of Neuplicitic MMNUp (port Shubar and fundame compounds analyzed for in 2006 and the size appetitic contaminants of concern Bold mombers in shubded areas indicate autoactances of MCP GWA standard "Registrator standard is for Cate 1.3-d informations, is ide species and (cate 1.1-d). Concentrations

U « Compared noi detoted al a concertablen obeve da reporting group 3 « Europeand version hav been Reporting Link av based of data examina of labors large results. 3 « Europeand version Lank and Reporting Link with staff and the to mark apite means for above support QC tank R « Transit rejected data is zero percent exports (in model and ender spite records above support QC tank). R « Transit rejected data is zero percent exposing in Mark and and ender spite records above support QC tank). B « Constant de Markalan (in Lance) and the spite of the spite of the spite star spite spite of the spite of the spite of the spite of the spite star spite
ل

Tecke b.2 An Bytteni Fasulta - December 3-3, 2003 Sampling Event Deventa Assos 2345A (2004001 POL Yant) (SIREET 2 of 2)

ŝ

		Reporting Linux Strat	1/14	239-24-812			THE PARTY	1214-01-12120		VIECH-INCE	- 10031-10-1026	21-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-	11445-17121R 112					N ATTEN INSTRUM	IVITS BUILT			1
	NCP Stanut Go		197	H94.	1	1.04	HQ1	-46	YPL-	194	764	1.64	1 104	194	181	107			- 	2	1	ľ
NUM NAV DEBN	<u>164 1,88</u>															H	H	Η		╢	$\left \right $	
CS-C8 Alightight Hydrocurpons CS-C12 Alightight Hydrocurpons			1000	1980 1980 1	100U	1000	40.0U 10.0U	10 CB	10.00	600 100	100			*			1000					Ŧ
CI-CID Administ Hydrocarbond Medini fair-buch alter		10 1	191	50	50	160	36 C C	120	방다 기이다	380	582		4 00	10012	17.00 6	žē -		22	200		7 G	ēē
Bargere		***	191	200	100	100	50U	120	544	80U	10.0	EQU	1	18 	100			200	PH B			ľ
Edin Connection	101 101		00	600	Mar	50 U		59U	005	8		600	50		100				0 L		15 A	Ē
Disklene **	6000 1		5				100		180		22								90 90 90 90		ن اب برايز	ćċ
Value of the second sec			101	101	101	18U	10 U	10 <u>1</u>	181	100	102	100	100	101	100	101		100	1		1	ĕ
DATRACTABLE PETROLEUN HTDROCARDON RANGES														_								
Cit - Cit Alphates Cit - Cit Alphates	- 4,000	81-87			89 0 0	976 1986	88	88	ŝŤ	100	850 0			1000 U	1000 L	040	150		200		15 15 15	e a
CHTC22 ADMINUM	- 200	170 001 001	179,0	1950	190 U	180.9	1300	180 U	101	1 06i	190.0	170 U	140 U	180		1001	1906	10	10 U	100	5	ĉ
244 ph0 valente 244 ph0 valente	11	10-01	55 2 C	10	111	101	500		111	<u> </u>	110									90 10	NS IN	ĔĔ
Activity of 2015a no.	1 I I	55	86									ĒĒ									55	Ē
Fluorene	: 8	10 10 11	io u	цų		100	60	10 U	110	110			Ē				1012			200		Ē
Animedane	\$s -	106011			11U	101	100	10 U 10 U	110	110	50	10 U 10 U	310 0 U	110	10 C	10U	10 U	1010 1010		2 <u>0</u>	55	ĔĔ
Pirane	≊iĝ		22					8 5 C	110			흐르		110	ee E	100	10 U				1	ĒĔ
Bengs/Silani/yncine	N -	10 001	100		臣근	100	10U	80 20	22	110			±2.		ËË:						56	ĔĔ
Berucit Sconstitiers Berucit/Sconstitues		10011		111		100	100	inv vni	110	110	110	10 1 1 1 1	N U	110 110		101	10 u 10 u				56 5 1	
an a	- <u>-</u> 50	11 01 01	101	NIC I		191		i i i	ц	11	E	jo L	-	Ē	100	Ē		2	2	No.	*	Ē
TOTAL DISSOLVED GASES		19 6 11	10	10		100	100	100	9 6	N H			110 U	110	100							CC
(MPA, RAN, 976) Methane Etano		56	180	200	204	200	10		6.9	T DEE	2.0 U		200	2		200			290		2	2
Egent (Kari	100	96	360	166	101	101	3.01	10 C	3.0 U	10'E	706	¥60	30 U	1.Q U	100	20 4	3.00	50	100 100		15	f
Avador 10:6 Avador 1221	0.2 0.3 0.5	0.60 to 0.67	0.52 U	054U	057U	961 U	0.53U	0.50 U	0.56 U	055 U	952 U	0.12 11 11	000 900 000	0.52 U	0530	0.53 1/	0.54 U	90 0 0 0 0	F0 103		H\$ 0.	ĊĊ
Andor 1242 Andor 1242 Andor 1248	0,1 0,1 0,5 0,5	0.50 to 0.57			057 057 057 0		0530	259 U	0.860 7.990 7.960	0.520	0520			0320								255
Anocior 1754 Anocior 1260 ICP NIETALS - TOTAL METALS	50 50	0.50 (4 0.57	0.52 U	054U	050 1 1	051 U	0.63U	0.50 U	0.840 U 440	0.510	952U	0 0 0 0	9.53U U 62.0	042 U	020		0410	222		90		ĒĒ
Alberted automotion (unit)	8	10	1	4.19	4.30	110	410	410	20.5	4.1 U	6.6 B	470	18	88.4	⇒	210	4,1 U	2	23		<u>ل</u> ا ا	č
Levis Mungernese	- 15		178	14 U	1428	140 21.1	140	140	7.840	19.7 79.7	2,0B	1,4U	1/10 0 1/1	140	1,40	001	101	1 92				
Kungarete	13 15	55	2 8 2		638 108	240		140	14												8 Ø.	
100 (SW241 1089)	т т	1.0	G	1.2 Q)				i i			i ngi	i P	ž și						ž Š			Ĩ
Additional (GPA 150,1) Annoval es N	ı ı	0.024	0017	942¢ U	9006	0.224.0	0.824.9	D.074 U	0.440	694.0	642N	0.074 U	9000 	0017*	0.059	9400	0.180	9000	200	6	10	
TOTAL INCOME	1	5	110	40.8-2+	28.8.+	13.5 U	ġ	ž	ä	5	246	18	8	2	8	28.J.			28 			Ĩ
Photohen (3552) Photohen (3552)	1 1	0100	0.27 F	10101	00g	NA			P	NA NA	3			₹	₿	10						ŧ۶ ا
Suffate (3) 5.4) Suffate (376.3)	11	0.020	170 110	0.000 1.62	1.0201	00200	0.020 U	642	10201	0.020 U	1600 112	6020U	0.000	0.94	919 19	0020 0020		50 U (20	12 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20		10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	θų V
TELO PARAMETERS																				╢		
Tempersturnities Chimitel			12.45 12.45	1 00 CF	19,86	12.24	013) BE 21	11.41	11.20	1 15	1	24	112	13.40	13.40	11.82						4 5
CRP/EA mV eff		•	53 53 1		n 24 1	2021 10	2465	217.9	552 17						8.19 - 19	2445	1952		807 26			7 <u>8</u> 6
Brandie Certifictance (180m) Dissource Contrat and					30	3			192		33	£	Ŧ									
				100 L		ja G	5	692			78	1		610		225	1		-			Ľ
State of the second sec	vir-mercific cicency good symet ine in achieven to the site art	بالمديره صحيافتار الباقة قز كان	9		13 No Level		article line		-													
	•				I I Carned	And designed to a																

er als ve the meeting fish in this architector of Liberatory meetin

UA PHEAR Analyzed

a gunda et dan saggan dan u

2

nivursiai joi shal apaprile

ave) at 1

Sing Ranki basi ganadari shara ting ingersamente deta calan tingi

HINH I SCR021

- Regulatory Standard in ter o

Table 2 . Groundvaler Analytics! Results - May 25-27, 2004 Sampling Event Devens Variate (DRMOPCL Yard) (EVENT in 73)

		Site-Specific											W	fell Number										
	MCP	Cleanup	Reporting			322-99-023 (528										124-01-18XBA	324-01-167.98			A38-01-				
	RCGW1	Gónis	Link	5141-15	328-92-55X	92-023)	328-92-033	3210-01-04 XBR	328-01-15XBA	32M-03-14XOB	320401-14XER	3226-01-18308-1	C2201-01-14X0R	32H-01-17XBR	3294-05-16XBR	DUP		4551-01-11 XOS	8 43M-01-14XBR	17X6A	43M-01-17XOB	458-01-20XOB	43M-51-30XBR	33-134-E0B
PARAMETER	1.044/1)	(1411)	04/14	(04612)	(HD/L)	(µc/L)	(jug/L)	(jiigiL)	(040/1-)	(89/-)	(µg/L)	(HQ/L)	()46/L)	(49-1)	(ազու)	(ug4.)	(µg/L)	(ազու)	(#0/L)	(147)	(9.01.)	(HØ/4	(049/L)	044/L)
Volatile Organic Compounds (SV	V646-82608)																							
Vinyl chloride (chloroethene)	2	2	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.000	1.00	1,00	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	_10U	170 UJ	100 00	2.0 UJ	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1000	1.00
sta 1.2 Conferences	70	60	1.0	1.00	101	1.000	100	1.00	1.00	100	0.00	0.00	1.00	1,00	17000	100.00	2003	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00-	1.00	1.003	1,00
1.1.1 Svichlorgethane	200		1.0	160	100	1000	1.01	100	100	100	100	100	100	160	17010	140.00	0.513.4	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	100	1.00	1000	100
Trichloroethene	5	Š	1.0	1.00	1.0 U	101	100	100	100	100	1.00	0.64.J	120.4	0.28 J	170 00	180.00	5.2.1-	100	22	0.34.1	100	1.0 V	100	50
1.3-Disalotebenzene	600	500	1.0	160	1.01/	1.010	1.0 U	1.00	0.68 J	0.24.	0.42.1	14	0.24.1	1.1	730 J-	710 .	550.1	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 1	1.0.0	0.69.1
1 4 Dichlorobenzene	5	75	1.0	100	100	100	100	100	1.0.0	500	0.50 J	1 31	100	100	470 J.	480	360.1	101	1011	101	1011	100	1000	0.53
1.2.Dichlotohenzene	600	500	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.0.16	1.0 U	100	10.00	0.32 11	0.8711.1	36.1+	0.31111	04111	6200 J	6200 L	5000 J.	1.0 U	100	100	100	1.01	1044	3.8
Dichlorodifuoremethane (Freen 12)	10,000		1.0	1.00	1 100	1.0 UJ	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	0.71 J	1.0 U	1.01	100	1.9 U	170 UJ	180 111	1.6.1-	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.000	1.00
Chloromethane	1,000		1.0	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 UJ	1.00	1.00	1,010	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	170 LU	180 U.J	5.0 W	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1,0 U	1.000	1.00
Bromamethane	2		1.0	1.0.0	1.00	1.0 UJ	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.01	1,00	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	170 UJ	180 UJ	2.0 W	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1,0 U	1.00	1.000	1.0 U
Chloroethane	1,000		1.0	1,00	1,00	1.0 0.	1.04	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1,0 U	100	170 LU	480 UJ	5.0 UJ	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 UJ	1.au
I nenjeremueremetrape (Freed 53)	10,000	· · ·		1,00	1,00	0.64 J-	1.00	1,00	1,0 U	1.00	1,00	0.32 J	<u>1.0 U</u>	1,01	1/0100	160 UJ	200	1,00	0,26.1	1,00	1,00	1,00		1.0 U
Entrop TE	<u> </u>		10	100	100	1010	100	100	101	100	100	100	100	101	270.0	18010	NA NA	- 100	100	100	100	100	1000	101
1 1-Dechlovoethene	1-1		1.0	100	1.0 U	1.000	1.00	1 เอิบั	1.00	100	1.04	1.00	1.00	100	170 yJ	100 00	1.0 LU	100	1.00	100	160	1.0 U	1.001	1.00
Acetone	300	· · · · ·	5.0	4.7 J	5.0 U	5.0 UU	5.0 U	5.0 U	3.0 J	15	21	15	5.00	100	850 UJ	920 UJ	34.0-	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.00	5.0 U	5.0U/	5.0 U
Welly Iodide	1,000	•	1.0	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 UJ	1.0 U	1.0U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 0	1,00	170 UJ	180 UJ	2010	1.0 U	1.0 U	1,0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 W	1.0 U
Carbon disulfide	1,003		1.0	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 Uu	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.0.0	1.00	1.00	<u>K</u> QU	[170 UJ	180 Uu	2004	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0.04	0,27.1
Allyl chlande	5,000	•	1.0	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 UU	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	170 LI3	180 00	NA	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 W	1.0 U
Methylane chloride	5		1.0	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 W	1,0 Ų	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.010	1.0 U	1.0 U	1,4 U	170 UJ	160 W	5.0 ເມ	5.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0.U	1.0 UJ	4.5
Acrylananie	1,000	· · · · ·	1.0	1.00	1.0 U	1.000	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	170 UU	160 LU	NA	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 W	1.00
1,2-Exchuoroethene (lotal)	700	· · ·	1.	1.01	1.0 0	1.0 W	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.01	0.26 J	1.0	0.64.J	1.00	170 W	160 LU	22+	1.0 V	1.0U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 00	1.0.1
Metryt-OLIVI CIPEr	100	<u> </u>	1,0	1.00	1.00	1.0 00	100	1,00	1.0 0	100	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1/0 W	160 00	2003	1.0 U	100	1.00		1.00	1.000	1.00
Vinul avaitable	1 1000	<u> </u>	10	100	100	1010	100-	104	100	1.00	100	100	100	1.00	17010	160.00	<u>2003</u>	1.00	1	100	100	100	100	100-1
Chickotrene	1000	 	1.0	100	100	10.0	100	100	100	តែចំ	1.60	1 180	101	1.00	170 00	180 UU	NA	1.00	100	100	- 65	1.00	1000	100
2-Butahone	400		5.0	500	5.00	5.0 UJ	8.00	3.00-	SốČ	600	5.0 Ú	5.00	5.0 U	sou	550 W	920 UU	10 00	5.0 U	5.00	5.00	600	6.00	5.0 UJ	8.00
Proplanitrile	500	-	4.0	40.0	4.0 Ų	4.0 W	400	400	400	400	4.0 U	4.00	400	400	580 LU	730 UV	NA	400	400	40U	4.0 U	4.010	4.0 UJ	4.00
Methacrylopitale	5000		1.0	1.0 U	1.00	5.0 UU	1.0 U	1,00	1,0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1,0 U	170 W	180 UU	2003	1.0 U	1.0 U	1,0 U	1,00	1.00	1.0 UJ	1.0 U
Bromochlardmethane		•	1,0	1,0 U	1,00	1,0 UJ	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1,00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	<u>1,0U</u>	170 W	160 UU	2000	1.00	1.0 U	1,00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 UJ	1.0U
fetrahydrofuran	5,000	-	- 14	140	140	14 UJ	140	140	14.0	14U	140	14 U	14U	14.0	2400 UL	2600 UJ	10 LU	14U	140	14 U	140	140	1400	221
				1.00	1,00	1.0 0.1	100	1.00	1.00	1,00	1,00	1.00	1.00	100	1/0 00	180.00	2000	1.00	1.00	1.00	1,0 0	1,00	1,000	1,00
Letter and the shall be tare	10,000		500	5011	50.0	5.0.00		50.0	- 500	501	50.0	55.0	50.1		850011	100 00	55111		501	600	- 5011	501	50.01	50
Certrene Renzene	5		1.0	1.1.200	100	1000	100	1.00	1.00	100	1.00	100	101	100	170	185 0.1	0.90.1	1.00	1.00	1.010	1.00	1.00	1.0 0	100
2-Dichloroethane	5		1,0	1.00	1.00	1.0 LU	100	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	170 UJ	180 UJ	2000	1.00	1.00	1,0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 JU	1.0 U
1.2-Dichloropropane	5	-	1.0	3.00	1.0 U	1.0-UJ	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	100	1.04/	1.00	170 UJ	160 UJ	2000	1.00	1,00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1,0 U	1,000	1,0 U
Nethyl Methacrylics	5,000	·	1.0	1.012	1.0 U	1.000	1,0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1,6 U	1.0 U	1.0-0	1.00	170 0.1	180 U.J	NA	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1,0 .0.	1.0 0
Dibromomethane	5,000		1.0	1.015	1.00	1.0 UJ	1,00	100	1.0 U	1,010	1.90	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	170 00	180 UJ	2000	1.00	100	1,0 U	1.0U	1.00	1.000	1.00
1.9-Ukixane Bramodebloramethana	1,000		10	100	300	1.000	1.044	100		300	101	300	101		17010	481111	2000		100	100	101	100	10.00	100
Chlorented Viryl Ether	1		1.0	1008	1008	1008	1.008	1.0 0.8	1608	10108	1008	TOUR	1010	1708	170 U B	180UB	NA	TOUR	1008	1008	1008	1008	1010	1 NULL
is-1.3 Dichlorapcopane	(5)		1.0	1.00	1.00	1.0 00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 0	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	170 QU	180 UJ	1000	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 UJ	1.00
-methyl-2-pentanone		•		5.Q U	5.0 D	5.0 UJ	5.00	5.00	5,0 U	5,0 U	5,0 0	5.0 U	5.0U	5,0 LI	850 Ú	920 UJ	10 UJ	5.0 U	5.00	5.0 U	5,010	5,0 U	5.0 UJ	5.00
foluerse	1,000		1.0	1.0U	100	1.9 UJ	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.0.0	1.0U	100	170 (0	180 UJ	0.63 J	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 L	1.0 U	1.0 UJ	1.00
rana-1,3-Dichloropropene	1		1.0	1.0 U	1.00	1,0 UJ	1,00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.01	1.0 U	1.0 U	170 UJ	180 UJ	1,0 UJ	1.01	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 UJ	1.0 U
the methods yiste	5 000	· ·	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.003	1.00	100	1.00	1,00	1,0 0	1.0 0	1.00	1.0 U	170 UJ	180 UJ	NA	1.00	100	1.0 U	1,60	1.00	1.0.00	1.00
1,24 Homorbectarie	1 5			100	100	1000	100	100	1.00	1.00	100	1.00	1.00	1.00	170 05	180.00	2003	1.00	100	100	1 100	- 100	1.0 (A)	
Hexarone	1.000		5.0	5.00	5.0 U	5000	5.0 0	500	1 5.00	500	5.0 0	5.00	5.91	500	850 U	920 U.J	10 0.3	5.01/	5.0 U	500	500	5.0 1	5.0 LV	500
obtomochloromethane	5	•	1.0	1.0 U	1.00	1.002	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1 1.00	1.00	1.0 U	170 UJ	150 UJ	2000	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1,00	1,0 04	1.00
Chiorobenzeno	100		1.0	1.0U	1.00	1.0 UJ	1.0 U	1.00	0.29 J	0.49 J	2.7	2.2	1.00	1.00	290 J	/ . 290 J : :	250 J	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 L1	1.0 U	1.0 W	1.00
1.1.2-Terrachicroethana	5	•	1.0	1.0U	1.00	1.0 U3	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	170 UJ	150 UJ	2.0 UJ	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 (.)	101
thyloenzend	700	•	1.0	1.0U	1.0U	1,003	1,00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.50	1.0 0	1.0U	1.0U	1.0 U	17000	150 U.J	0.98 J	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1,0 (J)	1.0 U
n-Xylene 8. p-Xylene	6,000	•	1.0	1.00	1.0U	1.0 UJ	<u>1.0U</u>	1.00	1.00	1,0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	170 UJ	160 UJ	0.69	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1,0 U	1.000	
Notena (local)	6.000	-		1.00	1.00	1.003	1.00	100	1.00	1.00	1 1.00	1.00	1.00	1,00	170 U3	160 UJ	1.60 -	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	100	1.000	100
Stylene	100		10	100	1000	1000	10.0	1000	10.0	100	1000	1014	100	13.0	17011	180111	20111	1010	500	10.00	100	100	1.003	100
Biomotorm	5		1.0	1.013	1.00	1.000	1.01	1.01	1.010	100) 10U	100	200	100	12011	180.00	2000	1.00	100	100	1.0 0	100	1004	100
leopropylbenzene	10,000	•	1.0	1.00	1.0 U	1,011	1.0 L	100	1.00	1.00	1,0 U	1,00	1,00	100	170 UJ	180 LU	3,0 .).	1,0 0	1.60	1.00	1.00	1.012	1,0 UJ	1,0 U
cis-1_4-Dichioro-2-lautene *	1,000	· ·	1,0	1.0 U	1,0 U	1,0 00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	101	1.00	1,0 U	1.00	1.0 U	170 UJ	180 Uu	NA	1.0 0	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 00	1.0 U
1.1.2,2-Tetrachloroethane	2	•	1.0	1,0 U	1,8 U	1.0 W	1.0 U	5.0 D	1.0 U	1,0 0	1.0 U	1.0 U	1,0 U	1.00	170 UJ	160 UJ	20UJ	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1,0 U	1,0 0	10UJ	1.0 U
1.2.3 Tachloropropeon	1,000	•	1.0	1.0 U	1,au	1,0 UJ	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1,010	1,0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	170 LU	180 UU	2003	1.0 U	1.0 U	1,0 U	1.00	1.00	1,0 UJ	1.00
rans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene	1,000	· · ·	1,0	1,00	1.00	1.0 UJ	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.0 0	1.00	1,01	1,00	1.0 0	170 UJ	180 UJ	NA	<u>1.0 U</u>	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.000	1.00
1,2-Cabromio-s-chiloropiropane	500		10	1.611			15.0	1.01	4.610		1.011	1 400	1 4 4 11	1011	1 10011					1.5.1	1 400	1.00		
2.4-Tochlorobenzane	70		10	1.00	1.00	1.0 W	1.00	1.00	1.00	100	1.00	1.00	1.00	180	17000	180 UU	304	1.00	100	100	1.00	1.00	1.0 U.I	1.90
lexactionobuladiene	0.6	· · · ·	1,0	1.00	1 1.00	1.0 LU	1,0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1 100	1.00	100	170 W	180 UJ	200	1.00	1,00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 UJ	0.31 JB
lephthaleno	20		1.0	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 UJ	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	100	1,0 y	1.00	1.00	1.00	170 UU	180 UJ	3.6 J	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	0.39 J	1.0 U	1.0 UJ	0.50 JB
2-Dichlorograpane	5		1.0	1 1.00	1.0 U	1.0 00	1.00	1.0U	1.0 U	1.0 u	1.0 U	1.0 U	1,019	1,00	170 W	180 UU	2014	1.0 U	1.0-U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 W	1.0 U
1-Dichleregropene	0.6	· · ·	10	1.0 0	1.0 U	1.0 00	1.0.0	1.0U	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 1	1.00	1.0 U	170 UJ	180 U.J	2014	1.0 U	1 1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1,0 UJ	1.00
3-Democropropane	1		1.0	1.00	1.00	1.0 1.0	1.0 0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	170 LU	180 UJ	204	1.0 U	1.0 9	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.0 UJ	1.00
romoberzene Okazi di kurene	1,003		1.0	100	1,00	1.000	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 0	1,00	170 W	180 00	- 26 -	1.00	1.0 U	1,0 0	1.00	1.00	1.0 W	1,00
HT-Repyrochizene	?		10	100	100	1000	100-	100	1.00	100	1.00	1-160-	1.00	1.00	12000	180.03	1.8.3-	100	1 100	100	1-1-20	100	1.0 03	1.00
Chlorotoluene	1		1.0	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 UJ	1.00	1.00	100	1.00	1.00	1 100	100	100	17000	180 UJ	2.0 10	100	1 180	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.000	1.00
3.6-Trimetrylbenzene	1	· ·	1.0	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 0.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.04	1.00	1.00	1.00	1,00	170 UJ	180 UJ	2000	1.00	100	1,00	100	1.00	1.0 UJ	1.00
ert-Burylbenzene	L	1. •	1.0	1.0 0	1.00	1.0 UJ	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	170 0.	180 UJ	2000	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 LU	1.QU
2,4 Trimethyloenzena			1.0	100	1.00	1.0 Us	1.00	1.0U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	170 (1)	180 UJ	1.23	1.0 U	1,au	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 UJ	1.00
ec-ButyibenZena	<u> </u>		1.0	1,0 0	1.00	10.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	170 UJ	160 Uu	1.1.7	1.0 0	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 UJ	1.00
	· · · · ·	·	10	100	1.00	1.000	100	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	170 03	180 UJ	1,7	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 0	1.60	1.000	1.00
123 Tichlarabentane	+ :-	 : -		181	100	- 1000	100	100	100	100	1-100	100	100	1.90	17010	160 00	2003	1.00	100	100	300	100	1000	0.00
CONTRACTOR OF STREET, SALES						1.0.00			1.4.4			1.00.00			11000	100 00			1 100 00			. I.W.W	1.10 MM	V.2VVD

I. 23-This sector area of a sector of a formage relation of an analysis of the sector of a sector

Táble 2 Groundwater Analytical Results - May 25-27, 2004 Sampling Event Devens Arcas 2014A (DRMOFOL Yord) (SHEET 2 of 2)

													WeB	Number									
	MCP	Site-Specific	Reporting			312-01-023 (3318-03-										328-01-10XBA	323-01-16X5R-						
040410	RCGW41	Cleanup Goals	Same Ave 8 S	SHL-15	iner i	erty for Di	(unit)	Draft)	528-01-1348-8	Jacob Street Con	S2M-C1-16XER	Aug 1	518-01-16X88	10.01.1/1.84	and a	1000	(und)	4448.3	AND CHARGE I	THEORY AND	2647.5	(HWR.)	ASSEST-SOZER
VOLATILE PETROLEUM HYDROC	ARBONS IM	A DEB) Bander	- 499 C 1	1009-07	(44)-4	()44/1-1	(48/4)	040-47	04947	(1999-7	linder!	(hgrc)	- 04 (C)	United and	(Heler)	1949447	049-07	0404-1		049747	000-07	unpr/	(1949-1-)
C5-C8 Aliphatic Hydrocarboga	ARED TO IN	400	40.0	40.011	45611	40.014	40.0 U	40.00	40.610	40.0 (anou	40.010	4001	40.011		40.01	100 U	410 U	1 4000	40 11 1	40.0.0	40.01	4101
C9-C12 Aliphatic Hydrocarbons	-	4,000	10,0	10,0 U	10,0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 0	10.0 U	10.0 0	10.0 U	358 E J	388 E J	6,100	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U	10.0 U
C9-C10 Aromatic Hydrocerbone		200	10	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	100	10 U	_ 10 U	10 U	51	10 UJ	10 U	8500 E J	6600 E J	11,000	10 0	100	10 U		10 U	10 U
VPH (MA DEP) Target VPH Analyte	H					20		47.1	45.0		45.11	46.51	-	-541									
Registration			50	504	5011	15.0	501	150	501	501	501	500	15.0	15 U	150	5011	200	540	150	150	150	100	200
Toluene	1,000	-	15	15 0	15 0	15 U	15 U	15 U	15 U	150	15 U	150	15 U	15 U	150	150	0.64 J	150	150	15 U	15 U	160	160
Ethylognzone	700	500	5.0	5.0 U	5.0 D	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 Ú	5.0 U	500	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	310	5.0 U	5.0 U	50U	5.00	5.00	6.0 U
m,o-Xylene **	5,000	· ·	20	20 U	200	20 U	200	20 U	20.0	20 L	200	20 U	20 U	20 U	20 U	20 U	1.1 3	20 U	200	20 U	20 U	20 U	20 U
0-Xylene	6,000	-	10	100	100	10 U	100	10 U	10.0	100	100	100	100	10 U	100	100	121	100	10.0	100	100	10 U	<u>10 U</u>
Extractable Petroleum Hydrocarbo	20 XI Raddes				100	100		100		100	100	100	100		100	100 1	· · · · ·	100	100	100	1012	100	101
C9 - C18 Aliphatics	-	4,000	60 to 65	60 U	61 U	67 U	61 U	63 U	67 U	66 1	- 66 U	67 U	62 U	62 U	2,300	2.200 i	3,400	63 U	63 U	610	64 U	68 U	61 L
C19 - C38 Alphatics		5,000	60 to 91		32 U	69 U	\$1 U	85 U	89 U	ab u	88 U	69 U	8210	83 U	90 U	56 U	100 U	63 U	84 U	810	85 U	91 U	51 U
C11-C22 Aromatics	•	200	170 to 190	170 U	170 Ú	190 U	170 U	1a U	190U	190 U	190 U	190 U	180 Ú	160 U	190 U	190 U	100 U	180 U	180 U	170 U	180 U	190 U	170 U
Turget PAH Analytes	20		1010.11		····		1011					4911	40.17		·	111 19 00 T		1011		101	44.1	4411	
2 Meltodeanhtbalane	10		101611 101611	100	100	110	100	110	110	110	110	110	100	100	110	11 U	2.0 0.3	10.0	110	100	110		100
Acenapitanyjene	300	-	10 to 11	10 U	100	11 0	100	110	110	110	110		100	100	HŪ	110	2.0 U	10 0	110	10 U	110	110	100
Acenaptthene	20		10 to 11	10 U	10 0	110	10 U	110	110	11 น	11 U	11Ū	10 0	100	11.9	11 Û	200	10 Ŭ	110	10 Ū	нŪ	11Ū	100
Fluorane	300		101011	100	100	11.0	10.0		110	110	11 U	110	100	100	11.0	111	2.0 U	10 U	119	10 U	110	11 U	10 U
Anthreene	5U 600	-	101011	100			100	110	110	110	11 U	11.0	100	100			200	10.0		10 U	<u>110</u>		10 0
Fluoranthene	100		10 to 11	100	100	1110	100	- 11 Ŭ	110	110	11.0	11.0	100	10 U	110	110	200	10 U	1 110	100		111	10.0
Pyrane	60	-	101011	10 Ú	100	110	100	110	110	110	110	110	10 U	100	110	110	200	10 U	110	10 0		HÌŬ	10 0
Benzo(a)anthracene	1		101011	100	10 U		10 U	11 U	11 U	11 ป	11 U	110	10 U	10 U	11 0	11.0	2.0 U	10.0	110	10 U	110	11 0	10 0
Chrysene	2	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	10 to 11	100	10 U	111	10-0	110	110	110	11.0	11.0	100	10 U	110	110	2.0U	10.0	110	100	11.0	110	10 0
Benzorkill-Atapitena	1		101011	100	100	11 0	1010	110	110	110	110		200	100	110	110	200	100		100	11.0		
Benzolalpyrano	0.2		10 to 11	100	100	11 9	100	πŬ	110	110	110		100	100	110	110	200	100	110	10 U	- 11 0		10 0
Indena(1.2,3-cd)avaene	0,5		10 to 11	10 U	10 U	110	10 U	\$1 U	11 U	110	11.0	110	10 U	100	11 <u>V</u>	110	2.0 U	100	110	10 U	яU	11 U	10 13
Diperizo(a h)anthrecena	0.5	-	10 to 11	10.0	10 U	11 U	10.0	<u></u>	110	110	11 U	<u>11 U</u>	10 U	10 U	<u><u><u>n</u></u><u>u</u></u>	110	2.0 U	10 U	110	10 U	11 U	11 U	10 U
Dereals, hiperyiens	6.0 A1 P341765		101011	10.0	100	11 V.	100	<u></u>	110	110	11.0	110	100	160	<u>11 U</u>	110	200	10.0	L 110	10 U	110	110	10 Ų
Methere	1,000		2.0	55	2.010	2011	2.0 U	201	200	120	77	201	2.010	2011	26 D	38 D	59	2.0 U	2.60	2.0 U	42	260	2.0 0
Ethane	1,000	-	4.0	4.0 U	400	4.00	400	4.0 U	4.0 U	490	4.0 U	4.0 U	400	4.0 U	400	4.00	10	400	400	40 U	400	400	400
Elhéné	100		3.0	3.0 U	3,0 U	3.0 0	3.0 U	3.0 U	300	3.00	3.0 U	3.0 U	3.0 U	3.0 U	20 U	3.90	14 1	3.0 U	3.0U	3.0 U	3.0 U	3.0 U	3.0 U
PGBs by EPAR082	0.0			A /A -			0.0010	0.6711	010	16711													
Aladat 1221	0.3	0.5	0.45 to 0.57	0.48 0	0.50 0	0.510	0.480	0.571	0.53 U	0.57 0	0.52.0	0.52 0	0.52 U	0.010	0.50 0	0.550	0.220	0.500	0.500	0.500	0.490	0.520	3.460
Arador 1232	0.3	0.5	0.46 to 0.57	0.48 U	0.50 U	0.51 U	0.48 U	0,57 U	0,53 U	0,57 U	0.52 U	0.52 U	0.52 U	0.51 U	0.55 U	0,65 U	0.22 U	D.50 U	0.50 U	0.50 U	0.49 U	0.52 U	0.46 U
Arockit 1242	. 0.3	0,5	0,48 to 0.57	0,48 U	0,50 U	0.51 U	0.48 Ú	0.57 U	0.53 U	0.57 U	0.52 U	0.52 U	0,62 U	0,51 U	0.65 U	0,56 U	0,22 U	0.50 U	0.50 U	0.50 U	0.49 U	0.52 0	0.46 U
Arodor 1248	0.3	0,5	0.48 to 0.57	0,48 U	0.50 U	0.51 U	0.48 U	0.57 U	0.53 U	0.57 U	0.52 U	0.52 U	0,52 U	0.51 U	0.55 U	0.56 U	0.22 U	0.50 U	0.50 U	0.50 U	Q_49_U	0.52 U	0.48 U
Aradiar 1260	0.3	0.5	0.48 to 0.57	0.48 0	0.50 U	D.01U	0.481	0.571	05311	0.57 0	0.520	0.520	0.520	0.510	0.55.0	0.56.0	0.220	0.500	0.50 U	0.50 U	0.490	0.520	0.48 U
ICP METAL 3 301049198 (Total me	etals)		4401012.01	0.450	0.500	- Marta	<u> </u>	0.010			0.02 0	4.52 4	9.92.0	0.310	0.567 0	0.000		0.00 0	0.00 G	V,30 G	Q. N. / Q	WV4 V	
Arsonic	50	50	3	21.5	2.60	7.6 U	280	3.7 U	2.8 U	5.9 B	26.9	3.7 U	3.7 U	3.7 U	10.4	9.6 B	11	2.6 U	2.6 U	2.6 U	19,1	2.6 U	2.6 U
[ead	15	15	1.7	1.7 U	258	1.818	1.7 U	1,81	1,7 U	1.7 V ·	7.4	4.4	1.8 U	2.00	4.6 D	3.20	5.0 U	1.70	1.7.0	17.0	1.7 U	1.70	1.70
Nationse		3,500	15	371	11.6 B	9.70	24.4	35.3	198.C	2420.0	3t4.0	398.0	9.5 B	44,9	17400	18500.0	18,000	4.6.8	10.0 8	15.8	671	1210	1,9 U
KP METALS 3010450103 (Field-fig	SR.	60	78	20.6	261	2411	2611	3761	281	281	161	3710	3711	2711		830		2611	2611		20.6	2611	25.0
Lead	15	15	17	171	171	1911	1.61	1.71	1.7 U	1.70	1.7 U	3.70	1711	1.80	17.1	170	8.1 50U	260	1711				1711
Manganesa	-	3,500	15	379.0	9.2 B	8.8B	22.8	31.7	123	2030.0	94,8	238.0	6.4 B	47.8	18100.0	17600.0	18,000	3.2 B	3.18	12.5 B	558	1140	1.9 U
UNIT CHA	NGE		mg/L	mg/L	mail	mg/L	mg/L	mgit.	mg/l	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	molL	6147	mg/L	пол	mg/L	mg/L	mgit	mgiL.	men.	mg/L
TOC by \$W846:9060																	ì						
Total Organic Carbon	•		1.0	3.7 UJ	2400	1,911	1,00	1.6 UJ	1.5 W	44UJ	21 W	3.1 UJ	2.103	1,6 UJ	4.6 UJ	4.7UJ	4.0	216	1,3 (J)	110	3,3 00	1.00	1.6 UJ
Americania (350.1)			0.024	0.48	0.02412	0.050	0.040	0.09411	0.14	0.02411	0.00411	0.02411	0.02411	AMAL	0.054	0.067	1011	0.082		0.16	0.18	0.064	0.054
ALKALINETY, TOTAL		· ·	0.024	0.40	0,024 1	0,030	0,040	0,024 0	U, 14	0.024.0	0,024.0	0.024 0	0.024.0	0,024 C	0,004	1,067	1,00	0,007	0,020	U, 18	0,18	n'nto	W/me
as CaCO3	•		1.0	47.7 Jr	60.9 J+	30.4.34	8.4 W	127	115	171	356	223	116	173	229	230	220	22,3 UJ	80.5.3+	108	28.6 J+	61.8 J+	26.4 J+
ANIONS (300)																							
Nitrate/intrite (as N) by 353,2			0.010	0.26	0.53	1.5	0.37	1,3	2,8	0,29	0.23	1,7	3.0	3.7	0.43	0.44	0.37	1.1	0.64	1,1	0,44	0,047	1,4
Proceedings in Piller 355.2			0,0050	0.0050 0	0,0050 U	0,0050 U	0.00000	0.00500	0.005013	0.0050 U	0.33	0.012	0.0000 U	0,023	0.011	0120	0.20 0	0,0050.0	0.0050 U	0.012	0.005010	0.0050.0	0.005047
Suitale by 375.4			6.0	13.2	18.8	353	21.8	36.9	19.9	27.2	12.6	24.4	38.9	53.6	15.1	15.3	13	41.4	19.1	242	25.5	8.1	32.6
Suffice by 376.2			0.020	0.061	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.022	0.020 U	0.081	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	0,025	5,0 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U	0.020 U
Nitrate (as N) by selo		•	0.010	0.26	0.63	1.6	0.37	1.3	2,8	0.29	0.23	1.7	3.0	3.6	0.42	0.43	NA	1.1	0.64	1.0	0,44	0,047	1.4
Coop (e10.4) Charmoni Owneen Demand			28.0	50.011	20.00	09.8	22.5	20.011	20.0	· 25.011	20.01		20011	20.0.11		74.4	40.1	27.5	01.5	20.010			~~~~
eveninger owieden metheling		· ·	20,0	2000	20.010	23.5	23.9	20.00	20.00	- Xaranî	20.0.0	<u>, 0</u> ,0	20.0 0	2000		V9.1	- 10 3	23.9		2000	/4.4	20.00	40.0
FIELD PARAMETERS															i								
Temperature(deg C) initiat		•	•	10.83	10.29	11,02	10,45	14,00	N/A .	N/A	10,65	N/A	12.92	12.07	N/A	N/A	N/A	18.14	N/A	12.45	12.34	13.69	12.97
Temperature (deg C) final	•	· · · · ·	•	13.40	11.10	10.62	10,64	17,94	13.45	N/A	15.23	16.64	16.99	12.87	- N/A	N/A	N/A	17,60	18,50	15.76	14,62	15,17	12.80
CHEMISIN (MV)				33,5	194,9	273.6	232.5	392.4	214.6		123,2	192.2	171,0	229.8			10	231.9	214.1	87.0	110.5	215.2	-44.7
Spepile Conductance				140	127	160	86	426	351	N/A	624	725	431	534	N/A	N/A	N/A	190	223	382	132	193	2805
Dissolved Oxygen		•	-	1.08	9.62	9.08	9.48	6,16	6.42	N/A	3.99	6.34	3,99	1.50	N/A	N/A	N/A	6,99	9,19	2.19	1.15	7.94	4.10

Notice in the balance construction of all-backbarry grads
 Section of the
Table 6-3 Groundwater Annitytical Results - December 3-5, 2000 Sempling Event Devent Anaia 324/334 (DRMO/POL Yard) (SHEET 1 of 6)

	Well No.	Reporting Limit	8HL-15	328.02-01X	322-69-02X (32M- 32-07X)	3299-92-03X	32M-01-04XBR	328-01-13388	328-01-14X08	328-01-14X88	32M-01-15XBR	32M-01-16X8R	32W-01-17XBR	320-01-18398	32N-01-18XBR DUP	- 32M-01-16XBR (2A	438-01-16XCB	434-01-16XBR	45.M-01- 17X8R	43W-91-17X0B	4314-01-20X08	43M-01-20XBR	32/43A-RB
PARAMETERS	MCP	ւցվ	ug/L	ug/L	_ug/L	սցն	UgL	ugA	սքե	ug/L	Ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/l.		ugʻL	ugiL	սցե	ug/L	ug/i.	սցվ	ug/L
	RCGW-1	[··· · ···						
VOLATILES (SW846-8260B)	սցու													<u> </u>	· ·								
									-											4.8.1			
Chloromethane	1,000	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	110	1.00	1.00	1100	95U 95U	5.0U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	NS	1,0U
Vinvi chloride (chlorostheos)	2 12	1.0	1.00	1.0U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	4U	1.0 U	1.00	110 U	950	200	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.0.0	NS.	1.0U
Chloroethane	1,000	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	10U	1.00	110	1.0U	1.00	1100	95U 95U	5,00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	NS	1.00
Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)	10.000	1.0	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1,00	1.00	1.00	110	5.0U	1,0U	110 U	96 U	2.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	N5	100
Freen TF		1.0	1.00	1.0U	1.0U	1.00	1.00	1.0U	1.00	1.0U	11U .	1.00	1.0U	110 U	- 460 U - 98 U		1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	NS.	1,0 U
1.1-Dichioroethene	1 300	1.0	<u>1,0U</u> 38.1	1.00	1.0U	<u>1.0U</u> 5.011	1.00	1.0U	1.00	1.0 U	15 U 65 U	1.00	500	110 U	48011	1.00	1.00	1.00	500	<u>1,0U</u> 5.0U	1.00	NS NS	1.00
Methyl kodide	1,000	1.0	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	110	1.00	1.0U	110 U	9600		1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	NS	1.00
Carbon disulfide	1,000	1.0	1.00	1.01	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	11 U	1.0U	1.00	110 U	<u>96 U</u>	2.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0U	NS	0.28 J
Methylene chloride	5.000	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	110	1.00	1.00	110 U	90 U	0.63 J	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	NS	8.6
Acrylonitrile	1.000	1.0	1.01/	1.01	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1,0U	1.0 U	11U	1.0U	1.01/	110 U	96 U		1.00	1.0U	1.0 U	5.0 U	1.00	NS	1.0 U
1.2-Dichlorcethene (total)	100	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	110	1.00	0.27 J	110 U	96.0	2.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	NS	1.00
Methyl-t-butyl othor	700	1.0	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	0.42 J	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	11 U	1.00	1.00	110 U	96 U	2.00	1.0U	1.0U	0.24 J	1.00	1.0U	NS	1.0U
Vinyi acetale	1,000	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0U	1.00	1.00	110	1.00	1.00	110 U	96.0	2.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	NS	1.00
Chlorophene	100	1.0	1.00	1.01	1.00	1.0 Ú	1.00	1.0U	1.00	1.0 U	110	1.00	1.0U	110 U	98 U		1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	NS	1.0U
2-Butanono	400	5.0	5.0 U	5.0U	5.00	5.00	1.00 5.0U	1.00 5.00	6.0U	5.00	11 U 	5.00	5.0 U	560 U	490 U	10U	5.00	5.00	5.00	5.00	5.0U	.145 NS	5.0U
Propionibile	500	4.0	4.0 U	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.0 U	4.01	4.0 U	44 U	4.0U	4.0U	450 U	380 U	-	4.00	4.0U	4.00	4.0U	4.0U	NS	4.0U
Bromochloromethane		1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	110	1.00	1.00	1100	900	2.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	NS	1.00
Tetrahvdrofuran	5,000	14	1.00	140	140	140	140	140	<u>140</u>	140	150 U	140	140	1000 U	1300 U	100	14U	14U	140	140	140	NS	140
1.1.1-Trichloroethane	200	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	110	1.00	1.00	1100	900	2.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	NS NS	100
Carbon Istrachioride	5	1.0	1.01	1.00	1.00	1.0U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	110	1.01	1.00	110 U	96U 4820U	2.0 U	1.0U	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U 50 U	NS Nº	1.0U
Benzane	10,000	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	11U	1.00	1.00	110 U	48000 960	0.55 J	1.00	1.00	500 1.0U	1.00	1,0U	NS NS	1.0 <u>U</u>
1.2-Dichloroothane	5	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1,00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	110	1.00	1.0 U	110 U	080	200	1.00	1.00	5.0U	1.00	1.00	NS Me	1.0 U
1,2-Dichioropropane	5	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0U	1.00	1.00	1.00	110	1.00	1.00	110 U	200	201	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	NS	1.0U
Methyl Methecrylate	5,000	1.0	1,0U	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.0U	1.00	1.00	110	1.00	1.00	110 U	000	2011	1.00	1.0U	1.00	<u>- 1.0U</u>	1.00	NS NS	1.00
1.4-Dicxane	1.000	50	50 U	50 U	50 U	50 Ŭ	50U	50 U	50 U	50 U	550 U	50 U	50 U	5600 U	4800 U		60U	50 U	50 U	50U	150	NS	50 U
Bromodichloromethene 2-Chloroethyl Vinyl Ether	5	- 1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	100	1.00	110	1.00	1.0U	110 U	961	2.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	<u></u>	1.00	NS NS	1.00
cis-1,3-Dichloropropene	(6)	1.0	1,00	1.0U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0,0	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	110	1.00	1.0 U	110 U	960	1.0 U	1.0U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	NS	1.0U
4-methyl-2-pontanone Toluene	1.000	1.0	<u>50U</u> 0.35 J	5.0U 0.44 J	5.0U	5.0U 0.30J	6.0 U 0.51 J	5.00	0.33 J	5.0U	55U 11U	<u>5,0 U</u>	<u>5.0U</u>	550 U 110 U	480 U	2011	5.0U 1.0U	<u>5.0U</u>	5.0U 1.0U	5.0U 1.0U	5.0U 1.0U	NS NS	1.0U 0.31 J
trans-1,3-Dichloropropene	0.5*	1.0	1.00	1.0U	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0U	1.0 U	1.0U	11 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	110 U	98U	1.00	1.00	1.01	1.00	1.0U	1.0 U	NS	1.00
Ethyl methacrylate 1.1.2-Trichlorcethane	5,000	- 1.0	1.00	1.00	1.0U	1.0U	1.00	1.0U 1.0U	1.0 U	1.00	110	1.0 U	1.00	110 U 110 U	96U 95U	200	1.00	1.0U 1.0U	1.00	1.00	1.00	NS NS	1.00
Tetrachioroethene	5	1.0	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.0U	1.0U	5.0U	1.00	110	1.0 U	1.00	110 U	95 U	2.011	0.27 J	1.0U	1.0U	1.00	1.0 U	NS	1.0 Ú
2-Hexanone Dibromochloromethane	1.000	1.0	1.00	1.0U	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.0U	1.0U	1.00	11 U	<u>5.00</u> 1.00	1.00	110 U	480 U 95 Ü	2.0 U	5,0U 1.0U	5.0U 1.0U	1.00	1.00	1.00	NS	1.00
Chlorobenzane	100	1,0	1.0U	1,0 U	1.0U	1.0 U	1.0 U	11	1.01	0.08 J	15	1.00	1.00	<u>20110 J. 2</u>	110	120	1.0U	1,0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0 U	NS	1.0U
1,5,1,2-Tetrachloroethane Ethylbenzene	5 700	1.0	1.00	1.0U 1.0U	1.0U 1.0U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0U 1.0U	11 U 11 U	1.0U 1.0U	1.00	110 U	95U 95U	2.0U 0.51 J	1.00	1.0U 1.0U	1.0U 1.0U	0.75 J	1.0 J 1.0 J	NS	1.0U
m-Xvlene & p-Xvlene	6.000 *	. 1.0	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	11 U	1.0 U	1.0U	1100	95 U	2.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	NS	1.0 U
zytene (to(al) o-Xviene	0.000 *	1.0	1.0U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0U 1.0U	11U 11U	1.0U	1.00	110U 110U	95U 95U	0.53 J	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0U 1.0U	NS	1.0U
Styrene	128	1.0	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	110	1.0 U	1.00	110 U	96 U	2.0.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	NS	1.00
Isopropvisenzene	10,000	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1,00	1.0U	110	1.00	1.00	1100	98U	1.01	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0U	NS NS	1.00
cis-1,4-Dichioro-2-butene	1,000	1.0	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	110	1.0.0	1.00	110 U	96U	-	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	NS	<u>1.0 U</u>
1.2.3-Trichloropropane	1,000	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0U	1.00	1.00	1.00	 15 U	1.00	1.00	110 U	06U	2.0U	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	N\$	1.00
Irans-1.4-Dichloro-2-butene 1.3-Dichlomheazene	1,000	1.0	1.00	1.0 U	<u>1.0U</u>	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0U	1.0 U	11 U	1.00	1.00	110 U	RG U		1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.0U	NS	1,00
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	5	1.0	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0U	3.0	0.25 J	0.35 J	32	1.00	1.00	260	260	230	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	NS .	1.0 U
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	600	1,0	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.0U	1.0U	1.0U	39	0.92 J	0.78 J	380	0.34 J	0.52 J	3,900	3,600	3,600	1,01	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	NS	L 88.0
1,2-Dibromo-3-chioropropane (DBCP)	100	2.0	1.QU	1.0U	1.00	1.0U	1,01	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	110	1.0 U	1.0U	110 U	98 U	5.0U	1,01	1,010	1.00	1.0 U	1.0U	NS	1.0 U
1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene	70	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	11U	1.00	1.00	110 U	950	200	1,00	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	NS	<u>1.0</u> U
Naphthalene	20	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	11 U	1.00	1.00	110 U	000 00U	1,2 J	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	0.37 JB	NS	1.0U
2,2-Dichloropropane	5	1.0	1.00	1.0 U	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1,00	1.00	1.00	110	1.00	1.00	110 U	96 U 06 U	200	1.0 U	1,00	1.00	1.00	1.00	NS	1.00
1.3-Dichloropropane	5000	10	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 L	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	110	1.00	1.00	110 Ü	950		1.0 U	1.0U	1.00	1.0U	1.00	NS	1.00
Bromobenzene	1,000	1.0	1.0U	1.00	1.0U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.01	1.00	11 U	1.00	1.00	1100	96U 95U	1.0 J	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0U	1.00	NS NS	1.0U
2-Chiorotoluene	· · · · · ·	1.0	1.0 U	1.00	1.0 U	1.0U	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	110	1.00	1.00	1100	980	2.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	NS	1.00
4-Ghiorotoluene 1.3.5-Trimethylbenzene	<u> </u>	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	<u>1,0U</u>	1.00	1.00	1.0U	1.00	<u>110</u> 110	1.00	1.0U 1.0U	1100	980	2.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	<u>1.0U</u>	1.00	NS NS	1.00
tert-Butylbenzene		1.0	1.00	1.0U	100	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	11.0	1.00	1.00	1100		2.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.00	1.00	NS	1.0U
sec-Butylbenzene	<u> - ; - </u>	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0U 1.0U	. <u>110</u> 110	1.00	1.0U 1.0U	110 U	<u>980</u>	0.77 J 0.66 J	1.00	1.00	1.0U 1.0U	<u>1.0U</u> 1.0U	1,0U 1.0U	NS	1.0U 1.0U
p-iscoropyticluene		1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.0 U	1.00	1.0U	1.00	1.0U	110	1.00	1.00	1100	06U	0.97	1.0U	1.00	1.00	0.40 J	1.0 U	NS	1.00
1.2.3-Trichbrobenzena	-	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	110	1.00	1.00	110 U 10 U	96U 96U	2.00	1.00	1.00 1.0U	1.00	1.00	0.28 JB	NS NS	1.00
									L														
				B												1							

Z5

* Regulatory standard is for total 1,3-dichloropropene and total sylanas

Sheded area with bold numbers indicates MCP ROGW-1 exceedance, -J = Estimated value lase than PQL or beend on data availation of laboratory results

Sample-specific qualifiers:

Table 6-3 Groundwater Acabytical Results - December 3-5, 2003 Sampling Event Devens Areas 24/3A (DRMO/POL Yard) (SHEE' 1 of 5)

		Reporting	011.44	1211-02-037	322-09-02X (32M-	100 01 018	1701-04-04700		\$384-51-14X/08	13H 44 44YRD	101.00.05798	110 01 40700	111 04 41701	2011 01 48780	32N-01-18XBR	326-01-18KBR-	111.01.10703	(38-34-14X33			1111 01 00700	
	Wei NO.	LIGA	301010		F242A7	328-92-035	JAMOUTOWALIA	JIN PIJAN	328-41-144.08	STRAT FIANDA	SZMAU HI DAZIN	STAR FLOADE	JAM VPITADR	J200VINIDADA	- uur	un	130-01-10/04	AJENVITEADA .	431-01-172.68	430-01-17600	ASMASTAZONOB	458-01-20ADR
PARAMETERS	MGP	սցե	սցչլ	ugi	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	սցՂ	ug/L	որի հերր	1 n0/L	ug/L	ug/L	սցվե	սցե	սցե	սց/լ	ugi	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	
	RCGW-1																					
	սցվե																					
VOLATILES PETROLEUM RYDRO	CARBONS																					
_		1																				
C5-C8 Aliphetic Hydrocarborits		100	40.0 U	40.0 U	40.0 U	40.0 U	40.0 U	40,0 U	40.0 U	40.0 U	40.0 U	40.0 U	40,0 Li	113	116	100 U	40.0 U	40.0 U	40.0 U	40.0 U	40.0 U	NS
C9-C12 Alighatic Hydrocarbone		25	10.0 U	10.01	1001	10.0 U	10.0 U	12.1	10.0 U	10.00	13.3	10.0 U	10.0 U	5 <u>11 E</u>	518E	25 U	10.0 U	10.00	10.0U	12.6	10.0 U	NS
CP-C10 Aromatic Hydrocarbon		10	10 U	10 U	10 U	100	<u>10 U</u>	30	10 U	10 U	39	10 U	10 U	2600 5		69	10 Ų	10 U	10.U	32	10 U	NS
							l															
Melhyl tert-butyl ether	700	15	16 U	15 U	15 U	15 U	15 U	15U	15 U	150	15U	15 U	15 U	15U	15U	2.00	150	15 U	15 U	15 U	15 U	NS
Benzone	5	5.0	5.0U	5.0 U	5.0U	5.0 U	5.0U	5.0 U	_5.0U	5.0 U	5.0 U	6,0U	5.0U	6 <u>.0U</u>	5.0 U	0.69.1	5.01	5.0 U	5.00	5.0U	5.0U	NS
Toluene	1,000	15	15 U	15U	15U	15U	16 ป	15 U	15U	15 U		150	150	15U	15U	0.55 J	15 U	15 <u>.</u> U	15 U	15 U	15 U	NS
Ethylbenzene	700	5.0	6.0U	5,0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0U	5.0 U	5.00	5.0 U	5.0 U	5,0 U	6.0U	6 <u>.</u> 0U	5.0U	0.88 J	5.0U	5.0 U	5.0 U	5 <u>.0</u> U	6.0 U	NS
m,p-Xylene	6,000	20	20 U	20 U	20 U	20 U	20 U	20 U	20.0	20 U	20 U	20 U	20 U	20 U	20 U	0.54 J	20 U	20 U	20 U	20 U	20 U	NS
a-Xylene	6,030	10	10 U	10 U	10 U	10U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	100	10 U	101/	100	10 U	0.51 J	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	NS
Naphthalene	20 -	10	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	100	10 U	10 U	100	10 U	10 U	10U	10U	5.00	10 U	10.0	10 U	10 U	10 U	NS
TOTAL DISSOLVED GASES (meth	od RSK175)																					
Methane	1,000	2.0	150	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	3.0	2,0 U	0.9	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	2.0 U	24	31	260	2.00	2.0 U	2.2	1200	2.0 U	NS
Ethane	1,000		4.0 U	4.0 U	4.0 U	4.0 U	4.0U	4.0 U	4.0.0	4.0 U	4.0 U	4.0 U	4.0U	4.0 U	4.0U	26 U	4.0U	4.00	4.0U 1	160 U	. 4.CU	NS
Ethene	100	3.0	3.0 U	3.0 U	3.0 U	3.0 U	3.0U	3.0 U	3.0 U	3.0 U	3.0 U	3.0 U	3.0U	3,0 U	3.0 U	26U	3.0U	3.0 U	3.0 U	120 U	3.0 U	NS

25 Sheded area with bold numbers indicates MCP RCGW-1 exceedance. If J = Etifonshel value less than PQL or based on data availation of laboratory results "Regulatory Standard is for total xylenes.

Table 6-3 Groundwater Analytical Results - December 3-5, 2003 Sampling Event Devens Areas 32/43A (ORMO/POL Yard) (SHEGT 3 of 5)

					322-99-02X (32M-92-			32M-01-	32M-01-	32M-01-	32M-01-	32M-01-	32M-01-	32M-01	324+01+	32M-01-	43M-01-	43M-01-	43M-01-	43M-01-	43M-01-	43M-01-
	Well Na.	Reporting Limit	9HL-15	32M-92-01X	02X)	32M-92-03X	32M-01-04XBR	13XBR	14X0B	14XBR	15XBR	16XSR	17XBR	19XBR	18X8R-DUP	18X5R-QA	18XOB	16XBR	17XBR	17XOB	20XOB	20X8R
PARAMETERS	MCP	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ugA	ugA	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L_	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L				
	RCGW-1																					
	ug/L												<u> </u>									
PCBs by EPA8082																						
Aroclor 1016	0.3	0.50 to 0.57	0.52 U	0.54 U	0.57 U	0.51 U	0.53 U	0.50 U	0.56 U	0.55 U	0.52 U	0.52 U	0.53 U	0.52 U	0.53 U	0.21 U	0.53 U	0.54 U	0.53 U	0.50 U	0,51 U	NS
Aroclor 1221	0.3	0.50 to 0.57	0.52 U	0.54 U	0.57 U	0.61 U	0.53 U	0.50 U	0.66 U	0.55 U	0.52 U	0.52 U	0.53 U	0.52 U	0.53 U	0.21 U	0.63 U	0.54 U	0.53 U	0.50 U	0.51 U	NS
Aroclor 1232	0.3	0.50 to 0.57	0.52 U	0.54 U	0.57 U	0.51 U	0.53 U	0.50 U	0.66 U	0.55 U	0.52 ป	0.52 U	0.53 U	0.52 U	0.53 U	0.21 U	0.63 U	0.54 U	0.53 U	0.50 U	0.51 U	NS
Aroclor 1242	0.3	0.50 to 0.57	0.52 U	0.64 U	0.57 U	0.51 U	0.53 U	0.60 U	0.66 U	0.55 Ü	0.52 U	0.62 U	0.53 U	0.52 U	0.53 U	0.21 U	0.53 U	0.54 U	0.53 U	0.50 U	0.51 U	NS
Aroclor 1248	0.3	0.50 to 0.57	0.52 U	0.54 U	0.57 U	0.51 U	0.63 U	0.50 U	0.65 U	0.55 U	0.52 U	0.62 U	0.53 U	0.52 U	0,53_U	0.21 U	0.53 U	0.54 U	0.53 U	0.50 U	_0.51 U	NS
Arocior 1254	0.3	0.50 to 0.57	0.52 U	0.64 U	0.57 U	0.51 U	0.53 U	0.50 U	0.55 U	0.55 U	0.52 U	0.52 U	0.53 U	0.52 U	0.53 U	0.21 U	0.63 U	0.54 U	0.53 U	0.50 U	0.51 U	NS
Aroclor 1260	i 0.3	0.50 to 0.57	0.52 U	0.54 U	0.57 U	0.51 U	0.53 U	0.50 U	0.66 U	0.55 U	0.52 L	0.52 U	0.53 U	0,52 U	0.53 U	0.21 U	0.53 U	0.54 U	0.53 U	0.50 U	0.51 U	NS

Shaded area with bold numbers indicates MCP RCGW-1 exceedance. -

J = Estimated value less than PQL or based on data evaluation of laboratory results

Table 5-3 Groundwater Analytical Results - December 3-5, 2003 Sampling Event Devense Arase, 3243A (DRMO/POL Yard) (SHEET 4 of 6)

	ĩ																				Y	
	M4-19-11-	Reporting Junit	848-346	194.63.01V	322.09-02X (520-92	378.83.037	221.01.047.00	101.41.41787	19H-01-44YOB	SHLOLAND	124-51-1570.0	221.01.442.00	104.04 47770	2014-01-19700	3241-01-18XBR-	110-01-11708-01	4944.41.44900	AN AL WYDO	4111.41.479.00	454.04.127.08	4791-01-20YOR	CUL 61-20782
DADANCTERS	NCD	und .	und .	100	100/		und 1	Lund	0201-01-10000		Jan VI-Takan	Ling			<u> </u>	use of long	100 011000		100	438-01-1720-0		und .
PARAMETERS	MOP	OGAL	ugic	- UQVL	0.0	091		ugr		U.V.L	00/1		Ugr	. ugr.		ugr	<u> </u>	Ugit	ugyL			Ugic
	RCGW-1										_											
	1.00/																					
Extractable Petroleum Hydrocarbons													_									
EPH Ranges																						
C9 - C18 Aliphalica	-	60 to 65	95 B	60 U	100 B	61 B	76 B	110 B	78 B	78 B	160 B	84 B	758	\$40 B	910 B	31 U	64 B	62 U	73 B	62 LI	61 U	NS
C18 - CS8 Alighatics		80 to 86	80 U.,	80 U	110	82 U	60 U	82 U	82 U	84 U	82 U	82 U	84 U	82 U	62 U	41 U	62 U	820	82 U	63 U	82 U	NS
C11-C22 Aromatics	- 1	170 to 190	170.U	170 U	160 U	170 U	170 U	180 U	170 U	160 U	170 U	170 U	180 U	160 U	170 U	87 U	170 U	160 U	160 U	180 U	170 U	N9
Target PAH Analyton																						
Naphihalene	20	10 to 11	10.0	10.0	11 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10.0	10 U	10 U	10 U	5.10	10 U	10.0	10.0	10 U	10 0	NS
2-Methyinaphibalone	10	10 to 11	10 U	10 U	11.0.	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	100	5.1 U	30 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	NS.
Aconaphthylene	300	10 to 11	10 U	10 U	11 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10.0	10 U	10 U	10.0	10 U	10 U	5.1 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	NS
Acenuphthane	20	10 to 11	10 U	10 U	.11 U	10 U	10 U	1D U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10.U	10 U	10 U		5.1U	10.0	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	N\$
Fluorane	300	10 to 11	10 U	10 U	11 V	10 U	10.U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U		10 U	10.0	10 U	5.1U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	NS
Pherenthrene	50	10 to 11	10 U	16 U	11 U	10 U	10 U	10.0	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	. 5.1U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	NS
Anthracane	600	10 to 11	10 U	10 U	11 U	10.0	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	6.1U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10.0	NS
Eluoranthono	100	10 to 11	10 U	10 U	11.9	10 U	10 U	10 U	10.U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10.0	10 U	6.1 U	10 U	10 U	10.U.	10 U	10 U	H\$
Pyrene	80	10 lo 11	10 U	10 U		10 U	10 U	10.0	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10-0	10 U	10 U	6.1U	10 U		10 U	10 U	10 U	NS
Senzo(a)anthracene	t	19 to 11	10 U	10 U	11 U	.10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	6.1U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	NS
Chrysene	2	10 to 11	10 U	10.U	11 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10.0	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 0	10 U	6.1 U	10.0	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	NS NS
Benzo(b)//upranthene	1	10 to 11	10 1	10 U	11.V.	10 U	10 U	190	10 U	TOU	10 U	10.U	100	10 U	10 U	5.1 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	NS.
Benzockaluoranthene		10 to 11	10.U	10 U	110	. 10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10.0	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	. <u>6,1U</u>	10 U	10 U.	10 U	10 U	10 U	NS I
Benzo(a)pyrano	0.2	10.10.11	10 U	10 U	110	10 U	10 U	10.0	10.0	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	6.1 U	10 U	10 U	10.U	10 U	10 U 1	NS
Indeno(1.2.3-cd/pyrene	0.5	10 to 11	10 U	10 U	110	10 0	10.U.	10 U	i 10 U		10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	5.1 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	NS
Oibenzo(s.h)anthracene	0.6	10 to 11	10 U		110	10.0	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	100	10 U	10 U	10 U		10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	NS
Benzolo.h.)perviene	0.6	10 to 11	10 0	10 U	110	10 U	10 U	10 U	10.U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U .	10 U	10 U	5.1 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10 U	10.U	NS

Shaded she with bold numbon indicates MCP ROGW-1 storedance. - 26 J = Estimated value less than PCL or backed of data valuation of laboratory masils Decomber Sempting Strett Contained back obtainmation (CO-CH Staphiles) led to a newtraction cubiide holding time limits; results reported in this table are from the initial runs.

Table 6-3 abio 6-3 Groundwater Analytical Results - December 3-5, 2003 Sampling Event Devens Areas 3243A (DRMOPOL Yard) (SHEET 5 of 5)

		Reporting	841-15	3216-02-017	322-00-02X (32X	100.00	1101-04700	1004.01.49700	100.01.44700	12H-61-1(VEP	110 01-15788		100-04-07200		328-01-18X8R-	32N-01-18X6R-	11101 (1203		4111 14 477 17	CT 14.01.477000	4383-04-202000		11/414-08
	MCP		012-13	3240-02001A			344111111111	1 22 10 17 13 201	328-01-14208		SZUG PISKSK	328-01-10ADA	VAR-VIVIZABI	JANGOTODADA		9 44	130-011-02.04	63 MINOABR		454 0117708	438901-22800	110101-120501	JEM WITH
	RCGW-1													ļ									
PARAMETERS	•	ug/L	ug/L	ugA	սց/Լ	սց/Լ	ug/L	ug/L	Ligi	սցչ	ug/L	Ug/L	ug/L		սցու	սցու	ugă	ugñ,	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ugf
h	ug/L				····-			L				<u> </u>		<u> </u>						·			
(Total metals)																							
Argenio	50	50	149	4.1 U	4.1 U	4.1 U	4.1 U	4.1 U	20.5	4.1 U	0,66	478	4.1 B	5.8 8	11	4.1 J	4.10	4.1 U	4.10	32.0	4.1 U	NS	4.1 U
Lend	15	5.0	1.7 B	1.4 U	2.4 8	1.4 B	1.4 U	1,4 U	1.4 U	1.4 U	2.0 B	1.4 U	1,4 U	1.4 U	1,4 U	5.0 U	1.4 U	4.1	1.4 U	1.4 B	1,4 U	NS	1.4 U
Manganèse	3,500	×	3,340	10.8 B	14.28	28.3	85.7	160	7840	79.7	794	6.2 B	3.4 B	11,000	13,800	12,000	7.3 B	39,6	25.6	1,140	2.1 B	NS	6.0 B
ICP METALS 3010/50#0B (Field-Sitered metals)																							
Arsenic	50	50	144	4.1U	4.1 U	4.1 U	4.1 U	4.1U	6.1 U	4.1.0	4.1 L	8.78	4.1 U	8.3 B	8,1 8	3.5 J	4.1 U	4.1 U	4.1 U	38.5	4.1 U	NS	6.1 B
Leed	15	5.0	1.4 9	1.58	1.0 8	1.4 U	1.4 U	1.4 U	1,4 U	1.4 U	1.4 B	1.4.U	1.4U	1.4 U	1.4 U	5.0 U	1,4 U	1.4 U	1,4 U	1.4 U	1.4 U	NS	1.98
Manganese	3,500		3,450	5.1 B	6.2 B	25,0	89.0	228	5410	60.7	157	6.3 B	6.6 B	13,900	13,300	13,000	3.0 8	24.1	21.0	1,180	1.7 B	NS	2.38
TOC by SW848:8060				}						<u> </u>													
Total Organic Carbon			8,700	1,200	1,000 U	1,000 U	1100	1,000 U	1,100	1200	1,900	1,000 U	1,000 U	5,500	5.000	3,430	1,000 U	1,000 U	1.000 U	3,600	1,000 U	NS	232,000
AMMONIA (350.1)				•								:											
Ammonia as N		24	17	24 U	25	24 U	24 Ü	24.0	440	69	24 U	24 U	29	33	51	280 J	40	180	39	200	63	NS	24 U
ALKALINITY, TOTAL									l													· · ·	
es CaCO3	1 · 1	10,000	110	40,900	29.600	11,500	151000	166000	165000	151,000	245,000	120,000	165,000	227,000	230.000	250,000	29,600	46.600	129,000	85,900	25,100	<u>NS</u>	2,700
AN KINS (300)																<u> </u>	·						
Nitrata (as N) by 353.2	-	200	#N/A	#NYA	<u>#N/A</u>	#N/A	JAN/A					· ···· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				1,000	1.000	520	1,390	710	2,400	NS	#N/A
Phosphate by 300.2		4 000	- 2/	100	35.800	10.000	10 0	19	45	30	00	10.0	25000	04	25	55	10	40400	27	33	10 U	NS_	100
Sulfide by 375 2	-	1.000	79	201	20.000	2011	2011	2011	451/6	2011	3 000		2011	24,500	160	20,000	24,000	2011	30,000	9011	36.700	NO 1	20000
CDD (410.4)			···· /v	- 2010							50	20,0		40		0,0000		200	200	200	2010	<u></u>	
Chemical Oxygen Demand		50,000	40,600	20,000 Ü	20,000 U	20.000 U	20,000 U	20,000 U	20,000 U	20,000 U	20,000 U	20,000 U	20,000.0	32,200	25,900	29,000	20,000 U	20,000 U	< 10,000	20.000 U	20.000 U	NS	32,200
	ļ													 									
FIELD PARAMETERS							· · · ·							·	<u> </u>								
Temperature(deg C) initia	e l	-	12.85	13.20	10,95	13.36	12,30	11.41	11.20	9,57	NS	14.32	11,09	13.40	13,40	13.40	14.92	10.19	12.07	14.23	14.28	NS	NS
Temperature (dag C) fina	l l		14.99	14.93	11.14	14.59	16,12	8,08	18.56	9,13	NS	15.75	13,59	16,30	15,30	16.30	15.00	14.47	13.89	16.55	10,29	NS	NS NS
ORP/Eh (mV)			-52.1	223.1	346,4	292.1	246.5	237,8	55.2	250.8	NŞ	194,5	103.7	45,1	45.1	45.1	246.6	195.2	258,5	160.7	257,2	NS	NS
. pH (std units)			6.00	5.85	5,88	5.32	0.29	0.53	8.17	6.72	NS	0.10	7.29	6.43	0,43	5.43	5.79	7.05	7.49	5.90	5,75	NS	NS
Specific Conductance			249	164	181	00	633	571	482	579	NS	543	544	771	771		201	158	411	177	221	NS	NS
Dissolved Oxygen		T	1.10	1,68	9,23	8.15	3.96	2,83	5.17	7.70	NS	2,90	0.44	0.15	0,15	0.15	5.95	1.58	1,63	0.43	8.65	NS	NS.

Shadad area with bold numbers indicates MCP RCGW-1 exceedance.

25

Shales area with book numbers indicates MCP MCG while accessingly.
 1
 1
 20
 No too sample result
 U: the analysis concentration were below the number in the table (20 Uindicates "below 20 upfl.")
 * Site-specific Manganess Greanup Geall 3,600 upfl.

Table 24 Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Monitored Natural Attenuation Area of Contamination 32 and 43A Devens, Massachusetts

Location Specific

Authority Location Specific Requirement Status Requirement Synopsis

Federal Regulatory Authority No location-specific ARARs will be triggered.

State RegulatoryNo location-specific ARARsAuthoritywill be triggered.

Action To Be Taken To Attain Requirement

· · ·

Table 24 Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Monitored Natural Attenuation Area of Contamination 32 and 43A Devens, Massachusetts

Chemical Specific

v overske specifika se se vers film av Latikovan en sit filma sitte ander

Authority	Chemical Specific	Requirement	Status	Requirement Synopsis	Action To Be Taken To Attain Requirement
Federal Regulatory Authority	Groundwater (Also applicable as an Action Specific ARAR)	SDWA, National Primary Drinking Water Standards, MCLs (40 CFR Parts 141.11- 141.16 and 141.50-141.521)	Relevant and Appropriate	The NPDWR establishes MCLs for several common organic and inorganic contaminants. MCLs specify the maximum permissible concentrations of contaminants in public drinking water supplies. MCLs are federally enforceable standards based in part on the availability and cost of treatment techniques.	Biodegradation of organic contaminants exceeding MCLs is believed to be occurring under existing conditions. MCLs will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative through implementation of a long-term groundwater monitoring program will achieve MCLs at completion of remedy.
Federal Regulatory Authority	Groundwater	USEPA Reference Dose	TBC		
Federal Regulatory Authority	Groundwater	USEPA HAS	TBC		
State Regulatory Authority	Groundwater(Also applicable as an Action Specific ARAR)	Massachusetts Drinking Water Standards and Guidelines [310 CMR 22.01].	Relevant and Appropriate	The Massachusetts Drinking Water Standards and Guidelines list MMCLs which apply to water delivered to any user of a public water supply system as defined in 310 CMR 22.00. Private residential wells are not subject to the requirements of 310 CMR 22.00; however, the standards are often used to evaluate private residential contamination especially in CERCLA activities.	Biodegradation of organic contaminants exceeding MMCLs is believed to be occurring under existing conditions, MMCLs will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative through implementation of a long-term groundwater monitoring program.

Table 24

Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Monitored Natural Attenuation Area of Contamination 32 and 43 A

Devens, Massachusetts

Action Specific

Authority	Action Specific	Requirement	Status	Requirement Synopsis	Action To Be Taken To Attain Requirement
Federal Regulatory Authority		RCRA Subtitle C Subpart F	Relevant and Appropriate	Groundwater protection standard.	
State Regulatory Authority	Groundwater	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards [314 CMR 6.00]	Applicable	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards designate and assign uses for which groundwater of the Commonwealth shall be maintained and protected and set forth water quality criteria necessary to maintain the designated uses. Groundwater at Fort Devens is classified as Class 1. Groundwater assigned to this class are fresh groundwater designated as a source of potable water supply.	Biodegradation of organic contaminants exceeding MMCLs is believed to be occurring under existing conditions. MMCLs will be used to evaluate the performance of this alternative through implementation of a long- term groundwater monitoring program.
State Regulatory Authority	Groundwater Monitoring	Massachusetts Hazardous Waste Management Rules (MHWMR)Groundwater Protection; [310 CMR 30.660- 30.679]	Relevant and Appropriate	Groundwater monitoring is required during and following remedial actions.	A long-term groundwater monitoring program is to be implemented to monitor the progress of remediation.

Notes:

CERCLA = Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act	MMCLs = Massachusetts Maximum Contaminant Levels
MCLs = Maximum Contaminant Levels	NPDWR = National Primary Drinking Water Standards
MHWMR = Massachusetts Hazardous Waste Management Rules	SDWA = Safe Drinking Water Act

Table 25 Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Excavation and Off-site Disposal Area of Contamination 32 and 43A Devens, Massachusetts

Location Specific

Authority	Location Specific	Requirement	Status	Requirement Synop	psis	Action To Be Taken To Attain Requirement
Federal Regulatory Authority		There are no location specific ARARs for the DRMO Yard.				
State Regulatory Authority		There are no location specific ARARs for the DRMO Yard.				

.

Table 25 Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Excavation and Off-site Disposal Area of Contamination 32 and 43A Devens, Massachusetts

Chemical Specific

Authority	Chemical Specific	Requirement	Status	Requirement Synopsis	Action To Be Taken To Attain Requirement
Federal Regulatory Authority	For surface soil (0 to 10 inches)	Toxic Substance Control Act (TSCA) 40 CFR 761.125(c)(4)	TBC	Unrestricted access with less than 1 mg/kg PCBs.	
Authority	For subsurface soil (below 10 inches)			Unrestricted access with less than 10 mg/kg PCBs.	
Federal Regulatory Authority	Soil	EPA Region III Risk Based Concentration Table	TBC	Exposure levels to numerous chemicals under specific scenarios.	
Federal Regulatory Authority	Soil	Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) Corrective Action Levels 55 FR 30798, July 1990.	TBC	To establish the need for a corrective measure study. Numerous chemicals.	
Federal Regulatory Authority	Soil	Revised Interim Soil Lead Guidance for CERCLA Sites and RCRA Corrective Action Facilities. EPA OSWER Directive 9355.4-12, July 1994	TBC		
State Regulator Authority	y Soil	Background levels for soil.	TBC		
State Regulator Authority	y Soil	Massachusetts Contingency Plan (MCP) 310 CMR 40.09705(6)(a)	TBC	Total petroleum hydrocarbons not to exceed 500 mg/kg.	
SIGNED COPY A3a, A10, portion of A24

MDSX	SO. DIST. DEEDS
DOCUME	VI: 368
DATE	6-22-00
TIME	11:35 AM

Quitclaim Deed

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Defense Base Closure and Realignment Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-510, as amended, and codified at 10 U.S.C. 2687, note), the Army has closed the military installation located at Fort Devens, Massachusetts ('Fort Devens'), and has made a final disposal decision with respect thereto; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 498 of the Massachusetts Acts of 1993 as amended, the Massachusetts Development Finance Agency, successor in interest to the Government Land Bank under Chapter 289 of the Acts of 1998, notice of which was recorded October 7, 1998, with the Worcester County Registry of Deeds at Book 20505, Page 279, and with the Middlesex County, Southern District, Registry of Deeds at Book 29188, Page 568, as the Local Redevelopment Authority, was granted the authority to oversee and implement the civilian reuse of Fort Devens in accordance with a locally approved reuse plan and bylaws; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Memorandum of Agreement between the Massachusetts Development Finance Agency and the United States of America, acting by and through the Secretary of the Army dated May 9, 1996 ("MOA"), as may be amended from time to time, the Department of the Army transferred certain portions of Fort Devens to the Massachusetts Development Finance Agency by quitclaim deed dated May 9, 1996, recorded with the Middlesex County, Southern District, Registry of Deeds at Book 26317, Page 003, and with the Worcester County Registry of Deeds at Book 17907, Page 001, a portion of Lease Parcel A-24 by quitclaim deed dated June 6, 1997, recorded with the Middlesex County, Southern District, Registry of Deeds at Book 27380, Page 159, shown on plan titled "Ayer/Harvard, MA. Plan of Land Lot 140" dated June 10, 1997 recorded with the Middlesex County, Southern District, Registry of Deeds at Plan Book 27380, Page 150, a portion of Lease Parcel A3 by quitclaim deed dated November 24, 1997, recorded with the Middlesex County, Southern District, Registry of Deeds at Book 20441, Page 10, shown on plan titled "Plan of Land Conveyed to the Government Land Bank by the Secretary of the Army, Ayer, Harvard, Shirley, MA," dated May 9, 1996 recorded with the Middlesex County, Southern District, Registry of Deeds at Plan Book 500 of 1996 and leased certain other portions of Fort Devens (the "Lease Parcels") to the agency through a Lease in Furtherance of Conveyance ("Lease"), pending the completion of certain environmental clean-up activities on the Lease Parcels; and

WHEREAS, the terms of the MOA provide, among other things, that upon the completion of the environmental clean-up of any of the Lease Parcels pursuant to: applicable law, the approval by the Department of the Army of a Finding of Suitability of Transfer ("FOST"), and in accordance with Department of Defense policy guidance, the Department of the Army will convey said Lease Parcel(s) to the Massachusetts Development Finance Agency for consideration of less than one hundred dollars (\$100.00);

Return to: Justin T. Farton, E39. MASS Development 75 Federal Street

mand located in the Levens Regio "Enterprise Powe, Town of Ayer, mielellesse County.

FRS 00062

WHEREAS, the FOST for Lease Parcel A10 and the remainder of A24 and A3 (referred to hereinafter as "A3a"), as said Lease Parcels are identified on a plan entitled "Plan of Land Conveyed to the Government Land Bank by the Secretary of the Army, Ayer, Harvard and Shirley MA," dated May 9, 1996, said plan being recorded with the Worcester County Registry of Deeds at Plan Book 703, Plan 112, and with the Middlesex County, Southern District, Registry of Deeds, as Plan 500 of 1996;

WHEREAS, the Massachusetts Development Finance Agency has requested and the Department of the Army has agreed to transfer Lease Parcels A3a, A10 and the remainder of A24 to the Massachusetts Development Finance Agency, in accordance with the terms set forth hereunder.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: that the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, acting by and through the DEPUTY ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF THE ARMY (Installations and Housing) (the "Grantor"), pursuant to a delegation of authority from the Secretary of the Army ("Army"), under and pursuant to the Defense Base Closure and Realignment Act of 1990, Public Law 101-510, as amended, and codified at 10 U.S.C. sec. 2687 (the "BRAC Law") and the Federal Property and Administrative Service Act of 1949, as amended, and codified at 40 U.S.C. sec. 584, for the utilization and disposal of excess and surplus property at closing and realignment bases, for consideration paid of less than \$100.00 the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant, remise, release, and forever quitclaim unto the Massachusetts Development Finance Agency (the "Grantee") a Massachusetts body politic and corporate created by Chapter 23G of the Massachusetts General Laws, and successor in interest to the Government Land Bank under Chapter 289 of the Acts of 1998, notice of which was recorded with the Worcester County Registry of Deeds at Book 20505, Page 279, and with the Middlesex County, Southern District, Registry of Deeds at Book 29188, Page 568, having its principal place of business at 75 Federal Street, 10th Floor, Boston, Massachusetts 02110, and its successors and assigns, all its right, title, and interest in and to Lease Parcel A3a, A10 and a portion of A24 located in the Town of Ayer, Middlesex County (the "Property"), which lease parcels are more particularly described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof, said Property also being described in a Notice of Lease dated May 9, 1996, recorded with the Middlesex County, Southern District, Registry of Deeds in Book 26340, Page 168, and with the Worcester County Registry of Deeds in Book 17922, Page 223. The Grantor and the Grantee hereby release any and all rights in the Property under said Notice of Lease, and under the lease referenced therein, it being agreed that said lease shall remain in full force and effect with regard to the other lease parcels not being conveyed hereunder.

The Property includes:

a. all buildings, facilities, utility systems, utilities, utility lines and poles, conduits, infrastructure, roadways, railroads, bridges, and improvements thereon and appurtenances thereto;

- b. all easements, reservations, and other rights appurtenant thereto;
- c. all hereditaments and tenements therein and reversions, remainders, issues, profits, and other rights belonging or related thereto; and

d. all mineral rights.

The legal description of the Property has been provided by the Grantee and the Grantee shall be responsible for the accuracy of the description of the Property conveyed herein and shall indemnify and hold the Grantor harmless from any and all liability resulting from any inaccuracy in the description.

I. <u>CERCLA Covenants and Notice</u>

Pursuant to Sections 120(h)(3) of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Section 9601 <u>et seq.</u> ("CERCLA"):

A. The Grantor hereby notifies the Grantee of the storage, release, and disposal of hazardous substances on the Property. Available information regarding the type, quantity, and location of such substances and action taken is set forth in Exhibit B, Finding of Suitability to Transfer ("FOST") for Lease Parcel A3a dated April 2000, A10 dated April 2000 and A24 dated February 1997, attached hereto and made a part hereof. The information regarding the storage, release, and disposal indicates that: (i) there is no threat to human health and the environment; and (ii) Lease Parcel A3a will be subject to one or more institutional controls, as further discussed below.

B. The Grantor hereby covenants that:

1. all remedial action necessary to protect human health and the environment with respect to any such hazardous substances remaining on the Property has been taken prior to the date of conveyance hereunder; and

2. any additional remedial action found to be necessary with regard to such hazardous substances after the date of the conveyance that resulted from past activities of the Grantor shall be conducted by the Grantor. This covenant in Subsection B.2 shall not apply in any case in which the person or entity to whom the Property is transferred is held to be a potentially responsible party under CERCLA with respect to the Property.

II. <u>Access Rights under the Comprehensive Environmental Response,</u> <u>Compensation and Liability Act, as amended (42 U.S.C 9601 et seq.)</u> ("CERCLA").

The Grantor hereby reserves a right of access on, over and through the Property as necessary to conduct any necessary investigation, response action, corrective action, or

other activity necessary for the Grantor to fulfill its environmental responsibilities under this Deed or applicable law or regulation. In exercising the rights hereunder, the Grantor shall give the Grantee or its successors or assigns reasonable notice of actions to be taken on the Property pursuant to this easement and shall, to the extent reasonable, consistent with the FFA and applicable law and regulation, and at no additional cost to the United States, endeavor to minimize the disruption to the Grantee's, its successors', or assigns' use of the Property.

III. Federal Facilities Agreement

1.00

By accepting this Deed, the Grantee acknowledges that the Grantor has provided the Grantee with a copy of the Federal Facilities Agreement (the "FFA") between the Grantor and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") dated May 11, 1991, and the modification thereto, dated March 26, 1996. The Grantor shall provide the Grantee with a copy of any future amendments to the FFA.

A. The Grantor, EPA, and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, acting by and through the Department of Environmental Protection ("DEP") and their agents, employees, and contractors, shall have access to and over the Property as may be necessary for any investigation, response, or corrective action pursuant to CERCLA or the FFA found to be necessary before or after the date of this Deed on the Property or on other property comprising the Fort Devens National Priorities List (the "NPL") site. This reservation includes the right of access to and use of, to the extent permitted by law, any available utilities at reasonable cost to the Grantor, EPA and DEP.

B. In exercising the rights hereunder, the Grantor, EPA and DEP shall give the Grantee or its successors or assigns reasonable notice or actions taken on the Property under the FFA and shall, to the extent reasonable, consistent with the FFA, and at no additional cost to the Grantee, endeavor to minimize the disruption to the Grantee's its successors', or assigns' use of the Property.

C. The Grantee agrees that notwithstanding any other provision of the Deed, the Grantor assumes no liability to the Grantee, its successor, or assigns, or any other person, should implementation of the FFA interfere with the use of the Property. The Grantee and its successors and assigns shall have no claim on account of any such interference against the Grantor or any officer, agent, employee, or contractor thereof.

D. Prior to the determination by the Grantor, EPA and DEP that all remedial action is complete under CERCLA and the FFA for the Property, (i) the Grantee, its successors and assigns, shall not undertake activities on the Property that would interfere with or impede the completion of the CERCLA clean-up at the Fort Devens NPL site and shall give prior written notice to the Grantor, EPA, and DEP of any construction, alterations, or similar work on the Property that may interfere with or impede said clean-up; and (ii) the Grantee shall comply with any institutional controls established or put in place by the Grantor relating to Lease Parcel A3awhich are required by any record of decision ("ROD") or amendments thereto, related to Lease Parcel A3a, which ROD was

approved by the Grantor and EPA and issued by the Grantor pursuant to CERCLA or the FFA before or after the date of this Deed. Additionally, the Grantee shall ensure that any leasehold it grants in the Property or any fee interest conveyance of any portion for the Property provides for legally-binding compliance with the institutional controls required by any such ROD.

E. For any portion of the Property subject to a response action under CERCLA or the FFA, prior to the conveyance of an interest therein, the Grantee shall include in all conveyances provisions for allowing the continued operation of any monitoring wells, treatment facilities, or other response activities undertaken pursuant to CERCLA or the FFA on said portion of the Property and shall notify the Grantor, EPA, and the DEP by certified mail, at least thirty (30) days prior to any such conveyance of an interest in said property, which notice shall include a description of said provisions allowing for the continued operation of any monitoring wells, treatment facilities, or other response activities undertaken pursuant to CERCLA or the FFA.

F. Prior to the determination by the Grantor and EPA that all remedial action under CERCLA and the FFA is complete for the Fort Devens NPL site, the Grantee and all subsequent transferees of an interest in any portion of the Property will provide copies of the instrument evidencing such transaction to the DEP, the EPA, and the Grantor by certified mail, within fourteen (14) days after the effective date of such transaction.

G. The Grantee and all subsequent transferees shall include the provisions of this Section III in all subsequent leases, transfer, or conveyance documents relating to the Property or any portion thereof that are entered into prior to a determination by the United States that all remedial action is complete at the Fort Devens NPL site.

IV. Institutional Controls on Lease Parcel A3a

A. Lease Parcel A3a requires certain institutional controls to prohibit the use of ground water.

B. The Grantor is conveying Lease Parcel A3a and the Grantee is taking subject to following institutional controls:

(i) no extraction of ground water for industrial and/or potable purposes; and

(ii) the implementation of a long-term groundwater monitoring plan to be developed by the Grantor and approved by EPA and DEP, a copy of which along with any future amendments shall be provided to the Grantee, its successors and assigns.

C. The Grantor shall have access to and over said lease parcel as may be necessary and/or required to ensure such institutional controls are in place.

D. The Grantee agrees that notwithstanding any other provision of the Deed, the Grantor assumes no liability to the Grantee, its successor, or assigns, or any other person, should implementation of the institutional controls interfere with the use of the Property. The Grantee and its successors and assigns shall have no claim on account of any such interference against the Grantor or any officer, agent, employee, or contractor thereof.

E. The Grantee and all subsequent transferees shall include the provisions of this Section IV in all subsequent leases, transfer, or conveyance documents relating to the Property or any portion thereof that are entered into prior to a determination by the United States that all remedial action is complete at the Fort Devens NPL site.

F. The institutional controls identified in this Paragraph IV may be modified and/or terminated only after the receipt of prior written approval of the EPA, DEP, and the Army and only after the proponent demonstrates that there is no longer a risk to human health and the environment.

V. <u>Environmental Baseline Survey ("EBS") and Finding of Suitability to</u> Transfer ("FOST").

The Grantee has received the technical environmental reports, including the Final Base-Wide EBS dated March 1996 and the FOST(s) for Lease Parcel A3a and A10 dated February 2000 and Lease Parcel A24 dated February 1997, prepared by, or on behalf of, the Grantor, the Grantee, and others, and agrees, to the best of the Grantee's knowledge, that they, accurately describe the environmental condition of the Property. The Grantee has inspected the Property and accepts the physical condition and current level of environmental hazards on the Property and based on the FOSTs and ROD deems the Property to be safe for the Grantee's intended use. If, after conveyance of the Property to Grantee, there is an actual or threatened release of a hazardous substance on the Property, or in the event that a hazardous substance is discovered on the Property after the date of the conveyance, whether or not such substance was set forth in the technical environmental reports, including the final base-wide EBS, Grantee or its successor or assigns shall be responsible for such release or newly discovered substance unless the Grantee is able to demonstrate that such release or such newly discovered substance was due to the Grantor's activities, ownership, use, or occupation of the Property, or the activities of the Grantor's contractors, employees, and/or agents. The Grantee, its successors and assigns, and as consideration for the conveyance, agree to release the Grantor from any liability or responsibility for any claims arising out of or in any was predicated on release of any hazardous substance on the Property occurring after the conveyance, where such substances were placed on the Property by the Grantee, or its agents, employees, invitees, or contractors, after the conveyance.

VI. <u>"As Is</u>"

All of the Property and personal property is conveyed under this Deed in an "as is" where is condition, without any representation or warranty whatsoever by the Army concerning the state of repair or condition of said Property, unless otherwise noted hereunder.

VII. Wetlands and Floodplains

A. General Provisions

The Property may contain wetlands protected under state and federal laws and regulations. Applicable laws and regulations restrict activities that involve draining wetlands or the discharge of fill materials into wetland, including, without limitation, the placement of fill materials; the building of any structure; site-development fills for recreational, industrial, commercial, residential, and other uses; causeways or road fills; and dams and dikes. To fulfill the Grantor's commitment in the Fort Devens Disposal and Reuse Environmental Policy Act of 1969, 42 U.S.C. 4321 et seq., this Deed provides for protection of wetlands beyond what would otherwise specifically be required under federal and state law.

B. Wetlands Protection

To protect water quality, groundwater recharge, and wildlife habitat, the Grantee, its successors, and assigns shall restrict activities within and protect any wetlands on the Property herein conveyed; as provided for in Article VII.C. of the Devens By-Laws, dated November 18, 1994, and approved by the towns of Ayer, Harvard, and Shirley on December 7, 1994, as said Article VII.C. of the Devens By-Laws may be amended from time to time in accordance with applicable law, provided that any such amendment will not affect the obligation of the Grantee and its successors and assigns hereunder to comply with Article VII.C. of the Devens By-Laws, in its form as of the date of this Deed, unless such amendment receives the written consent of the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection ("DEP").

C. Enforcement

The Grantee covenants for itself, its successors, and assigns that it shall include, and otherwise make legally binding, the restrictions in this Section VII in all subsequent lease, transfer, or conveyance documents relating to the Property, provided that the Property contains wetlands protected by applicable state or federal law. The restrictions and protections provided for in this Section VII shall run with the land. The restrictions in this Section VII benefit the lands retained by the United States that formerly comprised Fort Devens, as well as the public generally. The United States or the Commonwealth of Massachusetts shall have the right to enforce the wetlands restrictions provided for in this Section VII, by appropriate legal proceedings and to obtain injunctive and other equitable relief against any violations, including without limitation, relief requiring restoration of any of the Property to its condition prior to the time of the injury complained of (it being agreed that the Grantor and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts may have no adequate remedy at law), and shall be in addition to, and not in limitation of, any other rights and remedies available to the Grantor and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

VIII. Notice of the Presence of Underground Storage Tanks ("USTs")

A. The Grantee is hereby informed and does acknowledge that USTs have been located on the Property, as described in the final base-wide EBS and FOSTs. The Grantee has further been informed by the Grantor that all USTs that have been removed from the Property were tested at the time of removal and any contamination identified was removed or remediated prior to backfilling.

IX. Notice of the Presence of Radon

Available and relevant radon assessment data pertaining to the Property is in the final base-wide EBS, the receipt of which the Grantee hereby acknowledges.

X. Notice of Unexploded Ordnance ("UXO")

The Grantor and the Grantee acknowledge that, due to the former use of the Property as a part of an active military installation and notwithstanding the above records search and testing, UXO may exist on the Property. Upon due notice, the Grantor agrees to remove any such remaining UXO discovered on the Property, as required under applicable law and regulation, as expeditiously as reasonable and practicable, subject to the availability of funds.

XI. Notice of Lead-Based Paint

A. The Grantee is hereby informed and does acknowledge that all buildings on the Property, which were constructed or rehabilitated prior to 1978, are presumed to contain lead-based paint as disclosed to the Grantee under 16.11d. of the Lease, and in the Base-wide FOST. Lead from paint, paint chips, and dust can pose health hazards if not managed properly. The provisions of this Section XI shall apply only to the extent the presence of lead-based paint was disclosed in either the Base-wide FOST or the individual FOSTs for Lease Parcels A3a, A10 and A24.

B. The Grantor acknowledges that the Grantee, with the Grantor's prior approval, undertook and completed the demolition of all existing buildings located on the Property.

C. The Grantee acknowledges that it received the opportunity to conduct its own risk assessment and inspect the buildings for the presence of lead-based paint prior to demolition. The Grantee represents that it complied with all applicable solid or hazardous waste laws that may apply to any lead-paint wastes that may have been generated during the course of such lead-based paint abatement or demolition activities. D. The Grantee covenants and agrees to be responsible for any future remediation of lead-based paint or lead-based paint hazards on the Property found to be necessary as result of the Grantee's activities on the Property. The Grantee agrees to be responsible for any future abatement and/or disposal of lead-based paint identified in the Base-Wide FOST, which is determined to be necessary on the Property, after the date of the Lease.

E. The Grantor assumes no liability for damages or remediation for personal injury, illness, disability, death or property damage arising from: (i) any exposure to lead based paint hazards, that resulted from the Grantee's failure to comply with any applicable federal, state or local legal requirements for lead based paint abatement that resulted from the Grantee's demolition of the buildings, or (ii) any disposal of lead based paint debris arising from the Grantee's use of the Property after the date of the Lease.

F. The Grantee further agrees to bear full responsibility for and discharge the Grantor, its officers, agents and employees, from and against all suits, claims, demands, or actions, liabilities, judgments, costs and attorney's fees to the extent arising out of, or in any manner predicated upon personal injury, death or property damage resulting from, related to, caused by or arising out of lead based paint or lead based paint hazards on the Property.

XII. Notice of the Presence of Asbestos

A. The Grantee is hereby informed and does acknowledge that the buildings located on the Property contained friable and non-friable asbestos or asbestos-containing materials ("ACM") as identified in Section 16.11.c of the Lease and in the Base-wide FOST. The provisions of this Section XII shall apply only to the extent the asbestos and/or ACM was disclosed in either the Base-wide FOST or the individual FOSTs for Lease Parcels A3a, A10 and A24.

B. The Grantor acknowledges that the Grantee, with the Grantor's prior approval, undertook and completed the demolition of all existing buildings located on the Property. The Grantee acknowledges that it was given the opportunity to inspect the buildings as to the asbestos condition and content thereto prior to accepting the responsibilities imposed upon the Grantee under this section. The failure of the Grantee to inspect, or to be fully informed as to the asbestos condition of all or any portion of the property offered will not constitute grounds for any claim or demand against the United States, or any adjustment under this Deed or the Memorandum of Agreement between the Grantor and the Grantee. The Grantee represents that it complied with all applicable federal, state and local laws relating to the remediation and disposal of asbestos and/or asbestos containing materials that may have been generated during the course of the demolition of the buildings.

C. The Grantee covenants and agrees that its use and occupancy of the Property will be in compliance with all applicable laws relating to asbestos, and that the Grantor assumes no liability for any future remediation of asbestos or damages for personal injury, illness, disability, or death, to the Grantee, its successors or assigns, or to any other person, including members of the general public, arising from or incident to the purchase, transportation, removal, handling, use, disposition, or other activity causing or leading to contact of any kind whatsoever with asbestos or ACM on the Property, whether the Grantee, its successors or assigns have properly warned or failed to properly warn the individual(s) injured.

D. The Grantee agrees to be responsible for any future remediation of asbestos identified in the Base-Wide FOST, which is determined to be necessary on the Property, after the date of the Lease. The Grantee covenants and agrees to be responsible for any future remediation of asbestos on the Property. The Grantor assumes no liability for damages or remediation for personal injury, illness, disability, death or property damage arising from: (i) any exposure to asbestos or ACM that resulted due to the Grantee's failure to comply with any legal requirements applicable to asbestos on any portion of the Property, or (ii) any disposal of asbestos or ACM, after the date of the Lease, which was disclosed in the Base-Wide FOST.

E. The Grantee further agrees to bear full responsibility for and discharge the Grantor, its officers, agents and employees, from and against all suits, claims, demands or actions, liabilities, judgments, costs and attorneys' fees to the extent arising out of, or in any manner predicted upon, exposure to asbestos, identified in the Base-wide FOST, on any portion of the Property which exposure occurs after the date of Lease, or any future remediation or abatement of asbestos on any portion of the Property or the need therefor, which was identified in the Base-Wide FOST as being present on the Property. The Grantee's obligation hereunder shall apply whenever the United States incurs costs or liabilities for actions giving rise to liability under this section.

XIII. Non-Waiver of CERCLA Claims

Nothing contained in this Deed, shall affect the Grantor's responsibilities to conduct response actions or corrective actions that are required by the FFA, CERCLA or other applicable law, rules and regulations, or the Grantor's indemnification obligations under Section 330 of the National Defense Base Authorization Act of 1993.

XIV. Notice of Non-Discrimination

With respect to activities related to the Property, the Grantee shall not discriminate against any person or persons or exclude them from participation in the Grantee's operations, programs or activities conducted on the Property, because of race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap, or national origin.

XV. Indemnification

A. The Grantor recognizes its obligation to hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the Grantee and any successor, assignee, transferee, lender, or lessee of the

Grantee or its successors and assigns, as provided in Section 330 of the Department of Defense Authorization Act of 1993, as amended, and to otherwise meet its obligations under law, subject to the availability of appropriated funds.

B. The Grantee shall indemnify and hold the Grantor harmless from all claims, liability, loss, cost, environmental contamination, or damage arising out of or resulting from the activities of the Grantee, its agents, employees, or contractors on the Property after the date of the lease between the Grantor and the Grantee, except where such claims, liability, loss, cost, environmental contamination, or damage is the result of the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Grantor or its employees, agents, or contractors.

XVI. Anti-Deficiency Act

The Grantor's obligation to pay or reimburse any money under this Deed is subject to the availability of appropriated funds to the Department of the Army, and • nothing in this Deed shall be interpreted to require obligations or payments by the United States in violation of the Anti-Deficiency Act.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor hereunder sets its hand and seal as of the <u>134</u> day of <u>Quar</u>, 2000.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY

Name: Paul W. Johkson Deputy Assistant Secretary of the Army (Installations and Housing OASA(I&E)

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA COUNTY OF ARLINGTON

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the Commonwealth of Virginia, County of Arlington, whose commission as such expires on the <u>3014</u> day of <u>November</u>, <u>2002</u>, do hereby certify that this day personally appeared before me in the Commonwealth of Virginia, County of Arlington, Paul W. Johnson, Deputy Assistant Secretary of the Army (I&H), whose name is signed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be his free act and deed, dated this <u>1244</u> day of <u>June</u> <u>2002</u> and acknowledged the same for and behalf of the UNITED STATE OF AMERICA

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: 30 November 2002

ACCEPTANCE: The Massachusetts Development Finance Agency, a Massachusetts body politic and corporate created by Chapter 23G of the Massachusetts General Laws, successor in interest to the Government Land Bank under Chapter 289 of the Acts of 1998, as amended, by its duly qualified and authorized Executive Director, Michael P. Hogan, does hereby accept and approve this Quitclaim Deed and agrees to all of the terms and conditions thereof as of the *21st* day of <u>June</u>, 2000.

MASSACHUSETTS DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AGENCY By: thae P. Hog Name Title: Executive Director

Jue 2, 2000

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

Then personally appeared the above named Michael P. Hogan, Executive Director of the Massachusetts Development Finance Agency, and acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be his free act and deed and the free act and deed of said Agency, before me

Notary Public: Scott T. Fenton My Commission expires: 5/7/04

Approved as to Form Apenung Consider

Attachment A: Legal Property Description

Legal Description Lease Parcel A3

A certain parcel of land located in the Town of Ayer, Middlesex County, MA, known as Lease Parcel A3, beginning at a point with the NAD coordinates (+/- 50') N3024796, E629203.

- Thence running westerly along Antietam Street five courses totaling four hundred and eleven feet +/-, (411' +/-) to a point;
- Thence turning and running North along Cook Street N23 degrees 40°E, two hundred and fifty nine feet +/-, (259' +/-) to a point;
- Thence S80 degrees 32'W, forty feet +/-, (40' +/-) to a point on the opposite side of Market Street;
- Thence N65 degrees 46'W, one hundred and seventy eight feet +/-, (178' +/-) to a point;
- Thence N23 degrees 06'E, five hundred and sixty six feet +/-, (566' +/-) to a point;
- Thence N23 degrees 25'E, two hundred and ninety eight +/-, (298' +/-) to a point;
- Thence S62 degrees 51'E, two hundred and eighty five feet +/-, (285' +/-) to a point;
- Thence S35 degrees 15'W, two hundred and ninety five feet +/-, (295' +/-) to a point;
- Thence S86 degrees 14'E, two hundred and seventy two feet +/-, (272' +/-) to a point;
- Thence S42 degrees 22'E, three hundred one feet +/-, (301' +/-) to a point;
- Thence S00 degrees 15'W, three hundred and fifty seven feet +/-, (357' +/-) to a point;
- Thence N80 degrees 52'W, one hundred and sixteen feet +/-, (116' +/-) to a point;
- Thence N78 degrees 51'W, two hundred and twenty three feet +/-, (223' +/-) to a point;
- Thence S14 degrees 09'W, three hundred sixty two feet +/-, (362' +/-) to the point of beginning.

Said parcel contains 14 acres +/-.



Attachment A: Legal Property Description

Legal Description Lease Parcel A10

A certain parcel of land located in the Town of Ayer, Middlesex County, MA, known as parcel A10 located on the north side of Buena Vista, beginning at a point with the NAD coordinates (+/-) N3024250, E628300).

- Thence N00 degrees 30'W, one hundred and fifty two feet +/- (152'+/-) to a point;
- Thence N41 degrees 30'E, two hundred and fifty five feet +/-, (255' +/-) to a point;
- Thence S69 degrees 30'E, one hundred and twenty two feet +/-, (122' +/-) to a point on the west sideline of Cook Street;
- Thence along Cook Street S24 degrees 50'W, two hundred and thirty one feet +/-, (231' +/-) to a point;
- Thence still along Cook Street S43 degrees 40'W, forty seven feet +/-, (47'+/-)to a point on the north side of Buena Vista Street;
- Thence along Buena Vista Street S68 degrees 37'W, thirty eight feet +/-, (38' +/-) to a point;
- Thence still along Buena Vista Street S79 degrees 30'W, eighty three feet +/-, (83' +/-) to the point of beginning.

Said parcel contains 54,280 square feet +/- or 1.2 acres+/-.



Attachment A: Legal Parcel Description and Plan of Transfer Parcel

H24

Legal Description SA 33, SA 34, SA 35, AREE 61A, AREE 61AD, AREE 63B, and AREE 63BL

Located on the south sideline of Antietam Street, and the north sideline of Carey Street, beginning at a point with the NAD coordinates (\pm 50') N3024490, E629400.

- Thence along the north sideline of Carey Street S62° 00'W, five hundred and thirteen feet p (513' \pm) to a point;
- Thence S85° 15'W, three hundred and two feet \pm , (302' \pm) to a point;
- Thence N25° 00'E, three hundred and four feet \pm , (304' \pm) to a point;
- Thence N14° 30'E, two hundred and twenty nine feet \pm , (229' \pm) to a point;
- Thence N15° 15'E, one hundred and seventy seven feet \pm , (177' \pm) to a point on the south sideline of Antietam Street;
- Thence southerly along the south side of Antietam Street, six hundred and seventy eight feet \pm , (678' \pm) to the point of beginning.

Said parcel contains 6.2 acres \pm . Said parcel also contains Buildings 247, 254, 258, 259, and 262.



Attachment C: Table of Hazardous Substances and Status at AOC 32

Finding Of Suitability To Transfer 14 Acre Parcel A3a Table 1

c	Hazardous Substance Environmental Concerns	Disposal Storage Release	Quantity	Dates	CASRN No.	RCRA Waste No.	Regulatory Synonym	Site Status
)C 32	 Scrap metal, vehicles, tires, office equipment, Batteries Transformers / Capacitors containing PCB's Accumulation point for photographic solutions Motor Oil PAH's Metals Lead PCB's 	Storage/ Release Media Affected: Soil, GW Asphalt	 Unknown 40,000 lbs/month Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown 	1964- 1995	 Unknown Unknown 1336363 Unknown Unknown Unknown N/A Unknown 7439921 1336363 	1. Unknown 2. Unknown 3. N/A 4. Unknown 5. Unknown 6. N/A 7. Unknown 8. Unknown 9. N/A	 Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown N/A Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown 	RI&FS Jan 1997 ROD Fcb 1998 Work Plan Nov 1998 1300 cy soil removed Nov 1998
			•		•			GW monitoring wells installed 1992,1993, 1998,1999
								Remedial Action working properly & successfully July 1999
s: CA	SRN=Chemical Abstracts Registration 1	Number	PPM=Parts F	Per Million	•		<i></i>	

GW=Ground Water

ROD=Record Of Decision

Attachment C: Table of Hazardous Substances and Status at AOC 43A

Finding Of Suitability To Transfer 14 Acre Parcel A39

Table 2

:	Hazardous Substance/ Environmental	Disposal Storage	Quantity	Dates	CASRN No.	RCRA Waste	Regulatory Synonym	Site Status
	Concerns	Release				:]	
C,	 Gasoline 12000 gal UST (3) 12000 gal UST (2) 8000 gal AST (2) TPHC BTEX Lead Arsenic Other inorganics Barium Calcium Cobalt 	Storage/ Release Media Affected: Soil, GW	 800 cy of contaminated soil removed in 1989 and 1990. 5. 1200 ppm soil, 23000 ppm GW. 6. BTEX 7600 ppm total. 7. 176 ppm lead 8. 650 ppm Arsenic in GW 	Unknown installation AST's removed between 1965 and 1972, 4 (12,000gal) UST's and 1 (10,000gal) UST removed in 1989 and 1990.	1. Unknown 2. N/A 3. N/A 4. N/A 5. Unknown 6. Unknown 7. 7439921	 Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown N/A N/A Unknown 	NA	RJ & FS Jan 1997 ROD Feb 1998 Work Plan Nov 1998 GW monitoring wells installed
•	Chromium Copper					•		1992,1993, 1998,1999
	Iron Potassium Magnesium Manganese Sodium Nickel							Remedial Action working properly & successfully
	Vanadium Zinc							July 1999
					•	s• -		
] :s:	CASRN=Chemical Abstrac FS=Fcasibility Study N/A=Not Applicable	ls Registrati	on Number PPM=Parts Pe ROD=Record RI=Remedial I	r Million Of Decision Investigation			ł_	

Attachment D: Institutional Controls A3a Institutional Control Implementation and Monitoring

AOC 32 Soil

The Removal Action for AOC 32 conducted by the Army in October and November 1998 has permanently achieved three of the four remedial action objectives specified in the Record of Decision. The final confirmation data results indicate that not only were cleanup levels met, sample concentrations were actually lower then the more conservative MCP S-1 criteria. The fourth remedial action objective is to monitor the groundwater and review the site after five years. This objective will be met as part of the groundwater long-term monitoring.

AOC 32 and 43A Groundwater

One of the major components of the remedial action for AOC 32 Groundwater Operable Unit and AOC 32/43A Groundwater Operable Unit is the implementation of institutional controls. The human health risk at these two Groundwater Operable Units is associated with the consumption of unfiltered groundwater. Due to the thin saturated overburdened aquifer under AOC 32, the use of groundwater is impractical. Nevertheless, institutional controls will be implemented at AOC 32 and 43A to limit the potential exposure to the groundwater under both existing and future site conditions. These institutional controls will ensure that exposure to and the extraction of groundwater from the site for industrial and/or potable water supply would not be permitted. The institutional controls for AOC 32 and 43A will be incorporated either in full or by reference into all deeds, easements, mortgages, leases or any other instruments of transfer.

Institutional Controls

When the parcels containing AOC 32 and 43A are transferred by the Army, institutional controls will be consisted of in their respective conveyance documents as necessary and appropriate under Section 120 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA) and Massachusetts General Law (M.G.L.) 21E. The conveyance documents will include the following:

a. Language ensuring that groundwater will not be extracted and used for industrial and/or potable water supply;

b. Language barring the installation of any drinking water wells on the AOCs;

c. Language ensuring that any grantee, successor and/or assignee shall comply with the institutional controls established in the conveyance documents;

d. A provision requiring the grantee, successor and/or assignee to obtain prior approval from EPA, Department of Environmental Protection (MADEP) and MassDevelopment for any modification to, or release of, institutional controls;

e. A provision requiring the proper recording of the institutional controls and any future modification or release of any institutional controls; and

f. A provision requiring annual monitoring and inspection of the AOCs to ensure that the institutional controls are being followed.

Institutional Control Monitoring

Existing land use and site conditions will be evaluated annually to ensure that the institutional control requirements are still being met. This inspection will be conducted as part of the long-term groundwater monitoring. If the future proposed land use at AOC 32 and 43A is inconsistent with these institutional controls, then the site exposure scenarios to human health and the environment will be re-evaluated at the five-year reviews to ensure that this response action is appropriate. Institutional control inspections will include the checklist components described in the following subsections.

Interview.

The groundwater monitoring field crew leader will contact the property owner of the site, its manager or other designee with knowledge of the day-to-day activities of the property to make arrangements for groundwater sampling and to review compliance with the institutional controls. As part of the review, the monitoring crew will inquire regarding:

a. The owner's familiarity regarding institutional controls imposed upon the property and documentation of these controls.

b. Source of public drinking water for the property.

Physical On-Site Inspection

After the monitoring crew has contacted the property owner, groundwater monitoring will be performed as well as a physical on-site inspection of the property to determine compliance with the institutional controls. The physical on-site inspection shall include examination for evidence that there have been no groundwater extraction wells installed on the premises.

After the inspection is complete, the Army will provide a copy of the annotated inspection checklist, a written summary of the findings and all supporting documentation to the Devens Enterprise Commission (DEC), DEP, EPA, and MassDevelopment. This inspection report will be transmitted with the annual report. The inspection report shall explain the basis of any known or suspected violation identified during the inspection.

In the event the DEC, MADEP, EPA, MassDevelopment and/or the Army determines that any owner of, and/or tenant at is not complying with the institutional controls, then such party shall provide written notice to the owner and the other parties of such alleged violation. Upon such determination or notification the DEC, EPA, MADEP, MassDevelopment and/or the Army may take independent enforcement action against such owner and/or tenant pursuant to any applicable federal, state or local law, regulation, rule, permit, policy and/or ROD. Failure by the DEC, MADEP, EPA and/or MassDevelopment to provide such notification to the Army shall not give rise to any defense either in law or in equity in any cost recovery action or other action arising out of such non compliance.

1

s interne

Attachment C: Table of Hazardous Substances and Status of AREE 61AB Finding Of Suitability To Transfer 1.2 Acre Parcel A10 Table 1

Site	Hazardous Substance Environmental Concerns	Disposal Storage Release	Quantity	Dates	CASRN No.	RCRA Waste No.	Regulatory Synonym	Site Status
AREE 61AB	 Unpaved Parking Area Maintenance Facility Oil Water Separator/Catch basin/Dry Well Satellite Accumulation Area for speedi dry, antifreeze, used motor oil filters, grease tubes, and 55 gal drums, degreasers, and fuel additives Waste oil UST 1000 gal 250 gal kerosene AST 5000 gal diesel AST 10000 gal gasoline AST 2-methyl napthalene TPHC 2,2-bis(p-chlorphenyl-1,1 chloroethene (p,p'-DDE) 2,2-bis(p-chlorphenyl)-1,1,1- trichlorethane (p,p'-DDT) 2,2-bis(p-chlorphenyl)-1,1,1- trichlorothane (p,p'-DDT) 4. Chrysene 	Storage/ Release Media Affected: Possibly GW	 Unknown Unknown 4310 ppm TPHC Unknown 1000 gal removed 1992 In Place 5000 gal removed 1992 10000 gal removed 1992 10000 gal removed 1992 Unknown 4310 ppm soil 30 ppm 10 ppm 20 ppm 2 ppm 	1934	9. Unknown 10. Unknown 11. 72548 12. 72559 13. 50293 14. 218019	9. Unknown 10. Unknown 11. U060 12. NA 13. U061 14. U050	 9. Unknown 10. Unknown 11. Unknown 12. Unknown 13. Unknown 14. 1,2- Benzphenanthre ne 	Removal Site Evaluation 1996 150 cy soil removed Nov. 1998 Draft NFA Feb. 1999
				.				
loics: CA FS N/	ASRN=Chemical Abstracts Registration S=Feasibility Study A=Not Applicable	Number	RA=Removal Action RI=Remedial Investigati ROD=Record of Decisio	ion n	• · · · ·			

NFAD=No Further Action Decision Document

SI=Site Investigation

Finding of Suitability to Transfer

Fort Devens Parcel A.24

Site No./ Building No.	Hazardous Substances/ Environmental Concern	Disposal, Starage, Release	Quantity Released/ Removed or Concentration Detected	Dates	CASRN No.	ACRA Waste No	Regulatory Synonym	Site Sintua
SA 34 Buildings 245 and 246	1: Chlordanc 2: 2,4,5-TP (herbicide) 3: PAHs 4: 2,4-D (herbicide) 5: DDE 6: DDD 7: DDT	Storage	1: 46-110 ppm 2: 0.02 ppm 3: <10 ppm 4: 0.03 ppm 5: <1.0 ppm 6: <1.0 ppm 7: <10 ppm	1940s to 1980s	1: 57749 2: N/A 3: N/A 4: N/A 5: 72559 6: 72548 7: 50293	1: U036 2: N/A 3: N/A 4: N/A 5: N/A 6: U060 7: U061	1: Chlordane, alpha-gamma isomers, chlordane, technical 2: N/A 3: N/A 4: N/A 5: 4,4' DDE 6: Benzene, 1,1'-(2,2- dichloroethylidene) bis 7: Benzene, 1,1'- (2,2,2,trichloroethylidene) bis (4chloro-4,4'DDT)	NFA DD 9/96
SA 35 Bullding 254	 PAHs Organochlorine pesticides Organophosphorus pesticides Metals 	Storage	 Detected in surface soils Detected in surface soils Detected in surface soils Detected in surface soils 	1940s to 1990s	1: N/A 2: N/A 3: N/A 4: N/A	1: N/A 2: N/A 3: N/A 4: N/A	1: N/A 2: N/A 3: N/A 4: N/A	NFA DD 11/95

Notes: CASRN = Chemical Abstracts Registration Number

DD = Decision Document

GW = Ground Water

N/A = Not Applicable

NFA = No Further Action

ppm = Parts Per Million

RCRA = Resource Conservation and Recovery Act

TPH = Total Petroleum Hydrocarbon

TRPH = Total Recoverable Petroleum Hydrocarbons

VOC = Volatile Organic Compound

Finding of Suitability to Transfer

Table 1: Fort Devens Parcel A.24

Site No./ Building No.	Hazardous Substances/ Environmental Concern	Disposal, Storage, Release	Ouantity Released/ Removed or Concentration Detected	Dates	CASRN No.	ACAA Waste No	Regulatory Synonym	Site Status
AREE 61A Building 242	 1: 1,000-Gallon No. 2 Fuel Oil UST 2: TPH 3: 2,methyl naphthalene 4: cPAHs a: benzo(a)anthracene b: benzo(a)pyrene c: benzo(b)fluoranthene d: benzo(k)fluoranthene e: chrysene f: dibenzo(a,h)anthracene 	Storage	1: Tank removed 2: >500 ppm 3: 0.8 ppm 4: Totat = 33.09 ppm	Tank In ground 1940s to 1996	1: N/A 2: N/A 3: N/A 4: a: 56553 b: 50328 c: 205992 d: 207089 e: 218019 f: 53703	1: N/A 2: N/A 3: N/A 4: a: U018 b: U022 c: N/A d: N/A e: U050 f: U063	1: N/A 2: N/A 3: N/A 4: a: Benz(a)anthracene, 1,2Benzanthracene b: 3,4-Benzopyrene c: N/A d: N/A d: N/A e: 1,2-Benzphenathrene f: Dibenz(a,h)anthracene, 1,2:5,6-Dibenzanthracene	NFA DD 1/97
AREE 61AD Building 247	1: 1,000-Gailon No. 2 Fuel Oil UST	Storage	1: NA	1984 to present	1: N/A	1: N/A	1: N/A	NFA DD 10/95
AREE 63B Building 242	1: 1,000-Gallon Waste Oll UST 2: TPH 3: Methylene chloride	Storage	1: Tank removed 2: >500 ppm 3: <20 ppm	Tank Inground 1940s to 1992	1: N/A 2: N/A 3: 75092	1: N/A 2: N/A 3: U060	1: N/A 2: N/A 3: Methane,dichloro	NFA DD 1/96
AREE 63BL Building 242	1: 4 4,000-Gallon Gasoline USTs 2: TPH	Storage	1: Tanks removed 2: >500 ppm	Tanks inground 1940s to 1992	1: N/A 2: N/A	1: N/A 2: N/A	1: N/A 2: N/A	NFA DD 1/96
SA 33 Building 262	1: VOCs 2: PAHs 3: Organochlorine pesticides 4: Organo phosphorus pesticides 5: Herbicides	Storage and Release	 1, 2 to 1.5 ppm 2: <10 ppm 3: Detected in surface soils 4: Detected in surface soils 5: Detected in surface soils 	1984 to early 1990s	1: N/A 2: N/A 3: N/A 4: N/A 5: N/A	1: N/A 2: N/A 3: N/A 4: N/A 5: N/A	1: N/A 2: N/A 3: N/A 4: N/A 5: N/A	NFA DD 3/96

p67073TEPS.EBS_Sulv.a_parcel.parc_a24.fst.02/13/97

APPENDIX G

AOCS 69W







...\LTM\AOC69\Oct04\a69H103.s0W_07/20/2005 10:03:44 AM



...\LTM\AOC69\Oct04\a69H104.s0V 07/20/2005 10:11:26 AM



... JLTM\AOC69\Oct04\a69H105.s0M 07/20/2005 10:12:52 AM







Figure 1-4





Figure 1-6 **Exceedances Over Time**
Table 2 Groundwater Analytical Results - April 28 and 30, 2004 Sampling Event AOC 69W Devens, Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 1)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	69W-94-13	69W-94-14	ZWM-95-15X	ZWM-95-17X	ZWM-95-18X	ZWM-99-22X	69W-Dup	ZWM-99-23X	ZWM-99-24X	ZWM-01-25X	ZWM-01-26X
	CLEANUP	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	GOAL ⁽¹⁾	Ţ.										
EPH (MADEP METHOD)	ug/L											
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons												
C9 - C18	1,000	100 U	120 U	110 U	120 U	100 U	110 U	120 U	100 U	110 U	100 U	100 U
C19 - C36	5,000	100 U	120 U	110 U	120 U	100 U	110 U	120 U	100 U	110 U	100 U	100 U
Aromatic Hydrocarbons												
C11 - C22	200	100 U	120 U	110 U	120 U	100 U	270	420	100 U	110 U	100 U	100 U
VPH (MADEP Method)												
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons												
C5 - C8	400	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U
C9 - C12	1,000	130	100 U	100 Ü	100 U	100 U	630	630	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U
Aromatic Hydrocarbons												
C9 - C10	200	130	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	650	650	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U
METALS (200.7, 206.2)												
Arsenic	50	27	5.0 U	7.7	5.0 U	5.0 U	140	150	44	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
Iron	9,100 (2)	10,000	660	20,000	20 J	35 J	22,000	22,000	9,000	24 J	19 J	16 J
Manganese	375	2,500	360	4,600	1.9 J	7.4 J	3,100	3,000	2,500	31	140	55
FIELD PARAMETERS												
ORP (mv)		142.4	243.4	132.2	350.0	628.5	13.3	NA	673.0	380.8	601.2	547.3
DO (mg/L)		0.25	0.64	0,47	8.49	5.96	0.20	NA	1.37	1.66	4,15	7.38

Notes:

J = Estimated value detected below the PQL

U = Not detected at or above the Reporting Limit indicated.

NA = Compound not analyzed for,

ug/L = Micrograms per Liter

69W-Dup is a duplicate of ZWM-99-22X

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup goal exceedances.

ORP (mv) = Oxidation Reduction Potential in millivolts

DO (mg/L) = Dissolved Oxygen in milligrams per Liter

 Cleanup value as identified in the ROD using the MCP GW-1/GW-2 Groundwater Standards.
 Iron is no longer considered a COC but will be compared to the background concentration as shown above. Iron concentrations will be used as an indicator of remediation efficacy.

Source wells: 69W-94-13, 69W-94-14, ZWM-99-22X Sentry wells: ZWM-95-15X, ZWM-95-18X, ZWM-99-23X, ZWM-99-24X, ZWM-01-25X, ZWM-01-26X Background well: ZWM-95-17X

Groundwater Analytical Results - October 18 and 19, 2004 Sampling Event AOC 69W Devens, Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 1)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	69W-94-13	69W-94-14	ZWM-95-15X	ZWM-95-17X	ZWM-95-18X	ZWM-99-22X	69W-Dup	ZWM-99-23X	ZWM-99-24X	ZWM-01-25X	ZWM-01-26X
	CLEANUP	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L
	GOAL (1)											
EPH (MADEP METHOD)	ug/L											
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons												
C9 - C18	1,000	110 U	110 U	100 U	110 U	110 U	310 J	100 UJ	110 U	110 U	100 U	110 U
C19 - C36	5,000	110 U	110 U	100 U	110 U	110 U	110 U	120 U	110 U	110 U	100 U	110 U
Aromatic Hydrocarbons												
C11 - C22	200	110	110 U	100 U	110 U	110 U	400	330	110 U	110 U	100 U	110 U
VPH (MADEP Method)												
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons												
C5 - C8	400	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U
C9 - C12	1,000	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	1 <u>00 U</u>	100 U	100 U
Aromatic Hydrocarbons												
C9 - C10	200	230	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	600	570	100 U	100 Ü	100 U	100 U
METALS (200.7, 206.2)												
Arsenic	50	88	2.4 J	30.0	2.0 J	5.0 U	140	180	61	1.7 J	3.4 J	5.0 U
Iron	9,100 (2)	7,400	200	6,800	100 U	17 J	15,000	16,000	7,400	100 U	100 U	100 U
Manganese	375	1,300	78	980	3.6 J	6.3 J	1,900	2,000	2,300	8.7 J	300	25
FIELD PARAMETERS												
ORP (mv)		124.3	156.4	30.9	181.3	392.0	-111.0	NA	7.6	411.6	468.8	206.9
DO (mg/L)		0.32	1.18	0.19	8,57	5.49	0.53	NA	0.23	0.65	4.79	2.98

Notes:

J = Estimated value detected below the PQL

U = Not detected at or above the Reporting Limit indicated.

NA = Compound not analyzed for.

ug/L = Micrograms per Liter

69W-Dup is a duplicate of ZWM-99-22X

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup goal exceedances.

ORP (mv) = Oxidation Reduction Potential in millivolts

DO (mg/L) = Dissolved Oxygen in milligrams per Liter

(1) Cleanup value as identified in the ROD using the MCP GW-1/GW-2 Groundwater Standards.

(2) Iron is no longer considered a COC but will be compared to the background concentration as shown above. Iron concentrations will be used as an indicator of remediation efficacy.

Source wells: 69W-94-13, 69W-94-14, ZWM-99-22X

Sentry wells: ZWM-95-15X, ZWM-95-18X, ZWM-99-23X, ZWM-99-24X, ZWM-01-25X, ZWM-01-26X Background well: ZWM-95-17X

Groundwater Analytical Results - May 6 and 7, 2003 Sampling Event. AOC 69W Devens, Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 1)

PARAMETERS 69W-94-13 69W-DUP 69W-94-14 ZWM-95-15X 2WM-95-17X ZWM-95-18X ZWM-99-22X ZWM-99-23X ZWM-99-24X ZWM-01-25X Well No. ZWM-01-26X CLEANUP ug/L ug/L ua/L uq/L ug/L ug/L ud/L ug/L ug/L ug/L ug/L GOAL (*) EPH (MADEP METHOD) ug/L Aliphatic Hydrocarbons C9 - C18 1,000 31 U 30 U 31 U 30 U 30 U 31 U 31 U 30 U 30 U 31 U 31 U 40 U 41 U 40 U 40 U 41 U 42 U 40 U C19 - C36 5.000 41 U 40 Û 41 U 41 U Aromatic Hydrocarbons 87 U 85 U C11 - C22 200 86 U 89 U 85 U 88 U 380 86 U 85 U 88 U 87 U VPH (MADEP Method) Aliphatic Hydrocarbons 400 100 U Ć5 • C8 100 U 100 U 100 U C9 · C12 1,000 25 U Aromatic Hydrocarbons C9 - C10 25 U 1.000 62 56 25 U 25 U 25 U 840 53 25 U 25 U 25 U METALS (200.7, 206.2) 35 35 2.2 J 5.0 U 2.0 J 5.0 U 4 50 million 27 Arsenić 50 5.0 U 2.3 J 5.0 U 9,100⁽²⁾ 12,000 12,000 550 470 100 U 100 U 31.000 11,000 100 U 59 J 100 U Iron 2,800 2,900 200 1,600 2,700 5,300 Manganese 375 15 U 15 J 6.0 J 89 11 J FIELD PARAMETERS 181 167.2 163.6 316 -50.5 ORP (mv) 40.7 NA 66 204.6 219 190 DO (mg/L) NA 2.84 0.25 5.11 8.26 6.39 0.84 0.74 5,35 6,49 8.28

Notes;

J = Estimated value detected below the POL

U = Not detected at or above the Reporting Limit Indicated.

NA = Compound not analyzed for.

ug/L = Micrograms per Liter

69W-Dup is a duplicate of 69W-94-13

Shaded areas with bold humbers indicate cleanup goal exceedances.

ORP (my) = Oxidation Reduction Potential in millivolts

DO (mg/L) = Dissolved Oxygen in milligrams per Liter

 Cleanup goal as identified in the ROD using the MCP GW-1/GW-2 Groundwater Standards.
 Iron is no longer considered a COC but will be compared to the background concentration as shown above. Iron concentrations will be used as an indicator of remediation efficacy.

Source wells: 69W-94-13, 69W-94-14, ZWM-99-22X

Sentry wells: ZWM-95-15X, ZWM-95-18X, ZWM-99-23X, ZWM-99-24X, ZWM-01-25X, ZWM-01-26X Background well: ZWM-95-17X

Groundwater Analytical Results - October 14 and 16, 2003 Sampling Event AOC 69W Devens, Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 1)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	69W-94-13	69W-94-14	ZWM-95-15X	ZWM-95-17X	ZWM-95-18X	ZWM-99-22X	69W-Dup	ZWM-99-23X	ZWM-99-24X	ZWM-01-25X	ZWM-01-26X
	CLEANUP	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	սց/Լ	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L
	GOAL "											1
EPH (MADEP METHOD)	ug/L											
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons												
C9 - C18	1,000	32 U	31 U	32 U	<u>31 U</u>	33 U	31 U	<u>31 U</u>	31 U	32 U	32 U	31 U
C19 - C36	5,000	42 U	41 U	42 U	<u>41 U</u>	44 U	41 U	42 U	41 U	42 U	42 U	42 U
Aromatic Hydrocarbons												
C11 - C22	200	160	88 U	90 U	88 U	92 U	330	(C. 290×20)	87 U	90 U	90 U	88 U
VPH (MADEP Method)												
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons												
C5 - C8	400	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U
C9 - C12	1,000	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 Ū	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U
Aromatic Hydrocarbons												
C9 - C10	1,000	140	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	450	420	59	25 U	25 U	25 U
METALS (200.7, 206.2)												
Arsenic	50	ે/~~ 69 ∂ √~ <	1.9 J	16	5.0 U	5,0 U	377160 sec.	·	CS4 60 60	5.0 U	5,0 U	5,0 U
iron	9,100 (2)	8,500	500	3,700	100 U	100 U	18,000	18,000	7,900	100 U	100 U	100 U
Manganese	375	4,100	250	970	15 U	5.5 J	2,300	2 2 300 A.C.	4:300	31	230	85
FIELD PARAMETERS									1			
ORP (mv)		-23.0	192.9	29.4	172.5	206,2	-92.2	NA	18.6	191.3	208.0	230.6
DO (mg/L)		0,48	1.87	0.37	7.68	7.97	0.14	NA	0.26	0.37	4,56	2.25

Notes:

J = Estimated value detected below the PQL

U = Not detected at or above the Reporting Limit indicated.

NA = Compound not analyzed for.

ug/L = Micrograms per Liter

69W-Dup is a duplicate of 69W-94-13

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup goal exceedances.

ORP (mv) = Oxidation Reduction Potential in millivolts

DO (mg/L) = Dissolved Oxygen In milligrams per Liter

 Cleanup value as identified in the ROD using the MCP GW-1/GW-2 Groundwater Standards.
 Iron is no longer considered a COC but will be compared to the background concentration as shown above. Iron concentrations will be used as an indicator of remediation efficacy.

Source wells: 69W-94-13, 69W-94-14, ZWM-99-22X Sentry wells: ZWM-95-15X, ZWM-95-18X, ZWM-99-23X, ZWM-99-24X, ZWM-01-25X, ZWM-01-26X Background well: ZWM-95-17X

Groundwater Analytical Results - May 6-7, 2002 Sampling Event AOC 69W Devens, Massachusetts

(SHEET 1 of 1)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	69W-94-13	69W-DUP	69W-94-14	ZWM-95-15X	ZWM-95-17X	ZWM-95-18X	ZWM-99-22X	ZWM-99-23X	ZWM-99-24X	ZWM-01-25X	ZWM-01-26X
	CLEANUP	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L
	GOAL ()											
EPH (MADEP METHOD)	ug/L											
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons												
C9 - C18	1,000	180	170	100 U	430	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U
C19 - C36	5,000	180	160	100 U	280	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U
Aromatic Hydrocarbons												
C11 • C22	200	* 1,900	1,800	100 U	1,400	100 U	100 U	620	140	100 U	100 U	100 U
VPH (MADEP Method)												
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons							-					
C5 - C8	400	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U
C9 · C12	1,000	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U
Aromatic Hydrocarbons												
C9 - C10	1,000	150	140	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	88	25 U	25 Ų	25 U	25 U
METALS (200.7, 206.2)												
Arsenić	50	52 S. T.	5 4	4.5 J	36	5.0 U	5,0 U	100 86 20 m	15	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
Iron	9,100 (2)	11,000	11,000	1,100	11,000	100 U	100 U	13,000	2,000	100 U	100 U	100 U
Manganese	375	2,100	2,100	320	1,500	15 U -	4.4 J	1 2,000	98 /2550 × 24	15 U	61	8.6J
FIELD PARAMETERS												
ORP (mv)		7.0	NA	134.2	-23.4	538.2	221.0	31	107	607	148.7	625
DO (mg/L)		2.9	NA	28.7	2,9	6,74	27.4	0.58	3.78	8.32	68.0	10.06

25

Notes:

J = Estimated value detected below the laboratorys' Practical Quantitation Limit (PQL)

U = Analyte is undetected at the laboratorys' PQL

NA = Compound not analyzed for.

ug/L ≐ Micrograms per Liter

RL = Reporting limits

69W-Dup is a duplicate of 69W-94-13

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup goal exceedances.

ORP (my) = Oxidation Reduction Potential in millivolts

DO (mg/L) = Dissolved Oxygen in milligrams per Liter

(1) Cleanup value as identified in the ROD using the MCP GW-1/GW-2 Groundwater Standards.
(2) Iron is no longer considered a COC but will be compared to the background concentration as shown above. Iron concentrations will be used as an indicator or remediation efficacy.

Source wells: 69W-94-13, 69W-94-14, ZWM-99-22X

Sentry wells: ZWM-95-15X, ZWM-95-18X, ZWM-99-23X, ZWM-99-24X, ZWM-01-25X, ZWM-01-26X Background well: ZWM-95-17X

Groundwater Analytical Results - November 12 and 14, 2002 Sampling Event AOC 69W

Devens, Massachusetts

(SHEET 1 of 1)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	69W-94-13	69W-DUP	69W-94-14	ZWM-95-15X	ZWM-95-17X	ZWM-95-18X	ZWM-99-22X	ZWM-99-23X	ZWM-99-24X	ZWM-01-25X	ZWM-01-26X
	CLEANUP	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	ug/L
and a second	GOAL (1)											
EPH (MADEP METHOD)	ug/L											<u></u>
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons												
C9 - C18	1,000	33 U	31 U	31 U	160	33 U	34 U	34 U	32 U	30 U	31 U	35 U
C19 - C36	5,000	43 Ü	41 U	41 U	44 U	43 U	45 U	45 U	43 U	40 U	42 U	47 U
Aromatic Hydrocarbons		1										
C11 - C22	200	290	290	89 U	93 U	92 U	96 U	《 4月 270 (25)	90 U —	86 U	89 U	100 U
VPH (MADEP Method)												
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons	1											
C5 • C8	400	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 Ų	100 Ü	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 U	100 Ų
C9 · C12	1,000	25 U	25 U	<u>25 U</u>	<u>25 U</u>	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U
Aromatic Hydrocarbons												
C9 - C10	1,000	200	210	25 U	25 U	25 U	<u>25 U</u>	150	25 U	25 U	25 U	25 U
METALS (200.7, 206.2)					<u> </u>							
Arsenic	50	130	- 130 days	4.3 J	40	5.0 U	5.0 U	3 de 140	40	5.0 U	5.0 U	5.0 U
Iron	9,100 (2)	20,000	21,000	1,300	12,000	100 U	100 U	21,000	6,500	100 U	240	100 U
Manganese	375	2,400	2,400	350	2,2005,00	15 U	15 U	1,500	2 1,700 AV	15 U	<pre>0.000</pre>	15 U
FIELD PARAMETERS	1		-									
ORP (my)		0.3	NA	240.2	138,3	169.7	275.1	-56.7	17.8	226.4	195.5	289.9
DO (mg/L)		1.96	NA	4.11	1.41	7.77	7.20	0.98	2.73	4.79	6.85	6.03

25

Notes:

J = Estimated value detected below the PQL

U = Not detected at or above the Reporting Limit indicated.

NA = Compound not analyzed for.

ug/L = Micrograms per Liter

69W-Dup is a duplicate of 69W-94-13

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup goal exceedances.

ORP (mv) = Oxidation Reduction Potential in millivolts

DO (mg/L) = Dissolved Oxygen in milligrams per Liter

 Cleanup value as identified in the ROD using the MCP GW-1/GW-2 Groundwater Standards.
 Iron is no longer considered a COC but will be compared to the background concentration as shown above. Iron concentrations will be used as an indicator of remediation efficacy.

Source wells: 69W-94-13, 69W-94-14, ZWM-99-22X Sentry wells: ZWM-95-15X, ZWM-95-18X, ZWM-99-23X, ZWM-99-24X, ZWM-01-25X, ZWM-01-26X Background well: ZWM-95-17X

Groundwater Analytical Results - May 21-22, 2003 Sampling Event AOC 69W Devens, Massachusetts (SHEFT 1 of 1)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	69W	/ 94.13	09W	ANG	GBM	V-84-14	ZWM-	15-15X	ZWN	1-95-17X	ZWN	1-05-18X	ZWM·9	9-22X	ZWM-90)•23X]	ZWM-99	9-24X
	CLEANUP	10/1	RI.	ug/t.	RI.	ug/t.	RI.	ug/L	RL	ug/L	. IRI.	ug/L	RL	ug/L	RL	ug/L	RL	ug/L	RL.
and an order of the second	GOAL 🗥				<u>,</u>							· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							
	ug/L			web with a method of the												and allows to have a property \$15.5			
EPH (MADEP METHOD)			to many of the business							ر بر من من الم				·····					
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons								····								-	<u> </u>		
C9 - C18	1,000	NO	110	ND	110	ND	100	ND	110	ND	110	ND	110	210	100	ND	110	ND	100
C19 - C36	5,000	ND	110	ND	110	ND	100	ND	110	ND	110	NO	110	130	100	ND	110	ND	100
Aromatic Hydrocarbons		L												This was a second second				······	
C11 - C22	200	720	<u>: 110</u>	_550 ¦	110	ND	100	ND	110	ND	110	ND	110	2,100		200	_110	<u>ND</u>	100
VPH (MADEP Method)								·											
Allphatic Hydrocarbons							وبدار والمسينة بالمقابية ساليسين	1											
C5 - C8	400	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	I ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100
C9 - C12	1,000	ND	25	ND	25	ND	25	ND	25	ND	25	ND	25	ND	25	ND	25	ND	25
Aromatic Hydrocarbons										-									
C9 - C10	1,000	160	25	170	2.5	ND	25	ND	25	ND	25	ND	25	550	25	40	25	ND	25
METALS (200.7, 206.2)					-													· <u>·····</u> ······	
Arsenic	50	<u>85</u>	at (30 g	82	194 30 467	ND	5.0	NO	5.0	ND	5.0	ND	5.0	≈s230	100	67 m	30 00	ND	5.0
Iron	9,100 (2)	7,700	100	7,700	100	520	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	25,000	100	13,000	100	ND	100
Manganese	375	1,50	0	1,60): 15	5.1 J	15	25	15	ND	15	ND	15	2,300	sata 15 ja	ian5j800 ∩:	Sec. 15	ND	15
FIELD PARAMETERS																			
ORP (mv)			24.2	N	IA	1	13.8	29	2.3	2	52.7	2	17.7	-64	.1	14.	7	326	.8
DO (mg/L)		C	,30	۸	IA	6	3.05	5.	10		7.52		6.47	0.3	37	0.4	4	4.1	0

Notes:

J = Estimated value detected below the PQL

ND = Not detected at or above the Reporting Limit (RL) indicated.

NA = Compound not analyzed for.

ug/L = Micrograms per Liter

RL = Reporting limits

69W-Dup is a duplicate of 69W-94-13

Shaded areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup goal exceedances.

ORP (mv) = Oxidation Reduction Potontial In millivoits

DO (mg/L) » Dissolved Oxygen in milligrams per Liter

(1) Cleanup value as identified in the ROD using the MCP GW-1/GW-2 Groundwater Standards
 (2) Iron is no longer considered a COC but will be compared to the background concentration as shown above.

Iron concentrations will be used as an indicator or remediation efficacy.

Source wells: 69W-94-13, 69W-94-14, ZWM-99-22X Sentry wells: ZWM-95-15X, ZWM-95-18X, ZWM-99-23X, ZWM-99-24X Background well: ZWM-95-17X

Groundwater Analytical Results - November 13 and 14, 2003 Sampling Event AOC 69W Devens, Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 1)

PARAMETERS	Well No.	69W-94	1.13	6977-94-1	4	ZWM-95	5-15X	2.444.9	15·17X	ZWM	95-18X	Z.WM-99	22X	GSW-DI	વા	Z.W.M-99	0-23X	ZWM-	99-24X	ZW	M-01-25X	2 W	M-01.26X
hang al card a card hand a shake a san br>I	CLEANUP	Ug/I.	RL	ug/l,	I¥l	ug/L	RI.	ug/t.	RI.	ug/L	RI.	ug/L	RL	ug/L	RL	ug/L	RL	uq/L	RL	un/L			RI
i sananga a darapisan nan alla di aktif barlar da nan di santara a ng sang kadarta na menana san I	GOAL ^{DE}	a de la compositiva d	un anna an	****			tidirilencii.	tena vaner', to∜",	9	i rebi i Salisian da	ain an Nalaan ka sa shiila a dalaa	anere interesteres		ere energine seese	a atao an	นเมติจะสัตรณ์แห่งคุณ	0.4.7 <i>.814</i> 2.873.	10018375.200	1940 64 (921-292	anan chui	A CONTRACTOR AND A CONTRACTOR	นะเหติมีมา	in and seaming to
	ug/L			** **********************************					**************************************		han de la finita de 19 ministrations												
EPH (MADEP METHOD)																- "Alfred de l'ar anna de a eg	•••••						nter denomina di se della stato del se
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons		6															******			[19.249 (marror and all all another a sec
C9 · C18	1.000	ND	100	ND	110	ND	110	ND	110	ND	100	ND	110	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100
<u>C19 - C36</u>	5,000	<u>ND</u>	100	ND	110	ND	110	NO	110	ND	100	ND	110	ND	100	NO	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100
Aromatic Hydrocarbons		1			rba						an an an di patan na		THE REAL	hain na an	******								
	200	1 1 1 1	100	I NU	110	ND	110	ND	110	LND	100	370	3310	430	100	140	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100
VPH (MADEP Mothod)	man a constant and the second second					******					në beljën mër degë para në se					سيبيس بالمساطة المتقاطة 737						I.	
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons	100		harranda diri d												-			***					ar bist make i maannage oo
C5 - C8	400	NO	100	ND	100	<u>ND</u>	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100
C9 - C12	1,000	NU	20	ND	25	ND	25	ND	25	ND	25	ND	25	ND	25	ND	25	NO	26	ND	25	ND	26
Aromatic Hydrocardons	1.000	1000		3.1/5								·		and an oral data in the second second of	~~~~								
METALE (200 4 204 2)	1,000	1320	25		<u>20</u>	NU.	20	<u>UM</u>	25		25	83	26	72				ND	25	ND	25	ND	25
Arenala	80	1.450		60	6 Ó		10		6.0	NICS		AND ST	100		100		Sec.			<u></u>			
 A A D P C LUCE 					0.0		10	INU	0.0		0.0	<u>i i evo</u>	109.1	្រុះរូរូប	<u>. 97 - 1</u>	50	<u></u>	<u>ND</u>	5.0	<u>4.1 J</u>	5.0	ND	5.0
ffon	9,100	12,000	100	1,400 1	00	4,300	100	<u></u>	100	<u>ND</u>	100	10,000	100	14,000	100	8,000	100	ND	100	170	100	ND	100
Manganese	375	1,000	-10	340 1	<u>9</u>	100	15	<u>ND</u>	15	4,4 J	15	2,400	15	2,300	15	1,500	. 15	14 J	15	280	15	58	15
FIELD PARAMETERS		e e dana - in Analan maharaka in sa						·															
ORP (my)		40.		177.7		29.0	}{		8.	31	3.8	-25.8	_ ,,.	NA_		-22.1	2	279	5.7		33.9	2	52.3
DO (mg/L)	l	0.24		2.42		0.47	<u> </u>	5,6	<u>i/</u>	5.	38	0.62		<u>NA</u>		1.50		2.0	93]		4.82		47.6

Notes:

J = Retimated value detected below the PQL

ND = Not detected at or above the Reporting Limit (RL) Indicated.

NA * Compound not analyzed for

ug/L = Micrograms per Liter

RL # Reporting limits

69W-Dop is a duplicate of [2WM-99-22X]

Shadad areas with bold numbers indicate cleanup goal exceedances.

ORP (mv) # Oxidation Reduction Potential in milhvolts

DO (mg/L) = Dissolved Oxygen in milligrams per Liter

 Cleanup value as identified in the ROD using the MCP GW-1/GW-2 Groundwater Standards
 tron is no longer considered a COC but will be compared to the background concentration as shown above. Iron concentrations will be used as an indicator of remediation efficacy.

Source wells: 69W-94-13, 69W-94-14, ZWM-99-22X

Sentry wells: ZWM-95-15X, ZWM-95-16X, ZWM-99-23X, ZWM-99-24X, ZWM-01-26X, ZWM-01-26X Background well: ZWM-95-17X

Groundwater Analytical Results + May 15 + 16, 2000 Sampling Event AOC 69W Devens, Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 1)

	Well No.	697	v-94-13	69W-9	4-13 Dup	69Y	1-94-14	ZW	4.95-15X	ZWI	M-95-17X	ΖW	M-95-18X	Zwi	VI-96-19X	ZWM-99)•22X	ZWM DUP	-001	Ż₩M•	99-23X	ZWM	-99-24X
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	ug/L	RL	ug/L	RL	ug/i	RL	ug/	RL RL	ug/L	. RL	ug/	/L RL	uĝ.	/L RL	ug/L	RL	սց/լ	RL	ug/L	Ř.	ug/	. RL
مىنىكى يەكىرىكى بىلىنىڭ ئەكىنى بىلىغ دەرىۋە مىرىم مىلىدىكى بىرى بىلىدىكى بىرىم. يېرىنىڭ يېرىكى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى	GOAL (1)																						
	Ug/L			[والمالية والمراجع) 							
EPH (MADEP METHOD)										,	······································	<u></u>		<u> </u>		L							
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons) 									
C9 - C18	1,000	ND	110	110	110	ND	110		110	ND	100	ND	120	<u>ND</u>	100	<u> 250 </u>	110	NA NA		<u>D</u>	100	ND .	110
C19 · C36	5,000	ND	110	ND .	110	ND	110	ND	110	ND	100	<u>ND</u>	120	NO.	100	1180	110	NA		ND	100	ND	110
Aromatic Hydrocarbons	Ì	i									~~ <u>~~</u> ~~					4							
C11 · C22	200	890	110	830	110	ND	110	<u>_ND</u> _	110	ND	100	ND	120	ND	100	2500	110	NA		170	100	ND	110
VPH (MADEP Method)		ĺ				مر المراجع					مىرىنى ھەر _م ىدىسەر												
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons		[**								
C5 · C8	400	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	<u>ND</u>	100	NA		ŊЙ	100	ND	190
C9 - C12	1.000	ND	25	ND	25	ND	25	<u>DN</u>	25	NO	25	ND	25	ND.	25		25	NA		ND	25	ND	25
Aromatic Hydrocarbons		1 														<u></u>	<u> </u>						
C9 · C10	1,000	120	25	130	25	NO	25	<u>NU</u>	25	ND	25	ND	25	IND	25	620	25	NA		46	25	<u>GИ</u>	25
SVOC (8270C)	- the second second	[ليريده		المسيسية				
Bis(2-ethylnexyl) phthalate	6		NA		NA.		N.A.	فيعتاها واجماعا	NA	NO	5.6		NA		NA		5.3	<u>QN</u>	5.8	<u>N</u>	<u>A</u>	ا	NA
(METALS (200.7, 206.2)											······												
Arsenic	50	54	<u> </u>	514 4	3-1 - 12: 0.	8.3	5.0	<u>ND</u>	5.0	ND	5.0		5.0	9.6	5.0	150 to Phy	×1, 50	NA	فسیر حس	23	5.0	2.3 J	5.0
Iron	9,100	9800	100,	9100	<u>108,</u>	1300	100	ND.	100	220	100	4918	100	2900) 100	21000 %	100	NA		8000	100	340	100
Manganese	375	2300	15	2200	15:	300	15	28	15	IND	15	9.2J	15	200	15	2000	15	<u>NA</u>		4200	15	27	15 (
FIELD PARAMETERS					المحصور وسيسين		إحد حيسيهم																
ORP (my)			2.1		NA.	1	<u>17.5</u>		258.0		44,2		255.6	 	64.2	-45	9	NA NA		67	4	2	17.2
DO (mg/L)	Į	<u> </u>).03	ا ــــــ	NA	0	64		1.20		4 / 9		3 20		0.39	-0.0	3	NA		0	39	1	30

25

Notes:

Shaded areas with bold humbers indicate cleanup level exceedance in

U = Estimated value detected below the PQL

B = Analyte is within 5 times of the amount detected in the equipment blank sample

ND = Not detected at or above the Reporting Limit (RL) indicated.

NA * Compound not analyzed for.

ug/L + Micrograms per Liter

RL = Reporting limits

ZWM-DUP-001 is a duplicate of ZWM-99-22X for Bis(2-ethy/hexyl) phthalate only

ORP (mv) = Oxidation Reduction Potential in millivolts

DO (mg/L) = Dissolved Oxygen in millgrams per Liter

(1) Cleanup values as identified in the ROD using the MCP GW-1/GW-2 Ground Water Standards

Source wells: 69W-94-13, 69W-94-16, ZWM-99-22X, ZWM-96-19X Sentry wells: ZWM-95-15X, ZWM-95-18X, ZWM-99-23X, ZWM-99-24X Background well: ZWM-95-17X

Groundwater Analytical Results + November 3 - 6, 2000 Sampling Event AOC 69W Devens, Massachusetts (SHEET 1 of 1)

	Well No.	69W-	94+13	69W	.94.14	ZWM-9	5-15X j	ZWM	1-95-17X	ZWN	4-95-18X	ZWM	99-22X	ZWM-99	22XDUP	ŻWM	99-23X	ZWM.	99.24X
PARAMETERS	CLEANUP	ug/L	RL	սց/Լ	RL	jug/L	RL	_ug/L	RL	ug/L	RL	սց/կ	RL	սց/Լ	RL	սցյլ	RL	ug/L	RL
	GOALS (1)			1														······································	
[ug/L					[1									
EPH (MADEP METHOD))				ļ			ي محدول من الجوجات				_		
Aliphatic Hydrocarbons										<u> </u>				<u> </u>		<u> </u>			
C9 · C18	1,000	ND	100	ND	110	ND	100	ND	120	ND_	110	ND	120	ND	110	IND	100	<u>D</u>	100
C19 - C36	5,000	ND	100	ND	110	ND	100	NO	120		110	150	120	1 150	110	ND	100	ND	100
Aromatic Hydrocarbons			والزاب والمتناط فاستحاص مستعربها		سندم وروي ورو					 						L	فيتقدم مصوانيا حت		
C11 · C22	200	1,400	<u>100</u>	<u>ND</u>	110	I ND	100		120	ND	110	1,400	120	1,400	<u></u> 8140	520	100	ND	100
VPH (MADEP Method)) 		/ 													
Alignatic Hydrocarbons				ļ								L				ļ		and the second secon	
C5 - C8	400	ND	100	<u>ND</u>	100	IND	100	ND	100	I ND	100	ND	100	ND	100	<u>I ND</u>	100	<u>DN</u>	100
C9 · C12	1,000	ND	25	I ND	25		25	ND	25		25	ND	25	<u>ND</u>	25	I ND	25	ND	<u> </u>
Aromatic Hydrocarbons) 								<u> </u>									
C9 · C10	1,000	270	25	ND	25	<u>i nd</u>	25	ND	25	<u>LND</u>	25	150	25	140	25	62	25	ND	25
METALS (200.7, 206.2)		ļ		L		L <u></u>						17 10 10 10 40 10 40 10				L	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••		
Arsenic	50	110	<u></u>	12	5.0	7.9	5.0	ND	5,0	ND	5.0	denne:	直過到0位	(120):告	3-4-: 1 0 -**	3. 70 S.	5:0 2	<u>DN</u>	5.0
Iron	9,100	9,400	100	2,000	100	5,100	100	ND	100	ND	100	14,000	100	1.15,000	2.65F100	111000	100	ND	100
Manganese	375	1,700	15	340	15	1,300	15	<u>ND</u>	15	<u>DN</u>	15	1,800	15	1,800	15	3,800	15	12 J	16
FIELD PARAMETERS				 						L									
ORP (my)		-29).4	9	1.0	38.	2	20	00.8	2	36.8	-3	0,1	N	IA .	27	2.0	19	4.9
DO (mg/L)		0.1	79	2	.59	1.7	<u> </u>	6	50		7,46	L <u>0</u> .	52	<u> </u>	VA.	0,	84	1	70

Notes:

J # Estimated value detected below the PQL

ND = Not detected at or above the Reporting Limit (RL) indicated.

NA # Not Applicable

ug/L = Micrograms per Liter

RL = Reporting limits

ORP (my) = Oxidation Reduction Potential in millivolts

DO (mg/L) = Dissolved Oxygen in milligrams per Liter

(1) Cleanup value as identified in the ROD using the MCP GW-HGW-2 Groundwater Standards

Source wells: 69W-94-13, 69W-94-14, ZWM-99-22X Sentry wells: ZWM-95-15X, ZWM-95-18X, ZWM-99-23X, ZWM-99-24X Background well: ZWM-95-17X

TABLE 5 CHEMICAL-, LOCATION-, AND ACTION-SPECIFIC ARARS, CRITERIA, ADVISORIES, AND GUIDANCE AOC 69W

RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

MEDIA	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
<u>GROUNDWATER</u> Federal	Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) - Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs) and Maximum Contaminant Level Goals (MCLGs; 40 CFR 141.11-141.16 and 141.50-141.52	Relevant and Appropriate	MCLs are enforceable standards (based in part on the availability and cost of treatment) that specify the maximum permissible concentrations of contaminants in public drinking water supplies. MCLGs are non-enforceable health based goals that specify the maximum concentration at which no known or anticipated adverse effects on human will occur	Long-term groundwater monitoring will ensure that site contaminants do not migrate off- site. Implementation of Institutional Controls prohibiting installation of drinking water wells at the site will prevent exposure. In addition, arsenic concentrations are expected to decrease following the soil removal which eliminated the majority of the source of the aquifers reducing conditions.
State	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards; 310 CMR 6.00	Relevant and Appropriate	These standards designate and assign uses for which groundwaters of the Commonwealth shall be maintained and protected, and set forth water quality criteria necessary to maintain the designated uses. Groundwater at AOC 69W is classified as Class I, fresh groundwaters designated as a source of potable water supply.	Long-term groundwater monitoring will ensure that site contaminants do not migrate off- site. Implementation of Institutional Controls prohibiting installation of drinking water wells at the site will prevent exposure. In addition, arsenic concentrations are expected to decrease following the soil removal which eliminated the majority of the source of the

TABLE 5 CHEMICAL-, LOCATION-, AND ACTION-SPECIFIC ARARS, CRITERIA, ADVISORIES, AND GUIDANCE AOC 69W

RECORD OF DECISION DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

MEDIA	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
	Massachusetts Drinking Water Regulations; 310 CMR 22.00	Relevant Appropriate	These regulations list Massachusetts MCLs which apply to drinking water distributed through a public water system.	Long-term groundwater monitoring will ensure that site contaminants do not migrate off-site. Implementation of Institutional Controls prohibiting installation of drinking water wells at site will prevent exposure. In addition, arsenic concentrations are expected to decrease following the soil removal which eliminated the
	Massachusetts Hazardous Waste Management Regulations; 130 CMR 30.300	Applicable	These regulations contain requirements for generators including testing of wastes to determine if they are hazardous wastes and accumulation of hazardous waste prior to disposal.	Any hazardous waste (soils or groundwater) generated from long-term monitoring or excavation at AOC 69W will be managed in accordance with these regulations. Institutional Controls will limit contact to in-situ

APPENDIX H

<u> 11 - C C</u>

APPENDIX H

AOCS 9, 11, 40, SAS 6, 12, 13, 41 (SOLIĐ WASTE)





.











TABLE B.1 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE LOCATION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 4C

RECORD OF DECISION SAs 6, 12, AND 13 AND AOCS 9, 11, 40 AND 41 DEVENS, MA

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Federal	Floodplains	Floodplain Management Executive Order 11988 [40 CFR Part 6, Appendix A]	Applicable AOC 9 AOC 11 AOC 40	Requires federal agencies to evaluate the potential adverse effects associated with direct and indirect development of a floodplain. Alternatives that involve modifiation/construction within a floodplain may not be selected unless a determination is made that no practicable alternative exists. If no practicable alternative exists, potential harm must be minimized and action taken to restore and preserve the natural and beneficial values of the floodplain.	Drum removal and hot-spot sediment removal will be designed to minimize alteration/destruction of floodplain area. If this alternative is chosen, wetlands adversely affected by remedial action will be restored to the extent necessary.
	Wetlands	Protection of Wetlands Executive Order 11990 [40 CFR Part 6, Appendix A]	Applicable AOC 9 AOC 11 AOC 40	Under this Order, federal agencies are required to minimize the destruction, loss, or degradation of wetlands, and preserve and enhance natural and beneficial values of wetlands. If remediation is required within wetfand areas, and no practical alternative exists, potential harm must be minimized and action taken to restore natural and beneficial values.	Drum removal and hot-spot sediment removal will be designed to minimize alteration/destruction of floodplain area. If this alternative is chosen, wetlands adversely affected by remedial action will be restored to the extent necessary.
	Wetlands, Aquatic Ecosystem	Clean Water Act, Dredge or Fill Requirements Section 404 [40 CFR Part 230]	Relevant and Appropriate AOC 9 AOC 11 AOC 40	Section 404 of the Clean Water Act regulates the discharge of dredged or fill materials to U.S. waters, including wetlands. Filling wetlands would be considered a discharge of fill materials. Guidelines for Specification of Disposal Sites for Dredged or Fill material at 40 CFR Part 230, promulgated under Clean Water Act Section 404(b)(1), maintain that no discharge of dredged or fill material will be permitted if there is a practical alternative that would have less effect on the aquatic ecosystem. If adverse impacts are unavoidable, action must be taken to restore, or create alternative wetlands.	The removal of drums/sediments will be designed to minimize placement or fill in wetland areas. If this alternative is chosen, the affected areas will be restored to the extent necessary.

TABLE B.1 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE LOCATION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 4C

RECORD OF DECISION SAs 6, 12, AND 13 AND AOCS 9, 11, 40 AND 41 DEVENS, MA

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	Requirement Synopsis	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Federal	Surface Waters, Endangered Species, Migratory Species	Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act [16 USC 661 <u>et</u> . <u>seq</u> .]	Relevant and Appropriate AOC 9 AOC 11 AOC 40 SA 13	Actions that affect species/habitat require consultation with U.S. Department of Interior, U.S. Fish and Wildfire Service, National Marine Fisheries Service, and/or state agencies, as appropriate, to ensure that proposed actions do not jeopardize the continued existence of the species or adversely modify or destroy critical habitat. The effects of water-related projects on fish and wildlife resources must be considered. Action must be taken to prevent, mitigate, or compensate for project-related damages or losses to fish and wildlife resources. Consultation with the responsible agency is also strongly recommended for on-site actions. Under 40 CFR Part 300.38, these requirements apply to all response activities under the National Contingency Plan.	To the extent necessary, action will be taken to develop measures to prevent, mitigate, or compensate for project related impacts to habitat and wildlife. The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, acting as a review agency for the USEPA, will be kept informed of proposed remedial actions.
	Endangered Species	Endangered Species Act [50 CFR Parts 17.11-17.12]	Applicable AOC 9 AOC 11 AOC 40 SA 13 Consolidation Facility	This act requires action to avoid jeopardizing the continued existence of listed endangered or threaten species or modification of their habitat.	The protection of endangered species and their habitats will be considered during excavation activities and cover installation.
	Atlantic Flyway, Wetlands, Surface Waters	Migratory Bird Treaty Act [16 USC 703 <u>et</u> <u>seq</u> .]	Relevant and Appropriate AOC 11	The Migratory Bird Treaty Act protects migratory birds, their nests, and eggs. A depredation permit is required to take, possess, or transport migratory birds or disturb their nests, eggs, or young.	Remedial actions will be performed to protect migratory birds, their nests, and eggs.

TABLE B.1 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE LOCATION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 4C

RECORD OF DECISION SAs 6, 12, AND 13 AND AOCS 9, 11, 40 AND 41 DEVENS, MA

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC	Requirement	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
State	Floodplains, Wetlands, Surface Waters	Massachusetts Wetland Protection Act and regulations [MGL c. 131 s. 40; 310 CMR 10.00]	Applicable AOC 9 AOC 11 AOC 40 SA 13	These regulations include standards on dredging, filling, altering, or polluting inland wetlands and protected areas (defined as areas within the 100-year floodplain). A Notice of Intent (NOI) must be filed with the municipal conservation commission and a Final Order of Conditions obtained before proceeding with the activity. A Determination of Applicability or NO1 must be filed for activities such as excavation within a 100 foot buffer zone. The regulations specifically prohibit loss of over 5,000 square feet of bordering vegetated wetland. Loss may be permitted with replication of any lost area within two growing seasons.	All work to be performed within wetlands and the 100 foot buffer zone will be in accordance with the substantive requirements of these regulations.
	Endangered Species	Massachusetts Endangered Species Regulations [321 CMR 8.00]	Applicable AOC 9 AOC 11 AOC 40 SA 13 Consolidation Facility	Actions must be conducted in a manner that minimizes the impact to Massachusetts-listed rare, threatened, or endangered species, and species listed by the Massachusetts Natural Heritage Program.	The protection of state listed endangered species (in particular the Grasshopper Sparrow at the Consolidation Facility) will be considered during the design and implementation of this alternative.

Notes:

- AWQC = Ambient Water Quality Criteria
- CFR = Code of Federal Regulations
- CMR = Code of Massachusetts Rules
- CWA = Clean Water Act
- DOI = Department of the Interior
- FWS = Fish and Wildlife Services
- MEPA = Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act
- MGL = Massachusetts General Laws
- NMFS = National Marine Fisheries Service
- USC = United States Code

Note: A Record Notice of Landfill Operation for AOC 11 is not necessary with Alternative 4c.

TABLE B.2 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE CHEMICAL-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 4C

RECORD OF DECISION SAs 6, 12, AND 13 AND AOCS 9, 11, 40 AND 41 DEVENS, MA

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Federal	Surface water	Clean Water Act, Ambient Water Quality Criteria [40 CFR 131; Quality Criteria for Water 1986]	Relevant and Appropriate AOC 11 AOC 40	Federal Ambient Water Quality Criteria (AWQC) include (1) health-based criteria development for 95 carcinogenic and noncarcinogenic compounds and (2) acute and chronic toxicity values for the protection of aquatic life. AWQC for the protection of human health provide protective concentratons for exposure from ingesting contaminated water and contaminated aquatic organisms, and from ingesting contaminated aquatic organisms alone. Remedial actions involving contaminated surface water or discharge of contaminants to surface water must consider the uses of the water and the circumstances of the release or threatened release.	Remedial actions will be performed in a manner to prevent AWQC exceedances in surface water. Activities at AOC 11 will be performed to prevent AWQC exceedances in the Nashua River. Removal of sediment at AOC 40 will be performed in a manner to prevent AWQC exceedances in Cold Spring Brook Pond. Supernatant from dredged spoil will be monitored to prevent AWQC exceedances in Cold Spring Brook Pond.
	Groundwater	Safe Drinking Water Act, National Primary Drinking Water Regulations, MCLs and MCLGs (40 CFR Parts 141.60 - 141.63 and 141.50 - 141.52]	Relevant and Appropriate AOC 40	The National Primary Drinking Water Regulations establish Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs) and Maximum Contaminant Level Goals (MCLGs) for several common organic and inorganic contaminants. MCLs specify the maximum permissible concentrations if contaminants in public drinking water supplies. MCLs are federally enforceable standards based in part on the availability and cost of treatment techniques. MCLGs specify the maximum concentration at which no known or anticipated adverse effect on humans will occur. MCGLs are non- enforceable health based goals set equal to or lower than MCLs.	At AOC 40 the MCL for bis(2- ethylhexyl)phthalate will be met under average scenario, and the MCL for arsenic will be met under average and maximum scenario. MCLs are not exceeded at Patton Well.

TABLE B.2 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE CHEMICAL-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 4C

RECORD OF DECISION SAs 6, 12, AND 13 AND AOCS 9, 11, 40 AND 41 DEVENS, MA

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
State	Surface water	Massachusetts Surface Water Quality Standards [314 CMR 4.00]	Relevant and Appropriate AOC 11 AOC 40	Massachusetts Surface Water Quality Standards designate the most sensitive uses for which surface waters of the Commonwealth are to be enhanced, maintained, and protected, and designate minimum water quality criteria for sustaining the designated uses. Surface waters at Fort Devens are classified as Class B. Surface waters assigned to this class are designated as habitat for fish, other aquatic life and wildlife, and for primary and secondary contact recreation. These criteria supersede federal AWQC only when they are more stringent (more protective) than the AWQC.	At AOC 11 activities will be performed in a manner to prevent exceedances of surface water quality in the Nashua River. At AOC 40 sediment removal will be performed in a manner to prevent exceedances of Surface Water Quality Standards in Cold Spring Brook Pond. Supernatant from dredged spoil dewatering will be monitored to prevent exceedances in the pond. To the extent necessary, Surface Water Quality Standards will be used to develop discharge limitations.
	Groundwater	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards [314 CMR 6.00]	Relevant and Appropriate AOC 40	These standards designate and assign uses for which groundwaters of the Commonwealth shall be maintained and protected, and set forth water quality criteria necessary to maintain the designated uses. Groundwater at Fort Devens is classified as Class I, fresh groundwaters designated as a source of potable water supply.	At AOC 40 the MCL for bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate will be met under average scenario, and the MCL for arsenic will be met under average and maximum scenario. MCLs are not exceeded at Patton Well.
	Groundwater	Massachusetts Drinking Water Regulations [310 CMR 22.00]	Relevant and Appropriate AOC 40	These regulations list Massachusetts MCLs which apply to drinking water distributed through a public water system.	At AOC 40 the MCL for bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate will be met under average scenario, and the MCL for arsenic will be met under average and maximum scenario. MCLs are not exceeded at Patton Well.

Notes:

- Ambient Water Quality Criteria AWQC =
- CERCLA = Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act
- CFR = Code of Federal Regulations
- Code of Massachusetts Rules CMR ≃
- ÇWA = Clean Water Act
- MÇL = Maximum Contaminant Rules
- MCLG = Maximum Contaminant Level Goal
- Massachusetts Maximum Contaminant Level MMCL =
- NPDWR = National Primary Drinking Water Regulations = Safe Drinking Water Act
- SDWA
- SMCL = Secondary Maximum Contaminant Level

Note: A Record Notice of Landfill Operation for AOC 11 is not necessary with Alternative 4c.

TABLE B.3 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE ACTION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 4C

RECORD OF DECISION SAs 6, 12, AND 13 AND AOCS 9, 11, 40 AND 41 DEVENS, MA

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Federal	Construction over/in navigable waters	Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 [33 USC 401 <u>et seq</u> .]	Relevant and Appropriate AOC 40 AOC 11	Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 requires an authorization from the Secretary of the Army, acting through the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), for the construction of any structure in or over any "navigable water of the U.S."; the excavation from or deposition of material in such waters, or any obstruction of alteration in such waters.	Excavating, filling, and disposal activities will be conducted to meet the substantive criteria and standards of these regulations.
	Control of surface water runoff, Direct discharge to surface water	Clean Water Act NPDES Permit Program [40 CFR 122, 125]	Relevant and Appropriate AOC 9 AOC 11 AOC 40 SA 13 Consolidation Facility	The National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit program specifies the permissible concentration or level of contaminants in the discharge from any point source, including surface runoff, to waters of the United States.	Construction activities will be controlled to meet USEPA discharge requirements. On-site discharge will meet the substantive requirements of these regulations.
	Land Disposal of Hazardous Wastes	Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), Land Disposal Restrictions (LDRs); (40 CFR Part 268)	Applicable AOC 9 AOC 11 AOC 40 SA 13	Land disposal of RCRA hazardous wastes without specified treatment is restricted. Remedial actions must be evaluated to determined if they constitute "placement" and if LDRs are applicable. The LDRs requie that wastes must be treated either by a treatment technology or to a specific concentration prior to disposal in a RCRA Subtitle C permitted facility.	If it is determined that materials excavated from AOCs 9, 11, 40, or SA 13 are hazardous materials subject to LDRs, the materials will be handled and disposed of in compliance with these regulations.
	Disposal of PCB- contaminated wastes	Toxic Substance Control act Regulations [40 CFR Part 761]	Applicable AOC 9 AOC 11 AOC 40 SA 13	Establish prohibitions of and requirements for the manufacturing, processing, distribution in commerce, use, disposal, storage and marking of PCB items. Sets forth the "PCB Spill Cleanup Policy."	If it is determined that materials excavated from AOCs 9, 11, 40 or SA 13 are contaminated with PCBs at concentrations of 50 ppm or greater, the materials will be handled and disposed of in compliance with these regulations.
State	Solid Waste Landfill Siting	Massachusetts Solid Waste Facilities Site Regulations [310 CMR 16.00]	Applicable Consolidation Facility	These regulations outline the requirements for selecting the site of a new solid waste landfill for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.	The consolidation facility will be sited in accordance with these regulations.

TABLE B.3 SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL AND STATE LOCATION-SPECIFIC ARARS FOR ALTERNATIVE 4C

RECORD OF DECISION SAs 6, 12, AND 13 AND AOCS 9, 11, 40 AND 41 DEVENS, MA

REGULATORY AUTHORITY	LOCATION CHARACTERISTIC	REQUIREMENT	Status	REQUIREMENT SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
State	Solid Waste Landfill Construction, Operation, Closure, and Post-Closure Care	Massachusetts Solid Waste Management Regulations [310 CMR 19.000]	Relevant and Appropriate AOC 9, AOC 11, SA 12, SA 13 Consolidation Facility	These regulations outline the requirements for construction, operation, closure, and post closure at solid waste management facilities in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.	Final closure and post-closure plans will be prepared and submitted to satisfy the requirements of 310 CMR 19.021 for AOCs 9, 11, and 40, and SAs 12 and 13. The consolidation landfill will be constructed, operated, and closed in conformance with the regulations at 310 CMR 19.000. A Record Notice of Landfill Operation will be filed for AOC 11 in accordance with 310 CMR 19.141.
	Activities that potentially affect surface water quality	Massachusetts Water Quality Certification and Certification for Dredging [314 CMR 9.00]	Relevant and Appropriate AOC 40	For activities that require a MADEP Wetlands Order of Conditions to dredge or fill navigable waters or wetlands, a Chapter 91 Waterways License, a USACE permit or any major permit issued by USEPA (e.g., Clean Water Act NPDES permit), a Massachusetts Division of Water Pollution Control Water Quality Certification is required pursuant to 314 CMR 9.00.	Excavation, filling, and disposal activities will meet the substantive criteria and standards of these regulations. Remedial activities will be designed to attain and maintain Massachusetts Water Quality Standards in affected waters.
	Activities that affect ambient air quality	Massachusetts Air Pollution Control Regulations [310 CMR 7.00]	Applicable AOC 9 AOC 11 AOC 40 SA 13 Consolidation Facility	These regulations pertain to the prevention of emissions in excess of Massachusetts ambient air quality standards.	Remedial activities will be conducted to meet the standards for Visible Emissions (310 CMR 7.06); Dust, Odor, Construction and Demolition (310 CMR 7.09); Noise (310 CMR 7.10); and Volatile Organic Compounds (310 CMR 7.18).

Notes:

CFR	=	Code of Federal Regulations
CMR	=	Code of Massachusetts Rules
CWA	=	Clean Water Act
MADEP	=	Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection
MGL	=	Massachusetts General Laws
NPEDES	=	National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
RCLA	=	Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act
USACE	=	U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
USC	=	United States Code

Note: A Record Notice of Landfill Operation for AOC 11 is not necessary with Alternative 4c.

APPENDIX I

AOC 50





milia (us



BERETAL CONTRACT	- acionomi					and i		1	La	poratory I	aramete	CS.	n ar sy E a starte	178 A.	- 5- 1 (S.).		а. 1911 г. – 1911			1	Field P	arameter	<u></u> s	
		<u> </u>	F			1	r		T	[Dissoluted	Discolund	Dissoluted	1	1			T		Γ	j	· · · · · ·
COMPANY OF THE REAL		bor	Ton		1 1 1 100	LIDGE	10	TOC	A 11-012-24	Alltrata	Sulfare	Sulfida	Aroonia	Icon (Ea24)	Managamata	Ethone	Tehana	Mathana	_11	0	0.00			-
-the attaches.	Constitution of the	PCE	I ICE	<u>19-1,2-1/15</u>	1-1,2-1/2		<u>, vc</u>	1.00	Aikaminy		Junate	Danine	Auseine	1011 (1.62+)	Waarganese	Curane	[Curetre	Memane	<u> </u>	1.00	URP	SPC .	Turbully	Temp
welling welling	Date			(ป	<u>;/L)</u>				(mg	/L)	<u></u>		(ug/L)	(mg/L)	(ug/L)	(រាវ	3/L)	(ug/L)	(SU)	(mg/L)	(mV)	(m\$)	(NTUs)	°C
<u> </u>								<u> </u>		r				·····		·····	·····	<u>,</u>		1			,	
G6M-02-01X	2/28/2002	11	2U	2U	20	10	20												6.91	4.7	66.6	0.624	14	13.53
G6M-02-01X	9/23/2004	24B	2U	<u>2U</u>	2U	10	2U												6.64	2.54	145	0.784	6.11	19.41
G6M-02-03X	2/26/2002	210	2U	20	2U	10	2U						-						11.61	2,21	11	1,154	18.1	16.08
G6M-02-03X	9/23/2004	48	2U	<u>2U</u>	20	10	<u>2U</u>								·				4.95	1.17	632,1	1.374	3.8	18.88
G6M-02-04X	2/26/2002	470	0.88J	1.3J	2U	IU	2U												6.47	3.4	189.5	0.26	24	14.39
G6M-02-04X	9/23/2004	170B	<u>2U</u>	2.9	2U	10	<u>2U</u>						<u></u>	10	150		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		6.29	3.03	175.5	0.453	8,48	17.99
G6M-02-05X	2/28/2002	130	2U	1.91	2U	10	20												6,15	6.61	181.1	0.597	11	13.1
G6M-02-05X	1/30/2003	170	2U	2.3	20	10	20		<u> </u>							L							L	
G6M-02-06X	3/1/2002	2U	20	20	20	10	20												7.16	8.91	134.8	0,135	32	11.16
G6M-02-06X	9/24/2004	5.5B	20	20	<u>2U</u>	10	20				• •						 		7.33	9.48	152.8	0.09	0.02	14.01
G6M-02-07X	2/26/2002	24	20	20	20	10	20												7.34	-0.68	110.3	0.259	46	12.86
G6M-02-07X	9/23/2004	26B	20	20	20	10	20												7,26	1.72	332.8	0.423	25	13.93
G6M-02-08X	5/17/2002	2300	35	250	20	10	5.8		}														i	
G6M-02-08X	1/31/2003	3600	46	480	2.3		2.2							0.07	770								1	
G5M-02-08X	3/31/2005	1300	381	250	1021	300	500	15	250	1.1	0.2	20	20	0.55	20000	49	790	1.4	7.08	9.1	•50 •21	0.563	24.6	11,44
G6M-02-08X	7/5/2005	1000	130	1800	120	320	120	430	230	0.050	3,7	-0.3	<u>ç</u> 113	110	29000	100	220		4.23	1.00	19.1	1,616	4,72	15.95
G6M-02-11X	8/1/2002	450	2.8	20	20		20						511						6.01	0.46	154	0.984	8.13	10.0
G6M-02-11X	8/28/2002	5400	20	20	20	10	20	50	- 44 - 61	0.1011	17	2011	50	1.011	1700				6.03	0.51	173 E1	0.905	6.49	15
G6M-02-11X	10/29/2002	970	22	3	20	10	20	50	65	0.100	17	2.00	50	1.00	1700				6.02	0.49	179	0.92	5,04	12.1
G6M-02-11X	2/3/2003	520	22	20	200		20	50	120		1614	2011	511	1.00		5 011	14	160	6 2 1	0.71	166	0.971	14.7	7.8
G6M-02-11X	0/26/2003	530	24	35	20	111	20	10	140		TOW	2.00	511	1.00	1700	5.00	5 011	1200	4.6	0.00	146	0.013	20	12.4
GOM-02-TIX	9/20/2003	200	15	37	20	111	20	511	150		121	2 011	511	1.011	1900	5.00	0.00	2300	6.20	0	104	0.721	1.2	10.7
G0M-02-11A	2/10/2004	140	1.7	47	20	111	20	1.0	130		NA 9	2100	50	111	2200	5,00	49	1/000	6 20	001	104	0.727	7.5	10.7
GOM-02-11X	5/10/2004 6/4/2004	440	22	50 .	20	111	20	2.0 2.41	110		12M	191	50	10	1900	50	10	2300	6.72	12 13	54.5	0.047	21.2	14.12
06M-02-11X	0/91/2004	540	50	140	211	111	20	12	100	0.511	1210	151	511	10	2400	50	sti	13000	6 10	0.96	412.7	0.007	1 25	16.05
G6M-02-11X	3/24/2004 12/15/2004	760	17	120	217		20	511	95	1	15	211	511	10	2100	50	21	9700	6 35	1 16	200.1	0.570	21.2	9 61
064.02.112	3/28/2005	1100	41	45	4011	anti	4011	3.61	90	0.211	13	2111*	511	11M	2200	50	65	10000	6 19	1 02	84.3	0.028	49.2	6.55
G6M-02-11X	7/1/2005	1500	90	280	1011	1011	1011	94	98.4	0.050	14	111	21	1111*	1800	28	420	15000	5 78	0.37	221.6	0.950	6 6 6	15 58
G6M-02-117X	8/1/2002	330	20	7[]	211	111	211						511					10000	6.24	0.64	19	0.924	37.6	18.2
G6M-02-12X	8/28/2002	520	6.5	211	211	111	211	511	54				511						6.15	0.19	156	0 868	2 96	14.2
G6M-02-12X	10/29/2002	790	10	20	20	บ	2Ŭ	2.01	40	0.100	17	2.00	5U	1.0U	1100				6.14	0.27	68	0.927	2.08	13.5
G6M-02-12X	2/3/2003	580	4	20	20	บีบ	2U	5U	52				50	1.00					6.04		78	0.947	5.06	12.8
G6M-02-12X	7/14/2003							50				.							*** *		· •	312-17		
G6M-02-12X	9/22/2004	1000	43	110	2U	10	2U	10	84	0.5U	13	20	5U	10	450	5U	5U	2900	5.87	0.35	570.2	0.873	4.95	14.83
G6M-02-13X	8/2/2002	4600	4	20	20	10	2U	·					5U				· · · · · ·		6.17	0.54	141	0.665	7.62	19.7
G6M-02-13X	9/23/2004	5000	13	16	2U	10	2U	ເບ	31	2.3	17	1,81	50	10	1200	270	150	57	6.37	0.34	170.8	0.618	2.14	17.11
G6M-02-13X	12/13/2004	4600	14	21	20	บีบ	20	5U	34	2.5	16M	20	5U	IU I	1300	270	110	88	5.79	0.89	274.8	0.518	2.63	13.11
G6M-02-13X	3/30/2005	2100	64J	210	1000	50U	100U	8.1	60	0,23	13	2U	36	4.2	4000	160	110	38	5.97	0.89	-22.6	0.735	2.91	14.37
G6M-02-13X	8/11/2005	2300	190	460	5.9	2U	2U	66	230	.05U	2.3	1U	150	343*	12000J*	26	45	46	5.82	0.74	-68.8	0.897	5.6	21.32
G6M-03-02X	5/12/2003	1300	2U	4.4	2Ú	10	2U	<u>_</u>							<u>_</u>									
G6M-03-02X	10/11/2004	690	2Ŭ	5.6	2U	າບ	20	រប	12	3.7	20	1,71	5U	ıu l	17	51	30	2.6	6.29	8.25	97.4	0.321	12.1	14.82
G6M-03-02X	12/15/2004	200	2U	5	2U	าบ	2U	390	29	2.4	30	2U	5Ū	IU	610	56	63	3.4	5.86	1.75	-132.9	0.382	1.93	8.4
G6M-03-02X	3/29/2005	340	200	14J	200	10U	20U	1300	366	0,20	230	6.7]*	640	140M	49000	150	340	5.1	5.23	0.65	-20.1	1.654	28.7	11.99
G6M-03-02X	6/29/2005	190	11	91	2.5U	2.5U	2.5U	1200	431	.05U	74	11	130	220J*	35000J*	290	650	43	4.62	1.13	2,9	1.723	29.1	20,17

. .

÷

Table 6. Summary of Key Analytical Results and Field Parameter Measurements, AOC 50, Devens, Massachusetts

17

05317631729				a shiri a s					La	boratory I	Paramete	rs 🗧			A state	-7-24		1			Field P	arameter	<u>s</u>	
的情况的	방법에 관계하는 것이 같이 있다.		1	1		1							Dissolved	Dissolved	Dissolved							1		
2010/2010/2010	and Colt. And	DCE	TCE	0-1 2-DCF		LIDCE	ve	TOC	Alkalinitu	Nitrate	Sulfate	Sulfide	Arcenic	Iron (Fe2+)	Manganese	Ethane	Ethene	Methane	54	DO	900	Sac	Turbidity	Toma
	i de grande d	L LCE	1 105	<u>10-1,2-001</u>	-// \	<u>, 1, 1-DCL</u>	<u> </u>	100	17116011111	.// \	[Dunite	Dana	(und)	(ma/l)	(ug/l)	Lindie	-//)	(wa/T)	(01D	(mat)	(OTTL	1 cmp
wen nusse	Date	[····		8/L)			L	(шВ	уш) —	<u> </u>		(ug/u/	[(mg/1.)]	[(ug/L)	<u> (4</u>	<i>yu</i> ,	(ug/L)	(80)	[(ing/L)]	<u>(mv)</u>	(m5)	(NTUS)	<u> </u>
0.014.00.007/	c/12/2002	1.1000	20			1 177	211			1	r	······	·····	T					r	Y		1		
G6M-03-07X	5/12/2003	1200	1.2	34	20		20		1011	4 2 14	17	1.61	511	17.12.4	20	25	200	87	E 77		169.2	0.041		10.10
G6M-03-07X	9/24/2004	1/00	0.3	25	20		20	611	1011	4,55	12	20	411	103	100	22	200	0.10	5.11	1700	201.7	0.341	84,0 0.47	18.13
G6M-03-07X	12/16/2004	1500		33	4011		20	20	74	0.22	0	2.5	10	10	10000	70	210	10	6.02	17.09	521.7	0.348	8,40	13.03
G6M-03-07X	3/30/2005	1100	91	040	400	200	400	27	110	0.33	er.	.111	21	*100	160000	20	240	1.0	11.07	1.9	-34,0	0.671	0.7	10.73
G6M-03-0/X	6/29/2005	940	/0	940	400	200	400	03	110	0.075	0.4	10	511	1.011	150003		540	. 3.7	11.97	1.12	-20.1	0.915	5.93	23,98
G6M-03-08X	3/14/2003	100	20	20	20	111	20	111	16	0.2	12	1.57	SU	1.00	1511	ST	511	10	4 90	1.01	2476	0.469	2 22	16.00
G6M-03-08X	9/22/2004	090	0.3	5.4	20		20	50	20	57	13	1.00	sti	10	150	50	20	1.0	3.07	1.01	247.0	0,403	3.22	15.28
G6M-03-08X	12/10/2004	240	11	9.0	20	2011	20	00	12.0	2.7	17	2.7	50	10	1411	11	450	4.7	5.75	1.04	155.7	0.495	0,98	9.73
G6M-03-08X	3/31/2003	340	200	9,0,1	200	111	200	6.5	12.0	2,5	14	111	411	10	100	110	450	410	5.94	1,90	100.5	0.203	0.93	12.88
G6M-03-08X	1/0/2003	/80	0,2		. 20	10	20		40.0	1 1.0		10	- 40	1.00	100	110		410	2.05	0.78	230.1	0.403	3.37	15.32
G6M-03-09X	5/14/2005	20	20	20	20		20	11.1	22	1 10	15	10	50	1.50	1571	611		10	6.00	0.07	176.0	0.12		
G6M-03-09X	9/23/2004	3.75	20	20	20		20	10 #TT	25	12	15	2.4	50		150	14	26	1.9	0.23	0.07	170,2	0,13	4.57	14.35
GOM-03-09X	12/14/2004	20	20	20	20		20	0.21	100	1.5	12	20	50	1104	150	12	20	14	6.10	°.17	417.0	0.100	12.1	10.25
G6M-03-09X	5/29/2005	1.55	20	20	20		20	0,50	251	1.5	13	10	211	1111+	1011	77	200	1.4	5.10	201	160.2	0.125	57.6	15.10
G6M-03-09A	5/14/2003	15	20	20	20	- in	20	15	44.1		1.5		511	101	100		- 34	1.6	5.15	2.01	100.2	0.155		13,19
G6M-03-10X	9/22/2004	27	211	211	211	itt l	211	111	51	2.8	12	1.51	5U	10	340	50	680	680	6.28	1.28	.77.2	0.539	20.5	15 4 1
G6M-03-10X	12/14/2004	10	20	44	211	10	211	511	110	3.8	21	2U	5U	iŪ	880	20	25	1.9	6.52	0.94	62	0.801	1 57	121
G6M-03-10X	2/20/2005	14	0.081	68	1.21	ιŭ	211	50	146	0.211	12	211	50	1UM	1200	50	380	2600	644	0.50	-14.5	0.869	6 77	11 /0
G6M-03-10X	6/30/2005	36	211	211	211	111	211	19	199	0 1	11	111	211	1111*	1900	26	21	8600	5 18	0.39	273.2	0 702	5.06	16.6
G6M-04-01X	9/23/2004	250B	3.6	20	211	10	211						5U	10	220				6.82	3.92	245.2	2 391	9.42	18 11
G6M-04-02X	9/23/2004	1900	211	3.8	211	11	211						5U	10	86				6.59	7.25	152.4	0 704	9.52	22.11
G6M-04-03X	9/23/2004	440	211	3.3	211	IU	211	1.4	53	5.1	23	2.2	5U	1U	3100	220	36	100	6.37	3.41	446.5	1,236	12.2	18 36
G6M-04-04X	9/24/2004	2300	7.8	24	2U	ΙŲ	2U	10	10U	5.5	20	2U	5U	103*	360	37	120	13	5.75	5.05	197,3	1.637	169	15.8
G6M-04-05X	9/22/2004	140	2U	2U	2U	10	2U	1U	14	4.9	14	2U	SU	10	15U*	5U	9.2	1.3	6.1	9.68	233.9	0.099	0.68	14.76
G6M-04-05X	12/15/2004	17	2U	2U	2U	10	2U	5U	14	7.5	13	2U	5U	10	15U	5U	16	1.4	5,87	1.17	228.7	0.098	1.04	12.74
G6M-04-05X	3/30/2005	130	10U	10U	10U	50	10U	0.5J	14	1.2	10	2U	5U	ាល	15U	7.4	28	15	6.04	2.8	123,1	0.093	1.92	13.84
G6M-04-05X	6/30/2005	200	2U	2U	2U	טו	2U	2.4	15.9	0.87	8,9	10	2U	1UJ*	10U	41	22	96	5,48	0.88	207.1	0.094	8.19	15.41
G6M-04-06X	9/22/2004	160	2U	2U	2Ú	10	2U	1U	110	5.3	8.7	2U	5U*	1U	15U	56	5U	3,4	11.01	9.17	-0,6	0.341	1.34	15.84
G6M-04-06X	12/16/2004	24	2U	2U	2U	10	2U	5U	54	7.9	10	2.9	21	1U	15Մ	17	28	0.47	10.89	9.42	106.9	0.254	2.26	12.77
G6M-04-06X	3/30/2005	37	2U	2U	2U -	10	2U	5U	37	2,0	12	2U	7,5	10	15U	8.7	51	0.58	9.47	10.46	10.6	0.235	0,32	15.25
G6M-04-06X	7/1/2005	140	2U	2U	2Ŭ	10	2U	2.8J	10.3	t.5	25	1U	2U	101*	190	34	56	9.7	9.08	9,77	457.2	0.214	0.95	17.23
G6M-04-07X	9/22/2004	900	2,7	8,4	2U	1Ų	2U	1U	56	5.4	32	2U	5U	1U	260	61	120	3.1	7.I	3.42	110.1	0.243	9.28	14.61
G6M-04-07X	12/17/2004	1100	2	9.3	2U	1U	2U	0.6J	43	6.4M	14	2U	28	IU	47	110	2200	2.1	7.51	1,98	-38.9	0.246	74.7	10.34
G6M-04-07X	3/29/2005	240	10U	10U	10U	5U	10U	0,5J	43.2	1.5	14	2U -	12	IUM	27	31	640	1.9	6.88	4.19	22	0.229	4.2	12.76
G6M-04-07X	7/5/2005	170	_ 2U	2U	2U	10	2U	5U*	41.1	1.7	14	<u> </u>	4	<u>ıv</u>	37	70	42	1.8	5,83	5,44	369.9	0.186	23.4	17.93
G6M-04-08X	9/24/2004	4.2B	2U	2U	2U	1Ŭ	2U												7.29	0.81	-75.5	0.632	52.8	14.46
G6M-04-09X	9/24/2004	7400	4.2	9	2U	10	2U						5U	UJ	160				5.15	3.84	637.6	0.495	0.82	17.2
G6M-04-10A	9/20/2004	2900	2.5	3.4	2U	1U	2U	IU	41	4.5J*	22	2	5Ŭ	1	170	21	30	1.1	5.91	3.75	206.5	0.552	1.7	13.59
G6M-04-10A	12/14/2004	2400	20	2U	2U	10	2U	5U	25	1,7	13	2U	5Ŭ	10	120	15	96	1500	5.89	2.81	215.4	0.965	2.04	8.84
G6M-04-10A	3/30/2005	640	40U	40U	40U	40U	40U	52	107	0.33	16	2U	8.4	1.2	8100	330	70	1.4	5.9	4.22	68,3	1.01	1.76	10.62
G6M-04-10A	8/11/2005	380	45	390	20	2Ų	20	240	359	.05U	7.8	1U	77	87J*	50000J*	240	230	3,4	5.65	1.84	11.9	0.977	14.9	19.56
G6M-04-10X	9/20/2004	70	7.5	32	2U	10	2U	10	11	6.7J*	21	3,4	5U	E	260	19	39	1	5.59	6.87	246.2	0.902	0.95	14,64
G6M-04-10X	12/14/2004	65	7,8	35	2U	ាហ	2U	5U	100	6.6	23	2U	5U	10	200	22	53	2,2	5,4	7.57	424.2	0.816	5.5	6.31
G6M-04-10X	3/31/2005	56	6.8	30	2U	20	2U	0.4J	10U	1.5	25	2U	5U	10	190	22	860	1.1	5.18	7.65	256.7	1.337	0.41	11.18
G6M-04-10X	7/1/2005	50	5.4	23	2U	10	2U	5.9	43.5	1.7	12	10	4.2	103*	10U	35	50	12	5.33	6.09	265,2	1.502	0.9	15.77
G6M-04-11X	9/20/2004	8.5	2U	2U	<u>2U</u>	1U	<u>2U</u>												6.54	3,42	374.7	0.782	16.8	16.22
G6M-04-12X	9/20/2004	310	7.5	56	2U	10							<u>5U*</u>		44				11.03	0.86	102.6	2.003	5.22	15.88
G6M-04-13X	9/21/2004	8	1 2U	2U	I 2U	1 U I	20						5U	IU I	350				5,96	8	551.8	0.138	1.75	14.39

.

Table 6. Summary of Key Analytical Results and Field Parameter Measurements, AOC 50, Devens, Massachusetts

g/a_prjots/fort devens/AOC 50/reports/O M/2004/September 2004/GW Sampling Data rev2.xls

a per el constructo de la
14256 12254	MINERAL					1.684.1	1.320	0.00-9	Lat	oratory	Paramete	rs .		aryan da da							Field F	arameter	s	
	1.4.2.				T	1						Γ	Districtured	Dissoluted	Discolund	1	T	<u> </u>		T		Γ		
	SALES AND		TOP		LIADO		1.00	100	A 11-12-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1	Nilterates	D t.C	6.464.	Dissolveu	Dissolved	Dissolveu	Pal		1.1.1.1			0.00		L	_
	20 2 00	FCE	I ICE	C-1,2-UUE	1-1,2-DU	shire oct	<u>1 VC</u>	100	Aikannuty	NIGALE	Suisare	Sumae	Arsenic	HON (FE2+)	Manganese	Emane	LEmene	Methane	рн		UKP	SpC	Turbidity	Temp
Well ID	oren Date ∕ ×	1		(u	g/L)				(mg	<u>/L)</u>			(ug/L)	(mg/L)	(ug/L)	(n	g/L)	(ug/L)	<u>(SU)</u>	(mg/L)	(mV)	(mS)	(NTUs)	°C
		····		·····		·															·····			
G6M-04-14X	11/16/2004	12	2U	2U	2U	1U	2U		ļ		ļ	ļ				<u> </u>	ļ	<u> </u>						
G6M-04-15X	9/21/2004	5.2	20	5.3	20	10	<u>2U</u>					.	SU*	4,8	8100		L		5.26	0.82	410	2,64	0,23	14.4
G6M-04-22X	9/21/2004	900	24	110	2U	10	2U	L				L	5U	10	990				6.3	4,78	192,2	0.897	19	15.24
G6M-04-31X	9/21/2004	1600	2U	4.2	2U	10	2U				<u> </u>		5U	IU	190				5.69	5.1	211	1	2,99	16.33
G6M-93-13X	10/15/2001	0.55J	2U	20	2U	1U	20										· · ·		5,3	9.9	355	6	1.2	14.5
G6M-93-13X	9/20/2004	3,8	2U	2U	2U	10	20	IU	23	1.3J*	10	2.7J*	5U	1	15U	8.1	14	0.89	5,14	13.07	250.7	0,059	4,31	16.26
G6M-93-13X	12/13/2004	2U	20	20	2U	10	2U	5U	20	1.2	9.6M	2Ú	5U	1U	15U	5U	5U	3.8	6.16	10.41	192.5	0.08	1.42	12.95
G6M-93-13X	3/29/2005	2U	2U	2U	2U	IU	2U	0.6J	22.0	0.2U	9.1	2U	5U	1UM	15U	6.3	280	3.1	6.24	10.4	97.3	0.09	0.64	10.89
G6M-93-13X	6/28/2005	2U	2U	2U	20	10	2U	4.9	41.2	0.081	8.2	10	2U	IU I	10U	23	20	9,4	11.3	11.43	146.1	0.275	2.46	19.81
G6M-94-18X	10/16/2001	20	2U	2U	21/	iu	2U												5.2	8.4	291	7	6.4	12.6
G6M-94-18X	2/25/2002	6400	2U	2U	2U	រប	2U									ŀ						1.		
G6M-94-18X	2/27/2002	2800								0.91									6.11	8.9	147	0.086	45.3	12.07
G6M-94-18X	2/4/2003	37000	2U	2U	2U	10	2U																	
G6M-94-18X	9/20/2004	3400	21	20	2U	10	2U	1U	18	2	11	4	5U	1	15U	1 11	22	1 1.1	6.15	9.03	321.7	0.078	3.8	13.89
G6M-94-18X	12/15/2004	2300	211	21	2U	iu	2U	5U	110	1.6	10	2U	5U	10	15U	5U	8.5	9.1	6	9.36	441	0.062	64.7	11.35
O6M-94-18X	3/31/2005	17000	10001	100017	10001	100011	1000U	1.11	14.4	0.23	10	20	517	10	15U	11	710	0.97	6.17	10.34	171.9	0.063	16.6	11.34
06M-94-18X	7/1/2005	2000	2.511	2.50	2.50	2.50	2.5U	4.7J	14	0.13	9.2	10	20	10,1	100	51	25	2.7	5.77	8.03	247.9	0.083	21.3	18 31
G6M-95-19X	10/15/2001	110	66	42	1 51	111	211										t		5.46	6.24	202	2.87	85	14.8
G6M-95-19X	9/20/2004	41	2.9	16	211	Î	21						SU	1	210				5.45	7.92	467.5	4.17	3.1	15 01
C6M-95-20Y	10/16/2001	4 4	211	211	211	111	211		<u></u>										59	72	212	0.27	41	16
G6M-95-20X	2/25/2002	5	20	20	211	in	211												6.59	12.37	155.7	0171	7.67	15.24
G6M-95-20V	2/27/2002	_		20		1	-~			47													1	12,24
G6M-95-20X	9/21/2004	28	211	וול	211	ίπ.	211						511	111	150	ł			5.76	8 8 8	205.5	0 544	0	15.60
G6M-06-13B	10/15/2001	3600	10	220	12	1U	111				· · · ·								6.1	2.9	219	0.12	6.8	12.4
C614 06 120	10/15/2001	5200	34	200	1 41	in	1 41				;								64	3.85	181 3	1 142	6 59	10.06
G6M.06.13B	1/21/2002	3900	21	100	211	10 III	211												0.4	0.00	101.5	1.172		10,50
06M-06-12B	0/20/2004	4500	25	210	20	in in	21	111	38	5 41*	19	2	511	t.	1511	22	120	17	63	3 57	186.4	1 025	0.5	12.7
G6M.06 12P	12/12/2004	2500	24	150	211	in	211	511	35	5	RIM	211	SU	111	23	50	25	24	6 26	2.57	316.5	0.787	2.68	11.05
GOM-90-13D	2/10/2004	4500	20011	100	20011	20011	20011	57	47	046	17	2111*	511	2.6M	1600	170	220	37	6.74	0.87	212	0.042	0.68	10.67
CAM 06.12D	8/10/2003	2800	1000	1500	36	4.8	68	140	989	0.23	46	53	32	241*	8100	150	440	29	4 35	0.16	-35.6	0.838	3.5	14.53
C6M-06-33A	10/16/2001	2000	211	211	211	111	211		····			- 5% -				<u>-</u>		<u> </u>	5.5	51	210	2.000	0	12.5
G6M-05-22A	2/28/2002	20	20	211	211	1 in	211			0.1011						1			5.7	8 37	183.4	1 78	n s	954
G6M-96-22A	9/21/2004	20	211	211	20	1 in	20						50	ມ	54	1			5.75	6.73	187.9	1 885	1 59	13 42
C6M-06.22P	10/19/2001	20	20	211	211		211								<u> </u>				6.76	6.95	176	2 00	0.6	12.51
G6M-06-220	2/28/2002	20	21	211	21	1 in	211		1	0.1011									6 35	7 83	198 4	2002	1.5	10.08
G6M.06.220	1/31/2002	20	20	211	211		211										1		0.55		1,0,0	2.002	1	10,00
G6M.06.22D	0/21/2003	20	211	20	20	127	20		}				STI	լու հ	41	1			5.92	6 15	192 0	1041	276	12.6
COM-06-24D	10/16/2001	19	20 211	20	211	151	20	·······				,		¹ V				···· ·	6 37	0.10	81	0.42	10	12.04
CGM 06 24D	2/1/2002	10	20	20	20	10	20												6 2 5	-622	106 7	0.42	20	10.62
CCM 0C 14D	3/1/2002	11	20	20	20	117	20										1			-0,27	100,7	0.43	2.0	10.55
100M-90-24B	1/12/003	1,5	20	20	20	111	20						4											
COM-90-24B	1/12/2004	110	20	20	20	111	20										1 1		617		162.2	0 499		10.24
COM-90-24B	9/24/2004	138	20	20 201	20	10	20												6.17	0,2	134,4	0.422	0,44	12,54
GOM-90-24B	12/17/2004	8.1	20	20	20		20												6.03	0,40	239.0	0.384	2.43	11,49
GOM-90-24B	4/13/2003	8.2		2.3															3.32	1.24	210.0	0.429	2.49	10.82
G6M-96-24R	7/6/2005	7.6	1 211	3	I 21J	111	r 20 l				l î			1			ı		5.69	1.34	242.8	077	0.02	16.85

n na sense a s A sense
Table 6. Summary of Key Analytical Results and Field Parameter Measurements, AOC 50, Devens, Massachusetts

. .

.

. 14

5

ю. Б

Notes for a long	a in that the	i desi						0.111	Lat	obratory .	Paramete	rs									Field P	arameter	S	
和空影的行动	a second				[T							Dissolved	Dissolved	Dissolved					1				
en Senter 2	10 (L. 44)	PCF	TCE	0-1 2-DCF	1- 1 2-DCE	1.1-DCF	vc	тос	Alkalinity	Nitrate	Sulfate	Sulfide	Arsenic	Ison (Fe2+)	Manganese	Ethane	Ethene	Methane	лH	DO	OPP	SHC.	Turbidity	Temo
A CONTRACTOR	ng n	1.00		() ()	·//)	1440_00.000	<u></u> .		(ma	/1)			(ng/L)	(ma/T)	(ug/l)	(1)	- <u> </u>	(nall)	1310	(mail)	(m1/1	(me)	ATTIN	- COLO
THE PARTY OF THE PARTY OF THE	In the second second	L			<u> (11)</u>		·		(IIIB	·~)			(46.67	(146)2)	(ug) 2)	L. (42	<u>v c)</u>	(~~~)_		[(ing/11)]	(ut +)	(ms)	(1103)	<u> </u>
0614 06 158	10/15/2001	260	211	211	211	111	211			l			<u> </u>			[T	,	5.81	53	142	0.498	10	14 55
G6M-90-23D	10/15/2001	130	20	20	20	111	20												67	11.51	142	0.456	0.75	14,55
G6M-96-25B	2/27/2002	130	1 20		-~		1 20			7.2							1		3 , 7	11,21	10.0	0.15	1.12	11.1
G6M-96-25B	1/31/2003	52	211	211	211	111	211			(··	ĺ		ĺ			ĺ	[í I		í í		
G6M-96-25B	9/20/2004	56	211	211	2U	10	2U										· ·		4.98	7.63	593	0.589	0	13 13
G6M-97-08B	10/18/2001	92	6.1	36	1.6J	10	2U						a i a in the sele						5.6	4.8	224	0.13	18	15
G6M-97-08B	2/26/2002	100	19	32	2U	10	2U									1			5.87	5.13	186.4	1.157	5.3	14 44
G6M-97-08B	9/22/2004	220	9.3	41	2U	iu	2U	10	10U	6.1	12	1.5J	5U	υ	26	7.5	5U	1.3	5.69	4.66	252.8	1.516	18.3	17.01
G6M-97-08B	12/16/2004	200	7.7	41	2U	10	2U	5U	10U	6.1	12	5.4	50	10	25	130	72	0.92	5.79	8.78	165	1.633	3.81	13.61
G6M-97-08B	3/30/2005	95	3.41	16	41	2U	4U	0.4J	12	0.80	7	2U	5U	10	21	15	32	0.54	5.58	8.06	202.8	0.999	9.42	14.41
G6M-97-08B	6/28/2005	140	8	36	1.4	บ	2U	7.1	16.7	1.4	12	1U	2U	IJ	27	16	41	35	11.3	4.94	173.7	1.506	8.16	19.31
MW-3	10/17/2001	4300	1500	540	20U	10U	20U												5,7	0.9	-127	1.4	3.1	14
MW-3	12/19/2001	26	4000	2200	20U	6.5J	20U	92			0.43J								6.28	0.43	-46	0.912	7,28	14.4
MW-3	1/3/2002							44					180	30		63	210	18	4.77	1.33	-48	2.795	4.4	13.4
MW-3	1/31/2002							38											6.64	0	-293	0.999		12
MW-3	2/13/2002	4400	1700	1600	1.6J	3.7	2U	15		0.10U	14	1.0J	190#	20	8300	79	290	53	6.65	0.75	-71	0.893	1.3	12
MW-3	3/13/2002	5200	640	1400	1.4J	2.8	2U	7.3		0,10U	15	2.0U	180	16	8400	93	370	66	6.72	0.25	-75	0.795	1.04	13.7
MW-3	4/2/2002	3100	1000	1700	2.2	4	2U	3.35		1							ļ		6.74	4.28	-120	0.634	2.08	13.8
MW-3	4/17/2002	1200	1300	1600	1.2J	3.4	2U	6,1		3.0	7.9J	1,6J	240	37	17000	25	87	54	6.6	4.39	-102	0.771	0.81	17
MW-3	5/15/2002	31	23	2600	3.5	6.7	2U	96		0.10U	3.9	1.6J	260	42	19000	52	240	560	6.66	0.31	-124	1,46	1.68	13.7
MW-3	6/27/2002	200U	200UJ	1800	200UJ	100UJ	200UJ*	270		14	4,4J	2.0U	490J*	140	37000J	21	82	3900	6,7	1.64	-107	3.804	2.9	17
MW-3	7/31/2002							31											6,76	0.15	-225	1.606		12.2
MW-3	8/26/2002	990	640	580	2.1	4.4	2U	30	320				270			53	160	14000	6.83	0.15	-138	1.285	6.5	16.3
MW-3	10/28/2002	1900	820	1700	3.9	4.2	2U	6.3	190	0.10U	10	2.0U	330	39	9700	300	230	6300	6.7	0.4	-129	1.129	5.01	14.5
MW-3	2/3/2003	3	20	2900	2U	7,1	2U	180	580		1.0U		330	120		5.0U	260	28000	6.84	0.3	-159	1.322	6.7	10.5
MW-3	7/16/2003	2.4	2U	2700	2U	7.5	2,5	17	450		4.0UB	2.0U	· 520	170		5,0U	100	23000	7.02	1.09	-138	1.464	39.2	16.3
MW-3	9/24/2003	670	1100	1900	2.4	6.9	2U	5.9					460	89	7900	5.0U	12	22000	6.1	9,17	-138	1,222	18.9	16,8
MW-3	1/9/2004	9.7	64	2000	2U	5.6	2U	130	5003		1.00	2.0U	530	200J	15000	5.0U	5.00	45000	6,73	0,4	-195	1,347	14,6	12.7
MW-3	3/11/2004	680	620	4700	2U	7,6	2U	6.1	200		4.4	20	420	11	8400	5U	50	27000	6.58	0.62	-161	0.972	4,3	12.4
MW-3	6/2/2004	2U	2U	1800	20	4.5	20	290	810		0.98JM	20	670MSA	150	23000	SU .	14	31000	6.95	0.1	-[49	1,905	38.7	14.61
MW-3	9/21/2004	210	250	1900	2U	5.2	3.5	17	310	 1J*	4.3J	2UM	660	2003*	7200	86	50	28000	6.66	0.95	-153.6	0.725	2.27	13.76
MW-3	12/13/2004	20	20	750	20		610	8	210	1.1	1.4M	20	510	100	5400	92	3200	17000	6.62	1.6	-103.3	1.009	15.1	11,07
MW-3	3/28/2005	231	16J	1000	500	500	280	21	405	0.20		*16.1	670	13014	7300	50	5100	25000	0,49	0,34	-134,9	1,20	2,37	12,46
<u>MW-3</u>	8/10/2005	440	80	120	2U	2.1	/60	43	338	0.030	20	0.61	511	160	4400 1701	120	13000	22000	6.12	<u>V./1</u>	-118.5	1.401	48.9	18,92
MW-/	2/14/2002	5900	4.3	20	20	10	20	3.01		3.2	20	0.01	411	1.00	100011	120	500	0.4 5.01	6.12	1.38	104	0.78/	90	13.8
MIW-7	3/14/2002	3700	4,2	20	20	10	20	2.00		4.1	22J 19T	1.61	211	1.00	10000	94 72	100	6.0	6.12	2.29	205	0.608	0.62	13.9
MW*7	4/1//2002 #/1//2002	4200	4.9	20	20	10	20	50		4.2	105	2.01	411	1.00	10000	07	200	0.0	6.05	0.5	143	0.000	22.0	10.0
MW-7	5/16/2002	5700	4.5	20 1112	20	100	1111	50		4,3	101	2,000	50	1.00	170111	97	200	3.0	6.12	0.21	162	1.109	100	10.7
MW+7	6/2//2002 8/27/2002	4700	3,81*	2011	201	101	201	50	20	4.2	173	2.00	50	1.00	17005				6.13	0.75	105	1.196	1.00	16.2
	10/20/2002	4700	2.2	20	20	10	20	511	23	10	16	2 011	50	וומו	2001	47	180	70	6.15	0.27	46	0.032	2.62	14.2
Mu/-7	10/30/2002	5400	<i></i>	20	20		20	50	13	7.7	,~	2.00		1.00	2003	77	100	~~ I	0.05	10.07	00	V.112	5,05	10.0
M37.7	1/20/2002	4700	21	217	211	111	211	SU	10		16		517	1 01		44	75	73	5.8	22	171	0 773	1.08	120
MNV-7	0/2003	4700	3.1	20	20		20	- SU			10		50	1 011	140	15	27	58	34	1 43	522	0.601	0.3	15.7
MW-7	1/8/2003	4300	2.2	20	20		20	STT	27		141	2.011	511	1 (01)	130	11	26	25	602		100	0.491	15	111
MW.7	2/12/2004	3100	2.0	20	20		211	111	24		15M	211	511	111	120	20	280	63	6.04	0.47	162	0.556	1	12.0
MW.7	5/12/2004 6/3/0004	2000	26	20	20		211	151	24		15M	211	50	111	110	12	34	34	5 96	0.31	205.2	0.58	1 07	10.7
MW-7	9/21/2004	2900	3.4	3.1	2U	ίŬ	20						5U	iŬ	110				5.98	0.21	240,4	0,58	0	15.67

......

ي. مدين د ايا 1

1

1

Table 6. Summary of Key Analytical Results and Field Parameter Measurements, AOC 50, Devens, Massachusetts

g:\a_prjets\fort devens\AOC 50\reports\O M\2004\September 2004\GW Sampling Data rev2.xls

.

Table 6. Summary of Key Analytical Results and Field Parameter Measurements, AOC 50, Devens, Massachusetts

				Olevia de la composición Olevia de la composición				Lal	oratory.	Parámete	s .	يريد المشارين			page 200					Field P	arameters	1	
												Dissolved	Dissolved	Dissolved									
	PCE	TCE	c-1,2-DCE	t- 1,2-DCE	1,1-DCI	vc	TOÇ	Alkalinity	Nitrate	Sulfate	Sulfide	Arsenic	Iron (Fe2+)	Manganese	Ethane	Ethene	Methane	pH	DO	ORP	SpC	Turbidity	Temp
WellID			(ug	/L)				(mg	/L)			(ug/L)	(mg/L)	(ug/L)	(n <u>s</u>	/L)	(ug/L)	(SU)	(mg/L)	(mV)	(mS)	(NTUs)	°C

2. An in the state 4

.

Kernennen

Notes

.

т.

- J Estimated value
- B Detected in laboratory blank
- U Less than the detection limit
- H Sample rerun outside holding time due to "B" detection
- M Recovery poor for MS/MSD
- * Value qualified from reported laboratory data based on data validation results.

1.3
annan an a	and the second secon	Statutor all				Serence and		au	Bistoria Baseria	nongi Logi	pacasang Tr I	- All	general and and Spin and a state	ч н 18 Ю	gantat dahangg	ניים במש וע די ד		F: -4	ana pouro Ir∵i		<u>р. 24.</u> 0		patient die solaande bester in oor		aan ah		
	Table 8,	Summary of Key	y Analylical Res	uits and F	ield Par	ameter	Measure	ements, E	RD Applic	ation, A	DC 50,	Devens,	Massac	husetts													
	Contraction of the second seco	TALE TO BROOM	i da proteita De	TD	DTW						6-9	t de la serie de	Labora	tory Parar	neters		1912 - 1917 	1 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8						Field P	arameters	·	
				(feet)	(feet)	PCE	TCE	>1.2-DCE	1-12-DCE	1.1-DCE	VC	тос	Alkalinity	Sulfate	Sulfide	Dissolved Arsenic	Dissolved Iron (Fe ² ')	Dissolved Manganese	Ethane	Ethene	Methane	ρн	DO	ORP	SpC	Turbidity	Temp
	100000000	1.56.67 1.67.676	42.9877 (52)		1			6	n#)				(mod))			(ug/L)	40	na/L)	(nc	<i>i</i> ال	(ua/L)	rSun	(ma/L)	(mV)	(mS)	(NTUS)	'C
	and a second second second second	CONTRACTOR AND A CONTRACTOR OF CONT	Contraction of the second		-			<u>W</u>	(g/c)				Ungraj			1 (1981-6)	1	19/17	<u></u>		1.109.27	(00)]		<u> </u>			in the second
	Wasses	Baseline (B)	12/2 12/2	1/01 135.00	63.75	1,600	<20	<20	<20	<10	<20	<1.0	· -	- 1						-		6.45	3.49	228	0.776	11.00	11.B
	1012 10-63	Monitoring ment 1	01AC	2/02	-		- 	- 1	-	-		21,000	÷.	- 1	-	- 1	-	-		-	••	5.85	0.33	-189	1.832	-	12.1
	Res 266	Monttonipo event 2	01/10	02	64.81	-	- 1	-		-		5,900			-	- 1	-	-	- 1	-	-	4.47	0.67	-433	2.183	-	12.0
		Monitoring event 3	NACE: 01/3	202 -			- 1	- 1	-	~	**	2,900		-	-	- 1	-	-	- 1	-	~	4.53	0.00	-376	1.854	-	12.1
	4,003,03,01	Monutano event 4	1 Page 1 - 1 92/1	unz	64.20	.∵ <u> </u>	- -	- 1	· -	!	·	1,900		-	- 1	- 1	- 1	- · ·	- 1	-	. – i	4.28	, 0.30 '	-465	1.586		12.3
		Monitoring event 5	03/1	2/02	64.06	·	- 1	-		-	1 av	4,000	- 1	·	-	-	-	-	- 1	-	-	4.18	0.51	-363	2.617	-	12.3
	10 8 1 4 SE	Manifording event 4	STARKAR DWO	2/02 -	- 1	- 1	- 1	••	,	-	-	4,000	-	·		-	-	- 1	-	-	-	4.09	i - '	-374	1.708	-	12.4
		Monitoring event 7	Sec. 1 04/1	8/02 -	63.09	-	- 1	-	-	-	-	1,100		-	0.319*	- 1	- 1	- 1		-	-	4.68	2.17	-467	1.148	-	12.3
	1.446.55.0653	Monitoring event &	is station in	5/02	63.32	-	-	-		-	-	2,100		м			-	-	- 1	-	-	4.27	1.26	-462	1.657	-	12.3
	Sec. 2. 1. 1.	Monitoring event 9	2-3-3 C 06/2	5/02 -	62.80	- 1	~	· -	-	-	-	2,500	-	-	-	- 1	-	f	-	-	- 1	4.21	4.30	-376	1.452		12.6
	AS IN CONTRACTOR	Monitoring event 1	0	1,02	- 1	- 1	-	-			-		·	-	-	- 1	- 1		- 1		-	-	i - '	1 - 1	/	-	- 1
	21. The Carl	Moniforing event 1	155 😪 🛸 🖉 98/2	5/02 -	- 1	-	- 1	-	-	- 1	-	-	-	<u> </u>	- 1	- 1	- 1	-		~	- I	- 1	i - '		/	1 - 1	~
	121 252 11	Monitoriog event 12	Z 10/Z	V02 -	i -	-	- [-	-	-		••	. –	-	- 1	-	- 1		- 1	-	-	-	ı - '		••	~	-
	122.202.202.202	Monitoring event 13	3	9/03 -		-	-	-	-		-7	~	-		- 1			-	- 1		l –	- 1	ı - '		'	1 - 1	-
	Cold Section	Monitoring event 1	4	5/03 -	- 1	-	-	-	-	-	••		-	-	- 1	- 1			-	-	-	-	, ~ '	- 1		- 1	-
	CERSES.	Monitoring event 1	5	203 -		-	-				-	- 1	-		- 1			- 1	-	-	-		, '	- 1	- 1	1 - 1	-
	1.88.9	Monitoring event 1	6 (L) 4c D1/0	5/04 -	- 1		-	-			` مد		-	-	- 1	-		1 -	-	-	1 -	-	I ~ '	-		-	1 - 1
	A REAL POINT	Monitoring event 1	7	S/04 -	1	-	- 1	- 1	- 1	-	-	1 ~ 1	· -	- 1	- (1	- 1	1~	1 - 1	-	j -	- 1	(- '	1 - 1	. – 1	1 - 1	
	E HE HE H	Monitoring event 1	00/0	294 -	1			-						L –				-				-		<u> </u>			
	CONSTRUCTION OF	Course and the second	strates and the second	22. 1. 1. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2.	And the	dianales:	Transfer of	CALLS IN A	A DE REAL PROPERTY	- 1993	Service (P)	CONTRACTOR OF	the start	11-125-2-10-1	NE. CON	A CONTRACTOR OF A	1011013-1-1	Charles of Street,	1.54. 64.	KEIKO SEE	Million Street	221711	and the second second	644667	066 (CTC)	CHESSES	Sec. 2.

A Line	Menitoring event 18	06/01/04	- 6::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::	-	_ 		azsa.	-	-					-		- 10113-15	LARCESCOR	Loserates			-	-	-		- 13.452556	-
W-2	Baseline	12/21/01	135.00	63.63	4,800	<20	<20	<20	<1D	<20	<1,8	-	-		. –	-	-	-	-	-	11.38	2.82	139	0.931	15.00	14.2
新福告 的	Monitoring event 1	01/02/02		R4 95	-			-		-	14,000	-	-	-	-		! -	1 =		1	8.54	0.71	-155	1.963	-	11.8 12.1
iz de la la	Monitoring event 3	01/30/02	-	-	_		••		_		4,800	-		_	-	-	-		_	-	4.65	0.00	-460	3.528	_	12.1
10.005 820	Monitoring event 4	02/13/02	-	64.24		-	-	-			2,600	-	-	· -	-			- 1	-	-	4.47	0.34	-476	2.322	-	12.3
1.1	Montomic even 6	04/02/02	_	-	-	-	-	_	[]		5,000			_		-	-	1	1 -	=	4.65	u,7u	-290	2.140	1 -	12.2
	Montoring event 2. Little and	04/18/02	-	63.06			· -	-			1,200	-	150	0.1\$/<2*	110	83	2		- 1	: -	5.24	0.06	-451	1.855	- 1	16,4
	Monitoring event 8	05/15/02	-	63.42	- 7		-	1 - 1			3,600		·	-			- 1	-		1	4.62	1.74	-473	3.137	-	12.3
Sector Prog	Monitoring event 10 Selection	07/31/02		~		1 2	_	~		-	7,400	· -			-	_	1 -			1.2	4.56	0.27	-371	2,083	-	12.4
	Monitoring event 11	06/28/02	-		÷.	- 1	-		. –		3,700	-	· ••	~	-	-	-	-	- .	-		-			- 1	
ang sa sa	Monitoring event 12	10/28/02	-	63.79		. <u> </u>	-	a <u>n</u> , aa	1 2	_	5,200	1	_		-	7		-	<u> </u>	1 2	4.44	0.82	48	3.147	<u> </u>	12.4
S. Later of	Monitoring event 14	07/16/03	-			-	-	-		~	620		_				-	- 1	-			-	-			_
	Monitoring event 15	09/22/03	-	-	-		·. –	-	••		30,000	-		-	-		-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	~
Ware sets	Montorno evera 17	03/08/04	-	_	-		-	-	·	-	8,600	-	1		-	_	-	-		1]	-		-	-	_
Mar 1928	Monitoring event 18	08/01/04	-	-	-	- 1	-	-		·	12,000	-		- 1			-	-	-	-	. – .		-	-	-	
al a se						ST. 10.2007	ti na second				Louis alf-s		Bioriziae	distrances of	n strige				180-1900 BA			a service and	an a		CARACTER CON	and the second
			CANEL CARE						-										-				an berger gesternen.	an a		STONE STONE
W-3.0 - 142	Baseline A Laborator Coll 4 A	12/20/01	135.00	63.46	2,200	<20	<20	<20	<10	<20	5,9	. –	-		••	-	-	-	-	-	9,89	1.68	200	0.761	23.00	13.9
25 Cote	- Monacting event 2	01/18/02	-			-	<u> </u>	· · ·		1	10,000	·	Ξ.	5 I S	-	-	<u> </u>	=	1 -	-	4,85	0.20	-440	4.247		12.0
2014-000 2014-00-000	Monitore g experied	Q1/30/02	-		- 1	' -	· • • •	-	-	<u>_</u>	6,000	-	-	· - ·			-	<u> </u>	-	-	4.68	0.00	-478	3.077		12.1
	Montoring events	02/13/02		64.06 64.32	_ <u>]</u> - [_	-	1 1	-	3,200	-	_	<u> </u>	· _	-	-	1 -	-	1 2	4.35	0.34	-472	2.556	-	12.2
	Montoring event 0	04/02/02	-				· _			-	6,600		-	. –		-			-	-	4.70		-426	2.837		12.1
	Montoring event 7 Montoring	04/14/02		62.88	_ - -	-				승규 사	980		140	0.13/1.6J*	140	76 ·	2,6		. –		5.34	5.38	-383	1.845	53,40	20.0
	MonEorlog event 9	06/25/02	-	62,99			1 - 2 - 1	19 E. 1			10,000		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1 .	4.56	1.27	-435	6,099	-	12.4
	10 move on other	07/31/02		-	- 1	-	-	· • .		÷	-	. –	<u> </u>	-		<u> </u>	·-			[-	-	~		-		-
	Montoring event 11	06/25/02	-		1 E A	- <u>-</u>		- 1 -		-		-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-
		COMPLEX NO.		- 1	I					~			-		_	1 2 3	1 2			1 -		_		-	- 1	
	Monitoring event 13	01/25/03	- 1	- 1	· - ·		-	-																-	. –	
HERE	Mostaring event 13	01/29/03 07/16/03	-	-	-	-		-		-	-	7		~	-	-		-		-	-	-	-	-		
	Michaeling event 13 Michaeling event 14 Montoring event 15 Montoring event 15	01/29/03 07/16/03 09/22/03 01/06/04				-		111	111	1 1		121		-		-	-	1 : 1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
	Manhaolog event 13 Manhaolog event 14 Manhaolog event 15 Manhaolog event 10 Manhaolog event 17	01/25/03 07/16/03 09/22/03 01/06/04 03/05/04					, i i i i	1 1 1 1	111	1111		121-1-1						111		- - -						

we D	in the Event of	Sie and A Dates	π			- <u></u>	1		· · · · · ·			Labora	tory Paran	neters		le:	1		···.			·	Field P	arameters		Г
	S. Costore .	58 S.S.	(feet)	(feet)	PCE	TCE	6-1.2-DCE	1-1.2-DCE	1.1-DCE	VC	тос	Aikalioity	Sulfate	Swifide	Dissolved Arsenic	Dissolved	Dissolved Manganese	Ethane	Elhena	Methane	ын	ро	ORP	SpC	Turbidity	ł
	Maria Propiation	statut setup					(µg/L)				(mg/L)			(µg/L)	(n	ng/L)	(n	p/L)	(ug/L)	(SU)	(mg/L)	(mV)	(mS)	(NTUs)	I
W425334	Baselina	12/20/01	135.00	63.58	L088	21	1.6J	<2	<1	<2	4.6	- 1	-	ı –	I	1 ~	1		1	1 – I	6.24	1.07	141	0.455	185.00	ı
	Monitoring event 1:	01/02/02	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	8,000	-	-	-	-	-	· -	-	-	-	5,98	0.34	-468 -429	3.214	-	l
	Monitoring event 3	01/30/02	-	-		-	_	-	-	-	5,800	-	_	-		_			-		4.89	0.00	-473	3.418	_	1
	Monitoring event 4	02/13/02	-	63.46	-		-	5	-		7,400	-	-	-		-	-	-	1 -	-	4.23	0,56 0.41	-457 -282	3,686	-	l
	Monitoring event 8	04/02/02	_	-		-	_	-		-	13,000	=	-	_	-	-	-	-	-	-	4.24	-	-209	3.617	-	l
	Monitoring event 7	04/16/02	-	63.20	-		-	-	-	-	2,800		240	0.108/<2*	180	87	2.2	-	- 1	-	4.49	0.08	-225 -453	2.148 3.092	70.70	ł
	Monitoring event 9	06/25/02	-	62.86	-		-	-		-	7,000		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	4.07	1.52	-20	4.191	- 1	l
	Monitoring event 10 Monitoring event 11	07/31/02	_	1 -		-	-			15	2,200			-	1 -		-	=	=	-	4,03	0.69	-298	4.225	-	l
	Monitoring event 12.	10/28/02	-	-	-	-	· _	-	[-]	-	2,000	-		-	- 1	-	- 1	-	-	- 1	3.99	0.81	70	3,861	-	
n an	Monitoring event 14	07/16/03	=	-	L		_	- 1	_	-	3,800	_				1 -	_] _	=		-		-	-	- 1	ł
	Monitoring event 15	06/22/03	-	-	1	2	-				24,000				-	1 -	-	-	-	-	_	_	-	-		ł
peter set	Monitoring event 17.1	03404/04	=	-	-	-	-	-		-	7,000		н	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1
	Monitoring event 18	106/01/04			- Alexandra			LANG RANG			12000	GRAN S				lasiens		1000						An singer		
WAREN	Razellar	ali 12/20/01	1 135 00	1 63.08	25.1	1.4J	1 5.8.1	<2	<1	1 42 ·	1 7.8			1	1	1 -	l. =	·	1 -	<u> </u>	6.58	L 1.05	193	0.472	1 29.00	1
	Monitoring event 1	01/02/02	-	-	-	-	-	-	- 1	-	4,400		-		-	-	-	-	1 - -	-	5.38	0.38	-469	1.885	-	
	Montoning event 2:00 Montoning event 3	01/16/02	-	1 -	=	=	=	1 2	<u> </u>	-	18000	_	· -	Ξ.		1 -	=	1 -	=		4.54	0.00	-329	5.522 3.603	1 -	I
经指行证	Monitoring event 4	02/13/02	-	63,94	-	-	-	-	-	-	8,500		-	-	-	-	-	- 1	-	-	3.91	0.96	-429	3.509	-	I
D. LES. 7. 19	Monitoring event 6	0.012/02	-	03,41	_	-	-	- 1	-	-	3,500	-	-	-	-	-	-] _		-	4.00	0.20	-402	1.467	1 -	1
	Monitoring event 7	04/18/02	-	62.51	-	-	-		: -	_	1,400	-	-	0.052-	-	-	-	-	-	-	4.14	3.25	-422 -450	1.227		
	Monitoring event 9	06/25/02	-	62.38		1	- <u>-</u>	-	-	Ξ.	6,200	-	-	-	-	-			-		4.06	1.60	-240	3.205		l
	Monitoring event 10	07/31/02	-	1 -				-			-	. 7	-	- 	<u>-</u> ·	1 2 -	<u> </u>	-	-	-	-		-	-	1 -	ŀ
	Monitoring event 12	10/20/02	- 1	-				- * *	-	-	-		⁻	-	-	-	-	- 1	- 1	-	-	-	-	-	-	ł
	Maniforing event 14	01/20/03	=	1	2	-	_			-	_	-	-	-	1 2	1 -	1 -	Ξ.	=	1 -	-	-	-	-	-	l
e etc. A Se	Monitoring event 15	5 09/22/03 21/06/04	-	-	2.					-	-	-	· -		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			-	l
us dage	Monitoring avera 17	01/08/04		-			-	-		~ `	-			-	~	-			-				-	-	-	l
le le scal	Moniforing event 18 :	1.00/01/04	-	-	l año		nana		STATES OF	-	- Reflect	Alexandre	a Eshaety					- ARASER	-	1 –	-	88-1545	(1). (1).	- Alian		
uven en e	Bassine	2.14.12/19/01	136.00	64.68	i 6200J	9.81	31		 	4	<1.9		17	-	1	-			i	1	5.91	0.5	199	0.589	62.10	1
1997 - H	Monitoring event 1	01/02/02		64,74								12	-	-	2.2.1	4	-	50	180	8.3	6.52	1.38	89	0.204	6.09	I
아는 아이 같이 같이 같이 같이 같이 같이 않는 것이 같이 없다. 이렇게 집에 있는 것이 없는 것이 않는 것이 없는 것이 않는 것이 없는 것이 없는 것이 않는 것이 없는 것이 없이 않이	Monitoring event 3	01/30/02	~	65,10	5,400	5.0	0.663	-	<1 -	<2	16		23		-	-	2.5	33	400	11	5.02	2.32	81.6 -492	0.719	19.06	l
	Monitoring event 4	02/13/02		64.79	7,500	13	1.8.1	2	<1 	2	110		42	40	5.2	3.2	5.8	27	68	21	5.34	0.99	-209	0.884	11.00	
	Monitaring event 8	04/02/02	-	-	4,300	380	760	42	2.2	2	79		10	.~	49	¥.0	-	-	- 179	1	6.31	5.64	-243	0.733	5.12	
	Monitoring event 7	0416/02	-	63,89	3,900	240	540	20	1.5	2	57 67	-	13J 33	0.273/1.3.P	110	56	13	110	170	100	6.44 6.75	4,44/0.55*	-157	0.822	7.38	I
	Madkoring event 9	00/25/02	-	63.30	3,900	550	1,600	-2	4.4	42	110	•	13.1	1	180J	57	- 26	30	43	370	6.39	0.46	-85	1.211	8.70	l
	Monitoring event 10.2 Monitoring event 11	07/31/02		64.54	4,300	84	1,500	<2	4.5	<2	43 84				140	<u> </u>	1 2	35	120	4.600	6.10 5.77	0.07	-233 -51	1.003 0.351	5.04	I
125.99	Monading event 121	10/25/02		64.71	4,400	55	2,100	(2)	5.9	2	54	140	-	~2	170	62	10	14	. 120	6,400	6.21	0.63	-85	0.942	4.60	I
a di Histoiria	Monitoring event 14	01/29/03	-	63.45	3,700	300	2,200	<2.	7.8J 6.2	~2	200 75	310 190	- 9.9 <12	<2	330 540	1900	<u>-</u>	20	100	10,000 10,000	5.90 6.55	0,43 0,65	-59 -69	1.235 0.879	2.03	I
	Monitioning event 15	06/72/03	-	62.71	4,000	230	1,400	<2	4.7	20	69		-	-	320	68	3.2	<5	7.2	7,100	4.91	0.00	-36	0.925	2.30	1
	Monitoring event 17.ju	Store ovovo	Ξ	63.22	2,400	190	1,800	2	3.6	~2	170	240	13	2	330	.65	3.1	<5	32	24,000	5.79	0.41	- 113	0.608	2.10	
	Monitoring event 181	TER 05/04/04	-	61.82	64	33	2,000	<2	7.1	<2	460	650	16	3.5	310	250J	6.7	<5	190	23,000	5.84	1.13	-23	1.313	45.10	ł

IGATIZADIKAE

P. S. HAGUNING

1.8

Turbidity Temp (NTUs) "C

14,5

11.9

12.0

12.0 12.1

12.1

12.1

17.8

12.1 12.3

12,1

_ 12.4

-

-

12.6

11.7

11.7

11.8 11.9

12.0

11.8 12.1

12.0

12.1

-

••

66 G R

12.4

11.7

9.1 12.0

13.3

11.1

13.1 17.5

13.7

15.2

12.2

17.6

14.7

8.6

17.0

16.2 13.2

10.2 15.6

ER.G.2N

Monfloring event 3	 **	- 1	 -	 1
) 新聞を設備的状態。 単物体の語言 こうかん ない じんじゅう かいせい ひょうかい おおお (1995年1月1日) というのではない			 	

DIC TD DTW

ligen a training and

ere i

10644559

İs≈1 1526

Even

Wett

	8	1			· · · · ·			-																r
	(feet)	(feet)	PCE	TCE	c-1,2-DCE	1- 1,2-DCE	1,1-DCE	vc	тос	Alkalipity	Sulfate	Sulfide	Dissolved Arsenic	Dissolved Iron (Fe ^{2*})	Dissolved Manganese	Ethane	Ethène	Methane	рiН	DO	ORP	SpC	Turbidity	Temp
		1			0	.g/L}				(mg/L)			(µQ/L)	(n	1g/L)	(n)	μ <u>)</u>	(ug/L)	(SU)	(mg/L)	(mV)	(m\$)	(NTUs)	°C
MW22 Baseline (Constraints) 12/1907 Monitoring avent 3 Constraints (Constraints) 11/2/2007 Monitoring avent 3 Constraints (Constraints) 11/2/2007 Monitoring avent 3 Constraints (Constraints) 12/2/2007 Monitoring avent 5 Constraints (Constraints) 12/2/2007 Monitoring avent 7 Constraints) 12/2/2007 Monitoring avent 7 Constraints (Constraints		64.52 64.56 64.95 64.53 64.41 63.73 63.58 63.10 64.39 64.40 64.39 64.40 62.45 62.60 61.99 63.06 61.67	6.800 - 8.200 - 7.100 6,100 2,900 910 1.700 2,400 - - 2,300 - - 1.700 1,800 950 770 950 770 950	11J - 5.6 - 790 930 380 890 1,800 - 230 - 230 - 140 540 240 310 37	<pre> </pre> <pre> <20 </pre> <pre> <pre> </pre> </pre> <pre> </pre> <pre> </pre> <pre> </pre> <pre> </pre> <pre> <pre> <pre> <pre> <pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre>	<pre>420 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 < 2 </pre>	<10 - - - - - - - - - -	898881 · 8 · 88888 · 8 · 8	<pre><2.1 <5 <5 <11 2.2J 56 330 150 110 330 150 110 - 62 57 14 140 15 290 </pre>		17 - 20 - 21 17 - 5.3 <i>i</i> 7.6 8.6 <i>j</i> - 3.4 5 2.6	- - - 1.3J - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -		- <1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1		- 63 25 79 150 - 280 78 35 - 85 - 85 - 5 <5 <5 <5 <5 <5	- 290 150 - 250 110 250 - 310 220 89 - 190 - - - 5 <5 <5 <5 <5		5.96 6.59 5.69 6.01 6.45 6.43 6.45 6.43 6.45 6.43 6.64 6.64 6.64 6.64 6.64 8.65 8.86 8.86	0.35 0.99 4.57 0.00 1.97 2.07 3.72 4.8570.47 0.21 1.30 - 0.15 - 0.16 - 0.76 10.09 0.83 2.99 10.22	124 20 -63 -271 -126 -272 -126 -126 -115 - -98 - -98 - - - - 97 -115 -121 -121 -140 -119	0.607 0.209 0.744 0.694 0.732 0.611 1.061 1.725 1.505 2.341 - - 1.695 - - 1.595 1.180 0.684 1.1736	3.29 10.20 9.70 10.55 10.82 7.41 2.42 15.00 - 8.88 - - 22.00 3.80 7.50 12.30 2.30 3.80 7.50	13.1 12.8 12.0 11.9 11.0 12.4 11.8 14.3 16.6 - 16.8 - 16.8 18.7 18.7 18.7 13.4 13.4 13.4 13.4
Analogia event [17/100] Monkoling event [07/100] Monkoling event 2 07/100] Monkoling event 3 07/100] Monkoling event 3 07/100] Monkoling event 4 07/100] Monkoling event 4 07/100] Monkoling event 4 07/100] Monkoling event 4 07/100] Monkoling event 4 07/100] Monkoling event 4 07/100] Monkoling event 4 07/100] Monkoling event 4 07/100] Monkoling event 4 07/100] Monkoling event 4 07/100] Monkoling event 4 07/100] Monkoling event 4 07/100] Monkoling event 10 07/100] Monkoling event 12 07/100] Monkoling event 12 07/100] Monkoling event 13 07/100]	138.00	64.18 64.27 54.27 64.23 63.35 63.21 62.22 64.10 64.00 62.92 62.25 62.40 61.61 62.27 62.40 61.61 62.27 62.40	26 - - 5,200 3,100 1,200 31 <200 31 <200 31 ,200 31 ,200 3 3 2,4 670 9,7 680 <2	4,000 - 1,700 640 1,000 1,300 23 <200 - 640 820 <2 <2 1,100 64 820 <2 <2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	2,200 - - 1,600 1,600 1,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,700 1,800 2,700 1,800 2,000 2,700 1,8	<pre>\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$</pre>	8.5J 3.7 2.8 4.0 3.4 8.7 <1 4.2 7.1 7.5 6.9 5.6 7.6 8.9 5.6 7.6 8.5 4.5	20 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 0 - 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	92 44 - 38 15 7.3 3.3 96 96 270 31 30 6.3 180 17 5.9 130 6.1 290		0.43J - + + + + + 5 - + - + 5 - + - + - + - + - + + + + + + + + + + +		- 180 - 190 180 - 240 240 240 240 240 240 250 330 520 450 530 450 670	- 30 - 20 18 - 37 42 140 - 59 120 170 89 200J 110 150J		- 63 79 93 - 252 21 - 3 300 <5 <5 <5 <5 <5 <5	210 - 290 376 - 240 62 - 230 280 100 12 280 100 12 25 5 4 4	- - - - - - - - - - - - - -	6.28 4.77 - 6.84 6.85 6.72 6.74 6.80 6.86 6.70 8.76 6.83 6.70 6.83 6.83 6.83 6.84 7.02 6.10 6.73 6.95	0.43 1.33 0.00 0.75 0.25 4.28 4.3800.7* 0.31 1.84 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.30 1.09 9.17 0.40 0.82 0.62	46 48 - -293 -75 -75 -120 -102 -124 -107 -225 -128 -129 -138 -159 -138 -138 -195 -138 -195 -161 -161 -161 -161 -161 -161 -161 -16	0.812 2.795 0.893 0.795 0.834 0.771 1.480 3.804 1.606 1.285 1.522 1.464 1.222 1.464 1.222 1.464 1.222 1.347 0.972 1.905	7.28 4.40 - - 1.30 1.04 2.08 0.81 1.68 2.90 5.01 8.70 39.20 18.90 4.30 38.70 38.70	14.4 13.4 - 12.0 13.7 13.8 17.0 13.7 17.0 13.7 17.0 12.2 16.3 14.5 16.5 16.5 16.5 16.8 12.7 12.4 14.6
AV-4 Beschreit 1, 12,14(1) Hotikorna erwirt 1, 11,02/03 Akonatorio erwirt 2, 1, 11,02/03 Akonatorio erwirt 2, 1, 11,02/03 Monatorio erwirt 4, 11,02/03 Monatorio erwirt 4, 11,02/03 Monatorio erwirt 4, 11,02/03 Monatorio erwirt 5, 14,02/03 Monatorio erwirt 5, 14,02/03 Monatorio erwirt 1, 14,02/02 Monatorio erwirt 1, 14,00/02/02 Monatorio erwirt 1, 14,00/02/0	136,00	84,58 64,67 65,05 64,70 83,64 83,84 83,84 83,82 - 64,45 64,44 83,35 82,80 82,08 82,08 83,11 82,35 82,35 82,80 83,11 82,35 82,80 82,08 83,11 82,35 82,80 82,80 82,80 82,80 82,80 82,80 82,80 82,80 82,80 82,80 82,80 82,80 82,80 82,80 82,80 83,80 84,80 83,80 84,80 83,80 83,80 84,80 83,80 83,80 84,80 83,80 84,80 83,80 83,80 84,80 83,80 84,80 83,80 84,80 83,80 84,80 83,80 84,80 83,80 84,80 83,80 84,80 83,80 84,80 83,80 84,80 84,80 84,80 83,80 84,80 84,80 84,80 84,80 83,80 84,80 84,80 84,80 83,80 84,80 84,80 83,80 84,80,80 84,80,80 84,80 84,80 84,80 84,80 84,80 84,80 84,80 8	11000J 11,000 14,000 15,000 10,000 11,000 8,300 4,100 8,300 4,100 8,300 1,300 2,500 5,100 2,500 250	4.6J 3.9 7.9 68 300 540 380 280 280 280 280 280 280 280 2	<2 	 - -<	<1 <1 <1 1.0 3.2 5.9 <100 -1 12 5.6 12 18 17 14 18 17		<0.5 <5 <5 11 38 63 120 78 180 230 50 780 1,700 880 300 510 510 260 71 2		17 	- - 0.3.1 - 0.2.1(<2' 3.2 <2 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	2.73 <5 - <5 35 - 86 110 180 110 160 160 190 170 280 270 250 250	- - - - - - - - - -	~ 	- 70 35J 38 170 - 110 280 84 - 98 210 73 <5 <5 <5 <5 <5	- 210 33.J - 81 560 - 78 - 120 160,J 170 52 33 37 <5 33 37 <5 13	- 1.9 10.3 - 0.83 1.8 - 100 7.6 24 - 46 38 - - 46 38 000 16,000 23,000 17,000 26,000 29,000	5.19 6.26 6.18 6.18 6.38 6.08 6.03 5.98 5.33 4.91 4.85 6.13 4.57 6.59 6.49 6.25	0.55 0.7 1.54 0.00 0.62 1.89 0.20 0.86 0.01 0.10 0.25 0.26 0.25 0.69 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.34 1.74 0.47 0.25	206 128 -256 -411 -438 -425 -349 -347 -50 -222 -60 -222 -60 -12 -134 -128 -120	0.814 0.760 0.745 0.850 0.765 0.890 0.745 0.757 1.198 2.214 0.968 1.737 2.784 2.328 1.162 1.635 0.848 0.848 1.069 1.148	9.90 17.00 17.60 17.60 1.90 2.77 4.12 9.20 7.31 16.70 11.60 4.40 25.60 171.60 1.74.60 0.30 0.76	14.8 11.1 13.2 12.0 11.7 12.8 14.1 16.9 14.3 16.3 16.3 16.3 17.9 16.3 17.9 16.3 17.3 13.3 13.3 13.3

te:

Laboratory Parameters

ing.

en ne

F.

P-0000

Field Parameters

. - 19

21

-1

r · •1

Table 8. Summary of Key Analytical Results and Field Parameter Measurements, ERD Application, AOC 50, Devens, Massachusetts

departs in read

Table 8.	Summary of Key Analytical Results	and Fi	eld Par	ameter	Measu	rements, l	ERD Appli	cation, A	OC 50,	Devens,	Massac	husetts							<i>.</i>						
		שי	Diw		<u>г., -</u>		1	Γ		<u> </u>	Labore	llorý Párar	neters :	Dissolved	Dissolved	Dissolved		1				FIBIC F	arameters	T1	
dia ang		(feet)	(feet)	PCE	TCE	6-1,2-DCE	I- 1,2-DCE	1,1-DCE	vc	тос	Atkatinity	Sulfate	Sulficie	Arsenic	tron (Fe ²⁺)	Manganese	Ethane	Ethene	Methane	pН	DO	ORP	SpC	Turbidily	Temp
- Normalized County - 19						(μ Ω/ L)				(mg/L)	4.] (μ g /L)	<u> </u>	к <u>и</u> /L)	(0	g/L)) (UQ/L)	(SU)	(mg/L)	(mv)	(ma)		<u> </u>
MW-S	Baseline 1 (c), The Ministry 1, 12/18/01	140.95	63.66	1,200	810	260	<2	0.82.)	<2	15		4.5		-	-	-	240	250	520	6.15 8.51	0.58	-78 -85	0.894	4.76	12.1
	Monitoring Event 2		-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-		-		1 2	_	-	-	-	-		-		-	-
Sec.	Monitoring event 3 01/30/02 Monitoring event 6 02/13/02	-	54.04	-	<u> </u>	1 -] _	1 -	-	5.4 <5	_	=		160	=	-		-	-	6.55	1.20	-299	0.877	3.20	12.3
(Article)	Monitoring event 5 Monitoring event 8 March 2012/02 Monitoring event 8 March 2012/02	-	63.75	2,000	470	280	<2 -	0.85J	2	1,8	· -	35J	~ ~	170	17J	8.4 -	39	120	630.1	6.60	2.32	-58	0.910	2.75	14,2
	Monitoring event 71 s 344 and 04/18/02 Monitoring event 8	-	63.20 63.04	1,900	440 510	160 170	<2 <2	<1	~2 ~2	<5 <5	<u> </u>	11,1	0.013/2.6*	180 250	32 12	5.2 4.9	36 51	180 210	470	6.52 6.61	0.15/0.76*	-47 -57	0.725 0.737	5.07 3.09	18.5
	MonBoring event 9 100000 06/25/02 MonBoring event 10 T 10000 07/31/02	-	62.63	3,100	780	390	0.54J	1.9	<2	8.8	-	11J	2.2	200	19	7.1	32	91	590	6.68	0.08	-73	1.467	4.89	16,2
	Monitoring event 11 08/25/02		-	-	-				1	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	32.000				- 2 1 3 3	-	
	Manifoding event (3 01/29/05	-	62.78	1,400	160	640	<2	1.5	~2	170	420	11		360	240	-	<5	38	29,000	6.61	0.83	-122	1.445	4.17	10.0
	Monitoring event 15 00/22/03	_	61.75	800 960	85 73	690 530	<2	1.7	3	26	350	<8.8	~2	490	190 150	4.4	<5 <5	<5 <5	33,000	6.74 6.33	0.60	-135	1.573	32.00 9.90	18.4
	Monitoring event 16 01407/04 Manitoring event 17 03/11/04	-	61.19 62.56	270	35 <2	1,000	<2 <2	3.8	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	56 310	350 730	2.8J 5.7	<2 <2	450J 510	2101	6.5 6.8	<5 <5	<5 <5	31,000	6.62 8.19	0.75	-152 -140	1.232	227.60 89.60	13.0
Par Maria	Montaring event 18 05/02/04		61.18	13	9.6	790 2005-271	<2	2.5	<2	180	340	1.4	<2	580	250J	6.7	<5 46645533	13 	27,000	8.84 1817-8	0.06	-116 -116	1.575	130.50	15.7
URACE	Managara and a second south and an	1 195 07	l es 48	1 450	-20	1 <20	L <20	1 ~10	l ~20			15	i	l _	F _	i _	1	1	1 -	1 8 4 4	1 1 17	214	0.482	1 7 00	1 14.8
	Monitoring event 1 01/02/02	-	63.71		-		-	-	~	<5	-	-	-	2.2J	<1		40	180	0.8	6.93	1.73	109	0.177	12.40	12.4
	Monitoring event 3		63.92	300	0.760	-	-	-	-	210	-			<5	-	-	-	1.30	1.1	5.33	0.00	-263	0.632	15.00	13,0
Acade (10 Pro	Monitoring event 4 22/12/02 Monitoring event 5 (2005) - 02/12/02		63,59 63,42	330 270	0.96J 4.2	1J 2.3	44	<1 <1	~2 ~2	1,100 510	· -	86 54J	1.9.1	14 43	18 44J	23 11	96 110	280	1.43	4.54	0.48	-413 -180	1.300	33.00 16.80	11.4
and the second	Monitoring event 5 Monitoring event 7 94/18/02	-	62.74	200 130	4.3	2.8 2.8	2	ব	<2 <2	340 200	-	16J	0.174/<2*	- 54	- 96	8.3	170		2.9	5.09 5.46	6.04/1.4	-325 -182	0.766	10.39 22.80	13.8
Alter a start	Monitoring event 8 contractive 05/15/02 Monitoring event 9	-	62.81	150 280J	3 <200.1	3.7 <200.)	<2	<1 61	<2	380 610		14 33J	3.2	150J 220J	90 160	14	130 61	520 170	4.8	5.27	0.25	-15 -27	1.265	14.00	14.7
	Mondorine event 10	-	- 83.76	-		-	-	-	-		· ••	-	-		-	-		-	-	-		-	1 0 3 7	20.10	17.8
	Manhoring event 12	-	64,04	160	8.5	23	42	<1	4	1,900	610	-	<2	630	250	3.2	460	720	200	4.74	1.89	19	2.008	26.00	13.7
-	Machine Print 3 Part 2 Unavers	-	61.20	15 : 45	3.5	25	<2	<1	<2	840	400	35	~2	430 180	130	Ξ.	130	1,000	4,200	4.40	1.97 0.89	113	1.384	25.10 39.60	18.5
	Monitoring event 15 09/22/03 Monitoring event 16	-	61.70 60.65	15 20	2.7	51 50	<2 <2	<1	<2 <2	480 1,600	490	.70	- 4	190 260	140 160J	2.9 2.9	<5 <5	670 380	7,300	4.12 4.81	0.85	52 -5	1.182	33.10 10.10	16.0 IF
12132	Monitoring prent 17 22 20 03/10/04 Monitoring event 18 18 05/03/04	5	62.03 60.92	19 23	3.8 5.5	62 72	<2 <2	<1 <1	<2 <2	1,600	690 750	110 240	2.5 16	240	170 240J	3.8 3.5	18 <5	120 79	8,200	4,43	3.69 0.36	-311 51	1.616 2.497	2103.60 17.00	14.1
	AND A DEALER AND A DEALER AND	166 A 14	NS 62	<i>P</i> RIAL		<u>caré est</u>	100	ANDICE	MALIS	er and the	FAREAR	1902.83			SK NOW	NE OF SA	200 M	t i de de sec	42023:15	ALS ROL	Man Stat	Varkie B	LECEN		No.
MMT	Baseline 4 12/20/01		<u>i ch</u>				orzieje,	18 day	3 36				di en	de ke					u tran	dá v	69.9 A		治疗 者法		
(and a star	Montaring event 2 a 2 1 01/10/02		いほう	14 9 F		1000	szer.			5.2			Veti Installed	Week End	PQ 27402	[0, 0]			27			100		段的 社	
这条 件合	Monturing event 4 20 1 1 201 3002	135.00	63.41	5,900	4.5	<2	<2	<1	<2	3.33		20	La.0	<5	<1 <1	0.17J	120	80	8.4	6.12	1.58	104	0.787	90.00	13.8
	Monitoring event 5		63,27	5,700	4.2	- 2	~	<1 -	<2 -	2J -	-	22,1	<2	<5 -	<1.	<1 -	64	180	5.9J -	6.12	2.29	203	6.808 	8.85	13.9
	Monitoring event 7 0410/02 Monitoring event 8 112 000 06/15/02		62,52 62,38	4,200 5,700	2.9 4.3	<2 <2	2	<1 <1	2 V V	4		18J 18J	<0.039/1.6 <i>3</i> <2J	2.3J <5	0.59/<1	<1 <1	72 97	200	6	6,11 6.05	0.5/1.0*	145 185	0.656	19.50 23.90	18.8
900.00	Monitoring event 9 U.S. 06/25/02 Monitoring event 10 U.S. 07/31/82		82.70	5,300	<200J	<200 J	<200J	<1J _	<200J	<5		19J	<2	4	4	4				8.13	0.73	163	1.158	100.00	18,2
	Monitoring event 11	-	63.11	4,700	3.5	2	<2 12	41	4	<5	-	- -		<5		-	-	-	}	8.13	0.29	138	0.832	1,88	16.1
	Monitoring event 13	-	61.98	4,700	3.1	<2	<2	<1	4	<5	23 19	16	-	<5	<1 <1	<1 -	44	75	23	6.05 5.80	2,20	171	0.779	3.63 1.08	13.9
1.00	Monitoring event 15	-	61.30	4,200	3.3	Ž	<2	<1.	4	<5			-	<5	<1	- 	15	27	58	3.40	t.43	522	0.691	0.30	15.7
	Monitoring event 18 01/08/04 Monitoring event 17 03/12/04	-	61.41 61,60	4,300 3,100	2.8	22	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	<1 <1	<2 <2	<5 <1	27 24	14J 15M	~2	<5 <5	্ব ব	0.13	11 20	26 280	25 6.3	6.02 6.04	IF 0.47	198 162	0.481 0.556	15.00	11.1
	Acotomic event 18	-	60,65	2.900	2.6	<2	<2	<1	<2	<5	24	15	<2	<5	<1	0.11	12	34	34	5.96	0.31	205	0.560	1.02	14.4

Stand ID	Events	Date in	σ	DTW								Labora	Norv Parar	nelers			21 A - A - A			· · · ·		· · · ·	Field F	arameters	
n arts (19) N Alfred			(feet)	(feet)	PCE	TCE	6-1,2-DCE	I- 1,2-DGE	1,1-DCE	vc	TOC	Alkalinity	Sulfate	Sulfide	Dissolved Arsenic	Dissolved Iron (Fe ^{2*})	Dissolved Manganese	Ethane	Ethene	Methane	рн	во	ORP	SpC	Turbi
TEXTER COM								ug/L)				(mg/L)	ا خذا المعادمة		(49/L)	(r	<u>ynt)</u>	(<u>n</u>	<u>/U</u>	(ug/L)	(SU)	(mg/L)	(<u>my)</u>	(ms)	T Will
G8M-97-29X	Bossine	12/18/01	193.20	64.74	<2	<2	<2	<2	<1	<2	<2.4	- 1	12	-	-	ĺ -	-	1 -	-	-	6.21	4.63	265	0.310	10.
downooident	Monitoriog event 1	01/02/02	-	65.09	12	1	-	_	-	-	<6		-	-	<5	<1 -	-	26	110	1 1	6.16	6.15	182	0.328	6.
Injection line	Monitoring over 3	01/30/02	_	_	-	-	- 1	-			<5		-	-	- 1	-	-	-	-	-	6.26	2.678	141	0,282	-
east of olum	Moniforing event 4	02/13/02	-	64.66 64.61	<2.3	<2	<2	<2	<1	<2	<5 0 B L	1 2	<u> </u>	-	5	-	-	-	1 =	1 2	4.04	4.52	216	0.310	4.0
	Moniforing event 6	04/02/02			-		-	-] =	-	-	-			12	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	- 1
	Mondolling event 7/	04/18/02	-	63.91 63.53	1.4J	\$2	20	~ ~	<1	<2	<5		13.1	2.2	<5	4	<1 	<5 18	<5 71	0.49	6.07	4.5/4.5"	257	0.251	0.0
	Montoring event 9	06/25/02	-	63.53	<1.4	2	2	4	<1	<2	<5	-	12J	2.9	-5	<1	<1		- 1	-	6.28	5.07	187	0.188	18
Contraction of the	Monadring event 10	07/31/02	-	-	- 1	.=	-	-		-	[- i	· -	-	~		· •	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	
	Monitoring event 12	10/28/02	-	_	1	-	1 -	_		_			7.2	-	-) I.	Ξ.	1 -	1 -	-	-	1 -	1 - 1	1 -	
M.D. 2413-5	Manifoling event 13	01/29/03		~	. –	-	1 -			+	-	<		-	-] -	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	
1990 S. C.	Monitoring event 15	06/22/03	1 1	-	· _		1 2	-			-		_	Ĩ	<u> </u>		1	<u> </u>	-	1 -		-	1 -	-	1 2
dia dia mandri	Monitoring every 18	01/06/04	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-							-	-	-	-	-	-	-
	Monitoring event 47	05/05/04	-	-	-	_	2	· -			-	1 2	<u> </u>	-	-	-	-	1 -	1 -	1 2	<u> </u>			-	
00044044	ter dare dar start d	Obaleg Rei 4		6:120	Next 8			HARDER	S CONTRACT	or an an an an an an an an an an an an an	19191454			n da kara	<u>é feli a s</u> e	(HARA)		in men	13376 <u>0</u> 1		(A)ACE	04772540	Sea t		1922
G614 96-32X 1	Baseline	12/16/01	134.80	64.79	<2	0.94,1	L96.0	4	<1	<2	<1.8	I -	14	i		1 1	 -	i -	1 -	1 -	5.88	0.52	251	0,864	1 1
(100 feet	Monitoring event 1	01/02/02		65.DO		-	-	-	-	•	<5	-	-	-	<5	<1	-	760	120	140	5.92	0.54	124	1,018	4
A DECLOSED	Monitating event 3	01/30/02		-	1	-	! =	-		-	<5	1 -	1 -	_			-			= ;	5.96	0.00	-30	0.977	
source and prome	Maniforing event 4	02/19/02	-	64,97	2,600	1.2J	<2	<2	<1	<2	<5		-	-	<5	-	-	-	-	-	5.96	0.47	59	0.927	16
	Monitoring event 5	04/02/02	-	- 04.07	=	=	-	-		_	0.00	1 -		-	2	1 -	-	1 -	=		a.wo ∽	0.36	31	0.940	<u>.</u>
	Monitoring event 7	04/18/02	-	63.99	2,100	13	<2	~2	<1	<2	<5	-	16.1	<0.035/3.2	<5	<1	4	8.7	13	38	5.81	7.05/2.0	197	0.601	0.
	Monitoring event 9	06/25/02	-	63.45	3,900	71	~~	<2	<1 <1	4 2	<5	1	15J	2.2	<5	4	<1	1 -	40	-	5.90	2.79	200	0.912	14
	Maniforing event 10	97/a1/02			-	-	-	-	- 1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	~		-	-	-	-	-		1.
	Monitoring event 12	10/28/02	-	64.63	470	340	650	*2 2.6	<1 1.4	<2	19	430	-	2.3	41	3.6	6	1 -			6.80	1.93	-58	1.321	2.0
	Monitoring everal 13	01/20/03	-	63.27	180	42	640	3.1	1.6	<2	14	450	6.5	-	- 38	4.6J	-	23	270	460	6,48	5,05	-23	1.352	0.2
	Montoring event 15	09/22/03	-			-	-	-	_	-	-	-	-	-	1 2	1 -		=	-		-		1 2	-	
	Monitoring event 16	01/06/04	-	-	-	-				-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		~		-	-
	e Monacing evers 1	DECL/N	-	62.05	220		1 500	~7	24	21	78	450	47	101	200	- -			72	32 000	8.24	0.08	-127	1.571	11

G8M-02-10X	Baselino	12/20/01			BER			NCHOR						Markovski	e de la compañía de la compañía de la compañía de la compañía de la compañía de la compañía de la compañía de l					i k	Maria			ti da		
downgradient o	Montana word 2	01/16/02		91		4						e de la de		Velt Installed	Week End	ng \$/3/02 : 10.000	14 L		老 期						9-92	國際
elong plume.	Montaining event 4	02/13/02			-9-1-1 -	- 19 19		51 A T	2120			40.11		128				$\pm \pm i$			品站			h 🖓		
	Montoring event 6	04/02/02	a are ar								1.00	1 and		1.1.1	的人							Notes of	5.0			
	Moniforning event 8	05/16/02	135.00	63.23	800	730	440	0.62 J	1.3	<2		-	-	-	190.	~	**		-	_	6.70	0.55	-175	1.225	5.25	16.5
1000	MonRoring event 9 22 13 2	08/25/02	-	62.82	2,500	620	660	<2	1.7	<2	8.5	-	-	-	130	-	- ·	-	-	-	8.90	0.03	-74	2.173	5.38	15.2
	Monitoring event 10 to 1	07/31/02	- 1	-	— .	-		4	- 1	-	20		-	-	- 1		- 1	**	-	-	6.29	0.19	-156	0,980	-	12.1
and the second second	Monitoring event 11	08/25/02	-	64.12	260	710	530	<2	1.6	2	12	-	-	-	95	-	-	65	150	47	6.43	0.33	-41	0.385	5.41	17,7
	Monitoring event 12	10/28/02	-	64.06	170	130	540	<2	<1	2	21	360	7.2	2.6	130	25	12	21	200	360	6.64	2.67	-52	1.450	6.92	14.9
	Montioned event 12	8 20 01/29/03	-	63.00	39	22	790	<2	2.3	<2	70	310	<1	-	150	34	-	54	270	350	6.71	2.75	-88	1.825	3.30	11.0
10.000	Monitoring event 14 cards	07/18/03		61.99	87	38	560	<2	4.2	<2	130	460	<4.9	<2	270	160	-	<5	110	18,000	6.70	0.63	-151	1.709	9.90	17.8
COLLAND IN	Monkoring event 15	e (c) (c) 22403	-	62,47	· <2	<2 ·	720	<2	2.6	<2	200 ;	. –	: . .		490	180	31	<5	400	28,000	6.56	0.87	-155	2.238	3.60	15.0
1. S. B. C. C.	Montoring event 16	01/07/04		61.36	<2	<2	730	<2	2.6	4	180	740	1.6J	~2	680J	270J	27	<5	<5	41,000	6.86	0.61	-188	1.683	27.70	12,9
國際的統計	Monitoring event 17	C3/06/04	-	62.75	5.7	<2	720	· <2	2.1	<2	61	430	3	2	710	<10	16	<5	< S	40,000	6.93	0.19	-141	1.429	5.30	12.5
14. J. C. & 9. S.	Monitoring availa 18	02. 06/04/04		61.45	<2	<2	890	<2	2.8	<2	51	460	1.3	2.9	700	230J	14	<\$	37	36000	6.31	2.88	-174	1.655	0.18	13,9
1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	Same Carlos Andres Carlos	1, 200 (B. 70, 70)	22 S- 1- 240	and straight	= -1	214160	1. A. S.	1. Sec. 1. Sec. 1	1. 10.	. Salati	10.1	Section.	126.241	AD STAR.	10 20 -	· 经任何公式	Contraction of the second	1.25 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1.	ter al brachers	40.000	a A a dra	al lastense	前任在加	State Party		2020136

Manager

.

jun aande kennengede	and the grant state	and the second s	N IN THE STREET	Hittersseniali Referencesiali		in de la companya		ar sooffi	Mission and Macanatra		ğ⊢ ,i	মা দ বা ভ	17 TU	9°	nan ma'laning Tagʻ	يون در در معلم ۲۱۰	-19 Pr -19 Pr	inn vilstanin I''d	ан чаланана 5° 1 ° 5		раналан ал ородон ал Географија и сеографија и сеографи Географија и сеографија и сеографи		19 19		بھت	gy y a s	-11
	Table 8,	Summary of H	Key Analytica	Results and	Field Para	ameter	Measur	ements, E	ERD Appli	cation, A	OC 50,	Devens,	Massac	husetts													
			ni Solo da series Solo de case	UDade ∏ Setter (let	s ptw s) (feet)	PCĒ		c-1,2-DCE	I- 1.2-DCE	1,1-DCE	vc	тос	Labore Aikažinity	Sulfate	sulfide	Dissolved Arsenic	Dissolved Iron (Fe ² ')	Dissolved Manganese	Ethane	Ethene	Methane	рH	60	ORP	SpC	Turbidity	Тетр
	G8M-02-11X	Baseline	ili de la composición Notas	122001				6]]2221003	-9 <u>4)</u> 		An an an an an an an an an an an an an an		(mg/L)	STA		(19/L)(19/L)	<u>i (r</u>	igrt) Sisserialia	en) Si si		<u>(ugrt)</u>	<u>_(su)</u>	(ng/L)	<u>(mv)</u>	<u>(mS)</u>	I (NTUS)	
	downgradient : ipiectics line along plune	Monitoring even Monitoring even Monitoring even		01/16/02 01/30/02 02/13/02	i grad da Fili dage						97 (P) 4049 40				(et installed (frid	Week End	ng 7/26/02	orini di po Interneti di po									
	s ceiderline) Sea contra Turba contra	Monitoring even Monitoring even Monitoring even Monitoring even	15 (6) (7) (7) (8) (8)	00012/02 0402/02 04/14/02 06/16/02														andra an Saidheadh Saidheadh									
		Monitoring even Monitoring even Monitoring even	ca rno Classica	06/25/02 135 07/31/02 135 08/26/02 -	00 62.44 62.30	450 540 070	2.8 <2 22	4 6 6 1	20.0	<pre></pre>	42 <2 <2 <2 <2 <2	<5	- - -	- - -	<u> </u>	45 <5 <5 <5 <5	- -				- - -	6.01 6.05 6.02	0.46 0.51 0.49	184 173 51	0.984 0.905	8.13 6.49 5.04	18.6 15.0 12.1
		Monitoring even Monitoring aven Monitoring even	(15 ⁻⁷⁴) (14-74) (15-74)	01/29/03 07/16/03 '99/22/03	61.46 60.33 60.55	710 530 590	22 54 31	<2 33 37	4 4 4 4 7 4 4 4	त त	4444	<5 <5 19	65 120	 <16 	- <2 -	<5 <5 <5	- ব ব ব		<\$ <5	- 14 <5	460 1200	6.31 6.80	0.71 0.86 0.41	178 168 146	0.971 0.813 0.921	12.70 11.90 7.20	9.8 15.4 13.9
		Monitoring even Monitoring even Monitoring even	(18 (17 (18	01/08/04 - 03/10/04 05/04/04 -	59.81 61.00 59.79	300 160 440	15 11 23	49 53 54	<2 <2 <2	<1 <1 <1	<2 <2 <2	<5 1.8 <5	150 130 110	12J 9.6 12	<2 <2 1.8J	<5 <5 <5	<1 <1 <1	1.9 2.2 1.9	<5 <5 <5	9.3 68 10	2300 14,000 2,300	6.29 6.39 6.72	اF 0.82 12.13 12.13	104 103 55	0.729 0.847 0.807	0.60 7.50 21.30	10.7 13.2 14.1
	G684-02-32X (300 feet)	Baseline Monitoring even	(LALIMU)	12/20/01				换 译	$\mathbf{H}_{\mathbf{A}}$	A Good Al Coop				9.91.	(el loctation	Werk End	ing 7/28/02										
	Auection line along Plume pentertine)	Monitoring even Monitoring even Monitoring even	13	01/30/02 02/13/02 03/12/02								1								enne ration ration							
		Montoring even Montoring even Montoring even		04/18/02 06/15/02 06/25/02																rala. Geografi							
		Monitoring even Monitoring even Monitoring even	110 - 1995 111 112 - 1995 112 - 1995 112 - 1995	07/31/02 135. 08/28/02 10/28/02 01/29/03	00 - 61.14 60.98 59.97	330 520 790 580	1.7J 6.5 10 4	0 A A A	\$ \$ \$ \$	ব ব ব ব	4444	- <5 - <5	 40 52			থ থ থ থ					1 1	6.24 6.15 6.14 6.04	0.64 0.19 0.27	19 156 68 78	0.924 0.668 0.927 0.947	37.60 2.96 2.08 5.05	18,2 14.2 13.5 12.8
		Monitoring over Monitoring even Monitoring even	114 116 116	07/16/03 09/22/03 01/06/06		-			-	-		<5 -	-	-	- - -			-				-		- -	-		
		Mantoring even	10 18 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 1	08401/04				_	_ 						-				- Gradin	2019 30.	_ 20157555	-		-	_ 	SCREENSS S	
	GBM-02-13X (279 feet upgrachent of Unrection line	Baseline Monitoring event Monitoring event Monitoring event		12/20/01 01/02/02 01/16/02 01/16/02		1999) (5.44) (5.44)									el (natelio)	Week End	ng 7/25/02	n de la de Persona de Recent		alina Ugaza							
	along pluma contentine)	Moniforing even Moniforing even Moniforing even	and a characteristic of a characteristic description of the second	02/13/02 03/12/02 04/02/02											e de la de la desenación la desenación					en de la composition Al fondation						ne san Serak Serak	
		Monitoring aven Monitoring aven Monitoring aven	6 10 10 10 15 1	06/15/02 06/15/02 09/25/02 07/31/02 120	00 ~ 00	4600		1.9J	<2	 <1	<2	-		-	-	<pre></pre>	[] -		- 1		-	6.17	0.54	141	0.665	7.62	19.7
		Montering even Montering even Mantering even		06/26/02 10/25/02 01/29/03 07/15/03	111							-			2 1 6 1					1 1 1					-		
		Moniforing event Moniforing event Moniforing event	15 16 17 - 23 - 36	09/22/03 - 01/06/04 - 03/06/04	-	111	. — — . — .		-							-	-	-	-	3 4 1			-		-		
	10.200	Level and a series			a lo assess	- 			Nevāsis	lievēm	302775	Series a	- FRISTER:	zane		-	Lana Topa				SIZE TON	61.00D	an in the second	wind		Lie	

Notes:

- Indicates parameter was not measured or analyzed -
- Miligrams per liter, equivalent to parts per milion Milorans per liter, equivalent to parts per milion Micrograms per liter, equivalent to parts per billion Nanograms per liter, equivalent to parts per trilion Standard Unit
- mg/L ug/L n/L SU mV mS
- Millivotts
- Milli Siemens

*C Degrees Celcius

- IF
- Indicates instrument failure Indicates field data collected with Hach spectrophotometer followed by (/) laboratory analytical data

÷ 1









BRASA SE

Poli- Linux



and the second se



F A Alexandra Ba

ſ 11

. . .

F B 1

1

1.

.

New Sector

ARAR TYPE	MEDIUM	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Chemical	Groundwater	Sale Drinking Water Act, National Primary Drinking Water Regulations, Moximum Contaminant Levels [40 CFR Parts 141.14 - 141.16 and 141.50 - 141.53]	Relevant and Appropriate	The National Primary Drinking Water Regulations (NPDWR) establish maximum contaminant Levels (MCLs) and Maximum Contaminant Level Goals (MCLGs) for several common organic and inorganic contaminants. MCLs specify the maximum permissible concentrations of contaminants in public drinking-water supplies. MCLs are federally enforceable standards based in part on the availability and cost of treatment techniques. MCLGs specify the maximum concentration at which no known or anticipated adverse effect on humans will occur. MCLGs are non-enforceable health-based goals that are always set equal to or lower than MCLs.	The MCLs for the chemicals of concern (COCs) will be met through active remediation of groundwater in selected areas of the phimes.
Chemical	Surface Water	Clean Water Act, Ambient Water Quality Criteria, 33 USC 1314, 40 CFR 131,36(b)(1), 63 Fed. Reg. 68359	To be considered	National recommended criteria for surface water quality establishes numerous criteria for constituents	Ambient water quality criteria were evaluated during the assessment of potential ecological risks and the development of preliminary remediation goals for AOC 50

TABLE 6 Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Remedial Alternative 6 AOC 50, Devens, Massachusetts

.

1

TABLE 6
Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Remedial Alternative 6
AOC 50, Devens, Massachusetts

•

and a second provide the

ARAR TYPE	MEDIUM	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Chemical	Groundwater	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards [314 CMR 6.00]	Applicable	Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards designate and assign uses for which groundwaters of the Commonwealth shall be maintained and protected and set forth water-quality eriterin necessary to maintain the designated uses. Groundwater at Devens RFTA is classified GW-1. Groundwaters assigned to this class are fresh groundwaters designated as a source of potable water supply.	314 CMR 6.00 will be met by achieving MMCLs for COCs. The MMCLs for COCs will be met through active remediation of groundwater plume. Groundwater monitoring will be performed to measure changes in COC. State groundwater quality standards that are more stringent that Federal MCLs will be used as remediation goals.
Chemical	Groundwater	Massachusetts Drinking Water Standards and Guidelines [310 CMR 22.00]	Relevant and Appropriate	The Massachusetts Drinking Water Standards and Guidelines list Massachusetts Maximum Contaminant Level (MMCLs), which apply to water delivered to any user of a public water- supply system as defined in 310 CMR 22.00.	Devens groundwater is classified GW-1 and is designated as a source of potable water supply. State MCLs that are more stringent than Federal MCLs will be used as remediation goals.
State Chemical	Surface water	Massachusetts Surface Water Quality Standards [314 CMR 4,00]	Relevant and Appropriate	The Massachusetts Surface Water Quality Standards list Massachusetts surface water standards, which apply to discharge to the waters of the Commonwealth from any source. These standards: designate the most sensitive uses for which the various waters of the Commonwealth shall be enhanced, maintained and protected: prescribe the minimum water quality criteria required to sustain the designated uses; and contain regulations necessary to achieve the designated uses and maintain existing water quality.	Massachusetts Surface Water Quality Standards were considered during the assessment of acceptable risk levels and the development of preliminary remediation goals for AOC 50.

-

· · ·

· · ·

ARAR TYPE Federal Location	Groundwater	REQUIREMENT Floodplain Management Excentive Order No. 11988 [40 CFR Part 6, App. A]	STATUS Applicable, if remedial actions are performed within floodplain	SYNOPSIS Requires federal agencies to evaluate potential adverse effects associated with direct and indirect development of a floodplain. Alternatives that involve modification/ construction within a floodplain may not be selected unless a determination is made that no practicable alternative exists. If no practicable alternative exists, potential harm must be minimized and action taken to restore and preserve the natural and heneficial values of the floodplain.	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT Monitoring wells may be constructed in the Boodplain. All construction in the Boodplain will be conducted in a manner that minimizes harm and preserves and restores the natural and beneficial values of the Boodplain. Appropriate federal agencies will be contacted and aboved to review the proposed work plan for the remedial action prior to implementation of the action.
Federal			1	<u> </u>	
Location	Wetlands	Protection of Weiland Executive Order [1990]40 CFR 6, Appendix A]	Applicable, if remedial actions are performed within wetlands	Requires federal agencies to minimize the destruction, loss, or degradation of wetlands, and to preserve and enhance natural and beneficial values of wetlands. If remediation is required within the wetland areas, and no practical alternative exists, potential harm must be minimized and action taken to restore natural and beneficial values.	Monitoring wells may be constructed in the wetlands. Construction will be performed in a manner that minimizes adverse effects on wetlands, to the extent practicable.
Location	Wetlands	Clean Water Act. Dredge or Fill Requirements Section 404 [33 CRF Part 230; 40 CRF Part 230]	Applicable if remedial actions are performed in U.S. water or within a floodplain	Section 404 of the CWA regulates the discharge of dredged or fill materials to U.S. waters, including wetlands. Filling wetlands would be considered a discharge of fill materials.	Any construction will be performed to minimize adverse effects on aquatic ecosystem.

TABLE 6 Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Remedial Alternative 6 AOC 50, Devens, Massachusetts

1

!"

.

- · ·

. . .

-- , -- 141 | |

.

•

-

ī

TABLE 6
Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Remedial Alternative 6
AOC 50, Devens, Massachusetts

.

un and an experiment approximate approximate and the and the and the second and the second approximate and the second approximate and the second approximate and the second approximate approximate and the second approximate approximat

ARAR TYPE	MEDIUM	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Location	Surface water, Endangered species, Migratory species	Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act [16 USC 661 ct seq.; 40 CFR Part 302]	Applicable	Requires that the US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) and National Marine Fisheries Service be consulted in the alteration of a body of water, such as if installation of monitoring wells in a wetland and/or discharge of pollutants into a wetland will occur as a result of off-site remedial activities. Requires consultation with state agencies to devise measures to prevent, mitigate, or compensate for project- related losses to fish and wildlife.	Construction will be performed in a manner that minimizes adverse effects on wildlife resources and habitat. Measures will be developed to prevent or mitigate project-related impacts to habitat and wildlife. The USFWS, acting as a review agency for the USEPA, will be kept informed of proposed remedial actions.
State					
Location	Groundwater	Massachusetts Wetland Protection Act [310 CMR 10.00]	Relevant and Appropriate	These regulations include standards on dredging, filling, altering, or polluting inland wetlands and protected areas (defined as area within the riverfront area or the 100-year floodplain). A Notice of Intent (NOI) must be filed with the municipal conservation commission and a Final Order of Conditions obtained before proceeding with the activity. A Determination of Applicability or NOI must be filed for activities such as excavation within a 100-foot baffer zone. The regulations specifically prohibit loss of over 5,000 square feet or bordering vegetated wetlands. Loss may be permitted with replication of any fost area within two growing seasons.	Any proposed remedial actions within riverfront area (defined as the river's mean annual high-water line measured horizontally outward from the river and a parallel line located 200 feet away), wetfands, or the 100-foot buffer will be developed and evaluated to minimize adverse effects on wetfands and to attain compliance with the substantive requirements of these regulations.

.

. .

.

TABLE 6
Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Remedial Alternative 6
AOC 50, Devens, Massachusetts

ب ۲

-

•••

.

and the second sec

.

:

- -

• •

1					
ARAR TYPE	MEDIUM	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
Federal					
Action	Groundwater Injection	Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) Regulations, Underground Injection Control Program (40 CFR Parts 144, 146, 147, and 1000)	Relevant and Appropriate	These regulations outline minimum program and performance standards for underground injection programs.	The regulation applies and would be complied with because the alternative includes injection into the aquifer.
Action	Investigation derived waste	USEPA OSWER Publication 9345,303FS, January 1992	To be considered	Management of IDW must ensure protection of human health and the environment.	IDW produced from remedial activities will be managed in compliance with this guidance.
Federal		*			
Αсιίοη	Hozardous Waste	RCRA Regulations. Identification and Listing of Hazardous Waste (40 CFR Part 261)	Applicable	Defines listed and characteristic hazardous wastes subject to RCRA. These regulations would apply when determining whether or not waste on site is hazardous either by being listed or exhibiting a hazardous characteristic as described in the regulations.	Groundwater treatment residues will be evaluated against the criteria and definitions of hazardous weste. The criteria and definition of hazardous waste refers to those wastes subject to regulations as hazardous wastes under 40 CFR parts 124 and 264. HDW produced during remedial activities will be managed in accordance with these regulations.
Action	1 lazardous Waste	Standards Appliethle to Generators of Hazardous Waste (RCRA 40 CFR 262)	Applicable	These regulations establish standards for generators of hazardous waste. RCRA Subtitle C established standards applicable to treatment, storage, and disposal of hazardous waste and closure of hazardous waste facilities.	Freatment residues will be tested to determine whether they contain characteristic hazardous waste. If so, management of the hazardous waste would comply with substantive requirements of these regulations.

•--- ·--

erstenning propositionen Kanta kitta

ARAR TYPE	MEDIUM	REQUIREMENT	STATUS	SYNOPSIS	ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO ATTAIN REQUIREMENT
State					
Action	f fazardous Waste	Massachusetts Hazardoos Waste Management Rules: 340 CMR 30.000	Relevant and Appropriate	This requirement sets standards for generators of bazardous waste that address (1) accumulating waste, (2) preparing hazardous waste for shipment, and (3) preparing the uniform hazardous waste manifest. Massachusetts specifics requirements for very small quantity generators, as well as small and large quantity generators.	If RCRA-characteristic hazardous wastes are generated, the material will be managed in accordance with these requirements.

TABLE 6 Synopsis of Federal and State ARARs for Remedial Alternative 6 AOC 50, Devens, Massachusetts

Noles:

ARARs = Applicable, Relevant and Appropriate Regulations MMCL = Massachusetts Maximum Contaminant Level CERCLA = Comprehensive Environmental Response, NOI = Notice of Intent Compensation, and Liability Act NPDWR = National Primary Drinking Water Regulations NSDWR = National Secondary Drinking Water Regulations CFR = Code of Federal Regulations OSWER = Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response CMR = Code of Massachusetts Regulations RCRA = Resource Conservation and Recovery Act COC= Chemical of Concern RFTA=Reserves Forces Training Area CWA = Clean Water Act SDWA = Safe Drinking Water Act IDW = Investigation derived waste SMCL = Secondary Maximum Contaminant Level MCL = Maximum Contaminant Level USEPA = U.S. Environmental Protection Agency MCLG = Maximum Contaminant Level Goal

AOC 50 Moore Army Airfield Devens, Massachusetts Project Update

2 December 2004







Agenda

•Review of Full-Scale Remedy in Place

•September 2004 LTM and O&M Activities

• Status of RAWP/LTMP/LUCP



ARCADIS

Full-Scale Remedy in Place

- Installed 35 New ERD Injection Wells (July/August 2004)
- •Sequential Groundwater Sampling at 12 Locations
- Installed 18 New Long-Term Monitoring Wells (July/August 2004)
- Started IWS System (May 28, 2004)
- Started SVE System (September 30, 2004)
- Started ERD System (September 30, 2004)





September LTM and O&M Activities

- Base-line Groundwater Sampling September 20-24, 2004
- Sampled 42 Long-Term Monitoring Wells and One Additional New Monitoring Well
- Remedial System O&M





September Groundwater Sampling

- Groundwater Flow to the Southwest to Nashua River
- PCE to 7,400 ug/L with Highest Levels in Source Area and along Plume Axis
- •Low Levels PCE in North Plume (7.4 ug/L) and along River (26 ug/L)
- Degradation of PCE with Low Levels VC in Former Pilot Test Area
- Arsenic Remains Less than 200 ft Downgradient of ERD IRZ





.



.

WellID	Low Flow Time	PCE	TCE	Cis: 1.2-DCE	a gala A gala NGM (Manganese	Arsenic	Lead	Alkalinity
		ug/L	ug/L	ug/L		ug/L	ug/L	ug/L	, mg/L
G6M-02-11X	1 hr. 50 min.	540	50	140		2400	<5	<5	100
G6M-02-11XH	1 hr.	440	48	140		2400	<5	<5	13
G6M-02-12X	2 hrs.35 min.	1000	43	110		450	<5	<5	84
G6M-02-12XH	1 hr.	1100	38	100		520	<5	<5	84
G6M-04-15X	2 hrs. 5 min.	5.2	<2	5.3		8100	18	<5	
G6M-04-15XH	1 hr.	4.1	<2	4		8200	18	<5	
G6M-04-31X	2 hrs. 30 min	1600	<2	4.2		190	<5	<5	
G6M-04-31XH	1 hr.	1600	<2	3.8		200	<5	<5	

Standard Low-Flow vs. Modified Low-Flow Groundwater Data, September 2004, Devens, MA



ARCADIS

September O&M

- Performed First Site-Wide ERD Injection in 40 Wells
- Collected System Samples from IWS System (PCE Influent 220 ug/L, Effluent 25 ug/L)
- Collected System Samples from SVE System (SVE-6 PCE 2 ppmv dropped to 0.062 ppmv in 4 days)









Status of RAWP/LTMP/LUCP

- Draft Final RAWP/LTMP/LUCP Submitted to BCT on September 10, 2004
- Submitted Responses to EPA Comments on October 5, 2004



Near-Term Plan

- Continue Quarterly Groundwater Sampling and System O&M
- Finalize RAWP/LTMP/LUCP
- Present Results of ERD Transducer Study
- Submit O&M Manual
- Work Toward OPS Certification
- Implement North Plume Contingency Ahead of Schedule





APPENDIX J

CURRENT SITE STATUS

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
1	SA	Cutler Army Hospital Incinerator	NFA	Master Environmental Plan Update, April 1993
2	SA	Veterinary Clinic Incinerator	NFA	Master Environmental Plan Update, April 1993
3	SA	Intelligence School Incinerator	NFA	Master Environmental Plan Update, April 1993
4	AOC	Sanitary Landfill Incinerator	Remedial	Final ROD, September 1995
			Design	Groundwater Model Update, March 1996
				Final Close-Out Report, March 1996
-				Long Term Monitoring & Maintenance Plan, May 1996
				Final Monitoring Well Installation Work Plan, May 1996
				Groundwater Pumping Test (Final Work Plan
				& Final Site Safety and Health Plan), December 1996
				Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Report, Fall 1996 Jan 97
				Draft Groundwater Pumping Test Report, March 1997
				Addendum to Long Term Monitoring/Maintenance Plan, Apr 97
				Addendum to Shepley's Hill Landfill '96 Annual Report, Apr 97
				30% Concept Design Extraction/Discharge System, July 1997
				Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Rpt., Spring (July) 97
				Landfill Cap Improvement Report, October 1997
				60% Design Extraction /Discharge System, November 1997
				Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Rpt., Fall (Dec) 1997
				Groundwater Pumping Test Report, January 1998
				Draft Five Year Review Long Term Monitoring, Feb 98
				Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Rpt., Spring (Jul) 1998
				Final Five Year Review Long Term Monitoring, Aug 1998
				Final Work Plan Supplemental Groundwater Investigation, Feb 1999
				1999 Annual Report, LTMM, March 2000.
				Draft Suppl Groundwater Investigation, Jul 2000.
				Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Rpt., Spring 2000, Sep 2000.
				Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000.
				2001 Annual Report L1MM, Apr 2002
				Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Rpt Spring 2002, August. 2002.
]	2002 Annual Report L1 MM, Mar 2003.
				Revised Draft Suppl Groundwater Investigation, May 2003.
				PMP Gw Extraction, Discharge & Treatment System, Oct 2003.
				Evaluation of Significant Differences, Ech. 2004
			1	Explanation of Significant Differences, Feb. 2004

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
4 cont.				Draft 2003 Annual Report, SHLF LTMM, June 2004 Remedial Design & Remedial Action Work Plan Draft Final 60% & Draft 100% September 2004 Draft 2004 Annual Report, July 2005 Groundwater Extraction, Treatment, and Discharge Contingency Remedy, August 2005
5	AOC	Landfill No. 1, Shepley's Hill	Remedial Design	 Final Remedial Investigation Group 1A Sites, April 1993 Final Remedial Investigation Addendum Report Group 1A Sites, December 1993 Final Remedial Investigation Addendum Report Group 1A Sites, December 1993 Final Feasibility Study, February 1995 Final ROD, September 1995 Groundwater Model Update, March 1996 Final Close-Out Report, March 1996 Long Term Monitoring & Maintenance Plan, May 1996 Final Monitoring Well Installation Work Plan, May 1996 Well Logs, Boring Logs, Quality Reports & Field Notes, Nov 1996 Groundwater Pumping Test (Final Work Plan & Final Site Safety and Health Plan), December 1996 Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Report, Fall 1996, Jan 97 Addendum to Long Term Monitoring/Maintenance Plan, Apr 97 Addendum to Shepley's Hill Landfill '96 Annual Report, Apr 97 30% Concept Design Extraction/Discharge System, July 1997 Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Rpt., Spring (July) 97 Landfill Cap Improvement Report, October 1997 60% Design Extraction /Discharge System, November 1997 Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Rpt., Spring (Jul) 1998 Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Rpt., Spring (Jul) 1998 Final Five Year Review Long Term Monitoring, Aug 1998 Final Work Plan Supplemental Groundwater Investigation, Feb 1999. 1998 Annual Report Long Term Monitoring & Maintenance, Mar 1999. Semi-Annual GW Analytical Report, Spring 1999 1999 Annual Report, L T M & Maintenance, March 2000. Draft Suppl Groundwater Investigation, Jul 2000 Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Rpt Spring 2000, September 2000. Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000.

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
5 cont.				 2000 Annual Report, Long Term Monitoring & Maintenance, May 2001. Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Rpt Spring 2001, August. 2001. Benthic Community Survey Nonacoicus Brook, 11/01 Rev Draft Suppl Groundwater Investigation, Vol I, Feb 2002. Rev Draft Suppl Groundwater Investigation, Vol II, Feb 2002 2001 Annual Report LTMM, Apr 2002. Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Rpt Spring 2002, August. 2002 2002 Annual Report Long Term Monitoring & Maintenance, Mar 2003. Revised Draft Suppl Groundwater Investigation, May 2003. PMP GW Extraction, Discharge & Treatment System, Oct 2003 Remedial Design & Remedial Action WP 60% Submittal, Dec 12, 2003 Draft 2003 Annual Report, SHLF LTMM, June 2004
6	SA	Landfill No. 2, South Post Area 7b / Household Dump	NFA	Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study January 1997 Draft Proposed Plan for 6, 12, 13, 9, 11, 40, and 41 April 97 Draft Final Proposed Plan September 1997 Preliminary Final Proposed Plan October 1997 Proposed Plan December 1997 Proposed Plan for LFC Preliminary Draft Proposed Plan for LFC, July 1998. Draft Final Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41., Nov 1998 Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study Addendum Report, Nov 1998 Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41., Nov 1998 Draft Record of Decision, Landfill Remediation Study SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40 and 41, Mar 1999. 65% Draft Landfill Remediation Construction Specifications, Design Analysis and Technical Specifications for Landfill Remediation, June 1999 Final Record of Decision for Landfill Remediation, July 1999 The selected remedy component for SA 6 is No Further Action under CERCLA. This site is being managed in conformance with Massachusetts Solid Waste Regulations. Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000
7	SA	Landfill No. 3, South Post Area (West of EOD) / Household Dump	NFA	Master Environmental Plan Update April 1993. BCT meeting 21 August 1995 site GB
8	SA	Landfill No. 4, South Post Area 8a / Household Dump	NFA	Master Environmental Plan Update April 1993. BCT meeting 21 August 1995 site ED

a search a search and a former dama that is a state of the

.

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
Site # 9	Type	Site Description Landfill No. 5, North Post Landfill (WWTP) CNST Debris Landfill	Status ROD Remedial Design / Remedial Action	Source Document(s) about Site's Current StatusLandfill Remediation Feasibility Study January 1997Draft Proposed Plan for 6, 12, 13, 9, 11, 40, and 41 April 97Draft Final Proposed Plan September 1997Preliminary Final Proposed Plan October 1997Proposed Plan December 1997 Proposed Plan for LFCPreliminary Draft Proposed Plan for LFC, July 1998.Draft Final Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41., Nov1998Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study Addendum Report, Nov 1998Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41., Nov 1998Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41., Nov 1998Draft Record of Decision, Landfill Remediation Study SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40 and 41, Mar 1999.65% Draft Landfill Remediation Construction Specifications, Design Analysis and Technical Specifications for Landfill Consolidation, July 199995% Design for Landfill Consolidation, August 1999Design Technical Specifications for Conflite Disposal Alternative, October 1999.Final Design Technical Specifications for Offsite Disposal Alternative, October 1999.Final Design Technical Specifications for Offsite Disposal Alternative, October 1999.Draft Work Plans-Sampling & Analysis Plan: Environmental Protection Plan & Excavation & Handling Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Feb 2000.Remedy Selection Report-On-Site Versus Off-Site Disposal Options- Landfill Remediation Project, March 2000Work Plans-Sampling & Analysis Plan: Environmental Protection Plan & Excavation & Handling Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2000.Site Safety & Health Plan, LF Remediation Project, Aug 2000.<
10	SA	Landfill No. 6 (Shirley Gate) / CNST Debris Landfill	NFA	Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2001. Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Jan 2002. Draft Remedial Action Closure Report, Sept 2003 NFA DD signed by BCT January 1995
Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
--------	------	--	---	---
11	AOC	Landfill No. 7 / CNST Debris Landfill	ROD Remedial Design / Remedial Action	Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study January 1997 Draft Proposed Plan for 6, 12, 13, 9, 11, 40, and 41 April 97 Draft Final Proposed Plan September 1997 Proposed Plan December 1997 Proposed Plan for LFC Preliminary Draft Proposed Plan for LFC, July 1998. Draft Final Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41., Nov 1998 Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study Addendum Report, Nov 1998 Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41., Nov 1998 Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study Addendum Report, Nov 1998 Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41., Nov 1998. Draft Record of Decision, Landfill Remediation Study SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40 and 41, Mar 1999. 65% Draft Landfill Remediation Construction Specifications, Design Analysis and Technical Specifications for Landfill Consolidation, June 1999 Final Record of Decision for Landfill Consolidation, July 1999 95% Design for Landfill Consolidation, August 1999 Design Technical Specifications for Candfill Consolidation, October 1999. Final Design Technical Specifications for Candfill Consolidation, October 1999. Final Design Technical Specifications for Offsite Disposal Alternative, October 1999. Draft Work Plans-Sampling & Analysis Plan: Environmental Protection Plan & Excavation & Handling Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Feb 2000. Remedy Selection Report-On-Site Versus Off-Site Disposal Options- Landfill Remediation Project, March 2000 Work Plans-Sampling & Analysis Plan: Environmental Protection Plan & Excavation & Handling Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2000. Site Safety & Health Plan, LF Remediation Project, Aug 2000. Contractor QC Plan, LF Remediation Project, Aug 2000. Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000 Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2001. Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2001. Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Jan 2002. Draft Remed

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
12	SA	Landfill No. 8, Combat Pistol Range / CNST Debris Landfill	ROD Remedial Design / Remedial Action	Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study, January 1997 Draft Proposed Plan for 6, 12, 13, 9, 11, 40, and 41, April 97 Draft Final Proposed Plan, September 1997 Preliminary Final Proposed Plan, October 1997 Proposed Plan, December 1997 Proposed Plan for LFC Preliminary Draft Proposed Plan for LFC, July 1998. Draft Final Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41, Nov 1998 Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study Addendum Report, Nov 1998 Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41, Nov 1998 Draft Record of Decision, Landfill Remediation Study SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40 and 41, Mar 1999. 65% Draft Landfill Remediation Construction Specifications, Design Analysis and Technical Specifications for Landfill Consolidation, Jule 1999 Final Record of Decision for Landfill Consolidation, Jule 1999 95% Design for Landfill Consolidation, August 1999 Design Analysis Report for Landfill Consolidation, October 99 Final Design Technical Specifications for Candfill Consolidation, October 1999. Draft Work Plans-Sampling & Analysis Plan: Environmental Protection Plan & Excavation & Handling Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Feb 2000. Remedy Selection Report-On-Site Versus Off-Site Disposal Alternative, October 1999. Draft Work Plans-Sampling & Analysis Plan: Environmental Protection Plan & Excavation & Handling Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2000. Site Safety & Health Plan, LF Remediation Project, Aug 2000. Contractor QC Plan, LF Remediation Project, Aug 2000. Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000 Wetlands & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Nov 2000 Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2001. Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2001. Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2001. Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2001. Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
13	SA	Landfill No. 9, Lake George St. Landfill / Open CNST Debris Landfill	ROD Remedial Design / Remedial Action	Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study, January 1997 Draft Proposed Plan for 6, 12, 13, 9, 11, 40, and 41, April 97 Draft Final Proposed Plan, September 1997 Proposed Plan, December 1997 Proposed Plan for LFC Preliminary Draft Proposed Plan for LFC, July 1998. Draft Final Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41, Nov 1998 Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study Addendum Report, Nov 1998 Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41, Nov 1998 Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study Addendum Report, Nov 1998 Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41, Nov 1998. Draft Record of Decision, Landfill Remediation Study SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40 and 41, Mar 1999. 65% Draft Landfill Remediation Construction Specifications, Design Analysis and Technical Specifications for Landfill Consolidation, June 1999 Final Record of Decision for Landfill Consolidation, July 1999 95% Design for Landfill Consolidation, August 1999 Design Analysis Report for Landfill Consolidation, October 99 Final Design Technical Specifications for Landfill Consolidation, October 1999. Final Design Technical Specifications for Confistic Disposal Alternative, October 1999. Draft Work Plans-Sampling & Analysis Plan: Environmental Protection Plan & Excavation & Handling Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Feb 2000. Remedy Selection Report-On-Site Versus Off-Site Disposal Options- Landfill Remediation Project, March 2000 Work Plans-Sampling & Analysis Plan: Environmental Protection Plan & Excavation & Handling Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2000. Contractor QC Plan, LF Remediation Project, Aug 2000. Cita Safety & Health Plan, LJF Remediation Project, Aug 2000. Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000 Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2001. Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Jan 2002. Draft Remedial Action Closure Report, Sept 2003
14	SA	Landfill No. 10 / Abandoned Quarry	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT, January 1995
15	SA	Landfill No. 11, Helipad / Old Disposal Pit	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT, September 1995

a construction de la construction de la construction

and when the last state

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
16	SA	Landfill No. 12, Shoppette Landfill	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT, January 1995
17	SA	Landfill No. 13, Little Mirror Lake	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT, 12 March 1997

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
18	AOC	Asbestos Cell, Shepley's Hill Landfill, Landfill No 1	ROD Remedial Design	 Final ROD, September 1995 Groundwater Model Update, March 1996 Final Close-Out Report, March 1996 Long Term Monitoring & Maintenance Plan, May 1996 Final Monitoring Well Installation Work Plan, May 1996 Groundwater Pumping Test (Final Work Plan & Final Site Safety and Health Plan), December 1996 Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Report, Fall 1996 Jan 97 Draft Groundwater Pumping Test Report, March 1997 Addendum to Long Term Monitoring/Maintenance Plan, Apr 97 Addendum to Shepley's Hill Landfill '96 Annual Report, Apr 97 30% Concept Design Extraction/Discharge System, July 1997 Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Rpt, Spring (July) 97 Landfill Cap Improvement Report, October 1997 60% Design Extraction /Discharge System, November 1997 Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Rpt., Fall (Dec) 1997 Groundwater Pumping Test Report, January 1998 Draft Five Year Review Long Term Monitoring, Aug 1998 Draft Five Year Review Long Term Monitoring, Aug 1998 Draft Work Plan Supplemental Groundwater Investigation, Oct 1998. Final Work Plan Supplemental Groundwater Investigation, Feb 1999 1999 Annual Groundwater Analytical Rpt Spring 2000, September 2000. 2001 Annual Report Long Term Monitoring & Maintenance, March 2000. 2002 Annual Report Long Term Monitoring & Maintenance, Mar 2003. Revised Draft Suppl Groundwater Investigation, May 2003 PMF GW Extraction, Discharge & Treatment System, Oct 2003 Remedial Design & Remedial Action WP 60% Submittal, Dec 12, 2003 Draft 2004 Annual Report, July 2005 Groundwater Extraction, Treatment, and Discharge Contingency Remedy, August 2005 Explanation of Significant Differences, Feb. 2004

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
18 cont.	;			Draft 2003 Annual Report, SHLF LTMM, June 2004 Remedial Design & Remedial Action Work Plan Draft Final 60% & Draft 100% September 2004 Draft 2004 Annual Report, July 2005 Groundwater Extraction, Treatment, and Discharge Contingency Remedy, August 2005
19	SA	Wastewater Treatment Plant / Imhoff Tank	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 2 November 1995 Hydrogeologic Evaluation for Groundwater Discharge Permit, November 1998
20	SA	Rapid Infiltration Beds, WWTP	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 2, November 1995
21	SA	Sludge Drying Beds, WWTP	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 2, November 1995
22	SA	Hazardous Waste Storage Facility	NFA, RCRA closure	Master Environmental Plan, April 1992
23	SA	Paper Recycling Center	NFA	Master Environmental Plan, April 1992
24	SA	Waste Explosive Storage Bunker	NFA	RCRA Closure Report for EOD Area, September 1994 USEPA Letter of Approval of Closure Report for Bunker 187 and the EOD Range, June 1996 NFA DD signed by Army and EPA, March 1993
25	AOC	EOD Range	ROD LTM	RCRA Closure Report for EOD Area, September 1994 USEPA Letter of Approval of Closure Report for Bunker 187 and the EOD Range, June 1996 (BRAC 9606-26 UXO) Final Record of Decision, July 1996 Final LTMP, May 1997 Final Well Installation Work Plan, May 1997. 1997 GW Analytical Report, SPIA, 2/98 1997 Annual Report-SPIA Long Term Monitoring, August 1998. Ecological Sampling Work Plan SPIA, October 1998 Final Ecological Sampling Work Plan SPIA, March 1999 Final Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan 1998-1002, April 1999. Annual Report 1998 Long Term Groundwater Monitoring and Ecological Surface Water/Sediment Sampling South Port Impact Area, September 1999. Annual Report 1999 SPIA Long Term Monitoring, July 2000.

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
25 cont.				Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000. Annual Report 2000 SPIA Long Term Monitoring, August 2001 Annual Report 2001 SPIA Long Term Monitoring, March 2002 2002 Annual Report Long Term Groundwater Monitoring, Mar 2003 Draft 2003 Annual Report, Mar 2004 Draft 2004 Annual Report, August 2005
26	AOC	Zulu I and II Ranges	ROD LTM	RCRA Closure Report for EOD Area, September 1994 USEPA Letter of Approval of Closure Report for Bunker 187 and the EOD Range, June 1996 Final Record of Decision, July 1996 Final LTMP, May 1997 Final Well Installation Work Plan, May 1997. 1997 GW Analytical Report, SPIA, Feb. 1998 1997 Annual Report-SPIA Long Term Monitoring, August 1998 Ecological Sampling Work Plan SPIA, October 1998 Final Ecological Sampling Work Plan SPIA, March 1999 Final Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan 1998-1002, April 1999. Annual Report 1998 Long Term Groundwater Monitoring and Ecological Surface Water/Sediment Sampling South Port Impact Area, September 1999. Annual Report 1999 SPIA Long Term Monitoring, July 2000. Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000 Annual Report 2000 SPIA Long Term Monitoring, August 2001 2002 Annual Report Long Term Groundwater Monitoring, Mar 2003 Draft 2003 Annual Report, Mar 2005
27	AOC	Hotel Range	ROD LTM	RCRA Closure Report for EOD Area, September 1994 USEPA Letter of Approval of Closure Report for Bunker 187 and the EOD Range, June 1996 Final Record of Decision, July 1996 Final LTMP, May 1997 Final Well Installation Work Plan, May 1997. 1997 GW Analytical Report, SPIA, Feb. 1998 1997 Annual Report-SPIA Long Term Monitoring, August 1998 Ecological Sampling Work Plan SPIA, October 1998

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
27 cont.				 Final Ecological Sampling Work Plan SPIA, March 1999 Final Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan 1998-1002, April 1999. Annual Report 1998 Long Term Groundwater Monitoring and Ecological Surface Water/Sediment Sampling South Port Impact Area, September 1999. Annual Report 1999 SPIA Long Term Monitoring, July 2000. Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000 Annual Report 2000 SPIA Long Term Monitoring, August 2001. 2002 Annual Report Long Term Groundwater Monitoring, Mar 2003 Draft 2003 Annual Report, Mar 2004 Draft 2004 Annual Report. August 2005
28	SA	Training Area 14	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT, August 1994
29	SA	Transformer Storage Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT,15 January 1995
30	SA	Drum Storage Areas	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT, 9/11/95. Mass DEP withdrew original document for further review
31	SA	Fire-Fighting Training Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT, 15 January 1995
32	AOC	DRMO Yard	ROD GW Monitoring in Progress	 Final Radiological Survey & Remediation Report, Nov 1996 Final Feasibility Study Report (Rev. 2), January 1997 Proposed Plan, January 1997 Preliminary Draft Record of Decision, January 1997 Draft Record of Decision, February 1997 Proposed Plan, June 1997 Final Record of Decision, February 1998 (signed) Draft WP Monitoring Natural Attenuation Assessment AOCs 32 and 43A, July 1998 Contaminated Soil Removal Phase II-Soil, Asphalt & Debris Removal-Final Remedial Action Work Plan, July 1998. Final WP Monitoring Natural Attenuation Assessment, AOCs 32 and 43A DRMO and POL, 1 Nov 1998 GW Sampling Data Report Round 1, 1 Mar 99 GW Sampling Data Report Round 2, June 1999 Draft Demonstration of Remedial Actions Operating Properly and Successfully, July 1999 Groundwater Sampling Data Report Round 3-Sep 99 Draft Soils Remedial Action Completion Report, Soil, Asphalt, and Debris Removal, Oct 99. Groundwater Sampling Data Report-Round 4, 1 Dec 99

Man waxay waxay katala katala katala ban fatari dari waxay katala Katala katala katala katala katala katala kat

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
32 cont.				Draft Groundwater Sampling Annual Report 2002, Jan 2003. Summary of Groundwater Elevation Results, 1stQtr 2003, Summary of Groundwater Elevation Results, 2nd Qtr 2003 Summary of Groundwater Elevation Results, 3rd Qtr 2003 Summary of Groundwater Elevation Results, 4thQtr 2003. Draft Work in Progress GW Sampling Summary Report Jan 2002 to Dec 2003, Feb 2004 Draft 2003 Annual Report, July 2004 Spring 2004 Semi-Annual Report Long Term Monitoring, Feb 2005 Draft 2004 Annual Report, July 2005
33	SA	DEH Entomology Shop	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 18 March 1996 DCC: RAM Plan for Entomology Complex 27 December 1996
34	SA	Former DEH Entomology Shop	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 5 September 1996 DCC: RAM Plan for Entomology Complex 27 December 1996
35	SA	Former DEH Entomology Shop	NFA	NFA DD signed 1 November 1995 DCC: RAM Plan for Entomology Complex 27 December 1996
36	SA	Former DEH Entomology Shop	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 18 March 1996
37	SA	Golf Course Entomology Shop	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 18 March 1996
38	SA	Battery Repair Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 11 September 1995
39	SA	Transformer	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 2 October 1996

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
40	AOC	Cold Spring Brook Landfill	ROD Remedial Design/Rem edial Action	Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study, January 1997 Draft Proposed Plan for 6, 12, 13, 9, 11, 40, and 41, April 97 Draft Final Proposed Plan, September 1997 Proposed Plan, December 1997 Proposed Plan Preliminary Einal Proposed Plan, October 1997 Proposed Plan, December 1997 Proposed Plan Preliminary Draft Proposed Plan for LFC, July 1998 Supplemental Sampling at Monitoring Well CSB-01, July 1998 Draft Final Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41., Nov 1998 Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study Addendum Report, Nov 1998 Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41, Nov 1998 Draft Record of Decision, Landfill Remediation Study SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40 and 41, Mar 1999, 65% Draft Landfill Remediation Construction Specifications, Design Analysis and Technical Specifications for Landfill Consolidation Final Record of Decision for Landfill Remediation, July 1999 95% Design for Landfill Consolidation, August 1999 Design Analysis Report for Landfill Consolidation, October 1999 Final Design Technical Specifications for Clandfill Consolidation, October 1999 Final Design Technical Specifications for Offsite Disposal Alternative, October 1999 Hydrogeologic Study in Support of Proposed Consolidation Landfill Former Golf Course Driving Range, Dec 1999. Draft Work Plans-Sampling & Analysis Plan: Environmental Protection Plan & Excavation & Handling Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Feb 2000. Remedy Selection Report-On-Site Versus Off-Site Disposal Options- Landfill Remediation Project, March 2000. Work Plans-Sampling & Analysis Plan: Environmental Protection Plan & Excavation & Handling Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2000. Site Safety & Health Plan, LF Remediation Project, Aug 2000. Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000 Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Nov 2000 Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2001. Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediat

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
41	AOC	Unauthorized Dumping Area, Site A Groundwater is an Operable Unit Under SPIA ROD for Sites 25, 26, 27, and 41 Surface Debris Under Site 41 is a landfill.	ROD	 RCRA Closure Report for EOD Area, September 1994 USEPA Letter of Approval of Closure Report for Bunker 187 and the EOD Range, June 1996 Final ROD (SPIA) GW July 1996 Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study January 1997 Final LTMP May 1997 Final LTMP May 1997 Draft Final Proposed Plan September 1997 Preliminary Final Proposed Plan September 1997 Proposed Plan December 1997. 1997 Annual Report-SPIA Long Term Monitoring, August 1998 Preliminary Draft Proposed Plan for LFC, July 1998 Ecological Sampling Work Plan SPIA, October 1998 Draft Final Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41., Nov 1998 Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study Addendum Report, Nov 1998 Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41, Nov 1998 Landfill Remediation Feasibility Study Addendum Report, Nov 1998 Proposed Plan for SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40, and 41, Nov 1998 Draft Record of Decision, Landfill Remediation Study SAs 6, 12, and 13 and AOCs 9, 11, 40 and 41, Mar 1999 Final Ecological Sampling Work Plan SPIA, March 1999 Final Ecological Sampling Work Plan SPIA, March 1999 Final Landfill Remediation Construction Specifications, Design Analysis and Technical Specifications for Landfill Consolidation Final Record of Decision for Landfill Consolidation Final Record of Decision for Landfill Consolidation, July 1999 95% Design for Landfill Consolidation, August 1999 Annual Report 1998 Long Term Groundwater Monitoring and Ecological Surface Water/Sediment Sampling South Port Impact Area, September 1999 Design Technical Specifications for Landfill Consolidation, October 1999, Final Design Technical Specifications for Landfill Consolidation, Cotober 1999. Final Design Technical Specifications for Gifiste Disposal Alternative, October 1999. Final

and a second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
41 Cont.	AOC	Unauthorized Dumping Area, Site A Groundwater is an Operable Unit Under SPIA ROD for Sites 25, 26, 27, and 41 Surface Debris Under Site 41 is a landfill.	ROD	 Work Plans-Sampling & Analysis Plan: Environmental Protection Plan & Excavation & Handling Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2000. Site Safety & Health Plan, LF Remediation Project, Aug 2000. Contractor QC Plan, LF Remediation Project, Aug 2000. Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000 Wetlands & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2001. Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Aug 2001. Annual Report 2000 SPIA Long Term Monitoring, August 2001. Wetland & Upland Habitat Restoration Plan, Landfill Remediation Project, Jan 2002. Draft Remedial Action Closure Report SA 12 & AOC 41, Landfill Remediation Project, March 2003. Remedial Action Closure Report SA 12 & AOC 41, Landfill Remediation Project, March 2003. 2002 Annual Report Long Term Groundwater Monitoring ,Mar 2003 Draft Remedial Action Closure Report, Sept 2003 Draft Remedial Action Closure Report, Sept 2003
42	\$A	Popping Furnace (O Range)	NFA	NFA signed by BCT 5 September 1996

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
43A	AOC	POL Storage Site	ROD	Final Feasibility Study Report (Rev. 2) January 1997 Proposed Plan January 1997 Final Record of Decision February 1998 (signed) Final WP Monitoring Natural Attenuation Assessment, AOCs 32 and 43A DRMO and POL, 1 Nov 1998 GW Sampling Data Report Round 1, 1 Mar 99 GW Sampling Data Report Round 2, June 1999 Draft Demonstration of Remedial Actions Operating Properly and Successfully, July 1999 Groundwater Sampling Data Report Round 3-Sep 99. Groundwater Sampling Data Report-Round 4, 1 Dec 99. Final Demonstration of Remedial Actions Operating Properly and Successfully AOCs 32 and 43A DRMO and POL,Feb 2000. Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000 Final Monitoring Natural Attenuation Assessment Report Vol I & II, AOC 43A, Dec 2000. Final Monitoring Natural Attenuation Assessment Report Vol I & II, AOC 43A, Dec 2000. Final Monitoring Natural Attenuation Assessment Report Vol I I Appendix E, AOC 43A, April 2001. GW Extraction & Treatment Effectiveness Review of Current GW Monitoring Programs, Mar 2002 Summary of Groundwater Results 1 st Qtr 2002, May 2002 Draft Final Data Report, Replacement GW Monitoring Wells and Piezometers, AOC 32/43A, May 2002. Summary of Groundwater Elevation Results 3 rd Qr 2002 July 02. Summary of Groundwater Elevation Results 4 th Qtr 2002 Draft Groundwater Sampling Annual Report 2002, Jan 2003. Summary of Groundwater Elevation Results, 1stQtr 2003 Summary of Groundwater Elevation Results, 1stQtr 2003 Summary of Groundwater Elevation Results, 3rdQtr 2003 Summary of Groundwater Elevation Results, 3rdQtr 2003 Summary of Groundwater Elevation Results, 3rdQtr 2003 Summary of Groundwater Elevation Results, 4thQtr 2003 Draft Work in Progress GW Sampling Summary Report Jan 2002 to Dec 2003, Feb 2004 Draft 2004 Annual Report, July 2004 Spring 2004 Semi-Annual Report Long Term Monitoring, Feb 2005 Draft 2004 Annual Report, July 2005
43B	SA	Historic Gas Station	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 18 January 1995
43C	SA	Historic Gas Station	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 18 January 1995
43D	SA	Historic Gas Station Patch Road	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 23 July 1996

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
43E	SA	Historic Gas Station	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 18 January 1995
43F	SA	Historic Gas Station	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 18 January 1995
43G	AOC	Historic Gas Station	Remedial	Final Record of Decision October 17, 1996
			Design/	Final Work Plan Intrinsic Remediation Assessment April 97
		Area 1	Remedial	AOC 43G Area 2 Soil and Free Product Assessment Data Report, and Intrinsic
		Historic Gas Station site	Action	Remediation Assessment April 10, 1997
				Prelim. Groundwater Data-Sampling/Field Analysis May 97
		<u>Area 2</u>		Memorandum Modeling Work Plan, IRA May 1997
		AAFES Gas Station 2008		Initial Groundwater Sampling Data Report June 1997
		(2) 10,000-gallon USTs and		Proposed Sampling and Laboratory Analysis Schedule for Groundwater Sampling
		(1) 15,000-gallon UST, removed		Round 1, IRA, June 1997
			1	Removal Action Report Area 2 and Area 3, June 1997
		Area 3		Draft Baseline Intrinsic Remed. Assessment Report July 97
		AAFES Gas Station 2008		Groundwater Sampling Data Report - Round 1 August 1997
		Sand and gas trap		Groundwater Sampling Data Report ~ Round 2 Nov 97
		1,000-gallon fuel oil UST		Groundwater Sampling Data Report-Round 3 Feb 98
		500-gal. waste oil UST, removed		1997 Annual Report 1 Feb 98
				Groundwater Sampling Data Report-Round 4 4 May 98
				Groundwater Sampling Data Report-Round 5 1 Aug 98
				Groundwater Sampling Data Report-Round 6 Oct 1998.
				Groundwater Sampling Data Report-Round 7 Feb 1999
	1			Draft Intrinsic Remediation Assessment Report June 1999
				Final Intrinsic Remediation Assessment Report Vol III of III App P, Nov 1999
]			Final Intrinsic Remediation Assessment Report Vol 1 of 111 Report, Nov 1999.
				Final Intrinsic Remediation Assessment Report Vol 1 of III, Report, Nov 1999.
				Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000
1			}	1999 Annual Report, Long Term Monitoring, Oct 2000
				2000 Annual Report, Long Term Monitoring, Aug 2001.
				Gw Extraction & Treatment Effectiveness Review of Current Gw Monitoring
				2001 Annual Benerit AOCa 42C and 42LLTM, May 2002
				2001 Annual Report AOCs 43G and 43J LTM, May 2002.
				Draft 2003 Annual Report AOCs 43G and 431 LTM, Juli 2003
431	SA	Historia Gas Station Openstorm St	NEA	NEA DD signed by BCT 5 Sentember 1006
110	SA	Spill		ALA DD agree by BCT 5 September 1990

ter de la constant de la constant de la constant de la constant de la constant de la constant de la constant d

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
431	SA	Historic Gas Station Queenstown St Spill	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 5 September 1996
43J	AOC	Historic Gas Station	Remedial Design/	Final Record of Decision October 17, 1996 Final Work Plan Intrinsic Remediation Assessment April 97
			Remedial	Prelim. Groundwater Data-Sampling/Field Analysis May 97
			Action	Memorandum Modeling Work Plan, IRA May 1997
				Initial Groundwater Sampling Data Report June 1997
			Removal	Proposed Sampling and Laboratory Analysis Schedule for Groundwater Sampling
			Action:	Round 1, IRA, June 1997
			Work	Draft Baseline Intrinsic Remed. Assessment Report July 97
			complete,	Groundwater Sampling Data Report - Round 1 August 1997
			Closeout	Groundwater Sampling Data Report – Round 2 Nov 97
			report	Groundwater Sampling Data Report-Round 3 Feb 98
			underway	1997 Annual Report 1 Feb 98
				Groundwater Sampling Data Report-Round 4 4 May 98
				Groundwater Sampling Data Report-Round 5 1 Aug 98
				Groundwater Sampling Data Report-Round 6 Oct 1998
				Groundwater Sampling Data Report-Round 7 Feb 1999
				Draft Intrinsic Assessment Remediation Report, June 1999.
				Final Intrinsic Remediation Assessment Report Vol III of III App P, Nov 1999.
				Final Intrinsic Remediation Assessment Report Vol I of III Report, Nov 1999.
				Final Intrinsic Remediation Assessment Report Vol II of III, Report, Nov 1999.
				Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000
			1	1999 Annual Report, Long Term Monitoring, Oct 2000
				2000 Annual Report, Long Term Monitoring, Aug 2001.
				Gw Extraction & Treatment Effectiveness Review of Current Gw Monitoring
				Programs, Mar 2002
				2001 Annual Report AOCs 43G and 43J LTM, May 2002.
				Draft 2002 Annual Report AOCs 43G and 43J LTM, Juli 2005
4217	S A	Historia Cos Station	NIEA	NEA DD signed by BCT 18 January 1005
431	SA SA	Historia Gas Station	NEA	NEA DD signed by BCT 18 January 1975
42M	SA SA	Historia Gas Station		NEA DD signed by BCT 10 January 1995
4311	SA	Historio Cas Station	NEA	NEA DD signed by DCT 10 January 1995
43IN	OA CA	Historic Gas Station		NEA DD signed by BC1 18 January 1995
430	SA SA	Historic Gas Station		NEA DD signed by BCI 25 June 1996
43P	SA	Historic Gas Station	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 18 January 1995

and the second

والمتحد والمراجع والمستعودة ومحتان والمحتور والمحتور والمحتور والمحتور

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
43Q	SA	Historic Gas Station	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 18 January 1995
43R	SA	Historic Gas Station	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 18 January 1995
43S	SA	Historic Gas Station	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 18 January 1995
44	AOC	Cannibalization Yard Barnum Road	ROD Groundwate r Monitoring in progress	Record of Decision, AOCs 44 & 52, Mar 95 Remedial Action Completion Report June 1996 Work Plan and Field Sampling Analysis Plan Groundwater Monitoring for AOCs 44 & 52 March 1997 Work Plan and Field Sampling and Analysis Plan, Groundwater Monitoring for AOCs 44 & 52, April 1998 Annual Groundwater Sampling Report 1998, October 1998 Annual Groundwater Sampling Report 1999, October 1999. Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000 Draft 2003 GW Monitoring Report, May 2004 Draft Remedial Action Report AOC 44/52, May 2004
45	SA	Wash Rack, Lake George Street	NFA	NFA in MEP Update 1993, requiring removal. Closure Report June 1994 GAS Environmental
46	SA	Training Area 6d	NFA	Master Environmental Plan Update April 1993
47	SA	LUST Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by Army and EPA 20 June 1994
48	SA	LUST Site / Building 202 UST	NFA (Additional work regarding groundwater : see 61Z)	NFA DD signed by BCT 18 January 1995
49	SA	LUST Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 2 October 1996

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
50	AOC	WWII Fuel Points	RI/FS (GW/Soil) COE to operate soil vapor extraction system.	Final RI Work Plan June 1996 Summary Report SVE Monitoring November 1996 Summary of Remedial Investigation Findings 7/97 Revised Risk Assessment Approach Plan July 1997 Removal Action Report September 1997 Draft Remedial Investigation Report October 1997. Final WP Supplemental RI Activities at AOC 50, March 1999. Final Remedial Investigation Report Vol I of III, Jan 2000 Final Remedial Investigation Report Vol I of III, Jan 2000 Final Remedial Investigation Report Vol II of III, Jan 2000. Draft Findings Report Benzene & Ethylene Dibromide Assessments, AOC 50, Mar 2000. Draft Work Plan Pilot-Scale Evaluation of Hydrogen Release Compound for Enhanced In-Situ Bioremediation at AOC 50, Apr 2000 Draft Peasibility Study Report, Vol I, December 2000 Draft Peasibility Study Report, Vol I, December 2000 Draft Peasibility Study Report, Vol I, December 2000 Final 2001 GW Sampling Report, Jan 2002. Draft 2001 GW Sampling Report, Jan 2002. Draft 2001 GW Sampling Report, Jan 2002. Draft Sampling and Analysis Plan, Jan 22, 2002 WP for Additional Remedial Investigation Activities, Jan 2002 Final Pilot-Scale Eval of HRC for Enhanced In-Situ Bioremediation, Feb 2002. Revised Draft Geasibility Study Report, Mar 2002. Draft Groundwater Flow & Solute Transport Model, Apr 2002 Final Feasibility ACC 50, May 9, 2002. Draft Groundwater Flow & Solute Transport Model, Apr 2002 Final Sampling and Analysis Plan, May 24, 2002. Supplemental Investigation Report, June 14, 2002. WP for Additional GW Monitoring Wells, July 10, 2002 Project Management Plan Revision 1 Final, July 9, 2002 Draft Quality Assurance Management Plan, August 2002. Final Feasibility Study Dee 16, 2002 Draft Proposed Plan, Dec 20, 2002. Draft Proposed Plan, Dec 20, 2002. Draft Waste Management Plan, March 6, 2003. Workplan for Pre-Design Activities, March 5, 2003.

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
50 cont.				 Final Pre-Design Implementation WP, In Well Stripping, Apr03 Project Management Plan Rev 4 &5, June 2, 2003 Draft O&M & GW Monitoring Report Apr-Jul03, Sep 03 Draft Final Record of Decision, Sept 22, 2003. O&M & GW Monitoring Report Jul-Sep 03, Nov 03 QA Management Plan Dec 2003 Draft Remedial Action Work Plan, Dec 8, 2003 Final Record of Decision, Jan 22, 2004 O&M and GW Monitoring Report, Jan to Mar 04, May 2004 Draft Final 100% Remedial Design, Jun 28, 2004 O&M and GW Monitoring Report, June, 2004 O&M and GW Monitoring Report, June, 2004 O&M and GW Monitoring Report, June, 2004 O&M and GW Monitoring Report, Jec 2004 O&M and GW Monitoring Report, Jec 2004 O&M and GW Monitoring Report, Jec 2004 O&M and GW Monitoring Report, Jec 2004 O&M and GW Monitoring Report, Jec 2004
51	SA	O'Neil Building Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 11 September 1995
52	AOC	TDA Maintenance Yard Barnum Road	ROD Groundwate r Monitoring in progress	Record of Decision, AOCs 44 & 52, March 1995 Remedial Action Completion Report June 1996 Work Plan and Field Sampling Analysis Plan Groundwater Monitoring for AOCs 44 & 52 March 1997 Work Plan and Field Sampling and Analysis Plan, Groundwater Monitoring for AOCs 44 & 52, April 1998 Annual Groundwater Sampling Report 1998, October 1998. Annual Groundwater Sampling Report 1999, October 1999. Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000 Draft 2003 GW Monitoring Report, May 2004 Draft Remedial Action Report AOC 44/52, May 2004
53	SA	POL Spill Areas	NFA	Master Environmental Plan Update April 1993 NOTE: Lenox Conference agreed to delete this SA from the MEP by documentation in yearly addendum.
54	SA	Historic Gas Station	same as 430 which is NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 6 June 1996 (SA 43O)
55	SA	Shirley Housing Area Trailer Park Fuel Tanks	NFA (EMO tank removal complete)	Master Environmental Plan Update April 1993, requiring removal; Closure Report August 1995 OHM.
56	SA	LUST Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 2 October 1996

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
57	AOC	Area 1 - Fuel Oil Spill Site Area 2 - Area 3 - Off Barnum Road	RI/FS Wetlands Removal Action; Contractor preparing cost proposal- Area 3	Final RI Work Plan Addendum August 1996Storm Drain System No. 6 Outfall Action Memo. and Field Sampling and AnalysisPlan Addendum October 96Draft Remedial Investigation Report March 1997Draft RJ/FS Suppl Workplan Areas 2 and 3 12 Mar 98Contaminated Soil Removal-Phase II Removal Action Report Storm Drain SystemNo. 6 Outfall, Jul 98Action Memorandum, January 1999Action Memorandum February 1999.Draft Final Remedial Investigation Report, October 1999Final RI/FS Letter Work Plan, AOC 57, Area 3, Jun 2000Final Remedial Investigation Report, Vol I of III, June 2000.Final Remedial Investigation Report, Vol I of III, June 2000.Final Remedial Investigation Report, Vol I of III, June 2000.Final Remedial Investigation Report, Vol I of III, June 2000.Final Focused Feasibility Study, November 2000.Preliminary Draft Proposed Plan, December 2000Draft Proposed Plan, February 2001Final Record of Decision, September 2001Draft WP Remedial Action AOC 57, Dec 2001.WP for Remedial Action AOC 57, Dec 2001.WP for Remedial Action AOC 57, Dec 2001.WP for Remedial Action AOC 57, Remedial Action, January 2002.Draft WP Amendment Monitoring Well Installation/Soil Sampling at Area 2, Jan 2003.Draft Tech Memo Suppl Soil Sampling & Delineation, Area 2, October 2002.Draft WP Amendment Monitoring Well Installation/Soil Sampling at Area 2, Jan 2003.Draft Tech Memo, Soil Sampling & Test Data & Recommendations for FurtherRemoval Action, Apr 2003Draft WP Amendment for Additional Soil Removal, May 2003.Draft WP Amendment fo
58	SA	LUST Sites	NFA NIFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 2 November 1995
- 39	SA	Bridge 526	INFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 18 January 1995
60	AREE	Training Areas & Ranges	NFA	NFA Remains in DRFTA Operation

server construction of the server construction and

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
61.A	AREE	MWAA, Former Motor Pool	NFA	DCC: RAM Plan for Entomology Complex 27 December 1996 NFA DD signed by BCT 28 January 1997
61.B	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA	Final Report September 1995 Draft UPPL Removal Site Evaluation Work Plan Nov 96 AREE 61B Action Memorandum November 1997 Draft NFADD Various Removal Actions Phase II Apr 1998 Final NFADD Various Removal Actions Phase II Jun 1998
61.C	AREE	MWAA, Former Motor Pool	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61.D	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool, Satellite Accumulation Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61.E	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA (UIS Closure)	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61.F	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA (UIS Closure)	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61.G	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	Area surrounding building referred to AOC 43G	Final Report September 1995
61.H	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA (UIS Closure)	NFA DD signed 1 November 1995
61.1	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA (Referred to 43 H&I)	Final Report September 1995
61.J	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA (MADEP has requested survey of GW elevation of monitoring wells and resampling of GW in the fall)	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995 MADEP Letter re: RAO, for Bldg 613, August 1998

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
61.K	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 2 November 1995
61.L	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool -Across from	NFA	AREE 61 Draft Report November 1993 ADL
		cemetery	(Deleted)	
61.M	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 5 September 1996
61.N	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61.0	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	Referred to	Final Report September 1995
			43K and	
			63AX	
61.P	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 2 October 1996
61.Q	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61.R	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 1 November 1995
61.S	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 2 October 1996
61.T	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61.U	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 1 November 1995
61.V	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 5 June 1997
61.W	AREE	MWAA, Motor Pool	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61.X	AREE	MWAA, TDA Waste Accumulation	Building	Final Report September 1995
		Area	and unpaved	
			area referred	
			to AOCs	
			44&52,	
			SEA floor	
			drain study;	
			tanks to	
			63BJ and	
			63BK (now	
			NFA)	
61.Y	AREE	MWAA, Satellite Waste	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
		Accumulation Areas		

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
61.Z	AOC	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA	Remed. Investigation/Feasibility Study Final Work Plan June 96 Draft UPPL Removal Site Evaluation Work Plan November 96 Risk Assessment Approach Plan 10 February 1997 Draft (Groundwater) Site Investigation Report March 1997 Final UST Closure Report Building 202 - 61Z April 1997 Revised Risk Assessment Approach Plan (for 50) July 1997 Final Site Investigation Report January 1998(with Consensus Statement Changing Groundwater from AOC to SA) Draft No Further Action Decision July 1999 Draft Final No Further Action Decision October 1999 Draft Final No Further Action Decision Document December 1999. Final No Further Action Decision Document signed Jan 26, 2000,
61AA	AREE	MWAA, Commissary Parking Lot	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AB	AREE	MWAA, DEH Roads and Railroads Maintenance Shop; Triangular Area	NFA	Final Report September 1995 Draft UPPL Removal Site Evaluation Work Plan November 96 Various Removal Actions Phase II Action Memorandum Nov 98 Draft No Further Action Decision Document, Feb 99. Final No Further Action Decision Document, Apr 99.
61AC	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AD	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AE	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AF	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA pending regulatory decision	Final Report September 1995 BCT Meeting Notes 2 November 1995
61AG	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AH	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AI	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AJ	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AK	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AL	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AM	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AN	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AO	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AP	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA, Deleted, 61D duplic.	Final Report September 1995

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
61AQ	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA, UIS remains in place	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AR	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA, UIS remains in place	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AS	AREE	MWAA, Waste Accumulation Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AT	AREE	MWAA, Historic Motor Pool	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AU	AREE	MWAA, General Maintenance Facilities	RA; UPPL Evaluation; to remediate soil prior to transfer to DCC – soil removed; samples pending	Draft UPPL Removal Site Evaluation Work Plan November 96 Soil Sampling Work Plan January 1997 (Weston for COE) Final Work Plan - Barnum Rd. Parking Lot Soil Sampling Mar 97 AREE 61AU Action Memorandum November 1997 Final NFADD Various Removal Actions Phase II Jun 1998
61AV	AREE	MWAA, Maintenance and POL	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AW	AREE	MWAA, General Administrative, Fire Dept	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AX	AREE	MWAA, Motor Park	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AY	AREE	MWAA, Maintenance and POL	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61AZ	AREE	MWAA, Maintenance and POL	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61BA	AREE	MWAA, Storage of Hospital Equipment	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61BB	AREE	MWAA, O'Neil Building,	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61BC	AREE	MWAA, Intel School	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61BD	AREE	MWAA, General Storage / Disposal Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61BE	AREE	MWAA, Motor Park	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61BF	AREE	MWAA, Intel School, Electronic Equipment Training Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
61BG	AREE	MWAA, General Storage / Disposal Area	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
62	AREE	Existing Underground Storage	Ongoing	USAR Tank Management Plan, DCC Tank Removals
		Tanks UST	Program	
63.A	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 4 January 1996
63.B	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 4 January 1996
				DCC: RAM Plan for Entomology Complex 27 December 1996
63.C	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.D	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.E	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 20 August 1996
				DCC: Work Plan Groundwater Monitoring March 1997
63.F	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.G	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.H	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.I	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.J	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.K	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.L	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.M	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.N	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.0	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.P	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.Q	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 2 October 1996
63.R	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.S	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.T	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.U	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.V	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.W	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.X	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.Y	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63.Z	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AA	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AB	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AC	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 1 November 1995
		-		DCC: Response Action Outcome for Bldg 2602 March 1997
63AD	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
63AE	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AF	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AG	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AH	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AI	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AJ	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AK	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AL	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AM	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 1 November 1995
63AN	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 1 November 1995
63AO	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 1 November 1995
63AP	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AQ	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AR	AREE	Previously Removed UST (63AR	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
		and 63AS are North and South sides		
		of same site)		
63AS	AREE	Previously Removed UST (63AR	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
		and 63AS are North and South sides		
		of same site)		
63AT	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AU	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AV	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AW	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AX	AOC	Previously Removed UST	ROD	Record of Decision October 1997.
				Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000
63AY	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63AZ	AREE	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63BA	AREE_	Previously Removed UST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
63BB	AREE	14 Former UST Sites	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 4 January 1996
63BC	AREE	14 Former UST Sites	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 5 September 1996
63BD	AREE	14 Former UST Sites	NFA	Consensus Statement NFA signed 28 January 1997
				NFA DD signed by BCT 28 January 1997
ļ		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		DCC: Work Plan Groundwater Monitoring March 1997
63BE	AREE	14 Former UST Sites	NFA	Draft Phase III Site Investigation Report May 1996
1				Final No Further Action Decision Document May 1998

a and a second second second second second second second second second second second second second second secon

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
63BF	AREE	14 Former UST Sites	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 4 January 1996
63BG	AREE	14 Former UST Sites	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 4 January 1996
63BH	AREE	14 Former UST Sites	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 4 January 1996
63BI	AREE	14 Former UST Sites	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 4 January 1996
63BJ	AREE	14 Former UST Sites	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 4 January 1996
63BK	AREE	14 Former UST Sites	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 4 January 1996
63BL	AREE	14 Former UST Sites	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 4 January 1996
				DCC: RAM Plan for Entomology Complex 27 December 1996
63BM	AREE	Former UST Sites	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 4 January 1996
63BN	AREE	14 Former UST Sites	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 4 January 1996
63BO	AREE	14 Former UST Sites	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 4 January 1996
63BP	AREE	14 Former UST Sites	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 4 January 1996
63BQ	AREE	Removed UST, LUST	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 7 August 1997
64	AREE	Above Ground Storage Tanks	Ongoing	USAR Tank Management Plan, DCC Tank Removals
		(ASTs)	Program	
65	AREE	Asbestos		Final Report May 1995
66A	AREE	Transformer #641425	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 1 May 1997
66B	AREE	Transformer # Not Recorded	NFA	Final NFA DD (April 96)
				NFA DD Addendum April 1997
66C	AREE	Transformer #7671845 P-3657 Golf	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 7 December 1995
		Course		
66D	AREE	Transformer #6573226, P-3575,	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 1 November 1995
		Red Cross		
<u>66</u> E	AREE	Transformer #70b11472 & 3344617	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 1 November 1995
66F	AREE	Transformer #6287290, P-2025	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 6 June 1996
66G	AREE	Verbeck Substation	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 1 May 1997
67	AREE	Radon		Final Report May 1995
68	AREE	Lead Paint		Final Report October 1995
69.A	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 20 August 1996
69.B	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 2 October 1996
				DCC: Response Action Outcome for Bldg 2602 March 1997
69.C	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	Final Report September 1995
			(Referred to	
			56)	

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
69.D	AREE	Past Spill Site	Referred to	Final Report September 1995
		-	AOC 32	
69.E	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	Final Report September 1995
			(Referred to	
			59)	
69.F	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	Final Report September 1995
			(Referred to	
	ļ		51)	
69.G	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	Final Report September 1995
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	(Deleted)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
69.H	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69.I	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69.J	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69.K	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 20 August 1996
69.L	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69.M	AREE	Past Spill Site	Referred to	Final Report September 1995
			Main Post	
			SI	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
69.N	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69.0	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	Final Report September 1995
			(Referred to	
			61E)	
69.P	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69.Q	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69.R	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	Final Report September 1995
			(Referred to	
L			66D)	
69.S	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	Final Report September 1995
			(Referred to	
L	<u> </u>		29)	
69.T	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69.U	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69.V	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
69.W	AOC	Past Spill Site - Elementary School	ROD LTM IC	 Final RI Work Plan Addendum August 1996 Risk Assess. Approach Plan for Remedial Invest. Report Jan 97 Draft Remedial Investigation Report May 1997 Final RI/FS Workplan Adden. for Sup. Air Sampling Oct 97 Final Action Memorandum Contaminated Soil Removal Dec 97 Analytical Approach for Groundwater Sampling Nov 97 Draft Supplemental Air Sampling Report December 1997 Removal Action Report Contaminated Soil Phase II- May 98 Final Remedial Investigation Report Vol I of II Aug 98 Final Remedial Investigation Report Vol I of II Aug 98 Final Remedial Investigation Report Vol I of II Aug 98 Draft Proposed Plan September 1998 Draft Proposed Plan, February 1999. Final Proposed Plan, April 1999. Record of Decision (unsigned); June 8, 1999 Final Record of Decision, June 24, 1999 Draft Long Term Monitoring Plan, October 1999. Final Long Term Monitoring Plan, March 2000 Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Data Report May 2000. Final First Five-Year Review Devens RFTA, September 2000 2000 Annual Report, Long Term Groundwater Monitoring, April 2001. Semi-Annual Groundwater Analytical Report May 2002. Semi-Annual GW Analytical Data Report. May 2002 Sampling Event, Jul 2002. 2002 Annual Report Long Term Groundwater Monitoring, Apr 2003 Semi-Annual GW Analytical Data Report. May 2003 Sampling Event, Jul 2003
	:			2004 Semi Annual Report Long Term Monitoring, Jan 2005
69.X	AREE	Past Spill Site	Referred to 70.10	Final Report September 1995
69,Y	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69.Z	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA (Referred to 63AW)	Final Report September 1995
69AA	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69AB	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
69AC	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 1 November 1995
69AD	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 5 June 1997
69AE	AREE	Past Spill Site	UPPL.	Final Report September 1995
			Evaluation	Draft UPPL Removal Site Evaluation Work Plan November 96
			submitted	Draft NFADD, July 2002.
				Revised Draft NFADD, June 2003.
				Final Signed NFADD, Jan 2004
69AF	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 5 June 1997
69AG	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69AH	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69AI	AREE	Past Spill Site, 9-12 Apr 1988, 6-7	Referred to	Final Report September 1995
		Feb 84	61Z & 48	
69AJ	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
_69AK	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 1 November 1995
69AL	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 20 August 1996
69AM	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	Final Report September 1995
			(Referred to	
			61P)	
69AN	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69AO	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69AP	AREE	Past Spill Site - AAFES Gas Station	Referred to	Final Report September 1995
			43G	
69AQ	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 17 October 1995
69AR	AREE	Past Spill Site	Referred to	Final Report September 1995
			72	
69AS	AREE	Past Spill Site	Referred to	Final Report September 1995
			57,	
			including	
	<u> </u>		AREE 70.6	
69AT	AREE	Past Spill Site	Referred to	Final Report September 1995
		1	57,	
			including	
			AREE 70.6	

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
69AU	AREE	Past Spill Site	Referred to AOC 44 and AOC 52	Final Report September 1995
69AV	AREE	Past Spill Site	NFA	NFA DD signed by BCT 5 June 1997
70.01	AREE	Storm Sewer System 1	FA (see SA 73)	Lower Cold Spring Brook SI Report December 1995
70.02	AREE	Storm Sewer System 2	FA (see SA 73)	Lower Cold Spring Brook SI Report December 1995
70.03	AREE	Storm Sewer System 3	FA (see SA 73)	Lower Cold Spring Brook SI Report December 1995
70.04	AREE	Storm Sewer System 4	FA (see SA 73)	Lower Cold Spring Brook SI Report December 1995
70.05	AREE	Storm Sewer System 5	FA (see SA 73)	Lower Cold Spring Brook SI Report December 1995
70.06	AREE	Storm Sewer System 6	FA (see SA 73); Removal action; sampling comparison in progress	Lower Cold Spring Brook SI Report December 1995
70.07	AREE	Storm Sewer System 7	FA (see SA 73)	Lower Cold Spring Brook SI Report December 1995
70.08	AREE	Storm Sewer System 8	NFA Pending	Final Report June 1994
70.09	AREE	Storm Sewer System 9	NFA Pending	Addendum Report for the AREE 70, AREE 69B, and Cold Spring Brook Supplemental Sampling Event November 1995
70.10	AREE	Storm Sewer System 10	NFA Pending	Final Report June 1994
70.11	AREE	Storm Sewer System 11	NFA Pending	Final Report June 1994
70.12	AREE	Storm Sewer System 12	NFA Pending	Final Report June 1994
70.13	AREE	Storm Sewer System 13	NFA (Deleted, system 12)	Final Report June 1994

FIVE YEAR REVIEW DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
70.14	AREE	Storm Sewer System 14	NFA	Addendum Report for the AREE 70, AREE 69B, and Cold Spring Brook
		-	Pending	Supplemental Sampling Event November 95
70.15	AREE	Storm Sewer System 15	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.16	AREE	Storm Sewer System 16	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70,17	AREE	Storm Sewer System 17	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.18	AREE	Storm Sewer System 18	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.19	AREE	Storm Sewer System 19	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.20	AREE	Storm Sewer System 20	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70,21	AREE	Storm Sewer System 21	NFA	Addendum Report for the AREE 70, AREE 69B, and Cold Spring Brook
			Pending	Supplemental Sampling Event Nov 95
70.22	AREE	Storm Sewer System 22	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.23	AREE	Storm Sewer System 23	NFA	Final Report June 1994
	<u> </u>		Pending	
70.24	AREE	Storm Sewer System 24	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.25	AREE	Storm Sewer System 25	NFA	Addendum Report for the AREE 70, AREE 69B, and Cold Spring Brook
, 			Pending	Supplemental Sampling Event Nov 95
70.26	AREE	Storm Sewer System 26	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.27	AREE	Storm Sewer System 27	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.28	AREE	Storm Sewer System 28	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.29	AREE	Storm Sewer System 29	NFA	Final Report June 1994
	L		Pending	·
70.30	AREE	Storm Sewer System 30	NFA	Final Report June 1994
	l .		Pending	

a a ser a second de la second de la seconda de la seconda de la seconda de la seconda de la seconda de la secon

Site #	Type	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
70.31	AREE	Storm Sewer System 31	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.32	AREE	Storm Sewer System 32	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.33	AREE	Storm Sewer System 33	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.34	AREE	Storm Sewer System 34	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.35	AREE	Storm Sewer System 35	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.36	AREE	Storm Sewer System 36	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.37	AREE	Storm Sewer System 37	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.38	AREE	Storm Sewer System 38	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.39	AREE	Storm Sewer System 39	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	······································
70.40	AREE	Storm Sewer System 40	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.41	AREE	Storm Sewer System 41	NFA	Final Report June 1994
		ļ	Pending	
70.42	AREE	Storm Sewer System 42	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.43	AREE	Storm Sewer System 43	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.44	AREE	Storm Sewer System 44	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.45	AREE	Storm Sewer System 45	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.46	AREE	Storm Sewer System 46	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	
70.47	AREE	Storm Sewer System 47	NFA	Final Report June 1994
			Pending	

Site #	Type	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
70.48	AREE	Storm Sewer System 48	NFA Pending	Final Report June 1994
70.49	AREE	Storm Sewer System 49	NFA Pending	Final Report June 1994
70.50	AREE	Storm Sewer System 50	NFA Pending	Final Report June 1994
70.51	AREE	Storm Sewer System 51	NFA Pending	Final Report June 1994
70.52	AREE	Storm Sewer System 52	NFA Pending	Final Report June 1994
70.53	AREE	Storm Sewer System 53	NFA Pending	Final Report June 1994
70.54	AREE	Storm Sewer System 54	NFA Pending	Final Report June 1994
70.55	AREE	Storm Sewer System 55	NFA Pending	Final Report June 1994
71	SA	Railroad Roundhouse	NFA Pending	Railroad Roundhouse SSI September 1995 Revisions to Scope of Work; Action Memo & Design Dec 1996 Action Memorandum, 1 November 1999. Draft Closure Report-Various Removal Actions Phase II- 1 Aug 2000. Final Closure Report-Various Removal Actions Phase II, Jan 2001. Draft No Further Action Decision Document, Jan 2002. Draft SOW for EE/CA, Dec 2003 Draft Sampling and Analysis Plan, June 2004

Site #	Туре	Site Description	Status	Source Document(s) about Site's Current Status
72	AOC	Plow Shop Pond and Grove Pond	Removal Action Awaiting legal decision	Draft Plow Shop Pond and Grove Pond Sediment Evaluation October 1995 Screening-Level Ecological Risk Assessment, April 1998 FWS Study of Trace Elements in Freshwater Mussels from Plow Shop Pond and Grove Pond-May 1998 TRC Sediment Sampling Results Grove Pond May 1998 Health Consultation-Eval of Health Concerns Associated with Drinking Water from Grove Pond Wells, July 1998 Surface Water and Sediment Sampling, Grove Pond & Plow Shop Pond, November 1998 Final Health Consultation-Eval of Health Concerns Associated with Grove Pond and Plow Shop Pond, Dec 1998. Draft Phase I Interim Data Report Grove Pond Arsenic Investigation, April 1999 Final Phase I Work Plan Grove Pond Arsenic Investigation May 1999 Final Phase II Work Plan Grove Pond Arsenic Investigation Sep 1999 Benthic Community Survey Nonacoicus Brook, Nov 2001 Final Report Grove Pond Arsenic Investigation, Oct 2002
73	SA	Lower Cold Spring Brook	SI	Lower Cold Spring Brook SI Data Package, April 1995 Lower Cold Spring Brook Site Investigation Report, December 1995 Draft NFADD, August 2003.

APPENDIX K

COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Superfund

Sites

Programs

Community

Involvement

Human Health &

Laws, Policies &

Information Sources

About Superfund

Guidances

Conferences

Ecological Risk

Regions & Partners

Recent Additions | Contact Us | Print Version

60

EPA Home > Superfund > About Superfund > Cleanup Process > Post Construction Completion > Five-Year Reviews

Search:

Five-Year Reviews

Five-Year Reviews generally are required by CERCLA or program policy when hazardous substances remain on site above levels which permit unrestricted use and unlimited exposure. Five-year reviews provide an opportunity to evaluate the implementation and performance of a remedy to determine whether it remains protective of human health and the environment. Generally, reviews are performed five years following the initiation of a CERCLA response action, and are repeated every succeeding five years so long as future uses remain restricted. Five-year reviews can be performed by EPA or the lead agency for a site, but EPA retains responsibility for determining the protectiveness of the remedy.

QuickLinks Acronyms Topics FAQs Publications Key to the Site Search Hints

You will need Adobe Acrobat Reader, available as a free download, to view some of the files on this page. See <u>EPA's PDF page</u> to learn more about PDF, and for a link to the free Acrobat Reader.

National Contingency Plan (NCP) guidelines on Five-Year Reviews (40 CFR Part 300.430(f)(4)(ii)) [PDF: 51 KB, 2 pages]

"Five Year Review Process in the Superfund Program" (April 2003) OSWER 9355.7-08FS, EPA 540-F-02-004 [PDF: 733 KB, 8 pages]

"Superfund Today: Focus on Five-Year Reviews and Involving the Community" (December 2002) OSWER 9200.2-42FS, EPA 540-F-01-011 [PDF: 493 KB, 2 pages]

"Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance" (June 2001) OSWER 9355.7-03B-P, EPA 540-R-01-007

"Five-Year Review Program Initiatives" (August 2001) OSWER 9355.7-07 [PDF: 2 M, 6 pages]

"Five-Year Review - Questions & Answers" (December 2004) [PDF: 85 KB, 7 pages]

<u>Search for Five-Year Reviews Online</u> This tool allows you to search by state, site name or EPA ID, region, keyword, or fiscal year across all available Five-Year Reviews.

Five Year Review Reports Available On-line

- EPA Region 3 Sites (PA, DE, DC, MD, VA, WV)
- EPA Region 4 Sites (AL, FL, GA, KY, MS, NC, SC, TN)
- EPA Region 5 Sites (IL, IN, MI, MN, OH, WI)
- EPA Region 6 Sites (AR, LA, NM, OK, TX)
- EPA Region 7 Sites (IA, KS, MO, NE)
- EPA Region 8 Sites (CO, MT, ND, SD, UT, WY)
- EPA Region 10 Sites (AK, ID, OR, WA)

OSWER Home | Superfund Home | Innovative Technologies Home

EPA Home | Privacy and Security Notice | Contact Us

Last updated on Thursday, December 9th, 2004 URL: http://www.epa.gov/superfund/action/postconstruction/5yr.htm

The Five-Year Review: Continuing to Protect You and the Environment

Step 1: Develop Plan

To plan a five-year review, the site manager forms a review team, which may include an EPA Community Involvement Coordinator, scientists, engineers, and others. The team members decide what they will do at the site and when they will do it. The Community Involvement Coordinator is the member of the team who works with your community during the review.

Your role: EPA will announce the start of the review, probably through a notice in a newspaper or a flyer. Review the notice to see when the review will start.

Step 2: Collect Information

The review team members collect information about site cleanup activities. They talk with people who have been working at the site over the past five years, as well as local officials, to see if changes in local policy or zoning might affect the original cleanup plan. The team usually visits the site to see if the cleanup equipment is working properly, to take new samples, and to review records of activities during the past five years. They may give you a call or meet with you in person.

Your role: If you know anything about unusual site activities at or around the site, such as trespassing or odors, or have any other concerns, call the Community Involvement Coordinator at once.

Step 3: Ensure Safety, Announce Findings, and Publish Report

The review team uses the information collected to decide if your community and the environment are still safe from the contaminated material left at the site. If the cleanup activities are keeping people and the environment safe, the team calls them "protective." When cleanup goals are not being met, or when problems come up, the review team will call the cleanup activities "non-protective." When the team finishes the five-year review, it writes a report about the information that includes background on the site and cleanup activities, describes the review, and explains the results. The review team also writes a summary and announces that the review is finished. They tell your community (via public notices, flyers, etc.) where to find copies of the report and summary—at a central place called the site repository—for anyone to see.

Your role: Read about the site and learn about the cleanup methods being reviewed. Review the report. Ask the Community Involvement Coordinator any questions you have about the site.

What Happens After The Review?

As long as contaminated materials at the site stop people from freely using the land, EPA will do a review every five years. EPA also regularly monitors the site based on an operations and maintenance plan it develops. For example, the site manager may visit the site and read reports about activities at the site. Also, the site workers may visit the site to cut the grass, take samples, or make sure equipment is working. If you see any problems or things that concern you-don't wait for the five-year review---let EPA know right away,

U.S.EPA

Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response 5204G

EPA 540-F-01-011 9200 2-42FS December 2002 **Set EPA**

Superfund Today

FOCUS ON FIVE-YEAR REVIEWS INVOLVING THE COMMUNITY

Checking Up On Superfund Sites: The Five-Year Review

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) conducts regular checkups, called five-year reviews, on certain Superfund sites. EPA looks at sites where cleanup left wastes that limit site use. For example, EPA will look at a landfill to make sure the protective cover is not damaged and is working properly. EPA

progress after five years.

report.

The Five-Year Review is:

a regular EPA checkup on a Superfund site that has been cleaned up—with waste left behind—to make sure the site is still safe;

a way to make sure the cleanup continues to protect people and the environment; and

a chance for you to tell EPA about site conditions and any concerns you have.

During the review, EPA studies information on the site, including the cleanup and the laws that apply, and inspects the site to make sure it continues to be safe. EPA needs information from people who are familiar with the site. As someone living close to the site, you may know about things that can help the review team decide if it is still safe.

will also review sites with cleanup activity still in Here are some examples of things to tell EPA about:

- Broken fences, unusual odors, dead plants, materials leaving the site, or other problems
- Buildings or land around the site being used in new ways
- Any unusual activities at the site, such as dumping, vandalism, or trespassing
- Ways the cleanup at the site has helped the neighborhood.

For More Information ...

In both cases, EPA checks the site to make sure the cleanup continues to protect people and the environment.

report on its findings. At some sites, other federal

The EPA review team conducts the review and writes a

agencies, a state agency, or an Indian tribe may do the

review, but EPA stays in the process and approves the

... about a Superfund site in your neighborhood, please call the toll-free Superfund/RCRA Hotline at 1-800-424-9346 or the Community Involvement Coordinator in the EPA regional office for your state. Your local EPA office can tell you where you can go to review files on every Superfund site in your area. Often, EPA holds community meetings to let people who live near a site know about site activities. You also may find useful information on the Superfund home page (www.epa.gov/superfund). For more information on the review process, see "Comprehensive Five Year Review Guidance," EPA 540-R-01-007, OSWER 9355, 7-03B-P, June 2001.



Five-Year Review Process in the Superfund Program

April 2003

EPA as required by statute and, as a matter of policy, reviews the remedies at certain sites every five years. Section 121 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended by the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (SARA), requires that remedial actions which result in any hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants remaining at the site be subject to a Five-Year Review. The National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan (NCP) defines this to mean contamination left at levels that do not allow for unlimited use and unrestricted exposure. This fact sheet summarizes the guidance document, *Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance (EPA 540-R-01-007)* that EPA issued in June 2001.

This document summarizes previously issued guidance to EPA personnel. It is not a regulation and does not create any legal obligations on any person or entity. EPA will apply the guidance referenced in this document to any particular project only to the extent appropriate in light of the facts EPA welcomes public comment on this document at any time.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- D. What are the components of a Five-Year Review? 3E. How does EPA assess the protectiveness of a

A. Overview

Under CERCLA §121(c), EPA is required to review the remedies at Superfund sites where hazardous substances remain at levels that potentially pose an unacceptable risk. Such reviews must be conducted every five years or may be conducted more frequently if necessary to ensure the protectiveness of the remedy. The Five-Year Review requirement applies to remedial actions selected under CERCLA §121 upon completion of which, hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants will remain on site. Five-Year Reviews are also conducted as a matter of policy for other CERCLA actions. Removal actions conducted under CERCLA §104 and Corrective Actions conducted under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) are not subject to the Five-Year Review requirement; however, Regions may conduct Five-Year Reviews for these or other remedies as a matter of policy or at their discretion. In June 2001, EPA issued the Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance (EPA 540-R-01-007) to aid Regions and other agencies with responsibilities for conducting Five-Year Reviews. This fact sheet was prepared as a brief summary of that guidance document.

B. When is a Five-Year Review conducted?

A Five-Year Review may be required or appropriate when a remedial action leaves hazardous substances on the site at levels that do not allow for unlimited use and unrestricted exposure. Unlimited use and unrestricted exposure (UU/UE) means that there are no restrictions placed on the potential use of land or other natural resources. In general, if the selected remedy relies on restrictions of land, ground water, or surface water use by humans or if any physical or engineered barrier is part of the remedy, then the use has been limited and a Five-Year Review should be conducted. There are two types of Five-Year Reviews, statutory and policy. Statutory reviews are required by CERCLA at post-SARA remedial actions that upon completion of the action leave hazardous substances. pollutants or contaminants on site. Policy reviews are performed, as a matter of policy, for pre-SARA remedial actions that leave hazardous substances, pollutants or contaminants on site, and at removal-only NPL sites where hazardous substances, pollutants or contaminants were left on site at levels that do not permit unlimited use and unrestricted exposure. Policy reviews are also conducted at other sites, including pre- or post-SARA remedial actions, that will take more than five years to complete.

The initiation, or trigger date, that starts the Five-Year Review period depends upon whether it is a statutory or policy review and if the review is a first or subsequent review. A statutory review is triggered by the initiation of the first remedial action that leaves hazardous substances, pollutants or contaminants on site at levels that do not allow for unlimited use and unrestricted exposure. In cases where there are multiple remedial actions, the earliest remedial action that leaves such substances on site should trigger the initial review, even if it is an interim remedial action.

A policy review is initially triggered by the date that the construction phase for all remedies is completed at a site. The date of

construction completion is generally the date of the Preliminary Close Out Report (PCOR) or the date of the Final Close Out Report (FCOR) for sites that do not have a PCOR.

After completion of the first statutory or policy Five-Year Review, the trigger for subsequent reviews is the signature date of the previous Five-Year Review report. Lead agencies may choose to conduct a Five-Year Review earlier or more frequently than every five years to ensure protection of human health and the environment.

Five-Year Reviews continue throughout the life of the site until hazardous substances, pollutants or contaminants no longer remain on site at levels that do not allow for unlimited use and unrestricted exposure. The basis for this finding should be documented in the final Five-Year Review report.

C. Who is responsible for conducting the Five-Year Review?

The lead agency, the agency providing the remedial project manager, has primary responsibility for conducting the Five-Year Review, while the support agency provides information and review support.

EPA also encourages appropriate State and Tribal involvement for Fund-financed and Enforcement-lead remedial actions. Where the State or Tribe is the lead agency, the NCP provides that EPA concurrence is needed on the protectiveness determination contained in the Five-Year Review. At federal facilities, the Federal agency in charge of the facility has the responsibility to conduct the Five-Year Review. EPA should provide concurrence with the protectiveness determinations, or develop its own independent determinations.

D. What are the components of a Five-Year Review?

The Five-Year Review process integrates information taken from decision documents and operational data with the experiences of those responsible for and affected by actions at the site. There are six components to the Five-Year Review process: 1) community involvement and notification, 2) document review, 3) data review and analysis, 4) site inspection, 5) interviews and 6) protectiveness determination as shown in Figure 1. Together, the reviewer uses these components to assess the remedy's performance, and, ultimately, to determine the protectiveness of that remedy.

Community Involvement and Notification

The reviewer begins working with the site's Community Involvement Coordinator (CIC) during the initial planning stages of the Five-Year Review to determine the appropriate level of community involvement and to notify all potentially interested parties that the Five-Year Review will be conducted. This notification may include States, Tribes, appropriate representatives of the community, local officials, potentially responsible parties (PRPs), Federal and/or State Trustees for Natural Resources (Trustees) and appropriate EPA offices. It is recommended that EPA's community involvement activities during the review include notifying the community that the Five-Year Review will be conducted, notifying the community that the Five-Year Review has been completed, and providing the results of the review to the local site repository.

Document Review

A review of documents is an early step in the Five-Year Review process. All relevant documents and data are reviewed to obtain information to assess performance of the response action. The lead agency reviews various documents to obtain the necessary information, including those for remedy decisions (*e.g.*, Records of Decision, Explanation of Significant Differences), enforcement decisions (*e.g.*, Consent Decrees, Administrative Orders on Consent), site investigations, remedial design and construction, and remedy performance.

Data Review and Analysis

The lead agency also reviews sampling and monitoring plans and results from monitoring activities, operation and maintenance (O&M) reports or other documentation of remedy performance, including previous Five-Year Review reports. The data contained in these reports form the primary basis for the technical analyses and for the subsequent protectiveness determination. The type and quality of these data will have a significant impact on findings and conclusions. In some cases, the lead agency may also need to conduct supplemental sampling or collect other data.

Site Inspections

EPA or the lead agency conducts site inspections to gather information about a site's current status and to visually confirm and document the conditions of the remedy, the site, and the surrounding area. The inspection should be recent, and be conducted no more than nine months before the expected signature date of the review. At Federal facility sites, a State and/or EPA representative may wish to be present and/or participate in site inspections.



Figure 1: Components of the Five-Year Review Process

Interviews

As necessary, interviews may be conducted to provide additional information about a site's status and/or identify remedy issues. Individuals who may be interviewed include: the site manager; site personnel; Federal, State, and Tribal regulatory authorities; and people who live or work near the site.

E. How does EPA assess the protectiveness of a remedy?

The purpose of a Five-Year Review is to determine whether the remedy at a site is, or upon completion will be, protective of human health and the environment. EPA's technical assessment of a remedy examines the three questions shown in Figure 2. These questions provide a framework for organizing and evaluating data and ensure that all relevant issues are considered when determining the protectiveness of the remedy.

Question A: Is the remedy functioning as intended?

When answering Question A, the reviewer focuses on the technical performance of the remedy, whether that remedy is related to a single Operable Unit (OU) or the entire site. Data on monitoring, system performance and operation and maintenance of the remedy plays an important role in the determinations. In addition, EPA confirms that access and institutional controls (ICs) are in place and successfully prevent exposure. In answering Question A, the reviewer should consider the implementation status of the remedy.



Figure 2: Three Questions for Assessing Protectiveness

When the Remedy is under Construction

The focus of the review is to determine if the remedy is being constructed in accordance with the requirements of the decision documents and design specifications, and if the remedy is expected to be protective when it is completed.

<u>When the Remedy is Operating or</u> <u>Completed</u>

Additional aspects of remedy implementation are addressed. In general, the following will be assessed:

- · Remedial action performance,
- System operations/operation and maintenance (O&M),
- Costs of system operations/O&M,
- Implementation of institutional controls and other measures,
- Monitoring activities,
- Opportunities for optimization, and
- Early indicators of potential remedy problems.

Question B: Are the exposure assumptions, toxicity data, cleanup levels, and Remedial Action Objectives still valid?

In answering Question B, the lead agency should review all the risk parameters on which the original remedy decision was based. This assessment should test the validity of all assumptions that underlie the original risk calculation. To reach its conclusions, the lead agency will generally consider changes in:

- Target populations,
- Exposure routes,
- Site characteristics and land use,
- Reference doses and slope factors,
- Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements (ARARs) and To Be Considereds (TBCs), and
- Remedial Action Objectives (RAOs).

EPA generally will not reopen remedy selection decisions contained in RODs unless a new or modified requirement calls into question the protectiveness of the selected remedy.

Question C: Has any other information come to light that could call into question the protectiveness of the remedy?

The reviewer considers any other information that comes to light that could call into question the protectiveness of the remedy. Situations of interest to EPA may include the following:

- Ecological risks had not been adequately evaluated or addressed at a site, and there is no plan in place to address these risks through a future action;
- The site, although located entirely above the 500-year flood boundary, was partially inundated by a 100-year flood; and
- Land use changes that are being considered by local officials.

F. How does the lead agency formulate its conclusions?

The conclusions of the Five-Year Review should include:

- Identification of issues,
- Recommendations and follow-up actions, and
- A determination of whether the remedy is, or is expected to be, protective of human health and the environment.

The reviewer arrives at these conclusions through a technical assessment of the information collected during the document review, data collection, interviews, site inspection, and other activities.

The reviewer identifies all issues that currently prevent or may prevent the response action from being protective. Examples of issues that may be identified in a Five-Year Review report include the following:

Inadequate ICs,

- Cleanup levels are not protective due to changes in chemical characteristics, and
- Remedial Action Objectives will not be achieved.

Section 4.4.1 of the Guidance contains additional examples.

The reviewer documents all such issues and follow-up actions needed to ensure the proper management of the remedy in the Five-Year Review report. The reviewer should also identify early indicators of potential remedy problems.

For each issue identified, the reviewer documents and ensures implementation of recommendations to resolve those issues. These recommendations are linked to follow-up actions in the Five-Year Review report. In addition, the reviewer may make additional recommendations that do not directly relate to achieving or maintaining the protectiveness of the remedy, such as activities related to O&M of the remedy and coordination with other public and government authorities. The following are the types of additional recommendations that may be included in the report:

- Provide additional response actions,
- Improve O&M activities,
- Optimize remedy,
- Enforce access controls and ICs, and
- Conduct additional studies or investigations.

After addressing Questions A, B, and C, the reviewer determines the protectiveness of the remedy or remedies at a site and documents the rationale for its determination(s). The reviewer should make a protectiveness determination for each OU. For sites that have reached construction completion, it is recommended

the review include an additional, comprehensive site-wide protectiveness statement.

The determination of whether the remedy remains protective of human health and the environment generally will be based on the answers to Questions A, B, and C and the information obtained in the process of answering them. Although protectiveness generally is defined by the risk range and hazard index (HI), the answers to Questions A, B, and C may identify other factors and issues that may impact the protectiveness of a remedy.

At the end of the technical analysis and evaluation, if the answers to Questions A, B, and C are *yes*, *yes*, *and no*, respectively, then the remedy normally will be considered protective. However, if the answers to the three questions are other than *yes*, *yes*, *and no*, depending on the elements that affect each question, the remedy may be one of the following:

- Protective,
- Will be protective once the remedy is completed,
- Protective in the short-term; however, in order for the remedy to be protective in the long-term, follow-up actions need to be taken,
- Not protective, unless the following action(s) are taken in order to ensure protectiveness, or
- Protectiveness cannot be determined until further information is obtained.

If a protectiveness statement cannot be made, a time frame should be provided when a protectiveness determination will be made. This is done through an addendum. If this is the case, the next Five-Year Review is due five years from the date that the report is signed, not from the signature date of the addendum.

Even if there is a need to conduct further actions, it does not mean that the remedy is not protective. Normally, the remedy may be considered not protective when the following occur:

- An immediate threat is present (*e.g.* exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risks are not being controlled);
- Migration of contaminants is uncontrolled and poses an unacceptable risk to human health or the environment;
- Potential or actual exposure is present or there is evidence of exposure (*e.g.*, institutional controls are not in place or not enforced and exposure is occurring); or
- The remedy cannot meet a new cleanup level and the previous cleanup level is outside of the risk range.

Once the Five-Year Review report is signed and placed in the local site repository, the lead agency should notify community members that the review is complete and the report is available.

As discussed in Section 1.3.3, the date EPA signs the report is the official completion date for the Five-Year Review, and this date becomes the trigger date for subsequent reviews. This date should be entered into WasteLan as soon as possible.

FOR MORE INFORMATION

For additional information on the Five-Year Review process, please contact your Regional or Headquarters Five-Year Review Coordinator.

Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response Washington, D.C. 20460

OSWER 9355.7-08FS EPA 540-F-02-004

January 3, 2003

Benjamin Goff, BRAC Environmental Coordinator Devens Reserve Forces Training Area 30 Quebec Street, Box 100 Devens, MA 01432 Phone: 978-796-3835

Subject: Community Survey Questionnaire

Dear Resident:

Enclosed please find a Community Survey Questionnaire. The U.S. Army kindly requests that you take a few minutes to complete and return the survey. The information you provide will enable the Army to more effectively address the needs and interests of community members as they relate to the environmental restoration at Devens Reserve Forces Training Area (DRFTA).

As part of the Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) process, the Army is actively engaged in environmental restoration activities at DRFTA. The BRAC Environmental Coordinator oversees all aspects of restoration, including activities designed to encourage local participation in the decision-making process and public information dissemination. In addition to the monthly Restoration Advisory Board (RAB) Meetings, this survey provides an opportunity for members of the community to express their opinions and participate in the restoration of Devens. Your feedback will be incorporated into the Community Involvement Plan for Devens, which will be updated and reissued in the coming months.

Please complete and return the survey to the BRAC Environmental Coordinator as soon as possible. Information from surveys received by January 31, 2003 will be used to update the Community Involvement Plan. Surveys received after January 31 will be considered, but may not be reflected in the revised Community Involvement Plan. As of January 9, 2003 this survey will also be available online for completion or download at any time, at www.devens.army.mil/staff/brac.

If you have any questions, please contact the Devens BRAC Environmental Office at 978-796-3835.

Sincerely,

Benjamin F. Goff BRAC Environmental Coordinator

Enclosure

REPLY TO



DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS 01432-4424

ATTENTION OF:

BRAC Environmental Office, Unit 100, Rm 334, 30 Quebec Street, Devens,

MA 01432

Devens Community Involvement Plan Update Public Survey Questionnaire

Survey participant - general information

1. Contact Information (Optional)

 Name:
 Address:

Phone:
 Fax:

E-mail:

a) How long have you been a member of this community?
b) In which town do you reside? (if address not provided above)

Information Transfer and Communications

3. How do you currently obtain information about environmental issues at Devens?

- 4. Do you feel you are sufficiently well-informed about environmental investigations and the site clean-up process at Devens? Yes <u>No</u> Somewhat <u>Yes</u>
- a) What type of information would you like to receive about environmental issues at Devens? Newsletters _____ Meeting Notices _____ Fact Sheets on Specific Topics _____ Other ______

b) How often would you like to receive this information?

- 6. What type of involvement are you most interested in?
 - a) document review and comment b) public meeting participation
 - c) receipt of general updates on clean-up progress d) other (please specify)
- 7. What is the most convenient and useful way to provide information to you about environmental issues at Devens?
 Newspapers ______ Mailings _____ Radio _____ TV ____ Web ____ Public Meetings ______ Telephone _____ E-mail ______ Information Repository (town or BRAC library)?

Word of Mouth ____ Local Cable Access ____ Other ____

8. a) How would you rate the community's perception of, and quality of interaction with, the base and regulatory agencies? excellent ______ good _____ fair _____ poor ______
b) Do you feel there are sufficient opportunities for public involvement in the clean-up program and related decision-making process? yes _____ no _____ undecided ______

••••

9. What specific recommendations do you have to improve communications and public involvement in the Devens clean-up/restoration process?

Restoration Advisory Board (RAB) and other public meetings

10.1	Have you	attended	any RAB	meetings?	Yes	No
	-		*	<i>v</i>		

- 11. How effective do you feel the RAB is in meeting your information/involvement needs?a) very effective _____ b) satisfactory _____ c) not effective _____
- 12. What suggestions do you have to make public meetings more effective?
- 13. How frequently are you interested in attending RAB or other public meetings on Devens environmental issues? a) monthly _____ b) quarterly _____
 c) twice per year _____ d) other _____

14. Is Devens a convenient location for you to attend public meetings? Yes ____ No____

- 15. Please note any other location that would be most convenient for public meetings a) public library ____ b) school ____ c) municipal building ____ d) other ____
- 16. What day of week/time of day would you be most likely to attend a public meeting?

Community Issues

- 17. What are your specific questions or concerns regarding environmental and public health issues related to Devens?
- **18.** Are there other individuals, groups or organizations you would suggest we contact to solicit their input on environmental issues at Devens?
- 19. Would you be interested in participating in a follow-up interview (in person or by phone) to further discuss issues relating to public involvement in environmental investigations and clean-up activities at Devens? Yes No
- 20. Would you be interested in receiving mailings on various clean-up issues? Yes _____ No _____

www.devens.army.mil/staff/brac



ENVIRONMENTAL NEWSLETTER

BRAC Environmental Office Devens Reserve Forces Training Area Issue One Spring 2003

In This Issue	Page
Mission and Overview	1
Remediation Summary Table	2
Remediation Updates	2-3
Notes and Reminders	3
Contact Information	3
Reference Map	4
Feedback Form	5

BRAC MISSION

The Devens Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) Environmental Office oversees cleanup and restoration of environmentally damaged property at the former US Army installations of Fort Devens, Sudbury Training Annex and Hingham Annex.

Consistent with the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA, commonly known as Superfund), and in partnership with local governments, redevelopment authorities, state and federal regulatory agencies, and public interest groups, the BRAC Environmental Coordinator (BEC) coordinates all phases of the CERCLA restoration process.

This process involves site investigation, evaluation of cleanup alternatives, and site cleanup, as well as long term monitoring, documentation of actions and decisions, and public outreach. Typically, restored land is transferred to MassDevelopment for reuse.

DEVENS OVERVIEW

The former Fort Devens is located in northcentral Massachusetts within the towns of Ayer and Shirley in Middlesex County, and the towns of Harvard and Lancaster in Worcester County. Prior to realignment and closure in 1996, Fort Devens included 9,300 acres divided into North Post, Main Post and South Post. Currently, the Devens Reserve Forces Training Area (DRFTA) consists of about 5,200 acres, primarily on South Post.

The US Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) placed the former Fort Devens on its National Priorities List on November 21, 1989. As a result of the Defense Base Realignment and Closure Act (BRAC) of 1990, the Secretary of Defense identified most of the North and Main Posts at Fort Devens. The South Post remains in use as a tactical training area for the US Army Reserves.

Overall, 324 CERCLA sites have been identified for environmental investigation at Devens. Of these, 243 sites have received approval for No Further Action (NFA) status, which under CERCLA indicates a site that meets regulatory standards and does not require additional remediation.



DEVENS REMEDIATION SUMMARY:

CERCLA (Superfund)

324 total sites identified for evaluation 243 sites approved for No Further Action (NFA) status

50 sites recommended for NFA status

21 sites undergoing active remediation per Record of Decision (ROD)

7 sites on hold, pending further evaluation 3 sites undergoing site evaluations

Non-CERCLA

150 housing units identified for soil remediation

- 148 housing units soil remediation complete
 - 2 housing units soil remediation ongoing

For more information on Superfund, visit: <u>http://www.epa.gov/superfund/about.htm</u>



REMEDIATION UPDATES

Pesticide Soil Remediation (Grant, Locust and Cavite Housing Areas):

Pesticide remediation was completed in Fall 2002. Approximately 181,385 tons of contaminated soil and 20.007 tons of contaminated concrete were removed from the three housing areas. All of the 150 former housing units have been cleaned of pesticide-contaminated soil. However, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) was detected at Buildings 863 and 877 in Grant Housing Area. As a result, a partial completion report will be submitted for the 148 clean buildings, while the two buildings with PCB contamination will remain open for further investigation and remediation. Removal of PCB contaminated soil is planned for Spring/Summer 2003.

Landfill Consolidation Program:

Waste removal activities were completed in October 2002. A total of 367,240 cubic yards of soil and debris were removed from the six waste accumulation areas (AOC 9 on North Post; AOC 11, AOC 40, and SA 13 on Main Post; AOC 41 and SA 12 on South Post). Five of these areas have been fully restored, and restoration of AOC 9 is nearing completion. Approximately 330,000 cubic yards of material were placed in the Consolidation Landfill. Construction of the landfill and installation of the landfill cap were completed in December 2002. Remaining activities include monitoring of restored wetlands and re-seeded areas, completion of closeout reports and touch-up of the landfill cap in Spring 2003.



Consolidation Landfill and detention pond. (Photo: J. McDowell, Army Corps of Engineers)

Area Of Contamination (AOC) 50 – Moore Army Airfield:

The Final Feasibility Study (FS) for AOC 50 was completed in December 2002. The release of the Final FS was announced at the Restoration Advisory Board Meeting on January 9, 2003 in the Harvard Public Library. In addition, public meetings in which the AOC 50 contractor, Arcadis, presented their Proposed Plan for the remediation of PCE-contaminated groundwater at AOC 50, were held on January 30 and February 19 at the Devens Conference Center. Several community members expressed their comments on the Proposed Plan during the formal public hearing on February 19. The Record of Decision (ROD) for AOC 50 will be completed in the coming months.

Shepleys Hill Landfill Groundwater:

The 1995 Record of Decision (ROD) for Shepleys Hill Landfill specified a contingency remedy of Groundwater Extraction (a.k.a. Pump and Treat) to prevent the migration of arseniccontaminated groundwater from Shepley's Hill Landfill to Plow Shop Pond and Nonacoicus Brook. Due to recent evidence of offsite contamination, the Army is currently in the process of awarding a contract for the installation of an interim Pump and Treat system. The Army also continues to pursue an investigation into the nature and extent of offsite contamination.

AOC 57 – Fuel Oil Spill Site:

As per the 2001 Record of Decision (ROD) for AOC 57, excavation activities to remove and dispose of soil impacted by spilled fuel oil near a former motor pool area east of Barnum Road were completed in February 2002. During backfill of Area 2, oily product was observed on the surface of water in an open excavation pit. Initial efforts to soak up the product were deemed insufficient, and as a result a solar-powered belt skimmer was installed and operated until the onset of winter. About 15-20 gallons of oily product were collected by the skimmer. Concurrent with collection of floating oil, the Army undertook an investigation into the source and extent of the oil. Sampling in September 2002 showed no evidence of a source of freephase oil in the soil, and the approximate extent of visibly stained soil was delineated. In addition to defining the extent of contamination, the Army is developing a

long term groundwater monitoring program to evaluate the presence of oil in the water table and to protect the nearby wetland area associated with Cold Spring Brook.



NOTES AND REMINDERS:

Community members can participate in the Devens restoration process by attending the **Restoration Advisory Board (RAB)** meetings. RAB meetings are typically held the second Thursday evening of each month. Please contact us for more information.

Input for this newsletter is provided by the **RAB Community Co-chairs**. Co-chairs are: Bille Ashe (Harvard), Kathy Bourassa (Shirley), Julia Corenzwit (Ayer), Jack Crowley (Devens), Becky Dasilva (MADEP), Jenna Latini (BRAC), Jim Murphy (USEPA), and Takashi Tada (BRAC).

Environmental actions and decisions are documented in the Devens Administrative Record. The Administrative Record will soon be accessible to the public on CD-ROM. Please contact us for more details.

Come See Devens! Special thanks to Irene O'Grady, MassDevelopment, for the enclosed Devens Visitor Map.

CONTACT INFORMATION:

Devens BRAC Environmental Coordinator: Ben Goff BRAC Environmental Office 30 Quebec Street, Box 100 Devens, MA 01432-4479

Office Phone: 978-796-3835 On the Web at: www.devens.army.mil/staff/brac/

Location of sites covered in this issue:





ENVIRONMENTAL NEWSLETTER

BRAC Environmental Office Devens Reserve Forces Training Area Issue Two Summer 2003

In This Issue	Page
Who's Who at Devens?	1-2
Remediation Summary Table	2
Remediation Updates	2-4
Notes and Reminders	4
Acronyms in this Issue	4
Agency Contact Information	4
Reference Map	insert

WHO'S WHO AT DEVENS?



The environmental restoration of Devens is a collaborative process. While the Army retains ultimate responsibility for cleanup of former Fort Devens property, decisions relating to cleanup are made by consensus in the interagency **BRAC Cleanup Team (BCT)**. The following is a description of each agency.

The Devens **BRAC Environmental Office** (**BRACEO**) is responsible for cleanup and restoration of former Army property at Fort Devens, Sudbury Training Annex and Hingham Annex in Massachusetts. The BRAC Environmental Coordinator (BEC) is Benjamin Goff, and the Technical Project Manager is Peter Kaselis.

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), New England District, provides technical assistance, contract management, field supervision, and documentation for various site-specific projects. USACE also performs groundwater sampling and analysis for sites that require long term monitoring. Team members include James Morocco, Resident Engineer; Randy Godfrey, Project Manager; Michelle Clemens, Project Engineer; and Christine Johnson, Construction Manager.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) maintains primary regulatory oversight at Devens. Cleanup activities and outcomes must meet USEPA standards for protection of human health and the environment, and must follow the CERCLA/Superfund process. Carol Keating, Remedial Project Manager, represents USEPA at Devens and receives support from a number of technical advisors including William Brandon, Geohydrologist, and James Murphy, Community Involvement Coordinator.

The Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MADEP) provides state regulatory guidance and technical expertise on all restoration activities at Devens. The MADEP Director of Devens Superfund and Redevelopment Group is Lynne Welsh, and the MADEP Environmental Analysts are David Salvadore and Michael Backunas. MADEP also contributes guidance and expertise to facilitate the redevelopment of restored land.

MassDevelopment (Massachusetts Development Finance Agency, formerly the Massachusetts Government Land Bank) oversees the redevelopment of Devens, providing services such as public works, fire and police, and business development. The Devens Enterprise Commission (DEC) was formed to serve such administrative functions as board of health, planning board, conservation commission, and zoning board of appeals. The Environmental Coordinator for MassDevelopment is Ron Ostrowski.

Public involvement in the decision making process occurs primarily in the **Restoration Advisory Board (RAB)**, which consists of the BCT and members of the community. RAB meetings provide an opportunity for interaction among the BCT and local residents interested in the restoration of Devens. RAB meetings typically occur on the second Thursday evening of each month at various locations.

DEVENS REMEDIATION SUMMARY:

<u>CERCLA/Superfund</u> 325 total sites identified for evaluation 243 sites approved for No Further Action (NFA) status 50 sites recommended for NFA status 21 sites undergoing active remediation per Record of Decision (ROD) 7 sites on hold, pending further evaluation 4 sites undergoing site evaluations

Massachusetts Contingency Plan (MCP) 150 former housing units identified for pesticide soil remediation 150 former housing units – pesticide soil remediation complete

For more information on the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA/Superfund) program at the USEPA, visit: http://www.epa.gov/superfund/about.htm

REMEDIATION UPDATES:



Landfill Consolidation Program:

Waste removal activities were completed in October 2002. Restoration has been completed at all excavation sites. Approximately 330,000 cubic yards of material were placed in the Consolidation Landfill. Construction of the landfill and installation of the landfill cap were completed in December 2002. Upcoming activities include regular maintenance of the landfill and restored areas, and re-seeding at excavation site AOC 9 (North Post).



Above: AOC 11 before restoration. (USACE) Below: AOC 11 after restoration. (BRACEO)





Above: Debris pile at AOC 40. (USACE) Below: AOC 40 after restoration. (BRACEO)



Area Of Contamination (AOC) 50 – Moore Army Airfield:

The Final Feasibility Study (FS) for AOC 50 was completed in December 2002, and the Proposed Plan for the remediation of PCEcontaminated groundwater at AOC 50 was issued in January 2003. Public comment on the Proposed Plan was received in February. Groundwater monitoring and investigation activities at the site continue. Finalization of the Record of Decision (ROD) for AOC 50 is anticipated by the end of September 2003.

Shepley's Hill Landfill Groundwater:

The 1995 Record of Decision (ROD) for Shepley's Hill Landfill specified the contingency remedy of a Groundwater Extraction system (a.k.a. Pump and Treat) to prevent the migration of arsenic-laden groundwater from Shepley's Hill Landfill. Due to evidence of offsite contamination, the Army is in the process of awarding a contract for the installation of an interim Pump and Treat system. The Army also intends to fund an investigation into the nature and extent of offsite contamination.

AOC 57 – Fuel Oil Spill Site:

As per the 2001 Record of Decision (ROD) for AOC 57, excavation activities to remove and dispose of soil impacted by spilled fuel oil near a former motor pool area east of Barnum Road were completed in February 2002. During backfill of Area 2, oily product was observed on the surface of water in an open excavation pit. The Army undertook an investigation into the source and extent of the oil. Sampling in September 2002 showed no evidence of a source of free-phase oil in the soil, and the extent of residual soil contamination was delineated. Excavation of the remaining impacted soil is scheduled for August 2003.

Pesticide Soil Remediation (Grant, Locust and Cavite Housing Areas):

Pesticide remediation at Grant, Locust and Cavite housing areas was completed in Fall 2002 according to the Massachusetts Contingency Plan (MCP) guidelines. During soil excavations, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) was detected at buildings 863 and 877 in Grant Housing Area. Removal of PCB contaminated soil began in May 2003. Due to the presence of PCB and concerns about arsenic in the soil, the Army will evaluate the three housing areas under the CERCLA program. The first step is to perform a Preliminary Assessment/Site Investigation (PA/SI).

NOTES AND REMINDERS:



Community members can participate in the Devens restoration process by attending the **Restoration Advisory Board (RAB)** meetings. RAB meetings are typically held the second Thursday evening of each month. Please contact the Devens BRAC Office for more information.

ACRONYMS IN THIS ISSUE:

AOC - Area of Concern/Contamination BCT-BRAC Cleanup Team BEC - BRAC Environmental Coordinator BRAC - Base Realignment and Closure BRACEO -- BRAC Environmental Office CERCLA – Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (the federal regulatory mandate, a.k.a Superfund) DEC - Devens Enterprise Commission FS – Feasibility Study (CERCLA) MADEP - Massachusetts Department of **Environmental Protection** MCP -- Massachusetts Contingency Plan NFA – No Further Action (regulatory closure under CERCLA) PA/SI – Preliminary Assessment/Site Investigation (CERCLA) PCB - Polychlorinated biphenyl RAB-Restoration Advisory Board ROD – Record of Decision (CERCLA) USACE - U.S. Army Corps of Engineers USEPA – U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

AGENCY CONTACT INFORMATION:

Ben Goff BRAC Environmental Office 30 Quebec Street, Unit 100 Devens, MA 01432 Phone: 978-796-3835 Ben.Goff@devens.army.mil



Carol A. Keating Federal Facilities Superfund Office of Site Remediation and Restoration Environmental Protection Agency 1 Congress St. Suite 1100 Boston, MA 02114-2023 Phone: 617-918-1393 Keating.Carol@epamail.epa.gov

Lynne Welsh Bureau of Waste Prevention DEP-CERO 627 Main Street Worcester, MA 01608 Phone: 508-849-4007 lynne.welsh@state.ma.us

Ron Ostrowski MassDevelopment Devens Commerce Center 43 Buena Vista Street Devens, MA 01432 Phone: 978-772-6340 ROstrowski@Massdevelopment.com



ų

Location of sites covered in this issue:



BRAC ENVIRONMENTAL NEWSLETTER

BRAC Environmental Office Devens Reserve Forces Training Area FINAL Summer 2004

In This Issue	Page
Remediation Updates	1-2
Remediation Summary Table	1
Notes and Reminders	3
Points of Contact	3
Reference Map	4

REMEDIATION PROJECT UPDATES:

Landfill Consolidation Program:

Six former waste disposal areas were cleaned and approximately 330,000 cubic yards of material were placed in the Consolidation Landfill. The landfill was completed in Fall 2002. The Completion Report received regulatory approval in September 2003. Regulatory inspection of restored wetlands took place in June 2004.

A Finding of Suitability to Transfer (FOST) document has been prepared for the Area Of Contamination (AOC) 9, Study Area (SA) 13 and AOC 40 parcels. The FOST has been sent to agency headquarters for review and approval. After agency approval, the FOST will then be issued for a public review and comment period. Transfer of the cleaned properties is expected in Fall 2004

AOC 50 – Former Moore Army Airfield:

The Final Record of Decision (ROD) for AOC 50 was completed and approved in

Spring 2004. This major milestone culminates months of collaborative effort on the part of the Army, regulatory agencies and local stakeholders. The ROD formalizes the decision to employ bio-remediation, in-well stripping and soil vapor extraction. These technologies will reduce and remove **chlorinated solvents in groundwater** beneath the former Moore Army Airfield.

The next steps are to reach agreements on the Remedial Design and the Remedial Action Work Plan. These documents lay out the specific details of the remedy and the work required of the Army's contractor, Arcadis, to implement it. Fullscale implementation of the remedy is expected to begin in late Summer 2004.

DEVENS REMEDIATION SUMMARY:

CERCLA/Superfund

325 total sites identified for evaluation

244 sites approved for No Further Action (NFA) status

50 sites recommended for NFA status

- 19 sites undergoing active remediation per Record of Decision (ROD)
- 7 sites on hold, pending further evaluation
- 5 sites undergoing site evaluations

For more information on the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA/Superfund) program at the USEPA, visit: <u>www.epa.gov/superfund/about.htm</u>

Shepley's Hill Landfill Groundwater:

The 1995 Record of Decision (ROD) for Shepley's Hill Landfill specified the contingency remedy of a groundwater extraction and treatment system (a.k.a. pump and treat) to prevent the migration of **arsenic in groundwater** from Shepley's Hill Landfill. Due to evidence of offsite arsenic contamination, the Army awarded a contract in September 2003 for the installation of an interim Pump and Treat system. Installation of the system is anticipated by January 2005.

AOC 57 - Barnum Road Motor Pool:

As per the 2001 Record of Decision (ROD) for AOC 57, excavation activities to remove and dispose of soil impacted by petroleum, oil and lubricants (POL) near the former motor pool area east of Barnum Road were completed in February 2002. During backfill, residual POL was observed on the water surface in an open excavation pit.

The Army undertook an investigation into the source and extent of the POL. Sampling in September 2002 showed no evidence of a source of free-phase oil in the soil, and the extent of residual soil contamination was delineated. Excavation of the remaining contaminated soil and restoration of adjacent wetland areas was completed in November 2003.

A long-term monitoring plan was developed and implemented in Spring 2004. Regulatory inspection of the restored wetland areas took place in June 2004.

<u>Pesticide Soil Remediation (Grant, Locust</u> and Cavite Housing Areas):

Pesticide remediation at Grant, Locust and Cavite housing areas was completed in Fall 2002 according to the Massachusetts Contingency Plan (MCP) guidelines. During soil excavation, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs), and arsenic were detected in soil near several buildings. PAHs have been cleaned to MCP and EPA standards. Removal of PCB contaminated soil is ongoing.

Due to the presence of PCB and concerns about arsenic in the soil, the Army is evaluating the housing areas under the CERCLA program. The first step, a Preliminary Assessment/Site Investigation (PA/SI), is ongoing.

The Army also completed a Devenswide soil arsenic background study report in March 2004. Results presented in the report will be used to determine if arsenic found at future sites is naturally occurring or due to a release.

SA 71 - Former Railroad Roundhouse:

Railroad maintenance activities and the release of coal ash at SA 71 resulted in soil **contamination of heavy metals** and polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (**PAHs**).

Excavation in 1999 and 2000 removed the bulk of contaminated soil, approximately 2,400 cubic yards. However, a pocket of contaminated soil and sediment remains along the southeast edge of Plow Shop Pond. The Army is conducting a riskbased evaluation to determine if removal action is required. The evaluation will be completed in Fall 2004.

GET INVOLVED!

Community members can participate in the Devens restoration process by attending the **Restoration Advisory Board (RAB)** meetings. RAB meetings are typically held the second Thursday evening of each month. Please contact the Devens BRAC Office for more information.)

EXPRESS YOURSELF!

1

Residents can also provide input through the **RAB Community Co-chairs**. A Co-chair volunteer from each community works with representatives of the Army, USEPA, and MADEP to ensure local interests and issues are included in the environmental restoration program. Please contact your Community Co-chair or the Devens BRAC Office for more information.

The RAB Community Co-chairs are:

Ayer: Julia Corenzwit julia.corenzwit@hp.com

Devens: John Crowley 11A Walnut Street Devens, MA 01432

Harvard: Bill Ashe

Shirley: Kathy Bourassa 122 Hazen Road Shirley, MA 01464 (978) 425-4988 garyandkathy@prodigy.net

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency USEPA: Jim Murphy 1 Congress Street, Suite 1100 Boston, MA 02114 (617) 918-1028 murphy.jim@epa.gov

Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection MADEP: Becky DaSilva

MA DEP 627 Main Street Worcester, MA 01605 508-767-2707 becky.dasilva@state.ma.us

AGENCY CONTACT INFORMATION:

You may contact any of the following agency representatives for more information.

Ben Goff BRAC Environmental Office 30 Quebec Street, Unit 100 Devens, MA 01432 Phone: 978-796-3835 Ben.Goff@devens.army.mil

Randy Godfrey U.S. Army Corps of Engineers New England District 696 Virginia Road Concord, MA 01742-2721 Phone: 978-318-8717 Randy.N.Godfrey@nae02.usace.army.mil

Carol A. Keating, USEPA Federal Facilities Superfund Office of Site Remediation and Restoration Environmental Protection Agency 1 Congress Street, Suite 1100 Boston, MA 02114-2023 Phone: 617-918-1393 Keating.Carol@epa.gov

Lynne Welsh, MADEP Bureau of Waste Prevention DEP-CERO 627 Main Street Worcester, MA 01608 Phone: 508-849-4007 lynne.welsh@state.ma.us

Ron Ostrowski MassDevelopment Devens Commerce Center 43 Buena Vista Street Devens, MA 01432 Phone: 978-772-6340 ROstrowski@Massdevelopment.com

Location of sites covered in this issue:





















Shepley's Hill Landfill AOCs 4, 5 and 18 (continued) Initial Remedy included: Landfill Closure Improvement of Stormwater Drainage System Landfill Cover Maintenance Landfill Gas Collection Long-Term Groundwater and Gas Monitoring Institutional Controls 60% Design of Groundwater Extraction System















- Most recent round of groundwater sampling was performed December 2003. All detections were below MADEP Method 1, GW-1 Standards
- Drainage system, including detention pond and separator was constructed throughout maintenance yards in 1996
- Remedy at AOCs 44 and 52 is protective of human health and the environment

Nobis



















































Nobis









 Located on the northeastern boundary of the former Moore Army Airfield (MAAF), within the former Fort Devens North Post in Ayer, Massachusetts. The AOC 50 Source Area comprises less than 2 acres and includes Buildings 3803 (the former parachute shop), 3840 (the former parachute shakeout tower), 3824 (a gazebo), and 3801 (the former 10th Special Forces airplane parachute simulation building)

- Remedial investigations completed in 2000
- Feasibility study completed in 2002
- ROD signed in 2004

Б÷н

.

Nobis












ĔŦĔ

AOC 69W *(continued)* = ROD issued in 1999 = Selected remedies included:

Long-term groundwater monitoring

Ън

Nobis

- Institutional controls
 Long-term monitoring has been controls
- Long-term monitoring has been conducted semi-annually since 1999
- Exceedances of Volatile Petroleum Hydrocarbons (VPH), arsenic and manganese have been detected in groundwater at SOC 69W slightly above their respective cleanup goals

Nobis

10







APPENDIX L

APPENDIX L

REGULATORY AGENCY AND COMMUNITY COMMENTS

Nobis Engineering, Inc.

EPA Comments on the Draft 2005 Five-Year Review Former Fort Devens Devens, Massachusetts June 2005 (Responses Completed September 2005)

General Comments:

1. <u>General Formatting and Editing:</u>

- The Draft 2005 Five-Year Review (FYR) is mostly information "cut and pasted" from other documents, including the Five-Year Review Report from 2000, the various RODs, and other site-related documents. However, in most cases the tense from the original document was not corrected, the references were not changed, and the document from which the information originated was not cited. Therefore, the Draft document does not read clearly. For example, information cut from the Shepley's Hill Landfill ROD, which was written 10 years ago, reads awkwardly and inappropriately for a 2005 document. Actions that are now long since completed are presented as if they still lie in the future. Another example is found in chapter 10 (AOC 50), where much of the description of the remedy (sec. 10.3.1) is written in the future tense, e.g., "The exact locations, spacing, and completion details of the injection wells/transects will be specified in the RD." However, the remedy is largely complete at the present time. The text should be edited thoroughly to make it clear what represents a projection forward made at some time in the past, what has now been done, the current status of any activity, and what is a projection for the future as of the time of the FYR preparation.
- The "Site Chronology" section in each chapter identifies the "First Five-Year Review" in September 2000 as the last event, although it is not the last chronological event for this 2005 Five-Year Review. This is a remnant of being "cut" from the 2000 Five-Year Review report. List the 2000 Five-Year Review in appropriate chronological order and check each chapter's chronology to ensure that all important milestones for this 2005 Five-Year Review period are included, as many of the chronology tables seem to offer only limited or no events for this FYR evaluation period.
- References throughout the document to sections within the document or Figures are often incorrect because they refer to references in the original document that the text was "cut" from. All references to sections within the document or Figures, etc. should be checked and corrected, as appropriate.
- A thorough cite checking should be carried out for the entire document. References cited in the text should be cross-checked against the lists of "References" provided at the end of each chapter to verify that the references are complete.
- In many cases, information is provided from historical RIs or SIs, but the information is not cited as such, so it is unclear what the source of the information is and what the time period of the information is – historical or current. Cite the source of all information, as appropriate, and ensure that all citations are included in the "References" section.
- Data in appendix tables are often illegible due to highlighting in the original table and incorrect darkness settings during copying. Legible copies should be provided.

Also, throughout the document are numerous editorial errors – run-on sentences, incomplete sentences, grammatical errors, misspellings, etc. Conduct a thorough editorial review of the document and correct these errors.

The issues listed above, have, and are being addressed. Some of the concerns will be corrected when a full version of report, when the appropriate documents are gathered for the Appendices.

2. The Executive Summary, on page ES-1, references "U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) guidance (USEPA, 1999)" as being used to prepare the Draft 2005 Five-Year Review report. It is unclear where this reference is defined, as there is no reference section for the Executive Summary, and there are numerous reference sections, one at the end of each site chapter. Regardless, the guidance that should be followed for this 2005 Five-Year Review is EPA's "Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance" dated June 2001. In addition, the "Supplement to the Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance: Evaluation of Institutional Controls" dated March 17, 2005, which was transmitted to the Army via email on March 23, 2005, should be followed for this 2005 Five-Year Review. The Draft document is missing critical information required by these guidance documents. For example:

Community involvement information should be discussed within the "Five-Year Review Process" sections. See Appendix A of the "Comprehensive Five Year Review Guidance" (2001).

The interview and inspection information for all of the sites is inadequate. See Appendix C and D of the "Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance" (2001) for procedures and checklists that should be utilized for the interviews and inspections. Copies of the checklists should be included in the 2005 Five-Year Review report. For almost all of the inspection write-ups, there was not even a general site description (how big was the site, was it a landfill, was there buildings on the site, was the site active or inactive, were the people working on the site, what was the ground surface like across the site, what was the status of fencing/site access, etc.) In addition, for all of the interview sections, the same 3 people were interviewed and no comments or issues were reported by the interviewees.

- A Five-Year Review Summary Form should be included after the executive summary. See Appendix F of the "Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance" (2001).
- Per EPA's "Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance" (2001), Question B should read as follows: "Question B: Are the <u>exposure</u> assumptions, <u>toxicity data, cleanup</u> <u>levels, and remedial action objectives</u> used at the time of the remedy selection still valid?" Address this throughout the document and ensure information is provided for each site to address whether the ROD RAOs are still valid.
- "Question C: Has any other information come to light that could call into question the protectiveness of the remedy" should be addressed within each "Technical Assessment" section. A "Summary of the Technical Assessment" should be included within each section. See Sections 3 and 4 of the "Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance" (2001).
- "Issues" and "Recommendations and Follow-up Actions" should be presented as shown in Exhibits 4-3 and 4-4 of the "Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance" (2001), including milestone dates for completion of recommended actions.
- Some of the "Protectiveness Statements" are not consistent with Exhibit 4-6 of the "Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance" (2001). Check the status of each site against the guidelines in Exhibit 4-6 and ensure that each "Protectiveness Statement" is appropriate.
- None of the detail and analysis required by the Supplemental Guidance on Evaluation of Institutional Controls (2005) is addressed. On all sites where ICs were included in the

selected remedy, a more comprehensive analysis of the implementation of the ICs, consistent with the supplement guidance, must be performed. In addition, copies of documents demonstrating implementation of ICs must be included with the 2005 Five-Year Review report.

The issues listed above, have, and are being addressed. The EPA's "Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance" dated June 2001was followed. Where appropriate, exhibits 4.3 and 4.4 have been used. Additional information pertaining to ICs was gathered (and included in the report) during this process, however, more information may be needed to complete a comprehensive IC analysis, where applicable.

3. Overall, the level of detail for work completed over the past 5 years (since the 2000 Five Year Review) is inadequate. The draft document offers considerable detail regarding historical activities and monitoring results for each site, but often presents comparatively little material to update the history for the five-year period that is the focus of the report. Revisions should be made with attention to the balance of pre-2000 site history versus 2000 to 2005 developments. Specifically, what physical changes have been made to each site during the reporting period (e.g., completed and planned construction at AOC 32/43A)? What changes have been observed in the monitoring results over the review period (e.g., have the concentrations of fuel constituents at AOCs 43G and 43J declined significantly at key monitoring wells?)? What concerns are raised with respect to meeting projected cleanup timeframes (e.g., Are there differences in the response of organic and inorganic contaminants at AOC 32/43A? At AOCs 43G and 43J?)?

Additional details for each site were included in the report and information pertaining to site features was added.

- 4. The formatting and level of detail are inconsistent from site to site.
 - The details of the remedial elements of the selected remedy were included for some sites, but not for all. Sections 2 through 5 and 10 provide details on each remedial element whereas sections 6 through 9 only provide bulleted remedial action elements. Details of all remedial components should be provided for all sites.
 - ➢ For some sites, a table of COCs and cleanup levels was provided, but not for all. This information should be provided for all sites within the discussion of the selected remedy.
 - The "Remedy Implementation" section of SHL provided a section for each element of the remedy to demonstrate the status of each element of the remedy, but this was not done consistently for other sites. This break out of elements in the "Remedy Implementation" sections should be provided for all sites.
 - A table summarizing groundwater exceedances was provided for AOCs 32/43A, but this type of table presentation of data was not done consistently for other sites. A table presentation of exceedances or other relevant table presentation of historical data and data for the evaluation period, with a reference to an appropriate figure to show well locations, should be provided for all sites.

The issues listed above, have, and are being addressed. Data summary tables were added where appropriate and details to the Selected Remedy Section were added.

5. In a memo to EPA Superfund National Policy Managers on November 26, 2002, EPA recommended implementation of the November 2002 Draft Vapor Intrusion Guidance (Draft Guidance for Evaluating the Vapor Intrusion to Indoor Air Pathway from Groundwater and Soils (Subsurface Vapor Intrusion Guidance), EPA530-F-02-052). This guidance should be included in the section on changes in risk assessment methodologies in the answer to

3

Question B: Are the exposure assumptions, toxicity data, cleanup levels, and remedial action objectives used at the time of the remedy selection still valid? This draft guidance should be listed for each AOC that has VOCs in groundwater under buildings. The 2005 Five-Year Review should evaluate whether use of this guidance would change the conclusions of the ROD and the selected remedy.

Where applicable,, this guidance was added to the Technical Assessment Section and a discussion was included based on the available site conditions and available data.

6. Since Massachusetts Surface Water Standards are taken from EPA National Water Quality Criteria, the 2004 National Recommended Water Quality Criteria are ARARs. For each AOC with surface water, these criteria should be identified as ARARs in the section on "Changes in Standards and To Be Considered" in response to Question B. The available surface water data should be compared with these criteria to evaluate whether the ROD is still protective. The latest criteria are provided in the 2004 document available at http://www.epa.gov/waterscience/criteria/nrwqc-2004.pdf.

Where applicable, this Criteria was reviewed and a discussion was included in the Technical Assessment Section.

7. Language concerning manganese should be changed wherever it occurs in the report because it is incorrect that EPA Region I supports a less stringent RfD for manganese based on its Risk Update of 1996. EPA Region I now supports an oral RfD of 0.07 mg/kg/day for ingestion of soil, sediments or food. EPA Region I supports an oral RfD of 0.024 mg/kg/day for manganese in drinking water. EPA issued a Lifetime Health Advisory of 0.3 mg/l for manganese in January, 2004. This value should be used for infants younger than 6 months even for an acute exposure of 10 days. This value should be included in any discussion of manganese and should be considered a TBC for residential drinking water scenarios.'

Discussions pertaining to manganese was edited accordingly.

8. Language concerning risk assessment of iron should be changed wherever it occurs in the report to indicate that its risk cannot be quantitatively assessed because EPA's IRIS database does not have an oral reference dose.

Discussions pertaining to lead was edited accordingly.

9. The FYR asserts the remedy is "operating properly and successfully" for a number of the sites (see, e.g., p. 8-6, sec. 8.4, AOC 69W; p. 10-10, sec. 10.6, AOC 50). However, such a determination has not yet been made with regulatory approval. It would be more precise to state something to the effect that, "Army believes that the remedy is operating properly and successfully, and will request OPS certification from the EPA in the near future."

The OPS statement was edited or removed as appropriate.

10. There is no text discussion for the policy review for the sites listed in Appendix J.

A discussion will be added. The "Policy Table" will be removed and only a Site Status Table will be included.

AOCs 44 and 52: Barnum Road Maintenance Yards (OU4)

1. Page 2-7, Section 2.3.2.2: The "Remedy Implementation" section should be expanded to document the status of implementation for each element of the selected remedy.

The remedy implementation section will be expanded.

2. Page 2-7, Section 2.3.2.3: This section should provide details on the requirements of the work plan (referenced as Weston, 1998a) to show what must be done to meet the groundwater monitoring element of the ROD. Either in this section and/or in the issues section for this site, the document should define the issue discussed in EPA's comments on the Draft Remedial Action Report (May 2004) for this site (see General Comment #2 of EPA's comment letter on the Draft Remedial Action Report).

Details of the Weston, 1998 work plan were added to this discussion. Issues discussed in EPA's Comments of the Draft Remedial Action Report were added to this, and the Issues section of the review.

3. Page 2-9, Section 2.6: The text under "Question A" states that groundwater monitoring is "...complete and no longer being implemented at this site." However, it should be noted that a supplemental round of monitoring was carried out in December 2003, and discussions of the implications with regulators are ongoing. See Specific Comment 2, above. In particular, a key monitoring well in the network, MNG-1, has been destroyed, and is not available for verification of down gradient groundwater quality. (This is acknowledged in the FYR on page 2-7, section 2.3.2.3, but is neglected in later discussion of the site status, which asserts that "... no further groundwater sampling is required" (page 2-10, section 2.6).

The following was added "Annual groundwater monitoring has been completed and a supplemental sampling round was performed in December 2003 by the USACE. The data indicate no exceedances of GW-1 standards. The Remedial Action Closure Report is being reviewed by Regulatory agencies at this time."

Shepley's Hill Landfill: AOCs 4, 5, and 18 (OU1)

4. General Comment: The level of detail on the efforts over the last five years at this site is inadequate. There should be significantly more detail (and dates) on the major efforts that have been worked on since the last Five-Year Review: the design of the pump and treat system, the construction of the pump and treat system, the Explanation of Significant Differences, the plan for the Comprehensive Site Assessment/Corrective Action Alternatives Analysis (CSA/CAAA), and the Cap Maintenance Contract. There are only approximately 13 sentences in the SHL section that describe all of these major efforts that have occurred over the past 5 years.

Comment noted. Additional details (including those listed above) have been added and detailed in the revised write-up.

5. Page 3-1, Table 3-1: It is notable in the table that the first FYR was completed in 1998 and the second was completed in 2000. The text should offer an explanation for this schedule.

The text was revised to explain this schedule. In 2000, Five-Year Reviews were performed for all applicable sites at Devens to allow for the same Five Year Review cycle.

6. Page 3-1, Section 3.2, 2nd Para: It is unclear what the purpose of the discussion of the building here is to SHL background information. The discussion needs to be expanded to demonstrate the relevance of this event and to provide dates and potential impacts of this event. Is the infiltration basin "outside of the area contributing groundwater flow toward the landfill" or "contributing groundwater flow toward the landfill"? Please clarify.

The discussion was not relevant in this section (Background). The discussion of the infiltration basins was moved to the Interview Section (3.5.4) and details of the infiltrations basins were included.

7. Table 3-2 and Page 3-6, 8th para: The manganese cleanup level in the ROD is 291 ug/L based on background, not 1,715 ug/L as listed in Table 3-2. On page 3-6, within the discussion of the "Five-year Site Review" element of the remedy, this revision is discussed. This discussion should be noted in Table 3-6 and the document that enacted this revision should be clearly cited.

Table was edited and text was added accordingly.

8. Page 3-5: The write up of the "Landfill Cover Maintenance" element of the selected remedy is different than the ROD (page 36). The write-up of the "Long term Groundwater Monitoring" element does not specify semi-annual monitoring for a minimum of 30 years, as stated in the ROD.

The text was edited accordingly with the language from the ROD.

9. Page 3-6: For the "Five-year Site Review" element, add the 1st sentence of the 2nd paragraph on page 39 of the ROD to the definition of this element.

The text was edited accordingly with the language from the ROD.

10. Page 3-8, Last Para: The text states, "The purpose of the landfill gas monitoring program is to establish long term trends..." However, the subsequent discussion is concerned entirely with magnitudes, rather than trends. This section would be enhanced by a brief discussion of trends. For example, have VOCs, oxygen, hydrogen sulfide, LELs, carbon monoxide, carbon dioxide, or methane risen or fallen significantly over the monitoring and/or reporting period?

Gas monitoring results and a discussion on trends was added to this paragraph.

11. Page 3-9, 2nd Para: With respect to the gas migration effort, expand this discussion to clarify when this was done and why (i.e., in response to recommendation in the 2000 Five Year Review). What has this monitoring revealed with respect to the question of off-site gas migration? Results should be discussed for completeness. Or, has this effort not been performed yet and is planned to be part of the Cap Maintenance Contract, as inferred from the text on page 3-11, Section 3.4? Please clarify.

The paragraph was revised. A portion of the requested information was included in the previous paragraph that discussed results and trends. Additional gas migration efforts will be performed on the southern portion of the landfill after the Cap Maintenance Contract.

12. Page 3-9, Institutional Controls: The Town of Ayer's prohibition on private groundwater wells in the area down gradient (i.e., to the north) of the landfill is relevant here and should be

discussed. Although not under Army's control, this existing restriction is relevant to the protectiveness of measures to reduce risk associated with the landfill.

A comment from the MADEP (comment j from their July 20, 2005 comments letter) indicated that the Town of Ayer has a by-law that requires a permit to install a groundwater well for consumptive use. This information was included.

13. Page 3-9, 8th Para: The write-up of the "Five-Year Site Reviews" included here is the summary of the 1998 Five-Year Review, as printed in the 2000 Five-Year Review report. This section should be updated to include information on the 2000 Five-Year Review findings and recommendations. In addition, the text from the ROD (on page 3-6) notes that FYRs "were scheduled for 1998, 2003, and 2008," which appears to be at odds with the schedule as given in Table 3-1 and on Page 3-9 (1998, 2000, and, by inference from the present document, 2005). Please explain the change in the planned review schedule for clarity.

The text was revised to explain this schedule.

14. Page 3-9 – 3-11: A summary of the SHL Supplemental Groundwater Investigation is provided here under the "Remedy Implementation" section. Since this was not required as part of the selected remedy in the ROD, it is suggested that it be made a separate section.

This discussion was placed in a separate discussion.

15. Page 3-11, Section 3.4: This section must explain what the protectiveness statement was in the 2000 Five-Year Review.

The protectiveness statement from the 2000 Five-Year Review was included.

16. Page 3-13, Section 3.5.4: This is not an MNA remedy.

This sentence was removed.

17. Page 3-13 – 3-14, Section 3.6: The discussion of "Remedial Action Performance" here provides a summary of the first Five-Year Review of 1998 and then discusses 2003 data. Include a summary of the 2000 Five-Year Review and other relevant data from the 2005 FYR evaluation period. This section offers a discussion of "Remedial Action Performance" with a particular focus on changes in arsenic concentrations in groundwater. While this is appropriate, given the identification of arsenic as the principal risk driver, there are a number of other COCs that were identified for SHL (see Table 3-2). What can be said about the concentrations of the other COCs over the review period? Are there any remaining exceedances for COCs other than arsenic? This bears upon the performance of the remedy.

This section was revised accordingly. A discussion of the other COCs was added. The information was obtained from the Draft 2004 Annual report, prepared by the USACE.

18. Page 3-14, Last Para and Page 3-17, Section 3.7: The "Early Indicators of Potential Remedy Failure" section and the "Issues" section need to be expanded to clearly detail the unresolved issues at the site and explain planned responses to those issues. The "Issues" section does not do justice to the number of unresolved issues at SHL that are detailed in correspondence and BCT meeting minutes and which have served as the driver for the implementation of the contingency remedy and the planning for the CSA/CAAA.

These sections were revised accordingly. Additional details and the planned responses were included.

19. Page 3-15, Para 3 and Page 3-16, Para 2: Human health risks are not eliminated by institutional controls, because ICs do not protect off-site groundwater that is contaminated. A statement might be made here concerning the Town of Ayer's restrictions on groundwater use down gradient of SHL for completeness.

Comment noted. Information on the Town's by-law was included.

20. Page 3-15, 5th Para: Change the discussion concerning manganese to address General Comment 7, above. Identify the revised cleanup goal that was calculated for the long term monitoring program.

This section was revised accordingly

21. Page 3-17, Section 3.8, 2nd Para: It is agreed that there may be opportunities to reduce monitoring costs by eliminating certain analytes that do not appear to contribute to risk evaluations, remedy performance, or general understanding of transport processes affecting COCs of interest. With respect to the specific analytes listed here, it should be noted that cadmium, chromium, and mercury have been identified as particular concerns in sediment in adjacent Plow Shop Pond, and the interaction of SHL groundwater with the pond is under study at the present time. Although SHL has not been implicated as a likely source of Cd, Cr, or Hg to Plow Shop Pond, their significance in the pond system should be weighed when considering revision of the SHL LTM analyte list.

Comment noted, text was revised accordingly.

22. Page 3-17, Section 3.8: The "Recommendations and Follow-Up Actions" section must include the start-up of the pump and treat system, performance monitoring of the pump and treat system, the Cap Maintenance contract efforts, the CSA/CAAA efforts, and implementation of a final remedy for SHL, in a manner consistent with Exhibit 4-4 of the "Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance" (2001), including milestone dates. Bryan Olson, EPA Federal Facilities Section Chief, clearly stated at the March 10, 2005 BCT meeting that EPA expected that the CSA/CAAA efforts would be significantly included within the 2005 Five-Year Review and that a protectiveness statement on SHL would be conditional upon the Army's completion of the CSA/CAAA effort.

Exhibit 4-4 was included with the efforts identified. Estimated start-up dates were used as milestone dates. Additional discussions on the CSA and CAAA were included throughout the Shepley's Review.

23. Page 3-18, Section 3.9: The EPA does not agree with the protectiveness statement for SHL. Refer to Exhibit 4-6 of the "Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance" (2001). Since it has been determined that the contingency remedy should be implemented and the Army has not begun operation of the contingency remedy, and since other issues with the SHL remedy are to be evaluated as part of the CSA/CAAA and the CAAA is expected to result in a final remedy for the site, the EPA considers that the remedial action at SHL is "under construction" not "operating or completed". EPA proposes that the appropriate protectiveness statement at this time should be a "protectiveness deferred" statement - "A protectiveness determination of the remedy at SHL cannot be made at this time until further

information is obtained through completion of the recommendations and follow-up actions detailed in Section 3.8. It is expected that these actions will take approximately (insert time frame) to complete, at which time a protectiveness determination will be made."

This protectiveness statement was included. A timeframe to complete these activities was discussed with Mr. Robert Simeone and was based on the estimated schedule for the CSA and CAAA.

AOC 57 (OU09)

24. Page 4-5, 1st Full Para: Why is this discussion of Alternative II-2 included here? This section of the report is presenting the RAOs for Area 3, not Area 2, and Alternative II-2 was not even the remedy for Area 2.

The discussion of Alternated II-2 was not applicable and was removed.

25. Page 4-5, Last Para: Explain the purpose of the ESD and provide dates and details of the ESD that resulted in the COC changes referenced here.

Details of the ESD were included.

26. Page 4-6 – 4-7, Section 4.3.3: The COCs and cleanup goals for soils are provided, but not for groundwater. Incorporate the groundwater COCs and cleanup goals from Table 12 of the ROD as amended by the ESD.

The groundwater COCs and cleanup goals from the ROD were included.

27. Page 4-10, Section 4.3.5 and Page 4-18, Section 4.8: The "Remedy Implementation" section discusses the soil excavation and groundwater monitoring elements of the remedy in some detail. However, this should also discuss the surface water monitoring, wetlands protection, institutional controls, institutional control inspections and five-year review elements if the remedy in sufficient detail to demonstrate that these elements of the remedy have been or are being addressed. The 1st sentence of the 3rd paragraph of this section does not even list these elements as components specified by the ROD. In addition, Section 4.8 also excludes these other elements of the remedy. The "Remedy Implementation" discussion of the soil excavation element of the remedy should refer to the Interim RA Complete Report (September 2004) and provide some narrative about that report and provide additional details on the total material removed and where it was disposed.

Discussions for implementation of the identified items were included. A discussion of the RA Complete Report was also included.

28. Page 4-10 - 4-11, Section 4.3.5.1: Provide a reference for the performance standards documented here.

The reference was added.

29. Page 4-11: Wetland inspection findings are not addressed in the "Assessment of Monitoring and Site Inspection Data" section.

The wetland inspection findings were included in this section.

30. Page 4-11, Section 4.3.5.2: The LTMP is referenced as being in Appendix C of the Final Interim RA Complete Report. The LTMP is not included in the referenced report. EPA is issued comments on the Draft LTMP on July 12, 2005.

The reference was removed from this discussion.

31. Page 4-11: The compounds listed here for Area 2 and Area 3 environmental monitoring are wrong. These are not the COCs for this site.

The correct COCs were included.

32. Page 4-12 – 4-13, Section 4.5.2: This presentation of data is very difficult to follow. A table summary presentation of exceedances should be considered. On page 4-13, paragraph 2 refers to a contaminant at 50 ug/L, but does not indicate which compound. On page 4-13, 4th paragraph, information on naphthalene is provided, but naphthalene is not a COC. Also, note that the text refers to summaries of results from December 2003 and November 2004 monitoring, but does not mention May 2004 monitoring. Results from the last are included in Appendix C as Table 2a.

A table that summarizes the results was included in place of the textual descriptions.

33. Page 4-12, Section 4.5.2.1, 1st Para: The text cites results for 57M-95-03X and 57M-96-11X at "... 13 ug/L and 16 ug/L, respectively." What are these results for? These figures do not appear to represent total VOCs, based on the results provided in the Appendix for December 2003, nor do they appear to represent concentrations of any single VOC. Please clarify.

The provided table replaced this discussion.

34. Page 4-13, 1st Para: Since the arsenic MCL is changing, change the first sentence on this page from "Arsenic was detected below the GW standard in three monitoring wells..." to "Arsenic was detected below 50 ug/l in three monitoring wells...".

The provided table replaced this discussion.

35. Page 4-13, Section 4.5.2.1, Area 3: The text cites results for 57M-03-05X at "... 12 ug/L." What is this result for? This figure does not appear to represent total VOCs, based on the results provided in the Appendix for December 2003, nor does it appear to represent the concentration of any single VOC. Please clarify.

The provided table replaced this discussion.

36. Page 4-13, Section 4.5.2.1: In the section on total metals, correct the units for arsenic in the first sentence (currently 50 mg/L and 270 mg/L). Correct the last sentence in this paragraph which compares lead in surface water to the groundwater standard. There is no date provided for this data.

The provided table replaced this discussion.

37. Page 4-13, Section 4.5.2.1: The second paragraph under "EPH" gives results for arsenic at Sump 4. Should this information be given under the previous subheading ("Total Metals")? Or, is the intent here to separate results for the sump samples from those for groundwater and

surface water. If so, perhaps additional subheading(s) would clarify the structure of the reporting.

The provided table replaced this discussion.

38. Page 4-14, Section 4.5.3: This (and/or other) section(s) may be an appropriate place to note that a major stormwater management structure was constructed immediately southwest of the AOC57 during the five-year review period. Insofar as potential hydrologic impacts on AOC57 were considered in the design of the retention basin, this activity represents a change that should be acknowledged.

Information pertaining to the stormwater management system was included.

39. Page 4-14, Section 4.5.4: This is not an MNA remedy. Please remove the statement that the AOC57 remedy is operating properly and successfully. An OPS demonstration for the AOC57 remedy has yet to be prepared for EPA review and approval. What is meant by the last sentence of this section?

The reference to MNA, OPS and last sentence were removed from this section. They were not applicable to AOC 57.

40. Page 4-14, Section 4.6: Under the "Remedial Action Performance" section, the text states, "A LTMP has been implemented ...," yet the following section acknowledges that, "... the LTMP has not yet been finalized." Perhaps it would be more precise to state something to the effect that initial rounds of monitoring have been performed following a draft LTMP as an interim measure, pending revision and approval. In addition, provide details in this section of how groundwater data is being interpreted to show that cleanup levels will be met in less that 30 years and COCs are not migrating off the property?

The statement concerning the LTMP was revised as requested and information on how data is being interpreted was included.

41. Page 4-15: Under the "Implementation of Institutional Controls" section at the top of the page, it is stated that "No institutional controls are required". ICs are required by the AOC57 ROD.

This statement was removed.

42. Page 4-15: The last paragraph of the "Changes in Standards to be Considered" section discusses DEP Method 1 standards. Why is this discussion here and why is the data summary here?

This discussion was not applicable to this section and was removed.

43. Page 4-15, Last Para: Change the first sentence in this paragraph from "No current risks exist at the Site." to "No current risks exist at the Site because there are no exposures."

This revision was made.

44. Page 4-16, Section 4.6, 1st line: Please revise "...will eliminate the potential ingestion of groundwater exposure pathways" to "...will eliminate the potential groundwater exposure pathways."

This revision was made.

AOCs 43G and 43J (OU06)

45. Page 5-3, Section 5.3, 2nd Para: Remove the first sentence concerning the less stringent RfD for manganese as per General Comment 7.

The sentence was removed and the section was revised in accordance with General Comment #7.

46. Page 5-5, 2nd Para: Change the last sentence of this paragraph from "...and a determination will be made by the Army and USEPA that the selected remedy remains protective..." to "...and a determination will be made by the Army and USEPA whether the remedy remains protective..."

The modification was made accordingly.

47. Page 5-7 - 5-9, Section 5.3.5: There is not adequate detail on the implementation of the elements of the remedy. There is no discussion on the implementation of the installation of groundwater monitoring wells, long term monitoring and reporting elements of the remedy. Refer to the "Remedy Implementation" section for this site in the 2000 Five-Year Review report. Why wasn't this information and a summary of this information included in this 2005 FYR?

This information was included.

48. Page 5-7 – 5-8, Section 5.3.5.1: Provide a reference for the document that set the "Performance Standards" defined on pages 5-7 and 5-8. How does the "Regression Analysis" discussion on page 5-11 relate to the "Performance Standards"? How do the "Performance Standards" and the "Regression Analysis" relate to the modeling required by the ROD? Information provided in this section does not clearly support that COCs are decreasing and the plume is not expanding.

Reference and information how these items are related was included. Additional information was added to support findings and conclusions.

49. Page 5-10, Section 5.5.2: This section provides a fairly detailed review of recent monitoring results (e.g., specific wells at which each COC have exhibited exceedances of the cleanup standards). To the extent that the MNA remedy depends for its ultimate success on long-term declines in concentration, it would be useful to provide an overview of trends for the principal COCs at the sites, particularly over the 5 years that are the focus of the report. Are COCs indeed attenuating demonstrably? Have any COCs at any wells gone from exceedance to compliance within the past five years? Do any appear to be stable, potentially undermining the premise of the MNA remedy?

The requested information was included. Data summary was included that includes historical and current results.

50. Page 5-11: There needs to be an explanation of the statement "Manganese (291 ug/L Goal Risk based Shepley's 1715)".

The explanation was included.

51. Page 5-11 – 5-13 and Page 5-15, Section 5.6: What about the exceedances in the sentry wells? AOC 43G has manganese exceedances in sentry wells. AOC 43J has VPH, iron, manganese and arsenic exceedances in sentry wells. It is inadequate to infer that exceedances and updating of the model will be addressed in the 2004 Annual Report and make a statement of protective without any recommendations for follow-up actions. The 2005 Five-Year Review report should be the document that offers thorough analysis of the data and the "Technical Assessment" (Section 5.6) should identify where the remedy is not meeting RAOs. If RAOs are not being met, the "Recommendations and Follow-Up Actions" section (Section 5.8) should identify measures to address deficiencies with specific milestones and the "Protectiveness Statement" (Section 5.9) should be subject to these follow-up actions, as appropriate.

Analytical results from the sentry wells will be discussed and data summary tables was included. An evaluation of the data will be discussed in Technical Assessment Section in regards to the selected remedy and RAOs. Recommendations were included as necessary.

52. Page 5-13, Section 5.5.2.2, Arsenic: The text states, "Concentrations increased from below the goal in source well 2446-03 in October 2004." Please be more specific; in particular, it might be noted that As increased from 46 ug/L in November 2003 to 78 ug/L in October 2004. The historical range given in Table 4-6 is 31 to 110 ug/L (with some uncertainty due to the difficulty of reading the photocopy). These figures give some perspective on the exceedance observed in October 2004. With respect to the arsenic exceedance in October 2004, the performance standard indicates that additional field actions will be implemented if MCL exceedances are detected in sentry wells. The current goal is the former MCL for arsenic (50 ug/L). This goal should be changed since the remedy should comply with the upcoming MCL of 10 ug/L. Please discuss in Section 5.8 what action will be taken as a result of the MCL exceedance in a sentry well, as well as how the performance standard for arsenic should be changed due to the change in the MCL from 50 ug/L to 10 ug/L.

Details of the noted conditions and recommendations in regards to the observed concentrations of arsenic was included in the appropriate sections.

53. Page 5-14, Section 5.5.2.5: The text states, "At AOC 43J, the only exceedance of VPH GW-1 concentrations within sentry wells occurred for C9-C10 aromatic hydrocarbons in 2446-04." Please add the date, e.g., "... in October 2004 at monitoring well 2446-04."

This information was included and was summarized in the data tables.

54. Page 5-14, Section 5.5.2.5: The text notes that well 2446-04, which detected an exceedance for VPH, "... is only approximately 50 feet down gradient of the former waste oil UST." Is the implication that this well should not be classified as a "sentry?" If so, should this be a recommendation put forward in Section 5.8?

The 2003 Annual Report, prepared by the USACE states that well 2446-04 is a "sentry well". The well is downgradient of the source are, but is not located on the site perimeter.

55. Page 5-15, Section 5.5.4: Section 5.5.4 indicates that ICs are in effect; however, no ICs were required by the ROD. ICs possibly should be considered to ensure groundwater is not used for drinking water until the cleanup levels are achieved. The remedial action objectives include protection of commercial/industrial receptors on and off Army Reserve Enclave

property from exposure to groundwater having chemicals in excess of specified remedial goals. This "Implementation of ICs" section should identify how such exposures will be prevented without ICs or should propose ICs. If ICs are proposed, this should be reflected in Section 5.6 and the "Recommendations and Follow-Up Actions" section.

The following statement was added to the section: "Until the time of property transfer, institutional control restrictions will be covered by the Installation Master Plan."

56. Page 5-15, Section 5.6: The "Remedial Action Performance" section refers to this as a no action remedy – this is not a no action remedy.

This statement was removed.

57. Page 5-15, Section 5.6: The 2000 Five-Year Review recommended no longer analyzing for iron and nickel (in the "Recommendations" section) or carbon tetrachloride (in the "Optimization" section); however, these recommendations were not implemented in the LTM program. Should these recommendations be reconsidered in the "Opportunities for Optimization" section and the "Recommendations and Follow-up Actions" section of this 2005 Five-Year Review? Note that the 1st sentence on page 5-18 may imply that nickel should continue to be monitored.

This recommendation was reconsidered in the Opportunities for Optimization section.

58. Page 5-15 – 5-16, Section 5.6: Please describe how the original remedial goal for arsenic of 50 ug/L will be changed to reflect the change of the arsenic MCL from 50 ug/L to 10 ug/L.

A statement in regards to this change was added.

59. Page 5-16, Section 5.6: In the "Changes in Exposure Pathways" section, the report notes, "Groundwater monitoring data at each AOC suggest that organic COC concentrations are decreasing at source wells ...". This is an important conclusion, central to evaluation of the performance of the MNA remedy. The FYR would be strengthened by supporting data. Some simple measure(s) of performance might be given, such as the maximum concentrations of key organic COCs at the beginning and end of the five-year review period (and, perhaps, at the beginning of the LTM program, to provide reference points for the longer-term trends).

Upon review of the updated data tables, this conclusion was reconsidered.

60. Page 5-19, Section 5.9: The information provided in the report on this site does not support the conclusions of the "Protectiveness Statement", that concentrations of COCs are decreasing and the plume is not expanding off-site. Revise the document so that the data is presented to effectively demonstrate these conclusions.

In accordance with this comment and the ones noted above, the document was revised accordingly.

South Post Impact Area, AOCs 25, 26, 27, and 41 (Groundwater) (OU03):

61. In the 2000 Five-Year Review, on page 6-12, DEP raised a question regarding annual reporting related to the Natural Resources Management Plan. Was this question ever resolved?

The Army is currently finalizing an updated Natural Resources Management Plan that will cover 2005 through 2009. Annual submissions were not required as part of this plan.

62. Page 6-3 – 6-9, Section 6.2: A few subsections (6.2.1.1, 6.2.3.1, 6.2.4.1) of the "Background" section provide a summary of post-ROD groundwater data. It is unclear why this is presented in the "Background" section and whether this is a complete summary of all groundwater data for the AOC. A similar summary of data is not presented for AOC 26. A complete summary of post-ROD data should be presented in the "Data Review" section.

The data was revised and moved accordingly and information for AOC 26 will be added.

63. Page 6-4, Section 6.2.1.5: It is stated in the first paragraph that manganese exceeded its MCL; however, manganese does not have an MCL. The secondary MCL is 0.05 mg/L, and the lifetime health advisory is 0.3 mg/L.

The section was revised accordingly.

64. Page 6-5, Section 6.2.2.4: Please edit, "Suggested potential effect of the permeability of soils in AOC 26, if contaminants are solubilized there is a potential contaminates could infiltrate the groundwater" for clarity. Is the intent to state something like, "It was suggested that, due to the permeability of soils in AOC 26, contaminants could be leached to groundwater"?

Text was revised accordingly.

65. Page 6-5, Section 6.2.2.5: Change the sentence "Unfiltered groundwater shows several elevated metals, but filtered groundwater shows exceedances of drinking water standards only for manganese." Manganese does not have an MCL. The secondary MCL is 0.05 mg/L, and the lifetime health advisory is 0.3 mg/L.

Text was revised accordingly.

66. Page 6-6, Section 6.2.2.5: In the second paragraph it is stated that no risks were identified for turtles "using a real data". Please correct this and describe what data were used to indicate no risk.

Text was revised. The information provided was from the previously submitted reports. The text has been revised to more clearly state that ecological risk to turtles is considered to be minimal based on site-specific toxicity tests.

67. Page 6-6, Section 6.2.3.1: In the first sentence of the second paragraph, the background level of RDX should be changed from 2 g/L to 2 ug/L.

Text was revised accordingly.

68. Page 6-9, Section 6.2.4: The concentration units in the last paragraph of this section should be changed from g/L to the correct units.

Text was revised accordingly.

69. Page 6-11, Section 6.3.2: The "Remedy Implementation" section does not discuss all of the elements of the remedy. No information is provided on the elements related to no installation of new drinking water wells and no change of property use.

This information was added.

70. Page 6-12, Section 6.5.2 and Page 6-15, Section 6.9: The presentation of data does not clearly support that COCs are not migrating off-site. The "Data Review" section should discuss whether groundwater has been analyzed for perchlorate and, if so, what the results were and discuss the potential for off-site migration of perchlorate.

Groundwater was analyzed in the fall of 2004 for perchlorate. The data was included in the data review section.

71. Page 6-12, Section 6.5.4: This section indicates ICs are in effect. ICs are not in effect at SPIA.

The text was revised accordingly.

72. Page 6-12, Section 6.5.4: It would be useful to present data from interviews with personnel on the site related to the use of the DW-1 drinking water well to demonstrate if the actual current use of the source is consistent with the risk assessment assumptions.

Information pertaining to D-1 was included in the report accordingly.

73. Page 6-13, Section 6.6: The last sentence of the 2nd paragraph under Question B indicates that the "remedy includes limiting the use of groundwater as drinking water". Please elaborate.

The text was revised to preclude the use of the noted unclear statement.

74. Page 6-15, Section 6.9: The second paragraph should discuss why "potable use on an extremely limited basis" ensures human health is not at risk.

The text was revised to more accurately state that health risks are limited by the infrequent short-term use of the groundwater by a small healthy population during military training.

AOCs 32 and 43A (OU05)

Nobis is now in receipt of a draft of the 2004 Annual Review. This document makes recommendations that Nobis has evaluated in light of the Roadmap to Long-Term Monitoring Optimization, a guidance document prepared by EPA in May 2005. The recommendations can be supported in that they propose reducing the number of wells to be sampled to those that contribute useful data to the knowledge of contaminants at and around Well 32M-01-18XBR. The recommendations further eliminate a number of analytical tests, on the ground that they are unlikely to contribute meaningful information about either the contaminants at the site (test results are often non-detect; some tests are for parameters that describe the likelihood of bioremediation of chlorinated organics, but since the only well with known VOC contamination is 32M-01-18XBR, and this well has an extremely low score for bioremediation, the tests are not fulfilling a useful

purpose. Nobis supports these recommendations, but it is acknowledged in the new text that the changes will need to be reflected in the new LTMP.

75. <u>Pages 7-1 - 7-2</u>, <u>Section 7.2</u>: Details of the MNAA, construction of the building, and installation of the replacement wells should be discussed in the background.

Discussions of these activities were added to the background section.

76. <u>Page 7-4, Section 7.3.3</u>: The description of the selected remedy for groundwater should specify that data is to be incorporated into groundwater flow and transport models and that Five-Year Reviews are supposed to review field data and model predictions, as specified in the ROD.

This statement was added to the selected remedy for groundwater.

77. <u>Page 7-4, Section 7.3.3</u>: The excavation and disposal activities completed in October and December 1998 should be discussed in the "Remedy Implementation" section, not the "Selected Remedy" section.

These activities were moved to the Remedy Implementation Section.

 Page 7-5 - 7-6, Section 7.3.4: The "Remedy Implementation" section is inadequate: The OPS demonstration was before the building was constructed. The summary of the MNAA is inadequate. The RA completion for the soils component is not discussed. There is no discussion of ICs.
 The discussion of the construction of the building and its effect on the remedy is inadequate.

A note was added stating that the OPS was completed prior to the construction of the warehouse building. Additional details of the other subjects identified were included in this section.

79. <u>Page 7-6, Section 7.3.5</u>: The text states, "Groundwater monitoring is being performed in accordance with the LTMP (SWETS 2001a,b)" It should be noted here that this LTMP was developed for the former site configuration and available well network. It therefore serves only as a rough guide for the current program. Discussion is ongoing to develop an updated LTMP appropriate to current site conditions. Furthermore, it should be noted that additional changes to the site are proposed, and that these changes may require further adjustments to the LTMP.

This information was added to this section and in other appropriate sections of the Five-Year Review.

80. <u>Page 7-6, Section 7.4:</u> There were a number of recommendations in the 2000 Five-Year Review that are not discussed in Section 7.4.

The recommendations from the 2000 Five-Year Review were added.

81. <u>Page 7-7, Section 7.5.2.1:</u> The text states, "Natural attenuation parameters (dissolved oxygen [DO] and ORP/Eh) are only useful from bedrock source well 32M-01-18XBR, as it is the only well that continues to show exceedances of the same parameters." Presumably, it is not

the intent to state that DO and ORP are "in exceedance." Should this read, "... continues to show exceedances of organic contaminants"? Please clarify.

Yes, this statement should read "...organic contaminants" and was edited accordingly.

82. <u>Page 7-9, Section 7.5.4 and Page 7-10, 4th Para:</u> The "Interviews" section indicated there is no deed restriction, yet the IC section on page 7-10 indicates there is a deed restriction. Please clarify.

This contradiction was corrected. There is currently a deed restriction in place.

83. <u>Page 7-10, 2nd Para:</u> Why isn't the sampling recommendation in the "Optimization" section included in the "Recommendations" section?

This statement was added to the Recommendations section.

84. <u>Page 7-11, Section 7.6</u>: The potential for vapor intrusion into the newly developed warehouse is acknowledged in the section on "Changes in Exposure Pathways". Although no unacceptable risks were found based on modeled indoor air concentrations, this should be confirmed with the EPA draft vapor intrusion guidance. See General Comment 5.

The Draft Vapor Intrusion Guidance was reviewed and the appropriate information was included.

85. <u>Page 7-12, Sections 7.7 and 7.8:</u> There are issues with this remedy that have been discussed at BCT Technical meetings. Resolution of these issues should not be put off to the 2004 Annual Report, as suggested on page 7-9, 1st paragraph. The issues need to be explained in the "Issues" section and recommendations to address the issues need to be included in the "Recommendations" section with proposed follow-up actions and milestones. The 3rd paragraph on page 7-13 is a good start to addressing this. If more time is needed to evaluate the concerns, as suggested on page 7-10, 3rd paragraph, then make the argument in the 2005 Five-Year Review of why more time is needed and present the follow-up actions and schedule in the "Recommendations" section. Then, the "Protectiveness Statement" will need to linked to the completion of appropriate follow-up actions.

The issues were discussed and broken out in the Issues section and recommendations were added accordingly. The Protectiveness Statement was updated to state that the remedy is currently and foreseeably protective.

86. <u>Page 7-14, Section 7.9, 4th Para:</u> This discussion does not include ICs, modeling, and MNA, other components of this remedy that need to continue to be met.

These items were included in this section.

AOC 69W (OU07)

87. Page 8-1, Section 8.0: The chapter on AOC 69W nowhere informs the reader of the current use of the site. Section 8.2 ("Background") discusses the former use as Fort Devens Elementary School, and notes that it was closed in 1993, and, in 1996, was "expected to be re-opened in the near future." The chapter later alludes to property transfer (e.g., p. 8-8, sec. 8.7). Please add information concerning current site use for completeness.

Details of the current property use were included.

88. Page 8-1, Section 8.2, 2nd Bullet: The release was No. 2 fuel oil, not No.4.

Reference to a No. 4 was replaced with No. 2 fuel oil.

89. Page 8-1 – 8-4, Section 8.2: The 2000 Five-Year Review included a large section summarizing site risks in the "Background" section. Why wasn't this information or a brief discussion of this information included here?

Summary of information presented in the 2000 Five-Year Review was included.

90. Page 8-2, Section 8.2: Figure 8-1 is referenced in the 3rd and 5th bulleted paragraphs, but this cannot be found in Appendix G. Please correct.

Reference to Figure 8-1 was removed from the 3^{rd} and 5^{th} bulleted paragraphs.

91. Page 8-2 - 8-3: What is the source of the information presented in sections 8.2.1, 8.2.3 and 8.3?

Unless otherwise noted, the provided information in these sections was gathered from the 1999 ROD, prepared by HLA.

92. Page 8-4, Section 8.2.3: In the second paragraph, it is stated that MCLs were exceeded for EPH and VPH. There are no MCLs for EPH and VPH. Please clarify.

MCL/Massachusetts Groundwater Quality Standards 310 CMR 6.0.

93. Page 8-5, Section 8.3.1: The details of the LTMP should be provided in the "Remedy Implementation" section, rather than the "Selected Remedy" section.

Details pertaining to the LTMP presented in the "Selected Remedy" section was incorporated into the "Remedial Implementation" section.

94. Page 8-5, Section 8.3.2: ICs are a critical element of the remedy, yet are not discussed in the "Remedy Implementation" section.

Information pertaining to ICs was included.

95. Page 8-5, Section 8.3.2, Para 1: The text refers to additional sentry wells ZWM-01-25X and -26X. Please note that the site map supplied in Appendix G is from a monitoring program document that pre-dates the installation of these wells, so that their locations cannot be found in material provided with the FYR. Perhaps an updated figure could be found to replace the one labeled Figure 1-2 in the current Draft version of the FYR. It would also be informative to readers to offer an explanation for the installation of the two additional sentry wells in 2001, i.e., that successive rounds of COC exceedance were detected at former sentry well ZWM-69-23X.

Figure 1-2 was updated to included ZWM-01-25X and -26X.

96. Page 8-6 – 8-7, Section 8.5.2: The presentation of data is inadequate. Paragraph 2 of this section talks about "four years" of data. What are the dates of this data? Data is not

presented to support that contaminants are not migrating off-site and decreasing over time. Revise the document so that the data is presented to effectively demonstrate these conclusions.

A table was included that summarizes the discussed data.

97. Page 8-6, Section 8.5.2: The report notes that C11-C22 aliphatics have decreased overall, but that well ZWM-99-22X has remained consistently above the cleanup target of 200 ug/L. On a positive note, it might be observed that C11-C22 aliphatics appear to have declined significantly at this well, having gone from three rounds >1000 ug/L through April 2001, but having remained <500 ug/L for five successive rounds (2002 - 2004).

A table was included that summarizes the discussed data. A statement in regards to the C11-C22 aliphatics was added.

98. Page 8-7, Section 8.5.2, Para 1: The report notes that C9-C10 aromatics were in exceedance of the cleanup standard of 200 ug/L in April 2004 at ZWM-99-22X. As it reads, this seems to signal a change in the most recent monitoring round. However, it should be noted that it is a change in the cleanup standard that caused this exceedance, rather than an increase in contaminant concentration. It appears from the tables in Appendix G that the relevant standard (MADEP GW-1) was 1000 ug/L through 2003, and was lowered to 200 ug/L in 2004. LTM results from well -22X for C9-C10 aromatics have fluctuated widely in the range 34 to 840 ug/L over the ten rounds tabulated in Appendix G. The April 2004 result of 650 ug/L (as well as the October 2004 result of 600 ug/L, which is not mentioned in the text) lies toward the high end of, but within, that historical range. The report does acknowledge this change in the cleanup goal on the next page (p. 8-8, sec. 8.7), but it would help the reader to see the 2004 exceedances in perspective if it were noted earlier in section 8.5.2.

A table was included that summarizes the discussed data. The change in the C9-C10 aromatic hydrocarbon standard was noted.

99. Page 8-7, Section 8.5.4: The discussion of ICs in this section refers to the "LIFC with LUC as described for Shepley's". What does this mean?

Reference to Shepley's was removed from the discussion.

100. Page 8-11, Section 8.8: MassDevelopment is planning to sell this property in the near future. This should be discussed and plans for addressing ICs should be addressed in the "Recommendations" section.

Discussion was added regarding transfer of property and plans for addressing ICs.

Landfill Consolidation, AOCs 9, 11, and 40, SAs 6, 12, 13, and 41 (OU02)

101. Page 9-1, Section 9.1: Add information on pre-ROD chronology. Include the 2003 RA completion event.

Pre-ROD information was included in the Chronology, including the RA completion event.

102. Page 9-1 – 9-7, Section 9.2: Provide dates for all of the background information.

Dates for background information were included.

103. Page 9-2, Section 9.2.2: The volume estimated was 112,000 cy, not 120,000 cy.

The volume estimate was changed to 112,000 cy.

104. Page 9-2, Section 9.2.2, Last Para: The reference to "background" here should be clarified, since there is no specific background number for Devens for arsenic. "Devens RFTA background concentrations" are referenced throughout Section 9.2.2 and 9.2.3. Please clarify.

Comparisons to background at Devens have evolved recently and upcoming comparisons to background will differ from those used even recently in the past. The comparisons to background noted in the Five Year Review summary are thus based on methods that were appropriate at the time. More rigorous background comparisons might be forthcoming (per the Final Soil Arsenic Background Study) as LTM proceeds.

105. Page 9-8, Section 9.3.1: For the selected remedy for AOC40, drum removal was an element of the selected remedy, but it is not included here. Also, for AOCs 9, 11, and 40 and SA 12, disposal of the excavated debris was to be disposed in the Consolidation Landfill or off-site. The "off-site" option was not noted in the description of the selected remedy.

Drum removal information was discussed and reference to off-site option was included.

106. Page 9-8, Section 9.3.2: The "Remedy Implementation" section does not provide adequate discussion of the implementation status of all elements of the selected remedy, including wetland restoration, ICs, AOC 40 drum removal, and cover system monitoring and maintenance.

These elements were discussed in more detail.

107. Pages 9-9-9-10, Sections 9.3.2.2 - 9.3.2.6: These sections all include 2 different numbers for the volume of material disposed in the Consolidation Landfill versus the material removed from the area. Please clarify these figures and explain the delta.

Both values represent the amount of material disposed at the landfill. One value is in tons and the other is in cubic yards. The actual tonnage of material was tracked with weight scales at the landfill. The delta was a result of converting from a per ton quantity to a per yard quantity.

108. Page 9-10, Section 9.3.2.5: The last paragraph of this section discusses restoration activities at SA 12. However, the selected remedy did not include restoration at SA 12. Please clarify

A clarification was provided. Extensive slope excavation occurred at the side to remove the debris material. As a result of the extended debris limit and deeper excavation slope reconstruction and restoration was required.

109. Page 9-11, Section 9.3.3: Provide details on the O&M Plan requirements.

Details of the O&M Plan were included.

110. Page 9-16, Section 9.5.2.7: Provide a reference for the LTMP for this site and details of the LTMP requirements. This section reports that there was a lead exceedance in 2003. Did lead levels decrease to below the reportable concentration in 2004?

A reference to the LTMP was added and details of the LTMP were included. Lead levels were non-detect for sampling conducted in October 2004.

111. Page 9-17, Para 3: ICs are required for AOCs 9, 11, and 40 and SA13 where "unrestricted future use is not achievable or economical". Has this determination been made for the related sites?

As is now noted in the subject document, institutional controls are being incorporated into the revised DRFTA Master Plan, and will be incorporated into the deed upon transfer of the property.

112. Page 9-19, Section 9.8: Provide a schedule for the repair of the drainage swale.

Repair of the drainage swale is anticipated to be in the Fall of 2005, and this is now noted in the document.

AOC 50 (OU08)

113. Executive Summary, Page ES-6: Please remove the statement that the AOC 50 remedy is operating properly and successfully. An OPS demonstration for the complete AOC 50 remedy has yet to be prepared for EPA review and approval.

The reference to the OPS was removed.

114. Page 10-2, Para 2: Property affected by the north plume portion of the AOC 50 site also includes the GFI Ayer, LLC property. Please revise the text.

The text was revised.

115. Page 10-2, Para 3: It is stated that residential use of the AOC 50 site is unlikely based in part on existing zoning restrictions. Zoning of the MAAF property could change when the Towns of Ayer, Harvard and Shirley vote in 2006 on the ultimate disposition of Devens property.

This information was included.

116. Page 10-3 – 10-4, Sections 10.2.4 (In-Situ Soil Vapor Extraction) and 10.2.7 (SVE): These two sections seem to present the same information. Please consolidate these two sections into one.

The two sections were combined.

117. Page 10-4, Section 10.2.8: Please specify that the reagent currently being used is a molasses-water solution. The document describes the ERD pilot test carried out in 2001 - 2002. It might be noted that a previous pilot test was conducted in the same area by Harding/MACTEC, using hydrogen release compound (HRC).

The identified information was included.

118. Page 10-5, Section 10.3.1: In the section titled "Pre-Design Investigation Activities", change the phrase "Over the past two years..." to identify the actual dates over which Army has undertaken extensive field investigation at AOC 50.

The timeframe was included (since 2004).

119. Page 10-9, Section 10.6: It is unclear why the institutional control objectives are presented at the beginning of this section. This section should discuss how all the remedial components are meeting remedial action objectives specified in the ROD. Please revise.

The institutional control information was summarized and moved to the end of this section.

120. Page 10-10, Section 10.6, Remedial Action Performance: IRZs are still in the process of being established for some of the ERD transects. Efforts are currently underway to accelerate the establishment of the IRZs through the implementation of the Army's ERD optimization plan. Please revise the text.

This information was included.

121. Page 10-10, Section 10.6, Remedial Action Performance: Please remove the statement that the AOC 50 remedy is operating properly and successfully. An OPS demonstration for the complete AOC 50 remedy has yet to be prepared for EPA review and approval.

The OPS statement was removed.

122. Page 10-10, Section 10.6, Opportunities for Optimization: The Army is currently implementing an ERD remedy optimization plan. Please revise.

Information of the optimization plan was included.

123. Page 10-10, Section 10.6, Changes in Standards and TBC: MCLs are enforceable standards, not guidelines. Please revise.

Text was revised accordingly.

124. Page 10-11, Section 10.6: In the section titled changes in exposure pathways, it is stated that groundwater underneath buildings is at a sufficient depth to limit exposure through vapor intrusion. This conclusion should be confirmed with the EPA draft vapor intrusion guidance.

A site specific risk assessment evaluated exposures to vapors migrating into indoor air and identified excess risk associated with residential/educational use in the Source Area. Use of the Source Area is restricted by the Lease and ICs. This section was revised accordingly.

125. Page 10-13, Section 10.9: This section states that COCs exceeding drinking water standards are not migrating off-site. Please support this conclusion with a discussion of the data, particularly the maximum concentration of PCE or other COCs in the groundwater at the boundary of the site, which includes the Nashua River.

This section has been revised. PCE was detected in well G6M-02-07X at 26 ug/l and in G6M-04-14X at 14 ug/l during the sampling in September 2004. PCE was not detected in G6M-02-06X and G6M-04-08X during the sampling in September 2004. These wells are screened at levels where PCE was detected during vertical profiling and range 30 to 85 below ground surface. These sampling locations are within the F&WS property and subject to the restriction on groundwater extraction. Furthermore, there is a low flow dilution factor of 237 for groundwater discharging to the Nashua River. The interim porewater cleanup level for PCE is 125 ug/l. Surface water concentrations are predicted to be less than the MCL.

Draft Final 2005 Five-Year Review (FYR), June 2005 MADEP Comments, July 2005 Responses to comments prepared September 2005

General Comments:

1. MADEP notes that the title to this document should be "draft", not "Draft Final". The Federal Facilities Agreement and the Department of Defense State Memorandum of Agreement require primary document development to include a draft prior to the issuance of a draft final version.

Comment noted.

2. The document requires major editing efforts in order to be consistent with the USEPA Comprehensive Guidance Five-Year Review, June 2001 and the Supplemental to the Comprehensive Five-Year Guidance dated March 17, 2005. The 2001 Guidance includes additional questions to be answered regarding the selected remedy and Institutional Controls that are missing from this FYR. This draft FYR utilizes much of the previous 2000 FYR material with additional brief updated information appended to the end.

The report was revised in accordance with these documents.

3. The 2001 Guidance for a Five-Year Review identifies actions that trigger ...'as a matter of policy', FYR of sites where a removal action leaves hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants on a site above levels that allow for unlimited use and unrestricted exposure and where no remedial action has or will take place'. MADEP has concurred with several NFADDs where this condition exists and where our concurrence with the NFADD was conditioned to follow up actions. MADEP did this to facilitate the Army's progress in closing sites as several locations contained numerous sites or AREE conditions and would like the Army to report on these follow-ups.

Comment noted. This concern has been discussed with the Army.

4. MADEP has published new draft standards for RDX and HMX. The proposed Method 1 Standards are 0.8 ug/l and 8 ug/l respectively for GW-1 areas. The GW-1 set of standards would be the appropriate designation for the Main and North Posts at Devens. MADEP requests that these draft standards be included as To Be Considered, TBC, in the Technical Assessment -ARAR sections and discussions of application of these standards be included in Shepley's Hill Landfill where results in monitoring well SHL- 24 had relatively high levels of explosive residual and at CB-1 at AOC 40/SA 24.

Where applicable, the draft standards for RDX and HMX were included in the TBC sections.

5. MADEP is also enclosing results for monitoring well sampling for explosive residuals done by ACE in 1992. There were several monitoring wells that had relatively high levels of various explosive compounds. Follow- up has been discussed at several BCT meetings. MADEP would like recommendations to be included in this FYR for follow-on actions, including possible retesting, that the Army has or will take to address potential releases associated with these results. (re-test)

Comment noted. The Army will be considering follow-up actions in regards to these issues.

6. The FYR's Executive Summary (ES) is incomplete and does not portray the major points of each site covered; the Barnum Road Maintenance Yards (AOC 44 & 52) does not mention the fact that the Army is seeking a Closure, Shepley's Hill Landfill OU (AOC 4, 5, & 18) does not mention that the 2000 FYR recommended implementing the Contingency Remedy, nor does it mention that both the Off Site Investigation and the Red Cove area are recommended to be included in this OU, recommendations are not included for either AOCs 44 & 52, 4, 5, & 18 or AOC 50. Additionally, the ES states that AOC 50 is Operating Properly and Successfully, but, at this time, a regulatory determination has not been made or discussed concerning a status change for this AOC.

The Executive Summary was revised accordingly and the noted information has been included.

Statutory FYRs:

1. AOC 44 and AOC 52

a. USEPA has made extensive comments about the form and content of this section of the FYR, MADEP will not reiterate them but does concur that major editing needs to be done in order to follow the USEPA Guidance and provide adequate detail and consistency throughout the FYR.

Please refer to response to EPA comments 1 through 3 for AOC 44 and AOC 52.

b. <u>Section 2.3.2.3</u> indicates that...' no further groundwater monitoring is required' but does not mention that both MADEP and USEPA have requested that the damaged monitoring well, MNG-1, be replace and monitored in order to Close Out this site. MADEP requests that the damaged MW, noted above, be repaired or replaced and sampled as part of an additional round of monitoring to satisfy the ROD requirements.

Please refer to EPA comment No. 3.

c. The stormwater system for these AOCs consisted of catch basins, piping and a detention pond located across Barnum Road. The pond was located in an area where excavation to evaluate the probable Eastern Acid Pit Disposal Area, associated with the TDA Building, SA 38D. As the stormwater detention basin construction did not locate the former Eastern Acid Pit Disposal Area, SA 38 D NFADD should not have been given a NFA determination.

Comment noted., however, no changes to the subject document appear to be required.

2. Shepley's Hill Landfill

a. USEPA has made extensive comments about the form and content of this section of the FYR, MADEP will not reiterate them but does concur that major editing needs to be done in order to follow the USEPA Guidance and provide adequate detail and consistency throughout the FYR.

Please see the detailed responses to the EPA Comments 4 through 23.

b. <u>Section 3.3.3 Remedy Implementation</u> – The MADEP has noted the need for general Operations and Maintenance improvements in two letters to the Army; August 23, 2004 and March 30, 2005, therefore we request the word 'substantial' be removed as a descriptor for the work the Army has performed. In addition it should be noted that in almost every US Army Corps of Engineers Annual Report, as well as the 1996 Close Out Report, contained similar recommendations for cap maintenance work. The Cap Maintenance Contract, referenced in <u>Section 3.5.3 Site Inspection</u>, is suppose to address these issues.

Substantial was removed. The Cap Maintenance Contract will address these issues.

c. <u>Section 3.3.3 Remedy Implementation</u> - Past Annual Inspections monitoring for landfill gas shows that many of the vents have both Oxygen readings above 10% and LEL levels above >100% (readings from Industrial Scientific TMX 412 CGI calibrated on 53% LEL Methane/Pentane). These readings suggest potentially explosive conditions that should be addressed immediately with a surface scan for methane and increase landfill gas monitoring. The CSA/CAAA should include an evaluation of the stage of landfill decomposition; determine the need for additional vents in the landfill mass and around the entire perimeter.

The CSA/CAAA will include an evaluation of landfill gas and determine the need for additional gas vents at the landfill. Additional gas probes will be installed on the southern portion of the landfill as part of the cap maintenance work in Fall 2005.

d. <u>Section 3.3.3 The Supplemental Ground Water Investigation</u> was not part of the SHL ROD and should not be included in the Remedy Implementation Section. It should be in a separate section. Also, please note that the title of the document should be '*Draft*' because it was never approved as a final document. Agreement has not been reach on some of the areas contained in this report.

The Supplemental Ground Water Investigation discussion was moved to it's own section and labeled as Draft.

e. <u>Section 3.5.4 Interviews</u> - The SHL ROD is a source control remedy not an MNA remedy, please change this. MADEP has made its issues known through comment letters. It is misleading to state that the...'None of the personnel interviewed were aware of any reported problems...'

The reference to MNA was removed and the noted statement was removed.

f. <u>Section 3.6 Question A: Technical Assessment-Remedial Action Performance</u> - This section should include and highlight work that has been performed within the 2000-2005 time period. Please include the information presented at the June 10th BCT and RAB meetings by USEPA regarding continued discharge to Red Cove and Plow Shop Pond. <u>Opportunities for Optimization</u> - MADEP does not agree with the recommendations for optimization, at this time, given the number of unresolved issues that are detailed in correspondence and BCT meeting minutes. These issues which will guide the implementation of the Contingency Remedy and the planning of the CSA/CAAA.

The noted information was included in the appropriate sections of the report and the Opportunities for Optimization section was revised accordingly.

g. <u>Section 3.6 Technical Assessment – Question A: Early Indicators of Potential Remedy Failure</u> - A discussion is needed to describe what a CSA/CAAA is and a reference should be included at the end of the section.

Details of the CSA/CAAA were added to the Interview (3.5.4), Issues (3.7), and Recommendations (3.8) Sections.

h. Section 3.6 Question B: Changes in Standards and To Be Considered – See General Comment 4. The ROD for SHL noted explosive concentrations in SHL 24 but did not address it because it was an upgradient well. The well must be re-sampled and analyzed for the SHL COC list of constituents and explosive residuals. If there are still residual levels of explosive constituents in SHL 24 then the issue of explosive residuals needs to be added to the scope of the CSA/CAAA.

A recommendation to resample SHL 24 for explosives was added to this section.

i. <u>Section 3.6 Question B: Changes in Exposure Pathways</u> – See Comment 2.c. A trespasser pathway should be included in the risk assessment due to the use of SHL as a hiking destination for students of the adjacent high school. Given the possible explosive conditions at the vents indicated in the Annual Monitoring Reports, this pathway should be included in the risk assessment until the condition is addressed. Additionally, given new data and information an eco risk assessment will be included in the CSA/CAAA and need to evaluate this exposure pathway should be included in this section.

This section was revised accordingly. An evaluation of this exposure pathway will be performed as part of the CSA/CAAA.

j. Section 3.6 Question B: Changes in Exposure Pathways – The documents states that ...'Institutional Controls prohibiting the use of groundwater as drinking water source at SHL will eliminate the potential groundwater exposure pathway. ' As of this date there is no zoning or regulation in Ayer that 'prohibits' groundwater use. There is an Ayer by-law requiring a permit to install a groundwater well for consumptive use. MADEP does not believe this Institutional Control eliminates groundwater as an exposure pathway.

This section was revised to include the Ayer by-law and discussion of the Institutional Control was revised.

k. <u>Section 3.6.1. Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Review</u> – In addition to forthcoming legal comments, there is a potential for the Clean Air Act requirements related to...'New Source Performance Standards and Emissions Guidelines for MSW landfills [to apply]. Landfills that commenced construction, modification or reconstruction after May 30, 1991, and that have accepted waste at any time since November 8, 1987' may be subject to these provisions. This issue will have to be evaluated in the CSA/CAAA, as well as, a more accurate waste volume calculation, in order to determine any additional requirements.

These issues will be addressed by the CSA/CAAA.

 <u>Section 3.9 Protectiveness Statement</u> – MADEP concurs with USEPA comment in that this statement is not appropriate given the Contingency Remedy is not implemented and since other issues with SHL, Red Cove, off-site plume and Plow Shop Pond will be evaluated in the CAS/CAAA and the CAAA is expected to result in a final remedy for the site.

The Protectiveness Statement was revised in accordance with EPA Comment 23.

2. AOC 57

a. USEPA has made extensive comments about the form and content of this section of the FYR, MADEP will not reiterate them but does concur that major editing needs to be done in order to follow the USEPA Guidance and provide adequate detail and consistency throughout the FYR.

Please refer to responses to EPA comments 24 through 44.

b. <u>Section 4.5.3 Site Inspection</u> - MADEP observed soil erosion caused by surface water runoff entering the site from a rip-rap swale. The swale has become silted in due to soil erosion from an up-gradient source. Additionally, orange stains are visible at groundwater breakouts at the toe of slope near Cold Spring Brook wetland at AOC 57. This staining is typical of bacteria degradation of hydrocarbons. This should be noted. MADEP has some concerns with the remedy and cannot agree that it is operating properly and successfully until there is sufficient evidence that the source of the staining is not the biological degradation of hydrocarbon contamination associated with AOC 57 Area 2 and impacting the wetlands ecosystem.

The noted information pertaining to the swale and staining observations was included. Additional details of wetland inspections are included in the Wetland Protection Section of the Remedy Implementation (4.3.5).

c. <u>Section 4.5.4 Interviews</u> – Please rewrite this section to note the determination has not been made for OPS, comments regarding the erosion and staining were made to during the Site Inspection and the remedy for this AOC is not MNA.

The OPS statement and the MNA language was removed. Information pertaining to the erosion and staining was included.

3. AOC 43G & J

a. USEPA has made extensive comments about the form and content of this section of the FYR, MADEP will not reiterate them but does concur that major editing needs to be done in order to follow the USEPA Guidance and provide adequate detail and consistency throughout the FYR

Please refer to response to EPA comments 45 through 60.

b. <u>Section 5.7 Issues</u> - The information provided in the report on this site does not support the conclusions of the "Protectiveness Statement". Concentrations of COCs are not decreasing and the plumes appear to be expanding off-site. Please give recommendations for follow-on actions the Army will undertake to address these issues.

Reconsideration to the protectiveness statement was performed based on the findings of this review. Recommendations were made accordingly.

5. SPIA

a. USEPA has made extensive comments about the form and content of this section of the FYR, MADEP will not reiterate them but does concur that major editing needs to be done in order to follow the USEPA Guidance and provide adequate detail and consistency throughout the FYR

Please refer to the EPA comments 61 through 74.

b. MADEP requested information as a comment to the 2000 FYR regarding the Natural Resource Management Plan that was required by the SPIA ROD. This Plan has not been received. Please provide a copy of this Plan for review.

Please refer to EPA comment 61.

c. AOC 26 groundwater results indicate increasing amounts of RDX in MW 26M-92-04, as shown on the attached charts.

Comment noted. Information pertaining to RDX at AOC 26 was included in the report.

d. Groundwater concentrations of RDX have been reported as 400 ppb in MW 26M-92-04. The MADEP is concerned over the appearance of elevated RDX in groundwater MWs 26M-92-03X, 26M-92-04X and 26M-97-08X located on AOC 26. MW 26M-92-03X in 2002 showed a high.

Comment noted. Information pertaining to RDX at AOC 26 was included in the report.

e. RDX concentration of 270 ug/l and monitoring well 26M-92-04X has shown high levels since 1993 and most recently in 2004 a concentration of 270 ug/l. It should be mentioned that well 26M-92-08X located the furthest down gradient from AOC 26 is showing a concentration range from 29 ug/l in 1997 to 46 ug/l in 2004, with the highest concentration level recorded in 2002 of 66 ug/l. The contaminant plumb of residual explosives is moving with groundwater in a northwest direction and may have impacted surface water and ecological resources in Slate Rock Brook and Cranberry Pond or may have migrated under Slate Rock Brook and off the property boundary of the SPIA.

Comment noted. Information pertaining to RDX at AOC 26 was included in the report.

f. Section 6.6 Technical Assessment Question B - MADEP has published new draft standards for RDX and HMX. The proposed Method 1 Standards are 0.8 ug/l and 8 ug/l respectively for GW-1 areas. The GW-1 set of standards would be the appropriate designation for the Main and North Posts at Devens. MADEP requests that these draft standards be included as To Be Considered, TBC, in the Technical Assessment - ARAR sections and discussions of application of these standards be included in Shepley's Hill Landfill where results in monitoring well SHL- 24 had relatively high levels of explosive residual and at CB-1 at AOC 40/SA 24.

This information was included in the Technical Assessment section.

g. <u>Section 6.9 Protectiveness Statement</u> - MADEP believes that the situation requires additional evaluation to determine if the plume has moved outside the limits of each site. This should include additional monitoring wells downgradient of the plume, an update of the groundwater model with fate and transport refinements, an adjustment of the LTMP to verify that groundwater discharge areas (wetlands, ponds or waterways and the associated ecosystems) and additional

к

ecological investigations to ensure there are no unacceptable ecological impacts from the migration of residual explosive contaminants.

The potential for off-site migration is evaluated annually in the LTM report. This has been noted in the text.

6. AOCs 32 & 43A

a. USEPA has made extensive comments about the form and content of this section of the FYR, MADEP will not reiterate them but does concur that major editing needs to be done in order to follow the USEPA Guidance and provide adequate detail and consistency throughout the FYR

Please see the detailed responses to the EPA Comments 75 through 86).

b. Section 7.3.5 System Operation/Operations and Maintenance - Groundwater Monitoring is not following the LTMP. Previous BCT meetings have discussed the need to re-evaluate the LTMP and then determine is the MNA remedy working. Monitoring Well 32M-01-18XBR is located immediately east of the former the waste oil storage tank # 13 and outside of the building footprint has continuously shown exceedances in groundwater for 1,2- dichlorobenzene, 1,3- dichlorobenzene, 1,4- dichlorobenzene and C9-C10 aromatic volatile petroleum hydrocarbon. Concentrations of 1,2- dichlorobenzene, 1,3- dichlorobenzene, 1,4- dichlorobenzene and manganese appear to be increasing in groundwater at monitoring well 32M-01-18XBR.

The revisions to the LTMP are now described in the "Issues" table in Section 7.7, and it is noted that recommended changes to the sampling plans will need to be reflected in this revised document. The Army is currently preparing a revised CSM and LTMP for this site under a contract to MACTEC Engineering and Consulting. The completion of these documents is scheduled for early Fall 2005.

It is noted that current documents showing maps of the site often have the label "UST EXCAVATION AREA" inside the footprint of the current warehouse. There is an associated arrow from the label to the former tank location, which is north, not east, of 32M-01-18XBR. The proximity to the building remains an issue, however, and the vapor intrusion study is also included as an "Issue" in the table in Section 7.7.

c. Section 7.8 Recommendations for Follow On Actions

MADEP recommends a more comprehensive evaluation of the regional groundwater regime, to include areas abutting these AOCs. There should be a strategy developed by the BCT to determining the adequacy of the present monitoring system and give recommendations for any additional monitoring is developed. Consideration should also be given to the replacement of groundwater monitoring wells in the building to ensure that adequate groundwater is available to monitor, nearer the source areas.

Additionally, evaluating the integrity of the bedrock monitoring well grout seals should be done. It appears that groundwater from the over burden may have entered the bedrock monitoring wells at 32M-01-14XBR, 43-01-16XBR, 43M-01-17BR and 43A-01-20XBR. The groundwater elevation differential between the overburden monitoring wells 32M-01-14XOB, 43-01-16XOB, 43M-01-17OB and 43A-01-20XOB and the bedrock wells noted above does not appear to be consistent.

The table of recommended follow-up actions now includes inspection and repair of wells at the site. The draft 2004 Annual Report has addressed possible contamination from shallow to deep wells at four well-pairs, and this review is now reflected in the Five Year Review in Section 7.5.2.3. Differences in well recovery rates at well pairs and differences in values of equilibration parameters indicate that there is no leakage between the deep and shallow wells. The requirement to consider sampling wells in neighboring land south-east of the site is noted as a requirement of the LTMP to be prepared (Section 7.8 table). A revised CSM (which will look at regional groundwater) is scheduled for completion early Fall 2005.

d. Section 7.9 Protectiveness Statement -

The issues with the LTMP and the possibility that there are problems with the MNA remedy should be put in the 'Issues' section, with recommendations outlined in the 'Recommendations' section with proposed follow up actions and milestones. At this time it does not appear that a Protectiveness Statement can be supported.

(See also the response to EPA Comment No. 85.) The Protectiveness Statement now notes the requirement to re-examine the MNA assumptions given current condition of the site, to update the LTMP, and to re-examine vapor intrusion requirements according to EPA guidelines. The milestone date for well repairs is given as October 2005: this is intended to prevent snow/sand/roadsalt intrusion.

7. AOC 69W

USEPA has made extensive comments about the form and content of this section of the FYR, MADEP will not reiterate them but does concur that major editing needs to be done in order to follow the USEPA Guidance and provide adequate detail and consistency throughout the FYR

Please see the detailed responses to the EPA Comments 87 through 100.

8. Devens Consolidated Landfill

a. <u>Section 9.6 Technical Assessment Question B To Be Considered</u> - MADEP has published new draft standards for RDX and HMX. The proposed Method 1 Standards are 0.8 ug/l and 8 ug/l respectively for GW-1 areas. The GW-1 set of standards would be the appropriate designation for the Main and North Posts at Devens. MADEP requests that these draft standards be included as To Be Considered, TBC, in the Technical Assessment - ARAR sections and discussions of application of these standards be included in AOC 40/SA 24 results in monitoring well CB -1 had relatively high levels of explosive residuals. This should be follow up on.

Comment noted and will be considered in upcoming discussions with the BCT.

b. <u>Section 9.5.3 Site Inspection</u> – MADEP noted during the FYR Inspection that additional areas of erosion around the perimeter swale, as this is not included in the upcoming Operation and Maintenance Contract, it should be included.

Comment noted and will be considered in upcoming site inspections.

9. AOC 50

a. USEPA has made extensive comments about the form and content of this section of the FYR, MADEP will not reiterate them but does concur that major editing needs to be done in order to follow the USEPA Guidance and provide adequate detail and consistency throughout the FYR.

Please see the detailed responses to EPA comments 113 through 125.

b. Section 10.6 Remedial Action Performance – Please remove the statement that the remedy is operating properly and successfully, OPS. MADEP has indicated that there are two major concerns with the remedy: 1) persistence of arsenic and vinyl chloride outside the ORZs and 2) the existence of contamination upgradient of the cesspool, which seems out of line with the fluctuation pathway seen for the Northern Plume before it would consider this site to be operating properly and successfully. Additionally, the Army should consider <u>Opportunities for Optimization and the possible need to enhance the SVE system with groundwater pumping to allow a larger and deeper efficiency for vapor extraction.</u>

The OPS statement was removed. The MADEP's concerns were noted in applicable sections of the report. A statement regarding the SVE system was added in the Opportunities for Optimization section.

Policy FYR Sites:

There are several attachments covering our comments for sites and a FYR as a matter of policy; they are:

- A. Summary of DEP's Concerns on the Draft No Further Action Decision Document (NFADD) dated August 2003 Lower Cold Spring Brook Study Area (SA) 73.
- B. A List of NFA Sites with Reservations. In most cases the requested work may have been completed by the Army or Mass Development, but the Comprehensive Guidance Five-Year Review, June 2001 indicates that 'as a matter of policy', FYR of sites where a removal action leaves hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants on a site above levels that allow for unlimited use and unrestricted exposure and where no remedial action has or will take place', therefore MADEP would like you to consider this list for review.
- C. Results for explosive residuals in groundwater monitoring wells conducted in 1992 by the Army Environmental Center. In light of the new Method 1 GW-1 standards for RDX and HMX, we would like the Army to follow up with re-testing these wells to see if these contaminants are a potential problem.

Comments noted. Discussions pertaining to these comments are ongoing.
EPA Comments (Part 1 of 2) on the Revised Draft 2005 Five-Year Review Report Former Fort Devens Devens, Massachusetts Submitted Electonically August/September 2005

General Comments:

- 1. Community Involvement: EPA suggests that the Community Participation sections be removed from each of the AOC write-ups and relocated to a separate section of the FYR titled "Community Involvement and Participation". In each existing Community Participation section, refer the reader to the new section. A consolidated community involvement section will provide a better overall picture of the community activities. The boiler plate language that currently exists in the various community sections is generally outdated and not worth repeating over and over. In a few of the sections, there is some sparse site specific-information, but the site-specific information need to be expanded. The boiler plate language states: "The Army has held regular and frequent informational meetings, issued fact sheets and press releases, and held public meetings to keep the community and other interested parties informed of activities at AOCX." There have been very few press release, fact sheets or newsletters over the past five years. It would be useful to count them and note them specifically. They can optionally be included in a Community Involvement and Participation appendix. The two boiler plate paragraphs on the Technical Review Committee and RAB are fine for the historical perspective, but there needs to be additional language that chronicles the history of the RAB since around 1995. There is no mention of co-chairs, particularly the inclusion of the Devens community representative; there should be at least one full paragraph about the role of PACE over the past several years; there is nothing about the base tours that have been organized over the past several summers; there is no discussion of meetings that have been held with local town officials. There could also be mention of the work by the RAB co-chairs to revise the Community Involvement Plan. Although a draft was never completed, a survey was produced and distributed which provided some information to the Army. There also needs to be some general discussion of community issues over the past several years. While the community point of view is not always captured in the RAB minutes, a review of past meeting minutes would be useful to catalogue the issues discussed at a minimum. Some issues that have been discussed in recent years include institutional controls, responsibilities for long tern O&M, and the related but separate issue of Devens disposition. The discussion to be held at the September 8th RAB should provide some additional text for a community participation section.
- 2. Minor formatting and grammatical errors remain in the document. Please ensure that grammatical errors are corrected in the Draft Final.
- 3. <u>ARARs:</u> In many of the ARARs sections, the change to the federal drinking-water standard (MCL) for arsenic is noted. Is it also relevant to note the corresponding change to the Massachusetts arsenic standard. (The state has adopted the federal MCL.)

Specific Comments:

Executive Summary and Introduction:

Comments will be provided by September 13, 2005.

AOCs 44 and 52: Barnum Road Maintenance Yards (OU4):

- 1. <u>Section 2.3.2</u>: Much of the detail of the remedial elements of the selected remedy was removed in this revised draft (contrary to EPA's Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 4, 1st bullet, which requested details of remedial elements be included). At a minimum, replace the details of the Institutional Controls element.
- 2. <u>Page 2-8, Section 2.3.2.4</u>: Explain how the Installation Master Plan ensures that the ICs are complied with and provide supporting documentation, as per EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 2, last bullet.
- 3. <u>Page 2-8, Section 2.3.4</u>: Explain who is responsible for O&M of the drainage system and oil/water separator and how this O&M will be completed over the long-term.
- 4. <u>Page 2-13, Section 2.9</u>: To be consistent with the Protectiveness Statements detailed in the Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance, delete "and immediate threats do not exist" and replace with "and exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risks are being controlled."

Shepley's Hill Landfill: AOCs 4, 5, and 18 (OU1):

- 5. <u>Page 3-1, Section 3.1</u>: Add the following milestones to the chronology table: Final Capping Closure Report, 1996; Final ESD, June 2005; RD/RA Work Plan Final 100% Submittal for the SHL Groundwater Extraction, Treatment and Discharge Contingency Remedy, May 2005; Start-up of the Treatment System, August 2005; and, Performance Monitoring Plan for SHL Groundwater Extraction, Treatment and Discharge Contingency Remedy, August 2005.
- 6. <u>Page 3-6, Section 3.3.2</u>: In the "Long Term Groundwater Monitoring" section, change "The ROD required development of plans for long term groundwater monitoring at Shepley's Hill Landfill to *alternative* performance" to, "... *evaluate* performance," or other appropriate wording.
- 7. <u>Pages 3-8, 3-10, 3-13, 3-15, 3-16, 3-23, 3-24 and 3-25</u>: The contract for the cap maintenance efforts planned for this fall is referred to on all of the listed pages, but the reference is not consistent throughout. In some places it is referred to as "Cap Maintenance Contract" and other places "Cap Maintenance and Repair Contract" and some references identify the "summer or early Fall of 2005" and some the "Fall 2005". Please make the reference to this effort consistent throughout the document. Do no include the word "Repair" in the reference, as the contract does not include cap "repair" efforts.
- 8. <u>Page 3-8, 3-20 and 3-24</u>: The discussion on the manganese cleanup level was included to address EPA General Comment 7 on the Draft FYR. As appropriate, where this is discussed in the FYR, specify when the manganese cleanup level will be revised based on the updated RfD value for water intake. On the bottom of page 3-20, the statement that a revised cleanup goal for manganese "...is being *considered* based on the updated RfD..." conflicts

with the language on the top of page 3-8 which states that the manganese cleanup level "...will be revised based on the updated RfD..."

- 9. Page 3-10-3-11: Under the "60 Percent Design" section, the 2nd paragraph cites the 100% design document, but does not include the date of the document or specifics regarding the development and implementation of the document. Since the development and implementation was a major work effort over the period of evaluation for the FYR, the report should include a few sentences summarizing major milestones in this effort with corresponding dates. In addition, this paragraph goes on to describe the ESD. Revise this information to specify that a Final ESD was issued in June 2005 and that the discharge will be going to the Devens POTW. A separate sentence indicating that the Army is evaluating on-site discharge options for the future could be included, but it is premature to identify this as a possibility in the FYR. On-site discharge was not addressed in the ESD and, if pursued, another ESD would need to be completed.
- 10. <u>Page 3-11 3-12</u>, Section 3.3.4: The bulleted list of items covered by the Supplemental Groundwater Investigation might also note that the study included a preliminary evaluation of various remedial alternatives, utilizing the groundwater flow model.
- 11. Page 3-13 3-14, Section 3.4: The last paragraph of this section refers to the 100% design document and the ESD. Again, as stated in the comment above, the 100% design document was a major work effort over the FYR evaluation period. Revise this section to include additional details and dates on this effort. The ESD is now final and does not allow for onsite discharge. Update consistent with comment 9, above. Also, a discussion of the development of the Performance Monitoring Plan and a summary of the purpose and requirements of this plan should be included in this section.
- 12. <u>Page 3-15, Section 3.5.2</u>: As per EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 4, last bullet, EPA requested a relevant table presentation of historical data and data for the evaluation period. A table of 2004 data showing Arsenic exceedances is included on page 3-17.
- 13. <u>Page 3-16</u>: With respect to ICs, there is a reference that the ICs for SHL are "included in the Lease In Further*ance of* Conveyance currently in affect for SHL". Explain how this document implements ICs and, as per EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 2, last bullet, copies of documents demonstrating implementation of ICs must be included in the FYR.
- 14. <u>Page 3-17, Section 3.5.5</u>: See General Comment 1. The section on community participation provides a general statement regarding current community involvement. In the new community involvement section, update this information to include site-specific information related to the current efforts to implement the contingency remedy. What specific involvement has the community had in the decision process for design and construction of the pump-and-treat remedy, accompanying performance monitoring, etc.?
- 15. <u>Page 3-19</u>: In the paragraph regarding the extraction, treatment and discharge system and the ESD, revise and supplement this information consistent with comments 9 and 11 above.
- 16. <u>Page 3-20, 2nd Paragraph, Last Sentence</u>: This sentence includes a recommendation for resampling of well SHL-24 for explosives constituents. This recommendation needs to be incorporated into Section 3.8 and the corresponding table.
- 17. Page 3-20: In the "Changes in Exposure Pathways" section,
 - 1st paragraph, the 4th sentence indicates that the Town of Ayer by-law "requires a permit to install a water supply well" versus the language on page 3-10 indicated that the Town of Ayer "restricts private groundwater supply wells downgradient of SHL". The

MADEP comment on the Draft FYR was consistent with the former description requiring a permit. The EPA was under the impression that Ayer had a prohibition on the installation of private drinking water wells in the area downgradient of SHL. A prohibition, rather than a permitting requirement, or in addition to a permitting requirement would be the better safeguard that permitting alone. Please clarify Ayer's requirements on this issue and update the document as appropriate.

- 1st paragraph, the last sentence states, "There is no indication that hydrologic/ hydrogeologic conditions are not adequately characterized." It may be appropriate to state something to the effect that further characterization associated with implementation of the contingency remedy (including development of the performance monitoring network) has not led to significant changes in the conceptual model for the SHL hydrogeologic/hydrogeochemical system. However, EPA believes that there are substantial open questions, and those are, at least in part, motivation for the upcoming CSA/CAAA study. Please revise this statement to indicate that characterization is ongoing, and the overall adequacy is yet to be determined.
- There is no mention of a trespasser exposure pathway (or that it will be addressed in the CSA/CAAA) as requested by MADEP in their comment 2.j. This section should include a discussion that this pathway (hiking student trespasser) was not addressed in the original risk assessment and how it is being addressed (i.e. CSA/CAAA, or fencing, etc.).
- 18. <u>Page 3-23, 3rd Para:</u> Consistent with Comments 9 and 11 above, revise the discussion on the treatment system and ESD.
- **19.** <u>Page 3-23, Section 3.7</u>: As per the EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 2, 6th bullet, the "Issues" should be presented as shown in Exhibit 4-3 of the Comprehensive FYR Guidance.
- 20. <u>Page 3-23</u>, <u>Last Para</u>: Revise the last sentence to indicate that the EPA Study in planned "to begin" in September 2005.
- 21. Page 3-24, Section 3.8: Include a discussion in the narrative regarding the start-up of the treatment system. Paragraph 4, 1st sentences indicates that the semi-annual LTM will be conducted by the treatment system contractor. What is the purpose of this statement here? With respect to the discussion in Paragraph 4 of the PMP, why are only 4 wells listed? A more detailed summary of the purpose and requirements of the PMP should be included here. Paragraph 5 indicates that corrective actions outlined in the Draft Cap Drainage Report should be implemented. This report was an internal Army report that was not released to the regulatory agencies or the public. The FYR should detail the corrective actions will be address by the Cap Maintenance Contract effort. If not, unaddressed corrective actions should be included in the table with milestone dates. The last paragraph indicates that the CSA/CAAA "will determine the need for additional gas vents" and then indicates that "additional gas probes will be installed....as part of the cap maintenance work". These statements seem to contradict. Please clarify.
- 22. <u>Page 3-24</u>, <u>Section 3.8</u>: It is noted that the specific analytes listed here (cadmium, chromium, copper, lead, mercury, nickel, selenium, silver, BOD₅, and cyanide) as deemed not to contribute to site risk or understanding of groundwater chemistry is not consistent with that given on page 3-18, section 3.6. Please check for internal consistency. EPA reiterates that Cd, Cr, Pb, and Hg, in particular, are of interest with respect to sediment in

adjacent Plow Shop Pond, as noted in the document, and further discussion will be necessary with regard to dropping analytes from the SHL LTM program.

23. <u>Page 3-25, Table:</u> Since the Cap Maintenance efforts are required to maintain the integrity of the cap and the CSA/CAAA is required to determine a final remedy for SHL, these items should be characterized with a "Y" in the last 2 columns, as these actions do affect the protectiveness.

AOC 57(OU09):

- 24. <u>Page 4-1, Title:</u> AOC57 is a statutory review, not a policy review, because it was a post-SARA remedial action that <u>will</u> leave contaminants on site above levels that allow for unlimited use.
- **25.** <u>Page 4-1, Section 4.1</u>: Since the AOC57 ROD was not signed until after the 2000 FYR, do not include the 2000 FYR in the chronology for this site.
- 26. <u>Page 4-5, Section 4.3</u>: The brief summary of the remedies selected for Areas 2 and 3 should include groundwater and surface water monitoring.
- 27. <u>Page 4-5, Section 4.3:</u> The text refers the reader to sections 4.3.1 and 4.3.2 for details of the remedies. It appears that this pointer should be to sections 4.3.3 and 4.3.4. Please check for consistency.
- **28.** <u>Page 4-7, Section 4.3.3</u>: The tables show that the cleanup level for (EPH) C11-C22 aromatic hydrocarbons for Area 2 is 200 mg/kg, while that for Area 3 is 930 mg/kg. Please check for consistency with the ROD. If correct, please add text to explain the rationale for the different cleanup levels.
- **29.** <u>Page 4-8, Section 4.3.4</u>: As per EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 4, bullet 1, it was requested that details of the remedial elements as specified in the ROD be included in the FYR. The Draft FYR for AOC57 did include the details, but they have been removed in this revised draft.
- **30.** <u>Page 4-10, Section 4.3.5</u>: Elsewhere in the document (e.g., p. 4-13, sec. 4.3.5.2), it is noted that four sumps were installed in the collection trench in Area 2. Is regular servicing of these sumps an element of the remedy and/or LTMP? If so, this does not appear to be stated anywhere in the description of the elements of the remedy or of the LTMP. Please revise for completeness.
- **31.** Page 4-10, Last Para 4-11, Paras 1-6: The discussion in the last paragraph of page 4-10, which continues on page 4-11, reports "Wetlands Protection" information. The information is useful, but likely cut-and-pasted directly form an Annual Report and needs to be revised for clarification in the context of the FYR. The year needs to added throughout the discussion to be clear on when the different observation/activities occurred. In addition, there is discussion of an issue in 2004 of "uncontrolled erosion and sedimentation" that resulted in "erosion within the drainage swale and deposition of fine silt within the wetland and covering of vegetation" within AOC57 and discussion of findings, in May 2005, that "the silt had directly impacted the restored wetland". The resolution of these issues is not reported on nor is this issue identified for follow-up in Sections 4.7 and 4.8 of this Chapter. Please clarify.
- **32.** <u>Page 4-11, Last Para:</u> Explain how ICs are "currently in effect at AOC57". As per EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 2, last bullet, copies of documents demonstrating implementation of ICs must be included in the FYR.

- 33. <u>Page 4-12, 2nd Para:</u> The LTMP is referred to as "approved". Change to "draft".
- 34. <u>Page 4-12, Section 4.3,5.1, 1st Para:</u> Should the 2nd sentence refer to "designated sentry wells" rather than "any of the designated monitoring wells"? In addition, as per EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 28, provide a reference for the performance standards discussed here.
- **35.** Page 4-13, Section 4.3.5.2: The title of this Section should be revised to delete the term "Groundwater". The Draft AOC57 LTMP covered not only groundwater monitoring, but also surface water monitoring, wetland inspections and IC inspections. Also, this section is confusing. It starts out with a sentence on the submission of EPA comments, without introducing the issuance of the Draft LTMP. Then, it includes several sentences regarding Low-Flow Sampling Procedures, which seem out of place. The remainder of the section is presented as a summary of the Draft LTMP. The 2nd paragraph of the section seems to summarize the total sampling program and, following, there are breakdowns on what is required in Area 2 versus Area 3. However, it is not specified that these are the breakdowns, not something in addition to what is presented in the summary paragraph. Finally, there is no discussion of the wells identified, no indication of which wells are sentry wells, and there is no discussion of how the data will be used to confirm that the remedy is operating effectively.
- **36.** <u>Page 4-14, Section 4.5.2</u>: If, during the period of updating the Revised FYR, the Draft 2004 Annual Report is issued, update the reference here.
- **37.** <u>Page 4-17, Section 4.6</u>: As per EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 40 (last sentence), provide details in this section of how groundwater data is being interpreted to show that cleanup levels will be met in 30 years and COCs are not migrating off the property.
- **38.** <u>Page 4-17, Last Para:</u> The last sentence indicates that the Army will prepare an OPS "for the LTMP". Revise to refer to AOC57.
- **39.** <u>Page 4-18, 3rd Para:</u> The "Early Indicators" paragraph appears to be cut-and-pasted from an Annual Report. Please clarify.
- **40.** <u>Page 4-18, 4th Para:</u> The ICs paragraph indicates that ICs are "in effect". Please explain how ICs are implemented.
- **41.** <u>Page 4-18, Question B:</u> In the section entitled "Changes in Standards and To Be Considered", change the reference from Section 4.6.1 to Section 4.6.2 since Section 4.6.1 does not contain a discussion of changes in ARARs/TBCs. In the 2nd paragraph of this section, why is the ESD approval referred to as "conditional"?
- **42.** <u>Page 4-19, 2nd Para:</u> The exceedance of the criteria continuous concentration (CCC) for lead and cadmium should be discussed further. Since the lead and cadmium water quality criteria are expressed as dissolved concentration, not total concentration, please specify whether the sample results were for total or dissolved concentrations. Exceedances are more likely if the samples were analyzed for total metals rather than dissolved metals. If both total and dissolved were measured, discuss the differences between the results, if any. On the other hand, the criteria used for the comparison are based on water hardness of 100 mg/l. The criteria would be lower if the hardness of the surface water is lower than 100 mg/l. EPA suggests that a statement be made in this section that uncertainties concerning the potential exceedance of water quality criteria will be reduced by monitoring and evaluation of total

and dissolved metals and hardness in the future. This recommendation should then be linked to the related recommendation in Section 4.8 (last sentence of Section 4.8).

- **43.** <u>Page 4-22, Section 4.8</u>: The recommendations listed in Section 4.8 should be presented as shown in Exhibit 4-4 of the Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance, including milestone dates. The finalization of the LTMP should also be included in this Section.
- 44. <u>Page 4-22, Section 4.8:</u> The document recommends, "...that the reducing conditions observed at AOC57 be assessed by the Army by plotting and contouring arsenic concentrations, as well as ORP and DO." These steps are endorsed, as they would provide valuable insight into the spatial distribution of conditions favorable to the mobility of arsenic in groundwater. The text also states "The assessment would include determining the cause of the reducing conditions, by evaluating the relationship between arsenic levels and DO/ORP." It is not clear how this relationship would elucidate the *cause* of the reducing conditions; rather, elevated As is caused by low DO/ORP, which results in dissolution of ferric oxyhydroxides, mobilizing sorbed arsenic and other trace metals. It may be useful to seek a relationship between hydrocarbon levels and DO/ORP; a correlation (i.e., elevated hydrocarbons associated with low DO/ORP) may be suggestive of a causal relationship. That is, microbial utilization of the hydrocarbons as an electron donor and DO and other species as electron acceptors can cause low DO/ORP.

AOCs 43G and 43J (OU06):

Comments will be provided by September 13, 2005.

South Post Impact Area, AOCs 25, 26, 27, and 41 (Groundwater) (OU03):

Comments will be provided by September 13, 2005.

AOCs 32 and 43A (OU05):

- **45.** <u>Page 7-1, Section 7.2.1</u>: The text states, "UST #13 and the remainder of AOC 32 appear to be in separate groundwater regimes." Please elaborate on this statement. The UST was on a bedrock knob and near a groundwater divide, so that flow in the area was divergent. Is this the basis for the statement? Also, please expand the text to clarify that this statement refers to the original groundwater configuration, which is now altered substantially
- 46. <u>Page 7-2, Section 7.2.1</u>: This section does not include a discussion of the MNAA for AOC 32 (refer to SWETS 2000b). [Section 7.2.2 includes a discussion of the MNAA for AOC 43A.]
- **47.** <u>Page 7-3, Section 7.2.2</u>: A separate sub-heading should be added for the discussion of the redevelopment and new monitoring well installation since this is applicable to both AOCs.
- 48. Page 7-3, Section 7.3: Change the word "Outcomes" to "Objectives".
- **49.** <u>Section 7.3:</u> As per EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 4, bullet 2, a table of COCs and cleanup levels should be provided in this section.
- 50. <u>Section 7.3.3</u>: As per EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 4, bullet 1, details of the remedial elements of the selected remedy should be included in this section.
- **51.** <u>Section 7.3.4</u>: As per EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 78, bullet 3, a discussion of the RA completion for the soils component (<u>Final Soils Remedial Action</u>

Operable Unit Completion Report, Soil, Asphalt, and Debris Removal at AOC 32, January 2000) should be discussed in this section.

- **52.** <u>Page 7-6, MNAA Section</u>: This section does not include a discussion of the MNAA for AOC 32 (refer to SWETS 2000b).
- **53.** <u>Page 7-6, MNAA Section, 2nd Para:</u> This paragraph refers rather broadly to two wells showing exceedances of organic contaminants, and two wells showing exceedances of inorganics in 1999. Please add more specific information, including the principal compounds and/or elements that were in exceedance, and the maximum concentrations observed. This will provide an important basis for comparison at a forthcoming point in the document, when current conditions are discussed. Also, note the reference omitted at the end of this paragraph.
- 54. <u>Page 7-6 7-7</u>: The bullet at the end of page 7-6 refers to 13 wells. The 3^{rd} bullet on page 7-7 refers to 14 wells and then refers to 26 wells. Please clarify.
- **55.** Page 7-7: This second bullet on this page advances recommendations for monitoring on adjacent property and in the neighborhood of 32M-01-18XBR. The other bullets in this list present results of monitoring from 2002 to 2004, rather than recommendations for adjustments to the monitoring program. Perhaps this bullet should be relegated to a section more clearly intended to forward recommendations (e.g., Section 7.8). Also, the latter portion of this bullet argues that a well close to 32M-01-18XBR is recommended for elimination from the monitoring program, and that, therefore, "... sampling ... farther to the south would not provide useful chemical data" This rationale is not clear, and should be developed further if this recommendation is to be included in the document (whether in this or some other section).
- 56. <u>Page 7-7, Last Para:</u> As per EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 2, last bullet, provide a copy of the deed.
- **57.** <u>Page 7-8, Section 7.4:</u> In addition for the recommendations of the 1st FYR, this section should include the status of recommendations and follow-up actions and results of implemented actions.
- **58.** <u>Section 7.4:</u> This section needs to include an analysis of the data with reference to wells in Figures to support the statements on page 7-14 and 7-16 that off-site migration is not occurring.
- **59.** <u>Page 7-13, Section 7.5.5</u>: See General Comment 1. The section on community participation gives some detail through the FS in 1997, followed by a rather broad, general outline of public involvement at present. In the new section, address any specific community participation there has been with respect to the changes in site use since the FS (e.g., development of a LTMP, property transfer, grading and construction on the site, replacement of monitoring wells, etc.)?
- 60. <u>Page 7-19, Section 7.8</u>: Note in this section that the sampling/analyte recommendations discussed in this section will be addressed via the planned update of the LTMP. While there is undoubtedly room to optimize the long-term monitoring, the specifics are somewhat premature, pending regulator review and discussion of the Army's revised conceptual model for the groundwater flow and contaminant transport pathways under current and projected (e.g., in response to proposed new construction) conditions.
- **61.** <u>Page 7-20, Section 7.9</u>: Since Section 7.8 indicates that the protectiveness is affected by the proposed recommendations and follow-up actions, EPA proposes that the appropriate protectiveness statement at this time should be a "protective in the short term" statement –

"The remedy at AOC 32 and AOC 43A currently protects human health and the environment because ICs are incorporated into the deed that prohibit the extraction of groundwater from the site for industrial and/or potable use and contaminants are not migrating off-site. However, in order for the remedy to be protective in the long-term, the recommendations and follow-up actions detailed in Section 7.8 need to be taken to ensure long-term protectiveness."

AOC69W (OU07):

- 62. <u>Page 8-1, Title:</u> AOC69W is a statutory review, not a policy review, because it was a post-SARA remedial action that <u>will</u> leave contaminants on site above levels that allow for unlimited use.
- **63.** <u>Page 8-1, Section 8.1:</u> Include the same level of detail for the 1978 leak as is included for the 1972 leak for consistency. Include the submission of the Draft OPS document in the chronology.
- 64. <u>Page 8-6, Section 8.3</u>: Clarify in the text that the information presented in this section is taken from the ROD.
- **65.** <u>Section 8.3</u>: As per EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 4, bullet 2, a table of COCs and cleanup levels should be provided in this section.
- 66. <u>Page 8-7:</u> As per EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 93, move the details of the LTMP to the "Remedy Implementation" section, rather than the "Selected Remedy" section.
- 67. <u>Page 8-7, Section 8.3.2</u>: The last paragraph on this page indicates that MassDevelopment is the current property owner. This property has not been transferred to MassDevelopment to date. This section needs to incorporate additional information on how ICs are implemented and enforced.
- **68.** <u>Page 8-8, Section 8.5.2</u>: If, during the period of updating the Revised FYR, the Draft 2004 Annual Report is issued, update the reference here.
- 69. <u>Page 8-9, Table 8-2:</u> The "*" notation to the footnote seems to be placed in the wrong places in the table. If it is related to data from the period May 2000 to May 2003, it would seem the "*" should be included in the first 4 columns. The footnote should include both paragraphs under the table. The table is titled a "Summary of Exceedances", but appears to be a table of all data for the FYR evaluation period.
- 70. <u>Page 8-10:</u> The 2nd paragraph, which begins "Recommendations", is confusing. Please clarify.
- 71. <u>Page 8-10:</u> With respect to ICs, there is a reference that the ICs are "included in the Lease In Furtherance *of* Conveyance". As per EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 2, last bullet, copies of documents demonstrating implementation of ICs must be included in the FYR.
- 72. <u>Page 8-11, 1st Para and Page 8-16, Section 8.9, 1st Para:</u> Please update these paragraphs to indicate that the Draft OPS demonstration document was submitted.
- 73. <u>Page 8-11, 2nd Para:</u> Provide more detail on the planned transfer.
- 74. Page 8-12, Section 8.6: The 1st paragraph of "Remedial Action Performance" indicates that "goals include meeting groundwater cleanup levels in less than 30 years". The ROD does not specify 30 years for groundwater cleanup. Was this reference from another document? In the 1st sentence of the 2nd paragraph, what is meant by the reference to "off-site migration"? Please clarify.

- 75. <u>Page 8-13:</u> Under the "Changes to Exposure Pathways" section, the 5th paragraph indicates that "A site-specific assessment is recommended to determine whether the exposure pathway is complete, including evaluation of measures subslab soil gas and (if warranted) indoor air concentrations, and/or site-specific mathematical modeling." This recommendation needs to be included in Section 8.8, with a corresponding milestone date.
- 76. <u>Section 8.5.2 and Section 8.6</u>: As per EPA's Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 96, the document needs to include an analysis of the data trends to support the conclusions that contaminants are decreasing over time and not migrating off-site. See related comments on the Draft OPS issued by EPA on August 18, 2005.
- 77. <u>Page 8-16, Section 8.8</u>: As per EPA's Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 100, the planned transfer of the property should be discussed, along with plans for ensuring that ICs are adequately addressed.
- **78.** <u>Page 8-16, Section 8.9</u>: To be consistent with the Protectiveness Statements detailed in the Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance, revise the statement to read "The remedy at AOC 69W is protective of human health and the environment and exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risk are being controlled."

Landfill Consolidation, AOCs 9, 11, and 40, SAs 6, 12, 13, and 41 (OU02):

Comments will be provided by September 13, 2005.

AOC 50 (OU08):

Comments will be provided by September 13, 2005.

EPA Comments (Part 2 of 2) on the Revised Draft 2005 Five-Year Review Report Former Fort Devens Devens, Massachusetts Submitted Electronically August/September 2005

General Comments:

1. Many of the references within the document to other sections in the document were incorrect, likely as a result of the substantial revisions made to the document. Where found, EPA has made a specific comment to address these reference errors. However, please complete a thorough check of internal references for the Draft-Final report to ensure that the references are correct.

Specific Comments:

Introduction and Executive Summary:

- 1. Ensure that any requested changes to the recommendations and/or protectiveness statements per specific comments on the specific OU sections are reflected in the Executive Summary.
- 2. <u>Page 1 of Introduction</u>: Since SHL had a FYR in 1998, refer to this as the "second *comprehensive* five-year review". Change the end date of the review to "September 2005".
- 3. <u>Page ES-1</u>: Since SHL had a FYR in 1998, refer to this as the "second *comprehensive* Five-Year review".
- 4. <u>Page ES-2, SHL, 2nd Para:</u> Delete the statement "operation depends on final selection and approval of system effluent discharge location" and indicate that the system is discharging to the Devens POTW. Revise the reference to the ESD to cite to the Final ESD. Revise the last sentence to indicate that "*Alternate* discharge options....are currently under evaluation by *the Army and* the regulatory agencies."
- 5. <u>Page ES-4, AOCs 43G and 43J, 2nd Para:</u> It is stated here that arsenic, manganese and iron at AOC 43J are above cleanup goals at sentry wells. Page 5-22 stated that the wells showing exceedances of arsenic and iron were not downgradient/perimeter wells. A clarification on this was requested in specific comment 21 below. Please clarify here also.

AOCs 43G and 43J (OU06):

- 6. <u>5-2, Section 5.2</u>: Change reference to "5.1.1 and 5.1.2" to "5.2.1 and 5.2.2".
- 7. Page 5-4, Section 5.3: Change reference to "5.2.1 and 5.2.2" to "5.3.1 and 5.3.2".
- 8. Page 5-4, Section 5.3; Page 5-25, Section 5.6; and Page 5-28, Section 5.8: The discussion on the manganese cleanup level was included to address EPA General Comment 7 on the Draft FYR. As appropriate, where this is discussed in the FYR, specify when the manganese cleanup level will be revised based on the updated RfD value for water intake. Language on page 5-4, which indicates that "the Army will

consider establishing a new RG for manganese", contradicts language on page 5-28, which recommends the "risk-based remedial goal for manganese *be updated*". Please clarify.

- 9. <u>Page 5-5</u>, <u>Section 5.3.4</u>: The details of the remedial elements of the selected remedy were removed in this revised draft (contrary to EPA's Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 4, 1st bullet, which requested details of remedial elements be included). The language in this section is now duplicative of the language in Section 5.3.3. Note that the reference to "sub-section 5.3.2" should be changed to "5.3.5".
- 10. <u>Page 5-6. Section 5.3.5</u>: The references at the end of the 2nd sentence should be changed to "(SWETS, 1999a, 1999b)".
- 11. <u>Page 5-6, Section 5.3.5</u>: It should be noted here that, although modeling and extrapolation of data trends performed for the MNA assessment indicated that the target cleanup timeframe would be met, there were also some ambiguities noted even at that time, including the apparent recalcitrance of heavier hydrocarbon fractions and a highly uncertain timeframe for the evolution of redox conditions (and, correspondingly, inorganics concentrations). These observations have been further reinforced by subsequent LTM results, as summarized in later sections of this chapter.
- 12. <u>Page 5-10, Section 5.3.6.1</u>: Provide a reference for the performance standards information presented here. In the 3rd paragraph, change the reference to "5.3.2.3" to "5.3.6.3". Also, please provide the meaning for the acronym "BIRA".
- 13. Page 5-11, 3rd Para: Change reference to "5.3.2.3" to "5.3.6.3".
- 14. <u>Page 5-11, Section 5.3.6.3</u>: Provide a reference to a figure, to be included in the appendix, showing the LTM monitoring well network.
- 15. Section 5.5.2: Page 5-14 and 5-15 identifies C5-C8 and C9-C10 cleanup goals and exceedances for AOC 43G. Page 5-18 identifies C5-C8 and C9-C10 cleanup goals and exceedances for AOC 43J. Sub-sections 5.5.2.1 and 5.5.2.2 state that the cleanup values are "as developed in the ROD (unless otherwise noted)". However, Section 5.3.6.2 states that "RGs within the plume are not established for VPH" and the "Army uses the MCP GW-1 concentrations for …VPH boundary performance standards". Therefore, it appears that the "cleanup goals" identified in Section 5.5.2 are not RGS established by the ROD, but rather goals related to the VPH boundary standard. Please clarify. In addition, ethylbenzene is a COC with an RG (Section 5.3.2) for AOC 43J, but it is not discussed in this section and carbon tetrachloride is a COC with an RG (Section 5.3.2) for AOC 43J, but it is not discussed in this section. Please clarify.
- 16. <u>Page 5-14, Section 5.5.2.1</u>: The bullets following the C5-C8 Aliphatics table might note that the 2004 analyses suffered from problems with the laboratory detection limits, which are higher than the cleanup goal for the source-area wells. Thus, no conclusions can be drawn with respect to changes in this VPH fraction for 2004.
- 17. <u>Page 5-14, Section 5.5.2.1</u>: The second bullet following the C5-C8 Aliphatics table should acknowledge that there was an exceedance of the cleanup goal at sentry well XGM-94-04X in 2000.
- **18.** <u>Page 5-16, Section 5.5.2.1</u>: Note in this section that the regression analysis was performed only for benzene, and other COCs do not show the same demonstrable decline.

- 19. Page 5-21, Section 5.5.2.5: Change reference to "5.3.3.1" to "5.3.6.1".
- 20. <u>Section 5.2.2</u>: The phrase "for some time" is used numerous times throughout this section to describe the timeline that different COCs are likely to persist above cleanup levels. One of the performance standards detailed in Section 5.3.6.1 is related to whether COCs will be reduced to cleanup levels within 30 years. As per EPA's Comment on the Draft FYR, Comment 51, this report should identify where the remedy is not meeting RAOs and identify measures to address deficiencies where appropriate. There needs to be an analysis of whether the "Remedial Duration Assessment" performance standard is being met or, at a minimum, a commitment to perform an analysis as a follow-up to the FYR. If it is a follow-up action, it must be included in Section 5.8, with a corresponding milestone date.
- **21.** <u>Page 5-22, Section 5.5.2.5</u>: Throughout this section on "<u>AOC 43J</u>" it is indicated that well 2446-04 is "not considered a down gradient/perimeter well" with respect to discussions related to iron and arsenic exceedances. This well is designated in Section 5.2.2 as a "sentry well". Please clarify.
- 22. <u>Page 5-23, Top Para:</u> Damaged wells are discussed here. Well XGM-97-11X, one of the wells discussed here, is not listed in Section 5.3.6.3 as a LTM well. Please clarify.
- 23. <u>Page 5-24, Section 5.6</u>: The IC section indicates that ICs will be covered by the Installation Master Plan. EPA's Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 55, had discussed that ICs should possibly be considered to ensure groundwater is not used for potable water until RGs are achieved. Add additional information in this section to identify <u>how</u> exposures will be prevented without ICs (i.e., how the Installation Master Plan will address this) or consider proposing the implementation of ICs at this site. Reflect follow-up actions in Section 5.8, as appropriate (with milestone dates).
- 24. Section 5.7 and Section 5.8: With respect to manganese, page 5-22 of the FYR indicates that "manganese (above the cleanup goal of 291 ug/L) may be migrating off AOC 43G and AOC 43J". The elevated manganese levels are likely the result of fuel degradation causing reducing conditions and mobilizing metals. The downgradient extent of these effects is not well studied or understood, nor is the time scale over which redox conditions might recover following depletion of source-area carbon. There needs to be a more concerted look at this specific issue with reference to all available data (field parameters, associate Fe concentrations, etc.), taking into account such variables as turbidity, which can affect these results. EPA requests that the "Issues" section discuss the manganese results in more detail and explain the redox conditions that are the likely "source" of the metals. Further, EPA requests that Section 5.8 include a recommendation, with corresponding milestone dates, for evaluating the potential off-site migration of manganese. The Issues section must also address the nature of the properties downgradient of AOC 43G/J with respect to the potential that groundwater in these downgradient properties could be used as drinking water. If it is clear that downgradient groundwater is not being used as drinking water, the protectiveness statement can remain as is (simply address specific comment 26 below). If there is the potential that downgradient groundwater could be used as drinking water, the Army should revise the protectiveness statement.

- **25.** <u>Section 5.8</u>: The recommendations listed in Section 5.8 should be presented as shown in Exhibit 4-4 of the Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance, including milestone dates.
- 26. <u>Page 5-29, Section 5.9</u>: To be consistent with the Protectiveness Statements detailed in the Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance, delete "and immediate threats are addressed" and replace with "and exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risks are being controlled."

South Post Impact Area, AOCs 25, 26, 27, and 41 (Groundwater) (OU03):

- 27. <u>Page 6-4, Section 6.2.1.5</u>: EPA specific comment 63 is not adequately addressed. The first paragraph of section 6.2.1.5 now uses the term "cleanup standard" for manganese in groundwater. There is no cleanup standard in groundwater. Please accurately identify the manganese criterion that is being used here (screening level, cleanup goal, etc.).
- 28. <u>Page 6-6</u>, <u>Section 6.2.2.5</u>: EPA specific comment 65 is not adequately addressed. The first paragraph of section 6.2.2.5 now uses the term "cleanup standard" for manganese in groundwater. There is no cleanup standard in groundwater. Please accurately identify the manganese criterion that is being used here (screening level, cleanup goal, etc.).
- **29.** <u>Page 6-12, Section 6.3.2:</u> It is indicated that the Army is currently finalizing the Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan (INRMP). Include this in Section 6.8, with a corresponding milestone date.
- 30. Page 6-16, Section 6.6 and Page 6-18, Section 6.6.2: Section 6.2.2.2 and Section 6.2.3.2 indicate that constituents were detected in surface water above Ambient Water Quality Criteria. EPA's Comments on the Draft FYR, General Comment 6, was not addressed here. Section 6.6, under "Changes in Standards and To Be Considered" and in Section 6.6.2 on ARARs, must be revised to address EPA National Water Quality Criteria. Please indicate that NRWQC are ARARs, and discuss whether the concentrations in surface water detected during the RI or subsequently exceeded current NRWQC. Discuss whether this affects the protectiveness of the remedy.
- 31. Page 6-16, Last Line: Change reference to "6.6.1" to "6.6.2".
- 32. Page 6-19, Section 6.7 and Section 6.8: In this section and in other areas of the report, it is indicated that "there is a potential for RDX to migrate off the boundary of AOC 26". Page 3-1, Section 3.1, of the LTMP (SWETS, 1997), states, with respect to five-year site reviews, that "If there is indication of contaminants emanating from the SPIA-monitoring area, the Army will evaluate the need for additional assessment." Section 6.8 recommends that "RDX at the SPIA continue to be monitoring and evaluated for potential off-site impacts in the LTM Annual Reports." EPA believes that the requirements of Section 3.1 of the LTMP requires a more active assessment of the RDX issue than is proposed in Section 6.8 for an assessment related to potential off-site migration of RDX from AOC 26, with a corresponding milestone date. The Issues section must also address the nature of the properties downgradient of AOC 26 with respect to the potential that groundwater in these downgradient properties could be used as drinking water. If it is clear that

downgradient groundwater is not being used as drinking water, the protectiveness statement can remain as is (simply address specific comment 34 below). If there is the potential that downgradient groundwater could be used as drinking water, the Army should revise the protectiveness statement.

- **33.** <u>Page 6-19, Section 6.8:</u> The recommendations listed in Section 5.8 should be presented as shown in Exhibit 4-4 of the Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance, including milestone dates.
- **34.** <u>Page 6-20, Section 5.9</u>: To be consistent with the Protectiveness Statements detailed in the Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance, delete "and immediate threats do not exist" and replace with "and exposure pathways that could result in unacceptable risks are being controlled."
- 35. <u>Page 6-20, Section 6.9</u>: To address EPA's Comments on the Draft FYR, Specific Comment 74, language was added which indicates that the risk assessment assumptions for this location addressed "potable use on a limited basis by a small, healthy population (by soldiers, during short-term military training exercises)." Provide a reference here to the risk assessment and include the reference in the reference section. In addition, in Section 6.5.2, provide a review of the monitoring data for the supply well over the FYR period to verify that its chemistry is stable and consistent with the data considered in the risk assessment.

Landfill Consolidation, AOCs 9, 11, and 40, SAs 6, 12, 13, and 41 (OU02):

- **36.** <u>Page 9-21</u>: The IC section indicates that ICs "are being incorporated into the revised DRFTA Master Plan" and, upon transfer to MD, ICs "will be incorporated into the deed." Some of these properties are the subject of a recent Final FOST and are likely close to transfer. Include the recommendation to incorporate ICs in the revised DRFTA Master Plan and the deed in Section 9.8, with corresponding milestone dates.
- 37. Page 9-21, Question B, 1st Para: Change reference to "9.8.1" to "9.6.2".
- **38.** <u>Section 9.8:</u> The recommendations listed in Section 9.8 should be presented as shown in Exhibit 4-4 of the Comprehensive Five-Year Review Guidance, including milestone dates.

AOC 50 (OU08):

- **39.** <u>Section 10.3:</u> As per EPA Comments on the Draft FYR, Comment 4, bullet 2, a table of COCs and cleanup levels should be provided in this section.
- 40. Page 10-4, Section 10.2.6: Change "10⁻¹" to "10⁻⁴".
- **41.** <u>Page 10-5, Section 10.3.1:</u> The text introduces a number of acronyms (e.g., ERD, IWS) here for the first time. Please provide the full terminology when it first appears in order to define the abbreviations.
- 42. <u>Page 10-6, Section 10.3.1, IWS:</u> The text refers to details to be specified in the Remedial Design, as if this is a forthcoming document. Please check the status of the RD, and correct the references to it accordingly.
- **43.** <u>Page 10-9</u>, <u>Section 10.5.2</u>: In the data review and succeeding sections, there are no specific contaminant concentrations cited. Because the full-scale remedy was

initiated only at the end of the review period, there is little need to relate detailed performance data. However, a few words to indicate the magnitude of the contamination being addressed would enhance the section. For example, what are the maximum PCE concentrations observed in the source area, the North Plume, and the Southwest Plume domains during the characterization phase? (The text does refer to a specific high arsenic detection observed in the area of the ERD pilot test.)

- 44. <u>Page 10-11, Section 10.5.5</u>: See General Comment 1 of EPA Comments issued on 9/7/05. The text provides some detail on the public participation process for the Proposed Plan. Were other recent documents and decisions open to public input (e.g., the Remedial Action Work Plan, the Remedial Design, the Operations and Maintenance Plan, the Long-Term Monitoring Plan, etc.)? Please expand on any additional public participation in the "new" public participation section.
- **45.** <u>Page 10-12</u>: Under the "Changes in Standards and To Be Considered" Section, revise reference "Section 10.6.1" to "Section 10.6.2".
- **46.** <u>Page 10-12</u>: It is stated in the section entitled "Changes in exposure pathways" that there are no current complete exposure pathways. However, it is stated in Section 10.2 that the buildings on the property are "generally inactive". The risk assessment found that there was an unacceptable risk to future commercial/industrial workers due to vapor intrusion. Please clarify in section 10.2 whether there are any current exposure pathways for vapor intrusion.
- **47.** <u>Page 10-15, Section 10.7</u>: Change the statement that a RAWP "has been finalized" to "is in the process of being finalized".
- **48.** <u>Section 10.9</u>: Since the remedy is operating and not complete, the protectiveness statement should be changed to ".....expected to be protective upon completion, and in the interim, exposure pathways that could lead to unacceptable risks are being controlled."



ECR, Inc. PO Box 368 Westford, MA 01886 (978) 500-3199 info@ecr-consulting.com

September 12, 2005

Mr. Robert Simeone BRAC Environmental Office 30 Quebec Street, Unit 100 Devens, MA 01434-4479

Re: AOC 57 Draft Five-Year Policy Site Review Areas 1, 2 and 3 Harvard, Massachusetts

Dear Mr. Simeone:

On behalf of People of Ayer Concerned about the Environment (PACE), Engineering & Consulting Resources, Inc. (ECR) reviewed the September 2005 Draft Five-Year Policy Site Review (FYR) for AOC 57 in Harvard, Massachusetts. We appreciate the opportunity to comment on this document.

Our comments at this time are as follows:

- Although the increasing concentration of trichloroethene in well 57M-03-02X was acknowledged, the FYR does not fully address the detection of chlorinated compounds in groundwater in AOC 57, Area 2. As shown in Table 5 of the September 2004 Final Interim Remedial Action Completion Report, tetrachloroethene, cis-1,2-dichloroethene, trichloroethene and vinyl chloride were all detected in wells located in Area 2. These compounds are not considered Contaminants of Concern (COCs) at AOC 57, but they have not been attributed to other releases in the vicinity of AOC 57. No tables summarizing the volatile organic compound (VOC) analytical results were included in this Draft Five-Year Review. Given that chlorinated compounds have been detected in groundwater at AOC 57 above Maximum Concentration Levels, PACE and ECR request that an evaluation of the potential source and impact of these compounds be included as part of the Five-Year Review.
- The FYR did not include a discussion of the previously detected separate-phase product in the recovery trench sumps located in Area 2. PACE and ECR request that a thorough discussion of observations of the presence or absence of separate phase product at AOC 57 be included in the FYR. Furthermore, PACE and ECR request that an evaluation of the significance of the separate-phase product be conducted to evaluate the effectiveness of the selected remedy.

Mr. Robert Simeone August 24, 2005 Page 2 of 2



• PACE and ECR concur with the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MADEP) comment on Section 4.5.4 Interviews, stating that monitored natural attenuation is not an approved remedy at AOC 57. However, in Section 4.3.3 Selected Remedy of the revised Draft Five-Year Review, the following sentence is present in the first paragraph:

"The remedy is to mitigate existing groundwater contamination through natural attenuation and remediation and reduce the potential risk of future commercial/industrial exposure to contaminated groundwater."

PACE and ECR ask that this sentence be modified so as not to imply that natural attenuation is an approved remedy at AOC 57.

We thank the Army for the opportunity to comment on this document. Please feel free to contact Richard Doherty at (978) 500-3199 or Laurie Nehring at (978) 772-9749 if you have any questions or comments regarding our concerns.

Sincerely,

Richard Doherty

Digitally signed by Richard Doherty DN: CN = Richard Doherty, C = US.0 = ECR Date: 2005.09.12 16:05:24 -04'00'

Richard E. Doherty, P.E., L.S.P. President Engineering & Consulting Resources, Inc. Laurie Nehring People of Ayer Concerned About the Environment

cc: Harvard Board of Selectmen



ECR, Inc. PO Box 368 Westford, MA 01886 (978) 500-3199 info@ecr-consulting.com

September 12, 2005

Mr. Robert Simeone BRAC Environmental Office 30 Quebec Street, Unit 100 Devens, MA 01434-4479

Re: AOC 69W Five-Year Policy Site Review Parker Charter School Ayer, Massachusetts

Dear Mr. Simeone:

On behalf of People of Ayer Concerned about the Environment (PACE), Engineering & Consulting Resources, Inc. (ECR) reviewed the September 2005 Five-Year Policy Site Review for AOC 69W in Ayer, Massachusetts, currently occupied by the Parker Charter School. We appreciate the opportunity to comment on this document.

Our comments at this time are as follows:

The response to Question B in Section 8.6 of the Five-Year Review includes a recommendation for a "site-specific assessment . . . to determine whether the (indoor air) exposure pathway is complete, including evaluation of measured subslab soil gas and (if warranted) indoor air concentrations, and/or site-specific mathematical modeling." Although PACE and ECR strongly support additional indoor air testing at the school, we believe that existing data has already established that the indoor air pathway is complete. Previous results have indicated ethylbenzene concentrations in indoor air within the school kitchen/cafeteria of 470 micrograms per cubic meter (ug/m³), which is 94 times the MADEP-established background value of 5 ug/m³. In a sample taken from a classroom, xylenes were detected at 92 ug/m³, over 30 times the background value of 3 ug/m³, and toluene was detected at 1,000 ug/m³, over 34 times the background value of 29 ug/m³. These samples were taken in the vicinity of documented petroleum releases. The presence of these levels of petroleum hydrocarbons within the indoor air of a school building should be cause for a greater level of attention than has been shown to date. Furthermore, the existence of a complete exposure pathway to sensitive receptors also calls into question the protectiveness of the natural attenuation remedy.

Mr. Robert Simeone September 12, 2005 Page 2 of 3



- Indoor air testing performed to date has either had quality issues¹, or was performed during fair-weather months (October 1997 and April 1998). We request that the analyte lists for all soil gas and indoor air testing include a full suite of volatile organic compounds, as well as naphthalene and 2-methylnaphthalene. We further request that the sampling be performed in winter months with the heating system operating. Because of the current use of the building as a school, we believe that it is important to expedite this assessment of indoor air at AOC 69W.
- The Five-Year Review discusses the Institutional Controls implemented to restrict the use of groundwater at AOC 69W, including a restriction on its use as a potable water source. This restriction was a primary assumption used to justify the implementation of the limited action alternative. However, AOC 69W is located within a medium-yield aquifer and the Zone II area of contribution for the MacPherson well. Designation of an area as a Zone II by definition indicates that it is being used as a potable water source. PACE and ECR believes that this is a fundamental issue that needs to be addressed. If the Army believes that the Zone II does not in fact apply to the site, then the burden of proof is on the Army to show that the Zone II delineation is incorrect.

We thank the Army for the opportunity to comment on this document. Please feel free to contact Richard Doherty at (978) 500-3199 or Laurie Nehring at (978) 772-9749 if you have any questions or comments regarding our concerns.

Sincerely,

Andrew W. Clark Staff Geologist Engineering and Consulting Resources, Inc.

Richard Doherty

Digitally signed by Richard Doherty DN: CN = Richard Doherty, C = US, O = ECR Date: 2005.09.12 17:04:38 -04'00'

Richard E. Doherty, P.E., L.S.P. President

- Engineering & Consulting Resources, Inc.
- cc: Ayer Board of Selectmen Ayer Board of Health Ayer Town Administrator

Laurie Nehring People of Ayer Concerned About the Environment

The 1996 data was unreliable because the sample tubes were saturated due to high flow rates and/or long sample time. The October 1997 data did not include results for naphthalene and 2-methylnaphthalene, two major components of heating oil.

Mr. Robert Simeone September 12, 2005 Page 3 of 3





ECR, Inc. PO Box 368 Westford, MA 01886 (978) 500-3199 info@ecr-consulting.com

September 12, 2005

Mr. Robert Simeone BRAC Environmental Office 30 Quebec Street, Unit 100 Devens, MA 01434-4479

Re: AOC 43G and 43J Five-Year Policy Site Review Former Service Stations Harvard, Massachusetts

Dear Mr. Simeone:

On behalf of People of Ayer Concerned about the Environment (PACE), Engineering & Consulting Resources, Inc. (ECR) reviewed the September 2005 Draft Five-Year Policy Site Review (FYR) for AOC 43G and AOC 43J in Harvard, Massachusetts. We appreciate the opportunity to comment on this document.

Our comments at this time are as follows:

The selected remedy at these sites consists of monitored natural attenuation (MNA). The FYR states that "Both the statistical analysis and modeling suggest that organic COCs will likely be reduced to cleanup levels within the duration criteria specified in the ROD."1 However, data collected to date indicates that the target date for achievement of cleanup goals either has not been achieved, or is unlikely to be achieved. At Area 43G, where cleanup goals were to be achieved by 2007 to 2009, concentrations of benzene in 2004 were up to 52 times the 5 ug/l cleanup goal at well XGM-97-12X. Moreover, this well showed only a 4 percent decrease in benzene concentration between 1999 and 2004.2 C9-C10 aromatics in this well actually increased 64 percent over the 5-year period, and as of 2004 were 37 times higher than the stated cleanup goal. Inspection of the data tables show other instances where little or no progress is being made toward acheiving cleanup goals. Rather than indicating a significant downward trend, these data indicate that the ROD target cleanup date of 2007-2009 is extremely unlikely. Furthermore, the data provide strong evidence that MNA is not working as planned at this site, and that a contingency remedy is needed.

¹ Section 5.3.6.1.

The FYR interpretation of benzene results at AOC 43G states "The field results suggested that benzene concentrations are likely to persist for some time slightly above the cleanup goal." Given that benzene results in XGM-97-12X are persisting at levels over 50 times the cleanup goal, we believe that this statement is misleading and should be modified to better reflect the data.

Mr. Robert Simeone August 24, 2005 Page 2 of 3



- Similar results can be seen at AOC 43J, where cleanup goals were to have been acheived between 2004 and 2006. At source area well XJM-97-12X, concentrations of ethylbenzene, C5-C8 aliphatics, and C9-C10 aromatics increased 142%, 300% and 48%, respectivey, between 1999 and 2004. While some increases have been sporadic and inconsistent, C5-C8 aliphatics increased steadily over the 5-year period. At well 2446-02, ethylbenzene decreased only 4% over the 5-year period, and as of 2004 was a factor of 3.5 above the stated cleanup goal. C9-C10 aromatics in this well increased 14% over the 5-year period, and according to the most current data, are 40 times higher than the stated cleanup goal. These data indicate that the 2004-2006 cleanup time frame has not and likely will not be acheived, and that MNA is not effective at this location. PACE and ECR therefore recommend the implementation of a contingency remedy at AOC 43J.
- Although VPH cleanup goals for source area wells are shown in the tables in Section 5.5.2.1 and 5.5.2.2 of the FYR, and are discussed in the accompanying text, other report sections states that VPH cleanup goals for source area wells have not been established. For example, Section 5.3.6.2 states that "If GW-1 concentrations [for VPH fractions] are exceeded at the boundary or compliance point, the Army will develop risk-based concentrations." However, data summarized in the five-year review indicate that VPH fractions have exceeded GW-1 standards at sentry wells on several occasions. Although the FYR states that subsequent results in each case were below GW-1 standards, significant slugs of contaminated groundwater could have migrated off-site in the time between annual sampling rounds. Because the criteria set forth for development of VPH cleanup goals for source area wells does not specify that exceedances must persist for a period of years before the standards are developed, we believe that VPH cleanup goals for all wells should be in place.
- The detection limits for C5-C8 aliphatics during the 2004 sampling round at AOC 43G exceeded the cleanup goal. The resulting data are therefore not useful for evaluating prgress toward cleanup goals. A basic data quality objective for all future sampling events should be that detection limits must be below cleanup goals.
- The FYR contains a detailed summary of Mann-Kendall statistical testing used to support the conclusion that concentrations of hydrocarbons are decreasing. However, according to Section 5.3.5.3, none of the data used in the analysis was collected over the past five years. To perform a meaningful Five-Year Review, it would seem appropriate to utilize data collected over the past five years, rather than simply incorporate report sections more relevant to the prior five-year review.
- Statements in the FYR that utilize the annual sampling data to make broad statements about the actual concentrations over a long time period are in our opinion misleading, and should be deleted or re-worded. For example, the review states that "there have been no exceedances of VPH GW-1 concentrations in the other four sentry wells from December 1999 to October 2004." The wording implies a greater level of knowledge than that provided by annual grab samples.
- Because data obtained to date indicate occasional spikes in concentration and
 uneven trends, we believe that monitoring wells at these sites should be sampled

Mr. Robert Simeone August 24, 2005 Page 3 of 3

onsulting esources, Inc.

more frequently than annually. We propose bi-annual monitoring at a minimum for both AOCs.

We thank the Army for the opportunity to comment on this document. Please feel free to contact Richard Doherty at (978) 500-3199 or Laurie Nehring at (978) 772-9749 if you have any questions or comments regarding our concerns.

Sincerely,

Richard Doherty Digitally signed by Richard Doherty DN: CN = Richard Doherty, C = US, C = ECR - Date: 2005.09.12 16:04:57 -04'00'

Richard E. Doherty, P.E., L.S.P. President Engineering & Consulting Resources, Inc. Laurie Nehring People of Ayer Concerned About the Environment

cc: Harvard Board of Selectmen

APPENDIX M

APPENDIX M

INSTALLATION MASTER PLAN (IMP) AND LEASE IN FURTHERANCE OF CONVEYANCE (LIFOC)

REAL PROPERTY MASTER PLAN

LONG RANGE COMPONENT

for

DEVENS RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA

JUNE 1999

Ċ

Prepared for:

Commander Devens Reserve Forces Training Area Devens, Massachusetts

Prepared Under the Guidance of:

U.S. Army Installation Support Center Director of Facilities Management Planning and Real Property Division Alexandria, Virginia

Prepared by:

R&K Engineering Roanoke and Alexandria, Virginia and San Antonio, Texas

LAND-USE CONTROLS

APPLICABLE TO

DEVENS

RESERVE FORCES TRAINING AREA

REAL PROPERTY MASTER PLAN

Area A (Main Cantonment)AAFES Gas Station Queenstown Street

- Residual soil and groundwater contamination has been documented for **MOC 430** which is undergoing MNA
- Conduct EBS Prior to transfer and incorporate suitable deed restrictions in FOST EPP

Area B (3400 Area)

No applicable land use controls; NFADD's issued for AREE's & SA's

Area C (Range & Training Area)

The ROD is based on Army retention of the **South Posts** and restricted access to the site and groundwater.

- Sample and analyze Well D-1 for explosives and MA and EPA Drinking Water (MMCL/MCL)
- Assure no new drinking water sources are developed within the SPIA monitored area

Area D (Motor Pool Annex)

- Residual soil and groundwater contamination has been documented for **300 431** which is undergoing MNA
- Conduct EBS Prior to transfer and incorporate suitable deed restrictions in FOST EPP

Area E (Old Commissary 94TH HQ)

No applicable land use controls; NFADD's issued for AREE's

Area F (3700 Area Former Motor Pool)

- Assure the Property is not used for residential purposes and suitable deed restrictions are placed in the FOST EPP prior to transfer.
- Maintain the existing paved areas and stormwater collection systems to prevent long-term worker exposure to residual oil contaminated soils 2-5 feet BGS associated with AOC 44/52.
- Assure that Soil Management Plans and Health and Safety Plans are prepared and executed prior to subsurface excavations.

Area G (3800 Area former Moore AAF Hangers RTC)

Active remediation and monitoring of the **ACC 50** chlorinated solvent plume, which is under building 3813 is ongoing. Treatment transects and associated monitoring wells are located in the RTC vehicle storage area and on the Southwest Corner of Building 3813 former hanger, along the axis of the plume through retained Parcel H.

- Provide periodic access to treatment transects and monitoring wells
- Coordinate construction plans with BRAC Environmental Coordinator /BCT to facilitate ongoing remediation and future access to plume areas
- Avoid groundwater extraction or injection for any purpose
- Coordinate construction plans for modifications to stormwater systems with BRAC Environmental Coordinator /BCT including engineered stormwater management plans and hydrologic/ mounding studies. (Continue use of existing stormwater system to direct stormwater away from the plume)

E. ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS

Issues

Environmental issues in any region have both positive and negative implications for development. Devens RFTA is unique in that it is designated a National Priority List site under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA) (Super fund) and a BRAC (base closure) site. These federal actions were combined to identify, investigate, and remediate sites on the former Fort Devens that may pose a threat to human health and the environment. The Devens RFTA has twelve CERCLA sites on retained property that still require action. One site is located in the Area A, one site is located in Area B, and three sites are located in Area C. One site is located in the Area D and six sites are located in the South Post. Any proposed actions in these areas should be coordinated with the environmental office of the DPW or the BRAC environmental office.

National Register Eligibility

The Cemetery and its associated Caretaker's Building (P-3611) is the only historic property within the Devens RFTA that has been evaluated as eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places by the Massachusetts State Historical Preservation Office and the U.S. Army. Established in 1939, the Cemetery and Caretaker's Building are significant for their association with the former Fort Devens during its inter-war period of development (1919-1940), which saw the mission of the base change from temporary status to a permanent cantonment. The Cemetery is also significant for its architectural design, which features the extensive use of fieldstone.

Archaeological Sites

Several areas of the Devens RFTA have been evaluated and determined to be archaeologically sensitive. These areas have a potential to contain prehistoric and/or historic period resources that may yield information important to the prehistoric and historic settlement of north central Massachusetts. South Post contains approximately 2,153 acres assessed to be archaeologically sensitive. The southwestern, northwestern, and eastern perimeter sections of the 3400 area are also assessed to be archaeologically sensitive. These areas are subject to further archaeological field investigations to determine potential significance and mitigation alternatives, if the land is to be transferred or developed by the Army. If areas are determined to be of "low archaeological sensitivity," no further investigation is needed. Devens RFTA soils are generally acidic and infertile. They are subject to moderate erosion where denuded or sparsely vegetated.

R&K ENGINEERING

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY SUMMARY

g.

LEASE IN FURTHERANCE OF CONVEYANCE

OF REAL PROFERTY AND FACILITIES ON

THE FORT DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS,

MILITARY RESERVATION

••77

ì

ľ.

- 1. ₁. 1997 - 19

۲ ۱ ۱

INDEX

Article <u>Number</u>	Title	Page
l	Lease; Lease Term; Use of Lease Premises	4
2	Rent	6
3	Condition of Lease Premises; Repairs; Utilities; Historic Preservation	6
<u>4</u>	Compliance with Laws	٩
5	Indemnification of the Army	10
6	Assignment; Sublecting	12
7	Taxes	13
8	Defaults .	14
9	Mortgaging	16
10	Quiet Enjoyment	19
11	Successors and Assigns	19
12	Improvements; Restoration	19
13	Notices	20
14	No Waiver	21
15	Remedies Cumulative	21
16	Environmental and Safety Provisions	22
1.7	Disputes Clause	30
18	Miscellaneous .	32
19	Insurance	34

i

()`

;

)

EXHIBITS

Exhibit Number	Title			'n	
A	Lease Premises				
В	Memorandum of Agreement	-	Delivered	at	Closing
,C	Survey of Condition	-	Delivered	at	Closing

Ø 005

DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY LEASE IN FURIHERANCE OF CONVEYANCE UNDER BASE REALIGNMENT AND CLOSURE (BRAC) THE FORT DEVENS, MASSACHUSETTS, MILITARY RESERVATION

NO

WHEREAS, the United States, acting through the SECRETARY OF THE ARMY, hereinafter referred to as the "Army" or "Lessor", has made a final disposal or reuse decision with regard to property located at the Fort Devens, Massachusetts, Military Reservation (Fort Devens), dated May 9, 1996; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Defense Base Closure and Realignment Act of 1990 (PL 101-510), as amended, (Base Closure Law) Fort Devens must close not later than July 10, 1997; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 498 of the Massachusetts Acts of 1993, as amended, the Government Land Bank (Land Bank), hereinafter referred to as the "Land Bank" or "Lessee", was granted the authority to oversee and implement the civilian reuse of Fort Devens in accordance with a locally-approved reuse plan; and

WHEREAS, on December 7, 1994, the Reuse Plan and associated Bylaws for Fort Devens (Reuse Plan) were approved by the towns of Ayer, Harvard and Shirley; and

WHEREAS, the Land Bank, a Local Reuse Authority, has made an application for an Economic Development Conveyance (EDC) to the

Department of the Army for the purchase of portions of the property that formerly comprised Fort Devens; and

WHEREAS, the Army, as authorized by the Base Closure Law, has determined that the Land Bank's application meets the criteria for conveyance to assist economic development and has accepted the application; and an offer to purchase/sell has been negotiated and accepted by Army and the Land Bank, in a Memorandum of Agreement (the MOA), dated May 9, 1996, regarding the transfer to the Land Bank of certain portions of Fort Devens not being retained by the Army or transferred to federal agencies, for the purpose of implementing the Reuse Plan; and

WHEREAS, due to the ongoing environmental cleanup and the unexploded ordnance (UXO) clearance process at Fort Devens being undertaken by the Army, in order to implement the intentions of the Army and the Land Bank as set forth in the MOA, certain parcels will be leased rather than conveyed pending completion of the environmental cleanup and UXO clearance by the Army, said parcels being more particularly described in Exhibit A, hereinafter referred to as the "Lease Premises."

WHEREAS, as soon as a Finding of Suitability to Transfer (FOST) is executed by the Army for the Leased Premises, or a portion of said Leased Premises, and said Leased Premises may be conveyed consistent with the requirements of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. 9620 (h), as amended, and other legal and policy requirements, the Secretary of the Army intends to convey the same to the Land Bank by one or more quitclaim deeds, as provided for in the MOA, and the Land Bank agrees to accept such conveyance(s) as soon as the above-referenced conditions are met; and

図 007

WHEREAS, the Army and the Land Bank have agreed to a Lease pending conveyance(s) so as to provide immediate possession of the Lease Premises to the Land Bank; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto find, acknowledge, and agree that: (a) the public interest will be served by this Lease because interim use of the lease Premises will facilitate economic recovery and reuse of the property and create new jobs in the region, thereby helping to offset the impacts of the closure of Fort Devens in a manner that will not interfere with or delay the environmental memediation and UXO clearance of the Lease Premises; (b) the Lease will relieve the Secretary of the expense of continued care, custody, control, operation and maintenance of the property and (c) under said circumstances obtaining fair market value for leasing the Lease Premises is not compatible with the public interest.

AND WHEREAS, the Secretary has determined in accordance with the authority contained in 10 U.S.C. 2667(f), that the surplus property hereby leased would facilitate state or local economic adjustment efforts; would be advantageous to the United States and be in the public interest; and that obtaining fair market value is not compatible with the public benefit;

NOW THEREFORE,

WITNESSETH

This lease (Lease) is made as of the 9th day of May, 1996, on behalf of the United States, between THE SECRETARY OF THE ARMY (Army), by the authority of Title 10, United States Code, Section 2667, having an address for purposes of the Lease at Department of the Army, C/O Commander and Division Engineer, United States

Army Corps of Engineers, New England Division, Frederick C. Murphy Federal Building, 424 Trapelo Road, Waltham, MA 02254-9149, and THE GOVERNMENT LAND BANK (Land Bank), a Massachusetts body corporate and politic created by Chapter 212 of the Acts of 1975, as amended, having its principal office at 75 Federal Street, 10th Floor, Boston, Massachusetts 02110.

THIS LEASE is granted subject to the following terms and conditions:

ARTICLE 1

LEASE; LEASE THRM; USE OF LEASE PREMISES

1.01 To have and to hold for a term commencing May 9, 1996 and ending on May 9, 2046 (Lease Term), unless sooner terminated or conveyed in fee pursuant to the terms hereof or of the Memorandum of Agreement between the United States of America and the Government Land Bank for the Conveyance of Fort Devens, Massachusetts, dated May 9, 1996 (MOA), attached as Exhibit B, the Army hereby leases to the Land Bank, and the Land Bank hereby leases from the Army, the Lease Premises (Exhibit A herein), including all buildings, facilities and improvements thereon and rights appurtenant thereto. If due to default by the Land Bank or termination of the MOA, the Land Bank is not entitled to conveyance of the Leased Premises at the time the Army is able to convey in fee, then the Leass shall terminate on the date of execution of a Finding of Suitability to Transfer (FOST) by the Army with respect to that portion of the Leased Premises covered by the FOST. The Lessor remerves the use and occupancy of the following buildings, including all facilities and areas currently used by the Lessor in connection therewith, and the right of ingress and egress thereto, until July 10, 1997: T-204, ASP
)

Ø 009

4.96

Operations; T-3701, Administrative; P-3748, Warehouse; T-3758, TASC Warehouse; P-3759, Warehouse; P-3773, Reserve Center; P-3774, Organization Maintenance Shop; P-3775, Oil Storage Building; P-3776 Dispatch Building; P-3631 thru 3642, 3644, 3647, 3649, 3653, collectively the ASP; and Housing Units at 80 Walnut St., 822 Plum Street, and 540 Oak St. The Lessor may vacate said buildings and facilities at any time prior to July 10, 1997, after 30 days written notice to the Lessee.

1.02 As provided in paragraph 1.03 of the MOA, the Lease Premises, or portions thereof, shall be conveyed in accordance with and pursuant to the terms of the MOA to the Land Bank upon execution of a FOST by the Army.

The Land Bank and any sublessees, subtenants or licensees 1.03 under this Lease (collectively "sublessees") may use the Lease Premises for all uses as may be permitted by the Reuse Plan or, upon approval of the Army, amendments to the Reuse Plan. If the Army reasonably determines any such amendment of the Reuse Plan allows a use or uses not adequately analyzed in the Fort Devens Disposal/Reuse Environmental Impact Statement (EIS), the Land Bank shall provide additional environmental analysis and . documentation, at the Land Bank's expense, to the Army as the Army deems necessary to comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 and implementing regulations and other applicable environmental laws and regulations, prior to any use under such amendment. The Land Bank shall be solely responsible for complying with the Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act (MEPA).

1.04 Except as otherwise specifically provided, any reference herein to "Lessor" or "Army' shall include their duly authorized representatives. Any reference to "Lessee" or "Land Bank" shall

}

include successors and assigns, and their duly authorized representatives.

ARTICLE 2 RENT

2.01 The Land Bank shall provide the Army as rent (Rent) hereunder, (a) protection, repair and maintenance of, and assumption of sole operating responsibility for the Lease Premises, except with regard to Army operations undertaken in furtherance of or related to the environmental clean-up or UXO clearance of the Lease Premises, and (b) payment of utility charges, as provided in the Utilities Agreement contained in the MOA. The Land Bank agrees that monetary rent received by the Land Bank from any Sublessee of the Land Bank under this Lease will be applied to costs incurred by the Land Bank for protection, maintenance, operation, repair and improvement of the Lease Premises, as may be necessary to cover such costs.

ARTICLE 3

CONDITION OF LEASE PREMISES; REPAIRS; UTILITIES; HISTORIC PRESERVATION

3.01 The Land Bank has inspected and knows and accepts the condition and state of repair of the Lease Premises. It is understood and agreed that the Lease Premises are leased in an "as is," "where is" condition, without any representation or warranty by the Army concerning the state of repair or condition of the Lease Premises, and without obligation on the part of the Army to make any alterations' repairs or additions, except as may be specifically provided herein. The Land Bank acknowledges that

)

)

Ø011

the Army has made no representation or warranty concerning the condition and state of repair of the Lease Premises nor any agreement or promise to alter, improve, adapt or repair the Lease Premises which has not been fully set forth in this Lease or the MOA. The parties specifically agree that the provisions of this paragraph in no way alter the indemnification and other obligations of the Army set forth in Article 5 of the MOA.

The Army and the Land Bank will jointly conduct an 3.02 inventory and condition survey of the Lease Premises, to include the environmental condition, prior to lease execution by either party. The inventory and condition survey will be documented in a survey report (Survey) prepared by the Army, signed by the duly authorized representatives of both parties, and attached as Exhibit C to this Lease. The Survey will refer to and incorporate by reference the Environmental Baseline Survey (EBS), dated March 8, 1996, prepared by the Army, as well as any other environmental conditions that may not be specifically identified in the EBS. The Land Bank hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of the EBS. At the conclusion of the Lease Term, the Army and the Land Bank will jointly conduct a close-out survey. The Army will prepare a close-out report based upon the close-out survey. The close-out survey and report will include an updated EBS prepared in accordance with Article 16.11.a of this Lease. All significant variances from the initial Survey shall be clearly documented in the close-out report. The close-out survey and report will constitute the basis for settlement by the parties for any leased property shown to be lost, damaged, contaminated, or destroyed during the lease term and restoration of the property as required under this Lease.

3.03 The Land Bank shall keep the Leased Premises in good order and in a clean, safe condition at the Land Bank's sole cost and

expense. The Land Bank shall exercise due diligence in the protection of all property located on the Leased Premises against fire, casualty, or damage from any and all causes, excepting: (i) reasonable wear and tear, (ii) alterations, construction, site preparation or demolition undertaken pursuant to Article 12; and (iii) alterations or damage done in conjunction with environmental remediation or UXO clearance activities conducted by the Army or its contractors. For any Leased property that is not conveyed to the Land Bank upon termination or expiration of this lease; is not covered by the above exceptions; and that is damaged or destroyed by the Land Bank without written permission of the Army; the Land Bank shall be repair or replace said property to the reasonable satisfaction of the Army; or, in lieu of such repair or replacement, the Land Bank shall, at the Army's election, pay to the Army money in an amount sufficient to compensate for the loss sustained by the Army by reason of said damages or destruction. It is understood and agreed by the parties, however, that portions of the Lease Premises, as determined by the Land Bank, may be maintained at the minimal level necessary to prevent deterioration and diminution of value, pending reuse thereof by the Land Bank.

3.04 The Land Bank shall provide, at its sole cost and expense, janitorial, building maintenance and repair and grounds maintenance services at the Lease Premises, as may be required by the Land Bank in the operation of the Lease Premises.

3.05 In accordance with and if authorized by the Utilities Agreement contained in the MOA, the Land Bank may request, and the Army shall provide to the Lease Premises, electricity, natural gas, water, sewer, and telephone services, on a reimbursable basis during the period that the Army retains operation of said systems. Furthermore, if the Land Bank obtains

₿

)

Ø 013

utility services from sources other than the Army, the charges and method of payment for each utility or service will be determined by the appropriate supplier of said utility or service in accordance with applicable laws or regulations, on such basis as the appropriate supplier and the Land Bank may agree.

3.05 The Lease Premises include historic buildings eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places, as described in the Programmatic Agreement attached to the MOA (Exhibit B These buildings will be maintained by the Lessee in herein). accordance with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation and Illustrated Guidelines for Rehabilitating <u>Bistoric Buildings</u> (U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service 1992) (hereinafter Secretary's Standards). Lessee will notify the Army and the State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO) of any proposed rehabilitations, structural or landscape alterations to these buildings prior to undertaking said rehabilitations/ alterations. If the Lessee does not receive a written objection from the Army or SHPO within 30 days, the Lessee may proceed with the proposed rehabilitations or alterations. Any approved rehabilitations, structural or landscape alterations to these buildings must adhere to the Secretary's Standards.

ARTICLE 4

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

4.01 Throughout the term of the Lease, the Land Bank shall, with regard to the Lease Premises, at its own cost and expense, promptly observe and comply with all applicable laws, orders, regulations, rules, ordinances, and requirements of the federal, state, county and local governments and of all of their

Ø 014

))

administrative departments, bureaus and officials and of the Devens Enterprise Commission established pursuant to Chapter 498 of the Massachusetts Acts of 1993, as amended. The Land Bank shall pay all costs, expenses, claims, fines, penalties and damages that may in any manner arise out of or be imposed because of the failure of the Land Bank to comply with said laws. The provisions of this paragraph shall (a) in no way compromise the Army's obligation under applicable legal requirements to complete the environmental clean-up of the Lease Premises or the clearance of UXO thereon, or to indemnify the Land Bank, as provided for in the MOA; (b) not obligate the Land Bank to complete the environmental clean-up of the Lease Premises being undertaken by the Army as required under CERCLA, the National Contingency Plan (NCP), the FFA, the MOA, and deeds from the Army to the Land Bank.

ARTICLE 5 INDEMNIFICATION OF THE ARMY

5.01 The indemnification provided by the Land Bank to the Army under this Article 5 is subject to the indemnification provided by the Army to the Land Bank under Article 5 of the MOA and in the event of conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of Article 5 of this Lease and said provisions of Article 5 of the MOA, said provisions of Article 5 of the MOA shall control.

5.02 The Army shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuries or death to persons which may arise from or be attributable or incident to the condition or state of repair of the Lease Premises, or the use and occupation of them, or for damages to the property of the Land Bank, or for damages to the property or injuries or death to the person of the Land Bank's

ŝ,

図 015

. 1

officers, agents, contractors, servants or employees, or others who may be on the Lease Premises at their invitation or the invitation of any one of them. This paragraph shall not apply to damage to property or injuries or death to persons caused by or attributable to the actions of the United States in conducting environmental remediation or other activities on the Lease, Premises.

5.03 The Land Bank agrees to assume all risks of loss or damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its possession and/or use of the Lease Premises or the activities conducted under this Lease. The Land Bank expressly waives all claims against the United States for any such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of such possession and/or use of the Lease Premises by the Land Bank, or the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this Lease by the Land Bank. The Land Bank further agrees, to the extent permitted under state law, to indemnify and hold harmless the Army, its officers, agents and employees, from and against all suits, claims, demands or actions, liabilities, judgments, costs and attorneys' fees arising out of, or in any manner predicated upon, personal injury, death or property damage resulting from, related to, caused by or arising out of the possession and/or use of the Lease Premises by the Land Hank. The indemnification obligations of the Land Bank contained herein do not extend to damages, claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and attorney's fees arising out of, caused by or predicated upon (a) the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Army or its officers, agents or employees, without contributory fault on the part of the Land Bank or any other person, firm, or corporation, or (b) activities undertaken by the Army in relation to the CERCLA clean-up or UXO clearance of the Lease Premises. The Army will

Ø016

give the Land Bank notice of any claim against it covered by this indemnity as soon after learning of such claim as practicable.

5.04 The Land Bank shall indemnify and hold harmless the United States from any costs, expenses, liabilities, fines, or penalties resulting from discharges, releases, emissions, spills, storage, disposal, or any other action by the Land Bank giving rise to United States liability, civil or criminal, or responsibility under Federal, state or local environmental laws.

5.05 This Article 5 and the obligations of the Land Bank hereunder shall survive the expiration or termination of the lease and the conveyance of the Leased Premises to the Land Bank. The Land Bank's obligation kereunder shall apply whenever the United States incurs costs or liabilities for the Land Bank's actions giving rise to liability under this Article.

ARTICLE 6

ASSIGNMENT; SUBLETTING

6.01 Without the prior written consent of the Army through the Corps of Engineers, New England Division, the Land Bank shall not sublease, license, or grant any interest under this lease, except as provided for in Article 9 (Mortgaging). The Army's consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed and shall be deemed granted if a response is not received by the Land Bank within twenty-one (21) days of the meceipt by the Army of a written request for consent. Every sublease shall specifically identify and require compliance with the Environmental Protection provisions set out in Article 16 of this Lease and shall state that it is subject to the terms and conditions of this lease and that, in case of any conflict between the instruments, this lease

will control. The Land Bank shall provide each sublessee with, and make available as appropriate to licensees, a copy of this Lease and MOA.

The Land Bank may not assign this Lease without the prior 6.02 written consent of the Army, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, and no assignment shall be valid unless the assignee shall, by an instrument in a form sufficient for recording, enter into an assumption agreement and assume all of the Land Bank's obligations under this Lease. Δ duplicate original of that assumption agreement will be delivered to the Army within thirty (30) days after the making of the assignment. Upon compliance with the foregoing condition, but not otherwise, the Land Bank shall be released and discharged from any and all liability under the Lease that may accrue from and after the date of the assignment. The assignee shall have no rights under the MOA and shall not be entitled to a conveyance of the Leased Premises upon execution of a FOST by the Army for the Leased Premises or a portion thereof.

6.03 Upon request of the Lessee, the Lessor shall consider attorning to a particular sublease, where the terms of said sublease are consistent with standard Government lease terms and applicable law, regulation, and policy.

ARTICLE 7 TAXES

7.01 The Land Bank shall pay to the proper authority, when and as the same become due and payable, all taxes, assessments and similar charges, which at any time during the term of this Lease,

in and

may be taxed, assessed or imposed upon the Property or interest of the Land Bank with respect to or upon the Lease Premises.

ARTICLE 8 DEFAULTS

8.01 The following shall be deemed a default by either the Army or the Land Bank and a breach of the Lease: a party's failure to observe or perform any of its obligations under the terms, covenants or conditions of the Lease, which failure persists after the expiration of ninety (90) days from the date the aggrieved party gives written notice to the party calling attention to the existence of that failure. However, if the default is one relating to a matter that exposes occupants or the public to an imminent danger to safety or health of which the public authorities have giver due notice to the party, then such shorter notice to the party, whether written or otherwise, shall be sufficient notice of default under this Lease.

8.02 In the event of a default, as provided in 8.01, the aggrieved party may, at its option, following the expiration of applicable notice and grace periods: (a) seek injunctive relief, monetary damages, or both; (b) take such measures as the aggrieved party deems reasonable to mitigate the effects of or cure such default, and assess all costs incurred for such mitigation to the defaulting party; (c) terminate this Lease; or (d) avail itself of any combination of said remedies.

8.03 Any action taken by either party under this Article 8 shall not waive any right that the party would otherwise have against the other party who shall remain responsible for any loss and damage suffered by reason of the default or breach.

Ø 019

If the Land Bank shall have made any sublease hereunder and 8.04 if any Sublessee thereunder shall have given to the Army a notice (Sublessee Notice), specifying the name and address of the Sublessee, the Army shall give to the Sublessee a copy of each notice of default by the Land Bank at the same time as and whenever any such notice of default shall thereafter be given by the Army to the Land Bank, addressed to the Sublessee at the address last furnished to the Army. No notice of default by the Army shall be deemed to have been given to the Land Bank unless and until a copy thereof shall have been so given to the Sublessee. The Sublessee shall then have a period of ten (10) days more, after service of the notice upon it, for remedying the default or causing it to be remedied, than is given the Land Bank hereunder after service of such notice upon it, except in the case of imminent danger to safety or health.

8.05 The Army will accept performance by any Sublessee hereunder of any covenant, condition or agreement to be performed under the Lease by the Land Bank, with the same force and effect as though performed by the Land Bank.

8.06 From and after receiving a Sublessee Notice, the Army and the Land Bank will not materially modify or amend the Lease without giving each Sublessee that gave a Sublessee Notice to the Army hereunder thirty (30) days written notice thereof.

8.07 Other than under the provisions of this Article 8, the Army shall have no legal respons. Dility or obligation to the Land Bank's sublessees or licensess.

)

ARTICLE 9 MORTGAGING

9.01 The Land Bank or any Sublessee may make a mortgage or mortgages on its interest in the Lease. The provisions of this Article 9 shall be fully applicable to Sublessees of the Land Bank.

9.02 If the Land Bank shall have made any mortgage (sometimes referred to as a Leasehold Mortgage) and if a Leasehold Mortgagee (the holder of any Leasehold Mortgage) shall have given to the Army a notice (Leasehold Mortgagee's Notice) specifying the name and address of the Leasehold Mortgagee, the Army shall give to the Leasehold Mortgagee a copy of each notice of default by the Land Bank at the same time as and whenever any such notice of default shall thereafter be given by the Army to the Land Bank, addressed to the Leasehold Mortgagee at the address last furnished to the Army. No notice of default by the Army shall be deemed to have been given to the Land Bank unless and until a copy thereof shall have been so given to the Leasehold Mortgagee. The Leasehold Mortgagee shall then have a period of ten (10) days more after service of notice upon it, for remedying the default or causing it to be remedied, than is given the Land Bank under paragraph 8.01 herein, except in case of imminent danger to safety or health. The Leasenold Mortgagee, in case the Land Bank shall be in default, shall, within the period provided for in this paragraph 9.02 and, if applicable, 9.04, have the right to remedy the default or cause it to be remedied.

9.03 The Army will accept performance by the Leasehold Mortgagee of any covenant, condition, or agreement to be performed under

_)

the Lease by the Land Bank with the same force and effect as though performed by the Land Bank.

)

9.04 Except where the default is one relating to a matter that exposes occupants or the public to an imminent danger to safety or health of which the public authorities have given due notice to the Land Bank, whether written or otherwise, the time of the Leasehold Mortgagee to cure any default by the Land Bank that reasonably requires the Leasehold Mortgagee be in possession of the Lease Premises to do sc, shall be deemed extended to include the period of time required by the Leasehold Mortgagee to obtain possession and foreclose expeditiously and with due diligence.

9.05 From and after receiving the Leasehold Mortgagee's Notice, the Army and the Land Bank will not materially modify or amend the Lease in any respect without the prior consent of the Leasehold Mortgagee, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. In the event the Leasehold Mortgagee fails to respond to a notice of material modification or amendment of the Lease within thirty (30) days after service of notice, the Leasehold Mortgagee will be deemed to have given its consent.

9.06 No Leasehold Mortgages shall become liable under the Lease unless a Leasehold Mortgages becomes the owner of the leasehold estate, and in such event shall be liable only for as long as such Leasehold Mortgagee remains the owner of the leasehold estate.

9.07 If a Leasehold Mortgagee acquires the Land Bank's interest in the Lease as a result of a sale under its Leasehold Mortgage pursuant to a judgment of foreclosure and sale, or through any transfer in lieu of foreclosure, or through settlement of or

ì

arising out of any pending or contemplated foreclosure action, the following provisions of this paragraph shall apply, namely:

a. The Leasehold Mortgagee must assume the Lease and the Leasehold Mortagee shall have no right with respect to the Lease Premises unless said Leasehold Mortgagee assumes and delivers to the Army a duplicate original of the assumption agreement (to be executed in form for recording) within ten (10) days after said Leasehold Mortgagee acquires title to all or a portion of the Land Bank's interest in the Lease.

b. The Leasehold Mortgagee may transfer its interest in the Lease to a nominee or a wholly-owned subsidiary corporation without the prior consent of the Army, provided, however, that the Leasehold Mortgagee shall deliver to the Army in due form for recording within ten (10) days after the date of the transfer a duplicate original of the instrument of assignment and an instrument of assumption by the transferee of all of the Land Bank's obligations under the Lease, and provided further that the Army shall be given prior written notice of such transfer, and that the transferee shall use the Lease Premises in a manner that conforms to the Reuse Plan. The Leasehold Mortgagee shall be relieved of any further liability under the Lease after the transfer.

9.08 Any purchaser at a foreclosure sale must assume the Lease and said purchaser shall have no right with respect to the Lease Premises unless said purchaser so assumes and delivers to the Army a duplicate original of the assumption agreement (to be executed in form for recording) within ten (10) days after said purchaser acquires title to all or a portion of the Land Bank's interest in the Lease.

ARTICLE 10 QUET ENJOYMENT

10.01 The Land Bank, upon performing its obligations under the Lease shall and may, at all times during the Lease Term, peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the Lease Premises, subject to the rights of the Army under this Lease and the MOA.

ARTICLE 11

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

11.01 The covenants and agreements contained in the Lease inure to the benefit of and are binding upon the parties to the Lease, their successors and assigns, but this Article does not modify the provisions governing assignment, as elsewhere provided for in the Lease.

ARTICLE 12

IMPROVEMENTS; RESTORATION

12.01 The Land Bank shall have the right to make improvements to the Lease Premises, which improvements may include, without limitation, the demolition of existing buildings and the construction of new buildings and facilities, as provided for in the Reuse Plan and that do not violate the terms of this Lease. If the lease expires or terminates without conveyance of the Lease Premises to the Land Bank pursuant to the terms of the MOA, all improvements to the Lease Premises will become the property of the United States, and the Land Bank shall not be entitled to any compensation therefor.

41.

Ø024

12.02 If, on or before the date of expiration of this Lease or its termination by the Land Bank or the Army in accordance with the terms hereof, the Land Bank shall vacate the Lease Premises. the Land Bank will remove any personal property of the Land Bank therefrom, and restore the Lease Premises to as good order and condition as that existing upon the date of commencement of the term of this Lease, except for: (a) alterations, site preparation, improvements or demolition undertaken -- (i) pursuant to this Article 12, Article 16, or otherwise hereunder by the Army in conjunction with environmental remediation or UXO clearance activities, or (ii) with the permission of the Army; or (b) due to fair wear and tear. If this Lease is terminated by the Army in accordance with the terms hereof, the Land Bank shall vacate the Lease Premises, namove personal property therefrom, and restore the Lease Premises to the condition aforesaid within such reasonable time as the Army may designate. In either event, if the Land Bank does not remove said personal property and so restore the Lease Premises, then, at the option of the Army, said personal property shall either become the property of the United States, without compensation therefor, or the Army may cause it to be removed and the Lease Premises to be restored at the expense of the Land Bank, and no claim for damages against the United States or its cfficers or agents shall be created by or made on account of such removal and/or restoration work.

ARTICLE 13 NOTICES

13.01 All notices to the parties shall be addressed to them at the respective addresses first given for them in this Lease, or to such other address of which either of them, as the case may

. . .

8:<u>0.2</u>77, . . .

.

BEC BTC



be, shall notify the other in the manner stated in this Article 13 for giving notice. Notices must be given by either registered mail, return receipt requested, or by certified mail, return receipt requested. The service of the notice shall be deemed complete upon the receipt of said notice; or the refusal thereof, by the applicable party.

17 - CARTA BRADE LANDAR AN ARABIN

14.01 The failure of the Army or the Land Bank to insist in any one or more instances, upon a strict performance of any of the covenants of the Lease, or to exercise any option contained in the Lease, shall not be construed as a waiver of or relinquishment for the future of the performance of that covenant, or the right to exercise that option, but the same shall continue and remain in full force and effect.

ARTICLE 14 NO WATVER

ARTICLE 15

REMEDIES CUMULATIVE.

15.01 The rights and remedies given to the Land Bank or the Army upon the breach of any of the terms of the Lease are distinct, separate and cumulative remedies, and no one of them, whether exercised or not, shall be deemed to be in exclusion of any of the others.

......

1.21.3

1. .]

09/28/05 WED 22:58 FAX 9787963133

09/29/2003 15:53 FAX 5087567636

ંો

1

BEC BTC

NOWDITCH & DEWEY

ARTICLE 16

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SAFETY PROVISIONS

16.01 The parties acknowledge that Fort Devens has been identified as a National Priorities List Site under CERCLA. The Land Bank acknowledges that the Army has provided it with a copy of the FFA and will provide the Land Bank with a copy of any amendments thereto. The Land Bank agrees to abide by the applicable terms of the FFA and any documents originating therefrom, and further agrees that should any conflict arise between the terms of the FFA, as it may be amended, and the Lease, the FFA shall take precedence. The Land Bank further agrees that, except as provided in the provisions of Article 5 of the MOA, the Army assumes no liability to the Land Bank should implementation of the FFA interfere with the Land Bank's use of the Leased Premises, provided, however, that the Army shall, to the extent reasonable, practical, and without additional costs, minimize interference with such use. The Land Bank shall have no claim on account of any such interference against the Army or any officer, agent, employee or contractor thereof, other than for abatement of rent.

16.02 The United States' rights under this Lease specifically include the right for United States officials to inspect, upon reasonable notice, the Leased Premises for compliance with environmental, safety, and occupational health laws and regulations, whether or not the United States is responsible for enforcing them. Such inspections are without prejudice to the right of duly constituted enforcement officials to make such inspections. The United States normally will give the Lessee twenty-four (24) hours prior notice of its intention to enter the Leased Premises unless the United States determines earlier entry is required for safety, environmental, operations, or security purposes. The Lessee shall have no claim on account of any entries against the United States, the Commonwealth, or any officer, agent, employee, or contractor thereof.

22

09/29/03 MON 03:54 [TX/RX NO 9570] 2002

Ø 026

yran - oshining an

16:03 The Land Bank shall not construct or make for permittics sublessees to construct or make any substantial alterations additions; or improvements; co or installations upon or otherwis

modify or alter the Leased Premises in any way which may adversely affect the cleanup, human health, or the environment without the prior written consent of the Army . Such consent may include a requirement to provide the Army with a performance and payment bond satisfactory to it in all respects and other requirements deemed necessary to protect the interests of the United States. For construction or alterations, additions, modifications, improvements, or installations in the proximity of operable units that are part of a National Priorities List (NPL) site, such consent may include a requirement for written approval by the United States' Remedial Project Manager.

16.04 The Army, EPA and the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (DEP), their officers, agents, employees contractors and subcontractors have the right, upon reasonable notice to the Land Bank, and to parties in possession, to: enter upon the Leased Premises for purposes consistent with the applicable provisions on the FFA; and for the following purposes:

a. to conduct investigations and surveys, including, where necessary, drilling, soil and water sampling, test pitting, soil boring tests and other activities required under the FFA;

to inspect field activities of the Army and its employees, agents, contractors and subcontractors, in implementing ($\sim 10^{-1}$ the FFA:

conduct any test or survey required by EPA or DEP relating to the implementation of the FFA or environmental conditions at the Leased Premises, or to verify any data submitted to the EPA or DEP by the Army relating to such · conditions; and

09/28/05 WED 22:59 FAX 9787963133 09/29/2003 15:53 FAX 5087567636

 $\left(\right)$

BEC BTC

BOWDITCH & DEWEY

d. to construct, operate, maintain or undertake any other response or remedial action as required or necessary under the FFA, including, but not limited to, monitoring wells, soil removal, pumping wells and treatment facilities;

provided that the Leased Premises are restored in a reasonable manner to their condition prior to the exercise of the above rights, and provided further that any such inspection, survey, investigation or other response or remedial action will, to the extent reasonable, practical and without significant additional cost, be coordinated with a representative of the Land Bank and be performed in a manner that will minimize interference with the operations of the Land Bank. The Land Bank agrees to comply with the provisions of any healts or safety plan in effect during the course of the above-described response or remedial actions.

16.05 The Land Bank or any agent or contractor of the Land Bank shall not undertake'subsurface excavation, drilling, digging or . other substantial disturbance of the surface of the ground, or construction, alterations, additions, modifications, improvements or installations that may adversely affect the clean up being undertaken on the Leased Premises or other portions of the Port Devens NPL site, without: (a) seven (7) days prior written notice to the Army, EPA and DEP; and (b) prior written consent of the Army, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, and which consent may include a requirement for written approval by the EPA and DEP. Such consent may involve a requirement to provide the Army with a performance and payment bond satisfactory to it in all respects and other requirements deemed necessary to protect the interests of the Army. No groundwater will be extracted for any purpose. Excavation of garbage or landfill materials is prohibited.

16.06 The Land Bank hereunder shall be solely responsible for obtaining, at its cost and expense, any environmental permits required for its operations under the Lease, independent of any

24

09/29/03 MON 03:54 [TX/RX NO 9570] 2003

Ø1003

09/28/05 WED 23:00 FAX 9787963133

The first the second second second second second second

existing permits; provided however, that the Army shall, where permitted by applicable law or regulation, and at no cost to the Army, assign any such permits to the Land Bank, if so requested by the Land Bank, except where such assignment is prohibited by regulations or written policy of the Army.

BEC BTC

029

16.07 The Land Bank shall have a plan approved by the Army for responding to hazardous waste, fuel and other chemical spills prior to commencement of operations on the Leased Premises, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Such plan shall be independent of Fort Devens or its successors and shall not rely on use of installation personnel or equipment. Should the Army provide any personnel or equipment, spill containment, either on request of the Land Bank, or because the Land Bank was not, in the reasonable opinion of the Army, conducting timely cleanup actions, the Land Bank agrees to reimburse the Army for its costs.

16.08 The Land Bank shall comply with: (i) the requirement of 10 U.S.C. § 2692 to obtain the necessary Army approval for any storage of toxic or hazardous materials on the Leased Premises and (ii) the hazardous waste permit requirements under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) and its Massachusetts equivalent. Except as specifically authorized by the Army in writing, the Land Bank must provide, at its own expense, any hazardous waste management facilities, required by applicable laws and regulations. Hazardous waste management facilities of the Army will not be available to the Land Bank.

16.09 Any Army accumulation points for hazardous and other wastes will not be used by the Land Bank. The Land Bank will not permit their hazardous waste to be commingled with hazardous waste of the Army.

16.10 The Land Bank acknowledges that the Leased Premises are being leased subject to a Finding of Suitability to Lease (FOSL), dated March 28, 1996, which has been provided to the Land Bank.

...

an far search a tha an an an

ŧ.

والمحقق والمراجع

· · · · · · ·

internet and which the

and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the Leased Premises consist of parcels identified by the Army and EPA as parcels that require further environmental remediation, or documentation of the completion of remediation, by the Army, and include areas designated as Areas of Contamination, Study Areas, and Areas Requiring Environmental Evaluation.

16.11 Motices

م المجامع في المار

a. Preceding expiration, revocation or termination of this lease, the Lessee shall fully fund the Army's preparation of an updated EBS that will document the environmental condition of the property at that time in conjunction with the close-out survey and report, as described in Article 3.02 of this Lease. The updated EBS will serve to support the FOST for the transfer or conveyance of the property or, if the termination is not for purposes of conveying said property, a comparison of the initial and close-out surveys will assist the Division Engineer in determining any environmental restoration requirements, to be completed by the Lessee in accordance with the condition Article 12 of this Lease.

b. NOTICE OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES. To the extent such information is available on the basis of a complete search of Army files, notice regarding hazardous substances stored for one year or more, known to have been released, or disposed of on the Leased Premises is provided in the notice attached to the MOA (Exhibit B herein). The Land Bank should consult the EBS for more detailed information.

c. NOTICE OF THE PRESENCE OF ASBESTOS. The Leased Premises are known to contain certain amounts of asbestos, such as in, but not limited to, the floor tile, linoleum and associated mastic, asbestos-containing pipe and tank insulation, heating, ventilating and air conditioning vibration joint cloths, exhaust flues, acoustic ceiling treatment, siding, and roofing materials.

26

وتصغيره

The Lessee covenants and agrees that in its use and occupancy of the property, it will comply with all applicable laws relating to asbestos, and the Army assumes no liability for damages for personal injury illness, disability, or death to the Lessee, its successors or assigns, or to any other person including members of the general public, arising from or incident to the purchase, transportation, removal, handling, alteration, renovations, use, disposition or other, activity causing or leading to contact of any kind whatsoever with asbestos on the property described in this Lease, regardless of whether the Lessee, its successors, or assigns, have properly warned or failed to properly warn the individual(s) injured.

BEC BTC

Ø031

WED 23:01 FAX 9787963133

09/28/05

関いている

:99 193

> đ. NOTICE OF THE PRESENCE OF LEAD-BASED PAINT. The Lessee is hereby informed and does acknowledge that all buildings on the Lease Premises, which were constructed or rehabilitated prior to 1978, are presumed to contain lead-based paint. Lead from paint, paint chips, and dust can pose health hazards if not managed properly. Lead exposure is especially harmful to young children and pregnant woman. Before renting pre-1978 housing (target housing) lessors and sublessors must disclose to sublessees the presence of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the dwelling. "Target housing" means any housing constructed prior to 1978, except housing for the elderly or persons with disabilities (unless any child who is less than 6 years of age resides or is expected to reside in such housing) or any 0bedroom dwelling.

(1) Available information concerning known lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards, the location of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards, and the condition of painted surfaces is contained in the EBS, dated March 8, 1996, mand the Finding of Suitability to Lease, dated March 28, 1996,

he can tell and show the car all a second and the second

1.1.2

Ø032



ないでは

意識

which have been provided to the Lessee. All lessees and sublessees must also receive the federally approved pamphlet on lead poisoning prevention. The Lessee hereby acknowledges receipt of the information described in this paragraph.

(2) The Lessee and its sublessees, successors, and assigns, shall not permit the occupancy of any target housing without complying with this section 16.07d and all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations pertaining to lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards. Prior to permitting the occupancy of target housing, if required by law or regulation, the Lessee will abate and eliminate lead-based paint hazards by treating any defective lead-based paint surface in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

e. NOTICE OF THE FRESENCE OF RADON. Buildings on the Lease Premises may contain unhealthy levels of radon. Available and relevant radon assessment data pertaining to the Lease Premises are in the EBS. Prior to the use of any building for residential use or 24-hour per day occupancy, the Lessee, at its expense, must take appropriate measures to reduce the radon level to safe levels, in accordance with EPA guidelines.

f. NOTICE OF THE FRESENCE OF UXO. Certain portions of the Lease Premises, as designated as A2, A21, and A22 in Exhibit A herein (UXO Parcels), are subject to further UXO clearance by the Army, which clearance shall be undertaken by the Army promptly and at Army expense, subject to availability of funds. The Army will inform the Land Bank in writing when the clearance has been completed.

16.12 Each sublease, tenancy or license agreement made by the Land Bank hereunder shall contain provisions that will ensure the continuing compliance of the Land Bank, and the grantee 7. (At .21

<u>نار الم</u>

thereunder, with the FFA (ERCIA, and this Article 16. Furthermore, the Land Bank shall provide to the EPA and DEP, by Furthermore, the Land Bank sublease or license of the Leased certified mail, a copy of each sublease or license of the Leased Premises (as the case may be) within fourteen (14) days after the effective date of such transaction. The Land Bank may delete the financial terms and any other proprietary information from the copy of any sublease or license furnished pursuant to this paragraph.

16.13 The Lessee shall not occupy or use parcels A.1 and A.20 of the Leased Premises as described in Exhibit A without the written consent of the Army.

16.14 As contemplated in 40 CFR 51.853 (c) (xix) and 93.153(c) (xix) governing the conduct of General Conformity determinations, implementing Clean Air Act § 176(c), this lease is in furtherance of the transfer of the property through an EDC application and, as soon as the Finding of Suitability to Transfer (FOST) is issued and said property can be conveyed in accordance the requirements of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. 9620(h)(3), as amended, and other legal and policy requirements, the Army is legally obligated to convey to the Land Bank by one or more quitclaim deeds, the Lease Premises. The Army does not intend to and does not retain continuing authority to control air pollutant emissions associated with activities conducted on the Leased Premises pending the conveyance(s) within the meaning of 40 CFR 51.853(c)(xix) and 91.153(c)(xix).

المستحد والمستحد

*.:

· ·

and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

ا المراجع من المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع

بالمروفق والمشرب أواد يجريهم

and the second second second states and shares

09/28/05 WED 23:03 FAX 9787963133

liabl€

Stranger with a sent entry the state with some

areas there is a

盖 原题 达 伦、兰 化

BEC BTC

DISPUTES, CLAUSE

a states and an a second

 $O(m, S_i)$

Ø 034

17.01. Excepters, provided in the Contract Disputes Act of 1978 (41 U.S.C. 601-613). (the Act.), all disputes arising under or relating to this lease shall be resolved under this clause and the provisions of the Act.

17.02 "Claim", as used in this clause, means a written demand or written assertion by the Land Bank seeking, as a matter of right, the payment of money in a sum certain, the adjustment of interpretation of lease terms, or other relief arising under or relating to this lease. A claim arising under this lease, unlike a claim relating to this lease, is a claim that can be resolved under a lease clause that provides for the relief sought by the Land Bank. However, a written demand or written assertion by the Land Bank seeking the payment of money exceeding \$100,000 is not a claim under the Act until certified as required by section 17.04 below.

17.03 A claim by the Land Bank shall be made in writing and submitted to the Division Engineer for a written decision. A claim by the United States against the Land Bank shall be subject to a written decision by the Division Engineer.

17.04 For Land Bank claims exceeding \$100,000, the Land Bank shall submit with the claim a certification that (i) the claim is made in good faith; and (ii) supporting data are accurate and complete to the best of the Land Bank's knowledge and belief; (iii) and the amount requested accurately reflects the lease adjustment for which the Land Bank believes the United States is

, 2001, Sand Bay, 2001 30 11

and the first the state of the second second second states and the second second second second second second se

المعقبة فيسترج المحار

17.05 The certification shall be executed by (i) a senior company official in charge of the Land Bank's location involved; or (ii) an officer or general partner of the Land Bank having overall responsibility of the conduct of the Land Bank's affairs.

Strate we also be against

BEC BTC

Ø 035

17.06 For Land Bank claims of \$100,000 or less, the Division Engineer must, if requested in writing by the Land Bank, render a decision within 60 days of the request. For Land Bank-certified claims over \$100,000, the Division Engineer must, within 60 days, decide the claim or notify the Land Bank of the date by which the decision will be made.

17.07 The Division Engineer's decision shall be final unless the Land Bank appeals or files a suit as provided in the Act.

17.08 At the time a claim by the Land Bank is submitted to the Division Engineer or a claim by the United States is presented to the Land Bank, the parties, by mutual consent, may agree to use alternative means of dispute resolution. When using alternate dispute resolution procedures, any claim, regardless of amount, shall be accompanied by the certificate described in section 17.04 of this Article, and executed in accordance with section 17.05 of this clause.

17.09 The United States shall pay interest or the amount found due and unpaid by the United States from (1) the date the Division Engineer received the claim (properly certified if required), or (2) the date payment otherwise would be due, if that date is later, until the date of payment. Simple interest on claims shall be paid at the rate; fixed by the Secretary of the Treasury as provided in the Act, which is applicable to the period during which the Division Engineer receives the claim and

09/28/05 WED 23:04 FAX 9787963133 09/29/2003 15:54 FAX 5087567636

4

}

BEC BTC

🖾 036

004

then at the rate applicable for each 6-month period as fixed by the Treasury Secretary during the pendency of the claim.

17.10 The Land Bank shall proceed diligently with the performance of the lease, pending final resolution of any request for relief, claim, or action arising under the lease, and comply with any decision of the Division Engineer.

ARTICLE 18

MISCELLANÉOUS

18.01 Both parties acknowledge and agree that a Notice of Lease will be recorded in the public records, which Notice shall be signed by the parties herete and identify the Lease Premises.

18.02 The Lease is subject to all existing easements and rights of way of record.

18.03 The provisions of this Lease are not subject to 10 U.S.C. \$2662.

18.04 This Lease contains the entire agreement between the parties regarding the lease of the Lease Premises to the Land Bank, and any agreement hereafter made shall not operate to thange, modify or discharge this Lease in whole or in part unless that agreement is in writing and signed by the party sought to be charged with it.

18.05 No member or delegate to Congress or Resident Commissioner shall be admitted to any share or part of this Lease or to any benefit to arise therefrom. Nothing herein contained, however,

32

10/90/04 MAN -----

 $\left\{ \right\}$

÷ ł

ſ ì BEC BTC

Ø1037

shall be construed to extend to any incorporated company, if the Lease be for the general benefit of such corporation or company.

18.06 Nothing contained in this Lease will make or will be construed to make the parties hereto partners or joint venturers with each other, it being understood and agreed that the only relationship between the Arry and the Land Bank hereunder is that of lessor and lessee. Neither will anything in this Lease render or be construed to render either of the parties hereto liable to any third party for debts or obligations of the other party hereto.

18.07 The brief headings or titles preceding each Arcicle are merely for purposes of identification, convenience and ease of reference and will be completely disregarded in the construction of this Lease.

18.08 This Lease is executed in two (2) counterparts, each of which is deemed an original of equal dignity with the others and which is deemed one and the same instrument as the other.

18.09 All personal pronouns used in this Lease, whether used in the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, will include all other genders.

18,10 This Lease shall terminate upon the transfer of all of the Lease Premises to the Land Bank in fee, or otherwise as provided for herein.

18.11 If any provision of this Lease is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable or void, then both parties shall be relieved of all obligations under that provision. The remainder

33

Ø1005

9. . of this Lease shall remain enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

:18.12 Discrimination.

a. The Lessee shall not discriminate against any person or persons or exclude them from participation in the Lessee's operations, programs or activities conducted on the Leased Premises, because of race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap, or national origin.

b. The Lessee, by acceptance of this lease, is receiving a type of Federal assistance and, therefore, hereby gives assurance that it will comply with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. § 6102); and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794). This assurance shall be binding on the Lessee, its agents, successors, transferees, sub-lessees and assignees.

Article 19 Insurance

19.01. At the commencement of this lease, the Land Bank shall obtain, from a reputable insurance company, or companies, comprehensive liability insurance. The insurance shall provide an amount not less than a combined single limit of \$1,000,000 for any number of persons or claims arising from any one incident with respect to bodily injuries or death resulting therefrom, property damage, or both, suffered or alleged to have been suffered by any person or persons resulting from the operations of the Lessee under the terms of this lease.

.34

09/28/05 WED 23:05 FAX 9787963133

() . . .) .

and a second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

، سر قرر المراجع BEC BTC

1 a 3 a

main in the second of

19.02 The liability insurance, policy, shall insure the hazards of the demised premises and operations conducted in and on the demised premises, independent contractors, contractual liability (covering the indemnity included in this leases agreement), and shall name the United States as an insured party. Each policy will provide that any losses shall be payable notwithstanding any act or failure to act or negligence of the Land Bank or the United States or any other person; provide that the insurer will have no right of subrogation against the United States; and be reasonably satisfactory to the United States in all respects. Under no circumstances will the Land Bank be entitled to assign to any third party rights of action that it may have against the United States arising out of this Lease. The Land Bank shall require that the insurance company give the Division Engineer thirty (30) days written notice of any cancellation or change in such insurance. The Division Engineer may require closure of any or all of the Lease Premises during any period for which the Lessee does not have the required insurance coverage. The Land Bank shall require its insurance company to furnish to the Division Engineer a copy of the policy or policies, or if acceptable to the Division Engineer, certificates of insurance evidencing the purchase of such insurance. The minimum amount of liability insurance coverage is subject to revision by the Division Engineer every three years or upon renewal or modification of this lease.

19.03 It is the Buyer/Lessee's option to obtain insurance on the structures and improvements of the Lease Premises, for such periods as the Lessee is in possession of the Lease Premises pursuant to this lease, to protect its interest. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as an obligation upon the United States to repair, restore or replace the Lease Premises or any

1.

والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع وال

The state in the second

۰. ·

Ø 039

5 5.

part thereof should it be diminished in value, darnaged or destroyed. The purchase price will not be altered should such damage occur and the Lessee has failed to obtain insurance. Any proceeds paid to the United States shall be applied to the purchase price.

19.04 The Land Bank shall maintain worker compensation and employer's liability insurance as required by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed the Lease as of the day and year first above written.

UNL'TED STATES OF AMERICA

By//an Paul W. Johnson

Deputy Assistant Secretary of the Army (Installations and Housing)

THE GOVERNMENT LAND BANK

normalise and an and a second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second second second

Bуr

Michael P. Mogan Executive Director